











DEPARTMENT OF STATE

OF THE

REGISTER

.

.

.

THE DEPARTMENT OF STATE

REGISTER

OF THE

DEPARTMENT OF STATE

JULY 1, 1934



UNITED STATES GOVERNMENT PRINTING OFFICE WASHINGTON: 1934

PUBLICATION NO. 622

Please report to the Division of Research and Publication of the Department any omission or errcr found in this Register.

U. S. SUPERINTENDENT OF DOCUMENTS

OCT 15 1934

.

CONTENTS

		Page
	Abbreviations and symbols	VIII
1.	Organization of the Department	1
	Office of the Secretary of State	1
	Office of the Under Secretary of State	1
	A state of the onder becevary of obstate	2
	Assistant Secretary of State (Carr)	_
	Assistant Secretary of State (Moore)	2
	Assistant Secretary of State (Sayre)	3
	Assistant Secretary of State (Welles)	3
	Office of the Legal Adviser	3
	Office of the Chief Clerk and Administrative Assistant	4
	Board of Examiners for the Foreign Service	6
	Board of Examiners for the Polegn betvice	6
	Division of Foreign Service Personnel	6
	Foreign Service Officers' Training School	7
	Division of Far Eastern Affairs	7
	Division of Latin American Affairs	8
	Division of Western European Affairs	8
	Division of Near Eastern Affairs	9
	Division of Mexican Affairs	9
	Division of Eastern European Affairs	9
		9
	Office of the Economic Adviser	
	Passport Division	10
	Office of the Historical Adviser	12
	Division of Research and Publication	13
	Division of Current Information	15
	Division of Foreign Service Administration	15
	Division of Protocol and Conferences	17
	Treaty Division	18
	Division of Communications and Records	19
		21
	Visa Division	21
	Bureau of Accounts	
	Translating Bureau	22
	Office of Coordination and Review	22
	Foreign Service Buildings Office	22
	Board of Appeals and Review	23
	Conciliation Committee	23
2.	Officers and personnel	24
	Officers	24
	Classified personnel	24
	Professional and asiantific service	24
	Professional and scientific service	
	Subprofessional service	25
	Clerical, administrative, and fiscal service	26
	Custodial service	31
	Unclassified personnel	33
	Department	33
	Passport agencies	33
3.	Retirements from the Department	34
		01

CONTENTS

Page

4.	Foreign Service of the United States	35
±.	Albania, 35; Argentina, 35; Austria, 35; Belgium, 36; Bolivia, 36; Brazil, 36; Bulgaria.	00
	37; Canada, 37; Chile, 38; China, 39; Colombia, 40; Costa Rica, 41; Cuba, 41; Czecho-	
	slovakia, 42; Danzig, Free City of, 42; Denmark, 42; Dominican Republic, 42;	
	Ecuador, 42; Egypt, 43; El Salvador, 43; Estonia, 43; Ethiopia (Abyssinia), 43;	
	Finland, 44; France and Possessions, 44; Germany, 46; Great Britain and Northern	
	Ireland, British Dominions beyond the Seas, India, 47; Greece, 50; Guatemala, 50;	
	Haiti, 50; Honduras, 50; Hungary, 51; Iraq (Mesopotamia), 51; Irish Free State,	
	51; Italy, 51; Japanese Empire, 52; Latvia, 53; Liberia, 53; Lithuania, 53; Luxem-	
	burg, 54; Mexico, 54; Morocco, 55; Netherlands and Possessions, 55; Nicaragua,	
	56; Norway, 56; Palestine, 57; Panama, 57; Paraguay, 57; Persia, 57; Peru, 57;	
	Philippine Islands, 58; Poland, 58; Portugal and Possessions, 58; Rumania, 58;	
	Siam, 59; Spain, 59; Sweden, 59; Switzerland, 60; Syria, 60; Turkey, 60; Union	
	of South Africa, 61; Union of Soviet Socialist Republics, 61; Uruguay, 61; Venezuela,	
	62; Yugoslavia, 62.	
	Foreign Service officers on detail as inspectors	63
	Foreign Service officers assigned to the Department	63
	Foreign Service officers detailed temporarily to the Department	64
5.	Consular districts	65
	Description of consular districts	65
	Allocation of provinces, states, etc., to consular districts	74
6.	Supervisory consulates general	90
	Tariff of United States consular fees	91
8.	Disposition of fees and compensation of consular agents and vice consuls	95
	Fees collected at consular agencies for the fiscal year ended June 30, 1933	95
9.	Principal officers of the Department, chiefs of mission, and diplomatic agents previously	
	in the ranks of the Foreign Service	96
	List of diplomatic missions	97
11.	Salaries in the Foreign Service	97
12.	Classification of Foreign Service officers	98
13.	Retirements in the Foreign Service	114
	Foreign Service officers	114
	Vice consuls (noncareer) and clerks	116
14.	Biographies	117
	Personnel of the Department of State and of the Foreign Service	117
	Diplomatic and Foreign Service officers who have died since July 1, 1933	283
15.	Diplomatic, consular, and Foreign Service officers who have resigned, retired, or died	
	in the Service since January 1, 1906	285
16.	Presidents of the United States and principal officers of the Department, 1789–1934	294
	Presidents of the United States and Secretaries of State, 1789–1934	294
	Counselors for the Department of State, 1909–1919	298
	Under Secretaries of State, 1919–1934	298
	Assistant Secretaries of State, 1853–1934	299
	Special Assistants to the Secretary of State, 1930–1934	301
	Claims Clerks, 1849–1855	302
	Examiners of Claims, 1866–1891	302
	Solicitors, 1891–1931	302
	Legal Adviser, 1931–1934	302
	Chief Clerks, 1789–1934	303
17.	Diplomatic agents of the United States	304
	Diplomatic agents prior to 1789	304
	Principal diplomatic agents, 1789–1934	306

VI

CONTENTS

		Page
18.	Regulations concerning precedence of diplomatic agents	323
19.	Organization of the Foreign Service	324
	General information	324
	Laws and regulations	329
Inde	ex of persons	339
	ex of places	359

ABBREVIATIONS AND SYMBOLS

c.-consulate

c.a.—consular agency

c.q.—consulate general

bursing office

d.a. & d.o.-district accounting and dis-

l.—legation o.s.b.-office of the superintendent of

building

e.--embassy

v.c.—vice consulate

* indicates an officer who holds both diplomatic and consular commissions.

t indicates an officer who is assigned for language study.

t indicates that the date given does not show the total length of continuous service of the officer at the post. For this information see the officer's biography.

§ indicates that the officer's service has been interrupted. The date given represents the commencement of his present period of service. For his prior service see the officer's biography in this Register or in the Register indicated by section 15.

|| indicates an officer who has been retired under the provisions of the acts of May 24, 1924, July 3, 1926, or February 23, 1931.

tt indicates a diplomatic or Foreign Service officer who has resigned or retired since July 1, 1933. ** indicates a vice consul who receives no compensation except when in charge of a post.

A-C___Assistant Secretary of State, Mr. Carr.

A-C/C_Consular Commercial Office.

- A-M__Assistant Secretary of State, Mr. Moore.
- A-S___Assistant Secretary of State, Mr. Sayre. A-S/T_Tariff Section.
- A-W__ Assistant Secretary of State, Mr. Welles.
- AP____Appointment Section.

BA____Bureau of Accounts.

CC____Office of the Chief Clerk.

- CI____Division of Current Information.
- CR____Office of Coordination and Review. DCR__Division of Communications and Records.
- EA ___Office of the Economic Adviser.
- EE____Division of Eastern European Affairs.
- FA____Division of Foreign Service Administration.
- FBO____Foreign Service Buildings Office.
- FE____Division of Far Eastern Affairs.
- FP____Division of Foreign Service Personnel.
- FSS___Foreign Service School.

- HA____Office of the Historical Adviser.
- LA____Division of Latin American Affairs.
- LE____Office of the Legal Adviser.
- MA____Mail Section.
- ME____Division of Mexican Affairs. NE____Division of Near Eastern Affairs.
- PC....Division of Protocol and Conferences. PD....Passport Division.
- RP____Division of Research and Publication.
- S_____Secretary of State.
- SA____Special Assistant to the Secretary of State,
- Mr. Dunn. SA-H_Special Assistant to the Secretary of State, Mr. Hewes.
- SS____Stenographic Section.
- SU____Supply Section.
- TD____Treaty Division.
- TR____Translating Bureau.
- U_____Under Secretary of State.
- VD____Visa Division.
- WE____Division of Western European Affairs.

VIII

1. ORGANIZATION OF THE DEPARTMENT

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

The Secretary of State is charged, under the direction of the President, with the duties appertaining to correspondence with the public ministers and the consuls of the United States and with the representatives of foreign powers accredited to the United States, and to negotiations of whatever character, relating to the foreign affairs of the United States. He is also the medium of correspondence between the President and the chief executives of the several States of the United States; he has the custody of the seal of the United States, and countersigns and affixes such seal to all treaties, to Executive proclamations, to various commissions, and to warrants for the extradition of fugitives from justice. He is regarded as the first in rank among the members of the Cabinet. He is also the custodian of the treaties made with foreign states and of the laws of the United States. He grants and issues passports, and exequaturs to foreign consuls in the United States are issued through his office. He publishes the laws and resolutions of Congress, amendments to the Constitution, and proclamations declaring the admission of new States into the Union.

> Cordell Hull, Secretary of State Harry A. McBride, Assistant to the Secretary Hugh S. Cumming, Jr., Executive Assistant to the Secretary Earl R. Mosburg, Secretary to the Secretary Will Harris, Private Secretary Hazel H. Roberts, Stenographer

> > Kirk M. Green

Messengers

Clayborne Tennille

Louis S. Myers James R. Warren, *Chauffeur* Thomas P. Roache

SPECIAL ASSISTANT TO THE SECRETARY OF STATE Charged with such duties as may be assigned by the Secretary of State.

> James Clement Dunn, Special Assistant to the Secretary and Chief of Protocol George A. Morlock, Private Secretary

> > Special Assistant to the Secretary of State

Charged with such duties as may be assigned by the Secretary of State.

Thomas Hewes, Special Assistant to the Secretary Edna H. Hanlon, Private Secretary

OFFICE OF THE UNDER SECRETARY OF STATE

The Under Secretary of State is the principal assistant of the Secretary of State in the discharge of his various functions, aiding in the formulation and execution of the foreign policies of the Government, in the reception of representatives of foreign governments, etc. In matters which do not require the personal attention of the Secretary of State he acts for the Secretary 67359-34-2

of State, and in the absence of the Secretary of State he becomes the Acting Secretary of State. The Under Secretary of State is charged with the general direction of the work of the Department of State and of the Foreign Service.

> William Phillips, Under Secretary of State Vinton Chapin, Assistant to the Under Secretary Louis E. Mundy, Secretary to the Under Secretary Mary Agnes Breen, Clerk Charles A. Reeder, Messenger

ASSISTANT SECRETARY OF STATE

Charged with the general administration of the Department of State and the Foreign Service and with supervision of matters relating to personnel and management; is legislative, budget, and fiscal officer, charged with the supervision and preparation of estimates of appropriations of the Department and its several activities, their presentation to the Congress, and the allotments and expenditures of appropriations when made; has supervision also over all matters pertaining to consular affairs, passports, visas, Foreign Service buildings, and international conferences; is Chairman of the Foreign Service Personnel Board, the Board of Examiners for the Foreign Service, and the Foreign Service School Board.

> Wilbur J. Carr, Assistant Secretary of State Keith Merrill, Executive Assistant
> Arden E. Bing, Assistant to the Assistant Secretary Rebekah L. deLashmutt, Private Secretary Dorothy Tuggle, Clerk

> > Arthur J. Smith, Messenger

BUDGET OFFICE

B. Leslie Vipond, in charge

Clerks

Ella A. Logsdon

Viola H. Ratcliff

CONSULAR COMMERCIAL OFFICE

James J. Murphy, Jr., Chief

G. Harold Keatley, Administrative Assistant

Aloysius Wenger, Economic Analyst

Clerks

Elsie B. Cheever	Viola T. Snyder	John L. Hill
Elizabeth B. Gibson	Susanna Hemry	Cleo B. Morrill
Charlotte Bradshaw	Winne H. Bowman	John L. Stover
Joseph P. Burg		

James W. Hardy, Messenger

ASSISTANT SECRETARY OF STATE

Charged with such duties as may be assigned to him by the Secretary of State.

R. Walton Moore, Assistant Secretary of State Mary Helene Mitchell, Private Secretary Ann E. Mullen, Clerk

William W. Washington, Messenger

ASSISTANT SECRETARY OF STATE

Charged with economic, financial, tariff, and general trade questions and such other duties as may be assigned to him by the Secretary of State.

Francis B. Sayre, Assistant Secretary of State John S. Dickey, Assistant to the Assistant Secretary Eunice A. Lincoln, Private Secretary Anna Belle Newcomb, Clerk Robert T. Greenfield, Messenger

TARIFF SECTION

Henry F. Grady, *Chief* Alvin H. Hansen

Herbert F. Fraser William A. Fowler

Arthur R. Upgren

Ruth Russell

Emma Fell Paxson

Robert M. Carr

Curtis White, Messenger

Clerks

ASSISTANT SECRETARY OF STATE

Charged with Latin American questions and such other duties as may be assigned to him by the Secretary of State.

Sumner Welles, Assistant Secretary of State Anna L. Clarkson, Private Secretary Inez Johnston, Clerk

Burnett Booker, Messenger

OFFICE OF THE LEGAL ADVISER

Drafts and interprets treaties, conventions, protocols, and other international agreements; deals with questions of municipal, foreign, and international law, and handles diplomatic claims of American citizens against foreign governments; claims of foreigners against the Government of the United States, including the preparation and presentation of the former class of cases to international arbitral tribunals and the defense of the United States before such tribunals in cases of claims made by foreign governments; questions of personal and private rights of aliens in the United States and of American citizens in foreign countries, such as acquisition, inheritance, and transfer of property; arrest, detention, fines, imprisonment, personal injury, acts of insurgents, taxation, breach or annulment of concessions or other contracts; failure to pay interest or principal on Government obligations, sequestration or confiscation of property; complaints regarding action of executive, legislative, judicial, or military authorities; questions concerning the rights and privileges of American diplomatic and consular officers abroad and of foreign diplomatic and consular officers in the United States, and concerning the rights and immunities of sovereigns and public property; questions relating to the jurisdiction over and control of public or private vessels; questions relating to citizenship, naturalization, expatriation, extradition, and extraterritoriality; questions relating to the acts and rights of belligerents. neutrals, and insurgents on land or sea; and a large number of miscellaneous legal questions not included in the above classification.

> Green H. Hackworth, Legal Adviser James Alan Nash, Administrative Assistant

Assistants to the Legal Adviser

Jacob A. Metzger Joseph R. Baker Ralph W. S. Hill Richard W. Flournoy, Jr. William R. Vallance Bert L. Hunt Frank X. Ward D. A. McDougal Anna A. Ó'Neill Herbert B. Collins Joseph B. Matré James Oliver Murdock E. Russell Lutz Benedict M. English Francis M. Anderson Raymund T. Yingling Frederick M. Diven John Maktos Marjorie M. Whiteman Ethel L. Lawrence Walter E. Pelton Durward V. Sandifer George S. Knight

Clerks Messengers

Mary A. Duffy

Florence G. Sweet

Wallace W. Carter

Alphonzo G. English

OFFICE OF THE CHIEF CLERK AND ADMINISTRATIVE ASSISTANT

Is charged with the general supervision of the clerical personnel of the Department; supervision over the property of the Department; expenditures of appropriations, salaries, and contingent expenses; office space; authentications; custody of the Great Seal and the seal of the Department; classification of positions; efficiency ratings; miscellaneous correspondence; supervision over Appointment, Stenographic, Mail, and Supply Sections.

> Clinton E. MacEachran,¹ Chief Clerk and Administrative Assistant Percy F. Allen, Assistant to the Chief Clerk and Chief of Appointment Section Edgar P. Allen, Administrative Assistant Margaret R. Shedd, Administrative Assistant

> > Clerks

Forrest D. Van Valin Louise White Norvelle H. Sannebeck Margaret L. Swanson

Warren McBeth, Messenger

Equipment and Repairs

Millard L. Kenestrick, in charge Charles F. Funkhouser, Assistant Samuel Small, Foreman of Laborers Bronson Proctor, Assistant Foreman

Nicholas Anthony Robert W. Brown James Hill Stephen Payne Emanuel Norris, Jr.

Clyde L. Norman

Emergency Room Eva Harris Jacobs, Nurse in charge

APPOINTMENT SECTION

Percy F. Allen, Chief

Clerks

L. Virginia Garner Clydia Mae Richardson

Albert S. Rice, Messenger

Stephen H. Quigley Will F. Dunker

¹ Foreign Service officer.

ORGANIZATION OF THE DEPARTMENT

STENOGRAPHIC SECTION

Edward B. Russ, Chief Margaret F. Conover, Assistant Chief Lillie B. Dowrick, Assistant to the Chief

> Group Supervisors Grace M. Horn Mary L. Meyer Catherine B. Stewart

Stenographers and Typists

Mildred Kirsch Anna S. Selvog Viola Werfield Ann Bruce Whitmore Bernardine F. Barlow Beulah M. Smithman Frances E. Cobb Katherine P. Corrigan Frances M. Beach Ann Marie Thain Viola L. Whiteomb Dorothy S. Williams Fay Sager Anton B. Fabatz Merlene Waddell Vernita Bronson

Hulda Virginia Cox Mildred J. Asbjörnson Faye G. Ramey Helen G. Kelly Eva Neel Taylor Virginia H. James Alsace L. Brammeier C. Jeanne Hackett Helen V. Schroeder Audrey M. Welch Lois D. Allee Lillian Kramer D. Muriel Kluczny Elsie Boelter

Gertrude C. Shallcross, in charge of duplicating

Clerks

Anna V. Burroughs Cressy L. Kegg

Herbert H. Henderson Messengers

Edward Wells

Augustus Lee

Margaret W. Sutton

MAIL SECTION

J. Brent Clarke, Chief Albert W. J. Grotjohan, Assistant Chief

> *Clerks* Frank A. Sannebeck

Ralph W. Pryor Bertram E. Williams

Robert Warren William H. Hester

Richard D. Welsh Chauffeurs

William J. Kelly Raymond Tyler Milton Baker, *Laborer* James H. Martin

William E. Johnson Antonio M. Richardson

Helen W. Cook Mildred V. Dryer Mary Sprigman Mildred E. Besore Auriel C. Friedrich Mary Louise Serrin Ethel L. Schoenfeld Hannah W. Baillie Cora M. Smith Mildred C. Cooper Gladys E. Schukraft

Edna M. Underwood

Lillian G. Taylor

Alice S. Downer

Eoline Howze

Vera N. Gallop

Marguerite R. Roddy

 $\mathbf{5}$

SUPPLY SECTION

Maitland S. Wright, Chief John E. Richardson, Assistant Chief Charles A. Slaughter, Clerk Raymond L. Stegmaier, Mechanic Walter B. Edmonds, Packer

Laborers

Maceo Carter

Harry B. Gaines

David C. Haywood

BOARD OF EXAMINERS FOR THE FOREIGN SERVICE

(Under Executive Order No. 5642 of June 8, 1931)

Wilbur J. Carr, Assistant Secretary of State
Sumner Welles, Assistant Secretary of State
R. Walton Moore, Assistant Secretary of State
Thomas M. Wilson,¹ Chief of the Division of Foreign Service Personnel
Lawson A. Moyer, Chief Examiner of the Civil Service Commission

BOARD OF FOREIGN SERVICE PERSONNEL

The duties of the Board of Foreign Service Personnel, under Executive Order No. 5642 of June 8, 1931, are: to submit to the Secretary of State for approval lists of Foreign Service officers in which all Foreign Service officers shall be graded in accordance with their relative efficiency and value to the Service; to recommend promotions in the Foreign Service, and to furnish the Secretary of State with lists of Foreign Service officers who have demonstrated special capacity for promotion to the grade of minister; to submit to the Secretary of State for his approval and for transmission thereafter to the President, the names of those officers and employees of the Department of State who, after five years of continuous service in an executive or quasiexecutive position, are recommended for appointment by transfer to the position of Foreign Service officer; to submit to the Secretary of State the names of those Foreign Service officers who are recommended for designation as counselors of embassy or legation; to recommend to the Secretary of State the assignment of Foreign Service officers to posts and the transfer of such officers from one branch of the Service to the other; to consider controversies and delinquencies among the Service personnel and to recommend to the Secretary of State appropriate disciplinary action where required; to determine, for submission to the Secretary of State after considering recommendations of the Division of Foreign Service Personnel, that the efficiency rating of an officer is unsatisfactory, thereby meaning below the standard required for the Service, in order that the Secretary of State may take appropriate action.

> MEMBERS OF THE BOARD Wilbur J. Carr, *Chairman* Sumner Welles R. Walton Moore

DIVISION OF FOREIGN SERVICE PERSONNEL

The duties of the Division of Foreign Service Personnel are: to maintain contact with Foreign Service officers and employees while on visits to the United States; to discuss with Foreign Service officers ways for the development and improvement of their work; to confer with the divisions of the Department concerning the work of Foreign Service officers; to interview applicants and prospective applicants for the Foreign Service; to examine and recommend for appointment applicants for positions as subordinate employees in the Foreign Service; to collect, collate, and record pertinent data relating to Foreign Service personnel; to

¹ Foreign Service officer.

keep the efficiency records of all Foreign Service officers and employees; to hold strictly confidential all personnel records of the Foreign Service, and to reveal no papers, documents, data, or reports relating thereto, except to the Secretary of State and to the members of the Personnel Board: to keep the records of the Board of Examiners for the Foreign Service and attend to all details connected with the holding of examinations for the Foreign Service; to submit recommendations on all matters within the authority of the Personnel Board; to attend. through the personnel officers assigned to the division, the meetings of the Personnel Board when so directed.

> Thomas M. Wilson,¹ Chief Worthington E. Stewart, Administrative Officer Edgar A. Shreve, Assistant Administrative Officer

> > Clerks

Marvin W. Will

Myron S. Garland

Mildred V. Deike

Joseph F. Mills, Messenger

FOREIGN SERVICE OFFICERS' TRAINING SCHOOL

The Foreign Service Officers' Training School is maintained for the instruction of new appointees to the Foreign Service. Only those persons who have successfully passed the examination for the position of Foreign Service officer are admitted to the school. It is under the direction of the Foreign Service Officers' Training School Board.

THE SCHOOL BOARD

Wilbur J. Carr, Assistant Secretary of State Sumner Welles, Assistant Secretary of State R. Walton Moore, Assistant Secretary of State Thomas M. Wilson,¹ Chief of the Division of Foreign Service Personnel Lowell C. Pinkerton,¹ Director of the Foreign Service Officers' Training School

THE SCHOOL

Lowell C. Pinkerton,¹ Director Cornelia B. Bassel, Assistant to the Director

Instructors

Lloyd C. Mitchell, Accounts and Returns	Glenn A. Smith, Estates and Notarial Functions
Harry A. Havens, Administration	James J. Murphy, Jr., Foreign Commerce
Edmund B. Montgomery, ¹ Administration	John Farr Simmons, ¹ Immigration Laws
Laurence C. Frank, Administration	James Oliver Murdock, International Law
Henry P. Dugan, Codes	Harvey B. Otterman, Inventories
Hugh L. Sturgis, Documentation of Mer-	Ralph A. Boernstein, ¹ Passports and Citizen-
chandise	ship
Harry F. Worley, ² Documentation of Mer-	Jay Pierrepont Moffat, ¹ Political Reporting
chandise	Albert V. Caffee, Shipping and Seamen

DIVISION OF FAR EASTERN AFFAIRS

Has general charge, under the Secretaries, of relations, diplomatic and consular, political and economic, with China, Japan, and Siam, and (in conjunction with the Division of Western European Affairs and other interested divisions) with the Far Eastern possessions and territories

¹ Foreign Service officer. ² Treasury Department.

of European nations and the foreign-controlled islands of the Pacific not included therein, and of such matters as concern this Department in relation to the American-controlled islands of the Pacific and to the Far East in general; and has charge of such matters as concern this Department in relation to the control of the traffic in narcotic drugs.

> Stanley K. Hornbeck, Chief Maxwell M. Hamilton, Assistant Chief Stuart J. Fuller, Assistant Chief

Raymond C. Mackay Eugene H. Dooman¹

Myrl S. Myers ¹ Edward T. Wailes 1

Clerks

Ethel G. Christenson Frank E. Duvall Edna M. Frank

Zolita M. Kent Velda D. Mullins Ethel J. Laser

Ruth E. Kelly Dibert L. Yeagley Marguerite K. Todd

Paul A. Simmons, Messenger

DIVISION OF LATIN AMERICAN AFFAIRS

Has general charge, under the Secretaries, of relations, diplomatic and consular, political and economic, with Argentina, Bolivia, Brazil, Chile, Colombia, Costa Rica, Cuba, Dominican Republic, Ecuador, El Salvador, Guatemala, Haiti, Honduras, Nicaragua, Panama, Paraguay, Peru, Uruguay, and Venezuela.

> Edwin C. Wilson,¹ Chief Joseph F. McGurk,¹ Assistant Chief Willard L. Beaulac,¹ Assistant Chief

William R. Manning Laurence Duggan Stuart E. Grummon¹ George R. Merrell, Jr.¹ Donald R. Heath¹ Favette J. Flexer¹ Warren Kelchner

Clerks

Nina G. Romeyn Edith M. Grav

Luella Ollis Blanche S. Pollock Clara J. Freeman Constance M. Supplee

Victor E. Jones, Messenger

DIVISION OF WESTERN EUROPEAN AFFAIRS

Has general charge, under the Secretaries, of relations, diplomatic and consular, political and economic, with Austria, Belgium, Canada, Czechoslovakia, Denmark, France, Germany, Great Britain (including Northern Ireland, British Dominions beyond the Seas, India), Hungary, Irish Free State, Italy, Liberia, Morocco, the Netherlands, Norway, Portugal, Spain, Sweden, Switzerland, Union of South Africa, and international organizations in Europe; European possessions in the Far East in conjunction with the Division of Far Eastern Affairs.

> Jay Pierrepont Moffat,¹ Chief John Hickerson, Assistant Chief Paul T. Culbertson, Assistant Chief

Joseph C. Green Frederick P. Hibbard 1 Rudolf E. Schoenfeld ¹

John R. Minter Noel H. Field Hugh G. Grant

John H. Morgan¹ LaVerne Baldwin¹ Richard W. Morin¹

Foreign Service officer.

Clara L. Borjes Albina L. Parkins Eileen McKenny Nettie N. Bagby Albena M. Wilcox Vivian M. Smith

Charles H. Fennel, Jr., Messenger

DIVISION OF NEAR EASTERN AFFAIRS

Has general charge, under the Secretaries, of relations, diplomatic and consular, political and economic, with Afghanistan, Albania, Bulgaria, Egypt and the Anglo-Egyptian Sudan, Ethiopia, Greece, Iraq, Palestine and Trans-Jordan, Persia, Rumania, Kingdom of Saudi Arabia and other countries of the Arabian Peninsula, Syria and the Lebanon, Turkey, and Yugoslavia.

Wallace Murray, Chief

Paul H. Alling Maynard B. Barnes¹

Clerks

Lucille Snyder

Henry L. Deimel, Jr. Henry S. Villard¹

Amy C. Holland Mary N. Birch Lillie V. Dickson Gladys Chalfant

Thomas J. Delaney, Messenger

DIVISION OF MEXICAN AFFAIRS

Has general charge, under the Secretaries, of relations, diplomatic and consular, political and economic, with Mexico.

Edward L. Reed,¹ Chief Richard C. Tanis, Assistant Chief Herbert S. Bursley ¹

Clerks

L. Adelaide Watson

Ruth C. Mason James E. Jackson, Messenger $Helen \ Boudreau$

Raymond E. Murphy

Charlotte L. Kushelevsky

DIVISION OF EASTERN EUROPEAN AFFAIRS

Has general charge, under the Secretaries, of relations, diplomatic and consular, political and economic, with Estonia, Finland, Free City of Danzig, Latvia, Lithuania, Poland, and the Union of Soviet Socialist Republics.

> Robert F. Kelley, Chief Earl L. Packer, Assistant Chief

Walton C. Ferris¹ Landreth M. Harrison¹ Bernard Gufler¹ Norris B. Chipman¹

Clerks Elizabeth B. Smith

Jane B. Bassett

Isaac Edwards, Messenger

OFFICE OF THE ECONOMIC ADVISER

Gives advice and recommendations to the Department on questions of general economic policy; unifies and coordinates economic matters within the Department; establishes and maintains

Pau May Mary L. Darley Elda B. Johnson

¹ Foreign Service officer.

liaison with the various economic bureaus in other departments; handles economic cases which have no regional character or which overlap geographical divisions.

Herbert Feis, Economic Adviser

Frederick Livesey, Assistant Economic Adviser

Roy Veatch

Clerks

Lerov D. Stinebower

Marianna Davis

Lillian E. Willier

Dorothy J. Wells

Clarence Compton, Messenger

PASSPORT DIVISION

Is charged with the examination and adjudication of applications for passports and for registration in consulates of the United States as American citizens; issuance of passports; issuance of instructions on passport matters to the executives of the several insular possessions; supervision over the Department's passport agencies in New York, Chicago, San Francisco, and Boston; direction of clerks of courts in passport matters; correspondence regarding effizenship, passports, registration, and right to protection while abroad; issuance of letters of introduction.

> Ruth B. Shipley, Chief John J. Scanlan, Technical Adviser and Assistant Chief F. Virginia Alexander, Assistant Chief Ralph A. Boernstein¹ George T. Heckert, Administrative Assistant

> > Clerks

Edith DeCell

George R. Schooley

Clarence T: Smith

CORRESPONDENCE REVIEWING SECTION

F. Virginia Alexander, Supervisor

Reviewers

Ethel Myers

Julia F. Simpson

Nellie Vass Myers

RESEARCH SECTION

Thomas F. Farrell

FRAUD SECTION

Ashley J. Nicholas, Law Clerk and Supervisor Robert V. Haig, Law Clerk

Clerks

Jennie V. Wright

Elsie R. Hanson

John O. Bell

CORRESPONDENCE SECTION Eugene C. Rowley, Jr., Supervisor

¹ Foreign Service officer.

Law Clerks

Willis H. Young

Correspondence Clerks

John C. Elliott Bernice L. Waterman

John T. White

Bertha S. Rodrick Alice M. Covel

> EXAMINING SECTION Walter P. Hibbs, Supervisor

> > Examiners

Albert B. Havenner Gladys E. Merriman Vivian R. Craley Louis G. Owens Thomas B. Reid William G. James Belle J. Abrams Erna V. Bishop Sydney B. Smith

Clifford O. Barker, Agent in charge of reception room

CASHIER'S OFFICE

Charles P. Roach, Jr., Cashier

Clerks

Gladys C. Ahrens

Helen R. Riedesel

INFORMATION AND RECORD SECTION Elizabeth H. Phillips, Supervisor

Clerks

Mary P. Kearney Elsie M. Carey Margaret Hall Mary J. Loar

Lloyd L. Gibson

TRANSCRIBING SECTION

Edwy L. Reeves, Supervisor Transcribers Ola May Stephan Elsie C. Davis Mary E. Owen

PASSPORT WRITING SECTION Maud Kennedy, Supervisor

> Senior Operators Rae Welch

Myra A. Murdock, Checker

PASSPORT MAILING SECTION Dudley L. Robertson, Supervisor Betty T. Warner Catherine D. McKaig

Frances M. Hamrick

Evelyn V. L. Alwin Alma A. Carroll Sara A. M. Johnson

Carol Sorrell

SUBJECT FILE

Frances N. Dismon

Messengers

Edgar Thomas George A. Thomas Edward Fauntroy Frederick A. Dodson Edlow G. Parker

PASSPORT AGENCY, BOSTON (U. S. Post Office and Courthouse)

Harry H. Bolds, Passport Agent Stoughton J. Richmond, Assistant Passport Agent

> PASSPORT AGENCY, CHICAGO (810 New Post Office Building)

Robert A. Proctor, Passport Agent John L. Barton, Assistant Passport Agent

> PASSPORT AGENCY, NEW YORK (Subtreasury Building)

Ira F. Hoyt, Passport Agent James J. Hughes, Assistant Passport Agent

Clerks

Harry P. Berliner Eva S. Barnhart Mary J. Staab Hulda Hultberg

Elma V. Waldron Matthew C. Earle William F. Marshall

Eugene Straight, Messenger

PASSPORT AGENCY, SAN FRANCISCO

(Customhouse)

Somerset A. Owen, Passport Agent Gordon Norquist, Assistant Passport Agent Aloysius O. Horan, Clerk

OFFICE OF THE HISTORICAL ADVISER

Gives advice and submits recommendations to the Secretary of State on historical and constitutional questions and matters of policy relating to current questions before the Department; is charged with the editing and compilation of the *Treaties and Other International Acts of the United States*, and of other publications; has supervision of the work of the Geographer of the Department; has eustody of the archives of the Department up to August 15, 1906, the originals of all treaties to which the United States is a party, the originals of all laws and acts of Congress, Executive orders, proclamations, and amendments to the Constitution; has eustody of all records involving the preparation of the certificate of the Secretary of State proclaiming that an amendment is a part of the Constitution and of all records relating to Presidential electors.

> Hunter Miller, Historical Adviser Mahlon F. Perkins,¹ Assistant Historical Adviser

¹ Foreign Service officer.

Administrative Office

Clerks

Louis E. Gates

Evelyn MacMillan

GEOGRAPHIC SECTION

S. W. Boggs, Geographer

Sophia A. Saucerman, Assistant Geographer

F. Irvine Burnham, Draftsman Dorothy C. Lewis, Map Librarian Bernardine K. Rasmussen, Clerk

ARCHIVES SECTION

Natalia Summers, Archivist

Assistants

Arthur E. Beach Alice M. Brown Julia M. Bland Edward J. Thomas

TREATY SECTION

Editorial Assistants

Richard S. Patterson

Rosa V. Sands

Messengers

William M. Steen

Charles M. Johnson

DIVISION OF RESEARCH AND PUBLICATION

Is charged with the editing and compilation of Foreign Relations of the United States, the session laws, Statutes at Large, Executive orders, and proclamations; with the preparation, custody, and distribution of all publications issued by the Department with the exception of those publications which are prepared in the Office of the Historical Adviser; has supervision of the Library of the Department, of the work of the Editor of the Territorial Papers of the United States, and of all matters relating to printing and binding and the submitting of recommendations concerning the allocation of the printing and binding fund.

> Cyril Wynne, Chief E. Wilder Spaulding, Assistant Chief

> > Administrative Office

Clerks

Norris E. Drew

Leonard H. Price

Helen Z. Dreyer

RESEARCH SECTION Morrison B. Giffen, Chief

Carlton Savage Victor J. Farrar George V. Blue Ernest R. Perkins 13

TERRITORIAL PAPERS

Clarence E. Carter, Editor

Editorial Assistants

Fred W. Shipman

Lillie R. Carter

Grace Alexander Grefe

LIBRARY

Martha L. Gericke, Librarian Yale O. Millington, Assistant Librarian

Library Assistants

Irving L. Thomson Amelia B. Deans Myra J. DeBerry Nona L. Doherty Miriam T. Rooney Grace W. Barry Mary A. Long Edith Miller Hanna M. Hanson Rosine G. Pilliod Gladys M. Dawes Lena L. Notson

PUBLISHING SECTION

Bryton Barron, Chief Irene B. Leach, Printing Clerk

Editorial Assistants

Richard E. Adlof, Jr. Estelle B. Cornette Edith L. Crone Mary P. Ogg Moody Hull Burdette E. Neiburg William Gerber Herbert E. Angel Helen Woodrow Bones

SPECIAL DOCUMENTS SECTION

Alice M. Ball, Chief

Madge Lee Guard

Marjorie V. Hottel

LAW SECTION

John J. Brauner, Chief

Editorial Assistants

Charles H. Miller

John R. Kennedy

Inez J. Gardner Matilda F. Axton M. Augusta Clarke Virginia Burbank Edith F. Stiles

Clerks

George S. Thomas

Messengers

Waldra T. Nickens

Laborers

Julius Lee

LeRoy Taylor

Jerome F. Cobbe

Vassar D. Gibson

DIVISION OF CURRENT INFORMATION

Is charged with the preparation of news items for the press; receiving and replying to inquirles from newspaper correspondents; preparation and distribution to officials of the Department and the Foreign Service of daily press summaries and special articles; furnishing them with press bulletins, copies of texts, and general information bearing upon foreign relations.

> Michael J. McDermott, Chief Walter A. Foote,¹ Assistant Chief

Howard Bucknell, Jr.¹

David McK. Key ¹

Clerks

Hurley S. Fisk

Alice McGavack

Gussie A. Lassen

Ulysses Prince, Jr., Messenger

DIVISION OF FOREIGN SERVICE ADMINISTRATION

Is charged with the general administration of the Foreign Service, including matters of appropriations and expenditures, rentals, equipment and supplies, organizations, instruction of diplomatic and consular officers, etc.; correspondence relating to the foregoing and to customs courtesies and free entry, letters rogatory, decoration of American citizens by foreign governments, international exchange of publications, diplomatic pouch service between the United States and foreign countries, and the designation of commercial, military, and naval attachés; whereabouts and welfare of Americans abroad, shipping and seamen, settlement of estates of deceased Americans in foreign countries, consular protection of American interests and, other than commerce, the general work of consular offices, such as immigration, quarantine, notarial acts, protection of the customs revenues, etc.

> Herbert C. Hengstler, Chief Harry A. Havens, Assistant Chief Ancel N. Taylor, Secretary to the Chief

Adele E. Dix, Chief Clerk of Division

Clerks

Mary E. Snyder

Edward R. Pierce

¹ Foreign Service officer.

15

Administration Section

Laurence C. Frank, in charge Edmund B. Montgomery ¹

Clerks

Meigs E. Newkirk Janet M. Harter Louise I. Baxley Clarke P. Cole Susan H. Shuey Hazel A. MacDonald Robert D. Leahy Rose S. Bryan G. J. Barnett Rosalind H. Koerner Fred E. Hailer Marjorine McInturff Howard E. Sangston George J. Webster A. Arlene Jones Rast

PROPERTY SECTION

Harvey B. Otterman, in charge

George Wilton, Jr.

Wanda N. Hobbs

SHIPPING SECTION

Clerks

Albert V. Caffee

Ruth J. Allen

NOTARIALS SECTION Glenn A. Smith

DOCUMENTATION SECTION Hugh L. Sturgis

MISCELLANEOUS SECTION

Frances M. Marsh, in charge

Clerks

Leonice K. Bechtold Virginia M. Ellis Effie K. Turner

WELFARE SECTION Madge M. Blessing

Messengers

William H. Dorsey

William L. Lewis

¹ Foreign Service officer.

Maynard B. Lundgren Orlando F. Smith

16

Francis E. Flaherty

George G. Riddiford

G. Victor Lindholm

Blanche S. Harlow

Hugh C. McMillan

Tuley N. Wood

Maud M. Crane

Otto O. Olsson

DESPATCH AGENCY, NEW YORK (45 Broadway)

Howard Fyfe, Despatch Agent

Clerks Stanley Zaveckas Walter Kearney

Rosemary Quinlan Stephen E. Lato

> DESPATCH AGENCY, NEW ORLEANS (Room 357, Post Office Building)

Leon Zinser, Despatch Agent

DESPATCH AGENCY, SAN FRANCISCO (Room 5, Ferry Post Office) Joseph F. Roberts, Despatch Agent

DESPATCH AGENCY, LONDON (6 Grosvenor Gardens, S. W. 1) John H. E. McAndrews, Despatch Agent

DISTRICT ACCOUNTING AND DISBURSING OFFICE, OTTAWA, CANADA (Foreign Service Fiscal District No. 1)

William McG. Harlow, District Accounting and Disbursing Officer Zern Hiner, Assistant District Accounting and Disbursing Officer

DISTRICT ACCOUNTING AND DISBURSING OFFICE, MEXICO, D. F., MEXICO (Foreign Service Fiscal District No. 2)

Victor H. Loftus, District Accounting and Disbursing Officer Hyman Goldstein, Assistant District Accounting and Disbursing Officer

DISTRICT ACCOUNTING AND DISBURSING OFFICE, PARIS, FRANCE (Foreign Service Fiscal District No. 3) Victor M. Lenzer, District Accounting and Disbursing Officer

DIVISION OF PROTOCOL AND CONFERENCES

Is charged with presentation to the President of ambassadors and ministers accredited to this Government; with correspondence concerning their acceptability to this Government and of correspondence concerning acceptability to foreign governments of like officers of the United States; with questions regarding the rights and immunities in the United States of representatives of foreign governments; with arrangements for all ceremonials of a national or international character in the United States or participated in by the United States abroad; with the entertainment and protection of distinguished foreign visitors; with questions concerning customs and other courtesies to foreign officials and distinguished visitors to the United States as well as to American officials abroad; with making arrangements for the visits of foreign naval vessels, foreign military organizations, and other matters of ceremonial in connection with the White House and the Department of State; with the preparation of the *Diplomatic List;* with questions concerning medals and decorations conferred by foreign governments upon military, naval, or civil officers of the United States; with the preparation of communica-

Walter B. Clare

tions from the President to heads of foreign states; with the obtaining of permission for American aviators to make flights in foreign countries and for foreign aviators to make flights in the United States; with arrangements for international conferences, congresses, expositions, and conventions, in which the United States is to participate, at home or abroad, and in cooperation with other branches of the Government and interested persons and organizations, determining the extent and character of that participation; with supervision of the fulfillment of the international obligations of the United States with respect to membership in and expenditures for international treaty commissions, committees, bureaus, and other organizations.

James Clement Dunn, Chief of Protocol Charles Lee Cooke, Ceremonial Officer

Richard Southgate, Assistant Chief

Julius C. Holmes¹

John H. Lord 1

Eula McDonald

Jefferson Patterson,¹ Assistant Chief

Clerks

Margaret V. Bennett Helen F. Doran Grace L. Wilson Margaret S. Duffley Virginia W. Collins Janie B. Warren

M. Williams Blake Jane M. Davis Regina E. Faherty

Alfred L. Jackson, Messenger

TREATY DIVISION

Is charged with assisting, when and as requested by the responsible officers, in the drafting of treaties and other international agreements, and correspondence pertaining to the negotiation, construction, and termination of treaties. The division is also charged with maintaining a set of treaties and other international agreements in force to which the United States is a party, and likewise those to which it is not a party, together with the pertinent laws, proclamations, Executive orders, and resolutions; maintaining lists of treaties and other international agreements between the United States and foreign governments which are in process of negotiation or ratification; collecting and keeping available information regarding the application, interpretation, and status of treaties; analyzing treaties by subject, and assembling, comparing, and studying the provisions on the same subject in different treaties; examining the texts of treaties, conventions, or international agreements to which the United States is a party, with a view to recommending such action as may be required to obtain the fulfillment by the other party of its duties and obligations and to effect the performance of the duties and obligations of the United States by legislative or administrative acts; maintaining lists of treaties, conventions, or international agreements expiring or subject to extension with a view to considering the renewal or extension thereof; performing the duties of a Secretariat for all treaties of which the United States is the depositary; and with performing such other duties as may be assigned by the Secretary of State.

Charles M. Barnes, Chief Wallace McClure, Assistant Chief

Assistants

Harry C. Hawkins Stephen Latchford Sydney Y. Smith

John A. Tonner Thomas Griffin Emily T. Chase Victor A. Wallace Joseph T. Keating Joseph A. Fennell

Clerks Marion E. Carter Marion K. Moore

George Scott, Messenger

Harry R. Turkel William V. Whittington

Evelyn D. Wlecke Melvin L. Leap

18

¹ Foreign Service officer.

DIVISION OF COMMUNICATIONS AND RECORDS

Is charged with the dispatch and receipt of all telegraphic correspondence of the Department; the encoding and decoding of messages exchanged in the conduct of foreign relations; the building of codes and ciphers used in the Department's intercourse with its representatives abroad, and devising rules and regulations governing their use; the auditing of telegraph accounts; the administration of the telephone service; the classification, recording, distribution, and preservation of correspondence; the custody of, and conduct of research in, the archives subsequent to 1906; the custody of the records of international conferences, congresses, and commissions in which the Government of the United States officially participates; the custody of, and conduct of research in, the records of the former War Trade Board; the drafting of correspondence and instructions on code, cipher, and record matters; the maintenance of a comprehensive index and file of documents published by the League of Nations; the distribution of official publications of foreign governments; the maintenance of a record of precedents of policy and procedure.

> David A. Salmon, Chief Roger S. Drissel, Assistant Chief Harvey E. Fenstermacher, Assistant Chief Alice R. Lucas, Administrative Assistant

TELEGRAPH SECTION

Henry P. Dugan, *Chief* Clayton S. Becker, *Assistant*

RECORD SECTIONS

Joseph W. McMahon, Supervisor

Chiefs of Sections

Charles Siegel, Passport Section
Walter H. Anderson, Western European Section
Dorothy K. Butler, Commercial Section
Edward E. Driscoll, Latin American Section
Samuel S. Ford, Miscellaneous Section
David Crenshaw, Eastern European Section
De Lyle Davis, Immigration Section Ruth K. Wailes, Personnel Section Marie J. Ackerman, Claims Section Leo J. Vincelette, Far Eastern Section Lucy E. Collins, Near Eastern Section Mary A. Sadler, Conference Section ————, Peace Conference Section Milford A. Shipley, War Trade Board Section Kathryn H. Conrad, Mail Section

Bertha E. Pierce, Publications Section Anna R. Theaker, League of Nations Section

Clerks

Marjorie D. Glennan Winfield S. Byars Esther C. Janson Alvin L. Petrain William V. Madden Harry L. Madison Joseph D. Steele Ira P. Meyer William A. Poole Kirby L. Prince John S. Whitt Ella Ruth Rinker Leo B. Hurney Florence P. Graves John B. Wells Daniel Henry Tilton Mary A. Fuerst Daniel J. Durning

Paul E. Goldsberry William W. Cummans Russell Atterberry Laura M. Miles Wendell H. Bain Margaret I. Gates George C. Windle Burton R. Kirby Delmar E. Webb

Clerks-Continued

Florence M. Clayton Irene S. Ulanvtzky Thomas F. Valenza Olive F. Hardistv Sarah B. McLean Loretto E. FitzGerald Delia T. Buckley Frances B. Paxson Rhoda A. Mathews Charles D. Dye Percy O. Tillett Glenn M. Gillette Elizabeth S. Doane Frances L. Hynson Maude Myers L. Johnson Ratcliffe Isham W. Perkins Frank Place Ira James Noe Wilbur E. Nicholls Lillian F. Phillips Ricardo M. Purvis Charles I. Bevans Berry R. Thompson Wayne C. Bobst James F. R. Garner Ralph K. Hirst Walter E. Jessop

May R. McKee Henry Snyder Lloyd A. Swanson Mary E. Tallant Ruth Rightmire Julian S. Cate Kenneth F. Channon Philipp L. Charles John S. Moats Thomas G. Sonner James D. Forbes H. Spencer May Lillian A. Sprague M. Esther Dawson M. Alice Magee Rose Clark Ralph Pierce S. Benjamin Bock Elsie May Crim Frederick W. Denniston, Jr. Vernon H. Doane Ruth Hartrick Delbert D. Mehaffy Nannie W. Berrey Blanche Bowers Mildred M. Smith Katherine V. Renois Alfred H. Macdonald

Ruth E. Peterson Beth Blaskev Mary L. Cobbs Walter G. Walcavich Harold G. Kissick William E. Cooke James A. Hobbs Clyde H. Wortham William T. Hopkins Ernest S. Parker Louis M. Drury Marie S. Peterson Ralph A. Vestal Laura Conz Ruth E. Carlson Mabel J. Pyle Gladys Wells Rufus L. Owen Warren V. Magruder, Jr. Kathryn M. Davis Rose B. Gault Robbin Beckley Marie L. Berger Frances B. Jones Margarete C. McCurdy Lucile M. Sutherland Ella P. Rutter

Telephone Operators

Catherine E. Hannan, Chief Operator

Louisa Pastorini Marie S. Clarke Emma L. Baker Eleanor F. Cograve

Messengers

Edward T. Simmons Ralph C. Walker Roswell N. Pinckney Percy H. Evans Thompkins G. Ricks Charles L. Johnson Frank R. Hawkins Elmer A. Taylor John W. Taylor Ernest Snowden Robert H. Carter

William W. Hawley, Laborer

VISA DIVISION

Is charged with matters connected with the administration of the immigration laws insofar as they concern the Department of State and its officers abroad.

> John Farr Simmons,¹ Chief Eliot B. Coulter. Assistant Chief

George L. Brandt ¹ Joseph F. Burt¹

Marjorie Moss Robert C. Alexander Herbert B. Monroe Frances I. Smith Elizabeth Hecht

H. Charles Spruks Clerks Elsie M. Schneider Inez A. Di Giulian Luella I. O. Hovgren

Myra L. Goodwin

Eire Mooney

C. Paul Fletcher¹

Francis P. Dormady

Harriett E. Sackett Mildred D. Smith Goldie R. Beck Agnes P. Bonnette

Messengers William D. Evans

William G. Williams

BUREAU OF ACCOUNTS

Is charged with the keeping of all accounts of the Department and of the Foreign Service; the administrative examination of all accounts; the approval of all accounts for transmission to the Comptroller General of the United States, together with the preparation of correspondence in relation thereto; the making of all financial reports and statements for the administrative officers of the Department; has general administrative supervision of all disbursing officers under the Department of State.

> William McNeir, Chief of Bureau George B. Stambaugh, Assistant Chief Fred R. Young, Chief, Audit Section -, Chief, Fiscal Control Section

> > Clerks

Francis M. Killarney Llovd C. Mitchell Lillian H. Middleton Florence E. Frisby Sophie Caplan John E. Baugus W. Scott Wilkerson Louis L. Widmer Agnes H. Beckert

Ruth Harvey Ralph H. Barger Edward C. Moylan E. Dallas Talbert James E. Redman Wilbur C. Avres Russell V. Lewis Emily S. Morrison Kathryn J. Wilson Horace L. Talley

George H. Morris, Messenger

Ernest L. Struttmann Ross L. Whitney Arch Whitney Ruth C. More Francis Furfey Charles M. Rice, Jr. James C. Hicks Stephen Hotsko

¹ Foreign Service officer.

Aura I. Middlekauff

TRANSLATING BUREAU

Is charged with the translation of communications in foreign languages referred by the White House, diplomatic notes and annexed documents, laws, treaty texts, proceedings at international conferences; translation or summarizing of letters and documents from foreign countries on departmental business; the critical examination of drafts of foreign texts of bilingual or multilingual treaties to which the United States is a party in order to insure the closest possible adjustment to each other of the foreign and English texts; such services as the bureau may be in a position to render in connection with international conferences held at Washington.

Emerson Christie, Chief

Translators

Burton H. Lamore John W. Perkins

Margaret C. Sunderland

Ignatius Jawney Fred G. Haskins

Arthur L. Lebel

Clerks

Ida May Stocker

Edward J. Tobin, Messenger

OFFICE OF COORDINATION AND REVIEW

Reviews all outgoing diplomatic, consular, and other correspondence; coordinates the correspondence of the several bureaus of the Department for consideration and initialing before signing: submits the correspondence to the appropriate officers for signature; maintains a current readyreference file of correspondence and an index of diplomatic precedents; advises the bureaus of the Department of changes in forms of address or changes in the accepted style of correspondence. The Mailing Section of this office is charged with the dating and the mailing of Department mail and with the certification of copies for the official records.

> Margaret M. Hanna, Chief Blanche Rule Halla, Assistant Chief

> > Clerks

Sadie D. Moore Mary G. Lackey

George W. Matheny

Helen L. Daniel Sallie F. Ross

Ruth Patee Griffin

MAILING SECTION

Clerks

Rosemary S. Davenport Edna M. Lindsay

Messengers

Otto R. Holsinger

Leland S. West

FOREIGN SERVICE BUILDINGS OFFICE

Is charged with the general supervision of matters relating to the housing of diplomatic and consular establishments abroad and the protection and maintenance of properties owned or to be acquired by the United States for such purpose. Has charge of programs of expenditures, with the approval of the budget officer of the Department, for the acquisition, construction, alteration, or furnishing of such properties.

Robert J. Phillips, Acting Chief

Clerks

Dorothy D. Morrison

Marcia Eberlein

22

BOARD OF APPEALS AND REVIEW

Wilbur J. Carr, Chairman Clinton E. MacEachran,¹ Vice Chairman

Anna A. O'Neill David A. Salmon Cyril Wynne John Hickerson

Margaret R. Shedd, Secretary

CONCILIATION COMMITTEE

Joseph R. Baker, Chairman Harry A. Havens, Vice Chairman

F. Virginia Alexander

Arthur E. Beach

Wilbur C. Ayres

¹ Foreign Service officer.

2. OFFICERS AND PERSONNEL

OFFICERS

Name, office, and salary	Whence ap- pointed	Date of com- mission
CORDELL HULL, Secretary of State (\$15,000)	Tenn	Mar. 4, 1933
WILLIAM PHILLIPS, Under Secretary of State (\$10,000)	Mass	Mar. 6, 1933
WILBUR J. CARR, Assistant Secretary of State (\$9,000)	N. Y	July 1, 1924
R. WALTON MOORE, Assistant Secretary of State (\$8,000)	Va	Sept. 19, 1933
FRANCIS B. SAYRE, Assistant Secretary of State (\$8,000)	Mass	Nov. 17, 1933
SUMNER WELLES, Assistant Secretary of State (\$8,000)	Md	Dec. 15, 1933
GREEN H. HACKWORTH, Legal Adviser (\$9,000)	Ky	July 1, 1931 ¹

¹ Appointed Solicitor for the Department of State Aug. 10, 1925; appointed Legal Adviser July 1, 1931 (act of Feb. 23, 1931, 46 Stat. 1214).

CLASSIFIED PERSONNEL

PROFESSIONAL AND SCIENTIFIC SERVICE

Name, grade, and salary	Whence ap- pointed	app	te of coint- ient	Name, grade, and salary	Whence ap- pointed	Date of appoint- ment	
Grade eight—Chief professional				Grade six—Principal professional			
At \$9,000: Hackworth, Green H At \$8,000:	Ку	July	1, 1931	<i>At \$5,600:</i> Alling, Paul H Green, Joseph C	Conn Ohio	Dec. 1, 19 Oct. 6, 19	
Dunn, James Clement	N. Y		10, 1931	Hawkins, Harry C	Mich	Aug. 12, 19	
Feis, Herbert	N.Y		13, 1931	Manning, William R	Tex	July 1,19	
Hornbeck, Stanley K	Colo		1, 1928	McDougal, D. A	Okla	Sept. 22, 19	
Kelley, Robert F	Mass	July	1, 1930	Murphy, James J., Jr	Pa	Mar. 24, 19	
Murray, Wallace	Ohio	July	1, 1930	Ward, Frank X	Pa	Apr. 1,19	
Grade seven—Head professional				Wynne, Cyril	Calif	Apr. 1,19	31
				a har anti-			
At \$7,500:	014	X]	1 1000	Grade five—Senior professional			
Metzger, Jacob A. At \$7,000:	Ohio	July	1, 1928	At \$5,200:			
Baker, Joseph R.	Okla	July	1, 1928	Boggs, S. W.	N. J	July 1,19	30
Flournoy, Richard W., Jr		July	1, 1928	Latchford, Stephen	D. C	July 3, 19	
Hill, Ralph W. S		July	1, 1928	O'Neill, Anna A	D. C	July 3, 19	
Hunt, Bert L		-	1, 1930	At \$5,000:	D. 0	5 dig 0, 10	
Vallance, William R		July	1, 1928	Collins, Herbert B	Ga	July 1,19	30
At \$6.500:		0 41 5	1, 1020	Matré, Joseph B.	Ohio	July 1,19	
Barnes, Charles M	Va	Oct.	1, 1928	Murdock, James Oliver	N. Y	July 1,19	
Culbertson, Paul T			28, 1932	At \$4,600:		• •	
Fuller, Stuart J	Wis	Apr.	1, 1931	Bing, Arden E	W. Va	July 14,19	931
Hamilton, Maxwell M	Iowa	Apr.	1, 1931	Coulter, Eliot B	Ill	Dec. 1, 19	930
Hewes, Thomas	Conn	Apr.	2, 1934	Deimel, Henry L., Jr.	Calif	Mar. 16, 19	931
Hickerson, John	Tex	Apr.	1, 1931	Duggan, Laurence	N. Y	Mar. 14, 19	934
Livesey, Frederick	N. Y	Dec.	1, 1930	English, Benedict M	Nebr	Mar. 14, 19	134
McClure, Wallace	Tenn	July	1, 1928	Field, Noel H	Mass	Aug. 21, 19	930
Miller, Hunter		May	1, 1931	Giffen, Morrison B	Mo	Apr. 4,19	
Packer, Earl L			1, 1930	Grant, Hugh G	Ala	Dec. 16, 19	
Phillips, Robert J	N. Y	Aug.	1,1933	Kelchner, Warren	Ра		
Southgate, Richard				Lutz, E. Russell			
Tanis, Richard C	N. J	July	1, 1930	Mackay, Raymond C.	Wis	Oct. 20, 19	31

OFFICERS AND PERSONNEL

PROFESSIONAL AND SCIENTIFIC SERVICE-Continued

Name, grade, and salary	Whence ap- pointed	Date of appoint- ment	Name, grade, and salary	Whence ap- pointed	Date of appoint- ment
Grade fire—Senior professional—Con.			Grade two—Assistant professional		
			At \$2.900:		
At \$4,600—Continued.	sc	Aug. 18, 1930		III	July 1,1930
Minter, John R Scanlan, John J	D. C	Dec. 1, 1930	Saucerman, Sophia A	111	July 1, 1930
Scaman, John J	D. C	1,1000	At \$2,800:	D. C	July 1,1930
Grade four—Full professional			Fennell, Joseph A	Md	
At \$4,400:			Haig, Robert V Keating, Joseph T	N.Y	July 1, 1930
Anderson, Francis M	N. J	July 3, 1930	Nicholas, Ashley J.	Ky	July 1, 1930
At \$4,200:		V II 9 0, 1000	Summers, Natalia	Tenn	July 1, 1930
Diven, Frederick M	Md	July 1, 1930	Turkel, Harry R	N. Y	July 7, 1931
Gericke, Martha L	D. C	July 1, 1930	Wenger, Aloysius	La	July 1, 1930
Yingling, Raymund T.	Md	July 1, 1930	Young, Willis H	Minn	July 1, 1930
At \$3,800:	•	, 1, 1000	Al \$2,600:	1711111.000	Ully 1, 1000
Ball, Alice M	D. C	Feb. 1, 1930	Burnham, F. Irvine	Utah	July 1,1931
Dickey, John S	Mass	Mar. 26, 1934	Deans, Amelia B		June 1,1930
Maktos, John	Mich	June 1,1931	Knight, George S	Tenn	Feb. 23, 1934
McDonald, Eula	Tenn	May 16, 1934	Thomson, Irving L		May 15, 1930
Wallace, Victor A	Utah	May 16, 1930			,
Whiteman, Marjorie M	Ohio	July 1,1931	Grade one—Junior professional		
Grade three—Associate professional			At \$2,400:		
At \$3,400:			Pierce, Bertha E	Calif	July 1,1930
Lawrence, Ethel L.	Kans	July 1,1930	At \$2,300:		
Millington, Yale O	N. C	July 1,1930	Hollaud, Amy C	Mass	Oct. 1,1930
Smith, Glenn A	Tenn	July 3,1930	At \$2,200:		
At \$3,200:			DeBerry, Myra J	Va	July 1,1930
Blackburn, Katherine C	N. Y	Apr. 4,1933	Doherty, Nona L	D. C	July 1,1930
Blue, George V	Oreg	Oct. 1, 1930	Rooney, Miriam T	Mass	July 1,1930
Farrar, Victor J		Sept. 22, 1930	At \$2,900:		
		June 1,1931	Barry, Grace W.	Minn	July 1,1930
Perkins, Ernest R		Oct. 1, 1930	Beach, Arthur E		
Sandifer, Durward V		July 2,1934	Brown, Alice M		Aug. 29,1931
Savage, Carlton		June 1,1930	Lewis, Dorothy C		Sept. 8,1930
Spaulding, E. Wilder		Sept. 15, 1930	Long, Mary A		Oct. 15, 1930
		Mar. 6,1934	White, John T		Oct. 12,1931
Veatch, Rov	Oreg	Dec. 16, 1933	Whittington, William V	111	Oct. 1,1930

SUBPROFESSIONAL SERVICE

Grade six—Senior subprofessional Al \$2,200: Sands, Rosa V D. C July 1, Grade five—Main subprofessional	1930	Grade four—Assistant subprofessional At \$1,740: Dawes, Gladys M Perkins, Isham W At \$1,620: Price, Leonard H	Ку Tenn Md	July 1, 1930
At \$1,800: D. C Aug. 29, Bland, Julia M D. C Aug. 29, Hanson, Hanna M Me May 1, Jacobs, Eva Harris. W. Va Apr. 16, Pilliod, Rosine G Ohio Oct. 1,	1932 1931	Grade three—Junior subprofessional Al \$1,440: Notson, Lena L Thomas, Edward J		Feb. 1, 1932 July 27, 1931

67359 - 34 - 3

			TVE, AND FISCAL BERVICE			
Name, grade, and salary	Whence ap- pointed	Date of appoint- ment	Name, grade, and salary	Whence ap- pointed	Date appoi mer	int-
Grade sixteen—Special executive			Grade nine—Fult administrative			
At \$15,000: Hull, Cordell At \$10,000:	Tenn	Mar. 4, 1933	At \$3,700: Allen, Percy F	Md	July	3, 1930
Phillips, William Grade fifteen—Senior executive	Mass	Mar. 6, 1933	At \$3,600: Marsh, Frances M At \$3,500:	Pa		1, 1930
At \$9,000:			Shreve, Edgar A At \$3,400:	Va	July	1, 1930
Carr, Wilbur J At \$8,000:	N. Y	July 1,1928	Barron, Bryton Dormady, Francis P	Wis	July	1, 1930 1, 1930
McBride, Harry A Moore, R. Walton			Vipond, B. Leslie			1, 1930
Sayre, Francis B Welles, Sumner			Alexander, F. Virginia Allen, Edgar P	Pa	Aug. 2	24, 1931
Grade fourteen—Executive			Brauner, John J Heckert, George T Lamore, Burton H	W. Va	July 1	19, 1934
At \$6,500: Hengstler, Herbert C	Ohio	Dec. 1, 1930	Logsdon, Ella A Spruks, H. Charles	Nebr	Apr.	1,1931
Merrill, Keith			Stambaugh, George B			
Grade thirteen—Chief administrative			Grade eight—Associate administrative			
At \$5,609: Cumming, Hugh S., Jr Salmon, David A		Mar. 14, 1934 Dec. 1, 1930	At \$3,800: Christie, Emerson At \$3,100:	D. C	July	3, 1930
Shipley, Ruth B			Rowley, Eugene C., Jr	D. C	July	1, 1930
Grade twelve—Head administrative			Fenstermacher, Harvey E Young, Fred R			
At \$5,200: Cooke, Charles Lee At \$5,000:	D. C	Jan. 19,1931	Grade seven—Assistant administrative			
Hanna, Margaret M Smith, Sydney Y		July 3, 1930 July 1, 1930	At \$3,200: Kcatley, G. Harold			
At \$4,800: McDermott, Michael J			Russ, Edward B At \$3,100:			3, 1930
Stewart, Worthington E At \$4,600:			Morlock, George A	Pa	July	3, 1930 3, 1930
Chapin, Vinton Havens, Harry A			Will, Marvin W At \$2,900: Bennett, Margaret V			3, 1930 3, 1930
Grade eleven—Principal administrative			deLashmutt, Rebekah L Mundy, Louis E	D. C	July	3, 1930 3, 1930 1, 1930
At \$4,000: McNeir, William	D. C	Dec. 1, 1930	Otterman, Harvey B Shedd, Margaret R	Pa	July	1, 1930 3, 1930
At \$3,800: Harris, Will Mosburg, Earl R			At \$2,800: Doran, Helen F	D. C	July	1, 1930
Grade ten—Senior administrative	WU	Nov. 1,1930	Hibbs, Walter P Lincoln, Eunice A	Va	July	1, 1930 1, 1930
At \$3,500:			Murphy, Raymond E Watson, L. Adelaide			1, 1930 1, 1930
Drissel, Roger S Frank, Laurence C Halla, Blancha Bula	R. I	Jan. 12, 1931	At \$2,600 · Clarkson, Anna L			
Halla, Blanche Rule	. D. C	Dec. 1, 1930	Mitchell, Mary Helene	Va	INOV.	1, 1999

CLERICAL, ADMINISTRATIVE, AND FISCAL SERVICE

Name, grade, and salary	Name, grade, and salary Whence ap- pointed		te of oint- ent	Name, grade, and salary	Whence ap- pointed	Date of appoint- ment	
ade sercn—Assistant administrative— Continued				Grade five—Senior clerical—Con.			
an and Continued				At \$2,500: Bassel, Cornelia B	W. Va.	July	3, 1930
\$2,600—Continued. Moore, Sadie D	NV	Tumo	1 1031	Bassett, Jane B	Conn	July	1, 1930
Perkins, John W				Becker, Clayton S	Pa	July	1, 1930
Perkins, John W	100	ren.	3, 1302	Breen, Mary Agnes	D. C	July	1, 1930
Grade six—Principal clerical				Butler, Dorothy K	Fla	July	1, 1930
Grude Shi—I Anterpar ciencar				Cheever, Elsie B	Mass	July	1, 1930
\$2,700:				Dix, Adele E	D. C	July	3, 1930
Middlekauff, Aura I	DC	July	1, 1930	Driscoll, Edward E	D. C	July	1, 1930
Romeyn, Nina G			3, 1930	Garland, Myron S	N. 11	July	1, 1930
Fonner, John A		July	3, 1930	Gates, Louis E	N. Y	July	1, 1930
\$2,600:			.,	Middleton, Lillian H	D. C	July	3, 1930
Caffee, Albert V	Ky	July	3, 1930	Myers, Ethel	Pa	July	1, 1930
Clarke, J. Brent			1, 1930	Newcomb, Anna Belle	Mass	July	1, 1930
Dugan, Henry P			3, 1930	Simpson, Julia F	D. C	July	1, 1930
Griffin, Thomas		July	3, 1930	Van Valin, Forrest D	Wash	July	1, 1930
McMahon, Joseph W		July	3, 1930	At \$2,200:		e e e	.,
Miller, Charles H		July	1,1930	Baugus, John E	Tenn	July	3, 1930
Roach, Charles P., Jr		July	1,1930	Birch, Mary N	Va	June	1, 1931
Wright, Maitland S.		July	1,1930	Burbank, Virginia	Md	July	1, 1930
\$2,500:			.,	Caplan, Sophie	D. C	July	1, 1930
Borjes, Clara L	N. J	Julv	1,1930	Clarke, M. Augusta	Okla	July	1, 1930
Farrell, Thomas F			1, 1930	Covel, Alice M	N. Y	July	1, 1930
Gardner, Inez J			1,1930	Crenshaw, David	Va	July	1, 1930
Moss, Marjorie			1, 1930	Daniel, Helen L	Va	July	1, 1930
Parkins, Albina L.		July	1,1930	Davis, Marianna	Ohio	June	1,1931
\$2,400:				Flaherty, Francis E	D. C	July	1, 1930
Lucas, Alice R	D. C	Dec.	1,1930	Frisby, Florence E	D. C	July	1, 1930
Siegel, Charles		July	1,1930	Johnston, Inez	Minn	July	1, 1930
\$\$,300:				Kennedy, John R	Ill	July	1, 1930
	Tenn	June	1,1931	Lackey, Mary G	Ку	July	1, 1930
Axton, Matilda F		Nov.	11, 1931	Lundgren, Maynard B	D. C	July	1, 1930
Blessing, Madge M.		Sept.	1,1930	Merriman, Gladys E	Mo	July	1, 1930
Chase, Emily T				Morrison, Dorothy D	Md	July	1, 1930
awney, Ignatius	D. C	Feb.	5, 1932	Myers, Nellie Vass	Va	July	1, 1930
Kenestrick, Millard L			9,1931	Patterson, Richard S	Pa	July	1, 1930
Killarney, Francis M			1, 1930	Richardson, John E	Fla	July	1, 1930
Mitchell, Lloyd C.	Pa	Aug.	1,1931	Stiles, Edith F	Mass	July	1, 1930
1				Sturgis, Hugh L	Md	July	1, 1930
Grade five—Senior clerical				Wilkerson, W. Scott	Ind	July	3, 1930
				Wood, Tuley N	Md	July	1, 1930
\$2,600:				Wright, Jennie V	Mich	July	1, 1930
Rodrick, Bertha S	Va	July	3, 1930	At \$2,100:			
\$2,500:			,	Anderson, Walter H	III	July	1, 1930
Christenson, Ethel G	Ind	July	3, 1930	Byars, Winfield S	111	July	2, 1930
Quigley, Stephen H			3, 1930	Davis, De Lyle	D. C	July	1, 1930
\$2,400:			,	Deike, Mildred V	Md	Nov.	1, 1930
Conover, Margaret F	N. Y	July	1,1930	Leach, Irene B	N. J	Feb.	1,1931
Ouffy, Mary A			1, 1930	Monroe, Herbert B	Ра	June	1,1931
Dunker, Will F			1, 1930	Tuggle, Dorothy	Va	July	1, 1930
Lavenner, Albert B			1, 1930	Wailes, Ruth K	Iowa	July	1, 1930
McKenny, Eileen			1, 1930	Widmer, Louis L.	DO	July	1, 1930

Name, grade, and salary	Whence ap- pointed	Date of appoint- ment	Name, grade, aud salary	Whence ap- pointed	Date of appoint- ment
Grade five—Senior clerical—Con.			Grade four—Main clerical—Con		
At \$2,000:			At \$1,980—Continued.		
Ackerman, Marie J	Pa	July 9, 1930	Howze, Eoline	D C	July 3, 1930
Adlof, Richard E., Jr	Tex	June 1, 1930	Hurney, Leo B	D. C	July 3, 1930
Allen, Ruth J	Wash	Sept. 1,1931	Owens, Louis G	D. C	July 1, 1930
Ayres, Wilbur C	D. C	Dec. 11, 1931	Shallcross, Gertrude C	D. C	July 3, 1930
Bagby, Nettie N	Va	Oct. 1, 1930	Smith, Frances I	Calif	July 1, 1930
Barger, Ralph H		Dec. 1, 1930	Whitt, John S	D. C	July 1, 1930
Beckert, Agnes H		Nov. 24, 1930	Al \$1,920:		
Collins, Lucy E.	Vt	Feb. 24, 1932	Bradshaw, Charlotte	D. C	July 1, 1930
Cornette, Estelle B		June 1, 1930	DeCell, Edith	Miss	July 1, 1930
Crone, Edith L		Nov. 11, 1931	Fisk, Hurley S Fuerst, Mary A	Iowa	July 1, 1930
Drew, Norris E Duvall, Frank E		June 1, 1932 July 1, 1930	Funkhouser, Charles F	Va	July 1, 1930 July 1, 1930
Elliott, John C		May 1, 1930	Gallop, Vera N	Iowa	July 1, 1930
Ford, Samuel S		Aug. 14, 1931	Glennan, Marjorie D	D. C	July 1, 1930
Gray, Edith M			Harlow, Blanche S	D. C	July 1, 1930
Hanlon, Edna H	1	Apr. 16, 1934	Hecht, Elizabeth	D. C	July 1, 1930
Harvey, Ruth		Nov. 24, 1930	Hull, Moody	W. Va	July 1, 1930
Haskins, Fred G			Madison, Harry L.	D. C	July 1,1930
Janson, Esther C	D. C	May 1,1934	Meyer, Ira P	D. C	July 1,1930
Lebel, Arthur L		July 1,1931	Ogg, Mary P	Va	July 1, 1930
Lewis, Russell V			Olsson, Otto O	Mass	July 1, 1930
Lindholm, G. Victor			Petrain, Alvin L	Ill	July 1, 1930
Mason, Ruth C			Ratcliff, Viola H	Okla	July 1, 1930
Moylan, Edward C			Reid, Thomas B	Md	July 1, 1930
Mullen, Ann E			Roddy, Marguerite R	Nebr	July 1, 1930
Redman, James E			Taylor, Ancel N	Utah	July 1, 1930 July 1, 1930
Riddiford, George G Roberts, Hazel H			Theaker, Anna R. Waterman, Bernice L.	Ill	July 1, 1930 July 1, 1930
Sadler, Mary A			Wells, John B	Va	July 1, 1930
Schooley, George R			Wilcox, Albena M		July 1, 1930
Shipley, Milford A			Wilson, Grace L.	Mo	July 1, 1930
Smith, Elizabeth B			At \$1,860:		
Talbert, E. Dallas			Graves, Florence P	Va	Nov. 1,1930
Vincelette, Leo J			Prince, Kirby L	Va	July 1, 1930
White, Louise			Rinker, Ella Ruth	Va	July 1,1930
			Schneider, Elsie M	D. C	May 24, 1932
Grade four—Main clerical			At \$1,800:		
41.00.100-			Angel, Herbert E	D. C	Jan. 20, 1932
At \$2,160:	D C	T	Atterberry, Russell	Mo	Oct. 1, 1930
Cook, Helen W			Bain, Wendell H	Iowa	Nov. 1, 1930
Madden, William V Steele, Joseph D			Beehtold, Leonice K Bronson, Vernita	D. C	Nov. 1, 1930 Aug. 4, 1931
At \$2,100:	- V&	July 3, 1930	Carter, Marion E	Iowa Va	
Crane, Maud M	DC	July 3, 1930		D. C	
Morrison, Emily S			Cummans, William W	Ohio	July 2, 1930
Poole, William A			Dismon, Frances N	D. C	
Smith, Orlando F			Duffley, Margaret S.	Mass	
At \$2,040:			Durning, Daniel J	Mass	
Craley, Vivian R	D. C	July 1, 1930		Mo	
Dowrick, Lillie B.	D. C	July 3, 1930	Ellis, Virginia M		
Phillips, Elizabeth H	. Del	July 1, 1930		D. C	
At \$1,980:			Gates, Margaret I	D. C	
Barker, Clifford O					
Conrad, Kathryn H				R. I	Sept. 1,1931
Dickson, Lillie V	D. C	July 3, 1930	Goldsberry, Paul E	Kans	July 1, 1930

OFFICERS AND PERSONNEL

Name, grade, and salary	Whence ap- pointed	app	te of oint- ent	Name, grade, and salary	Whence ap- pointed	app	ate of Doint- nent
Grade four-Main clerical-Con.				Grade three-Assistant clerical-Con.			
\$1,800-Continued.				41 41 900 Continued			
Frotjohan, Albert W. J.	va	Feb	18, 1931	At \$1,800—Continued. McLean, Sarah B	0.12	Test	* +00
Juard, Madge Lee	Utah		4, 1931	Ollis, Luella	Calif	July	1 193
Till, John L	Wis		1, 1931	Paxson, Frances B	Mo D. C	July July	1, 193 1, 193
Iorn, Grace M	Ohio		1, 1930	At \$1,740:	D. C	July	1, 195
Kirby, Burton R	D. C	Aug. 1		Abrams, Belle J	Md	July	1, 193
feMillan, Hugh C.	Mich			Alwin, Evelyn V. L	Minn	July	1, 193
leyer, Mary L	Va	July	1, 1930	Baxley, Louise I	Ga	July	1, 193
Miles, Laura M	Md	Oct.	1, 1930	Besore, Mildred E	D. C		1,193
Veiburg, Burdette E	Nebr	June	2, 1930	Boudreau, Helen	Kans		1, 193
www.irk, Meigs E	D. C	July 2	27, 1931	Bowman, Winne H	N. Y		1,193
tichardson, Clydia Mae	Ohio	Feb.	1,1934	Cole, Clarke P	Ga		1,193
Ross, Sallie F	Va			Collins, Virginia W	D. C	July	1, 193
annebeck, Norvelle H	Mo			Darley, Mary L	Va		1,193
tewart, Catherine B	Mass			Doane, Elizabeth S	D. C	July	1, 193
tover, John L	Pa			Dye, Charles D	Ку	July	1, 193
truttmann, Ernest L	Mo	1		Frank, Edna M	Mass		1,193
wanson, Margaret L	Pa			Friedrich, Auriel C	Mass	July	1,193
alley, Horace L	Va			Gillette, Glenn M	N. Y	July	1, 193
ilton, Daniel Henry	D. C			Goodwin, Myra L	D. C		1,193
urner, Effie K	W. Va			Hannan, Catherine E	D. C		1,193
lanytzky, Irene S	Pa			Hynson, Frances L.	D. C		1, 193
alenza, Thomas F	D. C			Kent, Zolita M	Iowa		1, 193
/addell, Merlene	Miss			Kushelevsky, Charlotte L	D. C	July	1,193
/ebb, Delmar E	D. C			MacMillan, Evelyn	Mass	July	1, 193
Whitney, Ross L	S. Dak			Matheny, George W	D. C		1, 193
ilson, Kathryn J	Wis			Mooney, Eire	D. C	July	1, 193
Vilton, George, Jr	Calif			Mullins, Velda D	Iowa	July	1,193
Vindle, George C	Md	Nov.	1, 1930	Myers, Maude	Pa	July	1, 193
Grade three—Assistant clerical				Phillips, Lillian F	D. C	July	1,193
Grade intee—Assistant ciericat				Place, Frank	Mass		3, 193
\$1,980:				Pollock, Blanche S Pryor, Ralph W	Mass	-	1,193
urg, Joseph P	N. Y	July	3, 1930	Purvis, Ricardo M	Md Tex	July	1,193
nyder, Viola T	D. C		3, 1930	Rasmussen, Bernardine K	Minn	July July	1,193 1,193
\$1,920:	D. C	July	5, 1550	Ratcliffe, L. Johnson	D. C	July	1, 193
halfant, Gladys	D. C	July	1, 1930	Sackett, Harriett E	Iowa		1, 193
ryer, Mildred V	D. C		3, 1930	Serrin, Mary Louise	D. C	-	1, 193
ennedy, Maud	D. C		3, 1930	Shuey, Susan H	Ill	July	1, 193
\$1,860:		- u.,	0, 2000	Slaughter, Charles A		-	5, 193
leGavack, Alice	Va	July	3, 1930	Smith, Vivian M	Calif	July	1, 193
filler, Edith	Kans		1, 1930	Sunderland, Margaret C.			1, 193
mith, Clarence T	D. C		1, 1930	Tillett, Percy O			1, 192
prigman, Mary	D. C		3, 1930	Warren, Janie B		July	1, 193
weet, Florence G.	Kans	July	1, 1930	Willier, Lillian E	Pa	July	1,193
\$1,800:				At \$1,680:			
hrens, Gladys C	Wis	July	1, 1930	Blake, M. Williams		July	1,193
uckley, Delia T	D. C	July	1, 1930	Carroll, Alma A	D. C	July	1, 193
i Giulian, Inez A	Va		1,1930	Griffin, Ruth Patee			25, 193
itzGerald, Loretto E	D. C		1, 1930	Nicholls, Wilbur E	Va	July	1, 193
lardisty, Olive F	Md	July	1, 1930	Noe, Ira James	D. C	July	1, 193
larter, Janet M	D. C		1, 1930	At \$1,620:			
lemry, Susanna	Ohio		1, 1930	Baillie, Hannah W			1,193
ames, William G			1, 1930	Barlow, Bernardine F	Va	-	3, 193
Iathews, Rhoda A			3, 1930	Barnett, G. J.			

Name, grade, and salary	Whence ap- pointed	Date of appoint- ment	Name, grade, and salary	Whence ap- pointed	Date of appoint- ment
Grade three—Assistant clcrical—Con.			Grade three—Assistant clerical—Con.		
At \$1,620-Continued.			At \$1.620-Continued.		
Beach, Frances M.	NY	Jan. 22, 1934	Reeves, Edwy L	D.C	June 10, 1931
Bevans, Charles 1	Md		Rice, Charles M., Jr	Wash	Mar. 14, 1934
Bishop, Erna V		Aug. 1, 1933	Rightmire, Ruth		Sept. 8, 1930
Bobst, Wayne C			Sannebeck, Frank A		Mar. 2, 1931
Bock, S. Benjamin		May 1,1934	Schoenfeld, Ethel L		May 18, 1930
Bones, Helen Woodrow		July 16, 1934	Schukraft, Gladys E		
Bryan, Rose S	D. C	May 1, 1931	Selvog, Anna S	Minn	July 21, 1931
Cate, Julian S	Mass	Sept. 16, 1930	Smith, Cora M	Vt	June 1, 1930
Channon, Kenneth F	N. J	Dec. 23, 1930	Smith, Mildred D	Mo	July 13, 1931
Charles, Philipp L		Feb. 20, 1931	Smithman, Beulah M		
Clark, Rose		Mar. 24, 1932	Snyder, Henry	D. C	
Cobb, Frances E		Nov. 3, 1931	Snyder, Lucille	Mo	
Cooper, Mildred C		Aug. 1, 1930	Sonner, Thomas G	N. Y	
Corrigan, Katherine P.		Nov. 3, 1931	Sorrell, Carol	N. C	
Crim, Elsie May		May 1,1934	Sprague, Lillian A	Iowa	
Davis, Elsie C			Stephan, Ola May		
Davis, Jane M		Aug. 1, 1930	Supples Constance M	Tex Miss	
Dawson, M. Esther Denneston, Frederick W., Jr		May 1, 1934	Supplee, Constance M Swanson, Lloyd A	SII	
Doane, Vernon II		May 1, 1934 May 1, 1934	Tallant, Mary E	D. C	
Downer, Alice S		June 20, 1931	Taylor, Lillian G	D. C	
Dreyer, Helen Z		Feb. 9, 1931	Thain, Ann Marie	Wash	
Faherty, Regina E		Nov. 1, 1931	Thompson, Berry R		June 23, 1930
Forbes, James D		Feb. 20, 1931	Underwood, Edna M		Feb. 4, 1931
Freeman, Clara J		Dec. 1, 1930	Welch, Rae		Apr. 27, 1931
Furfey, Francis			Wells, Dorothy J		July 21, 1931
Garner, James F. R.	D. C	July 1,1930	Welsh, Richard D		Mar. 18, 1931
Hamrick, Frances M	Va	May 8,1934	Werfield, Viola	Iowa	July 21, 1931
Hanson, Elsie R	Iowa	Sept. 3,1931	Whitcomb, Viola L.	Mass	Jan. 22, 1934
Hartrick, Ruth	111		Whitmore, Anna Bruce	Va	
Hirst, Ralph K	Va		Whitney, Arch	S. Dak	
Hobbs, Wanda N		July 17, 1931	Williams, Bertram E		June 3, 1930
Hottel, Marjorie V		Aug. 16, 1930	Wlecke, Evelyn D		Feb. 1, 1931
Hovgren, Luella I. O.	Mass		Yeagley, Dibert L	Kans	May 1,1934
Jessop, Walter E Johnson, Elda B	Tex Iowa	July 1,1930 Feb. 4,1931	Grade two—Junior clcrical		
Johnson, Sara A. M	W. Va.		At\$1,740:		
Kelly, Ruth E		Sept. 1, 1931	Berrey, Nannie W	DC	July 1, 1930
Kirsch, Mildred		July 21, 1931	Snyder, Mary E		July 3, 1930
Koerner, Rosalind H		Jan. 12, 1932	At \$1,680:	D1 0	
Laser, Ethel J		Feb. 6, 1931	Bowers, Blanche	N. Y	Feb. 1, 1930
Leahy, Robert D.		Sept. 16, 1930	Burroughs, Anna V		July 1, 1930
Leap, Melvin L	1nd	May 1,1932	Hailer, Fred E		July 1, 1930
MacDonald, Hazel A	N. Y	Aug. 1, 1930	Kearney, Mary P.		July 1, 1930
Magee, M. Alice	Mo	Feb. 24, 1932	Murdock, Myra A	D. C	July 3, 1930
May, H. Spencer		June 1,1931	Smith, Mildred M.	Mo	July 1, 1930
McKee, May R		July 1,1930	At \$1,620:		
Mehaffy, Delhert D		May 1,1934	Carey, Elsie M		July 1, 1930
Moats, John S		Aug. 14, 1931	Kegg, Cressy L	D. C	July 1, 1930
Moore, Marion K			At \$1,560:		× 1. × 1000
More, Ruth C.			Beck, Goldie R		July 1, 1930
Norman, Clyde L			Davenport, Rosemary S	N. Y	July 1, 1930
Owen, Mary E Picrce, Edward R			At \$1,500: Renois, Katherine V	DC	July 1, 1930

CLERICAL, ADMINISTRATIVE, AND FISCAL SERVICE-Continued

Name, grade, and salary	Whence ap- pointed	Date of appoint- ment	Name, grade, and salary	Whence ap- pointed	Date of appoint- ment
Grade two—Junior clerical—Con.			Grade two—Junior clerical—Con.		
\$1,440:			At \$1,440-Continued.		
Allee, Lois D	Ala	Mar. 5, 1934	Sager, Fay	III	Aug. 10, 193
sbjörnson, Mildred J	Minn	Oct. 14, 1931	Schroeder, Hclen V		
Sell, John O	Va	Jan. 19, 1931	Smith, Sydney B		Aug. 13, 193
Blaskey, Beth	Wis	Sept. 14, 1931	Sutton, Margaret W		
Boelter, Elsie	Mont	June 5, 1934	Taylor, Eva Neel		
Bonnette, Agnes P	Mass	Jan. 1,1932	Thomas, George S.		
Brammeier, Alsace L.	Mont	Feb. 1, 1932	Todd, Marguerite K		July 19, 193
Carlson, Ruth E	D. C	Dec. 1, 1933	Vestal, Ralph A		May 2,193
Tobbe, Jerome F	N. Y	Jan. 22, 1934	Walcavich, Walter G		Apr. 8, 193
Cobbs, Mary L.	Ohio	Oct. 24, 1931	Welch, Audrey M		Mar. 1, 193
Conz, Laura	Mass	June 1, 1931	Wells, Gladys		
Cooke, William E	Mass	Aug. 12, 1931	Williams, Dorothy S		
Cox, Hulda Virginia	W. Va.	Oct. 1, 1931	Wortham, Clyde H.		
Drury, Louis M	D. C	Oct. 9, 1931	wormani, cryde risterenter	1 64	Dept. 21, 100
Fabatz, Anton B	Minn	Aug. 17, 1931	Grade one—Under clerical		
Iackett, C. Jeanne	Mass	Feb. 24, 1932	and the chair clonear		
Iall, Margaret		Dec. 16, 1933	At \$1,620:		
Ienderson, Herbert H	D. C	Oct. 9, 1930	Pastorini, Louisa	Flo	July 3, 193
licks, James C		Mar. 30, 1931	At \$1,560:	T 10	July 0, 100
Tobbs, James A	Ga	Sept. 9, 1931	Clarke, Marie S	DC	July 3,193
Jopkins, William T		Oct. 28, 1931	Loar, Mary J		
Iotsko, Stephen		May 21, 1934	Sangston, Howard E		
ames, Virginia H		Jan. 1,1932	At \$1,500:	D. C	July 1,100
Xelly, Helen G		Nov. 16, 1931	Baker, Emma L.	DC	July 1, 193
Zissick, Harold G		May 1, 1931	Davis, Kathryn M		
Cluczny, D. Muriel		Mar. 26, 1934	Gibson, Lloyd L		
Kramer, Lillian		Mar. 6, 1934	At \$1,440:	D. U	oury 1,100
Lindsay, Edna M		July 1, 1930	Gault, Rose B	DC	July 1, 193
Macdonald, Alfred H			Martin, James H		
Macuonaid, Amed H		July 11, 1934	At \$1,260:	1.0	0013 1,100
McInturff, Marjorine		July 2, 1934	Beckley, Robbin	Ohio	Jan. 16, 193
McKaig, Catherine D.		Sept. 22, 1931	Berger, Marie L.		
Morrill, Cleo B		· ·	Cograve, Eleanor F		
Owen, Rufus L			Jones, Frances B		Jan. 16, 193
Parker, Ernest S			Lassen, Gussie A		Aug. 25, 193
Peterson, Marie S.			McCurdy, Margarete C		Mar. 23, 193
Peterson, Ruih E	-		Rast, A. Arlene Jones		
Pyle, Mabel J			Rutter, Ella P		
Ramey, Faye G			Sutherland, Lucile M		
			District Internet and a second and a second and a second		+ + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +

CUSTODIAL SERVICE

D. C	Jan.	1,1929
D. C	Mar.	6, 1933
D. C	Aug.	1,1929
D. C	July	1, 1930
D. C	July	1,1930
D	. C	

CUSTODIAL SERVICE—Continued

Name, grade, and salary	Whence ap- pointed	ap	ate of point- ient	Name, grade, and salary	Whence ap- pointed	Date appoi men	int-
Grade three-Minor custodial-Con.				Grade three—Minor custodial—Con.			
At \$1,500-Continued.				At \$1,260—Continued.			
Reeder, Charles A	D. C	July	1, 1930	Robertson, Dudley L.	Md	July 1	1, 1930
Scott, Georgo	D. C	July	1, 1928	Washington, William W	D. C	-	1, 1930
Thomas, Edgar	Ga	July	1, 1930	Wells, Edward	D. C	-	1, 1930
At \$1,440:		0 000	2, 2000	At \$1,200:	2.0	oury .	, 1000
Edwards, Isaac	Pa	July	1, 1930	Carter, Maceo	Ga	Dee. 16	1930
Hawley, William W	D. C	July	1, 1930	Carter, Robert H	D. C	Oet.	
Jones, Victor E.	D. C	July	1, 1930	Carter, Wallace W	D. C	May 1	
Simmons, Edward T	Pa	July	1, 1930	English, Alphonzo G	D. C	Oct. 6	
Simmons, Paul A	Pa	July	1, 1930	Fennel, Charles H., Jr	D. C	May 10	
At \$1,380:				Gaines, Harry B	D. C	May 19	
Compton, Clarence	D. C	July	1, 1930	Gibson, Vassar D	Va	July 8	
Dorsey, William H.	Md	July	1,1930	Greenfield, Robert T	D. C	Oct. 23	
Edmonds, Walter B.	D. C	July	1, 1930	Haywood, David C.	D. C		1, 1932
Evans, William D	D. C	July	1, 1930	Holsinger, Otto R	Md	Apr.	
Fauntroy, Edward	D. C	July	1, 1930	Jaekson, James E	D. C	May 16	
Hardy, James W	D. C	July	1, 1930	Johnson, Charles M	D. C	Aug. 16	
Hester, William H	D. C	July	1, 1930	Johnson, William E.	D. C	July 28	
Lewis, William L	Ga	July	1, 1930	Mills, Joseph F.	Va	July 1	
Morris, George H.	D. C	July	1, 1930	Proctor, Bronson	D. C	Dee. 1	
Pinekney, Roswell N	Md	July	1, 1930	Richardson, Antonio M	D. C	Oet. 17	
Smith, Arthur J	La	July	1, 1930	Snowden, Ernest	Va	Nov. 2	
Thomas, George A	D. C	July	1,1930	Steen, William M	Tex	May 7	
Walker, Ralph C	D. C	July	1, 1930	Taylor, Elmer A	D. C	July	
West, Leland S.	D. C	July	1, 1930	Taylor, John W.	D. C	July 2	
At \$1,320:	210111	0	-,	Tyler, Raymond	D. C	Feb. 20	
Booker, Burnett	D. C	July	1,1930		D. 0	x 0.0, 40	0, 1001
Dodson, Frederick A	D. C	July	1, 1930	$Grade \ two-Office \ laborer$			
Evans, Perey H	D. C	July	1, 1930	At \$1,320:			
Jackson, Alfred L	Pa	July	1, 1930	Anthony, Nicholas	D. C	July 1	1, 1930
Kelly, William J	D. C	July	1, 1930	Brown, Robert W	D. C		1, 1930
Rieks, Thompkins G	Md	July	1, 1930	At \$1,260:	D. C	ousy	1, 1500
Tobin, Edward J	D. C	July	1, 1930	Hill, James	D. C	July 1	1, 1930
Williams, William G	D. C	July	1, 1930	At \$1,200:	D. C	July	1, 1500
At \$1,260:	D. C	o cary	1, 1000	Lee, Julius	D. C	July 1	1, 1930
Hawkins, Frank R	D. C	July	1,1930	Payne, Stephen	Va		1, 1930
Johnson, Charles L.	Md	July	1, 1928	At \$1,140:		0 (11)	, 1000
Lee, Augustus	Pa	July	1, 1928	Baker, Milton	D. C	July 1	1, 1930
Nickens, Waldra T	D. C	July	1, 1930	At \$1,080:		July 1	., 1000
Prince, Ulysses, Jr	D. C	July	1, 1930	Norris, Emanuel, Jr	D. C	July 20	0. 1931
Rice, Albert S	D. C	July	1, 1930	Parker, Edlow G	D. C	Aug. 20	
Roache, Thomas P.	D. C	July	1, 1930	Taylor, LeRoy	Va	July 23	
	2.0	Jury	-,			5 cm 5 40	0, 1000

OFFICERS AND PERSONNEL

UNCLASSIFIED PERSONNEL

DEPARTMENT

Name and salary	Whence ap- pointed	Date of appoint- ment	Name and salary	Whence ap- pointed	Date of appoint- ment
Act of Feb. 28, 1929 (45 Stat. 1412): Clarence E. Carter (\$5,600) Fred W. Shipman (\$1,800) Lillie R. Carter (\$1,410) Grace Alexander Grefe (\$1,260) Act of June 12, 1934 (Publie, No. 316, 73d Cong.): Henry F. Grady (\$8,000) Alvin H. Hansen (\$8,000)	Ohio Mass Ohio Ill Calif Minn	Aug. 15, 1931 Sept. 8, 1931 Sept. 1, 1931 Feb. 20, 1932 July 1, 1934 July 5, 1934	Act of June 12, 1934 (Public, No. 316, 73d Cong.)—Continued: Herbert F. Fraser (\$6,000) Robert M. Carr (\$3,500) William A. Fowler (\$3,500) Arthur R. Upgren (\$3,800) Ruth Russell (\$2,000) Emma Fell Paxson (\$1,620) Curtis White (\$1,200)	Pa Calif Mass Minn Calif D. C	July 16, 1934 July 2, 1934 July 1, 1934 July 5, 1934 July 5, 1934 July 5, 1934 July 9, 1934

PASSPORT AGENCIES

Name and salary	Whence ap- pointed	ap	ate of point- nent	Name and salary	Whence ap- pointed	Date of appoint- ment
Boston: Harry H. Bolds, Agent (\$3,700) Stoughton J. Richmond, Assistant Agent (\$2,600). Chicago:	D. C	May	1, 1930	New York—Continued. Matthew C. Earle (\$2,200) William F. Marshall (\$2,000) Eva S. Barnhart (\$1,860) Harry P. Berliner (\$1,800)	R. I N. Y N. Y	Jan. 9,1931
Robert A. Proetor, Agent (\$3,700) John L. Barton, Assistant Agent (\$2,600). Vew York:	Ill	Мау	1, 1930	Mary J. Staab (\$1,680) IIulda Hultberg (\$1,620) Eugene Straight (\$1,560) San Francisco:	N. Y N. Y	June 16, 1932 May 1,1930
Ira F. Hoyt, Agent (\$4,800) James J. Hughes, Assistant Agent (\$3,200). Elma V. Waldron (\$2,300)	N, Y	May	1, 1930	Somerset A. Owen, Agent (\$3,600) Gordon Norquist, Assistant Agent (\$2,600). Aloysius O. Horan (\$2,200)	Calif	July 1, 1933 May 1, 1930 Dec. 1, 1930

3. RETIREMENTS FROM THE DEPARTMENT¹

PERSONS RECEIVING ANNUITIES

Name	Whence ap- pointed	Date of retire- ment	Name	Whence ap- pointed	Date of retire- ment
Blandford, Alice M Bocock, Annabelle H			Murphy, Mildred D Newcome, William A		
Bopp, Jennie Cook	Iowa	June 30, 1931	O'Keefe, James A Pierce, Charles L.	D. C	Apr. 30, 1934
Bresnahan, Nellie Burnett, Rufus R	D. C	Mar. 31, 1931	Quinlan, Joseph B	Mo	Feb. 4, 1927
Clairmont, Grace C Crusch, Mary	Ра	Apr. 30, 1932	Rowley, Eugene C., Sr	D. C	Aug. 31, 1931
Eaton, Paul W Fleming, Thomas J	D. C	Apr. 30, 1933	Scott, Walter Sharps, Lloyd	Nebr	June 30, 1932
Gibson, Frances C Goss, Mary W			Skinner, Sidney A Smith, Carothers H		
Hawkins, Richard H Holmes, James O			Swann, James S Tonner, Laura R		,
Kendall, Frederick A Martin, John S., Jr			Underwood, Wilbur W Welch, William H		

DECEASED

Name	Whence ap- pointed	Date of retire- ment	Date of death	Name	Whence ap- pointed	Date of retire- ment	Date of death
Abbot, Lucy E	Ohio	June 30, 1922	Dec. 26, 1925	Newton, T. John	D. C	June 30, 1922	Jan. 2, 1928
Babcock, Elisha J	D. C	June 30, 1922	Apr. 22, 1924	Peabody, Frank H	Ohio	June 30, 1922	July 24, 1925
Barry, John	D. C	June 30, 1922	Dec. 29, 1929	Perkins, Lindsay S	Ga	June 30, 1933	June 3, 1934
Bryan, Henry L	D. C	Aug. 31, 1930	Jan. 21, 1934	Roosa, I. P.	N. Y	Jan. 27, 1930	Apr. 28, 1930
Cole, Samuel	D. C	June 30, 1922	Mar. 14, 1928	Sayers, Thomas	N. Y	Sept. 30, 1931	Mar. 5, 1932
Coughlin, John T	Mich	June 30, 1922	Sept. 20, 1922	Shand, Miles	N. J	July 31, 1932	Feb: 12, 1934
Gwinn, Martha	D. C	Apr. 13, 1923	Mar. 25, 1924	Shultze, George H	R. I	June 30, 1931	Mar. 25, 1932
Hoyt, Edna K	Mich	Oct. 11, 1929	Dec. 28, 1930	Skinner, James S	Tex	Mar. 31, 1927	Feb. 25, 1933
Morrison, Thomas	N. Y	June 30, 1922	July 10,1927	Wheeler, Willard H	D. C	Mar. 15, 1928	May 29, 1931

¹ Under the provisions of the acts of May 22, 1920, July 3, 1926, May 29, 1930, or June 16, 1933.

	Post	Name and rask	Whence ap pointed	Date of as- signment	Class
	ALBANIA				1
na	(Tiranë), l	Post Wheeler, envoy extraordinary and minister	Washington	Aug. 26, 193	3
	(plenipotentiary.	U		
		Cloyce K. Huston, third secretary (vice consul)	Iowa	‡ Sept. 10, 193	2 Uncl.(d
		Col. Jerome G. Pillow, military attaché	War Dept	Oct. 13, 193	3
		Karl L. Rankin, commercial attaché	Dept. Commerce.	Feb. 4, 193	2
	n c	Cloyce K, Huston, vice consul (third secretary)	Iowa	1 Sept. 10, 193	2 Uncl.(
	V.C	Erich W. A. Hoffmann, vice consul			
	ARGENTINA				
	ARGENTINA				i.
IOS	A ires, e	Alexander W. Weddell, ambassador extraordinary	Virginia	June 3, 193	3
		and plenipotentiary.	Mana Wanla	Eab 16 105	4 1
		Raymond E. Cox, first secretary			
		Eugene M. Hinkle, second secretary			
		Joseph C. Satterthwaite, third secretary	War Dont	Mor 2,195	-1 FL
		Capt. Frederick D. Sharp, military attaché			
		Comdr. Edmund W. Strother, naval attaché			
		Alexander V. Dye, commercial attaché	Dept. Commerce.	Aug. 50, 192	0
		J. Bartlett Richards, asst. commercial attaché	Dept. Commerce.	July 12, 193	3
	<i>c</i> , <i>q</i>	Avra M. Warren, consul general	Maryland	‡ Sept. 29, 193	2
		John W. Bailey, Jr., consul			
		Odin G. Loren, vice consul			
		Clare H. Timberlake, vice consul			
		William C. Trimble, vice consul			
		Douglas Flood, vice consul			
		Robert F. Woodward, vice consul			
		Hayward G. Hill, vice consul			
		Sydney H. Banash, vice consul			
	AUSTRIA				
na	(Wien), <i>l</i>	George S. Messersmith, envoy extraordinary and	Delaware	Apr. 7,193	4
		minister plenipotentiary.			
		Alfred W. Kliefoth, first secretary	Pennsylvania	May 11, 193	3 1
		Cecil Wayne Gray, third secretary			
		Lt. Col. Martin C. Shallenberger, military attaché.			
		Thomas L. Hughes, commercial attaché			
		Lt. Col. Jacob W. S. Wuest, asst. military attaché			
		for air. Leys A. France, asst. commercial attaché	Dept. Commerce.	June 23, 193	4
			*		
	C.g	Ernest L. Harris, consul general	Illinois	Aug. 3, 195	9
		Francis R. Stewart, consul			
		Walter J. Linthicum, vice consul-			
		Thomas R Flack, vice consul			
		John William Scott, vice consul-			

Post	Name and rank	Whence ap- pointed	Date of as- signment	Class
BELGIUM 1				
Brussels (Bruxelles), e	Dave Hennen Morris, ambassador extraordinary	New York	May 18, 1933	
	and plenipotentiary. Louis Sussdorff, Jr., counselor of embassy	New York	Sept. 8, 1933	II
	George P. Waller, second secretary	Alabama	Mar. 10, 1931	VII
	Miss Frances E. Willis, third secretary	California	June 29, 1934	Uncl.(a)
	Robert G. McGregor, Jr., third secretary	New York	‡Aug. 12, 1933	Uncl.(b)
	Col. Frank P. Lahm, military attaché	War Dept	Feb. 26, 1934	
	Lt. Comdr. John A. Gade, naval attaché	Navy Dept	July 12, 1933	
	Leigh W. Hunt, asst. commercial attaché	Dept. Commerce_	June 17, 1927	
C	Walter H. Sholes, consul	Oklahoma	Apr. 17, 1930	IV
	Manson Gilbert, vice consul	Indiana	Oct. 13, 1926	
atwerp (Antwerpen), c.g	Marion Letcher, consul general	Georgia	July 6,1928]
	William H. Beach, consul	Virginia		VIII
	William D. Moreland, Jr., vice consul-	Oregon		Uncl.(c)
	Gerald A. Mokma, vice consul	Iowa	Aug. 10, 1933	Uncl.(c)
	Dwight W. Fisher, vice consul-	Dist. Columbia	1May 5, 1924	
BOLIVIA				
Ja Paz, l	Fay A. Des Portes, envoy extraordinary and min-	South Carolina	Aug. 19, 1933	
	ister plenipotentiary. Robert F. Fernald, second secretary	Maine	‡Aug. 22, 1933	VI
c	John C. Shillock, Jr., vice consul	Oregon	June 17, 1933	Uncl.(b)
		0,0,00		
BRAZIL				
llo de Janeiro, e	Hugh S. Gibson, ambassador extraordinary and plenipotentiary.	California	May 11, 1933	
	Walter C. Thurston, counselor of embassy	Arizona	Oct. 7, 1931	II
	John M. Cabot, third secretary	Massachusetts	May 12, 1932	VIII
	Maj. William Sackville, military attaché	War Dept	May 5, 1932	
	Ralph H. Ackerman, commercial attaché	Dept. Commerce.		
	A. Ogden Pierrot, asst. commercial attaché	Dept, Commerce.	Dec. 30, 1925	
c.g	Samuel T. Lee, consul general	Michigan	Jan. 22, 1931	I
	Julian L. Pinkerton, consul	Kentucky	Mar. 25, 1931	VII
	Harold B. Minor, vice consul	Kansas	June 15, 1931	Uncl.(b)
	Reginald S. Carey, vice consul	Maryland	May 15, 1934	Uncl.(c)
	Rudolf E. Cahn, vice consul	New York		
Victoria, v.c	Robert J. Clarke, vice consul	New York		
Bahla, c	Lawrence P. Briggs, consul	Michigan	Oct. 2, 1929	VI
0.56	Lee Worley, vice consul	Washington New York	Mar. 18, 1933 Apr. 30, 1930	Uncl.(c) VII
Pará, c Pernambuco (Recife), c	George E. Seltzer, consul	New York	Jan. 3, 1933	VII
ernambuco (reene), c	E. Allan Lightner, Jr., vice consul	New Jersey		Uncl.(c)
°orto Alegre, Rio Grande do Sul, c.	Reginald S. Castleman, consul.	California		VI
	Henry S. Haines, vice consul	New Jersey		
Rio Grande, c.a	Arthur L. Bowen, consular agent	Brazil		
antos, c	Arthur G. Parsloe, vice consul	Georgia		
Z Develo e e	Carol H. Foster, consul general	Maryland	June 20, 1934	IV
ão Paulo, c.g		37	37. 0 1000	TT
ao raulo, c.g	Frederic C. Fornes, Jr., vice consul Willard Galbraith, vice consul	New York California		Uncl.(c) Uncl.(c)

¹ The diplomatic officers here listed are accredited also to Luxemburg.

	Post	Name and rank	Whence appointed		e of as- iment	Class
	BULGARIA					
ia (S	ofiya), l	Frederick A. Sterling, envoy extraordinary and minister plenipotentiary.	Texas	Sept.	1, 1933	
		John McArdle, third secretary (consul)	Pennsylvania	May	5, 1932	VIII
		Cavendish W. Cannon, third secretary (vice consul).	Utah		2, 1933	
		Lt. Col. John A. Crane, military attaché	War Dept		1, 1932	
		Julian E. Gillespie, commercial attaché	Dept. Commerce.	Feb.	13, 1932	
	C	John McArdle, consul (third secretary)	Pennsylvania		5, 1932	VIII
	-	Cavendish W. Cannon, vice consul (third secre-	Utah	Apr.	19, 1933	Uncl.(a)
	CANADA	tary).				
wa.	Ontario, l	Warren Delano Robbins, envoy extraordinary and	New York	May	11, 1933	
		minister plenipotentiary.				
		Pierre de L. Boal, first secretary	Pennsylvania		16, 1932 15, 1933	III IV
		Elbridge Gerry Greene, first secretary James C. H. Bonbright, third secretary	Massachusetts New York		27, 1933	Uncl.(b)
		Henry M. Bankhead, commercial attaché	Dept. Commerce.		20, 1933	
		Oliver B. North, asst. commercial attaché	Dept. Commerce_		16, 1928	
	c.g	William H. Beck, consul general	New Jersey	Dec.	30, 1931	111
		Julian F. Harrington, consul	Massachusetts	‡Jan.	22, 1930	VIII
		Milton Patterson Thompson, vice consul	Tennessee		-	1
		Russell B. Jordan, vice consul	Wyoming	Oct.	9, 1933	
¢	d.a. & d.o	William McG. Harlow, district accounting and disbursing officer (vice consul).	Dist. Columbia			
		Zern Hlner, asst. district accounting and disburs- ing officer (vice consul).	Indiana	‡Jan.	29, 1932	
gary,	Alberta, c	Robertson Honey, consul	New York	July	17, 1933	VI
		Norton F. Brand, consul	North Dakota		15, 1933	Uncl.(a)
		Charles W. Allen, vice consul	Wyoming		29, 1930	VII
nont	con, Alberta, c	Harold M. Collins, consul	Virginia New York		29, 1931 16, 1932	VII
t Wi	illiam and Port Arthur,	Girvan Teall, vice consul	Ohio		27, 1928	IV
	ntario. c.	Henry T. Dwyer, vice consul	Rhode Island		13, 1930	
	Nova Scotia, c.g	George E. Chamberlin, consul general	New York	Nov.	24, 1931	11
		Joseph P. Ragland, consul	Dist. Columbia			VIII
		Terry S. Hinkle, vice consul	New York			Uncl.(a)
Fred	lericton, New Bruns-	Orlando H. Massie, vice consul	Virginia New Jersey		4, 1929 19, 1921	
	wick, o.c.			_		
nilto	on, Ontario, c	John D. Johnson, consul	Vermont		27, 1930	1V
		Adam Beaumont, vice consul	Massachusetts		6, 1930	VII
gsto	n, Ontario, c	George Gregg Fuller, consul	California Texas		7, 1928 29, 1930	V 11
don	, Ontario, c	Thomas D. Bergin, vice consul William A. Bickers, consul	Virginia		15, 1933	VIII
1001	, Ontaill, L	Charles E. B. Payne, vice consul-			21, 1921	
ncto	n, New Brunswick, c	Edwin Carl Kemp, consul	Florida	July	18, 1933	IV
		Hernan C. Vogenitz, vice consul-	Ohio		17, 1931	
ntrea	al, Quebec, c.g	Wesley Frost, consul general	Kentucky		24, 1928	1
		James Hugh Keeley, Jr., consul	Dist. Columbia		12, 1931	
		Samuel J. Fletcher, consul John L. Bouchal, consul	Maine Nebraska		15, 1930 26, 1933	VI
			INCUISSES	Dec.	AU. 1000	1 1 1

Post	Name and rank	Whence ap- pointed	Date of as signment	Class
CANADA—Continued				
Montreal, Quebec, c.gContd	Stephen E. C. Kendrick, vice consul	Rhode Island	tJan 2 1932	Unel (c)
	Edward Anderson, Jr., vice consul			Uncl.(c)
	John R. Barry, vice consul			
	Robert J. Cavanaugh, vice consul-	Illinois	May 22, 1933	
	Hartwell Johnson, vice consul-	South Carolina		
Niagara Falls, Ontario, c	Edward Caffery, consul			VII
Prives Duport Pritich Colum	Elton Maynard Hoyt, vice consul			*****
Prince Rupert, British Colum- bia, c.	G. Carlton Woodward, consul	Pennsylvania	June 21, 1927	VIII
Quebec, Quebec, c	John Randolph, consul			IV
Destre Costotoborron a	Harvey Lee Milbourne consul	West Virginia		VII
RegIna, Saskatchewan, c	John S. Calvert, consul			VI
St. John, New Brunswick, c	Charles M. Gerrity, vice consul Philip Adams, consul	Pennsylvania Massachusetts		VI
c c. sonny rece bransmany critic	Conrad C. Spangler, vice consul	New York		
St. Stephen, New Brunswick, c	George L. Brist, vice consul			
	Willlam II. Brown, vice consul	New Jersey		4
Sault Ste. Marie, Ontario, c	Frank Bohr, consul	Kansas		VII
	Edwin J. Collis, vice consul-	Michigan	Sept. 28, 1918	*****
Sydney, Nova Scotia, c	Hugh H Watson, consul	Vermont		III
	Eugene 11. Johnson, vice consul	Wisconsin		
Toronto, Ontario, c.g	Emil Sauer, consul general	Texas		III
	Damon C. Woods, consul- Horatio Mooers, consul-	Texas Maine		V VII
	Frederick A. Bohne, vice consul	New York		
	Robert William Harding, vice consul	New York		
	George L. Tolman, vice consul	Colorado		
Vancouver, British Columbia, c.g.	John K. Davis, consul general	Ohio		II
	Harris N. Cookingham, consul-	New York	Nov. 21, 1930	VI
	Harvey T. Goodier, consul	New York		V11
	Christian M. Ravndal, consul	Iowa		VII
	Nelson P. Meeks, vice consul	New York		
	Augustus C. Owen, vice consul	South Carolina Colorado		
Victoria, British Columbia, c	Theodore Jaeckel, consul general	New York		II
	Robert M. Newcomb, vice consul	Illinois		
Windsor, Ontario, c	Marshall M. Vance, consul	Ohlo		V
	Hervé J. L'Heureux, vice consul	New Hampshire.	\$Sept. 12, 1930	Uncl.(c)
	Edwin N. Gunsaulus, Jr., vice consul	Minnesota		
	H. Armistead Smith, vice consul.	Dist. Columbia		
Winnipeg, Manitoba, c.g	P. Stewart Heintzleman, consul general	Pennsylvania		III VII
	John S. Richardson, Jr., consul Earl Brennan, vice consul	Massachusetts New Hampshire.		
	Stanley R. Lawson, vice consul	New York		
	James R. Riddle, vice consul	Alabama		
Kenora, Ontario, c.a	Rupert H. Moore, consular agent	Canada		
Yarmouth, Nova Scotia, c	Walter H. McKinney, consul	Michigan	Dec. 23, 1931	VII
CHILE		-		
Santiago, e	Ha! H. Sevier, ambassader extraordinary and plenipotentiary.	Texas	Aug. 19, 1933	
	Robert M. Scotten, counselor of embassy	Michigan		II
	Winthrop R. Scott, second secretary	Ohio		VI
	Edward J. Sparks, third secretary	New York		VIII
	Maj. John A. Weeks, military attaché	War Dept		
	Merwin L. Bohan, commercial attaché	Dept. Commerce.		
C.J	Harold M. Randall, asst. commercial attaché Edward A. Dow, consul general	Dept. Commerce. Nebraska		III
	Franklin B. Atwood, consul	Massachusetts		VIII
	Camden L. McLain, vice consul	Virginia		
		Texas		

Post	Name and rank	Whence ap- pointed	Date of as- signment	Class
CHILE-Continued				
niofagasta, c	Robert Y. Jarvis, consul	California	Top 20 1024	T
[[[0]agasta, t===================================	John T. Garvin, vice consul			1
alparaiso, c	Frank Anderson Henry, consul			3
	Carlos C. Hall, vice consul			Uncl.
Coquimbo, c.a				
Cruz Grande, Coquimbo, c.a.				
CHINA				
eiping, t	Nelson T. Johnson, envoy extraordinary and min-	Oklahoma	Dec. 16, 1929	
	ister plenipotentiary.			
	Clarence E. Gauss, counselor of legation	Connecticut		
	Clarence J. Spiker, first secretary	Dist. Columbia		
	Laurence E. Salisbury, second secretary	Illinois		
	Paul W. Meyer, second secretary	Colorado		1
	Lewis Clark, third secretary	Alabama		V
	Cecil B. Lyon, ¹ third secretary Arthur R. Ringwalt, language officer	New York Nebraska		Uncl Uncl
	Everett F. Drumright, language officer	Oklahoma		
	John Davies, Jr., language officer	Ohio		
	James K. Penfield, ² language officer	California		
	Lt. Col. Walter S. Drysdale, military attaché	War Dept		
	Comdr. Thomas M. Shock, naval attaché	Navy Dept.		
	Julean Arnold, commercial attaché	Dept. Commerce.		
	Maj. Samuel V. Constant, asst. military attaché	War Dept		
	A. Bland Calder, asst. commercial attaché	Dept. Commerce.		
	Capt. John E. McCammon, language officer	War Dept		
	1st Lt. Haydon L. Boatner, language officer	War Dept	Sept. 24, 1930	
	1st Lt. Thomas S. Timberman, language officer	War Dept	Mar. 2, 1931	
	1st Lt. William E. Crist, language officer	War Dept		
	1st Lt. Henry S. Jernigan, language officer	War Dept		
	1st Lt. Bernard A. Tormey, language officer	War Dept		
	Lt. (jg) William T. Kenny, language officer	Navy Dept		
	Lt. (jg) Henry T. Jarrell, language officer	Navy Dept		
	Capt. William A. Worton, language officer	Navy Dept		
	Capt. Edward G. Hagen, language officer	Navy Dept		
	Capt. James F. Moriarty, language officer	Navy Dept		
Nonking office	1st Lt. William L. Bales, language officer	Navy Dept California		
Nanking office	Robert Lacy Smyth, 4 second secretary	California		
noy, Fukien, c	Hasell H. Dick, consul	South Carolina	Oct. 25, 1933	
••	Charles C. Sundell, vice consul	Minnesota		
nton, Kwangtung, c.g.	Joseph W. Ballantine, consul general	Massachusetts		
	J. Hall Paxton, consul	Virginia	Mar. 5, 1932	1
	Horace H. Smith, vice consul	Ohio	June 18, 1931	Uncl
	Reginald Bragonier, Jr., vice consul-	Maryland	Aug. 28, 1933	Uncl
nefoo, Shantung, c	Leroy Webber, consul	New York	Apr. 10, 1926	
	Charles J. Brennan, vice consul	Massachusetts		
	Gordon L. Burke, vice consul-	Georgia		Uncl
oochow, Fukien, c	Edwin F. Stanton, consul	California		
				1
oochow, Fukien, c ankow, Hupeh, c.g	Culver B. Chamberlain, consul	Missouri		
	Culver B. Chamberlain, consul Edmund O. Clubb, vice consul	Minnesota	Mar. 12, 1931	Uncl
	Culver B. Chamberlain, consul	Mlnnesota Florida	Mar. 12, 1931 July 26, 1932	Uncl. Uncl.

¹ Assigned also as vice consul at Tientsin. ² Detailed temporarily to the Department.

Assigned also as consul general at Nanking.
Assigned also as consul at Nanking.

Post	Name and rank	Whence ap- pointed	Date of as- signment	Class
CHINA-Continued				
Harbin, Kirin, Manchuria, c.g	Walter A. Adams, consul general	South Carolina	June 29, 1934	III
,,,	Cabot Coville, consul	California	Jan. 25, 1932	VIII
	James B. Pilcher, vice consul	Alabama	Oct. 21, 1933	Uncl.(b)
	Ralph J. Blake, vice consul	Oregon	Mar. 6, 1933	Uncl.(c)
	T. Leonard Lilliestrom, vice consul	New York	‡Apr. 11,1928	
Mukden, Liaoning, Manchuria,	Augustus S. Chase, consul	Connecticut	Jan. 23, 1932	VIII
c.g.	Monroe B. Hall, vice consul	New York	Jan. 23, 1932	Uncl.(b)
	Andrew W. Edson, vice consul	Connecticut	May 26, 1932	Uncl.(b)
Nanking, Kiangsu, c.g.	Willys R. Peck, ² consul general	California	Feb. 5, 1931	I VI
	Robert Lacy Smyth, ³ consul Douglas Jenkins, Jr., vice consul	South Carolina	Sept. 19, 1932 Mar. 6, 1933	Uncl.(c)
	Harold E. Montamat, vice consul	New Jersey	Mar. 30, 1933	Uncl.(c)
	Kenneth J. Yearns, vice consul	Dist. Columbia	Mar. 1, 1934	Uncl.(c)
Shanghai, Kiangsu, c.g	Edwin S. Cunningham, consul general	Tennessee	Sept. 8, 1919	I
	Paul R. Josselyn, consul	Iowa	May 7, 1930	IV
	Richard P. Butrick, consul	New York	Apr. 30, 1932	V
	John J. Muccio, consul	Rhode Island	Feb. 7,1931	VII
	Carl D. Melnhardt, consul	New York	Apr. 1,1932	VII
	William Clarke Vyse, consul	Dist. Columbia	Nov. 20, 1931	VIII
	Julius Wadsworth, vice consul	Connecticut	Dec. 22, 1933	Uncl.(b)
	George V. Allen, ¹ vice consul	North Carolina	Nov. 8, 1930	Uncl.(c)
	Hedley V. Cooke, Jr., vice consul John B. Sawyer, vice consul	New Jersey Oregon	Apr. 21, 1933 Apr. 12, 1921	Uncl.(c)
	William R. Lynch, vice consul	Kansas	‡Feb. 26, 1926	
	Thomas B. Clark, vice consul	Texas.	tOct. 28, 1926	
	Lincoln C. Reynolds, vice consul	California	Jan. 23, 1934	
Swatow, Kwangtung, c	Frederick W. Hinke, consul	New York	Dec. 21, 1933	VIII
	Robert C. Coudray, vice consul	Rhode Island	Oct. 8, 1931	
Tientsin, Hopeh, c.g	Frank P. Lockhart, consul general	Texas	June 15, 1931	II
	George Atcheson, Jr., consul	California	‡May 17,1928	VII
	Whitney Young, consul	New York	July 1,1933	VIII
	Stuart Allen, vice consul	Minnesota	Sept. 12, 1929	Uncl.(b)
	Robert S. Ward, vice consul	Ohio	July 26, 1933	Uncl.(b)
	Gerald Warner, vice consul John Hubner, 2d, vice consul	Massachusetts Maryland	Dec. 10, 1931 May 26, 1932	Uncl.(c) Uncl.(c)
	Troy L. Perkins, vice consul	Kentucky	May 31, 1932	Uncl.(c)
	Cecil B. Lyon, ⁴ vice consul	New York	Mar. 1, 1934	Uncl.(c)
Tsinan, Shantung, c	Harry E. Stevens, consul	Californla	Apr. 1, 1932	VII
	Raymond P. Ludden, vice consul	Massachusetts	Dec. 22, 1932	Uncl.(c)
Tsingtao, Klaochow, c	David C. Berger, consul	Virginia	Sept. 5,1931	VI
	Carl O. Hawthorne, vice consul	Missouri	‡Apr. 28,1930	
Yünnanfu, Yunnan, c	Charles S. Reed, 2d, vice consul	Ohio	Apr. 2,1932	Uncl.(b)
COLOMBIA				
Bogotá, l	Sheldon Whitehouse, envoy extraordinary and minister plenipotentiary.	New York	July 15,1933	
	Allan Dawson, second secretary	Iowa	June 18, 1931	VII
	Winthrop S. Greene, third secretary (consul)	Massachusetts	Jan. 2,1934	VIII
	S. Walter Washington, third secretary	West Virginia	Mar. 31, 1934	VIII
	Alvin T. Rowe, Jr., third secretary (vice consul)	Virginia	July 8, 1931	Uncl.(b)
	Clarence C. Brooks, commercial attaché	Dept. Commerce.	Nov. 24, 1933	
¹ Detailed temporaril	y to the Department. ³ Designated also	second secretary o	f legation.	

⁴ Detailed temporarily to the Department. ² Designated also counselor of legation.

Designated also second secretary of legation.
 Assigned also as third secretary at Peiping.

40

Alvin T. Rowa, Jr., vice consul. (third secretary). Virginia	Post	Name and rank	Whence ap- pointed	Date of as- signment	Class
Alvin T. Rowe, Jr., vice consul. Virginia	COLOMBIA-Continued				
Barranquilla, c	Bogotá, c				VIII
Barranquilla, c					Uncl.(b)
John Brandt, vice consul		-			
Gerald G. Jones, vice consul. South Dakota Hyp. 27, 1922 Suenaventura, c. Lyle C. Himmel, vice consul. California May 20, 1933 Jartagena, c. Jones R. Trowbridge, vice consul. Illinois. Feb. 13, 1934 Jartagena, c. Jones R. Trowbridge, vice consul. Illinois. Feb. 13, 1934 Jones R. Trowbridge, vice consul. Illinois. Feb. 13, 1934 Oct. 4, 1933 COSTA RICA Leo R. Sack, envoy extraordinary and minister plenipotentiary. Gearid A. Drew, third secretary. California. June 20, 1934 Un California. June 20, 1934 Un Apr. 29, 1931 Un May Arthur R. Harris, military attaché. War Dopt July 11, 1931 Diate 20, 1934 Un c. John E. Holler, consul. Pennsylvania. Jan. 2, 1934 Un May Arthur R. Harris, military attaché. War Dopt July 11, 1931 Diate 20, 1934 Un International diate 20, 1934 Un International diate 20, 1934	Barranquilla, c				V
Raymond Phelan, vice consul. California					
juenaventura, c. Lyte C. Himmel, vice consul. South Dakota June 15, 1932 cartagena, c. William G. Rupprecht, vice consul. Hilnois					
Sartagena, c.William G. Rupprecht, vice consul.Illinois.Feb. 13, 1034COSTA RICACost 4, 1933Cet. 4, 1933Cet. 4, 1933an José, I.Leo R. Sack, envoy extraordinary and minister plenipotentiary. Gerald A. Drew, third secretary.Pennsylvania.June 20, 1934UnCalifornia.June 20, 1934UnMaj. Arthur R. Harris, military attaché.Pennsylvania.Jan. 2, 1034Unc.John E. Holler, consul.Pennsylvania.Jan. 2, 1034UnUnMaj. 4.tort Limón, c.Leslie W. Johnson, vice consul.Pennsylvania.Jan. 2, 1934Untort Limón, c.Jefferson Caffery, ambassador extraordinary and plenipotentiary.H. Freeman Matthews, first secretary.Maryland.INov. 27, 1933Samuel S. Dickson, second secretary.Mare Marine.June 4, 1933June 4,	unneventure e				
COSTA RICA Jones R. Trowbridge, vice consul. Georgia. Oct. 4, 1933 COSTA RICA Lee R. Sack, envoy extraordinary and minister plenipotentiary. Pennsylvania. Aug. 17, 1933 an José, i Lee R. Sack, envoy extraordinary and minister plenipotentiary. California. June 20, 1934 Un thinois. Apr. 29, 1931 Apr. 29, 1931 <td< td=""><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td></td<>					
an José, I Leo R. Sack, envoy extraordinary and minister plenipotentiary. Gerald A. Drew, third secretary	Cartagena, c				
plenipotentiary. Geraid A. Drew, third secretary. Edward G. Trueblood, third secretary. Maj. Arthur R. Harris, military attaché.California. June 20, 1334June Apr. 20, 1931June 20, 1931June 	COSTA RICA				
plenipotentiary. Geraid A. Drew, third secretary. Edward G. Trueblood, third secretary. Maj. Arthur R. Harris, military attaché.California. June 20, 1334June Apr. 20, 1931June 20, 1931<	an José I	Leo R. Sack, envoy extraordinary and minister	Pennsylvania	Aug. 17, 1933	
Gerald A. Drew, third secretaryCalifornia	an 9000, •		ronnsyrvania	1145. 11, 1000	
Edward G. Trueblood, third secretary			California	June 20, 1934	Uncl.(
c			Illinois		Uncl.(b
Livingston Satterthwaite, vice consul.PennsylvaniaDec. 22, 1932Unort Limón, c.Leslie W. Johnson, vice consul.MinnesotaJune 14, 1933CUBAJefferson Caffery, ambassador extraordinary and plenipotentiary.LouisianaFeb. 23, 1934I. Freeman Matthews, first sceretaryMarylandtNov. 27, 1933Samuel S. Dickson, second sceretaryMarylandtNov. 27, 1933Ellis O. Briggs, second sceretaryNew MexicoSept. 21, 1933June 14, 1933L. Col. Thomas N, Gimperling, military attaché.War DeptFeb. 15, 1933June 14, 1934Capt. Loyd Van H, Durfee, ast. military attaché.War DeptFeb. 15, 1933June 27, 1934c. gCharles R. Cameron, consul generalNew YorkMar. 9, 1934June 20, 1934June 20, 1934June 20, 1934Donald D, Edgar, vice consulNew HampshireJune 20, 1934UnJonal 4D, Edgar, vice consulNew HampshireJune 20, 1934UnJohn H, Marvin, vice consulIowaIowaIowaFeb. 28, 1927Intilla, cMora Alexander, consul		Maj. Arthur R. Harris, military attaché	War Dept	July 11, 1931	
Livingston Satterthwaite, vice consul.PennsylvaniaDec. 22, 1932Unort Limón, c.Leslie W. Johnson, vice consul.MinnesotaJune 14, 1933cUBAabana, e.Jefferson Caffery, ambassador extraordinary and plenipotentlary.LouisianaFeb. 23, 1934H. Freeman Matthews, first secretary.MarylandtNov. 27, 1933Samuel S. Dickson, second secretary.New MexicoSept. 21, 1933Lit. Col. Thomas N, Gimperling, military attaché.War DeptFeb. 15, 1933Walter J. Donnelly, commercial attachéDept. Commerce.Jan. 9, 1934Capt. Loyd Van H. Durfee, asst. military attaché.War Dept	c	John F. Holler, consul	Pennsylvania	Ian 9 1034	VII
cuba June 14, 1933 cuba Jefferson Caffery, ambassador extraordinary and plenipotentlary. June 14, 1933 H. Freeman Matthews, first secretary					Uncl.(
CUBAJefferson Caffery, ambassador extraordinary and plenipotentlary. H. Freeman Matthews, first secretary	ort Limón, c				01010
Iabana, eJefferson Caffery, ambassador extraordinary and plenipotentiary. H. Freeman Matthews, first secretary Samuel S. Dickson, second secretary MaineLouisiana Feb. 23, 1934 Maryland New Mexico Sept. 21, 1933 Samuel S. Dickson, second secretary Maine New Mexico Sept. 21, 1933 Maine New Mexico Sept. 21, 1933 Maine New Mexico Sept. 21, 1933 Maine New Mexico Sept. 21, 1933 Maine				,	
plenipotentiary.Maryland.t.Nov. 27, 1933Samuel S. Dickson, second secretary.New Mexico.Sept. 21, 1933Ellis O. Briggs, second secretary.Maine.t.Dec. 5, 1993Lt. Col. Thomas N. Gimperling, military attaché.War Dept.Feb. 15, 1933Walter J. Donnelly, commercial attaché.Dept. Commerce.Jan. 9, 1934Capt. Loyd Van H. Durfee, asst. military attaché.War Dept.Jan. 27, 1934Capt. Loyd Van H. Durfee, asst. military attaché.War Dept.Jan. 27, 1934Capt. Loyd Van H. Durfee, asst. military attaché.New York.Mar. 9, 1934Harold S. Tewell, consul.Notth Dakota.Jan. 13, 1933Peter H. A. Flood, ¹ consul.New Hampshire.July 2, 1934Donald D. Edgar, vice consul.New Jersey.Jan. 6, 1933Um William B. Murray, vice consul.Iova.Ioct. 17, 1924John H. Marvin, vice consul.New York.Tebb. 28, 1927Raoul F. Washington, vice consul.New York.Ifeb. 28, 1927Raoul F. Washington, vice consul.New York.Idug. 25, 1931Vienfuegos, c.Knor Alexander, consul.New York.Idug. 25, 1931Caibarien, c.a.Federico Causo, consular agent.Massachusetts.IApr. 4, 1932Caibarien, c.a.Federico Causo, consular agent.Cuba.Sept. 14, 1933Caibarien, c.a.Federico Causo, consular agent.Cuba.Sept. 14, 1933Caibarien, c.a.Federico Causo, consular agent.Cuba.Sept. 14, 1933Caibarien, c.a.Federico Causo, consular agent. <td>CUBA</td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td>	CUBA				
Samuel S. Dickson, second secretaryNew MexicoSept. 21, 1933Ellis O. Briggs, second secretaryMaine	Iabana, e				
Samuel S. Dickson, second secretaryNew MexicoSept. 21, 1933Ellis O. Briggs, second secretaryMaine		H. Freeman Matthews, first sccretary	Maryland	‡Nov. 27, 1933	7
Lt. Col. Thomas N. Gimperling, military attaché. Walter J. Donnelly, commercial attaché. Capt. Loyd Van H. Durfee, asst. military attaché.War DeptFeb. 15, 1933 Dept. Commerce. Jan. 9, 1934c. g.Charles R. Cameron, consul general. Harold S. Tewell, consul.New York. North DakotaMar. 9, 1934 Jan. 13, 1933peter H. A. Flood, ¹ consul. Donald D. Edgar, vice consul. William B. Murray, vice consul. John H. Marvin, vice consul.New York. New Jersey Jan. 20, 1934Junuwilliam B. Murray, vice consul. William B. Murray, vice consul. Horace J. Dickinson, consul.New York. New York. New York. Harsasa. Feb. 7, 1922Jununtilla, c Caibarien, c.a.Foeter Gauso, consular agent. Edward S. Benet, vice consul. Edward S. Benet, vice consul.New York. New York. Missouri Missouri. Missouri. Missouri. Missouri. Massachusetts. Missouri. Missouri. Massachusetts. Missouri. Massachusetts. Missouri. Massachusetts. Missouri. Massachusetts. Missouri. Massachusetts. Missouri. Massachusetts. Missouri. Massachusetts. Maryland. Feb. 16, 1933 Maryland. Feb. 16, 1931 Maryland.caibarien, c.a.Federico Causo, consular agent. Dorsey Gassaway Fisher, vice consul. Maryland. Edwin Schoenrich, consul.Maryland. Maryland. Feb. 16, 1931 Maryland.		Samuel S. Dickson, second secretary			V
Walter J. Donnelly, commercial attaché		Ellis O. Briggs, second secretary	Maine	‡Dec. 5, 1933	VI
Capt. Loyd Van H. Durfee, asst. military attachéWar DeptJan. 27, 1934c. g		Lt. Col. Thomas N. Gimperling, military attaché.	War Dept	Feb. 15, 1933	
c. g.Charles R. Cameron, consul general.New York.Mar.9,1934Harold S. Tewell, consul.North DakotaJan.13,1933Peter H. A. Flood, ¹ consul.New Hampshire.July2,1934Donald D. Edgar, vice consul.New JerseyJan.6,1933UmEric C. Wendelin, vice consul.New JerseyJan.6,1933John H. Marvin, vice consul.IowaFloridaFlorida					
Harold S. Tewell, consulNorth DakotaJan. 13, 1933Peter H. A. Flood, ¹ consulNew HampshireJuly 2, 1934Donald D. Edgar, vice consulNew HampshireJuly 2, 1934Donald D. Edgar, vice consulNew JerseyJan. 6, 1933UnEric C. Wendelin, vice consulMassachusettsJune 20, 1934UnWilliam B. Murray, vice consulIowafoct. 17, 1924John H. Marvin, vice consulFloridatFeb. 28, 1927Raoul F. Washington, vice consulNew YorktFeb. 28, 1927Infrace J. Dickinson, consulArkansasFeb. 7, 1922InMyles Standish, vice consulNissouriJune 10, 1931Caibarien, c.aFederico Causo, consular agentMassachusettstApr. 4, 1932Sagua la Grande, c.aDorsey Gassaway Fisher, vice consulMarylandFeb. 16, 1934UnVuevitas, cLester Sockwell, vice consulMarylandJan. 16, 1931		Capt. Loyd Van H. Durfee, asst. military attaché	War Dept	Jan. 27, 1934	
Harold S. Tewell, consulNorth DakotaJan. 13, 1933Peter H. A. Flood, ¹ consulNew HampshireJuly 2, 1934Donald D. Edgar, vice consulNew HampshireJuly 2, 1934Donald D. Edgar, vice consulNew JerseyJan. 6, 1933UnEric C. Wendelin, vice consulMassachusettsJune 20, 1934UnWilliam B. Murray, vice consulIowafoct. 17, 1924John H. Marvin, vice consulFloridatFeb. 28, 1927Raoul F. Washington, vice consulNew YorktFeb. 28, 1927Infrace J. Dickinson, consulArkansasFeb. 7, 1922InMyles Standish, vice consulNissouriJune 10, 1931Caibarien, c.aFederico Causo, consular agentMassachusettstApr. 4, 1932Sagua la Grande, c.aDorsey Gassaway Fisher, vice consulMarylandFeb. 16, 1934UnVuevitas, cLester Sockwell, vice consulMarylandJan. 16, 1931	c. g	Charles R. Cameron, consul general	New York	Mar. 9, 1934	II
Peter H. A. Flood, ¹ consul.New Hampshire.July2,1934Donald D. Edgar, vice consul.New Jersey.Jan. 6,1933UnEric C. Wendelin, vice consul.Massachusetts.June 20,1934UnWilliam B. Murray, vice consul.Iowa.tOct. 17,1924John H. Marvin, vice consul.Florida.tFeb. 28,1927Raoul F. Washington, vice consul.New York.tFeb. 28,1927Myles Standish, vice consul.New York.tFeb. 28,1927Lienfuegos, c.Horace J. Dickinson, consul.New York.tAug. 25,1931Caibarien, c.a.Federico Causo, consular agent.Missouri.June 10,1931Sagua la Grande, c.a.Dorsey Gassaway Fisher, vice consul.Maryland.Feb. 16,1934UnMatanzas, c.Dorsey Gassaway Fisher, vice consul.Maryland.Feb. 16,1931Santiago, c.Edwin Schoenrich, consul.Maryland.Jan. 16,1931					1
Eric C. Wendelin, vice consul.Massachusetts.June 20, 1934UnWilliam B. Murray, vice consul.IowatOct. 17, 1924John H. Marvin, vice consul.FloridatFeb. 28, 1927Raoul F. Washington, vice consul.New York.tFeb. 28, 1927Horace J. Dickinson, consul.Arkansas.Feb. 7, 1922UnMyles Standish, vice consul.New York.tAug. 25, 1931Caibarien, c.a.Federico Causo, consular agent.Massachusetts.tApr. 4, 1932Caibarien, c.a.Eugene E. Jova, consular agent.Cuba.tSept. 14, 1933Matanzas, c.Dorsey Gassaway Fisher, vice consul.Maryland.Feb. 16, 1934UnVuevitas, c.Lester Sockwell, vice consul.Maryland.Jan. 16, 1931			New Hampshire.	July 2,1934	V
William B. Murray, vice consul.IowatOct. 17, 1924John H. Marvin, vice consul.FloridatFeb. 28, 1927Raoul F. Washington, vice consul.New YorktFeb. 28, 1927Horace J. Dickinson, consul.New YorktFeb. 28, 1927Myles Standish, vice consul.ArkansasFeb. 7, 1922Yienfuegos, c.Knox Alexander, consul.New YorktAug. 25, 1931Caibarien, c.a.Federico Causo, consular agent.MissouriJune 10, 1931Catarasa, c.Dorsey Gassaway Fisher, vice consul.MarylandFeb. 16, 1934Uuevitas, c.Lester Sockwell, vice consul.MarylandJan. 16, 1931					Uncl.(c
John H. Marvin, vice consul.FloridatFeb. 28, 1927Raoul F. Washington, vice consul.New YorktFeb. 28, 1927Untilla, c		Eric C. Wendelin, vice consul	Massachusetts	June 20, 1934	Uncl.(d
Raoul F. Washington, vice consulNew YorkIFeb. 28, 1927tilla, cHorace J. Dickinson, consulArkansasFeb. 7, 1922UnMyles Standish, vice consulNew YorktAug. 25, 1931Sienfuegos, cKnox Alexander, consulMissouriJune 10, 1931Caibarien, c.aFederico Causo, consular agentMassachusettstApr. 4, 1932Sagua la Grande, c.aEugene E. Jova, consular agentCuba		William B. Murray, vice consul	Iowa	tOct. 17, 1924	
Arkansas Feb. 7, 1922 Un Myles Standish, vice consul New York tAug. 25, 1931 Sienfuegos, c Knox Alexander, consul Missouri June 10, 1931 Caibarien, c.a Federico Causo, consular agent Massachusetts tApr. 4, 1932 Sagua la Grande, c.a Eugene E, Jova, consular agent Cuba tSept. 14, 1933		John H. Marvin, vice consul	Florida	‡Feb. 28,1927	
Myles Standish, vice consulNew YorktAug. 25, 1931Sienfuegos, c.Knox Alexander, consulMissouriJune 10, 1931Caibarien, c.a.Edward S. Benet, vice consulMassachusettstApr. 4, 1932Caibarien, c.a.Federico Causo, consular agentCubatSept. 14, 1933Sagua la Grande, c.a.Dorsey Gassaway Fisher, vice consulMarylandFeb. 16, 1934Unevitas, c.Lester Sockwell, vice consulTexastApr. 14, 1931antiago, c.Edwin Schoenrich, consulMarylandJan. 16, 1931		Raoul F. Washington, vice consul	New York	‡Feb. 28,1927	
Cienfuegos, c. Knox Alexander, consul. Missouri. June 10, 1931 Edward S. Benet, vice consul. Massachusetts ‡Apr. 4, 1932 Caibarien, c.a. Federico Causo, consular agent. Cuba tSept. 14, 1933	ntilla, c	Horace J. Dickinson, consul	Arkansas	Feb. 7, 1922	Uncl.(a
Caibarien, c.a. Edward S. Benet, vice consul. Massachusetts tApr. 4, 1932 Caibarien, c.a. Federico Causo, consular agent. Cuba tSept. 14, 1933 Sagua la Grande, c.a. Eugene E. Jova, consular agent. tOct. 6, 1922 tOct. 6, 1922 Matanzas, c. Dorsey Gassaway Fisher, vice consul. Maryland. Feb. 16, 1034 Um Vuevitas, c. Edwin Schoenrich, consul. Maryland. Jan. 16, 1931			New York	Aug. 25,1931	
Caibarien, c.a. Federico Causo, consular agent. Cuba. tSept. 14, 1933 Sagua la Grande, c.a. Eugene E. Jova, consular agent. tOct. 6, 1922 tOct. 6, 1922 Idatazas, c. Dorsey Gassaway Fisher, vice consul. Maryland. Feb. 16, 1934 Um Vuevitas, c. Edwin Schoenrich, consul. Teras tAnzland. Jan. 16, 1931	Cienfuegos, c		Missouri	June 10,1931	VII
Sagua la Grande, c.a. Eugene E. Jova, consular agent. tOct. 6, 1922 Jatanzas, c. Dorsey Gassaway Fisher, vice consul. Maryland. Feb. 16, 1934 Juevitas, c. Lester Sockwell, vice consul. Texas tApr. 14, 1931 antiago, c. Edwin Schoenrich, consul. Maryland. Jan. 16, 1931					
Internation of the second s					
Vuevitas, c					
antiago, c					Uncl.(b
Harry W. Story, vice consul North Carolina Feb 13 1925	Santiago, c				VI
Manzanillo, c.a		Harry W. Story, vice consul			

¹ Detailed temporarily to the Department.

-				
Post	Name and rank	Whence ap- pointed	Date of as- signment	Class
CZECHOSLOVAKIA				
Prague (Praha), l	J. Butler Wright, envoy extraordinary and minis- ter plenipotentiary.	Wyoming	Mar. 9,1934	
	J. Webb Benton, second secretary	Pennsylvania	Sept. 1, 1932	v
	Lt. Col. Albert Gilmor, military attaché	War Dept	Oct. 18, 1932	
	Sam E. Woods, commercial attaché			
	Lt. Col. Jacob W. S. Wuest, asst. military attaché for air.	War Dept	WIRF. 20, 1931	
c.g	Frank C. Lee, consul general	Colorado	Oct. 15, 1931	111
	Sheridan Talbott, consul			VII
	Walter N. Walmsley, Jr., vice consul			
	Duncan M. White, vice consul Andrew Gilchrist, vice consul			
DANZIG, FREE CITY OF			wop 01 101 100	
Danzig, c	Waldemar J. Gallman, consul			VI
DENMARK	Fred K. Salter, vice consul	Georgia	Mar. 10, 1934	
Copenhagen (Köbenhavn), l	Ruth Bryan Owen, envoy extraordinary and min- ister plenipotentiary.	Florida	Apr 13,1933	
	North Winship, counselor of legation	Georgia	‡Apr. 8,1931	II
	Lt. Col. Jacob W. S. Wuest, military attaché			
	Capt. Chester H. J. Keppler, naval attaché			
	James T. Scott, commercial attaché Comdr. Howard D. Bode, asst. naval attaché			
	Collar, Howard D. Dode, asst. havai attache	Havy Doption	Sopt. 1,1002	
C.Q	Lester Maynard, consul general	California	Aug. 23, 1933	III
	Garret G. Ackerson, Jr., vice consul-			
	Laurence W. Taylor, vice consul			
	Erland Gjessing, vice consul J. Stanford Edwards, vice consul			
DOMINICAN REPUBLIC				
Santo Domingo, i	H.F.Arthur Schoenfeld, envoy extraordinary and	Dist. Columbia	Aug. 1,1931	
	minister plenipotentiary. James E. Brown, Jr., third secretary	Popperlyania	Oct 20 1021	Upol (b)
	James W. Gantenbein, third secretary			
C	Walter S. Reineck, consul	Obio	Jupo 22 1021	VI
6	Albion W. Johnson, vice consul			
	Dudley E. Cyphers, vice consul			
La Romana, c.a	Eugene J. Lieder, consular agent	New York	Nov. 14, 1922	
Sanchez, c.a	J. Enrique Leroux. consular agent	Dom. Republic	Aug. 29,1908	
ECUADOR				
Quito, <i>l</i>	William Dawson, envoy extraordinary and min-	Minnesota	May 9,1930	
	ister plenipotentiary.	Description	N 0 1000	1
	Selden Chapin, third secretary	Pennsylvania	Nov. 3, 1932	VIII
Guayaquil, c.g	Taylor W. Gannett, vice consul	Nebraska	Dec. 9, 1932	Uncl.(c)
4	Philip K. Tattersall, vice consul	New York	‡Feb. 12, 1930	
	Frederick L. Royt, vice consul-	Wisconsin	11Dec. 13, 1932	1

	Deat	Name and reply	Whence ap-	Date of as-	Class
	Post	Name and rank	pointed	signment	Class
				Value	
	EGYPT				
Cai	ro, l	Bert Fish, envoy extraordinary and minister pleni-	Florida	Sept. 6, 1933	
		potentiary.	0.114	7 00 1000	
		Cornelius Van H. Engert, first secretary Charles E. Dickerson, Jr., commercial attaché		June 29, 1933 Mar. 19, 1928	III
			D og er e ommeree		
	C	,		July 28, 1931	VIII
		Robert Y. Brown, vice consul Easton T. Kelsey, vice consul and language officer		May 24, 1932 July 22, 1930	
Ale	xandria, c.g	H. Earle Russell, consul general			IV
		Claude H. Hall, Jr., vice consul			
Por	t Said, c	Wade Blackard, vice consul Horace Remillard, consul		Feb. 20, 1932 Sept. 30, 1930	VI
LUL	t Cald, t	Frederick S. Barny, vice consul			
	EL SALVADOR				
San	Salvador, l	Frank P. Corrigan, envoy extraordinary and min-	Ohio	Mar. 14, 1934	
		ister plenipotentiary.			***
		William J. McCafferty, second secretary W. Quincy Stanton, third secretary (vice consul)			
		Maj. Arthur R. Harris, military attaché			
			N	D., (1021	TT-sl(-)
	¢. g	W. Quincy Stanton, vice consul (third secretary). Morgan Atherton, vice consul			
		Horgan Honoron, Vice concurrent		,,	
	ESTONIA				
Tal	linn, l	John Van A. MacMurray, ¹ envoy extraordinary	Maryland	Aug. 28, 1933	
		and minister plenipotentiary.	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·		
		Felix Cole, ¹ counselor of legation			II
		Harry E. Carlson, first secretary (consul) James E. Henderson, third secretary (vice consul).			V Uncl.(c)
		Maj. William E. Shipp, military attaché			
			Tillin ele	Tuber 2 1000	v
	C	Harry E. Carlson, consul (first secretary) James E. Henderson, vice consul (third secretary)_			
		· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·		·	
	ETHIOPIA (ABYSSINIA)				
Ad	dis Ababa, /	Addison E. Southard,' minister resident and	Kentucky	Oct. 12, 1927	I
		consul general.			
		James L. Park, third secretary (vice consul)	Pennsylvania	June 15, 1928	Uncl.(a
	C.g	Addison E. Southard, minister resident and	Kentucky	Oct. 12, 1927	
		consul general.			TTAL
		James L. Park, vice consul (third secretary) William S. Farrell, vice consul			
	Djibouti, French Somali	Vahram H. Condayan, consular agent			
	Coast, c.a.				

Accredited also to Latvia and Lithuania.
 ² Foreigu Service officer, receiving compensation as such, appointed to act as minister resident and consul general pursuant to sec. 17 of an act of Congress approved May 24, 1924.

Post	Name and rank	Whence appointed	Date of as- signment	Class
FINLAND				
Helsingfors (Helsinki), l	Edward Albright, envoy extraordinary and min- ister plenipotentiary.	Tennessee	July 21,1933	
	Hugh S. Fullerton, second secretary	Obio	June 21, 1933	v
	Cyril L. F. Thiel, third secretary (consul)	Illinois	‡Feb. 20, 1934	VIII
	Frederick P. Latimer, Jr., third secretary (vice consul).	Connecticut	June 21, 1933	Uncl.(b)
	Maj. William E. Shipp, military attaché	War Dept	Mar. 15, 1932	
c	Cyril L. F. Thiel, consul (third secretary)	Illinois	Jan. 22,1934	VIII
	Frederick P. Latimer, Jr., vice consul (third secre- tary).	Connecticut	June 21, 1933	Uncl.(b)
FRANCE AND POSSESSIONS	Thomas Edmund Burke, vice consul	Connecticut	July 31,1931	
(France)				
Paris, e	Jesse Isidor Straus, ambassador extraordinary and plenipotentiary.	New York	Mar. 17, 1933	
	J. Theodore Marriner, counselor of embassy	Maine	Apr. 1,1931	I
	Williamson S. Howell, Jr., first secretary	Texas	Feb. 2,1929	II
	H. Merle Cochran, first secretary	Arizona New York		
	S. Pinkney Tuck, first secretary Harold L. Williamson, second secretary	Illinois	Feb. 25, 1933 June 1, 1928	V
	McCeney Werlich, third secretary	Dist. Columbia.	Dec. 26, 1933	VIII
	Alan S. Rogers, third secretary	California	Apr. 8,1931	Uncl.(a)
	Col. Frank P. Lahm, military attaché	War Dept		
	Capt. David McDougal LeBreton, naval attaché.	Navy Dept	Mar. 24, 1931	
	Henry C. MacLean, commercial attaché	Dept. Commerce.		
	James F. ONeill, treasury attaché	Treasury Dept	Nov. 8, 1929	
	Niels I. Nielsen, agricultural attaché Maj. James A. Lester, asst. military attaché	Dept. Agriculture War Dept	May 27, 1933 Feb. / 2, 1932	
	1st Lt. William S. Biddle, asst. military attaché	War Dept	Dec. 6, 1933	
	Capt. Herbert Seymour Howard, asst. naval attaché.	Navy Dept	May 31, 1932	
	Comdr. Howard D. Bode, asst. naval attaché	Navy Dept	Sept. 1, 1932	
	Lt. Comdr. Ben H. Wyatt, asst. naval attaché	Navy Dept	May 25, 1933	
	Lt. Comdr. Leo H. Thebaud, asst. naval attaché	Navy Dept	July 13, 1933	
	Lt. Roscoe H. Hillenkoetter, asst. naval attaché Daniel J. Reagan, asst. commercial attaché	Navy Dept Dept.Commerce.	Nov. 16, 1933 Apr. 27, 1927	
c. g	Leo J. Keena, consul general	Michigan	Oct. 26, 1929	I
	Robert D. Murphy, consul	Wisconsin	Mar. 26, 1930	IV
	Edwin A. Plitt, consul	Maryland	Nov. 29, 1933	VI
	William E. De Courcy, consul	Texas	Apr. 21, 1928	VII
	Charles L. De Vault, consul	Indiana	Oct. 25, 1933	VII
	George Tait, consul	Virginia Massachusetts	Sept. 16, 1933	VIII Uncl.(c)
	Edward Page, Jr., vice consul and language officer. Marc L. Severe, vice consul	Iowa		U IICI.(C)
	John R. Wood, vice consul	Florida		
	Paul C. Betts, vice consul	Pennsylvania		
	W. Winthrop Burr, vice consul	New York		
	Davis B. Levis, vice consul	Illinois	Sept. 24, 1931	
	John H. Fuqua, vice consul	New York	June 8, 1934	
				1
d.a. & d.o	Victor M. Lenzer, district accounting and disburs- ing officer (vice consul).	Wisconsin	Mar. 17, 1932	

Post	Name and rank	Whence ap- pointed	Date of as- signment	Class
FRANCE AND POSSESSIONS- Continued				
(France)-Continued				
Paris, d.a. & d.oContinued	Clifford W. McGlasson, vice consul	Dist. Columbia Maryland	Aug. 20, 1932 Dec. 9, 1932	
o.s.b Bordeaux, c	Jack S. Williams, superintendent of building Harold D. Finley, consul Archibald E. Gray, vice consul	Virginia New York Pennsylvania		VI Uncl.(b)
Biarritz, v.c	Frank Cussans, vice consul Roy McWilliams, vice consul	Ohio Illinois Texas	Apr. 17, 1920 Nov. 15, 1920	
Pau, c.a Calais, c	Robert Dickey, Jr., consular agent James G. Carter, consul C. Porter Kuykendall, consul	Ohio Georgia Pennsylvania	Mar. 28, 1927	V VI
Cherbourg, c	Fred H. Houck, vice consul Samuel H. Wiley, consul	Dist. Columbia North Carolina	June 10, 1926 June 28, 1933	VI
Dieppe, <i>c.a</i>	Ernest deW. Mayer, vice consul Charles B. Perkins, vice consul Frederick C. Fairbanks, consular agent	New York Rhode Island	Aug. 6, 1932	Uncl.(c) Uncl.(c)
Lille, c	Gaston Smith, consul George P. Wilson, vice consul Charles J. Pisar, consul	Louisiana Pennsylvania Wisconsin	May 19, 1931	VI IV
	W. Leonard Parker, vice consul Robert T. Cowan, vice consul	New York Texas	Nov. 11, 1933 Jan. 27, 1934	Uncl.(c)
Marseille, c	John A. Gamon, consul general Charles Roy Nasmith, consul Tyler Thompson, vice consul Shiras Morris, Jr., vice consul	Illinois New York New York Connecticut	Oct. 29, 1931 June 13, 1933	II V Uncl.(c) Uncl.(c)
Nantes, c	Harry M. Donaldson, vice consul	Pennsylvania Florida Tennessee	June 17, 1932 June 20, 1934	VII
Nice, c	Austin C. Brady, consul Charles B. Beylard, vice consul	New Mexico	July 17, 1933 May 23, 1934	v
Strasbourg, c	Leonard N. Green, consul James D. Child, vice consul	Minnesota Oregon		VII
Algiers, Algeria, c.g	Ernest L. Ives, consul general	Virginia	Apr. 5,1933	III
Oran, Algeria, c.a.	Joseph I. Touchette, vice consul Albert H. Elford, consular agent	Massachusetts		Uncl.(a)
Djibouti, Fr. Somali Coast, c. a. (agency under Addis Ababa, Ethiopia).	Vahram H. Condayan, consular agent		Apr. 1,1929	
Martinique, French West Indies, c.	William P. Robertson, vice consul-	Tennessee California	June 28, 1930 Sept. 9, 1926	
Saigon, French Indochina, c	Quincy F. Roberts, consul	Texas. California		VII Uncl.(c)
Tabiti, Society Islands, Oceania, c.	Edward B. Rand, vice consul	Louisiana Missouri	Feb. 10, 1922	Uncl.(a)
Tunis, Tunisia, c	Lawrence S. Armstrong, consul Jay Walker, vice consul	New York Dist. Columbia		VII Uncl.(c)

Post	Name and rank	Whence ap- pointed	Date of as- signment	Class
GERMANY	WILLIAM D. D. M. Marken J. A. Marken J.		T 10 1000	
Berlin, e	William E. Dodd, ambassador extraordinary and	Illinois	June 13, 1933	
	plenipotentiary. John Campbell White, counselor of embassy	Maryland	Aug 20 1033	I
	Joseph Flack, first secretary	Pennsylvania		IV
	Orme Wilson, first secretary	New York		IV
	George Alexander Armstrong, second secretary	New York		VII
	Lt. Col. Jacob W. S. Wuest, military attaché	War Dept		
	Capt. Chester H. J. Keppler, naval attaché	Navy Dept		
	Loyd V. Steere, agricultural attaché	Dept.Agriculture.	Dec. 16, 1930	
	Capt. Hugh W. Rowan, asst. military attaché	War Dept	July 19, 1930	
	Capt. James C. Crockett, asst. military attaché	War Dept	July 21, 1933	
	Capt. Herbert Seymour Howard, asst. naval attaché.	Navy Dept	June 4, 1932	
	Comdr Howard D. Bode, asst. naval attaché	Navy Dept	Sept. 1, 1932	
	Lt. Comdr. Ben H. Wyatt, asst. naval attaché	Navy Dept		
	Douglas P. Miller, asst. commercial attaché	Dept. Commerce.	Jan. 21, 1925	
-	Donald F. Christy, asst. agricultural attaché	Dept.Agriculture.	Sept. 15, 1933	
C. Ø	Douglas Jenkins, consul general	South Carolina	June 20, 1934	I
	Raymond H. Geist, consul			VI
	Ray Fox, consul	California		VII
	William E. Beitz, consul			VIII
	Prescott Childs, consul	Massachusetts		VIII
	Archer Woodford, vice consul	Kentucky	Mar. 28, 1930	Uncl.(a)
	Hugh C. Fox, vice consul	New York	Dec. 7, 1932	Uncl.(c)
	Henry P. Leverich, vice consul-	New Jersey	June 13, 1933	Uncl.(c)
	William W. Adams, vice consul	Dist. Columbia		Uncl.(c)
	Cyrus B. Follmer, vice consul	Pennsylvania		
December	Casimir T. Zawadzki, vice consul	New York		
Bremen, c	Walter A. Leonard, consul	Illinois		III
	Gilbert R. Willson, consul	Texas Missourl		VI
	Francis A. Lane, vice consul Lon S. Gresham, vice consul	Georgia		
Breslau, c	William W. Heard, consul	Maryland		VI
	Stephen B. Vaughan, vice consul	New York		
Cologne (Köln), c	Parker W. Buhrman, consul	Virginia		IV
. ,,	Bartley F. Yost, consul	Kansas		V
	James H. Wright, vice consul	Missouri		Uncl.(c)
	Edward S. Parker, vice consul	South Carolina	June 30, 1926	
Dresden, c	Arminius T. Haeberle, consul general	Missouri	July 1,1925	11
	John F Huddleston, consul	Obio	May 31, 1933	VII
	Bernard F Heiler, vice consul	Massachusetts		
Frankfort on the Main (Frank-	Robert W. Heingartner, consul			V
furt-am-Main), c.g.	Sydney B. Redecker, consul	New York		VI
Hamburg, c.g.	John G. Erhardt, consul general	New York		IV
	Lester L. Schnare, consul			VI
	John J. Meily, consul John H. Bruins, consul	Pennsylvania New York		VI VII
	Lloyd D. Yates, consul			VIII
	Alan N. Steyne, vice consul	New York	-	
	Malcolm C. Burke, vice consul	Alabama		
	Sabin J. Dalferes, vice consul	Louislana		
Lelpzig, c	Ralph C. Busser, consul.	Pennsylvania		IV
	Paul J. Reveley, vice consul	('onnecticut		Uncl.(c)
	Patrick Mallon. vice consul	Ohio		Unci.(c)
Munich (München), c.g.	Charles M. Hathaway, Jr., consul general	Pennsylvania		I
	Leonard G. Dawson, consul	Virginia		v
	Hugh F. Ramsay, vice consul	Dist. Columbia	Nov. 27, 1931	Uncl.(a)
	James M. Bowcock, vice consul	Colorado	Jan. 7, 1924	

Post	Name and rank	Whence ap- pointed	Date of as- signment	Class
GERMANY-Continued				
Stuttgart, c	Samuel W. Honaker, consul general.	Texas	June 20 1934	111
Stutigatt, C	James P. Moffitt, consul	New York		v
	Paul J. Gray, vice consul			Uncl.(c)
	Hugh H. Teller, vice consul	Michlgan		
	Donn Paul Medalie, vice consul	Illinois	‡June 11, 1931	
GREAT BRITAIN AND NORTH- ERN IRELAND, BRITISH DOMINIONS BRYOND THE SEAS, INDIA				
(Great Britain-Northern Ireland)				
London, e	Robert Worth Bingham, ambassador extraordi- nary and plenipotentiary.	Kentucky	Mar. 23, 1933	
	Ray Atherton, counselor of embassy	Illinols		I
	Herschel V. Johnson, first secretary	North Carolina		III
	Hugh Millard, second secretary	Nebraska		V
	Walter T. Prendergast, second secretary	Ohlo		VI
	Hiram Bingham, Jr., third secretary	Connecticut		Uncl.(b) Uncl.(b)
	William W. Butterworth, Jr., third secretary Lt. Col. Cortlandt Parker, military attaché	Louisiana War Dept		0 1101. (0)
	Capt. Walter S. Anderson, naval attaché	Navy Dept		
	Lynn W. Meckins, commercial attaché	Dept. Commerce.		
	Edward A. Foley, agricultural attaché	Dept.Agriculture.		
	Maj. William T. Pigott, Jr., asst. milliary attaché.	War Dept		
	Capt. John W. Monahan, asst. military attaché for air.	War Dept	Feb. 14, 1933	
	Capt. Herbert Seymour Howard, asst. naval attaché.	Navy Dept		
	Comdr. Howard D. Bode, asst naval attaché			
	Lt. Comdr. Ben H. Wyatt, asst. naval attaché	Navy Dept		
	Lt. Comdr. Leslie C. Stevens, asst. naval attaché. Charles E. Lyon, asst. commercial attaché	Navy Dept Dept. Commerce.		
C.Q	Robert Frazer, ¹ consul general	Pennsylvania	Oct. 8, 1932	1
	Dudley G. Dwyre, consul-	Colorado	June 30, 1934	IV
	Charles C. Broy, consul	Virginia		V
	Robert B. Macatee, consul	Virginia		V
	James E. McKenna, consul			VI
	Franklin C. Gowen, consul	Pennsylvanla North Carolina		V11 VIII
	James E. Parks, consul William M. Cramp, vice consul	Pennsylvania		
	Charles A. Converse, vice consul-	Georgia		
	John J. Coyle, vice consul	New York		
	James E. Callahan, vice consul	Massachusetts		
Belfast, Northern Ireland, c	Lucien Memminger, consul general	South Carolina	Jan. 27, 1931	1 V
	Albert W. Scott, vice consul	Missouri		
Dimeteral and Date 1	Robert Janz, vice consul	Oklahoma		
Birmingham, England, c		California		III
Bradford, England, c	William N. Carroll, vice consul Ernest E. Evans, consul	North Carolina New York		VII
aramora, Bugiana, Cassessesses	George L. Fleming, vice consul-	Missouri		VII
Bristol, England, c		New York		VIII
	John F. Claffey, vice consul			
Cardiff, Wales, c		New York		VI
	Paul C. Seddicum, vice consul-	Dist. Columbia		
Dundee, Scotland, c	Maurice P. Dunlap, consul			V
	Julian K. Smedherg, vice consul	New York	Mar. 5, 1931	

¹ Detailed temporarily to the Department.

GREAT BEITAIN, ETC.—Con. Robert D. Longyear, consul. Massachusetts. July 26, 1933 Glasgow, Scotland, c	Class
land)—Continued Robert D. Longyear, consul. Massachusetts. July 26, 1033 Edinburgh, Scotland, e. Harry F. Hawley, consul. New York. June 20, 1034 Maarto F. Pasquet, Vice consul. New York. June 20, 1034 Maurice Pasquet, Vice consul. New York. Mar, 6, 1033 Hull, England, e. Minima R. Morton, vice consul. New York. Mar, 6, 1033 Hull, England, e. Printy Dioland, consul general. New York. Dec. 13, 1033 Liverpool, England, e. Printy Dioland, consul general. New York. Dec. 13, 1033 Manchester, England, e. Alfred R. Thomson, consul. Maryland. Dec. 23, 1929 Wallace E. Messener, vice consul. Mew York. Mary 18, 1923 New castle-on-Tyne, England, e. Alfred R. Thomson, consul. Maryland. Dec. 33, 1929 Wallace E. Messener, vice consul. Ohio. Dist. Columba, 10, 1063 Dist. Columba, 1064 Pilly Drouth, England, e. Henry N. Ramsey, vice consul. Michigan. June 6, 1929 Southampton, England, c. Howard K. Tharger, consul. New York. Apr. 7, 1933 Gubrait, c. Richard L. Sprague, consul. New York. Apr.	
Edwin B, Earnest, vice consul Iowa Apr. 9, 1930 Glasgow, Scotland, c. Harry F, Havley, consul. New York. Nov. 29, 1933 J. Forrest Ingle, vice consul. New York. Nov. 29, 1933 Hull, England, e. Andrew J. McConnico, vice consul. New York. Nov. 29, 1933 Liverpool, England, e. Philip Holland, consul general. New York. New York. New York. New York. New York. New 20, 1982 Liverpool, England, e. Philip Holland, consul general. New York. Marg. 19, 292 New York. Nag. 29, 1933 Naschuset. Nag. 29, 1933 Nag. 29, 1933 Naw. York. Nag. 29, 1933 Naw. 24, 1931 Naschuset. Naw. 24, 1931<	
Glasgow, Scotland, c. Harry F. Hawley, consul. New York. June 20, 1034 Maurice Pasquet, vice consul. New York. Norv 20, 1033 Mulliam R. Morton, vice consul. New York. Nar. 6, 1033 Hull, England, c. Mart of expende, vice consul. New York. Mar. 6, 1033 Liverpool, England, c. Phill Didland, consul general. Tennessee. Sept. 20, 1027 Phill H. Hubbard, vice consul. New York. Jan. 92, 1931 Hugh Watson, vice consul. New York. Mar, 18, 1032 Nanchester, England, c. Alfred R. Thomson, consul. Maryland. Dec. 3, 1920 Wallace E. Messener, vice consul. Oklahoma. Sept. 3, 1927 New York. June 1, 1944 Norv 24, 1933 Pill H. Rublard, vice consul. Oklahoma. Sept. 3, 1929 Wallace F. Messener, vice consul. Oklahoma. Sept. 3, 1929 New York. June 1, 1944 Leituman Springs, vice consul. Michigan. June 1, 1944 Southampton. England, c. Howard K. Tavers, consul. New York. June 6, 1920 Gliraitar, c. Richard L. Sprague, consul. New York. June 6, 1932 Ma	v
J. Forrest Ingle, vice consul.Indina	V
Hull, England, c. Andrew J. McConnico, consul. Mississippl Jan. 11, 1929 Liverpool, England, c. Philp Holland, consul general. New York. Dec. 13, 1933 Liverpool, England, c. Philp Holland, consul general. Vermont. June 29, 1931 Manchester, England, c. Alfred R. Thomson, consul. New York. May 18, 1923 Neweastle-on-Tyne, England, c. Alfred R. Thomson, consul. Maryland. Dec. 13, 1943 Plumouth, England, c. Rollin R. Winslow, consul. Michigan. June 30, 1963 Plymouth, England, c. Henry O. Ramsey, vice consul. Noichigan. June 6, 1969 Southampton, England, c. Henry O. Ramsey, vice consul. New York. June 6, 1969 Southampton, England, c. Henry O. Ramsey, vice consul. New York. Apr. 7, 1963 Edvard S. Maney, vice consul. Terass. Oct. 12, 1961 Birling H. C. Richard L. Sprague, consul. New York. Nov. 7, 1921 (Other Europe) Richard L. Sprague, consul. California. Dec. 12, 1961 Gloralatar, c. Richard L. Sprague, consul. Vasshipton. Ar. 7, 1932 Malta, c. Geraid Keith, vice consul.	Uncl.(c)
Percy G. Kemp, vice consulNew YorkDec. 13, 1933Liverpool, England, c.Phillp Holland, consul general.Tennessee.Sept. 20, 1927Phill H. Hubbard, vice consul.New YorkJune 20, 1931Manchester, England, c.Alfred R. Thomson, consul.Maryland.Dec. 23, 1929New castle-on-Tyne, England, c.Pittman Springs, vice consul.Massehusetts.Oct. 19, 1932Merlin E. Smith, vice consul.Ohlo.June 30, 1931Plymouth, England, c.Rollin R. Winslow, consul.Dist. Columbia.Nor. 4, 1951Sheffield, England, c.Henry S. Waterman, consul.Washington.Mar. 6, 1933Southampton, England, c.Henry O. Ramsey, vice consul.New York.Apr. 7, 1933Edward S. Maney, vice consul.New York.Apr. 7, 1933Oct. 12, 1931Southampton, England, c.Richard L. Sprague, consul.New York.Nor. 7, 1921(Other Europe)Richard L. Sprague, consul.New York.Nor. 7, 1921Gibraltar, c.Geraid Keith, vice consul.California.Dec. 7, 1932Malta, c.Geraid Keith, vice consul.Iowa.Apr. 7, 1932Calcutta, e.g.Geraid Keith, vice consul.Iowa.Apr. 7, 1932Matta, e.g.Geraid Keith, vice consul.Iowa.Apr. 7, 1932Malta, c.Geraid Keith, vice consul.Iowa.Apr. 7, 1932Matta, e.g.Geraid Keith, vice consul.Wassont.Apr. 7, 1932MarianoCalcutta, e.g.Geraid Keith, vice consul.Iowa.J. Weiley Jone, vice	
Phil II. Hubbard, vice consul.Vermont.June 29, 1931Manchester, England, c.Alfred R. Thomson, consul.New York.May 18, 1923Newcastle-on-Tyne, England, c.Alfred R. Thomson, consul.Maryland.Dec. 23, 1929Newcastle-on-Tyne, England, c.Rell C. Squire, consul.Marsyland.Dec. 19, 1932Plymouth, England, c.Rollin R. Winslow, consul.Michigan.June 30, 1931Sheffield, England, c.Henry S. Waterman, consul.Dist. Columbia.Nov. 24, 1931Southampton, England, c.Henry O. Ramsey, vice consul.South Dakota.June 6, 1929Southampton, England, c.Howard K. Travers, consul.New York.Apre. 7, 1933Edward S. Maney, vice consul.New York.June 14, 1932(Other Europe)Richard L. Sprague, consul.New York.Nov. 7, 1931(Other Europe)Richard L. Sprague, consul.New York.June 14, 1942(India)Coke S. Rice, vice consul.Connecticut.Aug. 18, 1931(India)Gerald Keith, vice consul.Connecticut.Aug. 18, 1931Calcutta, e.g.Gerald Keith, vice consul.New Jersey.June 20, 1931Jonnal H. Robinson, vice consul.New Jersey.June 20, 1931South App, c.Dayle C. McDonough, consul.New Jersey.July 26, 1932Malta, e.Gerald Keith, vice consul.New Jersey.July 26, 1932Malta, e.Gerald Keith, vice consul.New Jersey.July 26, 1932Malta, e.Donald H. Robinson, vice consul.New Jersey.July	VI
Manchester, England, cHugh Watson, vice consul.New York.May 18, 1923Newcastle-on-Tyne, England, cAlfred R. Thomson, consul.Okiahoma.Eept. 3, 1929Newcastle-on-Tyne, England, cPaul C. Squire, consul.Massachusetts.Oct. 19, 1932Plymouth, England, cRelin E. Smith, vice consul.OhioJune 30, 1931Sheffield, England, cHenry S. Waterman, consul.Washington.Mare, 6, 1932Southampton, England, cHenry S. Waterman, consul.Washington.Mare, 6, 1932Southampton, England, cHenry S. Waterman, consul.New York.Apr. 7, 1933Edward S. Maney, vice consul.New York.Apr. 7, 1933Edward S. Maney, vice consul.New York.Nov. 7, 1921(Other Europe)F. Willard Calder, vice consul.New York.Nov. 7, 1921(Other Europe)Richard L. Sprague, consul.Massachusetts.June 14, 1932Malta, cMason Turner, consul.Connecticut.Lug. 18, 1931(India)Gerald Keith, vice consul.Iunos.Sept. 4, 1931Calcutta, c.g.Gerald Keith, vice consul.New York.Nar. 7, 1932Domald H. Robinson, vice consul.Nessonia.Dec. 21, 1932Domald H. Robinson, vice consul.New Sorterey.July 26, 1932Domald H. Robinson, vice consul.New York.Jan. 20, 1931Joyale C. McDonough, consul.New Sorterey.July 26, 1932Domald H. Robinson, vice consul.New Sorterey.July 26, 1932Joyale C. McDonough, consul.	II
Manchester, England, c. Alfred R. Thomson, consul. Maryland. Dec. 23, 1929 Wallace E. Mossner, vice consul. Oklahoma. 15ept. 3, 1924 Newcastle-on-Tyrne, England, c. Maryland. Dec. 19, 1932 Plymouth, England, c. Minin E. Smith, vice consul. Michigan. June 30, 1931 Sheffield, England, c. L. Pittman Springs, vice consul. Dist. Columbia. Nov. 24, 1931 Sheffield, England, c. Henry O. Ramsey, vice consul. South Dakota. June 6, 1929 Southampton, England, c. Howard K. Travers, consul. New York. Apr. 7, 1933 Edward S. Maney, vice consul. New York. June 14, 1932 (Other Europe) Richard L. Sprague, consul. New York. Nov. 7, 1921 (Other Europe) William F. Cavenaugh, vice consul. Massachusetts. Huly 18, 1901 (India) Cole S. Rice, vice consul. Massachusetts. July 18, 1931 Calcutta, e.g. Gerald Keith, vice consul. Illinois Sept. 4, 1931 J. Wesigy Jones, vice consul. Iwashington. Apr. 7, 1932 Calcutta, e.g. Gerald Keith, vice consul. Iwashington. Apr. 7, 1932 Calcutta, e.	Uncl.(a)
Newcastle-on-Tyne, England, c Paul C. Squire, consul	IV
Plymouth, England, c.Merlin E, Smith, vice consul.Ohlo.June 30, 1931Rollin R. Winslow, consul.MichiganJune 11, 1934Sheffield, England, c.Henry S. Waterman, consul.Dist. Columbia.Southampton, England, c.Howrad K. Travers, consul.New York.Southampton, England, c.Howrad K. Travers, consul.New York.(Other Europe)Kanaey, vice consul.New York.Gibraltar, c.Richard L. Sprague, consul.New York.(Other Europe)Richard L. Sprague, consul.Massachusetts.Glibraltar, c.Richard L. Sprague, consul.Massachusetts.(Judia)CaliforniaDec. 7, 1933Calcutta, c.g.Gerald Keith, vice consul.California(India)Gerald Keith, vice consul.CaliforniaCalcutta, c.g.Gerald Keith, vice consul.Washington.June J, Wesley Jones, vice consul.New York.June 20, 1931June J, Wesley Jones, vice consul.Washington.Apr. 7, 1932June J, Wesley Jones, vice consul.Wew Jersey.July 26, 1932June J, Wesley Jones, vice consul.Weisconsin.Dec. 22, 1932Jonald H, Robinson, vice consul.Missouri.Jan. 29, 1931Nathaniel Lancaster, Jr., viee consul.Missouri.Jan. 29, 1931Nathaniel Lancaster, Jr., viee consul.<	v
Sheffield, England, c.L. Pittman Springs, vice consul.Dist. Columbia.Nov. 24, 1931Sheffield, England, c.Henry O. Ramsey, vice consul.WashingtonMar. 6, 1933Southampton, England, c.Howard K. Travers, consul.New York.Apr. 7, 1933Edward S. Maney, vice consul.New York.June 14, 1932(Other Europe)F. Willard Calder, vice consul.New York.June 14, 1932(Other Europe)Richard L. Sprague, consul.Massachusetts.July 18, 1901Malta, c.Richard L. Sprague, consul.Massachusetts.July 18, 1901(India)William F. Cavenaugh, vice consul.Connecticut.Aug. 18, 1331Coke S. Rice, vice consul.Texas.Mar. 20, 1931(India)Gerald Keith, vice consul.Iowa.Dec. 7, 1932Donald H. Robinson, vice consul.New Jersey.July 26, 1932Donald H. Robinson, vice consul.Nissouri.Jan. 26, 1931Nathaniel Lancaster, Jr., vice consul.Missouri.Jan. 26, 1931Nathaniel Lancaster, Jr., vice consul.Minnesota.Dec. 23, 1931Nathaniel Lancaster, Jr., vice consul.Minesota.Dec. 23, 1931Nat	
Sheffield, England, cHenry S. Waterman, consul	VI
Southampton, England, c.Howard K. Travers, consul.New York.Apr. 7, 1933 Texns.Cott. 12, 1931Edward S. Maney, vice consul.Texns.Oct. 12, 1931 New York.June 14, 1932 New York.(Other Europe)Richard L. Sprague, consul.Massachusetts.tJuly 18, 1901 Collfornia.Malta, c.Richard L. Sprague, consul.Massachusetts.tJuly 18, 1901 Connecticut.(India)Gerald Keith, vice consul.Connecticut.Aug. 18, 1931 Texns.(India)Gerald Keith, vice consul.Illinols.Sept. 4, 1931 J. Wesley Jones, vice consul.Illinols.Sombay, c.Gerald Keith, vice consul.IndiasSept. 4, 1931 J. Wesley Jones, vice consul.Indias.Bombay, c.Dayle C. McDonough, consul.Washington.Apr. 7, 1932 New York.Natancei, Lance, c.Dayle C. McDonough, consul.Wisconsin.Dec. 22, 1932 Virginia.Natancei, Lance, c.Joseph G. Groeninger, consul.Maryland.Dec. 23, 1931 Virginia.Natanaci, c.Joseph G. Groeninger, consul.Maryland.Dec. 23, 1931 Virginia.Madras, e.Charles W. Lewis, Jr., consul.Maryland.Dec. 23, 1931 Virginia.Madras, e.Leo J. Callanan, consul.Michigan.Dec. 29, 1932 Virginia.Madras, e.Leo J. Callanan, consul.New York.Mar, 7, 1932 Virginia.Madras, e.Leo J. Callanan, consul.New York.Mar, 7, 1933 Hoode Island.Madras, e.Leo J. Callanan, consul.New York.Mar, 6, 1933 Hoode Island. <td>v</td>	v
Edward S. Maney, vice consul.Texas.Oct. 12, 1931(Other Europe)F. Willard Calder, vice consul.New York.June 14, 1932Gibraltar, c.Richard L. Sprague, consul.Massachusetts.tJuly 18, 1901Malta, c.Richard L. Sprague, consul.Massachusetts.tJuly 18, 1901(India)Gerald Keith, vice consul.California.Dec. 7, 1932(India)Gerald Keith, vice consul.Texas.Mar. 20, 1931(India)Gerald Keith, vice consul.Iowa.Dec. 10, 1931(India)Gerald Keith, vice consul.Iowa.Dec. 10, 1931Sombay, c.Gerald Keith, vice consul.New Jersey.July 26, 1932Bombay, c.Dayle C. McDonough, consul.New Jersey.July 26, 1932Bombay, c.Joseph G. Groeninger, consul.Miscourl.Jan. 29, 1931Nathaniel Lancaster, Jr., vice consul.Maryland.Dec. 2, 1932Norris Rediker, vice consul.Maryland.Dec. 2, 1932Madras, c.Joseph G. Groeninger, consul.Maryland.Dec. 2, 1931Madras, c.Winfield H. Scott, consul.Maryland.Dec. 2, 1932Madras, c.Charles W. Lewis, Jr., consul.Maryland.Dec. 2, 1932Madras, c.Leo J. Callanan, consul.Massachusetts.Sept. 1, 1931Aden, Arabia, c.Leo J. Callanan, consul.New York.Mar, 6, 1933Aden, Arabia, c.Leo J. Callanan, consul.New York.Mar, 6, 1933Hong Kong, c.g.Charles L. Hoever, consul general.New York.Mar, 6, 1	v
(Other Europe)F. Willard Calder, vice consul.New York.Nov. 7, 1921Gibraltar, c	Uncl.(a)
(Other Europe)Richard L. Sprague, consul.Massachusetts.JJnly 18, 1901Gibraltar, c.Richard L. Sprague, consul.California.Dec. 7, 1932Malta, c.Mason Turner, consul.Connecticut.Aug. 18, 1931(India)Coke S. Rice, vice consul.TexasMar. 20, 1931Calcutta, c.g.Gerald Keith, vice consul.Iowa.Dec. 10, 1931J. Wesley Jones, vice consul.Iowa.Dec. 10, 1931F. Russell Engdahl, vice consul.New Jersey.July 26, 1932Donald H. Robinson, vice consul.New Jersey.July 26, 1932Fred W. Jandrey, vice consul.Missouri.Jan. 29, 1931Nathaniel Lancaster, Jr., vice consul.Missouri.Jan. 29, 1931Nathaniel Lancaster, Jr., vice consul.Minnesota.Dec. 23, 1931Lejard C. Altaffer, vice consul.Maryland.Dec. 29, 1931Madras, c.Charles W. Lewis, Jr., consul.Michigan.Dec. 29, 1932Rangoon, c.Winfield H. Scott, consul.Dist. Columbia.Sept. 3, 1931Reginald S. Kazanjian, vice consul.Natsachusetts.Sept. 3, 1931Aden, Arabia, c.Leo J. Callanan, consul.New York.June 25, 1932Nortis Edil, consul.New York.June 19, 1933Hong Kong, c.g.Charles L. Hoover, consul general.New York.June 19, 1933Hong Kong, c.g.Charles L. Hoover, consul general.New York.June 20, 1934	Uncl.(b)
Malta, c.William F. Cavenaugh, vice consul.CaliforniaDec. 7, 1932Mason Turner, consul.Connecticut.Aug. 18, 1931(India)Gerald Keith, vice consul.TerasMar. 20, 1931Calcutta, c.g.Gerald Keith, vice consul.IllinoisDec. 10, 1931J. Wesley Jones, vice consul.IowaDec. 10, 1931F. Russell Engdahl, vice consul.New Jersey.July 26, 1932Donald H. Robinson, vice consul.New Jersey.July 26, 1932Bombay, c.Dayle C. McDonough, consul.Missouri.Jan. 29, 1931Norris Rediker, vice consul.Virginia.Apr. 7, 1932Norris Rediker, vice consul.MinnesotaDec. 22, 1932Norris Rediker, vice consul.MinnesotaDec. 23, 1931Loya C.Joseph G. Groeninger, consul.MinnesotaDec. 29, 1931Madras, c.Charles W. Lewis, Jr., consul.MichiganDec. 29, 1931Karachi, c.Winfield H. Scott, consul.MichiganDec. 29, 1931Karagoon, c.Winfield H. Scott, consul.Dist. ColumbiaSept. 3, 1931Regnald S. Kazanjian, vice consul.New York.Mar. 7, 1932Madras, c.Leo J. Callanan, consul.New York.Mar. 6, 1933Nohor Ceylon, c.Robert L. Buell, consul.New York.Mar. 6, 1933Hong Kong, c.g.Charles L. Hoover, consul general.New York.Mar. 6, 1933Hong Kong, c.g.Charles L. Hover, consul general.Missouri.June 20, 1934	
Malta, c.Mason Turner, consul.Connecticut.Aug. 18, 1931(India)Coke S. Rice, vice consul.TexasMar. 20, 1931Calcutta, c.g.Gerald Keith, vice consul.IllinoisSept. 4, 1931J. Wesley Jones, vice consul.IowaDec. 10, 1931F. Russell Engdahl, vice consul.New Jersey.July 26, 1932Donald H. Robinson, vice consul.Missouri.Jan. 29, 1931Bombay, c.Dayle C. McDonough, consul.WisconsinDec. 22, 1932Bombay, c.Dayle C. McDonough, consul.Missouri.Jan. 29, 1931Nathaniel Lancaster, Jr., vice consul.Wirginia.Apr. 7, 1932Norris Rediker, vice consul.MarylandDec. 22, 1932Madras, c.Charles W. Lewis, Jr., consul.MinesotaDec. 29, 1931Lloyd E. Riggs, vice consul.MichiganDec. 29, 1931Rangoon, c.Winfield H. Scott, consul.MichiganDec. 29, 1931Rangoon, c.Reginald S. Kazanjian, vice consul.Dist. Columbia.Sept. 3, 1931Redend, Arabia, c.Leo J. Callanan, consul.Massachusetts.Sept. 3, 1931Robert L. Buell, consul.New York.June 19, 1933Hong Kong, c.g.Charles L. Hoover, consul general.New York.Mar, 6, 1933Hong Kong, c.g.Charles L. Hoover, consul general.Missouri.June 20, 1934	v
(India)Coke S. Rice, vice consulTexasMar. 20, 1931Calcutta, c.g.Gerald Keith, vice consulIllinoisSept. 4, 1931J. Wesley Jones, vice consulIowaDec. 10, 1931F. Russell Engdahl, vice consulNew JerseyJuly 26, 1932Donald H. Robinson, vice consulNew JerseyJuly 26, 1932Bombay, cDayle C. McDonough, consulMissouriJan. 29, 1931Nathaniel Lancaster, Jr., vice consulMissouriDec. 22, 1932Norris Rediker, vice consulMinnesotaDec. 22, 1932Madras, cCharles W. Lewis, Jr., consulMinnesotaDec. 29, 1931Madras, cCharles W. Lewis, Jr., consulMichiganDec. 29, 1931Rangoon, cWinfield H. Scott, consulDist. ColumbiaSept. 3, 1931Reginald S. Kazanjian, vice consulMassachusettsSept. 3, 1931Aden, Arabia, cLeo J. Callanan, consulMassachusettsSept. 9, 1933Colombo, Ceylon, cRobert L. Buell, consulNew YorkJune 19, 1933Hong Kong, c.g.Charles L. Hoover, consul generalNew YorkMar. 6, 1933Hong Kong, c.g.Charles L. Hoover, consul generalNew YorkMar. 6, 1933	Uncl.(c) VII
Calcutta, c.g. Gerald Keith, vice consul. Illinois. Sept. 4, 1931 J. Wesley Jones, vice consul. Iowa. Dec. 10, 1931 F. Russell Engdahl, vice consul. Washington. Apr. 7, 1932 Donald H. Robinson, vice consul. New Jersey. July 26, 1932 Fred W. Jandrey, vice consul. Missouri. Jan. 29, 1931 Bombay, c. Dayle C. McDonough, consul. Missouri. Jan. 29, 1931 Nathaniel Lancaster, Jr., vice consul. Minnesota. Dec. 22, 1932 Norris Rediker, vice consul. Minnesota. Dec. 23, 1931 Lloyd E. Riggs, vice consul. Minnesota. Dec. 29, 1931 Madras, c. Charles W. Lewis, Jr., consul. Michigan. Dec. 29, 1931 Mineld H. Scott, consul. Michigan. Dec. 29, 1931 June 25, 1932 Rangoon, c. Winfield H. Scott, consul. Dist. Columbia. Sept. 3, 1931 Reginald S. Kazanjian, vice consul. Massachusetts. Sept. 19, 1933 Robert L. Buell, consul. New York. June 19, 1933 Robert L. Buell, consul. New York. June 19, 1933 Hong Kong, c.g. Charles L. Hoover, consul general. Missouri.	V 11
J. Wesley Jones, vice consulIowaDec. 10, 1931F. Russell Engdahl, vice consulWashingtonApr. 7, 1932Donald H. Robinson, vice consulNew JerseyJuly 26, 1932Fred W. Jandrey, vice consulWisconsinDec. 22, 1932Bombay, c.Dayle C. McDonough, consulMissouriJan. 29, 1931Nathaniel Lancaster, Jr., vice consulWisconsinDec. 22, 1932Norris Rediker, vice consulMinnesotaDec. 22, 1932Norris Rediker, vice consulMinnesotaDec. 22, 1932Madras, cJoseph G. Groeninger, consulMarylandDec. 23, 1931Lloyd E. Riggs, vice consulMichiganDec. 29, 1931Madras, cCharles W. Lewis, Jr., consulMichiganDec. 29, 1931Rangoon, cWinfield H. Scott, consulDist. Columbia.Sept. 3, 1931Reginald S. Kazanjian, vice consulRabode IslandApr. 7, 1932Other Aaia)Robert L. Buell, consulNew YorkJune 19, 1933Hong Kong, c.gCharles L. Hoover, consul generalNew YorkMar, 6, 1933Hong Kong, c.gCharles L. Hoover, consul generalNew YorkJune 20, 1934	
F. Russell Engdahl, vice consul.WashingtonApr.7, 1932Donald H. Robinson, vice consul.New JerseyJuly 26, 1932Fred W. Jandrey, vice consul.WisconsinDec. 22, 1932Bombay, cDayle C. McDonough, consul.MissourlJan. 29, 1931Nathaniel Lancaster, Jr., vice consul.VirginiaApr. 7, 1632Norris Rediker, vice consul.MinnesotaDec. 22, 1932Norris Rediker, vice consul.MinnesotaDec. 23, 1931Loyd E. Riggs, vice consul.MinnesotaDec. 29, 1931Madras, cCharles W. Lewis, Jr., consul.MichiganDec. 29, 1931Leland C. Altaffer, vice consul.OhioJune 25, 1932Rangoon, cWinfield H. Scott, consul.Dist. Columbia.Sept. 3, 1931Reginald S. Kazanjian, vice consul.Rabed IslandApr. 7, 1932Aden, Arabia, cLeo J. Callanan, consul.New YorkMar. 6, 1933Hong Kong, c.g.Charles L. Hoover, consul general.New YorkMar. 6, 1933	Uncl.(a)
Donald H. Robinson, vice consulNew JerseyJuly 26, 1932Fred W. Jandrey, vice consulWisconsinDec. 22, 1932Bombay, c.Dayle C. McDonough, consulMissouriJan. 29, 1931Nathaniel Lancaster, Jr., vice consulWirginiaApr. 7, 1932Norris Rediker, vice consulMinnesotaDec. 23, 1931Lloyd E. Riggs, vice consulIllinoistOct. 2, 1929Madras, cCharles W. Lewis, Jr., consulMichiganDec. 2, 1932Rangoon, cWinfield H. Scott, consulDist. ColumbiaSept. 3, 1931(Other Aaia)Leo J. Callanan, consulDist. ColumbiaSept. 3, 1931Aden, Arabia, cLeo J. Callanan, consulMassachusettsSept. 19, 1933Robert L. Buell, consulNew YorkJune 19, 1933Hong Kong, c.gCharles L. Hoover, consul generalNew YorkMar, 6, 1933	Uncl.(e)
Bombay, c	Uncl.(c) Uncl.(c)
Nathaniel Lancaster, Jr., vice consul.Virginia.Apr. 7, 1932Norris Rediker, vice consul.Minnesota.Dec. 22, 1932Karachi, c.Joseph G. Groeninger, consul.Maryland.Dec. 23, 1931Lloyd E. Riggs, vice consul.Illinois.toct. 2, 1929Madras, c.Charles W. Lewis, Jr., consul.Michigan.Dec. 29, 1931Leland C. Altaffer, vice consul.Ohio.June 25, 1932Rangoon, c.Winfield H. Scott, consul.Dist. Columbia.Sept. 3, 1931Reginald S. Kazanjian, vice consul.Rhode Island.Apr. 7, 1932Aden, Arabia, c.Leo J. Callanan, consul.Massachusetts.Sept. 19, 1933Colombo, Ceylon, c.Robert L. Buell, consul.New York.June 19, 1933Hong Kong, c.g.Charles L. Hoover, consul general.New York.Mar. 6, 1933	Uncl.(c)
Karachi, c	Uncl.(c)
Madras, c Lloyd E. Riggs, vice consul Illinois	Unci.(c)
Madras, c	VII
Rangoon, c	VI
Reginald S. Kazanjian, vice consulRhode IslandApr. 7, 1932(Other Aaia)Leo J. Callanan, consulMassachusettsSept. 19, 1933Colombo, Ceylon, cRobert L. Buell, consulNew YorkJune 19, 1933Brockholst Livingston, vice consulNew YorkMass. 6, 1933Hong Kong, c.gCharles L. Hoover, consul generalMissouriJune 20, 1934	VII
Aden, Arabia, c Leo J. Callanan, consul	Uncl.(c)
Colombo, Ceylon, c	
Brockholst Livingston, vice consul New York Mar. 6, 1933 Hong Kong, c.g. Charles L. Hoover, consul general. Missouri. June 20, 1934	VIII VIII
Hong Kong, c.g	Uncl.(c)
	II
Louis H. Gourley, consul	VI Uncl.(c)
Merritt N. Cootes, vice consul	Uncl.(c) Uncl.(c)

48

Post	Name and rank	Whence ap- pointed	Date of as- signment	Class
GREAT BRITAIN, ETC Con.				
(Other Asia)-Continued				
Penang, Straits Settlements, c	Carlton Hurst, consul	Dist. Columbia.	Mar. 6, 1933	VIII
Singapore, Straits Settlements, c.g.	Linton Crook, vice consul	Alabama Virginia		 III
Singapore, otraita octriomenta, e.g.	Thomas McEnelly, consul	New York	June 20, 1934	VI
	Harrison A. Lewis, vice consul William C. Affeld, Jr., vice consul	California Minnesota		Uncl.(c) Uncl.(c)
	R. Allen Haden, vice consul	Tennessee		Uncl.(c)
(Africa)				
Lagos, Nigeria, West Africa, c	William L. Peck, consul	Connecticut		VIII
Nairobi, Kenya, East Africa, c	Augustus Ostertag, vice consul Robert B. Streeper, consul	Pennsylvania Ohio		VIII
	Oscar Thomason, vice consul-	New Jersey	Jan. 7,1920	
(Australia)				
Adelaide, South Australia, c	Henry M. Wolcott, consul- Forrest K. Geerken, vice consul-	New York Minnesota	Apr. 16, 1930 ‡Mar. 26, 1931	IV
Brisbane, Queensland, c	Austin R. Preston, consul	New York	Dec. 23, 1930	VII
Malhauma Vistoria	Mulford A. Colebrook, vice consul John W. Dye, consul	New York Minnesota	Dec. 22, 1932 July 13, 1931	Uncl.(c) IV
Melbourne, Victoria, c	Bernard C. Connelly, vice consul		Mar. 6, 1933	Uncl.(c)
Sydney, New South Wales, c.g	Ralph H. Hunt, vice consul	Massachusetts		ī
Sydney, New South Wales, c.g	John K. Caldwell, consul general Albert M. Doyle, consul	Kentucky Michigan	Jan. 19, 1932 Dec. 23, 1930	VII
	Foster H. Kreis, vice consul	Minnesota	Apr. 15, 1930	
(New Zealand)	Frank E. McFadden, vice consul	Iowa	May 22, 1930	
Wellington, c.g	George A. Bucklin, consul general	Oklahoma	June 28, 1934	111
i chingron, ciy	Walter W. Hoffmann, vice consul	California	Dec. 22, 1932	Uncl.(c)
Christehurch, c.a	Walter W. Orebaugh, vice consul- H. P. Bridge, consular agent	Kansas New Zealand	Mar. 27, 1933 Mar. 31, 1928	Uncl.(c)
Dunedin, c.a	Harman Reeves, consular agent	New Zealand	Apr. 6, 1920	
Auckland, c	Walter F. Boyle, consul	Georgia Massachusetts	Mar. 19, 1925	IV
(Newfoundland)	Deonard A. Dachelder, vice consul	MIASSACHUSBIIS	‡Feb. 6,1915	
St. John's, c.g	Harold B. Quarton, consul general	Iowa	June 15, 1934	IV
	George C. Cobb, vice consul		May 29, 1930	
(Other America)				
Barbados, British West Indies, c.	Perry N. Jester, vice consul	Virginia	Dec. 3, 1932	
St. Lucia, B.W.I., c.a Belize, British Honduras, c	Alan G. Peter, consular agent Culver Gidden, vice consul	St. Lucia Texas	Mar. 14, 1934	
Hamilton, Bermuda, c	Charles H. Heisler, consul	Delaware	Apr. 6,1934	VI
St. George's, Bermuda, c.a	Edwin Clay Merrell, vice consul Frederick Joseph Robertson, consular agent	Oklahoma Bermuda		
Kingston, Jamaica, c	William W. Corcoran, consul	Massachusetts	Feb. 7, 1933	VII
	Calvin H. Oakes, vice consul George F. Kelly, vice consul			Uncl.(c)
Nassau, N. P., Bahamas, c	John P. Hurley, consul	New York	June 30, 1932	III
	Wales W. Signor, vice consul		Aug. 28, 1933	Uncl.(c)
Trinldad, British West Indies, c	Alfredo L. Demorest, vice consul		‡Feb. 23, 1933 Mar. 9, 1921	
Brighton, Trinidad, B. W. I.,	Maro de Verteull, consular agent		Mar. 23, 1921	
c.a. Grenada, B. W. I., c.a	John McGilchrist, consular agent	Grenada	June 21, 1920	
Paramaribo, Netherland	James S. Lawton, consular agent	Illinois	Aug. 23, 1917	
Guiana, c.a.				

Post	Name and rank	Whence ap- pointed	Date of as- signment	Class
GREECE				
Athens (Athenai), l	Lincoln MacVeagh, envoy extraordinary and min- ister plenipotentlary.	Connecticut	June 13, 1933	
	Gerhard Gade, second secretary	Illinois	June 18, 1931	17
	Clayson W. Aldridge, second secretary	New York	Feb. 21, 1934	VII
	Lt. Col. F. Langley Whitley, military attaché Karl L. Rankin, commercial attaché	War Dept. Dept. Commerce.	Feb. 11, 1933 Feb. 4, 1932	
	Capt. Francis M. Brady, asst. military attaché for air.	War Dept	May 12, 1931	
c. g	Leland B. Morris, consul general	Pennsylvania	‡Aug. 23, 1933	III
	Henry A. W. Beck, vice consul	Indiana	Dec. 4, 1933	Uncl.(a)
	Albert E. Clattenburg, Jr., vice consul	Pennsylvania Massachusetts	Sept. 13, 1929 Feb. 3, 1933	Uncl.(b) Uncl.(c)
Patras, c	Rufus H. Lane, Jr., ¹ consul	Virginia	Oct. 29, 1931	VIII
	William C. Young, vice consul	Kentucky	Nov. 25, 1932	
Salonika (Thessalonike), c	Harry L. Troutman, consul	Georgia	Mar. 6, 1933	VI
	Donal F. McGonigal, vice consul	New York	July 17,1930	0 101.(c)
GUATEMALA				
Guatemala, l	Matthew E. Hanna, envoy extraordinary and minister plenipotentiary.	Ohio	July 17, 1933	
	Sidney E. O'Donoghue, second secretary	New Jersey	May 22,1934	VII
	Edward P. Lawton, third secretary	Georgia	May 13, 1932	VIII
	Maj. Arthur R. Harris, military attaché	War Dept	July 11,1931	
<i>c.g</i>	O. Gaylord Marsh, consul general	Washington	Dec. 22, 1933	III
	William E. Flournoy, Jr., vice consul	Virginia		Uncl.(c)
	Chester Kimrey, vice consul	Oklahoma Colorado		
HAITI				
Port-au-Prince, l	Norman Armour, envoy extraordinary and min-	New Jersey	July 25, 1932	
	ister plenipotentiary. Stanley Woodward, second secretary	Pennsylvania	Sept. 8, 1933	VII
	C. Burke Elbrick, third secretary	Kentucky	May 24, 1934	
<i>c</i>	Carl Breuer, vice consul	New York	Mar. 31, 1933	Uncl.(c)
	Bolard More, vice consul	Ohio	June 9, 1932	
Cap Haitlen, c.a Gonaïves, c.a	Corey F. Wood, consular agent J. William Woël, consular agent		July 1,1933 Sept. 8,1899	
Port de Paix, c.a	M. Florentin S. Maurrasse, consular agent		Oct. 17, 1925	
HONDURAS				
Tegucigalpa, l	Julius G. Lay, envoy extraordinary and minister plenipotentiary.	Dist. Columbia	Dec. 16, 1929	
	Raleigh A. Gibson, second secretary	Illinois	May 25, 1934	VI
	Robert A. Acly, third secretary (vice consul)	Massachusetts		
	H. Gordon Minnigerode, third secretary (vice consul).	Dist. Columbia	July 17, 1933	Uncl.(c)
	Maj. Arthur R. Harris, military attaché	War Dept	July 11, 1931	
c	Robert A. Acly, vice consul (third secretary)	Massachusetts	Nov. 8, 1930	
	H. Gordon Minnigerode, vice consul (third secretary).	Dist. Columbia	July 17, 1933	0 101.(c)
Ceiba, c	Warren C. Stewart, vice consul	Marylaud	Aug. 30, 1930	
Telo na	Edgar L. McGinnis, Jr., vice consul	Pennsylvania	June 6,1933	
Tela, v.c Puerto Cortes, c	Kenneth S. Stout, vice consul	Oregon Texas	Mar. 20, 1931 Feb. 23, 1933	
¹ Detailed temporarily to the				

50

Post	Name and rank	Whence ap- pointed	Date of as- signment	Class
HUNGARY				
Budapest, l	John Flournoy Montgomery, euvoy extraordinary and minister plenipotentiery.	California	June 13, 1933	
	Benjan in Reath Riggs, first secretary	Pennsylvania		
	Robert English. third secretary Lt. Col. Martin C. Shallenberger, military attaché.	Massachusetts War Dept		
C. Ø	James B. Stewart, consul general	New Mexico		1
	Fletcher Warren, consul	Texas.		V
	Overton G. Ellis. Jr., vice consul Ernest V. Polutnik, vice consul	Washington Montana	-	
	Leonard G. Bradford, vice consul	Massachusetts		
IRAQ (MESOPOTAMIA)				
Baghdad, l	Paul Knabenshue, ¹ minister resident and consul general.	Ohio	Aug. 5, 1932	11
	James S. Moose, Jr., third secretary (vice consul).	Arkansas		
	Stanley G. Slavens, third secretary (vice consul) George W. Renchard, third secretary (vice consul).	Texas Michigan		
C. g	Paul Knabenshue, minister resident and consul general.	Ohio	Aug. 5, 1932	
	James S. Moose, Jr., vice consul (third secretary)	Arkansas		
	Stanley G. Slavens, vice eonsul (third secretary) George W. Renchard, vice consul (third secretary).	Texas Michigan		
IRISH FREE STATE				
ublin (Baile Atha Cliath), l	envoy extraordinary and			
	minister plenipotentiary. James Orr Denby, first secretary	Indiana	+ June 02 1021	
	Lt. Col. Cortlandt Parker, military attaché	War Dept		
C.g	Henry H. Balch, consul general	Alabama	Jan. 12, 1931	I
	Sidney A. Belovsky, vice consul	New York		
	Paul C. Hutton, Jr., vice consul	North Carolina		
Galway, ca	Edwin J. King, vice consul Robert A Tennant, consular agent	Pennsylvania Ireland		
ork, c	Leslie E. Woods, consul	Massachusetts		V
ITALY	Robert R. Patterson, vice cousul	Michigan	Dec. 1, 1932	
оте (Rema), е	Breckinridge Long, ambassador extraordinary and plenipotentlary.	Missour!	Apr. 24.1933	
	Alexander C. Kirk, counselor of embassy	Illinois	‡Dec. 21 1929	
	Harold H. Tittmann, Jr., first secretary	Missouri		I
	Charles A. Bay, seeond secretary Randolph Harrison, Jr., third secretary	Minnesota Virginia		V Unel.(
	Col. Jerome G. Pillow, military attaché and military attaché for air.	War Dept		
	Capt. Laurance N. McNair, naval attaché	Navy Dept	June 7,1933	
	Charles A. Livengood, commercial attaché	Dept. Commerce.		
	Capt. Francis M. Brady, asst military attaché and asst. military attaché for air.	War Dept	May 12, 1931	
	Capt. Herbert Seymour Howard, asst. naval attaché.	Navy Dept	June 4, 1932	
	Comdr. Howard D. Bode, asst. naval attaché	Navy Dept	Sept. 1,1932	
	Lt. Comdr. Frederick W. Pennoyer, Jr., asst. naval attaché.	Navy Dept	Apr. 25, 1931	
c	Graham H. Kemper, consul general	Kentucky	tion 23 1024	II
	Hiram A Boucher, consul			V
	Theodore C. Achilles, vice consul			Uncl.(

¹ Foreign Service officer, receiving compensation as such, appointed to act as minister resident and consul general pursuant to see. 24 of an act of Congress approved Feb. 23, 1931.

Post	Name and rank	Whence ap- pointed	Date of as- signment	Class
ITALY-Continued				
Florence (Firenze), c	Joseph E. Haven, consul-	Illinois	Mar. 30, 1923	III
	Ilo C. Funk, consul	Colorado	Feb. 18, 1928	VI
	Frederick L. Washbourne, vice consul	New York	May 12, 1931	
Genoa (Genova), c.g.	John R. Putnam, consul	Oregon	Jan. 5, 1934	III
	George R. Hukill, consul	Delaware	Aug. 15, 1933	VII
	John P. Palmer, vice consul	Washington	June 13, 1933	Uncl.(c)
Leghorn (Livorno), c	James R. Wilkinson, consul	Wisconsin	Jan. 6, 1934	VI
	William P. Shockley, Jr., vice consul-	Delaware	July 12,1930	
Milan (Milano), c	George K. Donald, consul general	Alabama	June 20,1934	III
	E. Talbot Smith, consul	Connecticut	June 30, 1932	VII
	Miss Constance R. Harvey, vice consul-	New York	June 20, 1931	Uncl.(c)
	Frank C. Niccoli, vice consul	Colorado	. ,	
AT 1 (AT 1)	Paul Dean Thompson, vice consul	California		TT
Naples (Napoli), c.g	Coert du Bois, consul general	California	July 30, 1931	II IV
	Charles Bridgham Hosmer, consul- Howard F. Withey, consul-	Maine Michigan		VI
	John N. Hamlin, consul	Oregon		VII
	Thomas C. Wasson, vice consul	New Jersey	Mar. 6, 1933	Uncl.(a)
	Homer M. Byington, Jr., vice consul	Connecticut	June 13, 1933	Uncl.(c)
	Robert C. McCloud, vice consul	Florida	Aug. 28, 1933	Uncl.(c)
Palermo, c	Alfred T. Nester, consul	New York	Apr. 19, 1933	VI
,	David H. Buffum, vice consul	Maine	tAug. 30, 1930	Uncl.(c)
Trieste, <i>c</i>	Bernard Gotlieb, consul	New York	June 8,1934	VI
	T. Monroe Fisher, vice consul	Virginia	Feb. 15, 1932	
Turin (Torlno), c	Richard B. Haven, consul-	Illinois	Mar. 6, 1933	VII
	Francis B. Moriarty, vice consul	Dist. Columbia	Mar. 11, 1932	
Venice (Venezia), c	John Corrigan, consul	Georgia	Dec. 2, 1929	V
	Claude B. Chiperfield, vice consul	Illinois	May 5,1932	Uncl.(c)
	Charles T. Terry, vice consul	Indiana	‡Jan. 21, 1929	
JAPANESE EMPIRE				
Tokyo, <i>e</i>	Joseph C. Grew, ambassador extraordinary and plenipotentiary.	New Hampshire.	Feb. 19, 1932	
	Edwin L. Neville, counselor of embassy	Ohio	‡Apr. 12, 1928	I
	Erle R. Dickover, first secretary	California	‡May 24,1932	III
	Edward S. Crocker, 2d, second secretary	Massachusetts	Nov. 13, 1933	VI
	William T. Turner, third secretary	Georgia	Jan. 3, 1930	VIII
	Morris N. Hughes, third secretary	Illinois	Oct. 3, 1933	Uncl.(a)
	George D. Andrews, Jr., third secretary	Tennessee	Nov. 10, 1933	Uncl.(a)
	Frank A. Schuler, Jr., language officer	Michigan	Oct. 6, 1932	Uncl.(c)
	Charles A. Cooper, language officer	Nebraska		
	Maj. William C. Crane, military attaché	War Dept	June 17, 1933	
	Capt. Fred F. Rogers, naval attaché	Navy Dept	June 14, 1933	
	Frank S. Williams, commercial attaché	Dept. Commerce.		
	Capt. Truman M. Martin, asst. military attaché- Lt. Henri H. Smith-Hutton, asst. naval attaché-	War Dept Navy Dept	Nov. 15, 1932 Oct. 14, 1932	
	Herbert M. Bratter, asst. commercial attaché	Dept. Commerce_		
	Capt. Moses W. Pettigrew, language officer	War Dept.	Mar. 2, 1934	
	1st Lt. Joe R. Sherr, language officer	War Dept	Mar. 2, 1931	
	1st Lt. Harold Doud, language officer	War Dept		
	1st Lt. Frederick P. Munson, language officer	War Dept	May 9, 1932	
	the second s			
	1st Lt. Robin B. Pape, language officer	War Dept	May 9,1932	

Post	Name and rank	Whence ap- pointed	Date cf as- signment	Class
JAPANESE EMPIRE—Continued				
Talana a Continued	Lt. (jg) Henri de B. Claiborne, language officer	Navy Dept	June 27, 1931	
Tokyo, e-Continued	Lt. (jg) Daniel J. McCallum, language officer	Navy Dept		
	Lt. (jg) Alwin D. Kramer, language officer	Navy Dept	Aug. 11, 1931	
	Lt. (jg) Spencer August Carlson, language officer	Navy Dept	June 15, 1932	
	Lt. (jg) Ranson Fullinwider, language officer	Navy Dept	,	
	Lt. (jg) Monro M. Riker, language officer	Navy Dept	July 7,1933	
	1st Lt. Kenneth II. Cornell, language officer	Navy Dept	June 19, 1931	
c. g	Arthur Garrels consul general	Missouri	Nov. 16, 1929	I
t. y	J. Holbrook Chapman, consul	Dist. Columbia.	Oct. 7, 1933	VIII
	Charles A. Hutchinson, vice consul	Minnesota		
	John M. Allison, vice consul	Nebraska		Uncl.(c)
Dairen, Manchuria, c	John Carter Vincent, consul	Georgia		VII
	Arnold Van Benschoten, vice consul	Rhode Island		Uncl.(c)
Kobe, Japan, c	Howard Donovan, consul	Illinois		VII
	Kenneth C. Krentz, vice consul	Iowa	July 1,1934	Uncl.(a)
	Edmund J. Dorsz, vice consul	Michigan		Uncl.(c)
	Walter P. McConaughy, vice consul	Alabama		Uncl.(c)
	Robert Mills McClintock, vice consul-	California		Uncl.(c)
	Otis W. Rhoades, vice consul	Maryland		
Nagasaki, Japan, c	Carl O. Spamer, consul	Maryland		VI
NT	Glen W. Bruner, vice consul	Colorado		
Nagoya, Japan, c	Joseph E. Newton, vice consul	Pennsylvania Massachusetts		Uncl.(c) V
Seoul, Chosen, c.g	William R. Langdon, consul Charles H. Stephan, vice consul	New York		
Taihoku, Talwan, c	John B. Ketcham, consul	New York		VIII
Yokohama, Japan, c		Michigan		V
rononuna, oupun, or stresses	H. Merrell Benninghoff, vice consul	New York		Uncl.(a)
	Gregor C. Merrill, vice consul	Californla	-	Uncl.(c)
LATVIA	•			
Riga, I		Maryland	Aug. 28,1933	
	and minister plenipotentiary.	Dist. Columbia	Nov. 11 1020	Ш
	Felix Cole, ¹ counselor of legation William M. Gwynn, third secretary	California		VIII
	George M. Abbott, third secretary	Ohio		
	Maj. William E. Shipp, military attaché-	War Dept		
	Alexa E. Conlider annul	17 anno an t	1	
<i>c</i>	Algar E. Carleton, consul	Vermont		
	Leslie Gordon Mayer, vice consul Paul M. Dutko, vice consul	California Pennsylvania		
LIBERIA		1 Onnsylvania	Juno 20, 1002	
Monrovia, t	John H. MacVeagh, second secretary (consul)	New York	Nov. 16, 1933	v
c.g	John H. MacVeagh, consul (second secretary)	New York	Nov. 16, 1933	v
	William C. George, vice consul	Dist. Columbia	.‡Feb. 16,1931	
LITHUANIA		24	00 1000	
Kaunas, <i>l</i>	John Van A. MacMurray, ² envoy extraordinary and minister plenipotentiary.	Maryland	. Aug. 28, 1933	
	Felix Cole, ² counselor of legation	Dist. Columbia	Nov. 11, 1930	
	Maurice L. Stafford, first secretary (consul)	California		
	George D. LaMont, third secretary (vice consul)			
	Maj. William E. Shipp, military attaché	War Dept	. Mar. 15, 1932	
c	Maurice L. Stafford, consul (first secretary)	California	Jan. 6.1932	VI
	George D. LaMont, vice consul (third secretary)			
¹ Accredited also to Estonia	and Lithuania Accredited also t	o Estonia and Lat	via	

¹ Accredited also to Estonia and Lithuania. ² Accredited also to Estonia and Latvia.

.

		1		
Post	Name and rank	Whence ap- pointed	Date of as- signment	Class
LUXEMBURG 1				
Luxemburg, l	Dave Hennen Morris, envoy extraordinary and mlnlster plenlpotentiary.	New York	May 18, 1933	
	Louis Sussdorff, Jr., counselor of legation	New York	Sept. 8, 1933	II
	George P. Waller, second secretary (consul)	Alabama	Mar. 10, 1931	VII
	Robert G. McGregor, Jr., third secretary	New York	Sept. 8,1933	Uncl.(b)
	Leigh W. Hunt, asst. commercial attaché	Dept. Commerce_	June 17, 1927	
c	George P. Waller, consul (second secretary)	Alabama	Mar 10, 1931	VII
MEXICO				
México, D.F., <i>e</i>	Josephus Daniels, ambassador extraordinary and plenipotentiary.	North Carolina	Mar. 17, 1933	
	R. Henry Norweb, counselor of embassy	Ohio	Nov. 3,1933	II
	Stanley Hawks, second secretary	New York	,	VI
	William W. Schott, second secretary	Kansas		VI
	Stephen E. Aguirre, third secretary	Texas	‡Jan. 26, 1932	Uncl. (c)
	Robert Newbegin, 2d, third secretary	Massachusetts		Uncl.(c)
	Maj. Herbert E. Marshburn, military attaché	War Dept		
	Thomas H. Lockett, commercial attaché	Dept. Commerce.		
	Robert G. Glover, asst. commercial atlaché	Dept. Commerce.	Mar. 21, 1931	
C. g	Thomas D. Bowman, consulgeneral	Missouri	Mar. 27, 1933	II
	Arthur F. Tower, consul Alexander K. Sloan, consul	New York Pennsylvania		VII
	John S. Littell, vice consul	New York	Aug. 11, 1931	Uncl.(a)
	William P. Cochran, Jr., vice consul	Pennsylvania	Feb. 20, 1932	
	Andrew E. Donovan, 2d, vice consul	California		Uncl.(c)
	Kent Leavitt, vice consul	Virginia	June 13, 1933	Uncl.(c)
	John Wilson, Jr., vice consul	Montana	‡Oct. 4, 1929	
	Winfield H. Minor, vice consul	Kentucky	Sept. 24, 1931	
d.a. & d.o	Victor H. Loftus, district accounting and disburs- ing officer (vice consul).	Massachusetts	‡Jan 29,1932	
	Hyman Goldstein, asst. district accounting and disbursing officer (vice consul).	Dist. Columbia	Jan. 28,1933	
	Jack D. Neal, vice consul	Texas	Sept. 15, 1932	
	Oscar W. Fredrickson, vice consul	Washington	Nov. 19, 1932	
Agua Prieta, Sonora, c	Lewis V. Boyle, consul	California	Sept. 27, 1929	VI
	James C. Powell, Jr., vice consul	Texas	Dec. 4, 1930	
Chihuahua, Chihuahua, c	Lee R. Blohm, consul	Arizona	June 29, 1934	VI
	Francis H. Styles, ² consul	-	Jan 28, 1930	VII
Cinded Infree Obibushus	Louis B. Mazzeo, vice consul William P. Blocker, consul		‡June 27, 1930 Sept. 24, 1929	v
Ciudad Juárez. Chihuahua, c	Ollis B. Ferguson, vice consul		Dec. 3, 1926	v
	Harry K. Pangburn, vice consul		Nov. 24, 1930	
Durango, Durango, c	Ellis A. Bonnet, consul		‡July 24,1930	VIII
	Granville Oury-Jackson, vice consul		‡Sept. 15, 1928	
Ensenada, Baja Callfornia, c	William A. Smale, consul	California	Nov. 7, 1930	VII
	Walter T. Costello, vice consul	California	Aug. 4,1930	
Guadalajara, Jalisco. c	George H. Winters, vice consul	Kansas	June 19,1934	Uncl.(a)
	Charles C. Gidney, Jr., vice consul	Texas		
Guaymas, Sonora, c	Guy W. Ray, vice consul	Alabama	Oct. 25, 1933	Uncl.(c)
Matamana (Domoulinea	Alfonso F. Yepis, vice consul	Arizona		
Matamoros, Tamaulipas, c	Herndon W. Goforth, consul- Henry G. Krausse, vice consul-	North Carolina Texas		VII
	Henry G. Krausse, vice constitution	10100	, 1319	

¹ The dlplomatic officers here listed are accredited also to Belgium ² Detailed temporarily to the Department.

54

Post	Name and rank	Whence ap- pointed	Date of as- signment	Class
MEXICO-Continued				
Mazatlán, Sinaloa, c	Charles H. Derry, consul	Georgia	Dec. 21, 1933	v
	Earl Wilbert Eaton, vice consul	Texas		
Los Mochis, Sinaloa, c.a	Harold Frederic Jones, consular agent	Massachusetts	Sept. 6, 1919	
lérida, Yucatán, c	Waldo E. Bailey, vice consul	Mississippi		
	Charles H. Taliaferro, vice consul	Virginia		
Iexicali, Baja California, c	Howard A. Bowman, consul	New York		VI
LODIOTON NUEVO LOÓD C	Willys A. Myers, vice consul Edward I. Nathan, consul	Iowa Pennsylvania		 IV
Ionterrey, Nuevo León, c	Paul H Demille, vice consul	Texas		
	Herbert W. Carlson, vice consul			
Jogales, Sonora, c	Thomas H. Robinson, consul	New Jersey		i VI
	Thomas M. Powell, vice consul	Texas		
	John J. O'Keefe, vice consul	Arizona	‡Apr. 22, 1931	
Cananea, Sonora, c.a	Jeptha M. Gibbs, consular agent	Arizona		
Juevo Laredo, Tamaulipas, c	Romeyn Wormuth, consul	New York		1
	Arthur R. Williams, vice consul	Delaware		
the New Yorker	Oscar C. Harper, vice consul			
Piedras Negras, Coahuila, c	Stewart E. McMillin, consul	Kansas		V
altillo, Coahuila, c	Harold C. Wood, vice consul Samuel Sokobin, consul	Massachusetts New Jersey		
altino, Coanuna, c	II. Claremont Moses, vice consul	South Carolina		
an Luis Potosí, San Luis	George P. Shaw, consul	California	,	7
Potosí, c.	Henry T. Unverzagt, vice consul-	Virginia		
Campico, Tamaulipas, c	Clarence E. Macy, consul	Colorado		VI
- / - /	Thomas J. Maleady, vice consul	Massachusetts		Uncl.(d
Correón, Coahuila, c	Nelson R. Park, consul	Colorado		VI
eracruz, Veracruz, c	Herbert O. Williams, consul	California	July 25, 1933	V
	Joseph E. Maleady, vice consul	Massachusetts	May 13, 1933	
MOROCCO				
angier (Tanger), l	Maxwell Blake, ¹ diplomatic agent and consul gen-	Missourl	May 14, 1925	
	eral. Hooker A. Doolittle, second secretary (consul)	New York	‡June 19,1933	7
c.g	Maxwell Blake, diplomatic agent and consul gen-	Missouri	May 14, 1925	
	eral.			
	Hooker A. Doolittle, consul (second secretary)			۲
Casablanca, c	George D. Hopper, consul			1
	Frederick F. Henrotin, vice consul			
NETHERLANDS AND POSSESSIONS	V. Harwood Blocker, Jr., vice consul	Texas	Oct. 11, 1933	
(Netherlands)				
The Hague ('s Gravenhage), $l_{}$	Grenville T. Emmet, envoy extraordinary and minister plenipotentiary.	New York	Jan. 15, 1934	
	Warden McK. Wilson, first secretary	Indiana	Dec. 7, 1933	I
	Carl A. Fisher, second secretary			v
	Lt. Col. Jacob W. S. Wuest, military attaché			
	Capt. Chester H. J. Keppler, naval attaché			
	Jesse F. Van Wickel, commercial attaché	Dept. Commerce.	Sept. 18, 1926	
	Capt. Herbert Seymour Howard, asst. naval attaché.	Navy Dept	June 4, 1932	
	Comdr. Howard D. Bode, asst. naval attaché	Navy Dent	Sept 1 1939	
		* *		
¹ Foreign Service officer, recei	Lt. Comdr. Ben H. Wyatt, asst. naval attaché			

¹ Foreign Service officer, receiving compensation as such, appointed to act as diplomatic agent and consul general pursuant to sec. 17 of an act of Congress approved May 24, 1924.

Post	Name and rank	Whence ap- pointed	Date of as- signment	Class
NETHERLANDS AND POSSES- SIONS-Continued				
(Netherlands)-Continued				
Amsterdam, c.g	Kenneth S. Patton, consul general	Virginia	June 20, 1934	111
	Frederik van den Arend, consul	North Carolina		VII
	Warren M. Chase, vlce consul F. Ridgway Lineaweaver, vice consul	Indiana Pennsylvania		Uncl.(b) Uncl.(c)
Rotterdam, c	Homer Brett, consul	Mississippi		IV
10//// aug, 0	Halleck L. Rose, vice consul	Nebraska		Uncl.(c)
	Eugene Nabel, vice consul-	Rhode Island	Nov. 7, 1921	
(Possessions)				
Batavia, Java, Netherland India,	Sidney H. Browne, vice consul	New Jersey	Sent 20 1933	Uncl.(a)
c.g.	John J. Macdonald, vice consul	Missouri		Uncl.(c)
Curaçao, Netherland West	Russell M. Brooks, consul	Oregon		VII
Indies, c.	Courtland Christiani, vice consul	Dist. Columbia		
Medan, Sumatra, Netherland	Dale W. Maher, consul	Missouri		VIII
India, c.	William Du B. Thorne, vice consul	New Jersey		Uncl.(c)
Paramaribo, Netherland Guiana, c.a. (agency under Trinidad, British West Indies).	James S. Lawton, consular agent	Illinols	Aug. 23, 1917	
Surabaya (Soerabaja), Java,	Joel C. Hudson, consul	Missouri	Mar. 6,1933	VII
Netherland India, c.	L. Randolph Higgs, vice consul	Mississippi	Aug. 28, 1933	Uncl.(c)
NICARAGUA				
Managua, l	Arthur Bliss Lane, envoy extraordinary and	New York	July 31,1933	
	minister plenipotentlary.	Man Mark	4.0.7 10 1000	TTmal(a)
	Paul C. Danlels, third secretary (vice consul) George M. Graves, third secretary (vice consul)	New York Vermont		Uncl.(b)
	Earl T. Crain, third secretary (vice consul)	Illinois		Uncl.(c)
	Maj. Arthnr R. Harris, military attaché	War Dept		
c	Paul C. Daniels, vice consul (third secretary)	New York	t Apr 10 1022	Uncl.(a)
L	George M. Graves, vice consul (third secretary)	Vermont		Uncl.(b)
	Earl T. Crain, vice consul (third secretary)	Illinois		Uncl.(c)
Matagalpa, c.a	John A. Willey, consular agent.	California		
Puerto Cabezas, c	Eli Taylor, vice consul	New York	Nov. 21, 1931	
NORWAY				
Oslo, l	Hoffman Philip, envoy extraordinary and minister plenipotentiary.	New York	July 22, 1930	
	Benjamin Thaw, Jr., counselor of legation	Pennsylvania	Oct. 20, 1932	11
	Lt. Col. Jacob W. S. Wuest, military attaché	War Dept	Feb. 14,1933	
	Capt. Chester H. J. Keppler, naval attaché	Navy Dept	May 24,1933	
<i>c.g</i>	Thomas H. Bevan, consul general	Maryland	June 13, 1928	III
	Lawrence Higgins, vice consul	Massachusetts	Mar. 13, 1934	Uncl.(a)
	Walter C. Dowling, vice consul	Georgia	Apr. 7,1932	Uncl.(c)
	Julius C. Jensen, vice consul	Wyoming	Mar. 14, 1928	
Bergen, c	Thomas D. Davis, consul	Oklahoma	May 18, 1933	VI
	Brigg A. Perkins, vice consul	California	Aug. 6, 1930	

Post	Name and rank	Whence appointed	Date of as- signment	Class
PALESTINE				
Lemeslem e.e.	FIT F Polmer consul concept	Rhode Island	Nov. 7, 1933	II
Jerusalem, c.g.	Ely E. Palmer, consul general Joseph L. Brent, vice consul	Maryland		
	Thomas A. Hickok, vice consul	New York		
	Arthur L. Richards, vice consul	California		
	Edward W. Blatchford, vice consul	Illinois		
PANAMA				
Panamá, l	Antonio C. Gonzalez, envoy extraordinary and	New York	Aug. 28, 1933	
	minister plenipotentiary.			
	Willlam C. Burdett, first secretary	Tennessee		IV
	Karl deG. MacVitty, second secretary (consul)	Tennessee		, V
	Robert P. Joyce, third secretary	California		
	Maj. Arthur R. Harris, military attaché	War Dept	July 11, 1931	
c.g	Karl deG. MacVitty, consul (second secretary)	Tennessee	Oct. 4, 1933	v
c.y	Harry D. Myers, vice consul			
Colón, c	Carlos J. Warner, vice consul			
	Francis C. Jordan, vice consul			
	Francis C. Jordan, vice consultant	North Caronna	191.41. 12, 1501	
PARAGUAY				
Asunción, l	Meredith Nicholson, envoy extraordinary and	Indiana	Aug. 19, 1933	
	minister plenipotentiary.	T112	T 00.1004	37777
	George H. Butler, third secretary (consul)	Illinois		VIII
	Capt. Frederick D. Sharp, military attaché	War Dept		
	Alexander V. Dye, commercial attaché	Dept. Commerce.	Apr. 27, 1931	
c	George H. Butler, consul (third secretary)	Illinois	Jan. 29, 1934	VIII
	William E. Copley, vice consul	Pennsylvania		
PERSIA				
Feheran, l	William H. Hornibrook, envoy extraordinary and	Utah	Dec. 12, 1933	
	minister plenipotentiary.			
	J. Rives Childs, second secretary			
	Raymond A. Hare, third secretary (vice consul)			
	Burton Y. Berry, third secretary (vice consul)	Indiana	Jan. 19, 1934	Uncl.(b)
c	Raymond A. Hare, vice consul (third secretary)	Lowo	Aug 98 1022	Upol (a)
	Burton Y. Berry, vice consul (third secretary)			
PERU	burton 1. Derry, vice consul (third secretary)	110100000000000000000000000000000000000	5411. 10, 1001	0 1101.(0)
Lima, e	Fred Morris Dearing, amhassador extraordinary	Missouri	Jan. 31, 1930	
	and plenipotentiary.			
	Louis G. Dreyfus, Jr., counselor of embassy	California	June 26, 1933	I
	Richard M. de Lambert, second secretary	New Mexico		VII
	Julian D. Smith, commercial attaché	Dept. Commerce.		
Callao-Lima, c.g	James B. Young, consul general.	Pennsylvania		III
	J. Kenly Bacon, vice consul	Massachusetts		
	T. Muldrup Forsyth, vice consul	Virginia		
	Edwin McKee, vice consul	Georgia		
	Arthur D. Jukes, vice consul			
La Oroya, c.a	Norman Duncan, consular agent			

.

Post	Name and rank	Whence ap- pointed	Date of as- signment	Class
PHILIPPINE ISLANDS				
Manila, ¹ c	Henry B. Day, vice consul-	Connecticut	May 1,1934	Uncl.(c)
POLAND				
Warsaw (Warszawa), e	John Cudahy, ambassador extraordinary and plenipotentiary.	Wisconsin	June 13, 1933	
	Sheldon L. Crosby, counselor of embassy	New York		I
	Orsen N. Nielsen, second secretary	Wisconsin		V
	Bernard Gufler, ² third secretary	Washington		
	Richard S. Huestis, third secretary Lt. Col. Albert Gilmor, military attaché	New York War Dept		0 1101.(0)
	Clayton Lane, commercial attaché	Dept. Commerce.		
C.g	J. Klahr Huddle, consul general	Ohio	July 9,1930	II
	Marcel E. Malige, consul	Idaho		VII
	C. Warwick Perkins, Jr., consul	Maryland		VIII
	Francis Bowden Stevens, vice consul-	New York		
	John F. Stone, vice consul	Pennsylvania		Uncl.(c)
	Orray Taft, Jr., vice consul William K. Ailshie, vice consul	California Idaho		Uncl.(c)
	Carl Birkeland, vice consul	Illinois		0101.(1)
PORTUGAL AND POSSESSIONS		***************************************	1107. 10,1020	
(Portugal)				
Lisbon (Lisboa), l	Robert Granville Caldwell, envoy extraordinary	Texas	June 13, 1933	
	and minister plenipotentiary. Alexander R. Magruder, counselor of legation	Maryland	May 17 1929	I
	Col. Stephen O. Fuqua, military attaché	War Dept		
	Capt. David McDougal LeBreton, naval attaché.	Navy Dept		
	Lt. Comdr. Leo H. Thebaud, asst. naval attaché.	Navy Dept	July 13, 1933	
c.g	Carl F. Delchman, consul general	Missouri	Dec. 13, 1930	II
	John B. Faust, vice consul	South Carolina		Uncl.(a)
	Daniel V. Anderson, vice consul	Delaware		Uncl.(c)
Funchal, Madeira, c	Alexander P. Cruger, consul	New York		VIII
Oporto (Porto), c	Leslle A. Davis, consul	New York		IV
St Michael (São Miguel)	Charles E. Worman, vice consul	West Virginla California		VI
St. Mlchael (São Miguel), Azores, c.		Camorna	3411. 11,1500	
(Africa)				
Lourenço Marques, Mozam-	Samuel G. Ebling, consul	Ohio		VII
bique, c.	Leo Toch, vice consul	New York	Aug. 28, 1933	Uncl.(c)
RUMANIA				
Bucharest (Bucureşti), l		Texas	June 13, 1933	
	and minister plenipotentiary.	Now York	A 1107 26 1022	III
	George Wadsworth, first secretary Lt. Col. F. Langley Whitley, military attaché	New York War Dept		
	Harold D. Clum, concul general	Now York	Jan 12 1022	1V
c	Harold D. Clum, consul general	New York Oregon		
	Foy D. Kohler, vice consul			
	Rudolph Peltzer. vice consul			
1 Conquisto established un den	act of Mar. 94, 1024, for performance of corriges relation			

Consulate established under act of Mar. 24, 1934, for performance of services relating only to immigration.
 Detailed temporarily to the Department.

.

58

FOREIGN SERVICE OF THE UNITED STATES

Post	Name and rank	Whence ap- pointed	Date of as- signment	Class
SALVADOR				
(See El Salvador)				
SIAM				
Bangkok, l	James Marion Baker, envoy extraordinary and	South Carolina	Aug. 30, 1933	
	minister plenipotentiary.	Missouri	Nov. 12 1021	Unald
	Kennett F. Potter, third secretary (vice consul) Andrew G. Lynch, third secretary (vice consul)			Uncl.(
	Lt. Col. Walter S. Drysdale, military attaché	War Dept		0 1101.(1
	set con water of stybuardy minute avacine			1
c.g	Kennett F. Potter, vice consul (third secretary)	Missouri	Nov. 13, 1931	Uncl.(
	Andrew G. Lynch, vice consul (third secretary)	New York	Feb. 16, 1932	Uncl.(
	**Henry J. Post, vice consul	New York	Mar. 17, 1930	
SPAIN				
	Church C. Demonstration data and the second dimension	Morr Vorla	Amm 6 1002	
Madrid, e	Claude G. Bowers, ambassador extraordinary and plenipotentiary.	New York	Apr. 6, 1933	
	Hallett Johnson, counselor of embassy	New Jersey	Dec 5 1033	1
	Walter H. Schoellkopf, second secretary	New York		
	Col. Stephen O. Fuqua, military attaché	War Dept		
	Capt. David McDougal LeBreton, naval attaché.	Navy Dept		
1	Col. Frank P. Lahm, asst. military attaché for air	War Dept		
	Lt. Comdr. Leo H. Thebaud, asst. naval attaché	Navy Dept	July 13,1933	
	Julian C. Greenup, asst. commercial attaché	Dept. Commerce.	June 7,1930	
c	Curtls C. Jordan, consul	California	Feb. 20, 1932	
	Raymond O. Richards, vice consul	Maine		
licante, c	Manuel J. Codoner, vice consul	New York	Dec. 3, 1928	
Barcelona, c.g	Claude I. Dawson, consul general	South Carolina	Dec. 13, 1930	
	Cecil M. P .Cross, consul	Rhode Island		
	Lynn W. Franklin, consul	Maryland		V
	Thomas S. Horn, consul	Missouri		V1
	Daniei M. Braddock, vice consul	Michigan		Uncl.(l
	Caesar Franklin Agostini, consular agent	Oblahama		
Bilbao, c	William E. Chapman, consul	Oklahoma		
as Palmas, Canary Islands, c	Owen W. Gaines, vice consul Clifton R. Wharton, consul	Georgia Massachusetts		VII
	Augustin W. Ferrin, consul	New York		VII
	William B. Douglass, Jr., vice consul	Dist. Columbia.		
	Richard Ford, consul	Ol lahoma		V
	John B. Ocheltree, vice consul	Nevada		Uncl.(d
	David J. D. Myers, consul	Georgia	Nov. 28, 1933	IV
alencia, c	Samuel R. Thompson, consul	California	Aug. 18, 1930	1
	Milton K. Wells, vice consul	Oklahoma		Unel.(c
	Renwick S. McNiece, consul	Utah		1
	John Willard Carrigan, vice consul	Callfornia	June 13, 1933	Uncl.(c
SWEDEN				
tockholm, I	Laurence A. Steinhardt, envoy extraordinary and	New York	May 11, 1933	
	minister plenipotentiary.			
	Merritt Swift, first secretary	Dist. Columbia	Nov. 13, 1933	IV
	Lt. Col. Jacob W. S. Wuest, military attaché	War Dept		

.

REGISTER OF THE DEPARTMENT OF STATE

Post	Name and rank	Whence ap- pointed	Date of as- signment	Class
SWEDEN-Continued				
Stockholm, I.—Continued	T. O. Klath, commercial attaché Comdr. Howard D. Bode, asst. naval attaché	Dept. Commerce. Navy Dept	Feb. 28, 1925 Sept. 1, 1932	
C.g	Monnett B. Davis, consul general	Colorado	June 24, 1933	III
	Roy E. B. Bower, consul	California	Oct. 2, 1933	VIII
	Edward P. Maffitt, vice consul			Uncl.(d
	Harold Carlson, vice consul		, .	
	Frithjof C. Sigmond, vice consul			
Göteborg, c	Robert Harnden, consul			1777
	Knowlton V. Bleks, consul Herbert C. Blar, vice consul			VII Uncl.(d
SWITZERLAND		1101010	Mpr. 10, 1820	0 101.(0
Bern,/	Hugh R. Wilson, envoy extraordinary and min- ister plenipotentiary.	Illinois	Feb. 26, 1927	
	Ferdinand L. Mayer, counselor of legation	Indiana	Sept. 8, 1933	
	David Williamson, second secretary			VI
	Samuel Reber, third secretary	New York	Aug. 29, 1933	VII
	Maj. Robert C. F. Goetz, military attaché	-		
	Lt. Col. Jacob W. S. Wuest, asst. military attaché for air.	War Dept	. Feb. 26, 1934	
¢	David B. Macgowan, consul	Tennessce	Dec. 22, 1931	II
	J. A. Tuck Sherman, vice consul		,	
Basel, c	Alfred W. Donegan, consul			II
	Montgomery H. Colladay, vice consul	Connecticut	Nov. 17, 1933	Uncl.(d
Geneva, c	Prentiss B. Gilbert, consul	New York	Aug. 16, 1930	II
	Gilson G. Blake, Jr., consul	Maryland	Oct. 15, 1927	V
	Curtis T. Everett, consul			V
	Donald F. Bigelow, consul-			V
	James W. Riddleberger, vice consul-			Uncl.(
	Llewellyn E. Thompson, Jr., vice consul		Mar. 6, 1933	Uncl.(b
Zünich a.g.	Jacob D. Beam, vice consul Arthur C. Frost, consul general		Mar. 30, 1933	Uncl.(c
Zürich, c.g	Maurice W. Altaffer, consul		June 21, 1934 May 31, 1933	VI
	Francis L. Spalding, vice consul			Uncl.(d
SYRIA	Trancis D. Spateme, vice consur-	massaenusens	June 10, 1990	0 404.(0
Beirut, c.g	Herbert S. Goold, consul general	California	Oct. 24, 1930	II
	Christian T. Steger, consul			VI
	John H. Madonne, vice consul	Texas	Oct. 4, 1933	Uncl.(l
	Daniel Gaudin, Jr., vice consul	Pennsylvania	Dec. 10, 1931	Uncl.(d
TURKEY				
stanbul (Constantinople), e	Robert P. Skinner, ambassador extraordinary and plenipotentlary.	Ohio	June 13, 1933	
	G. Howland Shaw, counselor of embassy	Massachusetts		
	Robert D. Coe, third secretary	Wyoming		Uncl.(b
	Lt. Col. John A. Crane, military attaché	War Dept		
	Julian E. Gillespie, commercial attaché John A. Embry, asst. commercial attaché	Dept. Commerce. Dept. Commerce.		
			D.I. at tors	
<i>c.g</i>	Charles E. Allen, consul	Kentucky		I
	Howard Elting, Jr., vice consul	Illinois		Uncl.(c
I amin (Quantum)	Frederick E. Farnsworth, vice consul			Uncl.(c) V
izmir (Smyrna), c	William P. George, consul	Alabama	Oct. 12, 1932	I V.

FOREIGN SERVICE OF THE UNITED STATES

Post	Name and rank	Whence appointed	Date of as- signment	Class
UNION OF SOUTH AFRICA				
retoria, Transvaal, l	Ralph J. Totten, envoy extraordinary and min-	Tennessee	June 20, 1930	
	ister plenlpotentiary.			
	Irving N. Linnell, ¹ counselor of legation	Massachusetts		I
	Samuel H. Day, commercial attaché	Dept. Commerce.		
4	Clifford C. Taylor, agricultural attaché	Dept. Agriculture.	Dec. 16, 1930	
apetown, Cape Province, c.g	lrving N. Linnell, consul general	Massachusetts	Oct. 13, 1931	I I
apetonii, cape i tornee, c.y.r.	Edward M. Groth, consul	New York	Sept. 2, 1933	1
	Allan C. Taylor, vice consul	New York		Uncl.(e
ourban, Natal, c	Hugh S. Miller, consul	Illinols	July 31, 1931	VI
ohannesburg, Transvaal, c	Maxwell K. Moorhead, consul general	Pennsylvanla	‡July 1, 1931	11
	Alfred D. Cameron, consul	Washington		VI
ort Elizabeth, Cape Province, c	R. Borden Reams, vice consul	Pennsylvania	Oct. 20, 1933	Uncl.(b
NION OF SOVIET SOCIAL- IST REPUBLICS				
Ioscow, <i>e</i>	William C. Bullitt, ambassador extraordinary and plenipotentiary.	Penusylvania	Nov. 21, 1933	
	John C. Wiley, counselor of embassy	Indiana	Feb. 10, 1934	1
	Loy W. Henderson, second secretary	Colorado	Feb. 7,1934	V
	George F. Kennan, third secretary	Wisconsin		VII
	Bertel E. Kuniholm, third secretary	Massachusetts		Uncl.(b
	Charles E. Bohlen, third secretary	Massachusetts		Uncl.(l
	Maj. Philip R. Faymonville, military attaché	War Dept		
	Ist Lt. Thomas D. White, asst. military attaché	War Dept	Jan. 29, 1934	
	and asst. military attaché for air.	Marra Dant	E-b 0 1004	
	Capt. David R. Nimmer, asst. naval attaché	Navy Dept	reb. 8, 1934	
c.g	George C. Hanson, consul general	Connecticut	Feb. 10, 1934	I
	Harold Shantz, consul	New York		1
	A. Dana Hodgdon, consul-	Maryland		V
	Angus I. Ward, consul	Michigan	Feb. 10, 1934	VII
	Elbridge Durbrow, vice consul	California	Feb. 10, 1934	Uncl.(d
	George C. Minor, vice consul-	West Virginia		
	Ellis A. Johnson, vice consul	Massachusetts	Feb. 10, 1934	
	Lee Murray, vice consul	Maryland		
	Aarne R. A. Kock, vice consul	Massachusetts		
	Philip F. Cherp, vice consul	Minnesota		
TRUCKAN	Fred E. Waller, vice consul	Michigan	Feb. 12, 1934	
URUGUAY				
fontevideo, l	envoy extraordinary			
	and minister plenipotentiary.			1
	Leon Dominian, first secretary	New York		II
	Ralph Miller, third secretary	New York		
	Capt. Frederick D. Sharp, military attaché	War Dept		
	Comdr. Edmund W. Strother, naval attaché	Navy Dept	Aug. 3, 1933	
	Looke E. Dood, commission	Minnesote	Mar 17 1020	IX
0.0				
<i>c.g</i>	Leslie E. Reed, consul general Aubrey E. Lippincott, vice consul			-

¹ Assigned also as consul general at Capetown.

REGISTER OF THE DEPARTMENT OF STATE

Post	Name and rank	Whence ap- pointed	Date of as- signment	Class
VENEZUELA				
Caracas, l	George T. Summerlin, envoy extraordinary and minister plenipotentiary.	Louisiana	Sept. 11, 1929	
	Glenn A. Abbey, third secretary	Wlsconsin	Mar. 31, 1932	Uncl.(a)
с La Guaira, ø.с	George Orr, consul. Albert H. Cousins, Jr., vice consul. Ben C. Matthews, vice consul.	Oregon South Carolina	June 20, 1931 Dec. 13, 1927	Uncl.(c)
Maracaibo, c YUGOSLAVIA	George R. Phelan, vice consul	California	July 16, 1932	
Belgrade (Beograd), l	Charles S. Wilson, envoy extraordinary and minister plenipotentiary.	Maine	Aug. 3, 1933	
	Wainwright Abbott, first secretary Lt. Col. F. Langley Whitley, military attaché Louis G. Michael, agricultural attaché	War Dept	Feb. 11, 1933	
c Zagreb, c	Reed Paíge Clark, consul John L. Calnan, vice consul Egmont C. von Tresckow, consul	Massachusetts South Carolina	June 26, 1925 May 10, 1932	v
	Theodore J. Hohenthal, vice consul	California	Apr. 7, 1932	Uncl.(c)

FOREIGN SERVICE OFFICERS ON DETAIL AS INSPECTORS

Name	Whence ap- pointed	Date of as- signment	Class
Byington, Homer M	Connecticut	Aug. 12, 1933	l
	South Cerolina	July 2, 1934	III

FOREIGN SERVICE OFFICERS ASSIGNED TO THE DEPARTMENT

Name	Rank at last post	Whence appointed	Date of assignment 1	Class
Baldwin, LaVerne	Vice consul	New York	July 20, 1931	Uncl. (a)
Barnes, Maynard B	First secretary	Iowa:	Feb. 16, 1934	IV
Beaulac, Willard L.	Second secretary	Rhode Island	Apr. 20, 1933	V
oernsteiu, Ralph A	Consul	Dist. Columbia	Feb. 15, 1934	VII
randt, George L.	Consul	Dist.Columbia	Dec. 29, 1933	IV
ucknell, Howard, Jr	Second secretary	Georgia	Feb. 28, 1934	V
ursley, Herbert S	Consul	Dist. Columbia	Jan. 19, 1933	VI
Burt, Joseph F	Consul	Illinois	Aug. 28, 1933	VII
hipman, Norris B	Third secretary	Dist. Columbia	Mar. 7, 1934	Uncl. (b)
Davis, Nathaniel P	Consul	New Jersey	June 30, 1934	IV
Dooman, Eugene H	First secretary	New York	May 2, 1933	111
orr, Julian C	Consul	New York	May 27, 1932	VIII
erris, Walton C	Consul ²	Wisconsin	Jan. 11,1934	VIII
letcher, C. Paul	Consul	Tennessee	June 27, 1933	VII
lexer, Fayette J	Third secretary	Illinois	Feb. 16, 1934	VIII
oote, Walter A	Consul	Texas	Jan. 8, 1931	VI
rummon, Stuart E	Second secretary	New Jersey	Nov. 6, 1930	VI
Iarrison, Landreth M	Third secretary	Minnesota	July 23, 1932	Uncl. (a)
leath, Donald R	Second secretary	Kansas	Aug. 17, 1933	VI
libbard, Frederick P	First secretary	Texas	July 21, 1932	IV
litch, Calvin M	Consul general	Georgia	Nov. 1,1933	II
lolmes, Julius C	Third secretary	Kansas	June 6,1934	VIII
ley, David McK	Second secretary	Tennessee	Aug. 31, 1933	VII
ord, John H	Consul	Massachusetts	June 15, 1934	VIII
IacEachran, Clinton E	Consul ³	Massachusetts	June 20, 1934	IV
IcGurk, Joseph F	First secretary	New Jersey	July 26, 1932	IV
ferrell, George R., Jr	Second secretary	Missourl	June 18, 1931	v
loffat, Jay Pierrepont	First secretary	New Hampshire	May 1, 1931	II
Iontgomery, Edmund B	Consul	Illinols	Oct. 21, 1930	V
lorgan, John H	Consul	Massachusetts	Nov. 8, 1933	VIII
Iorin, Richard W.	Vice consul	Minnesota	Nov. 14, 1932	Uncl. (c)
Iyers, Myrl S	Consul general	Pennsylvania	June 20, 1934	IV
atterson, Jefferson	Flrst secretary	Ohio	Mar. 22, 1930	V
erkins, Mahlon Fay	Counselor of legation	California	May 15, 1933	I
inkerton, Lowell C	Consul general	Missouri	Aug. 29, 1933	III
eed, Edward L	First secretary	Pennsylvania	Nov. 23, 1933	III
choenfeld, Rudolf E	Second secretary	Dist. Columbia	Sept. 9, 1932	V
immons, John Farr	Consul general	New York	Nov. 13, 1933	III
turgeon, Leo D	Consul	Illinois	June 20, 1934	VI
illard, Henry S	Vice consul	New York		Uncl. (b)
Vailes, Edward T	Vice consul	New York		Uncl. (b)
llson, Edwin C	First secretary	Florida	Oct 23, 1931	II
Vilson, Thomas M	Consul general	Tennessee		I
			,,	-

¹ The length of an officer's service in the Department is calculated, not from this date, but from the date on which he reports r duty. ² Prior to resignation as Foreign Service officer and service in Department as divisional assistant; reinstated in the Foreign ervice Jan. 11, 1934. ³ Prior to resignation as Foreign Service officer, Feb. 9, 1927; reentered the Foreign Service June 19, 1934.

FOREIGN SERVICE OFFICERS DETAILED TEMPORARILY TO THE DEPARTMENT

Name	Rank	Whence appointed	Date of as- signment	Class
Allen, George V. ¹ Flood, Peter H. A. ¹ Frazer, Robert ¹ Gordon, George A Gufler, Bernard ¹ Lane, Rufus H., Jr. ¹ Penfield, James K. ¹ . Styles, Francis H. ¹ .	Vice consul Consul_general Counselor of embassy Third secretary Consul Vice consul Consul Consul	North Carolina New Hampshire Pennsylvania New York Washington Virginia California Virginia	Apr. 26, 1934 May 7, 1934 June 26, 1934 June 30, 1934 Mar. 7, 1934 June 13, 1934 June 15, 1934 June 4, 1934	Uncl. (c) VI I Uncl. (c) VIII Uncl. (c) VIII

¹ Listed also at his permanent post.

46,

DESCRIPTION OF CONSULAR DISTRICTS

[This list contains only those countries in which the consular districts have been definitely delimited; countries in which there is only one American consular office are omitted, since jurisdiction in each instance comprises the entire country.]

BELGIUM

Antwerp

The Provinces of Antwerp, East Flanders, West Flanders, Limburg, and Liége (including the former German territories denominated Eupen-Malmédy); and in Africa, the Belgian Congo, and the Belgian mandate in Ruanda-Urundí.

Brussels

The Provinces of Brabant, Hainaut, Luxembourg (Belgium), and Namur.

BRAZIL

Bahia

The States of Behia and Sergipe, and that portion of the State of Piauhy south of 8° south latitude.

Pará

The States of Amazonas, Maranhão, and Pará, that portion of the State of Plauhy lying north of 8° south latitude, and Acre territory.

Pernambuco (Recife)

The States of Ceará, Rio Grande do Norte, Parahyba, Pernambuco, and Alagôas.

Porto Alegre

The States of Rio Grande do Sul and Santa Catharina

Rio de Janeiro

The States of Rio de Janeiro, Espirito Santo, Minas Geraes, and Goyaz, and the Federal District.

Santos

The port and municipality of Santos and the municipality of São Vicente in the State of São Paulo.

São Paulo

The State of São Paulo, excepting the port and municipality of Santos and the municipality of São Vicente, and the States of Paraná and Matto Grosso.

CHINA AND ADJACENT TERRITORY

Amoy, Fukien

That portion of the Province of Fukien comprised in the prefectures of Tingchowfu, Changchowfu, and Chüanchowfu, and the independent subprefecture of Lungyenchow.

Canton, Kwangtung

The Provinces of Kwangsi and Kweichow and that portion of the Province of Kwangtung west of 115° east longitude.

- ¹ Listed under Japanese Empire in sec. 4, p. 53.
- ² Listed under Great Britain, etc , in sec. 4, p. 48.

67359-34-6

Chefoo, Shantnng

That portion of the Province of Shantung northeast of a line drawn along the northeast shore of the embayment of Tingtzetsui Kow to the mouth of the Wulung Ho, thence in a northwesterly direction across the peninsula to the mouth of the Kiao Ho, through the towns of Chuhkow and Shaho (both included in this district).

Dairen, Manchurie¹

The Japanese leased territory of Kwantung.

Foochow, Fukien

The whole of the Province of Fukien except for four prefectures forming the consular district of Amoy.

Hankow, Hupeh

That portion of the Province of Honan south of the Yellow River, and the whole of the Provinces of Hupeh, Kiangsi, Hunan, Szechwan, Shensi, Kansu, Chinghai (Kokonor), and Sinkiang (Chinese Turkistan).

Harbin, Kirin, Manchuria

All of the Province of Heilungkiang; and all that part of the Province of Kirin lying to the north of the parallel of 44° north latitude, including the following places in Kirin which are open to trade: Harbin, Ninguta, Sansing, and Suifenho.

Hong Kong ?

The British colony of Hong Kong and the Portuguese colony of Macau.

Mukden, Liaoning, Manchuria

All of the Province of Liaoning (Fengtien) except the leased territory of Kwantung; and all that part of the Province of Kirin lying to the south of the parallel of 44° north latitude, including the following places in Kirin which are open to trade: Changchun (Kwanchengtze), Hunchun, Kirin, Lungchingtsun, Towtaokow, Wangching (Paitsaokow), and Yenki (Chützuchich)

Nanking, Kiangsu

The whole of the Province of Anhwei; and all of the Province of Kiangsu north of the Yangtze River, and two prefectures south of the same (Kiangning and Chenkiang).

Saigon, French Indochina *

All of French Indochina.

Shanghai, Kiangsu

The whole of the Province of Kiangsu with the exception of that part which is included in the Nanking consular district, the island of Tsungming, and the whole of the Province of Chekiang.

Swatow, Kwangtung

That portion of the Province of Kwangtung east of longitude 115°.

³ Listed under France in sec. 4, p. 45.

Tientsin, Hopeh

The Provinces of Hopeh (Chihll), Ninghsia, and Shansi, that portion of the Province of Honan north of the Yellow River, and all of Mongolia including the [special] administrative districts of Suiyuan, Chahar, and Jehol.

Tsinan, Shantung

That portion of the Province of Shantung west of a line which follows the Kiao Ho southward from its mouth to its source, thence to the nearer source of the Taolin Ho and along the Taolin Ho to the sea.

Tsingtao, Kiaochow

That portion of the Province of Shantung lying between the Cheíoo and Tsinan consular districts. Within this area is included the former leased territory of Kiaochow.

Yünnanfu, Yunnan

The Provinces of Yunnan and Sikang (Chwanpien), and Tibet.

Barranquilla

COLOMBIA

The Departments of Atlântico, Magdalena, Santander del Norte, and Santander; that part of the Department of Antioquia lying to the east and southeast of a line drawn from the southern boundary of Antioquia due north on the meridian of $76^{\circ}40'$ west of Greenwich to a point due west of Dabeiba, and thence due northeast to the northern boundary of the Department; and the Comisaria of Goajira.

Bogotá

The Departments of Boyacá, Cundinamarca, Tolima, and Huila; that portion of the Department of Caldas lying to the east of the Cauca River basin; the Comisarías of Arauca, Vichada, Vaupés, Caquetá, Putumayo, and Amazonas; and the Intendencia of Meta.

Buenaventura

The Departments of Valle, Cauca, and Nariño; that portion of the Intendencia of Chocó lying south of 6°15' north latitude; and that portion of the Department of Caldas lying in the Cauca River basin.

Cartagena

The Department of Bolívar; that portion of the Department of Antioquia lying west and northwest of a line drawn from the southern boundary of Antioquia due north on the meridian of $76^{\circ}40'$ west of Greenwich to a point due west of Dabeiba, and thence due northeast to the northern boundary of the Department; that portion of the Intendencia of Chocó lying north of $6^{\circ}15'$ north latitude; and the Intendencia of San Andrés y Providencia (islands in the Caribbean).

COSTA RICA

Port Limón

The Province of Limón.

San José

All of Costa Rica except the Province of Limón.

EGYPT

Alexandria

The Governorates of Alexandria and Damictta, and the six Provinces (Mudirlas) of Lower Egypt (Behéra, Daqahlia, Gharbia, Menufia, Qaliubia, and Sharqia).

Cairo

The Governorate of Cairo; the eight Provinces (Mudirlas) of Upper Egypt (Asyût, Aswân, Beni Suef, Fayûm, Girga, Giza, Minia, and Qena); the Frontier Districts (Eastern Desert, the Egyptian Libyan Desert, Dâkhla and Kharga Oases, etc.) except the peninsula of Sinai; and (informally) the Anglo-Egyptian Sudan.

Port Said

Bordeaux

In Egypt, the Governorates of the Canal and of Suez, and the peninsula of Sinai; the Island of Cyprus.

FRANCE AND POSSESSIONS

(France)

The Departments of Ariège, Charente, Charente-Inférieure, Cher, Corrèze, Creuse, Dordogne, Gers, Gironde, Haute-Garonne, Haute-Vienne, Hautes-Pyrénées, Indre, Landes, Lot, Lot-et-Garonne, Nièvre, Tarn, Tarn-et-Garonne, Vienne, and the arrondissements of Niort and Melle of the Department of Deux-Sèvres.

Biarritz (vice consulate): The Department of Basses-Pyrénées.

Pau (consular agency): The arrondissement of Pau.

Calais

The Department of Pas-de-Calais.

Cherbourg

The Departments of Manche, Calvados, and Orne.

Havre

The Departments of Eure, Seine-Inférieure, and Somme.

Dieppe (consular agency): The Department of Somme, and the arrondissements of Dieppe and Neufchätel-en-Bray in the Department of Seine-Inférieure.

Lille

The Departments of Nord and Aisne.

Lyon

The Departments of Ain, Alller, Cantal, Côte-d'Or, Doubs, Haute-Loire, Haute-Saône, Haute-Savoie, Isère, Jura, Loire, Puy-de-Dôme, Rhône, Saône-et-Loire, and Savoie.

Marseille

The Departments of Ardèche, Aude, Aveyron, Basses-Alpes, Bouches-du-Rhône, Drôme, Gard, Hautes-Alpes, Hérault, Lozère, Pyrénées-Orientales, Var, and Vaucluse, and the island of Corsica (Corse).

Nantea

The Departments of Indre-et-Loire, Loire-Inférieure, Maineet-Loire, Vendée, Deux-Sèvres (excepting the arrondissements of Niort and Melle), Ille-et-Vilaine, Mayenne, Finistère, Côtesdu-Nord, and Morbihan.

Nice

The Department of Alpes-Maritimes and the Principality of Monaco.

Paris

The Departments of Aube, Eure-et Loir, Loir-et-Cher, Loiret, Marne, Oise, Sarthe, Seine, Seine-et-Marne, Seine-et-Oise, and Yonne; and in Africa, French West Africa (comprising Senegal, Mauritanla, French Sudan, French Guinea, Ivory Coast, Upper Volta, Dahomer, and Niger); the French mandates in Togoland and the Cameroun; French Equatorial Africa (comprising Chad, Gabon, Ubangi-Shari, and Middle Congo); and the islands of Madagascar, Nossi Bé, Ste. Marie, the Comoro Islands, the Glorious Islands, Réunion Island, and St. Paul Island.

Straabourg

The Departments of Ardennes, Bas-Rhin, Haut-Marne Haut-Rhin, Meurthe-et-Moselle, Meuse, Moselle, and Vogges; the Territory of Belfort; and including jurisdiction over the Saar Basin Territory as subject to eventual pleblscites.

(Possessions)

Algiers, Algeria

All of Algeria, including the Territories of the South.

Tunis, Tunisia All of Tunisia.

Berlin

GERMANY

The Prussian Provinces of Berlin, Brandenburg, Pomerania, and East Prussia (including the Regierungsbezirk of Marienwerder), and the border district of Posen-West Prussia (Grenzmark Posen-Westpreussen).

Bremen

The Free State and city of Bremen, the Prussian Province of Hanover, the State of Brunswick, the State of Oldenburg (except the exclaves of Landesteil Birkenfeld and Landesteil Lübeck), and the Kreis Rinteln belonging to the Prussian Province of Hesse-Nassau.

Breslau

The Prussian Provinces of Upper and Lower Silesia.

Cologne

The Rhine Province (not including jurisdiction over Saar Basin Territory which is subject to eventual plebiscites), the enclave of Landesteil Birkenfeld belonging to the State of Oldenburg, the Prusslan Province of Westphalia, and the States of Schaumburg-Lippe and Lippe.

Dresden

The State of Saxony, with the exception of the Kreishauptmannschaft of Leipzig.

Frankfort on the Main

The Prussian Province of Hesse-Nassau (except the exclaves of Kreis Rinteln and Kreis Schmalkaldon), the State of Hesse, and the Bavarian Palatinate (Pfalz) (not including jurisdiction over Saar Basin Territory which is subject to eventual plebiscites).

Hamburg

The Free State and city of Hamburg, the Prussian Province of Schleswig-Holstein, the States of Mecklenburg and Lübeck, and Landesteil Lübeck belonging to the State of Oldenburg.

Leipzig

The Kreishauptmannschaft of Leipzig in the State of Saxony, the States of Thuringia and Anhalt, the Prussian Province of Saxony, and the Kreis of Schmalkalden belonging to the Prussian Province of Hesse-Nassau.

Munich

The State of Bavaria with the exception of the Bavarian Palatinate (Pfalz).

Stuttgart

The States of Württemberg and Baden, and the Prussian Province of Hohenzollern.

GREAT BRITAIN AND NORTHERN IRELAND, BRITISH DOMINIONS BEYOND THE SEAS, INDIA

(Great Britain 1-Northern Ireland)

Belfast, Northern Ireland

Northern Ireland (counties of Antrim, Armagh, Down, Fermanagh, Londonderry, and Tyrone).

Birmingham, England

All of Leicestershire, Northamptonshire (including the Soke of Peterborough), Rutlandshire, Staffordshire, Warwickshire, and Worcestershire; and that portion of Shropshire which lies south of a line drawn from a point where the River Severn cuts the western boundary of Shropshire, eastwardly to Market Drayton (excluded).

Bradford, England

That part of Yorkshire (portions of the administrative counties of West Riding and North Riding) comprised within the following boundaries: Beginning at the point common to the boundaries of Yorkshire. Cheshire, and Derbyshire, thence following the Yorkshire boundary westwardly and northwardly to the point where a straight line drawn from Colne (Lancashire) to Hawes (North Riding) intersects the Lancashire-West Riding boundary; thence northwardly along said line to the boundary between the West Riding and the North Riding of Yorkshire; thence northwestwardly along said houndary to the Westmorland boundary: thence northwardly and eastwardly along the Yorkshire boundary (North Riding) to a point due north of Richmond; thence due south to Richmond (included); thence southeastwardly to the city of York (the entire county borough of York being included): thence southwardly along the boundary between the West Riding and the East Riding to Selby (excluded); thence following the same boundary to Goole (excluded); thence southwestwardly to Thorne (excluded); thence westwardly through Barnsley (excluded) and Penistone (excluded) to the point of beginning.

Bristol, England

All of Gloucestershire and Somersetshire, and those portions of Wiltshire and Berkshirelying to the northwest of a line drawn from the point common to the boundaries of Wiltshire, Somersetshire, and Dorsetshire northeastwardly to Marlborough (excluded); and continued northeastwardly through Didcot (excluded) to the Berkshire-Oxfordshire boundary.

Cardiff, Wales

In Wales, the counties of Brecknock, Cardigan, Carmarthen, Glamorgan, Pembroke, and Radnor; in England, Herefordshire and Monmouthshire.

Dundee, Scotland

The counties of Angus (Forfar), Perth, Kincardine, Aberdeen, Banff, Moray (Elgin), Nalrn, Sutherland, Caithness, Orkney, Shetland, Ross and Cromarty, and that portion of the county of Inverness north of a line from Rannoch following the rairoad via Tulloch and Spean Bridge to Gairlochy Inn (all excluded) on the Caledonian Canal, thence northeast to the outlet of Loch Arkaig into Loch Lochy, thence westward by the river Dessary and Loch Nevis to the sea, and including all of the Hebrides or Westward Islands (comprising parts of the counties of Inverness, and Ross and Cromarty); also that portion of County Fife to the north and east of a line connecting Newburgh on the Tay, Collessie, Cupar, Ceres, and Lower Largo on the Firth of Forth via the main road, these and all other towns on the main road being included in the Dundee consular district.

Edinburgh, Scotland

The counties of Midlothian (Edinburgh), Westlothian (Linlithgow), East Lothian (HaddIngton), Peebles, Selkirk, Dumfries, Roxburgh, Berwick, Kinross, and Clackmannan, and that portion of County Fife to the south and west of a line connecting Newburgh on the Tay, Collessie, Cupar, Ceres, and Lower Largo on the Firth of Forth, via the main road, these and all other towns on the main road being excluded.

¹ The counties in England as mentioned in these descriptions include the associated "county borough" cities.

Glasgow, Scotland

The counties of Lanark, Renfrew, Dumbarton, Stirling, Argyll, Bute, Ayr, Kirkcudbright, and Wigtown, and that portion of the county of Inverness south of a line from Rannoch tollowing the railroad via Tulloch and Spean Bridge to Gairiochy Inn (all included) on the Caledonian Canal, thence northeast to the outlet of Loch Arkaig into Loch Lochy, thence westward by the river Dessary and Loch Nevis to the sea.

Hull, England

All of the East Riding and portions of the North Riding and West Riding of Yorkshire, together with a portion of the administrative county known as the Parts of Lindsey in Lincolnshire which lie within the following line: Beginning at Saltfleet (included) on the Lincolnshire coast, a line drawn westwardly to the point common to the boundaries of Lincolnshire, Yorkshire, and Nottinghamshire; thence northwardly to Thorne (included) and Goole (included); thence along the East Riding-West Riding boundary to Selby (included); thence along the same boundary to the city of York (excluded); thence in a straight line northwestwardly to Richmond (excluded); thence due north to the Yorkshire boundary; thence eastwardly along the Yorkshire boundary to thesea, but excepting the city (county horough) of Middlesbrough.

Liverpool, England

Those portions of Shropshire, Cheshire, Lancashire, and Cumberland lying within a line drawn from the point where the River Severn cuts the western boundary of Shropshire; northeastwardly to Market Drayton (included); thence eastwardly by the northern boundary of Staffordshire to Harecastle, thence northwestwardly to Middlewich (included); thence northwestwardly through Warrington (included), Wigan (excluded), Preston (excluded), and Lancaster (excluded), and extending in a straight line across a portion of Morecambe Bay to the southernmost point of Westmorland on the coast; thence along the Lancashire-Westmorland boundary northwardly and westwardly to the Cumberland boundary; thence northwestwardly to St. Bees Head; and the following counties in Wales: Anglesey, Carnarvonshire, Denbighshire, Flintshire, Merionethshire, and Montgomeryshire; and the Isle of Man.

London, England

All of Norfolk, Cambridgeshire (including the Isle of Ely), Huntingdonshire, Bedfordshire, Buckinghamshire, Oxfordshire, Surrey, East Sussex, and all counties to the east thereof (Essex, Hertfordshire, Kent, London, Middlesex, East Suffolk, and West Suffolk); that portion of Berkshire to the east of a line drawn through Reading (included) to the Surrey-Hampshire boundary; and that portion of West Sussex to the east of a line drawn from the Surrey-Hampshire boundary southeastwardly to Littlehampton (included).

Manchester, England

Those portions of Cheshire, Lancashire, and the West Riding of Yorkshire, comprised within a line beginning at the point common to the boundaries of Cheshire, Derbyshire, and Staffordahire; thence northwardly along the eastern boundary of Cheshire and Lancashire to the point where a straight line drawn from Colne (Lancashire) to Hawes (North Riding of Yorkshire) intersects the Lancashire-West Riding boundary; thence northwardly along said line to the boundary between the West Riding and the North Riding of Yorkshire; thence westwardly along said West Riding-North Riding boundary to the Westmorland boundary; thence along the southern boundary of Westmorland to the sea; thence in a line drawn southeastwardly through Lancaster (included), Preston (included), Wigan (included), Warrington (excluded), and Middlewich (excluded) to the Staffordshire boundary at Harecastle, and thence eastwardly by the north boundary of Staffordshire to the point of beginning.

Newcastle-on-Tyne, England

All of Durham, Northumberland, and Westmorland; that part of Cumberland to the north of a line drawn from the point common to the boundaries of Cumberland, Lancashire, and Westmorland northwestwardly to St. Bees Head; and the city (county borough) of Middlesbrough in the North Riding of Yorkahire.

Plymouth, England

The counties of Devon and Cornwall (including the Scilly Isles).

Sheffleld, England

All of Derbyshire and Nottinghamshire and, in Lincolnshire, the Parts of Kesteven, and the Parts of Holland; and those portions of the West Riding of Yorkshire and the Parts of Lindsey in Lincolnshire lying to the south of a line drawn from the point common to the boundaries of Yorkshire, Derbyshire, and Cheshire, eastwardly through Penistone (included) and Barnsley (included) to Thorne (excluded); thence southwardly to the Lincolnshire-Nottinghamshire boundary; thence eastwardly to the sea at Saltfleet (excluded).

Southampton, England

All of Hampshire (administrative county of Southampton and the Isle of Wight); all of Dorsetshire; and those portions of Wiltshire and Berkshire lying to the south of a line drawn from a point common to the boundaries of Wiltshire, Dorsetshire, and Somersetshire, northeastwardly to Marlborough in Wiltshire (included), and continued through Didcot, in Berkshire (included) to the Berkshire-Oxfordshire boundary; thence southwardly along said boundary to Reading, and thence southeastwardly from Reading (excluded) to the Hampshire-Surrey boundary; that portion of West Sussex which lies west of a line drawn from the Hampshire-Surrey boundary southeastwardly to Littlehampton (excluded); and the Channel Ialands.

(Africa)

Lagos, Nigeria, West Africa

British West Africa, comprising Nigeria, the Gold Coast, Sicrra Leone, and Gambia; and the British mandates in Togoland and the Cameroons.

Nairobi, Kenya, East Africa

Kenya Colony and Protectorate; Uganda; the British mandate in Tanganyika Territory; Zanzibar (including Pemba); the Seychelles and adjacent British islands.

(India)

Bombay

Bombay Presidency (excepting Sind and including the Rann of Cutch), Baroda, Central India Agency, Central Provinces and Berar, and Gwalior.

Calcutta

Bengal, Bihar and Orissa, Assam, United Provinces of Agra and Oudh. Delhi, that part of the Punjab known as the district of Simla, Sikkim, and the independent border states of Nepal and Bhutan.

Karachi

Sind, Rajputana, Ajmer-Merwara, Punjab (with the exception of the district of Simla), Kashmir, North-West Frontier, Baluchistan, and Afghanistan.

Madras

Madras Presidency, and the Indian States of Hyderabad, Mysore, Travancore, Cochin, and Coorg.

Rangoon

Burma, and the Andaman and Nicobar Islands.

(Other Asia)

Aden, Arabia

The settlement and protectorate of Aden; and (informally) Saudi Arabia (formerly called the Kingdom of the Hejaz and Nejd and its Dependencies—including Asir and El Hasa), Yemen, Hadramaut, and islands adjacent to the above territories, including the island of Socotra.

Penang, Straits Settlements

The settlement of Penang (including Penang Island, Province Wellesley, and the Dindings), the Federated Malay State of Perak, and the Unfederated Malay States of Kedah and Perlis.

Singapore, Straits Settlementa

The Straits Settlements of Singapore (including the Cocos or Keeling Islands, and Christmas Island in the Indian Ocean [latitude 10° 30' south, longitude 105° 40' east]), Malacca, and Labuan; the Federated Malay States of Negri Sembilan, Pahang, and Selangor; the Unfederated Malay States of Johore, Kelantan, and Trengganu; the State of North Borneo, Brunei, and Sarawak.

(Australia)

Adelaide, South Australia The States of South Australia and Western Australia.

Brisbane, Queensland

The State of Queensland.

Melbourne, Victoria

The State of Victoria, and Tasmania.

Sydney, New South Wales

The State of New South Wales; the Territories of the Commonwealth (the Federal Capital Territory, the Northern Territory of Australia, the Territory of Papua, the Territory of Norfolk Island, and the Mandated Territory of New Guinea); and the Mandated Territory of Nauru.

(New Zealand)

Auckland

All of Auckland Province in North Island.

Wellington

Athens

In North Island, the Provinces of Weilington, Hawke's Bay, and Taranaki, and all of South Island and Stewart Island.

Christchurch (consular agency): In South Island, the Provinces of Westland and Canterbury and that part of the Provinces of Neison and Marlborough south of 42° south latitude.

Dunedin (consular agency): Otago Province in South Island and Stewart Island.

(West Indies)

Kingston, Jamaica

All of the island of Jamaica.

GREECE

The Nomoi (Provinces) of Arcadia, Argolis-Corinthia, Attica-Boeotia, Chios, Cyclades, Euboea, Laconia, Larissa, Lesbos, Phthiotis-Phokis (except the eparkhia [district] of Doris), Samos, and Trikkala; the eparkhia of Evrytanias in the Nomos of Aetolia-Acarnania; and the island of Crete, which comprises the Nomoi of Candia (Heraclion), Canea, Lasithion, and Retimo.

Patras

Ceiba

The Nomoi (Provinces) of Achaia, Aetolia-Acarnania (except the eparkhia [district] of Evrytanias), Arta, Cephalonia, Corfu, Elis, Messina, Preveza, Yannina, and Zante; and the eparkhia of Doris in the Nomos of Phthiotis-Phokis.

Salonika (Thessalonikē)

The Nomoi (Provinces) of Drama, Evros, Florina, Kavalla, Khalkidike, Kozani, Pellis, Rodopi, Salonika (Thessalonikės), and Serres.

HONDURAS

Eastern Atlantida (to the Colorado River), Eastern Yoro Including the city of Yoro, Colón, La Mosquitia, and Bay Islands.

Tela (vice consulate): Western Atlantida (from the Colorado River west), Western Yoro, and Northern Comayagua.

Puerto Cortes

Cortes, Santa Barbara, Copán, Ocotepeque, and Gracias.

Tegucigalpa

Tegucigalpa, Southern Comayagua, including the city of Comayagua, Intibuca, La Paz, Choluteca, El Paraiso, Valle, and Olancho.

IRAQ (MESOPOTAMIA)

Baghdad

All of Iraq; and in Arabia (informally), Kuwait, Bahrein Qatar, the Trucial Coast, and Oman (Muscat).

IRISH FREE STATE

The Province of Munster,

Dublin

Florence

Cork

The Provinces of Leinster and Connaught: and the Counties of Cavan, Monaghan, and Donegal.

Galway (consular agency): The Province of Connaught.

ITALY

The Provinces of Bologna, Ferrara, Forll, Modena, Ravenna, and Reggio Emilia. in the Compartimento of Emilia; the Provinces of Arezzo, Firenze (Florence), and Pistoia, in the Compartimento of Toscana (Tuscany); and the Republic of San Marino.

Genoa

The Provinces of Genova (Genoa), Imperia, Savona, and Spezia, in the Compartimento of Liguria.

Leghorn

The Provinces of Grosseto, Livorno (Leghorn), Lucca, Massa, Pisa, and Siena, in the Compartimento of Toscana (Tuscany).

Milan

The Provinces of Bergamo, Brescia, Como, Cremona, Mantova, Milano (Milan), Pavia, Sondrio, and Varese, in the Compartimento of Lombardy; and the Provinces of Parma and Piacenza in the Compartimento of Emilla.

Naplea

The Provinces of Avellino, Benevento, Napoli (Naples), and Salerno, in the Compartimento of Campania; the Provinces of Bari, Brindisi, Foggia, Ionio (Taranto), and Lecce, in the Compartimento of Puglie (Apulia): the Provinces of Matera and Potenza, in the Compartimento of Basilicata; the Provinces of Catanzaro, Cosenza, and Reggio Calabria, in the Compartimento of Calabria; and in Africa, Italian Libya (Libia Italiana), comprising Tripolitania and Cirenaica.

Palermo

The island (Compartimento) of Sicily, comprising the Provinces of Agrigento (Girgenti), Caltanissetta, Catania, Enna (Castrogiovanni), Messina, Palermo, Ragusa, Siracusa (Syracuse), and Trapani.

Rome

The Provinces of Frosinone, Rieti, Roma (Rome), and Viterbo, in the Compartimento of Lazio; the Provinces of Perugia and Terni, in the Compartimento of Umbria; the Provinces of Ancona, Ascoli Piceno, Macerata, and Pesaro, in the Compartimento of Marche; the Provinces of Aquila, Campobasso, Chieti, Pescara, and Teramo, in the Compartimento of Abruzzi e Molise; the Provinces of Cagliari, Nuoro, and Sassari, in the island (and comprising the Compartimento) of Sardinia.

Trieste

The Provinces of Carnaro (Flume), Gorizia, Istria (Pola), Trieste, and Zara, in the Compartimento of Venezia Giulia; and the Province of Friuli (Udine) in the Compartimento of Veneto.

Turin

The Provinces of Alessandria, Aosta, Cuneo, Novara, Torine (Turin), and Vercelli, in the Compartimento of Piemonte (Piedmont).

Venice

The Provinces of Belluno, Padova, Rovigo, Treviso, Venezia (Venice), Verona, and Vicenza, in the Compartimento of Veneto; the Provinces of Bolzano and Trento, in the Compartimento of Venezia Tridentina.

JAPANESE EMPIRE

Kobe, Japan

The Prefectures of Shimane, Tottori, Hiroshima, Okayama, Hyogo, Kyoto, Osaka, Nara, Wakayama, Kagawa, Tokushima, Ehime, and Kochi.

Nagasaki, Japan

The Prefectures of Yamaguchi, Fukuoka, Saga, Nagasaki, Oita, Kumamoto, Miyazaki, Kagoshima, and Okinawa, including the Ryukyu Islands.

Nagoya, Japan

The Prefectures of Miye, Shiga, Fukui, Ishikawa, Toyama, Gitu, Aichi, and the Prefecture of Nagano except the gun (county) of Kitasaku (the principal citles of which are Iwamurata, Karuisawa, and Komoro).

Seoul, Chosen

All of Chosen (Korea).

Taihoku, Taiwan

All of Taiwan (Formosa), and the Pescadores Islands.

Tokyo, Japan

The Prefectures of Yamanashi, Chiba, Tokyo, Saitama, Ibaraki, Gumma, Tochigi, Niigata, Fukushima, Yamagata, Miyagi, Akita. Iwate, Aomori, and in the Prefecture of Nagano the gun (county) of Kitasaku (the principal cities of which are Iwamurata, Karuisawa, and Komoro); Hokkaido and the adjacent islands to the north; and the islands in the North Pacific Ocean to the administration of which by Japan, pursuant to a mandate of the League of Nations, the Government of the United States concerning the island of Yap concluded February 11, 1922. Yokohama, Japan

Luxemburg

The Prefectures of Shizuoka and Kanagawa.

LUXEMBURG

All of the Grand Duchy of Luxemburg.

MEXICO

Agua Prieta, Sonora

That part of the State of Sonora lying north of latitude 29° and east of 110° west longitude, but excepting the territory immediately tributary to the Cananea-Naco Railway.

Chihuahua, Chihuahua

That portion of the State of Chihuahua lying to the south and east of a line drawn from the Sonora boundary through Madera to Sauz (both towns included); thence northeastwardly through, and excluding, San Antonio on the Rio Grande.

Ciudad Juárez, Chihuahua

That part of the State of Chihuahua lying to the north of a line drawn through Madera to Sauz (both towns excluded); thence northeastwardly through, and including, San Antonio on the Rio Grande.

Durango, Durango

That part of the State of Durango lying west of a line drawn due south from the Chihuahua boundary to Descubridora, thence in a southeasterly direction from Descubridora (excluded) to the intersection of the meridian of 103° 30' west longitude with the Durango State boundary; that part of the State of Zacatecas lying to the west of the meridian of 103° 30' west longitude, and that part of the State of Jalisco lying north of latitude 22° and west of the meridian of 103° 30' west longitude.

Ensenada, Baja California

That part of the northern territory of Baja Cailfornia (north of latitude 28°) lying to the south and west of a line drawn from the international boundary at Tijuana (included) to a point at 32° north and 116° west, and thence to a point on the Gulf of California in latitude 30° north.

Guadalajara, Jalisco

Those parts of the States of Jalisco and Zacatecas lying to the south of latitude 22°; and the State of Colima.

Guaymas, Sonora

That part of the State of Sonora lying south of latitude 29°, and the southern territory of Baja California (south of latitude 28°).

Matamoros, Tamaulipas

That part of the State of Tamaulipas lying north of latitude 24°, and south of a line drawn east and west just to the north of Mier on the Rio Grande.

Mazatlán, Sinaloa

The States of Sinaloa and Nayarit.

Mérida, Yucatán

The States of Campeche and Yucatán.

Mexicali, Baja California

That part of the northern territory of Baja California lying to the north and east of a line drawn from the international boundary at Tijuana (excluded) to a point at 32° north and 116° west, and thence to a point on the Gulf of California in latitude 30° north; also that part of the State of Sonora lying west of 113° west longitude.

México, D.F.

The States of Querétaro, Hldalgo, Puebla, Tlaxcala, Morelos, México, Michoacán, Guerrero, and the Federal District; and that part of the State of Oaxaca north and west of a line drawn due east from the Guerrero boundary to Yautepee (San Carlos Yautepee) passing through and Including Ejutla, thence northeastwardiy from and Including Yautepee to the Río La Trinidad at the point where it first touches the Oaxaca-Veracruz boundary, the town of Tuxtepec, Oaxaca (near the Veracruz State boundary), however, being excluded from the México, D.F., district.

Monterrey, Nuevo León

That part of the State of Nuevo León lying south of a line drawn through and including Golondrinas, in a direction slightly south of east through Parás (excluded); and excepting also that part of Nuevo Leôn to the west of a line connecting the two southeastern points of the State of Coahulla.

Nogales, Sonora

That part of the State of Sonora lying north of latitude 29°, east of 113° west longitude, and west of 110° west longitude and including the territory immediately tributary to the Cananea-Naco Railway.

Nuevo Laredo, Tamaulipas

That part of the State of Nuevo León lying north of a line passing through, but excluding, Golondrinas, in a direction slightly south of east through Parás (included); and that part of the State of Tamaulipas to the north of a line drawn east and west just to the north of Mier on the Rio Grande.

Piedras Negraa, Coahuila

That part of the State of Coahuila lying to the north and east of a line drawn on the parallel of 25° north latitude from the Chihuahua boundary due east as far as La Fé; thence southeastwardly from La Fé (excluded) to Cuatro Cienegas (included); thence directly east through a point just south of Monclova to the Nuevo León boundary.

Saltillo, Coahuila

That part of the State of Coahuila lying to the south of a line drawn from, but excluding, Cuatro Cienegas eastwardly to the Nuevo León boundary, through a point just south of Monclova, and to the east of a line drawn from Cuatro Clenegas southwardly to, but excluding, Parras, and thence southeastwardly to the Zacatecas boundary at a point directly north of Mazapil, Zacatecas; that part of the State of Zacatecas lying to the east of a line drawn north and south through, and including, Mazapll; that part of the State of Nuevo León lying to the northwest of a line connecting the two southeastern points of the State of Coahuila.

San Luis Potosí, San Luis Potosí

The State of San Luis Potosi, except that portion lying to the east of a line drawn due north and south through, but excluding, the town of Tamazopo (approximately in longitude 99° 25' west of Greenwich); the States of Aguascalientes and Guanajuato; that part of the State of Zacatecas lying to the south of the Tropic of Cancer, to the east of the meridian of 103° 30' west longitude, and to the north of the parallel of 22° north latitude; and that part of the State of Jalisco lying to the north of latitude 22° but east of the meridian of 103° 30' west longitude.

Tampico, Tamaulipas

That part of the State of Tamaulipas lying south of latitude 24° ; that part of the State of Veracruz lying north of the Rio Cazones; and that part of the State of San Luis Potosi lying to the east of a line drawn north and south through, and including, the town of Tamazopo (approximately in longitude 99° 25' west of Greenwich).

Torreón, Coahuila

Those parts of the States of Coahuila, Durango, and Zacatecas lying within the following boundaries: the parallel of 28° latitude from the Chihuahua boundary due east as far as La Fé, Coahuila (included); thence southeastwardly to Cuatro Cienegas (excluded); thence southwardly to Parras, Coahuila (included); thonce southeastwardly to the Coahulla-Zacatecas boundary at a point directly north of Mazapil, Zacatecas; thence directly south on a line through Mazapil (excluded) to the Zacatecas-San Luis Potosi boundary; thence southwestwardly on the Zacatecas-San Luis Potosi houndary to the Tropic of Cancer; thence due west on the Tropic of Cancer to 103° 30' west longitude; thence northwardly on the meridian of 103° 30' west longitude to the Zacatecas-Durango boundary; thence by a straight line in a northwesterly direction to Descubridora, Durango (included), intersecting the railroad between Torreón and Durango so as to leave the towns of Pedriceña, Agua Vieja, and Pasale in the Torreón district: thence directly north by a line through Descubridora to the northern boundary of Durango; thence eastwardly by the Durango-Chihuahua boundary and northwardly by the Coahuila-Chihuahua boundary to latitude 28°.

Veracruz, Veracruz

The States of Chiapas and Tabasco; that part of the State of Veracruz lying to the south and east of the Rio Cazones; that part of the State of Oaxaca lying south and east of a line drawn from the Guerrero boundary directly east to Yautepec (San Carlos Yautepec) passing through but excluding Ejutla, thence northeastwardly from, but excluding, Yautepec to the Rio La Trinidad at the point where it first touches the Oaxaca-Veracruz boundary; the town of Tuxtepec, Oaxaca, near the Veracruz State boundary, is also included.

MOROCCO

The zone of the French Protectorate in Morocco.

Casablanca The zone

Tangier

The international zone of Tangler, and the Spanish protected territory in Morocco, as well as Ceuta and Melilla.

NETHERLANDS AND POSSESSIONS

(Netherlands)

The Provinces of North Holland, Drenthe, Friesland, Gelderland, Groningen, Overijssel, and Utrecht.

Rotterdam

Amsterdam

The Provinces of South Holland, Limburg, North Brabant, and Zeeland.

(Possessions)

Batavia, Java, Netherland India

In Java, the western half (west of administrative political boundary lines approximately 110° east of Greenwich), comprising: the Province of West Java (the Residencies of Bantam, Batavia, Buitenzorg, Cheribon, and Priangan); and in the Province of Middle Java, the Residencies of Pekalongan, Banjoemas, and Kedoe. In Sumatra, the southern half (south of administrative political boundary lines which approximate the Equator) and islands adjacent to southern Sumatra, comprising: the Residencies of Sumatra's Westkust, Benkoelen, the Lampongs (Lampoengsche districten), Palembang, Djambi, Riouw and dependencies (Riouw en Onderhoorigheden), and Bangka and dependencies (Bangka en Onderhoorigheden), and the autonomous Subresidency of Billiton. In Borneo, the Residency of the Western District (Residentle Westeraldeeling).

Medan, Sumatra, Netherland India

In Sumatra, the northern half (north of administrative political boundary lines which approximate the Equator) and islands adjacent to northern Sumatra, comprising: the Governments of Achin and dependencies (Atjeh en Onderhoorigheden) and Sumatra East Coast (Oostkust van Sumatra), and the Residency of Tapanoeli.

Surabaya, Java, Netherland India

In Java, the eastern half (east of administrative political boundary lines approximately 110° east of Greenwich), comprising: the Province of East Java (the Residencies of Besoeki, Bodjonegoro, Kediri, Madioen, Madoera [island], Malang, Probolinggo, and Soerabaja [Surabaya]); the Government of Soerakarta; the Government of Jogjakarta; and in the Province of Middle Java, the Residencies of Djapara-Rembang and Semarang. In Borneo, the Residency of the Southern and Eastern Districts (Residentie Zuider- en Oosterafdeeling). All Netherland possessions cast of Java and Borneo, comprising the Residencies of Bali and Lombok (Bali en Lombok). Timor and dependencies (Timor en Onderhoorigheden), and Manado (in Celebes), the Government of Celebes and dependencies (Gouvernement Celebes en Onderhoorigheden), and the Government of the Moluccas (Gouvernement der Molukken) which includes Netherland New Guinea.

NICARAGUA

That part of Nicaragua lying to the west of a straight line passing through a point on the Rio Segovia (Wanks River) in longitude 85° 30' west and a point on the Rio San Juan in longitude 84° 30' west.

Puerto Cabezas

Managua

All of Nicaragua not included in the Managua consular district.

NORWAY

The Provinces of Hordaland, Sogn og Fjordane, and that portion of the Province of Møre known as Sunnmøre.

Oslo

Bergen

The Provinces of Akørshus, Aust-Agder, Buskarud, Finnmark, Hedmark, Nordland, Nord-Trøndelag, Opland, Rogaland, Sør-Trøndelag, Vest-Agder, Vestfold, Telemark, Troms, Østfold, and that portion of the Province of Møre known as Nordmøre; the island of Jan Mayen and the Archipelago of Svalbard (Spitsbergen).

PORTUGAL AND POSSESSIONS

Lishon

(Portugal)

The administrative districts of Beja, Castelo Branco, Évora, Faro (Algarve), Leiria, Lisboa, Portalegre, Santarém, and Setubal; and in Africa, Portuguese Guinea, Angola, and the Portuguese possessions of St. Thomas Island (São Tomé), and Prince's Island (Principe).

O porto

The administrative districts of Aveiro, Braga, Bragança, Coimbra, Guarda, Porto, Viana do Castelo, Vila Real, and Vizeu.

(Possessions)

Funchal, Madeira

The Madelra Islands and the Cape Verds Islands.

Lourenço Marques, Mozambique Mozambique (Portuguese East Africa)

St. Michael (São Miguel), Azores The Azores (Açores).

SPAIN

Alicante

The Provinces of Alicante and Murcia.

Barcelona

The Provinces of Barcelona, Gerona, Huesca, Lérida, Tarragona, Zaragoza, and the Balearic Islands; in Africa, the Spanish territory comprising Rio de Oro, Ifni, and Rio Muni, and the islands of Fernando Po, Great and Little Elobey, Corisco, and Annobou; and the Republic of Andorra.

Tarragona (consular agency): The Province of Tarragona.

Bilbao

The Provinces of Alava, Burgos, Logroño, Navarra, Vizcaya, Gulpúzcoa, Palencia, and Santander.

Las Palmas, Canary Islands

The Province of Las Palmas, comprising the islands of Fuerteventura, Gran Canaria, and Lanzarote, and adjacent islands.

Madrid

The Provinces of Avila, Ciudad Real, Cuenca, Guadalajara, Madrld, Salamanca, Segovia, Soria, Toledo, and Valladolid.

Málaga

The Provinces of Granada, Jaén, Málaga, and Almeria.

Seville

The Provinces of Badajoz, Cáceres, Cádiz, Córdoba, Huelva, and Sevilla.

Tenerife, Canary Islands

The Province of Santa Cruz de Tenerife, comprising the islands of Gomero, Hierro (Ferro), Palma, and Tenerife.

Valencia

The Provinces of Albacete, Castellón, Teruel, and Valencia.

0

The Provinces of Coruña, León, Lugo, Orense, Pontevedra. Zamora, and Oviedo

SWEDEN

The Läne (provinces) of Älfsborg, Blekinge, Göteborg och Bohus, Halland, Jönköping, Kalmar, Kristianstad, Kronoberg, Malmöhus, Skaraborg, and Värmland.

Stockholm

Göteborg

The Provinces of Jämtland, Västernorrland, Gäfleborg, Kopparberg, Uppsala, Västmanland, Stockholm, Örebro, Södermanland, Östergötland, Gottland, Norrbotten, and Västerbotten.

SWITZERLAND

The Cantons of Basel and Solothurn.

Basel The Bern

The Cantons of Bern, Fribourg, and Neuchâtel.

Geneva

The Cantons of Geneva, Valais, and Vaud.

Zürich

The Cantons of Aargau, Schaffhausen, Zürich, Zug, Glarus, Ticino, Thurgau, Appenzeil, St. Gallen, Graubünden, Luzern, Unterwalden, Uri, and Schwyz.

All of the French mandated territory of Syria and the Lehanon.

TURKEY

stanbul (Constantinople) 1

Beirut

The vilayets of Istanbul (Constantinople) and Canakkale (Dardanelles); the three vilayets situated wholly in Europe. namely, Edirne (Adrianople), Kirklareli (Kirk-Kilissa), and Tekirdağ (Rodosto); and the following vilayets in Asia: Balikesir (Karassi), Bursa (Brusa), Bilecik (Erthogrul), Eskişehir (Eski-Shehir), Ankara (Angora), Kirşehir (Kir-Shehir), Kayseri (Kaisaria), Sivas, Erzincan (Erzinian), Eláziz (Mamuret-ul-Aziz or Harput), Diyarbekir (Diarbekr), Muş (Mush or Bitlis), Van, and all vilayets to the north thereof, namely, Amasya (Amasia), Artvin, Bayazit (Bayezid), Bolu, Çorum (Chorum), Erzurum (Erzerum), Gümüşane (Gumush-Haneh), Çankiri (Chankiri or Kangri), Şebin Karahisar (Shabin-Kara-Hissar, or Kara-Hissar-Sharki), Kars, Kastamonu (Kastamuni), Giresun (Kerasund), Kocaeli (Koja-Ili or Izmid), Ordu, Rize (Rizeh or Lazistan), Samsun (Janik), Sinop, Tokat, Trabzon (Trebizond), Yozgat (Yozgad or Bozyuk), and Zonguldak (Zunguldak).

Izmir (Smyrna)

The following vilayets in Asia: Izmir (Smyrna), Manisa (Magnesia or Saruhan), Kütahya (Kutahia), Afyon Karahisar (Afion-Kara-Hissar), Konya (Konia), Aksaray (Ak-Serai), Niğde (Nigdeh), Adana, Maraş (Marash), Malatya (Malatia), Urfa, Mardin, Siirt (Saerd), Hakâri (Hakiari), and all vilayets to the south thereof, namely, Antalya (Adalia or Tekeh), Aydin (Aidin), Burdur, Denizli, Gazi Antep (Ghazi-Aintab), Içel (Itchil), Cebelibereket (Jebel-Bereket), Muğla (Mentesheh), Mersin (Mersina), and Isparta (Sparta or Hamid-Abad); and all islands not under Greek administration lying south of the Gulf of Edremid (Adramyti) and adjacent to the Turkish coast, including the Italian Islands of the Aegean (Isole Italiane dell' Egeo)-the Dodecanese Islands, and the island of Castelrosso (Castellorizzo).

UNION OF SOUTH AFRICA

Capetown, Cape Province

That part of the Province of the Cape of Good Hope lying west of 25° east longitude; the Bechuanaland Protectorate; the mandated territory of South-West Africa; and the islands of St. Helena, Ascension, and Tristan da Cunha.

¹ The vilayets printed in *italics* comprise a zone east of the Euphrates which the Turkish Government excludes from the jurisdiction of all foreign consulates in Turkey.

Durhan Natal

Natal: Basutoland: and the island of Mauritius.

Johannesburg, Transvaal

The Transvaal; Orange Free State; Swaziland; Southern Rhodesia; Northern Rhodesia; and Nyasaland Protectorate.

Port Elizabeth, Cape Province

That part of the Province of the Cape of Good Hope lying east of 25° east longitude.

VENEZUELA

Caracas

The States of Anzoátegui, Apure, Aragua, Bolívar, Carabobo, Cojedes, Guárico, Lara, Miranda, Monagas, Nueva Esparta, Portuguesa, Sucre, Yaracuy, and Zamora; that part of the State of Falcón lying east of a line running north and south through, but excluding, the town of La Vela; the Territories of Amazonas and Delta Amacuro; and, in the Federal District, the Department of Libertador, except the Parish of Macuto.

La Guaira (vice consulate): That part of the Federal District comprising all of the Department of Vargas, and the Parish of Macuto in the Department of Libertador.

Maracaibo

The States of Mérida, Táchira, Trujillo, and Zulia; and that part of the State of Falcón lying west of a line running north and south through, but including, the town of La Vela.

YUGOSLAVIA

Belgrade

The Banovine (Provinces) of Drina, Dunav (Danube), Morava, Vardar, and in the Banovina (Province) of Zeta the eastern portion only as included in the Okružni Inspektorati (administrative inspectorates) of Bijelo Polje and Mitrovitsa. (This jurisdiction comprises roughly the former territories of Voivodina, Bosnia [eastern], Serbia, South Serbia, and Serbian Macedonia.)

Zagreb

The Banovine (Provinces) of Drava, Sava, Vrbas, Primorska (Sea Coast), and in the Banovina (Province) of Zeta the western portion only as included in the Okružni Inspektorati (administrative inspectorates) of Dubrovnik and Cetinje. (This jurisdiction comprises roughly the territories formerly known as Slovenia, Croatia-Slavonia, Bosnia [western], Dalmatia, Hercegovina, and Montenegro.)

ALLOCATION OF PROVINCES, STATES, ETC., TO CONSULAR DISTRICTS

[This list contains only those countries in which the consular districts have been definitely delimited. Consulates general are marked c.g.; vice consulates, v.c.; consulates are unmarked. Consular agencies do not appear since their districts are included within the districts of the offices to which the agencies are subordinate.]

ADMINISTRATIVE DIVISION

CONSULAR DISTRICT

ABYSSINIA

(See Ethiopia)

AFGHANISTAN

AFRICA 1

(Including related islands)

Countries, colonies, protectorates, etc.	Mauritius (island) Durban, Natal
Algeria (including the Territorics of the	Middle Congo [Moyen-Congo] (Fr.
South) Algiers, c.g.	Equat. Africa)
Anglo-Egyptian Sudan ³	Morocco. See Morocco, p. 85.
Angola (including Cabinda) Llsbon, Portugal, c.g.	Mozambique (Port. E. Africa) Lourenço Marques
Annobon (island) Barcelona, Spain, c.g.	Natal. See under Union of South
Ascension (island)	Africa, p. 89.
South Africa, c.g.	Niger (Fr. W. Africa)
Basutoland Durban, Natal	Nigeria (Br. W. Africa) Lagos
Bechuanaland Protectorate Capetown, Union of	Northern Rhodesia Johannesburg, Trans-
South Africa, c.g.	vaal
Belgian Congo Antwerp, Belgium, c.g.	Nossi Bé. See Madagascar.
Cabinda. See Angola.	Nyasaland Protectorate Johannesburg, Trans-
Cameroons (Br. mandate) Lagos, Nigeria	vaal
Cameroun (Fr. mandate) Paris, France, c.g.	Orange Free State. See under Union of
Canary Islands. See Canary Islands,	South Africa, p. 89.
p 76.	Pemba. See Zanzibar.
Cape of Good Hope Province. See	Portuguese Guinea Lisbon, Portugal, c.g.
under Union of South Africa, p. 89.	Principe [Prince's Island] Lisbon, Portugal, c.g.
Cape Verde Islands	Réunion (island) Paris, France, c.g.
Chad (Fr. Equat. Africa) Parls, France, c.g.	Rhodesia. See Northern Rhodesia and
Comoro Islands. See Madagascar.	Southern Rhodesia.
Corisco (Island)	Rio de Oro Barcelona, Spain, c.g.
Dahomey (Fr. W. Africa). Paris, France, c.g.	Rio Muni (Spanish Guinea) Barcelona, Spain, c.g.
Egypt. See Egypt, p. 77.	Ruanda-Urundi (Belgian mandate) Antwerp, Belgium, c.g.
Elobey Islands, Great and Little Barcelona, Spain, c.y.	St. Helena (island) Capetown, Union of
Ethiopia [Abyssinia]. See Ethiopia,	South Africa, c.g.
p. 78.	Ste. Marie (island). See Madagascar.
Fernando Po (island)	São Tomé [St. Thomas] (island) Lisbon, Portugal, c.g.
French Equatorial Africa	Sénégal (Fr. W. Africa)
French Guinea [Guinée française] (Fr.	Seychelles and adjacent British islands. Nairobi, Kenya
W. Africa)	Sierra Leone (Br. W. Africa) Lagos, Nigeria
French Sudan [Soudan français] (Fr.	Socotra (island)
W. Africa) Paris, France, c.g.	South Africa, Union of. See Union of
French West Africa	South Africa, p. 89.
Gabon (Fr. Equat. Africa) Paris, France, c.g.	South-West Africa (mandate)
Gambia (Br. W. Africa) Lagos, Nigeria	South Africa, c.g.
Glorious Islands [Iles Glorieuses]. See	Southern Rhodesia Johannesburg, Trans-
Madagascar.	vaal
Gold Coast (Br. W. Africa) Lagos, Nigeria	Swaziland Johannesburg, Trans-
Ifni	vaal
Ivory Coast [Côte d'Ivoire]	Tanganyika Territory (British man-
Kenya Colony and Protectorate (Br.	date) Nairobi, Kenya
E. Africa) Nairobi	uate)
D. Antica)	Tangier (International zone). See

¹ For convenience of reference and economy of space, colonies, protectorates, etc., in the continent of Africa and related islands are entered under Africa rather than separately under the names of the numerous political and geographical entities concerned. Those not at present assigned to the jurisdiction of any American consular office (Eritrea, and British, French, and Italian Somaliland) are omitted. For the independent countries of Africa, the Union of South Africa, and islands near Africa on which there are American consular offices, separate entries are made under their respective names.
³ Assigned informally to the jurisdiction of the consular office indicated.

ADMINISTRATIVE DIVISION CONSULAR DISTRICT

AFRICA-Continued

Llbya [Libia Italiana]..... Naples, Italy. c.g.

and Nossi Bé)...... Paris, France, c.g.

Mauritania (Fr. W. Africa) Paris. France, c.g.

Countries, colonies, protectorates, etc.

Madagascar (including Comoro Islands, Glorious Islands, Ste. Marie Island,

Madeira Islands. See Madeira, p. 84.

ADMINISTRATIVE DIVISION

AFRICA-Continued

Countries, colonies, protectorates, etc. Togoland (Br. mandate) Togoland (Fr. mandate)	
Transvaal. See under Union of South Africa, p. 89.	
Tristan da Cunha (island)	Capetown, Union of South Africa, c.g.
Tunisia	Tunls
Ubangi-Shari [Oubanghi-Chari] (Fr. Equat. Africa)	Paris, France, c.g.
Uganda (Br. E. Africa)	
Union of South Africa. See Union of South Africa, p. 89.	
Upper Volta [Haute-Volta] (Fr. W. Africa)	Paris, France, c.g.
Zanzibar (including Pemba)	Nairobi, Kenya

ALBANIA

All of Albania_____ Tirana, v.c.

ANDORRA

The Republic of Andorra...... Barcelona, Spaln, c.g.

ARABIA1

Aden (settlement and protectorate)	Aden
Bahrein Islands ²	Baghdad, c.g.
Hadramaut ²	Aden
Kuwait 1	Baghdad, c.g.
Oman (Muscat) ²	Baghdad, c.g.
Qatar ²	Baghdad, c.g.
Saudl Arabla, Kingdom of ² (formerly	
the Kingdom of the Hejaz and Nejd	
and its Dependencies-including Asir	
and El Hasa)	Aden
Trucial Coast 2	Baghdad, c.g.
Yemen ²	Aden

ARGENTINA

AUSTRALIA AND APPERTAINING ISLANDS

State (or territory)

Federal Capital Territory Nauru (mandated ter. of Great Britain,	Sydney, c.g.
Australia, and New Zealand)	Sydney, c.g.
New Guinea (mandated ter.)	Sydney, c.g.
New South Wales	Sydney, c.g.
Norfolk Island (ter.)	Sydney, c.g.
Northern Territory of Australia	Sydney, c.g.
Papua (ter.)	Sydney, c.g.
Queensland	Brisbane
South Australia	Adelaide
Tasmania	Melbourne
Victoria	Melbourne
Western Australia	Adelalde

AUSTRIA

All of Austria______ Vienna, c.g.

AZORES

BELGIUM

Province 3

Antwerp [Anvers, Antwerpen]	Antwerp, c.g.
Brabant	Brussels
Flanders, East [Flandre Oriental, Oost	
Vlaanderon]	Antwerp, c.g.
Flanders, West [Flandre Occidentale,	
West Vlaanderen]	Antwerp, c.g
Hainaut [Halnaut, Henegouw]	
Liége [Lićge, Luik]	
Limburg [Limbourg, Limburg]	Antwerp, cg.
Luxembourg [Luxembourg, Luxem-	
burg]	Brussels
Namur [Namur, Namen]	Brussels

BOLIVIA

All of Bollvia La Paz

BORNEO, BRITISH

(See British Malava)

BORNEO, NETHERLAND

(See Netherland India)

BRAZIL

State (or territory)

		-
	Acre (ter.)	Pará
	Alagõas	Pernambuco [Recife]
	Amazonas	Pará
	Bahla	Bahia
	Ceará	Pernambuco [Recife]
	Districto Federal	Rio de Janeiro, c.g.
l	Esplrito Santo	Rio de Janeiro, c.g.
	Goyaz	Rio de Janeiro, c.g.
	Maranhão	Pará
	Matto Grosso	São Paulo, c.g.
	Minas Geraes	Rlo de Janeiro, c g.
	Pará	Pará
	Parahyba	Pernambuco [Recife]
	Paraná	São Paulo, c.g.
	Pernambuco	Pernambuco [Recife]
	Piauhy:	
	That portion of the State lying south of 8° south latitude	n. h.
		Bania
	That portion of the State lying north of 8° south latitude	Pará
	Rio de Janelro	Rio de Janeiro, c.a.
	Rio Grande do Norte	
	Rio Grande do Sul	
	Santa Catharina	

¹ For convenience of reference and economy of space, sultanates, kingdoms, etc., in Arabia are entered under Arabia rather than separately under the names of the political and geographical entities concerned. ³ Assigned informally to the jurisdiction of the consular office indicated, ⁴ The name first given is the form usually employed in English; the names in brackets are (1) the French name, and (2) the

Flemish name.

And the second second and the sec

CONSULAR DISTRICT

ADMINISTRATIVE DIVISION

BRAZIL-Continued

State (or territory)

(São Paulo: The port and municipality of San-tos and the municipality of São Vicente_____ Santos The State of São Paulo except the

Sergipe_____ Bahia

BRITISH MALAVA

(Straits Settlements, Federated Malay States, Unfeder-ated Malay States, and British protectorates in Borneo)

Colony (or state)

Borneo, North	Singapore, c.g.
Brunel, in Borneo	Singapore, c.g.
Johore (U.M.S.)	Singapore, c.g.
Kedah (U.M.S.)	Penang
Kelantan (U.M.S.)	Singapore, c.g.
Labuan (S.S.)	Singapore, c.g.
Malacca (S.S.)	
Negri Sembilan (F.M.S.)	Singapore, c.g.
Pahang (F.M.S.)	Singapore, c.g.
Penang (S.S.), including Province	
Wellesley and the Dindings	Penang
Perak (F.M.S.)	Penang
Perak (F.M.S.) Perlis (U.M S.)	Penang Penang
Perak (F.M.S.)	Penang Penang Singapore, c.g.
Perak (F.M.S.) Perlis (U.M S.) Sarawak, in Borneo	Penang Penang Singapore, c.g.
Perak (F.M.S.) Perlis (U.M S.) Sarawak, in Borneo Selangor (F.M.S.)	Penang Penang Singapore, c.g.
Perak (F.M.S.) Perlis (U.M S.) Sarawak, in Borneo Selangor (F.M.S.) Singapore (S.S.), including Cocos or Keeling Islands and Christmas Island	Penang Penang Singapore, c.g. Singapore, c.g.
Perak (F.M.S.) Perlis (U.M S.) Sarawak, in Borneo Selangor (F.M.S.) Singapore (S.S.), including Cocos or	Penang Penang Singapore, c.g. Singapore, c.g. Singapore, c.g.

BULGARIA

All of Bulgaria_____ Sofia

CANARY ISLANDS

Province

Las Palmas, comprising the islands of			
Fuerteventura. Gran Canaria, and			
Lanzarote, and adjacent islands Las Palmas			
Santa Cruz de Tenerife, comprising the			
islands of Gomero, Hierro [Ferro],			
Palma, and Tenerife Tenerife			

CEYLON

CHINA AND ADJACENT TERRITORY

Province

Anhwei Chahar	
Chekiang	Shanghai, c.g.
Chihli. See Hopeh.	
Chinghal [Kokonor]	Hankow, c.g.
Fengtien. See Liaoning.	
Fukien:	
All of that portion of the Province comprised in the prefectures of Ting- chowfu, Changchowfu, Chüanchow- fu, and the independent subprefec-	
ture of Lungyenchow	Amoy
All of the Province except the four prefectures comprising the Amoy	73 1
consular district	
Hellungklang	Harbin, c.g.

ADMINISTRATIVE DIVISION CONSULAR DISTRICT

CHINA AND ADJACENT TERRITORY-Continued

Province Honen All of that portion of the Province lying south of the Yellow River..... Hankow, c.g. All of that portion of the Province lying north of the Yellow River..... Tientsin, c.g. Hong Kong: All of the British colony_____ Hong Kong, c.g. Hopeh [Chihli]..... Tientsin, c.g. Hunan Hankow, c.g. Hupeh_____ Hankow, c.g Kansu Hankow, c.g. Klangsi Hankow, c.g. Kiangsu: All of that portion of the Province lying north of the Yangtze River, and two prefectures south of the same, namely, Kian,uing and Chenkiang... Nanking, c.g. All of that portion of the Province bring could of the Yangtee Bring lying south of the Yangtze River, with the exception of the prefectures of Chenkiang and Kiangning...... Shanghai, c.g. Kirin: All of that portion of the Province lying north of 44° north latitude, in-cluding the following places in Kirin open to trade: Harbin, Ninguta, Sansing, and Suifenho _ Harbin, c q All of the Province lying to the south of the parallel of 44° north latitude, including the following places in Kirin open to trade: Changchun [Kwanchengtze], Hunchun, Kirin, Lungchingtsun, Towtaokow, Wangching [Paitsaokow], and Yenki [Chützuchieh]. Mukden, c.g. Kokonor. See Chinghai. Kwangsi..... Canton, c.g. Kwangtung: All of that portion of the Province lying west of 115° east longitude..... Canton, c.g. All of that portion of the Province lying east of 115° east longitude...... Swatow Kwantung Leased Territory...... Dairen Kweichow_____ Canton, c.g. Liaoning [Fengtien]: All of the Province except the leased territory of Kwantung...... Mukden, c.g. Mongolia. including the (special) administrative districts of Sulyuan, Chahar, and Jehol..... Tientsin, c.g. Shantung: That portion of the Province northeast of a line drawn along the north-east shore of the embayment of Ting-tzetsui Kow to the mouth of the Wulung Ho, thence in a northwesterly That portion of the Province west of a line which follows the Kiao Ho southward from its mouth to its source, thence to the nearer source of the Taolin Ho and along the Taolin Ho to the sea..... Tsinan

ADMINISTRATIVE DIVISION

CHINA AND ADJACENT TERRITORY-Continued

Province

Shantung-Continued.	
That portion of the Province lying	
between the Chefoo and Tsinan con-	
sular districts (within this area is included the former leased territory of	
Kiaochow)	Tsingtao
Shensi	Hankow, c.g.
Sikang [Chwanpien]	Yünnanfu
Sinkiang [Chinese Turkistan]	Hankow, c.g.
Suiyuan	Tientsin, c.g.
Szechwan	Hankow, c.g.
Tibet	Yünnanfu
Yunnan	Yünnanfu

CHOSEN

(See Japanese Possessions)

COLOMBIA

Departamento, intendencia, or comisaría Antioquia (dept.): Barranquilla All of the Department not included in the Barranquilla consular district. Cartagena Bolívar (dept.)..... Cartagena Caldas (dept.): That portion of the Department lying to the east of the Cauca River Bogotá hasin All of the Department not included in the Bogotá consular district..... Buenaventura Cauca (dept.) _____ Buenaventura Chocó (int.): That portion of the Intendencia lying south of 6°15' north latitude.... Buenaventura All of the Intendencia not included in the Buenaventura consular district__ Cartagena Magdalena (dept.)_____ Barranquilla Meta (int.) Bogotá Nariño (dept.)..... Buenaventura Putumayo (com.)..... Bogotá San Andrés y Providencia (int .--- islands in the Caribbean)..... Cartagena Santander del Norte (dept.) Barranquilla Tolima (dept.)_____ Bogotá

CONSULAR DISTRICT

COSTA RICA

_		
Prot	ince	2

Alajuela	San José
Cartago	San José
Guanacaste	San José
Heredia	San José
Limón	Port Limón
Puntarenas	San José
San José	San José

CYPRUS

All of the island of Cyprus_____ Port Said, Egypt

CZECHOSLOVAKIA

All of Czechoslovakia Prague, c.g.

DANZIG

All of the Free City of Danzig Danzig

DENMARK

All of Denmark..... Copenhagen, c.g.

DODECANESE ISLANDS

(See Italian Islands of the Aegean)

DUTCH EAST INDIES

(See Netherland India)

EGYPT

Governorate or Mudirfa

Alexandria (gov.)	Alexandria, c.g.
Aswån (mud.)	Cairo
Asyût (mud.)	Cairo
Behéra (mud.)	Alexandria, c.g.
Beni Suef (mud.)	Cairo
Cairo (gov.)	Cairo
Canal (gov.)	Port Said
Damietta (gov.)	Alexandria, c.g.
Daqablîa (mud.)	Alexandria, c.g.
Fayûm (mud.)	Cairo
Frontier Districts:	
The Frontier Districts (Eastern Desert, Egyptian Libyan Desert,	
Debell, Egyptian Elbyan Desert,	
Dakhla and Kharga Oases, etc.) ex-	Cairo
Dåkhla and Kharga Oases, etc.) ex- cept the Sinai peninsula	
Dâkhla and Kharga Oases, etc.) ex- cept the Sinai peninsula	Port Said
Dâkhla and Kharga Oases, etc.) ex- cept the Sinai peninsula Sinai peninsula Gharbîa (mud.)	Port Said Alexandria, c.g.
Dâkhla and Kharga Oases, etc.) ex- cept the Sinai peninsula Sinai peninsula	Port Said Alexandria, c.g.
Dåkhla and Kharga Oases, etc.) ex- cept the Sinai peninsula Sinai peninsula Gharbia (mud.) Girga (mud.)	Port Said Alexandria, c.g. Cairo
Dåkhla and Kharga Oases, etc.) ex- cept the Sinai peninsula Sinai peninsula Gharbîa (mud.) Girga (mud.) Giza (mud.)	Port Said Alexandria, c.g. Cairo Cairo Alexandria, c.g.
Dåkhla and Kharga Oases, etc.) ex- cept the Sinai peninsula Sinai peninsula Gharbia (mud.) Girga (mud.) Giza (mud.) Menufia (mud.)	Port Said Alexandria, c.g. Cairo Alexandria, c.g. Cairo
Dakhla and Kharga Oases, etc.) ex- cept the Sinai peninsula	Port Said Alexandria, c.g. Cairo Cairo Alexandria, c.g. Cairo Alexandria, c.g.
Dakhla and Kharga Oases, etc.) ex- cept the Sinai peninsula	Port Said Alexandria, c.g. Cairo Alexandria, c.g. Cairo Alexandria, c.g. Cairo
DAkhla and Kharga Oases, etc.) ex- cept the Sinai peninsula Sinai peninsula Gharbia (mud.) Girga (mud.) Giza (mud.) Minia (mud.) Qaliubia (mud.) Qena (mud.)	Port Said Alexandria, c.g. Cairo Cairo Alexandria, c.g. Cairo Alexandria, c.g. Cairo Alexandria, c.g.

EL SALVADOR

All of El Salvador...... San Salvador, c g.

ENGLAND

(See Great Britain)

ADMINISTRATIVE DIVISION CONSULAR DISTRICT

ESTONIA

ETHIOPIA (ABYSSINIA)

All of Ethiopia...... Addis Ababa, c.g.

FINLAND

All of Finland...... Helsingfors

FRANCE

Département

Ain	Lyon
A isne	Lille
Allier	Lyon
Alpes, Basses-	Marseille
Alpes, Hautes-	Marsellle
Alpes-Maritimes	Nice
Alsace. See Bas-Rhin and Haut-Rhin.	11100
Ardèche	Marseilie
Ardennes	Strasbourg
A riège	Bordeaux
Aube	Paris, c.g.
Aude	Marseille
A veyron	Marseille
Belfort (ter.)	Strasbourg
Bouches-du-Rhône	Marseille
Calvados	Cherbourg
Cantal	Lyon
Charente	Bordeaux
Charente-Inférieure	Bordeaux
Charence-Interleure	Bordeaux
	Bordeaux
Corrèze Corse (island of Corsica)	Marseille
Côte-d'Or	
Côtes-du-Nord	Lyon
	Nantes
Creuse Deux-Sèvres, See Sèvres, Deux	Bordeaux
	Dandsour
Dordogne	Bordeaux
Doubs.	Lyon
Drôme	Marseiile
Eure	Havre
Eure-et-Loir	Paris, c.g.
Finistère	Nantes
Gard	Marseille
Garonne, Haute-	Bordeaux
Gers.	Bordeaux
Gironde	Bordeaux
Hérault	Marseille
Ille-et-Vilaine	Nantes
Indre	Bordeaux
Indre-et-Loire	Nantes
Isère	Lyon
Jura	Lyon
Landes	Bordeaux
Loir-et-Cher	Paris, c.g.
Loire.	Lyon
Loire, Haute	Lyon
Loire-Inférieure	Nantes
Loiret.	Paris, c.g.
Lorraine. See Moselle.	Denterry
Lot.	Bordeaux
Lot et Garonne	Bordeaux
Lozère	Marseille

FRANCE-Continued

ADMINISTRATIVE DIVISION CONSULAR DISTRICT

i	Département	
i	Maine-et-Loire	Nantes
	Manche	Cherbourg
	Marne	
ĺ	Marne, Haute	
	Mayenne	
	Meurthe-et-Moselle	
	Meuse	
	Morbihan Moselie	
	Nièvre	-
	Nord	
	Oise	
	Orne	
	Pas de Calais	
	Puy-de-Dôme	Lyon
	Pyrénées, Basses-	
	Pyrénées, Hautes-	
	Pyrénées-Orientales	
	Rhin, Bas-	
	Rhin, Haut Rhône	
	Saône, Haute	
	Saône-et-Loire	
	Sarthe	
	Savole	Lyon
	Savoie, Haute	
	Seine	
	Seine-Inférieure	
	Seine-et-Marne	
	Selne-et-Oise Sèvres, Deux-:	Paris, c.y.
	The arrondissements of Niort and	
Ì	Melle	Bordeaux
	All of the Département except the	Mandag
	arrondissements of Niort and Melle	
	Somme Tarn	
	Tarn-et-Garonne	
į	Var	
	Vaucluse	
	Vendée	Nantes
	Vienne	Bordeaux
	Vienne, Haute-	Bordeaux
	Vosges	
	Yonne	Paris, c.g.
	FRENCH INDOCHI	NA
	All of French Indochina	Saigon
	GERMANY	
	State (or Prussian province)	
	Anbalt	Leipzig
	Baden	
1	Bavaria [Bayern]:	
	All of the State except the	Ar and three a lite
	Palatinate [Pfalz]	Munich[Munchen],c.g.
	All of the Palatinate [Pialz] except that part included in the Saar Basin	
	Territory, q. v.	Frankfort on the Main
		[Frankfurt-am-Main], cg.
	Berlin (Prussian prov.)	
1	Brandenburg (Prussian prov.)	

2

ADMINISTRATIVE DIVISION

CONSULAE DISTRICT

GERMANY-Contin	ued
State (or Prussian province)	
Bremen [Freie und Hansestadt Bremen].	Bremen
Brunswick [Braunschweig]	
Grenzmark Posen-Westpreussen. See	
Posen-West Prussla.	
Hamburg [Frele und Hansestadt	
Hamburg] Hanover [Hannover] (Prussian prov.).	Bromen
Hesse [Hessen]	Frankfort on the Main
	[Frankfurt-am-Main],
	c.g.
Hesse-Nassau [Hessen-Nassau] (Prus-	
sian prov.):	
All of the Province except the ex- claves Rinteln and Schmalkalden	Frankfort on the Main
claves trintein and benmarkaiden	[Frankfurt-am-Maln],
	c.g.
Rinteln (kreis) Schmalkalden (kreis)	
Hohenzollern (Prussian prov.)	
Lüppe Lübeck [Freistaat Lübeck]	
Marienwerder. See Prussia, East.	and an By only t
Mecklenburg	Hamburg, c.g.
Oldenburg:	
All of the State except the ex-	
claves Landesteil Birkenfeld and	
Landesteil Lübeck	Bromen Galagna [Wäln]
Birkenfeld (landesteil) Lübeck (landesteil)	Hamburg ca
Ostpreussen. Sce Prussia, East.	Hamburg, c.y.
Pfalz [Palatinate]. See under Bavarla.	
Pomerania [Pommern] (Prussian prov.)	Berlin, c.g.
Posen-West Prussia, Border Province	
[Grenzmark Posen - Westpreussen]	
(Prussian prov.)	Berlin, c.g.
Prussia. See names of constituent	
provinces. Prussia, East [Ostpreussen] (Prussian	
prov.), including the Regierungsbe-	
zlrk Westpreussen [Marienwerder,	
etc.]	Berlin, c.g.
Prussia, West. See under Posen-West	
Prussia; and also Prussia, East.	
Rhine Province [Rheinprovinz] (Prus- sian prov.):	
All of the Province except that part	
included in Saar Basin Territory, q. v.	Cologne [Köln]
Saar Basin Territory, comprising parts	
of the Bavarian Palatinate and of the	
Rhine Province, subject to eventual	
plebiscites	Strasbourg, France
Saxony (Freistaat Sachsen):	
All of the State of Saxony except the Kreishauptmannschaft of Leipzig The Kreishauptmannschaft of Leip-	Dresden
The Krelshauptmannschaft of Leip-	Leinzig
zig. Saxony [Provinz Sachsen] (Prussian	Por here
prov.)	
Schaumburg-Lippe	
Schleswig-Holstein (Prussian prov.)	Hamburg, c.g.
Sllesla, Lower [Niederschlesien] (Prus-	
sian prov.)	Breslau

ADMINISTRATIVE DIVISION

CONSULAR DISTRICT

GERMANY-Continued

State	107	Pruseian	prorince)
Dearc	101	1 1 4 3 3 1 4 11	procence)

Silesla, Upper [Oberschleslen](Prussian	
prov.)	Breslau
Thuringla [Thüringen]	Leipzig
Westphalia [Westfalen] (Prussian	
prov.)	Cologne [Köln]
Westpreussen. See under Posen-West	
Prussia; and also Prussia, East.	
Württemberg	Stuttgart

GREAT BRITAIN

(England, Scotland, and Wales)

County	
Aberdeen (Scotland)	Dundee, Scotland
Anglesey (Wales)	Liverpool, England
Angus [Forfar] (Scotland)	Dundse, Scotland
Argyll (Scotland)	Glasgow, Scotland
Ayr (Scotland)	Glasgow, Scotland
Banff (Scotland)	
Bedfordshire (England)	London, England, cg.
Berkshire (England):	
That portion lying to the east of a	
line drawn through Reading (in- cluded) southeastwardly to the Sur-	
rey-Hampshire boundary	London, England, c.g
That portion of the county lying to	,,,,,
the north and west of a line drawn	
northeastwardly from Marlborough (in Wiltshire) through Didcot (ex- cluded) to the Berkshire-Oxfordshire	
cluded) to the Berkshire-Oxfordshire	
boundary	Bristol, England
That portion of the county not in- cluded in the London and Bristol con-	
sular districts	Southampton, England
Berwick (Scotland)	
Brecknock (Wales)	
Buckinghamshire (England)	
Bute (Scotland)	
Caithness (Scotland)	
Cambridgeshire, including the Isle of	
Ely (England)	
Cardiganshire (Wales)	
Carmarthenshire (Wales)	
Carnarvonshire (Wales)	
Channel Islands, comprising Alderney,	
Guernsey, Jersey, Sark, etc	
Cheshire (England):	
That portion of the county lying to	
the west and south of a line drawn	
northwestwardly from Harecastle, on the Stafford-Cheshire boundary, to	
Middlewich (included) and from	
Middlewich (included) and from thence to Warrington in Lancashire	Liverpool, England
All of the county not included in the Liverpool district	Manchester, England
Clackmannan (Scotland)	Edinburgh, Scotland
Cornwall, including the Scilly Isles	Landargin, Storiand
(England)	Plymouth, England
Cumberland (England):	
All of that portion of the county	
lying to the north of a line drawn from	
a point common to the boundaries of	
Cumberland, Westmorland, and Lan- cashire, westwardly to St. Bees Head.	Newcastle - on - Type.
	England
That portion not included in the Newcastle-on-Type consular district.	Livernool England
Denbighshire (Wales)	
Louiseburg (maids)	

ADMINISTRATIVE DIVISION

GREAT BRITAIN-Continued

Contu Derbyshire (Figland)...... Sheffield, England Dumharton (Scotland)...... Glasgow, Scotland Dumfries (Scotland)..... Edinburgh, Scotland Durham (England) Newcastle-on-Tyne, England East Lothian [Haddington] (Scotland). Edinburgh, Scotland Elv. Isle of. See Cambridgeshire. Esser (England)..... London, England, c.g. Fife (Scotland): That portion of the county lying to the north and east of a line connecting Newburgh on the Tay, Collessie, Cupar, Ceres, and Lower Largo on the Firth of Forth via the main road, these and all other towns on the main road road being included in the Dundee consular district...... Dundee, Scotland All of the county of Fife not included in the Dundee consular dis-trict______ Edinburgh, Scotland Flintshire (Wales)..... Liverpool, England Forfar. See Angus. Glamorganshire (Wales) Cardiff, Wales Gloucestershire (England) Bristol, England Hampshire, Including the Isle of Wight Herefordshire (England) Cardiff, Wales Hertfordshire (England) London, England, c.g. Huntingdonshire (England)..... London, England, c.g Inverness (Scotland): That portion of the county lying north of a line from Rannock following the railroad via Tullock and Spean the railroad via 'Tullock and Spean Bridge to Gairlochy Inn (all excluded) on the Caledonian Canal, thence northeast to the outlet of Loch Arkaig into Loch Lochy, thence westward by the River Dessary and Loch Nevis to the sea, and including all of the Hebrides or Westward Islands (com-prising parts of the counties of In-verness, and Ross and Cromarty).... Dundee, Scotland All of the county not included in the Kent (England)..... London, England, c. g. Kincardine (Scotland)..... Dundee, Scotland Kinross (Scotland) Edinburgh, Scotland Kirkeudbright (Scotland)..... Glasgow, Scotland Lanark (Scotland) Glasgow, Scotland Lancashire (England): That part of Lancashire lying to east of a line drawn from the point where the boundary of Westmorland and Lancashire meets the sea, southwardly through Lancester (included), Preston (included), and Wigan (in-cluded), to Warrington (excluded)._ Manchester, England All of the county not included in the Manchester consular district...... Liverpool, England Leicestershire (England)..... Birmingham, England Lincolnshire (England):

ADMINISTRATIVE DIVISION

CONSULAR DISTRICT

GREAT BRITAIN-Continued

County	
--------	--

Lincolnshire (England)-Continued. The Parts of Kesteven; the Parts of Holland; that portion of the Parts of Lindsey not included in the Hull consular district.	Sheffield, England
London (England)	London, England, c.g
Man, Isle of	Liverpool, England
Merionethshire (Wales)	Liverpool, England
Middlesex (England)	
Midlothian [Edinburgh] (Scotland)	
Monmouthshire (England)	
Montgomeryshire (Wales)	
Moray [Elgin] (Scotland)	
Nairn (Scotland)	
Norfolk (England)	
Northamptonshire, including the Soke	
of Peterborough (England)	
Northumberland (England)	
NT-441-1-1-1-1-1	England
Nottinghamshire (England)	
Orkney (Scotland)	
Oxfordshire (England)	
Peebles (Scotland)	
Pembrokeshire (Wales) Perth (Scotland)	
Peterborough, Soke of. See Northamp-	Dundee, beomand
tonshire.	
Radnorshire (Wales)	Cardiff, Wales
Renfrew (Scotland)	
Ross and Cromarty (Scotland)	Dundee, Scotland
Roxburgh (Scotland)	
Rutlandshiro (England)	Birmingnam, Ebgiard
Scilly Isles. See Cornwall. Selkirk (Scotland)	Edinburgh Scotland
Shetland (Scotland)	
Shropshire (England):	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
That portion of the county lying south of a line drawn from the point where the River Severn cuts the western boundary of Shropshire northeastwardly to Market Drayton (orthudat)	
(excluded)	Birmingham, England
All of the county not included in the Birmingham consular district	Liverpool, England
Somersetshire (England)	Bristol, England
Staffordshire (England)	Birmingham, England
Stirling (Scotland)	Glasgow, Scotland
Suffolk (England):	
Suffolk, East	London, England, c.g.
Suffolk, West Surrey (England)	London England, c.g.
Sussex (England):	
Sussex, East	London, England, c.g.
Sussex, West:	
All of that portion of the county lying east of a line drawn from the Surrey-Hampshire boundary south-	
Surrey-Hampshire boundary south-	
eastwardly to Littlenampton (in-	Lunden England
cluded)	London, England, c.g.
the London consular district	Southampton, England
Sutherland (Scotland)	Dundee, Scotland
Warwickshirs (England)	Blrmingham, England

80

ADMINISTRATIVE DIVISION

GREAT BRITAIN-Continued

CONSULAR DISTRICT

ADMINISTRATIVE DIVISION

GREECE-Continued

		divided Continu	IUG
County		Province [Nomos]	
Westlothian [Linlithgow] (Scotland) Edl	Inhursh Sectland	Argolis-Corinthia [Argolidos kal Ko-	
Westmorland (England)		rinthías]	
	Ingland	Arta [Artēs]	
Wight, Isle of (Hampshire, England) Sout		Attica-Boeotia [Attikēs kal Boiotías]	
Wigtown (Scotland)		Candia [Erakleíou], in Crete	
Wiltsbire (England).	isson, beomand	Canea [Khaníon], in Crete	
That portion lying to the south of a	-	Cephalonia [Kephallēnías]	
line drawn from a point common to the boundaries of Wiltshire, Dorset-		Chios [Khíou]	
the boundaries of Wiltshire, Dorset-		Coríu [Kerkýras]	
shire, and Somersetshire, northeast- wardly to Marlborough (included)		Cyclades [Kykládon]	
and thence to Didcot in Berkshire Sout	thampton,England	Drama [Drámas]	Salonika
All of the county not included in the		Elis [Elidos]	Patras
Southampton consular district Bris		Erakleíou. See Candia.	
Worcestershire (England)Birr	mingham, England	Euboea [Evvoías]	Athens, c.g.
Yorkshire (England):		Evros [Evrou]	Salonika
York (city and county borough) Brad		Florina [Phlorínēs]	Salonika
East Riding of Yorkshire	n, England	Heraclion. See Candia.	
-		Ioannínon. See Yannina.	
That portion of the administrative county lying east of a line drawn		Kavalla [Kavállas]	Salonika
county lying east of a line drawn from York (excluded) northwest- wardly to Richmond (excluded),		Kephallēnías. See Cephalonia.	
and thence due north to the Vork		Kerkýras, See Corfu.	0.1
and thence due north to the York- shire boundary—except the city (county borough) of Middlesbrough		Khalkidike [Khalkidikês] Khaníon. See Canea.	Salonika
(county borough) of Middlesbrough	11 Thursday of	Khiou. See Chios.	
at the north of the River Tees Hul	li, England	Kozani [Kozáněs]	Colonilro
The city (county borough) of Middlesbrough	wcastie-on-Type.	Kyklådon. See Cyclades.	Salonika
	ngland	Laconia [Lakonías]	Athone as
All of the administrative county		Larissa [Larísēs]	Athens ca
not included in the Hull and New- castle-on-Tyne consular districts Brad	dford England	Lasithion [Lasēthíou], in Crete	
West Riding of Yorkshire:	diord, England	Lesbos [Lésvou]	
That portion of the administra-		Messina [Messenías]	
tive county lying east of a line drawn		Mytilini Island. See Lesbos.	
from a point common to the boun- daries of Lincolnshire, Yorkshire,		Pellis [Péllēs]	Salonika
and Nottinghamshire, northwardly		Phlorínēs. See Florina.	
to Thorne (included) and thence to Goole (included) to the county boun		Phthiotis-Phokis [Phthiótidos kal Pho-	
dary; and the city of Selby (adjacent		kídos]:	
to the East Riding boundary) Hull	l, England	The eparkhia [district] of Doris	Patras
That part of the administrative county lying south and west of a line		All of the Province except the epar-	Athens as
drawn from a point common to the boundaries of Cheshire, Derbyshire,		khia of Doris	
and Yorkshire, eastwardly through		Preveza [Prevézěs]	
Penistone (included) and Barnsley		Retimo [Rethýmnēs], in Crete	
and Yorkshire, eastwardly through Penistone (included) and Barnsley (included) to Thorne (excluded); and thence southwardly to the Lin-		Rodopi [Rodópês] Salonika [Thessaloníkēs]	
comsnire-Nottingnamsnire boun-		Sanonika [Thessanonikes]	
dary Sheft	field, England	Serres [Serron]	
That portion of the administrative county lying west of a line drawn		Thessaloníkês. See Salonika.	Car June 6
county lying west of a line drawn from Colne (in Lancashire) north-		Trikkala [Trikkálon]	Athens, c.a.
wardly to Hawes (North Riding of Yorkshire) Man	nabostor England	Yannina [Ioannínon]	
All of the administrative county	denester, England	Zante [Zakýnthou]	
not included in the Hull, Sheffield.	Man A. De et al.		
and Manchester consular districts. Brad	diord, England	HAITI	_
GREECE		All of the Republic of Haiti	Port-au-Prince
Province [Nomos]		HONDURAS	
Achaia [Akhaias] Patr	F0.5		
Aetolia-Acarnania [Aitolias kaì Akar-	145	Province (or territory)	
netona-Atamania [Attonas kai Akar- nanías]:		Atiantida:	
The eparkhia [district] of Evrytanias_ Athe	ATS C.C.	All of Atlantida east of the Río Colo-	Caiba
All of the Province except the epar-	C110, C.Y.	rado	Cerba
khia of Evrytanias Patr	ras	rado	Teia, v.c.
Arcadia [Arkadias] Athe		Choluteca	

ADMINISTRATIVE DIVISION CONSULAR DISTRICT

HONDURAS-Continued

Province (or territory)

Colón	Ceiba
Comayagua:	
Southern Comayagua, including the city of Comayagua	Tegucigalpa
Northern Comayagua	Tela, v.c.
Copán	Puerto Cortes
Cortes	Puerto Cortes
Ei Paraiso	Tegucigalpa
Gracias	Puerto Cortes
Intibuca	Tegucigalpa
Islas de la Bahia [Bay Islands]	Ceiba
La Mosquitia (ter.)	Ceiba
La Paz	Tegucigalpa
Ocotepeque	Puerto Cortes
Olancho	Tegucigalpa
Santa Barbara	Puerto Cortes
Tegucigalpa	Tegucigalpa
Valle	Tegucigalpa
Yoro:	
Eastern Yoro, including the city of	Calles
Yoro	
Western Yoro	Tela, v.c.

HUNGARY

All of Hungary	Buc	lapest, (c.g.
----------------	-----	-----------	------

INDIA

British province, or Indian state or agenc	v
Agra, See United Provinces.	
Ajmer-Merwara (prov.)	Karachi
Andaman and Nicobar Islands (prov.).	Rangoon
Assam (prov. and Indian state)	
Baluchistan (dist. and Indian states)	
Baroda (Indian state)	
Bengal (presidency and Indian states)	
Bhutan (independent border state)	
Bihar and Orissa (prov. and Indian	
states), including Chota Nagpur	Calcutta, c.a.
Bombay (presidency and Indian states):	
All of the Bombay Presidency and	
Indian states except the Sind (but	
including the Rann of Cutch)-ex-	
cept also the Aden Protectorate (in Arabia)	Bombay
Sind	
Burma (prov. and Indian states)	Rangoon
Central India Agency	Bombay
Central Provinces and Berar (prov. and	10 olini olag
Indian states)	Bombay
Cochin (Madras Indian state)	Madras
Coorg (prov.)	Madras
Delhi (prov.)	Calcutta, c.g.
Gwalior (Indian state)	
Hyderabad (Indian state)	Madras
Kashmir (Indian state)	Karachi
Madras (presidency and Indian states).	
Mysore (Indian state)	Madras
Nepal (independent border kingdom).	Calcutta, c.g.
North-West Frontier (prov. and Indian	
states)	Karachi
Oudh. See United Provinces.	

ADMINISTRATIVE DIVISION CONSULAR DISTRICT

INDIA-Continued

British province, or Indian state or agency	v
Punjab (prov. and Indian states):	
The district of Simla. All of the Punjab except the dis-	Calcutta, c.g
trict of Simla	Karachi
Rajputana (agency)	Karachi
Sikkim (state)	Calcutta, c.g.
Travancore (Madras Indian state)	Madras
United Provinces of Agra and Oudh	
(prov. and Indian states)	Calcutta, c.g.

IRAQ (MESOPOTAMIA)

Ali of Iraq..... Baghdad, c.g.

IRELAND, NORTHERN

County

All of Northern Ireland, comprising the	
six Ulster counties of Antrim, Armagh,	
Down, Fermanagh, Londonderry,	
and Tyrone	Belfast

IRISH FREE STATE

County (province in parentheses)

Carlow (Leinster)	Dublin, c.g.
Cavan (Ulster)	Dublin, c.g.
Clare (Munster)	Cork
Cork (Munster)	Cork
Donegal (Ulster)	Dublin, c.g.
Dublin (Leinster)	Dublin, c.g.
Galway (Connaught)	Dublin, c.g.
Kerry (Munster)	Cork
Kildare (Leinster)	Dublin, c.g.
Kilkenny (Leinster)	Dublin, c.g.
Leitrim (Connaught)	Dublin, c.g.
Leix [Queen's] (Leinster)	Dublin, c.g.
Limerick (Munster)	Cork
Longford (Leinster)	Dubiin, c.g.
Louth (Leinster)	Dublin, c.g.
Mayo (Connaught)	Dublin, c.g.
Meath (Leinster)	Dublin, c.g.
Monaghan (Ulster)	Dublin, c.g.
Offaly [King's] (Leinster)	Dublin, c.g.
Roscommon (Connaught)	Dublin, c.g.
Sligo (Connaught)	Dublin, c.g.
Tipperary (Munster)	Cork
Waterford (Munster)	Cork
Westmeath (Leinster)	Dublin, c.g.
Wexford (Leinster)	Dublin, c.g.
Wicklow (Leinster)	
	ar anothing vigi

ITALIAN ISLANDS OF THE AEGEAN

All of the Italian Islands of the Aegean	
(Isole Italiane dell'Egeo)-the Dode-	
canese Islands and the island of Castel-	
rosso (Castellorizzo)	Izmir, Turkey

ITALY

Province (compartimento in parentheses)	
Agrigento [Girgenti] (Sicilia)	Palermo
Allesandria (Piemonte)	Turin
Ancona (Marche)	Rome

ITALY-Continued

Province (compartimento in parentheses)	
Aosta (Piemonte)	Turin
Aquila (Abruzzi)	Rome
Arezzo (Toscana)	Florence
Ascoli Piceno (Marche)	Rome
Avellino (Campania)	Naples, c.g.
Bari (Puglie)	Naples, c.g.
Belluno (Veneto)	Venice
Benevento (Campania)	Naples, c.g.
Bergamo (Lombardia)	Milau
Bologna (Emilia)	Florence
Bolzano (Venezia Tridentlua)	Venice
Brescia (Lombardia) Brindisi (Puglie)	Milan Naples, c.g.
Cagliari (Sardegna)	Rome
Caltanissetta (Sicilla)	Palermo
Campobasso (Abruzzi)	Rome
Carnaro. See Fiume.	
Castroglovanni. See Enna.	
Catania (Sicilia)	Palermo
Catanzaro (Calabria)	Naples, c.g.
Chieti (Abruzzi)	Rome
Como (Lombardia)	Milan
Cosenza (Calabria)	Naples, c.g
Cremona (Lombardia)	Milan
Cuneo (Piemonte)	Turin
Enna [Castrogiovannl] (Sicilia)	Palermo
Ferrara (Emilia)	Florence
Firenze [Florence] (Toscana) Fiume [Carnaro] (Venezia Glulia)	Florence Trieste
Foggia (Puglie)	Naples, c.g.
Forll (Emilia)	Florence
Friuli. See Udine.	1 IOIOICO
Frosinone (Lazio)	Rome
Genova (Liguria)	Genoa, c.g.
Girgenti. See Agrigento.	
Gorizia (Venezia Glulia)	Trieste
Grosseto (Toscana)	Leghorn
Imperia (Liguria)	Genoa, c.g.
Ionio. See Taranto.	
Istria. See Pola.	
Lecce (Puglie)	Naples, c.g.
Livorno [Leghorn] (Toscana)	Leghoru
Lucca (Toscana)	Leghorn
Macerata (Marche)	Rome Milan
Mantova (Lombardia) Massa (Toscana)	Leghorn
Matara (Basilicata)	Naples, c.g.
Messina (Sicilia)	Palermo
Milano (Lombardia)	Milan
Modena (Emilia)	Florence
Napoli (Campania)	Naples, c.g.
Novara (Plemonte)	Turin
Nuoro (Sardegna)	Rome
Padova (Veneto)	Venice
Palermo (Sicilia)	Palermo
Parma (Emilia)	Milan
Pavia (Lombardia)	Milan
Perugia (Umbria)	Rome
Pesaro (Marche)	Rome
Pescara (Abruzzi)	Rome
Piacenza (Emilia)	Milan

ADMINISTRATIVE DIVISION CONSULAR DISTRICT ADMINISTRATIVE DIVISION CONSULAR DISTRICT

ITALY-Continued

Province (compartimento in parentheses)

Province (compartimento in parentheses)	
Pisa (Toscana)	Leghorn
Pistoia (Toscana)	Florence
Pola [Istria] (Venezia Giulia)	Trieste
Potenza (Basilicata)	Naples, c.g.
Ragusa (Sicilia)	Palermo
Ravenna (Emilia)	Florence
Reggio Calabria (Calabria)	Naples, c.g.
Reggio Emilia (Emilia)	Fiorence
Rieti (Lazlo)	Rome
Roma (Lazio)	Rome
Rovigo (Vencto)	Venice
Salerno (Campania)	Naples, c.g.
Sassarl (Sardegna)	Rome
Savona (Liguria)	Genos, c.g.
Siena (Toscana)	Leghorn
Siracusa (Sicilia)	Palermo
Sondrio (Lombardia)	Milan
Spezia (Liguria)	Genoa, c.g.
Taranto [Ionio] (Puglie)	Naples, c.g.
Teramo (Abruzzi)	Rome
Terni (Umbria)	Rome
Torino [Turin] (Piemonte)	Turin
Trapani (Sicilla)	Palermo
Trento (Venezia Tridentina)	Venice
Treviso (Veneto)	Venice
Trieste (Venezia Giulia)	Trieste
Udine [Friuli] (Veneto)	Trieste
Varese (Lombardia)	Milan
Venezia (Veneto)	Venice
Vercelli (Piemonte)	Turin
Verona (Venoto)	Venice
Vicenza (Veneto)	Venice
Viterbo (Lazlo)	Rome
Zara (Venezia Giulia)	Trieste

JAMAICA

JAPANESE EMPIRE

Japan

Prefecture (ken or fu)

Aichi	Nagoya
Akita	Tokyo, c.g.
Aomor1	Tokyo, c.g.
Chiba	Tokyo, c.g.
Ebime	Kobe
Fukui	Nagoya
Fukuoka	Nagasaki
Fukushima	Tokyo, c.g.
Gifu	Nagoya
Gumma	Tokyo, c.g.
Hirosbima	Kobe
Hokkaido [Yezo]	Tokyo. c.g.
Нуодо	Kobe
Ibaraki	Tokyo, c.g.
Ishikawa	Nagoya
Iwate	Tokyo, c.g
Kagawa	Kobe
1.ugu., 0	22010

ADMINIS RATIVE DIVISION

JAPANESE EMPIRE-Continued

Japan-Continued

Prefecture (ken or fu)	
Kagoshima	Nagasaki
Kanagawa	Yokohama
Kochi	Kobe
Kumamoto	Nagasaki
Kurile Islands [Chishima]	Tokyo, c.g.
Kyoto (fu)	Kobe
Miyagi	Tokyo, c.g.
Miyazaki	Nagasaki
Miye	Nagoya
Nagano:	
The gun (county) of Kitasaku, the principal cities of which are Karui-	
sawa, Iwamurata, and Komoro	Tokyo, c.g.
All of the ken not included in the	
Tokyo consular district	Nagoya
Nagasaki	Nagasaki
Nara	Kobe
Niigata	Tokyo, c.g
Oita	Nagasaki
Okayama	Kobe
Okinawa, including Ryukyu Islands	Nagasaki
Osaka (fu)	Kobe
Saga	Nagasaki
Saitama	Tokyo, c.g.
Shiga	Nagoya
Shimane	Kobe
Shizuoka	Yokohama
Tochigi	Tokyo, c.g.
Tokushima	Kobs
Tokyo (fu)	Tokyo, c.g.
Tottori	Kobe
Toyama	Nagoya
Wakayama	Kobe
Yamagata	Toky o , c.g.
Yamaguchi	Nagasaki
Yamanashi	Tokyo, c.g.
Yezo. See Hokkaido.	

Japanese Possessions and Mandated Territories

Chosen [Korea] Karafuto	
Pacific islands under Japanese mandate	
(includes the following groups: La-	
drone or Marianne, Caroline, and	
Marshall Islands)	Tokyo, c.g.
Pescadores Islands [Bokoto]	Taihoku
Taiwan [Formosa]	Taihoku

KOREA

(See Chosen under Japanese Possessions)

LATVIA

All of Latvia...... Riga

LIBERIA

All of Liberia....... Monrovia, c.g.

LITHUANIA

All of Lithuania...... Kaunas

ADMINISTRATIVE DIVISION

LUXEMBURG

CONSULAR DISTRUT

The Grand Duchy of Luxemburg..... Luxemburg

MADEIRA

All of Madeira..... Funcha:

MALAY STATES

(See British Malaya)

MESOPOTAMIA

(See Iraq)

MEXICO

State (or territory)

Aguascalientes	San Luis Potosí, San Luis Potosí
Baja California [Lower California] (ter.): Territorio Norte (north of 28° N. lat.):	
That part lying to the south and west of a line drawn from the inter- national boundary at Tijuana (in- cluded) to a point at 32° north and 116° west, and thence to a point on the Gulf of California in latitude 30° north	Ensenada, Baia Cali-
All of the Territorio Norte not in- cluded in the Ensenada consular	fornia
district	fornia
Territorio Sur (south of 28° N. lat.) Campeche Chiapas Chihuabua:	Mérida, Yucatán
That part of the State lying to the north of a line drawn from the Sonora boundary eastwardly through Madera to Sauz (both towns excluded); thence	
northeastwardly through, and includ- ing, San Antonio on the Río Grande.	Ciudad Juárez, Chi- huahua
All of the State not included in the Cludad Juárez consular district	Chihuahua, Chihua- hua
Coshulla:	
That part of the State lying north and east of a line drawn on the parallel of 28° north latitude from the Chihua- hua boundary due east to La Fé (ex- cluded); thence southeastwardly to Cuatro Cienegas (Included); thence directly east through a point just south of Monclova to the Nuevo León boundary	
That part of the State to the east and south of a line drawn from a point on the Zacateeas boundary directly north of Mazapil northwestwardly to Parnas (excluded); thence north- wardly to Cuatro Clenegas (excluded); thence eastwardly, through a point just south of Monclova, to the Nuevo	
All of the State not included in	Saltillo, Coabuila
either the Piedras Negras or the Sal- tillo consular district	Torreón, Coahuila
Colima Distrito Federal	

ADMINISTRATIVE DIVISION

CONSULAB DISTRICT

MEXICO-Continued

		Clade (an Ameridana)	
State (or territory)		State (or territory)	
Durango:		Sinaloa	Maratlan, Sinaloa
That part of the State lying west of a line drawn from the intersection of the meridian of 103° 30' west longitude with the Durango-Zacatecas bound- ary, northwastwardly to Descubri- dora (excluded), and thence due north to the Chihuabua boundary		Sonora: That part of the State lying south of 29° north latitude That part of the State lying west of 113° west longitude	
All of the State not included in the Durango consular district Guanajuato	Torreón, Coahuila San Luis Potosi, San Luis Potosi	That part of the State lying north of 29° north latitude and east of 110° west longitude, but excepting the territory immediately tributary to the Cananea-Naco Railway	Agua Prieta, Sonora
Guerrero Hidalgo Jalisco: Ail of the State lying south of 22°	México, D.F., c.g.	That part of the State lying east of 113° west longitude, north of 29° north latitude, and west of 110° west longi- tude and including the territory im- mediately tributary to the Cananea-	
north latitude	Guadalajara, Jalisco	Naco Railway	Nogales, Sonora
All of the State lying north of 22° north latitude and west of the merid- ian of 103° 30' west iongitude	Duranga Duranga	Tabasco	Veracruz, Veracruz
All of the State lying north of 22° northiatitude and east of the meridian of 103° 30' longitude		That part of the State north of a line drawn due east and west just to the north of Mier on the Rio Grande.	Nuevo Laredo, Ta- maulipas
Lower California. See Baja California. México	México, D.F., c.g.	That part of the State lying north of 24° north latitude which is not in- cluded in the Nuevo Laredo consular	
Michoacán		district	Matamoros, Tamauli
Morelos Nayarit		That part of the State lying south of	pas
Nuevo León:	Mazatian, Sinaloa	24° north latitude	Tampico, Tamaulipas
That part of the State south of a line		Tlaxcala	México, D.F., c.g.
drawn through Golondrinas (included) eastwardly through Parás (excluded), except the small portion northwest of a line connecting the two southeastern points of the State of Coahuila		Veracruz: That part of the State lying north of the Rio Cazones	
That part of the State north of a	Leon	That part of the State lying south of the Rio Cazones	Veracruz, Veracruz
straight line drawn through Golon- drinas (excluded) and Parás (in-		Yucatán	
cluded)	maulipas (Zacatecas:	
That part of the State northwest of a line connecting the two southeastern points of the State of Coahuila		That part of the State lying west of 103° 30' west longitude	Durango, Durango
Oaxaca:	Salvino, Councilia	of 22° north latitude	Guadalajara, Jalisco
That part of the State lying west and north of a line drawn from the		That part of the State lying east of a line drawn due north and south through Mazapil (included)	Saltillo, Coahuila
point where the Rio Trinidad first touches the Oaraca-Verseruz bound- ary, southwestwardly to Yautepeo (excluded), and thence due west to the Guerrero boundary (Ejutla ex-		That part of the State lying east of 103° 30' west longitude, south of the Tropic of Cancer, and north of 22° north latitude	
ciuded); the town of Tuxtepec near the Veracruz boundary also being ex-		That part of the State lying east of 103° 30' west longitude, north of the	Luis Potosí
cluded That part of the State not included in the México, D.F., consular district_		Tropic of Cancer, and west of a line due north and south through Mazapil	
Puebla	· · ·	(excluded)	Torreón, Coahuila
Querétaro		MONACO	
San Luis Potosi:		The Principality of Monaco	Nice, France
That part of the State lying west of a line drawn due north and south through, but excluding, the town of Tamazopo (approximately in longi- tude 99° 25' west of Greenwich)		MOROCCO	
That part of the State not included	Luis Potosi	The zone of the Freuch protectorate The international zone of Tangier, and the Spanish protected territory in	Casamanca
in the San Luis Potosl consular dis- trict	Tampico, Tamaulipas		Tangier, c.g.

NETHERLAND INDIA

Gorernment, province, residency, etc. Atjeh (govt.), in Sumatra Bali Bangka and dependencies (res.) Benkoelen (res.), in Sumatra Billiton Billiton Borneo, Netherland: Southern and Eastern Districts (res.) Western District (res.) Celebes and dependencies (govt.) Djambi (res.), in Sumatra Flores Java.	Batavia, Java, <i>c.g.</i> Surabaya, Java Batavia, Java, <i>c.g.</i>
Province of East Java (Residencies of Besoeki, Bodjonegoro, Kediri, Madioen, Madoara (island), Malang, Probolinggo, and Soerabaja [Sura- baya]). Province of Middle Java: Residencies of Banjoemas, Kedoe,	Surabaya Batavia, <i>c.q.</i>
and Pekalongan. Residencies of Djapara-Rembang and Semarang. Province of West Java (Residencies of Bantam, Batavia, Buitenzorg,	Surabaya
Cheribon, and Priangan) Soerakarta (govt.) Jogjakarta (govt.) Lampongs, The (res.), in Sumatra	Batavia, c.g. Surabaya Surabaya Batavia, Java, c.g.
Lombok Manado (res.), in Celebes Moluccas, The New Guinea, Netherland	Surabaya, Java Surabaya, Java Surabaya, Java Surabaya, Java
Palembang (res.), in Sumatra Riouw and dependencies Soemba Soembawa	Batavia, Java, c.g. Batavia, Java, c.g. Surabaya, Java Surabaya, Java
Sumatra East Coast (govt.) Sumatra's Westkust (res.) Tapanoeli (res.), in Sumatra Timor and dependencies (res.) All other Netherland islands east of	Medan, Sumatra Batavia, Java, <i>c.g.</i> Medan, Sumatra Surabaya, Java
Java and Borneo	Surabaya, Java

NETHERLANDS

Province

Drenthe	Amsterdam, c.g.
Friesland	Amsterdam, c.g.
Gelderland	Amsterdam, c.g.
Groningen	Amsterdam, c.a.
Limburg	
Noord-Brabant [North Brabant]	
Noord-Holland [North Holland]	
Overijssel	
U trech t	
Zeeland	
Zuid-Holland [South Holland]	Rotterdam

NEW ZEALAND

Provincial district

Auckland	Auckland
Canterbury	WellIngton, c.g.
Hawke's Bay	Wellington, c.g

NEW ZEALAND-Continued

Provincial district

Marlborough	Wellington, c.g.
Nelson	Wellington, c.g.
Otago, including Stewart Island	Wellington, c.g.
Taranakl	Wellington, c.g.
Wellington	Wellington, c.g.
Westland	Wellington, c.g.

NICARAGUA

Departamento (or comarca)

Bluefields	Puerto Cabezas
Cabo Gracias & Dios (com.)	Puerto Cabezas
Carazo	Managua
Chinandega	
Chontales:	
All of the Department lying west	
of a line drawn from a point on the	
Río Segovia in longitude 85° 30' to a point on the Río San Juan in longitude	
point on the Río San Juan in longitude	Monoque
84° 30' All of the Department not included	Managua
in the Managua consular district	Puerto Cabezas
-	
Estell	
Granada	Managua
Jinotega:	
All of the Department lying west of	
a line drawn from a point on the Rio Segovia in longitude 85° 30' to a point.	
Segovia in longitude 85° 30' to a point on the Río San Juan in longitude	
84° 30′	Managua
All of the Department not included	
in the Managua consular district	Puerto Cabezas
León	Managua
Managua	
Masaya	
Matagalpa	
Nueva Segovia	Managua
Prinzapolka:	
All of the Department lying west of	
a line drawn from a point on the Rfo	
Segovia in longitude 85° 30' to a point on the Rio San Juan in longitude	
84° 30′	Managua
All of the Department not included	
in the Managua consular district	Puerto Cabezas
Rio Grande:	
All of the Department lying west of a line drawn from a point on the Río	
Secovia in longitude 85° 30' to a point	
Segovia in longitude 85° 30' to a point on the Rio San Juan in longitude 84° 30'	
84° 30′	Managua
All of the Department not included in the Managua consular district	Puerto Cabezas
-	
Rivas San Juan del Norte (com.)	Managua Ruerto Cobezeo
Siquia	ruerto Cabezas

NORTHERN IRELAND

(See Ireland, Northern)

NORWAY

Province [Fylke]

Akershus	Oslo,	c.g.
Aust-Agder	Oslo,	c.g.

.

ADMINISTRATIVE DIVISION

CONSULAR DISTRICT

NORWAY-Continued

Province [Fulke]

Buskerud C)slo, c.g.
Finnmark C)slo, c.g.
Hedmark C)slo, c.g.
Hordaland	Bergen
Jan Mayen (island) C	Islo, c.g
Møre:	
That portion of the Province	
known as Sunninøre E	Bergen
That portion of the Province	
known as Nordmøre C	oslo, c.g.
NordlandC	slo, c.g.
Nord-Trøndelag C	oslo, c.g.
Opland C	slo, c.g.
ØstfoldC	oslo, c.g.
RogalandC	slo, c.g.
	Bergen
	slo, c.g.
Svalbard [Spitsbergen] O	slo, c.g.
	slo, c.g.
	slo, c.g.
	slo, c.g.
Troms 0	slo, c.g.

PALESTINE

All of Palestine_____ Jerusalem, c.g.

PARAGUAY

All	ot	[Paraguay		Asunción
-----	----	------------	--	----------

PERSIA

Ali	l of	Pers	a	Teheran
-----	------	------	---	---------

POLAND

PORTUGAL

Administrative districts

A veiro	Oporto
Beja	Lisbon, c.g.
Braga	Oporto
Bragança	Oporto
Castelo Branco	Lisbon, c.g.
Coimbra	Oporto
Évora	Lisbon, c.g.
Faro (Algarve)	Lisbon, c.g.
Guarda	Oporto
Leiria	Lisbon, c.g.
Lisboa (Lisbon)	Lisbon, c.g.
Portalegre	Lisbon, c.g.
Porto	Oporto
Santarém	Lisbon, c.g.
Setubal	Lisbon, c.g.
Viana do Castelo	Oporto
Vila Real	Oporto
Vizeu	Oporto
	oporto

RUMANIA

All of Rumania_____ Bucharest RUSSIA (See Union of Soviet Socialist Republics)

ST. PAUL ISLAND

St. Paul Island (in the South Indian

Ocean) Paris , France, c.g.

ADMINISTRATIVE DIVISION

SALVADOR (See El Salvador)

SAN MARINO

The Republic of San Marino Florence, Italy

SCOTLAND

(See Great Britain)

SIAM

SOUTH AFRICA

(See Union of South Africa)

SPAIN Province Alava Bilbao Albacete Valencia Alicante Alicante Alicante Málaga Avila Madrid Baleares [Balearle Islands] Barcelona, c.g. Barcelona Barcelona, c.g. Burgos Bilbao Cáceres Seville Cáciz Seville Castellón Valencia Ciudad Real Madrid Coruña Vigo Cuenca Madrid Gerona Barcelona, c.g. Granada Málaga Guadalajara Madrid Guupázcoa Bilbao Huesca Barcelona, c.g. Jaén Málaga León Vigo Lérida Barcelona, c.g. Jaén Málaga Murcia Alicante Nadrid Madrid Málaga Málaga Murcia Alicante Navarra Bilbao Palencia Alicante Navarra<		(frica)
Alava Bilbao Albacete Valencia Albacete Valencia Alicante Alicante Almeria Málaga Avila Barcelona, c.g. Barcelona Barcelona, c.g. Burgos Seville Cáceres Seville Cádz Seville Cárdoba Seville Córdoba Seville Coruña Vigo Cuenca Málaga Guadalajara Málaga Guadalajara Málaga Guadalajara Málaga Guadalajara Málaga León Márdid Guadalajara Málaga Laén Barcelona, c.g. Jaén Málaga León <th>SPAIN</th> <th></th>	SPAIN	
Albacete Valencia Alicante Alicante Almeria Málaga Aruia Málaga Avila Madrid Badajoz Seville Baleares [Balearic Islands] Barcelona, c.g. Burgos Bilbao Cáceres Seville Cáceres Seville Cádiz Seville Cáderes Seville Cádda Seville Cádda Seville Códoba Seville Córdoba Seville Córdoba Seville Coruña Vigo Cuenca Madrid Gerona Barcelona, c.g. Granada Málaga Guadalajara Madrid Gulpázcoa Bilbao Hueiva Seville Huesea Barcelona, c.g. Jaén Málaga León Barcelona, c.g. Jaén Málaga León Vigo Madrid Málaga Marid Málaga <tr< td=""><td>Province</td><td></td></tr<>	Province	
Albacete Valencia Alicante Alicante Almeria Málaga Aruia Málaga Avila Madrid Badajoz Seville Baleares [Balearic Islands] Barcelona, c.g. Burgos Bilbao Cáceres Seville Cáceres Seville Cádiz Seville Cáderes Seville Cádda Seville Cádda Seville Códoba Seville Córdoba Seville Córdoba Seville Coruña Vigo Cuenca Madrid Gerona Barcelona, c.g. Granada Málaga Guadalajara Madrid Gulpázcoa Bilbao Hueiva Seville Huesea Barcelona, c.g. Jaén Málaga León Barcelona, c.g. Jaén Málaga León Vigo Madrid Málaga Marid Málaga <tr< td=""><td>Alava</td><td>Bilbao</td></tr<>	Alava	Bilbao
Alicante Alicante Alicante Málaga Avila. Madrid Badares [Balearic Islands] Barcelona, c.g. Barcelona Barcelona, c.g. Burgos. Bilbao Cáceres. Seville Cádz Seville Castellón Valencia Cludad Real Madrid Córdoba Seville Coruña. Vigo Cuenca Madrid Gerona. Barcelona, c.g. Granada Málaga Guadalara Madrid Guipázcoa. Bilbao Huelva. Seville Huesca. Barcelona, c.g. Jaén Málaga Las Palmas. See under Canary Islands. León Vigo Lugo. Vigo Madrid Málaga Malaga Málaga Murcía Alicante Navarra Bilbao Orense. Vigo Palencia Madrid Málaga Málaga Murcía Alicante		
Almeria. Málaga Avila. Madrid Baleares [Balearle Islands] Barcelona, c.g. Barcelona Barcelona, c.g. Burgos. Bilbao Cáceres. Seville Cádiz. Seville Cádiz. Seville Cádiz. Seville Cádiz. Seville Castellón Valencia Ciudad Real. Madrid Coruña Seville Coruña Seville Coruña Seville Coruña Seville Coruña Seville Cuenca Madrid Gerona. Barcelona, c.g. Granada. Málaga Guadalajara Madrid Gulpúzcoa Bilbao Hueixa Seville Huesca Barcelona, c.g. Jaén Málaga León Vigo Lérida Barcelona, c.g. Logono Bilbao Lugo Vigo Madrid Málaga Murcia Alican		
Avila		Málaga
Badajoz. Seville Baleares [Balearle Islands] Barcelona, c.g. Barcelona, c.g. Bilbao Cáceres. Seville Cádiz. Serville Cádiz. Serville Cádiz. Serville Cádiz. Serville Cádiz. Serville Cádiz. Serville Cárdoba Seville Coruña. Vigo Cuenca. Madrid Gerona. Barcelona, c.g. Granada. Málaga Guadalajara. Madrid Guadalajara. Madrid Guadalajara. Madrid Guadalajara. Madrid Huelva. Seville Huesca. Barcelona, c.g. Jaén. Málaga León. Vigo Lérida. Barcelona, c.g. Logroño. Bilbao Lugo. Vigo Madrid. Madrid Málaga. Alicante Navarra. Bilbao Orense. Vigo Vigo <td></td> <td></td>		
Baleares [Balearle Islands] Barcelona, c.g. Burgos Bilbao Cáceres Seville Cádíz Seville Castellón Valencia Cludad Real Madrid Córdoba Seville Coruña Vigo Cuenca Madrid Granada Málaga Guadalajara Madrid Guadalajara Madrid Guadalajara Madrid Guadalajara Madrid Guadalajara Madrid Guadalajara Madrid Huesca Seville León Vigo León Vigo León Vigo León Vigo Madrid Malaga Madrid Malaga Marid Malaga Marid Malaga León Vigo Madrid Madrid Málaga Madrid Málaga Malaga Murcia Alicante Navara Bilbao Orense </td <td></td> <td>Seville</td>		Seville
Barcelona. Barcelona, c.g. Burgos. Bilbao Cáceres. Seville Cádlz. Seville Castellón Valencia Cludad Real. Madrid Córdoba Seville Coruña Vigo Cuenca Madrid Gerona. Barcelona, c.g. Granada Málaga Guadalajara Madrid Gulpázcoa. Bilbao Huelva. Seville Huesca. Barcelona, c.g. Jaén Málaga León Vigo Lérida. Barcelona, c.g. Lugo. Vigo Lérida. Barcelona, c.g. Lugo. Vigo Madrid. Málaga Murcia. Alicante Navarra Bilbao Orense. Vigo Palencia. Vigo Palencia. Bilbao Palmas, Las. See Las Palmas under Canary Islands. Pontevedra. Pontevedra. Vigo Santander.		Barcelona, c.g.
Burgos. Bilbao Cáceres. Seville Cádiz. Seville Cádiz. Seville Castellón Valencia Ciudad Real. Madrid Córdoba Seville Coruña Vigo Cuenca Madrid Gerona. Barcelona, c.g. Granada. Málaga Guadalajara Madrid Guupúzcoa Bilbao Huesca. Seville Huesca. Seville León Vigo Lérida Barcelona, c.g. Logroño Bilbao Lugo Vigo Madrid Madrid Málaga Málaga Murcia Alicante Navarra Bilbao Orense. Vigo Palencia Bilbao Palmas, Las. See Las Palmas under Canary Islands. Pontevedra Pontevedra Vigo Salamanca Madrid Santander Bilbao Segovia Madrid <tr< td=""><td></td><td></td></tr<>		
Cádiz		
Castellón Valencia Cludad Real Madrid Córdoba Seville Coruña Vigo Cuenca Madrid Gerona. Barcelona, c.g. Granada Málaga Guadalajara Madrid Guadalajara Madrid Guadalajara Madrid Guadalajara Madrid Guadalajara Madrid Hueiva Seville Huesca Barcelona, c.g. Jaén Madrid Las Palmas. See under Canary Islands. León Lego Vigo Lérida Barcelona, e.g. Lugo Vigo Madrid Málaga Malaga Málaga Murcia Alicante Navarra Bilbao Orense Vigo Palencia Bilbao Palencia Bilbao Palencia Bilbao Palmas, Las. See Las Palmas under Canary Islands. Pontevedra Santander Seville Santander <td>Cáceres</td> <td>Seville</td>	Cáceres	Seville
Ciudad Real	Cádiz	Seville
Ciudad Real	Castellón	Valencia
CoruñaVigoCuencaMadridGerona,Barcelona, c.g.GranadaMálagaGuadalajaraMadridGulpúzcoaBilbaoHuelvaSevilleHuescaBarcelona, c.g.JaénMálagaLas Palmas. See under Canary Islands.LeónVigoLeídaBarcelona, c.g.JaénVigoMadridMadridMálagaMalagaLogroñoBilbaoLugoVigoMadridMadridMálagaMíalagaMurciaAlicanteNavarraBilbaoOrenseVigoPalenciaBilbaoPalenciaBilbaoPalamas, Las. See Las Palmas under Canary Islands.PontevedraVigoSalamancaMadridSantanderBilbaoSegoviaMadridSerillaSevilleSoriaMadridSartanderBilbaoSegoviaMadridSerillaSevilleSoriaBarcelona, c.gTeruelValencia		Madrid
Cuenca Madrld Gerona. Barcelona, c.g. Granada Málaga Guadalajara. Madrld Gulpázcoa. Bilbao Huelva. Seville Huesca. Barcelona, c.g. Jaén. Málaga Las Palmas. See under Canary Islands. León. León Vigo Lérida Barcelona, e.g. Lugo. Vigo Madrld Málaga Madrid Málaga Madrid Málaga Mucia. Míleante Navarra Bilbao Orense. Vigo Oviedo. Vigo Palencia. Bilbao Palmas, Las. See Las Palmas under Canary Islands. Pontevedra. Pontevedra. Vigo Salamanca. Madrid Santander. Bilbao Segovia. Madrid Seville Seville Soria. Madrid Sevilla. Seville Soria. Madrid Sartander.	Córdoba	Seville
Gerona	Coruña	Vigo
Granada. Málaga Guadalajara. Madrid Gulpózcoa. Bilbao Huelva. Seville Huesca. Barcelona, c.g. Jaén. Málaga León. Vigo Lefida. Barcelona, c.g. Logroño. Bilbao Lugo. Vigo Madrid. Madrid Málaga. Mílaga Murcia. Alicante Navarra. Bilbao Orense. Vigo Palencia. Bilbao Palmas, Las. See Las Palmas under Canary Islands. Pontevedra. Vigo Salamanca. Madrid Santander. Bilbao Segovia. Madrid Sequile Seville Sorial Seville Sorial. Madrid Seville Seville Soria. Madrid	Cuenca	Madrid
Guadalajara Madrid Gulpúzcoa Bilbao Huelva Seville Huesca Barcelona, c.g. Jaén Málaga Las Palmas. See under Canary Islands. León León Vigo León Bilbao Logroño Bilbao Lugo Vigo Madrid Madrid Málaga Milbao Uureja Vigo Madrid Madrid Málaga Milbao Orense Vigo Oviedo Vigo Palencia Bilbao Palmas, Las. See Las Palmas under Canary Islands. Pontevedra Vigo Salamanca Madrid Santander Bilbao Segovia Madrid Sevilla Seville Sorla Madrid Sevilla Seville Sorla Madrid Servilla Sartinder Sorla Madrid Sartander Barcelona, c.g. Yileonia Sartid	Gerona	Barcelona, c.g.
Gulpúzcoa	Granada	Málaga
Huelva	Guadalajara	Madrid
Huesca. Barcelona, c.g. Jaén Málaga Las Palmas. See under Canary Islands. Vigo Lérida Barcelona, c.g. Logroño. Bilbao Lugo. Vigo Madrid Madrid Málaga Madrid Málaga Madrid Málaga Madrid Málaga Míalaga Murcia. Alicante Navarra Bilbao Orense. Vigo Oviedo. Vigo Palencia. Bilbao Palmas, Las. See Las Palmas under Canary Islands. Pontevedra. Vigo Salamanca. Madrid Santander. Bilbao Segovia. Madrid Sevilla Seville Soria. Madrid Sevilla Seville Soria. Madrid	Gulpúzcoa	Bilbao
Jaén Málaga Las Palmas. See under Canary Islands. Vigo Lérida Barcelona, e.g. Logroño Bilbao Lugo Vigo Madrid Madrid Málaga Madrid Málaga Madrid Málaga Madrid Málaga Alicante Navarra Bilbao Orense Vigo Oviedo Vigo Palencia Bilbao Palmas, Las. See Las Palmas under Canary Islands. Pontevedra Vigo Salamanca Madrid Santa Cruz de Tenerife. See under Canary Islands. Santander Bilbao Segovia Madrid Sevilla Seville Soria Madrid Tarragona Barcelona, c.g. Valencia Valencia	Huelva	Seville
Las Palmas. See under Canary Islands. Vigo Leén	Huesca	Barcelona, c.g.
León Vigo Lérida Barcelona, e.g. Logroño Bilbao Lugo Vigo Madrid Madrid Málaga Málaga Murcia Alicante Navarra Bilbao Orense Vigo Oviedo Vigo Palencia Bilbao Palmas, Las. See Las Palmas under Canary Islands. Pontevedra Vigo Salamanca Madrid Santander Bilbao Segovia Madrid Sevilla Sevilla Soria Madrid Tarragona Barcelona, c.g Teruel Valencia	Jaén	Málaga
Lérida Barcelona, e.g. Logroño Bilbao Lugo Vigo Madrid Madrid Málaga Málaga Murcia Alicante Navarra Bilbao Orense Vigo Oviedo Vigo Palencia Bilbao Palmas, Las. See Las Palmas under Canary Islands. Pontevedra Vigo Salamanca Madrid Santander Bilbao Segovia Madrid Sevilla Seville Soria Madrid Tarragona Barcelona, c.g Teruel Valencia	Las Palmas. See under Canary Islands.	
Logroño. Bilbao Lugo. Vigo Madrid. Madrid Málaga. Málaga Murcia. Alicante Navarra. Bilbao Orense. Vigo Oviedo. Vigo Palencia. Bilbao Palmas, Las. See Las Palmas under Canary Islands. Pontevedra. Vigo Salamanca. Santander. Bilbao Segovia. Madrid Sevilla. Sevilla Sorla. Madrid Tarragona. Barcelona, c.g Teruel. Valencia	León	Vigo
Lugo	Lérida	Barcelona, c.g.
Madrid	Logroño	Bilbao
Málaga Málaga Murcia Alicante Navarra Bilbao Orense Vigo Oviedo Vigo Palencia Bilbao Palmas, Las. See Las Palmas under Bilbao Canary Islands. Yigo Pontevedra Vigo Salamanca Madrid Santander Bilbao Segovia Madrid Sevilla Seville Soria Madrid Tarragona Barceiona, c.g Teruel Valencia	Lugo	Vigo
Murcia Alicante Navarra Bilbao Orense Vigo Oviedo Vigo Palencia Bilbao Palmas, Las. See Las Palmas under Bilbao Canary Islands. Pontevedra Yigo Salamanca Salamanca Madrid Santander Bilbao Segovia Madrid Sevilla Seville Sorla Madrid Tarragona Barcelona, c.g Teruel Valencia	Madrid	Madrid
Navarra. Bilbao Orense. Vigo Oviedo. Vigo Palencia. Bilbao Palmas, Las. See Las Palmas under Canary Islands. Vigo Pontevedra. Vigo Salamanca. Madrid Santa Cruz de Tenerife. See under Canary Islands. Santander Santander. Bilbao Segovia. Madrid Sevilla Seville Sorla. Madrid Tarragona. Barcelona, c.g Teruel. Valencia		Málaga
Orense		Alicante
Oviedo		Bilbao
Palencia Bilbao Palmas, Las. See Las Palmas under Canary Islands. Pontevedra Vigo Salamanca Madrid Santan Cruz de Tenerife. See under Canary Islands. Santander Bilbao Segovia Madrid Sevilla Seville Sorla Madrid Tarragona Barceiona, c.g Teruel Valencia	Orense	Vigo
Palmas, Las. See Las Palmas under Canary Islands. Vigo Pontevedra		Vigo
Canary Islands. Pontevedra		Bilbao
Pontevedra		
Salamanca. Madrid Santa Cruz de Tenerife. See under Canary Islands. Bilbao Segovia. Madrid Sevilla. Seville Soria. Madrid Tarragona. Barceiona, c.g Teruel. Valencia		
Santa Cruz de Tenerife. See under Canary Islands. Santander		Vigo
Canary Islands. Santander		Madrid
Santander. Bilbao Segovia. Madrid Sevila. Sevile Sorla. Madrid Tarragona. Barceiona, c.g Teruel. Valencia		
Segovia	Canary Islands.	
SevillaSeville SorlaMadrid TarragonaBarcelona, c.g TeruelValencia		
SoriaMadrid TarragonaBarceiona, c.g TeruelValencia		
TarragonaBarcelona, c.g TeruelValencia		
Teruel Valencia		
Toledo		
	Toledo	Madrid

CONSULAR DISTRICT

CONSULAR DISTRICT

SPAIN-Continued

Province

ADMINISTRATIVE DIVISION

Valencia	Valencia
Valladolid	Madrid
Vizcaya [Biscay]	Bllbao
Zamora	Vigo
Zaragoza	Barcelona, r.g.

STRAITS SETTLEMENTS

(See British Malaya)

SWEDEN

Province [Lan]

1 rounded [Eddin]	
Älfsborg	Göteborg
Blekinge	Göteborg
Gafleborg	Stockholm, c.g.
Göteborg och Bohus	Göteborg
Gottland	Stockholm, c.g.
Halland	Göteborg
Jämtland	Stockholm, e.g.
Jönköping	Göteborg
Kalmar	Göteborg
Kopparberg	Stockholm, e.g.
Kristianstad	Göteborg
Kronoberg	Göteborg
Malmöhus	Göteborg
Norrbotten	Stockbolm, c.g.
Örebro	Stockholm, e.g.
Östergötland	Stockholm, e.g.
Skaraborg	Göteborg
Södermanland	Stockholm, c.g.
Stockholm	Stockholm. e.g.
Uppsala	Stockholm, c.g.
Värmland	Göteborg
Västerbotten	Stockholm, e.g.
Västernorrland	Stockholm, c.g.
Västmanland	Stockholm, c.g.

SWITZERLAND

Canton

and Inner Rhodes Zürich, c.g.
and made another states with the
Basel, comprising Baselland [Båle-
Campagne] and Baselstadt [Båle-
Ville] Basel
Bern [Berne] Bern
Fribourg [Freiburg] Bern
Geneva [Genève, Genf] Geneva
Glarus [Glaris]
Graubünden [Grisons] Zürich, c.g.
Luzern [Lucerne]
Neuchâtel [Neuenburg] Bern
St. Gallen [St. Gall]
Schaffhausen [Schaffhouse]
Schwyz
Solothurn [Soleure]
Ticino [Tessin]
Thurgau [Thurgovie] Zürich, c.g.

ADMINISTRATIVE DIVISION CO

SWITZERLAND-Continued

Canton

Unterwalden, comprising Nidwalden [Unterwald-le-Bas] and Oberwalden	
[Unterwald-le-Haut]	Zürich, ca
Uri	
Vaud [Waadt]	
Valais [Wallis]	
Zug [Zoug]	
Zürich [Zurich]	

SYRIA

All of Syria and the Lebanon...... Beirut, c.g.

TURKEY

	Vilayet	
	Adana	Izmir
	Adrianople. See Edirne.	
	Afyon karahisar [Aflon-Kara-Hissar]	Izmir
	Aintab. See Gazi Antep.	
i	Aksaray [Ak-Serai]	Izmir
į	Amasya [Amasia]	Istanbul, c.g.
ł	Ankara [Angora]	Istanbul, e.g.
	Antalya [Adalla, Tekeh]	Izmir
	Artvin	Istanbul, c.g.
	Aydin [Aidin]	Izmir
	Balikesir [Karassi]	Istanbul, c.g.
	Bayazit [Bayezid]1	Istanbul, c.g.
	Bilecik [Erthogrul]	Istanbul, c.g.
	Bitlis. See Muş.	
	Bolu	istanbul, c.g.
	Bozyuk. See Yozgat.	
	Burdur	
	Bursa [Brusa]	
	Çankirl [Cbankiri, Kangri]	
ł	Çanakkale [Dardanelles]	
İ	Cebelibereket [Jebel-Bereket]	Izmir
	Constantinople. See Istanbul.	
l	Gorum [Chorum]	Istanbul, e.g.
ļ	Dardanelles. See Çanakkale.	
	Denizli	
	Diyarbekir [Diarbekr] ¹	
	Edirne [Adrianople]	
	Elāziz [Mamuret-ul-Aziz, Harput] ¹	Istanbul, c.g.
	Erthogrul. See Bilecik.	
l	Erzincan [Erzinjan] ¹	
ļ	Erzurum [Erzerum] ¹	
	Eskişehir [Eski-Shehir]	
	Gazi Antep [Ghazi-Aintab]	
ł	Giresun [Kerasund]	Istanbul, c.g.
	Giresun [Kerasund] Gümüşane [Gumush-Haneh]	Istanbul, c.g. Istanbul, c.g.
	Giresun [Kerasund] Gümüşane [Gumush-Haneh] Hakari [Hakiari]	Istanbul, c.g. Istanbul, c.g.
	Giresun [Kerasund] Gümüşane [Gumush-Haneh] Hakâri [Hakiari] Hamid-Abad. See Isparta.	Istanbul, c.g. Istanbul, c.g.
	Giresun [Kerasund] Gümüşane [Gumush-Haneh] Hakâri [Hakiari] Hamid-Abad. See Isparta. Harput. See Elazlz.	Istanbul, c.g. Istanbul, c.g. Izmir
	Giresun [Kerasund] Gümüşane [Gumush-Haneh] Hakâri [Hakiari] Hamid-Abad. See Isparta. Harput. See Elâziz. Içei [Itchil]	Istanbul, c.g. Istanbul, c.g. Izmir Izmir
	Giresun [Kerasund] Gümüşane [Gumush-Haneh] Hakāri [Hakiari] Hamid-Abad. See Isparta. Harput. See Elâziz. Içei [Itchil] Isparta [Sparta, Hamid-Abad]	Istanbul, c.g. Istanbul, c.g. Izmir Izmir Izmir
	Giresun [Kerasund] Gümüşane [Gumush-Haneh] Hakâri [Hakiari] Hamid-Abad. See Isparta. Harput. See Elâziz. Içei [Itchi]]. Isparta [Sparta, Hamid-Abad] Istanbul [Constantinople]	Istanbul, c.g. Istanbul, c.g. Izmir Izmir Izmir
	Giresun [Kerasund] Gümüşane [Gumush-Haneh] Hakâri [Hakiari] Hamld-Abad. See Isparta. Harput. See Elâziz. Içei [Itchi]]. Isparta [Sparta, Hamid-Abad] Istanbul [Constantinople] Izmid. See Kocaeli.	Istanbul, c.g. Istanbul, c.g. Izmir Izmir Istanbul, c.g.
	Giresun [Kerasund] Gümüşane [Gumush-Haneh] Hakâri [Hakiari] Hamid-Abad. See Isparta. Harput. See Elâziz. Içei [Itchi]]. Isparta [Sparta, Hamid-Abad] Istanbul [Constantinople]	Istanbul, c.g. Istanbul, c.g. Izmir Izmir Istanbul, c.g.

¹ The following vilayets comprise a zone east of the Euphrates which the Turkish Government excludes from the jurisdiction of all foreign consulates in Turkey: Bayazit, Diyarbekir, Elâziz, Erzincan, Erzurum, Kars, Muş, and Van.

ADMINISTRATIVE DIVISION

TURKEY-Continued

TURKEI-Contin	DeD
Vilayet	
Jebel-Bereket. See Caballbereket.	
Kangri. See Çankiri.	
Kara-Hissar-Sharki. See Şebin Karah	isar.
Karassi, See Balikesir,	
Kars ¹	Istanbul, c.g.
Kastamonu [Kastamunl]	
Kayseri [Kaisaria]	
Kerasund. See Giresun.	
Kirklarell [Kirk-Killissa]	Istanbul ca
Kirsehir [Kir-Shehir]	
Kocaeli [Koja-Ili, Izmid]	
Konya [Konia]	
Kütahya [Kutahia]	
Lazistan. See Riza.	1211111
Malatya [Malatia]	Izmir
Mamuret-ul-Aziz. See Elâziz.	121111
Manina [Magnesia, Saruhan]	Izmir
Maraş [Marash]	
Mardin	
Mersin [Mersina]	Izmir
Muğia [Mentesheh]	Izmir
Muş [Mush, Bitlis] ¹	
Nigde [Nigdeh]	
Ordu.	
Rize [Rizeh, Lazistan]	Istanbul, c.g.
Rodosto. See Tekirdağ.	
Samsun [Janik]	istanbul, c.g.
Saruhan. See Manisa.	
Şebin Karahisar [Shabin-Kara-Hissar,	
Kara-HissAr-Sharki]	
Silrt [Saerd]	
Sinop	
Sivas	Istanbul, c.g.
Smyrna. See Izmir.	*
Sparta. See Isparta.	
Tekeh. See Antalya.	
Tekirdağ [Rodosto]	Istanbul, c.g.
Tokat	Istanbul, c.g.
Trabzon [Trebizond]	Istanbul, c.g.
Urfa	Izmir
Van 1	Istanbul, c.g.
Yozgat [Yozgad, Bozyuk]	Istanbul, c.g.
Zonguldak [Zunguldak]	Istanbul, c.g.
Islands	
All islands not under Greek admin-	
istration lying south of the Gulf of Edremid [Adramyti] and adjacent to	
Edremid [Adramyti] and adjacent to	
the Turkish coast, including the Italian islands in the Dodecanese, and	
Castellorizzo	Izmir

UNION OF SOUTH AFRICA

Province

 Cape of Good Hope:
 Savska.

 Ail that portion of the Province
 Vardars

 lying west of 25° east longitude.....
 Capetown, c.g.

 All that portion of the Province
 Vrbaski

 Jying east of 25° east longitude.....
 Port Elizabeth

 Natal
 Durban

 Orange Free State
 Johannesburg, Trans

 vaal
 vaal

Transvaal_____ Johannesburg

ADMINISTRATIVE DIVISION

CONSULAR DISTRICT

UNION OF SOVIET SOCIALIST REPUBLICS

All of the Union of Soviet Socialist

URUGUAY

All of Uruguay...... Montevideo, c.g

VENEZUELA

State (or territory)

Amazonas (ter.)	Caracas
Anzoátegui	Caracas
A pure	Caracas
Aragua	Caracas
Bolívar	Caracas
Carabobo	Caracas
Cojedes	Caracas
Delta Amacuro (ter.)	Caracas
Distrito Federal:	
All of the Department of Libertador except the parish of Macuto	Caracas
All of the Department of Vargas, and the parish of Macuto in the Department of Libertador	La Guerra e
Falcón:	Da Guaira, P.
Ail of the State lying west of a line	
running north and south through, but	
including, the town of La Vela	Maracaibo
All of the State not included in the	C
Maracaibo consular district	Caracas
Guárico	Caracas
Lara	Caracas
Mérida	Maracaibo
Miranda	Caracas
Monagas	Caracas
Nueva Esparta	Caracas
Portuguesa	Caracas
Sucre	Caracas
Táchira	Maracaibo
Tru]illo	Maracaibo
Yaracuy	Caracas
Zamora	Caracas
Zulia	Maracaibo

WALES

(See Great Britain)

YUGOSLAVIA :

Province [Banovina]

Dravska	Zagrab
Drinska	Belgrade
Dunavska [Danube]	Belgrade
Moravska	Belgrade
Primorska [Sea Coast]	Zagreb
Savska	Zagreb
Vardarska	Belgrade
Vrbaska	Zagreb
Zetska: The eastern portion only, as included in the Okružni Inspektorati of Bijelo	
Polje and Mitrovica.	Belgrade
The western portion only, as included in the Okružni Inspektorati of Dubrov-	
nik and Cetinje	Zagreb

¹ The following vilayets comprise a zone east of the Euphrates which the Turkish Government excludes from the jurisdiction of all foreign consulates in Turkey: Bayazit, Diyarbekir, Eläziz, Erzincan, Erzurum, Kars, Muş, and Van. ¹ See Yugoslavia, p. 73, for allocation of former political divisions: Serbia, Montenegro, Croatia-Slavonia, Slovenia, Bosnia, etc.

67359-34-7

6. SUPERVISORY CONSULATES GENERAL

Consulates general	Supervisory jurisdiction	Consulates general	Supervisory jurisdiction
Alexandria	All of Egypt.	Montreal	The Province of Quebec.
Amsterdam	All of the Netherlands.	Naples Oslo	All of Italy.
Antwerp Athens	All of Belgium and Luxemburg. All of Greece.	Panamá	All of Norway. All of Panama.
Barcelona	All of Spain and the Canary Islands.	Paris	All of France.
Batavia	Netherland India.	Rio de Janeiro	All of Brazil.
Beirut	All of Syria and the Lebanon.	Santiago	All of Chile.
Berlin Calcutta	All of Germany. All of India.	Singapore Stockholm	The Straits Settlements. All of Sweden.
Capetown	The Union of South Africa.	Sydney, N.S.W	All of Australia.
Dublin	The Irish Free State.	Tangier	All of Morocco.
Habana	All of Cuba.	Tokyo	All of the Japanese Empire, and Dairen.
Halifax	The Maritime Provinces of Canada.	Toronto	The Province of Ontario.
Istanbul	The Republic of Turkey. All of Portugal, the Azores, and Madeira.	Vancouver	The Province of British Columbia. All of New Zealand.
London	All of the British Isles except the Irish Free State.	Winnipeg	The Provinces of Manitoba, Saskatche- wan, and Alberta.
México, D.F	All of Mexico.	Zürich	All of Switzerland.

90 .

7. TARIFF OF UNITED STATES CONSULAR FEES ¹

The following Tariff of United States Consular Fees is prescribed by the President under authority of section 1745, Revised Statutes, as amended by the acts of April 5, 1906 (ch. 1366, secs. 7, 8, and 9, 34 Stat. 101), and June 4, 1920 (ch. 223, secs. 1 and 2, 41 Stat. 750), to be charged by consular officers for official services. All charges for such services must be in strict accordance with this tariff, and be collected in the coin of the United States or at its representative value in exchange. No fee or compensation will be collected for any service not covered by this tariff.

The fees in this tariff are not prescribed for American vessels and seamen, because they are exempted by law from the payment of consular fees. Consular agents will make the fees in this tariff a basis of collection from the Treasury for services to such vessels. Foreign-built vessels, unregistered, owned by American citizens, and vessels documented under the laws of the Philippine Islands are not exempt from the payment of the fees prescribed herein.

Services, except those for which fees are fixed in items 8, 9, and 10, under this tariff shall be rendered free of charge when performed: (a) In connection with the settlement of the estate of any employee of the United States dying abroad while on official duty; (b) for the use of any person in the collection of claims from the United States or from any State for compensation, pensions, back pay, bounty, bonus, property loss in the service of the United States; (c) for obtaining the return of property held by the Alien Property Custodian; and (d) for the official use of the United States Veterans' Administration.

Consular officers must require all fees to be paid in advance and before the stamps are canceled, except in case of attendance out of office or of commissions, when the amount cannot be determined until the service is performed. Advance deposits to cover fees in such latter cases may be accepted but in no other.

This tariff is effective July 1, 1929, and should be posted in a conspicuous place in consular offices as required by section 1731, Revised Statutes.

Item No.	Nature of service	Fee	Item No.	Nature of service	Fee
	MISCELLANEOUS SERVICES			MISCELLANEOUS SERVICES-continued	
1	Certification of involce in such number of copies as will meet the requirements of the regulations and instructions and provide the shipper with one copy (in addition to original) for his own use, including any additional declaration or certificate not		4 5	certificate for food and drug products or in- secticides (Forms 197 and 217) Certificate to extra copies of invoices, each Certificate of disinfection in such number of copies as will meet the requirements of the regulations and instructions and provide	\$1. 00 1. 00
	otherwise provided for which is required by law or regulations for use in connection with the entry of the wares or the forward-		6	the shipper with one copy for his own use Discontinued.	2, 50
	ing of the same in bond (see item No. 37)	\$2.50	7	Discontinued.	
2	Invoice of returned American goods	1.00	8	Executing application for passport (no excep-	
3	Certificates and declarations as above de-			tions)	1. 00
	scribed, when issued for a shipment not			Issue of passport	9.00
	covered by a consular invoice, including			Exceptions-	
	declaration of foreign shipper of articles ex- ported for exhibition and returned (Form			(a) Officers or employees of the United	
	204) and immigrant's oath regarding teams			States traveling on official busi- ness, or members of their immedi-	
	and vehicles (Form 128), and in connection			ate families	No fee
	with quarantine regulations, but excluding			(b) Seamen	No fee

¹ As established by Executive Order No. 5110 of May 13, 1929, and as amended by Executive Orders No. 5345 of May 8, 1930, No. 5417 of Aug. 4, 1930, No. 5526 of Jan. 7, 1931, No. 5773 of Jan. 11, 1932, No. 5848 of May 16, 1932, and No. 5910 of Aug. 23, 1932,

REGISTER OF THE DEPARTMENT OF STATE

F

Item No.	Nature of service	Fee	Item No.	Nature of service
	MISCELLANEOUS SERVICES-continued			MISCELLANEOUS SERVICES-continued
	(a) Widows shildson posents beathers			frontion thereof, event that we for the U.b.
	(c) Widows, children, parents, brothers, and sisters of American soldiers,			fraction thereof, except that no fee shall be charged on securities not negotiable by the
	sailors, or marines buried abroad,			consular officer, and evidences of debt not
	whose journey is for the purpose of			due and payable in the country where the
	visiting graves of such soldiers, sail-			decedent died. No charge will be made for
	ors, or marines	No fee		placing the official seal upon the personal
	Amendment or verification of an American			property or effects of such deceased citizen.
	passport	No fee		or for breaking or removing the seals.
	Renewal of an American passport	\$5.00	13	For each certificate of protection, semsar, or
	Exceptions-			certificate of employment issued at Tangier.
	Same as respects issue of passports if			SERVICES TO VESSELS AND SEAMEN
	bearer of passport has status held by			
	him at time of issue of passport.	NT. (14	Bili of health, in duplicate
	Execution of application for registration	No fee 1.00		(Foreign government-owned or chartered
	Issue of certificate of identity and registration Execution of affidavit in regard to American	1.00		vessels engaged exclusively in official duties are exempt from payment of fees
	birth in connection with application for			for bills of health.)
	registration or for passport	No fee	15	Discontinued.
9	Visa services for aliens.		16	For receiving and delivering ship's register
	Immigration visa:			and papers, \$1 for each 100 tons or fraction
	Furnishing and verifying application for			thereof, registered measurement (net), of
	immigration visa	1.00		the vessel for which the service is per-
	Issue of immigration visa	9.00		formed, if under 1,000 tons; but for Ameri-
	Passport visa (see exceptions below):			can vessels running regularly by weekly or
	Preparation and acknowledgment of dec-			monthly trips, or otherwise, to or between
	laration or application for passport			foreign ports, this tonnage fee will not be
	visas, except where reciprocal agree-	1.00		charged for more than four trips in a year;
	ments for other fees have been made Issue of passport visa except where re-	1.00		and tonnage fees shall not be exacted for any vessel touching at or near ports in
	ciprocal agreements for other fees have			Canada on her regular voyage from one
	been made	9.00		port to another within the United States,
	Exceptions (passport visa and applica-			unless some official service required by law
	tion therefor)—			shall be performed.
	(a) Any officer of any foreign gov-		17	And for every additional 100 tons net or frac-
	crnment or members of his			tion thereof
	immediate family	No fee	18	Shipping or discharging seamen, including
	(b) Any officer of the armed forces of			the certificates thereof attached to crew list
	any foreign government or			and shipping articles and given to seamen
	members of his immediate	NT- 6	19	Authentication of copies of protests or other
	family	No fee		necessary documents for vessels or seamen
	(c) Any officer of any state, district,		20	not otherwise provided for Preparation and acknowledgment for vessels
	or municipality of any foreign government or members of his		20	or seamen of any oath or declaration for
	immediate family	No fee		which a form is given in the Consular Regu-
	Certificate to a copy of a visa declaration			lations, or a similar necessary service not
	or application previously taken	1.00		otherwise provided for. See Fee No. 9 for
	Visa of alien crew list	2.00		visa of alien crew lists
	Supplemental visa of alien crew list	No fee	21	Preparation and execution for vessels or sea-
	Visaing a Chinese passport or certificate			men of any certificate for which a form is
	(except no fee for persons included in a,			given in the Consular Regulations, or simi-
10	b, and c above)	9.00		lar necessary service not otherwise pro-
10	Visaing affidavit of identity	9.00	22	vided for Orders or letters for vessels or seamen for
11	Marriage certificate, in duplicate, Form No. 87	1.00	22	which forms are given in the Consular
12	For taking into possession the personal estate	1.00		Regulations, or other similar necessary
	of any citizen who shall die within the			service not otherwise provided for
	limits of a consulate, inventorying, selling,		23	Recording, when necessary, for vessels or
	and finally settling and preparing or trans-			seamen any document covered by the pro-
	mitting, according to law, the balance due			visions of the Consular Regulations, for
	thereon, \$2 for each \$100 of market value or		I	every 100 words or fraction thereof

TARIFF OF UNITED STATES CONSULAR FEES

Item No.	Nature of service	Fee	Item No.	Nature of service	Fee
	SERVICES TO VESSELS AND SEAMEN—contd.			NOTARIAL AND OTHER SERVICES-continued	
24	Noting marine protest	\$2.00	38	Certifying to official character of a foreign	
25	Extending marine protest	3.00	00	notary or other official	\$2, 0
	If it exceeds 200 words, for every additional	0100		Exception-	<i>Q M</i> 0
	100 words	. 50		Authentications under authority of the	
26	Protest of master against charterers or freight-			United States Quarantine Regulations,	
	ers	2.00		in the form prescribed by the Depart-	
27	Clearance when issued by the consul, as at			ment of State, certifying to official	
	free ports	2.00		character of officials signing foreign	
28	Attending an appraisement of vessel's goods	F 00		deratization certificates	No fee
20	or effects, for each day's attendance	5.00	39	For taking depositions, executing commis-	
29	Attending sale of vessel's goods, for each day's attendance during which the sale			sions or letters rogatory, where the record of testimony including caption and certifi-	
	continues	5.00		cate does not exceed 500 words	10.00
30	Attendance at a shipwreck, or for the pur-	0.00		For each additional 100 words or fraction	10.00
	pose of assisting a ship in distress, or of	1		thereof	.50
i	saving wrecked goods or property, over and	i i		The foregoing fee shall cover the admin-	
	above traveling expenses, whenever the			istration of the oath and all services of	
	consul's interposition is required by the	İ		the consul as commissioner, but shall	
	parties interested, for each day	5.00		not include services of clerk, stenogra-	
	NOR LEVEL AND OFFICE ADD STORES	1		pher, or typewriter, which shall be ad-	
	NOTABIAL AND OTHER SERVICES			ditional at the rate prescribed herein	
31	administering an oath and certificate thereof.	2.00		for copying.	
32	Discontinued.		40	Copies (carbon copies to be charged for at the	
33	Acknowledgment of a deed or power of attor-	l l		same rate as originals, and including the	
	ney, or similar service, including one or			typing of official forms where requested	
	more signatures, with certificate thereof,			and where such service is not included in	
	for each copy	2.00		any other item of this tariff):	50
34	Administering any and all oaths required to			For the first 100 words or fraction thereof For every additional 100 words or less	. 50
	be made by pensioners and their witnesses		41	For certifying to the correctness of a copy of,	. 25
	in the execution of their pension vouchers, or by persons presenting claims for pen-		**	or extract from, any document, official or	
	sions or increase of pensions, or claims for			private	2.00
	insurance or insurance allowances, or allot-			Each copy certified is to be considered	
	ments, or certifying to the competency of			an original, and a fee charged for the	
	a local official before whom said papers			certification.	
	were executed, or for other services in reia-		42	Additional fee for all services contemplated	
	tion thereto	No fee		by fees numbered 31, 33, 38, 39, 40, and 41	
35	Acknowledgments and authentications con-			when rendered elsewhere than at the con-	
	nected with the assignment or transfer of		1	sular office at the request of the interested	1.00
	United States bonds or of powers of attor-	NT - 4		parties, for each hour or fraction thereof In connection with any service rendered	1.00
36	ney therefor or to collect interest thereon	No fee		outside of the consular office at the re-	
00	ments of officials or employees of the			quest of private individuals, the exact	
	United States Government, or of any cor-			amount of the expenses actually and	
	poration in which the United States or its			necessarily incurred by the person ren-	
	representatives shall own the entire out-			dering the service shall be collected	
	standing capital stock. In connection with			from the persons for whom the service	
	their official business or accounts	No fee		is performed in addition to the fee or	
37	For rendering notarial services to officials of			fees prescribed therefor, but no amount	
	foreign Governments who render gratui-			in excess of the fee or fees prescribed	
	tously reciprocal courtesies to American			and such actual and necessary expenses	
	diplomatic and consular officers, or for cer-		43	shall be charged or accepted. Recording unofficial documents in consulate	
	tification of invoices of shipments of official		10	upon request:	
	supplies and equipment from foreign Gov- ernments to their diplomatic and consular				
	officers and of shipments of personal effects			For the first 100 words or fraction For every additional 100 words or less	. 50
	to such officers in the United States when		44	Any and all services indicated in the tariff of	. 25
	such foreign Government renders gratui-		**	fees and performed upon written orders of	
	tously reciprocal services to the United			the Department of State for the official use	
	States Government	No fee		of the Government of the United States	No fee

REGISTER OF THE DEPARTMENT OF STATE

ltem No.	Nature of service	Fee	Item No.	Nature of service	Fee
	NOTARIAL AND OTHER SEEVICES-continued			NOTABIAL AND OTHER SEBVICES-continued	
\$ 5	Any and all services in connection with the execution of tax returns, federal, state, ter- ritorial, municipal and insular	No fee	49	Noting and certifying to protest of a bill of exchange or other negotiable instrument and giving notice thereof to drawer and in-	
46	License for the practice of pharmacy and the sale of poisons in the consular districts of the United States in China	\$2.00	50	dorsers when requested to do so Administering oaths or taking acknowledg- ments, or authenticating the signatures of	\$2.00
47	For certifying to the correctness of copies of certificates of American origin, manufac- ture, or inspection, where such services			foreign officials, in connection with kins- men's petitions for wages and effects of deceased seamen of the American mer-	
	are performed upon written orders of the Secretary of State for the purpose of ad- vancing the export trade of the United States	No fee	51	chant marine Any and all services performed for American citizens while outside the United States in preparation of ballots to be used in any	No fee
48	Presenting a bill of exchange or other nego- tiable instrument for acceptance, payment, or protest, for each hour or fraction thereof			primary, general, or other public elections in the United States, its territories, or pos- sessions, whether federal, state, territorial,	No fee
	or protest, for each hour or fraction thereof outside of the consular office	1.00		sessions, whether federal, state, territoria county, town, or municipal	

8. DISPOSITION OF FEES AND COMPENSATION OF CONSULAR AGENTS AND VICE CONSULS

The act for the reorganization of the consular service of the United States, approved April 5, 1906 (34 Stat. 101), provides:

SEC. 8. That all fees, official or unofficial, received by any officer in the consular service for services rendered in connection with the duties of his office or as a consular officer, including fees for notarial services, and fees for taking depositions, executing commissions or letters rogatory, settling estates, receiving or paying out moneys, caring for or disposing of property, shall be accounted for and paid into the Treasury of the United States, and the sole and only compensation of such officers shall be by salaries fixed by law; but this shall not apply to consular agents, who shall be paid by one-half of the fees received in their offices, up to a maximum sum of one thousand dollars in any one year, the other half being accounted for and paid into the Treasury of the United States.

The act of February 23, 1931 (46 Stat. 1209), amends the act of April 5, 1906, as follows:

SEC. 18. That the provisions of sections 8 and 10 of the Act of April 5, 1906, relative to official fees and the method of accounting therefor shall apply to diplomatic officers below the grade of minister and to consular officers.

Section 25 of the act of February 23, 1931, provides as follows:

SEC. 25. That for such times as any Foreign Service officer shall be lawfully authorized to act as chargé d'affaires *ad interim* or to assume charge of a consulate general or consulate during the absence of the principal officer at the post to which he shall have been assigned, he shall, if his salary is less than one-half that of such principal officer, receive in addition to his salary as Foreign Service officer, compensation equal to the difference between such salary and one-half of the salary provided by law for the ambassador, minister, or principal consular officer, as the case may be.

FEES COLLECTED AT CONSULAR AGENCIES FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1933

Agency	Fees	Agency	Fees	Agency	Fees	Agency	Fees
 ^b Annapolis Royal. ^b Bocas del Toro Brighton Caibarien Cananea Cananea 	\$133.50 71.00 129.50 473.50 723.50	Dunedin Galway Gonaīves Grenada « Jērémie	\$675.00 718.50 163.50 424.50 43.50	Matagalpa Mollendo Oran Paramaribo Pau	\$4.00 116.50 316.00 698.00 293.50	St. Lucia Salaverry Sanchez San José, Guate- mala	\$649, 00 130, 50 433, 00 478, 00
^b Ceará ^a Chañaral. Christchurch Coquimbo Cruz Grande Dieppe Djibouti	709, 50 $90, 50$ $1, 267, 00$ $114, 50$ $1, 00$ $7, 50$ $661, 00$	^a Jersey ^a Kalamata Kenora La Oroya La Romana Los Mochis Manzanillo	55, 50 $399, 00$ $372, 50$ $70, 00$ $838, 50$ $99, 50$ $456, 50$	Port de Paix a Puntarenas Rio Grande b Roseau Sagua la Grande St. George's a St. Leonard	$\begin{array}{c} 308.50\\ 83.50\\ 74.00\\ 773.50\\ 480.00\\ 229.00\\ 106.50\\ \end{array}$	^a San Pedro de Macoris ^a Talcahuano Tarragona ^b Tocopilla	162, 50 43, 00 1, 297, 50 193, 50

^a Closed before June 30, 1933.

^b Closed after June 30, 1933.

95

PRINCIPAL OFFICERS OF THE DEPARTMENT, CHIEFS OF MISSION, AND DIPLOMATIC AGENTS PREVIOUSLY IN THE RANKS OF THE FOREIGN SERVICE 9.

Date of Date of entry assignment into service
25, 1932 May
14, 1925 33, 1034
63, 1934 ADF. 9, 1930 ADF.
000
19, 1932 July 17, 1933 Ang.
31, 1933 Aug. 16 1920 & Tinna
7, 1934 July 22, 1930 Nov.
11, 1935 Apr.
1, 1931 SSept. 17, 1931
12,1927 Sept. 1 1033 Mar
11, 1929 May
20, 1930 July
3, 1933 §June
15, 1933 §Apr.
July
3, 1933 July
9, 1934 Nov.

¹ The title of Third Assistant Secretary of State was changed to Assistant Secretary of State on July 1, 1924. ² Diplomate agent. ³ Appointed Minister to Uruguay Mar. 9, 1934, but did not take the oath of office. ⁴ Appointed Minister to Bulgaria July 17, 1928, and Minister to Costa Rica Dec. 16, 1929, but in neither case took the oath of office.

96

10. LIST OF DIPLOMATIC MISSIONS

EMBASSIES

Buenos Aires, Argentina Brussels, Belgium Rio de Janeiro, Brazil Santiago, Chile Habana, Cuba Paris, France

Tirana, Albania Vienna, Austria La Paz, Bolivla Sofia, Bulgaria Ottawa, Canada Peiping, China Bogotá, Colombia San José, Costa Rica Prague, Czechoslovakia Copenhagen, Denmark Santo Domingo, Dominican Republic Quito, Ecuador Cairo, Egypt San Salvador, El Salvador Tallinn, Estonia

Berlin, Germany London, England Rome, Italy Tokyo, Japan México, D.F., Mexico Lima, Peru

LEGATIONS

Addis Ababa, Ethlopia 1 Helsingfors, Finland Athens. Greece Guatemala, Guatemala Port-au-Prince, Haltl Tegucigalpa, Honduras Budapest, Hungary Baghdad, Iraq 1 Dublin, Irish Free State Riga, Latvia Monrovia, Liberia Kaunas, Lithuania Luxemburg, Luxemburg Tangier, Morocco 1 The Hague, Netherlands

Warsaw, Poland Madrid, Spain Istanbul, Turkey Moscow, Union of Soviet Socialist Republics

Managua, Nicaragua Oslo, Norway [°] Panamá, Panama Asunción, Paraguay Teheran, Persia Lisbon, Portugal Bucharest, Rumania Bangkok, Slam Stockholm, Sweden Bern, Switzerland Pretoria, Union of South Africa Montevideo, Uruguay Caracas, Venezuela Belgrade, Yugoslavia

11. SALARIES IN THE FOREIGN SERVICE

AMBASSADORS AND MINISTERS

Ambassadors extraordinary and plenipotentiary	\$17,500
Envoys extraordinary and ministers plenipotentiary	10,000
To China and the Netherlands	12,000

FOREIGN SERVICE OFFICERS

Class	1	\$9,000 to	\$10,000
Class	2	8,000 to	8,900
Class	3	7,000 to	7,900
Class	4	6,000 to	6,900
Class	5	5,000 to	5,900
Class	6	4, 500 to	4,900
01400	~	-, 000 00	.,

Class 7 \$4,000	to \$4, 400)
Class 8	to 3,900)
Unclassified (a)	3,000)
Unclassified (b)	2,750)
Unclassified (c)	2, 500)

CLERKS

Junior clerks

Class	1		\$2,750
Class	2		2,500
Class	3	less than	\$2, 500

Senior clerks	
Class 1	\$4,000
Class 2	3,750
Class 3	3, 500
Class 4	3, 250
Class 5.	3,000

¹ At Addis Ababa and Baghdad there are ministers resident, and at Tangier, a diplomatic agent. They are Foreign Service officers and receive compensation as such.

67359 - 34 - 8

12. CLASSIFICATION OF FOREIGN SERVICE OFFICERS ¹

FOREIGN SERVICE OFFICERS OF CLASS I

Name	Whence ap- pointed	Designation	Post	Date of assignment	- Date of ap- pointment to present class	Date of entry into service
*Maxwell Blake *	Mo	Consul general	Tangler	May 14, 1925	July 1, 1924	Feb. 2, 1906
Sheldon L. Crosby	N. Y	Counselor of embassy.	Warsaw	May 26, 1932	July 1, 1924	Apr. 19, 1910
Edwin S. Cunningham	Tenn	Consul general	Shanghal.	Sept. 8, 1919	Dec. 17, 1925	Feb. 16, 1898
Leo J. Keena	Mich	Consul general	Paris	Oct. 26, 1929	Dec. 17, 1925	June 28, 1909
*Homer M. Byington	Conn	Consul general	On detall as inspector.	Aug. 12, 1933	June 30, 1927	Jan. 1, 1898
Claude I. Dawson	S. C	Consul general	Barcelona	Dec. 13. 1930	Sept. 29, 1927	Aug. 22, 1910
Robert Frazer 3	Pa	Consul general	London	Oct. 8, 1932	May 23, 1929	July 16, 1909
*Clarence E. Gauss	Conn	Counselor of legation	Peiping	June 20, 1933	May 23, 1929	June 27, 1907
Ray Atherton	111	Counselor of embassy.	London	tSept. 26, 1927	Oct. 16, 1929	Aug. 28, 1917
*Edwin L. Nevillo	Ohio	Counselor of embassy.	Tokyo	tApr. 12, 1928	Oct. 16, 1929	Nov. 15, 1907
Ferdinand L. Mayer	1nd	Counselor of legation			Dec. 31, 1929	Aug. 7, 1916
•John K. Caldwell	Ку	Consul general	Sydney, N.S.W		May 9, 1930	Dec. 17, 1906
Louis G. Dreyfus, Jr	Calif	Counselor of embassy_	Lima	June 26, 1933	May 9, 1930	Jan. 10, 1911
Douglas Jeukins	S, C	Consul general	Berlin	June 20, 1934	May 9, 1930	July 1, 1908
Marion Letcher	Ga	Consul general	Antwerp	July 6, 1928	May 9, 1930	June 15, 1909
Alexandor R. Magruder	Md	Counselor of legation	Lisbon	May 17, 1929	May 9, 1930	Aug. 11, 1909
*Willys R. Peck 4	Callf	Consul general	Nanking	Feb. 5, 1931	May 9, 1930	Dec. 31, 1906
Arthur Garrels	Mo	Consul general	Tokyo	Nov. 16, 1929	July 24, 1930	June 29, 1908
*Mahlon Fay Perkins	Calif	Counselor of legation	Department	May 15, 1933	July 24, 1930	Jan. 29, 1909
G. Howland Shaw	Mass	Counselor of embassy.	Istanbul	Dec. 28, 1931	July 24, 1930	May 29, 1918
*Addison E. Southard 5	Ку	Consul general	Addis Ababa	Oct. 12, 1927	July 24, 1930	Sept. 26, 1916
John Campbell White	Md	Counselor of embassy_	Berlin	Aug. 29, 1933	July 24, 1930	May 25, 1914
Charles M. Hathaway, Jr.	Pa	Consul general	Munich	July 27, 1927	Feb. 4, 1931	Sept. 16, 1911
Samuel T. Lee	Mlch	Consul general	Rio de Janeiro	Jan. 22, 1931	Feb. 4, 1931	Aug. 28, 1907
J. Theodore Marriner	Me	Counselor of embassy.	Paris	Apr. 1, 1931	Feb. 4, 1931	Sept. 14, 1918
Wesley Frost	Ку	Consul general	Montreal		July 1, 1931	Apr. 29, 1912
George A. Gordon 8		Counselor of embassy_	Department		July 1, 1931	Feb. 18, 1920
Alexander C. Kirk	Ill	Counselor of embassy.		tDec. 21, 1929	July 1, 1931	Mar. 6, 1915
*Thomas M. Wilson	Tenn	Consul general	Department		July 28, 1933	Oct. 6, 1919

Arranged chronologically according to the date of appointment to present class.
 Appointed also to act as diplomatic agent pursuant to sec. 17 of an act of Congress approved May 24, 1924. Receives compensation as a Foreign Service officer.
 Detailed temporarily to the Department.
 Designated also counselor of legation.
 Appointed also to act as minister resident pursuant to sec. 17 of an act of Congress approved May 24, 1924. Receives compensation as a Foreign Service officer.

FOREIGN SERVICE OFFICERS OF CLASS II

Name	Whence ap- pointed	Designation	Post	Date of assignment	Date of ap- pointment to present class	Date of entry into service
J. Klahr Huddle	Ohlo	Consul general	Warsaw	July 9 1930	Dec. 31, 1929	Apr. 19, 1915
Coert du Bois		0	Naples.		May 9, 1930	Sept. 28, 1919
Ernest L. Harris		Consul general	Vienna	• /	May 9, 1930	May 10, 1898
Theodore Jaeckel		Consul general	Victoria, B.C.	· ,	May 9, 1930	July 30, 1914
R. Henry Norweb		Counselor of embassy.	México, D. F		May 9, 1930	Mar. 19, 1917
Louis Sussdorff, Jr.		Counselor of embassy.	Brussels and Luxem-		May 9, 1930	May 27, 1914
Douis Dubbdorn, orsection	*** *	counterer er enneneg :	burg.			1.1.4.5 21, 1011
Benjamln Thaw, Jr	Pa	Counselor of legation	Oslo	Oct. 20, 1932	May 9, 1930	Aug. 7, 1916
•John C. Wiley	Ind	0	Moscow		May 9, 1930	Aug. 6, 1915
Thomas D. Bowman	Mo		México, D. F		July 24, 1930	Jan. 11, 1912
George E. Chamberlin		Consul general	Halifax		July 24, 1930	Nov. 3, 1905
•Felix Cole	D. C	Counselor of legation	Riga, Kaunas, and Tal-	,	July 24, 1930	Jan. 1, 1915
			linn	,	,	,
•John K. Davis.	Ohio	Consul general	Vancouver	Nov. 7, 1933	July 24, 1930	Aug. 12, 1910
Carl F. Deichman	Mo		Lisbon	Dec. 13, 1930	July 24, 1930	Apr. 10, 1907
Arthur C. Frost	Mass	· ·		June 21, 1934	July 24, 1930	Apr. 1,1915
John A. Gamon	111			Aug. 24, 1928	July 24, 1930	May 12, 1914
Arminius T. Haeberle	Mo		Dresden	July 1, 1925	July 24,1930	June 18, 1908
Calvin M. Hitch	Ga		Department	Nov. 1, 1933	July 24, 1930	Mar. 15, 1915
Philip Holland	Tenn		Llverpool	Sept. 20, 1927	July 24, 1930	Mar. 30, 1910
Hallett Johnson	N. J	Counselor of embassy.			July 24, 1930	Sept. 22, 1912
Ely E. Palmer	R. 1	Consul general		Nov. 7, 1933	July 24, 1930	Jan. 13, 1911
James B. Stewart	N. Mex.	Consul general	Budapest	June 22, 1933	July 24, 1930	Aug. 18, 1915
•Walter C. Thurston	Ariz	Counselor of embassy.	Rio de Janeiro	Oct. 7, 1931	July 24, 1930	May 1, 1917
•North Winship	G8	Counselor of legation	Copenhagen	tApr. 8, 1931	July 24, 1930	July 19, 1910
Edwin C. Wilson	Fla	First secretary		Oct. 23, 1931	Feb. 27, 1931	Apr. 21, 1920
Charles L. Hoover	Mo	Consul general	Hong Kong	June 20, 1934	July 1, 1931	June 29, 1909
Williamson S. Howell, Jr.	Tex	First secretary	Faris	Feb. 2, 1929	July 1, 1931	Aug. 7, 1916
•Irving N. Linnell ¹	Mass	Consul general	Capetown		July 1, 1931	Oct. 21, 1914
Frank P. Lockhart	Tex	Consul general			July 1, 1931	July 1, 1925
Jay Pierrepont Moffat	N. H	First secretary		· · · · ·	July 1, 1931	Sept. 5, 1919
*Robert M. Scotten	Mich	Counselor of embassy.	Santiago, Chile	Apr. 4, 1934	July 1, 1931	May 23, 1916

FOREIGN SERVICE OFFICERS OF CLASS III

P. Stewart Heintzleman	Pa	Consul general	Winnipeg	Apr. 15, 1925	July 1, 1924	Oct. 25, 1902
Frank C. Lee	Colo	Consul general	Prague	Oct. 15, 1931	June 8, 1927	Nov. 8, 1915
George K. Donald	Ala	Consul general	Milan	June 20, 1934	Aug. 24, 1927	July 25, 1914
*Thomas II. Bevan	Md	Consul general	Oslo	June 13, 1928	Oct. 16, 1929	Nov. 17, 1910
Cornelius Van II, Engert.	Calif	First secretary	Cairo	June 29, 1933	Dec. 19, 1929	Apr. 24, 1912
•Herbert S. Goold	Calif	Consul general	Beirut	Oct. 24, 1930	Dec. 19, 1929	Oct. 20, 1916
Lester Maynard	Calif	Consul general	Copenhagen	Aug. 23, 1933	Dec. 19, 1929	June 26, 1906
·Leland B. Morris	Pa	Consul general	Athens	tAug. 23, 1933	Dec. 26, 1929	Apr. 12, 1910
•S. Pinkney Tuck			Paris		Dec. 31, 1929	Sept. 30, 1913
•H. Merle Cochran	Ariz	First secretary	Parls	tNov. 23, 1932	May 9, 1930	§Feb. 12, 1918
Leon Dominian						Aug. 12, 1919
				1 0 - 1		

¹ Assigned also as counselor of legation at Pretoria.

100

REGISTER OF THE DEPARTMENT OF STATE

Name	Whence ap- pointed	Designation	Post	Date of assignment	Date of ap- pointment to present class	Date of entry into service
Edward A. Dow	Nebr	Consul general	Santiago, Chile	Apr. 1,1933	May 9, 1930	Nov. 6, 1915
*Paul Knabenshue ¹	Ohio	Consul general	Baghdad	Aug. 5, 1932	May 9, 1930	Mar. 1, 1905
Maxwell K. Moorhead	Pa	Consul general	Johannesburg	tJuly 1, 1931	May 9, 1930	June 26, 1905
Kenneth S. Patton	Va	Consul general	Amsterdam	June 20, 1934	May 9, 1930	July 1, 1908
Lowell C. Pinkerton	Mo	Consul general	Department	Aug. 29, 1933	May 9, 1930	Oct. 3, 1917
Edward L. Reed.	Pa	First secretary	Department	Nov. 23, 1933	May 9, 1930	Dec. 10, 1920
James B. Young	Pa	Consul general	Callao-Lima	tApr. 29, 1933	May 9, 1930	July 27, 1909
*Prentiss B. Gilbert		Consul	Geneva	Aug. 16, 1930	June 12, 1930	July 21, 1930
Waiter A. Adams	S. C	Consul general	Harbin	June 29, 1934	July 24, 1930	Mar. 25, 1914
Joseph W. Bailantine	Mass	Consul general	Canton	June 10, 1930	July 24, 1930	June 30, 1909
Pierre de L. Boal	Pa	First secretary	Ottawa	June 16, 1932	July 24, 1930	Dec. 20, 1919
George A. Bucklin	Okla	Consul general	Wellington	June 28, 1934	July 24, 1930	July 16, 1906
Charles R. Cameron	N. Y	Consul general	Habana	Mar. 9, 1934	July 24, 1930	Oct. 6, 1919
Alfred W. Donegan	Ala	Consul	Basel	Jan. 13, 1933	July 24, 1930	May 10, 1905
*Eugene H Dooman	N. Y	First secretary	Department	May 2, 1933	July 24, 1930	Apr. 27, 1912
Joseph E. Haven	III	Consul	Florence	Mar. 30, 1923	July 24, 1930	Aug. 18, 1904
John P. Hurley	N. Y	Consui	Nassau	June 30, 1932	July 24, 1930	Aug. 23, 1919
*Ernest L. Ives	Va	Consul general	Algiers	Apr. 5,1933	July 24, 1930	June 15, 1909
Joseph E. Jacobs	S. C	Consul	On detail as inspector.	July 2, 1934	July 24, 1930	Nov. 8, 1915
Herschel V. Johnson	N. C	First secretary	London	Feb. 16, 1934	July 24, 1930	Dec. 22, 1920
Wilbur Keblinger	Va	Consul general	Singapore	Mar. 3, 1932	July 24, 1930	May 15, 1914
Graham H. Kemper	Ку	Consul general	Rome	‡Jan. 23, 1934	July 24, 1930	Nov. 3, 1911
Walter A. Leonard	Bl	Consul	Bremen	July 1, 1929	July 24, 1930	Aug. 7, 1907
George A. Makinson	Calif	Consul	Birmingham	Apr. 17, 1930	July 24, 1930	Oct. 7, 1909
O. Gaylord Marsh	Wash	Consul general	Guatemaia	Dec. 22, 1933	July 24, 1930	Apr. 1, 1915
John R. Putnam	Oreg	Consul	Genoa	Jan. 5, 1934	July 24, 1930	Mar. 26, 1915
Emil Sauer	Tex	Consul general	Toronto	‡Jan. 14,1932	July 24, 1930	Sept. 18, 1911
Hugh H. Watson	Vt	Consul	Sydney, N. S.	Jan. 9, 1932	July 24, 1930	Nov. 10, 1906
Samuel W. Honaker	Tex	Consul general	Stuttgart	June 20, 1934	Aug. 15, 1930	Mar. 4, 1913
*Erle R. Dickover	Calif	First secretary	Tokyo	‡May 24,1932	Feb. 4, 1931	June 4, 1914
*David B. Macgowan	Tenn	Consul	Bern	Dec. 22, 1931	Feb. 27, 1931	Dec. 24, 1915
Monnett B. Davis	Colo	Consul general	Stockhoim	June 24, 1933	July 1,1931	§Dec. 31, 1920
*John Farr Simmons	N. Y	Consul general	Department	Nov. 13, 1933	July 1,1931	Nov. 9, 1916
*George Wadsworth	N. Y	First secretary	Bucharest	Aug. 26, 1933	July 1,1931	July 1,1916
•William H. Beck	N. J	Consul general	Ottawa	Dec. 30, 1931	Dec. 17, 1931	Dec. 29, 1931

FOREIGN SERVICE OFFICERS OF CLASS III-Continued

FOREIGN SERVICE OFFICERS OF CLASS IV

Elbridge Gerry Greene	Mass	First secretary	Ottawa	Dec. 15, 1933	July 1,1924	June 13, 1914
Harold D. Clum	N. Y	Consul general	Bucharest	Jan. 13, 1933	May 23, 1929	Feb. 6, 1909
John W. Dye	Minn	Consul	Meibourne	July 13, 1931	May 23, 1929	July 21, 1906
Carol H. Foster	Md	Consul general	São Paulo	Juue 20, 1934	May 23, 1929	Oct. 4, 1919
*Paul R. Josselyn	Iowa	Consui	Shanghai	May 7, 1930	May 23, 1929	Apr. 25, 1910
Orme Wilson	N. Y	First secretary	Berlin	Aug. 14, 1933	May 23, 1929	May 1, 1920

¹ Appointed to act as minister resident pursuant to sec. 24 of an act of Congress approved Feb. 23, 1931. Receives compensation as a Foreign Service officer.

FOREIGN SERVICE OFFICERS OF CLASS IV-Continued

Name	Whence ap- pointed	Designation	Post	Date of assignment	Date of ap- pointment to present class	Date of entry into service
William C. Burdett	Tenn	First secretary	Panamá	Aug. 9, 1933	Oct. 16, 1929	Oct. 6, 1919
Henry H. Balch		Consul general	Dublln	Jan. 12, 1931	Dec. 19, 1929	July 24, 1914
Raymond E. Cox	N. Y	First secretary	Buenos Aires		Dec. 19, 1929	Sept. 1, 1921
Frank Anderson Henry	Del	Consul	Valparaiso		Dec. 19, 1929	Oct. 1, 1912
Alfred W. Kliefoth	Pa	First secretary	Vienna		Dec. 19, 1929	June 15, 1916
Dayle C. McDonough	Mo	Consul	Bombay		Dec. 19, 1929	Oct. 6, 1919
fyrl S. Myers	Pa	Consul general	Department		Dec. 19, 1929	Sept. 30, 1907
Ifred R. Thomson	Md	Consul.	Manchester	1 '	Dec. 19, 1929	Mar. 15, 1911
Joseph F. McGurk	N. J	First secretary	Department		Dec. 26, 1929	Apr. 15, 1915
Iomer Brett	Miss	Consul	Rotterdam		Dec. 31, 1929	Sept. 18, 1911
Ralph C. Busser	Pa	Consul	Leipzig		May 9, 1930	July 1, 1909
Iasell H. Dick	S. C	Consul	Amoy	1	May 9, 1930	Mar. 14, 1911
ohn D. Johnson	Vt	Consul	Hamilton, Ont.		May 9, 1930	Sept. 20, 1922
David J. D. Myers		Consul	Tenerife		May 9, 1930	Sept. 7, 1912
eslie E. Reed	Minn	Consul general	Montevideo		May 9, 1930	May 9, 1914
Benjamin Reath Riggs	Pa.	First secretary	Budapest		May 9, 1930	Dec. 24, 1919
Valter H. Sholes	Okla	Consul	Brussels	* /	May 9, 1930	Sept. 18, 1911
ferritt Swift	D. C	First secretary	Stockholm		May 9, 1930	Dec. 26, 1916
vra M. Warren	Md	Consul general	Buenos Aires		May 9, 1930	July 9, 1920
Varden McK. Wilson	Ind	First secretary	The Hague		May 9, 1930	Aug. 31, 1921
Vainwright Abbott	Pa	First secretary	Belgrade		July 24, 1930	Apr. 17, 1920
Valter F. Boyle	Ga	Consul	Auckland		July 24, 1930	June 13, 1914
arker W. Buhrman	Va	Consul	Cologne		July 24, 1930	Sept. 10, 1918
lgar E. Carleton	Vt	Consul	Riga		July 24, 1930	May 11, 1899
Judley G. Dwyre	Colo	Consul	London		July 24, 1930	Oct. 6, 1919
oseph Flack	Pa	First secretary	Berlin		July 24, 1930	Oct. 9, 1916
George C. Hanson	Conn	Consul general	Moscow		July 24, 1930	June 23, 1909
rederick P. Hlbbard	Tex	First secretary	Department		July 24, 1930	Dec. 20, 1920
esse B. Jackson	Ohio	Consul	Fort William and	Mar. 27, 1928	July 24, 1930	Mar. 17, 1905
			Port Arthur.			
dwin Carl Kemp	Fla	Consul	Moncton	July 18, 1933	July 24, 1930	May 7, 1914
ucien Memminger	S. C	Consul general	Belfast		July 24, 1930	Apr. 27, 1907
dward I. Nathan	Pa	Consul	Monterrey		July 24, 1930	Nov. 23, 1907
Clarence J. Spiker	D. C	First secretary	Peiping		July 24, 1930	May 29, 1914
larold H. Tittmann, Jr	Mo	First secretary	Rome		July 24, 1930	May 2, 1921
lenry M. Wolcott	N. Y	Consul	A delaide		July 24, 1930	June 9,1906
eslie A. Davis	N. Y	Consul	Oporto		Aug. 15, 1930	Apr. 27, 1912
harles E. Allen	Ky	Consul	Istanbul.		Feb. 4, 1931	May 29, 1914
eorge L. Brandt	D. C	Consul	Department	,	Feb. 4, 1931	Apr. 21, 1915
obert D. Murphy	Wis	Consul	Paris	· · · ·	· ·	§Mar. 1, 1921
larold B. Quarton	Iowa	Consul general	St. John's, N.F.		Feb. 4,1931	Apr. 29, 1912
ohn Randolph	N. Y	Consul	Quebec			§Sept. 4, 1916
harles J. Pisar	Wis	Consul	Lyon		Feb. 27, 1931	Oct. 1, 1914
Maynard B. Barnes	Iowa	First secretary	Department		July 1, 1931	Nov. 30, 1919
Reed Paige Clark	N. H	Consul	Belgrade		July 1, 1931	Oct. 4, 1919
athanlel P. Davis	N. J	Consul	Department.		July 1,1931	July 1, 1921
ohn G. Erhardt	N. Y	Consul general	Hamburg		July 1, 1931	Jan. 9, 1920
harles Bridgham	Me	Consul	Naples		July 1, 1931	Jan. 23, 1919
Hosmer.						
Losmer.	Mich	Consul general	Alexandria	tMar, 15, 1934	July 1, 1931	Oct. 6, 1916
		Consul general	Alexandria Department			Oct. 6,1916 June 19,1934

.

REGISTER OF THE DEPARTMENT OF STATE

FOREIGN SERVICE OFFICERS OF CLASS V

Name	Whence ap- pointed	Designation	Post	Date of assignment	Date of ap- pointment to present class	Date of entry into service
Cecll M. P. Cross	R. I	Consul	Barcelona	June 25, 1932	May 23, 1929	Dec. 23, 1919
Jefferson Patterson	Ohio	First secretary	Department	Mar. 22, 1930	May 23, 1929	Sept. 8, 1921
•Harry E. Carlson	m	Consul and first sec- retary.	Tallinn	July 3, 1926	Oct. 16, 1929	Jan. 21, 1916
Charles Roy Nasmlth	N. Y	Consul	Marseille	Oct. 29, 1931	Oct. 16, 1929	Feb. 8, 1907
Harold L. Willlamson	Ill	Second secretary	Paris.	June 1, 1928	Oct. 16, 1929	Jan. 28, 1919
Charles C. Broy	Va	Consul	London	Sept. 12, 1929	Dec. 19, 1929	July 29, 1909
William E. Chapman	Okla	Consul	Bllbao	May 10, 1932	Dec. 19, 1929	July 14, 1916
*Hugh S. Fullerton	Ohio	Second secretary	Helsingfors	June 21, 1933	Dec. 19, 1929	Mar. 8, 1920
George D. Hopper	Ку	Consul	Casablanca	June 13, 1934	Dec. 19, 1929	Oct. 5, 1917
William R. Langdon	Mass	Consul	Seoul	Nov. 7, 1933	Dec. 19, 1929	July 17, 1911
Robert B. Macatee	Va	Consul	London	Sept. 10, 1930	Dec. 19, 1929	Nov. 1, 1918
George R. Merrell, Jr	Mo	Second secretary	Department	June 18, 1931	Dec. 19, 1929	Jan. 4, 1922
Hugh Millard	Nebr	Second secretary	London	Dec. 5, 1933	Dec. 19, 1929	June 2, 1919
Edmund B. Montgom- ery.	111	Consul	Department	Oct. 21, 1930	Dec. 19, 1929	Feb. 12, 1919
•Orsen N. Nielsen	Wis	Second secretary	Warsaw	June 11, 1932	Dec. 19, 1929	Jan. 4, 1917
Harry F. Hawley	N. Y	Consul	Glasgow	June 20, 1934	Dec. 26, 1929	§Nov. 1,1909
Romeyn Wormuth	N. Y	Consul	Nuevo Laredo	Apr. 6, 1931	Dec. 31, 1929	July 8, 1918
J. Webb Benton	Pa	Second secretary	Prague	Sept. 1, 1932	May 9, 1930	Dec. 8, 1920
William P. Blocker	Tex	Consul	Cludad Juárez	Sept. 24, 1929	May 9, 1930	July 21, 1913
Richard F. Boyce	Mich.	Consul	Yokohama	Oct. 25, 1933	May 9, 1930	July 10, 1920
Austin C. Brady	N.Mex.	Consul	Nice	July 17, 1933	May 9, 1930	Dec. 10, 1917
Robert Harnden	Callf	Consul	Göteborg	July 22, 1930	May 9, 1930	Nov. 8, 1917
*Karl deG. MacVitty	Tenn	Consuland second sec- retary.	Panamá	Oct. 4, 1933	May 9, 1930	Aug. 23, 1917
James P. Moffitt	N. Y	Consul	Stuttgart	Dec. 18, 1933	May 9.1930	Oct. 10, 1919
*Rudolf E. Schoenfeld	D. C	Second secretary	Department	Sept. 9, 1932	May 9, 1930	Oct 10, 1916
Samuel Sokobin	N. J	Consul	Saltillo		May 9, 1930	May 29, 1914
Francis R. Stewart	N. Y	Consul	Vlenna		May 9, 1930	Jan. 16, 1911
James G. Carter	Ga	Consul	Calais		July 24, 1930	Sept. 6, 1906
John Corrigan	Ga	Consul	Venice		July 24, 1930	Nov. 6, 1919
Leonard G. Dawson	Va	Consul	Munich		July 24, 1930	Oct. 22, 1918
James Orr Denby	Ind	First secretary	Dublln		July 24, 1930	Sept. 6, 1921
Maurice P. Dunlap	Minn	Consul	Dundee		July 24, 1930	Apr. 1, 1915
Edward M. Groth	N. Y	Consul	Capetown		July 24, 1930	July 1, 1920
Robert W. Helngartner	Ohio	Consul	Frankfort on the Main.		July 24, 1930	Mar. 25, 1904
•Curtls C. Jordan	Callf	Consul	Madrld		July 24, 1930	Feb. 29, 1920
Robert D. Longyear	Mass	Consul	Edinburgh		July 24, 1930	July 5, 1921
*John H. MacVeagh	N. Y	Second secretary and consul.	Monrovia		July 24, 1930	Sept. 12, 1921
II. Freeman Matthews	Md	First secretary	Habana	tNov. 27, 1933	July 24, 1930	Jan. 15, 1924
George Orr	N. J	Consul	Caracas		July 24, 1930	July 12, 1920
Walter II. Schoellkopf	N. Y	Second secretary	Madrid		July 24, 1930	Sept. 12, 1919
Richard L. Sprague	Mass	Consul	Gibraltar		July 24, 1930	Sept. 27, 1893
Paul C. Squire	Mass	Consul	Newcastle-on-Tyne		July 24, 1930	Nov. 17, 1919
Marshall M. Vance	Ohlo	Consul.	Windsor		July 24, 1930	July 5, 1921
Egmont C. von Tresckow.	S. C	Consul	Zagreb		July 24, 1930	July 6, 1921
Henry S. Waterman	Wash.	Consul	Sheffield		July 24, 1930	Jan. 25, 1917
Bartley F. Yost	Kans	Consul	Cologne		July 24, 1930	Oct. 26, 1908
*Hooker A. Doollttle	N. Y	Consul and second sec-	Tangier		Aug. 15, 1930	Jan. 29, 1917
		retary.	Department	141 Gy 0, 1833	1145. 10, 1800	

FOREIGN SERVICE OFFICERS OF CLASS V-Continued

Name	Whence ap- pointed	Designation	Post	Date of assignment	Date of ap- pointment to present class	Date of entry Into service
Howard K. Travers	N. Y	Consul	Southampton	Apr. 7,1933	Feb. 4, 1931	Aug. 13, 1919
Harold S. Tewell	N. Dak.	Consul	Habana	Jan. 13, 1933	Feb. 27, 1931	Feb. 6, 1920
*Willard L. Beaulac	R. I	Second secretary	Department	Apr. 20, 1933	July 1, 1931	Dec. 1, 1921
Richard P. Butrick	N. Y	Consul	Shanghal	Apr. 30, 1932	July 1,1931	Dec. 1, 1921
James Hugh Keeley, Jr	D. C	Consul	Montreal	Mar. 12, 1931	July 1,1931	Apr. 13, 1920
Renwick S. McNiece	Utah	Consul	Vigo	Dec. 22, 1931	July 1, 1931	July 8,1920
•Harold Shantz	N. Y	Consul	Moscow	‡Feb. 12,1934	July 1, 1931	Nov. 30, 1921
George P. Shaw	Calif	Consul	San Luis Potosi	Apr. 12, 1929	July 1,1931	Nov. 1, 1920
*Alexander K. Sloan	Pa	Consul	México, D.F	July 2, 1934	July 1, 1931	Feb. 8, 1921
Samuel R. Thompson	Calif	Consul	Valencia	Aug. 18, 1930	July 1, 1931	Nov. 20, 1916
Damon C. Woods	Tex	Consul	Toronto	Apr. 18, 1931	July 1,1931	Oct. 3, 1919

FOREIGN SERVICE OFFICERS OF CLASS VI

.

			1			(
Harris N. Cookingham	N.Y	Consul	Vancouver	Nov. 21, 1930	July 1, 1924	Dec. 16, 1910
*Donald R. Heath	Kans	Second secretary	Department	Aug. 17, 1933	May 17, 1928	Oct. 4, 1920
*Raleigh A. Gibson	111	Second secretary	Tegucigalpa	May 25, 1934	May 23, 1929	July 12,1920
Louis H. Gourley	111	Consul	Hong Kong	Sept. 6,1933	May 23, 1929	July 1, 1913
Robertson Honey	N. Y	Consul	Calgary	July 17,1933	May 23, 1929	May 11, 1914
*William J. McCafferty	Calif	Second secretary	San Salvador	Dec. 5, 1931	May 23, 1929	Apr. 16,1917
John J. Meily	Pa	Consul	Hamburg	Feb. 16, 1931	May 23, 1929	Oct. 2, 1919
Horace Remillard	Mass	Consul	Port Sald	Sept. 30, 1930	May 23, 1929	Aug. 24, 1909
*Winthrop R. Scott	Ohio	Second secretary	Santiago, Chile	Oct. 28, 1932	May 23, 1929	July 24, 1920
 Maurice L. Stafford 	Calif	Consul and first sec-	Kaunas	Jan. 6, 1932	May 23, 1929	Sept. 30, 1919
		retary.				
Herbert O. Williams			Veracruz	July 25, 1933	May 23, 1929	Aug. 14,1920
•Phillp Adams	-		St. John	Apr. 30, 1932	Oct. 16, 1929	Sept. 14, 1922
*John L. Bouchal			Montreal		Oct. 16, 1929	July 17,1912
Augustin W. Ferrin			Málaga		Oct. 16, 1929	June 23, 1924
•William P. George	Ala	Consul	Izmir	Oct. 12, 1932	Oct. 16, 1929	Oct. 28, 1916
*Charles A. Bay			Rome	Nov. 5, 1932	Dec. 19, 1929	Oct. 2, 1920
Hiram A. Boucher			Rome	Oct. 15, 1929	Dec. 19, 1929	Oct. 4, 1920
Edward S. Crocker, 2d			Tokyo		Dec. 19, 1929	Sept. 30, 1922
Carl A. Fisher			The Hague	Jan. 28, 1932	Dec. 19, 1929	Jan. 15,1924
Samuel J. Fletcher			Montreal	Nov. 15, 1930	Dec. 19, 1929	Oct. 19, 1917
Ilo C. Funk			Florence	Feb. 18, 1928	Dec. 19, 1929	Sept. 27, 1912
•Robert Y. Jarvis			Antofagasta	Jan. 29, 1934	Dec. 19, 1929	Nov. 26, 1921
Carl O. Spamer			Nagasaki		Dec. 19, 1929	§Oct. 6, 1919
Samuel H. Wiley					Dec. 19, 1929	June 23, 1914
James R. WilkInson					Dec. 19, 1929	July 2,1921
Harold Playter	Calif	Consul	St. Michael	Jan. 11, 1933	Dec. 26, 1929	Sept. 28, 1919
Walter S. Reineck	Ohlo	Consul	Santo Domingo	June 23, 1931	Dec. 31, 1929	Oct. 1,1914
*Donald F. Bigelow	Minn	Consui	Geneva	May 18, 1933	May 9, 1930	July 4,1921

104

REGISTER OF THE DEPARTMENT OF STATE

NameWhene politiedDesignationPostDate of assignmentDate of politiment to present classDate of serviceThomas D. Davis.Okia.Consul.Bergen.May 18, 1033May 9, 1060Mar, 26, 1915Samuel S. Dickson.N. MezSecond secretaryHinbana.Sept. 21, 1035May 9, 1060Mar, 26, 1915Walter A. Foote.N. Y.Consul.Denartment								
Samuel S. Dickson N. Mex. Second secretary. Habado D., Finley Ny. Y. 1033 May 9, 1930 Oct. 2, 1902 Waltr A. Foole Ter Consul Deoratment Jan. 8, 1931 May 9, 1930 Second secretary. Stanley Hawks N. Y. Consul Trieste June 8, 1931 May 9, 1930 Jan. 15, 1943 Stewart E. McMillin Kans Consul Lille Jan. 11, 1933 May 9, 1930 Sect. 29, 1902 Gaston Smith	Name	ap-	Designation	Post		pointment to	entry into	
Samuel S. Dickson N. Mex. Second secretary. Habado D., Finley Ny. Y. 1033 May 9, 1930 Oct. 2, 1902 Waltr A. Foole Ter Consul Deoratment Jan. 8, 1931 May 9, 1930 Second secretary. Stanley Hawks N. Y. Consul Trieste June 8, 1931 May 9, 1930 Jan. 15, 1943 Stewart E. McMillin Kans Consul Lille Jan. 11, 1933 May 9, 1930 Sect. 29, 1902 Gaston Smith	Thomas D. Davis	Okla	Conqui	Borgon	Mon 18 1022	Mor 0 1020	Mor 26 1015	
"Harold D., Finley								
Walter A. Foote. Ter Consult. Department. Jan 8,1034 May 9,1030 Aptr. 17, 1915 Stanley Hawks. N. Y Consult. Piedras Negras. Jan. 11, 1933 May 9,1930 Apt. 17, 1915 Stanley Hawks. N. Y Second secretary. Holdon. Feb. 20, 1930 May 9,1930 Sept. 23, 1927 Gaston Smith. La Consult. Lille. Jan. 1,1933 May 9,1930 Sept. 23, 1927 Gaston Smith. La Consult. Baths. Oct. 1,1933 May 9,1930 Apt. 3, 1912 Lewrence P, Briggs. Mich. Consult. Baths. Oct. 1,1933 May 9,1930 Apt. 1,1913 John S. Calvert. N. O. Consult. Regina. Mar. 21,192 Julp 24,1930 Apt. 1,1913 John S. Calvert. N. Y. Consult. Barcelona. Oct. 3,1932 Julp 24,1930 Apt. 1,1913 John Y. Consult. Consult. Barcelona. Oct. 3,1932<								
Bernard Gotleb	-							
Stante Hawks. N. Y. Second secretary Metrico, D.F. Feb. 20, 1300 May 6, 1930 Jan. 15, 1024 Walter T. Prendergat. Oho. Second secretary London Oct. 1, 1303 May 9, 1930 Age, 31, 101 Gibert R. Wilson. Ter. Consul. Line. Jan. 15, 1024 Jan. 26, 1030 Jan. 26, 1030 Jan. 26, 1030 Jan. 26, 1030 Jan. 26, 1034 Jan. 26, 1030 Jan.								
$ \begin{array}{c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c $								
Walter T. Prendergasl. Oblo. Second secretary. London. Oct. 1.103 May 9, 1930 Ost. 31, 1911 Gilbert R. Willson. Ter Consul. Bremen July 21, 1933 May 9, 1930 Oct. 6, 1917 Lew R. Blohm. Ariz Consul. Bahla. Oct. 2, 1929 July 24, 1300 May 9, 1343 Lewrence P. Briggs. Mich. Consul. Agna Prieta. Sept. 27, 1929 July 24, 1300 May 8, 1314 Lewris V. Boyle Calf. Consul. Department. Jan. 19, 1933 July 24, 1930 Nor. 21, 1916 John S. Calvert. N. C. Consul. Reginal. Mar 2, 1923 July 24, 1930 Apr. 1, 1916 Stillman W. Eells. N. Y. Consul. CardIff. Sept. 4, 1931 July 24, 1930 Apr. 1, 1916 Lynn W. Fnaklhn. Md. Consul. Bardia. Nov. 9, 1922 July 24, 1930 Apr. 4, 1930 Start G. Grammon N. Y. Consul. Bardia. Nov. 9, 1922 July 24, 1930 Nov. 2, 1921 Raymond H. Gelst.	-							
Gaston Smith								
Lee R. Blohm Ariz Consult Chihunhua June 24, 1934 Aug. 23, 1919 Lawrence P. Briggs Mich. Consult Agua Prieta Sept. 27, 1929 July 24, 1930 Sept. 30, 1919 Herbert S. Bursley D. C. Consult Department Jan. 19, 1933 July 24, 1930 Nov. 21, 1916 John S. Caivert N. O. Consult Porto Alegre Oct. 27, 1931 July 24, 1930 Apr. 1, 1916 Lynn W. Franklin Md Consult Cardiff Sept. 4, 1931 July 24, 1930 Apr. 1, 5161 Ugerhard Gade. III. Second secretary Athens. June 18, 1911 July 24, 1930 Oct. 37, 1922 *Waldemar J. Gallman N. Y. Consult Danzig. May 7, 1944 July 24, 1930 Oct. 37, 1922 *Waldemar J. Gallman N. Y. Consult Berlin Nov. 6, 1940 July 24, 1930 June 25, 1921 Hurmone N. J. Second secretary Department Nov. 6, 1940 July 24, 1930 Nov. 72, 51621 Wullam W. Heard Md Consult<		La						
Lawrence P. Briggs Mich Consul Bahla	Gilbert R. Willson	Tex	Consul	Bremen	July 21, 1932	May 9,1930	Oct. 6, 1917	
Lewis V. Boyle. Calif Consul. Agra Prleta. Sept. 71, 129 Iuly 24, 1930 Sopt. 30, 1919 Herbert S. Bursley. D. C Consul. Regina Mar. 21, 1932 July 24, 1930 June 1, 1914 Reginal S. Castleman. Calif. Consul. Porto Alegre. Oct. 27, 1981 July 24, 1930 June 1, 1914 Reginal G. Castleman. Calif. Consul. Cardiff. Sept. 4, 1981 July 24, 1930 Apr. 1, 1916 Lynn W. Franklin. Md Consul. Cardiff. Sept. 4, 1981 July 24, 1930 Oct. 3, 1922 "Waldemar J. Caliman. N. Y. Consul. Barcelona. Oct. 3, 1922 Stuart E. Grummon. N. J. Second secretary. Department. Nov. 6, 1930 July 24, 1930 June 25, 1902 Villama W. Head. Md Consul. Hamilton, Bermid. Apr. 6, 1941 July 24, 1930 June 28, 1902 Thomas McFeally. N. Y. Consul. Hamilton, Bermid. Apr. 6, 1941 July 24, 1930 Nor. 1, 1941 Lee D. Sturgeon. Hu.	Lee R. Blohm	Ariz	Consul	Chihuahua	June 29, 1934	July 24, 1930	Aug. 23, 1919	
Herbert S. Fursley	Lawrence P. Briggs	Mich	Consul	Bahia	Oct. 2, 1929	July 24, 1930	May 8, 1914	
John S. Calvert	Lewls V. Boyle		Consul	Agua Prieta	Sept. 27, 1929	July 24, 1930	Sept. 30, 1919	
Reginald S. Castleman. Catlf. Consul. Parto Alegre Oct. 27, 1931 July 24, 1930 Apr. 15, 1919 Stillman W. Eells. N. Y. Consul. Gardiff. Sept. 4, 1931 July 24, 1930 Apr. 1, 1916 Gerhard Gade III. Second secretary. Athens. June 18, 1933 July 24, 1930 Oct. 73, 1922 Waldemar J. Gallman. N. Y. Consul. Danzig. May 7, 1934 July 24, 1930 Not. 7, 1922 Raymond H. Geist. Oho. Consul. Berlin. Nov. 10, 1942 July 24, 1930 Nov. 25, 1921 Stuart E. Grummon. N. J. Second secretary. Department. Nov. 6, 1030 July 24, 1930 July 24, 1930 Nov. 25, 1921 Andrew J. McConnico. Miss. Consul. Hamilton, Bermuda. Apr. 6, 1034 July 24, 1930 Nov. 10, 1914 Lee O. Sturgeon. N. Y. Consul. Bindspest. Mar. 13, 1831 July 24, 1930 Nov. 23, 1921 Lee O. Sturgeon. N. Y. Consul. Department. July 24, 1930 Mar. 3, 1933 <								
$ \begin{array}{c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c $								
Lynn W. Franklin Md Consul	-			~				
Gerhard Gade								
*Waldemar J. Gallman. N. Y. Consul. Danzig. May 7, 1934 July 24, 1930 Oct. 7, 1922 Raymond H. Geist. Oho. Consul. Berlin. Nov. 19, 1629 July 24, 1930 Nov. 25, 1621 Stuart E. Grummon. N. J. Second secretary Department. Nov. 6, 1933 July 24, 1930 Nov. 20, 1912 Charles H. Heisler. Del. Consul. Hamilton, Bermuda Apr. 6, 1933 July 24, 1930 June 22, 1902 Charles H. Heisler. Del. Consul. Hamilton, Bermuda Apr. 6, 1933 July 24, 1930 June 28, 1909 Thomas McEnelly. N. Y. Consul. Hamburg. Jun. 16, 1924 July 34, 1930 Nov. 23, 1921 Lester L. Schnare. Ga. Consul. Budapest. Mar. 3, 1931 July 24, 1930 Nov. 23, 1921 Leroy Webber. N. Y. Consul. Naples. Nov. 11, 1933 July 24, 1930 Not. 23, 1921 Juward F. Withey. Mide. Consul. Tsingtao. Sept. 5, 1931 Aug. 15, 1930 Mar. 9, 1920 Gilson G. Bla								
Raymond H, Geist Ohio Consul								
Stuart E, Grummon N. J Second secretary Department Nov. 6, 1930 July 24, 1930 Jan. 16, 1924 William W, Heard Md Consul				un of the				
Willam W, Heard Md Consul								
Charles H, Helsler Del Consul								
Andrew J. McConnico Miss Consul								
Thomas McEnelly N. Y Consul					1			
Lester L. Schnare Ga Consul								
Leo D. Sturgeon III Consul Department June 20, 1934 July 24, 1930 Oct. 30, 1920 Fletcher Warren Tex Consul Budapest Mar. 13, 1931 July 24, 1930 Nov. 23, 1921 Leroy Webber M. Y. Consul Naples Nov. 11, 1933 July 24, 1930 Mer. 3, 1913 Howard F. Withey Micb. Consul Naples Nov. 11, 1933 July 24, 1930 Oct. 4, 1919 David C. Berger Va Consul Geneva Oct. 15, 1927 Feb. 4, 1931 Mar. 9, 1920 Curtis T. Everett Tenn Consul Geneva Oct. 16, 1927 Feb. 4, 1931 Jan. 2, 1916 Second secretary La Paz June 11, 1928 Feb. 4, 1931 July 24, 1910 *Robert F. Fernald Me Second secretary Fankfort on the Main Feb. 4, 1931 July 24, 1910 *Lawrence E. Salisbury III Second secretary Moscow Feb. 7, 1934 May 27, 1921 Edwin A. Plitt Md Consul Faris Nov. 29, 1933 Feb. 4, 1931								
Fletcher Warren								
$ \begin{array}{c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c $								
Howard F. Withey Micb. Consul Naples Nov. 11, 1933 July 24, 1930 Oct. 4, 1919 David C. Berger Va Consul Tsingtao Sept. 5, 1931 Aug. 15, 1930 July 1, 1920 Glison G. Blake, Jr Md Consul Geneva Oct. 15, 1927 Feb. 4, 1931 Mar. 9, 1920 Curtis T. Everett Tenn. Consul. Geneva June 11, 1928 Feb. 4, 1931 Jaar. 2, 1916 Sydney B. Redecker N. Y Consul. Frankfort on the Main. Feb. 5, 1931 Feb. 4, 1931 June 29, 1920 *Edwin A. Plitt Md Consul. Paris Nov. 29, 1933 Feb. 4, 1931 May 27, 1921 *Loy W. Henderson Colo Second secretary Paris Nov. 29, 1933 Feb. 27, 1931 Nov. 30, 1923 *Loy W. Henderson Colo Second secretary Mascatlán Dec. 21, 1933 July 1, 1931 Aug. 15, 1922 *J. Rives Childs Va Second secretary Mascatlán Dec. 21, 1933 July 1, 1931 Aug. 15, 1922								
David C. Berger								
Gilson G. Blake, JrMdConsulGenevaOct. 15, 1927Feb. 4, 1931Mar. 9, 1920Curtis T. EverettTennConsulGenevaJune 11, 1928Feb. 4, 1931Oct. 29, 1919*Robert F. FernaldMeSecond secretaryLa PaztAug. 22, 1033Feb. 4, 1931July 2, 1919*Laurence E. Salisbury.IIISecond secretaryFrankfort on the MainFeb. 5, 1931Feb. 4, 1931July 24, 1919*Laurence E. Salisbury.IIISecond secretaryPeipingMay 18, 1933Feb. 4, 1931Jung 29, 1920*Edwin A. PlittMdConsulParisNov. 29, 1933Feb. 27, 1931May 27, 1921Edwin A. PlittMdConsulParisNov. 29, 1933Feb. 27, 1931Nov. 30, 1921*Loy W. HendersonColoSecond secretaryMoscow								
Curtls T. EverettTennConsul	Gllson G. Blake, Jr		Consul			Feb. 4,1931	Mar. 9, 1920	
Sydney B. Redecker N. Y	Curtls T. Everett	Tenn				Feb. 4, 1931	Oct. 29, 1919	
*Laurence E. Salisbury_ III	*Robert F. Fernald	Me	Second secretary	La Paz	‡Aug. 22, 1933	Feb. 4,1931	Jan. 2, 1916	
*Edwin F. Stanton Calif Consul	Sydney B. Redecker	N. Y	Consul	Frankfort on the Main.	Feb. 5, 1931	Feb. 4,1931	July 24, 1919	
Edwin A. Plitt	*Laurence E. Salisbury	Ill	Second secretary	Peiping	May 18, 1933	Feb. 4,1931		
*Loy W. Henderson Colo				Hankow				
*J. Rives Childs			Consul		1			
Charles H. Derry			-					
*Peter H. A. Flood 1 N. H Consul								
Richard Ford	•							
C. Porter Kuykendall Pa Consul Cherbourg						1 7 7		
Charles W. Lewis, Jr Mich Consul Madras Dec. 29, 1931 July 1, 1931 Apr. 12, 1923 Erik W. Magnuson III Consul Barranquilla Mar. 13, 1931 July 1, 1931 Oct. 6, 1919 James E. McKenna Mass Consul London June 30, 1934 July 1, 1931 June 1, 1925 Alfred T. Nester N. Y Consul Palermo Apr. 19, 1933 July 1, 1931 Nov. 22, 1919 *William W. Schott Kans Second secretary México, D.F Apr. 19, 1933 July 1, 1931 Nov. 22, 1919 *William W. Schott								
Erik W. Magnuson Ill Consul Barranquilla Mar. 13, 1931 July 1, 1931 Oct. 6, 1919 James E. McKenna Mass Consul London June 30, 1934 July 1, 1931 June 1, 1925 Alfred T. Nester N. Y. Consul Palermo Apr. 19, 1933 July 1, 1931 Nov. 22, 1919 *William W. Schott Kans Second secretary México, D.F Aug. 22, 1933 July 1, 1931 Aug. 16, 1922 *Robert Lacy Smyth ² Calif Consul Nanking Sept. 19, 1932 July 1, 1931 Sept. 10, 1920 Harry L Troutman Ga Consul Salonika Mar. 6, 1933 July 1, 1931 Sept. 8, 1919 Rollin R. Winslow Mich Consul Plymouth June 11, 1934 Oct. 1, 1920 Leslie E. Woods Mass Consul Cork Dec. 1, 1932 July 1, 1931 Dec. 30, 1922	-							
James E. McKenna Mass Consul London June 30, 1934 July 1, 1931 June 1, 1925 Alfred T. Nester N. Y Consul Palermo Apr. 19, 1933 July 1, 1931 Nov. 22, 1919 *William W. Schott Kans Second secretary México, D.F								
Alfred T. Nester N. Y Consul. Palermo. Apr. 19,1933 July 1,1931 Nov. 22,1919 *William W. Schott Kans Second secretary México, D.F Aug. 22,1933 July 1,1931 Aug. 16,1922 *Robert Lacy Smyth ² Calif Consul Nanking Sept. 19,1932 July 1,1931 Sept. 10,1920 Harry L. Troutman	-							
•William W. Schott Kans								
•Robert Lacy Smyth ² Calif Consul								
Harry L. Troutman Ga Consul Salonika Mar. 6, 1933 July 1, 1931 Sept. 8, 1919 Rollin R. Winslow Mich Consul Plymouth June 11, 1934 July 1, 1931 Oct. 1, 1920 Leslie E. Woods Mass Consul Cork Dec. 1, 1932 July 1, 1931 Dec. 30, 1922								
Rollin R. Winslow Mich Consul Plymouth June 11, 1934 July 1, 1931 Oct. 1, 1920 Leslie E. Woods Mass Consul Cork Dec. 1, 1932 July 1, 1931 Dec. 30, 1922				-	-			
Leslie E. Woods Mass Consul Cork Dec. 1, 1932 July 1, 1931 Dec. 30, 1922	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·					-		
					1			
]	

FOREIGN SERVICE OFFICERS OF CLASS VI-Continued

¹ Detailed temporarily to the Department.

² Designated also second secretary of legation.

FOREIGN SERVICE OFFICERS OF CLASS VII

Name	Whence ap- pointed	Designation	Post	Date of assignment	Date of ap- pointment to present class	Date of entry into service
Frank Bohr	Kans	Consul	Sault Ste. Marie	May 24, 1932	July 1,1924	July 1,1908
Harold M. Collins	Va	Consul	Edmonton	Apr. 29, 1931	May 17, 1928	Nov. 29, 1921
Walter H. McKinney	Mich	Consul	Yarmouth	Dec. 23, 1931	May 17, 1928	Nov. 1, 1923
Edward Caffery	La	Consul	Niagara Falls.	Mar. 10, 1931	May 23, 1929	Dec. 1, 1921
Charles L. De Vault	Ind	Consul	Paris	Oct. 25, 1933	May 23, 1929	Feb. 7, 1918
Herndon W. Goforth	N. C	Consul		Feb. 7, 1933	May 23, 1929	Nov. 1, 1919
Christian T. Steger	Va	Consul	Beirut	Nov. 20, 1931	May 23, 1929	Jan. 2, 1920
Horatio Mooers	M e	Consul	Toronto	July 17, 1933	Oct. 16, 1929	Jan. 27, 1919
Christian M. Ravndal.	Iowa	Consul		June 7, 1933	Oct. 16, 1929	Nov. 26, 1920
Francis H, Styles ¹	Va	Consul	Chihuahua	Jan. 28, 1930	Oct. 16, 1929	June 21, 1920
William E. De Courcy	Tex	Consul		Apr. 21, 1928	Dec. 19, 1929	Jan. 1, 1922
Richard M. de Lambert.	N.Mex.	Second secretary		Sept. 19, 1933	Dec. 19, 1929	July 16, 1915
Howard Donovan	III	Consul	Kobe	Sept. 5, 1929	Dec. 19, 1929	Nov. 29, 1921
Albert M. Doyle	Mich	Consul	Sydney, N.S.W	Dec. 23, 1930	Dec. 19, 1929	Aug. 11. 1922
Ray Fox	Calif	Consul		Sept. 19, 1933	Dec. 19, 1929	Sept. 27, 1920
Joseph G. Groeninger	Md	Consul	Karachi	Dec. 23, 1931	Dec. 19, 1929	Jan. 1, 1912
Richard B. Haven	III	Consul	Turin	Mar. 6, 1933	Dec. 19, 1929	§May 28, 1918
*Thomas S. Horn	Mo	Consul		Mar. 13, 1934	Dec. 19, 1929	Aug. 16, 1922
•Clarence E. Macy	Colo	Consul	Tampico	May 17, 1930	Dec. 19, 1929	Apr. 1, 1921
Nelson R. Park	Colo	Consul	-	Sept. 18, 1930	Dec. 19, 1929	July 11, 1919
E. Talbot Smith	Conn	Consul	Milan	June 30, 1932	Dec. 19, 1929	Dec. 1, 1921
*George P. Waller	Ala	Second secretary and	Brussels and Luxem-	Mar. 10, 1931	Dec. 19, 1929	Mar. 1, 1913
-		consul.	burg.			
*Sidney E. O'Donoghue	N.J	Second secretary		May 22, 1934	Dec. 26, 1929	Apr. 6, 1920
Thomas H. Robinson	N. J	Consul		Mar. 3, 1933	Dec. 31, 1929	Aug. 16, 1922
Maurice W. Altaffer	Ohio	Consul	Zürich	May 31, 1933	May 9, 1930	Oct. 28, 1921
John F, Huddleston	Ohio	Consul	Dresden	May 31, 1933	May 9, 1930	Nov. 3, 1923
Carl D. Meinhardt	N. Y	*Consul	Shanghai	Apr. 1,1932	May 9,1930	Apr. 20, 1912
Harvey Lee Milbourne	W. Va.	Consul	Quebec	May 25, 1932	May 9,1930	Sept. 12, 1919
Hugh S. Miller	III	Consul	Durban	July 31,1931	May 9,1930	Mar. 1, 1921
Julian L. Pinkerton	Ку	Consul	Rio de Janeiro	Mar. 25, 1931	May 9, 1930	Jan. 10, 1920
Mason Turner	Conn	Consul	Malta	Aug. 18, 1931	May 9,1930	Nov. 4, 1923
George Atcheson, Jr	Calif	Consul	Tientsin	17,1928 May 17,1928	July 24, 1930	Sept. 10, 1920
Ralph A. Boernstein	D. C	Consul	Department	Feb. 15, 1934	July 24, 1930	Dec. 15, 1916
Russell M. Brooks	Oreg	Consul	Curaçao	June 29,1933	July 24,1930	Aug. 13, 1919
Ernest E. Evans	N. Y	Consul	Bradford	Dec. 15, 1933	July 24,1930	Nov. 8, 1917
George Gregg Fuller	Calif	Consul	Kingston, Ont	Mar. 7, 1928	July 24,1930	Nov. 20, 1920
Harvey T. Goodier	N. Y	Consul	Vancouver	Feb. 13,1928	July 24,1930	Nov. 8, 1915
Leonard N. Green	Minn	Consul		Dec. 21, 1933	July 24,1930	May 23, 1921
•John N. Hamlin	Oreg	Consul	Naples	Dec. 15, 1933	July 24,1930	Nov. 8, 1924
Joel C. Hudson	Mo	Consul	Surabaya	Mar. 6, 1933	July 24,1930	Apr. 12, 1923
George R. Hukill	Del	Consul		Aug. 15, 1933	July 24, 1930	Apr. 12, 1923
Marcel E. Malige	Idaho	Consul	Warsaw	Oct. 11, 1933	July 24, 1930	July 14,1921
John J. Muccio	R. I	Consul	Shanghai	Feb. 7,1931	July 24,1930	Aug. 29, 1921
Quincy F. Roberts	Tex	Consul	Saigon	Nov. 7,1932	July 24, 1930	Apr. 17,1915
William A. Smale	Calif	Consul	Ensenada	Nov. 7,1930	July 24, 1930	Fcb. 23, 1919
Harry E. Stevens	Calif	Consul		Apr. 1,1932	July 24,1930	Oct. 2, 1922
Frederik van den Arend.		Consul	Amsterdam	Dec. 29,1932	July 24, 1930	Nov. 3, 1923
Howard A. Bowman		Consul		May 24, 1932	Feb. 4,1931	Oct. 8, 1919
John H. Bruins		Consul	Hamburg	Oct. 20, 1931	Feb. 4, 1931	Oct. 8, 1923
Joseph F. Burt		Consul	Department	Aug. 28, 1933	Feb. 4, 1931	Mar. 1, 1920
William W. Corcoran		Consul		Feb. 7,1933	Feb. 4,1931	June 28, 1920
C. Paul Fletcher		Consul	Department	June 27, 1933	Feb. 4, 1931	July 19, 1924
Austin R. Preston		Consul		Dec. 23, 1930	Feb. 4,1931	Oct. 16, 1922
•Edwin Schoenrich	Md	Consul	Santlago, Cuba	Jan. 16,1931	Feb. 4,1931	Nov. 6, 1924

¹ Detailed temporarily to the Department.

Name	Whence ap- pointed	Designation	Post	Date of assignment	Date of ap- pointment to present class	Date of entry into service
Winfield H. Scott George E. Seltzer Sheridan Talbott Lawrence S. Armstrong Alfred D Cameron *Paul W. Meyer *George Alexander Arm- strong. John W. Balley, Jr *Ellis O. Briggs Culver B. Chamberlain *Allan Dawson Samuel G. Ebling Franklin C. Gowen George J. Haering *Eugene M. Hinkle Benjamin M. Hulley *David McK. Key J. Hall Paxton John S. Richardson, Jr *Artbur F. Tower John Carter Vincent. *David Williamson	D. C N. Y Ky N. Y Wash Colo N. Y Ter Maine. Mo Iowa Ohio Pa N. Y Fla Kass N. Y Ga Colo	Consul	Hankow Bogotá Lourenço Marques London Pernambuco Buenos Aires Nantes Department Canton Winnipeg México, D.F Dairen Bern	tJuly 21, 1932 Aug. 22, 1933 Dec. 16, 1932 tDec. 5, 1933 Oct 21, 1933 June 18, 1931 July 31, 1933 Oct. 6, 1933 June 20, 1934 Aug. 31, 1933 Mar. 5, 1932 Jan. 11, 1932 Feb. 7, 1934	Feb. 4,1931 Feb. 4,1931 Feb. 4,1931 Feb. 27,1931 Feb. 27,1931 Feb. 27,1931 Feb. 27,1931 Feb. 27,1931 July 1,1931 July 1,1931 July 1,933 July 1,931 July 1,	Apr. 18, 1921 Oct. 14, 1918 Nov. 16, 1923 Nov. 3, 1923 Apr. 12, 1923 May 9, 1924 Nov. 5, 1924 Mar. 19, 1924 Nov. 2, 1925 Sept. 10, 1920 Apr. 20, 1925 July 11, 1921 Jan. 17, 1920 Nov. 6, 1924 Nov. 2, 1925 Nov. 6, 1924 Apr. 20, 1925 Jan. 8, 1921 Apr. 12, 1923 May 11, 1924 Apr. 30, 1925 Apr. 20, 1925 Apr. 20, 1925 Apr. 20, 1925
*Clayson W. Aldridge					Jan. 15, 1934	§Jan. 11, 1934

FOREIGN SERVICE OFFICERS OF CLASS VII-Continued

FOREIGN SERVICE OFFICERS OF CLASS VIII

	[
G. Carlton Woodward	Pa	Consul	Prince Rupert	June 21, 1927	July 1 1924	June 10, 1904
William H. Beach	Va	Consul	Antwerp	Sept. 18, 1931	Oct 16, 1929	Nov. 6, 1924
C. Warwick Perkins, Jr	Md	Consul	Warsaw	Feb. 2, 1932	Oct 16 1929	Nov. 6, 1924
*Robert B. Streeper	Ohio	Consul	Nairobi	Feb. 7, 1934	Oct. 16, 1929	Sept. 4, 1924
*Whitney Young	N. Y	Consul	Tientsin	July 1, 1933	Oct. 16, 1929	Aug. 16, 1924
William E. Beltz	N. Y	Consul	Berlin	tDec. 19, 1929	Dec. 19, 1929	Apr. 18, 1923
*Selden Chapin	Pa	Third secretary	Quito	Nov. 3, 1932	Doc. 19, 1929	Apr. 20, 1925
*Winthrop S. Greene	Mass	Consul and third sec-	Bogotá	Jan. 2, 1934	Dec 19, 1929	July 3, 1924
-		retary.	0			
Dale W. Maher	Mo	Consul	Medan	Sept. 6, 1933	Dec. 19.1929	Feb. 25, 1925
*Edward J. Sparks	N. Y	Third secretary	Santiago, Chile	tApr. 18, 1930	Dec. 19, 1929	Dec. 1, 1921
*Cyril L. F. Thiel	III	Consul and third sec-	Helsingfors	Jan. 22, 1934	Dec. 19, 1929	Nov. 6, 1924
		retary.				
*Angus I. Ward	Mich	Consul	Moscow	Feb. 10, 1934	Dec. 19, 1929	Apr. 20, 1925
*McCeney Werlich	D. C	Third secretary	Paris	Dec. 26, 1933	Dec. 19, 1929	Nov. 2, 1925

FOREIGN SERVICE OFFICERS OF CLASS VIII-Continued

Name	Whence ap- pointed	Designation	Post	Date of assignment	Date of appointment to present class	Date of entry into service
Clifton R. Wharton	Mass	Consul	Las Palmas	June 27, 1930	Dec. 19, 1929	Apr. 14, 1925
Lloyd D. Yates	D. C	Consul	Hamburg	Sept. 9, 1930	Dec. 19, 1929	Nov. 2, 1925
•Edward P. Lawton]	Third secretary	Guatemala	May 13, 1932	Dec. 19, 1929	Nov. 2, 1925
Julian F. Harrington	Mass	Consul	Ottawa	tJan. 22, 1930	Dec. 31, 1929	Apr. 19, 1921
William Clarke Vyse	D. C	Consul	Shanghal	Nov. 20, 1931	Dec. 31, 1929	June 18, 1920
William A. Bickers	Va	Consul	London, Ont	May 15, 1933	Apr. 15, 1930	July 20, 1914
John M. Cabot	Mass	Third secretary	Rio de Janeiro	May 12, 1932	Apr. 15, 1930	Oct. 1, 1926
Knox Alexander	Mo	Consul	Cienfuegos	June 10, 1931	May 9, 1930	Dec. 19, 1917
Prescott Childs	Mass	Consul.	Berlin	June 20, 1934	May 9, 1930	Nov. 6, 1924
*Lewis Clark	Ala	Third secretary	Peiping	tJuly 21, 1932	May 9, 1930	Nov. 2, 1925
•William M. Gwynn	Calif	Third secretary	Riga	July 8, 1931	May 9,1930	Oct. 1, 1926
•George F. Kennan	Wis	Third secretary	Moscow	tFeb. 12, 1934	May 9, 1930	Oct. 1, 1926
•Gordon P. Merriam	Mass	Consul	Cairo	July 28, 1931	May 9, 1930	Oct. 1, 1926
*Samuel Reber	N. Y	Third secretary	Bern	Aug. 29, 1931	May 9, 1930	Oct. 1, 1920
Joseph C. Satterthwaite.	1	Third secretary	Buenos Aires	Jan. 2, 1934	May 9, 1930	July 16, 1924
•S. Walter Washington	W. Va.	Third secretary	Bogotá	Mar. 31, 1934	May 9, 1930	Oct. 1, 1924
Roy W. Baker	N. Y	Consul	Bristol	Jan. 8, 1931	July 24, 1930	Mar. 11, 1919
Ellis A. Bonnet	Tex	Consul	Durango	tJuly 24, 1930	July 24, 1930	May 1, 1921
•Robert L. Buell.	N. Y	Consul	Colombo	June 19, 1933	July 24, 1930	Apr. 20, 1925
Leo J. Callanan	Mass	Consul.	Aden	Sept. 19, 1933	July 24, 1930	Sept. 4, 1923
Augustus S. Chase	Conn	Consul.	Mukden	Jan. 23, 1932	July 24, 1930	Nov. 2, 1925
Alexander P. Cruger	N. Y	Consul.	Funchal	-	- ,	Oct. 7, 1923
Julian C. Dorr	N. Y	Consul	Department.	May 18, 1933 May 27, 1932	July 24, 1930 July 24, 1930	Dec. 1, 1921
Frederick W. Hinke	N. Y	Consul	Swatow		July 24, 1930	Feb. 22, 1923
*Julius C. Holmes	Kans	Third secretary	Department	Dec. 21, 1933 June 6, 1934		Apr. 20, 1925
Carlton Hurst	D. C	Consul.	-	· ·	July 24, 1930 July 24, 1930	May 1, 1914
Rufus H. Lane, Jr.1	Va	Consul	Penang Patras	Mar. 6, 1933 Oct. 29, 1931		Nov. 6, 1924
John H. Lord	Mass	Consul	Department	June 15, 1934	July 24, 1930 July 24, 1930	Mar. 1, 1920
John H. Morgan	Mass	Consul	Department	Nov. 8, 1933	July 24, 1930	Nov. 2, 1925
James E. Parks	N. C	Consul				Apr. 4, 1920
William L. Peck	Conn	Consul		· · ·	July 24, 1930	
George Tait	Va	Consul		July 14, 1932	July 24, 1930	
•William T. Turner	Ga	Third secretary		Sept. 16, 1933	July 24, 1930	Oct. 31, 1923 Apr. 26, 1924
Roy E. B. Bower	Calif	Consul		Jan. 3,1930	July 24, 1930	
John E. Holler	Pa	Consul		Oct. 2, 1933	Aug. 15, 1930	Dec. 17, 1920
•John McArdle	Pa	Consul and third sec-	San José, Costa Rica Sofia	Jan. 2,1934	Aug 15, 1930	Sept. 12, 1921
JUILI MICATUB	18	retary.	5008	May 5, 1932	Aug. 15, 1930	Apr. 12, 1923
Franklin B. Atwood	Mass	Consul	Santlago, Chile	Sept. 8,1931	Feb. 4, 1931	Feb. 9, 1924
J. Holbrook Chapman	D. C	Consul	Tokyo	Oct. 7, 1933	Feb. 4,1931	Oct. 16, 1919
Cabot Coville	Calif	Consul		Jan. 25, 1932	Feb. 4,1931	Oct. 1, 1926
*Fayette J. Flexer	111	Third secretary	Department	Feb. 16, 1934	Feb. 4, 1931	§Juna 2, 1925
Knowlton V. Hlcks	N. Y	Consul		Dec. 17, 1931	Feb. 4, 1931	Oct. 13, 1923
Joseph P. Ragland	D. C	Consul		‡Feb. 4,1931	Feb. 4, 1931	Nov. 6, 1924
•George H. Butler	III	Consul and third sec-	Asunción	Jan. 29, 1934	Feb. 27,1931	Oct. 1, 1926
John D. Kataham	N. Y	retary.	m. h. i.	0	D-1 07 1001	0.1 1 1000
•Walton C. Ferris	Wis		Taihoku	Sept. 22, 1931	Feb. 27, 1931	Oct. 1, 1926
malton C. Ferris	W 15	Consul	Department	Jan. 11, 1934	Jan. 15, 1934	§Jan. 11,1934
				1		

¹Detailed temporarily to the Department.

REGISTER OF THE DEPARTMENT OF STATE

FOREIGN SERVICE OFFICERS, UNCLASSIFIED (A)

Name	Whence ap- pointed	Designation	Post	Date of assignment	Date of ap- pointment to present class	Date of entry into service
Herbert C. Biar	Ind	Vice consul	Göteborg	Apr. 10, 1928	Dec. 2, 1929	Sept. 1, 1911
Joseph L. Brent	Md	Vice consul			Dec. 2, 1929	Sept. 19, 1926
Joseph 1. Touchette	Mass	Vice consul			Dec. 2, 1929	Nov. 14, 1921
Albert W. Scott	Mo	Vice consul	Belfast		Dec. 26, 1929	Feb. 20, 1920
Gordon L. Burke	Ga	Vice consul			Dec. 31, 1929	July 22, 1921
Henry A. W. Beck		Vice consul			Apr. 16, 1930	Oct. 1, 1926
•John B. Faust	S. C	Vice consul	Lisbon		Apr. 16, 1930	Oct. 1, 1926
Carlos C. Hali	Ariz	Vice consul			Apr. 16, 1930	Feb. 16, 1927
*Lawrence Higgins		Vice consul	Oslo	Mar. 13, 1934	Apr. 16, 1930	Oct. 1, 1926
Gerald Keith	III	Vice consul	Calcutta	Sept. 4,1931	Apr. 16, 1930	Feb. 24, 1927
*Kennett F. Potter	Mo	Vice consul and third secretary.	Bangkok		Apr. 16,1930	Feb. 21, 1927
Edward B. Rand	La	Vice consul	Tabiti	Sept. 29, 1932	Apr. 16,1930	Feb. 21, 1924
*Glenn A. Abbey.		Third secretary			July 10,1930	Oct. 12, 1927
*George M. Abbott		Third secretary			July 10,1930	Sept. 26, 1927
*LaVerne Baldwin	N. Y	Vice consul	-		July 10,1930	July 1, 1926
Norton F. Brand	N.Dak.	Consul	Calgary		July 10,1930	Oct. 2, 1917
Sidney H. Browne		Vice consul	Batavia	Sept. 20, 1933	July 10,1930	Sept. 29, 1927
*Paul C. Daniels		Third secretary and vice consul.	Managua	Aug. 19, 1932	July 10,1930	Sept. 29, 1927
Horace J. Dickinson	Ark	Consul	Antilla	Feb. 7, 1922	July 10, 1930	July 6, 1909
•Raymond A. Hare	Iowa	Vice consul and third secretary.	Teheran	Aug. 28, 1933	July 10, 1930	Apr. 1, 1927
Terry S. Hinkle	N. Y	Vice consul	Halifax	Feb. 3,1931	July 10,1930	Sept. 27, 1927
*Cloyce K. Huston	Iowa	Vice consul and third secretary.	Tirana		July 10, 1930	July 1, 1925
John S. Littell	N. Y	Vice consul	México, D.F.	Aug. 11, 1931	July 10, 1930	June 25, 1928
*Andrew G. Lynch	N. Y D. C	Vice consul and third secretary.	Bangkok	Feb. 16, 1932 Nov. 27, 1931	July 10,1930 July 10,1930	Feb. 26, 1927 Oct. 1, 1926
Hugh F. Ramsay Alan S. Rogers	Calif	Vice consul	Paris	Apr. 8, 1931	July 10, 1930	Sept. 29, 1927
*W. Quincy Stanton	N. Y	Vice consul and third	San Salvador	Dec. 4, 1931	July 10, 1930	Mar. 1, 1927
Thomas C. Wasson	N. J	secretary.	Naples	Mar. 6, 1933	July 10, 1930	Jan. 11, 1925
George H. Winters	Kans	Vice consul	Guadalajara	June 19, 1934	July 10, 1930	Apr. 1, 1925
Odin G. Loren	Wash	Vice consul	Buenos Aires	May 23, 1934	Aug. 16, 1930	Feb. 14, 1920
Edward S. Maney	Tex	Vice consul	Southampton	Oct. 12, 1931	Aug. 16, 1930	June 12, 1923
*James L. Park	Pa	Vice consul and third secretary.	Addis Ababa	June 15, 1928	Aug. 16, 1930	Aug. 27, 1921
*Archer Woodford	Ky	Vice consul	Berlin	Mar. 26, 1930	Aug. 16, 1930	June 2, 1923
*Morris N. Hughes	III	Third secretary	Tokyo	Oct. 3, 1933	Sept. 4, 1930	Oct. 25, 1923
Phil H. Hubbard	Vt	Vice consul	Liverpool	June 29, 1931	Oct. 7, 1930	Mar. 23, 1926
*H. Merrell Benninghoff.	N. Y	Vice consul	Yokohama	Aug. 12, 1931	Jan. 21, 1931	Mar. 23, 1927
*Cavendish W. Cannon	Utah	Vice consul and third secretary.	Sofia	Apr. 19, 1933	Jan. 21, 1931	Mar. 2, 1920
*Cecil Wayne Gray	Tenn	Third secretary	Vienna	June 13, 1934	Jan. 21, 1931	July 5, 1923
*Landreth M. Harrison	Minn	Third secretary	Department	July 23, 1932	Jan. 21, 1931	Sept. 26, 1927
Kenneth C. Krentz	Iowa	Vice consul	Kobe	July 1,1932	Jan. 21, 1931	Mar. 11, 1926
*Gerald A. Drew	Calif	Third secretary	San José, Costa Rica	June 20, 1934	Jan. 23, 1931	Sept. 29, 1927
Edmund O. Clubb	Minn	Vice consul	Hankow	Mar. 12, 1931	Mar. 1, 1931	July 1, 1928
•George D. LaMont	N. Y	Vice consul and third secretary.	Kaunas	July 21, 1930	Mar. 1, 1931	Aug. 31, 1927
Horace H. Smith	Ohio	Vice consul	Canton	June 18, 1931	Mar. 1, 1931	Nov. 6, 1928
*George D. Andrews, Jr	Tenn	Third secretary	Tokyo	Nov. 10, 1933	Apr. 17, 1931 Apr. 17, 1931	Sept. 29, 1927 Sept. 29, 1927
 Perry N. Jester Miss Frances E. Willis 	Va Calif	Vice consul	Barbados	Dec. 3, 1932 June 29, 1934	Apr. 17, 1931 Apr. 17, 1931	Sept. 29, 1927 Sept. 29, 1927
172 185 1 TALLOS D. W HIS	Call	Third secretary	Brussels	June 29, 1934	wht. 11,1901	Nope. 20, 1021

CLASSIFICATION OF FOREIGN SERVICE OFFICERS

FOREIGN SERVICE OFFICERS, UNCLASSIFIED (B)

Name	Whence ap- pointed	Designation	Post	Date of assignment	Date of ap- pointment to present class	Date of entry into service
*Burton Y. Berry	Ind	Vice consul and third secretary.	Teheran	Jan. 19, 1934	Dec. 2, 1929	May 21, 1928
*Robert English	Mass	Third secretary	Budapest	Jan. 26, 1932	Dec. 2, 1929	July 14, 1927
*George M. Graves	Vt	Third secretary and	Managua		Dec. 2, 1929	Jan. 20, 1928
		vice consul.			2000 201020	
*Randolph Harrison, Jr	V8	Third secretary	Rome	Apr. 29, 1933	Dec. 2, 1929	Jan. 20, 1928
*James S. Moose, Jr		Vice consul and third secretary.	Baghdad		Dec. 2, 1929	Jan. 17, 1928
Henry S Villard		Vice consul			Dec. 2, 1929	June 9,1928
Walter N. Walmsley, Jr		Vice consul			Dec. 2, 1929	July 23, 1927
*Carlos J. Warner	Ohio	Vice consul	Colón	Jan. 2, 1934	Dec. 26, 1929	Sept. 3, 1928
*Robert Y, Brown		Vice consul			Dec. 31, 1929	May 21, 1928
*Edward G. Trueblood	m	Third secretary	San José, Costa Rica	Apr. 29, 1931	Dec. 31, 1929	June 5, 1928
*Garrat G. Ackerson, Jr	N I	Vice consul	Copenhagen	Nov. 14, 1933	Apr. 16, 1930	July 8, 1928
*James E. Brown, Jr	Pa	Third secretary	Santo Domingo	Oct. 29, 1931	Apr. 16, 1930	July 7, 1928
*William W. Butter- worth, Jr.	La		London	Dec. 5, 1933	Apr. 16, 1930	June 2,1928
William P Cochran, Jr			,	Feb. 20, 1932	Apr. 16, 1930	June 20, 1928
*Robert D. Coe		Third secretary		1	Apr. 16, 1930	Sept. 3, 1928
Monroe B. Hall		Vice consul		Jan. 23, 1932	Apr. 16, 1930	July 7, 1928
*Robert P. Joyce.	Calif		Panamá		Apr. 16, 1930	July 1,1928
*Bertel E. Kuniholm				Feb. 6, 1934	Apr. 16, 1930	June 18, 1928
Charles S. Reed, 2d			Yünnanfu	Apr. 2, 1932	Apr 16, 1930	June 12, 1928
*Stanley G. Slavens		secretary.		Jan. 2, 1934	Apr. 16, 1930	May 21, 1928
•Julius Wadsworth	Conn		Shanghai	· · ·	Apr. 16, 1930	Aug. 25, 1928
*Hiram Bingham, Jr			London	Oct. 12, 1933	July 10, 1930	§May 1,1929
*Charles E. Bohlen			Moscow		July 10, 1930	May 1, 1929
Daniel M. Braddock			Barcelona		July 10, 1930	May 1, 1929
Warren M. Chase	lnd		Amsterdam		July 10, 1930	Feb. 9, 1929
*Norris B. Chipman			Department		July 10, 1930	Nov. 6, 1928
Archibald E. Oray			Bordeaux	Apr. 11, 1931	July 10, 1930	June 5, 1928
*Frederick F. Latimer, Jr		Vice consul and third secretary.		June 21, 1933	July 10. 1930	Dec. 27, 1928
*Robert G. McGregor, Jr.			burg	‡Aug. 12,1933	Juny 10, 1930	June 28, 1929
*Ralph Miller		Third secretary	Montevideo	Dec. 9, 1931	July 10, 930	Dec. 4, 1928
*Sheldon T. Mills		Vice consul		June 20, 1934	July 10, 1930	Nov. 12, 1928
James B. Pilcher			Harbin	Oct. 21, 1933	July 10, 1930	Nov. 6, 1928
R. Borden Reams			Port Elizabeth	Oct. 20, 1933	July 10, 1930	Feb. 4, 1929
†Arthur R. Ringwalt				July 23, 1932	July 10, 1930	May 21, 1928
Llewellyn E. Thompson, Jr.	Colo	Vice consul		Mar. 6, 1933	July 10,1930	Feb. 12, 1929
Stuart Allen				Sept. 12, 1929	Aug. 16, 1930	July 1, 1929
Albert E. Clattenburg, Jr.			Athens		Aug. 16, 1930	July 1, 1929
Dorsey Gassaway Fisher_					Aug. 16, 1930	Apr. 30, 1929
Harold B. Minor *Alvin T. Rowe, Jr	Kans Va	Third secretary and vice consul.	Rio de Janeiro Bogotá	June 15, 1931 July 8, 1931	Sept 4,1930 Sept. 4,1930	Nov. 28, 1927 June 30, 1929
Sidney A. Belovsky	N. Y	Vice consul	Dublin	July 8, 1931	Jan 21, 1931	Apr. 19, 1921
*James C. H. Bonbright_		Third secretary			Jan. 21,1931	Sept. 29, 1927
John H. Madonne	Tex		Beirut.		Jan. 21,1931	July 1, 1929
Edward T. Wailes					Jan. 21,1931	Oct. 22, 1929
Robert S. Ward	Ohio			July 26, 1933	Jan. 21,1931	July 1, 1929
*James W. Gantenbein.	Oreg			tJuly 10, 1933	Mar. 1, 1931	Oct. 22, 1929
*Claude H. Hall, Jr		Vice consul			Mar. 1,1931	Aug. 10, 1925

Name	Whence ap- pointed	Designation	Post	Date o: assignment	Date of ap- pointment to present class	Date of entry into service
Elvin Seihert Andrew W. Edson George Bliss Lane James W. Riddleberger *John C. Shillock, Jr	Conn N. Y Va	Vice consul	Soutbampton Mukden Montreal Geneva. La Paz	June 14, 1932 May 26, 1932 May 31, 1933 Mar. 26, 1930 June 17, 1933	Mar. 1, 1931 Apr. 17, 1931 Apr. 17, 1931 Apr. 17, 1931 Apr. 17, 1931 Apr. 17, 1931	Oct. 26, 1929 Nov. 23, 1929 Nov. 20, 1929 Nov. 20, 1929 Nov. 12, 1929

FOREIGN SERVICE OFFICERS, UNCLASSIFIED (B)-Continued

FOREIGN SERVICE OFFICERS, UNCLASSIFIED (C)

And the second se						
Milton Patterson	Tenn	Vice consul	Ottawa	Dec. 20, 1932	Mar. 26, 1929	Sept. 30, 1929
Thompson.	DO	ITLes as were t	Dealin	NT 11 1000	N 10 1000	D., 8 1000
William W. Adams	Idaho	Vice consul	Berlin Warsaw		Nov. 12, 1929	Dec. 7.1929
William K. Ailshie			Harbin	Oct. 5, 1933	Nov. 12, 1929	Dec. 5, 1929
Ralph J. Blake	Oreg Calif			Mar. 6, 1933	Nov. 12, 1929	Nov. 19, 1929
•William F. Cavenaugh_				Dec. 7, 1932	Nov. 12, 1929	Dec. 9, 1929
Claude B. Chiperfield	IU			May 5, 1932	Nov. 12, 1929	Dec. 10, 1929
Montgomery H. Colla- day.		Vice consul	Basel	Nov. 17, 1933	Nov. 12, 1929	Nov. 22, 1929
Edmund J. Dorsz	Mlch		Kobe	Oct. 6, 1932	Nov. 12, 1929	Dec. 21, 1929
William S. Farrell	N. Y	Vice consul	Addis Ababa	Feb. 24, 1931	Nov. 12, 1929	Dec. 7, 1929
Frederic C. Fornes, Jr	N. Y	Vice consul		Nov. 8, 1930	Nov. 12, 1929	Dec. 17, 1929
Paul J. Gray	Mø		Stuttgart	Mar. 26, 1930	Nov. 12, 1929	Nov. 20, 1929
*Bernard Guffer1.	Wash	Third secretary	Warsaw	‡June 17,1933	Nov. 12, 1929	Jan. 2, 1930
Thomas A. Hickok	N. Y	Vice consul	Jerusalem	Feb. 19, 1931	Nov. 12, 1929	Dec. 7, 1929
* Richard S. Huestis	N. Y	Third secretary	Warsaw	‡Oct. 14, 1933	Nov. 12, 1929	Nov. 26, 1929
Charles A. Hutchinson	Mlnn		Tokyo	Nov. 8, 1930	Nov. 12, 1929	Dec. 9, 1929
Robert Janz	Okla	Vice consul	Belfast	Sept. 4,1931	Nov. 12, 1929	Nov. 23, 1929
*†Edward Page, Jr	Mass	Vice consul	Paris	Oct. 13, 1933	Nov. 12, 1929	Dec. 7, 1929
William E. Scotten	Calif	Vice consul	Saigon	Nov. 8, 1930	Nov. 12, 1929	Dec. 6, 1929
Alan N. Steyne	N. Y	Vice consul	Hamburg	June 20, 1931	Nov. 12, 1929	Jan. 15, 1930
*Robert A. Acly	Mass		Tegucigalpa	Nov. 8,1930	Dec. 19, 1929	Jan. 14, 1930
		secretary.				
*Edward Anderson, Jr	Fla			June 20,1934	Dec. 19, 1929	Jan. 18, 1930
*Charles A. Converse	Ga			June 20, 1934	Dec. 19, 1929	May 1, 1930
*Hedley V. Cooke, Jr	N. J			Apr. 21,1933	Dec. 19, 1929	Nov. 20, 1928
*Willard Galbralth	Calif	Vice consul	São Paulo	Feb. 24, 1931	Dec. 19, 1929	Feb. 16, 1930
•Gerald A. Mokma	Iowa		Antwerp	Aug. 10, 1933	Dec. 19, 1929	June 26, 1926
*Rlchard W. Morln		Vice consul	Department	Nov. 14, 1932	Dec. 19, 1929	Mar. 1, 1929
*Kenneth S. Stout		Vice consul	Tela	Mar. 20, 1931	Dec. 19, 1929	Jan. 17, 1930
*James H. Wright	Mo		Cologne	July 9,1930	Dec. 19, 1929	Jan. 29, 1930
*Donal F. McGonlgal		Vice consul	Salonika	July 17,1930	Jan. 31, 1930	Nov. 8, 1925
•Waldo E. Bailey		Vice consul	Mérida	Nov. 11, 1933	Mar. 8, 1930	§July 27.1928
*George V. Allen 1	N. C		Shanghal	Nov. 8, 1930	Apr. 15, 1930	Apr. 30, 1930
*Henry B. Day	Conn		Manila	May 1,1934	Apr. 15, 1930	June 26, 1930
*Sherburne Dilllngham		Vice consul	São Paulo	June 20, 1931	Apr. 15, 1930	May 10, 1930
*Elbridge Durbrow	Calif			Feb. 10, 1934	Apr. 15, 1930	May 31, 1930
*Donald D. Edgar				Jan. 6, 1933	Apr. 15, 1930	May 13, 1930
*Hugh C. Fox	N.Y	Vice consul	Berlin	Dec. 7, 1932	Apr. 15, 1930	Apr. 25, 1930

[•] Detailed temporarily to the Department.

FOREIGN SERVICE OFFICERS, UNCLASSIFIED (C)-Continued

	1					
Name	Whence ap- pointed	Designation	Post	Date of assignment	Date of ap- pointment to present class	Date of entry into service
•Miss Constance R. Har- vey.	N. Y	Vice consul Milan June 20, 1931 Apr. 15, 1930		May 29, 1930		
*†Easton T. Kelsey	Mlch	Vice consul	Cairo	July 22, 1930	Apr. 15, 1930	§May 1,1930
•Harrison A. Lewls		Vice consul	Singapore	Feb. 24, 1931	Apr. 15, 1930	May 7, 1930
•John J. Macdonald		Vice consul	Batavia	Feb. 24, 1931	Apr. 15, 1930	May 12, 1930
•H. Gordon Minnlgerode_	D. C		Tegucigalpa	July 17,1933	Apr. 15, 1930	May 10, 1930
arritht D Manhard In	0	secretary.	4	4	1 15 1000	Mar 10 1000
•William D. Moreland, Jr. •Robert Newbegin, 2d		Vice consul Third secretary	Antwerp México, D.F	Aug. 22, 1932	Apr. 15, 1930	May 10, 1930 June 13, 1930
* James K. Penfield 1		Vice consul	Peiping	Apr. 10, 1933 July 2, 1934	Apr. 15, 1930 Apr. 15, 1930	May 14, 1930
John C. Pool			Hong Kong	May 26, 1934	Apr. 15, 1930	May 13, 1930
•Albert H. Cousins, Jr		Vice consul	Caracas		June 4, 1930	June 26, 1930
•William E. Flournoy, Jr.		Vice consul	Guatemala		June 4,1930	July 3, 1930
*Taylor W. Gannett	Nebr	Vice consul	Guayaquil	Dec. 9, 1932	June 4, 1930	July 16, 1930
•Calvin H. Oakes	S. C	Vice consul	Kingston, Jamaica	Aug. 12, 1933	June 4, 1930	June 16, 1930
*Paul C. Hutton, Jr	N. C	Vice consul	Dublin	May 22, 1934	Apr. 15, 1930	Aug. 4, 1930
•Hayward G. Hill		Vice consul	Buenos Aires	Nov. 24, 1933	July 17, 1930	Sept. 2, 1930
•Jay Walker		Vice consul	Tunis		July 26, 1930	Dec. 21, 1920
*David H. Buffum			Palermo		Aug. 16, 1930	July 12, 1923
•Thomas J. Maleady			Tampico		Aug. 16, 1930	Oct. 23, 1922
•Guy W. Ray			Guaymas		Aug. 16, 1930	Feb. 14, 1918
•Hervé J L'Heureux			Windsor		Sept. 12, 1930	Jan. 2, 1927
•J. Kenly Bacon			Callao-Lima		Dec. 16, 1930	Jan. 6, 1931
•Homer M. Byington, Jr.		Vice consul	Naples		Dec. 16, 1930	Dec. 23, 1930
*†Everett F. Drumright_		Vice consul	Peiping		Dec. 16, 1930	Jan. 2, 1931 Jan. 5, 1931
•F. Russell Engdahl •Daniel Gaudin, Jr			Calcutta		Dec. 16, 1930 Dec. 16, 1930	Jan. 5, 1931 Jan. 14, 1931
•John Hubner, 2d			Beirut Tientsin		Dec. 16, 1930	Dec. 30, 1930
•J. Wesley Jones			Calcutta		Dec. 16, 1930	Jan. 10, 1931
•Reginald S. Kazanjlan					Dec. 16, 1930	Dec. 31, 1930
"Nathaniel Lancaster, Jr.			Bombay		Dec. 16, 1930	Jan. 14, 1931
•F. Ridgway Linea-		Vice consul	Amsterdam		Dec. 16, 1930	Jan. 15, 1931
weaver.						
•Cecil B. Lyon 2	N. Y	Third secretary	Peiping	Oct. 23, 1933	Dec. 16, 1930	Jan. 10, 1931
*Leslie Gordon Mayer	Calif		Riga		Dec. 16, 1930	Jan. 5, 1931
•Walter P. McConaughy_	Ala	Vice consul	Kobe		Dec. 16, 1930	Jan. 13, 1931
•Joseph E. Newton	Pa	Vice consul	Nagoya	Apr. 7,1932	Dec. 16, 1930	Jan. 7, 1931
•John B. Ocheltree			Seville	July 26, 1932	Dec. 16, 1930	Jan. 30, 1931
•Maurice Pasquet			Glasgow		Dec. 16, 1930	June 29, 1925
•Charles B. Perkins			Havre		Dec. 16, 1930	Jan. 7,1931
•Arthur L. Richards			Jerusalem		Dec. 16, 1930	July 16, 1930
•Donald H. Robinson			Calcutta		Dec. 16, 1930	Dec. 31, 1930
*†Frank A. Schuler, Jr		Vice consul	Tokyo		Dec. 16, 1930	Jan. 1,1931
*Allan C. Taylor			Capetown		Dec. 16, 1930	Jan. 3, 1931
*Laurence W. Taylor			Copenhagen		Dec. 16, 1930	Feb. 10, 1931
•Clare H. Timberlake •Leo Toch		Vice consul	Buenos Alres		Dec. 16, 1930	Jan. 8, 1931
•Arnold Van Benschoten.			Lourenço Marques	Aug. 28, 1933	Dec. 16, 1930	Jan. 8, 1931 Jan. 2, 1931
•Gerald Warner			Dairen Tlentsin		Dec. 16, 1930 Dec. 16, 1930	Dec. 31, 1930
*Lee Worley			Bahia		Dec. 16, 1930	Jan. 8, 1931
•Kenneth J. Yearns			Nanking		Dec. 16, 1930	Jan. 7,1931
*C. Burke Elbrick			Port-au-Prince		Jan. 22, 1931	Feb. 16, 1931
•Shiras Morris, Jr					Jan. 22, 1931	Feb. 16, 1931
*Theodore C. Achilles			Rome		Dec. 17, 1931	Jan. 8, 1932
*William C. Affeld, Jr					Dec. 17, 1931	Sept. 24, 1931
		z to the Department		also as rice cor		

¹ Detailed temporarily to the Department.

² Assigned also as vice consul at Tientsin.

FOREIGN SERVICE OFFICERS, UNCLASSIFIED (C)-Continued

	XIV h and							
Name	Whence ap- pointed	Designation	Post	Date of assignment	Date of ap- pointment to present class	Date of entry into service		
•John M. Allison		Vice consul		May 9, 1934	Dec. 17, 1931	Apr. 28, 1930		
•Daniel V. Anderson		Vice consul	Lisbon	Dec. 22, 1932	Dec. 17, 1931	June 26, 1931		
*Walworth Barbour		Vice consul	Athens	Feb. 3, 1933	Dec. 17, 1931	June 19, 1931		
*Jacob D. Beam		Vice consul	Geneva	Mar. 30, 1933	Dec. 17, 1931	June 5, 1931		
*Reginald Bragonier, Jr		Vice consul	Canton	Aug. 28, 1933	Dec. 17, 1931	Feb. 3, 1932		
•Carl Breuer		Vice consul	Port-au-Prince	Mar. 31, 1933	Dec. 17, 1931	Feb. 4, 1932		
•Reginald S. Carey		Vice consul	Rio de Janeiro	May 15, 1934	Dec. 17, 1931	Feb. 3, 1932		
*Mulford A. Colebrook		Vice consul	Brisbane	Dec. 22, 1932	Dec. 17, 1931	June 9, 1931		
*Bernard C. Connelly		Vice consul	Melbourne	Mar. 6, 1933	Dec. 17, 1931	June 6, 1931		
*†Charles A. Cooper		Vice consul	Tokyo	Aug. 17, 1933	Dec. 17, 1931	Sept. 15, 1931		
*Merritt N. Cootes		Vice consul	Hong Kong	June 13, 1933	Dec. 17, 1931	Jan. 21, 1932		
*Earl T. Crain		Third secretary and vice consul.		June 21, 1933	Dec. 17, 1931	Feb. 1, 1928		
*William M. Cramp	Pa	Vice consul	London	Oct. 20, 1933	Dec. 17, 1931	June 5, 1931		
•†John Davies, Jr	Ohio	Vice consul	Peiping		Dec. 17, 1931	Jan. 16, 1932		
*Andrew E. Donovan, 2d.	Calif	Vice consul	México, D.F		Dec. 17, 1931	June 5, 1931		
*Walter C. Dowling	Ga	Vice consul	Oslo		Dec. 17, 1931	Jan. 15, 1932		
*Donald C. Dunham	Ohio	Vice consul	Hong Kong		Dec. 17,1931	June 16, 1931		
*Howard Elting, Jr	III	Vice consul	Istanbul		Dec. 17, 1931	June 30, 1931		
*Frederick E. Farns- worth.	Colo	Vice consul	Istanbul	Apr. 27,1934	Dec. 17, 1931	Jan. 27, 1932		
*Douglas Flood	£11	Vice consul	Buenos Aires	Aug. 28, 1933	Dec. 17, 1931	Jan. 24, 1932		
*T. Muldrup Forsyth	Va	Vice consul	Callao-Lima	Mar. 31, 1933	Dec. 17, 1931	Jan. 21, 1932		
*R. Allen Haden	Tenn	Vice consul	Singapore	Sept. 2,1932	Dec. 17, 1931	June 25, 1931		
*James E. Henderson	Calif	Vice consul and third secretary.	Tallinn	Jan. 17,1934	Dec. 17, 1931	Feb. 3, 1932		
*L. Randolph Higgs	Miss	Vice consul	Surabaya	Aug. 28, 1933	Dec. 17,1931	Jan. 21, 1932		
*Walter W. Hoffmann	Calif	Vice consul	Wellington	Dec. 22, 1932	Dec. 17, 1931	May 28, 1931		
*Theodore J. Hohenthal	Calif	Vice consul	Zagreb	Apr. 7,1932	Dec. 17, 1931	Jan. 9, 1932		
*Fred W. Jandrey	Wis	Vice consul	Calcutta	Dec. 22, 1932	Dec. 17, 1931	Aug. 4, 1931		
*Douglas Jenkins, Jr			Nanking		Dec. 17, 1931	Aug. 15, 1931		
*Stephen E. C. Kendrick.			Montreal		Dec. 17, 1931	June 15, 1919		
*Foy D. Kohler		Vice consul	Bucharest		Dec. 17,1931	Jan. 25, 1932		
*Kent Leavitt			México, D.F		Dec. 17, 1931	Sept. 21, 1931		
*Henry P. Leverich		Vice consul	Berlin		Dec. 17, 1931	June 9, 1931		
*E. Alian Lightner, Jr			Pernambuco		Dec. 17, 1931	Jan. 17, 1930		
*Walter J. Linthicum		Vice consul	Vienna		Dec. 17, 1931	Jan. 19, 1920		
*Aubrey E. Lippincott		Vice consul	Montevideo		Dec. 17,1931	Aug. 1, 1931		
Brockholst Livingston			Colombo		Dec. 17, 1931	§Jan. 12, 1929		
*Raymond P. Ludden			Tsinan		Dec. 17, 1931	Aug. 1, 1931		
*Edward P. Maffitt			Stockholm		Dec. 17, 1931	May 28, 1931		
*Patrick Mallon		Vice consul	Leipzig		Dec. 17, 1931	Jan. 20, 1932		
*Ernest de W. Mayer		Vice consul	Havre		Dec. 17, 1931	Jan. 16, 1932		
*Robert Mills McClin- tock.	Calif	Vice consul	Kobe	Mar. 30, 1933	Dec. 17,1931	Feb. 1, 1932		
*Robert C. McCloud	Fla	Vice consul	Naples	Aug. 28, 1933	Dec. 17,1931	Aug. 17, 1931		
*Gregor C. Merrill		Vice consul		Mar. 30, 1933	Dec. 17,1931	Jan. 27, 1932		
*Reginald P. Mitchell		Vice consul			Dec. 17, 1931	June 6, 1931		
*Harold E. Montamat		Vice consul	Nanking	Mar. 30, 1933	Dec. 17,1931	Jan. 30, 1932		
*Walter W. Orebaugh		Vice consul		Mar. 27, 1933	Dec. 17, 1931	Jan. 19, 1932		
•John P. Palmer		Vice consul			Dec. 17, 1931	July 27, 1931		
*W. Leonard Parker	N. Y	Vice consul			Dec. 17, 1931	Jan. 16, 1932		
*Troy L. Perkins		Vice consul			Dec. 17, 1931	Aug. 8, 1931		
•Norris Rediker		Vice consul			Dec. 17, 1931	Mar. 4, 1931		
* Paul J. Reveley		Vice consul			Dec. 17, 1931	July 17, 1924		
• Wales W. Signor			Nassau		Dec. 17, 1931	Jan. 11, 1932		
*Francis L. Spalding	Mass_	vice consul	Zürich	June 13, 1933	Dec. 17, 1931	Jan. 21, 1932		

FOREIGN SERVICE OFFICERS, UNCLASSIFIED (C)-Continued

Name	Whence ap- pointed	Designation	Post	Date of assignment	Date of ap- pointment to present class	Date of entry into service
• Francis Bowden Stevens. • John F. Stone	Pa Calif Wash N. Y N. J Md N. J Okla Minn Tez Wash Pa Calif	Vice consul Vice consul Third secretary Vice consul Vice consul	Warsaw	Aug. 28, 1933 June 20, 1934 Aug. 28, 1933 ;Jan. 26, 1932 Ap 7, 1932 Dec. 22, 1932 June 13, 1933	Dec. 17, 1931 Dec. 17, 1931 Jan. 7, 1932 Jan. 7, 1932 Jan. 28, 1932 Feb. 19, 1932	June 9, 1931 June 8, 1931 Feb. 4, 1932 Jan. 7, 1932 Jan. 31, 1932 Jan. 31, 1932 Jan. 30, 1932 Jan. 11, 1932 Jan. 29, 1932 Jan. 21, 1932 July 7, 1915 Jan. 16, 1932 Feb. 18, 1932 Feb. 20, 1932 Sept. 23, 1930
*Halleck L. Rose	Nebr	•	Rotterdam	June 13, 1933	Mar. 28, 1932	Apr. 15, 1932

13. RETIREMENTS IN THE FOREIGN SERVICE

FOREIGN SERVICE OFFICERS

RECEIVING ANNUITIES

Name	State	Class	Rank in the service	Post where last assigned	Date of entry into service	Date of retirement
Benedict, James S	N. Y	VIII	Consul	Windsor	Mar. 8, 1879	July 1, 1924
Bliss, Robert Woods	N. Y		Ambassador	Buenos Aires	Aug. 1, 1903	July 31, 1933
Bradford, Robert R	Nebr	V	Consul	Breslau	Oet. 1, 1917	June 30, 1933
Brunswick, William W	Kans	VIII	Consul	Llsbon	May 14, 1907	Aug. 31, 1932
Burri, Alfred T	N. Y•	V	Consul	Basel	Apr. 26, 1918	Jan. 31, 1934
Campbell, Harry	Kans	IV	Consul	London, Ont	Aug. 30, 1915	June 30, 1933
Cooke, Arthur B	S. C	V	Consul	Plymouth	May 30, 1910	June 30, 1934
Culver, Henry S	Ohio	IV	Consul	St. John, N. B.	Dec. 1, 1897	July 1, 1924
De Billier, Frederic Ogden	D. C	III	First secretary	Rome	Aug. 1, 1908	July 1, 1924
	Mo					
de Olivares, José		V	Consul	Leghorn	June 23, 1906	Nov. 30, 1932
Dodge, H. Percival	Mass		Minister	Copenhagen	Mar. 6, 1899	Sept. 30, 1931
Dorsey, W. Roderick	Md	1II	Consul general	Genoa	Mar. 8, 1907	Oct. 31, 1933
Doty, William F	N. J	VII	Consul	Newcastle-on-Tyne	Aug. 5, 1902	Dec. 31, 1932
Dreher, Julius D	S. C	VI	Consul	Colón	Nov. 1,1906	July 1, 1924
Dumont, Frederick T. F	Pa	I	Consul general	Habana	July 1, 1904	Mar. 31, 1934
Eberbardt, Charles C	Kans		Minister	San José, Costa Rica	Oet. 31, 1904	Sept. 24, 1933
Edwards, Clement S	Minn	V	Consul	Bradford	Mar. 15, 1911	Mar. 31, 1934
Ferris, Cornelius	Colo	II	Consul general	Dublin	Sept. 27, 1909	Mar. 31, 1931
Fisher, Fred D	Oreg	IV	Consul	Nassau	Sept. 2, 1901	June 30, 1932
Foster, Paul H	Tex	VII	Consul	Piedras Negras	Jan. 20, 1914	Apr. 30, 1933
Freeman, Charles M	N. II	v	Consul	Sydney, N. S.	Aug. 2, 1898	July 1, 1924
Garrett, Alonzo B	W. Va	IX	Consul	St. Stephen	Dec. 1, 1901	July 1, 1924
Garrety, William P	N. Y	VIII	Consul	Tahiti	Aug. 20, 1919	Dec. 31, 1932
Grout, John H	Mass	VI	Consul	Hull	§Mar. 9, 1898	July 1, 1924
Halstead, Albert	D. C	I	Consul general	London	Apr. 18, 1906	Sept. 30, 1932
Haskell, Lewis W	S. C	11	Consul general	Zürieh	Feb. 14, 1910	Dec. 31, 1933
Heizer, Oscar S	Iowa	IV	Consul general	Algiers	Aug. 1, 1906	Feb. 28, 1933
	Ill	III	Consul general	Budapest		Oet. 11, 1924
Horton, George					§Jan. 11, 1905	
Hunt, William H	N. Y	VII	Consul and second sec- retary.	Monrovia	May 18, 1899	Dec. 31, 1932
Hurst, Carlton B	D. C	I	Consul general	Budapest	Aug. 3, 1892	July 31, 1931
Ifft, George N	Idaho		Consul	Ghent	May 20, 1905	Jan. 26, 1930
Johnson, Henry Abert	D. C		Consul	Dundee	Apr. 16, 1886	July 1, 1924
Keene, Francis B	Wis	III	Consul general	Rome	July 1, 1903	July 1, 1924
Kehl, John E	Ohio	II	Consul general	Hamburg	Oet. 15, 1897	Sept. 30, 1933
Kent, William P	Va	IV	Consul	Hamilton, Bermuda	§Aug. 22, 1910	July 1, 1924
Lowrie, Will L	III	II	Consul general	Frankfort on the Main_	Jan. 14, 1899	Mar. 31, 1934
Mahin, Frank W.	Iowa	IV	Consul			July 1, 1924
Martin, Chester W	Mieh		Consul	Amsterdam	Feb. 1, 1898	July 1, 1924
		IV		Toronto	Nov. 28, 1897	
MeCunn, John N.	Wis	V	Consul	Yarmouth	Sept. 21, 1897	July 1, 1924
Milner, James B	Ind	VIII	Consul.	Niagara Falls	Mar. 17, 1898	July 1, 1924
Osborne, John Ball			Consul general	Budapest		June 30, 1933
Pickerell, George H	Ohio	IV	Consul	Pará	Nov. 16, 1898	July 1, 1924
Rairden, Bradstreet S	Me	VIII	Consul	Curaçao	§Nov. 16, 1898	July 1, 1924
Rasmusen, Bertil M	Iowa		Consul	Moncton	Aug. 28, 1903	Nov. 20, 1927
Ravndal, Gabriel Bie	S. Dak	I	Consul general	Berlin	Jan. 24, 1898	June 26, 1930
Reat, Samuel C	Ill	VII	Consul	Calgary	July 2, 1908	June 30, 1933
Robertson, William H	Va	I	Consul general	Halifax	§Sept. 4, 1907	June 25, 1928
Russell, William W	D. C		Minister	Bangkok	§Oet. 2, 1915	Dec. 31, 1926
Ryder, Frederick M.	Conn	III	Consul general	Vaneouver	§May 16, 1905	July 1, 1924
Sammons, Thomas	Wash	I	Consul general	Melbourne	Mar. 20, 1905	Aug. 6, 1925
Savage, John M			Consul	Southampton		Dec. 9, 1929
Slater, Fred C		VIII	Consul	Sarnia	July 16, 1909	Nov. 9, 1929
Sullivan, Lucien N		VI	Consul	Matanzas	June 10, 1909	Mar. 31, 1933
Thaekara, Alexander M	Pa	I	Consul general	Paris	June 11, 1897	July 1, 1924
Tredwell, Roger C	Ind	I	Consul general	Stoekholm	Apr. 28, 1909	Jan. 31, 1934
Voetter, Thomas W			Consul	Guaymas		June 30, 1933
Wadsworth, Craig W		II	Counselor of legation	Lima		Nov. 6, 1927
madsworth, Craig W	14. I		Counselor of legation	initia	30cpt. 20, 1912	

¹ Under the provisions of the acts of May 24, 1924, July 3, 1926, or Feb. 23, 1931.

RETIREMENTS IN THE FOREIGN SERVICE

RECEIVING ANNUITIES—Continued

Name	State	Class	Rank in the service	Post where last assigned	Date of entry into service	Date of retirement
Wakefield, Ernest A Washington, Horace Lee Willey, Richard R Winans, Charles S Wood, John Q Yerby, William J	D. C N. Y Mich Hawaii	I VII III IV	Consul Consul general	0	Jan. 28, 1898 Jan. 1, 1895 Nov. 27, 1920 June 30, 1900 Oct. 20, 1908 July 25, 1906	Apr. 30, 1932 June 3, 1929 June 30, 1933 Jan. 25, 1928 June 30, 1932 Sept. 30, 1932

DECEASED

Name	State	Class	Rank in the service	Post where last assigned	Date of entry into service	Date of re- tirement	Date of death
Adams, Edward LeG	N. Y	VI	Consul	Sherbrooke	July 10, 1902	July 1, 1924	Oct. 2, 1928
Belisle, Eugene L	Mass	VIII	Consul	Limoges	June 1,1906	July 1,1924	May 2, 1932
Brittain, Joseph I	Ohio	III	Consul general	Winnipeg	Jan. 1, 1898	July 1, 1924	Oct. 22, 1930
Chase, Benjamin F	Pa	VI	Consul	Messina	§Aug. 26, 1909	Aug. 22, 1925	Nov. 25, 1925
Denison, Frank C	Vt	1X	Consul	Prescott	Aug. 19, 1897	July 1, 1924	Jan. 27, 1933
Diederich, Henry W	D. C	VIII	Consul	Sarnia	§Aug. 18, 1897	July 1, 1924	Feb. 8, 1926
Early, William W	N. C	VIII	Consul	Colón	July 21, 1914	Dec. 31, 1932	Sept. 28, 1933
Foster, John G	Vt	I	Consul general	Ottawa	Aug. 1, 1897	June 30, 1927	Jan. 6, 1931
Gale, William H	Va	II	Consul general	Budapest	Aug. 21, 1906	Jan. 26, 1929	Apr. 25, 1932
Gassett, Percival	D. C	VII	Consul	Leeds	Mar. 7, 1903	July 1, 1924	Apr. 13, 1929
Glazebrook, Otis A	N. J	IV	Consul	Nice and Monaco	Apr. 23, 1914	Mar. 8, 1929	Apr. 26, 1931
Goding, Frederic W	Ill	III	Consul general	Guayaquil	May 13, 1898	July 1, 1924	May 4, 1933
Gunsaulus, Edwin N	Ohio	II	Consul general	Wellington	Feb. 14, 1900	Dec. 13, 1924	June 11, 1930
Lathrop, Lorin A	Calif	VII	Consul	Nassau	§Apr. 1, 1891	July 1, 1924	Jan. 22, 1929
Lawton, Ezra M	Ohio	III	Consul general	Sydney, N. S. W	§Dec. 23, 1913	Aug 22, 1929	June 26, 1931
Mitchell, Mason	N. Y	V1	Consul	Malta	Oct. 1, 1902	July 1, 1924	June 16, 1930
Morgan, Edwin V	N. Y		Ambassador	Rio de Janeiro	Mar. 30, 1900	Apr. 23, 1933	Apr. 16, 1934
Morgan, Henry H	La	I	Consul general	Buenos Aires	§June 17, 1897	July 31, 1926	Mar. 19, 1933
Mosher, Robert B					May 1,1905	July 1, 1924	Sept. 22, 1927
Murphy, Dominic I	D. C	III	Consul general	Stockholm	July 14, 1905	July 1, 1924	Apr. 13, 1930
Paddock, Gordon	N.Y	III	First secretary	Paris	Apr. 27, 1901	Sept. 30, 1930	Nov. 2,1932
Richardson, Elliott V						Oct. 22, 1928	June 27, 1929
Wallace, Thomas R	Iowa	IX	Consul	Martinique	Sept. 3, 1901	July 1, 1924	Dec. 8, 1929
Willrich, Gebhard	Wis	V	Consul	St. Gall	Nov. 1, 1905	July 1, 1924	Dec. 1, 1925
Winslow, Alfred A	Ind	III	Consul general	St. John's, N. F	Sept. 6, 1898	July 1, 1924	Aug. 16, 1929

VICE CONSULS (NONCAREER) AND CLERKS

RECEIVING ANNUITIES¹

Name		Post where last assigned	Date of entry into service	Date of retire- ment	
Barringer, George H. Bornemann, Paul C. Clark, John Henry. Doherty, Charles W. Hood, Hugh S. Jelatis, John P. Larned, Frank H. Moore, Charles A. Sanford, Horace M. Shockley, William P. Unckles, Roderick W. Van Buskirk, William	N. Y Miss Ohio N. Y Pa Conn Me Del N. Y N. J	Dublin Marseille Montreal Mexicali Durban Patras Toronto Port-au-Prince Ottawa Ghent Genoa San José, Costa Rica U. S. Court for China	July 24, 1919 Dec. 21, 1914 June 20, 1925 Aug. 13, 1913 Feb. 7, 1909 Sept. 1, 1922 Mar. 2, 1922 July 1, 1902 Sept. 14, 1898 July 1, 1890 Oct. 21, 1913 Dec. 5, 1921 Dec. 7, 1921	Feb. 28, 1934 July 31, 1932 Jan. 31, 1932 Dec. 31, 1930 July 31, 1931 Sept. 30, 1930 July 31, 1932 June 30, 1932 June 30, 1933 June 30, 1933 Juny 30, 1932 July 1, 1932	
Williams, Reginald H Wyles, Charl C. L. B	N. Y Okla	Bordeaux Frankfort on the Main	May 6, 1914 Oct. 16, 1922	Nov 30, 1930 June 31, 1933	

¹ Under the provisions of the act of May 29, 1930.

DECEASED

Name	State	Post where last assigned	Date of entry into service	Date of retirement	Date of death
Boragino, Angelo Leonard, Henry H Springer, Joseph A	Calif Ind Me	Genoa Aeapulco Habana	Mar. 4,1907	June 30, 1932 Mar. 31, 1932 Aug. 31, 1930	Oet. 28, 1933

14. BIOGRAPHIES

PERSONNEL OF THE DEPARTMENT OF STATE AND OF THE FOREIGN SERVICE

Abbey, Glenn Allan.—b. Dodgeville, Wis., June 11, 1898; business sch. grad.; Marquette and George Washington Univ.; Georgetown, B. S. 1925; grad. work, Univ. of Witwatersrand, Johannesburg, 1929; teacher in public sch. 1917–18; U. S. Army 1918–19; clk. 1919–21; instructor in Eng. and hist., Devitt Prep. Sch., 1924–25; sec. to the Am. High Commr. At Port au Prince 1925–27; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass. and v. c. of career July 5, 1927; assigned to the For. Ser. Sch. Sept. 29, 1927; to Johannesburg Feb. 24, 1928; sec. in the Diplo. Ser. July 1, 1931; assigned as 3d sec. at Managua July 31, 1931; at Caracas Mar. 31, 1932.

Abbott, George Manlove.—b. Cleveland, Ohio, Feb. 5, 1904; Case Sch. of Applied Sci., B. S. 1925; École de Ponts et Chaussées, Paris, 1926; George Washington Univ., 1927; construction work 1920-21; salesman 1922-24; asst. research assoc. 1926; tech. asst., Bureau of Standards, 1927; app. after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass. and v. c. of career July 5, 1927; assigned to the For. Ser. Sch. Sept. 29, 1927; to Calcutta Feb. 24, 1928; to Oslo Aug. 26, 1930; sec. in the Diplo. Ser. May 2, 1934; assigned as 3d sec. at Riga May 24, 1934; married.

Abbott, Wainwright.—b. Pittsburgh, Pa., Apr. 27. 1891; St. Paul's Sch.; Yale two yrs.; employed in mfg. companies two yrs.; ambulance ser. in France 1916; French Army 1917-18; U. S. Army 1918-19, lt.; app., after exam., sec. of emb. or leg. of class four Apr. 7, 1920; assigned to Stockholm May 26, 1921; to Athens Apr. 13, 1922; class three Sept. 22, 1922; ou detail at Constantinople Oct. 15-Dec. 1, 1923; For. Ser. officer of class six July 1, 1924; assigned as 2d sec. of leg. at Caracas Oct. 2, 1924; class five Apr. 30, 1925; assigned as 2d sec. at Dublin June 9, 1927; class four July 24, 1930; assigned as 1st sec. at London Dec. 23, 1930; at Belgrade Feb. 28. 1934; married.

Abrams, Belle Jenvey (Mrs.)—b. Marietta, Ohio; high sch. grad.; attended private sch. and business sch.; Sherwood Cody Univ. corr. course; app. clk., temp., In the Dept. of State Feb. 18, 1915; permanently, at \$900 under Ex. order June 22, 1916, effective July 1; temp., at \$1,000 Oct. 18, 1916; permanently Nov. 1, 1916; at \$1,500 July 1, 1924; at \$1,620 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$1,740 July 1, 1930.—PD.

Achilles, Theodore Carter.—b. Rochester, N. Y., Dec. 29, 1905; The Hill Sch.; Stanford, B. A. 1925; Yale 1926-28; newspaper work 1928-30; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass., v. c. of career, and sec. in the Diplo. Ser. Dec. 17, 1931; assigned as v. c. at Habana Jan. 4, 1932; to the For. Ser. Sch. Jan. 28, 1933; to Rome June 13, 1933; married.

Ackerman, Marie J.—b. Washington, D. C.; attended high sch.; clk., Dept. of Agric., one montb; app. clk. at \$000 in the Dept. of State Feb. 1, 1921; at \$1,000 Sept. 1, 1922; at \$1,100 May 31, 1924, effective June 1; at \$1,500 July 1, 1924; at \$1,620 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$1,680 July 1, 1928; at \$2,000 July 9, 1930.—DCR.

Ackerman, Ralph Henry.—b. West Hoboken, N. J., July 23, 1892; attended high sch. and business sch.; Univ. of Chattanooga; elk. and stenog. 1907-13; elk. Dept. of State, 1913-14; eml. activities in So. Amer. 1914-22; chief, Latin American Division. Bu. of For. and Domes. Com., 1922-23; tech. adviser to Am. del., Fifth Int. Conf. of Am. States, Santiago, Chile, 1923; app. eml. att. at Santiago Oct. 27, 1923; at Rio de Janeiro July 18, 1933; married.

Ackerson, Garret G., Jr.—b. Hackensack, N. J., May 13, 1904; Kelvin Sch.; Univ. of Va. 1922-24; Harvard, S. B. 1927; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass. and v. c. of career May 17, 1928; assigned to the For. Ser. Sch. May 24, 1928; to Cape Town Nov. 3, 1928; assigned as For. Ser. officer to the leg. at Pretoria June 27, 1930; sec. in the Diplo. Scr. Aug. 16, 1930; assigned as 3d sec. at Pretoria Aug. 27, 1930; at Lima Apr. 8, 1931; as v. c. at Copenhagen Nov. 14, 1933; married.

Acly, Robert Austin.—b. Pittsfield, Mass., Feb. 25, 1906; Williams Coll., B. A. 1928; app. For. Ser. officer unclass., v. c. of career, and sec. in the Diplo. Scr. Dec. 19, 1929; assigned as v. c. at Montreal, temp., Jan. 7, 1930; to the For. Ser. Sch. July 18, 1930; to Tegucigalpa Nov. 8, 1930; also as 3d sec. at Tegucigalpa Jan. 17, 1933; married.

Adams, Philip.—b. Honolulu, T. H., June 26, 1881; Cambridge Latin Sch. grad.; Harvard, A. B. 1903; instructor in Eng., Univ. of Wis., 1903-5; foreign travel 1905-8; artistic and literary work 1908-18; Bu. of War Risk Insur. 1918-20; app. drafting officer at \$2,500 in the Dept. of State July 23, 1920; chief. Division of Passport Control, July 26, 1920; resigned Aug. 16, 1922; app., after exam., cons. of class seven June 22, 1922; detailed to Paris Aug. 28, 1922; to Malta May 28, 1924; For. Ser. officer of class eight July 1, 1924; class seven Aug. 8, 1924; assigned to Malta June 22, 1925; sec. in the Diplo. Ser. Mar. 11, 1926; assigned as 3d sec. at Tirana Mar. 27, 1926; as cons. at Campbellton July 11, 1928; class six Oct. 16, 1929; cons. at Sarnia Oct. 19, 1929; at St. John, N. B., Apr. 30, 1932.

Adams, Walter Alexander .- b. Greenville, S. C., Dec. 16, 1887; Carlisle's Sch. for Boys; Clemson Coll. one yr.: Georgetown, LL. B. 1913; private tutors three yrs.; mem. of bar of U. S. Court for China, Shanghai; clk. and stenog. 1907-10; stenog. in Govt. depts. 1911-13; cIk., Philippine Civil Ser., 1913-14; clk. in Am. Consulate General at Shanghai Apr. 1, 1914; court reporter and dep. clk. of court, U. S. Court for China, 1915; teacher of legai mechanics, Comparative Law Sch. of China, Shanghai, 1916; v. c. at Shanghai Feb. 26, 1916; at Batavia Oct. 4, 1918; app., after exam., v. c. of career of class three Dec. 23, 1919; assigned to Canton Apr. 12, 1920; class two May 24, 1920; assigned to Swatow Nov. 15, 1920; to Changsha Feb. 24, 1921; to Tsingtao Oct. 1, 1921; class one Nov. 17, 1921; cons. of class seven June 22, 1922; class six Mar. 1, 1923; For. Ser. officer of class seven July 1, 1924; class six Aug. 8, 1924; assigned to Chungking Apr. 10, 1925; class five June 2, 1926; class four May 17, 1928; assigned to Hankow July 17, 1928; to Nanking June 11, 1929; class three July 24, 1930; cons. gen. June 11, 1931; assigned to Hankow June 15, 1931; to Harbin June 29, 1934; married.

Adams, William Ware.—b. Washington, D. C., Mar. 1, 1905; Emerson Inst. grad; George Washington, A. B. 1929; paymaster, D. C. govt., 1927–29; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass. and v. c. of career Nov. 12, 1929; assigned to Habana, temp., Nov. 27, 1929; to Matanzas, temp., Mar. 19, 1930; to the For. Ser. Sch. Apr. 19, 1930; to Lyon July 22, 1930; to Berlin Nov. 11, 1933; married.

Adlof, Richard E., Jr.—b. Galveston, Tex., Dec. 5, 1904; high sch. grad.; Univ. of Tex. 1926-27; George Washington Univ. 1928-32; clk., ocean freight forwarding co., 1921-24, mem. of firm 1924-26; clk. in War Dept. 1927-28; app. clk. at \$1,440 in the Dept. of State Dec. 1, 1928; editorial asst. at \$1,800 Aug. 1, 1929; at \$2,000 June 1, 1930.—RP.

Affeld, William Charles, Jr.—b. Clarinda, Iowa, Oct. 20, 1906; attended business sch.; Univ. of Minn., B. A. 1930; stenog. 1925-26; app. clk. in Am. Consulate at Windsor Sept. 19, 1931; v. c. at Windsor Oct. 31, 1931; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass., v. c. of career, and sec. in the Diplo. Ser. Dec. 17, 1931; assigned as v. c. at Windsor Jan. 2, 1932; to the For. Ser. Sch. Jan. 8, 1932; to Singapore Apr. 7, 1932.

Agostini, Caesar Franklin.—b. Tarragona, Spain, of Am. parents, Aug. 8, 1884; Commercial Coll. of Barcelona 1896-99; engineering course 1900-3; mgr., shipping agency, 1903-27; customs broker since 1915; app. cons. agt. at Tarragona Oct. 2, 1914.

Aguirre, Stephen Earnest.-b. Tucson, Ariz., Nov. 11, 1892; Calif. Sch. of Mech. Arts, San Francisco, 1911-13; cml. employment in Mexico 1909-10; clk., 1910, 1913-15; app. clk. In Am. Consulate at Ciudad Juarez July 22, 1915; v. c. at Ciudad Juarez June 5, 1917; at Chihuahua Apr. 13, 1920; resigned Oct. 13, 1920; app. v. c. at Manzanillo May 25, 1921; at Nuevo Laredo Sept. 29, 1925; at Piedras Negras, temp., Feb. 7, 1927; at Nuevo Laredo Feb. 18, 1927; at Mexico City Nov. 2, 1929; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass., v. c. of career, and sec. in the Diplo. Ser. Jan. 7, 1932; assigned as v. c. at Mexico City Jan. 9, 1932; 3d sec. at Mexico City Jan. 26, 1932; married.

Ahrens, Gladys Charlotte.—b. Two Rivers, Wis.; attended high sch.; clk., War Dept., 1924; app. clk. at 1,140 in the Dept. of State Sept. 18, 1924; at 1,320 May 1, 1925; at 1,500 May 1, 1926; at 1,620 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at 1,680 July 1, 1928; at 1,800 July 1, 1930.—PD.

Ailshie, William Knight.—b. Boise, Idaho, Jan. 30, 1905; Va. Mil. Inst.; Univ. of Washington. B. A. 1927; Downing Coll., Cambridge Univ., England, 1927-28; clk. in Am. Emb. at Paris 1928-29; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass. and v. c. of career Nov. 12, 1929; assigned to Habana, temp., Nov. 27, 1929; to Nuevitas, temp., Mar. 19, 1930; to the For. Ser. Sch. Apr. 19, 1930; to Caracas July 22, 1930; to Batavia June 30, 1931; to Warsaw Oct. 5, 1933; matried.

Albright, Edward.—b. Summer Co., Tenn., Aug. 18, 1873; Gallatin Male Acad. grad.; Cumberland Univ., B. L. 1898; mem. of bar of Tenn.; pres., nat. editorial assn., 1919–20; U. S. marshal for middle dist. of Tenn. 1920–24; newspaper publisher 1907–33; newspaper owner 1912–33; app. E. E. and M. P. to Finland July 21, 1933.

Aldridge, Clayson Wheeler .- b. Rome, N. Y., Oct. 19, 1899; Princeton, A. B. 1922; American-Scandinavian fellowship, Univ. of Copenhagen, 1922-23; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass. Mar. 20, 1925; v. c. of career and assigned to Jerusalem Sept. 2, 1925; sec. in the Diplo. Ser. Feb. 17, 1927; assigned as 3d sec. at Athens Feb. 23, 1927; v. c. at Aden, temp., Aug. 31, 1927; 3d sec. at Athens June 21, 1928; also v. c. at Athens Oct. 18, 1929; class eight, cons., and assigned to Athens Dec. 19, 1929; to the Dept. Feb. 5, 1930; resigned Nov. 30, 1930; app. divisional asst. at \$4,600 in the Dept. of State Dec. 1, 1930; reinstated as For. Ser. officer, by Ex. order of Dec. 27, 1933, and assigned to the Dept. Jan. 11, 1934; For. Ser. officer of class seven, cons., and sec. in the Diplo. Ser. Jan. 15, 1934; assigned as 2d sec. at Athens Feb. 21, 1934; married.

Alexander, F. Virginia.—b. Mount Crawford, Va.; high sch. grad.; attended business sch.; studied under private tutor two yrs.; clk. 1910-12; secretary 1913-15; app. clk., temp., in the Dept. of State Dec. 7, 1915; permanently, at \$1,200 under Ex. order June 22, 1916, effective July 1; at \$1,400 Sept. 1, 1919; at \$1,600 Mar. 1, 1921; at \$1,800 Feb. 1, 1924; at \$2,100 July 1, 1924; asst. chief, Division of Passport Control, Nov. 4, 1925; at \$2,200 Dec. 1, 1925; at \$2,400 Mar. 1, 1926; at \$2,500 Nov. 1, 1927; at \$2,700 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$2,800 July 1, 1928; at \$2,900 July 1, 1930; at \$3,200 Dec. 1, 1930; mem., Conciliation Committee of the Dept. of State. Nov. 6, 1933-.-PD.

Alexander, Knox.—b. Independence, Mo., Sept. 13, 1891; attended business sch.; Univ. of Calif. 1909– 10; Univ. of Mo., A. B. 1915; Kansas City Sch. of Law, LL. B. 1916; mem. of bar of Mo.; law practice 1915–17; clk. in Am. Leg. at Panama 1917–19; app., after exam., v. c. of career of class three Sept. 27, 1919; assigned to San Luis Potosf Oct. 1, 1919; class two Nov. 17, 1921; assigned to Puerto Cortes Feb. 7, 1922; class one May 26, 1922; assigned to Quebec Dec. 22, 1922; to Rivière du Loup Nov. 28, 1923; For. Ser. officer unclass. July 1, 1924; assigned as v. c. at Hamilton, Ont., Jan. 4, 1926; class eight, cons., and assigned to Hamilton May 9, 1930; to Matanzas Sept. 29, 1930; to Cienfuegos June 16, 1931; married.

Alexander, Robert Clark.—b. near Paris, Tenn., July 28, 1896; attended public sch.; studied under private tutor; Y.M.C.A. Sch. of Accountancy 1925; Southeastern Univ. Law Sch. 1925–26; Washington Coll. of Law 1927; clk. 1911–17, in the Dept. of State 1917–24; private sec. to the sec. of state 1920; law clk. with counsel for Chile in Tacna-Arica Arbitration 1924–25; income tax accountant and secretary 1924–25; app. clk. at \$1,800 in the Dept. of State Jan. 1, 1929; at \$1,920 July 1, 1930; at \$2,300 June 1, 1931; married.—VD.

Allee, Lois Dorothy—b. Minneapolis, Minn.; high sch. and business sch. grad.; private tutors; secretary July-Oct. 1929; stenog., Veterans' Admin., 1929–33, and Bu. of Internal Revenue, 1933–34; app. clk. at \$1,440 in the Dept. of State Mar. 5, 1934.—SS.

Allen, Charles Edward.—b. Foster, Ky., Apr. 13, 1891; Centre Coll, A.B. 1911; principal of high sch. 1911-12; clk. 1912-14; app., after exam., student Interpreter in Turkey Apr. 4, 1914; cons. agt. at Adrianople Sept. 3, 1915; v. c. and interpreter at Constantinople Apr. 28, 1916; on detail at Algiers July 6, 1917, to Jan. 12, 1918; cons. asst. July 15, 1918; v. c. at Nantes July 22, 1918; detailed to Constantinople Mar. 4, 1919; cons. of class seven Sept. 5, 1919; class six June 4, 1920; detailed to Damaseus Apr. 26, 1921; to Constantinople (Istanbul) Feb. 24, 1923; For. Ser. officer of class seven July 1, 1924; class six Dec. 17, 1925; class five May 23, 1929; class four Feb. 4, 1931; married.

Allen, Charles W.—b. Boulder, Colo., Jan. 21, 1883; attended business sch.; Univ. of Wyo. one and one-half yrs.; stenog. and substitute court reporter 1902-7; law clk. 1905-6; in U. S. Land Office, Lander, Wyo., 1907-18; U. S. Civil Ser. sec., Lander, Wyo., several yrs.; app. v. c. at Cape Town Oct. 24, 1918; at Zürlch Sept. 6, 1921; at Berne Apr. 5, 1924; at Basel Jan. 23, 1926; at North Bay Apr. 13, 1927; at Calgary Sept. 29, 1930; married. Allen, Edgar Poe.—b. Sharon, Pa., Jan. 13, 1904; high sch. and business sch. grad.; George Washington, LL. B. 1927; mem. of bar of D. C.; clk. in accounting dept. of steel corp. 1922–23; in Dept. of State 1923–29; special agt., Dept. of Justice, 1929–31; app. admin. asst. at \$3,200 in the Dept. of State Aug. 24, 1931; married.—CC.

Allen, George Venable.—b. Durham, N. C., Nov. 3, 1903; Duke Univ., A. B. 1924; Harvard, A. M. 1929; teacher in high sch. 1924–28; newspaper reporter 1926, 1927, 1928; editorial clk., Census Bu., 1929; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass., v. c. of career, and sec. in the Diplo. Ser. Apr. 15, 1930; assigned as v. c. at Kingston, Jamaica, Apr. 29, 1930; to the For. Ser. Sch. July 16, 1930; to Shanghai Nov. 8, 1930.

Allen, Percy F .--- b. Allen, Md., Feb. 11, 1879; attended public sch. and business sch.; bookkeeper and cashier 1897-1902; clk. and bookkeeper, dept. of education, Porto Rico, 1902-4; asst. to disbursing officer, Porto Rican teachers' study trip to U.S., 1904; head bookkeeper, disbursing office, insular govt. of Porto Rico, 1905; clk., civil Ser. Commn., 1905-6; app. clk. at \$900 in the Dept. of State July 3, 1906; at \$1,200 May 1, 1907; at \$1,400 Nov. 2, 1908; at \$1,600 June 27, 1911; sec. of Bd. of Examiners for Diplo. and Cons. Ser. 1913-18; at \$1,800 Apr. 22, 1914; act. chief clk. Mar. 22-Apr. 5, 1918; app. special asst. at \$2,100 Dec. 31, 1919, effective Jan. 1, 1920; drafting officer at \$2,500 June 17, 1921, effective July 1; representative of the Dept. in connection with the preparation of the Official Register of U.S. since 1919; at \$3,000 May 7, 1924; asst. to chief clk. and chief of appt. section Aug. 19, 1924; at \$3,200 May 1, 1925; at \$3,300 Nov. 1, 1927; at \$3,400 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$3,600 July 1, 1930; at \$3,700 July 3, 1930 (Brookhart Act); acting chlef elk. and admin. asst. Sept. 8-Dec. 31, 1931; married.-AP.

Allen, Ruth Joyce.—b. Everett, Wash.; high sch. grad.; George Washington Univ. 1929-; clk. 1925; stenog, in bank 1925-29; ln Veterans' Bu. 1929-30; app. clk. at \$1,620 in the Dept. of State Jan. 11, 1930; at \$1,740 July 1, 1930; at \$1,800 Sept. 16, 1930; at \$2,000 Sept. 1, 1931; clk., Int. Radio Conf., Madrid, 1932.—FA.

Allen, Stuart.—b. St. Paul, Minn., Dec. 13, 1902; St. Paul Acad. grad.; Princeton, B. S. 1926; teacher, Peking Coll. of Com. and Finance and Peking Union Medical Coll., China, 1926–28; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass. and v. c. of career Mar. 26, 1929; assigned to the For. Scr. Sch. July 1, 1929; to Tlentsin Sept. 12, 1929.

Alling, Paul Humiston.—b. Hamden, Conn., July 15, 1896; Trinity Coll., A. B. 1920; Univ. of Pa., M. A. 1924; clk. 1913-15; U. S. Army 1917-19, 1st It, overseas service; foreign service training class of N. Y. bank 1920-21; research and editorial work 1921-24; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass. and v. c. of career Oct. 16, 1924; assigned to Beirut Nov. 8, 1924; to Aleppo, temp., Mar. 30, 1926; to Beirut Aug. 17, 1926; to Damascus Oct. 25, 1926; to Beirut Jan. 27, 1927; to the Dept. Apr. 2, 1928; class eight and cons. May 23, 1929; resigned Nov. 30, 1930; app. divisional asst. at \$5,600 ln the Dept. of State Lec. 1, 1930; marrled.—NE.

Allison, John Moore.—b. Holton, Kans., Apr. 7, 1905; Univ. of Nebr., A. B. 1927; teacher of Eng. in Japanese sch. 1927-29; cml. work in China and Japan 1929-30; app. clk. in Am. Consulate General at Shanghai Apr. 28, 1930; v. c. at Kobe Oct. 20, 1931; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass., v. c. of career, and sec. in the Diplo. Ser. Dec. 17, 1931; assigned as v. c. at Kobe Jan. 2, 1932; as language officer at Tokyo Jan. 15, 1932; as v. c. at Tokyo May 9, 1934; married.

Altaffer, Leland Charles.—b. West Unity, Ohio, Jan. 12, 1896; high sch. grad.; Toledo Univ. 1917, 1919– 20; Colgate Univ. 1921; U. S. Navy 1917–19; cml. employment 1922–25; newspaper reporter 1926–27; app. clk. in Am. Consulate at Colombo July 2, 1927; at Rangoon Mar. 4, 1928; v. c. at Rangoon July 31, 1929; at Madras June 25, 1932.

Altaffer, Maurice Willard .- b. West Unity, Ohio, May 10, 1893; high sch. grad.; U. S. Coast Guard Acad., Coll. of the City of New York, and extension courses at Columbia; teacher in public sch. 1912-14, 1916; cadet, U. S. Coast Guard, 1914-15; U. S. Navy 1917-19, lt. (jg); shipping business 1920; clk. in Am. Consulate General at Berlin 1921-22; in Am. Consulate at Stuttgart 1922-23; app. v. c. at Stuttgart May 23, 1923; app., after exam., v. c. of career of class three July 6, 1923; assigned to Stuttgart July 10, 1923; to Frankfort-on-the-Main Sept. 6, 1923; For. Ser. officer unclass. July 1, 1924; assigned to Aleppo Aug. 7, 1924; to Nogales May 26, 1926; to Agua Prieta, temp., Oct. 8, 1926; to Nogales Jan. 15, 1927; class eight, cons., and assigned to Nogales Aug. 24, 1927; class seven May 9, 1930; assigned to Dresden Jan. 5, 1931; to Zürich May 31, 1933; married.

Alwin, Evelyn Virginia Louise.—b. New Ulm, Minn.; high sch. grad.; cml. employment 1924–29; app. clk. at \$1,440 in the Dept. of State Apr. 15, 1929; at \$1,620 Nov. 25, 1929; at \$1,740 July 1, 1930; clk., Seventh Int. Conf. of Am. States, Montevideo, 1933.—PD.

Anderson, Daniel Virden.—b. Dover, Del., Dec. 31, 1908; Univ. of Va., B. A. 1930; app. clk. in Am. Consulate at Rome June 15, 1931; v. c. at Rome Aug. 25, 1931; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass., v. c. of carcer, and sec. in the Diplo. Ser. Dec. 17, 1931; assigned as v. c. at Rome Jan. 2, 1932; to the For. Ser. Sch. Aug. 19, 1932; to Lisbon Dec. 22, 1932.

Anderson, Edward, Jr.—b. Jacksonville, Fla., Sept. 7, 1907; Univ. of Fla. and Univ. of the South; Vanderbilt Univ., B. A. 1928; Tulane Univ. 1928–29; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass., v. c. of career, and sec. in the Diplo. Ser. Dec. 19, 1929; assigned as v. c. at Nassau, temp., Jan. 7, 1930; to the For. Ser. Sch. Apr. 19, 1930; to Port Said July 22, 1930; to Singapore Nov. 26, 1930; to Montreal June 20, 1934.

Anderson, Francis Maurice .- b. Providence, R. I., July 20, 1885; Brown Univ., A. B. 1907; N. Y. Univ., LL. B. 1912; mem. of bar of N. J.; cotton mfg. 1908-9; law practice 1913-16; settlement officer, trust company, 1916-18; counsel for telegraph and telephone company 1918; in War Dept. 1918-19; research asst. in int. and for. laws, Library of Cong., 1919-20; lecturer on cml. law, Pace Inst., New York and Washington, 1916-23; lecturer on domes. and for. cml. law, Georgetown Sch. of For. Ser., since 1923; app. special asst. at \$2,500 in the Dept. of State Sept. 1, 1920; law clk. at \$2,000 Mar. 1, 1921; at \$2,500 Sept. 16, 1922; at \$2,500 Nov. 1, 1923; at \$3,000 July 1, 1924; asst. to the solicitor at \$3,200 Feb. 1, 1926; at \$3,300 Nov. 1, 1927; at \$3,400 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$3,500 July 1, 1928; at \$3,800 Oct. 1, 1928; at \$4,200 July 1, 1930; at \$4,400 July 3, 1930 (Brookhart Act); asst. to the legal adviser July 1, 1931; counsel for U.S., U. S.-Egypt Arbitration (Salem Claim), Vienna, 1931; legal asst., U.S.-Turkish Joint Claims Com., Istanbul, 1933-34; married.-LE.

Anderson, Walter H.—b. Rockford, Ill., Sept. 6, 1900; attended high sch.; La Salle Extension Univ. two yrs.; cml. work 1916-19; U. S. Army 1919-21; app. clk. at \$900 in the Dept. of State Mar. 8, 1921; at \$1,000 Oct. 7, 1921; at \$1,080 Sept. 1, 1922; at \$1,140 Dec. 1, 1922; at \$1,200 Dec. 30, 1922, effective Jan 1, 1923; at \$1,500 July 1, 1924; at \$1,680 July 1, 1925; at \$1,740 Nov. 1, 1927; at \$1,860 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$1,920 July 1, 1928; file clk., London Naval Couf., 1930; at \$2,100 July 1, 1930; clk., Int. Monetary and Economic Conf., London, 1933; married.—DCR.

Anderson, Walter Stratton (Capt.)--b. Carlinvide, Ill., Oct. 4, 1881; Blackburn Coll.; U.S.N.A., grad. 1903; assigned as naval att. at London Feb. 8, 1934; married.

Andrews, George Davis, Jr.—b. Greenwood, Va., Aug. 30, 1902; McCallie Sch. and Phillips Andover; Yale 1920-22; Univ. of Va., B. S. 1924; Oxford, A. B. 1926; app., after exam., For. Scr. officer unclass. and v. c. of career Aug. 24, 1927; assigned to the For. Ser. Sch. Sept. 29, 1927; to Warsaw Mar. 13, 1928; as For. Ser. officer to the leg. at Habana Nov. 29, 1930; sec. in the Diplo. Ser. Dec. 20, 1930; assigned as 3d sec. at Habana Jan. 8, 1931; at Tokyo Nov. 10, 1933; married.

Angel, Herbert Edmund.—b. Roanoke, Va., Apr. 12, 1907; George Washington, A. B. 1930, M. A. 1932; grad. work, Johns Hopkins, 1932-; publicity director 1926-30; editorial work 1930-31; app. editorial asst. at \$1.800 in the Dept. of State Jan. 20, 1932; clk., Seventh Int. Conf. of Am. States, Montevideo, 1933.— RP.

Anthony, Nicholas.—b. Scotland Neck, N. C., July 28, 1877; app. laborer in the Dept. of State Oct. 15, 1917.—CC.

Armour, Norman.--b. Brighton, England, of Am. parents, Oct. 14, 1887; St. Paul's Sch.; Princeton, A. B. 1909, A. M. 1915; Harvard, LL. B. 1913; mem. f bar of N. J.; served in Am. Emb., Vienna, three nonths, 1912; in Am. Emb., Paris, eight months, 915-16; app., after exam., sec. of emb. or leg. of lass five May 17, 1916; assigned to Petrograd May 2, 1916; class four Aug. 3, 1916; class three July 3, 1917; assigned to Brussels Dec. 17, 1918; to The lague June 14, 1920; class two June 28, 1920; ssigned to Montevideo Aug. 3, 1921; to the Dept. Sept. 29, 1922; detailed as asst. to the under sec. of tate Dec. 22, 1922-May 11, 1924; class one Jan. 3, 1924; assigned to Rome Apr. 23, 1924; For. Ser. fficer of class three July 1, 1924; class two Feb. 4, 1925; couns. of emb. at Tokyo June 25, 1925; lass one Sept. 15, 1927; couns. of emb. at Paris pr. 12, 1928; app. E.E. and M.P. to Haiti July 25, 932; married.

Armstrong, George Alexander.—b. Nyack, N. Y., Sept. 15, 1887; Allen Stevenson Sch. grad.; Princeton, A. B. 1909; in bonding house 1910-12; insur. comany 1912-16; insur. brokerage business 1916-17; J. S. Army 1918-19, 2d it.; employed by an Am. di company in Australia and New Zealand 1919-23; .pp, after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass. and v. c. of career Oct. 16, 1924; assigned to Zürich Nov. 8, .924; to Nice Oct. 29, 1928; also to Monaco Nov. 9, .928; class eight, cons., and assigned to Nice and Ionaco May 23, 1929; sec. in the Diplo. Ser. Aug. 6, 1930; assigned as 3d sec. at Warsaw Jan. 31, .931; class seven July 1, 1931; 2d sec. at Berlin Lug. 22, 1933.

Armstrong, Lawrence Sheppard.—b. Penn Yan, N. Y., July 6, 1895; Penn Yan Acad.; Hoosac Sch. (rad.; Sillig Sch., Switzerland; Williams Coll., A. B. 917; U. S. Army 1917-20; bank clk. 1919; clk. in nfg. company 1920-23; app., after exam., v. c. of arcer of class three Oct. 6, 1923; assigned to Liverbool Nov. 19, 1923; For. Ser. officer unclass. July 1, 924; assigned to Messina Sept. 7, 1926; to Naples Feb. 28, 1928; class eight, cons., and assigned to Vaples May 23, 1929; to Lisbon Apr. 10, 1930; class seven Feb. 27, 1931; assigned to Tunis Nov. 11, 933; married.

Arnold, Julean .--- b. Sacramento, Calif., July 19, 1876; Univ. of Calif.; St. Johns Univ., Shanghai; ashier, bookkeeper, and teacher in public sch. three vrs.; app., after exam., student interpreter in China July 18, 1902; v. and dep. cons. at Dalny Feb. 4, 1904; dep. cons. gen. at Shanghai July 13, 1904; 7. and dep. cons. at Foochow Mar. 7, 1906; assigned o duty in Am. Consulate General at Shanghai May 5, 1906; app. cons. at Tansui June 22, 1906; at Amoy May 1, 1908; at Chefoo Mar. S, 1912; cons. gen. at Hankow July 29, 1914; resigned Sept. 25, 1914; app. cml. att., Dept. of Com., Sept. 25, 1914, and designated for duty at Am. Leg. at Peiping Oct. 12, 1914; field representative, Am. Red Cross in China 1918-19; hon. high adviser, Chinese Red Cross, 1925; del., China Tariff Revision Commn., Shanghai, 1918, 1922, 1926; married.

Asbjörnson, Mildred J.—b. Ivanhoe, Minn.; high sch. grad.; attended business sch.; Univ. of Minn. 1927; stenog. 1929-30; app. clk. at \$1,440 in the Dept. of State Oct. 14, 1931.—SS.

67359-34-9

Atcheson, George, Jr.—b. Denver, Colo., Oct. 20, 1896; Unlv. of Calif., A. B. 1919; newspaper and magazine work 1915-20; instructor, U. S. Sch. of Mil. Aeronautics seven months; U. S. Army 1918-19; app., after exam., student interpreter in China Aug. 27, 1920; app. v. c. and interpreter at Changsha Mar. 31, 1923; cons. asst. Feb. 28, 1924; detailed to the Dept. Mar. 7, 1924; app. For. Ser. officer unclass. July 1, 1924; assigned as v. c. at North Bay Feb. 26, 1926; at Tientsin Apr. 13, 1927; class eight, cons., and assigned to Tientsin May 17, 1928; to Foochow, temp., Aug. 25, 1928; to Tientsin Feb. 9, 1929; class seven July 24, 1930; married.

Atherton, Morgan.—b. Davenport, Iowa, Aug. 7, 1904; attended high sch.; clk., salesman, and bookkeeper 1918-28; app. clk. in Am. Consulate General at San Salvador Feb. 1, 1928; v. c. at San Salvador July 9, 1930; married.

Atherton, Ray .- b. Brookline, Mass., Mar. 28, 1883; Harvard, A. B. 1905; studied architecture in Paris four yrs.; Mass. volunteer militia three yrs.; banking 1907-8; in architect's office 1914-16; app., after exam., sec. of emb. or leg. of class four Aug. 23, 1917; assigned to Tokyo Sept. 6, 1917; class three Mar. 14, 1919; assigned to Peking July 30, 1919; on detail with Philippine Commn. Apr.-Oct. 1921; assigned to the Dept. Mar. 1, 1922; class two Sept. 22, 1922; assigned to Athens Mar. 20, 1923; For. Ser. officer of class four July 1, 1924; assigned to the Dept. July 17, 1924; class three Sept. 20, 1924; assigned as 1st sec. at London Oct. 9, 1924; class two Aug. 24, 1927; couns, of emb. at London Sept. 26, 1927; class one Oct. 16, 1929; adviser, London Naval Conf., 1930; rep., prep. meeting for sugar conf., called by sec.gen. of Int. Monetary and Economic Conf., London, 1934; married.

Atterberry, Phil Russell.—b. Atlanta, Mo., Feb. 20, 1908; high sch. and business sch. grad.; George Washington Univ. 1928-; app. clk. at \$1,320 in the Dept. of State Jan. 3, 1927; at \$1,380 Nov. 1, 1927; at \$1,500 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$1,620 Aug. 1, 1928; at \$1,740 July 1, 1930; at \$1,800 Oct. 1, 1930.—DCR.

Atwood, Franklin Bailey.—b. Nantucket, Mass., Jan. 20, 1900; attended high sch.; Mass. Nautical Sch., grad. 1917; École de Commerce de Lausanne, Switzerland, 1923-24; Univ. of Geneva, Switzerland, summer 1923; officer, U. S. merchant marine, 1917-23; owner and dir., sch. of languages, Switzerland, 1923-24; app. clk. in Am. Consulate at Plymouth Feb. 5, 1924; v. c. at Plymouth July 21, 1924; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass. and v. c. of career Apr. 27, 1927; assigned to Plymouth May 9, 1927; to Belfast July 2, 1929; class eight, cons., and assigned to Belfast Feb. 4, 1931; to Santiago, Chile, Sept. 8, 1931; married.

Axton, Matilda Fannie.—b. Salt Lake City, Utah; Middlebury Coll., A. B. 1923; grad. work, American Univ., 1928–29; app. editorial asst. at \$1,500 in the Dept. of State Apr. 1, 1926; at \$1,680 July 1, 1927; at \$1,800 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$2,000 Aug. 1, 1928; at \$2,200 July 1, 1930; at \$2,300 Nov. 11, 1931.—RP. Ayres, Wilbur Carter.—b. Manassas, Va., Aug. 28, 1907; high sch. grad.; George Washington Univ. 1928–29; Georgetown Sch. of For. Ser., grad. 1933; clk. 1926–27; in Gen. Accounting Office 1927–30; app. clk. at 1,620 in the Dept. of State Mar. 19, 1930; at 1,620 July 1, 1930; at 1,800 Dec. 8, 1930; at 2,000 Dec. 11, 1931; mem., Conciliation Committee of the Dept. of State, Nov. 6, 1933-.—BA.

Bachelder, Leonard A.—b. Salem, Mass., Mar. 5, 1855; husiness in Auckland since 1891; v. c. at Zanzibar 1880-83; act. v. c. at Aden 1886-87; app. v. c. at Auckland Oct. 10, 1891; v. cons. gen. July 15, 1903; v. c. at Auckland Feb. 6, 1915.

Bacon, John Kenly.—b. Wilmington, N. C., Dec. 24, 1903; Phillips Andover grad.; Yale, B. A. 1925; cml. work 1925–27; treas. of corp. 1927–30; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass., v. c. of career, and sec. in the Diplo. Ser. Dec. 16, 1930; assigned as v. c. at St. John, N. B., Jan. 5, 1931; to the For. Ser. Sch. Aug. 8, 1931; to Callao-Lima Dec. 10, 1931; married.

Bagby, Nettie Neale.—b. Staunton, Va.; high sch. and business sch. grad.; sec. and bookkeeper three yrs.; app. clk., temp., at \$900 in the Dept. of State Jan. 11, 1915; permanently, at \$1,000 under Ex. order June 22, 1916, effective July 1; at \$1,200 Aug. 23, 1917; at \$1,400 May 1, 1920; at \$1,680 July 1, 1924; at \$1,740 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$1,800 July 1, 1928; stenog., Red Cross and Prisoners of War Conf., Geneva, 1929; at \$1,920 July 1, 1930; at \$1,980 July 3, 1930 (Brookhart Act); at \$2,000 Oct. 1, 1930.—WE.

Bailey, John William, Jr.-b. Bonham, Tex., Apr. 20, 1894; high sch. and business sch. grad.; Univ. of Tex. 1916-17, 1919-20; Univ. of Besangon, France, 1919: transportation agt. for oil company, Mexico, 1913-14; postal clk. 1915; sec. to prof., Tex. Agric. and Mech. Coll., 1915-16; U. S. Army 1917-19, 2d It., overseas service; canteen sec. overseas 1920-21; ranching and real estate business, Mexico, 1921-24; app. clk. in Am. Consulate at Geneva Mar. 1924; v. c. at Geneva Oct. 17, 1924; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass., v. c. of career, and assigned to Geneva Aug. 3, 1925; to Lausanne, temp., Oct. 5, 1925; to Geneva Oct. 19, 1925; to Loanda Mar. 11, 1926; to Prague Jan. 24, 1929; class eight, cons., and assigned to Prague Dec. 19, 1929; class seven July 1, 1931; to Rosario Feb. 3, 1932; to Buenos Aires Dec. 16, 1932.

Bailey, Waldo Emerson.—b. Winona, Miss., Nov. 16, 1896; Castle Heights Acad. grad.; Millsaps Coll. 1915-16; Miss. Agric. and Mech. Coll., B.S. 1920; Kans. State Teachers Coll. 1924; grad. work, Vanderbilt, 1927; George Peabody Coll. for Teachers, Nashville, Tenn., M.A. 1928; U. S. Marine Corps 1918-19, overseas service; asst. principal of high sch. 1919-20; field representative for various organizations 1920-23; clk., Am. Consulate, Karachi, and Am. Consulate General, Calcutta, 1923-24; teacher of Eng. in Porto Rico 1925; platform supt., Chautauqua circuit, 1925; assoe, editor and asst. mgr. of daily newspaper 1925-26; app. v. c. at Rosario Feb. 6, 1926; resigned Jan. 30, 1927; teacher of hist., Middle State Teachers Coll., 1928; app. v. c. at Mazatlán July 26, 1928; app., after exam., For Ser. officer unclass., v. c. of career, and sec. in the Diplo. Ser. Mar. 8, 1930; assigned as v. c. at Montevideo Apr. 3, 1930; at Progress Jan. 20, 1932; at Mérida Nov. 11, 1933.

Baillie, Hannah Wallace.—b. Edinburgh, Scotland; naturalized; attended high sch. and business sch.; stenog., Veterans' Bu., 1929-30; app. clk, at \$1,440 in the Dept. of State May 17, 1930; at \$1,620 June 1, 1930.—SS.

Bain, Wendell H.—b. West Grove, Iowa, June 14, 1908; high sch. grad.; attended business sch.; George Washington Univ. 1929-; stenog. 1926; app. clk. at \$1,320 in the Dept. of State Jan. 12, 1927; at \$1,380 Nov. 1, 1927; at \$1,500 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$1,620 Aug. 1, 1928; at \$1,740 July 1, 1930; at \$1,800 Nov. 1, 1930.—DCR.

Baker, Emma Louise (Mrs.)—b. Washington, D. C.; attended high sch.; telephone operator and supervisor 1906-17; telephone operator, War Dept., 1917-18; marinette, U. S. Marine Corps, 1918-19; app. telephone operator at \$1,260, temp., in the Dept. of State Aug. 1, 1927; permanently Feb. 8, 1928; at \$1,380 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$1,440 July 1, 1928; at \$1,500 July 1, 1930.—DCR.

Baker, James Marion.—b. Lowndesville, S.C., Aug. 18, 1861; Wofford Coll.; asst. librarian, U.S. Senate, 1803–1913; sec., U.S. Scnate, 1913–19; deputy commr., Bu. of Internal Revenue, 1919–20; app. E.E. and M.P. to Siam Aug. 30, 1933.

Baker, Joseph Richardson.-b. New Hartford, N. Y., Feb. 11, 1872; Hamilton Coll., A. B. 1893; mem. of bar of N. Y.; law clk., Commn. to Five Civilized Tribes, Dept. of Interior, 1902-3; clk., Post Office Dept., 1903-6; app. clk. at \$1,200 in the Dept. of State July 31, 1906, effective Aug. 6; at \$1,400 July 1, 1908; at \$1,600 June 1, 1909; special agt. of the Dept. of State and v. and dep. cons., Apia, Samoa, Apr.-Aug. 1911; clk. at \$1,800 Nov. 20, 1911; law clk. at \$2,500 Dec. 1, 1913; asst. solicitor June 22, 1916, effective July 1; at \$3,000 Aug. 1, 1916; agt. of the Dept. of State in Panama 1917; asst. to the solicitor at \$4,000 Dec. 31, 1919, effective Jan. 1, 1920; drafting officer July 1, 1920; at \$4,500 June 17, 1921, effective Jnly 1; mem., U. S-Panama Commn. 1924; at \$5,200 July 1, 1924; U. S. commr. on Gen. Claims Commn., U. S. and Mexico, 1924-25; at \$5,600 May 1, 1925; at \$7,000 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); del., Int. Commn. for Air Navigation, Paris, 1929: tech. adviser, Red Cross and Prisoners of War Conf., Geneva, 1929; agt. in Germany of Dept. of State 1929; asst. to the legal adviser July 1, 1931; U. S. commr. on Claims Commn., U. S. and Panama, 1932; chm., Conciliation Committee of the Dept. of State, Nov. 6, 1933-; married.-LE.

Baker, Milton.—b. Washington, D. C., May 3, 1898; U. S. Army 1916-19; laborer, Office of Public Bldgs. and Grounds, 1924-25; app. laborer in the Dept. of State Aug. 12, 1925.—MA.

122

Baker, Roy William.—b. Buffalo, N. Y., Mar. 11, 1883; Lafayette Coll., A. B. 1906; clk. 1906–7; art student and artist 1908–9; editorial work on newspapers and Committee on Public Information 1910– 18; app. v. c. at Edinburgh Feb. 15, 1919; at Hull Apr. 17, 1920; at Barcelona Aug. 26, 1921; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass., v. c. of career, and assigned to Barcelona Apr. 9, 1925; to Málaga, temp., July 27, 1926; to Barcelona Sept. 28, 1926; to London Mar. 30, 1929; class eight, cons., and assigned to London July 24, 1930; to Bristol Jan. 8, 1931; married.

Balch, Henry Hezekiab.—b. near Madison, Ala., Jan. 6, 1877; Ala. State Normal Coll., grad. 1899; principal of public sch. 1899–1901; teacher and principal, vocational high sch., Philippine Is., 1901–12; app., after exam., cons. at St. Stephen June 22, 1914; cons. of class nine by act approved Feb. 5, 1915; class eight June 8, 1915, and assigned to Xarmouth; class seven Oct. 27, 1916, and assigned to Asunción; class six Sept. 5, 1919; class five June 4, 1920; detailed to the Dept. Jan. 12, 1921; assigned to Adelaide Feb. 10, 1921; class four Nov. 19, 1921; For. Ser. officer of class five July 1, 1924; assigned to Monterrey Feb. 27, 1928; class four Dec. 19, 1929; cons. gen. Dec. 20, 1930; assigned to Dublin Jan. 12, 1931; married.

Baldwin, LaVerne.—b. Cortland, N. Y., Aug. 2, 1899; Cortland Normal Sch. 1918; Cornell, A. B. 1925, M. A. 1926; teacher in acad. 1918–22; asst. in Romance languages, Cornell, 1925–26; app. clk. in Am. Consulate General at Ottawa May 1926; app.. after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass. and v. c. of career Apr. 27, 1927; assigned to Ottawa May 9, 1927; sec. In the Diplo. Ser. June 21, 1928; assIgned as 3d sec. at Ottawa. temp., June 30, 1928; as v. c. at Ottawa Aug. 11, 1928; at Santa Marta July 27, 1929; to the Dept. July 20, 1931.—WE.

Bales, William L. (1st Lt.)-b. London, Ky., Nov. 9, 1893; entered U. S. Marine Corps May 21, 1917; assigned as language officer at Peiping Jan. 7, 1933; married.

Ball, Alice Morton .- b. Washington, D. C.; George Washington, A. B. 1930; Newspaper Inst. of America. certificate 1933; librarian 1905-10; statistical clk., Cong. Bonding Commn. and Tariff Ed., 1910-11; secretary 1912; Carnegie Endowment for International Peace, editorial asst. 1912-23, editor of publications 1923-25; lecturer on editing, George Washington Univ. 1928-30; app. asst. editor at \$2,400 in the Dept. of State July 1, 1925; at \$2,500 May 6, 1926; editor of publications and admin. asst. at \$3,000 Nov. 1. 1927; at \$3,200 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$3,300 July 1, 1928; designated, Sept. 26, 1929, to represent the Dept. on the committee to revise the Style Manual of the Govt. Printing Office; asst. to the historical adviser Dec. 7, 1929; at \$3,800 Feb. 1, 1930; assigned as editor, Am. Agency, Mixed Claims Commn., U. S. and Germany, 1930-31; chief, special documents section, Oct. 1, 1931 .- RP.

Ballantine, Joseph William .- b. Ahmednagar, India, of Am. parents. July 30, 1888; Amherst, A. B. 1909; app., after exam., student interpreter in Japan June 2, 1909; detailed for duty at Am. Consulate at Kobe July 25, 1911; app. interpreter at Kobe Aug. 31, 1911; also dep. cons. Dec. 18, 1911; dep. cons. gen. and interpreter at Yokohama June 11, 1912; v. and dep. cons. and interpreter at Tansui Nov. 6, 1912; dep. cons. gen. and interpreter at Yokohama Oct. 7, 1913; v. and dep. cons. gen. at Yokohama June 25, 1914; asst. Japanese sec. at Tokyo Aug. 1, 1914; Japanese see. at Tokyo Aug. 15, 1917; app. cons. of class five July 6, 1921, and assigned to Dairen; detailed to Yokohama Oct. 17, 1923; to Tokyo Dec. 13, 1923; class four Dec. 19, 1923; For. Ser. officer of class five July 1, 1924; class four Dec. 17, 1925; assigned to the Dept. Feb. 14, 1928; sec., London Naval Conf., 1930; cons. gen. June 4, 1930; assigned to Canton June 10, 1930; class three July 24, 1930; married.

Banash, Sydney Henry.—b. Boston, Mass., May 12, 1888; attended high sch.; with business firm in Argentina 1904-18; clk. in Am. Consulate General at Buenos Aires 1918-19; app. v. c. at Buenos Aires Sept. 2. 1921; married.

Bankhead, **Henry M**.—*b*. in Ala., Dec. 19, 1876; Univ. of Ala.; sec. to mem. of Cong. 1898; U. S. Volunteers, capt., 1898; U. S. Army 1899–1922, lt. col.; real estate business since 1922; app. cml. att. at Ottawa June 20, 1933; married.

Barbour, Walworth.—b. Cambridge, Mass., June 4, 1908; Phillips Exeter grad.; Harvard, A. B. 1930; app. clk, in Am. Consulate General at Naples June 11, 1931; v. c. at Naples Aug. 18, 1931; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass., v. c. of career, and sec. in the Diplo. Ser. Dec. 17, 1931; assigned as v. c. at Naples Jan. 2, 1932; to the For. Ser. Sch. Aug. 19, 1932; to Hong Kong Dec. 22, 1932 (canceled); to Athens Feb. 3, 1933.

Barger, Ralph H.—b. Walnut. Miss., July 24, 1898; high sch. grad.; Miss. Coll. 1918: Y.M.C.A. Sch. of Accountancy, 1926-29; U. S. Army 1918; clk. in War Dept. 1924-27, in Dept. of Labor 1927-30; app. clk. at \$2,000 in the Dept. of State Dec. 1, 1930; married.—BA.

Barker, Clifford Oman.—b. Newport, R. I., Sept. 24, 1904; high sch. grad.; George Washington Univ. 1926, Law Sch. 1931–32; app. clk. at \$900 in the Dept. of State July 23, 1923; at \$1,000 Nov. 1, 1923; at \$1,100 May 31, 1924, effective June 1; at \$1,380 July 1, 1924; at \$1,680 Mar. 1, 1926; at \$1,800 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$1,860 July 1, 1928; at \$1,950 July 1, 1930.—PD.

Barlow, Bernardine Fox.—b. Lexington, Va.; high sch. and business sch. grad.; sec. and stenog. 1928– 30; stenog., Veterans' Bu., 1930–31; app. clk. at \$1,440 in the Dept. of State Apr. 6, 1931; at \$1,620 Sept. 3, 1931.—SS.

Barnes, Charles Maurice.--b. Winchester, Va., Feb. 14, 1879; Washington and Lee Univ. 1897-99, 1903-4;

George Washington, A. B. 1910, LL. B. 1921, LL. M. 1922; mem. of bar of D. C.; principal of public sch. 1899-1900; instructor in hist, and languages, prep. sch., 1900-1903, 1904-7; special agt., Bu. of Labor, Dept. of Com. and Labor, 1907-8, and U. S. Immigration Commn. 1909; clk., Census Bu., 1909-12; app. clk. at \$1,600 in the Dept. of State Jan. 5, 1912; reapp. under Ex. order Aug. 24, 1912; at \$1,800 June 22, 1916, effective July 1; special asst. at \$2,500 Dec. 31, 1919, effective Jan. 1, 1920; drafting officer July 1, 1920; asst. solicitor at \$3,000 July 19, 1920; drafting officer at \$3,500 Dec. 30, 1922, effective Jan. 1, 1923; at \$3,800 July 1, 1924; at \$4,200 May 1, 1925; at \$4,600 Feb. 1, 1926; at \$4,800 Nov. 1, 1927; counsel for U. S. before Int. Joint Commn., U. S. and Canada, 1923-27; chief, Treaty Division, Apr. 21, 1928; at \$5,000 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$6,500 Oct. 1, 1928; del., Int. Conf. on Safety of Life at Sea, London, 1929; tech. adviser, Fourth Pan American Cml. Conf., Washington, 1931 .--- TD.

Barnes, Maynard Bertram .- b. Le Roy, Minn., June 28, 1897; Grinnell Coll., A. B. 1919; app. v. c. at Patras, Greece, Aug. 26, 1919; app., after exam., v. c. of career of class three May 25, 1921; assigned to Patras June 11, 1921; to Smyrna Oct. 18, 1921; class two May 26, 1922; detailed to Am. High Commn., Constantinople, Dec. 6, 1922; class one Feb. 23, 1923; cons. of class seven Mar. 1, 1923; detailed to Lausanne Conf. 1923; as del. of Am. High Commr. to Turkey, Angora, 1923; For. Ser. officer of class eight July 1, 1924; class seven Aug. 8, 1924; assigned to St. Gall Nov. 17, 1924; to Berlin Mar. 23, 1925; to the Dept. May 17, 1926; class six Aug. 24, 1927; class five Dec. 19, 1929; assigned as cons. and 2d sec. at Sofia Mar. 22, 1930; class four July 1, 1931; relieved of duties as cons. at Sofia May 5, 1932; 1st sec. at Athens Sept. 6, 1933 (canceled); assigned to the Dept. Feb. 16, 1934; married.-NE.

Barnett, G. J.—b. Rumford Falls, Me., June 22, 1906; attended high sch. and business sch.; Washington Coll. of Law, LL.B. 1933; clk. 1926-28, 1931; secretary 1929-30; stenog., Dept. of Labor, 1930; app. clk. at \$1,440 in the Dept. of State Mar. 23, 1931; at \$1,620 July 1, 1931.—FA.

Barnhart, Eva Sylvia.—b. Washington, D. C.; business high sch. grad.; attended George Washington Univ. and New York City Coll.; stenog., Govt. depts., 1914–19, 1922; employed by publishing firm, author, and editor 1920–21; clk., Dept. of State, 1923–26; app. clk. at \$1,620 in the N. Y. Passport Agency Sept. 1, 1926; at \$1,680 Jan. 1, 1927; at \$1,800 July 1, 1928; at \$1,860 May 1, 1930.

Barny, Frederick Sutton.—b. Baghdad, Iraq, of Am. parents, Mar. 13, 1900; Rutgers, Litt. B. 1923; S. A. T. C. 1918; app. clk. in Am. Consulate at Liverpool July 9, 1924; v. c. at Dublin Mar. 25, 1927; at Port Said Aug. 27, 1931.

Barron, Bryton.—b. Doone, Iowa, Dec. 6, 1898; Sioux Falls Coll., A. B.; Rhodes scholar, Oxford, diploma in economics and political science 1922, B. Litt. (research) 1923; newspaper editor 1918-19; editorial writer 1923-25; teacher in high sch., Philippine Is., 1925; editor and chief of Division of Publications, Philippine Bu. of Education, 1926-28; author of textbooks on Eng. composition; instructor at Sioux Falls Coll. 1929; app. asst. editor at \$2,600 In the Dept. of State July 11, 1929; chief of publishing section, Dec. 7, 1929; at \$3,200 Feb. 1, 1930; at \$3,400 July 1, 1930; married.--RP.

Barry, Grace W. (Mrs.)-b. Bering, Mo.; Univ. of Minn., B. S. 1929, grad. work 1929-30; teacher in high sch. 1914-20; cataloguer in library 1926-30; app. library asst. at \$2,000 in the Dept. of State July 1, 1930.--RP.

Barry, John Robert.—b. Boston, Mass., Dec. 14, 1877; private tutors; attended business sch. and Tufts Coll.; McGill Univ., Montreal, 1918–19; photographer 1891–1912; salesman 1912–15; stenog. 1915– 17, in War Dept. 1917–18; clk. in Am. Consulate General at Montreal Aug. 2, 1918; app. v. c. at Montreal May 3, 1919; at Campbellton, temp., Oct. 18. 1922; at Montreal Jan. 8, 1923; married.

Barton, John Louis.—b. Brown Co., Wis., May 28, 1893; attended high sch. and business sch.; St. Stanislaws Coll. 1909–10; clk. 1912–13; cml. employment 1913–14, 1916–17; clk., Navy Dept., 1917–22; app. clk. at \$1,600 in the Chicago Passport Agency of the Dept. of State June 27, 1922; at \$1,680 Aug. 1, 1924; asst. passport agt. at \$2,100 Oct. 1, 1925; at \$2,200 Nov. 1, 1926; at \$2,300 July 1, 1927; at \$2,500 July 1, 1928; at \$2,600 May 1, 1930; married.

Bassel, Cornelia Bruen.—b. Clarksburg, W. Va.; attended private sch.; Wilson Coll. one yr.; clk., Govt. depts., 1918-25; app. clk. at \$1,560 in the Dept. of State Feb. 28, 1925, effective Mar. 1; at \$1,620 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$1,800 Oct. 1, 192S; asst. to the chief instructor of the For. Ser. Sch. at \$2,000 Oct. 1, 1929; at \$2,200 July 1, 1930; at \$2,300 July 3, 1930 (Brookhart Act); asst. to the director of the For. Ser. Officers' Training Sch. July 1, 1931.—FSS.

Bassett, Jane Bartholomew.—b. New Britain, Conn.; attended high sch. and business sch.; Washington Coll. of Law and George Washington Univ.; stenog. 1893-1904; clk. in Navy Dept. 1907-10; with Tariff Bd. 1910-12; app. clk. at \$900 in the Dept. of State Mar. 29, 1912; at \$1,000 Dec. 1, 1913; at \$1,200 May 1, 1916; at \$1,400 June 22, 1916, effective July 1; at \$1,600 Aug. 1, 1918; at \$1,860 July 1, 1924; at \$2,000 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$2,100 July 1, 1928; at \$2,300 July 1, 1930.—EE.

Baugus, John Elmer.—b. Lobelville, Tenn., Oct. 7, 1889; high sch. grad.; attended business sch.; Southwestern Univ. 1915-17; LaSalle Extension Univ., grad. 1929; asst. bookkceper 1911-15; U. S. Army 1918-19, overseas service; asst. cashier 1919-22; clk., Gen. Accounting Office, 1922-30; app. clk. at \$2,000 in the Dept. of State May 13, 1930; at \$2,100 July 1, 1930; at \$2,200 July 3, 1930 (Brookhart Act); married.—BA. **Baxley, Louise Italia.**—*b.* Douglasville, Ga.; high sch. grad.; attended business sch.; George Washington Univ. 1926–28, 1930–32; stenog. 1919–20, 1922– 24; in Gov. depts. 1920, 1924–27; app. clk. at \$1,320 in the Dept. of State Apr. 1, 1927; at \$1,440 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$1,500 July 1, 1928; at \$1,620 May 1, 1929; at \$1,740 July 1, 1930.—FA.

Bay, Charles Alexander .- b. Columbus, Ohio, June 7, 1886; Ohio State Univ. one yr.; Sorbonne five months; stenog, 1905-7; passenger agt. 1910-18; U. S. Army 1918-19, 1st lt.; with Fuel Admin. in Pittsburgh 1920; app., after exam., v. c. of career of class three Sept. 7, 1920; assigned to Dublin Oct. 18. 1920: class two May 26, 1922; assigned to Casablanca Oct. 12, 1922; class one Feb. 26, 1923; assigned to Port au Prince Mar. 30, 1923; to Tampico May 22, 1924; For. Ser. officer unclass. July 1, 1924; class eight Feb. 24, 1925; cons. Mar. 3, 1925; assigned to Tampico Sept. 14, 1925; to Corinto May 7, 1926; to Tientsin Nov. 9, 1926; sec. in the Diplo. Ser, and assigned as cons. and 3d sec, at Bangkok Nov. 11, 1927; class seven May 17, 1928; assigned as 3d sec. at Bucharest Sept. 23, 1929; 2d sec. Oct. 19, 1929; class six Dec. 19, 1920; assigned to Tirana Sept. 15, 1930; to Rome Nov. 5, 1932; married.

Beach, Arthur Eugene.—b. Washington, D. C., Mar. 24, 1907; high sch. grad.; George Washington, A. B. 1930, grad. work 1930-33; student asst., George Washington Univ., 1931-32; clk., Govt. depts., 1924-27; app. archive asst. at \$1,320 in the Dept. of State July 20, 1927; at \$1,440 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$1,500 July 1, 1928; at \$1,800 Jan. 1, 1929; at \$1,920 July 1, 1930; at \$2,000 Aug. 1, 1930; asst. sec., Provisional Committee for a National Archives, 1930; mem., Conciliation Committee of the Dept. of State, Nov. 6, 1933-; married.—HA.

Beach, Frances Marion.—b. Washington, D. C.; high sch. grad.; attended business sch.; stenog. and sec. 1920-31; app. clk. at \$1,440 in the N. Y. Passport Agency of the Dept. of State Apr. 1, 1931; at \$1,440 in the Dept. of State Oct. 12, 1931; at \$1,620 Jan. 22, 1934.—SS.

Beach, William Hall.—b. Concord Wharf, Va., May 20, 1893; Univ. of Va., B. A. 1916; Harvard, A. M. 1917; Univ. of Grenoble, France, summer 1920; Univ. of Va., summer 1921; Middlebury French Sch., summers 1922 and 1923; U. S. Army 1917-19; instructor, prep. sch., 1919-24; app., after exam., For. Scr. officer unclass. and v. c. of career Oct. 16, 1924; assigned to Bombay Nov. 8, 1924; class eight. cons., and assigned to Bombay Oct. 16, 1929; to Antwerp Sept. 18, 1931; married.

Beam, Jacob Dyneley.—b. Princeton, N. J., Mar. 24, 1908; Kent Sch. grad.; Princeton, B. A. 1929; Cambridge Univ., England, 1929-30; app. clk. in Am. Consulate at Geneva June 2, 1931; v. c. at Geneva July 14, 1931; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass., v. c. of career, and sec. in the Diplo. Ser. Dec. 17, 1931; assigned as v. c. at Geneva Jan. 2, 1932; to the For. Ser. Sch. Nov. 29, 1932; to Geneva Mar. 30, 1933.

Beaulac, Willard Leon.-b. Pawtucket, R. I., July 25, 1899; Brown Univ. two yrs.; Georgetown Sch. of For. Ser., B. F. S. 1921; George Washington Univ., summer 1921; U. S. Navy 1918-19; clk., Bu. of Internal Revenue, 1921; app., after exam., v. c. of career of class three Oct. 26, 1921; assigned to Tampico Dec. 14, 1921; class two Feb. 26, 1923; assigned to Puerto Castilla May 12, 1923; class one Nov. 23, 1923; For. Ser. officer unclass. July 1, 1924; class eight and cons. Aug. 8, 1924; assigned to Arica Mar. 9, 1925; sec. of Am. del. and asst. sec. gen. of Plebiscitary Commn., Tacna-Arica Arbitration, 1926: class seven June 8, 1927; sec. in the Diplo. Ser. Oct. 5, 1927; assigned as 3d sec. at Port au Prince Oct. 12, 1927; to the Dept. Apr. 13, 1928; as 2d sec. at Managua Dec. 10, 1928; class six May 23, 1929; class five July 1, 1931; assigned as 2d sec. at San Salvador Jan. 12, 1933; to the Dept. Apr. 20, 1933; asst. chief, Division of Latin American Affairs, Feb. 15, 1934; detailed to the leg. at Guatemala Mar. 2-May 16, 1934.-LA.

Beaumont, Adam.—b. England, Jan. 24, 1890; Am. cttizen; attended high sch. and business sch.; Boston Univ. 1914-16; corr. courses, Universal Inst., New York City; clk. 1917-18, in War Dept. 1918; app. clk. in the Diplo. Ser. Nov. 4, 1918; assigned to the leg. at Port au Prince Jan. 25, 1919; resigned July 31, 1920; conducted shopping bureau 1920-21; accountant 1921-22; app. clk. in Am. Consulate at Saloniki Apr. 1922; v. c. at Saloniki Aug. 25, 1922; at Patras Sept. 11, 1923; at Saloniki Sept. 22, 1923; at Naples Dec. 5, 1924; at Rivière du Loup June 30, 1930; at Hamilton, Ont., Oct. 6, 1930; married.

Bechtold, Leonice Keegin (Mrs.)—b. Washington, D. C.; high sch. grad.; attended business sch.; stenog. 1922-25; app. clk. at \$1,320 in the Dept. of State Oct. 16, 1925; at \$1,380 Mar. 1, 1927; at \$1,440 Nov. 1, 1927; at \$1,500 Dec. 1, 1927; at \$1,620 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$1,680 July 1, 1928; at \$1,800 July 1, 1930.—FA.

Beck, Goldie R.—b. Delta, Colo.; attended high sch. and business sch.; Berlitz Sch. of Languages 1928; bookkeeper 1923-24; stenog. 1924-25; app. clk. at \$1,140 in the Dept. of State Jan. 11, 1926; at \$1,320 Nov. 1, 1926; at \$1,440 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$1,500 Sept. 1, 1928; at \$1,560 July 1, 1930.—VD.

Beck, Henry Abraham Winchester.—b. Indianapolis. Ind., Jan. 22, 1903; Phillips Andover; Harvard, A. B. 1925; George Washington Law Sch. 1925-26; app., after exam., For. Scr. officer unclass. May 28, 1926; v. c. of career June 15, 1926; assigned to Geneva. temp., Apr. 22, 1927; to Athens June 16, 1927; to Alexandria Aug. 30, 1929; to Hankow Mar. 5, 1932; to Tsingtao July 26, 1933; to Athens Dec. 4, 1933.

Beck, William Hopkins.—b. Washington, D. C., Sept. 8, 1892; attended high sch. and business sch.; sec. to mem. of Cong. one and one-half yrs.; Inst. of Industrial Research three and one-half yrs.; Nat. Geographic Society two yrs.; U. S. Army 1917-20, overseas service; capt., O. R. C.; detailed to Am.

Commn. to Negotiate Peace, Paris, 1919; app. special asst. at \$2,500 in the Dept. of State Jan. 13, 1920; private sec. to the scc. of state June 1, 1920; drafting officer at \$3,000 Nov. 1, 1920; detailed to accompany the sec. of state on mission to South America 1920 and to Rio de Janeiro 1922; at \$3,500 July 16, 1923; asst. to the sec. of state at \$3,800 Feb. 1, 1926; at \$4,200 Feb. 2, 1926; at \$4,600 Apr. 1, 1926; at \$5,000 Feb. 1, 1927; at \$5,200 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act) ; detailed to accompany the sec. of state on mission for signature of Pact for Renunciation of War, Paris, 1928; at \$8,000 Dec. 1, 1929; sec., London Naval Conf., 1930; resigned Dec. 28, 1931; app. For. Ser. officer of class three, cons. gen., and sec. in the Diplo. Ser. Dec. 17, 1931; assigned as cons. gen. at Ottawa Dec. 30, 1931; married.

Becker, Clayton S.—b. Lancaster, Pa., Sept. 29, 1882; attended high sch. and business sch.; telegrapher 1905-15; app. clk. at \$900 in the Dept. of State Oct. 4, 1915; at \$1,200 June 22, 1916, effective July 1; at \$1,860 July 1, 1924; at \$1,920 Mar. 1, 1927; at \$2,100 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); code clk., London Naval Conf., 1930; at \$2,300 July 1, 1930; clk., 1st stage, Gen. Disarmament Conf., Geneva, 1932; married.—DCR.

Beckert, Agnes H. (Mrs.)—b. Washington, D. C.; business high sch. grad.; George Washington Univ. 1922-23; stenog. and bookkeeper 1922-24; in Dept. of Interior 1924-25; app. clk. at \$1,320 in the Dept. of State Feb. 16, 1925; at \$1,380 Dec. 1, 1925; at \$1,440 Mar. 1, 1927; at \$1,500 Sept. 1, 1927; at \$1,620 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$1,800 Apr. 1, 1929; at \$1,920 July 1, 1930; at \$2,000 Nov. 24, 1930.—BA.

Beckley, Robbin.—b. Lead City, S. Dak.; high sch. grad.; telephone operator 1927; stenog. and bookkeeper 1930; app. clk., temp., at \$1,260 in the Dept. of State Jan. 16, 1931; permanently Apr. 22, 1931.— DCR.

Beitz, William Edward.—b. North Tonawanda, N. Y., Aug. 17, 1890; Cornell, C. E.; Cornell Grad. Sch. three yrs.; instructor in structural engineering, Cornell, 1912-17; U. S. Army 1917-21, capt.; app. clk. in Am. Consulate at Hamburg May 1923; v. c. at Hamburg Apr. 14, 1924; app., after exam., For. Scr. officer unclass., v. c. of carcer, and assigned to Hamburg Aug. 3, 1925; to Berlin June 16, 1928; class eight, cons., and assigned to Berlin Dec. 19, 1929; married.

Bell, John O.—b. Manila, P. I., of Am. parents, Oct. 4, 1912; high sch. grad.; attended business sch.; American Univ. 1928-29; George Washington Univ. 1920-; in Dept. of Agric. 1929-31; app. clk. at \$1,440 in the Dept. of State Jan. 19, 1931; married.—PD.

Belovsky, Sidney Arthur.—b. New York City Aug. 3. 1901; attended high sch.; clk. and salesman in U. S. and So. Africa 1917-21; app. clk. in Am. Consulate at Prince Rupert Mar. 1921; at Vancouver Sept. 1923; v. c. at Vancouver Aug. 16, 1924; at Edmonton, temp., Aug. 10, 1927; at Vancouver Oct. 17, 1927; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass., v. c. of carcer, and assigned to Vancouver Oct. 16, 1929; to Dublin July 8, 1931; married.

Benet, Edward Sewall.—b. Marblehead, Mass., Aug. 30. 1903; St. Charles Acad., Sherbrooke, Quebec; high sch. grad.; elk. 1920-21, 1927; U. S. Navy 1921-25; mining 1925-27; bookkeeper, Cuba, 1927-31; app. elk. in Am. Consulate at Cienfuegos Aug. 6, 1931; v. c. at Cienfuegos Apr. 4, 1932; married.

Bennett, Margaret Vincent.—b. Augusta, Ga.; attended private sch.; app. clk. at \$1.200 in the Dept. of State Sept. 16, 1918; at \$1,320 Nov. 1, 1918; at \$1,400 Jan. 1, 1920; at \$1,600 Nov. 5, 1920, effective Nov. 1; at \$1.800 Apr. 1, 1921; at \$2,100 July 1, 1924; at \$2,200 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); admin. asst. at \$2,600 June 1, 1929; at \$2,800 July 1, 1930; at \$2,900 July 3, 1930 (Brookhart Act).—PC.

Benninghoff, Harry Merrell.—b. Chicago, Ill., Aug. 18, 1904; Univ. of Rochester, A. B. 1926; teacher of Eng. in Japanese sch. 1923-24, 1926-27; app. clk. in Am. Consulate General at Tokyo Mar. 1927; v. c. at Tokyo June 21, 1927; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass., v. c. of career, and assigned to Tokyo Jan. 29, 1929; as Ianguage officer at Tokyo Feb. 9, 1929; as v. c. at Nagoya Aug. 1, 1931; at Yokohama Aug. 12, 1931; sec. in the Diplo. Ser. July 20, 1932; assigned as 3d sec. at Tokyo, temp., Sept. 8, 1932; as v. c. at Yokohama Oct. 6, 1032; married.

Benton, James Webb.—b. Fort Myer, Va., July 9, 1892; Hackley Sch.; private sch. and tutors, Germany and England; Cambridge Univ., England, B. A. 1914, M. A. 1919; with Brit.-Am. Ambulance Corps 1915; sec., War Relief Assn., 1916-17; U. S. Army 1917-19, 1st It.; asst. to mil. att. at Tokyo 1918-19; app., after exam., sec. of emb. or leg. of class four Nov. 15, 1920; assigned to Rio de Janeiro Jan. 5, 1921; to Montevideo Sept. 29, 1922; app. sec. of class three Jan. 23, 1924; For. Ser. officer of class six July 1, 1924; assigned as 2d sec. at Caracas July 12, 1924; at Lisbon Jan. 10, 1925; at Warsaw Feb. 7, 1927; at Madrid Sept. 30, 1929; class five May 9, 1930; at Prague Sept. 1, 1932.

Berger, David C.—b. Gretna, Va., July 26, 1896; high sch. grad.; Roanoke Coll. one yr.; Georgetown Sch. of For. Ser.; U. S. Navy 1917-19; clk. and machinist; clk., Clvil Ser. Commn. and Dist. Rent Commn.; app., after exam., student interpreter in China May 20, 1920; v. c. at Changsha Feb. 19, 1921; at Peking May 1921; app. v. c. and interpreter at Tientsin Oct. 9, 1922; at Shanghai May 18, 1923; at Tientsin June 13, 1923; app. For. Ser. officer unclass. July 1, 1924; class eight Feb. 24, 1925; cons. Mar. 3, 1925; assigned to Swatow June 18, 1927; class seven May 17, 1928; class six Aug. 15, 1930; to Tsingtao Sept. 5, 1931; married.

Berger, Marie L.—b. Auburn, Nebr.; high sch. grad.; attended business sch.; secretary 1930; app clk., temp., at \$1,260 in the Dept. of State Jan. 20, 1931; permanently June 1, 1931.—DCR. Bergin, Thomas Daniel.—b. Staunton, Va., Nov. 4, 1893; attended high sch.; business sch. grad.; stenog. and law clk. 1916-18; U. S. Army 1918-19; secretary 1919-23; clk., Veterans' Bu., 1923; app. clk. in Am. Emb. at Constantinople Feb. 7, 1924; at St. John's. N. F., Aug. 16, 1928; v. c. at St. John's Sept. 10, 1928; at Kingston, Ont., Sept. 29, 1930.

Berliner, Harry P.-..b. New York City Oct. 19, 1906; high sch. grad.; Coll. of City of New York, B.S. 1932; messenger 1924-25; actuarial clk, 1925-28; clk. in U. S. Customs Court, N. Y., 1928-29, in N. Y. Passport Agency 1929; app. clk., temp., at \$1.620 in the N. Y. Passport Agency of the Dept. of State Apr. 14, 1930; permanently, at \$1,800 Jan. 9, 1931.

^{††}Bernstein, Herman.—b. Neustadt-Scherwindt, Russia, Sept. 21, 1876; special newspaper corr. in Europe 1908-12; founder and editor of newspaper 1914-16; editor-in-chief of magazine 1916-19; newspaper corr. in Russia 1917, 1918; war corr. in Siberia and France 1918; newspaper corr. at Paris Peace Conf. 1919; author and translator of many books; app. E. E. and M. P. to Albania Feb. 17, 1930; resigned Sept. 24, 1933; married.

Berrey, Nannie Weldon.—b. Stafford, Va.; attended public sch.; clk. 1916-18, 1921-23, in Govt. depts. 1919-21, 1923; app. clk., temp., at \$900 in the Dept. of State Jan. 10, 1924; at \$1,320 July 1, 1924; at \$1,380 Mar. 1, 1927; at \$1,440 Jan. 1, 1928; at \$1,560 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$1,620 July 1, 1928; at \$1,740 July 1, 1930.—DCR.

Berry, Burton Yost.—b. Fowler, Ind., Aug. 31, 1901; Ind. Univ., A.B. 1923, A.M. 1925; Univ. of Paris 1925-27; mem. of bar of Ind.; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass. and v. c. of career May 17, 1928; assigned to the For. Ser. Sch. May 21, 1928; to Constantinople (Istanbul) Aug. 31, 1928; sec. in the Diplo. Ser. Jan. 22, 1931; assigned as v.c. at Izmir and for Italian Islands of the Aegean, temp., Sept. 29, 1933; as 3d sec. at Istanbul Nov. 6, 1933; as v.c. and 3d sec. at Teheran Jan. 19, 1934.

Bertot, Raoul Armando.—b. Manzanillo, Cuba, Jan. 9, 1884; attended private sch. in Cuba and studied in England and U. S.; weigher on sugar plantation four yrs., insp. of weights and measures three yrs., draftsman and paymaster four yrs., and clk. four yrs., Manzanillo; asst. to the cons. agt. at Manzanillo and later act. cons. agt.; app. cons. agt. at Manzanillo Apr. 20, 1922; married.

Besore, Mildred Elizabeth (Mrs.)—b. Prince George Co., Md.; attended high sch. and business sch.; stenog., War Dept., 1918-19, 1924-26; typist 1926-27; in Vcterans' Bu. 1927; app. clk. at \$1,320 in the Dept. of State Sept. 1, 1927; at \$1,440 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$1,500 July 1, 1928; at \$1,620Jan. 1, 1929; at \$1,740 July 1, 1930.—SS.

Betts, Paul Courtnay.—b. Towanda, Pa., July 25, 1876; Susquehanna Collegiate Inst.; special agt., office mgr., and mem. of firm, insur. company 1904–18; traveling auditor with Am. Red Cross in Europe 1918-22; with Near East Rellef in Turkey 1922-23; app. clk. in Am. Consulate General at Paris May 1923; v. c. at Paris Mar. 2, 1925; at Calais, temp., Dec. 8, 1928; at Paris Dec. 31, 1928; at Biarritz, temp., Jan. 10, 1930; at Paris Apr. 12, 1930; at Calais, temp., May 6, 1930; at Paris July 26, 1930.

Bevan, Thomas Horatio .- b. Baltimore, Md., Jan. 29, 1887; attended private sch.; Univ. Sch. for Boys; Johns Hopkins 1906-8; studied law 1908-10; rodman, U. S. Geological Survey, summer 1906; sec. to mem. of Cong. 1908-10; clk. in Am. Consulate at Tampico 1910-12; app., after exam., cons. asst. Apr. 24, 1912; v. and dep. cons. at Tampico June 27, 1912; v. c. at Tampico by act approved Feb. 5, 1915; at Berne May 3, 1916; at Glasgow Jan. 10, 1917; cons. of class eight Feb. 19, 1918; class six Sept. 5. 1919; assigned to Bahia Dec. 1, 1919; class five Nov. 23, 1921; class four Mar. 1, 1923; assigned to Montevideo Mar. 30, 1923; For. Ser. officer of class five July 1, 1924; assigned to Hamburg Oct. 23, 1924; class four Feb. 24, 1925; cons. gen. May 31, 1928; assigned to Oslo June 13, 1928; class three Oct. 16, 1929; sec. in the Diplo. Ser. Apr. 13, 1931; assigned as 1st sec., temp., at Oslo Apr. 23, 1931; relieved of duties as sec. and resumed charge of consulate general June 11, 1931; married.

Bevans, Charles Irving.—b. Grantsville, Md., Sept. 21, 1908; George Washington Univ. 1926–20; Washington Coll. of Law, LL. B. 1932; mem. of bar of D. C.; clk. 1925–27. in Veterans' Bu. 1927–29; app. clk. at \$1.440 in the Dept. of State May 16, 1929; at \$1,620 June 1, 1930.—DCR.

Beylard, Charles Brashears.—b. Cannes, France, of Am. parents, Sept. 15, 1888; Publlc Coll. of the City of Nice, France, and Dr. Schmidt's Inst., St. Gallen, Switzerland; private tutor in London; bank clk. in Nice one yr.; clk. in Am. Consulate at Nice 1908-16; app. v. c. at Tunis May 5, 1917; at Bizerta Aug. 29, 1923; at Tunis Dec. 5, 1923; at Las Palmas, temp., June 20, 1929; at Tunis Oct. 23, 1929; at Marseille Nov. 6, 1930; at Nice and Monaco May 23, 1934; married.

Biar, Herbert Carlson.—b. Chicago, Ill., Sept. 22, 1884; attended high sch. and business sch. in Sweden and Switzerland; George WashIngton Univ. 1909-10; elk. in Berlin 1903-4, in Stockholm 1904-5, in London 1905, in U. S. 1905-9; Library of Cong. 1910-11; app., after exam., cons. asst. July 12, 1911; v. and dep. cons. at Naples Dec. 5, 1912; v. c. at Naples by act approved Feb. 5, 1915; at Glasgow June 1, 1920; at Birmingham May 27, 1921; at Nottingham Sept. 2, 1922; For. Ser. officer unclass. July 1, 1924; assigned to Oslo Mar. 18, 1926; to Göteborg Apr. 10, 1928; to Malmö, temp., Apr. 4, 1032.

Bickers, William Andrew.—b. Madison Co., Va., Feb. 29, 1880; Univ. of Va., B. A. and M. A. 1901; teacher of Latin, German, and English in private sch. 1901-2; farmer 1902-14; editor of newspaper 1908-11; app., after exam., cons. at Hobart Apr. 24, 1914; cons. of class nine by act approved Feb. 5, 1915; assigned to Adelaide July 5, 1917; on detail in Am. Consulate at Melbourne Nov.-Dec. 1917; assigned to Puerto Plata May 25, 1918; For. Ser. officer unclass. July 1, 1924; class eight Apr. 15, 1930; assigned to Charlottetown July 1, 1930; to London, Ont., May 15, 1933; married.

Biddle, William Shepard (1st Lt.).—b. Detroit, Mich., Oct. 1, 1900; St. Paul's Sch.; Santa Barbara Sch. grad.; U.S.M.A., grad. 1923; aide-de-camp to chm., Commn. of Inquiry and Conciliation, Bolivia and Paraguay, Washington, 1929; aide-de-camp to Am. mem., Far Eastern Commn. of Inquiry, Japan, China, and Geneva, 1932; assigned as asst. mil. att. at Paris Dec. 6, 1933.

Bigelow, Donald Fairchild .- b. St. Paul, Minn., Nov. 10, 1896; Princeton 1915-17; L'École Libre des Sciences Politiques 1919-20; Harvard '1920-21; U.S. Army 1917-19, 1st lt., overseas service; with Am. Red Cross in Poland 1919; app., after exam., v. c. of career of class three May 25, 1921; assigned to Bucharest July 21, 1921; class two May 26, 1922; class one Feb. 26, 1923; assigned to Paris Aug. 17, 1923; app. cons. of class seven Dec. 19, 1923; For. Ser. officer of class eight July 1, 1924; class seven Aug. 31, 1925; assigned to the Dept. Mar. 3, 1927; sec. to Am. del., Thirteenth Int. Parliamentary Com. Conf., Rio de Janeiro 1927; assigned to Tangier Mar. 31, 1930; class six May 9, 1930; sec. in the Diplo. Ser. Sept. 14, 1931; assigned also as 2d sec. at Tangier Oct. 14, 1931; as cons. at Geneva May 18, 1933; married.

Bing, Arden Ellsworth.—b. Monterville, W. Va., Apr. 2, 1892; Univ. of Mich. Law Sch. 1913-14; Univ. of Rennes, France, 1919; Georgetown Sch. of For. Ser., B. F. S. 1927; U. S. Army 1916-19, 1st It., overseas service; clk., Dept. of State, 1915-16; liaison officer, Veterans of For. Wars, 1922-23, Am. Red Cross, 1924-25; research and legislative work 1927-30; app. asst. to asst. sec. of state at \$4,600 in the Dept. of State July 14, 1931.—A-C.

Bingham, Hiram, Jr.—b. Cambridge, Mass., July 17, 1903; Groton Sch.; Yale, B. A. 1925; Harvard Law Sch. 1927-28; elk. in Am. Leg. at Peking 1925-26; teacher 1926-27; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass. and v. c. of career Mar. 26, 1929; assigned to the For. Ser. Sch. May 1, 1929; to Kobe July 10, 1929; to Tokyo Nov. 20, 1929; sec. in the Diplo. Ser. May 16, 1931; 3d sec. at Tokyo June 29, 1931; v. c. at Warsaw June 18, 1932; 3d sec. at London Oct. 12, 1933.

Bingham, Robert Worth.—b. Orange Co., N. C., Nov. 8, 1871; Bingham Sch. grad.; Univ. of N. C. 1888-90; Univ. of Va. 1890-91; Univ. of Louisville, LL. B. 1897; studied under private tutor in Germany; mem. of bar of Ky.; N. C. State Guard 1891-96, capt.; pres. and publisher of newspapers; director of railroad, bank, and mfg. co.; county attorney 1904-7; mayor 1907; chancellor of circuit court 1911; app. A. E. and P. to Great Britain Mar. 23, 1933; Am. representative, Int. Wheat Advisory Com., 1933-; married.

Birch, Mary Nedetta.—b. Falls Church, Va.; attended high sch. and business sch.; typist-clk., Govt. depts., 1908-15; app. clk., temp., at \$900 in the Dept. of State July 28, 1915; permanently, at \$1,000 under Ex. order June 22, 1916, effective July 1; at \$1,200, temp. Sept. 20, 1916; permanently, Oct. 10, 1916; at \$1,400 June 11, 1919; at \$1,600 Nov. 5, 1921; at \$1,860 July 1, 1924; at \$1,920 Dec. 1, 1925; at \$1,980 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$2,040 July 1, 1928; at \$2,100 July 1, 1930; at \$2,160 July 3, 1930 (Brookhart Act); at \$2,200 June 1, 1931,--NE.

Birkeland, Carl.—b. Stavanger, Norway, Mar. 28. 1886; naturalized 1916; attended sch. in Norway; high sch. grad.; Lewis Inst., Chicago, 1908-11; laboratory and engineering insp. 1904-17; U. S. Army 1918-21; app. v. c. at Riga Oct. 25, 1921; clk. in Am. Consulate at Copenhagen July 1, 1924; v. c. at Copenhagen Oct. 6, 1926; at Warsaw Nov. 13, 1929; married.

Bishop, Erna V.—b. Warrenton, Va.; Hollins Coll., A. B. 1928; teacher of hist, in high sch. 1928–30; examiner, Civil Ser. Comm., 1930–31; app. clk. at \$1,620 in the Dept. of State Mar. 23, 1931; archive asst. Oct. 5, 1931; clk. Aug. 1, 1933.—PD.

Blackard, Wade.—b. Jackson, Tenn., July 16, 1896; Univ. of Tenn. 1914-16; Union Univ. 1916; Univ. of Va. 1916-17; U. S. Army 1917-19, 2d lt., O. R. C.; supercargo, U. S. Shipping Bd., 1919-20; app. v. c. at Calgary May 5, 1920; at Singapore June 14, 1921; at Cobh Dec. 18, 1924; at Belfast Dec. 1, 1928; at Luxemburg, temp., Sept. 3, 1930; at Port Said Jan. 3, 1931; at Alexandria Feb. 20, 1932.

Blackburn, Katherine C.—b. Litchfield, Conn., attended public and private schs.; Eastman Coll.; studied law, N. Y. Univ., one yr.; with law firm seven yrs.; mgr. motion picture studio; office mgr. and purchasing agt., For. Press Bureau of Committee on Public Information; asst. to campaigu mgr., League to Enforce Peace; with Woodrow Wilson Foundation; library and research work, Dem. Nat. Headquarters, 1932–33; app. special asst. to asst. sec. of state at \$3,200 in the Dept. of State Apr. 4, 1933; clk., Int. Monetary and Economic Conf., London, 1933; detailed as director of the Division of Press Intelligence for the U.S. Govt. Aug. 3, 1933.

Blake, Gilson Grant, Jr.-b. Buffalo, N. Y., Feb. 7, 1893; Friends Sch.; Swarthmore, A. B. 1915; Harvard Sch. of Business Admin. 1919; floor mgr. and salesman 1915-17; U. S. Navy 1917-19, ensign; app. v. c. at Newcastle, Australia, Feb. 24, 1920; at Adelaide Feb. 11, 1921; at Newcastle Apr. 27, 1921; at Melbourne Dec. 28, 1921; app., after exam., v. c. of career of class three Sept. 30, 1922; assigned to Ottawa Oct. 14, 1922; class two Nov. 23, 1923; For. Ser. officer unclass. July 1, 1924; assigned to Georgetown July 11, 1925; class eight and cons. Aug. 31, 1925; assigned to Georgetown Sept. 29, 1925; to Geneva Oct. 15, 1927; disbursing officer, Int. Conf. on Economic Statistics, Geneva, 1928; Special Commn. for the Preparation of a Draft Conv. on the Manufacture of Arms, 3d sess., Geneva, 1928; class seven May 23, 1929; class six Feb. 4, 1931; married.

Blake, Maxwell.—b. Kansas City, Mo., Nov. 15, 1877; St. John Mil. Acad., Scarett Coll., and Mo. State Univ.; studied under private tutor abroad;

.

in ranching, real estate, and bonding business; app., after exam., cons. at Funchal Feb. 2, 1906; at Dunfermline Dec. 21, 1907; cons. gen. at Bogotá Jan. 11, 1910; at Tangier Dec. 14, 1910; mem., Int. Bd. of Taxe Urbaine, 1911; in charge of Am. Leg. at Tangier Apr. 4-16, 1912, and chargé d'affaires Sept. 2, 1912-July 20, 1917; representative on Int. Sanitary Council of Morocco 1912, and pres. of Council 1914, 1916, 1929; del., Int. Commn. of Public Works, 1912; representative on int. commn. for maintenance of Cape Spartel Lighthouse 1912; cons. gen. of class five Feb. 22, 1915, effective Feb. 5; agt. and cons. gen. at Tangier July 20, 1917; detailed to Am. Commn. to Negotiate Peace, Paris, 1919; cons. gen. of class two Feb. 14, 1922; detailed as Commr. in Albania Apr. 27, 1922; directed to proceed to U.S. Nov. 25, 1922; unassigned from Jan. 5, 1923; directed to proceed to Gibraltar Feb. 15, 1923; detailed to Angora as del. to Am. High Commr. to Turkey Apr. 25, 1923; assigned to Melbourne Nov. 3, 1923; For. Ser. officer of class one July 1, 1924; diplo. agt. and cons. gen. at Tangier May 14, 1925; married.

Blake, Monroe Williams.—b. St. Paul, Minn., Jan. 9, 1900; George Washington, A. B. 1933; app. clk. 4t \$1,320 in the Dept. of State May 15, 1928; at \$1,440 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$1,620 Oct. 1, 1929; at \$1,680 July 1, 1930; married.—PC.

Blake, Ralph Joseph.—b. Portland, Oreg., Mar. 19, 1907; Georgetown Sch. of For. Ser., B. F. S. 1929; elk. 1924–25, in Public Health Ser. 1925–26, in the Dept. of State 1926–29; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass. and v. c. of career Nov. 12, 1929; assigned to the For. Ser. Sch. Nov. 18, 1929; to Nuevo Laredo, temp., Nov. 27, 1929; to the Dept. Apr. 18, 1930; to the For. Ser. Sch. July 16, 1930; to Tsinan Nov. 8, 1930; to Harbin Mar. 6, 1933.

Bland, Julia M.—b. Washington, D. C.; Washington Coll. of Law, LL. B. and M. P. L. 1925; grad. work, American Univ. 1931-33; elk.typist, Govt. depts., 1925-29; app. archive asst. at \$1,440 in the Dept. of State Nov. 1, 1929; at \$1,560 July 1, 1930; at \$1,620 Aug. 1, 1930; at \$1,800 Aug. 29, 1931.—HA.

Blaskey, Beth.—b. Tomah, Wis.; high sch. grad.; app. clk. at \$1,260 in the Dept. of State Aug. 27, 1930; at \$1,440 Sept. 14, 1931.—DCR.

Blatchford, Edward Williams.—b. Chicago, Ill., July 13, 1868; Amherst, E. A. 1891; bookkeeper 1893–98; cml. work in London 1898–1901; cashier and asst. mgr. of company 1901–18; Y.M.C.A. work in London and the Near East 1918–22; Near East Relief 1922–29; app. clk. in Am. Consulate General at Jerusalem Sept. 11, 1929; v. c. at Jerusalem Dec. 29, 1930.

Blessing, Madge Middleton (Mrs.)—b. New London, Conn.; high sch. grad.; attended business sch.; stenog. 1914-16; sec. 1917-18; app. clk., temp., at \$1,200 in the Dept. of State June 12, 1918; at \$1,000 Feb. 1, 1921; at \$1.080 Sept. 1, 1922; at \$1,140 Oct. 16, 1922; at \$1,200 Dec. 30, 1922, effective Jan. 1, 1923; at \$1,440 July 1, 1924; at \$1,500

67359-34-10

Mar. 1, 1925; at \$1,560 Dec. 1, 1925; at \$1,860 Dec. 1, 1927; at \$2,000 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$2,100 July 1, 1928; at \$2,300 July 1, 1930.—FA.

Blocker, Vinklor Harwood, Jr.—b. Hondo, Tex., June 8, 1903; high sch. and business sch. grad.; bookkeeper 1923-26; app. clk. in Am. Consulate General at Callao-Lima Mar. 19, 1926; resigned Sept. 14, 1927; clk. 1927-28; app. clk. in Am. Consulate at Manzanillo Oct. 18, 1928; v. c. at Manzanillo Nov. 27, 1928; at Asunción Mar. 17, 1930; at Casablanca Oct. 11, 1933.

Blocker, William P.—b. Hondo, Tex., Sept. 30, 1892; attended public sch.; teacher in public sch. 1910-11; salesman 1911-12; app. v. and dep. cons. at Ciudad Porfirio Diaz July 18, 1913; v. c. at Piedras Negras Feb. 6, 1915; app., after exam., v. c. of career of class three Sept. 27, 1919; assigned to Piedras Negras Oct. 21, 1919; app. cons. of class seven Apr. 5, 1920; assigned to Piedras Negras Apr. 14, 1920; class six Nov. 21, 1921; assigned to Guaymas Dec. 17, 1923; class five June 3, 1924; For. Ser. officer of class six July 1, 1924; assigned to Mazatlán Aug. 17, 1925; to Ciudad Juarez Sept. 24, 1929; class five May 9, 1930; marrled.

Blohm, Lee R.—b. Virginia, Ill., Jau. 31, 1886; Univ. of Ill., B. A. 1908; teacher in high sch. 1909-11; supt. of public sch. 1911-19; app., after exam., cons. of class eight Aug. 8, 1919; assigned to Frontera Oct. 21, 1919; class seven Dec. 18, 1919; assigned to Aguascalientes Oct. 18, 1921; For. Ser. officer of class eight July 1, 1924; assigned to Vancouver Jan. 30, 1925; class seven May 17, 1928; assigned to Regina Dec. 19, 1928; class six July 24, 1930; to Habana Mar. 21, 1932; to Chihuabua June 20, 1934; married.

Blue, George Verne.—b. Yaquina City, Oreg., Oct. 25, 1891; Univ. of Oreg., B. A. 1922; Univ. of Calif., M. A. 1923; Univ. of Paris 1926-28, as traveling fellow in hist. for Univ. of Calif.; U. S. Navy 1918-19, overseas service; teaching fellow, Univ. of Calif., 1922-23, 1925-26; instructor in hist., Univ. of Hawaii, 1923-25; Historical Cong., Oslo, 1928; asst. prof. of hist., Univ. of Oreg., 1928-30; app. research asst. at \$3,200 in the Dept. of State Oct. 1, 1930.— RP.

Boal, Pierre de Lagarde.-b. Thonon-les-Bains, France, of Am. parents, Sept. 29, 1895; St. Paul's Sch.; sec. in France 1914-15; French Army 1915-17; U. S. Army 1917-19, capt., overseas service; app., after exam., sec. of emb. or leg. of class four Dec. 20, 1919; assigned to Mexico City Dec. 27, 1919; to the Dept. Mar. 19, 1920; sec., Int. Conf. on Electrical Communications, Washington, 1920; assigned to Belgrade Dec. 6, 1920; sec. of class three Mar. 23, 1922; assigned to Warsaw Nov. 13, 1922; For. Ser. officer of class six July 1, 1924; assigned as 2d sec. of leg. at Berne July 1, 1924; class five Aug. 8, 1924; assigned as 2d sec. at Lima Sept. 18, 1925; class four and assigned as 1st sec. at Lima Dec. 17, 1925; to the Dept. Apr. 9, 1928; sec., Int. Conf. of Am. States on Conciliation and Arbitration, Washington, 1928-29; act. sec. gen., Commn. of Inquiry and Conciliation, Bolivia and Paraguay, Washington, 1929; asst. chief, Division of Western European Affairs, June 24, 1930; class three July 24, 1930; adviser Prep. Commn. for the Disarmament Conf., Geneva, 1930; chief, Division of Western European Affairs, June 20, 1931; assigned as 1st sec. at Ottawa June 16, 1932; married.

Boatner, Haydon Le Maire (1st Lt.)-b. New Orleans, La., Oct. 8, 1900; Tulane Univ. 1919-20; U.S.M.A., grad. 1924; assigned as language officer at Peiping Sept. 24, 1930; married.

Bobst, Wayne Clifford.—b. DuBois, Nebr., Mar. 9, 1909; high sch. grad.; attended business sch.; clk. 1927-28; clk. in Veterans' Bu. 1928-30; app. clk. at \$1,440 in the Dept. of State Feb. 25, 1930; at \$1,620 July 1, 1930.—DCR.

Bock, S. Benjamin.—b. New York City Apr. 1, 1907; Coll. of the City of New York, B. S. 1930; Georgetown Univ. 1930-31; George Washington Univ., M.A. 1934; with cml. firms 1922-25; in Govt. depts. in New York 1925-28; clk., Census Bu., July-Sept. 1930; app. clk. at \$1,440 in the Dept. of State Sept. 15, 1930; detailed to the President's Organization on Unemployment Relief 1931-32; at \$1,620 May 1, 1934.—DCR.

Bode, Howard Douglas (Comdr.)-b. Cincinnati, Ohio, Jan. 23, 1859; U.S.N.A., grad. 1911; assigned as asst. naval att. at Berlin, Rome, Paris, London, Stockholm, Copenhagen, and The Hague Sept. 1, 1932; married.

Boelter, Elsie.—b. Birnamwood, Wis.; State Univ. of Mont., B.A. 1931; legal stenog. 1922-24; stenog. and clk. 1924-33; stenog. in Govt. depts. 1933-34; app. clk. at \$1,440 in the Dept. of State June 5, 1934.—SS.

Boernstein, Ralph Augustus.—b. Washington, D. C., Feb. 13, 1893; high sch. grad.; attended business sch.; clk. 1914-16; stenog. and sec. to mem. of Cong. 1916-17; app. v. c. at Fiume Feb. 10, 1917; at Christiania June 11, 1917; at Port au Prince Nov. 5, 1919; at Barbados Aug. 20, 1920; at Rome Mar. 5, 1921; app., after exam., v. c. of career of class three Oct. 6, 1923; assigned to Rome Oct. 12, 1923; For. Ser. officer unclass. July 1, 1924; assigned to the Dept. Dec. 14, 1926; to Malmö Feb. 17, 1927; class eight, cons., and assigned to Malmö May 17, 1928; to Naples May 17, 1930; class seven July 24, 1930; to the Dept. Feb. 15, 1934; married.—PD.

Boggs, Samuel Whittemore.—b. Coolidge, Kans., Mar. 3, 1880; Berea Coll., B. L. 1909; Yale 1912– 13; Columbia, A. M. 1924; sec. to coll. pres. 1909– 12; secretarial and research work 1914–19; map compilation and research 1919–21; map editor 1921– 24; app. geographer at \$3,800 in the Dept. of State Oct. 1, 1924; mem. U. S. Geographic Bd. 1924–34; asst. chief, Division of Publications, July 30, 1925–July 22, 1929; mem. Immigration Quota Committee 1926–; at \$4,000 Feb. 1, 1926; mem. Federal Bd. of Surveys and Maps 1926–; chur. of executive committee of Geographic Bd. and of committee on forcign geographic names 1927-34; at \$4,200 Nov. 1, 1927; chm. of committee of Bd. of Surveys and Maps on Int. Map of the World 1928-; at \$4,800 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); dcl., Int. Geographical Cong., Cambridge, England, 1928; tech. adviser, Conf. for the Codification of Int. Law, The Hague, 1930; at \$5,200 July 1, 1930; dcl., Int. Cong. of Geography, Paris, 1931; married.—IIA.

Bohan, Merwin Lee.—b. Chicago, Ill., Jan. 21, 1899; attended high sch. in Mexico and U. S.; clk. In oil companies in Mexico and U. S., in Am. Consulate General and Am. Emb. in Mexico City, 1919-20; asst. mgr., rubber company 1920-22; advertising mgr., publicity mgr., and foreign trade see., chamber of com., 1922-27; mgr., cooperative office, Bu. of For. and Domes. Com., Dallas, Tex., 1926; app. trade commr. at Habana Jan. 16, 1927; asst. cml. att. May 16, 1927; cml. att. at Guatemala June 22, 1928; also at Tegucigalpa and San Salvador Oct. 5, 1928; transferred to Lima and Quito Sept. 15, 1931; to Santiago, Chile, July 18, 1933; married.

Bohlen, Charles Eustis.—b. Clayton, N. Y., Aug. 30, 1904; St. Paul's Sch.; Harvard, A. B. 1927; app., after exam., For. Scr. officer unclass. and v. c. of career Mar. 26, 1929; assigned to the For. Ser. Sch. May 1, 1929; to Prague July 10, 1929; as v. c. and language officer at Paris July 31, 1931; as v. c. at Moscow Feb. 10, 1934; sec. in the Diplo. Ser. Mar. 9, 1934; 3d sec. at Moscow May 24, 1934.

Bohne, Frederick Albert.—b. Toronto, Canada, of Am. parents, Dec. 6, 1898; attended Parkdale Coll. Inst., Toronto, and business sch.; clk. in Canada 1917-18; app. clk. in Am. Consulate at Toronto Jan. 16, 1920; v. c. at Toronto Nov. 7, 1922; married.

Bohr, Frank.—b. Wathena, Kans., Oct. 5, 1877; Kans. State Normal Sch.; Univ. of Mich., A. B. 1907; teacher in public sch. and farmer four yrs.; app., after exam., cons. asst. June 24, 1908; dep. cons. gen. at Berlin Mar. 16, 1911; v. and dep. cons. gen. at Santo Domingo Aug. 28, 1911; at Zürich Aug. 29, 1913; v. c. at Zürich Feb. 6, 1915; detailed to the Dept. Oct. 5, 1918; app. cons. of class eight Oct. 24, 1918; assigned to Cienfuegos May 10, 1919; class seven Sept. 5, 1919; class six June 4, 1920; For. Ser. officer of class seven July 1, 1924; assigned to Mexicall Aug. 17, 1925; to Sault Ste. Marie May 24, 1932; married.

Bolds. Harry Herbert.—b. Spangle, Wash., Aug. 14. 1894; Loyola Univ. Prep. Sch. and business sch.; Suffolk Law Sch., Boston, 1927–29; bookkeeper 1912– 13; sec. 1916–18; U. S. Army 1918–19; app. clk., temp., at \$1,200 in the Dept. of State Apr. 18, 1919; at \$1,320 Jan. 1, 1920; permanently, at \$1,400 Aug. 14, 1920; app. asst. passport agt. at \$2,000, Chicago. June 18, 1921, effective July 1; passport agt. at \$2,50, Boston, July 1, 1925; at \$3,000 Nov. 1, 1926; at \$3,100 July 1, 1927; at \$3,200 Jan. 1, 1928; at \$3,300 May 1, 1928; at \$3,700 May 1, 1930; married. Bonbright, James Cowles Hart.—b. Rochester, N. Y., Jan. 19, 1903; St. Paul's Sch. grad.; Harvard, A. B. 1925; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass. and v. c. of career July 9, 1927; assigned to the For. Ser. Sch. Sept. 29, 1927; to Canton June 13, 1928; sec. in the Diplo. Ser. Feb. 20, 1930; assigned as For. Ser. officer to the leg. at Ottawa Feb. 21, 1930; as 3d sec. at Ottawa Feb. 27, 1930; married.

Bones, Helen Woodrow.—b. Rome, Ga.; attended private schs. and high sch.; private tutors; Evelyn Coll.; secretarial work two yrs.; editorial staff of publishing house 1918-33; app. editorial asst., temp., at \$1,620 in the Dept. of State July 16, 1934.—RP.

Bonnet, Ellis Andrew.—b. Eagle Pass, Tex., Jan. 13, 1900; Univ. of Tex., B. A. 1920; U. S. Army 1918; post office clk., summer 1919; bank clk. 1920-21; app. clk. in Am. Consulate at Piedras Negras May 1, 1921; v. c. at Piedras Negras Oct. 31, 1921; at Torreon Sept. 20, 1923; at Piedras Negras Oct. 18, 1923; at Torreon Dec. 21, 1923; at Piedras Negras Feb. 25, 1924; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass. and v. c. of career Oct. 16, 1924; assigned to Piedras Negras Oct. 21, 1925; to Belize Mar. 19, 1925; to Durango Sept. 17, 1927; class eight. cons., and assigned to Durango July 24, 1930; married.

Bonnette, Agnes Patricia.—b. Lowell, Mass.; high sch. grad.; clk. 1928-29; sec. and bookkeeper 1929-31; app. clk., temp., at \$1,260 in the Dept. of State Mar. 2, 1931; permanently June 23, 1931; at \$1,440 Jan. 1, 1932.—VD.

Booker, Burnett.—b. King William, Va., July 2, 1870; asst. messenger, War Dept., 1918-22; app. asst. messenger in the Dept. of State May 1, 1922.—A-W.

Borjes, Clara Louise.—b. Norfolk, Va.; George Washington Univ. 1925–27; Washington Coll. of Law, LL. B.; mem. of bar of D. C.; sec. 1909–14, in Dept. of Agric. 1914–20; app. clk. at \$1,200 in the Dept. of State Sept. 1, 1920; at \$1,400 Feb. 1, 1924; at \$1,680 July 1, 1924; at \$1,740 Mar. 1, 1925; at \$1,860 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$1,920 July 1, 1928; at \$2,000 Oct. 1, 1928; sec. to Am. del., Antismuggling Conf., Ottawa. 1929; at \$2,300 May 1, 1920; at \$2,500 July 1, 1930.—WE.

Bouchal, John Louis .-- b. Wilber, Nebr., Aug. 28, 1888; attended business sch.; Univ. of Nebr., LL. B. 1912; mem. of bar of Nebr.; teacher in public sch. 1905-9; clk. in Am. Consulate at Prague July-Aug. 1912; app. v. and dep. cons. at Prague Aug. 29, 1912; v. c. at Prague by act approved Feb. 5, 1915; app. clk., temp., at \$1,000 in the Dept. of State July 2, 1917; at \$1.200 Mar. 1, 1918; at \$1,400 Aug. 15, 1918; at \$1,600 Mar. 1, 1919; v. c. at Prague Mar. 15, 1919; app., after exam., v. c. of career of class three Oct. 9, 1919; assigned to Prague Oct. 22, 1919; class two May 24, 1920; class one Nov. 17, 1921; cons. of class seven June 22, 1922; assigned to Port Said Nov. 22, 1923; For. Ser. officer of class eight July 1, 1924; class seven Aug. 8, 1924; class six Oct. 16, 1929; assigned to Helsingfors Sept. 30, 1930; sec. in the Diplo. Ser. June 19, 1933: assigned as cons. at Montreal Dec. 26, 1933; married.

Boucher, Hiram A .- b. Eureka, S. Dak., Dec. 14, 1896; high sch. grad.; Univ. of Minn. 1914-15; George Washington Law Sch. 1915-16, 1919; Northwestern Coll. of Law 1916-17; sec. to mem. of Cong. 1915-16; abstract clk. 1916-17; U. S. Army 1917-19; clk., House Subcommittee on War Expenditures, 1919-20; app. clk. in Am. Consulate General at Barcelona Oct. 1920; app., after exam., v. c. of career of class three May 25, 1921; assigned to Barcelona June 11, 1921; to Bilbao July 13, 1922; to Barcelona Aug. 3, 1922; class two Feb. 26, 1923; class one Nov. 23, 1923; cons. of class seven June 3, 1924; detailed to Belfast June 18, 1924; For. Ser. officer of class eight July 1, 1924; detailed to Dublin Aug. 4, 1924; class seven June 8, 1927; assigned to Cobh Nov. 1, 1927; to Rome Oct. 15, 1929; class six Dec. 19, 1929; married.

Boudreau, Helen Warren (Mrs.)—b. Glassboro, N.J.; high sch. and business sch. grad.; stenog. 1926-27; app. clk. at \$1.320 in the Dept. of State Nov. 1, 1927; at \$1.440 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$1,620 July 1, 1928; at \$1,740 July 1, 1930.—ME.

Bowcock, James Matthew.—b. Clarksburg, W. Va., Nov. 9, 1884; attended business high sch.; Univ. of Denver two yrs.; studied in Germany, France, and Italy; clk. in Am. Consulate at Hanover 1906-7; app. v. and dep. cons. at Hanover Mar. 31, 1908; clk. in Am. Leg. at Madrid Feb. 9, 1911; v. and dep. cons. at Berne July 22, 1914; v. c. at Berne by act approved Feb. 5, 1915; at Leghorn May 18, 1915; at Cairo Jan. 17, 1916; at Rome Oct. 28, 1916; at Munich Jan. 7, 1924; at Turin, temp., Oct. 13, 1924; at Munich Apr. 16, 1925; married.

Bowen, Arthur Llewellyn.—b. Swansea, Wales, July 3, 1885; Brit. subject; attended sch. in England, Argentina. and Brazil; cable operator in London 1898–1910; clk. in Rio de Janeiro 1910–11; branch mgr. and gen. representative for oil companies, Rio Grande, Brazil, 1911–22; in business since 1922; act. cons. agt. at Rio Grande 1918–23; app. cons. agt. at Rio Grande Dec. 18, 1923; married.

Bower, Roy Edgar Belknap.—b. Philadelphia, Pa., June 9, 1894; Univ. of Calif., B. A. 1917: Univ. of Montpellier, France, 1919; U. S. Army 1917-19, overseas service; research asst. 1919-20; app. v. c. at Southampton Feb. 17, 1921; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass. and v. c. of career Feb. 5, 1927; assigned to Southampton Feb. 14, 1927; to Singapore Aug. 26, 1929; class eight, cons., and assigned to Singapore Aug. 15, 1930; to Stockholm Oct. 2, 1933.

Bowers, Blanche (Mrs.)—b. Lapeer, Mich.; high sch. grad.; Ypsilanti State Normal Sch. grad.; studied languages and literature in Paris, Florence, and Barcelona three yrs.; clk., Dept. of Com., 1918-22; app. clk. at \$1,200 in the Dept. of State Nov. 1, 1922; at \$1,500 July 1, 1924; at \$1,560 Nov. 1, 1927; at \$1,680 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act).—DCR.

Bowers, Claude Gernade.—b. Hamilton Co., Ind., Nov. 20, 1878; attended public schs.; private tutors; editorial writer 1901-6; mem. of Bureau of Public Improvements, Terre Haute, 1906-11; sec. to mem. of Cong. 1911-17: editor of newspaper 1917-23; editorial writer 1923-31; political columnist 1931-33; author; app. A.E. and P. to Spain Apr. 6, 1933; del., Fifth Int. Conf. for the Unification of Penal Law, Madrid, 1933; married.

Bowman, Howard Arthur.—b. Clyde, N. Y., Jan. 11, 1894; Univ. of Pa., B. S. 1917; Am. Ambulance Ser. with French Army 1917–19; app., after exam., cons. asst. Sept. 15, 1919; v. c. at Danzig Jan. 29, 1921; v. c. of career of class three, Nov. 17, 1921, and assigned to Danzig; to Saloniki Nov. 19, 1923; class two May 10, 1924; For. Ser. officer unclass. July 1, 1924; assigned to Trieste Oct. 6, 1924; class eight, cons., and assigned to Trieste May 23, 1929; to Sault Ste. Marie Jan. 3, 1931; class seven Feb. 4, 1931; to Mexicali May 24, 1932; married.

Bowman, Thomas DeWitt .--- b. Pacific, Mo., Mar. 14, 1886; Marvin Coll. Inst., Fredericktown, Mo., 1901-3; William Jewell Coll., A. B. 1907; printer two yrs.; publisher of weekly newspaper three yrs.; app. v. and dep. cons. at Nogales Dec. 21, 1911; app., after exam., cons. at Fernie Dec. 29, 1914; cons. of class nine by act approved Feb. 5, 1915; assigned to Frontera Dec. 27, 1915; class eight Sept. 14, 1917; class six Sept. 5, 1919; assigned to Monterrey Oct. 1, 1919; class five June 4, 1920; class four Nov. 23, 1921; detailed to Mexico City July 18, 1922; class three Mar. 1, 1923; cons. gen. of class four June 5, 1924; For. Ser. officer of class three July 1, 1924; assigned to Budapest as cons. June 6, 1925; as cons. gen. July 8, 1926; cons. gen. at Belfast Nov. 16, 1926; class two July 24, 1930; assigned to Santiago, Chile, Dec. 16, 1930; to Mexico City Mar. 27, 1933; married.

Bowman, Winne H. (Mrs.)—b. Chicago, Ill.; high sch. grad.; attended business sch. and art sch.; app. clk., temp., at \$960 in the Dept. of State May 1, 1919; permanently at \$900 Feb. 1, 1921; at \$1,000 Aug. 16, 1921; at \$1,100 Feb. 1, 1924; at \$1,200 May 31, 1924, effective June 1; at \$1,500 July 1, 1924; at \$1,620 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$1,740 July 1, 1930.—A-C/C.

Boyce, Richard Fyfe.—b. Lansing, Mich., Mar. 24, 1896; Harvard, A. B. 1918; Harvard Sch. of Business Admin. 1919-20; Canadian Army 1918-19, overseas service; app., after exam., v. c. of career of class three May 24, 1920; assigned to Kingston, Jamaica, Aug. 2, 1920; class two Nov. 17, 1921; assigned to Nassau Mar. 24, 1922; class one May 26, 1922; cons. of class seven Mar. 1, 1923; detailed to the Dept. Mar. 26, 1924; class six June 3, 1924; assigned to Hamilton, Ont., June 23, 1924; app. For. Ser. officer of class seven July 1, 1924; class six Sept. 29, 1927; assigned to Nuevo Laredo June 29, 1928; class five May 9, 1930; assigned to Barcelona Apr. 28, 1931; to Yokohama Oct. 25, 1933; married.

Boyle, Lewis Vincell.—b. Obion, Tenn., Aug. 31, 1886; Stanford, A. B. 1909, A. M. 1910; Harvard Sch. of Business Admin., M. B. A. 1917; statistical expert 1911-15; U. S. Army 1917-19, capt.; app., after exam., cons. of class seven Sept. 5, 1919; detailed to Havre Nov. 4, 1919; assigned to Durban Nov. 19, 1920; on detail at Lourenço Marques July 10-19, 1922; assigned to Tabiti Sept. 21, 1923; For. Ser. officer of class eight July 1, 1924; class seven Sept. 29, 1927; assigned to Prescott May 17, 1929 (canceled); to Agua Prieta Sept. 27, 1929; class six July 24, 1930.

Boyle, Walter Fablen.—b. Augusta, Ga., Dec. 14, 1875; Houghton Inst. grad.; post office clk. 1895-1903; 2d Ga. Volunteer Infantry 1898; postmaster, Philippine Is., 1904-6; clk., Post Office Dept., 1906-14; app., after exam., cons. at Ceiba Apr. 24, 1914; cons. of class nine by act approved Feb. 5, 1915; class eight Sept. 17, 1915, and assigned to Puerto Cortes; to Mexicali Apr. 15, 1918; class six Sept. 5, 1919; class five June 4, 1920; detalled to San Luis Potosf Feb. 7, 1922; assigned to San Luis Potosf Oct. 2, 1923; For. Ser. officer of class six July 1, 1924; class five Feb. 24, 1925; assigned to Auckland Mar. 19, 1925; class four July 24, 1930; married.

Braddock, Daniel McCoy.—b. Little Rock, Ark., Apr. 5, 1906; Kenyon Coll., A. B. and M. A. 1926; L'École Libre des Sciences Polltiques 1926-27; law clk. 1928-29; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass. and v. c. of career Mar. 26, 1929; assigned to the For. Ser. Sch. May 1, 1929; to Medan July 10, 1929; to Barcelona Jan. 8, 1932; married.

Bradford, Leonard George.—b. Calumet, Mich., Apr. 15, 1894; Harvard one yr.; Christ Church Coll., Oxford, two and one-half yrs.; Univ. of Paris, LL. B. 1923, LL. M. 1924; U. S. Army 1917-19, 2d It.; app. clk. in Am. Leg. at Prague May 11, 1920; in Am. Consulate at Prague July 1921; v. c. at Prague Sept. 20, 1921; resigned Oct. 20, 1922; app. clk. in Am. Consulate General at Paris Mar. 19, 1923; v. c. at Paris July 21, 1925; at Havre Dec. 29, 1925; at Göteborg Oct. 21, 1926; at Rome Mar. 13, 1928; at Turin Apr. 15, 1930 (canceled); at Paris for duty in the dist. acct. and disbursing office Aug. 26, 1933; at Budapest May 19, 1934.

Bradshaw, Charlotte.—b. Washington, D. C.; high sch. grad.; attended bushness sch.; in private firm 1913-18; in Govt. depts. 1918-24; app. clk. at \$1,320 In the Dept. of State Dec. 1, 1924; at \$1,380 Dec. 1, 1925; at \$1,500 Feb. 16, 1926; at \$1,620 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$1,800 July 1, 1928; at \$1,920 July 1, 1930.—A-C/C.

Brady, Austin C.—b. Topeka, Kans., May 8, 1877; high sch. grad.; preparatory course; newspaper reporter, editor, owner, and corr. in U. S. and Mexico 1895-1917; app. v. c. at Manzanillo Nov. 26, 1917; app., after exam., cons. of class eight Feb. 18, 1918; assigned to Manzanillo Mar. 6, 1918; detailed to the Dept. Aug. 31, 1918; assigned to Punta Arenas, Chile, Mar. 15, 1919; class six Sept. 5, 1919; detailed to Saltillo July 27, 1923; assigned to Saltillo Oct. 2, 1923; unassigned from Jan. 1, 1924; assigned to Malaga Feb. 4, 1924; For. Ser. officer of class seven July 1, 1924; class six Feb. 24, 1925; class five May 9, 1930; assigned to Edinburgh Oct. 3, 1930; to Nice July 17, 1933; also to Monaco Oct. 25, 1933.

Brady, Francis Murray (Capt.)-b. Yonkers, N. Y., July 7, 1896; high sch. grad.; Columbia Univ. 1914-17; entered U. S. Army May 12, 1917; assigned as asst. mil. att. at Rome and asst. mil. att. for air at Rome and Athens May 12, 1931; married. **Bragonier**, Reginald, Jr.—b. Baltimore, Md., Mar. 19, 1907; Gilman Country Sch. grad.; Yale, B. A. 1928; Columbia Univ., summer 1929; instructor, The Hill Sch., 1928-30; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass., v. c. of career, and sec. in the Diplo. Ser. Dec. 17, 1931; assigned as v. c. at Warsaw Jan. 20, 1932; at Berlin Jan. 7, 1933; to the For. Ser. Sch. Apr. 22, 1933; to Canton Aug. 28, 1933; married.

Brammeier, Alsace Lorraine.—b. Rosebud, Mont.; high sch. and business sch. grad.; stenog. 1930-31; app. clk., temp., at \$1,260 in the Dept. of State Feb. 2, 1931; permanently June 23, 1931; at \$1,440 Feb. 1, 1932.—SS.

Brand, Norton Franklin.—b. Farlbault, Minn., May 5, 1869; high sch. grad.; attended divinity sch. two and one-half yrs.; Unlv. of Minn., LL. B. 1896; law practice slx yrs.; chief insp., Forestry Service, two yrs.; editor of Official Gazette, Philippine Is., four yrs.; mgr. for company in Canada four yrs.; law editor 1911-16; pastor two yrs.; app., after exam., cons. of class eight, Sept. 14, 1917; assigned to Salina Cruz Nov. 5, 1917; to Fernie Aug. 31, 1918; app. For. Ser. officer unclass. July 1, 1924; assigned as cons. at Calgary May 15, 1933; married.

Brandt, George Louis .- b. Washington, D. C., Sept. 23, 1892; attended business high sch.; George Washington Unly. one yr.; private tutors one yr.; stenog., Washington Navy Yard, 1907-15; app., after exam., student interpreter in Turkey Mar. 24, 1915; at Calro Mar. 13, 1916; app. cons. asst. Mar. 23, 1919, and detailed to the Dept.; v. c. of career of class three Dec. 31, 1919, and assigned to Alexandria; class two May 24, 1920; class one Nov. 17, 1921; cons. of class seven June 22, 1922; detailed to Messina Sept. 5, 1922; For. Ser. officer of class eight July 1, 1924; class seven Aug. 8, 1924; assigned to the Dept. Oct. 29, 1924; asst. chief, Visa Office, Dec. 1, 1924; chief June 1, 1927; class six June 30, 1927; assigned to Beirut June 20, 1928; class five May 23, 1929; assigned to Cologne June 25, 1930; class four Feb. 4, 1931; to Genoa June 11, 1932; to the Dept. Dec. 29, 1933; married.-VD.

Brandt, John.—b. St. Paul, Minn., Apr. 28, 1908; Univ. of N. C., A. B. 1930; app. clk. in Am. Consulate at Bluefields Nov. 18, 1930; v. c. at Bluefields May 18, 1931; at Barranquilla Nov. 13, 1931; at Cartagena, temp., May 18, 1934.

Bratter, Herbert M.—b. New York City Jan. 22, 1900; high sch. grad.; Columbia Univ. Sch. of Business, grad. 1921; U.S. Army 1918; statistician for Chinese Govt., Bu. of Economic Information, Shanghai, 1921-23; export work 1923-24; with export advertising agency 1924-26 and for one yr. mgr. of Buenos Aires office; advertising mgr. for magazine 1927; specialist in Far Eastern finance, Bu. of For. and Domes. Com., 1929-34; assigned as asst. cml. att. at Tokyo Mar. 21, 1934; married.

Brauner, John Joseph.—b. Strasburg, Germany, Feb. 22, 1898; Am. citizen; St. Joseph's Acad.; Winthrop Teachers Sch. 1916-17; Western Coll., Gunnison, Colo., 1920-22; Georgetown Sch. of For. Ser., P. F. S. 1926; George Washington Law Sch. 1929-; mem. of bar of D. C.; S. A. T. C., Clarkson Coll., 1918; teacher in public sch. 1917-18, 1919-20; clk., Navy Dept., 1924-25; app. clk. at \$1,320 in the Dept. of State Feb. 10, 1925; at \$1,680 Nov. 16, 1925; at \$1,800 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$1,860 July 1, 1928; at \$2,300 June 1, 1929; acting chief, law section, at \$3,200 Mag 1, 1930; chief Sept. 1, 1930; married.—RP.

Breen, Mary Agnes.—b. Washington, D. C.; attended business high sch. and Notre Dame Acad.; stenog. two yrs.; app. clk., temp., at \$900 in the Dept. of State Feb. 19, 1915; permanently, at \$1,000 under Ex. order June 22, 1916, effective July 1; at \$1,200 Dec. 1, 1917; at \$1,400 Nov. 5, 1921; at \$1,680 July 1, 1924; at \$1,740 Mar. 1, 1925; at \$1,800 Dec. 1, 1925; at \$1,860 May 1, 1927; at \$2,000 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$2,100 July 1, 1928; stenog., Int. Conf. on Safety of Life at Sea, London, 1929; at \$2,300 July 1, 1930.—U.

Brennan, Charles Joseph.—b. North Adams, Mass., Aug. 14, 1904; Holy Cross Coll. and Woodstock Coll., Yonkers, N. Y.; Georgetown Sch. of For. Ser., B. F. S. 1927; clk. and asst. mgr., export invoice dept., mfg. firm, 1924-25; asst. librarian and asst. prof. of practical Am. govt., Georgetown Sch. of For. Ser., 1927-28; app. v. c. at Amoy June 18, 1929; at Foochow, temp., Nov. 8, 1930; at Amoy Dec. 20, 1930; at Chefoo Sept. 26, 1931; married.

Brennan, Earl.—b. Westmoreland, N. H., Nov. 11, 1899; studied languages in Italy and Germany; American Univ.; National Univ., LL. B. 1920, LL. M., M. P. L. 1921; mem. of bar of N. H.; asst. sec., chamber of com., 1917-18; clk., War Dept., 1918-21; clk. in Am. Consulate at Florence 1921-22; app. v. c. at Florence Apr. 29, 1922; at Stettin July 17, 1924; at Göteborg Feb. 28, 1925; at Rome Sept. 24, 1925; at Göteborg Mar. 13, 1928 (canceled); at St. Stephen Aug. 9, 1928; at Campbellton, temp., May 3, 1929; at St. Stephen May 31, 1929; at Moncton, temp., Oct. 11, 1929; at Winnipeg Nov. 15, 1930.

Brent, Joseph Lancaster.—b. Baltimore, Md., June 30, 1903; Gilman Sch.; Princeton, A. B. 1925; clk. in Am. Consulate at Sault Ste. Marie Sept. 1926; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass. and v. c. of career Feb. 5, 1927; assigned to Sault Ste. Marie Feb. 14, 1927; to the For. Ser. Sch. Oct. 6, 1927; to Cairo July 10, 1928; as language officer to the consulate general at Paris Oct. 1, 1930; also v. c. at Paris May 1, 1931; v. c. at Jerusalem Apr. 20, 1933; married.

Brett, Homer.—b. Scooba, Miss., Sept. 1, 1877; attended high sch. and business sch.; Miss. Agric. and Mecb. Coll.; post-office clk. 1897; 1st Miss. Volunteer Infantry 1898; railway mail clk. 1899– 1907; postal service, Isthmian Canal Commn., 1907–11; app., after exam., cons. at Maskat Aug. 19, 1911; at Tenerife Sept. 18, 1913; cons. of class eight by act approved Feb. 5, 1915; class seven Mar. 2, 1915, and assigned to La Guaira; resigned June 3, 1919; app. cons. agt. at Caracas Oct. 21, 1919; resigned Mar. 31, 1920; reinstated as cons. of class seven May 18, 1920; detailed to the Dept. May 25, 1920; assigned to Tacna July 1, 1920; to Arica Oct. 9, 1920; to Iquique June 14, 1921; class six Nov. 21, 1921; class five Mar. 1, 1923; assigned to Bahia Mar. 30, 1923; For. Ser. officer of class six July 1, 1924; class five Fcb. 24, 1925; assigned to Nottingham Feb. 20, 1926; to Bristol, temp., July 7, 1928; to Milan Sept. 5, 1928; class four Dec. 31, 1929; representative, 13th Annual Fair of Milan, 1932; assigned to Rotterdam June 20, 1934; married.

Breuer. Carl.—b. Buffalo, N. Y., Jan. 25, 1906; Salisbury Sch. grad.; Princeton, B. S. 1929, grad. work 1930-31; bank clk., Paris, 1929-30; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass., v. c. of career, and sec. in the Diplo. Ser. Dec. 17, 1931; assigned as v. c. at Zürich Jan. 20, 1932; to the For. Ser. Sch. Nov. 29, 1932; to Port-au-Prince Mar. 31, 1933.

Bridge, Henry Poynton.—b. Wanganui, New Zealand, Dec. 22, 1874; Wanganui Boys' Sch.; executive positions in New Zealand nineteen yrs.; public accountant, auditor, and trade assignee fourteen yrs.; app. cons. agt. at Christchurch Apr. 5, 1921; resigned Mar. 7, 1927; reapp. cons. agt. at Christchurch Mar. 31, 1928.

Briggs, Ellis Ormsbee.—b. Watertown, Mass., Dec. 1, 1899; Dartmouth, A. B. 1921; instructor in geography and Eng., Robert Coll., Constantinople, 1921– 23; contributor to magazines 1923–25; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unchass. Sept. 11, 1925; v. c. of career May 20, 1926; assigned to Callao-Lima May 25, 1926; sec. in the Diplo. Ser. May 17, 1928; assigned as 3d sec. at Lima May 28, 1928; class eight and cons. Dec. 19, 1929; assigned to the Dept. Dec. 31, 1929; class seven July 1, 1931; detailed on special mission to Liberia Feb.-Oct. 1933, accompanying Maj. Gen. Winship, League Council Committee on Liberia, London, June 1933, and Geneva, Oct. 1933; assigned as 3d sec. at Habana Oct. 4, 1933; as 2d sec. at Habana Dec. 5, 1933; married.

Briggs, Lawrence Palmer.—b. Manton, Mich., Oct. 17, 1880; Univ. of Mich., A. B. 1905; Univ. of Chicago, A. M. 1908; supt. of public sch. 1900–1903; instructor in hist. and govt. 1905–6, 1908–10; Univ. of Calif., teaching fellow, 1910–11, traveling fellow in Europe, 1911–12; instructor, Pa. State Coll., 1912– 14; app., after exam., cons. at Saigon Apr. 27, 1914; cons. of class nine by act approved Feb. 5, 1915; class eight Apr. 16, 1917; assigned to Rangoon Apr. 21, 1917; class six Sept. 5, 1919; assigned to Rivière du Loup Aug. 10, 1920; to Nuevitas Mar. 5, 1923; For. Ser. officer of class seven July 1, 1924; assigned to Bahia Oct. 2, 1929; class six July 24, 1930.

Brist, George Louis.—b. Hill Settlement, Wis., June 29, 1878; attended business sch. and George Washington Law Sch.; mgr. of store; map distributor, Dept. of Agric., 1896-97; app. laborer in the Dept. of State Mar. 2, 1897; clk. at \$900 Nov. 1, 1899; at \$1,200 Oct. 11, 1901; at \$1,400 June 15, 1904; at \$1,600 Mar. 4, 1907; at \$1,800 Nov. 2, 1908; special asst. at \$2,000 Dec. 31, 1919, effective Jan. 1, 1920; act. chief. Division of Passport Control, June 9, 1920; at \$2,500 Mar. 1, 1921; at \$3,000 June 17, 1921, effective July 1; act. chief, Division of Passport Control, Aug. 17, 1922; chief Nov. 1, 1922; at \$3,300 July 1, 1924; app. v. c. at St. Stephen Oct. 28, 1925; married.

^{††}Brodie, Edward Everett.—b. Fort Stevens, Oreg., Mar. 12, 1876; high sch. and business sch. grad.; Univ. of Oreg. 1894–95; newspaper reporter 1901–3; newspaper publisher and owner since 1908; app. E. E. and M. P. to Siam Oct. 8, 1921; resigned June 23, 1925; app. E. E. and M. P. to Finland Jan. 31, 1930; resigned Sept. 21, 1933; married.

Bronson, Edith Vernita.—b. Reinbeck, Iowa; high sch. and business sch. grad.; in private firm 1924-25; clk., Bu. of Internal Revenue, 1926-27; app. clk. at \$1,320 in the Dept. of State Apr. 1, 1927; at \$1,440July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$1,500 July 1, 1928; at \$1,620 Feb. 1, 1929; stenog., London Naval Conf., 1930; at \$1,740 July 1, 1930; at \$1,800 Aug. 4, 1931.—SS.

Brooks, Clarence C.—b. West Hoboken, N.J., Oct. 2, 1894; Univ. of Fla. and Georgetown Sch. of For. Ser.; asst. chief, Bu. of Information, Cuban Dept. of Agric.; U.S. Army 1917-20, It.; traveling sales mgr. in Cen. and So. Amer.; entered Bu. of For. and Domes. Com. Sept. 1921; app. asst. trade commr. at Buenos Aires July 1, 1922; at Santiago, Chile, Dec. 1923; cml. att. at Montevideo Apr. 28, 1927; chief, Latin Amer. Section, Bu. of For. and Domes. Com., 1931-33; app. cml. att. at Bogotá Nov. 24, 1933.

Brooks, Russell Mott.—b. Salem, Oreg., Aug. 23, 1890; Oreg. Agric. Coll. 1909; Univ. of Oreg. 1911–13; Willamette Univ., LL. B. 1917; mem. of bar of Oreg.; law practice 1917; U. S. Army 1917–19; app. v. c. at Rotterdam July 9, 1919; at Newcastle-on-Tyne Dec. 24, 1920; app., after exam.. v. c. of career of class three May 26, 1922; assigned to Newcastle-on-Tyne June 23, 1922; to Dresden Sept. 7, 1922; to Belfast Apr. 19, 1924; class two May 10, 1924; For. Ser. officer unclass. July 1, 1924; class eight, cons., and assigned to Belfast Aug. 24, 1927; to London Apr. 5, 1930; class seven July 24, 1930; to Curaçao June 29, 1933; married.

Brown, Alice M.—b. Salt Lake City, Utah; Univ. of Utah, M. A. 1927; George Washington Univ., grad. work 1927-28; American Univ., Ph. D. 1933; teacher in jr. high sch. 1928-29, 1930; draftsman, Census Bu., 1929-30; research asst., Civil Ser. Commn., July-Oct. 1930; app. archive asst. at \$1.800 in the Dept. of State Oct. 1, 1930; at \$2,000 Aug. 29, 1931.—HA.

Brown, James Elwyn, Jr.—b. Sewickley, Pa., Apr. 6, 1902; St. Paul's Sch.; Yale, B. A. 1925; L'École Libre des Sciences Politiques 1925–27; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass. and v. c. of career May 17, 1928; assigned to the For. Ser. Sch. May 24, 1928; to Mexico City Oct. 10, 1928; sec. in the Diplo. Ser. Oct. 15, 1931; assigned as 3d sec. at Santo Domingo Oct. 29, 1931; married. Brown, Robert West.—b. Lynchburg, Va., Sept. 14, 1881; unskilled laborer, Washington Navy Yard, 1917-21; app. laborer in the Dept. of State Aug. 13, 1921.—CC.

Brown, Robert Young.—b. Dothan, Ala., May 20, 1905; Ala. Polytech. Inst., B. S. 1926; 2d lt., O. R. C.; instructor in hist., Ala. Polytech. Inst., 1925-26; clk. and mgr. touring hureau 1927-28; app., after exam., For Ser. officer unclass. and v. c. of career May 17, 1928; assigned to the For. Ser. Sch. May 21, 1928; to Baghdad Nov. 5, 1928; sec. in the Diplo. Ser. Feh. 4, 1931; assigned also as 3d sec. at Baghdad May 18, 1931; as v. c. at Cairo May 24, 1932.

Brown, William Harris.—b. South Plainfield, N. J., Dec. 25, 1890; business sch. grad.; stenog. and sec. 1909–17; U. S. Army 1917–21; app. clk. in Am. Consulate at Port au Prince Aug. 19, 1921; v. c. at Port au Prince Dec. 27, 1921; at Halifax Apr. 17, 1923; resigned Sept. 10, 1923; reapp. v. c. at Hallfax Dec. 28, 1923; at Sherbrooke Aug. 30, 1930; at St. Stephen Jan. 8, 1932; married.

Browne, Sidney Hand.—b. Baltimore, Md., Aug. 31, 1901; Kent Sch.; Harvard, A. B. 1923; grad. work, Columbia, 1925-26; clk., steamship company, 1923-24; salesman 1924-25; clk., Library of Cong., 1927; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass. and v. c. of career July 5, 1927; assigned to the For. Ser. Sch. Sept. 29, 1927; to Antofagasta Mar. 8, 1928; sec. in the Diplo. Ser. Apr. 15, 1930; assigned as v. c. at Rotterdam Aug. 16, 1930; at Batavia Sept. 20, 1933; married.

Broy, Charles Clinton .- b. Sperryville, Va., July 26, 1887; Roanoke Coll., A. B. 1906, A. M. 1907; Princeton, A. M. 1908; National Unlv. Law Sch. 1924-25; clk. 1908-9; app., after exam., cons. asst. July 19, 1909; v. and dep. cons. gen. at Boma Sept. 1, 1909; v. and dep. cons. at Milan Mar. 16, 1911; detailed to the Dept. Sept. 5, 1913; app. v. c. at Dublin May 25, 1916; cons. of class eight July 12, 1916; assigned to Karachi Aug. 3, 1916 (canceled); detailed to London Oct. 19, 1918; representative, Int. Conf. on Passport Control, London, 1919; class six Sept. 5, 1919; resigned Nov. 16, 1919; reapp. cons. of class six Nov. 15, 1920; assigned to Lille Dec. 13, 1920; to Cherbourg July 21, 1921; to proceed to Washington Sept. 9, 1922; For. Ser. officer of class seven July 1, 1924; class six Aug. 8, 1924; mem., Inter-dept. Committee on Codification of Navlgation Laws, 1926-27; assigned to Nassau Dec. 15, 1926; to London Sept. 12, 1929; class five Dec. 19, 1929; married.

Bruins, John Herman.—b. Coopersville, Mich., May 5. 1896; Hamilton Coll., A. B. 1918; U. S. Army 1918-19; 2d lt., O. R. C.; financial and credit investigator 1919-23; app., after exam., cons. asst. Aug. 28, 1923; detailed to the Dept. Sept. 5, 1923; For. Ser. officer unclass. July 1, 1924; assigned to Riga Sept. 17, 1924; to Singapore May 27, 1926; class elght, cons., and assigned to Singapore May 23, 1929; to Southampton Aug. 26, 1929; class seven Feb. 4, 1931; to Hamburg Oct. 20, 1931; to Danzig, temp., Feb. 10, 1934; married. Bruner, Glen Willard.—b. Red Cloud, Nebr., Aug. 22, 1897; Colo. Agric. Coll., B. S. 1917; Univ. of Grenoble 1919; Northwestern Univ., M. A. 1927; U. S. Army 1917-19; teacher in high sch. 1919-20; educational work in Japan 1920-31; app. clk. in Am. Consulate at Nagasaki Aug. 1, 1931; v. c. at Nagasaki Oct. 30, 1931; married.

Bryan, Rose Sachs (Mrs.)—b. New York City; high sch. grad.; attended business sch.; stenog. 1928-29; clk. in Post Office Dept. 1929, in Dept. of State Jan.– July 1930, in Veterans' Bu. 1930; app. clk. at \$1,440 in the Dept. of State Aug. 16, 1930; at \$1,620 May 1, 1931.—FA.

Buckley, Delia Tumulty (Mrs.)—b. Roscommon, Ireland; naturalized; Convent of Mercy, Roscommon, grad. 1911; attended business sch.; clk. 1917-18, ln U. S. Food Admin. Mar.-Nov. 1918; app. clk., temp., at \$1,020 in the Dept. of State Nov. 23, 1918; at \$960 July 1, 1919; at \$1,000 Dec. 16, 1919; at \$1,100 Mar. 1, 1924; at \$1,200 May 31, 1924, effective June 1; at \$1,440 July 1, 1924; at \$1,500 May 1, 1926; at \$1,620 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$1,680 July 1, 1928; at \$1,800 July 1, 1930.—DCR.

Bucklin, George Augustus.—b. West Hartford, Mo., Oct. 5, 1875; Univ. of Okla., B. A. 1903; Yale, M. A. 1904; law clk. 1896, 1897; instructor in economics and sociology, Univ. of Okla., 1904-6; app., after exam., cons. at Glauchau July 16, 1906; at San Luis Potosí June 10, 1908; cons. gen. at Guatemala June 24, 1910; cons. at Bordeaux Feb. 6, 1914; cons. of class five by act approved Feb. 5, 1915; class four Nov. 18, 1918; detailed to Paris Oct. 6, 1919; to Coblenz Oct. 4, 1920; to Acapulco Dec. 27, 1921; assigned to Acapulco Oct. 2, 1923; to Sault Ste. Marie May S, 1924; For. Ser. officer of class five July 1, 1924; assigned to Victoria, B.C., July 23, 1924; class four Feb. 24, 1925; class three July 24, 1930; cons. gen. June 20, 1934; assigned to Wellington June 28, 1934; married.

Bucknell, Howard, Jr.-b. Philadelphia, Pa., Feb. 17, 1899; attended sch. in U. S. and Switzerland and business sch.; Univ. of Ga. one and one-half yrs.; U. S. Army 1918, lt.; app., after exam., student interpreter in China Sept. 8, 1919; v. c. at Chungking May 10, 1921; at Peking Nov. 3, 1921; v. c. and interpreter at Changsha Dec. 8, 1921; at Canton Nov. 13, 1922; cons. of class seven Dec. 19, 1923; detailed to Shanghai (asst. mixed court assessor) Jan. 28, 1924; For. Ser. officer of class eight July 1, 1924; sr. mixed court assessor Apr. 30, 1925; class seven Oct. 20, 1926; sec. in the Diplo. Ser. Feb. 5, 1927; assigned as 3d sec. at Peiping Feb. 10, 1927; class six May 23, 1929; representative of Am. miu. to China in negotiations with regard to Provisional Court, Shanghai, Dec. 1929-Feb. 1930; assigned to Panama June 13, 1930; class five Feb. 4, 1931; assigned as 2d sec. at Belgrade May 21, 1932; to the Dept. Feb. 28, 1934; married.-CI.

Buell, Robert Lewis.--b. Rochester, N. Y., Mar. 6, 1898; Phillips Exeter grad.; Harvard, A. B. 1919; Am. Field Ser. in France 1917-18; French Army 1918-19; reconstruction work in France 1920-21; with export firm 1920-21; asst. treas., wholesale firm, 1921-24; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass. Mar. 20, 1925; v. c. of career and assigned to Calcutta Sept. 2, 1925; sec. in the Diplo. Ser. Mar. 25, 1927; assigned as 3d sec. at London Apr. 7, 1927; at Stockholm, temp., May 20, 1930; class eight and cons. July 24, 1930; assigned as 3d sec. at London Oct. 9, 1930; at Peiping Dec. 8, 1930; also as cons. at Tientsin Jan. 23, 1931; cons. at Colombo June 19, 1933.

Buffum, David Harry.—b. Dorchester, Mass., Sept. 15, 1895; Phillips Exeter; Yale 1914-17; U. S. Army 1917-19; newspaper reporter 1919-23; app. clk. in Am. Consulate at Danzig July 1923; at Leghorn Feb. 7, 1928; v. c. at Leghorn Mar. 19, 1928; at Palermo Dec. 23, 1929; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass., v. c. of career, and sec. in the Diplo. Ser. Aug. 16, 1930; married.

Buhrman, Parker Wilson .-- b. Botetourt Co., Va., Sept. 5, 1885; Randolph-Macon Acad.; Randolph-Macon, A. B. 1910; Washington and Lee, LL. B. 1916; mem. of bar of Va.; wholesale and retail business 1900-1904; teacher in high sch. 1910-14; law practice 1916-18; app., after exam., cons. of class eight Apr. 30, 1918; assigned to Malmö Aug. 31, 1918; detailed to Helsingfors Apr. 25, 1919; mem. of Inter-Allied Trade Commn. for Finland 1919; class seven Sept 5, 1919; assigned to Ceiba Sept. 16, 1920; to Surabaya Feb. 10, 1921; class six Aug. 23, 1922; assigned to Aleppo Apr. 28, 1923; class five June 3, 1924; For. Ser. officer of class six July 1, 1924; assigned to the Dept. Feb. 2, 1925; chief, Passport Division, Mar. 1, 1927; class five May 17, 1928; assigned to Berlin June 27, 1928; to Casablanca Nov. 19, 1929; class four July 24, 1930; to Cologne June 20, 1934.

Bullitt, William Christian.—b. Philadelphia, Pa., Jan. 25, 1891; Yale, A. B. 1912; Harvard Law Sch. one yr.; newspaper work 1915–17; clk. in Dcpt. of State 1917–18; attached to Am. Commn. to Negotiate Peace, Paris, 1918–19; special mission to Russia 1919; editor 1921; author; app. special asst. to the sec. of state, temp., at \$8,000 Apr. 20, 1933; permanently June 2, 1933; executive officer, Int. Monetary and Economic Conf., London, 1933; app. A.E. and P. to the Union of Soviet Socialist Republics Nov. 21, 1933.

Burbank, Virginia Katherine.—b. Chicago, Ill.; Univ. of Wis., summer 1929; Royal Italian Univ., Perugia, Italy, summer 1930; George Washington, A. B. 1931; app. editorial asst. at \$1,500 in the Dept. of State Apr. 1, 1927; at \$1,620 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$1,800 Aug. 1, 1928; at \$2,000 May 1, 1929; at \$2,200 July 1, 1930.—RP.

Burdett, William Carter.—b. Nashville, Tenn., Feb. 3, 1884; attended high sch.; Univ. of Tenn. one yr.; U. S. Army, Philippine Insurrection, 1900–1903; engineer in So. Amer. 1903–6; explorer 1907; mining 1908–16; U. S. Army 1917–19, capt.; app., after exam., cons. of class seven Sept. 5, 1919; assigned to Ensenada Nov. 1, 1919; class six Nov. 19, 1921; assigned to Seville May 17, 1922; class five Dec. 19, 1923; For. Ser. officer of class six July 1, 1924; assigned to Brussels Aug. 19, 1925; class five Aug. 31, 1925; class four Oct. 16, 1929; assigned to Callao-Lima Apr. 17, 1930; cons. gen. and assigned to Callao-Lima Oct. 18, 1930; sec. in the Diplo. Ser. May 4, 1932; assigned also as 1st sec. at Lima May 12, 1932; relieved of duties as cons. gen. at Callao-Lima Aug. 4, 1932; 1st sec. at Panamá Aug. 9, 1933; married.

Burg, Joseph Paul.—b. Hollidaysburg, Pa., Nov. 26, 1868; attended high sch. in U. S. and Germany; Holy Ghost Coll. (now Duquesne Univ.) 1882–85; Georgetown, LL. B. 1894; mem. of bar of Pa.; sec. to mem. of Cong. 1891–1911; v. and dep. cons. at Reichenberg 1911–12; sec. to mem. of Cong. 1912–20; app, clk. at \$1,000 in the Dept. of State Dec. 31, 1920, effective Jan 1, 1921; at \$1,200 Dec. 12, 1921; at \$1,400 Apr. 1, 1924; at \$1,680 July 1, 1924; at \$1,740 Mar. 1, 1925; at \$1,800 Nov. 1, 1927; at \$1,860 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$1,920 July 1, 1930; at \$1,980 July 3, 1930 (Brookhart Act).—A-C/C.

Burke, Gordon Lee.—b. Shanghai, China, of Am. parents, Dec. 16, 1893; private tutors in China; Branham und Hughes Prep. Sch. grad.; Vanderbilt, A. B. 1915; U. S. Army 1917-19, 2d it.; hardware business 1919-21; clk. in Am. Consulate at Changsha June 1921; v. c. at Changsha Nov. 22, 1922; at Swatow Mar. 3, 1923; at Hankow May 13, 1924; at Nanking, temp., July 30, 1925; at Hankow Aug. 4, 1926; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass. and v. c. of career Aug. 24, 1927; assigned to Chefoo, temp., Sept. 19, 1927; as language officer at Peiping Apr. 20, 1928; as v. c. at Foochow Feb. 6, 1931; married.

Burke, Malcolm Clayton.—b. Demopolis, Ala., July 8, 1879; Univ. of Ala., A. B. 1899; Harvard, A. B. 1901; Univ. of Munich, Ph. D. 1908; Univ. of Ala., Instructor in Greek, 1901-4, assoc. and act. prof. of Greek, 1904-17; U. S. Army 1917-19, 1st lt.; app. clk. in Am. Consulate at Hamburg July 1924; v. c. at Hamburg Mar. 14, 1925; at Bremen, temp., Mar. 15, 1927; at Hamburg Apr. 30, 1927.

Burke, Thomas Edmund.—b. Torrington, Conn., Feb. 14, 1898; high sch. grad.; St. Anselm's Coll. 1919-20; Georgetown Sch. of For. Ser. 1920-22; bank clk., summer 1917; U. S. Army 1918-19; clk. steamship company, 1921; app. clk. in Am. Consulate at Bombay July 21, 1922; v. c. at Bombay July 7, 1923; at Basel Jan. 6, 1925; at Malmö Jan. 23, 1926; at Göteborg Sept. 27, 1926; at Oslo Apr. 10, 1928; at Niagara Falls May 4, 1929; at Riga Apr. 7, 1930; at Helsingfors July 31, 1931; married.

Burnham, Francis Irvine.—b. Salt Lake City, Utah, June 26, 1901; Univ. of Utah, Latter Day Saints Coll., Columbia Sch. of Drafting, LaSalle Extension Univ. law course, and Georgetown Sch. of For. Ser.; Harvard, summer 1932; with importing company 1916– 20; draftsman 1926–28; Bu. of Census 1929; draftsman, Commn. of Inquiry and Conciliation, Bolivia and Paraguay, July-Oct. 1929; app. draftsman, temp., at \$1,800 in the Dept. of State Oct. 1, 1929; permanently, Jan. 1, 1930; at \$1.920 July 1, 1930; at \$2,300 Aug. 1, 1930; at \$2,600 July 1, 1931; married.—HA.

Burr, Walter Winthrop.—b. Brooklyn, N. Y., Oct. 23, 1895; Folytech. Prep. Sch.; U. S. Army 1916–19, 2d lt., overseas service; accountant, oil company in N. Y. and Constantinople, 1919–22, in bank in Constantinople 1922–26; app. clk. in Am. Consulate at Patras Apr. 15, 1927; v. c. at Patras Oct. 28, 1927; at Paris Jan. 8, 1930; at Lille, temp., June 21, 1930; at Paris July 31, 1930; at Cherbourg, temp., Jan. 2, 1932; at Paris Apr. 6, 1932.

††Burri, Alfred Theodore.-b. Mt. Vernon, N. Y., Dee. 11, 1890; attended business high sch.; Mt. Hermon Sch.; Harvard 1914-16; clk. two yrs.; bookkeeper and teller in bank four yrs.; financial sec. of Y. M. C. A. in Russia two yrs.; app. v. c. at Moscow May 13, 1918; at Odessa Jan. 23, 1919; at Tiflis May 7, 1919; transferred to Constantinople May 3, 1920; app. v. c. at Constantinople July 21, 1920; app., after exam., cons. of class seven June 9, 1921; detailed to Tananarive Feb. 10, 1922; to Constantinople Feb. 28, 1923; class six Mar. 1, 1923; detailed to the Dept. Oct. 16, 1923; For. Ser. officer of class seven July 1, 1924; assigned to Puerto Cortes Aug. 15, 1924; class six Feb. 24, 1925; assigned to Barranquilla May 28, 1925; to Amsterdam June 26, 1929; class five July 24, 1930; to Basel Oct. 29, 1931; to the Dept., temp., Dec. 22, 1933; retired Jan. 31. 1934, under the provisions of the act of Feb. 23, 1931; married.

Burroughs, Anna V. (Mrs.)—b. Cleveland, Ohio; attended high sch.; multigraph operator in private firm several yrs.; in War Dept. 1918-20; app. multigraph operator at \$1,320 in the Dept. of State July 14, 1924; at \$1,380 Mar. 1, 1925; at \$1,440 Mar. 1, 1927; at \$1,560 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$1,620 July 1, 1928; at \$1,680 July 1, 1930.—SS.

Burrows, Arthur William.—b. Coronel, Chile, Apr. 3. 1883; Chilean citizen; attended husiness sch. in Chile; in private firm 1900–1915, 1918–29; farmer 1916–17; app. act. cons. agt. at Coquimbo Jan. 1926; cons. agt. Sept. 24, 1926; married.

Bursley, Herbert Sidney .--- b. Washington, D. C., Sept. 25, 1896; high sch. grad.; George Washington Univ. 1914-16; clk., Govt. depts., 1914-16; app. clk. in Am. Consulate General at London Nov. 21, 1916; v. c. at London May 31, 1919; app., after exam., cons. asst. Sept. 8, 1919; v. c. at Bradford Dec. 8, 1919; at London Dec. 31, 1919; at Dublin Apr. 22, 1920; at Sofia Jan. 27, 1921; at Constantinople Jan. 30, 1923; app. v. c. of career of class three Feb. 26, 1923; assigned to Constantinople Mar. 2, 1923; class two Nov. 23, 1923; class one May 10, 1924; For. Ser. officer unclass. July 1, 1924; class nine and cons. Aug. 8, 1924; assigned to Prague Aug. 16, 1924; class eight Sept. 20, 1924; assigned to Belgrade Feb. 5, 1925; to Sault Ste. Marie, temp., June 14, 1926; to Guaymas Sept. 8, 1926; class seven May 17, 1928; assigned to Smyrna (Izmir) Dec. 4, 1929; class six July 24, 1930; to Kingston, Jamaica, Oct. 19, 1932 (canceled); to the Dept. Jan. 19, 1933; married.-ME.

4

Burt, Joseph Floyd .- b. Fairfield, 111., Dec. 12, 1896; high sch. grad.; attended business sch.; stenog. 1914-15; asst. dept. mgr., wholesale firm. 1915-17; clk., War Dept., May-July 1917; civilian employee, Camp Sheridan, Ala., and Ft. Sheridan, III., 1917-18; U. S. Army 1918-20; clk, in Am, Mission at Vienna 1920-21; in Am. Consulate at Vienna 1921; v. c. at Vienna 1921-23; app., after exam., v. c. of career of class three Mar. 7, 1924; assigned to Vienna Mar. 12, 1924; to Berlin June 18, 1924; For. Ser. officer unclass. July 1, 1924; assigned to Coblenz Nov. 9, 1925; to Berlin Dec. 3, 1925; to Cologne, temp., Aug. 28, 1926; to Berlin Oct. 20, 1926; to Rio de Janeiro Feb. 14, 1927; to Manaos. temp., Sept. 22, 1927; to Pernambuco, temp., Dec. 31, 1927; to Bahia, temp., Feb. 15, 1928; to Rio de Janeiro Sept. 18, 1928; class eight, cons., and assigned to Rio de Janeiro May 23, 1929; to Buenos Aires June 20, 1929; to Montreal Nov. 15, 1930; class seven Feb. 4, 1931; to Curaçao July 9, 1931; to the Dept. Aug. 28, 1933 .--- VD.

††Buss, Claude Albert.—b. Sunbury, Pa., Nov. 29, 1903; Washington Missionary Coll., A. B. 1922; Susquehanna Univ., A. M. 1924; Univ. of Pa., Ph. D. 1927; L'Institut des hautes Études Internationales (Carnegie fellow in Int. law), L'École Libre des Sciences Politiques 1927-28; instructor in political science, Univ. of Pa., 1926-27; prof. of political science, Grove City Coll., 1928-29; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass. and v. c. of career Mar. 26, 1929; assigned to the For. Ser. Sch. May 1, 1929; as language officer at Peiping Sept. 16, 1929; as v. c. at Nanking Nov. 16, 1931; resigned Jan. 28, 1934; married.

Busser, Ralph Cox.—b. York, Pa., Jan. 3, 1875; attended business sch.; Univ. of Pa., LL. B. 1899; mem. of bar of Pa.; asst. sec., chamber of com., 1899–1900; law practice 1900–1909; app., after exam., cons. at Erfurt May 31, 1909; at Trieste Sept. 18, 1913; cons. of class seven by act approved Feb. 5, 1915; class six July 12, 1916; assigned to Almeria July 21, 1917; to Bergen Nov. 30, 1917; detailed to Trieste Mar. 24, 1919; class five Sept. 5, 1919; class four June 4, 1920; detailed to Corunna Sept. 3, 1920; assigned to Plymouth Sept. 7, 1922; For. Ser. officer of class five July 1, 1924; assigned to Cardiff Apr. 29, 1926; to Leipzig Apr. 10, 1930; class four May 9, 1930; married.

Butler, Dorothy Kilkoff (Mrs.)—b. De Land, Fla.; attended business sch.; Notre Dame of Md., A. B.; elk., Dept. of Interior, 1900–1908; app. elk., temp., in the Dept. of State Aug. 10, 1914; permanently, at \$1,200 under Ex. order June 22, 1916, effective July 1; at \$1,400 Aug. 1, 1918; at \$1,600 Dec. 31, 1920, effective Jan. 1, 1921; at \$1,860 July 1, 1924; at \$1,920 Dec. 1, 1925; at \$2,100 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$2,200 July 1, 1928; file clk., London Naval Conf., 1930; at \$2,300 July 1, 1930.—DCR.

Butler, George Howland.—b. Chicago, Ill., Feb. 6, 1894; tech. high sch. grad.; Univ. of Ill., B. S. 1915; in steel company 1915-16; Ill. State Highway Commn. 1916; U. S. Army 1916-19, capt.; civil engineer 1919-21; building insp. and supt. of public works 1921-22; real estate business 1922-26; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass. and v. c. of career Sept. 1, 1926; assigned to La Paz Feb. 26, 1927; sec. in the Diplo. Ser. May 17, 1928; assigned as 3d sec. also at La Paz May 21, 1928; v. c. at Montreal Apr. 4, 1929; 3d sec. at Santiago, Chile, Apr. 26, 1930; class eight and cons. Feb. 27, 1931; assigned as cons. and 3d sec. at Asunción Jan. 29, 1934; married.

Butrick, Richard Porter.—b. Lockport, N. Y., Aug. 6, 1894; high sch. grad.; attended business sch.; Georgetown Sch. of For. Ser. 1921; Bu. of Fisheries 1915-17; Gen. Accounting Office 1917-21; app., after exam., v. c. of career of class three Oct. 26, 1921; assigned to Valparaiso Dec. 14, 1921; to Iquique Oct. 6, 1922; class two Nov. 23, 1923; assigned to Guayaquil Dec. 3, 1923; class one May 10, 1924; For. Ser, officer unclass. July 1, 1924; class nine and cons. Aug. 8, 1924; class eight Feb. 24, 1925; assigned to Hankow Nov. 9, 1926; class seven May 17, 1928; class six Dec. 19, 1929; class five July 1, 1931; assigned to St. John Mar. 26, 1932; to Shanghai Apr. 30, 1932; married.

Butterworth, William Walton, Jr.—b. New Orleans, La., Sept. 7, 1903; Lawrenceville Prep. Sch. grad.; Princeton, B. A. 1925; Univ. of Dijon, summer 1925; Rhodes scholar, Worcester Coll., Oxford, 1925–27; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass. and v. c. of carcer May 17, 1928; assigned to the For. Ser. Sch. May 24, 1928; to Singapore Jan. 18, 1929; as For. Ser. officer at Ottawa July 15, 1932; sec. in the Diplo. Ser. July 16, 1932; assigned as 3d sec. at Ottawa July 22, 1932; at London Dec. 5, 1933; married.

Byars, Winfield Scott.—b. Marion Co., Ill., Jan. 1, 1878; business sch. grad.; Norman Univ., Ill., two yrs.; stenog. in private and Govt. offices eight yrs.; app. clk. at \$1,200 in the Dept. of State Apr. 22, 1913; at \$1,400 Oct. 10, 1916; clk., Special Commn. to France, Jan. 2, 1918; detailed to Am. Commn. to Negotiate Peace, Paris, 1919; reinstated clk. in the Dept. of State Aug. 1, 1919; at \$1,680 July 1, 1924; detailed as code clk.. Special Conf. on Chinese Customs Tariff, Peking, 1925–26; at \$1,740 Mar. 1, 1927; at \$1,860 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$1,920 July 1, 1928; at \$2,040 July 1, 1930; at \$2,100 July 2, 1930; married.—DCR.

Byington, Homer Morrison.—b. Washington, D. C., Sept. 19, 1879; public sch. and Wilson's Coll. Inst.; studied under private tutor; newspaper corr. 1895–97; clk. in Am. Consulate at Naples 1897–1900; app. v. and dep. cons. at Naples Sept. 19, 1900; app., after exam., cons. clk. Mar. 31, 1903; in charge of Am. Consulate at Naples Sept. 1-Nov. 4, 1907; app. cons. asst. July 1, 1908; v. and dep. cons. at Rome July 3, 1908; at Bristol Feb. 8, 1909; cons. at Bristol May 31, 1909; at Leeds Sept. 18, 1913; cons. of class eight hy act approved Feb. 5, 1915; class seven Mar. 2, 1915; assigned to Hull May 22, 1917; class six Sept. 14, 1917; class five Sept. 5, 1919; assigned to Palermo Sept. 10, 1919; to Naples Mar. 12, 1920; class four June 4, 1920; class three Nov. 23, 1921; cons. gen. of class four Mar. 1, 1923; reassigned to Naples Mar. 28, 1923; del., Int. Conf. on Emigration and Immigration, Rome, 1924; class three June 5, 1924; For. Ser. officer of class two July 1, 1924; mem. of Bd. of Review, For. Ser. Personnel, 1926; class one June 30, 1927; assigned to the Dept. July 27, 1929; chm. of executive committee of For. Ser. Personnel Bd. July 27, 1929-Sept. 11, 1929; mem., Bd. of Examiners for the For. Ser. Sept. 11, 1929; chief, Division of For. Ser. Personnel, Dec. 30, 1929; sec. in the Diplo. Ser. Mar. 10, 1931; mem., For. Ser. Officers' Training Sch. Bd., July 1, 1931; For. Ser.

Byington, Homer Morrison, Jr.—b. Naples, Italy, of Am. parents, May 31, 1908; Phillips Andover grad.; Yale, B. A. 1930; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass., v. c. of career, and sec. in the Diplo. Ser. Dec. 16, 1930; assigned to the Dept., temp., Dec. 20, 1930; as v. c. at Habana June 24, 1932; to the For. Ser. Sch. Jan. 28, 1933; to Naples June 13, 1933; married.

Cabot, John Moors.—b. Cambridge, Mass., Dec. 11, 1901; Browne and Nichols Sch. and Pomfret Sch.; Harvard, A. B. 1923; Brasenose Coll., Oxford, B. Litt. 1925; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass. and v. c. of career Sept. 1, 1926; assigned to Callao-Lima Feb. 26, 1927; as For. Ser. officer to the leg. at Santo Domingo Dec. 29, 1928; sec. in the Diplo. Ser. May 23, 1929; assigned as 3d sec. at Santo Domingo June 11, 1929; class eight and cons. Apr. 15, 1930; assigned as 3d sec. at Mexico City Dec. 26, 1930; at Guatemala Jan. 22, 1932 (canceled); at Rio de Janeiro May 12, 1932; married.

Caffee, Albert Veazey.—b. Fern Bank, Ohio, Dec. 31, 1885; Ohio Mech. Inst., grad. 1905; attended business sch.; sec. 1906-12; app. clk. at \$900 in the Dept. of State June 13, 1912; at \$1,000 Mar. 3, 1914; at \$1,400 June 22, 1916, effective July 1; stenog., Am.-Mexican Joint Commn., Sept.-Oct. 1916; at \$1,600 Jan. 16, 1922; on detail with Advisory Committee on Traffic in Opium, Geneva, 1923; at \$1,860 July 1, 1924; at \$1,920 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$1,980 July 1, 1928; at \$2,000 Feb. 1, 1929; at \$2,300 Oct. 1, 1929; at \$2,500 July 1, 1930; at \$2,600 July 3, 1930 (Brookhart Act); married.—FA.

Caffery, Edward.—b. St. Mary's Parish, La., Feb. 14, 1889; Sidwell's Friends Sch.; Princeton two yrs.; Univ. of Va. Law Sch. one yr.; cotton planting one yr.; U. S. Army 1917–19, 1st lt.; app., after exam., v. c. of career of class three Oct. 26, 1921; assigned to Bucharest Dec. 14, 1921; class two Feb. 26, 1923; class one Nov. 23, 1923; For. Ser. officer unclass. July 1, 1924; class eight and cons. Aug. 8, 1924; assigned to Habana Apr. 4, 1925; to San José, Costa Rica, Dec. 12, 1927; class seven May 23, 1929; assigned to Port Limón, temp., June 28, 1930; to San José Oct. 16, 1930; to Niagara Falls Mar. 10, 1031; married.

Caffery, Jefferson.—b. Lafayette, La., Dec. 1, 1886; mem. of bar of La.; app., after exam., sec. of leg. at Caracas Mar. 2, 1911; clk. in the Dept. of State under Ex. order June 26, 1913; sec. of leg. at Stockholm Sept. 11, 1913; sec. of emb. or leg. of class three by act approved Feb. 5, 1915; assigned to Teheran Feb. 11, 1916; attached to the Special Russian Mission to U. S. May 30, 1917; assigned to Paris June 30, 1917; representative. Interallied committee on treatment and training of disabled soldiers and sailors 1917-22, at Int. Conf., London, 1918, and sec. of Am. section 1919-22; mem., Bd. of Examiners, Diplo. Ser. exam. in Paris. May 1919; class two Aug. 27, 1918; protocol detail for President Wilson, Paris, 1919; detailed to the Dept. Sept. 1, 1919, visit of the King and Queen of the Belgians and of the Prince of Wales; class one and assigned as couns. of emb. at Madrid Dec. 20, 1919; as chargé d'affaires ad interim at Athens Jan. 5, 1922 ; as couns. of emb. at Tokyo Sept. 5, 1923; chm. of Am. Red Cross earthquake relief activities, Japan, Oct. 1923-Mar. 1924; For. Ser. officer of class one July 1, 1924; assigned as couns. of emb. at Berlin May 22, 1925; detailed to meeting of Int. Chamber of Com., Brussels, 1925; app. E. E. and M. P. to El Salvador Jan. 7, 1926; to Colombia June 27, 1928; special representative of President Hoover with rank of A. E. and P. at inauguration of President of Colombia on Aug. 7, 1930; special representative of the Dept. in El Salvador 1931-32; app. asst. sec. of state July 11, 1933; mem., Bd. of For. Ser. Personnel, Bd. of Examiners for the For. Ser., and For. Ser. Sch. Bd. Aug. 3-Dec. 27, 1953; personal representative of President Roosevelt at Habana Dec. 4, 1933; app. A. E. and P. to Cuba Feb. 23, 1934.

Cahn, Rudolf Edwin.—b. New York City Jan. 7. 1900; attended business high sch.; clk. 1915–17, in Rio de Janeiro 1917–20; app. clk. in Am. Consulate General at Rio de Janeiro Aug. 1920; v. c. at Rio de Janeiro Oct. 28, 1925; married.

Calder, A. Bland.—b. Morrison, Jowa, May 23, 1892; attended high sch. and business sch.; Coll. of the City of New York one yr.; Cooper Union Night Sch. of Science three yrs.; Columbia Univ. one yr.; secretary 1909-11; editorial asst. 1911-14; clk. in Am. Leg. at Berne 1915-16; sec. to couns. of Am. Emb. at Petrograd 1916; clk. and sec. in Petrograd 1917; in Shanghai 1918-20; app. clk. to trade commr. at Peking Feb. 8, 1921; asst. trade commr. at Peking July 1, 1922; at Tokyo Oct. 1923; trade commr. at Tokyo Jan. 1, 1926; at Shanghai Nov. 1, 1926; asst. cml. att. at Peiping July 28, 1928; married.

Calder, Francis Willard.—b. Stacyville, Iowa, Dec. 26, 1899; attended high sch. and business sch.; stenog. 1915–17; Am. Mil. Mission to Russia 1917–18; clk. in Am. Consulates at Vologda and Moscow Mar.–Aug. 1918; in Am. Emb. at Archangel 1918–19; app. v. c. at Odessa Dec. 6, 1919; at Constantinople Dec. 31, 1920; at Southampton Nov. 7, 1921; at Plymouth, temp., Apr. 26, 1930; at Southampton Apr. 30, 1930; married.

Caldwell, John Kenneth.—b. Piketon, Ohio, Oct. 16, 1881; Berea Coll., B. S. 1905; in laboratory of supervising architect of the Treas. 1906; app., after exam., student interpreter in Japan Oct. 8, 1906: v. and dep. cons. gen. and interpreter at Yokohama Apr. 16, 1909; asst. Japanese sec. at Tokyo Dec. 4, 1909; v. c. at Dalny, temp., Jan. 17-Feb. 17, 1911; cons. at Vladivostok Aug. 1, 1914; cons. of class six by act approved Feb. 5, 1915; class five Apr. 16, 1917; class four Sept. 5. 1919; class three June 4, 1920; assigned to Kobe July 1, 1920; app. Japanese sec. of emb. at Tokyo July 1, 1921; on detail at Chita Oct. 1921-Feb. 1922; detailed to the Dept. June 6, 1924; app. cons. gen. of class four June 3, 1924; For. Ser. officer of class three July 1, 1924; asst. chief, Division of Far Eastern Affairs, Nov. 19, 1925: representative on Federal Narcotics Control Bd. Nov. 25, 1925; class two June 8, 1927; act. chief, Division of Far Eastern Affairs, Aug. 15, 1927-Feb. 15, 1928; assigned to Geneva for duty in connection with the narcotics question Mar. 26, 1928; to the Dept. for special work in connection with the control of traffic in narcotic drugs June 13, 1928; observer, 11th, 12th, and 13th sess., League of Nations Opium Advisory Committee, 1928, 1929, and 1930; class one May 9, 1930; rep. in expert and advisory capacity, 14th sess., Advisory Committee on Traffic in Opium and Other Dangerous Drugs, Geneva, 1931; representative of U.S. at Preliminary Conf. in London 1930 and chm. of del., Conf. on the Limitation of the Manufacture of Narcotic Drugs, Geneva, 1931; observer, Bangkok Conf. on Opium Smoking in the Far East, 1931; assigned as cons. gen. at Sydney, N.S.W., Jan. 19. 1932; sec. in the Diplo. Ser. May 4, 1932; married.

Caldwell, Robert Granville.—b. Bogotá, Colombia, of Am. parents, Aug. 31, 1882; Coll. of Wooster, B. A. 1904; Princeton, Ph. D. 1912; instructor, Forman Coll., India, 1904-6, Huron Coll. 1907-8, and Coll. of Wooster 1908-10; fellow in hist., Princeton, 1910-12; prof. of politics and economics, Coll. of Wooster, 1912-14; asst. prof. of hist. 1914-19 and prof. of Am. hist. 1919-33. Rice Inst.; author; app. E. E. and M. P. to Portugal June 13, 1933; married.

Callahan, James Edwin.—b. Fall River, Mass., June 22, 1898; business sch. grad.; clk., War Dept., 1917– 19; clk. in Am. Consulate at Prague 1919–22; Am. Relief Admin., Moscow, 1922; mfg. company 1923–25; app. clk. in Am. Consulate General at London Mar. 12, 1925; v. c. at London July 7, 1925; married.

Callanan, Leo Joseph.—b. Boston, Mass., Jan. 18, 1900; Boston Coll., A. B. 1921; Georgetown, M. A. and M. F. S. 1923; S. A. T. C. 1918; app., after exam., cons. asst. Aug. 28, 1923; app. v. c. at Genoa Mar. 17, 1924; For. Ser. officer unclass. July 1, 1924; assigned to Melbourne, temp., Mar. 18, 1926; to Adelaide Nov. 19, 1926; to Melbourne Dec. 24, 1926; to Adelaide, temp., Feb. 8, 1927; to Melbourne May 16, 1927; to Adelaide, temp., Oct. 13, 1927; to Nassau Nov. 7, 1929; to Port Said Mar. 26, 1930; class eight, cons., and assigned to Port Said July 24, 1930; to Madras May 19, 1931; to Bombay Mar. 19, 1932; to Nairobi Dec. 9, 1932; to Aden Sept. 19, 1933. Calnan, John L.--b. Allston, Mass., Jan. 25, 1892; attended high sch.; Worcester Acad.; Georgetown Law Sch. 1912-14, 1920; Fordham Law Sch. 1916-17; athletic instructor 1914; asst. chlef insp., munition factory, 1915-16; U. S. Army 1917-19; asst. supervisor, U. S. Shipping Bd., 1919-20; field clk., War Dept., 1920; app. clk. in Am. Consulate at Prague Dec. 20, 1920; v. c. at Prague Apr. 14, 1921; at Belgrade June 26, 1925; married.

Calvert, John Strong .-- b. Raleigh, N. C., Oct. 19, 1886; Horner Mil. Sch. grad.; Univ. of N. C. 1902-4 and Law Sch., summer 1908; mem. of bar of N. C.; clk. 1904-7; law clk. 1907-9; lt. of constabulary, Philippine Is., 1909-12; law practice 1912-14; app. clk. in Am. Consulate General at Buenos Aires Mar. 1914; app. dep. cons. gen. at Buenos Aircs Sept. 24, 1914; v. c. at Buenos Aires Feb. 6, 1915; app., after exam., cons. of class nine Apr. 16, 1917; class eight Sept. 14, 1917; assigned to Nuevitas Nov. 30, 1917; unassigned from July 13, 1919; class seven Sept. 5, 1919; assigned to Guadeloupe Oct. 30, 1919; to Dunkirk Dec. 16, 1921; detailed to Barcelona Nov. 27, 1923; For. Ser. officer of class eight July 1, 1924; class seven Feb. 24, 1925; assigned to Marseille Apr. 21, 1928; class six July 24, 1930; to Regina Mar. 21, 1932; married.

Cameron, Alfred Dorrance.—b. Seattle, Wash., Nov. 3, 1893; high sch. grad.; Univ. of Wash. 1913-14; clk. in library 1906-12, in Insur. company 1912-17; U. S. Army 1916-22, capt.; app., after exam., v. c. of career of class three Feb. 26, 1923; assigned to Marseille Apr. 27, 1923; For. Ser. officer unclass. July 1, 1924; assigned to Paris Apr. 2, 1925; to Lille, temp., May 26, 1927; to Paris Sept. 20, 1927; class eight, cons., and assigned to Paris May 23, 1929; to Lourenco Marques Dec. 6, 1930; class seven Feb. 27, 1931; to Johannesburg July 31, 1933; married.

Cameron, Charles Raymond .- b. York, N. Y., June 25, 1875; Cornell, A. B. 1898; cml. employment 1899-1900; employed in Philippine Is. as teacher, supt. of sch., asst. to dept. governor of Mindanao-Sulu, dept. treas., and census asst. 1901-17; U. S. Army 1917-19, maj.; app., after exam., cons. of class seven Sept. 5, 1919; assigned to Tacna Oct. 19, 1919; to Pernambuco July 1, 1920; class six Nov. 23, 1921; class five Mar. 1, 1923; detailed to Hong Kong July 23, 1923; to Tokyo Dec. 28, 1923; class four June 5, 1924; For. Ser. officer of class five July 1, 1924; assigned to the Dept. Oct. 1, 1925; organized political section, Cml. office, Oct. 8, 1925; assigned to São Paulo Dec. 2, 1926; class four June 8, 1927; cons. gen. and assigned to São Paulo Jan. 22, 1930; class three July 24, 1930; chm. of del., Second Int. Coffee Conf., São Paulo, 1931; assigned to Habana Mar. 9, 1934; married.

Cannon, Cavendish Welles.—b. Salt Lake City, Utah, Feb. 1, 1895; Univ. of Utah, A. B. 1916, grad. work 1919; language study, Alliance Française, Paris; study in music composition, Paris and Vienna; hist. research, Vienna; head of depts. of Eng. and hist. in high sch. 1916-18; engineering and newspaper work 1915, 1916-17, 1919-20; U. S. Marine Corps, 1918-19, overseas service; app. to Diplo. Mission at Vienna Feb. 19, 1920; in Am. Leg. at Vienna Nov. 25, 1921; v. c. at Zürich June 22, 1927; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass, and v. c. of career May 17, 1928; assigned to Zürich May 29, 1928; v. c. at Sofia and For. Ser. officer to Am. Leg. Apr. 19, 1933; sec. in the Diplo. Ser. May 11, 1933; assigned as 3d sec. at Sofia in addition to duties as v. c. June 2, 1933; married.

Caplan, Sophie.—b. Baltimore, Md.; business high sch. grad.; attended business sch.; sec. 1918-20; clk., Bu. of the Census, 1920-21; app. clk. at \$900 in the Dept. of State Jau. 24, 1921; at \$1,000 Nov. 5, 1921; at \$1,080 Sept. 1, 1922; at \$1,140 Nov. 2, 1922; at \$1,200 Dec. 30, 1922, effective Jan. 1, 1923; at \$1,440 July 1, 1924; at \$1,500 Dec. 15, 1924; at \$1,560 Dec. 1, 1925; at \$1,620 Mar. 1, 1927; at \$1,740 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$1,800 July 1, 1928; at \$2,000 Dec. 1, 1929; at \$2,200 July 1, 1930.—BA.

Carey, Elsie Marie.—b. WashIngton, D. C.; attended public sch.; private tutors two yrs.; nurses' training sch. two yrs.; clk., War. Dept., 1918-20; app. clk. at \$1,000 in the Dept. of State Apr. 12, 1920; at \$1,260 July 1, 1924; at \$1,320 Mar. 1, 1927; at \$1,440 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$1,500 July 1, 1928; at \$1,620 July 1, 1930.—PD.

Carey, Reginald Shober.—b. Baltimore, Md., Dec. 21, 1906; Gilman Country Sch. grad.; Princeton, A. B. 1931; Univ. of Grenoble 1929; Oxford, summer 1929; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass., v. c. of career, and sec. in the Diplo. Ser. Dec. 17, 1931; assigned as v. c. at Berlin Jan. 20, 1932; to the For. Ser. Sch. Nov. 29, 1932; to Tampico Mar. 30, 1933; to Rio de Janeiro May 15, 1934; married.

Carleton, Algar E.—b. Williamstown, Vt., Aug. 11, 1872; Dartmouth, A. B. 1895; newspaper reporter 1895-99; app. cons. agt. at Almeria May 11, 1899; v. and dep. cons. gen. at Hong Kong Apr. 6, 1910; v. c. at Hong Kong Feb. 6, 1915; app., after exam., cons. of class eight Feb. 19, 1918; detailed to Batavia Sept. 14, 1918; assigned to Medan Feb. 18, 1919; class six Sept. 5, 1919; assigned to Amoy Sept. 8, 1919; class five Nov. 23, 1921; For. Ser. officer of class six July 1, 1924; assigned to Hong Kong Aug. 18, 1924; to Hull Dec. 1, 1925; class five June 8, 1927; assigned to San Salvador Jan. 10, 1929; class four July 24, 1930; to Riga Aug. 4, 1932; married.

Carlson, Harold.—b. Wilmette, Ill., Oct. 15, 1889; high sch. grad.; attended business sch. and coll. In Sweden, England, and Germany; in European offices of Am. companies in England, Germany, Sweden, Denmark, and Russia; clk., Committee on Public Information, Moscow, 1918; app. clk. in Am. Consulate at Stockholm Sept. 15, 1922; v. c. at Malmö, temp., July 30, 1929; at Stockholm Jan. 30, 1930; at Malmö, temp., July 21, 1931; at Stockholm Sept. 9, 1931; married.

Carlson, Harry Edwin.—b. Morris, Ill., Mar. 17, 1886; Lake Forest Coll., B. A. 1908; teacher in public sch. 1908–10, in high sch. 1910–13; master in

boys' sch. 1913; exchange teacher, Sachschhäuser Oberrealschule, Frankfort-on-the-Main, 1913-15; app. v. c. at Frankfort-on-the-Main Jan. 17, 1916; at Chrlstiania June 11, 1917; app. after exam., v. c. of career of class three Sept. 7, 1920, and assigned to Christiania; class two Nov. 17, 1921; assigned to Stavanger Jan. 7, 1922; to Christiania Feb. 20, 1922; class one May 26, 1922; cons. of class seven Mar. 1, 1923; assigned to Kovno Jan. 2, 1924; class six June 3, 1924; For. Ser. officer of class seven July 1, 1924; assigned to Tallinn July 3, 1926; class slx Sept. 29, 1927; class five Oct. 16, 1929; sec. in the Diplo. Ser. Nov. 12, 1929; 1st sec. Aug. 22, 1930; married.

Carlson, Herbert Wesley.—b. Lowell, Mass., May 9, 1895; high sch. and business sch. grad.; clk. 1914–17; U. S. Army 1918–19; app. v. c. at Göteborg Mar. 11, 1920; at Sault Ste. Marle Apr. 12, 1924; at Windsor Mar. 20, 1926; resigned June 15, 1928; app. v. c. at Barranquilla July 25, 1929; at Monterrey July 11, 1933; married.

Carlson, Ruth Edith.—b. Washington, D. C.; normal sch. grad.; George Washington Univ. 1927-; clk. 1928-31; app. clk., temp., at \$1,620 in the Dept. of State Mar. 23, 1931; permanently, at \$1,440 Oct. 3, 1931.—DCR.

Carlson, Spencer August (Lt., jg.)—b. Minneapolis, Minn., Dec. 2, 1903; entered U. S. Navy June 14, 1922; assigned as language officer at Tokyo June 15, 1932.

Carr, Robert McDill.—b. Hubbell, Nebr., July 1, 1904; Stanford, A.B. 1926; Univ. of Calif., Ph.D. 1933; editorial work 1926-28; teaching asst., Univ. of Calif., 1928-33; asst. prof. of economics, St. Mary's Coll., 1934; app. economic analyst, temp., at \$3,800 in the Dept. of State July 2, 1934; married.—A-S/T.

Carr, Wilbur John .- b. near Hillsboro, Ohio, Oct. 31, 1870; attended cml. coll. of Ky. Univ.; Georgetown, LL.B. 1894; Columbian Coll. (now George Washington Univ.), LL. M. 1899; mem. of bar of D. C.; app. clk. at \$1,000 in the Dept. of State June 1, 1892; at \$1,200 Aug. 8, 1893; confidential clk. to the sec. and asst. secs. of state; at \$1,400 May 11, 1894; at \$1,600 Mar. 2, 1896; at \$1,800 Apr. 1, 1899; chief, Cons. Bu., at \$2,100 Feb. 1, 1902; mem. of Bd. of Examiners for the Cons. Ser.; mem. of Bd. to formulate a plan for the examination of candidates for the Cons. Ser. Dec. 6, 1905; mem. of Committee on Business Methods in the Dept. Jan. 28, 1907; chief clk. at \$3,000 May 8, 1907; chm. of Dept. of State Advisory Committee on Printing and Publication May 8, 1907; representative on U.S. Bd. of the Tercentennial Exposition, Jamestown, 1907; charged with the direction of the Cons. Ser. Aug. 15, 1907; representative, Int. Cong. on Tuberculosis, Washington, 1908, and at Alaska-Yukon-Pacific Exposition, Seattle, 1909; app. dir. of the Cons. Ser. at \$4,500 Nov. 30, 1909; mem. of committee on inquiry ordered by the Pres. into the economy and efficiency of Executive depts. of the Govt. 1910; mem. of Bd. of Efficiency, Apr. 19, 1916-Mar. 24, 1921; Nat. Research Council, v. chm., Division of For. Relations, representative of the Dept., Division of Federal Relations, 1920; budget officer June 21, 1921; mem. of For. Ser. Personnel Bd., of Bd. of Examiners for the For. Ser., and of For. Ser. Sch. Bd. June 7, 1924; app. asst. see. of state July 1, 1924, and Mar. 6, 1933; mem. of Permanent Commn. of Int. Assn. of Road Cong. since 1927; chm., Bd. of For. Ser. Personnel, Bd. of Examiners for the For. Ser., and For. Ser. Sch. Bd. Feb. 25, 1928; chm., Bd. of Review for Efficiency Ratings, 1930-33; chm., Bd. of Appeals and Review, Nov. 6, 1933-; married.—A-C.

Carrigan, John Willard.—b. San Francisco, Calif., Sept. 27, 1908; attended sch. in England and Switzerland; Phillips Exeter grad.; Harvard, A. B. 1931; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass., v. c. of career, and sec. in the Diplo. Ser. Feb. 19, 1932; assigned to the Dept., temp., Feb. 20, 1932; to the For. Ser. Sch. Apr. 3, 1933; as v. c. at Vigo June 13, 1933; married.

Carroll, Alma Anson (Mrs.)—b. Louisville, Ky.; high sch. and business sch. grad.; George Washington Univ. one half yr.; stenog. 1918-21, in Interstate Com. Commn. 1922-27; app. clk., temp., at \$1,440 in the Dept. of State Nov. 5, 1928; permanently Dec. 15, 1928; at \$1,620 Oct. 1, 1929; at \$1,680 July 1, 1930.—PD.

Carroll, William Nicholas.—b. Clinton, N. C., Nov. 28, 1884; attended public sch.; clk. 1906, in the Dept. of Interior 1907-18; app. v. c. at London Aug. 20, 1918; at Dundee June 21, 1923; at London July 18, 1923; at Stoke-on-Trent Feb. 29, 1924; at London May 1, 1924; at Birmingham Jan. 9, 1931.

Carter, Clarence E. .--b. Jacksonville, Ill., Feb. 6, 1881; Whipple Acad. grad.; Illinois Coll., A. B. 1905; Univ. of Wis., A. M. 1906; Univ. of Ill., Ph. D. 1908; prof. of hist., Illinois Coll., 1908-10, Miami Univ., 1910-31, Univ. of Tex., 1923; lecturer in hist., summer sessions, Ohio State Univ., 1912, 1914, 1926, 1930, Columbia, 1913, Univ. of Ill., 1915, Univ. of Tex., 1922, and Univ. of Iowa, 1925; app. editor of territorial papers at \$5,600 in the Dept. of State Aug. 15, 1931; married.--RP.

Carter, James Garneth.—b. Brunswick, Ga., Dec. 15, 1877; attended public sch.; merchant tailor. letter carrier, and mgr. of newspaper nine yrs.; mem. of local Civil Ser. Examining Bd. two yrs.; notary public one yr.; app., after exam., cons. at Sivas Sept. 6, 1906 (canceled); app. cons. at Tamatave Nov. 1, 1906; class eight by act approved Feb. 5, 1915; assigned to Tananarive July 8, 1916; class six June 4, 1920; For. Ser. officer of class seven July 1, 1924; assigned to the Dept. Mar. 7, 1927; to Calais Mar. 28, 1927; class six June 30, 1927; class five July 24, 1930; married.

Carter, Lillie R. (Mrs.)-b. Scott County, Ill.: attended high sch.; private tutors; research asst. 1920-30; app. clk. at \$1,440 in the Dept. of State Sept. 1, 1931.-RP.

Carter, Maceo.-b. Atlanta, Ga., Sept. 24, 1909; employed in Office of Public Bldgs. and Parks $1929{-}30\,;$ app. laborer in the Dept. of State Dec. 16, $1930{.}{-\!\!-\!}{\rm SU}{.}$

Carter, Marion Eugenia.—b. Ryan, Va.; high sch. and business sch. grad.; George Washington Univ. 1928-29; typist and stenog. 1928; app. clk. at \$1,320 in the Dept. of State June 14, 1928; at \$1,440 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$1,620 Feb. 1, 1929; at \$1,740 July 1, 1930; at \$1,800 Jan. 19, 1931; stenog., Int. Tech. Consulting Committee on Radio Communications, Copenhagen, 1931.—TD.

Carter, Robert H.—b. Washington, D. C., Nov. 19, 1893; messenger, War Dept., 1918-30; app. messenger in the Dept. of State Oct. 1, 1930.—DCR.

Carter, Wallace W.—b. Washington, D. C., Nov. 15, 1909; messenger, Dept. of Agric., 1927-30; app. messenger in the Dept. of State May 16, 1930.—LE.

Castleman, Reginald Saxon.—b. Riverside, Calif., Dec. 25, 1891; Univ. of Chicago, Ph. B. 1914, grad. work 1914-16; rodman, summers of 1909 and 1912; attached to the office of the naval att. at Madrid 1917-19; app. v. c. at Madrid Apr. 14, 1919; app., after exam., v. c. of career of class three Oct. 1, 1920, and assigned to Madrid; to Lisbon Dec. 29, 1920; class two Nov. 17, 1921; assigned to Horta Apr. 3, 1922; class one May 26, 1922; cons. of class seven Mar. 1, 1923; assigned to Horta Mar. 28, 1923; For. Ser. officer of class eight July 1, 1924; assigned to London Apr. 17, 1926; class seven Aug. 24, 1927; assigned to Glasgow Mar. 30, 1929; class ix July 24, 1930; to Porto Alegre Oct. 27, 1931; married.

Cate, Julian Small.—b. Lebanon, Me., Jan. 5, 1900; high sch. grad.; Georgetown Sch. of For. Ser. 1924-26; S. A. T. C. 1918; medical student, Mass. Gen. Hospital, 1921-24; clk. in Navy Dept. 1924-25, 1927-30, in Dept. of State 1925-26; reapp. clk. at \$1,620 in the Dept. of State Sept. 16, 1930; married.—DCR.

Causo y Gonzalez, Federico Ernesto.—b. Isabela de Sagua, Cuba, July 5, 1893; Cuban citizen; attended high sch. and business sch.; clk. and mgr. in cml. concern 1908-32; app. acting cons. agt. at Caibarien July 1, 1933; cons. agt. Sept. 14, 1933; married.

Cavanaugh, Robert Joseph.—b. Rock Island, Ill., June 7, 1905; Georgetown Sch. of For. Ser., B. F. S. 1928; elk. 1927-29; app. elk. in Am. Consulate at Bluefields Jan. 25, 1929; at Windsor Aug. 30, 1929; v. c. at Charlottetown July 21, 1931; at Montreal May 22, 1933; married.

Cavenaugh, William Ferguson.—b. Fort Robinson, Nebr., June 25, 1905; Kans. State Coll., Drake Univ., and Pa. Acad. of Fine Arts; clk. Cavite Naval Yard, Philippine Is., 1925; teacher of French, Univ. of Manila, and teacher of Eng., Nat. Univ., Manila, summer 1925; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass. and v. c. of career Nov. 12, 1929; assigned to Mexico City, temp., Nov. 27, 1929; to the For. Ser. Sch. July 16, 1930; to Callao-Lima Nov. 8, 1930; to Gibraltar Dec. 7, 1932; sec. in the Diplo. Ser. June 13, 1933; married. Chalfant, Gladys.—b. Fern, Ind.; attended high sch.; business sch. grad.; stenog. and sec. 1903-21, in War Dept. Aug.-Dec. 1918; app. clk, at \$1,000 in the Dept. of State Dec. 1, 1921; at \$1,140 Sept. 1, 1922; at \$1,200 Oct. 16, 1922; at \$1,500 July 1, 1924; at \$1,560 Mar. 1. 1925; at \$1,620 Mar. 1, 1927; at \$1,740 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$1,800 July 1, 1928; at \$1,920 July 1, 1930.—NE.

Chamberlain, Culver Bryant.—b. Princeton, Ind., July 12, 1900; high sch. grad.; Emerson Inst.; R. O. T. C. 1918–19; clk. 1919–20; app., after exam., student interpreter in China Aug. 27, 1920; v. c. at Canton Aug. 29, 1923; also interpreter Sept. 28, 1923; For. Ser. officer unclass. July 1, 1924; assigned to Tientsin Mar. 5, 1925; to Swatow July 27, 1925; to Shanghai Nov. 7, 1927; to Yunnanfu Mar. 7, 1928; class eight, cons., and assigned to Yunnanfu Oct. 16, 1923; to Canton June 2, 1930; class seven July 1, 1931; to Harbin Oct. 28, 1931; to Hankow Oct. 21, 1933.

Chamberlin, George Ellsworth.—b. Woodstock, Conn., Feb. 17, 1872; high sch. and business sch. grad.; stenog., accountant, owner of retail business, salesman; clk. in Am. Consulate at Singapore; app. v. and dep. cons. gen. at Singapore Jan. 2, 1906; app., after exam., cons. at Swatow Jan. 10, 1910; at Cork June 24, 1910; at Georgetown Apr. 24, 1914; class six by act approved Feb. 5, 1915; class five Sept. 14, 1917; class four Sept. 5, 1915; assigned to Glasgow Sept. 8, 1919; class three June 4, 1920; cons. gen. of class four June 5, 1924; For. Ser. officer of class three July 1, 1924; assigned to Glasgow June 6, 1928; class two July 24, 1930; to Halifax Nov. 24, 1931; married.

Channon, Kenneth F.—b. Vineland, N. J., July 27, 1895; attended high sch. and business sch.; clk. 1012-15, 1016-17; stenog. 1915-16; clk., Dept. of State, 1017; U. S. Army 1917-24, overseas service; cml. enterprises 1924-30; app. clk. at \$1,440 in the Dept. of State July 16, 1930; at \$1,620 Dec. 23, 1930; married.—DCR.

Chapin, Selden.—b. Erie, Pa., Sept. 19, 1899; Westminster Sch.; St. Paul's Sch.; U. S. N. A., grad. 1919; U. S. Navy 1919-25, lt. (jg); app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass. Mar. 20, 1925; also v. c. of career and assigned to Hankow Sept. 2, 1925; app. sec. in the Diplo. Ser. Jan. 6, 1927; assigned as 3d sec. at Peking Jan. 25, 1927; at Rome June 27, 1929; class eight and cons. Dec. 19, 1929; assigned as 3d sec. at Quito Nov. 3, 1932; married.

Chapin, Vinton.—b. Chatenay, Seine, France, of Am. parents, Apr. 17, 1900; St. Mark's Sch.; Harvard, A. B. 1923; U. S. Marine Corps 1918–19; with investment bankers 1923–26; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass. and v. c. of career July 5, 1927; assigned to the For. Ser. Scn. Sept. 29, 1927; to Prague Mar. 5, 1929; sec. of Am. del., Int. Conf. on Safety of Life at Sca, London, 1929; asst. sec., London Naval Conf., 1930; to the Dept. Nov. 1, 1930; sec. in the Diplo. Ser. May 16, 1931; assigned as For. Ser. officer at Paris, temp., June 27, 1931; sec. of del. to Int. Tech. Consulting Committee on Radio Communications, Copenhagen, 1931; asst. to the under sec. of state Oct. 19, 1931; resigned as For. Ser. officer Apr. 15, 1932; app. asst. to the under sec. of state at \$4,600 Apr. 16, 1932; married.—U.

Chapman, John Holbrook.—b. Irvington, N. J., Dec. 15. 1891; attended high sch. and business sch.; George Washington Univ. four yrs.; clk., Dept. of Agric., 1909–17; U. S. Army 1917–19; sec., Commn. to Baltic Provinces and Finland from Am. Commr. at Riga 1919–22; clk. in Am. Leg. at Riga 1922–24; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass. and sec. in the Diplo. Ser. July 18, 1924; assigned to London Sept. 27, 1924; to Brussels May 25, 1925; app. v. c. of career and assigned to Cologne Aug. 21, 1925; to Nagoya Jan. 12, 1931; class eight, cons., and assigned to Nagoya Feb. 4, 1931; to Tokyo Oct. 7, 1933; married.

Chapman, William Edgar .- b. Mount Pisgah, Ark., Feb. 1, 1877; attended sch, in U. S. and Philippine Is.; business sch. grad.; Washington Coll. of Law, LL. B. 1914; National Univ., LL. M. 1915; mem. of bars of D. C. and Okla.; newspaper reporter 1899: U. S. Volunteers 1899-1901: teacher and supt. of sch., Philippine Is., 1901-8; railway agt., Philippine Is., Feb.-Aug. 1908; editor and mgr. of a newspaper, Philippine Is., 1908-9; clk., War Dept., 1909-10; asst. supt., State, War, Navy Bldg., 1910-16; app., after exam., cons. of class eight July 12, 1916, and assigned to Mazatlán; on detail in the Dept. July-Dec. 1916; detailed to Nogales Dec. 30, 1916; to Guaymas Apr. 1917; to Mazatlan May 29, 1917; class six Sept. 5, 1919; For, Ser, officer of class seven July 1, 1924; assigned to Sault Ste. Marie June 20, 1925; to Torreon Oct. 13, 1926; class six Oct. 20, 1926; assigned to Puerto Mexico Feb. 21, 1927; to Monterrey Aug. 17, 1927; to Cali Mar. 8, 1928; class five Dec. 19, 1929; assigned to North Bay Sept. 15, 1930; to Bilbao May 10, 1932; married.

Charles, Philipp Lambert.—b. Manila, P. I., Jan. 17, 1909; Otterbein Coll., A. B. 1929; Ohio State Univ. 1929–30; George Washington, LL. B. 1933; app. clk. at \$1.440 in the Dept. of State Aug. 18, 1930; at \$1.020 Feb. 20, 1931; married.—DCR.

Chase, Augustus Sabin.—b. Waterbury, Conn., Mar. 16, 1897; St. Mark's Sch.; Yale, B. A. 1920; Cornell Law Sch., summer 1925; U. S. Army 1917-19; 2d lt., O. R. C.; teacher. Yale-in-China, Changsha, 1920-21; editorial work 1922; in brass factories 1922-24; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass. Sept. 11, 1925; v. c. of career May 20, 1926; assigned as language officer at Peking June 1, 1926; to the Dept., temp., May 26, 1928; to Berlin June 27, 1928; to Breslau, temp., July 10, 1929; to Tsingtao Apr. 16, 1930; class eight, cons., and assigned to Tsingtao July 24, 1930; to Mukden Jan. 23, 1932; married.

Chase, Emily Tevis.—b. Fort Sam Houston, Tex.; attended private sch.; Low and Heyward Sch. grad.; N. Y. Sch. of Social Work; George Washington Univ. 1918-19, 1928-29; Inst. of Politics, Williams Coll., Williamstown, Mass., 1923; clk., War Dept., three months; clk. and case corr., Am. Red Cross, 1918-21; insur. examiner, Veterans' Bu., Jan.-Nov. 1922; app. clk. at \$1,200 in the Dept. of State Nov. 1, 1922; at \$1,500 July 1, 1924; at \$1,620 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$1,680 July 1, 1928; at \$2,000 Nov. 1, 1928; at \$2,300 Sept. 1, 1931.-TD.

Chase. Warren Montgomery.—b. Chicago, Ill., Jan. 19, 1905; Amherst, A. B. 1925; grad. work, Univ. of Chicago, 1925–26; Univ. of Paris 1926–27; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass. and v. c. of career Jan. 29, 1929; assigned to the For. Ser. Sch. Feb. 2, 1929; to Amsterdam Sept. 13, 1929; married.

Cheever, Elsie Blanchard.—b. Andover, Mass.; high sch. grad.; teacher in public and private sch. 1913-17; clk., Treas. Dept., 1918-20; Army field clk. 1920; clk., Dept. of Agric., 1920-23; app. clk. at \$1,200 in the Dept. of State Nov. 26, 1923; at \$1,440July 1, 1924; at \$1,500 July 1, 1925; at \$1,680 Feb. 16, 1926; at \$1,860 Nov. 1, 1927; at \$2,000 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$2,100 July 1, 1928; at \$2,300July 1, 1930.—A-C/C.

Cherp, Philip Florian.—b. lvanhoe, Minn., May 5, 1908; Georgetown Sch. of For. Ser., B. F. S. 1933; Govt. Printing Office 1927-28; app. clk. at \$1,440 in the Dept. of State Aug. 22, 1928; at \$1,620 Oct. 1, 1929; at \$1,680 July 1, 1930; at \$1,800 Feb. 24, 1932; clk., Int. Monetary and Economic Conf., Londou, 1933; app. v. c. at Moscow Feb. 12, 1934.

Child, James Dwight.—b. Bath, N. H., May 12, 1875; New Hampton Literary Inst.; Dartmouth, A. B. 1899; hotel steward 1894–1910; restaurant business 1910–14; contracting and builders' supply business 1914–17; U. S. Army 1917–19, overseas service; clk. in Am. Consulate at Bordeaux 1919; app. v. c. at Bordeaux Aug. 5, 1919; at Strasbourg Jan. 24, 1929.

Childs, James Rives .- b. Lynchburg, Va., Feb. 6, 1893; Va. Mil. Inst. 1909-11; Randolph-Macon Coll., A. B. 1912; Harvard, A. M. 1915; principal of high sch. 1912-13; Am. Ambulance Ser. in France 1915; private tutor 1915-16; asst. master 1916-17; U. S. Army 1917-19, 1st lt., overseas service; detailed to Am. Commn. to Negotiate Peace, Paris, 1919; to Am. Relief Admin. in Serbia and Greece Apr. 1919; newspaper corr. 1919-21; asst. and dist. supervisor, Am. Relief Admin. in Russia, 1921-23; app., after exam., cons. of class seven Oct. 6, 1923; detailed to Jerusalem Nov. 20, 1923; For. Ser. officer of class eight July 1, 1924; assigned to Bucharest May 4, 1925; class seven May 23, 1929; sec. in the Diplo. Ser. Feb. 17, 1930; assigned as cons. and 2d sec. at Cairo Oct. 1, 1930; relieved of duties as cons. at Cairo Jan. 3, 1931; class six July 1, 1931; 2d sec. at Teheran Aug. 26, 1933; married.

Childs, Prescott.—b. Holyoke, Mass., Dec. 2, 1898; Hotchkiss Sch.; Yale, B. A. 1922; U. S. Army 1918– 19, overseas service; reconstruction work in France, summer 1920; instructor in private sch. 1922–23; archæological expeditions in the Near East 1923– 24; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass. and v. c. of career Oct. 16, 1924; assigned to Canton Nov. 8, 1924; to Lisbon Oct. 26, 1927; to Funchal, temp., Apr. 21, 1928; to Lisbon July 5, 1928; to St. Michael's Dec. 10, 1928; to Montevideo Sept. 25, 1929; to Rivière du Loup, temp., Nov. 2, 1929; class eight, cons., and assigned to Montevideo May 9, 1930; to Nice May 22, 1931; also to Monaco Sept. 18, 1931; to Berlin June 20, 1934; married.

Chiperfield, Claude Burnett.—b. Canton, Ill., Oct. 29, 1904; Phillips Exeter; Knox Coll. 1923-25; Syracuse Univ. 1925-26; Univ. of Ill. 1926-27; clk., trust company, 1926, 1927; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass. and v. c. of career Nov. 12, 1929; assigned to Windsor, temp., Nov. 27, 1929; to the For. Ser. Sch. Apr. 19, 1930; to Sydney, N. S. W., July 22, 1930; to Venice May 5, 1932; married.

Chipman, Norris Bowie.—b. Washington, D. C., June 28, 1901; Dartmouth, A. B. 1927; rodman, U. S. Geological Survey, summer 1917; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass. and v. c. of career Oct. 24, 1928; assigned to the For. Ser. Sch. Nov. 5, 1928; to Tallinn July 10, 1929 (canceled); to Riga Oct. 7, 1929; as language officer to the consulate general at Paris July 30, 1930; also v. c. at Paris May 1, 1931; sec. in the Diplo. Ser. June 19, 1933; assigned as For. Ser. officer to the leg. at Riga June 21, 1933; 3d sec. at Riga July 15, 1933; assigned to the Dept. Mar. 7, 1934.—EE.

Christenson, Ethel Grace.—b. Winamac, Ind.; attended high sch. and business sch.; George Washington Univ.; elk., Govt. Printing Office, 1908–11; app. elk. at 900 in the Dept. of State Feb. 28, 1911; at 1,000 Jan. 21, 1913; at 1,200 Aug. 5, 1914; at 1,400 June 22, 1916, effective July 1; at 1,600 Dec. 31, 1919, effective Jan. 1, 1920; at 1,800 Feb. 1, 1924; at 2,100 July 1, 1924; detailed as clk., Int. Narcotics Conf., Geneva, 1924, and as asst. to sec., Am. del., Special Conf. on Chinese Customs Tariff, Peking, 1925–26; at 2,200 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at 2,300 July 1, 1928; at 2,400 July 1, 1930; at 2,500 July 3, 1930 (Brookhart Act).—FE.

Christlani, Courtland Emil.—b. Indianapolis, Ind., May 6, 1891; business high sch. grad.; language study under private tutors; stenog. 1914-17, in War Dept. 1917; asst. elk., House Rules Committee, and sec. to mem. of Cong. 1918; app. elk. in Am. Consulate General at Mexico City Oct. 1918; v. c. at Barcelona Oct. 1, 1919; at Cardiff Aug. 31, 1921; at Sheffield Feb. 29, 1928; at Ghent May 16, 1929; at Izmir Aug. 20, 1932; at Curaçao July 17, 1933; married.

Christie, Emerson Brewer.—b. Marash, Turkey, of Am. parents, Mar. 17, 1878; Phillips Andover grad.; Yale, B. A. 1901; Harvard Grad. Sch. 1910; American Univ., Master of Political Science, 1928; teacher in Philippine Is. 1901-4; asst., Bu. of Ethnological Survey, Philippine Is., 1904-7; Division of Ethnology, Philippine Is., asst. chief, 1907-15, act. chief, 1912-13; instructor in Spanish, Univ. of Mich., 1915-16; prof. of French, Temple Univ., 1916-17; app. special asst. at \$2,000 In the Dept. of State Dec. 10, 1918; at \$1,800 July 1, 1919; at \$2,160 Feb. 1, 1920; drafting officer at \$2,500 June 17, 1921, effective July 1; at \$2,800 July 1, 1924; at \$2,900 Nov. 1, 1927; chief, Translating Eu., Apr. 16, 1928; at \$3,000 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); economic adviser to Am. Commr., Commun. of Inquiry and Conciliation, Bollvia and Paraguay, Washington, 1929; at \$3,200 July 1, 1930; at \$3,300 July 3, 1930 (Brookhart Act); married.—TR.

Christy, Donald F.—b. Norwood, Ohio, July 8, 1901; Univ. of Cincinnati; Ohio State Univ., B.S. 1924, M.S. 1930; field agt., Ohio Dept. of Agric. and U.S. Dept. of Agric., 1925-26; jr. agric. statistician 1926-27, crop and livestock estimator 1927-31, and agric. statistician 1931, U.S. Dept. of Agric.; asst. agric. commr., U.S. Dept. of Agric., Berlin, Germany, 1931-33; assigned as asst. agric. att. at Berlin Sept. 15, 1033; married.

Claffey, John F.—b. Waterbury, Conn., Nov. 12, 1881; attended bushness sch.; private tutors; Villanova Coll., B. S.; Conn. Nat. Guards 1900-1903; timekeeper 1898-1914; app. v. and dep. cons. at Dublin June 25, 1914; v. c. at Dublin by act approved Feb. 5, 1915; at London Jan. 27, 1921; at Leeds, temp., Sept. 1, 1922; at London Dec. 22, 1922; at Hull Aug. 1, 1927 (canceled); at Bristol Oct. 17, 1933.

Claiborne, Henri deB. (Lt., jg.)-b. New Orleans, La., Aug. 11, 1903; U.S.N.A., grad. 1926; assigned as language officer at Tokyo June 27, 1931.

Clare, Walter B.—b. Brooklyn, N. Y., July 23, 1910; high sch. and business sch. grad.; St. John's Coll. 1928-; clk., bookkeeper, and typist 1926-30; app. clk. at \$1,200 In the N. Y. Despatch Agency of the Dept. of State Apr. 25, 1930.

Clark, Lewis.—b. Montgomery, Ala., Nov. 16, 1895; Marion Inst., Marion, Ala., B. S. 1914; Univ. of Va. 1914-16; surveyor for sugar plantation in Cuba 1917; U. S. Navy 1917-19; clk. and mgr. for cotton merchants 1919-22; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass. Scpt. 11, 1925; v. c. of career May 20, 1926; assigned as language officer at Peking June 1, 1926; v. c. at Kalgan, temp., Dec. 2, 1926; language officer at Peiping Oct. 1, 1927; v. c. at Tsinan, temp., May 11, 1929; at Hankow Mar. 6, 1930; class eight. cons., and assigned to Hankow May 9, 1930; as For. Ser. officer to the Am. Leg. at Peiping July 5, 1932; sec. in the Diplo. Ser. July 16, 1932; married.

Clark, Reed Paige.—b. Londonderry, N. H., Aug. 19, 1878; Pinkerton Acad. grad.; Columbian Coll. (now George Washington Univ.), A. B. 1898, A. M. and LL. B. 1901; mem. of bar of N. H.; tutor and instructor in languages in seminary and univ. 1898-1901; committee clk., U. S. Senate, 1901-11; gen. receiver of customs and financial adviser to Liberia 1911-16; ex. sec., N. H. Fuel Admin., 1917; agt. of cocoa house in Africa 1918-19; app., after exam., cons. of class seven Sept. 5, 1919; assigned to Loanda, Angola, Oct. 28, 1919; class six Nov. 23, 1921; assigned to Port Elizabeth Jan. 2, 1924; For. Ser. offlcer of class seven July 1, 1924; class six Feb. 24, 1925; assigned to Mexico City Apr. 10, 1925; sec. in the Diplo. Ser. and assigned as 2d sec. at Monrovia Feb. 4, 1926; as cons. at Mexico City Dec. 27, 1926; at Guadalajara Sept. 10, 1928; at Santo Domingo Jan. 10, 1929; class five May 23, 1929; assigned to Belgrade Dec. 1, 1930; class four July 1, 1931; married.

Clark, Rose.—b. Dallas City, Ill.; high sch. and business sch. grad.; typist-clk., Census Bu., 1930; app. clk. at \$1,260 in the Dept. of State May 16, 1930; at \$1,440 Nov. 18, 1930; at \$1,620 Mar. 24, 1932.—DCR.

Clark, Thomas Beeman.—b. Reagan, Tex., Feb. 8, 1874; Univ. of Tex., B. S. 1906; railway mail ser. 1900–1903; stenog. 1906–11; sec. to mem. of Cong. 1911–18; dep. collector of internal revenue 1918; app. clk. in Am. Leg. at Peking Nov. 1918; in Am. Consulate General at Shanghai Mar. 1919; v. c. at Shanghai Oct. 28, 1926.

Clarke, James Brent.—b. Washington, D. C., Sept. 30, 1870; attended high sch.; in post office 1888– 1911; supt. of mails 1911–20; with business firms 1920–24; app. clk. at \$1,140 in the Dept. of State Oct. 27, 1924; at \$1,680 May 16, 1925; at \$1,860 Jan. 16, 1926; chief of mail section Mar. 22, 1926; at \$2,100 Apr. 1, 1927; at \$2,300 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$2,400 July 1, 1928; at \$2,600 July 1, 1930; married.—MA.

Clarke, M. Augusta.—b. Washington, D. C.; high sch. grad.; attended business sch. and Wilson Normal night sch.; American Univ. 1927-28; Univ. of Chicago Ext. two yrs.; private tutors; clk. in Dept. of Com. two yrs., for financial agency 1913-15, in Library of Cong. 1915-17, and in War Dept. 1917-20; editorial asst., Dept. of Labor, 1920-27; app. editorial asst. at \$1,860 in the Dept. of State Mar. 14, 1927; at \$2,000 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$2,200 July 1, 1930.—RP.

Clarke, Marie S. (Mrs.)-b. Washington, D. C.; attended public sch. and business sch.; telephone operator 1908-10, with Emergency Fleet Corp. 1918, with U. S. Shipping Bd. 1918-20; app. telephone switchboard operator at \$720 in the Dept. of State Mar. 3, 1921; at \$1,140 July 1, 1924; at \$1,200 Mar. 1, 1925; at \$1,260 Dec. 1, 1925; at \$1,320 Mar. 1, 1927; at \$1,380 Nov. 1, 1927; at \$1,440 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$1,500 July 1, 1930; at \$1,560 July 3, 1930 (Brookhart Act).--DCR.

Clarke, Robert John.—b. Somersetshire, England, Aug. 28, 1877; naturalized; attended sch. in England; corr. courses; farming in England and U. S. 1888-96; construction work 1896-1900; U. S. Army 1900-1903; Quartermaster's Dept. 1903-12; sec. and treas. of gold-mining company 1912-13; stenog., Bu. of Posts, Manila, P. I., 1913; accounting 1913-15; office mgr. in corr. sch. 1915-17; clk. in Am. Leg. at Peking Jan. 1917; in Am. Consulate General at Shanghai June 1917; v. c. at Shanghai Apr. 8, 1918; resigned Aug. 31, 1920; salesman $1920{-}28\,;$ app. v. c. at Victoria, Brazil, June 14, 1928; married.

Clarkson, Anna Louise.—b. Washington, D. C.; attended public schs. and business sch.; private tutors; clk., War Dept., 1913–15, Treas. Dept., 1917–19, State Dept. 1919–24; secretary 1924–33; app. admin. asst. at \$2,600 in the Dept. of State Apr. 26, 1933; private sec. to asst. sec. of state Mar. 16, 1934.— A-W.

Clattenburg, Albert Edwin, Jr.-b. Philadelphia, Pa., Sept. 16, 1906; Univ. of Pa., A. B. 1928; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass. and v. c. of career Mar. 26, 1929; assigned to the For. Ser. Sch. July 1, 1929; to Athens Sept. 13, 1929; to Patras, temp., Mar. 16, 1931; to Athens May 16, 1931; married.

Clayton, Florence M. (Mrs.)—b. Washington, D. C.; high sch. grad.; app. clk. at \$900, temp., in the Dept. of State Aug. 7, 1914; permanently at \$1,200, under Ex. order, June 22, 1916, effective July 1; at \$1,400 Aug. 1, 1918; at \$1,600 Oct. 18, 1921; resigned Oct. 5, 1923; reapp. clk. at \$1,200 Dec. 5, 1923; at \$1,440 July 1, 1924; at \$1,500 Mar. 1, 1927; at \$1,620 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$1,740 July 1, 1930; at \$1,800 May 1, 1934.—DCR.

†Cleveland, Theodore Sedgwick.—b. Cleveland, Ohio, Sept. 17, 1907; high sch. grad.; Yale 1925–26; sec., clk., and translator 1927–28; employed on cattle and banana ranches one yr.; app. clk. in Am. Consulate at Guadalajara Mar. 12, 1929; resigned Nov. 10, 1929; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass., v. c. of career, and sec. in the Diplo. Ser. Dec. 16, 1930; assigned to the For. Ser. Sch. Dec. 17, 1930; as v. c. at Buenos Aires Feb. 24, 1931; resigned June 15, 1934.

Clubb, Edmund Oliver.--b. South Park, Minn., Feb. 16, 1901; attended engineering sch.; Univ. of Wash. 1922-23; Univ. of Minn., A. B. 1927, grad. work 1927; George Washington Univ. 1928; U. S. Army 1918-19; farming 1920-21; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass. and v. c. of career May 17, 1928; assigned to the For. Ser. Sch. May 24, 1928; as language officer at Peiping Jan. 18, 1929; as v. c. at Hankow Mur. 12, 1931; married.

Clum, Harold Dunstan.—b. Saugerties, N. Y., June 1, 1879; St. Stephen's Coll., A. B. 1901; Columbia, A. M. 1903; teacher in high sch. 1901-2, 1904-9; app. v. and dep. cons. gen. at San Salvador Apr. 7, 1909; app., after exam., cons. at Ceiba Mar. 13, 1912; at Corinto Nov. 24, 1913; cons. of class seven by act approved Feb. 5, 1915; assigned to Calgary Sept. 17, 1915; class six Sept. 14, 1917; assigned to Santiago de Cuba Aug. 31, 1918; class five Sept. 5, 1919; class four June 4, 1920; assigned to Konigsberg Apr. 28, 1923; For. Ser. officer of class five July 1, 1924; assigned to Guayaquil June 30, 1926; class four May 23, 1929; cons. gen. and assigned to Guayaquil Oct. 9, 1930; to Bucharest Jan. 13, 1933; marřied.

Cobb, Frances Ellen.-b. Coldwater, Mich.; high sch. grad.; attended business sch.; app. clk. at \$1,440

in the Dept. of State Apr. 25, 1931; at \$1,620 Nov. 3, 1931.—SS.

Cobb. George Calhoun.—b. Americus, Ga., Aug. 31, 1882; high sch. grad.; New York Art Sch. 1903-7; clk. 1901-2; magazine illustrator 1908-15; secretary 1916-17; field clk. 1918; U. S. Army Oct.-Nov. 1918; secretary, Y. M. C. A., 1918-19; app. v. c. at St. Michael's Oct. 28, 1919; at Jerusalem July 13, 1921; at Alexandria Oct. 23, 1923; at Nancy Mar. 11, 1925; at Boulogne-sur-Mer Dec. 29, 1925; at Havre Mar. 11, 1926; at Dakar Apr. 18, 1927; at St. John's, N. F., May 29, 1930.

Cobbe, Jerome F.—b. Utica, N. Y., July 23, 1908; high sch. grad.; George Washington Univ. 1928-32, Law Sch. 1932-; advertising 1926; library asst., Dept. of Agric., 1930-31; app. clk. at \$1,260 in the Dept. of State Dec. 1, 1931; at \$1,440 Jan. 22, 1934.—RP.

Cobbs, Mary L.—b. Damascus, Ohio; Mt. Union Coll., A. B. 1928; teacher in public sch. 1928-30; app. clk. at \$1,260 in the Dept. of State Oct. 6, 1930; at \$1,440 Oct. 24, 1931.—DCR.

Cochran, H. Merle .- b. Crawfordsville, Ind., July 6, 1892; Wabash Coll. 1909-10; Univ. of Ariz., B. S. 1913, M. S. 1914; app. v. and dep. cons. at Mannheim June 19, 1914; at Nogales Dec. 23, 1914; v. c. at Nogales by act approved Feb. 5, 1915; detailed to Guatemala 1916; resigned Aug. 1916; ranching in Mexico 1916-18; app. clk. in Am. Leg. at Berne Feb. 12, 1918; v. c. at Lugano Oct. 7, 1918; at Kingston, Jamaica, Apr. 8, 1919; app., after exam., v. c. of career of class three Sept. 27, 1919; assigned to Kingston, Jamaica, Oct. 22, 1919; detailed to Port au Prince Feb. 4, 1920; to Montreal Mar. 9, 1920; class two May 24, 1920; class one Nov. 17, 1921; cons. of class seven June 22, 1922; class six Aug. 23, 1922; detailed to the Dept. Sept. 21, 1923; class five Dec. 19, 1923; For. Ser. officer of class six July 1, 1924; class five Aug. 31, 1925; assigned to Paris Mar. 3, 1927; class four June 30, 1927; class three May 9, 1930; assigned to Basel Oct. 15, 1930; as For. Ser. officer to Am. Emb. at Paris Nov. 9, 1932; sec. in the Diplo. Ser. Nov. 9, 1932; assigned as 1st sec. at Paris Nov. 23, 1932; adviser, 1st meeting of Experts' Prep. Committee for Int. Monetary and Economic Conf., Geneva, 1932, and asst., 2d meeting, Geneva, 1933; detailed for duty with Am. del. to Int. Monetary and Economic Conf., London, June 25, 1933; married.

Cochran, William Pearsol, Jr.—b. Stockton, Md., Dec. 15, 1902; U. S. N. A., grad. 1924; U. S. Navy 1924-26, ensign; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass. and v. c. of career May 17, 1928; assigned to the For. Ser. Sch. May 24, 1928; to Auckland Nov. 3, 1928; to Wellington Apr. 9, 1929; to the Dept., temp., Nov. 21, 1930; to Mexico City Feb. 20, 1932; married.

Cocke, Jack Eugene.—b. Somerville, Tenn., Dec. 6, 1888; high sch. grad.; private tutors in U. S. and France; bookkeeper, teller, and accountant 1907-16;

U. S. Army 1916, Mexican border service; clk., War Dept., 1917; Army field clk. 1918-19; app. clk. in Am. Emb. at Paris Dec. 15, 1919; special disbursing officer at Paris Apr. 1, 1925; special disbursing officer, Am. Commn., Int. Colonial Exposition, Paris, 1931; detailed to dist. acct. and disbursing office at Paris July 1, 1932; app. v. c. at Nantes Oct. 7, 1932; married.

Codoner, Manuel Joseph.—b. New York City May 19, 1894; attended high sch.; U. S. Army 1913-15; app. clk. in Am. Consulate at Valencia Dec. 1, 1916; v. c. at Valencia Jan. 15, 1917; at Alicante Dec. 3, 1928; married.

Coe, Robert Douglas.—b. New York City Feb. 27, 1902; St. Paul's Sch.; Harvard, A. B. 1923; Magdalen Coll., Oxford, B. A. 1927; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass, and v. c. of career May 17, 1928; assigned to the For. Ser. Sch. May 25, 1928; to Porto Alegre Nov. 3, 1928; sec. in the Dlplo. Ser. Jan. 9, 1920; assigned as 3d sec. at Lima Jan. 16, 1930; at Istanbul Apr. 8, 1931.

Cograve, Eleanor F. (Mrs.)-b. Baltimore, Md.; attended high sch.; app. telephone switchboard operator, temp., at \$1.260 in the Dept. of State Sept. 22, 1930; permanently Mar. 1, 1931.-DCR.

Cole, Clarke Palmer.—b. Pendleton, S. C., May 24, 1908; high sch. and business sch. grad.; stenog. and salesman 1929; clk.stenog., U. S. Coast Guard Headquarters, 1929–30; app. clk. at \$1,440 in the Dept. of State Feb. 25, 1930; at \$1,620 Mar. 25, 1930; at \$1,740 July 1, 1930.—FA.

Cole, Felix .--- b. St. Louis, Mo., Oct. 12, 1887; Univ. of Wis. 1905-6; Harvard, A. B. 1910; George Washington, LL. B. 1928; mem. of bar of D. C.; reporter and editorial writer 1911-12; agt, in Petrograd 1913-14; app. clk. in Am. Consulate at Petrograd Jan. 1, 1915; v. c. at Petrograd Aug. 4, 1915; at Archangel Oct. 4, 1917; app., after exam., cons. of class eight Feb. 19, 1918; act. cml. att. at Archangel Nov. 26, 1918; directed to proceed to the U. S. Aug. 6, 1919: class six Sept. 5, 1919; detailed to the Dept. Oct. 20, 1919; act. chief. Russian Division, Apr. 6, 1920; assigned to Bucharest Nov. 20, 1920; class five Nov. 19, 1921; resigned Nov. 1921; reapp, cons. of class five Aug. 23, 1922; detailed to the Dept. Oct. 1, 1922; class four Mar. 1, 1923; For. Ser. officer of class five July 1, 1924; class four Aug. 8, 1924; assigned to Sydney, N. S., Sept. 26, 1924; detailed to the Dept. Dec. 6, 1924; class three June 8, 1927; cons. gen. Aug. 6, 1928; assigned to Warsaw Aug. 24, 1928; to Frankfort-on-the-Main May 22, 1930; class two July 24, 1930; sec. in the Diplo. Ser. Oct. 25, 1930; assigned as couns. of leg. at Riga. Kovno, and Tallinn Nov. 11, 1930; married.

Colebrook, Mulford Albert.--b. Rochester, N. Y., Sept. 20, 1902; Pawling Sch. grad.; Princeton, A. B. 1926; private tutors in France 1927-30; app. elk. in Am. Consulate at Port au Prince June 9, 1931; v. c. at Port au Prince Aug. 27, 1931; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass., v. c. of career, and sec. in the Diplo. Ser. Dec. 17, 1931; assigned as v. c. at Port au Prince Jan. 2, 1932; to the For. Ser. Sch. Aug. 19, 1932; to Brisbane Dec. 22, 1932; married.

Colladay, Montgomery Hill.—b. Middletown, Conn., Dec. 6, 1902; Loomis Sch.; Dartmouth, B. S. 1926; private tutor 1926-27; teacher in grade and high sch. 1927-28; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass. and v. c. of cureer Nov. 12, 1929; assigned to the For. Ser. Sch. Nov. 20, 1929; to Hamburg Mar. 26, 1930 (canceled); to Warsaw May 6, 1930; to Basel Nov. 17, 1933; married.

Collins, Harold Moorman.—b. Lynchburg, Va., June 27, 1894; Washington and Lee, B. A. 1914; Columbia Univ. Sch. of Journalism 1917–18; principal in high sch. 1914–16; U. S. Army 1917–19, 1st lt.; owner and mgr. of insur. agency 1919–21; app., after exam., v. c. of career of class three Oct. 26, 1921; assigned to Dublin Dec. 14, 1921; class two Nov. 23, 1923; class one May 10, 1924; For. Ser. officer unclass. July 1, 1924; class eight Feb. 24, 1925; cons. Mar. 3, 1925; assigned to Nantes June 24, 1926; class seven May 17, 1928; to Ensenada Sept. 28, 1929; to Rivière du Loup Aug. 25, 1930; to Edmonton Apr. 29, 1931; married.

Collins, Herbert B.—b. Maroa, Ill., Sept. 14, 1869; National Univ. Law Sch., LL. B. 1914; mem. of bar of D. C.; secretary in Dept. of Justice 1902-4, in Dept. of Com. and Labor 1905-12, in Dept. of Com. 1913; atty. and act. solicitor, Dept. of Labor, 1914-22; app. asst. solicitor at \$3,000 in the Dept. of State Jan. 16, 1923; at \$3,300 May 1, 1925; at \$3,800 Dec. 31, 1925, effective Jan. 1, 1926; at \$4,000 Nov. 1, 1927; at \$4,600 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$5,000 July 1, 1930; asst. to the legal adviser July 1, 1931; married.—LE.

Collins, Lucy Elizabeth (Mrs.)—b. St. Albans, Vt.; high sch. grad.; clk., War Dept., 1918–19; app. clk. at \$1,000 in the Dept. of State Jan. 17, 1919; at \$1,200 Dec. 31, 1920, effective Jan. 1, 1921; at \$1,500 July 1, 1924; at \$1,560 Nov. 1, 1927; at \$1,680 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$1,740 July 1, 1928; at \$1,800 Oct. 1, 1928; at \$1,202 July 1, 1930; at \$2,000 Feb. 24, 1932.—DCR.

Collins, Virginia Whitfield.—b. Norfolk, Va.; attended business sch.; St. Joseph's Coll., Emmitsburg, Md.; George Washington Univ. 1933-; stenog. 1923-28; app. clk. at \$1,440 in the Dept. of State July 9, 1928; at \$1,620 Aug. 1, 1929; at \$1,740 July 1, 1930; clk., Int. Radio Conf., Madrid, 1932.—PC.

Collis, Edwin J.—b. Port Huron, Mich., Aug. 12, 1864; attended public sch.; with lumber companies 1886-1900; in produce business iu Sault Ste. Marie, Ont., 1900-1920; app. v. c. at Sault Ste. Marie Sept. 28, 1918; married.

Compton, Clarence L.—b. Washington, D. C., Apr. 23, 1891; in Dept. of State 1917-18; app., temp., in the Dept. of State Aug. 1, 1919; asst. messenger, permanently, Dec. 18, 1920.—EA.

Condayan, Vahram Hagop.-b. Bardezag. Turkey, Nov. 10, 1896; Robert Coll., Constantinople, 1914-16; asst. librarian and tutor, Robert Coll.; with cml. firm iu Milan 1920-22, in Djibouti 1923-25; founded a business 1925; app. cons. agt. at Djibouti Apr. 1, 1929; married.

Connelly, Bernard Chamberlin.—b. Rock Island, 111., May 3, 1908; Phillips Exeter grad.; Frinceton, A. B. 1930; app. clk. in Am. Consulate at Trieste June 20, 1931; v. c. at Trieste Aug. S, 1931; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass., v. c. of career, and sec. in the Diplo. Ser. Dec. 17, 1931; assigned as v. c. at Trieste Jan. 2, 1932; to the For. Ser. Sch. Mar. 17, 1932; to Sydney, N.S.W., July 26, 1932; to Melbourne Mar. 6, 1933.

Conover, Margaret Ferguson (Mrs.)—b. Adams, Mass.; attended high sch. and business sch.; Y.M.C.A. Sch., Washington, 1919; George Washington Univ. 1925; sec. in bank one yr.; stenog. three yrs.; app. clk., temp., at \$1,000 in the Dept. of State Jan. 5, 1918; at \$1,200 Mar. 1, 1918; permanently at \$1,000 Jan. 27, 1919; at \$1,200 June 10, 1919; at \$1,400 Jan. 27, 1919; at \$1,200 June 10, 1919; at \$1,400 Mar. 15, 1921; asst. chief, stenographic section, Oct. 1, 1923; at \$1,600 Feb. 1, 1924; at \$1,860 July 1, 1924; at \$1,920 Mar. 1, 1925; at \$2,000 Mar. 1, 1927; at \$2,200 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$2,300 July 1, 1928; at \$2,400 July 1, 1930; clk., 1st stage, Gen. Disarmament Conf., Geneva, 1932.—SS.

Conrad, Kathryn H. (Mrs.)—b. Washington, D. C.; attended high sch. and private sch.; newspaper work 1906-S, 1915-18; app. clk., temp., at 900 in the Dept. of State Feb. 9, 1918; permanently at 900Nov. 18, 1918; at 1,000 Mar. 1, 1919; at 1,200 Dec. 31, 1919, effective Jan. 1, 1920; at 1,400 Mar. 1, 1924; at 1,680 July 1, 1924; at 1,740 Mar. 1, 1927; at 1,800 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at 1,920July 1, 1930; at 1,980 July 3, 1930 (Brookhart Act).—DCR.

Constant, Samuel Victor (Maj.)—b. New York City Feb. 22, 1894; Columbia 1913-15; Purdue, B. S. 1917; North China Union Language Sch., Pelping, 1923-27; Georgetown, A. M. 1930; entered U. S. Army Nov. 30, 1916; language student at Peiping 1923-25; asst. mil. att. at Peiping 1925-27; assigned as asst. mil. att. at Peiping Feb. 3, 1932; married.

Converse, Charles Albert.—b. Valdosta, Ga., July 31, 1904; Lawrenceville Sch. grad.; tutors; Va. Mil. Inst.; partner in real estate and insur. firm 1927– 30; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass., v. c. of career, and sec. in the Diplo. Ser. Dec. 19, 1929; assigned to the For. Ser. Sch. Apr. 2, 1930; as v. c. at Cape Town July 26, 1930; at London June 20, 1934; married.

Conz, Laura.—b. Northampton. Mass.; high sch. and business sch. grad.; bookkeeper and typist 1928-29; app. clk. at \$1,260 in the Dept. of State May 16, 1930; at \$1,440 June 1, 1931.—DCR.

Cook, Helen Williamson (Mrs.)—b. Quincy, Ill.; bigh sch. grad.; attended business sch.; stenog. in law office 1911; court reporter 1912; teacher in business sch. 1913; stenog., U. S. Food Admin., 1917-19, for a national temperance society 1921; public stenog. 1922-24; clk., Veterans' Bu., 1924-25; app. clk. at \$1,320 in the Dept. of State Feb. 17, 1925; at \$1,500 Dec. 16, 1925; at \$1,860 Dec. 1, 1926; at \$1,920 Jan. 1, 1928; at \$2,100 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$2,200 July 1, 1928; private sec. to the undersec. of state at \$2,600 Nov. 1, 1928; at \$2,800 July 1, 1930; private sec. to asst. sec. of state May 1, 1931; clk. at \$2,160 Jan. 1, 1934.--SS.

††Cooke, Arthur Bledsoe.—b. Meltons, Va., June 15, 1869; Univ. of Va., B. A. 1895, Ph. D. 1901; Univ. of Göttingen and Univ. of Berlin, Germany, 1899–1900; prof. of French and German, Wofford Coll., 1895–1908; dir., dept. of European clvilization and languages, Throop Polytech. Inst. (now Calif. Inst. of Tech.), 1908–10 and dir., summer sch., 1909; author of several books; app., after exam., cons. at Patras Mar. 7, 1910; cons. of class nine by act approved Feb. 5, 1915; class seven Mar. 2, 1915; class six Sept. 5, 1919, and assigned to Swansea; For. Ser. officer of class seven July 1, 1924; assigned to Plymouth Apr. 29, 1926; class six June 2, 1926; class five July 24, 1930; retired June 30, 1934, under the provisions of the act of Feb. 23, 1931; married.

Cooke, Charles Lee.—b. Washington, D. C., July 22, 1865; attended high sch.; private tutors; U. S. Patent Office; app. clk. at \$900 in Dept. of State July 9, 1901; at \$1,000 July 1, 1902; at \$1,200 July 1, 1903; at \$1,400 July 2, 1906; at \$1,600 Mar. 23, 1907; clk. in Am. Emb. at London Feb. 27, 1909; at \$1,800 in the Dept. of State Aug. 2, 1909; drafting officer at \$2,500 July 1, 1919; ceremonial officer, Conf. on Limitation of Armament, Washington, 1921; at \$3,800 July 1, 1924; at \$4,600 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$4,800 July 1, 1930; ceremonial officer, Special Mission to the Coronation of the King of Ethiopia, 1930; at \$5,200 Jan. 19, 1931.—FC.

Cooke, Hedley Vicars, Jr.—b. East Orange, N. J., May 3, 1906; Cartaret Acad.; Phillips Andover; Yale, B. A. 1927; instructor in French and Spanish, Mohegan Lake Sch., 1927–28; app. clk. in Am. Consulate at Edinburgh Nov. 20, 1928; v. c. at Edinburgh May 1, 1929; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass., v. c. of career, sec. in the Diplo. Ser., and assigned as v. c. at Edinburgh Dec. 19, 1929; at Caracas June 23, 1930; at Santo Domingo Oct. 25, 1930; at Tsingtao Feb. 16, 1932; at Shanghai Apr. 21, 1033.

Cooke, William Edward.—b. Boston, Mass., Apr. 4, 1906; high sch. grad.; machinist 1925-29; cml. work 1929-30; app. clk. at \$1,440 in the Dept. of State Aug. 12, 1931.—DCR.

Cookingham, Harris Nicks.—b. Red Hook on Hudson, N. Y., Nov. 3, 1883; Syracuse Univ., A. B. 1907; sec. 1907–10; app. v. and dep. cons. at Seville Jan. 7, 1911; v. and dep. cons. gen. at Barcelona Oct. 6, 1914; v. c. at Barcelona Feb. 6, 1915; app., after exam., cons. of class eight and detailed to Barcelona Feb. 19, 1918; assigned to Tunis May 27, 1919; class six Sept. 5, 1919; class five Nov. 23, 1921; For. Ser. officer of class six July 1, 1924; assigned to Tangier Aug. 23, 1924; to Tunis Oct. 13, 1924; to Salgon Oct. 23, 1924; to Tenerife May 29, 1928; to Vancouver Nov. 21, 1930.

Cooper, Charles Albert.—b. Humboldt, Nebr., Oct. 21, 1908; Univ. of Nebr., A. B. 1930; app. clk. in Am. Consulate at Havre Sept. 16, 1931; v. c. at Havre Nov. 3, 1931; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass., v. c. of career, and sec. in the Diplo. Ser. Dec. 17, 1931; assigned as v. c. at Havre Jan. 2, 1932; to the For. Ser. Sch. Aug. 19, 1932; to Canton Dec. 22, 1932; as language officer at Tokyo Aug. 17, 1933.

Cooper, Mildred Curran (Mrs.)—b. Knoxville, Tenn.; attended high sch. and business sch.; clk. in law office for six yrs.; app. clk. at \$1,440 in the Dept. of State June 24, 1930; at \$1,620 Aug 1, 1930; clk., Int. Monetary and Economic Conf., London, 1933.—SS.

Cootes, Merritt Newton.—b. Norfolk, Va., Mar. 11, 1909; Woodberry Forest Sch. grad.; Ecole Ile de France 1929; Princeton, A. B. 1931; bank clk., Paris, 1929; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass., v. c. of career, and sec. in the Diplo. Ser. Dec. 17, 1931; assigned to the Dept., temp., Jan. 20, 1932; as v. c. at Port au Prince June 24, 1932; to the For. Ser. Sch. Feb. 24, 1933; to Hong Kong June 13, 1933.

Copley, William Edward.—b. Altoona, Pa., July 30, 1893; St. Francis Coll., grad. 1916; Spalding Coll., grad. 1917; store mgr. 1917–18; U. S. Army 1918–19; teacher in high sch. 1921–23; app. clk. in Am. Consulate at Port au Prince Oct. 29, 1923; v. c. at Port au Prince June 9, 1925; at Santiago, Cuba, Oct. 23, 1925; at Matanzas, temp., July 7, 1926; at Santiago Aug. 17, 1926; at Monterrey June 19, 1928; at Asunción July 11, 1933.

Corcoran, William Warwick .-- b. Washington, D. C., Sept. 5, 1884; attended private sch. and business sch.; Georgetown Law Sch. two yrs.; Univ. of Lille, France, summer course; newspaper corr. and editor 1905-17; U. S. Army 1917-19, 1st lt.; app., after exam., v. c. of career of class three May 24, 1920; assigned to Calcutta Aug. 2, 1920; to Bombay Sept. 14, 1920; to Calcutta Oct. 19, 1920; to Madras Mar. 28, 1921; to Boulogne-sur-Mer May 14, 1921; class two Nov. 17, 1921; For. Ser. officer unclass. July 1, 1924; class eight, cons., and assigned to Boulognesur-Mer May 23, 1929; to Warsaw May 28, 1929; class seven Feb. 4, 1931; to Algiers Oct. 12, 1931; to Gibraltar, temp., June 3, 1932; to Algiers Aug. 13, 1932; to Matamoros Nov. 7, 1932 (canceled); to Kingston, Jamaica, Feb. 7, 1933.

Cornell, Kenneth Hall (1st Lt.)-b. Salamanca, N. Y., July 16, 1904; U.S.N.A., grad. 1926; assigned as language officer at Tokyo June 19, 1931.

Cornette, Estelle B. (Mrs.)-b. Pulaski, Va.; Stonewall Jackson Coll. one yr.; State Teachers Coll., Harrisonburg, Va., grad. 1921; George Washington, A. B. 1929, grad. work 1932-33; publicity asst. in Dept. of Labor 1926-29; app. editorial asst. at \$1,800 in the Dept. of State July 1, 1929; at \$2,000 June 1, 1930.-RP.

Corrigan, Frank P.-b. Cleveland, Ohio, July 14, 1881; Adelbert Coll., A.B. 1903; Western Reserve Univ., M.D. 1906; Univ. of Vienna 1910; grad. work in U.S. and abroad; steel metallurgist 1898-99; Ohio Naval Reserve 1808-1901; interne, pathologist, and surgeon 1906-19; assoc. director for Latin America, Am. Coll. of Surgeons, 1920-22; director of surgery in hospital 1922-32; author; app. E.E. and M.P. to El Salvador Mar. 14, 1934; married.

Corrigan, John.—b. Atlanta, Ga., July 25, 1878; bigh sch. grad.; attended business sch.; George Washington Law Sch. three months; Univ. of Paris four months; newspaper reporter, editor, and corr. 1898–1917; U. S. Army 1917–19, capt., overseas service; app. v. c. at Havre Oct. 30, 1919; app., after exam., cons. of class seven June 4, 1920; detailed to Havre; assigned to Cherbourg Sept. 11, 1922; class six Mar. 1, 1923; For. Ser. officer of class seven July 1, 1924; class six Feb. 24, 1925; assigned to Dublin Nov. 20, 1925; to Smyrna Nov. 19, 1926; to Venice Dec. 2, 1929; class five July 24, 1930; married.

Corrigan, Katherine P.—b. Fargo, N. Dak.; high sch. and business sch. grad.; stenog. 1930-31; app. clk. at \$1,440 in the Dept. of State Feb. 24, 1931; at \$1,620 Nov. 3, 1931.—SS.

Costello, Walter Thomas.—b. San Francisco, Calif., Aug. 12, 1897; attended business high sch.; stenog. and clk.; app. v. c. at Sydney, N.S.W., Jan. 22. 1921; at Newcastle Sept. 30, 1922; at Sydney Aug. 21, 1923; at Melbourne, temp., Mar. 20, 1926; at Sydney Aug. 9, 1926; at Suva, temp., May 22, 1929; at Ensenada Aug. 4, 1930.

Condray, Robert Carter.—b. Newport, R. I., Dec. 21, 1895; business high sch. grad.; bank clk. 1917; U. S. Army 1917-19, overseas servlce; sec., Federal Bd. of Vocational Education, 1919; clk., Naval Station at Guantanamo, Cuba, 1919-23; purchasing agt., Navy Dept., 1924; app. clk. in Am. Consulate General at Hankow Jan. 22, 1924; v. c. at Hankow Sept. 24, 1926; clk. at Mukden June 25, 1928; v. c. at Mukden Oct. 1, 1928; at Swatow Oct. 8, 1931; at Canton, temp., May 22, 1934.

Coulter, Eliot Brewster.—b. Austinburg, Ohio, May 11, 1892; Princeton, Litt. B. 1914; Harvard, A. M. 1915; George Washington, LL. B. 1931; banking 1915–17; app., after exam., cons. asst. Sept. 4, 1917; v. c. at St. Nazaire Nov. 17, 1917; at Helsingfors Mar. 12, 1919; app. v. c. of career of class three May 25, 1920, and assigned to Helsingfors; to London July 20, 1920; class two Nov. 17, 1921; class one May 26, 1922; cons. of class seven Mar. 1, 1923; class six Dec. 19, 1923; For. Ser. officer of class seven July 1, 1924; resigned July 1925; banking 1925–26; app. drafting officer at \$3,000 in the Dept. of State Feb. 1, 1926; at \$3,200 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$3,300 Sept. 1, 1928; at \$3,800 May 1, 1930; asst. chief, Visa Office, July 1, 1930; at \$4,600 Dec. 1, 1930; asst. chlef, Visa Division, Jan. 1, 1931; married.—VD.

Cousins, Albert Howard, Jr.—b. Washington, D. C., Oct. 25, 1907; Univ. of Oreg., B. A. 1929; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass., v. c. of career, and sec. in the Diplo. Ser. June 4, 1930; assigned as v. c. at Vancouver June 17, 1930; to the For. Ser. Sch. Feb. 11, 1931; to Caracas June 20, 1931; to La Guaira, temp., July 18, 1933; 3d sec. at Caracas Feb. 9-June 2, 1934; v. c. at Caracas Feb. 10, 1934.

Covel, Alice M.—b. Naples, N. Y.; high sch. grad.; attended business sch.; app. asst. telephone switchbcard operator at \$600 in the Dept. of State Sept. 25, 1907; clk. at \$900 Oct. 14, 1914, effective Oct. 1; at \$1,200 June 22, 1916, effective July 1; at \$1,400 Nov. 25, 1918; at \$1,680 July 1, 1924; at \$1,860 May 1, 1925; at \$2,000 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$2,200 July 1, 1930.—PD.

Coville, Cabot.—b. Washington, D. C., Mar. 25, 1902; Deep Springs Prep. Sch.; Harvard 1922; Cornell, A. B. 1923; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass. May 28, 1926; v. c. of career June 15, 1926; assigned as language officer at Tokyo Apr. 8, 1927; as v. c. at Kobe Nov. 4, 1929; at Dairen, temp., Sept. 19, 1930; class eight, cons., and assigned to Dairen Feb. 4, 1931; to Kobe May 25, 1931; to Tokyo Aug. 12, 1931; to Harbin Jan. 25, 1932; married.

Cowan, Robert Thomas.—b. Bristol. Tenn., Mar. 30, 1907; high sch. grad.; East Tenn. State Coll. 1923-24; King Coll. 1924-25; Univ. of Tex. Coll. of Mines 1927-28; app. clk. in the Am. Consulate at Ciudad Juarez Sept. 1, 1928; v. c. at Ciudad Juarez Dec. 18, 1929; at San Luis Potosí Nov. 25, 1930; at Yarmouth Dec. 12, 1931; at Nantes Feb. 3, 1933; at Lyon Jan. 27, 1934.

Cox, Hulda Virginia.—b. Wellsburg, W. Va.; high sch. grad.; Manch Coll., grad. 1928; Southern Coll., grad. 1929; stenog. 1930; reporter 1931; app. clk. at \$1,440 in the Dept. of State Oct. 1, 1931.—SS.

Cox, Raymond Edwin.—b. Boston, Mass., Oct. 1, 1893; Phillips Andover; Yale, B. A. 1915; U. S. Army 1917-19, capt.; sales mgr. of exporting firm 1919-21; app., after exam., sec. of emb. or leg. of class four Aug. 24, 1921; assigned to the Dept. Sept. 1, 1921; to Lima Oct. 22, 1921; to the Dept. July 26, 1923; app. sec. of class three May 3, 1924; For. Ser. officer of class six July 1, 1924; sec. of special mission, Centennial of the Battle of Ayacucho, 1924; detailed for duty with the Tacna-Arica Plebiscitary Commn. 1925; assigned as 2d sec. at London Oct. 1, 1926; class five May 17, 1928; class four Dec. 19, 1929; sec. of del. to Conf. of Wheat Exporting Countries, London, 1931; assigned as 1st sec. at Buenos Aires Feb. 16, 1934; married.

Coyle, John Joseph.—b. Buffalo, N. Y., July 26, 1896; high sch. grad.; attended cml. sch.; Univ. of Madrid 1923; Centro de Estudios Históricos 1924; with steel corp. 1915-16; clk. for railroad 1916-18; U. S. Army 1918; dep. collector, Bu. of Internal Revenue, 1919; accountant 1919-21; app. clk. in Am. Consulate at Bilbao Jan. 1921; in Am. Consulate General at Barcelona Apr. 1921; v. c. at Madrid May 16, 1922; at Bilbao Mar. 5, 1925; at Madrid July 9, 1925; at Seville, temp., Dec. 10, 1925; at Oporto Feb. 13, 1926; at Tenerife, temp., Dec. 13, 1926; at Funchal, temp., Jan. 3, 1927; at Las Palmas Feb. 12, 1927; at Nueva Gerona Mar. 23, 1928; at Guadeloupe, temp., June 10, 1929; at Dakar Dec. 30, 1929; at Paris Sept. 28, 1931; at Bristol Nov. 25, 1932; at London Oct. 17, 1933; married.

Crain, Earl Thomas.—b. Quincy, Ill., Oct. 25, 1907; Univ. of Ill., B. A. 1927; app. clk. in Am. Consulate General at Habana Feb. 1, 1928; v. c. at Habana Nov. 5, 1929; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass., v. c. of career, and sec. in the Diplo. Ser. Dec. 17, 1931; assigned as v. c. at Habana Jan. 2, 1932; at Matanzas May 10, 1932; at Port Limón Ang. 16, 1932; as 3d sec. at Managua June 21, 1933; also v. c. at Managua Aug. 5, 1933.

Craley, Vivian Raymond.—b. Hagerstown, Md., Aug. 14, 1891; attended business sch.; Emerson Inst.; Georgetown Law Sch. 1909-11; Georgetown Sch. of For. Ser., grad. 1925; clk. 1910-17; U. S. Army 1917-19, overseas service; clk. and supervisor, Bu. of Internal Revenue, 1919-22; clk., War Dept., 1924-25; app. clk. at \$1,140 in the Dept. of State Feb. 3, 1925; at \$1,200 Dec. 1, 1925; at \$1,500 Jan. 16, 1926; at \$1,680 Mar. 1, 1926; at \$1,740 Mar. 1, 1927; at \$1,860 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$1.920 July 1, 1928; at \$2,040 July 1, 1930; married.—PD.

Cramp, William Miller.—b. Philadelphia, Pa., June 6, 1902; Chestnut Hill Acad. grad.; Princeton, B. S. 1922; Rensselaer Polytech. Inst., C. E. 1925; engineering 1926-29; teaching 1930; prospecting in Haiti and Dutch Guiana 1930; app. clk. in Am. Consulate at Cairo June 4, 1931; v. c. at Cairo Aug. 7, 1931; at Istanbul Oct. 24, 1931; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass., v. c. of career, and sec. in the Diplo. Ser. Dec. 17, 1931; assigned as v. c. at Istanbul Jan. 2, 1932; to the For. Ser. Sch. Aug. 19, 1932; to Belize Dec. 22, 1932; to London Oct. 20, 1933.

Crane, John Alden (Lt. Col.)—b. St. Georges, Md., Dec. 2, 1885; Marston's Univ. Sch. grad.; Johns Hopkins, A. B. 1907; entered U. S. Army Sept. 25, 1908; assigned as mil. att. at Sofia and Istanbul Feb. 1, 1932; married.

Crane, Maud M.—b. Washington, D. C.; attended private sch. in England and high sch. and seminary in U. S.; app. clk. at \$900 in the Dept. of State Oct. 13, 1902; at \$1,000 May 24, 1905, effective June 1; at \$1,200 July 2, 1906; at \$1,400 Oct. 5, 1907; at \$1,600 Dec. 13, 1917; at \$1,860 July 1, 1924; at \$1,920 Nov. 1, 1927; at \$1,980 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$2,040 July 1, 1930; at \$2,100 July 3, 1930 (Brookhart Act).—FA.

Crane, William Carey (Maj.)-b. Fort Bayard, N. M., Mar. 25, 1891; U.S.M.A., grad. 1913; assigned as mil. att. at Tokyo June 17, 1933; married. Crenshaw, David.—b. East Falls Church, Va., Apr. 4, 1899; attended high sch. and business sch.; George Washington Univ. one yr.; app. clk.. temp., at \$900 in the Dept. of State Dec. 21, 1917; at \$1,020July 1, 1918; permanently at \$900 Jan. 27, 1919; at \$1,000 July 1, 1919; at \$1,200 May 1, 1920; at \$1,400Dec. 30, 1922, effective Jan. 1, 1923; at \$1,680 July 1, 1924; at \$1,860 July 1, 1925; at \$1,920 Nov. 1, 1927; at \$2,100 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$2,200July 1, 1930; married.—DCR.

Crim, Elsie May,—b. Winston-Salem, N. C.; high sch. and business sch. grad.; secretary 1925-29; clk., Veterans' Bu, Apr.-Nov. 1930; app. clk. at \$1,440 in the Dept. of State Nov. 10, 1930; at \$1,620 May 1, 1934.—DCR.

Crist, William Earl (1st Lt.)-b. Harrisburg, Pa., Aug. 10, 1898; U.S.M.A., grad. 1920; assigned as language officer at Peiping May 9, 1932; married.

Crocker, Edward Savage, 2d.—b. Fitchburg, Mass., Dec. 20, 1895; St. Mark's Sch.; Princeton, A. B. 1920; Columbia Univ. Law Sch. 1921-22; U. S. Navy 1917-19, ensign; in paper manufactory 1921; app., after exam., sec. of emb. or leg. of class four Sept. 22, 1922, and assigned to the Dept.; asst. sec. of Am. del., Conf. on Cen. American Affairs, Washington, 1922-23; assigned to San Salvador Mar. 20, 1923; to Warsaw Jan. 7, 1924; For. Ser. officer of class eight July 1, 1924; assigned as 3d sec. of emb. at Rome Apr. 10, 1925; class seven Aug. 31, 1925; assigned as 3d sec. at Budapest Dec. 13, 1926; at Stockholm May 17, 1929; 2d sec. Oct. 19, 1929; class six Dec. 19, 1923; married.

Crockett, James C. (Capt.)-b. Troy, Tenn., Aug. 18, 1888; Union City Training Sch. grad.; Univ. of the South, B.A. 1912; entered U.S. Army Nov. 27, 1917; assigned as asst. mil. att. at Berlin July 21, 1933; married.

Crone, Edith Lillian.—b. Washington, Iowa; attended business sch.; Hastings Coll., A. B. 1925; George Washington Univ. 1920–30; Berlitz Sch. of Languages 1931; teacher in high sch. 1925–28; stenog. in publishing house 1929, in U. S. Patent Office 1929–30; app. editorial asst. at \$1,800 in the Dept. of State May 1, 1930; at \$1,860 July 1, 1930; awarded trip to Valparaiso, Chile, as first prize in contest conducted by Geographic and Historical Soclety of the Americas, 1931; at \$2,000 Nov. 11, 1931.—RP.

Crook, Linton.—b. Anniston, Ala., Nov. 10, 1901; Ala. Presbyterian Coll.; Marion Mil. Inst.; Univ. of Ala. five yrs.; app. clk. in Am. Consulate General at Milan May 1, 1925; v. c. at Milan Nov. 22, 1927; at Lucerne, temp., June 8, 1929; at Milau Oct. 17, 1929; at Penang June 20, 1931.

Crosby, Sheldon Leavitt.—b. New York City Nov. 9, 1880; private tutor; attended sch. in Germany; insur. office, trust company, and railway office twelve yrs.; app., after exam., 3d sec. at London Mar. 31, 1910; sec. of leg. and cons. gen. at Bangkok Aug. 22, 1912; 2d sec. at Madrid July 16, 1914; sec. of emb. or leg. of class three by act approved Feb. 5, 1915; assigned to Vienna July 21, 1915; to London May 22, 1917; class two July 13, 1917; assigned to Rome Feb. 1, 1919; class one June 28, 1920; assigned to Stockholm Nov. 13, 1920; to the Dept. Oct. 13, 1921; as couns. of emb. at Rlo de Janeiro Oct. 20, 1921; For. Ser. officer of class one July 1, 1924; assigned as couns. of emb. at Constantinople Nov. 15, 1924; at Madrid Jan. 13, 1930; at Warsaw May 26, 1932.

Cross, Cecil Merne Putnam.—b. Rangoon, India, of Am, parents, Nov. 2, 1891; Brown Univ., A. B. and A. M. 1915; Univ. of Chicago, Ph. D. 1922; clk., War Dept., 1918–19; app., after exam. v. c. of career of class three Sept. 27, 1919; assigned to Palermo Dec. 9, 1919; to Naples Apr. 17, 1920; cons. of class seven June 2, 1920; assigned to Aden Nov. 30, 1921; to Lourenço Marques July 7, 1922; class slx Mar. 1, 1923; For. Ser. officer of class seven July 1, 1924; class six Feb. 24, 1925; assigned to Port Elizabeth Apr. 10, 1925; to Cape Town May 15, 1925; class five May 23, 1929; to Barcelona June 25, 1932; married.

Cruger, Alexander Pendleton.—b. San Antonio, Tex., Sept. 21, 1886; Hill Sch.; Brooklyn Latin Scn.; app. v. c. at Llége Sept. 23, 1907; clk. in Am. Leg. at Brussels June 1913; app., after exam., v. c. of career of class three Oct. 26, 1921; assigned to Marseille Dec. 14, 1921; to Messina July 19, 1923; For. Ser. officer unclass. July 1, 1924; assigned to Antwerp Dec. 12, 1928; class eight, cons., and assigned to Antwerp July 24, 1930; to Malmö Nov. 20, 1931; to Bergen July 5, 1932; to Funchal May 18, 1933; married.

Cudahy, John.—b. Milwaukee, Wis., Dec. 10, 1887; Marquette Acad. grad.; Univ. of Wis. 1905-6, LL. B. 1913; St. Mary's, Kans., 1907; Harvard, A. B. 1910; mem. of bar of Wis.; U. S. Army 1917-19, 1st It., overscas service; practised law 1913-17; v. pres. of meat packing firm 1917-22; pres. and v. pres. of real estate companies 1923-33; app. A. E. and P. to Poland June 13, 1933; married.

Culbertson, Paul Trauger.—b. Greensburg, Pa., Apr. 11, 1897; Coll. of Emporia 1916-17; Yale, Ph. B. 1923; George Washington, LL. B.; mem. of bar of D. C.; U. S. Army 1917-19, overseas service; Dept. of Com. 1920; jr. accountant, summer 1921; clk. in Am. Consulate at Paris July-Oct. 1922; app. drafting officer at \$2.500 in the Dept. of State July 3, 1923; at \$2,800 July 1, 1924; sec. of Am. del., Preliminary Conf. on Oil Pollution of Navigable Waters, Washington, 1926; at \$3,000 June 16, 1926; at \$3,200 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$3,300 July 1, 1928; at \$3,800 Oct, 1, 1928; at \$4,600 Oct. 1, 1929; divisional asst. at \$5,600 July 1, 1930; asst. chief, Division of Western European Affairs, at \$6,500 Jan. 28, 1032; married.—WE.

†Culbertson, William Smith.—b. Greensburg, Pa., Aug. 5, 1884; Coll. of Emporia, A. B. 1907; Yale, B. A. 1908, Ph. D. 1911; Univ. of Leipzig and Berlin; mem. of bar of D. C.; maj., O. R. C.; examiner, Tariff Bd., 1910–12; law practice 1912–15; Federal Trade Commn., representative studying trade conditions in Latin Amer., 1915–16, special counsel and mem. of bd. of review, 1916–17; overseas sec., Y. M. C. A., 1918; mem. U. S. Tariff Commn. 1917–25, τ chm. 1922–25; tech. adviser to Am. del., Conf. on Limitation of Armament, Washington, 1921–22; round table leader, Williamstown Inst. of Politics, 1922–24; lecturer, Georgetown Sch. of For. Ser., 1919–25; author and contributor to magazines; app. E. E. and M. P. to Rumania Apr. 28, 1925; A. E. and P. to Chile June 19, 1928; resigned Aug. 19, 1933; married.

Cummans, William Walter.—b. New Stark, Ohio, June 23, 1887; private tutors; attended business sch.; Ohio Northern Univ. 1907-9; accountancy sch. grad.; teacher in public sch. 1907-13; clk. in War Dept. 1918-20, in Gen. Land Office 1920-23; public accounting 1923-24; clk. in Navy Dept. 1924-25; app. clk. at \$1,320 in the Dept. of State May 1, 1925; at \$1,500 Mar. 16, 1926; at \$1,620 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$1,680 July 1, 1928; at \$1,800 July 2, 1930; married.—DCR.

Cumming, Hugh Smith, Jr.-b. Richmond, Va., Mar. 10, 1900; attended private sch. in Japan; Va. Mil. Inst. 1917-20; Univ. of Va. 1920-21, Law Sch. 1921-24; mem. of bar of Va.; U. S. Army 1918; asst. purser, summer 1921; park ranger, summer 1923; with int. banking firms in London, Bombay, Singapore, and Peking 1924-27; clk. in Am. Leg. at Peking Aug. 1927-Feb. 1928; app. drafting officer and tech. adviser at \$2,400 in the Dept. of State June 21, 1928; at \$2,600 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$3,200 May 1, 1930; at \$3,800 Dec. 1, 1930; at \$4,600 Dec. 24, 1931; asst. to Am. del., Int. Monetary and Economic Conf., London, 1933; asst. to chm. of Am. del., Seventh Int. Conf. of Am. States, Montevideo, 1933; executive asst. to the sec. of state at \$5,600 Mar. 14. 1934.—S.

Cunningham, Edwin Sheddan,-b. East Tenn., July 6, 1868; Maryville Coll., A. B. 1889; Univ. of Mich., LL. B. 1893; mem. of bar of Mich.; railway mail service 1889-90; law publishing house 1894-96; law practice 1896-98; app.. after exam., cons. at Aden Feb. 16, 1898; at Bergen Mar. 3, 1903; at Durban June 22, 1906; at Bombay Dec. 20, 1910; cons. gen. at Singapore Aug. 22, 1912; at Hankow Dec. 22, 1914; cons. gen. of class five by act approved Feb. 5, 1915; class four Sept. 14, 1917; assigned to Shanghai Sept. 8, 1919; class three June 4, 1920; special intelligence and relief work at Kobe, Japan, Sept. 1-25, 1923; For. Ser. officer of class two July 1, 1924; class one Dec. 17, 1925; by Ex. order of Mar. 3, 1933, retained on active duty for a period not in excess of five yrs. from July 6, 1933.

††Curtis, Charles Boyd.—b. New York City Dec. 6, 1878; Berkeley Sch.; Groton Sch.; Harvard, A. B.; Columbia Univ. Law Sch.; clk. and buyer 1899-1905; N. Y. Nat. Guard 1901-7; sec. to Am. Amb. at Petrograd 1907-8; app., after exam., 3d sec. at Constantinople May 15, 1909; sec. of leg. at Christiania Mar. 31, 1910; sec. of leg. and cons. gen. at Santo Domingo Feb. 1, 1912; unassigned from Nov. 10, 1913; 2d sec. at Rio de Janeiro May 22, 1914; sec. of emb. or leg. of class three by act approved Feb. 5, 1915; assigned to Bogota Mar. 6, 1915; to Panama Jan. 3, 1917; to Tegucigalpa Jan. 9, 1918: class two Aug. 27, 1918; assigned to Managua as chargé Oct. 7, 1918; to Christiania Mar. 11, 1919; to the Dept. June 7, 1921; class one Aug. 24, 1921; assigned to Guatemala Dec. 15, 1921; to the Dept. Feb. 24, 1922; as couns. of leg. at Budapest Oct. 20, 1923; For. Scr. officer of class two July 1, 1924; cons. gen. and assigned to Munich Apr. 11, 1925; couns. of emb. at Habana July 18, 1927; class one May 23, 1929; E. E. and M. P. to the Dominican Republic Dec. 16, 1929; to El Salvador Aug. 1, 1931; resigned Aug. 12, 1933; married.

Cussans, Frank.—b. Mitchell, S. Dak., Feb. 5, 1895; attended business sch.; Ohio Northern Univ., B. S. 1920; Univ. of Bordeaux, France, 1919; U. S. Army 1917-19, overseas service; accountant and clk. for railroad 1920-21; teacher, École Normale de Garçons, Limoges, France, and messenger in Am. Consulate at Limoges 1921-23; app. clk. In Am. Consulate at Bordeaux June 1923; v. c. at Bordeaux Apr. 23, 1926; married.

Cyphers, Dudley E.—b. Easton, Pa., Oct. 24, 1903; high sch. grad.; attended business sch.; clk. 1922-30; bookkeeper 1930; teacher 1930-32; app. clk. in Am. Leg. at Santo Domingo Mar. 10, 1932; in Am. Cousulate at Santo Domingo July 12, 1932; v. c. at Santo Domingo July 27, 1932; married.

Dalferes, Sabin Jean.—b. Belle Rose, La., Feb. 16, 1888; attended high sch. and business sch.; salesman and dept. mgr. in store eight yrs.; newspaper work two yrs.; U. S. Army 1917–19, overseas service; with Am. Commn. to Negotiate Peace, Paris, 1919; app. v. c. at Warsaw Mar. 10, 1920; at Hamburg Mar. 7, 1928; married.

Daniel, Helen Lane.—b. Fredericksburg, Va.; attended private sch.; Fredericksburg Coll. 1910-11; Fredericksburg State Normal Sch., grad. 1913; Washington Sch. of Accountancy 1920-22; American Univ., B. S. 1930; teacher in public sch. 1913-18; clk., War Trade Bd., 1918-19, Bu. of Census, 1919-22; app. clk. at \$1,200 in the Dept. of State May 26, 1922; at \$1,680 July 1, 1924; at \$1,740 Mar. 1, 1927; at \$1,860 Nov. 1, 1927; at \$2,000 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$2,200 July 1, 1930.—CR.

Daniels, Josephus.—b. Washington, N. C., May 18, 1862; Univ. of N. C. Law Sch. 1884; mem. of bar of N. C.; editor of newspapers 1880–1933; sec. of the navy 1913–21; app. A. E. and P. to Mexico Mar. 17, 1933; married.

Daniels, Paul Clement.—b. Buffalo, N. Y., Oct. 26, 1903; Phillips Andover; Yale, B. A. 1924; Univ. of Dijon and Grenoble, summer 1924; Univ. of Toulouse 1924-25; teacher of French, Riverdale Country Sch., 1925-26; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass. and v. c. of earcer July 5, 1927; assigned to the For. Ser. Sch. Sept. 29, 1927; to Valparaiso Feb. 24, 1928; to Cali May 23, 1929; to Buenaventura, temp., Oct. 3, 1929; to La Paz Aug. 16, 1930; sec. in the Diplo. Ser. Apr. 9, 1931; assigned as 3d sec. at La Paz Apr. 29, 1931; at Managua Aug. 19, 1932; as v. c. at Corinto, temp., Nov. 1, 1932; as 3d sec. at Managua Dec. 20, 1932; also v. c. Apr. 10, 1933;

Darley, Mary Lilian.—b. Alexandria, Va.; St. Mary's Acad.; Gcorge Washington Univ. 1922-27; stenog., Council of Nat. Defense, 1918, in Govt. depts. 1918-24; app. clk. at \$1,320 in the Dept. of State Dec. 2, 1924; at \$1,500 Oct. 1, 1926; at \$1,620 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$1,740 July 1, 1930; clk., 1st stage, Gen. Disarmament Conf., Geneva, 1932.—WE.

Davenport, Rosemary S. (Mrs.)-b. Ashland, Pa.; high sch. grad.; clk. in Govt. depts. 1917-22, 1926-29; app. clk. at \$1,440 in the Dept. of State Mar. 1, 1929; at \$1,560 July 1, 1930.-CR.

Davies, John Paton, Jr.—b. Kiating, China, of Am. parents, Apr. 6, 1908; Shanghai-Amer. Sch. grad.; Univ. of Wis. 1927-29; Yenching Univ., Peiping, China, 1929-30; Columbla, B. S. 1931; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass., v. c. of career, and sec. in the Diplo. Scr. Dec. 17, 1931; assigned as v. c. at Windsor Jan. 12, 1932; to the For. Ser. Sch. Nov. 29, 1932; to Yünnanfu Mar. 30, 1933; as language officer at Peiping Aug. 30, 1933.

Davis, De Lyle.—b. Price, Utah, Aug. 14, 1896; high sch. grad.; electrician and machinist 1916-17; clk., War Dept., 1918; U. S. Army 1918-19; app. clk. at \$1,000 in the Dept. of State Jan. 27, 1919; at \$1,200 Mar. 1, 1922; at \$1,500 July 1, 1924; at \$1,560 Mar. 1, 1927; at \$1,680 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$1,740 July 1, 1928; at \$1,800 Oct. 1, 1928; at \$2,000 May 1, 1929; at \$2,100 July 1, 1930; married.—DCR.

Davis, Elsie C.—b. Laurel, Md.; high sch. grad.; attended business sch.; bookkeeper 1912-17; stenog., War Dept., 1917-19; clk., Dept. of State, 1919-24; app. clk. at \$1,440 in the Dept. of State Dec. 8, 1930; at \$1,620 Feb. 4, 1931.—FD.

Davis, Jane Mitchell (Mrs.)—b. La Plata, Md.; high sch. grad.; attended busincss sch.; Berlitz Sch. of Languages; stenog. in Navy Yard 1921-22, in Bu. of Pensions 1922-24; sec., Bu. of For. and Domes. Com., 1924-29; app. clk., temp., at \$1,620 in the Dept. of State Jan. 9, 1930; permanently Apr. 1, 1930; resigned June 23, 1930; reapp. clk. at \$1,620 Aug. 1, 1930; clk., Int. Monetary and Economic Conf., London, 1933.—1'C.

Davis, John Ker.—b. Soochow, China, of Am. parents, Mar. 5, 1882; Wooster Univ., B. A. 1904, M. A. 1908; private sec. and tutor in China three yrs.; instructor in business sch. in China one yr.; app. dep. cons. gen. at Shanghai Apr. 14, 1910; app., after exam., student interpreter in China Mar. 12, 1912; dep. cons. gen. and interpreter at Shanghai June 7, 1913; v. and dep. cons. gen. and interpreter at Canton Sept. 16, 1913; v. and dep. cons. and interpreter at Chefoo Mar. 17, 1914; cons. of class eight June 8, 1915, and assigned to Antung; class seven Scpt. 14, 1917; assigned to Nanking May 29, 1919; class six Sept. 5. 1919; class five June 4, 1920; detailed as senior assessor at Shanghai Mar. 3-July 22, 1923; class four June 3, 1924; For. Ser. officer of class five July 1, 1924; detailed to the Dept. Mar. 1, 1926; class four June 8, 1927; app. sec. in the Diplo. Ser. and assigned as 1st sec. at Peking June 29, 1927; class three Jan. 23, 1928; app. cons. gen. and assigned to London Sept. 28, 1928; representative, Fifth Cong., Int. Chamber of Com., Amsterdam, 1929; assigned to Seoul May 24, 1930; class two July 24, 1930; assigned to Vancouver Nov. 7, 1933; married.

Davis, Kathryn Murphy (Mrs.)—b. Harrisburg, Pa.; attended business high sch. and business sch.; clk. and section chief, War Dept., 1918-23; clk., Dept. of Agric., 1923-26; app. clk. at \$1,140 in the Dept. of State Feb. 6, 1926; at \$1,200 Mar. 1, 1927; at \$1,320 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$1,380 July 1, 1928; at \$1,500 July 1, 1930.—DCR.

Davis, Leslie Ammerton.—b. Port Jefferson, N. Y., Apr. 29, 1876; Cornell, Ph. B. 1898; Columbian Coll. (now George Washington Univ.), LL. B. 1904; N. Y. Univ. Law Sch. one yr.; mem. of bars of D. C. and N. Y.; law practice 1904-12; app., after exam., cons. at Batum Mar. 13, 1912; at Harput Apr. 24, 1914; cons. of class seven by act approved Feb. 5, 1915; class six July 6, 1918; detailed to Archangel Dec. 31, 1918; to Helsingfors Apr. 15, 1919; class five Sept. 5, 1919; class four June 4, 1920; For. Ser. officer of class five July 1, 1924; assigned to Zagreb Sept. 9, 1924; to Patras May 28, 1929; to Oporto July 31, 1930; class four Aug. 15, 1930; married.

Davis, Marianna.—b. Oak Hill, Ohio; attended high sch. and business sch.; stenog. and typist; app. clk. at \$1,200 in the Dept. of State July 2, 1906; at \$1,400 July 1, 1908; at \$1,600 June 22, 1016, effective July 1: at \$1,860 July 1, 1924; at \$1,920 Dec. 1, 1925; at \$1,980 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$2,040 July 1, 1928; at \$2,100 July 1, 1930; at \$2,160 July 3, 1930 (Brookhart Act); at \$2,200 June 1, 1931.—EA.

Davis, Monnett Bain.—b. Greencastle, Ind., Aug. 13, 1893; attended Baker Univ.; Univ. of Colo., A. B. 1917; Colo. Nat. Guard 1916; clk. in Am. Consulate at Cartagena Jan.—Aug. 1917; U. S. Army 1917–18, 2d lt.; 1st It., O. R. C., 1910–20; app., after exam., cons. of class seven June 4, 1920; assigned to Port Elizabeth Feb. 15, 1921; class six Mar. 1, 1923; assigned to Saltillo Jan. 2, 1924; For. Ser. officer of class seven July 1, 1924; class six Aug. 8, 1924; assigned to the Dept. Dec. 24, 1924; asst. chief, Visa Office, June 1, 1927; class five June 8, 1927; chief, Visa Office, June 1, 1928; For. Ser. insp. Jan. 28, 1929; class four Oct. 16, 1929; cons. gen. Apr. 10, 1931; class three July 1, 1931; assigned as cons. gen. at Stockholm June 24, 1933; married.

Davis, Nathaniel Penistone.—b. Princeton, N. J., May 1, 1895; Lawrenceville Sch. grad.; attended business sch.; Princeton, A. B. 1916; grad. work, Univ. of Neuchâtel, Switzerland, 1914, Univ. of Pa. 1916; George Washington Law Sch. 1919-20; sec., war prisoners' aid, Y. M. C. A., 1916-17; U. S. Army 1917-19, 2d lt.; 2d lt., O. R. C., 1919-21; app. clk., temp., at \$1,800 in the Dept. of State Jan. 20, 1919; app., after exam., v. c. of career of class three Feb. 17, 1921; detailed to Am. Commn. at Berlin July 21, 1921; assigned to Am. Consulate General at Berlin Nov. 15, 1921; class two May 26, 1922; class one Feb. 26, 1923; cons. of class seven Dec. 19, 1923; For. Ser. officer of class eight July 1, 1924; assigned to Pernambuco Aug. 17, 1925; class seven Aug. 31, 1925; class six Sept. 29, 1927; assigned to London July 1, 1929; class five Dec. 19, 1929; class four July 1, 1931; assigned to the Dept. June 30, 1934; married.

Davis, Thomas Dick.—b. Macedonia, Miss., Mar. 7, 1879; Univ. of Miss., B. A. 1899, LL. B. 1901; mem. of bar of Miss.; law practice 1901-15; police judge 1904-6; city atty. 1910-15; app., after exam., cons. of class nine Feb. 22, 1915, and assigned to Grenoble; class eight Sept. 14, 1917; assigned to Calais May 27, 1919; class six Sept. 5, 1919; For. Ser. officer of class seven July 1, 1924; assigned to Patras Sept. 24, 1925; to Boulogne-sur-Mer May 28, 1929; class six May 0, 1930; to Stavanger June 10, 1932; to Bergen May 18, 1933; married.

Dawes, Gladys Meredith.—b. Louisville, Ky.; high sch. grad.; George Washington Univ. 1930-; library asst. 1921-30; app. library asst. at \$1,620 in the Dept. of State Mar. 24, 1930; at \$1,740 Sept. 24, 1930.—RP.

Dawson, Allan.—b. Washington, D. C., Feb. 16, 1903; U. S. M. A., grad. 1924; newspaper reporter 1919-20; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass. Apr. 15, 1925; also v. c. of career and assigned to Rio de Janeiro Sept. 2, 1925; at Babia, temp., Aug. 20, 1926; to Rio de Janeiro Feb. 7, 1927; app. sec. in the Diplo. Ser. Feb. 17, 1927; assigned as 3d sec. at Panama Feb. 23, 1927; at Mexico City Oct. 13, 1927; detailed for duty with Am. del., Sixth Int. Conf. of Am. States, Habana, 1028, and Int. Conf. of Am. States on Conciliation and Arbitration, Washington, 1928-29; class eight and cons. Dec. 19, 1929; assigned to the Dept. Aug. 18, 1930; as 3d sec. at Bogotá June 18, 1931; class seven July 1, 1931; detailed to the leg. at Managua May 16, 1034.

Dawson, Claude Ivan.—b. Burlington, Iowa, Oct. 23, 1877; Georgetown Law Sch. one yr.; 1st D. C.

67359-34-11

Volunteers 1898, Cuban service; sec. and executive. insular govt. of Porto Rico, 1899-1904; sec. and auditor 1904-S; examiner, Interstate Com. Commn., 1908-10; app., after exam., cons. at Puerto Cortes June 24, 1910; sec. of Peace Conf. in Honduras, 1911; at Valencia Aug. 22, 1912; cons. of class eight by act approved Feb. 5, 1915; class seven Mar. 2, 1915; class six Oct. 18, 1915, and assigned to Tampico; class five Sept. 5, 1919; class three, June 4, 1920; cons. gen. of class four Nov. 19, 1921; detailed to Mexico City Jan. 16, 1922; class three Mar. 1, 1923; assigned to Mexico City Oct. 2, 1923; For. Ser. officer of class two July 1, 1924; assigned to Stockholm Aug. 1, 1924; to Rio de Janeiro Nov. 16, 1926; mem. of Bd. of Review, For. Ser. Personnel, 1927; class one Sept. 29, 1927; assigned to Barcelona Dec. 13, 1930; married.

Dawson, Leonard Geeding.—b. Staunton, Va., Jan. 19, 1882; attended high sch. and business sch.; bookkeeper 1902-3; provincial treas., Philippine Is., 1903-16; U. S. Food Admin. 1917-18; app., after exam., cons. of class eight Feb. 5, 1918; detailed to Barcelona Oct. 8, 1918; class six Sept. 5, 1919; assigned to Madras Sept. 8, 1919; to Santander Dec. 27, 1921; For. Ser. officer of class seven July 1, 1924; assigned to Messina Mar. 18, 1925; class six Oct. 20, 1926; assigned to Vera Cruz Oct. 29, 1928; class five July 24, 1930; to Munich July 26, 1933; married.

Dawson, Margaret Esther.—b. Farnam, Nebr.; high sch. grad.; attended business sch.; bookkeeper-stenog. 1929-30; app. clk. at \$1,260 in the Dept. of State June 2, 1930; at \$1,440 Feb. 20, 1931; at \$1,620 Sept. 14, 1931.—DCR.

Dawson, Warrington .- b. Charleston, S. C., Sept. 27, 1878; École Saint Thomas D'Aquin, Paris; Univ. Sch., Charleston and Richmond; Coll. of Charleston two yrs.; newspaper work 1897-1901; organizer French news service and mgr. Paris bu. 1901-9; organizer Russian news service 1904; sec. gen. of Paris news assoc. 1905-8; lecturer under auspices of Ministère de l'Instruction Publique at École des Hautes Études Sociales, Paris, 1907; sec. to Theodore Roosevelt in Africa 1909; literary work and lecturing in various countries 1910-14; hon. sec. and treas., Urgent Fund for Serbian Wounded, 1914-15; special clk. in Am. Consulate at Rouen Jan.-Feb. 1915; special missions in Allied army zones 1915-17; Am. war corr. 1917; del., Inter-Allied Conf. for Information and Action Abroad, Paris, 1918; confidential adviser to Am. Amb. in Paris 1917-19; special asst., Am. Emb. in Paris, Sept. 4, 1919.

Dawson, William.—b. St. Paul, Minn., Aug. 11, 1885; Univ. of Minn., B. A. 1906; L'École Libre des Sciences Politiques two yrs.; app. v. and dep. cons. gen. at Petrograd Mar. 28,1908; v. and dep. cons. July 1, 1908; v. and dep. cons. at Barcelona Aug. 24, 1908; at Frankfort Sept. 26, 1910; app., after exam., cons. at Rosario Nov. 24, 1913; cons. of class eight by act approved Feb. 5, 1915; class six Mar. 2, 1915; assigned to Montevideo Mar. 20, 1917; class five July 6, 1918; designated Am. Commr. at Danzig Oct. 6, 1919; assigned to Danzig Mar. 29, 1920; class three June 4, 1920; detailed to Munich Sept. 19, 1921; assigned to Munich Nov. 15, 1921; app. cons. gen. at large Nov. 19, 1921; cons. gen. of class three June 5, 1924; For. Ser. officer of class two July 1, 1924; assigned to the Dept. Oct. 23, 1924; mem. of the Ed. of Review, For. Ser. Personnel, 1925; mem. of the executive committee of the For. Ser. Personnel Ed. and chief instructor of the For. Ser. Sch. Feb. 1, 1925; class one June 30, 1927; assigned to Mexico City July 6, 1928; E. E. and M. P. to Ecuador May 9, 1930; married.

Day, Henry Barker.—b. New Haven, Conn., July 11, 1905; Choate Sch.; Thacher Sch. grad.; Yale, B. A. 1927; Univ. of Berlin, summer 1928; L'École Libre des Sciences Politiques, diploma 1929; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass., v. c. of career, and sec. in the Diplo. Ser. Apr. 15, 1930; assigned as v. c. at Naples May 8, 1930; to the For. Ser. Sch. Feb. 11, 1931; to Singapore June 20, 1931; to Hong Kong Nov. 17, 1932; v. c. at Manila May 1, 1934.

Day, Samuel Hamilton.—b. Quincy, Calif., Sept. 7, 1886; Univ. of Calif., B. L. 1910, J. D. 1912; mem. of bar of Calif.; teaching fellow, Univ. of Calif., 1910-12; law practice 1912-17; U. S. Army 1917-19, capt., overseas service; tech. asst., Inter-allied Rhineland Commn., 1919; representative of electric company 1919-21; entered Bu. of For. and Domes. Com. Sept. 22, 1921; app. trade commr. at Johannesburg Mar. 1, 1927; cml. att. at Pretoria June 27, 1930; married.

Deans, Amelia Byrd.—b. Shelby Co., Ala.; private tutors; Dept. of Agric, grad. sch. 1923-24; George Washington Univ. 1925-28; stenog. and clk. 1913-15; stenog., editorial clk., and indexcr, Dept. of Agric., 1915-20; translator, War Dept., 1920-23; supervisory statistical work, Army Medical Library, 1923-25; app. library asst. at \$1,860 in the Dept. of State Feb. 21, 1925; at \$1,920 Mar. 1, 1927; at \$2,000 Nov. 1, 1927; at \$2,200 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$2,300 July 1, 1928; at \$2,600 June 1, 1930.—RP.

Dearing, Fred Morris .- b. Columbia, Mo., Nov. 19, 1879; Univ. of Mo., A. B.; Columbian Univ. (now George Washington), M. Dip.; Univ. of Washington, D. C.; teacher in public sch.; commandant in mil. acad.; translator, Post Office Dept. and Dept. of Agric., 1902; sec. to minister to Cuba 1904; app., after exam., 2d sec. at Habana July 30, 1906; at Peking Apr. 6, 1907; sec. of leg. at Habana Jan. 14, 1909; 2d sec. at London Feb. 18, 1910; sec. at Mexico City Aug. 12, 1910; asst. chief, Division of Latin American Affairs, Dec. 21, 1911; sec. of leg. at Brussels July 2, 1913; at Madrid Feb. 11, 1914; sec. of emb. or leg. of class one by act approved Feb. 5, 1915; assigned to Petrograd Feb. 2, 1916; as couns. of emb. at Petrograd July 17, 1916; unassigned from Nov. 7, 1916; detached, temp., Apr. 1, 1917; resigned Apr. 1919; with Am. International Corp. 1917-21; app. asst. sec. of state Mar. 11, 1921; E. E. and M. P. to Portugal Feb. 10, 1922; A. E. and P. to Peru Jan. 31, 1930; married.

DeBerry, Myra J.—b. Brunswick Co., Va.; attended business sch.; Blackstone Coll. 1916-18; George Washington, A. B. 1933; teacher of math. and hist. in high sch. 1918-20, 1921-24; clerical asst., Americanization Bu. of Pa., 1920, War Dept., 1924-25; clk.-typist, Dept. of Agric, 1925-26; app. library asst. at \$1,320 in the Dept. of State Mar. 2. 1926; at \$1,380 Mar. 1, 1927; at \$1,500 Sept. 1, 1927; at \$1,620 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$1,800 July 1, 1928; at \$2,000 Apr. 1, 1929; at \$2,200 July 1, 1930.—RP.

DeCell, Edith.—b. Caseyville, Miss.; high sch. grad.; attended business sch.; Hillman Coll. 1916-17; Brenau Coll., summer 1918; Washington Coll. of Music, grad. 1928; teacher in high sch. 1917-22; clk., Dept. of State, 1923; app. clk. at \$900 in the Dept. of State Jan. 28, 1924; at \$1,000 Apr. 22, 1924; at \$1,320 July 1, 1924; at \$1,500 Mar. 1, 1926; at \$1,620 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$1,680 July 1, 1928; at \$1,500 Feb. 1, 1929; at \$1,020 July 1, 1930.—PD.

DeCourcy, William Earl.—b. Jackson, Tenn., Feb. 4, 1894; Miss. Heights Acad.; Univ. of Tex. two yrs.; traveling accountant 1911-17; U. S. Army 1917-19, 2d lt.; accountant and asst. comptroller for Y. M. C. A. In Europe 1920-21; clk. in Am. Consulate at Genera 1921-23; app., after exam., v. c. of career of class three July 6, 1923; assigned to Geneva July 10, 1923; to Cairo Nov. 20, 1923; For. Ser. officer unclass. July 1, 1924; assigned as v. c. at Marseille May 4, 1926; class eight, cons., and assigned to Marseille Aug. 24. 1927; to Paris Apr. 21, 1928; class seven Dec. 19, 1929; married.

Deichman, Carl Frederick.—b. St. Joseph, Mo., Nov. 23, 1871; attended business sch.; private tutors; with railway and steamship lines; U. S. Coast and Geodetic Survey 1899-1907; app., after exam., cons. at Manzanillo Mar. 30, 1907; at Tansui May 4, 1908; at Nagasaki May 31, 1909; at Bombay Dec. 20, 1914; cons. of class five by act approved Feb. 5, 1915; assigned to Santos Oct. 18, 1915; detailed to Valparaiso June 10, 1919; class four Sept. 5, 1919; cons. gen. of class four June 4, 1920; assigned to Valparaiso June 23, 1920; For. Ser. officer of class three July 1, 1924; class two July 24, 1930; assigned to Lisbon Dec. 13, 1920; married.

Deike, Mildred Viola.—b. Guelph, Ontario; Guelph Coll. Inst.; Washington Misslonary Coll. one yr.; app. clk., temp., at \$900 in the Dept. of State Oct. 22, 1917; at \$1,000 Dec. 1, 1917; at \$1,200 Mar. 1, 1918; permanently at \$1,000 Jan. 6, 1919; at \$1,200 Mar. 1, 1919; at \$1,400 Aug. 6, 1920; at \$1,600 Sept. 1, 1922; at \$1,860 July 1, 1924; at \$1,920 Mar. 1, 1927; at \$1,980 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); stenog., London Naval Conf., 1930; at \$2,040 July 1, 1930; at \$2,100 July 3, 1930 (Brookhart Act).—FP.

Deimel, Henry L., Jr.—b. New York City June 7, 1899; attended sch. in Belgium and England; Univ. of Calif., A. B. 1920, Ph. D. 1923; U. S. Army Aug.— Dec. 1918; teaching fellow in economics, Univ. of Calif., 1920-22, in foreign trade, 1922-23; research 1922-23; asst. chief, Division of Foreign Tariffs. Dept. of Com., 1923-31; app. divisional asst. at \$4.600 in the Dept. of State Mar. 16, 1931; married.--NE.

de Lambert, Richard Marmaduke.—b. White Plains, N. Y., June 29, 1893; attended business sch.; Georgetown Univ. one yr.; American Univ. two yrs.; sec. and clk. with mining and railway companies 1913– 15; clk. in Am. leg. at Teheran 1915–21; app., after exam., sec. of emb. or leg. of class four Dec. 12, 1923, and assigned to the Dept.; to Quito Feb. 4, 1924; For. Ser. officer of class eight and assigned as 3d sec. at Quito July 1, 1924; at San José, Costa Rica, Oct. 30, 1926; at San Salvador Oct. 16, 1928; to the Dept. June 13, 1929; class seven Dec. 19, 1929; assigned as 2d sec. at Habana, temp., Sept. 20, 1933; as 2d sec. at Lima Sept. 19, 1933; married.

Delaney, Thomas James.—b. Alexandria, Va., July 14, 1892; U. S. Navy 1917-19; asst. messenger, Dept. of State, 1919-21; mimeograph operator, Conf. on Limitation of Armament, Washington, 1921-22; reinstated asst. messenger in the Dept. of State Feb. 16, 1922; messenger Aug. 1, 1923.—NE.

deLashmutt, Rebekah Leiter .- b. Frederick, Md.; high sch. grad.; attended business sch.; Columbia Kindergarten Training Sch., grad. 1908; George Washington Univ. 1917-18; teacher 1906-10; clk. and bookkeeper 1910-15; app. clk., temp., at \$900 in the Dept. of State Jan. 15, 1915; permanently at \$1,000 under Ex. order June 22, 1916, effective July 1; at \$1,200, temp., Nov. 1, 1916, permanently Mar. 12, 1917; at \$1,400 May 1, 1918; at \$1,600 Mar. 1, 1919; at \$1,800 Nov. 1, 1923; at \$2,100 July 1, 1924; at \$2,200 Dec. 1, 1925; at \$2,300 Nov. 1, 1927; at \$2,400 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); private sec. to asst. sec. of state at \$2,600 Feb. 20, 1930; at \$2,800 July 1. 1930; at \$2,900 July 3. 1930 (Brookhart Act); disbursing officer to assist agt. for U. S., U. S.-Egypt Arbitration (Salem Claim), Vienna, 1931 .- A-C.

Demille, Paul Henry.—b. Essen, Germany, Nov. 3, 1892; naturalized 1918; attended public sch. of Germany and Sacre Coeur de Jesus, Netherlands, 1909; clk. in lumber company; U. S. Army 1913-19, 1921-24; app. clk. in Am. Consulate at Dresden July 3, 1924; at Stuttgart Nov. 3, 1924; at Tirana Jan. 1929; v. c. at Tirana June 22, 1929; at Monterrey Mar. 1, 1932; married.

Demorest, Alfredo L.—b. Santiago, Chile, of Am. parents. Feb. 13, 1881; attended business sch.; Univ. of Santiago, B. A. 1899; Univ. of Calif. 1901-2; author and illustrator; quartermaster for mfg. firm; U. S. Army 1918-19, 1st lt.; asst. mil. att. at Rio de Janeiro; capt., O. R. C.; sec., Second Pan American Financial Conf., Washington, 1920; app. v. c. at Trinidad Mar. 9, 1921.

Denby, James Orr.—b. Peking, China, of Am. parents. Aug. 30, 1896; Westminster Sch.; Princeton, B. A. 1919; George Washington, M. A. 1921; U. S. Army 1917-19; app., after exam., sec. of emb. or leg. of class four Aug. 24, 1921; assigned to the Dept. Sept. 8, 1921; asst. sec. of Am. del., Conf. on Limitation of Armament, Washington, 1921-22; assigned to Tokyo Jan. 31, 1922; to Athens July 23, 1923; For. Ser. officer of class eight and assigned as 3d sec. at Athens July 1, 1924; class seven Aug. 8, 1924; class six Oct. 19, 1926; assigned as 2d sec. at Managua Nov. 1, 1926 (canceled); at Peiping Jan. 21, 1927; class five July 24, 1930; assigned to Dublin Dec. 26, 1930; 1st sec. at Dublin June 23, 1931; married.

Denniston, Frederick W., Jr.—b. Wilkes-Barre, Pa., Jan. 12, 1909; Nat. Univ., LL. B. 1931; mem. of bar of D. C.; clk. 1927-31; app. clk., temp., at \$1,440 in the Dept. of State Mar. 25, 1931; appt. term. June 30, 1931; reapp. clk., temp., at \$1,440 July 9, 1931; permanently Dec. 16, 1931; detailed to the President's Organization on Unemployment Relief 1931-32; at \$1,620 May 1, 1934.—DCR.

Derry, Charles Hall.—b. Macon, Ga., June 14, 1900; high sch. grad.; U. S. Navy 1918-19; accounting 1919-22; app., after exam., v. c. of career of class three May 26, 1922; assigned to Santa Marta Aug. 28, 1922; app. cons. asst. Aug. 14, 1923, and detailed to the Dept.; For. Ser. officer unclass. July 1, 1924; v. c. of career Jan. 6, 1927; class eight June 30, 1927; cons. July 16, 1927; assigned to Paris June 2, 1928; class seven Oct. 16, 1929; class six July 1, 1931; assigned to Mazatlán Dec. 21, 1933; married.

Des Portes, Fay Allen.—b. Winnsboro, S.C., June 16, 1890; Mt. Zion Sch.; Clemson Coll.; N.C. Agric. and Mech. Coll. grad.; mem. of city council 1911; pres. and mgr., Des Portes Mercantile Co.; bank director; v. pres., chemical company; mem. of S.C. House of Representatives 1926–28; of S.C. Senate 1928–33; app. E.E. and M.P. to Bolivia Aug. 19, 1933; married.

De Vault, Charles Lemuel .- b. Columbia City, Ind., Oct. 22, 1874; Univ. of Mich., LL.B. 1895; principal of public sch. 1891; supt. of sch. 1895-96; law practice 1896-1918; clk. of Ind. House of Representatives, 1903; founder and joint editor of cml. journals in Mexico 1904; app. clk. in Am. Emb. at Paris Feb. 7, 1918; v. c. at Paris Apr. 15, 1919; at London Nov. 5, 1920; app., after exam., v. c. of career of class three Oct. 26, 1921; assigned to London Nov. 14, 1921; class two Nov. 23, 1923; class one May 10, 1924; For. Ser. officer unclass. July 1, 1924; class nine and cons. Aug. 8, 1924; assigned to Taihoku Dec. 12, 1924; class eight Feb. 24, 1925; assigned to Tokyo Mar. 3, 1928; class seven May 23, 1929; assigned to Yokohama Apr. 24, 1930; to Paris Oct. 25, 1933; married.

de Verteuil, Marc.—b. Trinidad, British West Indies, Mar. 10, 1894; Brit. subject; St. Mary's Coll., Trinidad, grad.; La Salle Extension Univ.; with asphalt company 1913-17, 1919-; Brit. Army 1918-19; app. cons. agt. at Brighton Mar. 23, 1921; married.

Dick, Hasell Hutchinson.—b. Rock Hill, S. C., June 29, 1888; high sch. grad.; U. S. N. A. two and one-half yrs.; app., after exam., cons. asst. Mar. 10, 1911;

dep. cons. gen. at Yokohama May 17, 1911; v. and dep. cons. gen. at Yokohama June 11, 1912; detailed to the Dept. Jan. 25, 1915; v. c. at Jerusalem July 19, 1915; at Basel July 13, 1917; cons. of class eight Sept. 14, 1917; class six Sept. 5, 1919; detailed to Geneva Oct. 23, 1919; to the Dept. May 21, 1920; class five June 4, 1920; class four June 3, 1924; For. Ser. officer of class five July 1, 1924; assigned to Sydney, N. S., Sept. 22, 1924; to Rangoon Nov. 27, 1926; to Port Elizabeth Aug. 30, 1929; class four May 9, 1930; assigned to Amoy Oct. 25, 1933; married.

Dickerson, Charles Estell, Jr.—b. Gill, Mass., Dec. 12, 1898; Mt. Hermon Sch.; Harvard, A. B. 1920; U. S. Army 1918; teacher, Robert Coll., Constantinople, 1920-21; entered Bu. of For. and Domes. Com. Oct. 10, 1921; clk. to trade commr. at Athens July 1, 1922; asst. trade commr. at Athens Apr. 1, 1924; asst. cml. att. Apr. 28, 1927; cml. att. at Cairo Mar. 19, 1928; married.

Dickey, John Sloan.—b. Lock Haven, Pa., Nov. 4, 1907; Bucknell, summer 1925; Dartmouth, A.B. 1929; Harvard, LL.B. 1932; mem. of bar of Mass.; law practice 1932–33; asst. to the commr., Dept. of Correction, Mass., 1933–34; app. asst. to the legal adviser and asst. to asst. sec. of state at \$3,800 Mar. 26, 1934; married.—A-S.

Dickey, Robert Russel, Jr.—b. Dayton, Ohio, June 24, 1896; Westminster Sch.; U. S. Marine Corps 1917-18, 1st lt.; app. cons. agt. at Pau Jan. 30, 1931.

Dickinson, Horace Jewell.—b. Arkansas City, Ark., Oct. 26, 1885; business course; Univ. of Ark. three yrs.; sec. 1900-1901, 1904; stenog. and typist, Bu. of Customs and Immigration, Philippine Is., 1905-0; app. marshal of Cons. Court at Canton July 6, 1909; app., after exam., cons. of class nine Apr. 19, 1917; assigned to Padang July 21, 1917; class eight Sept. 14, 1917; in charge of Am. Consulate at Batavia Jan. 9-July 9, 1918; detailed to Singapore June 18, 1918; assigned to Antilla Feb. 7, 1922; For. Ser. officer unclass. July 1, 1924.

Dickover, Erle Roy.—b. Long Beach, Calif., Jan. 20, 1888; Stanford 1905-6; Univ. of Calif., B. S. 1913; banking 1906-8; mgr. of auto livery company 1909; app., after exam., student interpreter in Japan Apr. 4, 1914; v. c. at Dairen Mar. 30, 1916; at Kobe June 8, 1916; also interpreter at Kobe Oct. 27, 1916; cons. of class six Nov. 23, 1921; class five Mar. 1, 1923; For. Ser. officer of class six July 1, 1924; class five Feb. 24, 1925; assigned to Kobe May 20, 1926; class four May 23, 1929; class three Feb. 4, 1931; assigned as For. Ser. officer to the emb. at Tokyo May 3, 1932; sec. in the Diplo. Ser. and assigned as 1st sec. at Tokyo May 24, 1932; married.

Dickson, Lillie Virginia (Mrs.)-b. Washington, D. C.; attended business high sch.; sec. in real estate and law offices and notary public 1907-15; clk., Dept. of State, 1915-20; reapp. clk. at \$1,200 Mar. 21, 1921; at \$1,400 Dec. 30, 1922, effective Jan. 1, 1923; at \$1,680 July 1, 1924; at \$1,740 Mar. 1, 1927; at \$1,800 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$1,920 July 1. 1930; at \$1,980 July 3, 1930 (Brookhart Act).--NE.

Dickson, Samuel Stirman.—b. Fayetteville, Ark., Nov. 18, 1895; attended business sch.; N. Mex. Mil. Inst. grad.; Washington and Lee Univ. two yrs.; bank clk. 1914; app. clk. in Am. Emb. at London Sept. 1917; app., after exam., sec. of emb. or leg. of class four May 3, 1918; assigned to London June 2, 1918; sec. of class three Dec. 20, 1919; assigned to Asunción Feb. 27, 1920; to Lisbon Mar. 1, 1922; to Bangkok Sept. 29, 1922; For. Ser. officer of class seven and assigned as 3d sec. at Bangkok July 1, 1924; at San Salvador Nov. 20, 1926; at Lima July 21, 1928 (canceled); at Bogotá Oct. 16, 1928; 2d sec. Oct. 19, 1929; class six May 9, 1930; assigned to Helsingfors Aug. 14, 1930; to Habana Sept. 21, 1933.

Dl Giulian, Inez Ayers (Mrs.)—b. Alexandria, Va.; attended high sch.; St. Mary's Acad.; clk., Post Office Dept., 1924; app. clk., ten.p., at \$1,320 in the Dept. of State Nov. 10, 1924; permanently Feb. 6, 1925; at \$1,500 Nov. 1, 1925; at \$1,560 Jan. 1, 1928; at \$1,620 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$1,800 July 1, 1930.—VD.

Dillingham, Sherburne.—b. Nantucket, Mass., May 14; 1907; Hoosac Sch. grad.; Williams Coll., B. A. 1929; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass., v. c. of career, and sec. in the Dlplo. Ser. Apr. 15, 1930; assigned as v. c. at Habana Apr. 29, 1930; to the For. Ser. Sch. Sept. 27, 1930 (canceled); to the For. Ser. Sch. Feb. 11, 1931; to São Paulo June 20, 1931.

Dismon, Frances Naomi (Mrs.)—b. New York City; Hunter Coll., B. A. 1916; George Washington Univ. 1923-24; clk. 1916-17, in War Dept. 1917-18; teaching and educational work 1918-20, 1923-24; clk., Dept. of State, May-Nov. 1923, Apr.-Aug. 1924; app. clk. at \$1,140 in the Dept. of State Oct. 27, 1924; at \$1,200 Dec. 1, 1925; at \$1,260 Mar. 1, 1927; at \$1,380 July 1, 1928 (Weich Act); at \$1,440 July 1, 1928; at \$1,620 Oct. 1, 1925; at \$1,740 July 1, 1930; at \$1,800 July 21, 1931.—PD.

Diven, Frederick Menkert.—b. Baltimore, Md., Feb. 17, 1892; Univ. of Va., LL. B. 1912; mem. of bar of Md.; instructor in law, Univ. of Va., 1913-14; law practice 1914-17; advertising work 1916-17; U. S. Army 1917; U. S. Naval Reserve Force 1918-19; app. clk. at \$900 in the Dept. of State Mar. 24, 1919; at \$1,000 July 1, 1919; at \$1,200 May 1, 1920; at \$1,400 Dec. 30, 1922, effective Jan. 1, 1923; law clk. at \$2,000 Feb. 10, 1923; at \$2,250 Nov. 1, 1923; at \$2,500 July 1, 1924; at \$2,700 May 1, 1925; at \$3,000 Dec. 31, 1925, effective Jan. 1, 1926; asst. to the solicitor Jan. 1, 1926; at \$3,200 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$3,300 July 1, 1923; at \$3,800 Dec. 1, 1929; at \$4,200 July 1, 1930; asst. to the legal adviser July 1, 1931; married.—LE.

Dix, Adele Emma.—b. Baltimore, Md.; attended high sch. and business sch.; George Washington Univ. two yrs.; teacher in business sch. two yrs.; app. clk., temp., in the Dept. of State Aug. 7, 1914; permanently at \$1,000 under Ex. order June 22, 1916, effective July 1; at \$1,200 Oct. 3, 1917; at \$1,400 Mar. 1, 1919; at \$1,600 Nov. 1, 1923; at \$1,860 July 1, 1924; at \$1,920 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$2,000 May 1, 1929; stenog., London Naval Conf., 1930; at \$2,200 July 1, 1930; at \$2,300 July 3, 1930 (Brookhart Act).--FA.

Doane, Elizabeth S.—b. Earlville, Ill.; high sch. grad.; N. Mex. Normal Sch., B. Pd.; Ill. State Normal one yr.; Kans. State Univ. three yrs.; teacher in public sch. ten yrs.; dep. county treas. three yrs.; clk. for publishing company one yr., in Eu. of Census 1920-21; app. clk. at \$900 in the Dept. of State Feb. 10, 1921; at \$1,000 Sept. 1, 1922; at \$1,100 May 31, 1924, effective June 1; at \$1,380 July 1, 1924; at \$1,440 Mar. 1, 1927; at \$1,500 May 1, 1927; at \$1,620 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$1,740 July 1, 1930.—DCR.

Doane, Vernon Harden.—b. Springdale, Ark., Nov. 19, 1909; high sch. grad.; Kans. State Teachers Coll. and Univ. of Kans.; George Washington Univ. 1930-; asst. fingerprint classifier, Dept. of Justice, 1930-31; app. clk. at \$1,440 in the Dept. of State Jan. 8, 1931; at \$1,620 May 1, 1934.—DCR.

Dodd, William Edward.—b. Clayton, N. C., Oct. 21, 1869; Oak Ridge Inst. grad.; Va. Polytech. Inst., B. S. 1895, M. S. 1897; Univ. of Leipzig, Ph. D. 1899; instructor of hist., Va. Polytech. Inst., 1895– 97; prof. of hist., Randolph-Macon, 1901--8; prof. of Am. hist., Univ. of Chicago, 1909-33; author; app. A. E. and P. to Germany June 13, 1933; married.

Dodson, Frederick Augustus.—b. Boston, Mass., Apr. 18, 1898; U. S. Navy 1918-19; app. asst. messenger in the Dept. of State Dec. 1, 1919.—PD.

Doherty, Nona Lillian.—b. Washington, D. C.; Univ. of Mich., A. B. 1923; Amer. Univ., grad. work, 1929–30; scientific illustrating, Dept. of Agric., summers 1918–22, 1923–24; Library of Cong. 1924–27; Dept. of Agric. Library 1927–28; app. library asst. at \$2,000 in the Dept. of State Dec. 1, 1928; at \$2,200 July 1, 1930.—RP.

Dominian, Leon.-b. Constantinople, Turkey, Apr. 13, 1880; naturalized 1913; private tutors; Robert Coll., Constantinople, A. B. 1898; Univ. of Liége 1899-1900; geological surveys in Turkey 1901-2; field asst., U. S. Geological Survey, 1903; instructor in N. Mex. State Sch. of Mines 1904; exploration in U. S. and Mexico 1905-7; writing 1908-11; editorial writer and geographer 1912-17; research work for the Dept. of State 1917-19; detailed to Am. Commn. to Negotiate Peace, Paris, 1919; app. special asst. at \$3,000 in the Dept. of State Aug. 12, 1919; drafting officer July 1, 1920; app., after exam., cons. of class four June 9, 1921; detailed to Rome July 21, 1921; class three June 3, 1924; assigned to Rome June 18, 1924; For. Ser. officer of class four July 1, 1924; cons. gen. and assigned to Stuttgart Dec. 19, 1929; class three May 9, 1930; assigned as For. Ser. officer to the leg. at Montevideo May 16, 1934; sec. in the Diplo. Ser. May 30, 1934; assigned as 1st sec. at Montevideo May 31, 1934; married.

Donald, George Kenneth .- b. Mobile, Ala., Nov. 27, 1890; Univ. Mil. Sch. of Mobile grad.; Phillips Andover; Yale, B. A. 1912; timber exporting business 1912-14; app., after exam., cons. at Maracaibo June 22, 1914; cons. of class eight by act approved Feb. 5, 1915; assigned to Nuevo Laredo Mar. 20, 1917; class seven Apr. 16, 1917; assigned to Aguascalientes Sept. 5, 1917; to St. Pierre-Miquelon Aug. 31, 1918 (canceled); detailed to Sydney, N. S., Sept. 23, 1918; assigned to Tegucigalpa Mar. 15, 1919; class six Sept. 5, 1919; class five Nov. 19, 1921; assigned to Johannesburg May 17, 1922; class four Mar. 1, 1923; For. Ser. officer of class five July 1, 1924; class four Aug. 8, 1924; class three Aug. 24, 1927; assigned to the Dept. May 11, 1928; cons. gen. and assigned to Guatemala June 12, 1928; chargé d'affaires at Guatemala June 6, 1932; sec. in the Diplo. Ser. June 16, 1932; assigned as 1st sec. at Guatemala, temp., June 20, 1932; as cons. gen. at Guatemala Oct. 1, 1932; at St. John's, N. F., Apr. 7, 1933; at Milan June 20, 1934; married.

Donaldson, Harry M.—b. West Newton, Pa., Mar. 29, 1906; attended business sch.; Oberlin, A. B. 1927; app. clk. in Am. Consulate at Marseille Oct. 14, 1927; v. c. at Marseille June 17, 1932; married.

Donegan, Alfred William .- b. Huntsville, Ala., Mar. 3, 1883; attended private sch.; Univ. of Va. 1900-1901, Law Sch. 1901-4; studied in Austria 1904-5; cons. agt. at Brünn, Austria, 1905-7; bookkeeper in bank 1907; app., after exam., cons. asst. June 24, 1908; dep. cons. gen. at Budapest Sept. 30, 1908; v. and dep. cons. at Algiers Apr. 20, 1909; dep. cons. gen, at Montreal Feb. 1, 1910; cons. at Magdeburg June 24, 1910; cons. of class eight by act approved Feb. 5, 1915; class seven Feb. 22, 1915; detailed for duty in Am. Leg. at Berne Feb. 28, 1917; class six Sept. 14, 1917; detailed to Zürich Jan. 13, 1919; class five Sept. 5, 1919; class four June 4, 1920; assigned to Königsberg Nov. 15, 1921; to Patras Apr. 28, 1923; For. Ser. officer of class five July 1, 1924; assigned to Munich Sept. 24, 1925; class four Sept. 29, 1927; class three July 24, 1930; assigned to Bucharest Nov. 2, 1931; to Basel Jan. 13, 1933; married.

Donnelly, Walter Joseph.—b. New Haven, Conn., Jan. 9, 1896; Georgetown Sch. of For. Ser.; George Washington Univ.; grad. work, Univ. of Caracas; newspaper reporting and advertising 1914–17; U. S. Army 1917–18, 2d lt.; special agt., Dept. of Justice, 1921–22; app. cml. agt. in Boston office, Bu. of For. and Domes. Com., Nov. 5, 1923; asst. trade commr. at Ottawa July 1, 1924; trade commr. at Montreal July 1, 1927; cml. att. at Bogotá Dec. 8, 1928; relieved Nov. 24, 1933; assigned as cml. att. at Habana Jan. 9, 1934.

Donovan, Andrew Edmund, 2d.—b. Fort Riley, Kans., May 11, 1908; Harvard, B. S. 1930; app. clk. in Am. Consulate General at Warsaw June 6, 1931; v. c. at Warsaw Aug. 27, 1931; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass., v. c. of career, and sec. in the Diplo. Ser. Dec. 17, 1931; assigned as v. c. at Warsaw Jan. 2, 1932; to the For. Ser. Sch. Aug. 19, 1932; to Yokohama Dec. 22, 1932 (canceled); to Mexico City Mar. 20, 1933. Donovan, Howard.—b. Windsor, Ill., Nov. 12, 1895; Mo. Mil. Acad.; Smith Acad. grad.; Yale, Ph. B. 1920; U. S. Army 1917-18; foreign service training class of motors export company 1920-21; app., after exam., v. c. of career of class three Oct. 26, 1921; assigned to London Dec. 14, 1921; class two Feb. 26, 1923; class one Nov. 23, 1923; assigned to Rio de Janeiro Feb. 29, 1924; For. Ser. officer unclass. July 1, 1924; class eight and cons. Aug. 8, 1924; assigned to Babia, temp., Oct. 28, 1925; permanently, May 20, 1926; to the Dept. June 26, 1929; to Kobe Sept. 5, 1929; class seven Dec. 19, 1929; married.

Doolittle, Hooker Austin .-- b. Mohawk, N. Y., Jan. 27, 1889; Utica Free Acad.; Cornell, A. B. 1911; clk. 1911-13; automobile business 1914; with credit company 1914-16; cml. agt. in N. Y. office, Bu. of For, and Domes. Com., 1916; app. v. c. at Tiflis Jan. 19, 1917; app., after exam., v. c. of career of class three Sept. 7, 1920, and assigned to Tiflis; to Madras Apr. 28, 1921; class two Nov. 17, 1921; class one May 26, 1922; cons. of class seven Mar. 1, 1923; detailed to Marseille July 19, 1923; class six Dec. 19, 1923; For. Ser. officer of class seven July 1, 1924; assigned to Bilbao June 2, 1926; class six Sept. 29, 1927; class five Aug. 15, 1930; assigned to Sarnia May 10, 1932; to Tangier May 6, 1933; sec. in the Diplo. Ser. June 13, 1933; assigned also as 2d sec. at Tangier June 19, 1933; married.

Dooman, Eugene Hoffman .- b. Osaka, Japan, Mar. 25, 1890; Am. citizen; tutors and Trinity Sch.; Trinity Coll., B. S. 1911; Columbia Univ. one yr.; app., after exam., student interpreter in Japan Mar. 12, 1912; v. c. and interpreter at Kobe May 7, 1915; cons. of class eight Sept. 14, 1917; class six Sept. 5, 1919; detailed to Taiboku Sept. 7, 1920; asst. Japanese sec. at Tokyo July 1, 1921; For. Ser. officer of class six July 1, 1924; class five Aug. 8, 1924; sec. in the Diplo, Ser. Apr. 30, 1926; asst. Japanese sec. and 2d sec. Apr. 30, 1926; Japanese sec. and 2d sec. at Tokyo May 19, 1926; class four May 17, 1928; class three July 24, 1930; assigned as 1st sec. at London Apr. 4, 1931; accompanied Ambassador Dawes to conference with delegates attending the sess. of the Council of the League adjourned from Geneva in discussions concerning Manchuria, Paris, 1931; assigned to the Dept. May 2, 1933; married.-FE.

Doran, Helen Fay .- b. Washington, D. C.; attended high sch. and business sch.; George Washington Univ. 1908-9, 1921-24; Washington Coll. of Law 1932-33; clk., Bu. of Census, 1910-12; stenog. and sec. 1912-17; app. clk., temp., at \$900 in the Dept. of State June 11, 1917; at \$1,000 Aug. 1, 1917; permanently Nov. 23, 1917; at \$1,200 May 1, 1918; at \$1.400 Dec. 31, 1919, effective Jan. 1, 1920; at \$1,600 Sept. 1, 1922; at \$1,860 July 1, 1924; at \$1,920 Mar. 1. 1927; at \$2,100 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$2,200 July 1, 1928; at \$2,300 Oct. 1, 1928; stenog. and disbursing officer, Int. Tech. Consulting Committee on Radio Communications, The Hague, 1929; admin. asst. at \$2,600 Mar. 1, 1930; at \$2,800 July 1, 1930; special disbursing officer, Seventh Int. Conf. of Am. States, Montevideo, 1933 .- PC.

Dormady, Francis Patrick.—b. Ashland, Wis., Aug. 13, 1890; attended business sch.; George Washington Univ. 1919; National Univ., A. B. 1933; elk. for law firm 1909-11; sec. to sec. of interior, P. I., 1912-16; elk. for fruit company at Port Limón 1917; U. S. Army 1918-19; elk. In War Dept. 1919, in cml. attaché's office at Peking 1919; app. v. c. at Tientsin June 25, 1920; at Amoy Nov. 15, 1923; resigned Aug. 6, 1924; app. elk. at \$1,320 in the Dept. of State Jan. 23, 1925; drafting officer and tech. asst. at \$3,000 July 1, 1925; at \$3,200 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$3,400 July 1, 1930.—VD.

Dorr, Julian Childe.—b. Seattle, Wash., Oct. 14, 1896; Powder Point Sch.; Georgetown Sch. of For. Ser. 1919-21; newspaper reporter 1915; U. S. Army 1917-18; app., after exam., v. c. of career of class three Oct. 26, 1921; assigned to Prague Dec. 14, 1921; to Naples Mar. 15, 1922; For. Ser. officer unclass. July 1, 1924; assigned to Genoa Mar. 6, 1926; class eight, cons., and assigned to Genoa July 24, 1930; to Barbados Jan. 10, 1931; to the Dept. May 27, 1932; married.

Dorsey, William Henry.—b. Prince Georges Co., Md., Sept. 5, 1869; laborer, Bu. of Engraving and Printing, 1906-11; app. laborer in the Dept. of State Nov. 24, 1911.—FA.

††Dorsey, William Roderick .--- b. Newmarket, Md., Oct. 8, 1868; Univ. of Md., B. L. 1893; mem. of bar of Md.; law practice 1894-96; with traction company 1897-98; law practice in London 1898-1901; asst. mgr. for Am. import firm, Shanghai, 1902-6; app. dep. cons. gen. at Shanghai Jan. 14, 1907; also marshal Aug. 13, 1907; v. and dep. cons. gen. June 25, 1908; retired as marshal July 31, 1908; app., after exam., cons. at Jerez de la Frontera Aug. 22, 1912; at Tripoli Nov. 24, 1913; cons. of class eight by act approved Feb. 5, 1915; class seven Mar. 2, 1915; assigned to Rangoon July 14, 1916; to Quebec Mar. 20, 1917; class six Sept. 14, 1917; detailed to Shanghai Sept. 11, 1918; class five Sept. 5, 1919; assigned to Florence Oct. 22, 1919; class four June 4, 1920; assigned to Catania Mar. 30, 1923; For. Ser. officer of class five July 1, 1924; class four Feb. 24, 1925; assigned to Tsingtao Apr. 10, 1925; to Tientsin, temp., July 28, 1928; to Tsingtao Jan. 12, 1929; class three July 24, 1930; to Madrid July 8, 1931; (canceled); cous. gen. Jan. 7, 1932; assigned to Genoa Jan. 8, 1932; retired Oct. 31, 1933, under the provisions of the act of Feb. 23, 1931; married.

Dorsz, Edmund J.—b. Detroit, Mich., Feb. 23, 1906; attended high sch., business sch., trade sch., and night sch.; Berlitz Sch. of Languages 1926-27; tech. engineering 1921-29; municipal employee in Detroit 1929; for. tariff expert, Dept. of Com., 1929; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass. and v. c. of career Nov. 12, 1929; assigned to Ottawa, temp., Nov. 27, 1929; to the For. Ser. Sch. July 16, 1930; to Yokohama Nov. 8, 1930; to Kobe Oct. 6, 1932; to Taihoku, temp., Apr. 6, 1933; to Kobe June 28, 1933; to Nagaaski, temp., Apr. 10, 1934. Doud, Harold (2d Lt.)-b. White Cloud, Mich., May 1, 1901; U. S. M. A., grad. 1926; assigned as language officer at Tokyo Mar. 2, 1931; married.

Douglass, William Boone, Jr.-b. Washington, D. C., Apr. 7, 1898; Columbia Univ. 1919-20; Cornell, A. B. 1922; U. S. Army 1918; chainman for public land survey 1919; app. clk. in Am. Consulate at Calcutta July 18, 1922; v. c. at Calcutta Sept. 1, 1923; at Karachi Sept. 11, 1923; at Calcutta July 15, 1925; at Santo Domingo Jan. 6, 1926; resigned Nov. 4, 1926; newspaper reporter 1927; app. clk. in Am. Consulate at Santo Domingo Dec. 20, 1927; v. c. at Santo Domingo Mar. 14, 1928; clk. in Am. Leg. at Santo Domingo, temp., July 10, 1928; v. c. at Santo Domingo Sept. 11, 1928; at Cape Haitien, temp., Sept. 6. 1928; at Santo Domingo Oct. 30, 1928; at Chihuahua Feb. 6, 1929; at Saltillo, temp., Aug. 22, 1929; at Chihuahua Oct. 1, 1929; at Ciudad Juarez Mar. 1, 1930; at Málaga Aug. 18, 1930; at Seville, temp., Sept. 18, 1930; at Málaga Jan. 15, 1931; at Seville, temp., July 22, 1931; at Málaga Sept. 22, 1931; at St. Michael's, temp., Apr. 13, 1932; at Málaga Sept. 3, 1932; at Tenerife, temp., Nov. 6, 1933; at Málaga Feb. 2, 1934.

Dow. Edward A .- b. Fort Dodge, Iowa, Apr. 20, 1879; attended business sch.; St. Ambrose Coll. three yrs.; St. Paul Sem. two yrs.; insur. and real estate business 1900-1915; app., after exam., cons. of class nine Oct. 18, 1915; assigned to St. Stephen Nov. 22, 1915; to Fort William and Port Arthur Mar. 20, 1917; class eight Scpt. 14, 1917, and assigned to Ciudad Juarez; class six Sept. 5, 1919; class five June 4, 1920; assigned to Algiers Oct. 23, 1920; class four Aug. 23, 1922; For. Ser. officer of class five July 1, 1924; assigned to Rotterdam Oct. 20, 1924; class four Feb. 24, 1925; assigned to Frankfort-onthe-Main Sept. 7, 1928; class three May 9, 1930; assigned to St. John's, N. F., May 12, 1930; cons. gen. and assigned to St. John's June 20, 1930; to Santiago, Chile, Apr. 1, 1933; married.

Dowling, Walter Cecil.—b. Atkinson, Ga., Aug. 4, 1905; Mercer Univ., B. A. 1925; clk. 1925-26; clk. and stenog. 1926-29; secretary 1929-31; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass., v. c. of career, and sec. in the Diplo. Ser. Dec. 17, 1931; assigned to the For. Ser. Sch. Dec. 30, 1931; as v. c. at Oslo Apr. 7, 1932; married.

Downer, Alice Scheibel (Mrs.)—b. Scranton, Pa.; high sch. and business sch. grad.; stenog. 1929; app. clk. at \$1,440 in the Dept. of State Jan. 6, 1930; at \$1,560 July 6, 1930; at \$1,620 June 20, 1931.—SS.

Dowrick, Lillie B.—b. Washington, D. C.; high sch. and husiness sch. grad.; attended Spanish sch.; secretary, Brit. Embassy, 1916-20; app. clk. at \$1,200 in the Dept. of State Dec. 22, 1920; at \$1.400 Mar. 1, 1924; at \$1,680 July 1, 1924; at \$1,740 Dec. 1, 1925; asst. to chief, stenographic section, Jan. 1, 1927; at \$1,800 Nov. 1, 1927; at \$1,860 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); stenog., Int. Tech. Consulting Committee on Radio Communications, The Hague, 1929; at \$1,980 July 1, 1930; at \$2,040 July 3, 1930 (Brookhart Act).—SS.

Doyle, Albert Martin.—b. Chatham, Ontario, Sept. 3, 1892; naturalized 1918; Chatham Coll. Inst.; Univ. of Toronto, A. B. 1913; Univ. of Detroit, LL. B. 1921; mem. of bar of Mich.; newspaper reporter 1913-14; teacher in high sch. 1914-15; real estate agt. 1915-17, 1919-20; U. S. Army 1917-19, 2d lt.; asst. probation officer of recorder's court 1920-21; app., after exam., v. c. of career of class three May 26, 1922; class two Nov. 23, 1923; class one May 10, 1924; For. Ser. officer unclass. July 1, 1924; class eight and cons. Dec. 17, 1925; assigned to Rotterdam Apr. 2, 1926; to Brisbane Jan. 21, 1929; class seven Dec. 19, 1929; married.

Drew, Gerald Augustin.—b. San Francisco, Calif., June 20, 1903; Calif. Sch. of Mech. Arts; Univ. of Calif., B. S. 1924; Univ. of Grenoble 1924–25; Univ. of Madrid 1925–26; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass. and v. c. of career Aug. 24, 1927; assigned to the For. Ser. Sch. Sept. 29, 1927; to Pará Feb. 24, 1928; sec. in the Diplo. Ser. Apr. 15, 1930; assigned as 3d sec. at Port au Prince July 7, 1930; at San José, Costa Rica, June 20, 1934; married.

Drew, Norris E.—b. Haverhill, Mass., May 13, 1892; business sch. grad.; Kans. State Teachers Coll., B. S. 1927; grad. work, Univ. of Kans. and George Washington Univ.; stenog. and typist 1912-13; requisition clk., Panama Canal, 1913-18; U. S. Army 1918-19, 2d lt., overseas service; asst. to purchasing agt. for motor company 1920-21; teacher in high sch. 1921-25; principal and supt. of sch. 1926-30; app. clk. at \$1,620 in the Dept. of State June 9, 1930; at \$1,800 July 7, 1930; at \$2,000 June 1, 1931; married.—RP.

Dreyer, Helen Zilch (Mrs.)—b. Cumberland, Md.; high sch. grad.; attended business sch.; Wittenberg Coll. 1924-26; Univ. of Md. 1926-27; app. clk., temp., at \$1,440 in the Dept. of State Jan. 6, 1930; permanently Aug. 8, 1930; at \$1,620 Feb. 9, 1931.—RP.

Dreyfus, Louis Goethe, Jr .--- b. Santa Barbara, Calif., Nov. 23, 1889; Hotchkiss Sch.; Yale, B. A. 1910, M. A. 1911; Alliance Française, summer 1910; app., after exam., cons. asst. Dec. 20, 1910; dep. cons. gen. at Berlin Mar. 16, 1911; v. and dep. cons. at Callao May 27, 1912; cons. agt. at Quibdo July 5, 1913; v. and dep. cons. gen. at Berlin Feb. 26, 1914; v. c. at Berlin Feb. 6, 1915; at Budapest July 14, 1915; cons. of class eight July 12, 1916; in charge at Sofia Oct. 10-Nov. 30, 1916; assigned to Sivas Mar. 20, 1917; to Málaga June 5, 1917; detailed to Paris Aug. 25, 1919; class six Sept. 5, 1919; assigned to Palermo Mar. 12, 1920; class five June 4, 1920; assigned to Dresden Nov. 15, 1921; class four Nov. 23, 1921; class three Mar. 1, 1923; cons. gen. of class four June 5, 1924; For. Ser. officer of class three July 1, 1924; For. Ser. insp. May 1, 1925; class two June 30, 1927; assigned to Oslo Oct. 7, 1927; For. Ser. insp. Oct. 1, 1928; assigned to Naples July 27, 1929; class one May 9, 1930; to Copenhagen July 31, 1931; sec. in the Diplo. Ser. June 13, 1933; assigned as cours. of emb. at Lima June 26, 1933; married.

Driscoll, Edward Eugene.—b. Fort Sisseton, S. Dak., Nov. 13, 1887; attended high sch. and business sch.; clk. and sec. 1903-14; app. clk., temp., in the Dept. of State Aug. 25, 1914; permanently at \$900 under Ex. order June 22, 1916, effective July 1; at \$1,000 June 16, 1917; at \$1,200 Nov. 20, 1917; at \$1,400 June 16, 1919; at \$1,600 Sept. 8, 1921; at \$1,860 July 1, 1924; at \$1,920 Mar. 1, 1927; at \$2,100 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$2,200 July 1, 1928; file clk., Conf. for the Codification of Int. Law, The Hague, 1930; at \$2,300 July 1, 1930; married.—DCR.

Drissel, Roger S .- b. Keller's Church, Pa., June 30, 1877; attended business sch.; Bethany Coll. 1906; West Chester Normal Sch., and Perkiomen Sem.; teacher in public sch. 1896-1900; Navy Dept., 1900-1906; clk., U. S. Superintending Naval Constructor, 1906-7; app. clk. at \$900 in the Dept. of State Mar. 19, 1907; at \$1,000 Sept. 3, 1907; at \$1,200 July 1, 1908; at \$1,400 Dec. 1, 1909; at \$1,600 June 22, 1916, effective July 1; at \$1,800 Dec. 31, 1919, effective Jan. 1, 1920; special asst. at \$2,000 Jan. 16, 1922; asst. chief, Bu. of Indexes and Archives, July 1, 1922; at \$2,500 Sept. 1, 1922; at \$2,800 July 1, 1924; at \$3,000 June 1, 1927; special asst., Sixth Int. Conf. of Am. States, Habana, 1928; at \$3,200 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act): at \$3,300 July 1, 1928; at \$3,500 July 1, 1930; asst. chief, Division of Communications and Records, Jan. 1, 1931; married .---DCR.

Drumright, Everett Francis.—b. Drumright, Okla., Sept. 15, 1906; Okla. Agric. and Mech. Coll. 1925–26; Univ. of Okla., B. S. 1929; cml. work 1929–30; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass., v. c. of career. and sec. in the Diplo. Ser. Dec. 16, 1930; assigned as v. c. at Ciudad Juarez, temp., Dec. 27, 1930; to the For. Ser. Sch. Aug. 8, 1931; to Hankow Dec. 10, 1931; as language officer at Peiping July 15, 1932.

Drury, Louis Mason.—b. Washington, D. C., Jan. 19, 1910; high sch. grad.; attended business sch.; Nat. Univ., LL. B. 1931; bookkeeper 1928-31; clk., Veterans' Bu., 1931; app. clk., temp., at \$1,440 in the Dept. of State Oct. 9, 1931; permanently Jan. 1, 1932.—DCR.

Dryer, Mildred Verna.—b. Lansing, Mich.; high sch. grad.; attended business sch.; clk. in Govt. depts. and publishing house 1917-23; app. clk. at \$1,000, temp., in the Dept. of State Nov. 26, 1923; permanently at \$900 Dec. 31, 1923, effective Jan. 1, 1924; at \$1,500 July 1, 1924; at \$1,560 Mar. 1, 1925; at \$1,620 Dec. 1, 1925; at \$1,680 Mar. 1, 1927; at \$1,740 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$1,800 July 1, 1928; at \$1,860 July 1, 1930; at \$1,920 July 3, 1930 (Brookhart Act).—SS.

Drysdale, Walter Scott (Lt. Col.)—b. Murree, British India, Sept. 3, 1880; naturalized 1914; Kans. Univ. 1899; U.S.M.A., grad. 1904; mil. att. at Peiping 1917-21; assigned as mil. att. at Peiping and

160

Bangkok Mar. 11, 1932; attended Conf. for Settlement of Shanghai Incident Mar.-June 1932 and mem. of joint commn. formed as result of that conf.; married.

du Bois, Coert .--- b. Hudson, N. Y., Nov. 10, 1881; Biltmore (N. C.) Forest Sch., Bachelor of Forestry 1901, Forest Engineer 1907; tech. and admin. work, U. S. Forest Ser., 1901-17; U. S. Army 1917-18, lt. col., overseas service; app., after exam., cons. of class seven Sept. 5, 1919; detailed to Paris Nov. 25, 1919; to Naples Apr. 15, 1920; class six Nov. 23, 1921; assigned to Port Said Apr. 3, 1922; class five Mar. 1, 1923; detailed to the Dept. Nov. 17, 1923; asst. chief. Visa Office, Apr. 11, 1924; class four June 5, 1924; For. Ser. officer of class five July 1, 1924; chief, Visa Office, Dec. 1, 1924; representative on inter-departmental committee on examination of immigrants abroad, 1925; class four June 2, 1926; cons. gen. and assigned to Batavia May 7, 1927; class three May 26, 1928; For. Ser. insp. Mar. 26, 1930; class two May 9, 1930; assigned to Genoa Jan. 7, 1931; to Naples July 30, 1931; representative, Sixth Int. Fair of Tripoli, 1932; married.

Duff, Russell G. (1st Lt.)-b. Saginaw, Mich., Aug. 2, 1598; Va. Mil. Inst., B. S. in C. E. 1921; entered U. S. Army Aug. 4, 1921; assigned as language officer at Tokyo Aug. 18, 1932; married.

Duffley, Margaret S.—b. Brookline, Mass.; high sch. grad.; Boston Univ. 1925–27; stenog. 1927–29; secretary 1929–30; app. clk. at \$1,440 in the Dept. of State June 2, 1930; at \$1,620 Dec. 4, 1930; at \$1,800 Jan. 1, 1932; clk.. Int. Monetary and Economic Conf., London, 1933.—PC.

Duffy, Mary Alice.—b. Washington, D. C.; Notre Dame Acad.; in law office 1906-18; app. clk. at \$1,000 in the Dept. of State Nov. 14, 1918; at \$1,200 Sept. 1, 1919; resigned Mar. 1920; reapp. clk. at \$1,200 July 19, 1920; at \$1,400 Sept. 16, 1922; at \$1,860 July 1, 1924; at \$1,920 Dec. 1, 1925; at \$2,000 Jan. 1, 1928; at \$2,200 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$2,300 July 1, 1928; stenog., Int. Conf. on Safety of Life at Sea, London, 1929, Conf. for the Codification of Int. Law, The Hague, 1930; at \$2,400 July 1, 1930.—LE.

Dugan, Henry P.—b. Philadelphia, Pa., May 3, 1872; attended high sch.; telegraph operator 1893– 1907, in Weather Bu. 1907–10; app. ck. at \$900 in the Dept. of State Jan. 17, 1910; at \$1,200 July 1, 1911; at \$1,400 May 1, 1916; at \$1,600 Sept. 8, 1916; at \$1,800 Dec. 31, 1919, effective Jan. 1, 1920; ck., Lausanne Conf., 1923; at \$2,100 July 1, 1924; at \$2,200 Nov. 1, 1927; at \$2,200 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); code ck., London Naval Conf., 1930; at \$2,500 July 1, 1930; at \$2,600 July 3, 1930 (Brookhart Act); married.—DCR.

Duggan, Laurence.—b. New York City May 28, 1905; Phillips Exeter grad.; Harvard, A. B. 1927; publishing 1927-28; Inst. of Int. Education 1929-30; app. divisional asst. at \$3,200 in the Dept. of State Nov. 1, 1930; at \$4,600 Mar. 14, 1934; married.—LA.

67359 - 34 - 12

+Dumont, Frederick T. Frelinghuysen.-b. Phillipsburg, N. J., Mar. 17, 1869; Lafayette Coll., C. E. 1889, M. S. 1895; engineer 1889-1900; founder and director of trust companies 1901-4; consulting englneer for mining companies in Canada, Mexico, and U. S. 1901-3, 1905-10; cons. agt, at Sonneberg, Germany, 1904-5; app., after exam., cons. at Guadeloupe Aug. 19, 1911; at Madrid Aug. 22, 1912; at Florence Apr. 24, 1914; cons. of class seven by act approved Feb. 15, 1915; class six Mar. 2, 1915; class five Sept. 5, 1919; assigned to Dublin Sept. 6, 1919; class three June 4, 1920; unassigned from Dec. 27, 1921; assigned to Frankfort-on-the-Main Feb. 18. 1922: cons. gen. of class four Mar. 1, 1923; assigned to Frankfort-on-the-Main Mar. 28, 1923; For. Ser. officer of class three July 1, 1924; on leave of absence from Nov. 4, 1925; detailed to the Dept. June 5, 1926; in charge of Cons. Cml. Office and liaison officer to the Bu. of For. and Domes. Com. July 6, 1926; class two May 17, 1928; Pan American Commn. for the Simplification and Standardization of Cons. Procedure, Washington, 1928; un assigned from May 6, 1929; assigned as cons. gen. at Habana Oct. 26, 1929; class one July 24, 1930; retired Mar. 31, 1934, under the provisions of the act of Feb. 23, 1931; married.

Duncan, Norman.—b. Brooklyn, N. Y., May 16, 1895; high sch, and business sch. grad.; stenog. 1916–17; U. S. Marine Corps 1917–19; secretary in mining companies in U. S. and Africa 1919–26, in Peru 1927-; app. cons. agt. at La Oroya Apr. 6, 1931; married.

Dunham, Donald Carl.—b. Columbus, Ohio, Aug. 30, 1908; Phillips Andover grad.; Yale, Ph. B. 1930; app. clk. in Am. Consulate General at Berlin June 9, 1931; v. c. at Berlin Sept. 4, 1931; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass., v. c. of career, and sec. in the Diplo. Ser. Dec. 17, 1931; assigned as v. c. at Berlin Jan. 2, 1932; to the For. Ser. Sch. Mar. 17, 1932; to Hong Kong July 26, 1932.

Dunker, Will F.—b. Davenport, Iowa, Aug. 16, 1898; high sch. grad.; George Washington Law Sch. 1919-21; executive clk., War Dept., 1917-19; clk., Post Office Dept., 1920; app. clk. at \$1,100 in the Dept. of State Sept. 23, 1920; at \$1,200 Sept. 1, 1922; at \$1,500 July 1, 1924; at \$1,860 Dec. 31, 1924, effective Jan. 1, 1925; at \$1,020 Mar. 1, 1927; at \$2,100 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$2,200 July 1, 1928; at \$2,400 July 1, 1930; married.—AP.

Dunlap, Maurice Pratt.—b. Toledo, Ohio, Dec. 9, 1882; Prlnceton, B. A. 1912; Columbia, M. A. 1913; editorial work for newspaper syndicate 1904-6; clk., Philippine Civil Scr., 1007-11; editorial work in Dept. of Agric. 1913-15; contributor to magazines and newspapers; app., after exam., cons. of class nine Feb. 22, 1915, and assigned to Stavanger; detailed to Copenhagen July 13, 1917; class eight Sept. 14, 1917; assigned to Odense May 27, 1918; detailed to Copenhagen June 5, 1919; class six Sept. 5, 1919; detailed to Malmö Nov. 27, 1920; to Copenhagen Jan. 1921; assigned to Bangkok June 24, 1922; unassigned from July 21, 1923; detailed to Port au Prince Apr. 7, 1924; For. Ser. officer of class seven July 1, 1924; assigned to Port au Prince Dec. 28, 1925; class six June 2, 1926; assigned to Stockholm July 12, 1927; detailed to Int. Radiotelegraph Conf., Washington, 1927; class five July 24, 1930; assigned to Dundee Oct. 7, 1932; married.

Dunn, James Clement.-b. Newark, N. J., Dec. 27, 1890; studied law and architecture; architect 1912-17; U. S. Navy 1917-19, lt., aide to naval att. at Habana; clk., Dept. of State, 1919; app., after exam., sec. of emb. or leg. of class four Sept. 5, 1919, and assigned to the Dept.; to Berne Nov. 15, 1919 (canceled); to Madrid Feb. 26, 1920; class three Aug. 24, 1921; assigned to Port au Prince Mar. 1, 1922; class two Jan. 23, 1924; assigned to Brussels Mar, 7, 1924; For Ser. officer of class four and assigned as 1st sec. at Brussels July 1, 1924; class three June 2, 1926; assigned to the Dept. Apr. 29, 1927; dir. of ceremonies at the White House Sept. 27, 1927; chief, Division of Int. Conf. and Protocol, Feb. 4, 1928; class two Oct. 16, 1929; couns. to Commn. for study and review of conditions in Haiti, 1930; assigned as 1st sec. at London May 17, 1930; resigned Aug. 7, 1930; app. chief, Division of Int. Conf., at \$8,000 in the Dept. of State Sept. 10, 1931; sec. of del., Fourth Pan American Cml. Conf., Washington, 1931; sec. gen. of Am. del., 1st stage, Gen. Disarmament Conf., Geneva, 1932; asst., 1st meeting of Experts' Prep. Committee for Int. Monetary and Ecouomic Conf., Geneva, 1932, and sec. of Am. del. to Conf., London, 1933; Chief, Division of Protocol and Conferences, June 1, 1933; sec. gen. to Am. del., Seventh Int. Conf. of Am. States, Montevideo, 1933; special asst. to the sec. of state and chief of protocol, temp., at \$8,000 Feb. 1, 1934; permanently Feb. 12, 1934; married.-SA.

Durbrow, Elbridge.—b. San Francisco, Calif., Sept. 21, 1903; Shattuck Sch. grad.; Yale, Ph. B. 1926; Stanford 1927; Univ. of Dijon 1927; Académie de Droit International de la Hague, summer 1928; L'École Libre des Sciences Politiques, diploma 1929; asst. land appraiser with railroad company, summers 1923, 1924, 1925; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass., v. e. of career, and sec. in the Diplo. Ser. Apr. 15, 1930; assigned as v. c. at Warsaw May 17, 1930; to the For. Ser. Sch. Dec. 22, 1931; to Bucharrest Apr. 7, 1932; to Moscow Feb. 10, 1934.

Durfee, Loyd Van Horne (Capt.)—b. Columbus Barracks, Ohio, Dec. 23, 1895; U.S.M.A., grad. 1917; assigned as asst. mil. att. at Habana Jan. 27, 1934.

Durning, Daniel Joseph.—b. Spencer, Mass., Oct. 16, 1881; attended high sch.; stock clk. for mfg. companies 1898-1919; clk in Govt. depts. 1919-23; app. clk. at \$900 in the Dept. of State Dec. 13, 1923; at \$1,000 Apr. 1, 1924; at \$1,320 July 1, 1924; at \$1,380 Dec. 1, 1925; at \$1,500 Nov. 1, 1926; at \$1,620 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$1,680 July 1, 1928; at \$1,800 July 1, 1930.—DCR.

Dutko, Paul Michael.---b. Mayfield, Pa., Jan. 5, 1894; Mansfield (Pa.) State Normal Sch., grad. 1914. grad. work 1914-15; Dickinson Coll., A. B. 1917; Dickinson Law Sch. two yrs.; George Washington Law Sch., summer 1918; instructor, Mansfield State Normal Sch., 1914-15; teacher 1917-18; clk., Govt. depts., 1917-18; app. clk. in the Diplo. Ser. to proceed to Japan for War Trade Bd. work Dec. 18, 1918; app. v. c. at Vladivostok Aug. 20, 1919; at Harbin Nov. 23, 1920; at Seoul, temp., Sept. 13, 1930; at Harbin Nov. 10, 1930; at Riga June 28, 1932; married.

Duvall, Frank E.—b. Washington, D. C., Dec. 25, 1900; attended high sch. and business sch.; clk., District govt., 1916-18; app. clk., temp., at \$840 in the Dept. of State May 4, 1918; at \$1,020 Nov. 1, 1918; at \$960 July 1, 1919; at \$1,020 Feb. 1, 1920; at \$1,200 Oct. 5, 1920, effective Oct. 1; permanently at \$1,000 Feb. 1, 1921; at \$1,200 Aug. 16, 1921; at \$1,600 July 1, 1924; at \$1,560 Mar. 1, 1927; at \$1,620 Jan. 1, 1928; at \$1,740 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$1.800 July 1, 1928; at \$2,000 July 1, 1930; married.—FE.

Dwyer, Henry Thomas.—b. Providence, R. I., July 21, 1895; La Salle Acad. grad.; business sch. grad.; Holy Cross Coll. 1914-15; civil engineering 1915-17; clk., Ordnance Dept., 1917-18; Army field clk. 1918-21; app. clk. in Am. Consulate General at Guatemala July 1921; v. c. at Guatemala Feb. 17, 1922; clk. at Am. Consulate General at Habana Sept. 1922; v. c. at Habana Apr. 22, 1925; at Nuevitas, temp., Nov. 20, 1928; at Habana Jan. 2, 1929; at La Guaira Jan. 19, 1929; at Curaçao, temp., Mar. 5, 1929; at Maracaibo, temp., Sept. 30, 1929; at Fort William and Port Arthur June 13, 1930.

Dwyre, Dudley G .- b. London, England, Jan. 30, 1880: Am. citizen: Colo. State Agric. Coll., grad. 1901; grad. work, George Washington Univ., 1917-18: clk. and principal teacher, U. S. Indiau Ser., 1902-3; stenog., Manila, P. I., 1904; chief clk. and asst. supt., U. S. Indian Agey., 1904-8; chief clk., U. S. Indian Warehouse, 1909-17; chief of section, Bu. of Indian Affairs, 1917-18; app. clk., temp., at \$1,720 in the Dept. of State Nov. 2, 1918; at \$1,600 July 1, 1919; permanently Sept. 1, 1919; app., after exam., cons. of class seven Sept. 5, 1919; assigned to Maracaibo Oct. 29, 1919; to Fort William and Port Arthur Sept. 21, 1921; class six Mar. 1, 1923; assigned to Guadalajara June 23, 1924; For. Ser. officer of class seven July 1, 1924; class six Feb. 24, 1925; assigned to the Dept. Aug. 17, 1927; class five Sept. 29, 1927; assigned to Mexico City Oct. 19, 1928; class four July 24, 1930; to London June 30, 1934; married.

Dye, Alexander Vincent.—b. Flora. Ill., Feb. 11, 1876; attended bushness sch.; William Jewell Coll., A. B. 1901, A. M. 1902; grad. work, Chicago Univ., summer 1902; Univ. of Leipzig, Ph. D. 1904; prof., William Jewell Coll., 1904-9; app., after exam., cons. at Nogales May 31, 1909; resigned Jan. 1, 1913; mining 1913-17; app. special asst. in the Dept. of State and representative of War Trade Ed. in Norway Nov. 10, 1917; resigned June 1, 1919; with Am. corp. in London 1919-21; app. trade commr. at London Sept. 1921; asst. cml. att. at London, Aug. 1923; cml. att. at Mexico City Oct. 1, 1923; at Buenos Aires Aug. 30, 1926; del., Tbirteenth Int. Parliamentary Cml. Conf., Rio de Janeiro, 1927; also cml. att. at Asunción Apr. 27, 1931; tech. adviser to Am. del., Seventh Int. Conf. of Am. States, Montevideo, 1933; married.

Dye, Charles Dea.— δ . Oil Center, Ky., June 1, 1897; Eastern Ky. State Normal Sch. 1914–15; attended business sch.; La Salle Extension Unlv. 1924–25; teacher in public sch. 1915–16; farming 1917; clk., War Dept., 1918; U. S. Army 1918–19; clk., Treas. Dept., 1919–20; farming 1920–22; in Veterans' Bu. 1923–25; app. clk. at \$1,320 in the Dept. of State Feb. 12, 1926; at \$1,380 Mar. 1, 1927; at \$1,440 Jan. 1, 1928; at \$1,560 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$1,620 July 1, 1928; at \$1,740 July 1, 1930.—DCR.

Dye. John Walter .- b. Winona, Minn., Feb. 4, 1878; Pillsbury Acad. grad.; Univ. of Minn., A. B. 1904: George Washington Univ. 1905-6; physical dir., Minn. Agric. Sch., 1903-4, and Y. M. C. A. 1904-5; app., after exam., cons. clk. July 21, 1906; dep. cons. gen. at Berlin Dec. 18, 1906; cons. asst. July 1, 1908; dep. cons. gen. at Genoa Nov. 25, 1908; v. and dep. cons. gen. May 10, 1909; at Boma Dec. 30, 1910; at Smyrna Dec. 13, 1911; cons. agt. at Damascus Dec. 8, 1913; v. and dep. cons. gen. at Cape Town Nov. 18, 1914; v. c. at Cape Town Feb. 6, 1915; at Johannesburg Oct. 18, 1915; at Cape Town Nov. 5, 1915; app. cons. of class eight July 12, 1916; detailed to Port Elizabeth Sept. 6, 1917; assigned to Port Elizabeth Mar. 9, 1918; class six Sept. 5, 1919; class five June 4, 1920; detailed to Ciudad Juarez Feb. 28, 1921; assigned to Ciudad Juarez Oct. 2, 1923; class four June 3, 1924; For. Ser. officer of class five July 1, 1924; tech. adviser, Conf. with Mexico to Prevent Smuggling, El Paso, Tex., 1925, and Conf. for Formulation of Regulations under the Smuggling Conv. of 1925, Washington, 1926; class four May 23, 1929; to Montreal Sept. 30, 1929; to Wellington Sept. 18, 1930; to Melbourne July 13, 1931; married.

† Earle, George Howard 3d.—b. Devon, Pa., Dec. 5, 1890; DeLancey Sch. grad.; Harvard 1909-11; U. S. Army 1916, 2d lt., Mexican border service; U. S. Navy 1917-19, lt. (jg); owner and pres. of sugar mills; vice pres. of sugar company; app. E. E. and M. P. to Austria July 24, 1933; resigned Mar. 25, 1934; married.

Earle, Matthew Clinton.—b. New York City Oct. 23, 1902; high sch. grad.; clk. 1921-27; app. clk., temp., at \$1,500 in the N. Y. Passport Agency of the Dept. of State Apr. 4, 1927; permanently Nov. 1, 1927; at \$1,680 May 1, 1928; at \$1,800 July 1, 1928; at \$2,200 May 1, 1930.

Earnest, Edwin Burchett.—b. Seymour, Iowa, May 7, 1904; Univ. of Iowa, B. A. 1926; employed by student's recreation center 1923-27; app. clk. in Am. Consulate at Manchester Mar. 30, 1927; v. c. at Manchester Mar. 8, 1928; at Edinburgh Apr. 9, 1930; married. Eaton, Earl Wilbert.—b. Robinson, Ill., Feb. 13, 1882; Austin Coll. two yrs.; teacher in public sch. 1900-1901; Ill. Nat. Guard 1905-7, 1st lt.; post office clk. 1915-17; dep. collector of customs 1917-18; app. v. c. at Nuevo Laredo Dec. 4, 1918; at Saltillo July 1, 1920; at Nuevo Laredo June 24, 1924; at Manzanillo Sept. 29, 1925; at Ensenada Feb. 4, 1928; at Ciudad Obregon Mar. 23, 1929; at Guaymas, temp., June 11, 1929; at Mazatlán Dec. 20, 1929; at Windsor, Ont., temp., Aug. 6, 1930; at Mazatlán Oct. 23, 1930; marrled.

+Eberhardt, Charles Christopher.-b. Salina, Kans., July 27, 1871; Wesleyan Univ.; in insur. business; app, clk, in Am. Emb. at Mexico City Nov. 1903; v. and dep. cons. gen. at Mexico City Oct. 29, 1904; cons. at Iquitos May 24, 1906; at Barranquilla May 1, 1908; cons. gen. at large Jan. 12, 1910; cons. gen. of class three July 6, 1918; assigned to Rio de Janeiro Sept. 26, 1918 (canceled) ; instructor of cons. class 1919; class two Sept. 5, 1919; continued on duty as cons. gen. at large; mem. of Bd. of Review 1922; mem. of For. Ser. Personnel Bd. and chm. of the executive committee of the Bd. June 19, 1924-Mar. 14, 1925; mem. of Bd. of Examiners for the For. Ser. and For. Ser. Sch. Bd. July 1, 1924-Mar. 14, 1925; For. Ser. officer of class one July 1, 1924; mem. of Bd. of Review, For. Ser. Personnel, 1925; E. E. and M. P. to Nicaragua Mar. 12, 1925; to Costa Rica Jan. 9, 1930; retired Sept. 24, 1933, under the provisions of the act of Feb. 23, 1931.

Eberlein, Marcia.—b. St. Louis, Mo.; high sch. grad.; Linwood Coll. 1917-18; Univ. of Kans. 1918-20; bookkeeper-stenog. 1923-26; app. clk. at \$1,320 in the Dept. of State Jan. 20, 1926; at \$1,500 Mar. 1, 1927; at \$1.620 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$1,680 July 1, 1928; at \$1,800 July 1, 1930; stenog., Conf. on the Limitation of the Manufacture of Narcotic Drugs, Geneva, 1931.—FBO.

Ebling, Samuel Gale .-- b. Bellefontaine, Ohio, Dec. 11. 1893; Univ. of Cincinnati and Univ. of Nancy, France; George Washington, A. B. 1920; Centro de Estudios Históricos, Madrid, 1922; stenog. 1912-15; clk., Dept. of Agric. and War Trade Bd., 1916-18; U. S. Army 1918-19, overseas service; clk., Dept. of State, 1919-21; app. clk. in Am. Consulate at Marseille May 23, 1921; at Parls Dec. 13, 1923; app., after exam., v. c. of career of class three Jan. 5, 1924; assigned to Paris Jan. 16, 1924; to Stockholm June 18, 1924; For. Ser. officer unclass. July 1, 1924; assigned to Penang July 27, 1926; to Colombo, temp., July 20, 1929; to Penang Sept. 28, 1929; class eight, cons., and assigned to Penang Oct. 16, 1929; to Bremen Aug. 16, 1930; class seven July 1, 1931; to Corinto Oct. 15, 1932; to Lourenço Marques July 31, 1933.

Edgar, Donald Dixon.—b. Metuchen, N. J., Feb. 18, 1907; Rutgers Prep. Sch.; Tome Sch. grad.; Williams Coll., A. B. 1928; Columbia 1928–29; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass., v. c. of career, and sec. in the Diplo. Ser. Apr. 15, 1930; assigned as v. c. at Kingston, Ont., Apr. 29, 1930; to the For. Ser. Sch. Sept. 27, 1930; to Hong Kong Feb. 24, 1931; to Habana Jan. 6, 1933.

Edmonds, Walter Bernard.—b. New Kent, Va., Jan. 3, 1877; app. asst. messenger, temp., in the Dept. of State Aug. 13, 1918; permanently June 19, 1919; laborer July 1, 1925.—SU.

Edson, Andrew Warden.—b. East Hampton, Conn., Nov. 25, 1903; Dartmouth, A. B. 1925; Harvard, A. M. 1927; instructor in hist., Clark Sch., 1927-28; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass. and v. c. of career Nov. 12, 1929; assigned to the For. Ser. Sch. Nov. 18, 1929; as v. c. at Tientsin Mar. 26, 1930; at Mukden May 26, 1932.

++Edwards, Clement Stanislaus.-b, New York City Mar. 4, 1869; St. Michael's Acad., Chatham, N. B.; Parker Coll., Winnebago City, Minn., two yrs.; Hillsdale Coll. one-half yr.; mem. of bar of Minn.; law practice until 1904; city atty. five yrs.; mem. of Albert Lea, Minn., Charter Commn. eight yrs.; 12th Regiment, Minn. Vol. Infantry, 1898, capt.; real estate business; newspaper owner and editor six yrs.; app., after exam., cons. at Acapulco Mar. 2, 1911; cons. of class eight by act approved Feb. 5, 1915; class seven Mar. 2, 1915; assigned to Santo Domingo Mar. 15, 1917; class six Sept. 5, 1919; detailed to Paris Oct. 23, 1919; attached to Am. Commn. at Berlin and detailed to Frankfort-on-the-Main Oct. 4, 1920; to Hamburg Nov. 20, 1920; to Paris Dec. 16, 1920; to Koyno July 12, 1921; assigned to Koyno July 28, 1922; class five Aug. 23, 1922; assigned to Valencia Jan. 2, 1924; For. Ser. officer of class six July 1, 1924; class five Oct. 16, 1929; assigned to Bradford Aug. 16, 1930; retired Mar. 31, 1934, under the provisions of the act of Feb. 23, 1931; married.

Edwards, Isaac. b. Chester, Pa., Apr. 26, 1882; laborer, War Dept., 1899-1902; app. laborer in the Dept. of State Aug. 1, 1902; asst. messenger July 2, 1906; messenger Dec. 31, 1920, effective Jan. 1, 1921.—EE.

Edwards, J. Stanford.—b. Washington, D. C., Sept. 4, 1880; attended public sch.; Brooklyn Inst. of Art and Sciences; clk., Navy Dept., 1900-1909; journalist for publishing company 1909-15; Am. Ambulance Hospital 1915-17, overseas service; U. S. Army 1917-20, capt., overseas service; assoc. editor of publishing company 1920-21; app. clk. in Am. Consulate at Amsterdam Apr. 21, 1921; v. c. at Amsterdam June 21, 1922; at Copenhagen Nov. 6, 1929.

Eells, Stillman Witt.—b. Cleveland, Ohio, Apr. 24, 1873; Taft's Sch.; Yale, B. A. 1895; secretary of foundry company; pres. and v. pres. of mfg. companies six yrs.; app. v. c. at Hamilton, Bermuda, Mar. 20, 1916; asp., after exam., cons. of class eight Feb. 19, 1918; assigned to Mombasa May 25, 1918; to Nairobi July 30, 1918; class seven Sept. 5, 1919; assigned to Funchal Aug. 5, 1921; For. Ser. officer of class eight July 1, 1924; detailed to the Dept. May 23, 1925; assigned to Colombo May 19, 1928; class six July 24, 1930; to Cardiff Sept. 4, 1931; married.

Elbrick, Charles Burke.—b. Louisville, Ky., Mar. 25, 1908; Univ. of Louisville 1925-26; Williams Coll., A. B. 1929; app., after exam., For Ser. officer unclass.,

v. c. of career, and sec. in the Diplo. Ser. Jan. 22, 1931; assigned as v. c. at Panama Feb. 4, 1931; to the For. Ser. Sch. Mar. 17, 1932; to Southampton Aug. 10, 1932; as 3d sec. at Port-au-Prince May 24, 1934; married.

Elford, Albert Harry.—b. Fowey, Cornwall, England, Mar. 30, 1870; Brit. subject; attended high sch.; studied under Oxford tutor; shipping agt.; app. cons. agt. at Oran Nov. 7, 1906; married.

Elliott, John Carl.—b. Washington, D. C., Nov. 12, 1907; high sch. grad.; Ga. Sch. of Tech. 1925-27; George Washington Law Sch. 1927-31; mem. of bar of Va.; bank clk. 1923-24; bank teller 1927-29; clk., Veterans' Bu., Jan.-Aug. 1929; app. clk. at \$1,620 in the Dept. of State Aug. 12, 1929; at \$1,740 July 1, 1930; at \$1,800 Feb. 17, 1931; at \$2,000 May 1, 1934.—PD.

Ellis, Overton Gentry, Jr.—b. Tacoma, Wash., Oct. 9, 1900; U.S.N.A. 1919-20; Univ. of Wash., B. A. 1923; newspaper work in Manila 1923-24; cml. work in Hong Kong 1924-27, in Athens 1927-30, in Istanbul 1930; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass., v. c. of career, and sec. in the Diplo. Ser. Jan. 7, 1932; assigned to the For. Ser. Sch. Jan. 9, 1932; as v. c. at Budapest Apr. 7, 1932; married.

Ellis, Virginia Margaret Craighead.—b. Washington, D. C.; Coll. of William and Mary 1920-21; George Washington Univ. 1921-22, 1927-; Corcoran Art Sch.; clk., War Dept., 1924-27; app. clk. at \$1,320 in the Dept. of State July 1, 1927; at \$1,440 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$1,500 July 1, 1928; at \$1,620 Dec. 1, 1928; at \$1,740 July 1, 1930; at \$1,800 Nov. 1, 1930.—FA.

Elting, Howard, Jr.—b. Chicago, Ill., July 16, 1907; Phillips Exeter grad.; studied in Germany, summer 1929; Princeton, B. S. 1930; app. clk. in Am. Consulate at Dresden June 10, 1931; v. c. at Dresden Sept. 1, 1931; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass., v. c. of career, and sec. in the Diplo. Ser. Dec. 17, 1931; assigned as v. c. at Dresden Jan. 2, 1932; to the For. Ser. Sch. Mar. 17, 1932; to Istanbul July 26, 1932; married.

Embry, John A.—b. Christian Co., Ky., July 20, 1889; Occidental Acad.; Univ. of Tenn.; Harvard, A.B.; v.c. at Odessa 1916–17; cons. at Omsk 1918– 19; asst. mgr. of express company in China 1921–22; owner and operator of sugar plantation in Australia 1922–24; entered Eu. of For. and Domes. Com. Aug. 1, 1924, and assigned as chief of Baltic Section; asst. chief, For. Ser. Division, Jan. 1, 1925; asst. trade commr. at Vienna Sept. 1, 1926; asst. cml. att. at Vienna Apr. 26, 1927; trade commr. at Winnipeg July 1, 1930; at Vancouver July 1, 1932; in Bu. of For. and Domes. Com., Washington, July 1, 1933; asst. cml. att. at Istanbul June 25, 1934; married.

Emmet, Grenville Temple.—b. New Rochelle, N.Y., Aug. 2, 1877; St. Paul's Sch. grad.; Harvard, A.B. 1898; mem. of bar of N.Y.; law practice since 1901; U.S. Army, 1898, capt.; app. E.E. and M.P. to the Netherlands Jan. 15, 1934; married. Engdahl, F. Russell.—b. Spokane, Wash., July 28, 1907; Univ. of Wash. 1925–26; Georgetown, B. S. 1930; app., after exam., For. Ser. offleer unclass., v. c. of career, and sec. in the Diplo. Ser. Dec. 16, 1930; assigned as v. c. at Port au Prince, temp., Dec. 26, 1930; to the For. Ser. Sch. Dec. 23, 1931; to Calcutta Apr. 7, 1932.

Engert, Cornelius Van Hemert .- b. Vienna, Austria, of Dutch parents, Dec. 31, 1887; naturalized; private tutors; attended sch. in Calif. and Switzerland; Univ. of Calif., B. Litt. 1908, M. Litt. 1909; Univ. of Calif. Law Sch. 1908-11; Le Conte Memorial Fellow, Harvard, 1911-12; teaching fellow in hist., Univ. of Calif., 1909-11; app., after exam., student interpreter in Turkey Mar. 12, 1912; interpreter to Am. Consulate General at Constantinople July 1, 1914; in charge of agency at Dardanelles Nov .- Dec. 1914; assigned as v. c. at Constantinople Feb. 12, 1915; v. c. and interpreter at Baghdad Aug. 4, 1915 (canceled); on detail in Am. Emb. at Constantinople Sept. 1915-Dec. 1916; in Syria and Palestine Dec. 1916-Apr. 1917; app. asst. in Am. Leg. at The Hague Aug. 18, 1917; app., after exam., sec. of emb. or leg. of class four May 3, 1918; assigned to The Hague June 1, 1918; class three Mar. 14, 1919; assigned to Teheran Sept. 9, 1919; to Constantinople, temp., Nov. 4, 1919; to Teheran Mar. 10, 1920; to the Dept. Oct. 10, 1922; class two Dec. 4, 1922; assigned as 1st sec. at Habana Sept. 26, 1923; For. Ser. officer of class four July 1, 1924; assigned as 1st sec. at San Salvador Feb. 11, 1925; at Santiago May 1, 1926; unassigned from Nov. 18, 1927; assigned to Caracas Dec. 21, 1927; class three Dec. 19, 1929; assigned to Peiping June 13, 1930; to Cairo June 29, 1933; married.

English, Alphonzo George.—b. Camden, S. C., Mar. 29, 1902; messenger, War. Dept., 1918, 1919–30; app. messenger, temp., in the Dept. of State Aug. 28, 1931; permanently Oct. 6, 1931.—LE.

English, Benedict Michael .-- b. Monona, Iowa, Feb. 2, 1894; Creighton Univ., Ph. B. 1916, LL. B. 1919; mem. of bar of Nebr.; U. S. Navy 1918; law practice 1919; app. a law clk. at \$2,000 in the Dept. of State Dec. 23, 1919; law drafting asst., temp., at \$2,500 June 1, 1920; drafting officer July 1, 1920; asst. solicitor June 1, 1921; drafting officer at \$3,000 Sept. 30, 1922; at \$3,200 May 1, 1925; resigned June 30, 1925; disbursing officer, Plebiscitary Commn. and Special Commn, on Boundaries, Tacna Arica Arbitration, 1925-26; sec., Gen. Claims Commu., U. S. and Mexico, 1926-31; sec., U. S.-Panama Claims Arbitration, 1932-33; counsel for U. S., U. S.-Panama Claims Arbitration, 1933; app. jr. atty., temp., at \$2,000 in the Dept. of State July 10, 1933; tech. asst. (legal) at \$3,800, temp., Oct. 10, 1933; asst. to the legal adviser at \$4,600 Mar. 14, 1934; married.-LE.

English, Robert McCalla.—b. Cambridge, Mass., Sept. 18, 1903; Noble and Greenough Sch. grad.; Univ. of Dijon, diploma 1925; Harvard, A. B. 1926; 2d lt., O. R. C.; app. clk. in Am. Consulate at Algiers June 9, 1927; v. c. at Alglers Jan. 11, 1928; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass., v. c. of career, and assigned to Algiers Jan. 29, 1929; to Gibraltar, temp., May 25, 1929; to Constantinople (Istanbul) July 1, 1929; sec. in the Diplo. Ser. Dec. 16, 1930; assigned as v. c. and 3d sec. at Bangkok Feb. 4, 1931; as 3d sec. at Budapest Jan. 26, 1932; married.

Erhardt, John George.-b. Brooklyn, N. Y., Nov. 4, 1889; Adelphi Acad.; Columbia 1914; Hamilton Coll., Ph. B. 1915; Fordham Univ. Law Sch. 1915-17; Am. Sch. for Classical Studies, Athens, Greece, one yr.; mem. of bar of N. Y.; law clk. 1915-17; U. S. Army 1917-19; law practice 1919-20; app., after exam., v. c. of career of class three Sept. 27, 1919; assigned to Athens Dec. 22, 1919; cons. of class seven Apr. 29, 1920; class six Mar. 1, 1923; For. Ser. officer of class seven July 1, 1924; detailed to Winnipeg July 3, 1924; class six Feb. 24, 1925; assigned to the Dept. Dec. 2, 1926; asst. liaison officer with Dept. of Com. and in charge of political section, Cml. Office, July 1, 1928; acting in charge, Cons. Cml. Office, May 6, 1929; class five Oct. 16, 1929; in charge, Cons. Cml. Office, and liaison officer with Dept. of Com. Nov. 1, 1929; assigned to Bordeaux Dec. 1, 1930; class four July 1, 1931; to Hamburg Aug. 18, 1933; cons. gen. Nov. 18, 1933; assigned to Hamburg Dec. 13, 1933; married.

Evans, Ernest Edwin .- b. Rochester, N. Y., Apr. 18, 1891; attended high sch. and business sch. in U.S. and Switzerland; clk. and sec. 1908-13; stenog., Bu. of For. and Domes. Com., 1913-14: clk, to cml. att. at London 1914-16; in office of naval att. at Madrid 1917; app. v. c. at Madrid Sept. 22, 1917; at Tangier Jan. 7, 1919; app., after exam., cons. asst. May 20, 1920; v. c. at Gibraltar Aug. 11, 1920; at Tangier Aug. 31, 1920; v. c. of career of class three Nov. 17, 1921, and assigned to Tangier; detailed for special duty in Albania May 1, 1922; assigned to Mexico City Jan. 2, 1923; class two May 10, 1924; For. Ser. officer unclass. July 1, 1924; assigned to Puerto Castilla Mar. 9, 1925; to Ceiba Apr. 22, 1926; to Naples Feb. 17, 1927; class eight, cons., and assigned to Naples May 17, 1928; class seven July 24, 1930; assigned to Bradford Dec. 15, 1933; married.

Evans, Percy Heyward.—b. Washington, D. C., June 27, 1898; in Govt. depts. 1918-22, 1926; app. messenger in the Dept. of State Dec. 16, 1926.—DCR.

Evans, William Davis.—b. Nov. 30, 1884; app. laborer in the Dept. of State Dec. 23, 1909; asst. messenger June 22, 1910; reapp. under Ex. order Aug. 24, 1912.—VD.

Everett, Curtis Thomas.—b. Scottsville, Ky., Dec. 9, 1890; Vanderbilt Univ., B. S. 1915, M. A. 1916; Sorbonne 1919; surveying 1913; instructor in mil. acad. and prep. sch. 1911-13, 1915-17; with Am. Red Cross 1917; U. S. Army 1917-19, 1st lt., overseas service; app. clk. at \$1,000 in the Dept. of State Oct. 8, 1919; v. c. at Liége Jan. 7, 1920; at Stuttgart Dec. 23, 1921; app., after exam., v. c. of career of class three Feb. 26, 1923; assigned to Stuttgart Mar. 2, 1923; class two May 10, 1924; For. Ser. officer unclass. July 1, 1924; assigned to Bombay Scpt. 9, 1924; class eight, cons., and assigned to Bombay Oct. 20, 1926; to Frankfort-on-the-Main Feb. 29, 1928; to Geneva June 11, 1928; class seven May 23, 1929; class six Feb. 4, 1931; del., Conf. for Facilitating the Int. Circulation of Films of an Educational Character, Geneva, 1933; married.

Fabatz, Anton B.—b. Calumet, Mich., Dec. 12, 1906; high sch. grad.; George Washington Univ. 1931-; secretary 1924-30; stenog., Post Office Dept., 1930-31; app. clk. at \$1,440 in the Dept. of State Aug. 17, 1931.—SS.

Faherty, Regina Elizabeth.—b. Harper's Ferry, W. Va.; high sch. and business sch. grad.; stenog., Veterans' Admin., 1930-31; app. clk. at \$1,440 in the Dept. of State May 16, 1931; at \$1,620 Nov. 1, 1931.—PC.

Fairbanks, Frederick Charles.—b. Paris, France, of Am. parents, July 2, 1868; studied under tutors in France and Germany; prof. of piano, Royal Conservatory of Music, Dresden, Germany, 1897-99; app. cons. agt. at Dieppe Mar. 11, 1916; married.

Farnsworth, Frederick Edward. — b. Colorado Springs, Colo., Mar. 8, 1906; Middlesex Sch. grad.; Harvard, A. B. 1929; anthropological expedition to Albania 1929–30; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass., v. c. of career, and sec. in the Diplo. Ser. Dec. 17, 1931; assigned as v. c. at Ciudad Juarez Jan. 20, 1932; to the For. Ser. Sch. Feb. 1, 1933; to Palermo June 13, 1933; to Istanbul Apr. 27, 1934; married.

Farrar, Victor John.—b. Perry, Me., Jan. 1, 1886; Univ. of Wis., A. B. 1911, A. M. 1912, Ph. D. 1927; teacher of hist. in high sch. 1912–13; asst. in hist., Univ. of Wis., 1913–14, 1924–25; research assoc. and instructor in hist., Univ. of Wash., 1914–24; U. S. Army 1918–19, overseas service; prof. of hist. at Carroll Coll. 1925–26, at Sterling Coll. 1927–30; app. research asst. at \$3,200 in the Dept. of State Sept. 22, 1930.—RP.

Farrell, Thomas Francis.—b. Boston, Mass., Apr. 16, 1887; Harvard and New York Univ.; George Washington, A. B. 1921; La Salle Sch. of Law, LL. B. 1926; mgr. of warehouse 1912–14; bookkeeper, Navy Dept., 1914–17; app. clk. at \$000 in the Dept. of State Nov. 19, 1917; at \$1,000, temp., May 1, 1918; clk. at \$1,600 in the N. Y. Passport Agency July 1, 1918; in the Dept. of State Oct. 16, 1919; at \$1,860 July 1, 1924; at \$1,920 Mar. 1, 1927; at \$2,100 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$2,200 July 1, 1928; at \$2,300 Feb. 1, 1929; at \$2,500 July 1, 1930; married.—PD.

Farrell, William Stokes.—b. Montreal, Canada, of Am. parents, Nov. 14, 1907; Cornell, A. B. 1928; Georgetown Univ.; 2d lt., O. R. C.; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass. and v. c. of career Nov. 12, 1929; assigned to Mexico City, temp., Nov. 27, 1929; to the For. Ser. Sch. Sept. 27, 1930; to Addis Ababa Feb. 24, 1931.

Fauntroy, Edward.—b. Washington, D. C., Sept. 7, 1876; app., temp., in the Dept. of State Mar. 10, 1919; permanently, as asst. messenger, Apr. 12, 1920.—PD.

Faust, John Bernard.—b. near Allendale, S. C., Sept. 18, 1898; Clemson Agric. Coll., B. Sc. 1918; Georgetown Sch. of For. Ser. 1925-26; laboratory chemist for powder company 1918; chief chemist for nitrate company in Chile 1919-24; research on paints and related products 1925-26; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass. May 28, 1926; v. c. of career June 15, 1926; assigned to Buenos Aires Apr. 25, 1927; to Asunción Nov. 7, 1928; sec. in the Diplo. Ser. Nov. 7, 1928; assigned also as 3d sec. at Asunción Nov. 20, 1928; as v.c. at Berlin Mar. 30, 1931 (canceled); at Paris Dec. 30, 1931; at Lisbon Nov. 11, 1933; married.

Faymonville, Philip Ries (Maj.)—b. San Francisco, Calif., Apr. 30, 1888; Stanford Univ.; U.S.M.A., grad. 1912; N.Y. Univ., Columbia Univ., and Georgetown Univ., grad. work; assigned as asst. mil. att. at Tokyo Apr. 27, 1923; mil. att. Feb. 16, 1924; relieved Aug. 7, 1925; mil. att. at Moscow Mar. 12, 1934.

†Feely, Edward Francis.—b. Rochester, N.Y., Mar. 6, 1880; high sch. grad.; attended business sch.; Rochester Univ. 1898-1901; traveled in Europe and Latin America as representative of Am. mfrs.; app. trade commr. in Mexico Sept. 20, 1918; cml. att. at Mexico City June 20, 1919; at Buenos Aires, Asunción, and Montevideo Oct. 22, 1920; tech. adviser to Am. del., Fifth Int. Conf. of Am. States, Santiago, Chile, 1923; resigned Sept. 15, 1926; mem., Am. Commn. of Financial Experts to Ecuador, Bolivia, and China 1927-30; app. E. E. and M. P. to Bolivia June 4, 1930; resigned Sept. 29, 1933; married.

Feis, Herbert.—b. New York City June 7, 1893; Harvard, A. B. 1916, Ph. D. 1921; U. S. Navy 1917– 19, lt. (jg.), overseas service; instructor, Harvard, 1919–21; assoc. prof. of economics, Univ. of Kans., 1921–23; prof. of economics, Univ. of Cincinnati, 1924–28; Council on Foreign Relations 1930–31; app. economic adviser at \$\$,000 in the Dept. of State May 13, 1931; asst., 1st meeting of Experts' Prep. Commn. for Monetary and Economic Conf., Geneva, 1932, and chief tech. adviser to Am. del. to Conf., London, 1933; married.—EA.

Fennel, Charles Howard, Jr.—b. Galveston, Tex., Jan. 19, 1908; messenger, War Dept., 1928-30; app. messenger in the Dept. of State May 16, 1930.—WE.

Fennell, Joseph A.—b. Washington, D. C., Nov. 13, 1893; Georgetown, A. B. 1916, LL. B. 1922; mem. of bar of D. C.; teacher in high sch. 1916-18; clk. in Am. Emb. at Paris 1918-19; app. clk., temp., at \$900 in the Dept. of State Sept. 19, 1919; at \$960 Nov. 1, 1919; at \$1,000 Feb. 1, 1920; permanently at \$1,200 Nov. 16, 1920; at \$1,400 Dec. 30, 922, effective Jan. 1, 1923; at \$2,100 July 1, 1924; t \$2,200 Dec. 1, 1925; at \$2,400 July 1, 1928 Welch Act); at \$2,500 July 1, 1928; legal asst. at 2,600 Sept. 1, 1929; at \$2,800 July 1, 1930.—TD.

Fenstermacher, Harvey Edward .- b. near Cressona, a., Mar. 15, 1892; attended business sch.; Int. ccountants Society, grad. 1925; teacher in public ch. 1910-11; clk., Dept. of State, 1911-14; farming 914-15; app. clk., temp., in the Dept. of State Feb. , 1916; permanently at \$1,200 under Ex. order June 2, 1916, effective July 1; at \$1,400 Oct. 1, 1917; at 1,600 Aug. 15, 1918; clk., Am. Commn. to Negotiate eace, Paris, 1918; asst. archivist, Conf. on Limitaon of Armament, Washington, 1921; at \$1,800 Mar. 3, 1923; at \$2,100 July 1, 1924; at \$2,200 Dec. 1, 225; asst. archivist, Int. Radiotelegraph Conf., Vashington, 1927; at \$2,300 July 1, 1928 (Welch ct); jr. admin. asst. at \$2,600 Oct. 1, 1928; archiist, Int. Conf. of Am. States on Conciliation and rbitration, Washington, 1928-29; at \$2,800 July 1, 930; at \$2,900 July 3, 1930 (Brookhart Act); sst. chief, Division of Communications and Records. an. 1, 1931; married.—DCR.

Ferguson, Ollis B.—b. Willow Springs, Mo., Nov. 2, 887; high sch. grad.; studied accounting and banklog; clk. and accountant 1906-7; asst. postmaster 908-9; agric. research 1910-16; Mo. state food Hief committee 1917; U. S. Army 1918-20, overseas rvice; app. clk. in Am. Consulate General at London ept. 27, 1920; v. c. at London Nov. 7, 1921; at ludad Juarez Dec. 3, 1926; married.

Fernald, Robert Foss .- b. Winn, Me., Oct. 4, 1890; ebron Acad. grad.; Colby Coll. 1909-10; employed various capacities in Porto Rico and Santo Doingo 1910-14; clk., War. Dept., 1914-15; app. clk. Am. Consulate at Catania Jan. 14, 1916; v. c. at atania Apr. 5, 1916; app., after exam., v. c. of areer of class three Sept. 27, 1919; assigned to atania Oct. 22, 1919; class two May 24, 1920; ssigned to Stockholm Sept. 15, 1921; class one Nov. 7, 1921; cons. of class seven June 22, 1922; detailed Göteborg Apr. 19, 1924; For. Ser. officer of class ght July 1, 1924; assigned to Saloniki Oct. 23, 924; to Lagos July 14, 1927; class seven May 23, 929; assigned to the Dept., temp., Dec. 1, 1929; Danzig, temp., Mar. 19, 1930; to Tegucigalpa, emp., Sept. 26, 1930; class six Feb. 4, 1931; to uerto Cabezas May 15, 1931; to La Paz Mar. 11. 932; sec. in the Diplo. Ser. June 17, 1933; assigned s 2d sec. at La Paz Aug. 22, 1933.

Ferrin, Augustin William.—b. Little Valley, N. Y., ept. 1, 1875; Yale, B. A. 1897; newspaper and lagazine work 1808-1916; trade commr., Dept. of om., 1916; act. cml. att. in Peking 1917-18; trade ommr. in Australia and New Zealand 1918-20; Dept. f Com. 1920-24; app., after exam., cons. of class even June 3, 1924; For. Ser. officer of class eight uly 1, 1924; assigned to Madrid Aug. 1, 1924; to abriz June 24, 1926; class seven June 8, 1927; ssigned to Teheran, temp., July 25, 1928; class six ict. 16, 1929; assigned to the Dept. Dec. 18, 1929; o Málaga Oct. 3, 1930. Ferris, Walton Canby.—b. Philadelphia, Pa., Dec. 2, 1900; Swarthmore Coll. 1918–21; Univ. of Wis. Law Sch. 1921–22; Marquette Univ. Law Sch. 1922– 24; mem. of bar of Wis.; law clk. 1922–24; law practice 1924–26; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass. May 28, 1926; v. c. of career June 15, 1926; assigned to Palermo June 16, 1927; class eight, cons., and assigned to Palermo Feb. 24, 1931; resigned Apr. 9, 1931; app. divisional asst. at \$3,800 in the Dept. of State Apr. 10, 1931; reinstated as For. Ser. officer, by Ex. order of Dec. 27, 1933, and assigned to the Dept. Jan. 11, 1934; For. Ser. officer of class eight, cons., and sec. in the Diplo. Ser. Jan. 15. 1934; married.—EE.

Field, Noel Haviland.—b. London, England. of Am. parents, Jan. 23, 1904; attended sch. in Switzerland; Harvard, A. B. 1924; social worker, Mass. Dept. of Mental Diseases, 1924-25; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass., v. c. of career, and assigned to the Dept. Sept. 1, 1926; asst. sec., London Naval Conf., 1930; resigned Aug. 20, 1930; app. divisional asst. at \$4,600 in the Dept. of State Aug. 21, 1930; sec., meeting of Bureau of Gen. Disarmament Conf., Geneva, 1934; married.—WE.

Finley, Harold Daniel .- b. Ballston Spa, N. Y., Nov. 4, 1893; Worcester Acad.; Yale, B. A. 1917; Edinburgh Univ. 1927-29; sec. and asst. to Sir Wilfred T. Grenfell in Labrador, summers 1915 and 1916; U. S. Army 1917-20, capt., overseas service; app., after exam., v. c. of career of class three Sept. 7. 1920; assigned to Havre Oct. 18, 1920; class two May 26, 1922; class one Feb. 26, 1923; assigned to Naples Mar. 30, 1923; cons. of class seven Dec. 19, 1923; For. Ser. officer of class eight July 1, 1924; assigned to Patras, temp., July 21, 1926; to Naples Sept. 2, 1926; class seven Oct. 20, 1926; assigned to Edinburgh Feb. 16, 1927; class six May 9, 1930; sec. in the Diplo. Ser. and assigned as 2d sec. at San Salvador Sept. 30, 1930; at Panama Dec. 30, 1931; as cons. at Bordeaux Nov. 17, 1933; married.

Fish, Bert.—b. Bedford, Ind., Oct. 8, 1875; John B. Stetson Univ., LL.B. 1902; mem. of bar of Fla.; law practice 1902-26; judge, Criminal Court, Fla., 1910-17, 1931-33; app. E.E. and M.P. to Egypt Sept. 6, 1983.

Fisher, Carl Alvin.—b. Salt Lake City, Utah, Apr. 27, 1897; Stanford, Univ. of Pa., and Univ. of Utah; Georgetown, B. F. S. 1924; U. S. Navy 1918-19, ensign; officer in creamery and petroleum companies 1919-23; app., after exam., sec. of emb. or leg. of class four Dec. 12, 1923, and assigned to the Dept.; 3d sec. at Berlin Feb. 4, 1924; For. Ser. officer of class eight July 1, 1924; assigned as 3d sec. at Belgrade June 1, 1926; class seven Oct. 19, 1926; assigned to Athens May 28, 1929; 2d sec. Oct. 19, 1929; class is Dec. 19, 1929; assigned to The Hague Jan. 28, 1932; married.

Fisher, Dorsey Gassaway.—b. Fort Leavenworth, Kans., Feb. 12, 1907; Univ. of Wash. 1923-25; Harvard, A. B. 1927, A. M. 1928; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass. and v. c. of career Mar. 26, 1929; assigned to the For. Ser. Sch. May 1, 1929; to Calcutta July 10, 1929; assigned to Habana Dec. 9, 1932; to Matanzas, temp., Apr. 19, 1933; to Habana July 6, 1933; to Matanzas Feb. 16, 1934.

Fisher, Dwight Wilton.—b. Mount Vernon, Ohio, Sept. 27, 1883; attended business high sch.; Columbian Coll. (now George WashIngton Univ.); clk. to high sch. principal and bd. of education two yrs.; clk., Post Office Dept., 1905-9, Dept. of State, 1909-18; with mfg. company 1918-22; app. clk. in Am. Consulate at Antwerp Oct. 31, 1922; v. c. at Antwerp May 5, 1924; married.

Fisher, Theodore Monroe.—b. Strasburg, Va., Oct. 18, 1891; attended business high sch.; George Washington Univ. one yr.; asst. in library, Dept. of Agric., 1913-16; app. v. c. at Halifax Feb. 12, 1917; at Colon Jan. 26, 1918; at Habana Jan. 27, 1920; at Dundee Sept. 6, 1924; at Málaga Aug. 3, 1925; at Dakar, temp., May 14, 1926; at Cartagena, temp., Oct. 25, 1027; at Puerta Castilla, temp., Nov. 23, 1927; at Tela Apr. 12, 1928; at Santa Marta Mar. 20, 1931; at Trieste Feb. 15, 1932; married.

Fisk, Hurley Stella.—b. Keokuk, Iowa; high sch. grad.; stenog. 1923-26; app. clk. at \$1,440 in the Dept. of State Nov. 1, 1928; at \$1,800 July 1, 1929; stenog., London Naval Conf., 1930; at \$1,920 July 1, 1930.—CI.

FitzGerald, Loretto Elizabeth (Mrs.)—b. Washington, D. C.; attended public sch. and business sch.; elk. 5 yrs.; in Govt. depts. 1918-20; app. elk. at \$1,000 in the Dept. of State Apr. 9, 1920; at \$1,100 Dec. 30, 1922, effective Jan. 1, 1923; at \$1,200 Oct. 1, 1923; at \$1,500 July 1, 1924; at \$1,560 Mar. 1, 1927; at \$1,680 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$1,800 July 1, 1930.—DCR.

Flack, Joseph.—b. Grenoblc, Pa., Dec. 5. 1894; Unlv. of Pa., B. S. 1916, grad. work 1919–20; social service work and admin. position with steamship company 1916; app., after exam., cons. asst. Aug. 30, 1916; v. c. at Liverpool May 8, 1917; on leave as cons. asst. from Sept. 1919; app., after exam., sec. of emb. or leg. of class four Apr. 7, 1920; assigned to Paris July 29, 1920; to La Paz Aug. 15, 1922; class three Sept. 22, 1932; assigned to Santo Domingo Apr. 2, 1924; For. Ser. officer of class six July 1, 1924; class five Apr. 30, 1925; assigned as 2d sec. at Vienna June 3, 1925; at Santiago, Chile, Apr. 2, 1929; class four July 24, 1930; assigned as 1st sec. at Warsaw Jan. 29, 1931; at Madrid Aug. 30, 1932; at Berliu May 11, 1933; married.

Flack, Thomas Richard.—b. Chicago, Ill., Jan. 3, 1881; attended business sch.; Univ. of Santo Tomas, Manila, P. I., two yrs.; U. S. Army 1898, Cuban scrvice; clk. in Govt. depts. 1902–3; in Bu. of Agric., Philippine Is., 1903–16; app. clk. in Am. Consulate at Moscow Oct. 1917; in Am. Emb. in Russia Oct. 1918; in Am. Consulate at Tiflis Sept. 1919; at Aleppo July 1, 1921; v. c. at Aleppo Sept. 24, 1921; at Vienna Aug. 13, 1926; married.

Flaherty, Francis Edward.—b. New Britain, Conn., Mar. 7, 1906; high sch. and business sch. grad.; clk. 1924; app. clk. at \$1,320 in the Dept. of State Sept. 8, 1924; at \$1,500 June 1, 1925; at \$1,680 Oct. 1, 1926; at \$1,800 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$1,860 July 1, 1928; at \$2,000 Apr. 1, 1929; at \$2,200 July 1, 1930; clk., 1st stage, Gen. Disarmament Conf., Geneva, 1932.—FA.

Fleming, George Lewis.—b. Louisville, Ky., Feb. 2, 1892; attended high sch. and business sch.; clk. and auditor 1900-13; cml. employment 1913-18; U. S. Navy 1918-19; with Am. Commn. to Negotiate Peace, Paris, 1918-19; app. clk. in Am. Emb. at Paris Dec. 1919; in Am. Consulate at Paris July 7, 1921; clk. at Basel Sept. 1921; v. c. at Basel Feb. 14, 1922; elk., Lausanne Conf., 1923; v. c. at Bradford June 6, 1923; at Stoke-on-Trent, temp., July 22, 1926; at Bradford Sept. 20, 1926; at Sheffield, temp., Jan. 24, 1928; at Bradford Feb. 29, 1928; at Newcastle-on-Tyne, temp., July 31, 1929; at Bradford Oct. 7, 1929; at Bristol, temp., Oct. 14, 1920; at Bradford Jan. 16, 1930; clk. in the emb. at London, temp., June 8, 1934.

Fletcher, Cassius Paul.—b. Ridgefarm, Ill., Apr. 1, 1890; U. S. M. A. 1911-12; Univ. of Ill., B. S. 1914; engineer, Interstate Com. Commn., 1914-17; U. S. Army 1917-19, capt., overseas service; engineer on highway construction 1919-20; asst. mgr. of plantation 1920-23; app., after exam., v. c. of career of class three June 13, 1924; For. Ser. officer unclass. July 1, 1924; assigned to Toronto July 11, 1924; class elght, cons., and assigned to Toronto May 23, 1929; class seven Feb. 4, 1931; to the Dept. June 27, 1933; married.—VD.

Fletcher, Samuel Johnson.—b. Portsmouth, N. H., Sept. 17, 1891; high sch. and business sch. grad.; Columbia Univ. 1916-17; clk. in railroad office and navy yard 1910-17; app. v. c. at Barranquilla Oct. 8. 1917; at Cartagena Nov. 20, 1917; app., after exam., v. c. of career of class three May 25, 1921; assigned to Cartagena June 11, 1921; to La Gualra Sept. 6, 1921; to Havre July 13, 1923; class two Nov. 23, 1923; class one May 10, 1924; For. Ser. officer unclass. July 1, 1924; class eight and cons. Aug. 8, 1924; assigned to Bluefields Nov. 7, 1927; class seven May 17, 1928; class ix Dec. 19, 1929; assigned to Montreal Nov. 15, 1930; married.

Flexer, Fayette James .- b. Reddick, Ill., Sept. 13, 1892; Univ. of Ill. 1910-12; engineering in U. S., Hawaii, Australia, Union of So. Africa, and Mozambique 1912-16; app. v. c. at Port Elizabeth Jan. 18, 1916; assigned to Am. Consulate General at Cape Town for special duty Sept. 1916; v. c. at Cairo Feb. 12, 1917; resigned Sept. 20, 1918; U. S. Army 1918-21, overseas service; chief clk. in office of mil. att. at Berlin 1921-22; engineering 1923; app. clk. in Am. Consulate General at Mexico City Aug. 31, 1923; v. c. at Mexico City May 29, 1925; at Frontera Feb. 16, 1927; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass. and v. c. of career Apr. 27, 1927; assigned to Frontera (Alvaro Obregon) May 9, 1927; reapp. v. c. at Alvaro Obregon Oct. 3, 1928; at Torreon Feb. 7, 1929; sec. in the Diplo. Ser. Jan. 9, 1930;

assigned as 3d sec. at Habana Jan. 15, 1930; class eight and cons. Feb. 4, 1931; assigned to the Dept. Feb. 16, 1934.—LA.

Flood, Douglas.—b. Macon, Mo., Feb. 11, 1902; Univ. of Mich., A. B. 1924; Northwestern Univ. Law Sch., J. D. 1927; mem. of bar of 111.; law clk. 1927; law practice 1928–31; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass., v. c. of carecr, and sec. in the Diplo. Ser. Dec. 17, 1931; assigned as v. c. at Ottawa Jan. 12, 1932; to the For. Ser. Sch. Apr. 22, 1933; to Buenos Aires Aug. 28, 1933.

Flood, Peter Henry Allen.-b. Nashua, N. H., June 15, 1885; Phillips Exeter; Yale 1910-12; instructor in prep. sch. and tutor 1913-17; U. S. Army 1917-20, capt.; app. v. c. at Southampton July 26, 1920; app., after exam., v. c. of career of class three Sept. 7, 1920, and assigned to Southampton; to Queenstown Dec. 24. 1920; to Bizerta Nov. 5, 1921; class two May 26, 1922; assigned to Singapore June 7, 1922; to Tampico Apr. 18, 1923; For. Ser. officer unclass. July 1, 1924; class eight June 30, 1927; cons. and assigned to Tampico July 16, 1927; to the Dept. Jan. 11, 1929; class seven Oct. 16, 1929; class six July 1, 1931; assigned as For. Ser. officer to the Am. Emb. at Mexico City Jan. 12, 1933; sec. in the Diplo. Ser. and assigned as 2d sec. at Mexico City Apr. 5, 1933; as cons. at Habana July 2, 1934.

Flournoy, Richard W., Jr .- b. Hampden-Sidney, Va., May 20, 1878; Washington and Lee Univ. three yrs.; George Washington, LL. B. 1904, LL. M. 1905; mem. of bar of D. C.; bank clk. 1896-98; teacher, Lewisburg Acad. and Emerson Inst., 1899-1903; prof. of int. law, National Univ. Law Sch., since 1923; reporter on nationality, Research in Int. Law, Harvard Univ., since 1928; app. clk. at \$900 in the Dept. of State July 1, 1903; at \$1,000 May 24, 1905, effective July 1; at \$1,200 Mar. 1, 1906; at \$1,400 July 8, 1907; at \$1,600 July 1, 1908; chief, Bu. of Citizenship, Nov. 27, 1908, effective Jan. 1, 1909; detalled to assist embassies and legations in Europe regarding citizenship matters Sept. 17, 1915; app. an asst. solicitor at \$2,500 Aug. 1, 1916; on detail as act. chief, Bu. of Citizenship; drafting officer at \$3,000 Nov. 12, 1917; asst. to the solicitor at \$3,500 Mar. 13, 1920; drafting officer July 1, 1920; at \$4,000 July 1, 1922; at \$4,400 Aug. 1, 1924; at \$5,200 May 1, 1925; at \$5,600 Feb. 1, 1926; legal adviser to Am. del., Plebiscitary Commn., Tacna-Arica Arbitration, 1926; chm., committee to study nationality laws of U. S. with a view to having them amended, 1928; at \$7,000 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); del., Conf. for the Codification of Int. Law, The Hague, 1930; U. S. counsel, Shufeldt Arbitration, 1930; asst. to the legal adviser July 1, 1931.-LE.

Flournoy, William Edward, Jr.—b. Norfolk, Va., June 17, 1906; high sch. grad.; Univ. of Va. 1923-25; clk. 1925-26; cost accountant 1926-28; office mgr. 1928-29; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass., v. c. of carecr, and sec. in the Diplo. Ser. June 4, 1930; assigned as v. c. at Tampico June 21, 1930; to the For. Ser. Sch. Feb. 11, 1931; to Guatemala June 20, 1931; married. Foley, Edward A.—b. San Francisco, Calif., Oct. 4, 1851; St. Ignatius Coll., M. A. 1902; Univ. of Calif., LL. B. 1905; mem. of bar of Calif.; law practice 1905-17; solicitor, U. S. Food Admin., 1917-19; app. in charge of London office of Dept. of Agric. Apr. 1919; del., Int. Inst. of Agric., 1922, 1924, 1026; app. agric. att. at London Dec. 16, 1930; del., Sixth Cong. of the Int. Assn. of Agric. of Tropical Countries, Paris, 1931; del., Int. Cong. for the Protection of Nature, Paris, 1931; asst., prep. meeting for sugar conf., called by sec.-gen. of Int. Monetary and Economic Conf., London, 1934.

Follmer, Cyrus Brown.—b. Milton, Pa., May 17, 1894; Bucknell Unlv., B. S. 1916; U. S. Army 1917-19, ambulance service; clk., Dept. of State, 1920; app. clk. in Am. Consulate at Lyon Oct. 26, 1920; v. c. at Lyon June 7, 1922; at Calais Apr. 19, 1924; at Lyon Sept. 8, 1924; at Tallinn Jan. 12, 1926; at Berlin Apr. 7, 1928; married.

Foote, Walter Ambrose .- b. Greenville, Tex., June 25, 1887; East Tex. Univ., A. B. 1906; American Univ., A. M. 1933; teacher 1906-7; U. S. Navy 1907-15, 1917-20, lt.; supt. and arms expert, arms company, 1915-17; app., after exam., v. c. of career of class three Sept. 8, 1920; assigned to Port Said Oct. 18, 1920; cons. of class seven June 20, 1921; assigned to Port Said June 23, 1921; detailed to Prague Apr. 3, 1922; to Hamburg Mar. 11. 1924; For. Ser. officer of class eight July 1, 1924; class seven Feb. 24, 1925; assigned to Medan May 13, 1927; detailed to the Dept. Dec. 26, 1929-Apr. 28, 1930; returned to Medan; class six May 9, 1930; assigned to the Dept. Jan. 8, 1931; asst. chief, Division of Current Information, Mar. 19, 1931; representative of the Dept. of State, Sixth Gen. Cong. of the Int. Chamber of Com., Washington, 1931; married .--- CI.

Forbes, James David.—b. Asheville, N. C., Apr. 6, 1910; high sch. grad.; attended business sch.; Georgetown Sch. of For. Ser. 1927-28; George Washington Univ. 1929-30; Southeastern Univ., LL. B. 1933; messenger and clk., Gen. Accounting Office, 1928-29, in Navy Dept. 1929-30; app. clk. at \$1,440 in the Dept. of State Aug. 26, 1930; at \$1,620 Feb. 20, 1931.— DCR.

Ford, Richard.—b. Linwood, Tex., June 20, 1898; Univ. of Mo. 1917-18; naval aviation ground-school, Mass. Inst. of Tech. 1918; U. S. Marine Corps 1918-20, 2d lt.; with state falr commn. 1915-16, and logging company 1920-22; app., after exam., v. c. of career of class three Feb. 26, 1923; assigned to Colombo Apr. 27, 1923; to Penang July 24, 1923; For. Ser. officer unclass. July 1, 1924; detailed to the Dept. July 27, 1926; class eight and cons. Oct. 20, 1926; assigned to Tegucigalpa, temp., Feb. 10, 1927; to Seville Mar. 10, 1927; class seven May 23, 1929; assigned to the Dept. Apr. 2, 1930; class six July 1, 1931; to Seville July 31, 1931; married.

Ford, Samuel Shivell.—b. Louisville, Ky., Mar. 13, 1893; attended hlgh sch. and business sch.; studied

accountancy; messenger and clk., Govt. depts., 1910-20; app. clk. at \$1,000 in the Dept. of State Dec. 31, 1920, effective Jan. 1, 1921; at \$1,100 Dec. 30, 1922, effective Jan. 1, 1923; at \$1,200 Oct. 1, 1923; at \$1,500 July 1, 1924; at \$1,560 Mar. 1, 1927; at \$1,620 Jan. 1, 1928; at \$1,740 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$1,800 July 1, 1928; at \$1,920 July 1, 1930; at \$2,000 Aug. 14, 1931; married.—DCR.

Fornes, Frederic Charles, Jr.—b. Buffalo, N. Y., Aug. 22, 1905; Canisius Coll., A. B. 1927; mech. dept. of bd. of education of Buffalo 1927-28; instructor, Canisius Coll., 1928-29; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass. and v. c. of career Nov. 12, 1929; assigned to Toronto, temp., Nov. 27, 1929; to the For. Ser. Sch. July 16, 1930; to São Paulo Nov. 8, 1930; married.

Forsyth, Thomas Muldrup.—b. Buckingham County, Va., Oct. 30, 1909; Va. Episcopal Sch. grad.; Univ. of Va., B. A. 1930; app., after exam., For. Scr. officer unclass., v. c. of career, and sec. in the Diplo. Ser. Dec. 17, 1931; assigned as v. c. at Quebec Jan. 12, 1932; to the For. Ser. Sch. Nov. 29, 1932; to Callao-Lima Mar. 31, 1933.

Foster, Carol Howe .- b. Sedgewick, Kans., May 29, 1884; Univ. of Idaho, A. B. 1905; Rhodes scholar, Oxford, B. A. 1908, M. A. 1916; sr. fellow in English, Univ. of Chicago, 1908-9; instructor and assoc, prof., U. S. N. A., 1909-19; building and contracting 1911-13; author of articles in magazines and reviews 1916-19; insp. in munitions plant 1918; app., after exam., cons. of class seven Sept. 5, 1919; detailed to Vienna Oct. 29, 1919; class six Nov. 23, 1921; class five Mar. 1, 1923; assigned to Vienna Dec. 15, 1923; class four June 5, 1924; For. Ser. officer of class five July 1, 1924; detailed to the Dept. Aug. 23, 1924; asst. chief, Visa Office, Dec. 1, 1924-July 1, 1926; in charge of political section, Cml. Office, Dec. 1, 1926; asst. liaison officer with Dept. of Com. Apr. 1, 1927; assigned to Johannesburg June 9, 1928 (canceled); to Rotterdam Sept. 10, 1928; class four May 23, 1929; representative, Fifth Cong. of Int. Chamber of Com., Amsterdam, 1929; cons. gen. Apr. 7, 1934; assigned to Rotterdam May 8, 1934; to São Paulo June 20, 1934; married.

Fowler, William Archibald.—b. Orting, Wash., Mar. 11, 1903; Whitman Coll., S.B. 1925; Univ. of Oreg., M.B.A. 1927; Harvard 1931-34; grad. asst., Univ. of Oreg., 1925-26, teaching fellow 1926-27, research asst. 1927-28, and asso. prof. in foreign trade 1928-30; instructor in foreign trade, Harvard, 1930-32; app. divisional asst., temp., at \$3.800 in the Dept. of State June 14, 1934; economic analyst, temp., July 1, 1934; married.—A-S/T.

Fox, Hugh Corby.—b. New York City May 1, 1907; Phillips Exeter grad.; Harvard, S. B. 1928; Harvard Grad. Sch. 1928; L'École Libre des Sciences Politiques 1928–29; 2d It. O. R C.; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass., v. c. of career, and sec. in the Diplo. Ser. Apr. 15, 1930; assigned to the For. Ser. Sch. Apr. 24, 1930; as v. c. at Buenos Aires July 22, 1930; at Berlin Dec. 7, 1932; married.

Fox, Ray.—b. Trenton, Mo., Oct. 13, 1890; attended business sch.; Univ. of Calif., A. B. 1920; rancher 1911-12; French Army 1917; U. S. Army 1918-19, 2d lt.; app., after exam., v. c. of career of class three Sept. 7, 1920; assigned to Melbourne Oct. 18, 1920; class two May 26, 1922; class one Feb. 26, 1923; cons. of class seven Dec. 19, 1923; detailed to Calcutta June 5, 1924; assigned to Calcutta June 14, 1924; For. Ser. officer of class eight July 1, 1924; assigned to Puerto Cortes May 28, 1925; to Winnipeg Aug. 20, 1928; class seven Dec. 19, 1929; to Surahaya Sept. 1, 1931; to Aden Mar. 6, 1933; to Berlin Sept. 19, 1933; married.

France, Leys A.—b. Terre Haute, Ind., May 29, 1895; Princeton, A.B. 1920; U.S. Army 1917-19, overseas service; banking four yrs.; app. elk. to trade commr. at Riga July 1, 1924; at Stockholm Jan. 1, 1926; cml. agt. in Chicago Dist. Office Mar. 16, 1927; asst. trade commr. at Montreal July 16, 1928; in charge of Toronto office Mar. 1, 1931; to Bureau in Washington July 1, 1933; asst. cml. att. at Vienna June 23, 1934; married.

Frank, Edna Mae.—b. Lawrence, Mass.; high sch. and business sch. grad.; clk. and stenog., summers 1925-28; app. clk. at \$1,440 in the Dept. of State Sept. 1, 1928; at \$1,620 May 1, 1930; at \$1,740 July 1, 1930; stenog., Conf. on the Limitation of the Manufacture of Narcotic Drugs, Geneva, 1931.—FE.

Frank, Laurence Champlin.—b. Newport, R. I., July 2, 1904; Emerson Inst.; Georgetown Sch. of For. Ser., B. F. S. 1928; Georgetown, LL.B. 1932; mem. of bar of D. C.; app. clk. at 1,000 in the Dept. of State July 23, 1923; at 1,100 Mar. 1, 1924; at 1,200 May 31, 1924, effective June 1; at 1,440 July 1, 1924; at 1,680 Sept. 15, 1924; at 1,800 Mar. 1, 1927; at 2,000 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at 2,100 July 1, 1928; at 2,300 July 1, 1930; admin. asst. at 3,500Jan. 12, 1931; married.—FA.

Franklin, Lynn Winterdale .--- b. Ocean Grove, N. J., June 11, 1888; attended high sch. and business sch.; private tutors; read law; secretarial and cml. work 1906-11; app. clk. in Am. Leg. at Tegucigalpa Jan. 9, 1912; v. and dep. cons. at Tegucigalpa Feb. 12, 1914; clk. in Am. Leg. and v. c. at San Salvador Feb. 25, 1915; app., after exam., cons. asst. Aug. 5, 1916; v. c. at Callao-Lima Aug. 25, 1916; at Guayaquil July 1, 1918; detailed to the Dept. Jan. 12, 1919; del., Pan American Cml. Conf., Washington, 1919; v. c. attached to the leg. at San Salvador, July 2, 1919; v. c. of career of class three Sept. 27, 1919; assigned to San Salvador Oct. 1, 1919; class two May 24, 1920; class one Nov. 17, 1921; cons. of class seven June 22, 1922; assigned to San Salvador Aug. 15, 1922; For. Ser. officer of class eight July 1, 1924; assigned to Hong Kong July 12, 1924; to Hankow Aug. 4, 1925; to Hong Kong Sept. 8, 1925; to Saltillo Feb. 27, 1928; class seven May 17, 1928; class six July 24, 1930; assigned to Chefoo Sept. 27, 1930; to Amoy Aug. 8, 1931; to Barcelona Oct. 25, 1933; married.

Fraser, Herbert F.—b. Mansfield, Ohio, Mar. 3, 1890; Phillips-Andover grad.; Univ. of Aberdeen, Scotland, M.A. 1915; clk., export mgr., and mgr., granite company, 1908–18; U.S. Army 1918–19; teacher, Phillips-Andover, 1919–26; prof. of economics, Swarthmore 1926–; app. economic analyst, temp., at \$6,000 in the Dept. of State July 16, 1934; married.—A-S/T.

Frazer, Robert.—b. Philadelphia, Pa., Dec. 8, 1878; studied in U. S. and Germany; Mass. Inst. of Tech. 1895-99; bank teller in Porto Rico 1899-1901; sugarcane planter in Porto Rico 1901-8; app., after exam., cons. at Valencia July 16, 1909; at Málaga Aug. 22, 1912; at Bahia Apr. 24, 1914; cons. of class five by act approved Feb. 5, 1915; class three July 12, 1916, and assigned to Kobe; cons. gen. at large Sept. 5, 1919; For. Ser. officer of class three July 1, 1924; assigned to Zürich Oct. 23, 1924; class two Feb. 24, 1925; For. Ser. insp. Aug. 18, 1925; assigned to the Dept. Sept. 29, 1927; to Calcutta Oct. 24, 1927; class one May 23, 1929; assigned to Mexico City May 27, 1930; to London Oct. 8, 1932; married.

Fredrickson, Oscar Walford.—b. Tacoma, Wash., May 15, 1903; high sch. grad.; Univ. of Wash. 1925– 28; Coll. of Puget Sound 1928–29; U. S. Naval Reserve since 1921; accountant 1924–26; clk. in War Dept. 1929, in Dept. of State May-Sept. 1929; app. clk. in Am. Consulate General at Vancouver Sept. 1, 1929; v. c. at Mexico City for duty in dist. acct. and disbursing office Nov. 19, 1932.

Freeman, Clara J.--b. Greensboro, N. C.; hlgh sch. and business sch. grad.; North Carolina Coll. 1920-21; stenog. 1921-29, in Bu. of Internal Revenue, Greensboro, N. C., 1929-30; app. clk. at \$1,620 in the Dept. of State Dec. 1, 1930; clk., Int. Monetary and Economic Conf., London, 1933.-LA.

Friedrich, Auriel C.—b. New York City; hlgh sch. and business sch. grad.; Smith Coll. 1924-26; app. clk. at \$1,440 in the Dept. of State Aug. 13, 1928; at \$1,620 Mar. 1, 1929; at \$1,740 July 1, 1930; clk., Int. Monetary and Economic Conf., London, 1933.— SS.

Frisby, Florence E.—b. Washington, D. C.; George Washington Univ., B. S.; clk., Govt. depts., 1907-14, 1916-21; app. clk. at \$1,200 in the Dept. of State Jan. 28, 1921; at \$1,500 July 1, 1924; at \$1,560 Mar. 1, 1925; at \$1,620 Mar. 1, 1927; at \$1,860 Oct. 1, 1927; at \$2,000 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$2,200 July 1, 1930.—BA.

Frost, Arthur Chester .- b. Arlington, Mass., Feb. 4, 1886; Harvard, A. B. 1909; Harvard Sch. of Business Admin. 1908-9; George Washington Law Sch. 1911-12; sec. to mem. of Cong. 1910-15; app., after exam., cons. of class eight Mar. 2, 1915; detailed to Genoa Apr. 10, 1915; assigned to Algiers Mar. 20, 1917; class seven Apr. 24, 1917; class six Sept. 5, 1919; class five June 4, 1920; assigned to Barranquilla Oct. 20, 1920; to Guatemala Feb. 11, 1921; class four Aug. 23, 1922; detailed to Habana Mar. 30, 1923; class three June 3, 1924; cons. gen. of class four June 5, 1924; For. Ser. officer of class three July 1, 1924; assigned to Tampico Mar. 24, 1926; to Prague Nov. 2, 1927; class two July 24, 1930; observer, 17th plenary assembly of the Int. Parliamentary Conf. of Commerce, Prague, 1931: assigned to Calcutta July 31, 1931; to Zürich June 21, 1934; married.

Frost, Wesley.—b. Oberlin, Ohio, June 17, 1884; attended business sch.; Oberlin Coll., A. B. 1907; George Washington, M. A. 1910; mem. of bar of Ky.; sec. to mem. of Cong. 1907-8; stenog.. Govt. depts., 1908-9; lecturer for Committee on Public Information 1917; lecturer on cons. ser., Georgetown Sch. of For. Ser., 1919-21; app. clk. at \$1,600 in the Dept. of State Sept. 2, 1900; app., after exam., cons. at Charlottetown Apr. 5, 1912; at Cork Apr. 24, 1914; cons. of class eight by act approved Feb. 5, 1915; class seven Mar. 2, 1915; class six Apr. 24, 1917; detailed to the Dept. Aug. 14, 1917; class four Sept. 5, 1919; act. for. trade adviser Mar. 3, 1920; class three June 4, 1920; representative on Nat. Research Council 1920-21; assigned to Marseille Feb. 16, 1921; cons. gen. of class four June 5, 1924; For. Ser. officer of class three July 1, 1924; assigned to the Dept., temp., July 20, 1928; to Montreal Aug. 24, 1928; class two Oct. 16, 1929; class one July 1, 1931; married.

Fuerst, Mary A.—b. Burlington, Iowa; attended public sch.; clk. eight yrs.; app. clk., temp., at \$990 in the Dept. of State Mar. 7, 1918; at \$1,080 July 1, 1918; at \$1,140 Nov. 1, 1918; at \$1,200 Jan. 1, 1919; at \$1,020 July 1, 1919; at \$1,080 Feb. 1, 1920; permanently at \$960 Dec. 15, 1920; at \$1,020 Aug. 16, 1921; at \$1,200 Sept. 6, 1922; at \$1,500 July 1, 1924; at \$1,560 Mar. 1, 1927; at \$1,680 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$1,740 July 1, 1928; at \$1,800 Oct. 1, 1928; at \$1,920 July 1, 1930.—DCR.

Fuller, George Gregg .- b. Rochester, N. Y., Oct. 29, 1886; attended business sch.; Yale, B. A. 1910; grad. work, Univ. of Berlin, one yr., and Queens Univ.; executive in various companies 1910-16; U. S. Army 1916-19, maj., Mexican border service; foreign sales executive, bank representative in Scandinavia, and director of company in Norway and Germany 1919-20; app. v. c. at Christiania Nov. 3, 1920; at Trondhjem Feb. 25, 1921; at Malmö July 20, 1921; at Reval Aug. 27, 1921; app. drafting officer at \$2,500 in the Dept. of State Aug. 1, 1922; app., after exam., v. c. of career of class three Sept. 30, 1922; assigned to Jerusalem Apr. 27, 1923; to Bushire Nov. 22, 1923; class two Nov. 23, 1923; For. Ser. officer unclass. July 1, 1924; assigned to Teheran Sept. 2, 1924; to Berlin Feb. 27, 1926; detailed to the Dept. June 21, 1927; class eight and cons. Sept. 24, 1927; assigned to Niagara Falls, temp., Nov. 10, 1927; to Kingston, Ont., Mar. 7, 1928; class seven July 24, 1930; married.

Fuller, Stuart Jamieson .- b. Keokuk, Iowa, May 4. 1880; Univ. of Minn, 1896-98; Univ. of Wis., B. L. 1903; in railway and export business for several yrs.; app. v. and dep. cons. gen. (and clk.) at Hongkong Apr. 20, 1906; app., after exam., cons. at Göteborg July 29, 1909; detailed as v. c. in charge of the consulate at Naples Oct. 12, 1910; assigned as cons. at Iquitos Apr. 11, 1912; at Durban Sept. 18, 1913; cons. gen. at large Nov. 24, 1913; cons. gen. of class three Sept. 5, 1919; assigned to Tientsin Sept. 6, 1919; representative on Haiho Conservancy Commn., 1922-23; resigned Nov. 20, 1923; Calcutta mgr. for company 1923-26; representative in Far East for firm 1927-30; app. divisional asst. at \$5,600 in the Dept. of State July 12, 1930; asst. chief, Division of Far Eastern Affairs, at \$6,500 Apr. 1, 1931; representative in expert and advisory capacity, 15th sess., League of Nations Advisory Committee on Traffic in Opium and Other Dangerous Drugs, Geneva, 1932, 16th and 17th sess. 1933, and 18th sess. 1934; married.-FE.

Fullerton, Hugh Stuart .--- b. Chicago, Ill., Apr. 27, 1892; private sch. and tutors; Wittenberg Coll., A. B. 1914; Oxford 1915; Columbia 1915-16; Princeton, A. M. 1917; Instructor, Wittenberg Coll., 1914-15, Urbana Univ. 1917; Y. M. C. A. sec. in France 1917-19; app. v. c. and clk. at Geneva Feb. 25, 1920; app., after exam., v. c. of career of class three May 24, 1920, and assigned to Geneva; to Huelva Aug. 2. 1920; to Lyon Mar. 18, 1921; class two Nov. 17, 1921; class one May 26, 1922; cons. of class seven Mar. 1, 1923; detailed to Havre Apr. 19, 1923; to Calais July 20, 1923; to Antwerp Oct. 23, 1923; class six June 3, 1924; For. Ser. officer of class seven July 1, 1924; detailed to the Dept. May 5, 1925; assigned to Cologne Sept. 4, 1926; class six June 30, 1927; assigned to Kovno June 1, 1928; sec. in the Diplo. Ser. Nov. 12, 1929; assigned also as 2d sec. at Kovno Nov. 19, 1929; class five Dec. 19, 1929; 1st sec. Aug. 22, 1930; assigned as cons. at Lyon Jan. 5, 1932; as 2d sec. at Helsingfors June 21, 1933.

Fullinwider, Ranson (Lt., jg.)—b. Washington, D. C., Oct. 23, 1905; Swavely Sch. grad.; U.S.N.A., grad. 1926; assigned as language officer at Tokyo June 15, 1932.

Funk, Ilo Clare.—b. Trinidad, Colo., Oct. 30, 1889; Univ. of Colo., B. A. 1912; with mining companies in U. S. and Mexico; app., after exam., cons. asst. Sept. 3, 1912; assigned to the Dept. Sept. 27, 1912; app. v. and dep. cons. at Milan Aug. 29, 1913; v. c. at Milan by act approved Feb. 5, 1915; v. c. of career of class three Sept. 27, 1919; assigned to Lucerne Oct. 20, 1919; class two May 24, 1920; assigned to Genoa Sept. 15, 1921; class one Nov. 17, 1921; cons. of class seven June 22, 1922; class siz June 3, 1924; For. Ser. officer of class seven July 1, 1924; assigned to Catania Apr. 10, 1925; to Florence Feb. 18, 1928; class six Dec. 19, 1929; married.

Funkhouser, Charles Franklin.—b. Mount Jackson, Va., Sept. 11, 1877; attended public sch. and normal sch.; teacher in public sch. eighteen yrs.; mail weigher three and one half months; app. clk., temp., at \$990 in the Dept. of State Feb. 11, 1918; at \$1,080 July 1, 1918; at \$1,140 Feb. 1, 1919; permanently at \$1,400 Oct. 16, 1919; at \$1,200 Oct. 1, 1920; at \$1,440 July 1, 1924; at \$1,500 Sept. 1, 1924; at \$1,500 Mar. 1, 1927; at \$1,680 June 1, 1927; at \$1,800 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$1,920 July 1, 1930; married.—CC.

Fuqua, John Howe.—b. Marinette, Wis., Mar. 23, 1905; high sch. grad.; Dartmouth 1923-26; London Sch. of Economics 1928; Univ. of Montpellier, France, 1929; in export business 1927; app. clk. in Am. Consulate at Dundee Feb. 22, 1930; v. c. at Dundee May 21, 1930; at London Mar. 5, 1931; at Paris June 8, 1934.

Fuqua, Stephen Ogden (Col.)—b. Baton Rouge, La., Dec. 25, 1874; Univ. of La., B.S. 1892; entered U.S. Army July 19, 1898; assigned as mil. att. at Madrid and Lisbon July 22, 1933; married.

Furfey, Francis.—b. Trenton, N. J., Mar. 14, 1909; attended high sch.; clk. 1925-28, 1929-30; clk.-typist

1929; machine operator 1930; app. clk. at \$1,440 in the Dept. of State Aug. 17, 1931; at \$1,620 Feb. 17, 1932.—BA.

Fyfe, Howard.—b. Mar. 22, 1896; attended high sch. and business sch.; in freight forwarding business; clk., U. S. Despatch Agency, N. Y., Feb. 11, 1911; U. S. Army 1917-18; asst. to U. S. despatch agt., N. Y., Oct. 1, 1927; deputy despatch agt. Mar. 23, 1928, effective Apr. 1; at \$2,600 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); asst. despatch agt. at \$3,000 Aug. 1, 1929; despatch agt. at \$4,500 Jan. 28, 1930.

Gade, Gerhard.—b. Chicago, Ill., Sept. 30, 1898; Groton Sch.; Harvard, A. B. 1921; Harvard Law Sch. 1921-22; U. S. Navy 1918-19; H. (jg.), U. S. Naval Reserve; app., after exam., sec. of emb. or leg. of class four Sept. 22, 1922, and assigned to the Dept.; to Riga Nov. 13, 1922; For. Ser. officer of class eight July 1, 1924; assigned to the Dept. July 17, 1924; class seven Nov. 17, 1924; assigned as 3d sec. at Oslo Sept. 18, 1925; at Montevideo July 11, 1927; 2d sec. Oct. 19, 1929; class six July 24, 1930; assigned to Athens June 18, 1931.

Gade, John Allyne (Lt. Comdr.)-b. Cambridge, Mass., Feb. 10, 1875; attended sch. in Norway, Germany, and France; Harvard, S.B. 1896; instructor at Harvard 1896-97; architect; mem., Commn. of Relief for Belgium, 1916-17; U.S. Naval Reserve Force, 1917, lt. comdr.; asst. naval att. at Copenhagen, Stockholm, and Christiania 1917-19; mem. of Baltic mission 1919; Am. Commr. to Estonia, Latvia, and Lithuania 1919-20; mem. of banking firm 1921-33; app. naval att. at Brussels July 12, 1933; married.

Gaines, Harry B.—b. St. Louis, Mo., Nov. 10, 1892; U. S. Army 1918; skilled laborer, messenger, and clk. in War Dept. 1919-26; app. laborer in the Dept. of State May 19, 1930.—SU.

Gaines, Owen W.—b. Atlanta, Ga., Dec. 7, 1897; high sch. grad.; attended business sch.; studied law; Instituto Libre de Enseñanza, Madrid, 1928-29; U. S. Army 1917-19, overseas service; clk. 1919-22; paymaster for company in Honduras 1922-24; app. clk. in Am. Consulate at Nuevitas July 1924; v. c. at Nuevitas Mar. 10, 1925; at Nassau, temp., Sept. 25, 1926; at Corinto Dec. 11, 1926; at Madrid July 21, 1928; at Oporto, temp., Mar. 29, 1929; at Madrid Aug. 17, 1929; at Bibbao Dec. 28, 1929; married.

Galbraith, Willard.—b. Los Angeles, Calif., May 15, 1906; Univ. of Calif., A. B. 1927; asst. supervisor of attendance in city sch. system 1927-30; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass., v. c. of career, and sec. in the Diplo. Ser. Dec. 19, 1929; assigned as v. c. at Panama Feb. 4, 1930; to the For. Ser. Sch. Sept. 27, 1930; to São Paulo Feb. 24, 1931; to Santos, temp., Jan. 19, 1932; to São Paulo Feb. 20, 1932; to Santos, temp., Jan. 25, 1933; to São Paulo Mar. 6, 1933; to Victoria, Brazil, temp., May 11, 1933; to São Paulo Sept. 12, 1933.

Gallman, Waldemar John.—b. Wellsville, N. Y., Apr. 27, 1899; Cornell, A. B. 1921, grad. work 1921-22; Georgetown Law Sch. 1922-23; S. A. T. C. 1918; Instructor in Eng., Cornell, 1921-22; app., after exam., sec. of emb. or leg. of class four Sept. 22, 1022, and assigned to the Dept.; to Habana Nov. 13, 1922; to the Dept. July 24, 1923; For. Ser. officer of class eight July 1, 1924; assigned as 3d sec. at San José, Costa Rica, Apr. 15, 1925; class seven Apr. 30, 1925; assigned as 3d sec. at Quito Oct. 30, 1926; 2d sec. Oct. 19, 1929; class six July 24, 1930; assigned to Riga Aug. 14, 1930; cons. Apr. 28, 1934; detailed to the emb. at Warsaw, temp., May 7, 1934; assigned as cons. at Danzig May 7, 1934; married.

Gallop, Vera Nierling (Mrs.)—b. Algona, Iowa; high sch. grad.; stenog. in law office three yrs.; app. clk. at \$1,320 in the Dept. of State June 1, 1927; at \$1,440 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$1,620 July 1, 1928; at \$1,800 Feb. 20, 1930; stenog., Commn. for study and review of conditions in Haiti, 1930; at \$1,920 July 1, 1930.—SS.

Gamon, John Arthur.—b. Wheaton, Ill., Feb. 9, 1882; Univ. of Mich., A. B. 1905; with railroad 1899; civil engineer in Mexico 1902-3; salesman with steel company 1905-14; app., after exam., cons. at Puerto Cortes Apr. 24, 1914; cons. of class eight by act approved Feb. 5, 1915; class seven Sept. 17, 1915, and assigned to Corinto; to Guaymas Mar. 20, 1917; class six Apr. 16, 1917; assigned to Acapulco July 12, 1917; class five Sept. 5, 1919; class four June 4, 1920; assigned to Cobh Dec. 27, 1921; class three Mar. 1, 1923; cons. gen. of class four June 5, 1924; For. Ser. officer of class three July 1, 1924; assigned to London May 21, 1925; to Marseille Aug. 24, 1928; class two July 24, 1930; married.

Gannett, Taylor White.—b. Omaha, Nebr., July 4, 1903; Cornell, A. B. 1925; bank clk. 1925–30; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass., v. c. of career, and sec. in the Diplo. Ser. Junc 4, 1930; assigned as v. c. at Habana June 19, 1930; at Matanzas, temp., Nov. 4, 1930; to the For. Ser. Sch. Feb. 11, 1931; to Guayaquil June 20, 1931; as 3d sec. at Quito Aug. 22, 1932; as v. c. at Guayaquil Dec. 9, 1932.

Gantenbein, James Watson.—b. Portland, Oreg., Nov. 9, 1900; Reed Coll., A. B. 1922; Northwestern Coll. of Law, LL. B. 1922; Columbia, A. M. 1925, Pb. D. 1931; studied under tutor in France 1927; Downing Coll., Univ. of Cambridge, 1927–28; mem. of bar of Oreg.; S. A. T. C. 1918; dep. county clk. 1919–20; sec., Northwestern Coll. of Law, 1920–24; teacher in high sch. 1922–24, 1925–27, 1928–29; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass. and v. c. of career Oct. 16, 1929; assigned to the For. Ser. Sch. Oct. 21, 1929; to Milan Mar. 26, 1930; as For. Ser. officer to the leg. at Santo Domingo May 17, 1933; sec. in the Diplo. Ser. June 17, 1933; 3d sec. at Santo Domingo July 10, 1933.

Gardner, Inez Josephine.—b. Calumet, Mich.; Wellesley, A. B. 1904; secretarial work for organizations studying public questions and editorial work for magazines and publishing houses 1905–17; office mgr. in Council of National Defense 1917–19; in Bu. of Internal Revenue 1919–26; app. editorial asst. at \$1,860 in the Dept. of State Mar. 22, 1926; at \$1,920 Mar. 1, 1927; at \$2,100 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$2,200 July 1, 1928; at \$2,300 Sept. 1, 1929; at \$2,500 July 1, 1930.—RP.

Garland, Myron Sidney,—b. Kingston, N. H., Sept. 7, 1904; Pinkerton Acad. grad.; business sch. grad.; clk. 1922-25; app. clk. at \$1,320 in the Dept. of State Feb. 27, 1925; at \$1,500 July 16, 1926; at \$1,860 Dec. 1, 1927; sec., Bd. of Examiners for the For. Ser., Jan. 1, 1928; at \$2,000 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$2,100 July 1, 1928; at \$2,300 July 1, 1930; married.—FP.

Garner, James Francis Reed.—b. Washington, D. C., Apr. 29, 1908; attended high sch. and Emerson Inst.; clk. 1927-28, in Veterans' Bu. 1928-29; app. clk. at \$1,440 in the Dept. of State Oct. 15, 1929; at \$1,620 July 1, 1930; married.—DCR.

Garner, L. Virginia (Mrs.)-b. Washington, D. C.; attended business high sch.; stenog. 1923-27; app. clk. at \$1,320 in the Dept. of State May 18, 1927; at \$1,500 Apr. 1, 1928; at \$1,620 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$1,740 July 1, 1930; at \$1,800 Nov. 17, 1930; clk., Int. Monetary and Economic Conf., London, 1933.-AP.

Garrels, Arthur.—b. St. Louis, Mo., Jan. 3, 1873; Smith Acad. grad.; with banking and mfg. firms 1890-98; amusement enterprises in U. S. and Far East 1898-1904; brokerage business 1904-8; app., after exam., cons. at Zanzibar June 22, 1908; at Catania Jan. 11, 1910; at Alexandria Aug. 22, 1912; cons. of class six by act approved Feb. 5, 1915; class four Mar. 2, 1915; class three July 6, 1918; cons. gen. at large Sept. 5, 1919; For. Ser. officer of class three July 1, 1924; assigned to Athens Oct. 23, 1924; class two Dec. 17, 1925; assigned to Melbourne June 29, 1926; to Tokyo Nov. 16, 1929; class one July 24. 1930; married.

Garvin, John Trumbull.—b. Valparaiso, Chile, of Am. parents, July 29, 1892; attended sch. In Chile and U. S.; Wooster Acad. grad.; Univ. of Wooster 1910-11; with firm of importers and exporters in Chile 1911-14; app. clk. in Am. Consulate at Valparaiso Oct. 17, 1914; in Am. Emb. at Santiago Apr. 1, 1915; in Am. Consulate General at Valparaiso Dec. 1, 1915; v. c. at Valparaiso Feb. 29, 1916; resigned Oct. 20, 1920; reapp. v. c. at Valparaiso Sept. 27, 1921; at Punta Arenas (Magallanes) Jan. 15, 1927; reapp. v. c. at Magallanes Apr. 9, 1928; at Valparaiso Sept. 11, 1928; at Antofagasta Mar. 8, 1934; married.

Gates, Louis Earl.—b. Binghamton, N. Y., Dec. 15, 1885; attended high sch. and business sch.; U. S. N. A. 1903-5; American Univ. 1928-30; employed in private firms 1905-13; app. clk. at \$900 in the Dept. of State Dec. 12, 1913; at \$1,000 Sept. 22, 1914; at \$1,400 June 22, 1916, effective July 1; at \$1,600 Sept. 3, 1919; at \$1,860 July 1, 1924; at \$2,000 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$2,100 July 1, 1928; at \$2,300 July 1, 1930; married.—HA.

Gates, Margaret Isabel.—b. Carson City, Nev.; high sch. grad.; attended business sch. and George Washington Unlv.; clk., War Dept., 1918, Treas. Dept. 1919-23. Dept. of State 1923-24; reapp. clk. at \$1,320 in the Dept. of State Feb. 9, 1925; at \$1,500 May 1, 1926; at \$1,620 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$1,680 July 1, 1928; at \$1,800 July 1, 1930.-DCR.

Gaudin, Daniel, Jr.—b. New York City Oct. 10, 1906; Univ. of Pa., B. A. 1927, grad. work 1928; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass., v. c. of career, and sec. in the Diplo. Ser. Dec. 16, 1930; assigned as v. c. at Ottawa, temp., Dec. 29, 1930; to the For. Ser. Sch. Aug. 8, 1931; to Belrut Dec. 10, 1931; married.

Gault, Rose B. (Mrs.)—b. Fort Seybert, W. Va.; attended public sch.; clk., Govt. dcpts., 1918-25; app. clk. at \$1,140 in the Dept. of State Aug. 25, 1925; at \$1,200 Mar. 1, 1927; at \$1,320 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$1,380 July 1, 1928; at \$1,440 July 1, 1930.—DCR.

Gauss, Clarence Edward.-b. Washington, D. C., Jan. 12, 1887; private tutors; business high sch. grad.; clk. in law office 1903-6; stenog. to Invalid Pensions Committee, House of Representatives, 1903-5; app. clk. at \$900 in the Dept. of State Aug. 2, 1906; at \$1,200 Mar. 4, 1907; dep. cons. gen. at Shanghai June 7, 1907; reapp. clk. at \$1,200 in the Dept. of State June 30, 1909, effective July 1; at \$1,400 July 1, 1910; v. and dep. cons. gen. at Shanghai Dec. 16, 1912; v. c. at Shanghai Feb. 6, 1915; app., after exam., cons. of class eight Mar. 2, 1915; detailed to Shanghai June 9, 1915; to Tientsin July 22, 1916; class six July 14, 1916; assigned to Amoy Sept. 25, 1916; class five Sept. 5, 1919; assigned to Tsinan Sept. 8, 1919; class four June 4, 1920; class three Nov. 23, 1921; cons. gen. of class four Mar. 1, 1923; assigned to Mukden Mar. 30, 1923; to Tientsin Mar. 12, 1924; class three June 5, 1924; For. Ser. officer of class two July 1, 1924; assigned to Shanghai, temp., Aug. 8, 1926; to Tientsin May 4, 1927; class one May 23, 1929; assigned to the Dept. June 13, 1931; sec. in the Diplo. Ser. June 13, 1933; assigned as couns. of leg. at Peiping June 20, 1933; married.

Geerken, Forrest Kermit.—b. Ida Grove, Iowa, May 8, 1908; Univ. of Minn., B. A. 1930; app. clk. in Am. Consulate at Adelaide July 22, 1930; v. c. at Adelaide Mar. 26, 1931.

Geist, Raymond Herman.—b. Cleveland, Ohio, Aug. 19. 1885; Oberlin Coll. 1906-9; Western Reserve Univ., A. B. 1910; Columbia Univ. 1910-11; Harvard, A. M. 1916. Ph. D. 1918; with newspaper 1900-1902; chemical company 1902-5; lecturer on New York public lecture courses 1910-12; U. S. Navy 1918; with Am. Commn. to Negotiate Peace, Paris, 1918-19; food commr. In Austria and adviser to the Austrian Govt. in matters of public feeding 1919-20; lecturer in Eng. at Harvard 1920-21; app., after exam., v. c. of career of class three Oct. 26, 1921; assigned to Buenos Aires Dec. 14, 1921; to Montevideo Dec. 6, 1922; to Port Said Sept. 6, 1923; to Alexandria Nov. 22, 1923; class two Nov. 23, 1923; class one May 10, 1924; For. Ser. officer unclass. July 1, 1924; class ine and cons. Sept. 20, 1924; assigned to Alexandria Sept. 20, 1924; class eight Feb. 24, 1925; class seven May 17, 1928; assigned to Berlin Nov. 19, 1929; class six July 24, 1930.

George, William Crusor.—b. Washington, D. C., Nov. 22, 1903; high sch. grad.; Howard Univ. 1924-27; secretary 1924-27; app. clk. in Am. Leg. at Monrovia Jan. 21, 1929; v. c. at Monrovia Feb. 16, 1931; married.

George, William Perry .- b. Gadsden, Ala., Nov. 25, 1895; high sch. grad.; Gadsden Training Sch. three yrs.; U. S. N. A. 1914-16; clk. in U. S. Geological Survey; app. clk. in Am. Consulate at Grenoble Sept. 27, 1916; v. c. at Grenoble Feb. 10, 1917; at Athens Mar. 15, 1918; asst. to Am. del., Interallied Cml. Bu. in Athens, 1918; app., after exam., v. c. of career of class three Sept. 27, 1919; assigned to Athens Dec. 1, 1919; act. cml. adviser to Am. Leg. at Athens Apr. 11-Aug. 4, 1920; class two May 24, 1920; class one Nov. 17, 1921; assigned to Patras Dec. 20, 1921; to Athens Jan. 12, 1922; cons. of class seven June 22. 1922; assigned to Tenerife Nov. 17, 1922; For. Ser. officer of class eight July 1, 1924; class seven Aug. 8, 1924; assigned to Buenos Aires Oct. 22, 1924; to Rivière du Loup Dec. 30, 1925; to Belgrade Dec. 19, 1928; sec. in the Diplo. Ser. June 13, 1929; assigned also as 3d sec. at Belgrade June 19, 1929; class six Oct. 16, 1929; 2d sec. Oct. 19, 1929; relieved of duties as cons. at Belgrade Aug. 19, 1930; assigned as cons. at Izmir Oct. 12, 1932; also for Italian Islands of the Aegean Jan. 13, 1933; married.

Gerber, William.—b. Philadelphia, Pa., July 12, 1908; Univ. of Pa., B. A. 1929, grad. work 1929-30; George Washington Univ., M. A. 1932; Johns Hopkins, grad. work 1932-; instructor in Am. hist., Nether Providence Sch., 1929-30; app. archive asst. at \$1,620 in the Dept. of State Oct. 1, 1930; editorial asst. at \$1,800 July 28, 1931; married.—RP.

Gericke, Martha L.—b. Berlin, Germany; attended sch. in Germany and U. S.; high sch. grad.; private tutors; Unlv. of Nebr. 1903-4; library course, Washington Public Library, 1905-6; teacher in public Sch. 1904-5; library asst. 1906-8; in Library of Cong. 1908-10; in Dept. of Agric. 1910-19; librarian of U. S. States Relations Service 1920-26; app. librarian at \$3,000 in the Dept. of State Jan. 25, 1926; mem. of Tech. Cooperating Committee on Bibliography provided for by Sixth Int. Conf. of Am. States, since 1928; at \$3,200 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$3,300 July 1, 1928; at \$3,800 Oct. 1, 1928; at \$4,200 July 1, 1930.—RP.

Gerrity, Charles Matthew.—b. Scranton, Pa., June 2, 1899; tech. hlgh sch. grad.; clk., War Dept., 1917-18; app. clk. in Am. Consulate General at Copenhagen Aug. 20, 1918; v. c. at Prague Sept. 22, 1920; at Bergen Nov. 27, 1923; at Kovno Jan. 3, 1924; at Dresden Dec. 17, 1927; at Regina Dec. 15, 1930.

Gibbs, Jeptha Mllton.—b. Navasota, Tex., Apr. 20, 1875; attended high sch.; clk. in railroad office 1897-98; 1st Tex. Cavalry 1898; with railroad companies in Mexico and U. S. 1899-1903; dir. and mgr. of wholesale mercantile business in Cananea, Mexico, since 1903; app. cons. agt. at Cananea Jan. 30, 1918; married.

Gibson, Elizabeth Borland.—b. Newport, R. I.; high sch. grad.; attended business sch.; app. clk. at \$1,320 in the Dept. of State Oct. 3, 1927; at \$1,440 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$1,620 July 1, 1928; at \$1,740 July 1, 1930; at \$1,800 Sept. 1, 1931; clk., North and Cen. American Regional Radio Conf., Mexico City, 1933.—A-C/C.

Gibson, Hugh Simons .- b. Los Angeles, Calif., Aug. 16, 1883; private tutors; Los Angeles Mil. Acad.; L'École Libre des Sciences Politiques; app., after exam., sec. of leg. at Tegucigalpa July 31, 1908; 2d sec. at London Aug. 4, 1909; confidential clk. to asst. sec. of state Feb. 10, 1910; clk. at \$1,600 in the Dept. of State Jan. 13, 1911; sec. of leg. at Habana July 6, 1911; accompanied special representative of the Pres. at the inauguration of the Pres. of Cuba, 1913; detailed to observe the elections for the Constituent Assembly of Santo Domingo Dec. 1913; sec. of leg. at Brussels Feb. 11, 1914; sec. of emb, or leg. of class two by act approved Feb. 5, 1915; assigned to London, temp., May 16, 1916; permanently July 15, 1916; to the Dept., temp., Feb. 28, 1917; permanently Apr. 9, 1917; attached to the person of the British sec. of state for for. affairs Apr. 18, 1917; attached to the Belgian Mission June 12, 1917; class one Aug. 23, 1917; assigned to Paris Feb. 13, 1918; E. E. and M. P. to Poland Apr. 16, 1919; to Switzerland Mar. 18, 1924; attended Temp. Mixed Commn., League of Nations, 1924; v. chm. Am. del., Conf. for Supervision of Int. Trade in Arms and Ammunition and Implements of War, 1925; head of Am. representation, Prep. Commn. for Disarmament Conf., Geneva, 1926, 1927, 1928, 1929, 1930; A. E. and P. to Belgium and E. E. and M. P. to Luxemburg Feb. 17, 1927; chm. of Am. del. and chm. of the conf., Conf. for the Limitation of Naval Armaments, Geneva, 1927; del., London Naval Conf., 1930; observer, conf. of experts for moratorium on intergovernmental debts, London, 1931; del., Gen. Disarmament Conf., Geneva, 1932, 1933; A. E. and P. to Brazil May 11, 1933; married.

Gibson, Lloyd Leckie.—b. Minersville, Pa., May 31, 1902; attended high sch.; app., temp., at \$480 in the Dept. of State Sept. 29, 1917; at \$600 Oct. 1, 1917; at \$720 June 1, 1918; app. mimeograph operator, permanently, at \$720 Jan. 26, 1921; at \$900 Oct. 1, 1921; clk. at \$1,000 Sept. 1, 1922; at \$1,260 July 1, 1924; at \$1,380 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$1,500 July 1, 1930; married.—PD.

Gibson, Raleigh Augustus.—b. Indianapolis, Ind., Oct. 10, 1894; Univ. of Ill., A. B. 1917; U. S. Army 1917-20, 1st lt.; app., after exam., v. c. of career of class three May 24, 1920; assigned to Buenos Aires Aug. 2, 1920; class two Nov. 17, 1921; class one May 26, 1922; cons. of class seven Mar. 1, 1923; class six June 3, 1924; For. Ser. officer of class seven July 1, 1924; assigned to Tenerife Oct. 22, 1924; to Guadalajara Oct. 27, 1928; class six May 23, 1929; sec. in the Diplo. Ser. and assigned as 2d sec. at Tegucigalpa May 25, 1934; married.

Gibson, Vassar DuBois.—b. Princeton, W. Va., Jan. 27, 1908; elevator conductor and messenger, Govt. depts., 1930-31; app. messenger in the Dept. of State July 8, 1931.—RP.

Gidden, Culver Earl.—b. Venus, Tex., Sept. 9, 1909; East Tex. State Teachers Coll. 1926-27; Tex. Christian Univ., B.B.A. 1930; salesman 1930; app. clk. in Am. Consulate at Belize June 10, 1931; v. c. at Belize July 11, 1932; married.

Gidney, Charles Chauncey, Jr.—b. Granger, Tex., Mar. 23, 1901; Univ. of Tex. 1920-22; Georgetown Sch. of For. Ser., B. F. S. 1924; special agt., Census Bu., 1923-24; app. clk. in Am. Consulate General at Habana Oct. 1, 1924; v. c. at Habana June 10, 1926; resigned Apr. 23, 1927; asst. cashier in bank 1927-30; app. v. c. at Guadalajara Dec. 16, 1930.

Giffen, Morrison Beall.—b. Asyut, Egypt, of Am. parents, Dec. 29, 1884; George Watson's Sch., Edinburgh; Tarkio Coll. 1907; Queens Coll., Oxford, B. A. 1911; Univ. of Chicago, Ph. D. 1928; teacher of hist., Tarkio Coll., 1911-13; farmer 1914-30; U. S. Army 1918; app. research asst. at \$4,600 in the Dept. of State Apr. 4, 1930; chief of research section Nov. 15, 1932; married.—RP.

Gilbert, Frank Manson.—b. Evansville, Ind., May 29, 1882; Racine Coll. 1903-7; architectural sch. in Italy four yrs.; mgr. of firm of architects 1908-17; U. S. Army.1917-19. 1st lt., overseas service; app. v. c. at Genoa Mar. 23, 1920; at Patras May 10, 1922; at Christiania Feb. 13, 1924; at Cobh Aug. 15, 1924; at Brussels Oct. 13, 1926; at Antwerp, temp., Sept. 1, 1927; at Brussels Jan. 16, 1928.

Gilbert, Prentiss Bailey .- b. Rochester, N. Y., Oct. 3, 1883; El Colegio de San Carlos, Cebu, Philippine Is.; Yale, B. A. 1907; grad. work, Columbia Univ.; Univ. of Rochester, Ph. B. and M. A. 1916; corp. sec. and mine supt. 1907-11; foreign exploration, study, and writing 1911-16; dir. of sch. of extension teaching and instructor in Eng., Univ. of Rochester, 1916-17; U. S. Army, Philippine Insurrection and 1917-19, capt.; lt. col., O. R. C.; app. special asst. at \$3,000 in the Dept. of State Mar. 11, 1919; at \$2,500 July 1. 1919; at \$4,000 Jan. 1, 1920; chief, Division of Political and Economic Information, May 24, 1921; at \$4,400 Aug. 1, 1924; at \$5,200 Apr. 1, 1927; asst chief, Division of Western European Affairs, Apr. 9, 1927; representative, Int. Chamber of Com. Cong., Stockholm 1927, Amsterdam 1929; at \$6,500 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); resigned July 20, 1930; app. For. Ser. officer of class three, sec. in the Diplo. Ser., and cons. June 12, 1930; assigned as 1st sec. at Paris July 26, 1930; as cons. at Geneva Aug. 16, 1930; representative in capacity of expert, Fourth Gen. Conf. on Communications and Transit, Geneva, 1931; representative in consultative capacity, discussions on application of Pact of Paris to Sino-Japanese controversy, Council of the League of Nations, Geneva, 1931; married.

Gilchrist, Andrew.—b. New York City Aug. 26, 1897; attended high sch. and business sch.; Pratt's Inst. 1915-18; Sorbonne 1919-20; stenog. and sec. 1915-18; U. S. Army 1918-21, overseas service; with Am. Commn. in Germany Sept.-Oct. 1921; app. clk. in Am. Consulate General at Munich Oct. 28, 1921; at Leipzig Sept. 1, 1925; v. c. at Leipzig May 6, 1926; at Prague Sept. 18, 1929; married.

Gillespie, Julian E.—b. Brownwood, Tex., June 20, 1893; Univ. of Tex., grad. 1914; Univ. of Chicago 1914; Georgetown, LL. B. 1915; U. S. Army 1917– 19, overseas service; app. asst. trade commr. and assigned to Am. High Commn. at Constantinople June 7, 1920; trade commr. at Constantinople July 1, 1922; cml. att. at Constantinople (Istanbul) Dec. 1, 1926; also cml. att. at Sofia Apr. 24, 1928; relieved Sept. 15, 1931; app. cml. att. at Istanbul and Sofia Feb. 13, 1932; married.

Gillette, Glenn McKinley.—b. Naples, N. Y., Feb. 19, 1897; attended high sch.; teacher in public sch. 1915-16; surveying 1916-17; clk. in Bu. of War Risk Insur. 1918-20; app. clk. at \$1,000 in the Dept. of State Aug. 6, 1920; at \$1,100 Apr. 1, 1924; at \$1,380 July 1, 1924; at \$1,500 Aug. 16, 1926; at \$1,620 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$1,740 July 1, 1930; married.—DCR.

Gilmor, Albert (Lt. Col.)—b. Baltimore, Md., Jan. 15, 1880; U.S.M.A., grad. 1903; assigned as mil. att. at Warsaw and Prague Oct. 18, 1932.

Gimperling, Thomas Norton (Lt. Col.)—b. Dayton, Ohio, June 5, 1880; U.S.M.A., grad. 1904; Williams Coll., A. M. 1917; assigned as mil. att. at Habana Feb. 15, 1933; married.

Gjessing, Erland.—b. Slesvig, Germany, Mar. 16, 1870; naturalized 1897; attended gymnasium and business sch. in Denmark; New York Univ. 1913-17; bookkeeper and stenog. 1891-1904; insp. of immigration 1904-15; clk. and translator in banking company 1915-18; app. v. c. at Copenhagen May 27, 1918; married.

Glennan, Marjorie Denver.—b. Washington, D. C.; bigh sch. grad.; attended French sch. 1923-24; typistclk., U. S. Food Admin., 1918; app. clk., temp., at \$1,020 in the Dept. of State Nov. 23, 1918; at \$960 July 1, 1919; at \$1,020 Nov. 1, 1919; permanently at \$900 Dec. 10, 1920; at \$1,000 Aug. 16, 1921; at \$1,100 Feb. 1, 1924; at \$1,200 May 31, 1924, effective June 1; at \$1,500 July 1, 1924; at \$1,560 Mar. 1, 1927; at \$1,680 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$1,740 July 1, 1928; at \$1,800 Oct. 1, 1928; at \$1,920 July 1, 1930; clk., Int. Monetary and Economic Conf., London, 1933.—DCR.

Glover, Robert Gordon.—b. Summer, Ga., Apr. 24, 1893; Ga. State Agric. and Mech. Coll.; Ga. Sch. of Tech. 1914-17; U. S. Army 1918-19, 2d lt.; cml. work; in Veterans' Bu.; entered Bu. of For. and Domes. Com. Jan. 21, 1927; app. asst. trade commr. at Santiago, Chile, Mar. 1, 1927; asst. cml. att. at Santiago Aug. 22, 1927; relieved Jan. 27, 1930; app. asst. cml. att. at Mexico City Mar. 21, 1931; married.

Goetz, Robert C. F. (Maj.)--b. Cape Girardeau, Mo., Apr. 18, 1886; U.S.M.A., grad. 1909; Harvard, A. M. 1924; assigned as mil. att. at Brussels, The Hague, and Lnxembourg May 4, 1931; tech. adviser, 2d stage, Gen. Disarmament Conf., Geneva, 1933; relieved as mil. att. at Brussels, The Hague, and Luxemburg and assigned as mil. att. at Bern Feb. 26, 1934; married.

Goforth, Herndon Ware.—b. near Lenoir, N. C., Sept. 2, 1884; attended public and private sch.; Rutherford Coll. two yrs.; George Washington Univ. four yrs.; teachers' institutes; teacher and principal of sch. 1902-8; teacher, principal, and supervisor of sch., Philippine service, 1908-12; clk. and examiner, Civil Ser. Commn., 1913-16; clk., Interstate Com. Commn., 1916-19; app., after exam., v. c. of career of class three Sept. 27, 1919; assigned to Guatemala Oct. 22, 1919; to Santos May 14, 1921; class two Nov. 17, 1921; class one May 26, 1922; cons. of class seven Mar. 1, 1923; assigned to Santos Mar. 28, 1923; For. Ser. officer of class eight July 1, 1924; assigned to São Paulo Aug. 17, 1925; to Sherbrooke May 12, 1927; class seven May 23, 1929; to Matamoros Feb. 7, 1933; married.

Goldsberry, Paul Eugene.—b. Ash Grove, Mo., Nov. 3, 1903; high sch. grad.; attended business sch.; clk. and salesman 1917-24, 1926-27; clk., stenog., and translator, War Dept., 1924-26; app. clk. at \$1,320 in the Dept. of State June 1, 1927; at \$1,440 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$1,500 July 1, 1928; at \$1,620 Feb. 1, 1929; at \$1,800 July 1, 1930; married.—DCR.

Goldstein, Hyman.—b. New York City Feb. 2, 1894; attended high sch. and business sch.; clk. 1911; messenger, Govt. Printing Office, 1911–12; messenger, Dept. of State, 1912–14, clk. 1914–24; clk., Am. Commn. to Negotiate Peace, Paris, 1918–19; clk., Am. High Commn., Istanbul, Turkey, 1924–30; special disbursing officer in Am. Emb. at Mexico City, 1930–32; app. asst. dist. acct. and disbursing officer and v. c. at Mexico City Jan. 28, 1933; married.

Gonzalez, Antonio C.—b. New York City Apr. 30, 1888; N.Y. Coll. Prep. Sch.; George Washington Univ., LL.B. 1909; men. of bars of Conn., N.Y., and D.C.; N.Y. Nat. Guard 1912–16; U.S. Army 1917–18, 1st It.; law practice 1910–33; app. E.E. and M.P. to Panama Aug. 28, 1933; married.

Goodier, Harvey Treadway.—b. Utica, N. Y., July 7, 1893; Cascadilla Sch. and Utica Free Acad.; Cornell 1914-15; studied Iaw; app., after exam., student interpreter in Japan Oct. 15, 1915; interpreter at Yokohama Feb. 9, 1918; also v. c. at Yokohama Feb. 12, 1918; at Dairen Dec. 13, 1920; v. c. and interpreter at Yokohama Jan. 6, 1921; v. c. at Nagoya Oct. 19, 1921; also interpreter at Nagoya Oct. 20, 1921; v. c. and interpreter at Yokohama Apr. 1, 1922; cons. of class seven June 22, 1922; assigned to Taihoku Sept. 18, 1922; For. Ser. officer of class eight July 1, 1924; assigned to Nagoya Dec. 12, 1924; to Vancouver Fcb. 13, 1928; class seven July 24, 1930; married. Goodwin, Myra Layton (Mrs.)--b. Bridgeville, Del.; high sch. grad.; attended business sch.; stenog. to mem. of Cong. 1919-22; stenog. 1923-24; clk. in Dept. of Com. 1924-25, in Dept. of State 1925-26; reapp. clk. at \$1,320 in the Dept. of State Feb. 11, 1927; at \$1,500 June 1, 1927; at \$1,620 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$1,680 Sept. 1, 1928; at \$1,740 July 1, 1930.--VD.

Goold, Herbert Stewart .-- b. San Francisco, Calif., Aug. 10, 1886; Stanford, A. B. 1909; mem. of bar of Calif.; clk. 1909-11; law clk. 1911-16; app., after exam., sec. of emb. or leg. of class four Oct. 2, 1916; assigned to the Dept. Oct. 19, 1916; to Bucharest Dec. 5, 1916 (canceled); to Vienna Jan. 31, 1917; to Santo Domingo June 7, 1917; class three Aug. 23, 1917; assigned to La Paz July 11, 1918; to Guatemala May 11, 1920; to Bogotá Jan. 7, 1921; to Managua Aug. 2, 1921; to London Jan. 18, 1922; class two Mar. 23, 1922: For. Ser. officer of class four July 1, 1924; assigned as 1st sec. at Athens July 17, 1924; at San José, Costa Rica, May 28, 1929; class three Dec. 19, 1929; cons. and assigned to Beirut Sept. 23, 1930 (canceled); cons. gen. and assigned to Beirut Oct. 24, 1930; married.

Gordon, George Anderson,-b. Huntsville, Ala., Nov. 19, 1885; attended prep. sch. in Switzerland and U.S.; Harvard, A. B. 1906; Columbia, LL. B. 1912, on bd. of Law Review; mem. of bar of N. Y.; instructor, St. Paul's Sch., 1906-9; law practice 1912-17; U. S. Army 1916, 1917-19, capt., overseas service ; with Am. Commn. to Negotiate Peace, Paris, 1919; app., after exam., sec. of emb. or leg. of class four Feb. 18, 1920; assigned to Paris Feb. 19, 1920; sec. of class three Mar. 23, 1922; assigned to the Dept. Aug. 20, 1923; class two Jan. 23, 1924; For. Ser. officer of class four July 1, 1924; 1st sec. at Budapest Apr. 15, 1925; class three Aug. 31, 1925; tech. asst. to Am. del., Preparatory Commn. for the Disarmament Conf., Geneva, 1927; 1st sec. at Paris May 11, 1927; adviser to Am. del., Conf. for Limitation of Naval Armament, Geneva, 1927; tech. expert, Int. Conf. on Treatment of Foreigners, Paris, 1929; class two Dec. 19, 1929; couns. of emb. at Paris Jan. 8, 1930; adviser, London Naval Conf., 1930; couns. of emb. at Berlin Mar. 26, 1930; adviser, conf. of ministers for moratorium on intergovernmental debts, London, 1931; class one July 1, 1931; married.

Gotlieb, Bernard.—b. New York City Nov. 7, 1893; Columbia, B. A. 1914; teacher of Spanish in high sch.; app., after exam., cons. asst. Mar. 24, 1915; student interpreter in Turkey May 1, 1915; v. c. and interpreter at Baghdad Aug. 24, 1917, but did not proceed to post; detailed to the Dept. Aug. 24, 1917; to Cairo Oct. 11, 1918; v. c. and interpreter at Cairo Mar. 10, 1919; detailed to Teheran Sept. 7, 1921; v. c. and interpreter at Teheran Nov. 10, 1921; cons. of class six Nov. 23, 1921; For. Ser. officer of class seven July 1, 1924; assigned to Halifax Sept. 8, 1924; to Singapore July 27, 1926; to Wellington Mar. 10, 1928; class six May 9, 1930; to Messina Mar. 6, 1933; to Trieste June 8, 1934; married.

Gourley, Louis Hill.—b. Springfield, Ill., Oct. 17, 1889; attended business sch.; Alliance Française, sum-

mer 1909; Univ. of Ill., A. B. 1912; Columbia Univ., summer 1915; George Washington, M. A. 1916; La-Salle Extension Univ.; prof. of Eng., San Luis Coll., San Luis Potosí, Mexico, 1912-13; app. clk. in Am. Consulate at Vera Cruz July 1, 1913; v. c. at Vera Cruz July 1, 1916; app., after exam., cons. asst. Aug. 30, 1916; v. c. at Warsaw July 21, 1919; v. c. of career of class three Sept. 27, 1919; assigned to Warsaw Oct. 22, 1919; class two May 24, 1920; class one Nov. 17, 1921; cons. of class seven June 22, 1922; class six Dec. 19, 1923; For. Ser. officer of class seven July 1, 1924; assigned to Lourenco Marques Apr. 10, 1925; to Port Elizabeth Dec. 30, 1925; detailed to Int. Radiotelegraph Conf., Washington, 1927; assigned to São Paulo Feb. 2, 1928; class six May 23, 1929; assigned to Medan Apr. 4, 1931; to Hong Kong Sept. 6. 1933.

Gowen, Franklin Crosbie.—b. Florence, Italy, of Am. parents, Dec. 16, 1895; private tutors; Surrey House Coll., London, England; Royal Tech. Sch., Leghorn, Italy, grad.; Emerson Inst.; English-Italian corr. and translator, teacher of Eng. and Italian 1915– 20; app. clk. in Am. Consulate at Leghorn Jan. 1, 1920; v. c. at Leghorn Oct. 26, 1920; at Genoa June 6, 1925; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass. and v. c. of career Jan. 7, 1926; assigned to Genoa Feb. 1, 1926; to Rome Aug. 10, 1926; to Leghorn, temp., Jan. 11, 1928; to Rome Feb. 7, 1928; class eight, cons., and assigned to Rome Dec. 19, 1929; to Naples Apr. 17, 1930; to Palermo Mar. 24, 1931; class seven July 1, 1931; to London Oct. 17, 1932; married.

Grady, Henry Francis.---b. San Francisco, Calif., Feb. 12, 1882; St. Mary's Univ., A.B. 1907; Catholic Univ. 1906-8; Univ. of Calif. 1915-16; Columbia 1916-17, Ph.D. 1927; lecturer, Coll. of City of N.Y. 1916-17, Columbia summer 1917 and term 1917-18; special expert U.S. Shipping Bd. 1918-19; U.S. trade commr. in Europe to report on post-war financial conditions 1919-20; acting cml. att. at London Aug. 1919-Feb. 1920 and at The Hague Apr.-July 1920; acting chief of Division of Research, Bu. of For. and Domes. Com., 1921; lecturer, Georgetown Univ. 1921, and Univ. of Calif. 1921-28; prof. of int. trade and dean of coll. of com., Univ. of Calif., 1928-34; trade adviser San Francisco Chamber of Com. since 1922; chm. San Francisco Regional Labor Bd. Feb.-June 1934; pres. Am. Assn. Collegiate Schs. of Business 1934-35; author; app. special adviser to the sec. of state, temp., at \$8,000 June 12, 1934; chief, Tariff Section, July 1, 1934; married.-A-S/T.

Grant, Hugh Gladney.—b. Birmingham, Ala., Sept. 2, 1888; Howard Coll., Birmingham, A.B. 1910, A.M. 1916; Harvard, A.B. 1912; George Washington, A.M. 1931; supervising principal, public scls., 1913-18; U.S. Army Y.M.C.A., 1918, 18t lt.; newspaper reporter 1912, 1919; vocational adviser, Fed. Bd. for Vocational Education, 1919-21; supervisor, public schs., 1921-23; prof. of political science and journalism, Ala. Polytech. Inst., 1923-27; sec. to senator 1927-33; app. divisional asst. at \$4,600 in the Dept. of State Dec. 16, 1933; married.—WE.

Graves, Florence Payne.-b. Titus Co., Tex.; attended high sch.; teacher in public sch. 1909-11; recorder of deeds in circuit court 1911-18; dep. clk. of circuit court 1918; clk., War Dept., 1918-20; clk. for atty. 1920-21; app. clk. at \$900 in the Dept. of State Mar. 9, 1921; at \$1,000 Sept. 1, 1922; at \$1,100 Apr. 1, 1924; at \$1,500 July 1, 1924; at \$1,560 Mar. 1, 1927; at \$1,680 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$,740 July 1, 1928; at \$1,860 July 1, 1930.-DCR.

Graves, George Millard.—b. Bennington, Vt., Sept. 2, 1903; Pawling Sch. grad.; Williams Coll. 1921-23; Univ. of Cambridge, England, 1923-24; Univ. of Grenoble 1924-25; L'École Libre des Sciences Politiques 1925-26; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass. and v. c. of career Jan. 13, 1928; assigned to the For. Ser. Sch. Jan. 20, 1928; to Mukden June 11, 1928; to Hankow Sept. 18, 1928; as For. Ser. officer to the leg. at San Salvador Dec. 15, 1932; sec. in the Diplo. Ser. and assigned as 3d sec. at San Salvador Apr. 5, 1933; at Managua Oct. 25, 1933; also as v. c. at Managua Dec. 1, 1933; married.

Gray, Archibald Edmund.—b. Cincinnati, Ohio. Nov. 16, 1900; U. S. N. A. 1919-20; Eureka Coll., B. S. 1922; Univ. of Ill., M. S. 1923, Ph. D. 1925; chemist for rubber company 1925-26; instructor in chemistry, Lebigh Univ., 1926-28; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass. and v. c. of career May 17, 1928; assigned to the For. Ser. Sch. May 24, 1928; to Callao-Lima Jan. 18, 1929; to Bordeaux Apr. 11, 1931; married.

Gray, Cecil Wayne.—b. Emmett, Tenn., Aug. 14, 1898; Roanoke Coll., B. A. 1920; S. A. T. C. 1918; instructor, Millersburg Mil. Inst., 1921-22; app. clk. in Am. Consulate General at Buenos Aires June 18, 1923; resigned Sept. 19, 1925; reapp. Oct. 23, 1925; v. c. at Buenos Aires May 6, 1927; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass., v. c. of career, and assigned to Buenos Aires Oct. 24, 1928; to Berlin Nov. 19, 1930; sec. in the Diplo. Ser. Apr. 28, 1934; assigned as 3d sec. at Vienna June 13, 1934.

Gray, Edith Myrtle (Mrs.)—b. Clinton, Iowa; high sch. grad.; attended business sch.; clk. and stenog. 1895-1901, 1908-17; clk., War Dept., 1917-22; app. clk. at \$1,200 in the Dept. of State July 28, 1922; at \$1,500 July 1, 1924; at \$1,560 Mar. 1. 1925; at \$1,680 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$1,740 July 1, 1928; at \$1,800 Oct. 1, 1928; at \$1,920 July 1, 1930; at \$2,000 Aug. 22, 1931.—LA.

Gray, Paul Judson.—b. Boston, Mass., Mar. 25, 1906; Bates Coll., A. B. 1926; Harvard, A. M. 1927; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass. and v. c. of career Nov. 12, 1929; assigned to the For. Ser. Sch. Nov. 18, 1929; to Stuttgart Mar. 26, 1930; married.

Green, Joseph Coy.—b. Cincinnati, Ohio, Apr. 12, 1887; Princeton, A. B. 1908, A. M. 1909; Univ. of Paris 1909-10. 1913-14; Princeton 1914-15; instructor in hist., Bordentown Mil. Inst., 1910-11, Columbia Univ., 1911-13; with Commn. for Relief in Belgium 1915-17; U. S. Army 1917-19, maj., overseas service; dir. for Rumania and Near East, Am. Relief Admin., 1918-19; asst. prof. of hist. and politics, Princeton, 1920-24, assoc. prof. of hist. 1924-30; app. divisional asst. at \$5,600 in the Dept. of State Oct. 6, 1930; men., committee to revise For. Ser. exams., 1931-; special representative of U. S., Int. Inst. of Agric., Rome, 1931-32; special asst. to Am. Minister at Bern 1931-32; mem., Publications Committee of the Dept., May 1, 1932-; married.-WE.

Green, Kirk M.—b. Dallas, Tex., July 28, 1907; app. chauffeur in the Dept. of State Mar. 6, 1933.—S.

Green, Leonard Newell.—b. Superior, Nebr., June 1, 1893; attended business sch.; Univ. of Minn. 1912– 13; Georgetown Sch. of For. Ser., grad. 1921; elk. and stenog., 1911–17; elk., War. Dept., 1917, 1919– 21; U. S. Army 1917–19; app., after exam., cons. asst. Apr. 23, 1921; v. c. of career of class three Nov. 23, 1923; assigned to Yokohama Dec. 13, 1923; For. Ser. officer unclass. July 1, 1924; class eight, cons., and assigned to Yokohama May 17, 1928; to Belfast Apr. 5, 1930; class seven July 24, 1930; to Swatow Sept. 5, 1931; to Strasbourg Dec. 21, 1933.

Greene, Elbridge Gerry .- b. Dresden, Germany, of Am. parents. Aug. 29, 1888; Clifton Coll., England: St. Paul's Sch.; Harvard, A. B. 1911; app., after exam., 3d sec. at London May 22, 1914; sec. of emb. or leg. of class five by act approved Feb. 5, 1915; class four Mar. 2, 1915; assigned to London Mar. 6, 1915; class three July 28, 1915; assigned to Caracas Aug. 10, 1916; to Panama Apr. 6, 1918; to the Dept. Jan. 18, 1919; to Budapest Dec. 12, 1919; class two Dec. 20, 1919; assigned to Bucharest Oct. 8, 1920; to Sofia July 29, 1921; to Paris Mar. 1, 1922; For. Ser. officer of class four July 1, 1924; assigned as 1st sec. at Peking July 17, 1924; at Bangkok Dec. 13, 1926; at Vlenna May 3, 1928; at Helsingfors, temp., Aug. 13, 1929; at Buenos Aires Aug. 13, 1929; at Ottawa Dec. 15, 1933; married.

Greene, Winthrop Stephenson.—b. Worcester, Mass., May 16, 1891; Bowdoin Coll., A. B. 1913; insur. business 1913-17, 1919-22; U. S. Army 1917-19, 1922-24, lt. col.; clk. in Am. Consulate at Cobh 1924; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass, and v. c. of career Oct. 16, 1924; assigned to Cobh Oct. 21, 1924; sec. in the Diplo. Ser. Apr. 8, 1926; assigned as 3d sec. at Santiago, Chilc, June 15, 1926; class eight and cons. Dec. 19, 1929; assigned as 3d sec. at Berne June 9, 1930; sec. of del. to Conf. on the Limitation of the Manufacture of Narcotic Drugs, Geneva, 1931; assigned as cons. and 3d sec. at Bogotá Jan. 2, 1934.

Greenfield, Robert T.—b. Washington, D. C., June 15, 1910; messenger, Dept. of Agric., 1930-31; app. messenger in the Dept. of State Oct. 23, 1931.—A-S.

Greenup, Julian Cecil.—b. Washburn, Mo., Nov. 4, 1891; Union Coll. (Nebr.) 1911-12; studied in Germany and Swltzerland 1912-14; Unlv. of Calif., A. B. 1915, M. A. 1917; teacher of printing, hist., and modern languages, and principal of high sch. 1915-19; app., after exam., v. c. of career of class three Sept. 27, 1919; assigned to Oruro Oct. 31, 1919; to Las Palmas May 14, 1920; class two Nov. 17, 1921; class one May 26, 1922; cons. of class seyen Dec. 19, 1923; For. Ser. officer of class eight July 1, 1924; resigned July 3, 1926; instructor in modern languages in jr. coll. 1926-29; app. trade commr. at Madrid June 1, 1929; asst. cml. att. at Madrid June 7, 1930; married.

Grefe, Grace Alexander (Mrs.)—b. Jacksonville, III.; Northwestern, A. B. 1921; secretary 1921-23; teacher 1923-26; clk., Dept. of State, 1927-30; clk., London Naval Conf., 1930; app. clk., temp., at \$1.260 in the Dept. of State Feb. 20, 1932; permanently Aug. 16, 1932.—RP.

Gresham, Lon Stewart.—b. Greshamville, Ga., July 31, 1889; Ga. Sch. of Tech. 1905; salesman 1906–17; U. S. Army 1917–20, 2d It., overseas service; U. S. Army civillan employee 1920–23; app. clk. in Am. Consulate at Bremen Apr. 20, 1923; v. c. at Bremen Nov. 30, 1929; married.

Grew, Joseph Clark .- b. Boston, Mass., May 27, 1880; Groton Sch.; Harvard, A. B. 1902; app. clk. in Am. Consulate General at Cairo July 19, 1904; dep. cons. gen. at Cairo Nov. 3, 1904; app., after exam., 3d sec. at Mexico City Mar. 1, 1906; at Petrograd May 7, 1907; 2d sec. at Berlin June 10, 1908; sec. of emb. at Vienna Jan. 27, 1911; at Berlin Sept. 12, 1912; sec. of emb. or leg. of class one by act approved Feb. 5, 1915; assigned as couns. of emb. at Berlin July 17, 1916; assigned to Vienna Feb. 14, 1917, and as couns. Feb. 19, 1917; to the Dept. May 23, 1917; act. chief, Division of Western European Affairs, Mar. 14, 1918; sec. to Am. del., armistice conf. of Supreme War Council, Versailles, 1918; sec. gen, with rank of E. E. and M. P., Am. Commn. to Negotiate Pcace, Paris, 1918-19; assigned as couns. of emb. at Paris Nov. 28, 1919; E. E. and M. P. to Denmark Apr. 7, 1920; to Switzerland Sept. 24, 1921; unofficial observer, Lausanne Couf., 1922-23; empowered by the Pres. to negotiate, conclude, and sign treaty of Amity and Commerce with Turkey 1923; unofficial representative, ninth sess., Temp. Mixed Commn. for Reduction of Armaments, Geneva, 1924, and meeting of subcommittee, Paris, 1924; undersec. of state Mar. 7, 1924; chm. of For. Ser. Personnel Bd. and of Bd. of Examiners for the For. Ser. July 1, 1924 to June 30, 1927; A. E. and P. to Turkey May 19, 1927; to Japan Feb. 19, 1932; married.

Griffin, Ruth Patee.—b. St. Joseph, Mo.; high sch. grad.; attended business sch.; typist, Bu. of War Risk Insur., 1918–19; app. clk. at 1,140 in the Dept. of State Dec. 1, 1924; at 1,320 Nov. 16, 1925; at 1,380 Mar. 1, 1927; at 1,500 July 1, 1928 (Welch Aet); at 1,560 July 1, 1928; at 1,680 July 1, 1930.—CR.

Griffin, Thomas.—b. Washington, D. C., Feb. 25, 1877; high sch. grad.; attended business sch.; clk., U. S. and Chilean Claims Commn., 1900–1901, Spanlsh Treaty Claims Commn., 1901–10; app. clk. at \$900 In the Dept. of State Apr. 26, 1910; at \$1,000 July 1, 1910; at \$1,200 June 27, 1911; at \$1,400 June 22, 1916, effective July 1; at \$1,600 Dec. 9, 1918; at \$1,860 July 1, 1924; at \$1,920 Dec. 1, 1925; research asst. Apr. 21, 1928; at \$1,980 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$2,300 Oct. 1, 1928; at \$2,500 July 1, 1930; at \$2,600 July 3, 1930 (Brookhart Act); married.—TD.

Groeninger, Joseph George.—b. Baltimore, Md., Nov. 22, 1884; attended public sch. and business sch.; with business firms six yrs.; Public Athletic League and Playground Assoc. of Baltimore two yrs.; app. elk. in Am. Leg. at Copenhagen Dec. 7, 1911; v. c. at Copenhagen Oct. 18, 1918; app., after exam., v. c. of career of class three May 24, 1920, and assigned to Copenhagen; detailed to Berlin Sept. 28, 1920; assigued to Berlin Nov. 15, 1921; class two Nov. 17, 1921; class one Nov. 23, 1923; For. Ser. officer unclass. July 1, 1924; class eight Feb. 24, 1925; cons. Mar. 3, 1925; assigned to Tallinn Mar. 23, 1925; to Rotterdam July 3, 1926; to Batavia Oct. 27, 1927; class seven Dec. 19, 1920; to Karachi Dec. 23, 1931.

Groth, Edward Miller.—b. New York City June 14, 1893; high sch. grad.; Columbia Univ.; clk. 1912-16; U. S. Navy 1917-19; app., after exam., v. c. of career of class three May 24, 1920; assigned to Rotterdam June 11, 1920; class two Nov. 17, 1921; class one May 26, 1922; assigned to Belgrade June 23, 1922; to Beirut Jan. 29, 1923; cons. of class seven Mar. 1, 1923; class six Dec. 19, 1923; For. Scr. officer of class seven July 1, 1924; assigned to Damascus Aug. 1, 1924; detailed to Aleppo July 2, 1925; to Baghdad Aug. 3, 1925; assigned to Damascus Aug. 11, 1925; class six Aug. 31, 1925; assigned to Surabaya Dec. 17, 1925; to Copenhagen July 2, 1929; class five July 24, 1930; to Capetown Sept. 2, 1933.

Grotjohan, Albert William J.—b. Rotterdam, Holland, July 17, 1900; naturalized 1920; U. S. Army 1919-20; clk. in Treas. Dept. 1924-26, in Post Office Dept. 1926-27, in Dept. of State 1927-29; in Census Bu. 1930; app. clk. at \$1,620 in the Dept. of State Apr. 25, 1930; at \$1,740 July 1, 1930; at \$1,800 Feb. 18, 1931; married.—MA.

Grummon, Stuart Edgar.—b. Newark, N. J., Mar. 28, 1901; Newark Acad.; National Univ. of Mexico, summer 1922; Princeton, B. A. 1923; app., after exam., sec. of emb. or leg. of class four Dec. 12, 1923, and assigned to the Dept.; to Mexico City Feb. 5, 1924; For. Ser. officer of class eight and assigned as 3d sec. at Mexico City July 1, 1924; at The Hague Jan. 22, 1927; at Madrid July 12, 1927; detailed to Conf. of Int. Chamber of Com., Stockholm, 1927; class seven May 17, 1928; assigned as 3d sec. at Port au Prince July 24, 1928; 2d sec. Oct. 19, 1929; class six July 24, 1930; assigned to the Dept. Nov. 6, 1930; married.—LA.

Guard, Madge Lee.—b. Washington, D. C.; attended Columbia and George Washington Univ.; Washington Coll. of Law, LLB. 1923, LLM. 1927; Amer. Univ., B.P.S. 1930; mem. of bars of D. C. and Utah; secretary, Dept. of Justice, 1908-14, in law and tax offices, 1915-20, 1922-23; teacher and educational dir., Fed. Bd. of Vocational Education, 1921-22; teacher in high sch. 1923; editorial clk., Dept. of Agric., 1924; secretary, Am.-Brit. Claims Commn., 1924-25; Mixed Claims Commn., U. S. and Mexico, secretary 1925-26 and attorney (\$2,100-\$3,000) 1926-31; app. editorial asst. at \$1,800 in the Dept. of State Dec. 4, 1931.—RP.

Guffer, Bernard.—b. Lawrence, Kans., June 1, 1903; Univ. of Kans. one yr.; Princeton, A. B. 1925; Harvard Sch. of Business Admin. one yr.; wholesale business 1926-28; teacher in high sch. 1928-29; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass. and v. c. of carcer Nov. 12, 1929; assigned to Vancouver, temp., Nov. 19, 1929; to the For. Ser. Sch. Apr. 19, 1930; to Riga July 22, 1930; as For. Ser. officer to the emb. at Warsaw May 22, 1933; sec. in the Diplo. Ser. June 13, 1933; assigned as 3d sec. at Warsaw June 17, 1933.

Gunsaulus, Edwin Norton, Jr.—b. London, Ohio, Feb. 25, 1894; Johannesburg Coll., So. Africa, one yr.; Upper Canada Coll., Toronto, five yrs.; clk. 1914-16; cml. work 1916-18, 1919-20; U. S. Army 1918-19, overseas service; app. clk. in Am. Consulate General at Halifax Jan. 18, 1921; v. c. at Windsor Apr. 11, 1922; at Charlottetown Apr. 7, 1924; at Windsor Dec. 1, 1930.

Gwynn, William Martin .- b. Detroit, Mich., Mar. 14, 1892; Univ. of Calif., B. L. 1914; L'École Libre des Sciences Politiques, diploma 1924; L'École Nationale des Langues Orientales 1922-25, 1928-29; Faculté de Droit, Univ. of Paris, 1924-25; asst. in library of Univ. of Calif., 1915-16; with Am. Commn. for Relief in Belgium 1916-17; ambulance driver with French Army Apr.-Sept. 1917; U. S. Army 1917-19, 1st lt., overseas service; executive officer in Trieste, Italy, for U. S. Food Admin. 1919; insp. in Galicia, Poland, for Am. Relief Admin. 1919-22; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass. May 28, 1926; v. c. of career June 15, 1926; assigned to Prague Mar. 26, 1927; as language officer at Paris Aug. 16, 1928; as v. c. at Tallinn, temp., June 15, 1929; as language officer at Paris Nov. 7, 1929; class eight and cons. May 9, 1930; sec. in the Diplo. Ser. June 19, 1931; assigned as 3d sec. at Riga July 8, 1931; married.

Hackett, C. Jeanne.—b. Boston, Mass.; high sch. grad.; Boston Conservatory of Music 1927-30; studied under private tutor; secretary 1927-30; app. elk., temp., at \$1,260 in the Dept. of State Jan. 16. 1931; permanently June 1, 1931; at \$1,440 Feb. 24, 1932.—SS.

Hackworth, Green Haywood.—b. Prestonburg, Ky., Jan. 23, 1883; Willard Normal Sch. grad.; Valparaiso Univ., B. A. 1905; Georgetown, LL. B. 1912; George Washington Univ. one yr.; mem. of bar of D. C.; mem., Advisory Committee on Research in Int. Law, Harvard since 1928; clk., 1909–16; app. law clk. at \$2,000 in the Dept. of State Aug. 10, 1916; at \$2,250 Oct. 22, 1917; at \$2,500 Jan. 2, 1918; asst. solicitor Oct. 1, 1918; at \$3,000 July 1, 1919; asst. to the solicitor at \$4,000 Dec. 31, 1919, effective Jan. 1, 1920; drafting officer July 1, 1920; asst. solicitor at \$4,500 Aug. 16, 1922; app. to represent the intcrests of the U. S. in all matters or investigations before the Int. Joint Commn., U. S. and Canada, 1922-25; to represent the Dept. of State in negotiation of treaty and protocol between U. S. and Great Britain to regulate the level of the Lake of the Woods and settle certain claims, and an agreement between U. S. and Canada to refer to the Int. Joint Comm. certain questions relating to Rainy Lake and other lakes of the Lake of the Woods watershed, Ottawa and Washington, 1922-25; del., Lausanne Conf., 1923, and to Spain on treaty negotiations 1923; at \$5,200 July 1, 1924; at \$5,600 May 1, 1925; act. solicitor of the Dept. of State July 1, 1925; solicitor Aug. 10, 1925; dcl., Conf. for the Codification of Int. Law, The ltague, 1930; legal adviser July 1, 1931; married.— LE.

Haden, Robert Allen.—b. Kiangyin, China, of Am. parents, June 2, 1908; Mont d'Or Coll., Barcelona, Spain, Coll. de Genève, Geneva, Switzerland, and Southwestern Coll.; Univ. of Chicago, Ph. B. 1930; multigrapher 1925-26; reporter 1928-29; librarian, Univ. of Chicago, 1929-30; app. clk. in Am. Consulate General at Genoa June 9, 1931; v. c. at Genoa Aug. 13, 1931; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass., v. c. of career, and sec. in the Diplo. Ser. Dec. 17, 1931; assigned as v. c. at Genoa Jan. 2, 1932; to the For. Ser. Sch. Mar. 22, 1932; as v. c. at Singapore Sept. 2, 1932; asst. sec., Int. Radio Conf., Madrid, 1932.

Haeberle, Arminius T .--- b. St. Louis, Mo., Jan. 23, 1874; Elmhurst Coll.; Washington Univ., A. B.; instructor, St. Charles Coll., Mo., 1896-97; principal of public sch. 1897-98; vice-dir. of Institute Ingles, Santiago, Chile, 1898-1903; head of modern language dept. in high sch. 1904-8; app., after exam., cons. at Manzanillo June 10, 1908; at Tegucigalpa Jan. 11, 1910; at St. Michael's Nov. 24, 1913; cons. of class seven by act approved Feb. 5, 1915; class five Feb. 22, 1915, and assigned to Pernambuco; class four Sept. 14. 1917; detailed to Rio de Janeiro July 29, 1919; class three June 4, 1920; assigned to São Paulo Mar. 30, 1923; cons. gen. of class four June 5, 1924; For. Ser. officer of class three July 1, 1924; assigned to Dresden July 1, 1925; class two July 24, 1930; married.

Haering, George John.—b. New York City Aug. 13, 1895; high sch. grad.; Univ. of Mich. three yrs.; U. S. Army 1917-20; with steamship company as supercargo, asst. port capt., special representative in Ireland, and asst. mgr. of branch office, 1920-24; app., after exam., For Ser. officer unclass. and v. c. of career Oct. 16, 1924; assigned to Kobe Nov. 8, 1924; class eight, cons., and assigned to Kobe May 23, 1920; to Rangoon Sept. 6, 1929; class seven July 1, 1931; to Glasgow Aug. 31, 1931; to Pernambuco Jan. 3, 1933; married.

Hagen, Edward Gillette (1st Lt.)—b. Hoboken, N. J., Sept. 15, 1893; U. S. N. A., grad. 1917; entered U. S. Marine Corps Mar. 30, 1917; assigned as language officer at Peiping Feb. 5, 1930; married.

Hagerman, Worthington Estel.—b. Carmel, Ind., Nov. 25, 1878; high sch. grad.; Penn Coll. 1898– 1900; Art Inst., Chicago, 1900–1903; app. clk. in Am. Emb. at Paris July 14, 1916; resigned Feb. 1917; clk., U. S. Army, 1918-19; app. clk. in Am. Consulate General at Paris Aug. 12, 1919; v. c. at Nantes Dec. 3, 1925; at Calais, temp., Oct. 30, 1926; at Nantes Dec. 3, 1926; at Boulogue-sur-Mer, temp., Aug. 5, 1927; at Nantes Oct. 1, 1927; at Calais, temp., Aug. 4, 1928; at Nantes Sept. 19, 1928; at Havre Aug. 25, 1930; at Boulogue-sur-Mer Nov. 4, 1930; at Nantes June 6, 1932; at Paris for duty in the dist. acct. and disbursing office Dec. 9, 1932; married.

Haig, Robert Van Rensselaer.—b. Washington, D. C., Aug. 16, 1900; Univ. of Md., B. S. 1921; George Washington, LL. B. 1929; mem. of bar of D. C.; S. A. T. C. 1918; clk. 1921-23; app. clk. at \$1,000 in the Dept. of State Jan. 27, 1923; at \$1,100 Mar. 1, 1924; at \$1,200 May 31, 1924, effective June 1; at \$1,440 July 1, 1924; at \$1,680 May 1, 1925; at \$1,740 Mar. 1, 1927; at \$1,860 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); law clk. at \$2,000 Dec. 1, 1928; at \$2,600 Mar. 1, 1929; at \$2,800 July 1, 1930; married.—PD.

Hailer, Fred E.—b. Washington, D. C., Jan. 7, 1888; attended public sch.; U. S. Marine Corps 1910-14; watchman in Govt. bldgs. 1917-18; U. S. Navy 1918; watchman, State, War, Navy Bldg., 1919-21; app. messenger in the Dept. of State Mar. 8, 1921; clk. at \$1,140 July 1, 1924; at \$1,200 Mar. 1, 1925; at \$1,260 Dec. 1, 1925; at \$1,320 Mar. 1, 1927; at \$1,380 Nov. 1, 1927; at \$1,500 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$1,560 July 1, 1928; at \$1,680 July 1, 1930; married.—FA.

Haines, Henry Snowden.—b. Burlington, N. J., July 15, 1907; attended business sch.; Rutgers, B. Litt. 1930; app. clk, in Am. Consulate at Ceiba July 18, 1930; v. c. at Ceiba Dec. 20, 1930; at Puerto Castilla, temp., May 21, 1931; at Ceiba Feb. 13, 1932; at Fluefields Oct. 25, 1932; at Porto Alegre Feb. 23, 1933.

Hall, Carlos Clark.—b. Cuernavaca, Mexico, of Am. parents, Feb. 18, 1900; Georgetown Sch. of For. Ser. 1923-25; asst. sugar chemist 1913-14; British Army, World War; U. S. Army 1919-25; editorial asst., Pan American Sanitary Bu., 1925-26; interpreter for Argentine section, Pan American Cml. Conf., Washington, 1927; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass. and v. c. of career Feb. 5, 1927; assigned to the For. Ser. Sch. Feb. 14, 1927; to Medellín Mar. 16, 1928; to Panama Mar. 26, 1932; to Valparaiso May 13, 1932; married.

Hall, Claude Haines, Jr.—b. Baltimore, Md., Dec. 14, 1899; Baltimore Folytech. Inst., grad. 1920; Johns Hopkins Univ. 1920-23; research work at Yale; laboratory asst., U. S. N. A., 1919; dir. of laboratories, Md. Acad. of Sciences, 1919-24; ordnance computer, War Dept., 1924; research asst., Yale, 1924-25; app. clk. in the Am. Consulate at Johannesburg Aug. 10, 1925; v. c. at Johannesburg Dec. 19, 1925; at Port Elizabeth, temp., Nov. 20, 1926; at Johannesburg Oct. 4, 1927; at Lourenço Marques, temp., Dec. 9, 1927; at Johannesburg Dec. 31, 1927; at Sarnia, temp., June 29, 1929; at Kingston, Ont., temp., Oct. 8, 1929; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass., v. c. of career, and assigned to Kingston, temp., Oct. 16, 1929; to Monrovia Nov. 23, 1929; sec. in the Diplo. Ser. Feb. 6, 1930; also 3d sec. at Monrovia Feb. 8, 1930; v. c. at Naples Sept. 27, 1930; at Alexandria Nov. 11, 1933; married.

Hall, Margaret.—b. Annapolis, Md.; Wellesley, A. B. 1928; George Washington Law Sch. 1931-33; app. library asst. at \$1,440 in the Dept. of State Jan. 1, 1929; at \$1,620 July 1, 1929; at \$1,800 June 1, 1930; at \$2,000 Oct. 1, 1931; clk. at \$1,440 Dec. 16, 1933.—PD.

Hall, Monroe Bostwick.—b. Seabright, N. J., Aug. 11, 1901; Berkley-Irving and Westminster Sch.; Columbia Univ. 1924-26; clk. 1919-22; editorial work with publishing company 1924-27; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass. and v. c. of career May 17, 1928; assigned to the For. Ser. Sch. May 24, 1928; as language officer at Tokyo Nov. 3, 1928; as v. c. at Tokyo June 29, 1931 (canceled); at Kobe Aug. 13, 1931; at Dairen, temp., Jan. 20, 1932; at Mukden Jan. 23, 1932; married.

Halla, Blanche Rule (Mrs.)—b. Washington, D. C.; business high sch. grad.; George Washington Univ. one yr.; stenog., 1917; app. clk., temp., at \$1,000 in the Dept. of State Nov. 26, 1917; at \$1,200 Mar. 1, 1918; permanently Oct. 1, 1919; at \$1,400 Sept. 1, 1922; at \$1,860 July 1, 1924; at \$1,920 Mar. 1, 1927; asst. chief, Office of Coordination and Review, June 1, 1928; at \$2,100 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$2,900 July 1, 1928; stenog., London Naval Conf.. 1930; at \$3,100 July 1, 1930; at \$3,500 Dec. 1. 1930.—CR.

Hamilton, Maxwell McGaughey.—b. Tablequah, Okla., Dec. 20, 1896; Washington and Jefferson Coll. 1914-15; Princeton, grad. 1919; U. S. Army 1918; instructor in Tome Sch. 1919-20; app., after exam., student interpreter in China May 20, 1920; v. c. and jr. interpreter at Canton Oct. 9, 1922; sr. interpreter Nov. 5, 1923; cons. of class seven June 3, 1924; For. Ser. officer of class eight July 1, 1924; assigned to Shanghai (jr. assessor, Mixed Court) Apr. 30, 1925; class seven Oct. 20, 1926; sr. assessor Feb. 10, 1927; assigned to the Dept. July 24, 1927; class six Dec. 19, 1929; resigned July 31, 1930; app. divisional asst. at \$5,600 in the Dept. of State Aug. 1, 1930; asst. chief, Division of Far Eastern Affairs, at \$6,500 Apr. 1, 1931; married.—FE.

Hamlin, John Nellis.—b. Roseburg, Oreg., Mar. 9, 1895; Univ. of Oreg. 1915–18; Harvard, S. B. 1923, grad. work; U. S. Army 1918; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass. July 1, 1924; sec. in the Diplo. Ser. July 18, 1924; assigned as 3d sec. at Tirana Oct. 20, 1924; at Madrid July 1, 1926; at Buenos Aires Apr. 16, 1928; class eight and cons. May 17, 1928; class seven July 24, 1930; assigned as cons. at Naples Dec. 15, 1933.

Hamrick, Frances M. (Mrs.)—b. Muncie, Ind.; high sch. grad.; studied accountancy; clk., typist, and bookkeeper 1922-28, 1933-34; app. clk. at \$1,620 in the Dept. of State May 8, 1934.—PD. Hanlon, Edna H.—b. Middletown, Conn.; high sch. grad.; secretary in law firm 1926-33 and in Treas. Dept. Sept.-Dec. 1933; app. private sec. to special asst. to sec. of state, temp., at \$2,000 Apr. 16, 1934.— SA-H.

Hanna, Margaret M .--- b. Ann Arbor, Mich.; attended high sch.; private tutors; app. confidential clk. at \$900 in the Dept. of State Nov. 16, 1895; confidential clk. to the 2d asst. sec. of state Jan. 6, 1896; at \$1,200 Feb. 23, 1897; detailed as clerical asst., Pious Fund Arbitration. The Hague, 1902; at \$1,400 Dec. 4, 1905; at \$1,600 Mar. 4, 1907; detailed as clerical asst, to Venezuelan Claims Commn., Caracas, 1903, to Am. del., Second Peace Conf., The Hague, 1907, to Am. del., Fourth Int. Conf. of Am. States, Buenos Aires. 1910; at \$1,800 May 1, 1916; chief of bu. at \$2,100 July 1, 1918; special asst. at \$2,500 June 1, 1920; drafting officer July 1, 1920; at \$3,000 June 17, 1921, effective July 1; detailed as special asst. and special disbursing officer to Am. del., Fifth Int. Conf. of Am. States, Santiago, Chile, 1923; chief, Office of Coordination and Review, Jan. 31, 1924; at \$3,500 Apr. 1, 1924; at \$3,600 May 1, 1925; special disbursing officer of Am. del., Sixth Int. Conf. of Am. States, Habana, 1928; at \$3,700 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$3,800 July 1, 1928; at \$4,600 July 1, 1929; at \$4,800 July 1, 1930; at \$5,000 July 3, 1930 (Brookhart Act) .--- CR.

Hanna, Matthew Elting .- b. Londonderry, Ohio, Mar. 9, 1873; U. S. M. A., grad. 1897; U. S. Army 1897-1913, capt.; Cuban service 1898; aide to mil. gov. of Cuba 1898-1902; commr. of public sch. of Cuba 1900-1902; mil. att. at Habana 1902-4; special agt. of U. S. in Panama 1909; special representative of U.S. at German Army maneuvers 1911; chemical mfg. business 1912-17; insp. gcn., Mass. Militla, 1912-14; app. asst. in Am. Emb. at Mexico City Feb. 1917; app., after exam., sec. of emb. or leg. of class four Aug. 23, 1917, and assigned to Mexico City; sec. of class three Mar. 14, 1919; class two Aug. 24, 1921; assigned to the Dept. as act. chief. Division of Mexican Affairs, Sept. 20, 1921; chief, Dec. 20, 1921; assigned to Berlin Mar. 10, 1924; For. Ser. officer of class four July 1, 1924; class three Aug. 8, 1924; mem. of Bd. of Review, For. Ser. Personnel, 1926; For. Ser. insp. Nov. 6, 1925; class two June 30, 1927; assigned to Lima Nov. 11, 1927; couns. of emb. Nov. 25, 1927; sec. to Am. del., Sixth Int. Conf. of Am. States, Habana, 1928; assigned to Managua Mar. 22, 1929; E. E. and M. P. to Nicaragua Dec. 16, 1929; to Guatemala July 17, 1933; married.

Hannan, Catherine Elizabeth (Mrs.)—b. Washington, D. C.; attended private sch.; asst. chief telephone operator, Treas. Dept., 1918-22; app. chief telephone switchboard operator at \$1.260 in the Dept. of State Apr. 3, 1922; at \$1.500 July 1, 1924; at \$1,620 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$1,740 July 1, 1930.—DCR.

Hansen, Alvin Harvey.—b. Viborg, S.Dak., Aug. 23, 1887; Sioux Falls Acad. grad.; Yankton Coll., B.A. 1910; Univ. of Wis., Ph.D. 1918; instructor in economics, Brown Univ., 1916–19; prof. of economics, Univ. of Minn., 1919–; Guggenheim fellow in Europe 1928–20; director of research, int. economic relations, Social Science Research Council, 1933-34; app. chief economic analyst, temp., at \$8,000 in the Dept. of State July 5, 1934; married.—A-S/T.

Hanson, Elsie R.—b. Vinton, Iowa; Coe Coll., B. A. 1929; business sch. grad.; stenog. 1930; app. clk. at \$1,440 in the Dept. of State Dec. 22, 1930; at \$1,620 Sept. 3, 1931.—PD.

Hanson, George Charles .- b. Bridgeport, Conn., Oct. 11, 1883; Cornell, C. E. 1908; engineering 1908-9; app., after exam., student interpreter in China June 12, 1909; dep. cons. gen. at Shanghai Sept. 7, 1911; also interpreter Oct. 15, 1911; v. and dep. cons. and interpreter at Chefoo May 13, 1912; at Dalny Nov. 25, 1913; at Newchwang Mar. 17, 1914; v. and dep. cons. gen. and interpreter at Tientsin May 9, 1914; v. and dep. cons. and interpreter at Newchwang Jan. 5, 1915; cons. of class eight Mar. 2, 1915, and assigned to Swatow; to Chungking Mar. 20, 1917; to Foochow Apr. 15, 1918; class seven July 6, 1918; class six Sept. 5, 1919; assigned to Harbin Dec. 27, 1921; class five Aug. 23, 1922; class four June 5, 1924; For. Ser. officer of class five July 1, 1924; class four July 24, 1930; cons. gen. Feb. 28, 1931; assigned to Harbin Mar. 23, 1931; to Moscow Feb. 10, 1934; sec. in the Diplo. Ser. Mar. 9, 1934.

Hanson, Hanna M.—b. Portland, Me.; high sch. grad.; George Washington Univ. 1930-; clk. and secretary 1920-26; app. clk. at \$1,320 in the Dept. of State Oct. 11, 1926; at \$1,500 May 1, 1927; at \$1,560 Jan. 1, 1928; library asst. at \$1,680 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$1,800 July 1, 1930.—RP.

Harding, Robert William Joseph.—b. New York City July 15, 1907; attending high sch.; with business firms in Toronto 1920-23, 1925-28; app. messenger in Am. Consulate at Toronto Jan. 1, 1928; v.c. at Toronto May 9, 1930; married.

Hardisty, Olive F. (Mrs.)—b. in England; attended seminary and jr. coll. in England and business sch. In U. S.; app. clk., temp., at \$720 in the Dept. of State Aug. 7, 1917; at \$840 Sept. 15, 1917; at \$900 Oct. 1, 1917; at \$1,080 July 1, 1918; at \$1,140 Nov. 1, 1918; at \$960 July 1, 1919; at \$1,020 Feb. 1, 1920; permanently, at \$1,020 Mar. 1, 1920; at \$1,000 July 1, 1920; at \$1,080 Oct. 16, 1922; at \$1,140 Dec. 30, 1922; effective Jan. 1, 1923; at \$1,200 Oct. 1, 1923; at \$1,500 July 1, 1924; at \$1,560 Mar. 1, 1927; at \$1,680 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$1,800 July 1, 1930.—DCR.

Hardy, James Walter.--b. Lewiston, N. C., July 17, 1887; laborer, Washington Navy Yard, one yr.; U. S. Army 1917-19; municipal employee 1919-20; app. asst. messenger in the Dept. of State Dec. 22, 1920.--A-C/C.

Hare, Raymond Arthur.—b. Martinsburg, W. Va., Apr. 3, 1901; Grinnell Coll., A. B. 1924; instructor in Robert Coll., Constantinople, 1924–27; executive sec., Am. Chamber of Com. for the Levant, 1926–27; app. clk. in Am. Consulate General at Constantinople Apr. 1, 1927; v. c. at Constantinople May 19, 1927; app. after exam. For. Ser. officer unclass., v. c. of career, and assigned to Constantinople Oct. 24, 1928; language officer at Paris May 25, 1929; als: v. c. at Paris May 1, 1931; sec. in the Diplo. Ser. and assigned as v. c. at Cairo June 5, 1931; as v. c. at language officer at Paris Oct. 16, 1931; as v. c. at Beirut June 21, 1932; as v.c. and 3d sec. at Teheran Aug. 28, 1933; married.

Harlow. Blanche Schwartz (Mrs.)—b. Washington, D. C.; high sch. grad.; clk., Am. Red Cross. 1917-22; stenog. 1922-23; app. clk. at \$1,200 in the Dept. of State Aug. 1, 1923; at \$1,500 July 1, 1924; at \$1,620 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$1,680 July 1, 1928; at \$1,800 Dec. 1, 1929; at \$1,920 July 1, 1930.—FA.

Harlow, William McGrath .- b. Washington, D. C., Oct. 30, 1898; attended business sch.; St. John's Coll. 1909-15; stenog, 1915-17; U. S. Marine Corps 1917-19; Coast Guard Headquarters 1919-24; app. clk. in Am. Consulate General at Hong Kong Mar. 18, 1924; v. c. at Houg Kong Sept. 4, 1924; resigned May 16, 1926; app. clk. at \$1,320 in the Dept. of State May 17, 1926; at \$1,500 Mar. 1, 1927; asst. disbursing officer Jan. 1, 1928; at \$1,620 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$1,680 July 1, 1928; at \$2,000 Nov. 1, 1928; at \$2,600 Sept. 1, 1929; at \$2,800 July 1, 1930; resigned July 5, 1931; app. asst. dist. acct. and disbursing officer at Ottawa July 6, 1931; dist. acct. and disbursing officer and v. c. at Ottawa Nov. 5, 1931; disbursing officer for the U. S. Veterans' Admin., to handle fiscal matters forthe Admin. in Canada, Dec. 10, 1931.

Harnden, Robert.—b. Honolulu, T. H., Nov. 27, 1881; high sch. grad.; Univ. of Calif. one yr.; accountant four yrs.; real estate agt. two yrs.; newspaper corr. three yrs., In London 1916-17; with Belgian Relief Commn. in London. and U. S. Food Admin. 1917; app. v. c. at Seville Nov. 7, 1917; app., after exam., cons. of class eight Feb. 19, 1918, and detailed to Seville; class six Sept. 5, 1919; assigned to Seville Nov. 13, 1919; class five Nov. 23, 1921; assigned to Valencia May 17, 1922; to Rosario Jan. 2, 1924; For. Ser. officer of class six July 1, 1924; assigned to Tampico Jan. 12, 1929; class five May 9, 1930; assigned to Malmö May 17, 1930 (canceled); to Göteborg July 22, 1930.

Harper, Oscar Cole.—b. Garland, Tex., Dec. 20, 1895; Western Coll. two yrs.; Univ. of Tex. two yrs.; clk. 1916-17; app. v. c. at Ciudad Juarez Jan. 9, 1919; at Chihuahua May 27, 1921; at Ciudad Juarez Aug. 19, 1921; at Torreon May 12, 1925; at Piedras Negras Nov. 21, 1925; at Ensenada Nov. 7, 1929; to Nuevo Laredo Mar. 19, 1931; married.

Harrington, Julian Fiske.—b. Framingham, Mass., Apr. 11, 1901; high sch. grad.; Columbia Univ. 1920– 21; clk. one yr.; app. clk. in Am. Consulate at Málaga Mar. 1921; v. c. at Málaga July 5, 1922; at Antwerp May 17, 1923; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass., v. c. of career, and assigned to Antwerp Aug. 3. 1925; to Dublin Mar. 9, 1926; to Ottawa July 29, 1929; class elght and cons. Dec. 31, 1929; assigned to Ottawa Jan. 22, 1930; married.

Harris, Arthur Ringland (Maj.)—b. Norfolk, Nebr., Aug. 1, 1890; St. Paul's Sch. grad.; U.S.M.A., grad. 1914; assigned as mil. att. at San José, Guatemala, Tegucigalpa, Managua, San Salvador, and Panama July 11, 1931.

Harris, Ernest Lloyd.-b. Jasper Co., Iowa, Oct. 26, 1870; Cornell Coll., grad. 1892; Heidelberg Univ., Ph. D. 1894, J. U. D. 1895; lecturer on civil law and jurisprudence, Iowa State Univ., 1896-98; lecturer on foreign commerce of U. S., Univ. of Chicago, 1904; author of magazine articles; app. cons. agt. at Eibenstock May 10, 1898; cml. agt. Nov. 11, 1902; cons. at Chemnitz Mar. 23, 1905; at Smyrna July 25, 1906; cons. gen. June 10, 1908; assigned to Stockholm Jan. 20, 1911; cons. gen. of class five Feb. 22, 1915, effective Feb. 5, 1915; resigned Aug. 15, 1916; cml. agt. for bank in Russia 1917-18; app. cons. gen. of class five May 14, 1918, under Ex. order; detailed to Irkutsk May 8, 1918; class four Sept. 5, 1919; unassigned from Oct. 15, 1920; assigned to Singapore Feb. 16, 1921; For, Ser, officer of class three July 1, 1924; assigned to Vancouver Mar. 26, 1925; to Vienna Aug. 3, 1929; class two May 9, 1930; del., Int. Wood Conf., Vienna, 1932; married.

Harris, Will.—b. Livingston, Tenn.; attended public schs.; stenog. and court reporter 1902-12; secretary 1912-33; app. private sec. to the sec. of state at \$3,800 Mar. 6, 1933; sec. to chm., Int. Monetary and Economic Conf., London, 1933.—S.

Harrison, Landreth Matthew.—b. Rolla, N. Dak., Apr. 8, 1897; Univ. of Minn., B. A. 1922, M. A. 1923; Faculty of Law, Univ. of Paris, and L'École Libre des Sciences Politiques 1923–25; U. S. Marine Corps 1917; U. S. Army 1917–19, lt.; rancher 1919– 20; instructor in political science, Univ. of Minn., 1925–27; lecturer in int. law, Hamline Univ., 1926– 27; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass. and v. c. of career July 9, 1927; assigned to the For. Ser. Sch. Sept. 29, 1927; to Riga Mar. 8, 1928; as For. Ser. officer to the leg. at Riga Oct. 7, 1929; see. in the Diplo. Ser. Nov. 12, 1929; assigned as 3d sec. at Riga Nov. 19, 1929; to the Dept. July 23, 1932.— EE.

Harrison, Randolph, Jr.—b. Lynchburg, Va., Nov. 24, 1898; Episcopal High Sch.; Univ. of Va., B. S. 1922, LL. B. 1925; studied French at Tours, France, 1925; mem. of bar of Va.: law practice 1926; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass. and v. c. of career Jan. 13, 1928; assigned to the For. Ser. Sch. Jan. 20, 1928; to Habana June 13, 1928; to Paris Jan. 14, 1930; to Biarritz, temp., Mar. 21, 1931; to Paris Apr. 7, 1931; to Lille, temp., June 19, 1931; to Paris Aug. 1, 1931; sec. in the Diplo. Ser. Oct. 20, 1931; also as v. c. at Tegucigalpa Jan. 17, 1933; as 3d sec. at Rome Apr. 29, 1933.

††Hart, Charles Calmer.—b. Bryant, Ind., Sept. 14, 1878; reporter, publisher, and editor of newspapers 1897-1910; Washington corr. 1912-25; app. E. E. and M. P. to Albania May 27, 1925; to Persia Nov. 12, 1929; resigned Oct. 31, 1933; married.

Harter, Janet M. (Mrs.)—b. Leesburg, Va.; attended high sch. and business sch.; employed by the National Defense Council 1017-19; in the Dept. of Justice 1919-20; app. clk. at \$1,200 in the Dept. of State July 31, 1920, effective Aug. 1; at \$1,500 July 1, 1924; at \$1,620 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$1,680 July 1, 1928; at \$1,800 July 1, 1930.—FA. Hartrick, Ruth.—b. Urbana, Ill.; high sch. grad.; attended business sch.; app. clk., temp., at \$1,200 in the Dept. of State Feb. 24, 1931; permanently June 1, 1931; at \$1,620 May 1, 1934.—DCR.

Harvey, Constance Ray.—b. Buffalo, N. Y., Dec. 16, 1904; Franklin Sch.; Lycée de Beauvais, France, 1922-23; Sorbonne 1924; Smith, A. B. 1927; Geneva Sch. of Int. Studies, summer 1927; Williamstown Inst. of Politics 1928; German sch. of Mt. Holyoke Coll., summer 1929; Columbia, M. A. 1930; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass, v. c. of career, and sec. in the Diplo. Ser. Apr. 15, 1930; assigned as v. c. at Ottawa Apr. 29, 1930; to the For. Ser. Sch. Feb. 11, 1931; to Milan June 20, 1931.

Harvey, Lula Ruth (Mrs.)—b. Nevada, Mo.; high sch. grad.; stenog., sec., and asst. supervisor of stenog. section in publishing company 1924-27; app. clk. at \$1,320 in the Dept. of State Aug. 10, 1927; at \$1,440 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$1,620 Apr. 1, 1929; at \$1,800 May 1, 1930; at \$1,920 July 1, 1930; at \$2,000 Nov. 24, 1930.—BA.

††Haskell, Lewis Wardlaw .- b. Pastoria, Ark., Dec. 2, 1868; South Carolina Mil. Coll., B. S. 1889; Harvard Law Sch. 1892-93; Georgetown, LL. B. 1894; mem. of bar of S. C.; instructor in coll. 1889-92; teacher in high sch. 1893-94; clk., Dept. of Interior, 1894-1901; law practice 1901-10; mem. of S. C. House of Representatives two terms; S. C. Nat. Guard 1901-10, lt. col.; app., after exam., cons. at Salina Cruz Jan. 11, 1910; at Hull Feb. 26, 1912; at Belgrade Nov. 24. 1913; cons. of class seven by act approved Feb. 5, 1915; class six Mar. 2, 1915; assigned to Geneva Sept. 17, 1915; class five Sept. 5, 1919; class three June 4, 1920; unofficial observer, Conf. on Customs Formalities and Conf. on Communications and Transit, Geneva, 1923; cons. gen. of class four June 5, 1924; For. Ser. officer of class three July 1, 1924; assigned to Algiers Oct. 23, 1924; to Zürich Oct. 29, 1928; class two July 24, 1930; retired Dec. 31, 1933, under the provisions of the act of Feb. 23, 1931; married.

Haskins, Fred G.—b. Lawrence Co., Ohio, Sept. 27, 1891; Ohio State Univ., Columbus, A. B. 1917, grad. work 1922; Université de Clermont, France, 1919; U. S. Army 1917-19, overseas service; teacher in high sch. 1919-27; clk. and translator 1927-29, in Dept. of Labor 1930; app. translator at \$1,800 in the Dept. of State Aug. 28, 1930; at \$2,000 Apr. 1, 1931; married.—TR.

Hathaway, Charles Montgomery, Jr.-b. Deposit, N. Y., Mar. 31, 1874; Yale, B. A. 1899, M. A. 1901, Ph. D. 1902; instructor in Eng. in Adelphi Coll. 1902-3, in Columbia Univ. 1903-5; instructor in Eng. and law, U. S. N. A., 1905-11; in real estate and insur. business 1906-11; app., after exam., cons. at Puerto Plata Aug. 19, 1911; at Hull Nov. 24, 1913; cons. of class eight by act approved Feb. 5, 1915; class seven Sept. 1, 1916; assigned to Cork May 22, 1917; class six Sept. 5, 1919; detailed to Budapest Dec. 1, 1919; class five, June 4, 1920; assigned to Bombay Nov. 20, 1920; class four Nov. 23, 1921; assigned to Dublin Dec. 27, 1921; class three June 3, 1924; cons. gen. of class four June 5, 1924; For. Ser. officer of class three July 1, 1924; assigned to Dublin Oct. 11, 1924; to Munich July 27, 1927; class two May 23, 1929; class one Feb. 4, 1931; married.

Haven, Joseph Emerson.-b. Chicago, Ill., Jan. 19, 1885; high sch. grad.; Univ. of Lille one yr.; app., after exam., cml. agt. at St. Christopher Aug. 18, 1904; cons. June 22, 1906; cons. at Crefeld Mar. 30, 1907: at Roubaix June 10, 1908: at Catania Apr. 24. 1914; cons. of class seven by act approved Feb. 5, 1915; assigned to Turin July 8, 1916; class six Sept. 6, 1916; detailed at Avlona Nov. 29, 1919; returned to Turin May 19, 1919; class five Sept. 5, 1919; class four June 4, 1920; detailed to Trieste Aug. 16. 1920; asst. observer, Potorose Conf., Italy, 1921; assigned to Trieste Jan. 25, 1922; to Florence Mar. 30, 1923; For. Ser. officer of class five July 1, 1924; assigned also to San Marino Apr. 9, 1925; class four Dec. 17, 1925; class three July 24, 1930; married.

Haven, Richard Barnard .- b. Chicago, Ill., Sept. 2, 1889; private tutor at Cambridge, England, five yrs.; Real Gymnasium, Germany, one yr.; Univ. of Lille five yrs.; Northwestern Univ., M. D.; Royal Univ., Turin, Italy, M. D.; on hospital staff eighteen months; app. v. and dep. cons. at Roubaix Oct. 14, 1910; resigned Feb. 14, 1913; with Chicago Medical Unit attached to the Royal Army Medical Corps of Britisb Army 1915, overseas service; special research inquiry in Greece 1916; with British mil. hospitals in England and Italy two yrs.; resident commanding officer in Am. hospital in France 1918; volunteer medical officer In Turin 1918; app. v. c. at Turin May 1, 1918; at Genoa Dec. 24, 1920; at Constantza Apr. 29, 1922; app., after exam., v. c. of career of class three May 26, 1922; assigned to Constantza June 23, 1922; class two Feb. 26, 1923; class one Nov. 23, 1923; For. Ser. officer unclass. July 1, 1924; class eight Feb. 24, 1925; cons. Mar. 3, 1925; assigned to Vienna May 7, 1926; class seven Dec. 19, 1929; assigned to Messina Apr. 9, 1931; to Turin Mar. 6, 1933; married.

Havenner, Albert B.—b. Washington, D. C., Mar. 24, 1893; high sch. grad.; attended business sch.; Georgetown Law Sch. two yrs.; in real estate office 1913-14; clk., Panama-Pacific Exposition, 1915; clk. In the Dept. of State 1916, in N. Y. Passport Agency of the Dept. of State 1917-18; U. S. Army 1918-19; app., temp., at \$1,000 in the Dept. of State July 14, 1919; at \$1,140 Nov. 1, 1919; at \$1,200 Feb. 1, 1920; permanently clk. at \$1,200 July 1, 1920; at \$1,400 Dec. 30, 1922, effective Jan. 1, 1923; at \$1,860 July 1, 1924; at \$1,920 Mar. 1, 1927; at \$2,100 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$2,200 July 1, 1928; at \$2,400 July 1, 1930.—PD.

Havens, Harry A.—b. Whitehall, N. Y., Oct. 28, 1885; attended husiness sch.; National Univ., LL. B. 1911, LL. M. 1912; clk. and scc. 1903-8; app. clk. at \$900 in the Dept. of State June 20, 1908; at \$1,000 Dec. 1, 1908; at \$1,200 June 23, 1909, effective July 1; at \$1,400 Aug. 1, 1913; at \$1,800 June 22, 1916, effective July 1; drafting officer at \$2,500 Dec. 31, 1919, effective Jan. 1, 1920; at \$3,000 Aug. 1, 1922; at \$3,300 June 16, 1926; asst. chief, Division of For. Ser. Admin., Aug. 28, 1926; mem. of Federal Traffic Bd. 1927-33; at \$3,500 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$3,800 Apr. 1, 1930; at \$4,000 July 1, 1930; at \$4,600 Dec. 1, 1930; v. chm., Conciliation Committee of the Dept. of State, Nov. 6, 1933-; married.-FA.

Hawkins, Frank R.—b. Washington, D. C., May 28, 1900; messenger, Bu. of Engraving and Printing, 1919-21; app. messenger in the Dept. of State Jan. 16, 1929.—DCR.

Hawkins, Harry C.—b. Reed City, Mich., Mar. 25, 1894; Olivet Coll., A. B. 1917; Olivet Coll. and Univ. of Mich. 1919; Harvard, M. B. A. 1921; U. S. Army 1917-19, 1st lt., overseas service; special agt., Dept. of Commerce, 1921-22; asst. prof., Univ. of Va., 1922-23; drafting officer, Dept. of State, 1924, 1927-30; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass. and v. c. of career Oct. 16, 1924; assigned to the Dept. Nov. 11, 1924; resigned Sept. 15, 1925; prof., Univ. of Oreg., 1925-27, 1930-31; app. divisional asst. at \$5,600 in the Dept. of State Aug. 12, 1931; tech. adviser, Int. Monetary and Economic Conf., London, 1933; married.—TD.

Hawks, Stanley.—b. Stiliwater, Minn., May 28, 1895; Yale, B. A. 1918; Harvard Law Sch. one yr.; L'École Libre des Sciences Politiques one yr.; U. S. Army 1917-19, capt.; private sec. to U. S. del., Conf. on Limitation of Armament, Washington, 1921-22; app. clk., temp., in the Dept. of State June 8, 1922; drafting officer at \$2,500 Sept. 16, 1922; act. chief. Division of Current Information, Dec. 5, 1922; app., after exam., sec. of emb. or leg. of class four Dec. 12, 1923, and assigned to the Dept.; to Warsaw Mar. 8 1924; For. Ser. officer of class eight and assigned as 3d sec. at Warsaw July 1, 1924; class seven June 2, 1926; assigned to Guatemala Feb. 7, 1927; 2d sec. Oct. 19, 1929; assigned to Mexico City Feb. 20, 1930; class six May 9, 1930; married.

Hawley, Harry Franklin.—b. Newark, N. J., July 5, 1880; attended public and private sch.; clk. 1895– 1902; in Philippine civil ser. 1902-6; clk. in Am. Emb. at Tokyo 1907; in Philippine civil ser. 1907-9; sec. to Am. del., Joint Int. Oplum Commn., Shanghal, 1909; app. clk. in Am. Emb. at Tokyo Nov. 1, 1909; app., after exam., cons. of class eight Sept. 14, 1917, and detailed to Tokyo; assigned to Yokkalchi Oct. 5, 1918; to Nagoya Mar. 8, 1919; class six Sept. 5, 1919; For. Ser. officer of class seven July 1, 1924; assigned to Windsor Dec. 12, 1924; class six Dec. 17, 1925; class five Dec. 26, 1929; assigned to Nantes Apr. 15, 1932; to Glasgow June 20, 1934; married.

Hawley, William W.—b. Dec. 3, 1872; app. laborer in the Dept. of State Aug. 22, 1907.—DCR.

Hawthorne, Carl Oliver.—b. Rogers, Ark., Apr. 29, 1905; high sch. grad.; attended business sch.; clk. 1921-22; U. S. Army 1923-27; app. clk. in the Am. Leg. at Peiping Mar. 21, 1927; in the consulate at Tsingtao Feb. 23, 1929; v. c. at Tsingtao Apr. 28, 1930.

Haywood, David C.—b. Clifton, Ariz., Sept. 30. 1910; app. asst. messenger in the Dept. of State Nov. 24, 1930; laborer Jan. 1, 1932.—SU.

Heard, William Wilson.—b. Frederick, Md., Jan. 9, 1887; attended public sch. and business sch.; Univ. of New Brunswick one yr.; U. S. Navy 1902-8; clk. and stenog. 1909-12; app. cons. agt. at Fredericton June 13, 1912; v. c. at Quebec June 16, 1915; app.,

67359-34-13

after exam., v. c. of career of class three Dec. 23, 1919, and assigned to Quebec; assigned to Kingston, Jamaica, Mar. 12, 1920; class two May 24, 1920; class one Nov. 17, 1921; cons. of class seven June 22, 1922; assigned to Bluefields Sept. 2, 1922; detailed to the Dept. June 23, 1924; For. Ser. officer of class eight July 1, 1924; class seven Dec. 17, 1925; assigned to Turin June 2, 1928; class six July 24, 1930; to Breslau Mar. 6, 1933; married.

Heath, Donald Read .- b. Topeka, Kans., Aug. 12, 1894; high sch. grad.; Washburn Coll. two and onehalf yrs.; Univ. of Montpellier, France, one semester; newspaper reporter 1916-17, 1919; U. S. Army 1917-19, 1st lt.; newspaper corr. 1920; app., after exam., v. c. of career of class three Sept. 7, 1920; assigned to Bucharest Oct. 18, 1920; class two May 26, 1922; assigned to Warsaw Dec. 18, 1922; class one Feb. 26, 1923; class seven Dec. 19, 1923; app. For. Ser. officer of class eight July 1, 1924; assigned as cons. at Berne Aug. 17, 1925; class seven Aug. 31, 1925; class six May 17, 1928; assigned to Port au Prince Sept. 12, 1929; chargé d'affaires ad interim at Port au Prince Dec. 2, 1929; sec. in the Diplo. Ser. and assigned as 2d sec. at Port au Prince Dec. 16, 1929, in addition to duties as cons.; relieved of duties as cons. Aug. 4, 1932; assigned to the Dept. Aug. 17, 1933: married.-LA.

Hecht, Elizabeth (Mrs.)—b. Washington, D. C.; attended high sch. and business sch.; sec., Am. Red Cross, 1918-19; clk., Veterans' Bu., 1923-24; app. clk. at \$1,320, temp., in the Dept. of State Oct. 24, 1924; permanently Feb. 2, 1925; at \$1,500 Nov. 1, 1925; at \$1,560 Mar. 1, 1927; at \$1,620 Jan. 1, 1928; at \$1,740 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$1,800 July 1, 1928; at \$1,920 July 1, 1930.—VD.

Heckert, George Theodore.—b. Horse Shoe Run, W.Va., Feb. 25, 1894; George Washington, A.B. 1927; teacher in public sch. 1913–16; clk., Interior Dept., 1918, War Dept., 1918–21; app. clk. at \$1,200 in the Dept. of State Apr. 1, 1921; at \$1,400 Dec. 30, 1922, effective Jan. 1, 1923; at \$1,600 May 31, 1924, effective June 1; at \$1,860 July 1, 1924; at \$1,920 Dec. 1, 1925; admin. asst. at \$2,400 May 1, 1927; at \$2,600 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$2,700 July 1, 1928; at \$2,900 July 1, 1930; at \$3,200 Dec. 1, 1930; resigned Feb. 5, 1931; excc. secretary, private organ., 1933–34; app. admin. asst. at \$3,200 in the Dept. of State July 19, 1934; married.—PD.

Heiler, Bernard Francis.—b. Boston, Mass., Aug. 5, 1903; high sch. and business sch. grad.; Extension Univ., Boston; clk. two and one-half yrs.; U. S. Navy 1920-23; musician and strong. in Bermuda five months; clk. to mem. of Cong. 1924-25; app. clk. in Am. Consulate at Palermo Apr. 1925; v. c. at Palermo July 6, 1926; at Genoa Sept. 21, 1927; at Dresden Sept. 29, 1928.

Heingartner, Robert W.—b. Canton, Ohio, Feb. 20, 1881; attended high sch.; tutors in Europe four yrs.; app. cons. agt. at Carini Mar. 25, 1904; dep. cons. at Trieste Sept. 12, 1904; v. and dep. cons. Oct. 16, 1906; v. and dep. cons. gen. at Vienna Feb. 27, 1907; v. c. at Vienna Feb. 6, 1915; assigned to Spanish Emb. at Vienna Apr. 14, 1917; to Am. Leg. at Berne

Feb. 3, 1918; app., after exam., cons. of class six June 4, 1920, and detailed to Vienna; For. Ser. officer of class seven July 1, 1924; assigned to Kovno June 24, 1926; class six Oct. 20, 1926; assigned to Frankfort-on-the-Main June 26, 1928; class five July 24, 1930; married.

Heintzleman, P. Stewart .- b. Fayetteville, Pa., July 24, 1880: Chambersburg Acad. grad.: Pennsylvania Coll., A. B. 1901; app., after exam., student interpreter in China Oct. 25, 1902; v. and dep. cons. gen. at Canton Oct. 5, 1904; v. and dep. cons. at Dalny Oct. 8, 1906; app. asst. to the 3d asst. sec. of state June 1, 1907; asst. in the Division of Far Eastern Affairs Mar. 20, 1908; cons. at Swatow Aug. 14, 1908 (canceled); v. cons. gen. at Shanghal Nov. 16, 1908; app. cons. at Chungking Jan. 22, 1909 (canceled); assigned to the Dept. Nov. 24, 1909; cons. at Dalny June 24, 1910 (canceled); 2d sec. at Peking Aug. 16, 1910; asst. chief, Division of Far Eastern Affairs, June 27, 1911; cons. gen. at Mukden July 28, 1914; cons. gen. of class five by act approved Feb. 5, 1915; class four and assigned to Canton Oct. 27, 1916; to Tientsin Apr. 15, 1918; to Hankow Sept. 8, 1919; For. Ser. officer of class three July 1, 1924; assigned to Winnipeg Apr. 15, 1925; married.

Heisler, Charles Harrington .- b. Milford, Del., July 20, 1888; Univ. of Del., B. S. 1911; Del. Nat. Guard 1908-11; engineering with railroad and mlning companies in U. S., Australia, and So. Africa two and onehalf yrs.; app. clk. in Am. Consulate at Johannesburg Nov. 10, 1914; v. c. at Cape Town June 9, 1915; app., after exam., v. c. of career of class three May 25, 1921; assigned to Kovno July 14, 1921; class two May 26, 1922; assigned to Riga June 20, 1922; class one Feb. 26, 1923; For Ser. officer unclass. July 1, 1924; class eight and cons. Aug. 8, 1924; assigned to Malmö Sept. 17, 1924; to Warsaw May 19, 1926; class seven May 17, 1928; assigned to Danzig, temp., Oct. 10, 1928; to Warsaw Feb. 20, 1929; class six July 24, 1930; to Danzig Feb. 2, 1932; to Hamilton, Bermuda, Apr. 6, 1934; married.

Hemry, Susanna.—b. McComb, Ohio; attended high sch. and business sch.; Trl-State Normal Sch, two yrs.; Transylvania Coll. 1901–2; private tutors in German and French; teacher in public sch. 1896, 1897, 1900, 1901; stenog. 1902–17; clk., War Dept., 1918–23; app. clk. at 1,200 in the Dept. of State Jan. 22, 1923; at 1,500 July 1, 1924; at 1,620July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at 1,680 July 1, 1928; at 1,800 July 1, 1930.—A-C/C.

Henderson, Herbert Harvey.—b. Washington, D. C., Sept. 7, 1909; attended high sch. and business sch.; clk. 1924-25, in Gen. Accounting Office 1926-30; app. clk. at \$1,440 in the Dept. of State Oct. 9, 1930.—SS.

Henderson, James Everett.—b. Valdosta, Ga., June 3, 1002; Univ. of Calif., B. S. 1923; mgr. of securities corp. 1922–30; studied under tutor in France 1930–31; app. after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass., v. c. of career, and sec. in the Diplo. Ser. Dec. 17, 1931; assigned as v. c. at Vancouver Jan. 20, 1932; to the For. Ser. Sch. Apr. 22, 1933; to the Dept., temp., Aug. 28, 1933; as v. c. and 3d sec. at Tallinn Jan. 17, 1934; married.

Henderson, Loy Wesley .- b. Rogers, Ark., June 28, 1892; Northwestern Unlv., A. B. 1915; Unlv. of Denver Law Sch. one yr.; N. Y. Univ. Grad. Sch. one yr.; with Am. Red Cross in France 1918; mem. of Interallied Commn. to Germany for Repatriation of Prisoners of War; with Am. Red Cross Commn. to Western Russia and the Baltic States 1919-20; in charge of Am. Red Cross in Germany 1920-21; app., after exam., v. c. of career of class three May 26, 1922; assigned to Dublin Aug. 28, 1922; to Queenstown July 17, 1923; class two Nov. 23, 1923; For. Ser. officer unclass. July 1, 1924; detailed to the Dept. Dec. 18, 1924; class eight and cons. Dec. 17, 1925; sec. In the Diplo. Ser. Apr. 15, 1927; assigned as 3d sec. at Riga, Kovno, and Tallinn May 12, 1927; class seven May 23, 1929; 2d sec. Oct. 19, 1929; assigned to the Dept. Oct. 1, 1930; class six Feb. 27, 1931; assigned as 2d sec. at Moscow Feb. 7, 1934; married.

Hengstler, Herbert C .- b. Middletown, Ohio, Dec. 17, 1876; attended business sch.; George Washington, LL. B., 1904; with paper mfg. firm 1895-98; app. clk. at \$900 in the Dept. of State Aug. 13, 1898; at \$1,000 June 25, 1900, effective July 1; at \$1,200 July 1, 1901; at \$1,400 July 1, 1902; sec. to mem. of Cong. one yr.; app. clk. at \$1,600 Dec. 4, 1905; at \$1,800 Mar. 4, 1907; chief, Cons. Bu., May 9, 1907; mem. of Bd. on Supplies for the For. Ser. and of Bd. of Examiners for the Cons. Ser.; act. chief, Cons. Bu., at \$3,000 July 1, 1918; chief, Cons. Bu., at \$3,500 Dec. 31, 1920, effective Jan. 1, 1921; dir, of purchases and sales for the Dept. since 1921; mem, of Federal Purchasing Bd., Federal Liquidation Bd., and Federal Specifications Bd. 1921-33; at \$3,800 July 1, 1924; chief, Division of For. Ser. Admin., Aug. 19, 1924; at \$5,200 Apr. 1, 1925; at \$5,600 Feb. 1, 1926; at \$6,000 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$6,500 Dec. 1, 1930; tech. adviser, Fourth Pan American Cml. Conf., Washington, 1931 .--- FA.

Henrotin, Frederick Fortunat.—b. Havre, France, of Am. parents, Dec. 7, 1884; attended high sch. in England and business sch. in France; clk. in business firm and steamship office 1904-9; mgr. of importing firm 1909-17; U. S. Army 1917-19, maj., overseas service; mgr. of Paris office of firm of merchants and bankers 1919-23; mgr. of business firm in Morocco 1923-24; app. clk. in Am. Consulate at Casablanca Jan. 13, 1927; v. c. at Casablanca Apr. 28, 1927; married.

Henry, Frank Anderson.—b. Garden City, N. Y., Dec. 10, 1883; St. Austins Sch.; Lehigh Univ., Ch. E. 1906; with chemical company 1906–9; in experimental station of powder company 1910–12; app., after exam., cons. at Guadeloupe Aug. 23, 1912; cons. at l'uerto Plata Nov. 24, 1913; cons. of class nine by act approved Feb. 5, 1915; class eight Sept. 5, 1916; assigned to Puerto Cabello Mar. 20, 1917; class six Sept. 5, 1919, and assigned to Tenerife; class five Nov. 23, 1921; detailed to Barcelona Nov. 17, 1922; class four June 5, 1924; For. Ser. officer of class five July 1, 1924; class four Dec. 19, 1929; assigned to Valparaiso Dec. 26, 1930; married.

186

Hester, William Hughes.—b. Charlotte, N. C., Oct. 6, 1899; chauffeur, War Dept., four yrs.; app. chauffeur in the Dept. of State Mar. 26, 1923.—MA.

Hewes, Thomas.—b. Baltimore, Md., May 27, 1888; Yale, B.A. 1910, LL.B. 1912; U.S. Army 1917-18, 2d It.; mem. of bar of Conn.; law practice 1912-33; asst. sec. of the Treasury 1933; app. special asst. to the sec. of state at 6,500 Apr. 2, 1934; married.— SA-H.

Hibbard, Frederick Pomeroy.—b. Denison, Tex., July 25, 1894; Culver Mil. Acad.; Univ. of Tex., B. A. 1917; grad. work, Harvard, one yr.; U. S. Army 1917-10; app., after exam., sec. of emb. or leg. of class four Nov. 15, 1920; assigned to Warsaw Jan. 5, 1921; to London Jan. 8, 1924; class three Jan. 23, 1924; For. Ser. officer of class six and assigned as 2d sec. at London July 1, 1924; at Warsaw Feb. 2, 1926; at Mexico City July 1, 1926; class five May 17, 1928; assigned to San Salvador July 27, 1928 (canceled); to La Paz Mar. 1, 1929; class four July 24, 1930; assigned to Prague Sept. 20, 1930; to the Dept. July 21, 1932.—WE.

Hibbs, Walter Perry.—b. Washington, D. C., Aug. 18, 1892; attended high sch. and business sch.; clk. and stenog., District govt., 1908–17; app. clk., temp., at \$900 in the Dept. of State June 18, 1917; at \$1,320 Nov. 1, 1917; at \$1,200 Mar. 1, 1918; at \$1,320 Nov. 1, 1919; at \$1,800 Dec. 29, 1919, effective Jan. 1, 1920; permanently Apr. 8, 1920; at \$2,100 July 1, 1924; at \$2,200 Mar. 1, 1927; at \$2,400 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$2,500 July 1, 1928; at \$2,600 Dec. 1, 1928; at \$2,800 July 1, 1930.—PD.

Hickerson, John Dewey .- b. Crawford, Tex., Jan. 26, 1898; Univ. of Tex., B. A. 1920; U. S. Army 1918; lecturer on cons. practice, Georgetown Sch. of For. Ser., 1928-; app. v. c. and clk. at Tampico July 9, 1920; app., after exam., v. c. of career of class three Sept. 7, 1920, and assigned to Tampico; class two May 26, 1922; assigned to Rio de Janeiro July 15, 1922; class one Feb. 26, 1923; cons. of class seven Dec. 19, 1923; For. Ser. officer of class eight July 1, 1924; assigned to Pará Aug. 15, 1924; to Ottawa June 20, 1925; class seven Aug. 31, 1925; class six June 30, 1927; assigned to the Dept. Aug. 18, 1927; class five May 23, 1929; asst. chief, Division of Western European Affairs, June 24, 1930; class four Feb. 4, 1931; resigned Mar. 31, 1931; app. asst. chief, Division of Western European Affairs, at \$6,500 in the Dept. of State Apr. 1, 1931; mem., Bd. of Appeals and Review, May 28, 1934-; married .- WE.

Hickok, Thomas Anderson.—b. Rochester, Pa., July 12, 1906; Hamilton Coll., B. A. 1927; draftsman 1927-28; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass. and v. c. of career Nov. 12, 1929; assigned to Toronto, temp., Nov. 27, 1929; to the For. Ser. Sch. Apr. 19, 1930; to Beirut July 22, 1930; to Jerusalem Feb. 19, 1931.

Hicks, James Carroll.—b. Milledgeville, Ga., Nov. 16, 1911; high sch. grad.; Ga. Sch. of Tech. 1929-30; clk. 1930-31; app. clk., temp., at \$1,440 in the Dept. of State Mar. 30, 1931; permanently June 20, 1931; married.—BA.

Hicks, Knowlton Vincent.—b. Waterford, N. Y., June 22, 1902; Troy Conservatory of Music 1914–20; Hamburg Univ. 1928–30; englneering and clerical work 1917–23; app. clk. In Am. Consulate at Ghent Oct. 13, 1923; at Hamburg July 15, 1924; v. c. at Hamburg Dec. 17, 1924; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass. and v. c. of career Apr. 27, 1927; assigned to Hamburg May 9, 1927; class eight, cons., and assigned to Hamburg Feb. 4, 1931; to Göteborg Dec. 17, 1931; married.

Higgins, Lawrence.—b. Boston, Mass., Nov. 10, 1806; Phillips Exeter; Harvard, A. B. 1018, A. M. 1923; Univ. of Grenoble, France, 1925; civilian volunteer, U. S. War Coll., 1017; U. S. Army 1917-20, capt., overseas service; asst. mil. att. at Paris 1919; bank clk. 1921; Instructor in mil. blst., Harvard, 1921-25; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass. May 28, 1926; v. c. ef career June 15, 1926; assigned to the For. Ser. Sch. Oct. 1, 1926; to Mexico City Sept. 21, 1927; to Puerto Mexico, temp., Apr. 9, 1928; to Mexico City Aug. 16, 1928; sec. in the Diplo. Ser. Nov. 12, 1029; assigned as 3d sec. at Panama Nov. 16, 1929; at Tegueigalpa Oct 11, 1930; as v. c. at Oslo Mar. 13, 1934; married.

Higgs, Lahtahnius Randolph.—b. Shannon, Miss., Sept. 9, 1900; high sch. grad.; Univ. of Miss. 1927– 30; Univ. of Ala., summer 1929; Georgetown Sch. of For. Ser. 1930–31; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass., v. c. of career, and sec. in the Diplo. Ser. Dec. 17, 1931; assigned as v. c. at Tampico Jan. 23, 1932; to the For. Ser. Sch. Apr. 22, 1933; to Batavia, temp., Aug. 26, 1933; to Surabaya Aug. 28, 1933; married.

Hill, Hayward Gibbes .--- b. Hammond, La., Jan. 16, 1900; La. State Univ. 1916-20; private tutors in France and Alliance Française 1927; chief chemist and asst. supt. for sugar companies in Hawaii and Cuba 1920-26; asst. sugar technologist, Bu. of Chemistry, including research work in U.S. and Porto Rico, 1928-30; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass., v. c. of career, and sec. in the Diplo. Ser. July 17, 1930; assigned to the For. Ser. Sch. Aug. 26, 1930; as v. c. at Kobe Nov. 8, 1930; at Taihoku, temp., Sept. 4, 1931; at Kobe Oct. 19, 1931; at Yokohama Nov. 23, 1931; at Buenes Aires Nov. 24, 1933; asst. sec. to Am. del., Seventh Int. Conf. of Am. States, Montevideo, 1933; assigned as bor. Ser. officer to the emb. at Buenos Aires Dec. 14, 1933-Feb. 22, 1934.

Hill, James.--b. Nov. 11, 1869; employed in War Dept.; app. laborer in the Dept. of State Dec. 10, 1925.--CC.

Hill, John Lyman.—b. Tomah, Wis., Sept. 5, 1908; high sch. grad.; Georgetown Sch. of For. Ser. 1928-29; George Washington Univ. 1930-; sec. in law office 1927; in War Dept. 1927-28; app. clk. at \$1,440 in the Dept. of State Jan. 1, 1929; at \$1,560 July 1, 1930; at \$1,800 Sept. 1, 1931.—A-C/C.

Hill, Ralph Waldo Snowden .- b. Washington, D. C., Aug. 20, 1882; Univ. of Mo. 1905-6; Univ. of Va., LL. B. 1909; George Washington Univ. 1909-10; L'École Libre des Sciences Politiques 1910-11; mem. of bar of Mo.; sec. of Univ. of Va. summer sch. 1908; sec. to mem. of Cong. 1913-16; law practice 1913-16; app. an asst. solicitor at \$2,500, temp., in the Dept. of State May 23, 1916; permanently June 22, 1916, effective July 1; at \$3,000 Oct. 22, 1917; asst. to the solicitor at \$4,000 Dec. 31, 1919, effective Jan. 1, 1920; drafting officer July 1, 1920; at \$4,500 Apr. 1, 1924; at \$4,600 July 1, 1924; at \$5,200 Sept. 16, 1924; adviser to Am. unofficial observer, Reparations Commn., 1924; Am. expert, Finance Minlster's Conf. to allocate Dawes payments, Paris, 1925; representative, Conf. with British authorities on release of property sequestered during World War, London, 1925, 1927; at \$5,600 May 1, 1925; detailed to Am. Emb. at Berlin to advlse on reparations matters July 9, 1925; acted in place of Am. unofficial observer, Reparations Commn., Paris, Mar.-June, 1925, and as unofficial Am. observer 1925-27; at \$7,000 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); designated, temp., as legal adviser to Am. High Commr. to Haiti Mar. 1, 1930, but did not go in view of decision to withdraw High Commr.; asst. to the legal adviser July 1, 1931; on special mission in London 1931 .-- LE.

Hillenkoetter, Roscoe Henry (Lt.)-b. St. Louis, Mo., May 8, 1897; U.S.N.A., grad. 1919; assigned as asst. naval att. at Paris Nov. 16, 1933; married.

Himmel, Lyle Clifford.—b. Radcliffe, Iowa, July 4, 1907; high sch. grad.; Huron Coll. 1925-28; Univ. of Minn. 1928-30; app. clk. in Am. Consulate at Cali Aug. 16, 1930; v. c. at Buenaventura, temp., Apr. 21, 1931; at Cali Aug. 4, 1931; at Buenaventura June 15, 1932.

Hiner, Zern.—b. Peru, Ind., May 12, 1899; Purdue, B.S.A. 1921; Int. Accountants Society, grad. 1930; LaSalle Ext. Univ. 1927-30; secretary 1916-17; U. S. Army 1918; clk. 1918-19; stenog. 1922-23; mgr., book dept., 1925-26; accountant 1927-31; app. clk., Dist. Acct. and Disbursing Office at Ottawa, June 20, 1931; asst. dist. acct. and disbursing officer at Ottawa Nov. 20, 1931; also v. c. at Ottawa Jan. 29, 1932.

Hinke, Frederick William.—b. Philadelphia, Pa., Sept. 8, 1900; Hamilton Coll., A. B. 1922; U. S. Army 1918; app. clk. in Am. Consulate at San Luis Potosf Feb. 15, 1923; v. c. at Antilla Nov. 24, 1923; app., after exam., cons. asst. Jan. 7, 1924; detailed to the Dept. Apr. 19, 1924; app. For. Ser. officer unclass. July 1, 1924; v. c. at Canton Feb. 25, 1926; class eight, cons., and assigned to Canton July 24, 1930; to Mazatlán July 11, 1932; to Swatow Dec. 21, 1933; married.

Hinkle, Eugene Macfarlane.—b. New York City Jan. 13, 1902; Groton Sch. grad.; Harvard, A. B. 1923; In steel construction business 1923-24; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass. Sept. 11, 1925; v. c. of career and assigned to the Dept. May 28, 1926; to Cape Town June 18, 1927; to Lourenço Marques, temp., Jan. 14, 1928; sec. in the Diplo. Ser. June 13, 1929; assigned as 3d sec. at Constantinople (Istanbul) Aug. 6, 1929; class eight and cons. Dec. 19, 1929; class seven July 1, 1931; assigned as 2d sec. at Buenos Aires Oct. 6, 1933.

Hinkle, Terry Stewart.—b. New York City Feb. 21, 1904; Blair Acad. grad.; Cornell, A. B. 1925; attended business sch.; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass. and v. c. of career July 5, 1927; assigned to the For. Ser. Sch. Sept. 29, 1927; to Singapore Feb. 24, 1923; to Penang, temp., Sept. 4, 1929; to Singapore Nov. 12, 1929; to Ilalifax Feb. 3, 1931.

Hirst, Ralph Keen.—b. Purcellville, Va., July 21, 1901; attended high sch.; U. S. Navy 1920-23; clk., Govt. depts., 1923-25; salesman 1926-29; app. clk. at \$1,440 in the Dept. of State Apr. 4, 1929; at \$1,620 July 1, 1930; married.—DCR.

Hitch, Calvin Milton.—b. Morven, Ga., July 28, 1869; high sch. grad.; Emory Coll. 1887–89; attended business sch.; mem. of bar of Ga.; sollcitor of county court 1892–96; mem. of Ga. Legislature 1896–97; executive sec. to three governors of Ga. 1898–1907; sec. to mem. of Cong. 1907–10; sec. to state executive committee 1911–12; app. asst. chief, Division of Latin American Affairs, July 2, 1913; cons. of class five Feb. 22, 1915, and assigned to Notting-ham; class four Sept. 14, 1917; detailed to the Dept. June–Oct. 1919; class three June 4, 1920; assigned to Basel Mar. 30, 1923; For. Ser. officer of class four July 1, 1924; class three Dec. 17, 1925; class two July 24, 1930; cons. gen. and assigned to Wellington Oct. 9, 1930; to the Dept. Nov. 1, 1923; married.

Hobbs, James Arthur.—b. Savannah, Ga., Sept. 14, 1908; high sch. and business sch. grad.; George Washington Univ. 1931-; seaman 1927-28; stenog. 1928-30; clk., War Dept., 1931; app. clk. at \$1,440 in the Dept. of State Sept. 9, 1931; clk., U.S.-Turkish Joint Claims Com., Istanbul, 1933-34.—DCR.

Hobbs, Wanda Nash (Mrs.)—b. St. Albans, Vt.; high sch. grad.; George Washington Univ. 1920-32; National Univ. Law Sch. 1932-33; stengg. 1927-29, in Veterans' Bu. 1929-31; app. clk. at \$1,440 in the Dept. of State May 16, 1931; at \$1,620 July 17, 1931.—FA.

Hodgdon, Anderson Dana .- b. Baltimore, Md., May 8, 1890; Charlotte Hall Mll. Sch. grad.; Washington and Lee Univ., A. B. 1911; Univ. of Md., LL. B. 1914; grad. work, Johns Hopkins, 1912-14; mem. of bar of Md.: with trust company 1913-14: law practice 1914-17, 1919-23; Md. Naval Milltia 1914-17; Nat. Naval Volunteers 1917; U. S. Naval Reserve Force 1918-19, lt. comdr.; inactive list since 1919; app., after exam., v. c. of career of class three June 21, 1923; assigned to Prague Nov. 19, 1923; to Stuttgart June 18, 1924; For. Ser. officer unclass. July 1, 1924; assigned to Windsor June 4, 1927; class eight, cons., and assigned to Windsor Aug. 24, 1927; to the Dept. Mar. 22, 1928; asst. chief Visa Office, Feb. 1, 1929; class seven Dec. 19, 1929; chlef, Visa Office, July 1, 1930; detailed to attend consular conferences at London. Stuttgart, and Warsaw, in

connection with enforcement of laws and regulations relating to issuance of visas, 1930; chief, Visa Division, Jan. 1, 1931; resigned Jan. 31, 1931; app. chief, Visa Division, at \$5,600 in the Dept. of State Feb. 1, 1931; reinstated as For. Ser. officer, by Ex. order of Dec. 27, 1933, and assigned to the Dept. Jan. 11, 1934; For. Ser. officer of class six, sec. in the Diplo. Ser., and cons. Jan. 15, 1934; assigned as For. Ser. officer at Moscow Feb. 7, 1934; as cons. at Moscow Feb. 12, 1934.

Hoffmann, Erich William August.—b. Milwaukee, Wis., Aug. 22, 1896; attended sch. in Germany; private tutoring in Denmark; Univ. of Wis., B. A. 1926; shipping clk. in export and import house in Copenhagen 1918–19; asst. export mgr. in Berlin 1919– 20; post office clk. in U. S. 1921–22; 2d lt., O. R. C.; app. clk. in Am. Consulate at Budapest Apr. 22, 1927; v. c. at Budapest Feb. 5, 1930; at Tirana Dec. 5, 1931.

Hoffmann, Walter Wesselhoeft.—b. Belmont, Mass., Dec. 20, 1897; Kansas City Country Day Sch. grad.; Harvard, A. B. 1919; Calif. Inst. of Tech. 1922-23; U. S. Army 1918-19, 2d lt.; export business 1919-20; asst. purser and agent for steamship company 1924-30; app. clk. in Am. Consulate at Port Limón May 22, 1931; v. c. at Port Limón Aug. 6, 1931; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass., v. c. of career, and sec. in the Diplo. Ser. Dec. 17, 1931; assigned as v. c. at Port Limón Jan. 2, 1932; to the For. Ser. Sch. Aug. 16, 1932; to Auckland, temp., Dec. 8, 1932; to Wellington Dec. 22, 1932.

Hohenthal, Theodore Johannes.—b. Daggett, Calif., Aug. 14, 1905; Univ. of Calif., A.B. 1928, LL.B. 1931; mem. of bar of Calif.; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass., v. c. of career, and sec. in the Diplo. Ser. Dec. 17, 1931; assigned to the For. Ser. Sch. Dec. 30, 1931; as v. c. at Zagreb Apr. 7, 1932; married.

Holland, Amy Catherine.—b. Fitchburg, Mass.; Radcliffe Coll., A. B. 1918; Spanish Sch., Middlebury Coll., 1921; Colegio de los Pirineos, Barcelona, Spain, 1923; app. clk. at \$1,320 in the Dept. of State Jan. 15, 1927; archive asst. at \$1,860 Oct. 1, 1927; at \$2,000 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$2,100 July 1, 1928; at \$2,300 July 1, 1930; library asst. Nov. 1, 1930; divisional asst. Oct. 1, 1931.—NE.

Holland, Philip.—b. Murray, Ky., Aug. 26, 1877; McFerrins Coll., Martin, Tenn., 1892-94, 1897; private tutor; Southwestern Baptist Univ., LL. B. 1902; mem. of bar of Tenn.; teacher in public sch. 1898; law practice 1902-10; app., after exam., cons. at Puerto Plata Mar. 7, 1910; at Saltillo Aug. 19, 1911; at Basel June 26, 1913; cons. of class six by act approved Feb. 5, 1915; class five Sept. 14, 1917; class four Apr. 7, 1920; class three June 4, 1920; assigned to Guatemala Mar. 30, 1923; cons. gen. of class four June 5, 1924; For. Ser. officer of class three July 1, 1924; assigned to Liverpool Sept. 20, 1927; class two July 24, 1930; married.

Holler, John Emanuel.—b. Chambersburg, Pa., Apr. 23, 1899; Hamilton Coll., A. B. 1921; studied law; U. S. Army 1918; app. clk. in Am. Consulate at Bilbao, Spain, Sept. 1921; app., after exam., v. c. of career of class three Sept. 30, 1922; assigned to Bilbao Oct. 7, 1922; to Gibraltar Dec. 18, 1922; to Venice June 2, 1923; For. Ser. officer unclass. July 1, 1924; class eight, cons., and assigned to Venice Aug. 15, 1930; to Matamoros May 27, 1931; to Colon Oct. 22, 1932; to San José, Costa Rica, Jan. 2, 1934; married.

Holmes, Julius Cecil.—b. Pleasanton, Kans., Apr. 24, 1899; high sch. grad.; Univ. of Kans. three and one-half yrs.; U. S. Army 1918; 1st lt., O. R. C.; insur. business 1921-25; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass. Mar. 20, 1925; also v. c. of career and assigned to Marsellle Sept. 2, 1925; to Smyrna Dec. 10, 1926; to Tirana July 9, 1929; sec. in the Diplo. Ser. Oct. 16, 1929; assigned also as 3d sec. at Tirana Oct. 23, 1929; class eight, cons., and assigned to Tirana July 24, 1930; as 3d sec. at Bucharest Sept. 15, 1930; at Sofia Sept. 5, 1933; (canceled); to the Dept. June 6, 1934; married.—PC.

Holsinger, Otto Rudolph.—b. Broadway, Va., Oct. 12, 1912; messenger, Civil Ser. Commn., 1929-30; app. asst. messenger in the Dept. of State May 10, 1930.—CR.

Honaker, Samuel William .- b. Tampa, Fla., Mar. 14, 1887; Bingham Sch.; Univ. of Va., A. B., A. M.; app. clk. in Am. Consulate General at Rio de Janeiro Mar. 1913; dep. cons. gen. at Rio de Janeiro July 19, 1913; v. c. at Rio de Janeiro Feb. 6, 1915; alde, Second Pan American Scientific Cong., Washington, 1915-16; at Johannesburg Jan. 18, 1916; app., after exam., cons. of class eight Feb. 19, 1918; on detail at Johannesburg; class six Sept. 5, 1919; detailed to Lourenço Marques Mar. 7, 1921; class five Nov. 21, 1921; detailed to the Dept. May 6, 1922; class four Mar. 1, 1923; detailed to Kingston, Jamaica, Dec. 24, 1923; to Teheran June 23, 1924; For. Ser. officer of class five July 1, 1924; class four Sept. 20, 1924; assigned to Smyrna Oct. 30, 1924; to the Dept. Nov. 19, 1926; to Port au Prince July 12, 1927; to Berne Sept. 12, 1929; class three Aug. 15, 1930; cons. gen. Dec. 17, 1931; assigned to Glasgow Dec. 22, 1931; to Stuttgart June 20, 1934; married.

Honey, Robertson .- b. Montevallo, Ala., Aug. 17, 1870; attended Harvard; Politechnikum, Hannover, Germany; tutors in Germany and France; U.S.M.A., grad. 1893; Univ. of Md., LL. B. 1896; mem. of bars of Md. and N. Y.; law clk. 1888-89; U. S. Army 1893-98, 2d lt.; instructor in law, U. S. M. A., 1896-97; asst. dist. atty. 1898-1900; N. Y. Nat. Guard 1900-1901, maj.; law practice 1900-1914; app., after exam., cons. at Madrid Apr. 24, 1914; cons. of class eight by act approved Feb. 5, 1915; class seven July 14, 1916, and assigned to Catania; assigned to Bristol Aug. 31, 1918; class six June 4, 1920; For. Ser. officer of class seven July 1, 1924; assigned to Hamilton, Bermuda, July 23, 1924; class six May 23, 1929; assigned to Nice and Monaco Sept. 4, 1929; to Calgary July 17, 1933; married.

Hoover, Charles Louis.—b. Oskaloosa, Iowa, Jan. 11, 1872; high sch. grad.; private tutors; Univ. of Mo.; Cotner Univ. two yrs.; with cattle company, asst. engineer in mining company, and principal of sch.; post office dept., bu. of education, and division supt. of sch., Philippine Is.; app., after exam., cons. at Madrid June 4, 1909; at Carlsbad Aug. 22, 1912; at Prague July 17, 1914; cons. of class six by act approved Feb. 5, 1915; class five Aug. 3, 1916, and assigned to São Paulo; class four Apr. 28, 1920; resigned May 14, 1920; reapp. cons. of class four July 19, 1921; assigned to Danzig Sept. 19, 1921; to Batavia July 21, 1922; For. Ser. officer of class five July 1, 1924; class four Feb. 24, 1925; cons. gen. and assigned to Batavia May 7, 1927; to Amsterdam Oct. 18, 1927; class three May 23, 1929; representative, Fifth Cong. of the Int. Chamber of Com., Amsterdam, 1929; class two July 1, 1931; assigned to Hong Kong June 20, 1934; married.

Hopkins, William T.—b. Rathburn, Tenn., July 9, 1893; Tenn. Mil. Inst., grad. 1913; Georgetown, LL.B. 1921; commandant, Tenn. Mil. Inst., 1917-18; U. S. Army 1918-19, 2d lt., overseas service; clk., Dept. of State, 1919-21; asst. mgr., mfg. firms, 1921-29; salesman 1930-31; app. clk. at \$1,440 in the Dept. of State Oct. 28, 1931; married.—DCR.

Hopper, George Dunlap .- b. Stanford, Ky., July 13, 1889; attended business sch.; Centre Coll., A. B. 1913; Univ. of Louisville, LL. B. 1916; mem. of bar of Ky.; mercantile business 1907-11; principal of sch. 1913-14; law practice 1916-17; app., after exam., cons. of class eight Sept. 14, 1917; detailed to Stockholm Nov. 27, 1917; Inter-Allied Black List Committee and del., War Trade Bd., Stockholm, 1919; class six Sept. 5, 1919; detailed to the Dept. Dec. 11, 1919; to Rotterdam June 11, 1920; to Hamburg Mar. 8, 1923; assigned to Dunkirk Nov. 27, 1923; For. Ser. officer of class seven July 1, 1924; class six Feb. 24, 1925; assigned to Antofagasta June 20, 1925; to the Dept. Jan. 2, 1929; to Montreal Apr. 11, 1929; class five Dec. 19, 1929; to Casablanca June 13, 1934; married.

Horan, Aloysius Oscar.—b. Washington, D. C., Oct. 27, 1898; attended business high sch.; stenog. and clk. 1915–17; U. S. Army 1917–19; in Bu. of Engraving and Printing 1919–26; app. clk. at \$1,500 in the San Francisco Passport Agency of the Dept. of State May 16, 1928; at \$1,620 July 1, 1928; at \$1,620 Jan. 1, 1929; at \$2,200 Dec. 1, 1930.

Horn, Grace McMahon (Mrs.)-b. Marietta, Ohio; attended high sch. and bushness sch.; stenog. and clk. 1916-21; clk., Dept. of State, 1921-25; reapp. clk. at \$1,440 in the Dept. of State Nov. 15, 1928; at \$1,620 Mar. 1, 1929; at \$1,800 July 1, 1930.--SS.

Horn, Thomas Stanislaus.—b. Duquoin, Ill., June 24, 1894; business sch. grad.; Washington Univ., LL. B. 1919; mem. of bars of Mo. and D. C.; law clk., Bu. of Naturalization, 1918; advertising mgr. 1919-20; in foreign dept. of bank 1920-21; sec. and international lawyer 1922; app., after exam., v. c. of career of class three May 26, 1922; assigned to Kingston, Jamaica, Aug. 28, 1922; to Tampico May 12, 1923; class two May 10, 1924; assigned to Salina Cruz May 22, 1924; For. Ser. officer unclass. July 1,

1924; assigned to Saltillo Dec. 24, 1924; class eight and cons. Dec. 17, 1925; assigned to Saltillo Dec. 18, 1925; to La Paz Feb. 28, 1928; sec. in the Diplo. Ser. May 17, 1928; assigned also as 3d sec. at La Paz May 21, 1928; as cons. at Antofagasta Mar. 4, 1929; class seven Dec. 19, 1929; assigned as cons. and 2d sec. at Asunción Mar. 30, 1931; as cons. at Barcelona Mar. 13, 1934.

Hornbeck, Stanley Kuhl .-- b. Franklin, Mass., May 4, 1883; Univ. of Colo. 1899-1901; Univ. of Denver, A. B. 1903; Oxford, B. A. 1907; Univ. of Wis., Ph. D. 1911; iustructor in Univ. of Wis., 1908-9; in Chinese Govt. Coll. 1909-13; asst. and assoc. prof. of political science, Univ. of Wis., 1914-17; lecturer, Univ. of Mich., summer 1917; special expert, U. S. Tariff Commn., 1917-18, 1919-20, 1921; tech. expert, Far Eastern Division, Am. Commn. to Negotiate Peace, 1918-19; U. S. Army 1918-19, capt., overseas service; on staff of Maj. Gen. James G. Harbord on Am. Mil. Mission to Armenia Aug.-Oct. 1919; travel in Far East 1920-21; tech. expert, Am. del. to Conf. on Limitation of Armament, Washington, 1921; drafting officer in Office of Economic Adviser, Dept. of State, 1921-24; lt. col., Res.; Williamstown Inst. of Politics, round table leader 1922, special speaker 1927; lecturer on hist. of Far East, Harvard, 1924-28; mem. Inst. of Pacific Relations; tech. adviser, Am. del., Special Conf. on Chinese Customs Tariff, Peking, 1925-26; app. drafting officer at \$6,000 in the Dept. of State and designated chief, Division of Far Eastern Affairs, Feb. 15, 1928; at \$8,000 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); representative of Dept., Fifth Cong. of the Int. Chamber of Com., Amsterdam, 1929; representative of the Dept. of State, Sixth Gen. Cong. of the Int. Chamber of Com., Washington, 1931.—FE.

Hornibrook, William Harrison.—b. Cherokee, Iowa, July 6, 1884; Shattuck Sch.; Drake Univ. Prep. Sch. grad.; Univ. of Mich. 1903-4; Nat. Univ. Law Sch., LL. B. 1905; newspaper owner and publisher 1906-; mem. of Idaho Senate 1910-12; E.E. and M.P. to Siam 1915-17; app. E.E. and M.P. to Persia Dec. 12, 1933; married.

Hosmer, Charles Bridgham .- b. Hudson, Mass. July 15, 1889; Univ. of Me., LL. B. 1911; Diplo. and Cons. Sem., National Univ., Habana, Cuba, grad. 1922; George Washington, LL. M. 1929; mem. of bar of Me.; law practice 1911-18; sec. to mem. of Cong.; lecturer on cons. practice, Georgetown Sch. of For. Ser., 1927-30; app. v. c. at Habana Jan. 9, 1919; app., after exam., v. c. of career of class three May 24, 1920, and assigned to Habana; class two Nov. 17, 1921; class one May 26, 1922; assigned to Santo Domingo Dec. 22, 1922; cons. of class seven Mar. 1. 1923; assigned to Santo Domingo Mar. 28, 1923; For. Ser. officer of class eight July 1, 1924; class seven Aug. 8, 1924; assigned to Sherbrocke Oct. 5, 1925; to the Dept. Dec. 15, 1926; mem., Inter-dept. Committee on Codification of Navigation Laws, 1927-30; class six May 17, 1928; tech. adviser, Pan American Commn. on Customs Procedure and Port Formalities, Washington, 1929; class five Dec. 19, 1929; assigned to Naples Nov. 26, 1930; class four July 1, 1931; married.

Hotsko, Stephen.—b. Ncsquehoning, Pa., Sept. 8, 1915; high sch. and business sch. grad.; clk. 1934; app. clk. at \$1,440 in the Dept. of State May 21, 1934.—BA.

Hottel, Marjorie Virginia.—b. Hancock, W. Va.; attended business sch.; Hood Coll., A. B. 1927; Western Reserve Univ. 1927-28; Amer. Univ. 1930-31; Columbia Sch. of Drafting, grad. 1934; case worker and sec. with associated charities 1927-30; typist Internal Revenue, Feb.-Aug. 1930; app. clk. at \$1,620 in the Dept. of State Aug. 16, 1930.—RP.

Houck, Fred Henry.—b. Washington, D. C., Aug. 19, 1890; attended public sch. and business sch.; studied under private tutor two yrs.; clk., U. S. Navy Yard, 1907-13; life insur. salesman 1913-17; Army field clerk 1917-20; app. clk. in Am. Leg. at Berne May 5, 1920; in Am. Consulate at Hamburg July 1, 1921; at Rotterdam Aug. 1921; at Hamhurg Nov. 1, 1921; v. c. at Hamburg Apr. 24, 1922; at Ghent May 27, 1924; at Lille Mar. 9, 1926; at Ghent May 26, 1926; at Cherbourg June 10, 1926; married.

Hovgren, Luella I. O. (Mrs.)—b. Attleboro, Mass.; high sch. grad.; secretary 1919–31; app. clk. at \$1,440in the Dept. of State Apr. 15, 1931; at \$1,620 Oct. 27, 1931.—VD.

Howard, Herbert Seymour (Capt.)—b. Buffalo, N. X., Aug. 5, 1884; Nichols Sch.; U.S.N.A., grad. 1904; Mass. Inst. of Tech., M. S. 1909; assigned as asst. nav. att. at Paris May 31, 1932; also at London, Rome, Berlin, and The Hague June 4, 1932; married.

Howell, Williamson Smith, Jr .- b. Bryan, Tex., Nov. 10, 1890; attended private sch.; Univ. of Tex. one yr.; studied law; law practice 1912-16; app., after exam., sec. of emb. or leg. of class four Aug. 3, 1916; assigned to San José Aug. 10, 1916; unassigned from Nov. 10, 1916; app., temp., in the Dept. of State Nov. 8, 1917; clk. in the Am. Emb. at London, temp., Dec. 1, 1917; sec. of emb. or leg. of class four May 3, 1918; assigned to London July 5, 1918; class three Dec. 20, 1919; assigned to Prague June 14, 1920; to Habana July 13, 1922; class two Dec. 4, 1922; assigned to Panama Mar. 4, 1924; For. Ser. officer of class four July 1, 1924; assigned as 1st sec. at Warsaw July 17, 1924; to the Dept. Jan. 29, 1926; at Mexico City Jan. 21, 1928; at London Dec. 1, 1928; at Paris Feb. 2, 1929; class three May 23, 1929; class two July 1, 1931; married.

Howze, Eoline.—b. Winona, Miss.; attended public, private, and business sch.; Centenary Coll., Ward Sem., and Univ. of Miss.; stenog. 1913-21; app. clk. at \$1,000 in the Dept. of State Nov. 21, 1921; at \$1,080 Sept. 1, 1922; at \$1,140 Oct. 16, 1922; at \$1,200 Dec. 30, 1922, effective Jan. 1, 1923; at \$1,500 July 1, 1924; at \$1,560 Mar. 1, 1925; at \$1,620 Dec. 1, 1925; at \$1,680 Mar. 1, 1927; at \$1,740 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$1,800 July 1, 1928; at \$1,920 July 1, 1930; at \$1,980 July 3, 1930 (Brookhart Act).—SS. Hoyt, Elton Maynard.—b. South Norwalk. Conn., Mar. 30, 1900; Univ. Prep. Sch., Charleston, S. C., grad.; Georgetown Sch. of For. Ser. 1922-23; U. S. Army 1919-20, overseas service; clk. 1920-22; app. clk. in Am. Consulate at Yarmouth. N. S., Mar. 3, 1923; v. c. at Yarmouth July 18, 1923; at Charlottetown Oct. 13, 1924; at Yarmouth Dec. 23, 1924; at Charlottetown Jan. 6, 1925; at Yarmouth Jan. 20, 1925; at Ottawa July 16, 1925; at St. Stephen, N. B., Apr. 18, 1930; at Yarmouth, temp., Aug. 21, 1931; at Niagara Falls Nov. 21, 1931; married.

Hoyt, Ira Ford.—b. South Norwalk, Conn., July 2, 1876; attended high sch.; theatrical enterprises 1892– 1918; mem. of gen. assembly of Conn. 1907-8; commr. of charities, Derby, Conn., 1908; app. clk., temp., at \$2,000 In the Dept. of State June 17, 1918; at \$2,500 Oct. 1, 1918; passport agt. at \$2,000 in N. Y. Passport Agency Aug. 12, 1919; at \$3,000 June 18, 1921, effective July 1; at \$3,200 July 1, 1925; at \$3,600 Nov. 1, 1926; at \$3,800 July 1, 1927; at \$4,000 May 1, 1928; at \$4,600 July 1, 1928; at \$4,800 May 1, 1930; married.

Hubbard, Phil Henry.—b. Middletown Springs, Vt., Feb. 20, 1897; Troy Conf. Acad.; Valparaiso Univ. 1920-22; Univ. of Chicago, Ph. B. 1924; with cml. firms 1916-17, 1925-26; U. S. Navy 1917-19; salesman 1924-25; app. clk. in Am. Consulate at Breslau Mar. 1, 1926; v. c. at Breslau July 30, 1926; at Stuttgart, temp., June 13, 1927; at Breslau July 22, 1927; at Berlin Apr. 7, 1928; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass. and v. c. of career May 17, 1928; assigned to Berlin May 29, 1928; to Breslau, temp., July 13, 1928; to Berlin Oct. 4, 1928; to Manchester Sept. 12, 1929; to Liverpool June 29, 1931; married.

Hubner, John, 2d.—b. Catonsville, Md., Nov. 15, 1904; Tome Sch., Ridgefield Sch., Hill Sch.; Johns Hopkins Univ. 1921-23; Cornell Univ. 1924-25; employed with bank In Paris 1926; cml. work 1927-28; sec. in France 1929; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass., v. c. of career, and sec. in the Diplo. Ser. Dec. 16, 1930; assigned to the Dept., temp., Dec. 20, 1930; to the For. Ser. Sch. Mar. 31, 1931; to Mukden June 20, 1931; to Tientsin May 26, 1932; married.

Huddle, Jerome Klahr .- b. Bettsville, Ohio, Mar. 25, 1891; Heidelberg Univ., Ohio, three yrs.; George Washington Univ. one yr.; newspaper and cml. experience; principal in high sch. and teacher in acad.; app., after exam., cons. asst. Mar. 24, 1915, and detailed to the Dept.; with Am. Commn. to Negotiate Peace, Paris, 1918; cons. of class seven Sept. 5, 1919; detailed to Paris Oct. 15, 1919; to Berlin Feb. 9, 1920; class six June 4, 1920; detailed to Warsaw Sept. 28, 1920; to Hamburg Sept. 20, 1921; class five Nov. 19, 1921; class four Mar. 1, 1923; detailed to the Dept. Apr. 28, 1923; For. Ser. officer of class five July 1, 1924; class four Aug. 8, 1924; chief, Division of Passport Control, Nov. 4, 1925; assigned to Cologne Dec. 9, 1926; class three June 8, 1927; class two Dec. 31, 1929; cons. gen. June 4, 1930; assigned to Warsaw July 9, 1930; married.

Huddleston, John Fletcher.—b. Forsyth, Ga., July 19, 1892; attended high sch.; advertising course;

Univ. of Fla. 1910-13; messenger, Cong. committee, 1913-16; U. S. Navy 1916-20, It.; grocery business 1920-21; advertising salesman 1921-23; app., after exam., v. c. of career of class three Oct. 6, 1923; assigned to Milan Nov. 19, 1923; For. Ser. officer unclass. July 1, 1924; class eight, cons., and assigned to Milan May 17, 1928; to Funchal Jan. 3, 1929; class seven May 9, 1930; to Dresden May 31, 1933; married.

Hudson, Joel Carrington.—b. Ravenden, Ark., Sept. 4, 1899; Blackburn Coll, 1916–17; Univ. of Grenoble 1919; Washington Univ., B.S. 1922; U. S. Army 1917–19, 1st lt., overseas service; app., after exam., v. c. of career of class three Feb. 26, 1923; assigned to Wellington Apr. 27, 1923; For. Ser. officer unclass. July 1, 1924; assigned to Singapore Mar. 10, 1928; class eight, cons., and assigned to Singapore May 17, 1928; to Sydney, N. S. W., Jan. 18, 1929; class seven July 24, 1930; assigned to Melbourne Jan. 10, 1931; to Surabaya Mar. 6, 1933; married.

Huestis, Richard Southard.—b. Ticonderoga, N. Y., Feb. 6, 1904; Harvard, A. B. 1927; Univ. of Nancy, France, and Sorbonne 1927-28; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass. and v. c. of career Nov. 12, 1929; assigned to the For. Ser. Sch. Nov. 18, 1929; to Calcutta Mar. 26, 1930; to Kingston, Jamaica, Jan. 11, 1933; sec. in the Diplo. Ser. Oct. 4, 1933; assigned as For. Ser. officer to the emb. at Warsaw Oct. 9, 1933; as 3d sec. at Warsaw Oct. 14, 1933.

Hughes, James Joseph.—b. South Boston, Mass., Feb. 26, 1879; attended public sch. and business sch.; hospital training 1895-99; professional work in hospitals 1901-5; sec. 1905-13; salesman 1913-18; clk., Customs Ser., New York City, 1918-19; app. clk. at \$1,400 in the N. Y. Passport Agency of the Dept. of State Aug. 27, 1919; at \$1,200 May 20, 1920; at \$1,400 Apr. 1, 1921; asst. passport agt. at \$2,000 Mar. 1, 1924; at \$2,300 July 1, 1924; at \$2,400 July 1, 1925; at \$2,500 Nov. 1, 1926; at \$2,600 Jan. 1, 1928; at \$2,800 July 1, 1928; at \$3,000 Dec. 1, 1928; at \$3,200 May 1, 1930; married.

Hughes, Morris Nelson.—b. Champaign, Ill., Jan. 13, 1901; Univ. of Ill., B. S. 1922; S. A. T. C. 1918; real estate business 1922-23; app. clk. in Am. Consulate at Montevideo Oct. 3, 1923; v. c. at Montevideo Mar. 25, 1925; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass. and v. c. of career May 17, 1928; assigned to Montevideo May 29, 1928; to Porto Alegre, temp., June 15, 1928; to Montevideo Sept. 13, 1928; to Rome Apr. 17, 1930; to Naples Apr. 3, 1931; to Athens Jan. 9, 1932; to Baghdad May 11, 1932; sec. in the Diplo. Ser. June 16, 1932; also 3d sec. at Baghdad June 20, 1932; 3d sec. at Tokyo Oct. 3, 1933.

Hughes, Thomas LaFayette.—b. Murray, Ky., Nov. 11, 1891; high sch. and business sch. grad.; Fairview Acad.; accountant, auditor, and scc.-treas. of a tobacco growers' cooperative assn. 1910-17; investigator in warehousing, Dept. of Agric., 1917-19; foreign representative for tobacco firm 1919-21; U.S. Shipping Bd. 1921; chief, Tobacco Section, Bu. of For. and Domes. Com., 1922-24; foreign representative for tobacco growers' cooperative assn. 1925-28; v. pres. Int. Planters' Corp., Europe and northern Africa, 1928-31; app. trade commr., Bu. of For. and Domes. Com., July 1, 1932; cml. att. at Vienna Oct. 3, 1933; married.

Hukill, George Raymond.—b. Middletown, Del., Feb. 2, 1893; Lehigh Univ. 1911-13; Yale, Ph. B. 1916; U. S. Army 1917-19, 2d lt.; engaged in handling estate and traveling 1919-22; app., after exam., v. c. of carcer of class three Feb. 26, 1923; assigned to Batavia Apr. 28, 1923; For. Ser. officer unclass. July 1, 1924; assigned to Lucerne Sept. 24, 1925; class eight, cons., and assigned to Lucerne May 17, 1928; to Zürich, temp., Oct. 19, 1929; class seven July 24, 1930; to Genoa Aug. 15, 1933; married.

Hull, Cordell.-b. in Overton (now Pickett) Co., Tenn., Oct. 2, 1871; Nat. Normal Univ., Lebanon, Ohio, 1889-90; Cumberland Univ. Law Sch., Lebanon, Tenn., B.L. 1891; mem. of bar of Tenn.; law practice; mem. Tenn. House of Representatives 1893-97; capt., 4th Regiment, Tenn. Volunteer Infantry, during Spanish-American War; judge of 5th judicial circuit, Tenn., 1903-7; mem. U.S. House of Representatives from 4th Dist. of Tenn., 60th to 66th Congresses, 1907-21, and 68th to 71st Congresses, 1923-31; chm., Democratic Nat. Committee, 1921-24; author of Federal income-tax system of 1913, revised act of 1916, and Federal inheritance act of 1916; U.S. Senator 1930-33; app. sec. of state Mar. 4, 1933; chm. of Am. del., Int. Monetary and Economic Conf., London, 1933, and Seventh Int. Conf. of Am. States, Montevideo, 1933; married .--- S.

Hull, Moody.—b. near Frankford, W. Va., Apr. 3, 1899; attended business sch.; radio sch. one yr.; Cornell field sch. in geol., summer 1931; George Washington, A. B. 1933; teacher in public sch. 1917-20, 1922-23; clerical asst. to county supt. of sch. 1923-24; app. clk. at \$1,320 in the Dept. of State Dec. 17, 1924; at \$1,500 Mar. 1, 1927; editorial asst. Aug. 20, 1927; at \$1,620 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$1,680 July 1, 1928; at \$1,800 May 1, 1929; at \$1,920 July 1, 1930.—RP.

Hulley, Benjamin Mayham.—b. Lewisburg, Pa., June 28, 1898; Stetson Coll., A. B. 1917; Harvard, A. M. 1919; Oxford, B. A. 1921; prof. of hist., Stetson Univ., 1922-24; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass. and v. c. of career Oct 16, 1924; assigned to Stockholm Nov. 8, 1924; class eight, cons., and assigned to Stockholm May 23, 1929; to Dublin Sept. 14, 1929; class seven July 1, 1931; to Nantes June 20, 1934; married.

Hultberg, Hulda.—b. New York City; high sch. and business sch. grad.; seasonal clk. in the N. Y. Passport Agency of the Dept. of State 1928-31; app. clk., temp., at \$1,440 in the N. Y. Passport Agency Mar. 7, 1932; permanently at \$1,620 June 16, 1932.

Hunt, Bert L.—b. North Fork, Pa., Jan. 29, 1884; attended teachers' training sch. and business sch.; private tutors; Georgetown Univ., LL. B. 1912,

LL, M., M. P. L. 1914; mem. of bars of N. Y. and D. C.; sch. teacher 1901-2; chief accountant for wholesale and retail concern 1903-8; app. clk. at \$900 in the Dept. of State July 15, 1908; at \$1,200 June 23. 1909, effective July 1; at \$1,400 Dec. 23, 1910, effective Jan. 1, 1911; sec. to 3d asst. sec. of state 1909-13; acting sec. to bds. of examiners for diplo. and cons. services 1910-13; assigned to legal work in office of the solicitor Dec. 15, 1913; at \$1,600 Mar. 8, 1915 : law clk. June 22, 1916, effective July 1 : asst. solicitor at \$2,500 Oct. 22, 1917; acting solicitor at various times 1917-18; resigned Oct. 10, 1918; atty. for import, export, and steamship company 1918; asst. treas, and in charge of legal matters in Europe 1919-20, and gen. mgr. in Brazil 1920-24; couns. for U. S., Mixed Claims Commn., U. S. and Mexico, 1926-27; app. cml. att. at Bogotá Dec. 3, 1927; resigned Nov. 17, 1928; atty. in Colombia for fruit company 1928-30; app. asst. to the solicitor at \$6,500 in the Dept. of State Apr. 7, 1930; at \$6,400 June 1, 1930; at \$6,500 Aug. 1, 1930; at \$7,000 Sept. 1, 1930; asst. to the legal adviser July 1, 1931; U. S. agt., Arbitration Commn., U. S. and Egypt (Salem Claim), Vienna, 1931; counsel for U. S., U. S.-Sweden Arbitration, 1932; U. S. agt., Claims Commn., U. S. and Panama, 1931-33; married.-LE.

Hunt, Leigh Walter.—b. Washington, D. C., Jan. 18, 1896; high sch. grad.; Univ. of Mich. one yr.; Sorbonne 1918; U. S. Army 1917–19, overseas service; entered Bu. of For. and Domes. Com. Aug. 1919; app. asst. trade commr. at Brussels Oct. 1923; asst. cml. att. at Brussels and Luxemburg June 17, 1927; observer, Sixteenth Plenary Assembly of the Int. Parliamentary Conf. of Com., Brussels, 1930; married.

Hunt, Ralph Harding.—b. Boston, Mass., May 6, 1905; attended high sch. and business sch. in Melbourne, Australia; Melbourne Univ. 1923-24; app. clk. in Am. Consulate General at Melbourne Oct. 1, 1921; v. c. at Melbourne Sept. 24, 1929.

Hurley, John P .--- b. New York City, Sept. 15, 1878; St. Kieran's Coll., Ireland; Cornell, C. E. 1907; clk. and student engineer 1902-3; civil engineer 1907-9; highway construction engineer 1909-14; engineer of construction 1914-16; U.S. Army 1916-19, capt., Mexican border and overseas service; app., after exam., cons. of class eight Aug. 15, 1919; class seven Dec. 18, 1919; assigned to Reval Sept. 20, 1919; to Riga June 23, 1920; class six Nov. 23, 1921; reassigned to Riga, Latvia, July 29, 1922; class five Dec. 19, 1923; For. Ser. officer of class six July 1, 1924; assigned to Vienna June 6, 1925; class five Aug. 31, 1925; class four May 17, 1928; assigned to Baghdad July 30, 1929 (canceled); to Riga Oct. 19, 1929; class three July 24, 1930; to Nassau June 30, 1932; married.

Hurney, Leo Bernard.—b. Washington, D. C., May 20, 1897; St. John's Coll. one yr.; clk. four yrs.; app. clk., temp., at \$1,020 in the Dept. of State Sept. 16, 1918; permanently, at \$1,000 Feb. 1, 1921; at \$1,080 Nov. 2, 1922; at \$1,140 Dec. 30, 1922, effective Jan. 1, 1923; at \$1,200 Oct. 1, 1923; at

67359-34-14

\$1,440 July 1, 1924; at \$1,500 Mar. 1, 1925; at \$1,560 Dec. 1, 1925; at \$1,620 Mar. 1, 1927; at \$1,680 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$1,800 Feb. 1, 1929; at \$1,920 July 1, 1930; at \$1,980 July 3, 1930 (Brookhart Act); married.—DCR.

Hurst, Carlton .- b. Crefeld, Germany, of Am. parents, Nov. 22, 1894; attended sch. in Germany and France; Wilbraham Acad.; Wesleyan Univ.; app. clk. in Am. Consulate General at Barcelona Mar. 21. 1914; in Am. Consulate at Lyon July 6, 1915; v. c. at Madrid Oct. 25, 1916; at Santander July 23, 1917; at Almeria Sept. 28, 1917; at Seville Oct. 7, 1918; at Cadiz Feb. 18, 1919; at Seville May 14, 1919; at Cadiz Jan. 3, 1920; app., after exam., cons. asst. Oct. 21, 1920; v. c. at San Salvador Apr. 12, 1921; detailed to Bremen Sept. 20, 1921; v. c. of career of class three Nov. 17, 1921, and assigned to Bremen; class two Feb. 26, 1923; assigned to Bremerhaven July 16, 1923; to Bremen Aug. 1, 1923; For. Ser. officer unclass. July 1, 1924; assigned to Bremerhaven Aug. 18, 1924; to Paris May 19, 1927; to Lyon, temp., Jan. 13, 1928; to Paris Feb. 27, 1928; class eight, cons., and assigned to Paris July 24, 1930; to Aden Sept. 30, 1930; to Nogales Dec. 29, 1931; to Penang Mar. 6, 1933.

Huston, Cloyce Kenneth.—b. Crawfordsville, Iowa, May 12, 1900; Univ. of Calif., summer 1920; Univ. of Iowa, B. A. 1922; S. A. T. C. 1918; Instructor in Eng. and math., American Univ. at Cairo, Egypt, 1922-25; app. clk. in Am. Consulate at Cairo July 1, 1925; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass. and v. c. of career Apr. 27, 1927; assigned to Cairo May 9, 1927; to Aden June 11, 1928; to Genoa Nov. 15, 1930; sec. in the Diplo. Ser. Aug. 31, 1932; assigned as For. Ser. officer to the leg. at Tirana Sept. 2, 1932; as v. c. and 3d sec. at Tirana Sept. 10, 1932; married.

Hutchinson, Charles Albert.—b. Clinton, Iowa, Nov. 1, 1907; Superior State Coll. 1925–27; Univ. of Minn., B. A. 1929; private tutors; asst. Instructor in political science, Univ. of Minn., 1929; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass. and v. c. of career Nov. 12, 1929; assigned to Windsor Nov. 30, 1929; to the For. Ser. Sch. July 16, 1930; to Tokyo Nov. 8, 1930.

Hutton, Paul Churchill, Jr.—b. Goldsboro, N. C., Nov. 17, 1903; Columbian Prep. Sch.; U. S. M. A., grad. 1926; U. S. Army 1926-30, 2d lt.; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass., v. c. of career, and sec. in the Diplo. Ser. Apr. 15, 1930; assigned as v. c. at Panama July 17, 1930; to the For. Ser. Sch. Feb. 11, 1931; to Calcutta June 20, 1931 (canceled); to Bombay Aug. 29, 1931; to Dublin May 22, 1934; married.

Hynson, Frances L.—b. Baltimore, Md.; attended high sch. in Mexico, Miss Madeira's Sch., and business sch.; clk., Treas. Dept., 1918-24; app. clk. at \$1,140in the Dept. of State Aug. 12, 1924; at \$1,320 Nov. 1, 1925; at \$1,380 Mar. 1, 1927; at \$1,500 May 1, 1927; at \$1,620 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$1,740 July 1, 1930.—DCR. Ingle, Jesse Forrest.—b. Tunnelton, Ind., Apr. 23, 1905; high sch. grad.; attended Central Normal Coll., Danville, Ind., and Ind. Univ.; teacher in public sch. 1923-24; U. S. Navy May-July, 1924; app. clk. in Am. Consulate at Manchester June 17, 1924; at Glasgow Apr. 14, 1927; v. c. at Glasgow May 14, 1929; married.

Ives, Ernest Linwood.-b. Norfolk, Va., Oct. 17, 1887; Va. Mil. Inst. one yr.; William and Mary Coll. two yrs.; app. v. and dep. cons. at Mannheim June 7, 1909: at Madgeburg Nov. 17, 1910; v. and dep. cons. gen. at Frankfort-on-the-Main Mar. 4. 1914; v. c. at Frankfort-on-the-Main Feb. 6, 1915; at Cologne June 11, 1915; at Frankfort-on-the-Main Dec. 4, 1915; at Erfurt Apr. 5, 1916; at Breslau June 1, 1916; at Frankfort-on-the-Main Oct. 19, 1916; at Budapest Jan. 19, 1917; app., after exam., cons. asst. Apr. 21, 1917; v. c. at Paris May 5, 1917; at Nantes July 17, 1917; at Paris Mar. 8, 1918; cons. of class seven Sept. 5, 1919; class six June 4, 1920; class five Nov. 19, 1921; class four Mar. 1, 1923; assigned to Alexandria Aug. 17, 1923; For. Ser. officer of class five July 1, 1924; class four Feb. 24, 1925; sec. in the Diplo. Ser. Mar. 31, 1925; assigned as 1st sec. at Constantinople Sept. 18, 1925; at Copenhagen Jan. 11, 1930; class three July 24, 1930; assigned to Pretoria Apr. 8, 1931; as For. Ser. officer at Callao-Lima Dec. 7, 1932 (canceled); cons. gen, and assigned to Algiers Apr. 5, 1933; married.

Jackson, Alfred Lincoln.—b. Philadelphia, Pa., Sept. 1, 1877; mess attendant, U. S. Navy, 1902-6; asst. messenger, Dept. of State, 1916-26; reapp. asst. messenger in the Dept. of State Aug. 1, 1927.—PC.

Jackson, James E.—b. Springfield, Mass., Mar. 3, 1896; messenger, Govt. depts., 1917-30; app. messenger in the Dept. of State May 16, 1930.—ME.

Jackson, Jesse Benjamin .- b. Paulding, Ohio, Nov. 19, 1871; high sch. grad.; studied law; clk. 1891-92; in insur. and real estate business 1893-97, 1902-5; Ohio Volunteer Infantry 1898-99, Cuban service; enrolling clk., Ohio House of Representatives, 1900-1902; app., after exam., cons. at Alexandretta Mar. 17, 1905; at Aleppo June 10, 1908; clk., North Atlantic Coast Fisheries Arbitration, The Hague, 1910; cons. of class seven by act approved Feb. 5, 1915; class six July 12, 1916; detailed to the Dept. Nov. 24, 1917; to Cairo Oct. 4, 1918; assigned to committee to outline proposed boundaries of Republic of Armenia 1918; to Aleppo Mar. 4, 1919; class five Sept. 5, 1919; class four June 4, 1920; assigned to Leghorn Apr. 28, 1923; For. Ser. officer of class five July 1, 1924; assigned to Fort William and Port Arthur Mar. 27, 1928; class four July 24, 1930.

Jacobs, Eva Harris (Mrs.)—b. Bluefield, W. Va.; high sch. grad.; Georgetown Univ. Training Sch. for Nurses, Reg. Nurse 1921; instructress of nurses 1921-22; nurse 1922-26, in War Dept. 1927-31; app. graduate nurse at \$1,800 in the Dept. of State Apr. 16, 1931.—CC.

Jacobs, Joseph Earle.—b. Johnston, S. C., Oct. 31, 1893; studied bookkeeping and accounting; Coll. of

Charleston, A. B. 1913; teacher in high sch. 1913-14; mercantile business 1915; app., after exam., student interpreter in Turkey Oct. 15, 1915, but did not proceed to post; student interpreter in China Nov. 5, 1915; v. c. at Foochow June 26, 1917; v. c. and interpreter at Shanghai Apr. 15, 1918; Am. assessor, Int. Mixed Court, Shanghai, 1918-25; designated to exercise judicial authority and jurisdiction in Am. Cons. Court, Shanghai, Aug. 25, 1919; cons. of class six Nov. 19, 1921; class five Dec. 19, 1923; For. Ser. officer of class six July 1, 1924; class five Aug. 31, 1925; tech. adviser to Am. mem., Commn. on Extraterritoriality in China, 1925-26; assigned to Yünnanfu July 3, 1926; to Shanghai Feb. 25, 1928; class four May 17, 1928; representative of Am. Min. to China in negotiations with regard to Provisional Court, Shanghai, Dec. 1929-Feb. 1930; assigned to the Dept. May 7, 1930; class three July 24, 1930; For. Ser. inspector July 2, 1934; married.

Jaeckel, Theodore .- b. New York City Dec. 29, 1882; private tutors; Williams Coll., B. A. 1904; grad. work, Harvard, one yr.; New York Law Sch., LL. B. 1908; mem. of bar of N. Y.; law clk. and law practice 1909-12; app., after exam., cons. at Maskat Apr. 24, 1914, but did not proceed to post; at Stavanger July 17, 1914; cons. of class nine by act approved Feb. 5, 1915; class eight Feb. 22, 1915, and assigned to Stettin; to the Dept. May 15, 1917; class seven Sept. 14, 1917; assigned to Bordeaux Mar. 15, 1919; class six Sept. 5, 1919; class five June 4, 1920; class four Nov. 23, 1921; class three Mar. 1, 1923; assigned to Hamburg Apr. 28, 1923; cons. gen. of class four June 5, 1924; For. Ser. officer of class three July 1, 1924; assigned as cons. gen. at Warsaw Oct. 23, 1924; at Milan Nov. 27, 1926; at Halifax June 15, 1928; at Rome Nov. 20, 1929; class two May 9, 1930; del., Third Int. Conf. on Private Aerial Law, Rome, 1933; assigned as cons. gen. at Zürich Nov. 2, 1933; at Victoria, B.C., June 20, 1934.

††James, Douglas.—b. Brooklyn, N.Y., Aug. 14, 1907; Phillips Andover grad.; Princeton, B. S. 1929, M. A. 1931; Am. Sch. of Oriental Research, Jerusalem, 1929–30; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass., v. c. of career, and sec. in the Diplo. Ser. Dec. 17, 1931; assigned as v. c. at Alexandria Jan. 20, 1932; at Naples Aug. 22, 1932; to the For. Ser. Sch. Apr. 22, 1933; to Beirut Aug. 28, 1933; resigned Sept. 22, 1933.

James, Virginia Henrietta.—b. Frederick, Md.; George Washington, A. B. 1926, grad. work, 1926–27; stenog., War Dept., 1918–24; research clk. aud secretary to asst. agt., Mixed Claims Commn., U. S. and Mexico, 1924–31; research clk., hearings of Gen. and Special Claims Commus., U. S. and Mexico, Mexico City, 1930, 1931; app. clk. at \$1,440 in the Dept. of State Jan. 1, 1932.—SS.

James, William George.—b. Neath, So. Wales, Great Britain, July 15, 1891; attended sch. In So. Wales, private tutors in England, business sch., and Emerson Inst.; George Washington, A. B., and grad. work; U. S. Army 1917-18; clk., War Dept., 1918-19; clk., Dept. of State, Mar. 27-Sept. 26, 1922; reapp. clk. at \$1,000 Oct. 18, 1922; at \$1,100 Oct. 1, 1923; at \$1,200 Mar. 1, 1924; at \$1,440 July 1, 1924; at \$1,500 Jan. 16, 1926; at \$1,500 Mar. 1, 1927; at \$1,680 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$1,800 July 1, 1930.—PD.

Jandrey, Fred William.—b. Neenah, Wis., Oct. 1, 1908; Floating Univ. 1928-29; Univ. of Wis., B. A. 1930; app. clk. in Am. Consulate at Southampton Aug. 4, 1931; v. c. at Southampton Aug. 14, 1931; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass., v. c. of career, and sec. in the Diplo. Ser. Dec. 17, 1931; assigned as v. c. at Southampton Jan. 2, 1932; to the For. Ser. Sch. Aug. 19, 1932; to Calcutta Dec. 22, 1932.

Janson, Esther C. (Mrs.)—b. Earle, Ark.; hlgh sch. grad.; attended business sch.; George Washington Univ. 1927-29; clk. in Govt. depts. 1924-26; app. clk. at \$1,320 in the Dept. of State Mar. 9, 1926; at \$1,380 Mar. 1, 1927; at \$1,500 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$1,560 July 1, 1928; at \$1,620 Feb. 1, 1929; at \$1,680 July 1, 1930; at \$2,000 May 1, 1934.— DCR.

Janz, Robert.—b. Omaha, Nebr., Oct. 11, 1903; U. S. N. A. and Univ. of Okla.; Georgetown Sch. of For. Ser., B. F. S. 1929; clk., War Dept., 1927–28, Treas. Dept., 1928–29; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass. and v. c. of career Nov. 12, 1929; assigned to the For. Ser. Sch. Nov. 20, 1929; to Guatemala Mar. 26, 1930; to Belfast Sept. 4, 1931; married.

⁺⁺Jardine, William M.—b. Madad, Idaho, Jan. 16, 1879; Utah Agric. Coll., B. S. 1904; grad. work, Univ. of Ill., summer 1906; Utah Agric. Coll., asst., instructor, and prof., 1904-6; in charge of dry land grain investigation 1907-10; Kans. State Agric. Coll. and Experiment Station, agronomist 1910, dir. of station and dean of agric. 1913-18, pres. of coll. 1918-25; sec. of agric. 1925-29; app. E. E. and M. P. to Egypt July 21, 1930; resigned Sept. 5, 1933; married.

Jarrell, Henry Thompson (Lt., jg.)-b. Lagrange, Ga., June 22, 1903; U.S.N.A., grad. 1927; assigned as language officer at Peiping Dec. 12, 1932.

Jarvis, Robert Yelverton .- b. Clay City, Ky., Nov. 5, 1893; Princeton 1911-13; Univ. of Louisville Law Sch. 1915-16; New York Law Sch. 1916-17; mem. of bars of Ky. and Calif.; clk. 1913-14; law clk. 1914-16; U. S. Army 1917-18, 2d lt.; law practice 1919; asst. to gen. mgr. of silver mines company 1919-20; cml, employment 1920-21; app., after exam., v. c. of career of class three Oct. 26, 1921; assigned to Warsaw Dec. 14, 1921; class two Feb. 26, 1923; class one Nov. 23, 1923; cons. of class seven June 3, 1924; For. Ser. officer of class eight July 1, 1924; assigned to Shanghai May 4, 1926; class seven June 8, 1927; assigned to Calcutta Oct. 26, 1927; class six Dec. 19, 1929; to Barbados May 27, 1932; to Port-au-Prince Aug. 15, 1932; sec. in the Diplo. Ser. July 24. 1933; assigned as cons. at Asunción July 27, 1933; also as 2d sec. at Asunción Aug. 18, 1933; as cons. at Autofagasta Jan. 29, 1934; married.

Jawney, Ignatius.—b. Zbaraz, Poland, July 15, 1885; naturalized 1919; Lwöw Univ., Poland, grad. 1911; Georgetown Sch. of For. Ser., B.F.S. 1923; U. S. Army 1915-17; clk., U. S. Soldiers' Home, 1918-28; translator, Veterans' Admin., 1928-32; app. translator at \$2,300 in the Dept. of State Feb. 5, 1932; married.—TR.

Jenkins, Douglas .-- b. Colleton Co., S. C., Feb. 6, 1880; Porter Mil. Acad. grad.; studied law; mem. of bar of S. C.; Sumter Guards (militia) 1898-99;. law clk. and practicing attorney 1901-3; reporter, city editor, and act, editor of newspaper 1903-8; app., after exam., cons. at St. Pierre June 22, 1908; at Göteborg Mar. 8, 1912; at Riga Nov. 24, 1913; in charge of German and Austro-Hungarian, Brit. and French interests at Riga 1914-17; class seven by act approved Feb. 5, 1915; class six Mar. 2, 1915; detailed to Harbin Aug. 16, 1918; class five Sept. 5, 1919; assigned to Harbin Sept. 6, 1919; class three June 4, 1920; cons. gen. of class four Nov. 19, 1921; detailed to the Dept. Dec. 23, 1921; assigned to Canton Mar. 30, 1923; For. Ser. officer of class three July 1, 1924; class two Dec. 17, 1925; class one May 9, 1930; assigned to Shanghal, temp., May 29, 1930; to Hong Kong June 2, 1930; to Berlin Júne 20, 1934; married.

Jenkins, Douglas, Jr.—b. St. Pierre, St. Pierre et Miquelon, of Am. parents, Jan. 17, 1910; North China American Sch., Peiping, grad.; Univ. of S. C.; Univ. of Va., B. S. 1920; app. clk. in Am. Consulate at Mazatlán Aug. 12, 1931; v. c. at Mazatlán Aug. 27, 1931; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass., v. c. of career, and scc. in the Diplo. Ser. Dec. 17, 1931; assigned to the For. Ser. Sch. Dec. 19, 1931; as v. c. at Yünnanfu Apr. 7, 1932; at Nanking Mar. 6, 1933; married.

Jensen, Julius Jorgen Christian.—b. Lone Rock, Wis., Oct. 31, 1883; Univ. of Iowa 1906-7; George Washington, LL. B. 1915; mem. of bars of D. C. and Wyo.; clk. 1907-9, in U. S. Weather Bu. 1909-16; law practice 1917-18; clk., Govt. depts., 1918-20; app. v. c. at Copenhagen Dec. 4 1920; at Malmö, temp., Oct. 30, 1923; at Copenhagen Dec. 17, 1923; at Göteborg, temp., Nov. 14, 1924; at Copenhagen Feb. 17, 1925; at Cologne Dec. 7, 1926; at Oslo Mar. 14, 1928; married.

Jernigan, Henry Sterling (1st Lt.)-b. Pembroke, Ky., Nov. 14, 1901; U.S.M.A., grad. 1924; assigned as language officer at Peiping May 9, 1932.

Jessop, Walter E.—b. San Antonio, Tex., Feb. 18, 1906; attended high sch.; clk. 1922-27, in War Dept. 1928-30; app. clk. at \$1,440 in the Dept. of State May 8, 1930; at \$1.620 July 1, 1930; married.—DCR.

Jester, Perry Northen.—b. West Point, Ga., Jan. 20, 1902; Bailey Mil. Inst. grad.; Univ. of Richmond 1920-23; Univ. of Va., B. S. 1925; Crawford Sch. 1926-27; U.S. Merchant Marine 1917-18; asst. purchasing agt., Med. Coll. of Va. 1923-24; app., after exam., For. Ser, officer unclass, and v. e. of career Aug. 24, 1927; assigned to the For. Ser. Sch. Sept. 20, 1927; to Hong Kong Feb. 24, 1928; assigned as For. Ser. officer to the Am. Leg. at San Salvador Apr. 18, 1932; see, in the Diplo. Ser, and assigned as 3d sec. at San Salvador May 4, 1932; as v. c. at Barbados Dec. 3, 1932; married.

Johnson, Albion Wesley.—b. Kittery, Me., Mar. 18, 1886; St. Paul's Sch.; studied medicine; registered in Mass. as physician and surgeon by State exam. 1909; on hospital staff 1910; practiced medicine 1911; real estate business 1912–15; interpreter, U. S. Immigration Service, 1916–17; special work for U. S. Govt. in Spain 1917–18; translator in office of mil. att, at Madrid Feb.–Sept. 1918; app. v. c. at Málaga Feb. 20, 1920; at Barcelona July 18, 1921; at Dublin Jan. 13, 1923; resigned May 9, 1925; app. cons. agt. at Alicante Aug. 7, 1925; v. c. at Alicante Apr. 17, 1926; at Valencia Dec. 3, 1928; at St. Michael's June 7, 1929; at Santo Domingo Oct. 15, 1929; married.

Johnson, Charles Leonard.—b. Ednor, Md., July 31, 1890; asst. messenger, Dept. of State, 1922-25; reapp. asst. messenger, temp., in the Dept. of State Mar. 22, 1927; permanently Apr. 4, 1927.—DCR.

Johnson, Charles Mathew.—b. Washington, D. C., Aug. 19, 1911; messenger, Dept. of Com., 1927-28; app. asst. messenger, temp., in the Dept. of State Feb. 17, 1930; permanently Aug. 16, 1930.—HA.

Johnson, Elda Bronson (Mrs.)—b. Maxbass, N. Dak.; high sch. and business sch. grad.; stenog., Veterans' Bu, 1927-29; app. clk. at \$1,440 in the Dept. of State Apr. 15, 1929; at \$1,620 Sept. 1, 1929; resigned June 10, 1930; reapp. at \$1,440 Jan. 1, 1931; at \$1,620 Feb. 4, 1931.—WE.

Johnson, Ellis Alfred.—b. Springfield, Mass., Oct. 4, 1893; attended high sch.; clk. 1910-14; office mgr. of dairy farm 1914-15; stenog. 1915-16; sec., Bu. of For. and Domes. Com., 1916-17; clk., Emergency Fleet Corp., 1917; U. S. Army 1918-19, lt., overseas service; Red Cross work in Europe 1919-21; app. clk. in Am. Consulate General at Copenhagen Aug. 23, 1921; v. c. at Copenhagen Mar. 11, 1925; at Riga, temp., Apr. 10, 1929; at Plymouth June 29, 1929; at Tallinn Apr. 19, 1930; at Danzig Jan. 26, 1932; at Moscow Feb. 10, 1934.

Johnson, Eugene H.—b. Black River Falls, Wis., Dec. 27, 1897; high sch. grad.; Ripon Coll. one yr.; U. S. Army 1918; elk., Dept. of Interior, 1917-24; app. elk. in Am. Consulate at Stavanger Mar. 4, 1924; v. c. at Sydney, N. S., Nov. 13, 1925; at Campbellton, temp., July 18, 1927; at Sydney Dec. 17, 1927; at Halifax, temp., Jan. 26, 1928; at Sydney Feb. 8, 1928; at Campbellton, temp., Apr. 6, 1928; at Fredericton, temp., Aug. 1, 1928; at Sydney Sept. 27, 1923; at Charlottetown, temp., June 12, 1930; at Sydney July 1, 1930; married.

Johnson, Frederick Conger.—b. Pictou, N. S., Canada, of Am. parents, Nov. 15, 1885; prep. sch., and coll., Obercassel by Bonn, Germany, diploma, 1903; Univ. of Pa., 1903-4; attended Technicum, Mittweida, Germany, 1905; Polytechnicum, Darmstadt, Germany, 1906; studied int. law under tutor; employed with rallroads in U. S. 1914-18; app. cons. agt. at Paspeblac July 26, 1918; at Gaspé Jan. 23, 1919; v. c. at Rivière du Loup Nov. 15, 1919; resigned Dec. 20, 1920; app. v. c. at Fredericton Sept. 19, 1921; married.

Johnson, Hallett .- b. New York City Nov. 26, 1888: Hotchkiss Sch.; Williams Coll., B. A. 1908; Columbia, LL. B. 1911; mem. of bar of N. Y.; law practice 1911-12; mem. of N. Y. Nat. Guard; app., after exam., 3d sec. at London Aug. 22, 1912; at Constantinople May 22, 1914; sec. of emb. or leg. of class five by act approved Feb. 5, 1915; class four Mar. 2, 1915; assigned to Constantinople Mar. 6, 1915; to La Paz June 16, 1915 (canceled); to Santiago, Chile, July 6, 1915; class three May 10, 1916; assigned to La Paz as chargé d'affaires ad interim July 20, 1916; to Santiago, Chile, Jan. 3, 1917; to the Dept. Jan. 14, 1918; act. chief, Division of Latin American Affairs, Aug. 15-Nov. 21, 1919; class two Dec. 20, 1919; assigned to Brussels Mar. 25, 1920; to Stockholm May 26, 1921; to Madrid July 23, 1923; to Berlin June 5, 1924; For. Ser. officer of class four July 1, 1924; assigned as 1st sec. at Paris July 17, 1924; class three Aug. 8, 1924; assigned to Oslo July 11, 1927; to The Hague July 25, 1929; class two July 24, 1930; couns. of leg. Apr. 6, 1931; assigned as couns. of emb. at Madrid Dec. 5, 1933; married.

Johnson, Herschel V.—b. Atlanta, Ga., May 3, 1894; Univ. of N. C., B. A. 1916; Harvard Law Sch. 1919-20; instructor in French, Chamberlayne Sch. for Boys, Richmond, Va., 1916-17; U. S. Army 1917-19, capt., overseas service; app., after exam., sec. of emb. or leg. of class four Nov. 15, 1920; assigned to Berne Jan. 12, 1921; to Sofia Dec. 16, 1921; class three Sept. 22, 1922; assigned to the Dept. July 23, 1923; For. Ser. officer of class six July 1, 1924; class five Sept. 20, 1924; assigned as 2d sec. at Tegucigalpa Oct. 23, 1926; class four May 26, 1928; assigned as 1st sec. at Mexico City July 27, 1928; assigned to the Dept. Mar. 26, 1930; chief, Division of Mexican Affairs, June 12, 1930; class three July 24, 1930; assigned as 1st sec. at London Feb. 16, 1934.

Johnson, John David .-- b. Highgate, Vt., Nov. 3, 1884; attended business sch.; corr. course in business admin.; Georgetown Univ., LL.B. 1908; mem. of bar of D. C.; clk. 1902-4; in U. S. Navy Yard 1904-5; app. clk. at \$900 in the Dept. of State July 7, 1905; at \$1,200 July 2, 1906; at \$1,400 Mar. 4, 1907; at \$1,600 June 1, 1909; clk., North Atlantic Coast Fisheries Arbitration, The Hague, 1910; at \$1,800 Dec. 1, 1913; special employee in charge of cons. post allowances and allotments at \$2,400 Aug. 15, 1918; at \$2,160 July 1, 1919; drafting officer at \$2,400 Dec. 31, 1919, effective Jan. 1, 1920; at \$3,000 June 17, 1921, effective July 1; designated representative of the Dept. of State on Federal Traffic Bd. Oct. 31, 1921; app. cons. of class six Aug. 23, 1922; detailed to the Dept. Sept. 20, 1922; class five Dec. 19, 1923; For. Ser. officer of class slx July 1, 1924; class five Dec. 17, 1925; assigned to Strasbourg July 12, 1926; to Paris July 1, 1929; to Hamilton, Ont., Mar. 27, 1930; class four May 9, 1930; married.

Johnson, Leslie Willard.-b. Minneapolis, Minn., Aug. 5, 1908; Univ. of Minn., B. A. 1930; app. clk. in Am. Consulate at Melbourne Oct. 17, 1930; v. c. at Melbourne June 11, 1931; at Wellington July 31, 1931; at Puerto Cortes June 29, 1932; at Port Limón June 14, 1933; married.

Johnson, Lucius Hartwell.—b. Aiken, S. C., Aug. 6, 1897; high sch. grad.; Univ. of S. C. 1915-16; attended business sch.; U. S. Navy 1918-19; clk., Dept. of State, 1919-20; app. clk. in Am. Consulate at Dublin Dec. 4, 1920; v. c. at Dublin Sept. 9, 1922; at Bilbao Jan. 13, 1923; at Montreal July 5, 1924; at Winnipeg Feb. 6, 1925; at Matanzas June 18, 1932; at Montreal June 22, 1934; married.

Johnson, Nelson Trusler .- b. Washington, D. C., Apr. 3, 1887; Sidwell's Friends Sch.; George Washington Univ., 1906-7; app., after exam., student Interpreter in China Aug. 27, 1907; v. and dep. cons. gen. and Interpreter at Mukden Nov. 1, 1909; v. and dep. cons. and interpreter at Harbin Apr. 18, 1910; v. and dep. cons. gen. and interpreter at Hankow July 30, 1910; at Shanghai Dec. 2, 1911; mlxed court assessor; designated to exercise judicial authority and jurisdiction in civil and criminal cases at Shanghai June 7, 1913; app. cons. at Chungking Dec. 29, 1914; cons. of class six by act approved Feb. 5, 1915; assigned to Changsha Mar. 2, 1915; detailed to Shanghai Apr. 12, 1918; to the Dept. Sept. 11, 1918; class five Sept. 5, 1919; class three June 4, 1920; expert asst., Conf. on the Limitation of Armament, Washington, 1921; app. cons. gen. at large Nov. 23, 1921; cons. gen. of class three June 5, 1924; For. Ser. officer of class two July 1, 1924; assigned to the Dept. Apr. 21, 1925; chief, Division of Far Eastern Affairs, July 1, 1925; class one June 30, 1927; app., asst. sec. of state Aug. 15, 1927; mem., For. Ser. Personnel Bd., Bd. of Examiners for the For. Ser., and For. Ser. Sch. Bd. Feb. 25, 1928; chm., Bd. of Review for Efficiency Ratings, May 15, 1928; del., Int. Civil Aeronautics Conf., Washington, 1928; E. E. and M. P. to China Dec. 16, 1929; married.

Johnson, Sara A. M. (Mrs.)-b. Wheeling, W. Va.; attended high sch. and business sch.; stenog. 1924-25; secretary 1925-28; app. clk. at \$1,440 in the Dept. of State Mar. 1, 1929; at \$1,560 July 1, 1930; at \$1,620 Nov. 1, 1930.--PD.

Johnson, William Edward.—b. Galveston, Tex., Aug. 20, 1890; U. S. Army 1917-19; app. chauffeur in the Dept. of State July 28, 1931.—MA.

Johnston, Inez.—b. Minneapolis, Minn.; high sch. grad.; stenog. 1923–26, in Treas. Dept. 1926–27; app. clk. at \$1,320 in the Dept. of State Apr. 1, 1927; at \$1,440 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$1,620 July 1, 1928; at \$2,000 Nov. 1, 1928; at \$2,200 July 1, 1930; clk., Int. Monetary and Economic Conf., London, 1933.—A–W.

Jones, Frances B.—b. Aurora, Mo.; hlgh sch. grad.; attended business sch.; stenog. 1930-31; app. clk., temp., at \$1,260 in the Dept. of State Jan. 16, 1931; permanently June 1, 1931.—DCR.

Jones, Gerald George.—b. Barneveld, Wis., Jan. 31, 1907; Huron Coll., B. S. 1929; studied Spanish in Colombia 1929-30; teacher, Colegio Americano para Varones, Barranquilla, Colombia, 1930-31; app. clk. in Am. Consulate at Barranquilla Sept. 1, 1931; v. c. at Barranquilla Apr. 27, 1932; married.

Jones, Harold Frederic.—b. Brockton, Mass., May 30, 1891; Mass. Agric. Coll., B. Sc. 1913; with sugar company in Mexico since 1913; U. S. Army 1918; app. cons. agt. at Los Mochls Sept. 6, 1919; married.

Jones, J. Wesley.—b. Sioux City, Iowa, June 4, 1907; MornIngslde Coll. 1926-28; George Washington Univ., A. B. 1930; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass., v. c. of career, and sec. in the Diplo. Ser. Dec. 16, 1930; assigned as v. c. at Saltillo, temp., Dec. 27, 1930; to the For. Ser. Sch. Aug. 8, 1931; to Calcutta Dec. 10, 1931.

Jones, Victor Emanuel.—b. Washington, D. C., Dec. 26, 1895; U. S. Army 1918-19, overseas service; elevator conductor, State, War, Navy Bldg., 1917-18, 1919-20; app. asst. messenger in the Dept. of State Mar. 13, 1920.—LA.

Jordan, Curtis Calhoun.—b. San Diego, Calif., Mar. 20, 1892; polytech. high sch. grad.; Univ. of So. Calif., LL. B. 1918; U. S. Army 1917-20, 2d lt., overseas service; capt. O. R. C.; app., after exam., sec. of emb. or leg. of class four Dec. 20, 1919; assigned to Port au Prince June 14, 1920; to Helsingfors Mar. 1, 1922; class three Mar. 23, 1922; For. Ser. officer of class six July 1, 1924; assigned as 2d sec. at Habana July 17, 1924; detailed to the Dept. Oct. 19, 1925; app. cons. July 8, 1926; assigned as cons. at Barcelona Aug. 4, 1926; at Bilbao, temp., Mar. 6, 1928; at Barcelona June 22, 1928; class five July 24, 1930; at Madrid Feb. 20, 1932; married.

Jordan, Francis Cameron.—b. Greensboro, N. C., July 20, 1896; Bingham Mil. Sch. grad.; Univ. of N. C., A. B. 1917; app. clk. in Am. Consulate at Mazatlán Dec. 12, 1917; v. c. at Mazatlán June 13, 1918; resigned Nov. 5, 1918; cml. employment 1919–31; N. C. Nat. Guard 1930–31; app. v. c. at Colón Mar. 12, 1931; married.

Jordan, Russell Benton.—b. Chillicothe, Mo., Dec. 2, 1902; high sch. and business sch. grad.; sec. and stenog. 1920-24; app. clk. in Am. Consulate at Yokohama Jan. 5, 1925; v. c. at Yokohama Apr. 2, 1926; clk. at Am. Leg. at Peking, temp., Apr. 11, 1927; v. c. at Hankow Sept. 7, 1927; resigned Aug. 3, 1930; app. v. c. at Valencia Nov. 4, 1930; at Ottawa Oct. 9, 1933.

Josselyn, Paul Reitler.—b. Cedar Rapids, Iowa, Dec. 18, 1885; business sch. grad.; Beloit Coll., B. A. 1909; George Washington Univ. one yr.; clk. and stenog. 1904-5; clk. in War Dept. 1909; app., after exam., student interpreter in China Apr. 20, 1910; dep. cons. gen. at Tientsin July 26, 1912; v. and dep. cons. gen. at Tientsin Nov. 22, 1912; also interpreter Mar. 1, 1913; v. and dep. cons. gen. and interpreter Mar. 1, 1913; v. and dep. cons. gen. and interpreter at Canton Mar. 17, 1914; v. c. at Canton Feb. 6, 1915; v. c. and interpreter at Tientsin July 5, 1917; cons. of class eight Feb. 19, 1918; assigned to Chungking Apr. 15, 1918; class six Sept. 5, 1919; detailed to Peking Apr. 16, 1921; asst. Chinese sec. at Peking July 1, 1921; For. Ser. officer of class six July 1, 1924; class five Aug. 8, 1924; asst. Chinese sec. to Am. del., Special Conf. on Chinese Customs Tariff, Peking, 1925-26; sec. in the Diplo. Ser. and assigned as 2d sec. at Peking Apr. 30, 1926; to the Dept. Jan. 6, 1927; class four May 23, 1929; assigned as cons. at Shanghai May 7, 1930; married.

Jova, Eugene Elias.--b. Calabazar de Sagua, Cuba, of Am. parents, July 13, 1892; Charlotte Hall Mil. Acad.; business sch. grad.; in bank in Cuba one yr.; private business 1914-17; in ship chandlery 1917-21; app. act. cons. agt. at Sagua la Grande July 1, 1921; cons. agt. at Sagua la Grande Oct. 6, 1922; married.

Joyce, Robert Prather.—b. Los Angeles, Calif., Oct. 17, 1902; Deep Springs Sch.; Yale, B. A. 1926; Yale Law Sch. 1925-26; L'École Libre des Sciences Politiques 1926-27; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass. and v. c. of career May 17, 1928; assigned to the For. Ser. Sch. May 24, 1928; to Shanghai Oct. 10, 1928; to La Paz Mar. 25, 1931; sec. in the Diplo. Ser. Mar. 28, 1932; assigned as 3d sec. at La Paz Apr. 1, 1932; at Panamá Aug. 22, 1933.

Jukes, Arthur d'Aguilar.—b. Vancouver, Brit. Columbia, of Am. parents, Jan. 27, 1906; high sch. grad.; Oreg. State Coll. 1923-25; Univ. of Wash. 1925-26; clk., traffic mgr. for company, and at sea 1926-28; claim agt. for steamship company 1928-29; app. clk. in Am. Consulate General at Callao-Lima Jan. 16, 1930; v. e. at Callao-Lima Nov. 20, 1930; married.

††Kaufman, David E.—b. in Lithuania May 15, 1883; Susquehanna Coll. Inst. grad.; Dickinson Law Sch., LL. B. 1904; law practice 1904-23; mem. of law firm 1923-28; app. E. E. and M. P. to Bolivia Mar. 7, 1928; resigned Jan. 9, 1930; app. E. E. and M. P. to Siam June 12, 1930; resigned Aug. 15, 1933.

Kazanjian, Reginald Stephen.—b. Newport, R. I., Aug. 7, 1905; Harvard, A. B. 1927; Oxford 1927–28; Harvard Law Sch. and Harvard Grad. Sch. 1928–29; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass., v. c. of carcer, and sec. in the Diplo. Ser. Dec. 16, 1930; assigned as v. c. at Habana, temp., Dec. 26, 1930; to Matanzas, temp., May 18, 1931; to Habana Sept. 19, 1931; to the For. Ser. Sch. Dec. 29, 1931; to Rangoon Apr. 7, 1932.

Kearney, Mary Powers (Mrs.)—b. Berryville, Va.; Farmville State Normal Sch. grad.; Crane Normal Inst. 1904; teacher in public sch. seven yrs.; app. clk., temp. at \$1,020 in the Dept. of State Sept. 7, 1918; at \$1,080 Jan. 1, 1919; permanently at \$000 Feb. 1, 1921; at \$1,000 Aug. 16, 1921; at \$1,100 Dec. 30, 1922, effective Jan. 1, 1923; at \$1,200 Oct. 1, 1923; at \$1,440 July 1, 1924; at \$1,560 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$1,620 July 1, 1928; at \$1,680 July 1, 1930.—PD.

Kearney, Walter.-b. Scranton, Pa., July 16, 1911; attemded tech. high sch.; messenger-clk. 1927-28; app. clk. at \$1,000 in the N. Y. Despatch Agency of the Dept. of State Oct. 1, 1928; at \$1,200 Mar. 1, 1929; at \$1,400 Feb. 1, 1930.

Keating, Joseph T.—b. Sag Harbor, N. Y., Oct. 13, 1899; Georgetown Univ., LL. B. 1920, LL. M. 1922; French Language Sch. 1930–33; Berlitz Sch. of Languages 1933–; mem. of bars of D. C. and N. Y.; U. S. Army 1918; law clk. 1920–21; practicing attorney 1921–25; app. clk. at \$900 in the Dept. of State Nov. 24, 1922; at \$1,000 May 1, 1923; at \$1,500 July 1, 1924; clk. and stenog., Am. section of the Tacna-Arica Plebiscitary Commun, 1925–26; at \$1,560 Nov. 1, 1927; at \$1,680 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); legal asst. at \$2,000 Dec. 1, 1928; at \$2,600 June 1, 1929; at \$2,800 July 1, 1930; married.—TD.

Keatley, George Harold.—b. Fleming, Pa., June 6, 1902; Dickinson Coll., Ph. B. 1927; George Washington, LL. B. 1933; mem. of bar of D. C.; sec. to dean, Dickinson Coll., 1921–23; scoretarial work in China and Philippine Is. 1925–27; in N. Y. bank 1927–28; asst. sec. to gov. gen. of Philippine Is. 1928–20; app. private scc. to the sec. of state at 3,200 Apr. 4, 1929; at 3,3400 July 1, 1930; at 3,200 Mar. 6, 1933.—A-C/C.

Keblinger, Wilbur .--- b. Charleston, W. Va., Nov. 8, 1875; Staunton Mil. Acad.; George Washington, LL. B. 1904; U. S. Army 1898; clk., War Dept., 1898-99; sec., Int. Boundary Commn., U. S. and Mexico, 1899-1914; sec. of Am. section, Chamizal Arbitration, U. S. and Mexico, El Paso, Tex., 1910; U. S. Commr., Rio Grande Commn., 1910-14; app., under Ex. order, cons. at Malta May 15, 1914; cons. of class eight by act approved Feb. 5, 1915; class seven Sept. 14, 1917; detailed to Fiume May 27, 1919; class six Sept. 5, 1919; class five June 4, 1920; detailed to Zagreb July 29, 1920; class four and detalled to Fiume Nov. 19, 1921; assigned to Fiume Jan. 25, 1922; to Bombay Mar. 30, 1923; For. Ser. officer of class five July 1, 1924; class four Feb. 24, 1925; assigned to Melbourne Apr. 7, 1930; class three July 24, 1930; to Sydney, N. S. W., July 13, 1931; cons. gen. Feb. 19, 1932; assigned as cons. gen. at Singapore Mar. 3, 1932; married.

Keeley, James Hugh, Jr.—b. Curwensville, Pa., Nov. 27, 1895; high sch. grad.; U. S. Sch. of Mil. Aeronautics, Princeton Univ., grad. 1917; studied law; with powder company 1916-17; U. S. Army 1917-19, 2d lt.; in restaurant business 1919-20; app. v. c. at Constantinople June 11, 1920; app., after exam., v. c. of career of class three Sept. 30, 1922; assigned to Constantinople Oct. 7, 1922; to Damascus Feb. 24, 1923; class two Nov. 23, 1923; For. Ser. officer unclass. July 1, 1924; class eight and cons. Aug. 31, 1925; assigned to Beirut Apr. 24, 1928; class seven May 17, 1928; class six Dec. 19, 1929; assigned to Montreal Mar. 12, 1931; class five July 1, 1931; married.

Keena, Leo John.—b. Detroit, Mich., Apr. 12, 1878; Detroit Coll. 1893-96; Univ. of Mich. 1897-1900; seaman 1898; mining business 1900-1903; in charge of mill in Colombia 1904; in business 1905-9; app., after exam., cons. at Chihuahua May 31, 1909; at Florence Dec. 14, 1910; cons. gen. at Buenos Aires Apr. 27, 1914; cons. gen. of class five by act approved Feb. 5, 1915; class four Feb. 22, 1915, and assigned to Valparaiso; to Zürich Mar. 27, 1919; to Warsaw Sept. 30, 1920; class three Nov. 23, 1921; For. Ser. officer of class two July 1, 1924; cons. and assigned to Liverpool Aug. 26, 1924; class one Dee. 17, 1925; cons. gen. and assigned to Habana May 7, 1927; tech. adviser, Sixth Int. Conf. of Am. States, Habana, 1928; del., Int. Conf. on Immigration and Emigration, Habana, 192S; assigned to Paris Oct. 26, 1929; married.

Kegg, Cressy L. (Mrs.)—b. Washington, D. C.; attended high sch. and business sch.; amateur photographic work two yrs.; clk. and photostat operator, Dept. of State, 1918-24; reapp. photostat operator at \$1,320 in the Dept. of State July 16, 1927; at \$1,440 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$1,500 July 1, 1928; at \$1,620 July 1, 1930.—SS.

††Kehl, John E .- b. Cincinnati, Ohio, Oct. 10, 1870; attended high sch. and business sch.; secretarytreas. of a publishing house 1890-95; conducted printing and publishing business 1895-97; app., after exam., cons. at Stettin Oct. 15, 1897; special commr. of deeds for the State of Ohio while stationed at Stettin; cons. at Sydney, N. S., June 10, 1908; at Saloniki Aug. 19, 1911; cons. of class six by act approved Feb. 5, 1915; class five Mar. 2, 1915; class four Sept. 14, 1917, and assigned to Santiago, Cuba (assignment canceled); assigned to Aarhus Apr. 13, 1918; class three June 4, 1920; unassigned from Sept. 7, 1920; detailed to Berlin Feb. 17, 1921; assigned to Breslau Nov. 15, 1921; to Stuttgart June 11, 1924; For. Ser. officer of class four July 1, 1924; class three Aug. S. 1924; assigned to Hamburg May 4, 1929; cons. gen. and assigned to Hamburg May 23, 1929; class two July 24, 1930; retired Sept. 30, 1933, under the provisions of the act of Feb. 23, 1931; married.

Keith, Gerald.—b. New York City Mar. 13, 1893; Amherst Coll., B. A. 1915; Univ. of Grenoble 1925; salesman 1915-17, 1919-25; U. S. Naval Keserve 1917-19, It. (jg.); app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass. and v. e. of career Feb. 5, 1927; assigned to the For. Ser. Sch. Feb. 14, 1927; to Seville Feb. 24, 1928; to Calcutta Sept. 4, 1931; married.

Kelchner, Warren.—b. Orangeville, Pa., Nov. 6, 1805; Valparalso Univ., LL B. 1917; Univ. of Pa., A. B. 1923; Institut des Hautes Etudes International 1925-26; Harvard, M. A. 1928; Univ. of Pa., Ph. D. 1928; mem. of bar of Ind.; teacher 1913-15, 1918-20; instructor in political science, Univ. of Pa., 1923-25; Penfield traveling scholar in int. Law and diplomacy 1925-27; research on Am. republics under Bu. of Int. Research, Harvard, 1928-30; app., after exam., For. Scr. officer unclass. and v. c. of career Jan. 29, 1929; assigned to the For. Ser. Sch. Feb. 2, 1929; asst. sec., Commn. for study and review of conditions in Haiti, 1930; assigned to Port au Prince July 22, 1930; sec. in the Diplo. Ser. Jan. 22, 1931; assigned also as 3d sec. at Port au Prince Feb. 20, 1931: resigned Nov. 8, 1931; app. divisional asst. at \$4,600 in the Dept. of State Nov. 9, 1931; sec. to Am. del., Seventh Int. Conf. of Am. States, Montevideo, 1933.—LA.

Kelley, Robert Francis .- b. Somerville, Mass., Feb. 13. 1894 ; Harvard, A. B. 1915, A. M. 1917 ; Univ. of Paris 1915-16; asst. instructor in hist., Harvard, 1916-17; U. S. Army 1917-22, capt., overseas service, detailed as asst. mil. att. at Copenhagen and mil. observer in the Baltic Provinces Mar. 3, 1920; as asst, mil, att, at Helsingfors and mil, observer in the Baltic Provinces July 28, 1921; app., after exam., sec. of emb. or leg. of class four Dec. 20, 1919, but declined appointment; app., after exam., v. e. of career of class three Nov. 16, 1922; assigned to Calcutta Dec. 14, 1922; app. drafting officer at \$2,500 in the Dept. of State Sept. 26, 1923; reapp. v. c. of career of elass three May 24, 1924; elass two May 28, 1924; class one May 31, 1924; cons. of class seven and assigned to the Dept. June 5, 1924; For. Ser. officer of class eight July 1, 1924; asst. chief, Division of Eastern European Affairs, Mar. 16, 1925; act. chief Oct. 1, 1925; class seven June 2, 1926; chief, Division of Eastern European Affairs, Oct. 15, 1926; class six May 17, 1928; resigned July 1, 1928; app. drafting officer at \$6,500 in the Dept. of State and designated chief, Division of Eastern European Affairs, July 1, 1928; at \$7,500 Aug. 1, 1928; at \$8,000 July 1, 1930 .- EE.

Kelly, George Francis.—b. Jamaica Plain, Mass., Jan. 21, 1902; Venard Prep. Sch.; attended business sch.; clk. in Mass. State govt. 1920-23; app. elk. in Am. Consulate at Kingston, Jamaica, Apr. 10, 1923; v. e. at Kingston Apr. 1, 1925; married.

Kelly, Helen G.—b. Utica, N. Y.; high sch. grad.; Oneonta Normal Sch., grad. 1923; George Washington Univ. 1930-; teacher in public sch. 1923-30; elk., Veterans' Admin., 1930-31, Dept. of Agric. Feb.-Nov. 1931; app. clk. at \$1,440 in the Dept. of State Nov. 16, 1931.—SS.

Kelly, Ruth E.—b. Utica, N. Y.; high sch. grad.; George Washington Univ. 1930-; secretary 1921-29; app. elk. at \$1,440 in the Dept. of State May 21, 1931; at \$1,620 Sept. 1, 1931.—FE.

Kelly, William J.—b. Washington, D. C., Apr. 11, 1894; laborer in State, War, Navy Bldg. one yr.; app., tcmp., in the Dept. of State Dec. 28, 1918; laborer, permanently, Dec. 15, 1920.—MA.

Kelsey, Easton Trowbridge.—b. Ann Arbor, Mich., June 22, 1904; Phillips Exeter grad.; Univ. of Mich. A. B. 1929; Univ. of Mich. Law Sch. 1926-27; mem. Univ. of Mich. archeological expeditions to Asia Minor and Egypt 1924, 1927-28; app. clk., temp., in Am. Leg. at Calro Apr. 19, 1928; resigned Sept. 14, 1928; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass., v. e. of career, and sec. in the Diplo. Ser. Apr. 15, 1930; assigned to the For. Sch. Apr. 24, 1930; as v. e. at Cairo July 22, 1930; also as language officer at Cairo Aug. 23, 1932; as v. c. at Beirut, temp., July 1, 1933; at Cairo Aug. 30, 1933; married.

Kemp, Edwin Carl.—b. East Douglass, Mass., Aug. 24, 1884; attended high sch.; in merchant marine three yrs.; app., after exam, cons. at St. Pierre Apr. 24, 1914; cons. of class nine by act approved Feb. 5, 1915; detailed as v. c. at Marseille July 22, 1915; assigned to Tunis July 8, 1916; class eight Sept. 1, 1916; assigned to Bucharest May 27, 1919; class six Sept. 5, 1919; class five June 4, 1920; detailed to Budapest Nov. 11, 1920; assigned to Danzig Apr. 28, 1923; For. Ser. officer of class six July 1, 1924; class five June 8, 1927; assigned to Havre May 4, 1929; class four July 24, 1930; to Moncton July 18, 1933; married.

Kemp, Percy George.—b. Chatham, Ontario, Canada, Aug. 1, 1881; naturalized 1906; attended sch. in Canada; Chatham Coll. Inst.; business sch. grad.; employed as stenog., secretary, and salesman; N.X. Nat. Guard 1910–12; app. v.c. at Valencia Jan. 16, 1919; at Málaga July 15, 1920; at Cadiz Jan. 29, 1921; at Almeria Aug. 2, 1921; at Cadiz Dec. 1, 1921; at Almeria July 20, 1923; at Huelva Jan. 28, 1924; at Funchal Mar. 10, 1924; at Las Palmas Jan. 5, 1926; at Helsingfors June 19, 1930; at Tananarive July 3, 1931; services terminated upon closing of consulate June 30, 1933; app. v.c. at Hull Dec. 13, 1933; married.

Kemper, Graham Hawes .- b. Bethany, W. Va., Apr. 15, 1877; attended business sch.; Transylvania Univ., B. S., 1896; Univ. of Ky., M. S. 1897; George Washington Unlv. 1909-11; teacher in private sch. and high sch. 1898-1905, in Philippine normal sch. 1905-9; clk., Civil Ser. Commn., 1909-11; app., after exam., cons. at Cartagena Aug. 19, 1911; at Erfurt Sept. 18, 1913; cons. of class eight by act approved Feb. 5, 1915; class seven July 12, 1916; assigned to Prague Aug. 3, 1916; to Vigo July 21, 1917; to Funchal Nov. 5, 1917; to Sofia May 27, 1919; class five Sept. 5, 1919; class four June 4, 1920; assigned to Yokohama Dec. 13, 1923; For. Ser. officer of class five July 1, 1924; class four Sept. 29, 1927; assigned to Tokyo, temp., June 6, 1928; to Yokohama Nov. 20, 1929; to Hamilton, Bermuda, Apr. 10, 1930; class three July 24, 1930; assigned to Rome Dec. 22, 1933; cons. gen. Jan. 15, 1934; assigned to Rome Jan. 23, 1934; married.

Kendrick, Stephen Earle Clark.—b. Brooklyn, N. Y., Feb. 16, 1889; attended high sch. and business sch.; employed as secretary; U. S. Naval Reserve Force 1917-19; with Am. Commn. to Negotiate Peace, Paris, 1919; app. clk. in Am. Leg. at Prague June 15, 1919; at Vienna Oct. 28, 1920; v. c. at Vienna Dec. 19, 1921; at Toronto Mar. 25, 1926; at Montreal June 26, 1929; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass., v. c. of career, and sec. in the Diplo. Ser. Dec. 17, 1931; assigned as v. c. at Montreal Jan. 2, 1932;

Kenestrick, Millard L.--b. Butler, Ind., Feb. 11, 1904; high sch. grad.; Georgetown Univ. 1924-25; George Washington Univ. 1927-31; clk., Office of Public Bldgs. and Public Parks, 1923-30; app. clk. at \$1,800 in the Dept. of State Nov. 12, 1930; at \$2,300 Feb. 9, 1931; representative of Dept. of State on Fed. Fire Council 1932-; married.—CC.

Kennan, George Frost.—b. Milwaukee, Wis., Feb. 16, 1904; attended sch. in Germany; St. John's Mil. Acad.; Princeton, A. B. 1925; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass. and v. c. of career Sept. 1, 1926; assigned to Geneva, temp., Apr. 22, 1927; to Hamburg July 15, 1927; to Berlin, temp., Apr. 5, 1928; to Tallinn Apr. 7, 1928; sec. in the Diplo. Ser. May 23, 1929; assigned as 3d sec. at Riga, Kovno, and Tallinn June 5, 1929; as language officer at Berlin May 25, 1920, effective in Oct. 1929; class eight and cons. May 9, 1930; assigned as 3d sec. at Riga Sept. 17, 1931; accompanied Ambassador Bullitt to Moscow Nov. 29, 1933; For. Ser. officer at Moscow Dec. 27, 1933; 3d sec. at Moscow Feb. 12, 1934; married.

Kennedy, John Royer.—b. Sycamore, Ill., May 25, 1907; Georgetown Sch. of For. Ser., B.F.S. 1933; app. clk. at \$1,620 in the Dept. of State Nov. 1, 1928; editorial asst. at \$1,800 Sept. 1, 1929; at \$2,000 Apr. 21, 1930; at \$2,200 July 1, 1930.—RP.

Kennedy, Maud.—b. Washington, D. C.; St. Vincent's Acad. grad.; attended business sch.; clk. in Govt. depts. 1914-17; app. clk., temp., at \$900 in the Dept. of State June 4, 1917; at \$1,100 Mar. 1, 1918; at \$1,200 July 1, 1918; permanently, at \$900 Feb. 1, 1921; at \$1,200 Aug. 1, 1921; at \$1,400 Nov. 21, 1923; at \$1,680 July 1, 1924; at \$1,740 Dec. 1, 1925; at \$1,800 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$1,860 July 1, 1930; at \$1,920 July 3, 1930 (Brookhart Act).— PD.

Kenny, William Talty (Lt., jg.)—b. Nashville, Tenn., Feb. 17, 1905; Montgomery Bell Acad. grad.; U.S.N.A., grad. 1926; assigned as language officer at Pelping Aug. 8, 1932.

Kent, Zolita Marion (Mrs.)—b. Johnson, Nebr.; attended high sch.; stenog. and sec. three yrs.; app. clk. at \$1,440 in the Dept. of State Apr. 15, 1929; at \$1,620 Mar. 1, 1930; at \$1,740 July 1, 1930; clk., Seventh Int. Conf. of Am. States, Montevideo, 1933.— FE.

Keogh, John Belfort.—b. Chicago, Ill., Jan. 10, 1903; Chicago Latin Sch. grad.; Harvard, A. B. 1925, grad. work 1925–28; asst. instructor of Eng. and asst. crew coach, Harvard, 1925–28; advertising work 1928–30; app. clk. in Am. Consulate at Nassau June 3, 1931; v. c. at Nassau Feb. 23, 1933.

Keppler, Chester H. J. (Capt.)—b. Iowa City, Iowa, Feb. 19, 1885; U.S.N.A., grad. 1907; assigned as naval att. at Berlin, Oslo, Copenhagen, and Stockholm May 24, 1933; also at The Hague Dec. 1, 1933; married.

Ketcham, John Belden.—b. Bayshore, N. Y., July 29, 1896; Hotchkiss Sch.; Mercersburg Acad.; Yale, B. A. 1919; U. S. Naval Reserve Force 1917-19, ensign; clk. 1921; with lumber company 1921-22; with oil company in Constantinople and Athens 1922-24; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass. May 28, 1926; v. c. of career June 15, 1926; assigned to Singapore Apr. 20, 1927; to Penang, temp., June 5, 1928; to Singapore Mar. 15, 1929; to Surabaya June 20, 1930; class eight, cons., and assigned to Surabaya Feb. 27, 1931; to Taihoku Sept. 22, 1931; married.

Key, David McKendree .- b. Tokyo, Japan, of Am. parents, Feb. 4, 1900; Groton Sch. grad.; Harvard, A. B. 1922; Gonville and Caius Coll., Cambridge Univ., England, 1922-23; Georgetown Sch. of For. Ser. 1923-24; U. S. Marine Corps 1918; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass. Mar. 20, 1925; also v. c. of career and detailed to the Dept. Sept. 2, 1925; assigned to Antwerp Mar. 9, 1926; sec. in the Diplo. Ser. and assigned as 3d sec. at Berlin July 18, 1927; at London Oct. 19, 1929; class eight and cons. Dec. 19, 1929; sec. to representatives, conf. of ministers for moratorium on intergovernmental debts, London. 1931; class seven July 1, 1931; sec., 1st stage, Gen. Disarmament Conf., Geneva, 1932; asst. sec. to Am. del., Int. Monetary and Economic Conf., London, 1933; assigned to the Dept. Aug. 31, 1933; married .---- CI.

Killarney, Francis Michael.—b. Newton, Mass., June 2, 1905; attended business sch.; George Washington Univ. three yrs.; National Univ., B. S. 1931, M. A. 1933; clk. 1920–22; U. S. Army 1922–24; clk. and stenog., Patent Office, 1924–28; app. clk. at \$1,500 in the Dept. of State Apr. 26, 1928; at \$1,620 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$1,800 Dec. 1, 1928; at \$2,000 May 1, 1929; at \$2,200 July 1, 1930; at \$2,300 Dec. 1, 1930.—BA.

Kimrey, Chester Hallett.—b. Hallett, Okla., Jan. 20, 1910; high sch. grad.; attended business sch.; app. clk. in Am. Consulate General at Guatemala Dec. 5, 1928; v. c. at Guatemala July 10, 1931.

King, Edwin J.—b. Emmitsburg, Md., Nov. 21, 1896; high sch. grad.; Gettysburg Coll. 1917-18; cml. employment 1919-23; app. clk. in Am. Consulate at Barranquilla Sept. 29, 1924; v. c. at Barranquilla Feb. 4, 1925; at Santa Marta, temp., Dec. 18, 1926; at Barranquilla Feb. 18, 1927; at Dublin Aug. 10, 1928.

Kirby, Burton Row.—b. Falls Church, Va., Sept. 25, 1905; attended tech. high sch.; George Washington Univ. 1928–30; messenger boy and clk. in Govt. depts. 1921-26; deck boy on steamship 1927; app. clk. at \$1,140 ln the Dept. of State May 18, 1927; at \$1,260 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$1,440 July 1, 1928; at \$1,620 Oct. 1, 1929; at \$1,740 July 1, 1930; at \$1,800 Aug. 14, 1931.—DCR.

Kirk, Alexander Comstock.—b. Chlcago, Ill., Nov. 26, 1888; Yale, B. A. 1909; L'École Libre des Sciences Politiques, diploma 1911; Harvard Law Sch., LL. B. 1914; mem. of bar of Ill.; private sec. to the 3d asst. sec. of state 1915; app., after exam., sec. of emb. or leg. of class four Mar. 2, 1915; assigned to the Dept. Mar. 6, 1915; to Berlin Aug. 5, 1915; class three Nov. 5, 1915; assigned to The Hague Feb. 3, 1917; attached to Am. Commn. to Negotiate Peace, Paris, 1918-19; assigned to the Dept. July 24, 1919; class two Dec. 20, 1919; assigned to Tokyo Feb. 26, 1920; to Peking May 2, 1922; unassigned from Oct. 7, 1923; For. Ser. officer of class four July 1, 1924; assigned as 1st sec. at Mexico City July 17, 1924; class three Nov. 17, 1924; assigned to the Dept. July 2, 1925; detailed as asst. to the undersec. of state Oct. 9, 1925; v. chm., Bd. of Review for Efficiency Ratings, July 11, 1927; executive officer for the Dept. Oct. 4, 1927; assigned as 1st sec. at Rome Oct. 5, 1928; class two Dec. 19, 1929; couns. of emb. at Rome Dec. 21, 1929; class one July 1, 1931.

Kirsch, Mildred.—b. St. Joseph, Mo.; high sch. and business sch. grad.; stenog. 1929-30; app. clk. at \$1,440 in the Dept. of State Dec. 16, 1930; at \$1,620 July 21, 1931.—SS.

Kissick, Harold G.—b. Chillicothe, Mo., Dec. 2, 1910; high sch. and business sch. grad.; Washington Coll. of Law 1930-31, 1932-; George Washington Univ. 1931-32; stenog. 1929-30; typist, Dept. of Labor, 1930; app. clk. at \$1,440 in the Dept. of State May 1, 1931.—DCR.

Klath, Thormod Oscar.—b. Sioux City, Iowa, Nov. 26, 1890; Red Wing Coll., Minn.; Natlonal Law Sch., LL. M. 1916; mem. of bar of D. C.; clk., Dept. of Com., 1916-19; app. trade commr. at Copenhagen Jan. 27, 1919; mgr. of Chicago dist. office of Bu. of For. and Domes. Com. Feb. 1, 1922; of N. Y. office Oct. 29, 1923; trade commr. at Stockholm July 1, 1924; cml. att. at Stockholm Feb. 28, 1925; observer, Int. Cong. of Forestry Experimental Stations, Stockholm, 1929; married.

Kliefoth, Alfred Will .- b. Mayville, Wis., Oct. 10, 1889; Univ. of Wis., A. B. 1913; app., after exam.. student interpreter in China Apr. 4, 1914, but declined; app. clk. in Am. Leg. at Stockholm June 15, 1916; clk. in Am. Emb. at Petrograd Sept. 10, 1916; Am. passport control officer at Torneo, Finland, and v. c. at Haparanda Nov. 30, 1917; U. S. Army 1917-19. 1st lt., overseas service: app. asst. mil. att. at Petrograd Jan. 1918; app. special asst. at \$3,500 in the Dept. of State June 17, 1920; drafting officer July 12, 1920; app., after exam., cons. of class six Mar. 1, 1923; detailed to the Dept. Mar. 13, 1923; asst. chief, Division of Eastern European Affairs, Nov. 30, 1923; For. Ser. officer of class seven July 1. 1924; class six Aug. 8, 1924; assigned to Berlin Sept. 22, 1924; to Riga June 13, 1927; class five May 17, 1928; assigned as For. Ser. officer to the emb. at Berlin June 29, 1929; sec. in the Diplo. Ser. Oct. 16, 1929; assigned as 2d sec. at Berlin Oct. 24, 1929; class four Dec. 19, 1929; as 1st sec. at Vienna May 11, 1933; married.

Kluczny, D. Muriel.—b. Ivanhoe, Minn.; high sch. and business sch. grad.; stenog. 1929-34; app. clk. at \$1,440 in the Dept. of State Mar. 26, 1934.—SS.

Knabenshue, Paul.—b. Toledo, Ohio, Oct. 31, 1883; hlgh sch. grad.; private tutors; partner and gen. mgr. of business 1903-4; app. messenger in Am. Consulate at Belfast Mar. 1, 1905; v. c. at Belfast June 20, 1906; v. and dep. cons. May 23, 1911; v. and dep. cons. gen. at Cairo July 17, 1911; v. c. at Cairo Feb. 6, 1915; app., after exam., cons. of class eight Sept. 14, 1917; detailed to Beirut May 2, 1919; class six Sept. 5, 1919; class five Nov. 19, 1921; class four Mar. 1, 1923; For. Ser. officer of class five July 1, 1924; class four Aug. 8, 1924; assigned to Beirut Aug. 11, 1925; cons. gen. May 31, 1928; assigned to Beirut June 20, 1928; to Jerusalem June 20, 1928; class three May 9, 1930; min. resident and cons. gen. to Iraq Aug. 5, 1932; married.

Knight, George Stephens.—b. Livingston, Tenn., Aug. S, 1010; Livingston Acad. grad.; Univ. of Tenn.; Vanderbilt, B.A. 1931, LL.B. 1934; mem. of bar of Tenn.; app. asst. to the legal adviser at \$2,600 Feb. 23, 1934.—LE.

Kock, Aarne Reipas Adolf.—b. Viborg, Finland, July 31, 1897; naturalized 1913; high sch. grad.; clk. 1916-19; app. clk. in Am. consulate at Helsingfors Jan. 10, 1919; v. c. at Moscow Feb. 10, 1934; married.

Koerner, Rosalind H. (Mrs.)—b. Washington, D. C.; high sch. grad.; clk.-typist 1929-31; app. clk., temp., at \$1,260 in the Dept. of State Jan. 16, 1931; permanently Apr. 17, 1931; at \$1,620 Jan. 12, 1932.—FA.

Kohler, Foy David.—b. Oakwood, Ohio, Feb. 15, 1908; Toledo Univ. 1924-27; Ohio State, B. S. 1931; bank teller 1924-27, summers 1928, 1929; asst. sec., univ. alumni assn., and business mgr., univ. paper, 1930-31; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass., v. c. of carcer, and sec. in the Diplo. Ser. Dec. 17, 1931; assigned as v. c. at Windsor Jan. 12, 1932; to the For. Ser. Sch. Nov. 29, 1932; to Bucharest Mar. 30, 1933.

Kramer, Alwin Dalton (Lt., jg.)—b. Worcester, Mass., Sept. 5, 1903; U.S.N.A., grad. 1925; assigned as language officer at Tokyo Aug. 11, 1931.

Kramer, Lillian.—b. Pittsburgh, Pa.; high sch. grad.; stenog., Veterans' Admin., Mar.-July 1931, Sept. 1931-Dec. 1933; sec.-bookkeeper July-Sept. 1931; stenog., Agric. Adjustment Admin., Jan.-Mar. 1934; app. clk. at \$I,440 in the Dept. of State Mar. 6, 1934.—SS.

Krausse, Henry Gustave.—b. Brownsville, Tex., Oct. 28. 1896; attended high sch. and business sch.; studied law; elk. 1913-17; inspector, Public Health Ser., 1917; app. elk. in Am. Consulate at Matamoros Aug. 6, 1917; v. c. at Matamoros Jan. 6, 1919; at Nuevo Laredo, temp., Sept. 14, 1922; at Matamoros Oct. 9, 1922; at Nuevo Laredo, temp., May 10, 1924; at Matamoros July 26, 1924; at San Luis Potosf, temp., June 12, 1926; at Matamoros Sept. 23, 1926; at Saltillo, temp., Feb. 19, 1927; at Matamoros May 16, 1927; married.

Kreis, Foster Helm.—b. Minneapolis, Minn., July 20, 1889; Univ. of Minn., B. A. 1913, M. A. 1914; Univ. of Washington 1919; teacher in high sch. 1914– 19; clk. in shipping company 1919–20; app. clk. in Am. Consulate General at Shanghai July 23, 1920; resigned Aug. 31, 1924; reapp. Apr. 18, 1925; v. c. at Shanghai Jan. 14, 1927; at Sydney, N. S. W., Apr. 15, 1930.

Krentz, Kenneth Garl.—b. Denver, Colo., Dec. 12, 1890; high sch. grad.; Univ. of Colo. 1915; with electric company 1915–18; U. S. Naval Reserve Force 1918–19; with telephone company 1919–26; app. clk. in Am. Consulate General at Hong Kong Mar. 11, 1926; v. c. at Hong Kong Sept. 22, 1926; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass., v. c. of career, and assigned to Hong Kong Mar. 26, 1929; to Kobe July 1, 1932; to Nagasaki, temp., May 9, 1933; to Kobe June 3, 1933.

Kuniholm, Bertel Eric.—b. Gardner, Mass., May 13, 1901; Worcester Polytech. Inst. 1918-19; Army-Navy Prep. Sch. 1919; U. S. M. A., grad. 1924; U. S. Army 1924-27, 2d lt.; instructor, Woodward Sch. for Boys, 1927-28; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass. and v. c. of career May 17, 1928; assigned to the For. Ser. Sch. May 24, 1928; to Kovno Jan. 18, 1929; as language officer to the consulate general at Paris July 30, 1930; also v. c. at Paris May 1, 1931; sec. in the Diplo. Ser. June 19, 1933; assigned as v. c. at Tallinn June 21, 1933, and as 3d sec. at Tallinn July 15, 1933 (canceled); assigned to the Dept. Aug. 30, 1933; as 3d sec. at Moscow Feb. 6, 1934.

Kushelevsky, Charlotte L.—b. Brooklyn, N. Y.; high sch. grad.; attended business sch.; George Washington Univ. 1926-28; stenog. 1925-27; in War Dept. 1927-28; app. clk. at \$1,440 in the Dept. of State Apr. 16, 1920; at \$1,620 Mar. 1, 1930; at \$1,740 July 1, 1930.—EE.

Kuykendall, Clark Porter.—b. Towanda, Pa., May 10, 1896; Columbia, A. B. 1920; Am. Field Ser. in France 1917; U. S. Army 1917-19, overseas service; app., after exam., v. c. of career of class three Sept. 7, 1920; assigned to Amsterdam Oct. 18, 1920; class two May 26, 1922; class one Feb. 26, 1923; assigned to Batavia Mar. 30, 1923; cons. of class seven Dec. 19, 1923; For. Ser. officer of class eight July 1, 1924; assigned to Oslo Apr. 5, 1927; class seven Dec. 19, 1929; assigned to Bergen, temp., May 21, 1930; at Oslo June 7. 1930; at Naples Sept. 23, 1930; class six July 1, 1931; at Cherbourg July 17, 1933; martied.

Lackey, Mary Goodloe.—b. Kansas City, Mo.; attended high sch. and business sch.; studied under private tutor; clk. and stenog.; app. clk., temp., at \$1,200 in the Dept. of State July 20, 1918; permanently, at \$720 Feb. 1, 1921; at \$840 Apr. 30, 1921, effective May 1; at \$1,000 Aug. 16, 1921; at \$1,080 Oct. 16, 1922; at \$1,200 Dec. 30, 1922, effective Jan. 1, 1923; at \$1,440 July 1, 1924; at \$1,500Aug. 16, 1924; at \$1,680 Apr. 16, 1926; at \$1,800July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$2,000 Aug. 1, 1928; at \$2,200 July 1, 1930.—CR.

Lahm, Frank Purdy (Col.)—b. Mansfield, Ohio, Nov. 17, 1877; U.S.M.A., grad. 1901; Ecole Albert le Grand and Ecole d'Application de la Cavalerie, France; assigned as asst. mil. att. for air at Parls and Madrid Oct. 7, 1931; assigned as mil. att. at Paris July 15, 1933, in addition to duties as asst. mil. att. for air at Madrid; also mil. att. at Brussels Feb. 26, 1934.

LaMont, George Darwin.—b. Albion, N. Y., Aug. 9, 1904; Phillips Exeter; Cornell, A. B. 1927; app. clk. in Am. Consulate at Port au Prince Aug. 6, 1927; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass. and v. c. of career Aug. 24, 1927; assigned to Port au Prince Sept. 17, 1927; to Kovno July 21, 1930; sec. in the Diplo. Ser. Aug. 1, 1930; also 3d sec. at Kovno Oct. 7, 1930; married.

Lamore, Burton Hart.—b. New Haven, Mich., Oct. 11, 1877; high sch. grad.; private tutors in languages 1903-14; studied law 1907; clk. 1892-99; railway mail clk. 1899-1902; accountant 1902-3; clk. 1903-5, in Public Health Scr. 1905-15; clk. and translator, Dept. of Com., 1915-17, 1918-21; chief of statistical section. U. S. Shipping Bd. Emergency Fleet Corp., 1917-18; instructor in Romance languages, George Washington Univ., 1920-21, 1923-26; translator, War Dept., 1921-25; app. translator at \$2,100 in the Dept. of State Apr. 10, 1925; at \$2,400 Dec. 1, 1926; at \$2,600 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$2,700 July 1, 1928; at \$2,800 July 1, 1930; at \$3,200 Oct. 1, 1930; matried.—TR.

Lancaster, Nathaniel, Jr.—b. Ashland, Va., Oct. 30, 1900; Va. Polytech. Inst. and Randolph-Macon Coll.; U.S.M.A., grad. 1923; U. S. Army 1923–30, 1st lt.; app., after exam., For Ser. officer unclass., v. c. of career, and sec. in the Diplo. Ser. Dec. 16, 1930; assigned as v. c. at Mexico City, temp., Dec. 27, 1930; to the For. Ser. Sch. Dec. 23, 1931; to Bombay Apr. 7, 1932.

Lane, Arthur Bliss .- b. Bay Ridge, Brooklyn, N. Y., June 16, 1894; Browning Sch.; l'École de l'Isle de France, Liancourt, France; business sch.; Yale, B. A. 1916; Conn. Nat. Guard 1915-16; sec. to Am. Amb. to Italy 1916-17; app., after exam., sec. of emb. or leg. of class four Aug. 23, 1917, and assigned to Rome; class three Mar. 14, 1919; assigned to Warsaw Apr. 16, 1919; detailed to Am. Commn. to Negotiate Peace, Paris, 1919; assigned to London Dec. 10, 1919; sec. to Am. del., Supreme Council, Paris, 1921; to Berne Apr. 6, 1922; class two Sept. 22, 1922; assigned to the Dept. Feb. 26, 1923; detailed as asst. to the under sec. of state May 12, 1924; For. Ser. officer of class four July 1, 1924; class three Feb. 24, 1925; assigned as 1st sec. at Mexico City July 2, 1925; to the Dept. Nov. 8, 1927; chief, Division of Mexican Affairs, Dec. 12, 1927; class two May 23, 1929; assigned as couns. of emb. at Mexico City Mar. 26, 1930; class one Feb. 4, 1931; app. E.E. and M.P. to Nicaragua July 31, 1933; married.

Lane, Clayton.—b. Guthrie Center, Iowa, Mar. 9, 1895; Simpson Coll., Stanford Unlv., and Mass. Inst. of Tech.; Univ. of Calif., A. B. 1921, grad. work 1922-24; bank clk. 1913-16; mining and cattle business 1916-17; U. S. Navy 1917-19; Am. Merchant Marine 1921-22; assoc. prof. of finance and int. relations, St. Mary's Coll., Oakland, Calif., 1922-24; lecturer on European and Far Eastern economics. Georgetown Sch. of For. Ser., 1925-27; entered Bu. of For. and Domes. Com. July 1924; app. trade commr. at Vienna July 1927; at Berlin Aug. 1927; at Vienna Mar. 1928; cml. att. at Warsaw May 17, 1928; representative of Dept. of Com., Int. Advertishing Assoc., Berlin, 1929; del., Int. Inst. of Statistics, Warsaw, 1929; married.

Lane, Francis Adams.—b. St. Louis, Mo., Jan. 4, 1892; attended prep. sch. in Germany; employed in England and Germany 1911-29; app. clk. in Am. Consulate at Bremen May 1, 1929; v. c. at Bremen Nov. 19, 1929; married.

Lane, George Bliss.—b. New York City Dec. 29, 1902; Browning Sch.; Yale, B. A. 1925; Columbia, I.L. B. 1929; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass, and v. c. of career Nov. 12, 1929; assigned to the For. Ser. Sch. Nov. 18, 1929; to Hong Kong Mar. 26, 1930; sec. in the Diplo. Ser. May 18, 1933; assigned as v. c. at Montreal May 31, 1933.

Lane, Rufus Herman, Jr.—b. Willoughby, Ohio, May 24, 1901; Porter Mil. Acad.; Mt. Union Coll. and George Washington Univ.; Univ. of Va., B. S. 1923; engineer's asst. 1923-24; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass. Oct. 16, 1924, and detailed to the Dept.; v. c. of career May 20, 1926; assigned to Habana Dec. 9, 1927; to Progresso May 19, 1928; class eight, cons., and assigned to Progresso July 24, 1930; to Patras Oct. 29, 1931.

Langdon, William Russell .- b. Smyrna, Turkey, of Am. parents, July 31, 1891; attended sch. in Smyrna; Mt. Hermon Sch.; Trinity Coll. one yr.; app. clk. in Am. Consulate General at Constantinople July 17, 1911; at Athens July 17, 1913; app., after exam., student interpreter in Japan Apr. 4, 1914; also v. c. at Yokohama Mar. 24, 1916; also interpreter at Yokohama Jan. 4, 1917; asst. Japanese sec. at Tokyo Feb. 12, 1918; v. c. of career of class one Aug. 26, 1919; assigned to Yokohama July 8, 1921; cons. of class six Nov. 23, 1921; assigned to Antung May 10, 1922; class five June 3, 1924; For. Ser. officer of class six July 1, 1924; assigned to Tsinan Ang. 8, 1925; to Mukden Feb. 25, 1927; to Dairen Feb. 27, 1928; class five Dec. 19, 1929; to Montreal Mar. 6, 1933; to Seoul Nov. 7, 1933; married.

Laser, Ethel Jane.—b. Washington, D. C.; high sch. grad.; stenog. 1926-27, in Federal Power Commn. 1929-30; app. clk., temp., at \$1,440 in the Dept. of State Jan. 16, 1930; permanently Aug. 6, 1930; at \$1,620 Feb. 6, 1931.—FE.

Lassen, Gussie A.—b. St. Joseph, Mo.; high sch. and business sch. grad.; clk., Census Bu., 1930; app. clk. at \$1,260 in the Dept. of State Aug. 25, 1930.— CI.

Latchford, Stephen.—b. Annapolis Junction, Md., Feb. 4, 1883; attended business sch.; Washington Coll. of Law, LL. B. 1920, LL. M. 1921; mem. of bar of D. C.; clk. 1900–1904; stenog. and typist 1904-5; Panama Canal work, Canal Zone and l'anama, 1905-11; app. clk. at \$900 in the Dept. of State Aug. 19, 1911; at \$1,000 Aug. 1, 1913; at \$1,200 Dec. 3, 1915; at \$1,400 June 22, 1916, effective July 1; at \$1,600 May 1, 1918; law clk. at \$2,000 Sept. 8, 1921; at \$2,250 Sept. 16, 1922; at \$2,500 Dec. 30, 1922, effective Jan. 1, 1923; asst. solicitor Nov. 1, 1923; at \$3,000 July 1, 1924; an asst. to the solicitor at \$3,400 Feb. 1, 1926; at \$3,500 Nov. 1, 1927; tech. asst. (legal) Apr. 21, 1928; at \$3,600 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$3,800 Oct. 1, 1928; at \$4,600 June 1, 1929; at \$5,000 July 1, 1930; at \$5,200 July 3, 1930 (Brookhart Act); mem., Int. Tech. Com. of Aerial Legal Experts, 1934-; married.—TD.

Latimer, Frederick Palmer, Jr.—b. Groton, Conn., Mar. 14, 1904; Yale, B. A. 1925; Univ. of Dijon 1925; Instructor in French, Hotchkiss Sch., 1925–27; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass. and v. c. of career Oct. 24, 1928; assigned to the For. Ser. Sch. Nov. 5, 1928; to San Salvador Mar. 29, 1929; sec. in the Diplo. Ser. Aug. 5, 1930; also 3d sec. at San Salvador Oct. 10, 1930; v. c. and 3d sec. at Tallinn Oct. 17, 1931; at Helsingfors June 21, 1933; married.

Lato, Stephen Edward.—b. New York City Aug. 10, 1907; high sch. grad.; Coll. of City of New York 1924-25; in export business and Spanish corr. 1924-30; app. translator at \$1,620 in the N. Y. Despatch Agency of the Dept. of State May 12, 1930.

Lawrence, Ethel Lee.—b. Montour Falls, N. Y.; attended private schs.; business sch. grad.; George Washington one yr.; Washington Coll. of Law, LL. B. 1914; copyist, Patent Office, 1902-4; app. clk. at \$900 in the Dept. of State Apr. 12, 1904; at \$1,000 July 2, 1906; at \$1,200 Mar. 4, 1907; at \$1,400 Dec. 1, 1909; at \$1,600 June 22, 1916, effective July 1; at \$1,800 Sept. 3, 1919; law clk. at \$2,000 Oct. 27, 1923; at \$2,600 Feb. 1, 1926; at \$2,800 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$3,200 Oct. 1, 1928; at \$3,400 July 1, 1930; asst. to the legal adviser July 1, 1931.—LE.

Lawson, Stanley Reginald.—b. New York City Mar. 4, 1900; attended high sch. and bushness sch. in Sweden; Eslöv Coll., Sweden, 1917-19; app. clk. In the Am. Consulate at Malmö July 15, 1919; at Viborg Aug. 1, 1920; at Dresden Mar. 1, 1922; v. c. and clk. at Dresden July 7, 1924; at Genoa Sept. 29, 1928; at Winnipeg Dec. 11, 1931; married.

Lawton, Edward Percival.—b. State College, Pa., June 5, 1903; Stuyvesant Sch.; attended business sch. and Coll. of Geneva in Switzerland; Univ. of Va.; Univ. of Ga., B. S. C. 1924; New York Univ., M. A. 1925; clk., Library of Congress, 1918; typist, U. S. Army, Belgium, summer 1921; computer, U. S. Coast and Geodetic Survey, summer 1922; clk., Dist. govt., summer 1923; student asst., Univ. of Ga., 1923-24; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass. Sept. 11, 1925; v. c. of career and assigned to Cairo May 28, 1926; class eight and cons. Dec. 26, 1929; assigned to Cairo Jan. 22, 1930; sec. in the Diplo. Ser. Feb. 17, 1930; assigned as 3d sec. at Athens Mar. 18, 1930; at Guatemala May 13, 1932; married. Lawton, James Swan.—b. Chicago, Ill., Jan. 14, 1880; attended high sch.; Shattuck Acad.; in laboratory of steel company one yr.; assay office one yr.; prospecting, leasing, and mining nine yrs.; gen. mgr. for company in Surinam five yrs.; app. cons. agt. at Paramaribo Aug. 23, 1917; married.

Lay, Julius Gareché.-b. Washington, D. C., Aug. 9, 1872; Columbia Grammar Sch.; app. messenger in Am. Consulate at Ottawa Sept. 12, 1889; clk. at Ottawa July 1, 1892; v. and dep. cons. gen. at Ottawa Sept. 1, 1893; cons. at Windsor, Ont., Oct. 26, 1896; cons. gen. at Barcelona May 3, 1899; at Canton Oct. 3, 1904; at Cape Town May 24, 1906; at Rio de Janeiro May 2, 1910; at Berlin June 24, 1914; cons. gen. of class two by act approved Feb. 5, 1915; detailed to the Dept. Mar. 15, 1917; act. for. trade adviser Feb. 18, 1918; resigned Mar. 1, 1920; with int. banking firm 1920-24; app., under Ex. order, cons. gen. of class two June 5, 1924; detailed to the Dept. June 27, 1924; For. Ser. officer of class one July 1, 1924; assigned to Calcutta Aug. 15, 1924; sec. in the Diplo. Ser. June 8, 1927; assigned as couns. of emb. at Santiago, Chile, Oct. 13, 1927; E. E. and M. P. to Honduras Dec. 16, 1929; married.

Leach, Irene B. (Mrs.)--b. Passaic, N. J.; attended high sch. and business sch.; stenog., War Dept., 1918-22; app. clk. at \$1,200 in the Dept. of State Mar. 16, 1922; at \$1,500 July 1, 1924; at \$1,560 Mar. 1, 1925; at \$1,680 Feb. 16, 1926; printing clk. July 1, 1926; at \$1,740 Mar. 1, 1927; at \$1,860 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$1,920 July 1, 1928; representative of the Dept. on Permanent Conf. on Printing 1929-33; at \$2,040 July 1, 1930; at \$2,100Feb. 1, 1931.-RP.

Leahy, Robert D. J.—b. Lebanon, Pa., Apr. 5, 1903; high sch. and business sch. grad.; Univ. of Pa. 1929-30; National Univ. 1931-; U. S. Navy 1919-26; app. clk. at \$1,620 in the Dept. of State Sept. 16, 1930; clk., North and Cen. American Regional Radio Conf., Mexico City, 1933; married.—FA.

Leap, Melvin Leroy.—b. Elkton, Va., Oct. 7, 1900; attended business sch.; Georgetown Sch. of For. Ser., B. F. S. 1928; grad. work, George Washington Univ.; in Govt. depts. 1919-24; sec. to mem. of Cong. 1924-31; app. admin. asst. at \$3,200 in the Dept. of State Mar. 20, 1931; reassigned May 1, 1932.—TD.

Leavitt, Kent.—b. White Plains, N. Y., Aug. 27, 1903; Milton Acad. grad.; Harvard, B. S. 1926; Corpus Chrlstl Coll., Cambridge, England, 1926–27; banking 1927–29; app. clk. in Am. Consulate General at Montreal Sept. 14, 1931; v. c. at Montreal Sept. 23, 1931; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass., v. c. of career, and sec. in the Diplo. Ser. Dec. 17, 1931; assigned as v. c. at Montreal Jan. 2, 1932; to the For. Ser. Sch. Jan. 30, 1933; to Mexico City June 13, 1933; married.

Lebel, Arthur L.—b. Haverhill, Mass., Apr. 25, 1901; studied accountancy; private tutors; attended Junlorat S.M.M., Papineauville, Quebec, 1917-23; Georgetown Sch. of For. Ser., B.F.S. 1928; George Washington Law Sch. 1932-; clk., War Dept. and Gen. Accounting Office, 1924-27; teacher of French and Spanish, Devitt Sch., 1927-28, Georgetown Univ., 1928-30; bookkeeper and accountant 1929-30; clk., Census Bu., Mar.-Dec. 1930; app. translator, temp., at \$2,300 in the Dept. of State Dec. 10, 1930; translator and interpreter, Int. Tech. Consulting Committee on Radio Communications, Copenhagen, 1931; permanently, at \$2,000 July 1, 1931; translator and interpreter, Int. Radio Conf., Madrid, 1932; clk., Gen. European Conf. for the Study and Revision of Int. Conventions Relating to the Protection of Industrial Property, London, 1934; married.--TR.

LeBreton, David McDougal (Capt.)—b. San Francisco, Calif., Aug. 12, 1884; U. S. N. A., grad. 1904; assigned as naval att. at Paris, Madrid, and Lisbon Mar. 24, 1931; observer, Int. Cong. of Geography, Paris, 1931; del., Third Int. Hydrographic Conf., Monaco, 1932; married.

Lee, Augustus.—b. Washington, D. C., July 21, 1876; skilled laborer, Dept. of Agric., 1908-12; app. asst. messenger in the Dept. of State Nov. 5, 1912.— SS.

Lee, Frank Charles .- b. Norfolk, Nebr., Aug. 14, 1891; Univ. of Colo., A. B. 1915; lecturer on cons. practice, Georgetown Univ., 1926-28; app., after exam., cons. asst. Oct. 15, 1915; v. c. at Bordeaux Jan. 25, 1916; at Petrograd Sept. 19, 1916; at Moscow Apr. 1, 1918; ordered to Stockholm to take charge of personnel and archives of Moscow Consulate General Aug. 26, 1918; detailed to Malmö Sept. 14, 1918; attached to emb. staff at Archangel with rank of att. Nov. 26, 1918; directed to return to U. S. Aug. 6, 1919; cons. of class seven Sept. 5, 1919; detailed to the Dept. Jan. 5, 1920; class slx June 4, 1920; class five Nov. 23, 1921; assigned to Bradford Sept. 21, 1923; class four Dec. 19, 1923; For. Ser. officer of class five July 1, 1924; detailed to the Dept. July 2, 1925; class four Aug. 31, 1925; class three June 8, 1927; cons. gen. and assigned to Singapore Oct. 28, 1927; to Halifax Nov. 20, 1929; to Prague Oct. 15, 1931; married.

Lee, Julius.—b. Ashgrove, Va., Mar. 2, 1886; laborer, Govt. depts. and Dist. govt., 1918-24; app. laborer in the Dept. of State Mar. 15, 1926.—RP.

Lee, Samuel T .- b. Leeds, England, May 30, 1876: naturalized 1899; attended high sch.; Univ. of Va.; studied law; U. S. Army three yrs. during Spanish-American War and Philippine insurrection; clk. and translator in war dept. and supt. of sch., Philippine Is., 1900-1904; chief of division, dept. of police and prisons, Panama Canal Zone, 1905-6; clk., Dept. of State, 1906-7; app., after exam., cons. at Nogales Aug. 15, 1907; at San José, Costa Rica, May 31, 1909; v. c. at Bluefields on special duty Sept. 7, 1910; returned to San José May 20, 1911; cons. of class seven by act approved Feb. 5, 1915; class six Mar. 2, 1915; class four July 24, 1916, and assigned to Rio Grande; to Porto Alegre June 18, 1918; class three Sept. 5, 1919; assigned to Nottingham Mar. 30, 1923; cons. gen. of class four June 3, 1924; For. Ser. officer of class three July 1, 1924; For. Ser. insp. May 1, 1925; mem. of Bd. of Review, For. Ser. Personnel, 1926; cons. gen. at Lisbon May 21, 1928; class two May 23, 1929; assigned to Rio de Janeiro Jan. 22, 1931; class one Feb. 4, 1931; married.

Lenzer, Victor Milton.—b. Eufala, Ala., Mar. 10, 1898; high sch. grad.; Univ. of Wis. 1917-18, ext. course 1925-26; studied abroad; examiner-statistician, Fed. Trade Comm., 1918-19; special disbursing officer, Am. Leg. at Berne, 1919-21; at Bucharest 1921-22; at Athens July-Sept. 1922; at Constantinople and Angora 1922-25; at Rome 1925-31; app. v. c. at Ottawa May 28, 1931; also dist. acct. and disbursing officer at Ottawa June 3, 1931; at Mexico City Nov. 5, 1931; at Paris Mar. 17, 1932; married.

Leonard, Walter Anderson .- b. Essex, Iowa, Aug. 3, 1880; business sch. grad.; Univ. of Nebr., A. B. 1903; grad. work at Univ. of Chicago one yr., Northwestern Univ. one yr., Freiburg, Baden, one semester: cml. work 1900, 1901; teacher in high sch. 1905-6; app. v. and dep. cons. at Freiburg Aug. 2, 1907; at Kehl Jan. 25, 1908; resigned July 1, 1908; head of cml. dept. in high sch, and business mgr. of book store 1908-12; app., after exam., cons. at Stavanger Aug. 23, 1912; at Colombo July 24, 1914; cons. of class seven by act approved Feb. 5, 1915; class six Apr. 16, 1917; class five Sept. 5, 1919; detailed to the Dept. June 6, 1920; class four Nov. 23, 1921; detalled to Stockholm July 24, 1922; For. Ser. officer of class five July 1, 1924; class four Feb. 24, 1925; assigned to Warsaw Apr. 25, 1925; to Bremen July 1, 1929; class three July 24, 1930.

Leroux, Juan Enrique.--b. Samana, Dominican Republic, of Am. parents, June 28, 1876; clk.; app. cons. agt. at Sanchez Aug. 29, 1908; married.

Lester, James Allen (Maj.)-b. Prosperity, S. C., Oct. 13, 1891; The Citadel, B. S. 1911; U.S.M.A., grad. 1915; prof. of mil. sci. and tactics, Yale, 1920-32; assigned as asst. mil. att. at Paris Feb. 2, 1932; married.

Letcher, Marion .--- b. Shorter, Ala., Sept. 4, 1872; tutors; Univ. of Ala., A. B. 1894; Univ. of Chicago 1901; studied law; sch. asst. 1895-96; principal of high sch.; U. S. Volunteer Infantry 1898-99, 1st lt., Cuban service; pres., Douglasville Coll., Ga., 1900-1901; supt. of public sch. 1901-3; in Bu. of Education 1903-9; app., after exam., cons. at Acapulco June 2, 1909; at Chihuahua Jan. 10, 1911; cons. of class eight by act approved Feb. 5, 1915; class six Feb. 22, 1915; detailed to the Dept. as act. for. trade adviser June 10, 1916; cons. gen. of class five Apr. 16, 1917; detached from the Office of For. Trade Adviser Feb. 18, 1918; class four Apr. 8, 1918; assigned to Christiania Apr. 9, 1918; to Callao-Lima July 1, 1920; to Copenhagen Aug. 19, 1920; class three June 3, 1924; For. Ser. officer of class two July 1, 1924; assigned to Antwerp July 6, 1928; class one May 9, 1930; married.

Leverich, Henry Priestley.—b. New Orleans, La., Aug. 12, 1907; Taft Sch. grad.; Princeton, A. B. 1930; Geneva Sch. of Int. Studies, summer 1930; app. clk. in Am. Consulate General at Zürich June 10, 1931; v. c. at Geneva July 30, 1931; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass., v. c. of career, and sec. in the Diplo. Ser. Dec. 17, 1931; assigned as v. c. at Geneva Jan. 2, 1932; to the For. Ser. Sch. Feb. 8, 1933; to Berlin June 13, 1933; married.

Levis, Davis Beauregard .- b. St. Louis, Mo., Nov. 23, 1865; attended public sch.; railroad passenger agt. four yrs.; independent business; app. v. and dep. cons. at St. Etienne Sept. 17, 1914; v. c. at St. Etienne by act approved Feb. 5, 1915; at Kingston, Jamaica, Dec. 14, 1917; at La Rochelle Apr. 3, 1919; at Bordeaux Nov. 19, 1920; at Brest Aug. 25, 1922; at Boulogne-sur-Mer Oct. 10, 1922; at Cherbourg Nov. 23, 1922; at Havre Feb. 23, 1923; at Boulogne-sur-Mer Oct. 6, 1924; at La Rochelle Oct. 23, 1924; at Newcastle-on-Tyne Sept. 15, 1925; at Stoke-on-Trent, temp., June 13, 1928; at Nantes July 30, 1929; at Tunis July 19, 1930; at Paris Sept. 24, 1931; at Calais, temp., May 9, 1932; at Paris Aug. 12, 1932; at Calais, temp., May 9, 1933; at Paris July 3, 1933; at Calais, temp., Sept. 22, 1933; at Paris Oct. 27, 1933; married.

Lewis, Charles William, Jr.—b. Carlsbad, N. Mex., Mar. 17, 1898; Univ. of Cincinnati 1917-18; Univ. of Mich., A. B. 1922; U. S. Army 1918-19, 2d lt.; instructor, Univ. of Mich., 1921-23; app., after exam., v. c. of career of class three Feb. 26, 1923; assigned to Manchester Apr. 27, 1923; For. Ser. officer unclass. July 1, 1924; assigned to Mexico City Mar. 3, 1926; class eight, cons., and assigned to Mexico City Oct. 20, 1926; to Yarmouth June 21, 1920; class seven Oct. 16, 1929; class six July 1, 1931; assigned to Madras Dec. 29, 1931; married.

Lewis, Dorothy C. (Mrs.)—b. Byron, Minn.; Carleton Coll., B. A. 1921; MacPhail Sch. of Music, summer 1922; Univ. of Minn., summer 1926; Univ. of Ill., summer 1928; teacher in high sch. 1921-25; librarian 1926-30; app. library asst. at \$2,000 in the Dept. of State Sept. 8, 1930.—HA.

Lewis, Harrison Adolphus.—b. Dallas, Tex., Nov. 4. 1905; Univ. of Calif. 1923-25; Heidelberg Univ., summer 1928; Harvard, S. B. 1929; real estate salesman 1928-20; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass., v. c. of career, and sec. in the Diplo. Ser. Apr. 15, 1930; assigned as v. c. at Nogales Apr. 20, 1930; to the For. Scr. Sch. Sept. 27, 1930; to Singapore Feb. 24, 1931; to Medan, temp., Jan. 11, 1933; to Singapore Apr. 3, 1933.

Lewis, Russell V.—b. Rockville, Md., Nov. 6, 1905; high sch. grad.; messenger, Treas. Dept., 1920-24, 1927-28; clk. 1925-26, in Gen. Accounting Office 1928-30; app. clk. at \$1,440 in the Dept. of State May 13, 1930; at \$1,500 July 1, 1930; at \$1,620 Jan. 6, 1931; at \$1,800 Nov. 2, 1931; at \$2,000 Dec. 26, 1933; married.—BA.

Lewis, William Lavert.—b. Augusta, Ga., Jan. 31, 1904; app. messenger in the Dept. of State Mar. 16, 1926.—FA.

L'Heureux, Hervé Joseph.—b. Manchester, N. II., Mar. 6, 1899; Emerson Inst.; George Washington, A. B. 1925; George Washington Law Sch. two and one-half yrs.; U. S. Army 1917-19; employed by mem. of Cong. 1919-27; app. clk. in Am. Consulate at Windsor Jan. 2, 1927; v. c. at Windsor July 14, 1927; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass., v. c. of career, sec. in the Diplo. Scr., and assigned to Windsor Sept. 12, 1930; married.

Lieder, Eugene J.—b. Brooklyn, N. Y., Oct. 5, 1891; attended public sch. and business sch.; N. Y. Militia; cashier for express company 1907-10; acconntant at Ensenada, P. R., 1910-19, at La Romana, Dominican Republic, since 1919; provost marshal at Guanica, P. R., 1918; app. cons. agt. at La Romana Nov. 14, 1922; married.

Lightner, Edwin Allan, Jr.—b. New York City Dec. 8, 1907; Taft Sch. grad.; Princeton, A. B. 1930; app. clk. in Am. Consulate at Maracaibo July 17, 1930; v. c. at Maracaibo Oct. 13, 1930; at Santiago, Chile, July 20, 1931; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass., v. c. of career, and sec. in the Diplo. Ser. Dec. 17, 1931; assigned as v. c. at Santiago, Chile, Jan. 2, 1932; at Valparaiso Feb. 27, 1932; at Pernambuco May 24, 1932; at Pará, temp., Mar. 0, 1934.

Lilliestrom, Tycho Leonard.—b. Lahti, Finland, Aug. 3, 1885; naturalized; attended sch. in Finland, Univ. of Helsingfors and other Enropean univ.; cml. work and sec. in U. S. 1908-16; N. Y. Nat. Guard 1917-18; U. S. Army 1918-19, 2d lt.; cml. work in North Manchurla 1919-21; app. clk. in Am. Consulate at Harbin Jan. 1, 1922; v. c. at Harbin Apr. 11, 1928.

Lincoln, Eunice A.—b. Lacey Spring, Va.; attended high sch. and business sch.; private tutors; Shenaudoah Coll. Inst. and Sch. of Music five yrs.; teacher, Sheuandoah Coll. Inst. and Sch. of Music, 1913-18; app. clk., temp., at \$1,140 in the Dept. of State July 16, 1918; permanently, at \$1,000 Fcb. 15, 1919; at \$1,200 Dec. 31, 1919, effective Jan. 1, 1920; at \$1,400 Sept. 16, 1922; at \$1,600 May 31, 1924, effective June 1; at \$1,860 July 1, 1924; private sec to asst. sec. of state at \$2,400 May 1, 1927; at \$2.600 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$2,700 July 1, 1928; at \$2,800 July 1, 1930.—A-S.

Lindholm, George Victor.—b. Riverside, N. J., Aug. 20, 1901; high sch. grad.; Syracuse Univ. two yrs.; George Washington Law Sch. one and one-half yrs.; secretary 1921-22; clk., Dept. of State, 1923-27; claims examiner and adjuster in insur. company 1928-20; app. clk. at \$1,680 in the Dept. of State July 22, 1929; at \$1,800 Sept. 1, 1929; at \$1,920 July 1, 1930; at \$2,000 Jan. 12, 1931.—FA.

Lindsay, Edna Maurine.—b. Aurelia, Iowa; attended business high sch.; Iowa State Teachers Coll. 1907; Drake Univ. 1916; teacher in public sch. 1907– 18; clk., Treas. Dept., 1918–26; sch. dietitian 1926– 27; app. clk. at \$1,140 in the Dept. of State May 9, 1927; at \$1,260 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$1,320 July 1, 1928; at \$1,440 July 1, 1930.—CR.

Lineaweaver, Francis Ridgway.—b. Lebanon, Pa., Oct. 17, 1904; Haverford Prep. Sch.; Yale, Ph. B. 1927; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass. v. c. of career, and sec. in the Diplo. Ser. Dec. 16, 1930; assigned as v. c. at Nassau Jan. 5, 1931; to the For. Ser. Sch. Dec. 23, 1931; to Amsterdam Apr. 7, 1932; married.

Linnell, Irving Nelson,-b. Boston, Mass., Jan. 27, 1881; Harvard, A. B. 1904, LL. B. 1907; mem. of bar of Mass.; law practice 1907-14; mem. of Cambridge (Mass.) common council 1909-11, pres. one yr.; app. cons. agt. at Prince Rupert Sept. 23, 1914; v. c. at Prince Rupert Apr. 20, 1915; at Vancouver Mar. 16, 1916; app., after exam., cons. of class eight Feb. 19, 1918; detailed to Vancouver Feb. 20, 1918; class six Sept. 5, 1919; assigned to Plymouth Dec. 1, 1919; detailed to London July 31, 1920; to Cardiff Aug. 24, 1921; to London Sept. 13, 1921; class five Nov. 23, 1921; class four Mar. 1, 1923; detailed to the Dept. Mar. 30, 1923; For. Ser. officer of class five July 1, 1924; class four Aug. 8, 1924; cons. gen. Apr. 30, 1927; assigned to Ottawa May 4, 1927; del., Anti-smuggling Conf., Ottawa, 1929; class three May 23, 1929; class two July 1, 1931; assigned to Capetown Oct. 13, 1931; sec. in the Diplo. Ser. Mar. 23, 1933; assigned as couns. of leg. at Pretoria in addition to duties as cons. gen. at Capetown Apr. 10, 1933; married.

Linthicum, Walter Joseph.-b. Baltimore. Md., Feb. 10, 1893; attended high sch. and business sch.; Baltimore Polytech, Inst. 1910-12; surveyor, U. S. Geological Survey and other engineering organizations, 1913-16; 1st N. Dak. Infantry 1916-17, Mexican border service; U. S. Army 1917-19, 1st lt.; app. v. c. at Singapore Jan. 19, 1920; at Palermo Apr. 12, 1922; at Marseille May 3, 1923; at Nice Oct. 15, 1924; at Sherbrooke Feb. 17, 1926; at Rivière du Loup, temp., Aug. 18, 1927; at Sherbrooke Sept. 13, 1927; at Rivière du Loup, temp., June 9, 1928; at Sherbrooke Sept. 7, 1928; at Rivière du Loup Dec. 19, 1928; at Vienna June 30, 1930; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass., v. c. of career, and sec. in the Diplo. Ser. Dec. 17, 1931; assigned as v. c. at Vienna Jan. 2, 1932.

Lippincott, Aubrey Erskine.—b. Tucson, Ariz., Nov. 22, 1905; Univ. of Ariz. 1927; Kans. State Agric. Coll., B. S. 1928, grad. work, summer 1929; engineer 1928-29; elk. 1929-30; 2d lt., O. R. C.; app. elk. in Am. Consulate General at Barcelona June 6, 1931; v. c. at Barcelona Aug. 24, 1931; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass., v. c. of career, and sec. in the Diplo. Ser. Dec. 17, 1931; assigned as v. c. at Barcelona Jan. 2, 1932; to the For. Ser. Sch. Aug. 19, 1932; to Montevideo Dec. 22, 1932; asst. sec. to Am. del.. Seventh Int. Conf. of Am. States, Montevideo, 1933.

Littell, John Stockton.—b. Wuchang, China, of Am. parents, Sept. 22, 1903; attended sch. in China; Kent Sch. grad.; Harvard, A. B. 1924; Columbia, M. A. 1928; teacher in high sch. in China and Central China Univ. 1924–27; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass. and v. c. of career May 17, 1928; assigned to the For. Ser. Sch. May 24, 1928; as language officer at Peking Aug. 1, 1928; as v. c. at Thentsin Aug. 26, 1929; to the Dept., temp., Aug. 4, 1930; to Mexico City Aug. 11, 1931; married.

Livengood, Charles A.—b. Dayton. Wash., Aug. 15, 1886; Whitman Coll., A. B. 1908; Univ. of Wash. and Columbia; supt. of public sch. ten yrs.; sec. and treas. of trading company; entered Bu. of For. and Domes. Com. May 27, 1921; asst. trade commr. and assigned to Habana Sept. 8, 1921; trade commr. Oct. 1, 1923; at Rome Jan. 1, 1926; cml. att. at Madrid June 30, 1927; also at Lisbon Oct. 17, 1927; relieved of duty at Lisbon June 10, 1930; transferred to Rome July 18, 1933; married.

Livesey, Frederick .- b. Auburn, N. Y., Apr. 1, 1886; Harvard, A. B. 1908; Harvard Sch. of Business Admin., 1915-16; floor mem., Boston Chamber of Com. grain exchange, 1908-10; farm mgr. and chief clk. of farms and rys., fruit company in Guatemala, 1910-14; translator for oil company, 1916-17, in Army War Coll., 1917-18, 1919-23; U. S. Army, 1918-19, 1st lt., overseas service; detailed to Am. Commn. to Negotiate Peace, Paris, 1918-19; app. drafting officer at \$3,000 in the Dept, of State Nov. 12, 1923; at \$3,100 Nov. 1, 1927; at \$3,800 Jan. 1, 1928; at \$4,600 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); asst. economic adviser Dec. 28, 1928; act. economic adviser Mar. 15, 1929-May 12, 1931; at \$5,600 July 1, 1929; at \$6,500 Dec. 1, 1930; representative of the Dept. of State; Sixth Gen. Cong. of the Int. Chamber of Com., Washington, 1931; tech. expert, conf. of experts for moratorium on intergovernmental debts, London, 1931; tech. adviser, Fourth Pan American Cml. Conf., Washington, 1931; asst., 2d meeting of Experts' Prep. Commn. for Monetary and Economic Conf., Geneva, 1933; married.-EA.

Livingston, Robert Brockholst.—b. Oakmont, Pa., Jan. 25, 1905; attended high sch. in Wales, Barbados, and U. S.; It., U. S. Naval Reserve; clk. in Am. Consulate at Barbados May-Aug. 1920; at Charlottetown July-Dec. 1921; journalist 1924-29; app. clk. in Am. Consulate at Bradford Jan. 14, 1929; v. c. at Bradford Aug. 8, 1929; at Baghdad June 4, 1930; app., after exam., For. Scr. officer unclass., v. c. of career, and sec. in the Diplo. Scr. Dec. 17, 1931; assigned as v. c. at Nairobi Jan. 30, 1932; at Colombo Mar. 6, 1933; married.

Loar, Mary J.—b. Jacksonville, Ill.; attended high sch. and business sch.; MacMurray Coll. (Ill. Woman's Coll.), grad. 1895; Chicago Normal Sch. summer 1897; McCowen Oral Sch., Chicago, grad. 1905; teacher in public sch. 1895–1901; teacher of the deaf 1905–18; clk., War Dept., 1918–20; app. clk. at \$1,000 in the Dept. of State Apr. 12, 1920; at \$1,100 May 31, 1924, effective June 1; at \$1,380 July 1. 1924; at \$1,440 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$1,500 July 1, 1930; at \$1,560 July 3, 1930 (Brookhart Act).—PD.

Lockett, Thomas Hickman.—b. Henderson, Ky., Nov. 29. 1893; high sch. grad.; Centre Coll.; special study in Mexico 1932; clk. 1916; U.S. Army 1918, 2d It.; sales mgr. 1917–28; pres., Lockett-Tate Co., Inc., 1928–31; app. cml. att. at Mexico City Aug. 12, 1933; married.

Lockhart, Frank Pruit .- b. Pittsburg, Tex., Apr. 8, 1881; attended public and private sch.; Grayson Coll.; assoc. editor of newspaper 1900-1902; sec. to mem. of Cong. 1902-11; clk., House Committee on Public Bldgs. and Grounds 1911-13; sec. to mem. of Cong. and clk. of Senate Committee on Expenditures in Dept. of Agric. 1913-14; app. asst. chief, Division of Far Eastern Affairs, Dept. of State, July 29, 1914; drafting officer at \$3,500 July 1, 1919; on special mission to the Far East 1919-20; expert asst., Conf. on Limitation of Armament, Washington, 1921; at \$4,000 Aug. 16, 1922; at \$4,400 Aug. 1, 1924; at \$5,200 Mar. 16, 1925; chief, Division of Far Eastern Affairs, Mar. 17, 1925; app. For. Ser. officer of class four, cons. gen., and assigned to Hankow Apr. 15. 1925; mcm. of secretariat of Am. del., Special Conf. on Chinese Customs Tariff, Peking, 1925; class three May 23, 1929; assigned to Tientsin June 15, 1931; class two July 1, 1931; married.

Loftus, Victor Harald .- b. Lawrence, Mass., July 17, 1897; high sch. grad.; attended business sch.; Univ. of Me. 1916-17; Southeastern Univ., B. C. S. 1923; National Univ. Law Sch. 1929-31; app. clk., temp., at \$1,000 in the Dept. of State Feb. 10, 1919; clk. in the Diplo. Ser. and assigned to Am. Emb. at Paris Dec. 5, 1919; reapp. clk. at \$1,000 in the Dept. of State Aug. 30, 1920; at \$1,200 Dec. 31, 1920, effective Jan. 1, 1921; at \$1,400 Mar. 1, 1924; at \$1,860 July 1, 1924; at \$1,920 Mar. 1, 1927; at \$2,100 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$2,200 July 1, 1928; at \$2,400 July 1, 1930; resigned Dec. 10, 1931; app. asst. dist. acct. and disbursing officer at Mexico City Dec. 11, 1931; also v. c. at Mexico City Jan. 29, 1932; dist acct. and disbursing officer at Mexico City Mar. 17, 1932; disbursing officer, North and Cen. American Regional Radio Conf., Mexico City, 1933; married.

Logsdon, Ella A. (Mrs.)—b. Tyndall, S. Dak.; State Normal Sch., S. Dak., grad. 1912; attended business sch.; Washington Sch. of Accountancy, B. C. S. 1922; teacher in public sch. 1912–15; stenog. and bookkeeper 1917–18; clk., War Dept., 1918–20; app. clk. at \$1,200 in the Dept. of State Sept. 20, 1920; at \$1,400 Sept. 1, 1922; at \$1,680 July 1, 1924; at \$1,740 Mar. 1, 1927; at \$1,800 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$2,300 Dec. 1, 1929; at \$2,500 July 1, 1930; at \$2,600 July 3, 1930 (Brookhart Act); admin. asst. at \$3,200 Apr. 1, 1931.—A-C.

Long, Breckinridge.—b. St. Louis, Mo., May 16, 1881; private tutors; Princeton, A. B. 1903, A. M. 1909; St. Louis Law Sch. (Washington Univ.) 1904– 6; mem. of bar of Mo.; law practice 1907–17, 1921– 33; sec. St. Louis Bar Assn. 1913–15; 3d asst. sec. of state 1917–20; special asst. to U. S. atty. gen. 1933; author; app. A. E. and P. to Italy Apr. 24, 1933; married.

Long, Mary A.—b. Feura Bush, N. Y.; N. Y. State Coll. for Teachers, A. B. 1922; Columbia, B. S. 1928; National Univ. 1931-; teacher in high sch. 1922-25; library asst. 1925-29; app. library asst. at \$2,000 in the Dept. of State Oct. 15, 1930.—RP.

Longyear, Robert Dudley .-- b. Paris, France, of Am. parents, Feb. 11, 1896; Francis W. Parker Sch.; Volkmann Sch.; Harvard, A. B. 1918; war course, U. S. N. A., 1918; Harvard Law Sch. 1919-20; George Washington, LL. B. 1931; mem. of bar of D. C.; U. S. Navy 1917-19, lt. (jg); app., after exam., v. c. of career of class three May 25, 1921; assigned to Port au Prince July 21, 1921; class two May 26, 1922; class one Feb. 26, 1923; assigned to Geneva Mar. 30, 1923; cons. of class seven Dec. 19, 1923; For. Ser. officer of class eight July 1, 1924; class seven June 2, 1926; assigned to Lucerne, temp., Aug. 30, 1926; to Geneva Nov. 1, 1926; to the Dept. July 16, 1927; class six May 17, 1928; class five July 24, 1930; to Munich July 27, 1931; to Edinburgh July 26, 1933; married.

Lord, John Hayes.—b. Plymouth, Mass., Aug. 5, 1892; Milton Acad.; Harvard, A. B. 1914; attended business sch.; Sorbonne 1919; in fruit growing business 1913-14; with mfg. company 1915-16; accountant 1916-17; U. S. Marine Corps 1917-19, overseas scrvice; app. v. c. at Basel Mar. 3, 1920; at Prague Aug. 5, 1920; at Singapore Oct. 18, 1921; at Funchal Aug. 7, 1925; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass., v. c. of career, and assigned to Funchal Sept. 11, 1925; to London Jan. 3, 1929; class eight, cons., and assigned to London July 24, 1930; to the Dept. June 15, 1934; married.—PC.

Loren, Odin Gerhard.—b. Superior, Wis., Apr. 17, 1892; high sch. grad.; Spokane Coll. (Wash.) one yr.; credit business 1912; clk. for machinery firm in Edmonton, Canada, 1912-14; salesman 1915; bookkeeper 1916-17; U. S. Army 1917-19, 2d lt.; clk. 1919-20; app. v. c. at Colón Feb. 6, 1920; at Edmonton July 14, 1926; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass. and v. c. of career Jan. 13, 1928; assigned to Edmonton Jan. 14, 1928; to Antofagasta Apr. 28, 1931; to Buenos Aires May 23, 1934; married.

††Lowrie, Will Leonard.-b. Adrian, Mich., Mar. 8, 1869; Adrian Coll., M. A.; grad. work, Unlv. of Mich.; Univ. of Leipzig 1891-92; editor and on editorial staff of newspapers 1893-98; secretary to Am. Min. to Brazil one yr.; app. v. and dep. cons. gen. at Rio de Janeiro Jan 14, 1899; resigned July 15, 1901; app., after exam., cons. at Weimar July 21, 1906; at Erfurt June 10, 1908; at Carlsbad May 31, 1909; cons. gen. at Lisbon Aug. 22, 1912; cons. gen. of class five Feb. 22, 1915, effective Feb. 5; class four Sept. 5, 1919; assigned to Athens July 1, 1920; For. Ser. officer of class three July 1, 1924; assigned to Wellington Oct. 22, 1924; class two Aug. 15, 1930; assigned to Frankfort on the Main Nov. 19, 1930; to the Dept. Aug. 1, 1933; retired Mar. 31, 1934, under the provisions of the act of Feb. 23, 1931; married.

Lucas, Alice R.—b. Washington, D. C.; high sch. grad.; George Washington Univ., summer 1928; clk. ln law office; app. clk. at \$900, temp., in the Dept. of State Oct. 4, 1916; permanently May 1, 1917; at \$1,000 Aug. 1, 1917; at \$1,200 May 1, 1918; at \$1,400 Mar. 1, 1919; at \$1,600 Feb. 1, 1924; at \$1,860 July 1, 1924; at \$1,920 Mar. 1, 1925; clerIcal asst., Prep. Commn. for the Disarmament Conf., Int. Economic Conf., and Three Power Naval Conf., Geneva, 1927; at \$1,980 Mar. 1, 1927; at \$2,040 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$2,100 Feb. 1, 1929; code clk., London Naval Conf., 1930; at \$2,300 July 1, 1930; at \$2,400 July 3, 1930 (Brookhart Act).— DCR.

Ludden, Raymond Paul.—b. Fall River, Mass., June 6, 1909; Boston Univ., Coll. of Bushness Admin., 1926-27; Georgetown Sch. of For. Ser., B. F. S. 1930; reporter 1926-27; teacher 1930-31; app. clk. in Am. Consulate at Liverpool Aug. 1, 1931; v. c. at Liverpool Sept. 5, 1931; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass., v. c. of career, and sec. in the Diplo. Ser. Dec. 17, 1931; assigned as v. c. at Liverpool Jan. 2, 1952; to the For. Ser. Sch. Aug. 19, 1932; to Tsinan Dec. 22, 1932.

Lundgren, Maynard Benjamin.—b. Rockford, Ill., June 11, 1894; Georgetown Univ. 1922-23; George Washington, A. B. 1929, M. A. 1932; bookkceper 1913-14; sec. to atty. 1915-17; clk., Navy Dept., 1917-18; special asst. of Dept. of State for war trade work at Oslo 1919; clk. in Am. Leg. at Oslo 1919-21; in Dept. of State 1921-24; in Am. Leg. at Peking 1924-26; app. clk. at \$1,320 in the Dept. of State Jan. 26, 1927; at \$1,500 Oct. 1, 1927; at \$1,620 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$1,680 July 1, 1928; at \$2,000 May 1, 1929; at \$2,200 July 1, 1930.—FA.

Lutz, E. Russell .--- b. Lancaster, Pa., June 1, 1902; Bethany Prep. Sch. grad.; George Washington, A. B. 1922; Yale, LL. B. 1926; mem. of bar of D. C.; teacher of hist. In high sch. 1923-25; drafting officer. Dept. of State, 1926-27; attorney, Am. Agency, German Claims Commn., U. S. and Germany, 1927; attorney and sec., Am. Agency, German Claims Commn. and Tripartite Claims Commn., 1928-30; app. asst. to the solicitor at \$3,800 in the Dept. of State Sept. 16, 1930; app. to investigate, in Panama, certain claims in connection with Gen. Claims Commn., U. S. and Panama, June-July, 1931; asst. to the legal adviser at \$4,600 July 1, 1931; asst. agt. for U. S., Gen. Claims Commn., U. S. and Panama, 1931-33; Am. joint sec., Mixed Claims Commn., U. S. and Germany, 1934-; married.-LE.

Lynch, Andrew Green.—b. Utica, N. Y., Oct. 3, 1902; Salisbury Sch. grad.; Harvard 1922-24; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass. and v. c. of career Feb. 5, 1927; assigned to Liverpool Feb. 25, 1927; to the For. Ser. Sch. Jan. 20, 1928; to Tientsin June 11, 1928; to Mukden Aug. 28, 1929; to Bangkok Feb. 16, 1932; sec. in the Diplo. Ser. Feb. 19, 1932; assigned also as 3d sec. at Bangkok Feb. 25, 1932; married.

Lynch, William Ruben.--b. Admire, Kans., June 5, 1885; Kans. State Normal Sch. 1904-11; Kans. State Agric. Coll. 1913; teacher in rural and high sch. four yrs.; teacher, clk. and stenog. in Philippine Is. 1913-20; app. clk. in Am. Consulate General at Canton Mar. 10, 1920; v. c. at Canton Aug. 1, 1921; clk. in Am. Consulate General at Shanghai Nov. 2, 1921; v. c. at Shanghai Feb. 26, 1926. Lyon, Cecil Burton.—b. Staten Island, N. Y., Nov. 3, 1903; St. Bernard Prep. Sch.; St. George's Sch.; Harvard, A. B. 1927; with investment bankers 1927– 30; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass., v. c. of career, and sec. In the Diplo. Ser. Dec. 16, 1930; assigned as v. c. at Habana, temp., Dec. 26, 1930; to the For. Ser. Sch. Dec. 29, 1931; to Hong Kong Apr. 7, 1932; as 3d sec. at Tokyo Apr. 26, 1933; at Peiping Oct. 23, 1933; also v. c. at Tientsin Mar. 1, 1934; married.

Lyon, Charles Edward.—b. McDonogh, Md., May 22, 1878; Johns Hopkins, A. B. 1897, Ph. D. 1904; Harvard Sch. of Business Admin., M. B. A. 1921; Univ. of Leipzig; instructor in modern languages, Princeton, 1903-4, 1905-9, Willlams Coll., 1904-5; prof. of German, Clark Univ., 1909-17; U. S. Army 1917-19, 1st lt.; Bu. of For. and Dom. Com. 1920; reinstated in Bu. of For. & Dom. Com. July 1921; app. trade commr. at London June 1923; asst. cml. att. Apr. 27, 1927; cml. att. at Berne July 26, 1927; representative, Committee on Regulation of Whaling, Geneva, 1931; representative in capacity of expert, Fourth Gen. Conf. on Communications and Transit, Geneva, 1931; app. asst. cml. att. at London Jan. 31, 1933; married.

Macatee, Robert Berry.—b. Front Royal, Va., July 31, 1891; high sch. grad.; George Washington Univ. two yrs.; clk. in law offices 1910-12; clk. to Gov. Gen. of Philippine Is. 1913-16; clk., Dept. of State, 1916-18; app., after exam., cons. asst. Oct. 7, 1918; with Am. Commn. to Negotiate Peace, Paris, 1918-19; app. v. c. of career of class three May 25, 1920, and assigned to Geneva; class two Nov. 17, 1921; class one May 26, 1922; cons. of class seven Mar. 1, 1923; detailed to London Mar. 30, 1923; class six June 3, 1924; For. Ser. officer of class seven July 1, 1924; class slx Aug. 24, 1927; assigned to London Feb. 18, 1928; to Nassau Sept. 12, 1929 (canceled); class five Dec. 19, 1920; assigned to Bradford Dec. 23, 1929; to London Sept. 10, 1930; married.

Macdonald, Alfred Harralson.—b. Buffalo, N. Y., July 12, 1905; attended high sch. and business sch.; clk. 1926-27, in Veterans' Bu. 1928-30; app. clk. at \$1,440 in the Dept. of State Aug. 20, 1930; married.—DCR.

MacDonald, Hazel A.—b. Bridgewater, Me.; high sch. grad.; Columbia 1919; stenog.-sec. 1919-28; clk., Seville Exposition Commn., 1928-29, in Dept. of State 1929; stenog., Nat. Advisory Committee for Aeronautics, 1929-30; app. clk. at \$1,440 in the Dept. of State July 18, 1930; at \$1,620 Aug. 1, 1930.—FA.

Macdonald, John Joseph.—b. St. Louis, Mo., Aug. 10, 1907; St. Louis Univ. 1924-26; Univ. of Berlin, summer 1926; Washington Univ., A. B. 1929; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass., v. c. of career, and sec. in the Diplo. Ser. Apr. 15, 1930; assigned as v. c. at Nuevo Laredo Apr. 29, 1930; to the For. Ser. Sch. Sept. 27, 1930; to Batavia Feb. 24, 1931.

MacEachran, Clinton Edson.-b. Beverly, Mass., Dec. 27, 1887; attended tech. high sch. and business

sch.; Berkeley Prep. Sch.; Tufts Coll.; Georgetown Law Sch.; stenog, four and one-half yrs,; app, clk. at \$900 in the Dept. of State Oct. 21, 1910; at \$1,200 Nov. 20, 1911; at \$1,400 Mar. 1, 1912; on special detail at Am. Emb. at Mexico City Feb.-Sept. 1913 and at Vera Cruz Nov. 1913-July 1914; at \$1,600 June 22, 1916, effective July 1; at \$1,800 Dec. 1, 1917; clk., American-German Prisoner of War Conf., Berne, 1918; special asst. to the Counselor for the Dept. of State at \$2,400 Feb. 1, 1919; drafting officer at \$2,500 July 1, 1919; with Am. Commu. to Negotiate Peace, Paris, 1919; at \$3,000 Dec. 1, 1920; app. cons. of class seven June 14, 1921; detailed to the Dept. June 22, 1921; mem. of Bd. of Efflciency of the Dept. June 30, 1921; detailed to Antwerp Mar. 2, 1922; class six Mar. 1, 1923; assigned to Ghent Apr. 10, 1924; For. Ser. officer of class seven July 1, 1924; assigned to Madrid June 24, 1926; resigned Feb. 9, 1927; app. business specialist at \$3,000 in the Dept. of State May 9, 1927; at \$3,200 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$3,300 July 1, 1928; at \$3,800 Aug. 1, 1928; at \$4,600 July 1, 1929; at \$4,800 July 1, 1930; asst. chief, Cons. Cml. Office, Jan. 21, 1931; chief clk. and admin. asst. Jan. 1. 1932; v. chm., Bd. of Review for Efficiency Ratings, 1932-33; representative of Dept. of State on Interdepartmental Bd. on Simplified Office Procedure and on Gen. Supply Committee 1932-33; on President's Council of Personnel Admin. 1932-; Dept.'s representative at Chicago World's Fair Centennial Celebration 1933 and 1934, and in charge of Dept.'s exhibit; Dept.'s representative for transaction of business with Procurement Division of Treasury Dept. 1933-; v. chm., Bd. of Appeals and Review, Nov. 6, 1933-; liaison officer between Dept. of State and Nat. Emergency Council 1933-; app. For. Ser. officer of class four, sec. in the Diplo. Ser., and cons. June 19, 1934; assigned to the Dept. as chief clk. and admin. asst. June 20, 1934; married.-CC.

Macgowan, David Bell .- b. Shelby Co., Tenn., June 5, 1870; Washington and Lee Univ., A. B. 1890; grad. work at Univ. of Halle and Berlin 1892-93; newspaper reporter seven and one-half yrs.; newspaper corr. in Berlin and Petrograd eight yrs.; editorial writer and editor of newspaper eight yrs.; app., after exam., cons. of class nine Oct. 18, 1915; detailed as v. c. at Moscow Dec. 22, 1915; class eight Sept. 14, 1917; detailed to Vladivostok June 1918; class six Sept. 5, 1919; assigued to Vladivostok July 1, 1920; detailed to Riga Aug. 21, 1922; attached to Am. Leg. at Riga with rank of 1st sec. Oct. 14, 1922; class five Mar. 1, 1923; class four June 5, 1924; For. Ser. officer of class five July 1, 1924; app. sec. in the Diplo. Ser. Nov. 4, 1927; class four May 23, 1929; class three Feb. 27, 1931; assigned as cons. at Berne Dec. 22, 1931; married.

Mackay, Raymond Cady.—b. Minneapolis, Minn., Oct. 17, 1891; Univ. of Wis., B. A. 1915; app. clk. in Am. Consulate General at Hankow Jan. 1916; v. c. at Hankow Aug. 7, 1916; app., after exam., cons. of class eight July 18, 1919; class seven Sept. 5, 1919; assigned as admin. cons. to Shanghai Oct. 22, 1919; resigned Mar. 30, 1920; lt.-comdr., U. S. Naval Intelligence Reserve Corps; gen. mgr. for cml. firm in Far East 1920-29; app. divisional asst. at \$4,600 in the Dept. of State Oct. 20, 1931; married.—FE.

MacLean, Henry Coit.—b. Litchfield, Conn., Nov. 15, 1881; Yale, B.A. 1903; export mgr.; asst. mgr. of foreign trade bureau; in Bu. of For. and Domes. Com. 1918; trade commr. at Rome 1919; cml. att. at Rome 1920-28 and at Paris 1928-29; Am. Admin. Commr. of Int. Chamber of Com., Paris, 1929-31; cml. att. at large 1931—at Stockholm 1931, at Oslo Mar. 1932, and at Berlin July 1932; in Dept. of Com. at Washington 1932-33; assigned as cml. att. at Faris July 27, 1933; married.

MacMillan, Evelyn.—b. Lawrence, Mass.; high sch. grad.; business sch. grad.; clk., Veterans' Bu., 1928-29; app. clk. at \$1,440 in the Dept. of State Apr. 15, 1929; at \$1,620 Oct. 1, 1929; at \$1,740 July 1, 1930.—IIA.

MacMurray, John Van Antwerp .--- b. Schenectady, N.Y., Oct. 6, 1881; Lawrenceville Sch. grad.; Princeton, B.A. 1902, M.A. 1907; Columbia, LL.B. 1906; mem. of bar of N.Y.; app., after exam., sec. of leg. and cons. gen. at Bangkok May 10, 1907; sec. of leg. in Greece and Montenegro June 10, 1908, but did not go to post; 2d sec. of emb. at Petrograd July 30, 1908; clk., Dept. of State, 1911; asst. chief, Division of Near Eastern Affairs, July 7, 1911; chief, Dec. 13, 1912; sec. of leg. at Pciping Sept. 4, 1913; sec. of emb. or leg. of class two by act approved Feb. 5, 1915; class one Nov. 5, 1915; couns. of emb. at Tokyo Nov. 10, 1917; chargé at Peiping July 1-Nov. 30, 1918; reassigned to Tokyo Oct. 15, 1918; assigned to the Dept. of State July 23, 1919; chief, Division of Far Eastern Affairs, Aug. 20, 1919; expert asst., Conf. on the Limitation of Armament, 1921; U.S. principal observer at conversations between Chinese and Japanese representatives regarding Shantung question 1921-22; reapp. sec. of emb. or leg. of class oue June 5, 1924; For, Ser, officer of class one July 1, 1924; asst. sec. of state Nov. 18, 1924; E.E. and M.P. to China Apr. 9, 1925; chm. of Am. del., Special Conf. on Chinese Customs Tariff, Peiping, 1925-26; resigned Nov. 22, 1929; director, Walter Hines Page Sch. of Int. Relations. Johns Hopkins, 1930-; Am. representative, Int. Wheat Advisory Com., 1933-; app. E.E. and M.P. to Estonia, Latvia, and Lithuania Aug. 28, 1933; married.

MacVeagh, John Hammond.—b. Saranac Lake, N. X., Nov. 26, 1891; attended sch. in Europe and U. S.; Phillips Exeter grad.; in steel mills 1912–14; Brit. Army 1915–17, lt.; U. S. Army 1917–19, capt., overseas service; app., after exam., sec. of emb. or leg. of class four Aug. 24, 1921; assigned to the Dept. Sept. 12, 1921; to Santiago, Chile, Oct. 22, 1921; to Buenos Aires Mar. 28, 1922; to Bogotá Aug. 8, 1922; resigned Apr. 1923; reapp. sec. of emb. or leg. of class four June 27, 1923; assigned to Habana July 17, 1923; For. Ser. officer of class eight July 1, 1924; class seven Aug. 8, 1924; assigned to the Dept. May 25, 1925; class six June 2, 1926; assigned as 2d sec. at Managua Jan. 28, 1927; to the Dept., temp., July 12, 1927; to Bucharest Apr. 14, 1928; to Paris Aug. 9, 1929; class five July 24, 1930; cons. and assigned as 2d see, and cons. at Monrovia Nov. 16, 1933; married.

MacVeagh, Lincoln.—b. Narragansett Pier, Rhode Island, Oct. 1, 1890; Groton Sch. grad.; Harvard, A. B. 1913; Sorbonne 1913–14; U. S. Army 1917–19, maj., overseas service; secretary 1912–13; clk. 1914– 15; salesman, publishing firm, 1915–17, and director 1919–23; publisher 1923–33; app. E. E. and M. P. to Greece June 13, 1938; married.

MacVitty, Karl deGiers .- b. Nashville, Tenn., Feb. 27, 1883; attended Garrett Mil. Acad., Jarvis Hall, and business sch.; studied abroad under private tutor two and one-half yrs.; newspaper reporter one yr.; theatrical press agt. five yrs.; pres. of corp. of theatrical mgrs. 1909-17; app. v. c. at Genoa Aug. 2, 1917; at Belfast Jan. 25,1919; at Nassau June 9, 1919; app., after exam., cons. of class seven Sept. 5, 1919; remained at Nassau on detail: assigned to Salgon July 1, 1920; detailed to Sydney, Australia, July 25, 1921; assigned to Auckland Dec. 6, 1921; class six Mar. 1, 1923; For. Ser. officer of class seven July 1, 1924; class six Feb. 24, 1925; assigned to Tcheran Mar. 19, 1925; to Stockholm July 27, 1926; to Leghorn Jan. 27, 1928; to Malta, temp., July 6, 1928; to Leghorn Sept. 4, 1928; to Malta, temp., May 24, 1929; to Leghorn Oct. 18, 1929; to Nairobi Mar. 15, 1930; class five May 9, 1930; to Cape Town Apr. 2, 1932; to Panamá Oct. 4, 1933; sec. in the Diplo. Ser. Mar. 14, 1934; also 2d sec. at Panamá Mar. 15, 1934.

Macy, Clarence Edward.—b. St. Joseph, Mo., Nov. 9, 1886; grad. of State Prep. Sch., Univ. of Colo.; railway mail clk. 1906–11; examiner, railway mail service, 1911–14; clk. and mgr. of mail and express traffic 1914–18; U. S. Army 1918–19, overseas service; postal express service in France and Germany 1919–21; app. v. c. at Coblenz Nov. 15, 1921; app., after exam., v. c. of carcer of class three June 21, 1923; assigned to Coblenz July 2, 1923; For. Ser. officer unclass. July 1, 1924; assigned to Dakar July 6, 1925; app. sec. in the Diplo. Ser. Apr. 9, 1927; assigned as v. c. and 3d sec. at Monrovia Apr. 18, 1927; as v. c. at Port Elizabeth Nov. 18, 1927; class eight, cons., and assigned to Port Elizabeth May 17, 1928; class seven Dec. 19, 1929; assigned to Tampico May 17, 1930; married.

Madden, William Vincent.—b. Philadelphia, Pa., Feb. 24, 1878; attended public and private sch.; telegraph operator 1895-99; merchant 1900-1912; chief clk. in telegraph company 1912-14; agt. in express company 1914-17; app. clk., temp., at \$1,200 in the Dept. of State Nov. 17, 1917; at \$1,400 Dec. 13, 1917; at \$1,600 July 1, 1918; permanently Dec. 16, 1920; at \$1,860 July 1, 1918; permanently Dec. 16, 1920; at \$1,860 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); code clk., London Naval Conf., 1930; at \$2,100 July 1, 1930; at \$2,160 July 3, 1930 (Brookhart Act); married.—DCR.

Madison, Harry Leslie.—b. Bath Co., Va., July 4, 1895; attended public sch.; telegrapher 1911-17, 1919-29; U. S. Army 1917-19; app. telegrapher at

\$1,800 in the Dept. of State Dec. 14, 1929; at \$1,920 July 1, 1930; married.—DCR.

Madonne, John Henry.—b. Mornas, France, of Am. parents, Apr. 3, 1896; attended secondary sch. in France; Baylor Univ., B. A. 1927, Law Sch. 1927-28; grad. work, Univ. of Tex., summer 1928; George Washington, M. A. 1929; served with U. S. and French Armies 1915-19; construction work 1921-24; instructor in French, Baylor Univ., 1926-28; instructor in French and Spanish. Devitt Sch., 1929; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass. and v. c. of career Mar. 26, 1929; assigned to the For. Ser. Sch. July 1, 1929; to Warsaw Sept. 13, 1929; to Beirut Oct. 4, 1933.

Maffitt, Edward Pierce.—b. St. Louis, Mo., suly 23, 1906; Taft Sch. grad.; Institution Sillig, Switzerland, 1923-24; Yale, B. A. 1928; studied in Germany, autumn 1929; app. clk. in Am. Consulate General at Athens May 28, 1931; v. c. at Athens Aug. 24, 1931; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass., v. c. of career, and sec. in the Diplo. Ser. Dec. 17, 1931; assigned as v. c. at Athens Jan. 2, 1932; to the For. Ser. Sch. Mar. 17, 1932; to Stockholm July 26, 1932; married.

Mages, M. Alice.—b. Jefferson City, Mo.; high sch. and business sch. grad.; clk.-typist 1928-30, in Census Bu. Mar.-June 1930; app. clk. at \$1,260 in the Dept. of State June 17, 1930; at \$1,440 Feb. 20. 1931; at \$1,620 Feb. 24, 1932.—DCR.

Magnuson, Erik Waldemar.—b. Stockholm, Sweden, Apr. 24, 1891; naturalized; attended sch. in Sweden and U. S.; private tutors; business sch. grad.; La Salle Univ. higher accountancy and auditing course grad.; with export firm 1909–16; traveling accountant and auditor 1916–17; U. S. Navy 1917–19, detailed to offices of naval att. at Christiania and Copenhagen 1919; app. clk. in Am. Leg. at Stockholm Oct. 6, 1919; app., after exam., v. c. of career of class three Sept. 30, 1922; assigned to Stuttgart Oct. 17, 1922; class two May 10, 1924; For. Ser. officer unclass. July 1, 1924; class eight June 2, 1926; cons. June 15, 1926; assigned to Hallfax Mar. 30, 1927; class seven May 23, 1929; assigned to Barranquilla Mar. 13, 1931; class six July 1, 1931; married.

Magruder, Alexander Richardson.-b. Nice, France, of Am. parents, Jan. 17, 1883; Harvard, A. B. 1906; with cement company one and one-half yrs.; app., after exam., sec. of leg. at Paraguay and Uruguay Aug. 4, 1909; 2d sec. at Rio de Janeiro Sept. 17, 1910; at Rome Mar. 2, 1911; sec. of leg. at Lima June 5, 1912; clk. at \$1,600 in the Dept. of State under Ex. order Dec. 13, 1912; sec. of leg. at Copenhagen May 1, 1913; sec. of emb. or leg. of class three by act approved Feb. 5, 1915; assigned to Stockholm as chargé d'affaires ad interim Apr. 15, 1916; assigned as sec. of leg. at Stockholm May 20, 1916; class two Aug. 3, 1916; assigned to the Dept. Jan. 30, 1918; acting chief, Division of Western European Affairs, Feb.-Mar. 1918; assigned to Madrid June 28, 1918; to Helsingfors and accredited as chargé d'affaires pro tempore Mar. 12, 1920; class one June 28, 1920; assigned to Constantinople Mar. 8, 1922; to Prague July 13, 1922; to Berne Feb. 26, 1923; representative, Int. Conf. on Suppression of Obscene Literature, Geneva, 1923; designated and assigned as couns. of leg. at Berne Feb. 20, 1924; For. Ser. officer of class two July 1, 1924, and assigned to the Dept.; as couns. of leg. at Stockholm Feb. 10, 1925; at Lisbon May 17, 1929; class one May 9, 1930; matried.

Magruder, Warren V., Jr.—b. Bethesda, Md., Sept. 21, 1903; business sch. grad.; Int. Corr. Sch. 1922–23; George Washington Univ. 1931–32; scientific helper, Bu. of Standards, 1920–31; clk., Dept of Com., 1931–33, Gen. Accounting Office, 1933–34; app. clk. at \$1,440 in the Dept. of State July 11, 1934; married.—DCR.

Maher, Dale Wilford.—b. Norman, Okla., Apr. 16, 1897; Western Mil. Acad.; Northwestern Univ. 1915– 16; U. S. M. A., grad. 1919; U. S. Army 1919–24, 1st lt.; app. clk. in Am. Consulate at Prince Rupert Jan. 31, 1925; v. c. at Prince Rupert Aug. 25, 1925; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass. and v. c. of carcer Apr. 15, 1926; assigned to Calcutta Apr. 21, 1926; to Madras, temp., June 6, 1927; to Calcutta Aug. 3, 1927; to Batavla Sept. 23, 1927; class eight, cons., and assigned to Batavia Dec. 19, 1929; to Havre Jan. 31, 1931; to Shanghai Mar. 5, 1932; to Hong Kong Apr. 21, 1933; to Medan Sept. 6, 1933.

Makinson, George Albert .-- b. San Francisco, Calif., Mar. 18, 1887; high sch. grad., private tutors in Europe; machinist's apprentice 1901-3; Calif. Naval Militia 1903-4; asst. foreman machinist, Bu. of Navigation, Phillppine Is., 1907; asst. sec., Am. Assoc. of Com. and Trade, Berlin, 1908-9; app. cons. agt. at Sorau Dec. 23, 1909; dep. cons. at Tampico Nov. 6, 1914; v. c. at Tampico Feb. 6, 1915; cons. agt. at Amapala July 3, 1916; app., after exam., cons. asst. Aug. 30, 1916; unassigned from Oct. 31, 1917; cons. agt. at Santa Fé, Isle of Pines, Jan. 26, 1918; at Nueva Gerona Mar. 28, 1918; at Cardenas June 14, 1918; v. c. at Santo Domingo May 16, 1919; v. c. of career of class three Sept. 27, 1919; assigned to Santo Domingo Oct. 22, 1919; class two May 24, 1920; class one Nov. 17, 1921; cons. of class seven June 22, 1922, and detailed to Valparaiso; class six Aug. 23, 1922; class five Dec. 19, 1923; For. Ser. officer of class six July 1, 1924; assigned to Callao-Lima Aug. 20, 1925; class five Aug. 31, 1925; class four May 17, 1928; assigned to Birmingham Apr. 17, 1930; class three July 24, 1930; married.

Maktos, John.—b. Velvendos, Greece, Nov. 21, 1902; naturalized; Harvard, A. B. 1923, LL. B. 1926, S. J. D. 1929; Oxford 1926–28; Hyman fellowship in int. law; Carnegie fellowship in int. law; mem. of bar of Mich.; law practice in Detrolt, summer 1926, in Paris, summers 1927 and 1928; app. asst. to the sollcitor, temp., at \$3,200 in the Dept. of State Aug. 1, 1929; permanently Oct. 1, 1929; U. S. asst. counsel, Shufeldt Arbitration, Belize, 1930; at \$3,400 July 1, 1930; at \$3,800 June 1, 1931; asst. to the legal adviser July 1, 1931; legal asst., U.S.-Turkish Joint Claims Com., 1933–34.—LE.

Maleady, Joseph E.-b. Fall River, Mass., Apr. 29, 1908; Brown Univ., A. B. 1930; app. clk. in Am.

Consulate at Veracruz Dec. 9, 1930; v. c. at Veracruz Sept. 17, 1931; at Acapulco Mar. 14, 1932; at Veracruz May 13, 1933.

Maleady, Thomas Joseph.—b. Fall River, Mass., Jan. 22, 1809; Georgetown Sch. of For. Ser., grad. 1922; Edinburgh Univ. 1922-25; U. S. Army 1917-19, 1st lt.; accountant in private firms and clk. in Treas. Dept. 1919-21; clk., Dept. of State, 1922; app. clk. in Am. Consulate at Edinburgh Oct. 9, 1922; v. c. at Edinburgh Mar. 28, 1923; at Port au Prince Dec. 28, 1925; at Port Limón June 9, 1926; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass., v. c. of career, and sec. in the Diplo. Ser. Aug. 16, 1930; assigned as v. c. at Port Limón Aug. 30, 1930; at Mexico City Nov. 28, 1931; at Tampico June 20, 1934; married.

Malige, Marcel Etienne.—b. Lapwai, Idaho, July 5, 1900; Univ. of Idaho three yrs.; Univ. of Wash., B. B. Adm. 1921; L'École Libre des Sciences Politiques grad.; S. A. T. C. 1918; clk. in Am. Consulate at Victoria 1921-22; app., after exam., v. c. of career of class three May 26, 1922; assigned to Victoria June 23, 1922; to Nantes Aug. 11, 1922; class two May 10, 1924; For. Ser. officer unclass. July 1, 1924; assigned to Paris Dec. 3, 1925; class eight June 2, 1926; cons. June 15, 1926; assigned to Glasgow Sept. 29, 1928; class seven July 24, 1930; assigned to Warsaw Oct. 11, 1933; married.

Mallon, Patrick.—b. Cincinnati, Ohio, Apr. 11, 1899; Taft Sch. grad.; Yale, B. A. 1921, Law Sch. summer 1921; N. Y. Univ. 1927–28; cml. work 1921–27; financial work 1927–31; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass., v. c. of career, and sec. in the Diplo. Ser. Dec. 17, 1931; assigned as v. c. at Nassau Jan. 19, 1932; to the For. Ser. Sch. Jan. 30, 1933; to Leipzig June 13, 1933; married.

Maney, Edward Strait.—b. Pearsall, Tex., Sept. 27, 1899; West Tex. Mil. Acad. and Columbia Mil. Acad.; Univ. of Tex. 1919-20; U. S. Navy 1918-19; field cashier for oil company in Mexico 1920-21; clk. 1921-23; app. clk. in Am. Consulate at Torreon June 15, 1923; v. c. at Torreon Apr. 4, 1924; at Tampico Oct. 18, 1924; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass., v. c. of career, and assigned to Tampico Oct. 24, 1928; to Agua Prieta May 8, 1928; to Nogales, temp., Feb. 15, 1930; to San Luis Potosf, temp., July 10, 1930; to Nogales Oct. 3, 1930; to Guaymas Nov. 5, 1930; to Southampton Oct. 12, 1931; married.

Manning, William Ray.—b. Home, Kans., Dec. 26, 1871; Baker Univ., A. B. 1899; Univ. of Kans., A. M. 1902; Univ. of Chicago, Ph. D. 1904; instructor in hist. and economics, Purdue Univ., 1904-7; asst. prof. of European diplo. hist., George Washington Univ., 1907-10; adjunct and assoc. prof. of Latin American and English hist., Univ. of Tex., 1910-19; app. special asst. at \$3,000 in the Dept. of State Aug. 26, 1918; drafting officer July 1, 1919; at \$3,500 Sept. 1, 1920; at \$3,800 Jan. 1, 1927; at \$4,000 Jan. 1, 1928; at \$4,600 July 1, 1930; married.—LA.

Marriner, James Theodore.-b. Portland, Me., May 17, 1892; Dartmouth, A. B. 1914; Harvard, A. M.

1915. Ph. D. 1918; instructor in Eng., Harvard, 1916-18; app., after exam., sec. of emb. or leg. of class four Aug. 27, 1918; assigned to Stockholm Sept. 30, 1918; class three Dec. 20, 1919; assigned to Bucharest Aug. 9, 1921; to the Dept. July 23, 1923; class two Jan. 23, 1924; For. Ser. officer of class four July 1, 1924; Prep. Commn. for Disarmament Conf., Geneva: tech, asst., 2d sess., 1926, act. del., sub-commn. B, 1927, tech. adviser and sec., 3d sess., 1927; class three Oct. 19, 1926; assigned as 1st sec. at Berne Nov. 1, 1926; tcch. adviser, 1st sess., Special Commn. for the Preparation of a Draft Conv. on the Manufacture of Arms, Geneva, 1927; assigned to the Dept. Feb. 24, 1927; chief, Division of Western European Affairs, Apr. 9, 1927; detailed to mission for signature of Pact for Renunciation of War, Paris, 1928; class two May 23, 1929; adviser, London Naval Conf., 1930; class one Feb. 4, 1931; assigned as couns. of emb. at Paris Apr. 1, 1931; adviser, negotiations for moratorium on intergovernmental debts, Paris, 1931; adviser, conf. of ministers for moratorium on intergovernmental debts, London, 1931; adviser, 1st stage, Gen. Disarmament Conf., Geneva, 1932; del., Eighth Gen. Conf. on Weights and Measures, Paris, 1933.

Marsh, Frances M.—b. Lewisburg, Pa.; attended high sch. and Bucknell Inst.; business course; asst. clk. to Senate Committee on Rules; app. clk. at \$1,200in the Dept. of State under Ex. order Apr. 16, 1909; at \$1,400 Jan. 27, 1914, effective Feb. 15; at \$1,600Mar. 1, 1919; at \$1,800 Mar. 1, 1921; asst. chief, Diplo. Bu., Dec. 20, 1923; drafting officer at \$2,500May 31, 1924, effective June 1; at \$3,000 July 1, 1924; asst. to the chief, Division of For. Ser. Admin., Aug. 19, 1924; at \$3,100 Nov. 1, 1927; at \$3,300July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$3,400 July 1, 1928; at \$3,600 July 1, 1930.—FA.

Marsh, O. Gaylord .- b. Buchanan, Mich., Jan. 7, 1879; normal sch. grad.; attended business sch.; Philomath Coll., Oreg., B. S. D. 1903; Univ. of Wash., LL. B. 1905; mem. of bar of Wash. and P. I.; principal of night sch. 1903-5; teacher in high sch. and supervisory teacher in Philippine Is. 1905-7, 1908-9; law practice 1907-8; district auditor, Philippine Is., 1909-11; chief of division and act. atty., Bu. of Audits, Manila, 1911-13; legal representative insular auditor, to confer with code committee on revision of provincial and municipal laws of the Philippines 1913; clk., Civil Ser. Commn., 1913-15; app., after exam., cons. of class nine Mar. 2, 1915, and detailed as v. c. at Ottawa; assigned to Progreso Mar. 20, 1917; class eight Apr. 24, 1917; class six Sept. 5, 1919; class five June 4, 1920; class four June 3, 1924; For. Ser. officer of class five July 1, 1924; assigned to Montevideo Oct. 23, 1924; to Sydney, N. S., Nov. 26, 1926; class four May 17, 1928; class three July 24, 1930; assigned to Strasbourg Jan. 9, 1932; cons. gen. Dec. 16, 1933; assigned as cons. gen. at Guatemala Dec. 22, 1933.

Marshall, William Francis.—b. Newport, R. I., Jan. 6, 1890; attended public and private schs.; clk. in chemical laboratory three and one-half yrs.; clk., Dept. of State, 1910-17; U. S. Army 1917-19; reapp. clk. at \$1,400 in the Dept. of State May 26, 1919; transferred to the N. Y. Passport Agency July 1, 1919; at \$1,600 June 25, 1920, effective July 1; at \$1,860 July 1, 1924; at \$2,000 July 1, 1928.

Marshburn, Herbert E. (Maj.)—b. Nichols, S. C., June 3, 1886; Emory Univ. two and one-half yrs.; U.S.M.A., grad. 1910; assigned as mil. att. at Mexico City May 11, 1933; married.

Martin, James Henry.—b. Culpeper, Va., Nov. 9, 1904; attended public sch.; app. messenger boy at \$420 in the Dept. of State Sept. 23, 1919; at \$600 May 1, 1923; clk. at \$1,140 July 1, 1924; at \$1,200 Mar. 1, 1927; at \$1,320 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$1,380 July 1, 1928; at \$1,440 July 1, 1930; married.—MA.

Martin, Truman Morris (Capt.)—b. Newell, W. Va., July 31, 1891; Univ. of W. Va., A. B. 1914, grad. work 1916-17; Columbia, summer 1926, Sept.-Dec. 1930; entered U. S. Army Aug. 15, 1917; language student at Tokyo 1921-24; asst. mil. att. at Tokyo 1924-25; assigned as asst. mil. att. at Tokyo Nov. 15, 1932.

Marvin, John Howard.—b. Jacksonville, Fla., July 22, 1888; attended high sch.; file clk. 1908-10; bookkeeper and bank clk. 1911-17; U. S. Navy 1917-19; auditor 1919-25; app. clk. in Am. Consulate General at Habana June 1, 1926; v. c. at Habana Feb. 28, 1927.

Mason, Ruth Castleman.—b. Washington, D. C.; high sch. grad.; George Washington Univ. two yrs.; clk. 1922-24; app. clk. at \$900, temp., in the Dept. of State Apr. 14, 1924; at \$1,140 July 1, 1924; permanently Jan. 20, 1925; at \$1,500 Nov. 1, 1925; at \$1,620 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$2,000 June 1, 1930.—ME.

Massie, Orlando Hinton.—b. Charlottesville, Va., Jan. 25, 1901; St. James Sch.; Univ. of Va. 1921; teacher, St. James Sch., 1919; bank employee 1920, 1922; app. clk. in Am. Consulate General at Habana Apr. 3, 1923; v. c. at Niagara Falls Feb. 1, 1926; at Halifax May 4, 1929; married.

Matheny, George William.—b. Washington, D. C., Nov. 25, 1900; attended high sch.; mail clk., Bu. of War Risk Insur, 1920-21, in post office 1921-23; clk., Dept. of Interior, 1923-27; app. clk. at \$1,500 in the Dept. of State Apr. 21, 1927; at \$1,620 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$1,740 July 1, 1930; marrled.—CR.

Mathews, Rhoda Ada (Mrs.)—b. Crumpler, N. C.; attended high sch.; Radford Teachers Coll.; teacher in public sch. 1908-18; clk., Govt. depts., 1918-23; app. clk. at \$900 in the Dept. of State July 9, 1923; at \$1,000 Oct. 9, 1923; at \$1,320 July 1, 1924; at \$1,380 Mar. 1, 1925; at \$1,440 Dec. 1, 1925; at \$1,500 Mar. 1, 1927; at \$1,560 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$1,620 July 1, 1928; at \$1,740 July 1, 1930; at \$1,800 July 3, 1930 (Brookhart Act).—DCR.

Matré, Joseph Boucard .-- b. Cincinnati, Ohio, Nov. 23, 1888; Univ. of Cincinnati, A. B. 1912; Cincinnati Law Sch., LL. B. 1913; mem. of bar of Ohio; legal dept. of insur. company 1913-15; sec. to mem. of Cong. 1915-17; law practice 1917-18; prof. of dental jurisprudence and trustee of Cincinnati Coll. of Dental Surgery 1917-18; U. S. Army 1918; app. special asst. at \$2,000 in the Dept. of State Dec. 16, 1918; law drafting asst. at \$2,500 Jan. 31, 1920, effective Feb. 1; asst. solicitor at \$3,000 June 1, 1920; drafting officer at \$3,500 Nov. 1, 1923; asst. to U. S. agt., Island of Palmas Arbitration, 1925; at \$3,800 Dec. 31, 1925, effective Jan. 1, 1926; at \$4,000 Jan. 1, 1928; at \$4,600 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$5,000 July 1, 1930; asst. to the legal adviser July 1, 1931: married.-LE.

Matthews, Benjamin Carl.—b. near Rock Hill, S. C., Mar. 17, 1894; public sch. grad.; completed business and corr. courses; salesman 1910-12; retail business 1913-15; sec. and gen. mgr. of mercantile corp. 1916-17; app. v. c. at Antofagasta July 31, 1917; at Arica Oct. 10, 1922; at Antofagasta Nov. 10, 1922; at Iquique Oct. 27, 1923; at Antofagasta June 16, 1924; at Caracas Nov. 15, 1927; at La Guaira Dec. 13, 1927.

Matthews, Harrison Freeman.—b. Baltimore, Md., May 26, 1899; Gilman Country Sch.; Princeton, A. B. 1921, A. M. 1922; L'École Libre des Sciences Politiques 1922-23; U. S. Naval Reserve 1918; app., after exam., sec. of emb. or leg. of class four Dec. 12, 1923, and assigned to the Dept.; to Budapest Feb. 2, 1924; For. Ser. officer of class eight and assigned as 3d 'sec. at Budapest July 1, 1924; class seven June 2, 1926; assigned as 3d sec. at Bogotá Sept. 2, 1926; class six May 17, 1928; assigned to the Dept. Aug. 19, 1929; class five July 24, 1930; asst. chief, Division of Latin American Affairs, Nov. 1, 1930; special detail to El Salvador, 1931; assigned as 2d sec. at Habana Oct. 4, 1933; as 1st sec. at Habana Nov. 27, 1933; married.

Maurrasse, Marie Florentin Stanislas.—b. St. Martin, Guadeloupe, Dec. 8, 1878; French citizen; attended public sch.; In import and export business in Haiti for thirty yrs.; app. cons. agt. at Port de Paix Oct. 17, 1925; married.

May, Harrison Spencer.—b. Beaver, Utah, May 16, 1909; high sch. grad.; Univ. of Utah 1926-27, 1929-30; George Washington Univ. 1931-32; sec. 1925-30; app. clk. at \$1,440 in the Dept. of State Nov. 8, 1930; at \$1,620 June 1, 1931; code clk., Seventh Int. Conf. of Am. States, Montevideo, 1933.—DCR.

Mayer, Ernest de Wael.—b. New York City Mar. 1, 1903; attended sch. in Belgium; private tutors in Holland and England; Staunton Mil. Acad. 1919-21; newspaper work 1921-24; cml. work 1924-30; app., after exam., For Ser. officer unclass., v. c. of career, and sec. in the Diplo. Ser. Dec. 17, 1931; assigned to the For. Ser. Sch. Dec. 30, 1931; as v. c. at Havre Apr. 7, 1932; married.

Mayer, Ferdinand Lathroy.--b. Indianapolis, Ind., May 25, 1887; The Hill Sch.; Princeton, A. B. 1909,

A. M. 1916; Harvard, LL. B. 1913; mem. of bar of Ind.; in law office 1913; app., after exam., sec. of emb. or leg. of class four Aug. 3, 1916; assigned to Port au Prince Aug. 10, 1916; class three July 13, 1917; assigned to the Dept. Dec. 8, 1917; to London Jan. 18, 1919; en disponibilité Dec. 8, 1919; assigned to the Dept. Sept. 14, 1920; class two Aug. 24, 1921; mem. of secretariat and tech. staff of Am. del., Conf. on Limitation of Armament, Washington, 1921-22; assigned to Tangier Mar. 1, 1922; to Peking Mar. 8, 1923; on detail at Tokyo Sept. 12-Oct. 8, 1923; For. Ser. officer of class four July 1, 1924; class three Aug. 8, 1924; class two and assigned as couns. of leg. at Peking Aug. 31, 1925; sec. of Am. del., Special Conf. on Chinese Customs Tariff, Peking, 1925; assigned as couns. of leg. at Ottawa Feb. 16, 1928; couns. of emb. at Lima June 8, 1929; class one Dec. 31, 1929; assigned as couns. of emb. at Brussels and Luxemburg Oct. 20, 1930; adviser, 2d stage, Gen. Disarmament Conf., Geneva, 1933; assigned as couns. of leg. at Bern Sept. 8, 1933; married.

Mayer, Leslie Gordon.—b. Odessa, Russia, of Am. parents, Dec. 9, 1905; attended sch. in Switzerland and Germany; Georgetown Sch. of For. Ser., B.F.S. 1929; salesman 1930; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass., v. c. of career, and sec. in the Diplo. Ser. Dec. 16, 1930; assigned as v. c. at Quebec, temp., Dec. 29, 1930; to the For. Ser. Sch. Dec. 23, 1931; to Riga Apr. 7, 1932.

Maynard, Lester.—b. San Francisco, Calif., Apr. 5, 1877; attended polytech. high sch.; studied accounting; bank clk. three yrs.; newspaper reporter, war corr., publisher, and editor; app., after exam., cons. at Sandakan June 26, 1906; at Vladivostok Mar. 11, 1908; at Harbin Aug. 19, 1911: at Amoy Aug. 20, 1912; cons. of class four by act approved Feb. 5, 1915; detailed to the Dept. Mar. 1, 1916; assigned to Chefoo July 12, 1916; to Alexandria Sept. 8, 1919; class three June 11, 1920; assigned to Havre Aug. 17, 1923; For. Ser. officer of class four July 1, 1924; assigned to Stuttgart May 4, 1929; class three Dec. 19, 1929; cons. gen. and assigned to Singapore Jan. 15, 1930; to Athens July 15, 1932; to Copenhagen Aug. 23, 1933; married.

Mazzeo, Louis Bert.—b. New York City Sept. 10, 1906; attended husiness sch.; Emerson Inst.; George town Sch. of For. Ser., B. F. S. 1920; clk., Am. Consulate General at Naples, 1920–24, in real estate office 1924–25, Washington Navy Yard, 1925–27; clk., Dept. of State, 1927–30; app. clk. in Am. Consulate at Chihuabua Apr. 9, 1930; v. c. at Chihuabua June 27, 1930; married.

McAndrews, John Henry Eugene.—b. Owatonna, Minn., July 1, 1884; Pillsbury Acad.; attended normal sch. and officers training sch.; Georgetown Univ. 1920-21; teacher in public sch. two yrs.; clk. two yrs.; salesman; app. v. c. at Cork Aug. 21, 1918; visa work at Frankfort-on-the-Main July 13, 1921; v. c. at Frankfort-on-the-Main Nov. 15, 1921; at Bucharest Jan. 7, 1922; despatch agt. at London Feb. 18, 1930. McArdle, John.—b. Bolivar, N. Y., Dec. 20, 1891; high sch. grad.; Univ. of 111. 1911–12; Carnegie Inst. of Tech. 1913–15; Catholic Univ. 1920–21; draftsman 1912–13; designer and salesman 1915–17, 1921–22; U. S. Army 1917–19, overseas service; app., after exam., v. c. of career of class three Feb. 26, 1923; assigned to Mexico City Apr. 27, 1923; to Santa Marta Aug. 11, 1923; For. Ser. officer unclass. July 1, 1924; detailed to the Dept. Aug. 21, 1925; assigned to Mexico City Feb. 1, 1926; to Monterrey Feb. 4, 1928; class eight, cons., and assigned to Monterrey Aug. 15, 1930; to Frague Nov. 22, 1930; sec. in the Diplo. Ser. May 4, 1932; assigned as cons. and 3d sec. at Sofia May 5, 1932.

McBeth, Warren.—b. Charleston, S. C., Apr. 26, 1874; app. asst. messenger in the War Dept. Jan. 1, 1895; asst. messenger in the Dept. of State Dec. 22, 1913; messenger Jan. 23, 1915; chief messenger Feb. 23, 1915; messenger Feb. 15, 1917.—CC.

McBride, Harry Alexander .- b. Flint, Mich., Oct. 14, 1887; high sch. grad.; attended private sch. in Germany; newspaper work and advertising mgr. 1905-8; app. clk. in Am. Consulate General at Dresden Oct. 1, 1908; cons. agt. at Bilbao Feb. 16, 1909; v. and dep. cons. gen. at Barcelona Oct 31, 1910; at Zürich Oct. 18, 1911; app., after exam., cons. asst. Sept. 3, 1912; v. and dep. cons. gen. at Boma July 5, 1913; detailed to Angola to investigate cml. conditions June 23, 1914; v. c. at Roma Feb. 6, 1915; detailed to London Aug. 4, 1916; v. c. at London Oct. 5, 1916; cons. of class eight Sept. 14, 1917; alternate Am. representative, Nitrate Executive, 1918; act. gen. receiver of customs and financial adviser of Liberia, and mem, Liberian Internal Debt Commn. Aug. 1918-May 1919; reinstated as cons. of class eight May 1, 1919; assigned to Warsaw June 3, 1919; class five Sept. 5, 1919; class four June 4, 1920; detailed to the Dept. Aug. 7, 1920; for special duty in eastern and southern Europe Oct. 4, 1920; to the Dept. Dec. 27, 1920; chief, Visa Office, Jan. 1-Sept. 13, 1921; in charge, Cons. Cml. Office Sept. 13, 1921-Aug. 31, 1922; class three Nov. 23, 1921; resigned Aug. 31, 1922; representative in Spain of Am. firm 1922-30; app. v. c. at Málaga Apr. 4, 1923; resigned Oct. 31, 1930; app. asst. chief, For. Ser. Bldgs. Office, temp., at \$6,500 in the Dept. of State Nov. 1, 1930; executive asst., permanently, Feb. 3, 1931; acting chief clk. and admin. asst. Mar. 27-Sept. 7, 1931; v. chm., Bd. of Review for Efficiency Katings Apr. 23, 1931-Jan. 12, 1932; representative of the Dept. of State on the Council of Personnel Admin. May 27, 1931; asst. to the sec. of state at \$8,000 Jan. 1, 1932; married.-S.

McCafferty, William Joseph.—b. San Francisco, Calif., Sept. 23, 1889; high sch. grad.; attended business sch.; Univ. of Calif. one-half yr.; secretarial and cml. work 1908-15, in Philippine Is. 1915-17; app. v. c. at Melbourne Feb. 10, 1917; app., after exam., v. c. of career of class three Sept. 27, 1919; assigned to Melbourne Oct. 22, 1915; class two May 24, 1920; assigned to Auckland Oct. 18, 1920; class one Nov. 17, 1921; assigned to Hong Kong Dec. 13, 1921; cons. of class seven Mar. 1, 1923; detailed to Amoy July-Sept. 1923; For. Ser. officer of class eight July 1, 1924; assigned to San Salvador July 12, 1924; class seven Aug. 8, 1924; app. sec. in the Diplo. Ser. and assigned as 3d sec. at Managua, temp., Sept. 1, 1927; as cons. at Chihuahua Mar. 22, 1929; class six May 23, 1929; assigned as 2d sec. at Guatemala Jan. 18, 1930; at San Salvador Dec. 5, 1931.

McCallum, Daniel Johnston (Lt., jg.)—b. Shreveport, La., Feb. 6, 1901; U.S.N.A., grad. 1924; assigned as language officer at Tokyo June 30, 1931.

McCammon, John Easton (Capt.)-b. Vancouver Barracks, Wash., Feb. 8, 1897; Little 'Rock Coll., A. B. 1923; entered U. S. Army Mar. 22, 1917; assigned as language officer at Pelping Mar. 2, 1931; married.

McClintock, Robert Mills.—b. Seattle, Wash., Aug. 30, 1909; studied under private tutor in Switzerland; Stanford, A. B. 1931; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass., v. c. of career, and sec. in the Diplo. Ser. Dec. 17, 1931; assigned as v. c. at Panama Jan. 20, 1932; to the For. Ser. Sch. Nov. 29, 1932; to Kobe Mar. 30, 1933.

McCloud, Robert Chester.—b. Roselle Park, N. J., July 10, 1902; U. S. M. A., grad. 1924; engineer 1925; teacher in private sch. 1925–29; 1st lt., O. R. C.; app. clk. in Am. Consulate at Turin Aug. 6, 1931; v. c. at Turin Sept. 4, 1931; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass., v. c. of career, and sec. in the Diplo. Ser. Dee. 17, 1931; assigned as v. c. at Turin Jan. 2, 1932; at Geneva Mar. 16, 1932; to the For. Ser. Sch. Apr. 22, 1933; to Naples Aug. 28, 1933; married.

McClure, Wallace.—b. Knoxville, Tenn., July 30, 1890; Unlv. of Tenn., A. B. 1910, LL. B. 1911; Columbia, A. M. 1915, Ph. D. 1924; mem. of bar of Tenn.; sec. to committee to investigate assessments and taxation, Tenn., 1915; law practice 1916-17; U. S. Army 1917-18, 2d lt.; expert of N. Y. State legislative committee on income tax 1910; instructor in hist., Univ. of Tenn., 1919; prof. of cml. policy, Georgetown Sch. of For. Ser. since 1925; app. drafting officer at \$3,000 in the Dept. of State Dec. 4, 1920; at \$3,500 Nov. 15, 1922; at \$3.800 July 1, 1924; at \$4,400 Feb. 1, 1926; at \$5,200 July 1, 1926; asst. chief, Treaty Division, Apr. 21, 1928; at \$6.500 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); tech. adviser to Am. del., Seventh Int. Conf. of Am. States, Montevideo, 1933; married.—TD.

McConaughy, Walter Patrick.—b. Montevallo, Ala., Sept. 11, 1908; Birmingham-Southern Coll., B. A. 1928; Ala. Coll., summers 1926, 1927; Duke Univ. 1930; teacher in high sch. 1928–30; instructor, Ala. Coll., summer 1929; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass., v. c. of career, and sec. In the Diplo. Ser. Dec. 16, 1930; assigned as v. c. at Tampico, temp., Dec. 27, 1930; to the For. Ser. Sch. Aug. 19, 1932; to Kobe Dec. 22, 1932. McConnico, Andrew Jackson.—b. Vaiden, Miss., Feb. 20, 1875; Mt. Hermon Acad. grad.; Brown Univ., Ph. B. 1899; studied law; mem. of bar of Miss.; newspaper reporter 1899–1900; In law office 1900–1901; law practice 1902-8; app., after exam., cons. at St. Johns, Quebec, May 31, 1909; at Trinidad Sept. 18, 1913; cons. of class seven by act approved Feb. 5, 1915; assigned to Corinto Mar. 20, 1917; to Guadalajara June 5, 1919; class slx Sept. 5, 1910; assigned to Blurfields June 23, 1924; For. Ser. officer of class seven July 1, 1924; assigned to the Dept. May 11, 1928; to Yarmouth, temp., June 22, 1928; to Charlottetown, temp., Aug. 14, 1928; to the Dept. Oct. 29, 1928; to Hull Jan. 11, 1929; class six July 24, 1930; married.

McCurdy, Margarete C. (Mrs.)—b. Grand Junction, Colo.; high sch. and business sch. grad.; Central Mo. State Teachers Coll. 1927-28; newspaper reporting and advertising 1928; secretary 1930-31; app. clk., temp., at \$1,260 in the Dept. of State Mar. 23, 1931; permanently Sept. 1, 1931.—DCR.

McDermott, Michael James .- b. Peabody, Mass., July 2, 1894; attended business sch.; National Univ., LL. B. 1926, LL. M. and M. P. L. 1927; clk. in insur. company 1914-17, in War. Dept. July-Aug. 1917, in executive office of White House July-Dec. 1917; Army field clk. 1917-19, overseas service; confidential clk. to Gen. Tasker H. Bliss, Am. section of Supreme War Council, Versailles, and Am. Commn. to Negotiate Peace, Paris, 1918-20; sec. to Elihu Root, mem. of Committee of Jurists to draft project for an Int. Court of Justice at The Hague, Paris, May-Aug. 1920; app. special asst. at \$2,500 in the Dept. of State Aug. 28, 1920; clk. at \$1,600 Oct. 7, 1920; at \$1,800 June 15, 1922; private sec. to the undersec. of state at \$2,000 June 12, 1923; asst. chief, Division of Current Information. Apr. 1, 1924; at \$3,000 July 1, 1924; at \$3,200 May 1, 1925; chief, Division of Current Information, Apr. 20, 1927; at \$3,800 May 1, 1927; special asst. to Am. del., Sixth Int. Conf. of Am. States, Habana, 1928; at \$4,600 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act) ; detailed to mission for signature of Pact for the Renunciation of War, Paris, 1928; press liaison officer, Conf. of Am. States on Conciliation and Arbitration, Washington, 1928-29; press officer, London Naval Conf., 1930; at \$4,800 July 1, 1930; mem., Publications Committee of the Dept., May 1, 1931-; married.-CI.

McDonald, Eula.—b. Decatur, Tex.; attended business sch. and Branham and Hughes Prep. Sch.; secretary to mem. of Cong. 1913–17, 1919–33; clk. to Interstate and Foreign Commerce Com., House of Representatives, 1917–19; secretary, Int. Petroleum Cong., July-Oct. 1923 and 1925; app. asst. to U.S. del., Int. Monetary and Economic Conf., at \$3,800 Oct. 19, 1933; divisional asst. at \$3,800 in the Dept. of State May 16, 1934.—PC.

McDonough, Dayle Crockett.—b. Cameron, Mo., Dec. 14, 1891; Univ. of Mo., LL. B. 1912; mem. of bar of Mo.; law practice and legal editor 1913-17; U. S. Army 1917; supervisor of corr., Bu. of War Risk Insur., 1918-19; app., after exam., cons. of class seven Sept. 5, 1919; assigned to Concepción Oct. 21, 1919; to La Paz June 22, 1922; class six Aug. 23,

1922; class five Dec. 19, 1923; For. Ser. officer of class six July 1, 1924; assigned to Caracas Feb. 5, 1925; class five Dec. 17, 1925; assigned to Guadalajara, temp., Sept. 2, 1926; to Sydney, N. S. W., Nov. 22, 1926; class four Dec. 19, 1929; assigned to Madras Nov. 6, 1930 (canceled); to Bombay Jan. 29, 1931.

McDougal, Daniel Archibald.—b. Wayland Springs, Tenn., Jan. 14, 1865; Savannah Coll.; Vanderbilt Univ.; mem. of bars of Tenn. and Okla.; teacher in high sch. 1884-85; law practice 1886-1933; master in chancery 1887-92; editor of newspaper 1889-91; city atty. 1904; mayor 1908-10; mem. of Okla. Legislature 1931-32; app. asst. to the legal adviser, temp., at \$5,600 in the Dept. of State Sept. 22, 1933; pernanently Feb. 16, 1934; married.—LE.

McEnelly, Thomas.—b. Milford, Mass., Sept. 3, 1888; attended high sch. and business sch.; app. clk. in Am. Consulate General at Buenos Alres Apr. 3, 1914; v. c. at Mexico City Sept. 4, 1918; app. after exam., v. c. of career of class three Sept. 27, 1919; assigned to Frontera Oct. 9, 1919; to Matanzas Nov. 26, 1919; class two May 24, 1920; class one Nov. 17, 1921; assigned to Buenaventura May 12, 1922; to Chihuahua Sept. 21, 1923; cons. of class seven Dec. 19, 1023; assigned to Chihuahua Dec. 22, 1923; For. Ser. officer of class eight July 1, 1924; class seven Sept. 29, 1927; assigned to Barcelona May 24, 1928 (canceled); to Ciudad Juarez, temp., July 20, 1928; to Barcelona Sept. 20, 1928; class six July 24, 1930; to Singapore June 20, 1934; married.

McFadden, Frank Edward.—b. Fort Dodge, Iowa, Feb. 20, 1899; Columbia Acad.; Cascadilla Prep. Sch.; Univ. of Mich., A. B. 1923; cml. work 1923-24; app. clk. in Am. Consulate at Hamburg Mar. 3, 1924; v. c. at Hamburg Nov. 24, 1925; at Bremen Sept. 12, 1927; at Bremerhaven, temp., Sept. 1, 1928; at Bremen Nov. 28, 1928; at Bremerhaven, temp., Jan. 3, 1929; at Bremen Jan. 5, 1929; at Bremerhaven, temp., Sept. 27, 1929; at Bremer Feb. 6, 1930; at Sydney, N. S. W., May 22, 1930.

McGavack, Alice.—b. Waterford, Va.; high sch. course under tutors; Gunston Hall; app. clk., temp., at \$960 in the Dept. of State Sept. 11, 1918; at \$1,020 Nov. 1, 1918; at \$1,080 Feb. 1, 1920; permanently at \$900 Dec. 1, 1920; at \$1,000 July 1, 1921; at \$1,200 Sept. 1, 1922; at \$1,400 Apr. 1, 1924; at \$1,680 July 1, 1924; at \$1,740 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$1,800 July 1, 1930; at \$1,860 July 3, 1930 (Brookhart Act).—CI.

McGilchrist, John.—b. Stenhousemuir, Stirlingshire, Scotland, May 30, 1870; Brit. subject; educated in Scotland; with business firm in Scotland 1883-89; accountant and gen. mgr. of firms in Grenada since 1889; app. cons. agt. at Grenada June 21, 1920; married.

McGinnis, Edgar Lee, Jr.—b. Pitcairn, Pa., Oct. 4, 1907; Univ. of Pittsburgh, A. B. 1930; app. clk. in Am. Vice Consulate at Medellín Aug. 18, 1930; v. c. at Mcdellín June 11, 1931; at Ceiba June 6, 1933; at Tela, temp., June 7, 1934.

McGlasson, Clifford Wayne.-b. Cincinnati, Ohio, Oct. 31, 1897; high sch. grad.; attended business sch.; reporter 1917-18; stenog., Post Office Dept., 1918-19; clk. 1919-20, in Dept. of State 1921; app. clk. in Am. Consulate at Seville Sept. 24, 1921; v. c. at Turin Apr. 16, 1924; at Göteborg June 18, 1924; reinstated as clk. at \$1,320 in the Dept. of State Mar. 23, 1925; app. v. c. at Prague Aug. 17, 1925; at Port Said July 30, 1927; at Prague Mar. 14, 1929; at Lausanne Dec. 9, 1929; at Parls for duty in the dist. acct. and disbursing office Aug. 20, 1932; married.

McGonigal, Donal Fish.—b. Troy, N. Y., Apr. 8, 1896; high sch. grad.; cml. work 1914-16, 1919-21; U. S. Army 1916-19, 1st lt., overseas service; N. Y. State Troopers 1922-25; app. clk. in Am. Consulate at Damascus Dec. 15, 1925; at Beirut July 31, 1928; v. c. at Beirut Oct. 30, 1928; at Toronto, temp., July 1, 1929; at Belrut July 22, 1929; app. For. Ser. officer unclass., v. c. af Beirut Jan. 31, 1930; at Saloniki July 17, 1930; married.

McGregor, Robert Gardner, Jr.—b. East Orange, N. J., Feb. 22, 1905; Stauuton Mil. Acad.; Hamilton Coll., A. B. 1927; Georgetown Sch. of For. Ser. and American Univ. 1927-28; Univ. of Grenoble, summer 1928; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass. and v. c. of career Mar. 26, 1929; assigned to the For. Ser. Sch. July 1, 1929; to Jerusalem Aug. 29, 1929; to Beirut Feb. 28, 1931; to Antwerp Nov. 20, 1931; as For. Ser. officer to the emb. at Brussels, temp., Jan. 24, 1933; sec. in the Diplo. Ser. Apr. 5, 1933; assigned as 3d sec. at Brussels Aug. 12, 1933; also at Luxemburg Sept. 8, 1933; married.

McGurk, Joseph F .-- b. Paterson, N. J., Mar. 3, 1892; attended high sch. and business sch.; with mfg. company 1907-13; app. clk. in Am. Consulate at Valparaiso Sept. 25, 1914; v. c. at Valparaiso May 19, 1915; at Antofagasta, temp., June 21, 1917; at Valparaiso July 5, 1917; at Paris June 9, 1919; at Havre Sept. 6, 1919; app., after exam., v. c. of career of class three Sept. 27, 1919; assigned to Paris Oct. 2, 1919; class two May 24, 1920; assigned to Dakar Sept. 30, 1920; to Brest May 12, 1921; to Dunkirk July 6, 1921; to Paris Oct. 7, 1921; class one Nov. 17, 1921; cons. of class seven June 22, 1922; assigned to Zagreb Aug. 18, 1922; class six Aug. 23, 1922; class five June 3, 1924; For. Ser. officer of class six July 1, 1924; assigned to Helsingfors Sept. 9, 1924; to La Paz Oct. 6, 1926; app. sec. in the Diplo. Ser. Feb. 17, 1927; assigned as 2d sec. at La Paz Feb. 23, 1927; class five June 8, 1927; assigned to the Dept. Sept. 21, 1928; class four Dec. 26, 1929; assigned as 1st sec. at Port au Prince Sept. 25, 1930; to the Dept. July 26, 1932; asst. chief, Division of Latin American Affairs, Aug. 28, 1933.-LA.

McIlhenny, Samuel Alfred, Jr.—b. San Antonio, Tex., Aug. 15, 1901; Marion Inst. grad.; U.S.N.A. 1920-22; Univ. of Tex., B.B.A. 1926; clk. and stenog. 1926-28; app. clk. in Am. Leg. at San Salvador June 26, 1928; in Am. Leg. at Managua May 11, 1929; in Am. Consulate General at Santiago, Chile, Mar. 1, 1931; v. c. at Santiago Aug. 18, 1931; at Antofagasta, temp., Oct. 21, 1933; at Santiago Dec. 22, 1933; at Valparaiso, temp., Mar. 8, 1934. McInturff, Marjorine.—b. Marion, Ill.; business sch. grad.; stenog. and bookkeeper 1924-31; stenog. 1932-34; app. clk., temp., at \$1,440 in the Dept. of State July 2, 1934.—FA.

McKaig, Catherine deChantal.— b. Washington, D. C.; attended high sch.; clk. and typist, Govt. depts., 1918-31; app. clk. at \$1,440 in the Dept. of State Sept. 22, 1931.—PD.

McKee, Edwin Milton.—b. Dawsonville, Ga., Nov. 21, 1901; high sch. and business sch. grad.; private tutors; Univ. of Toronto 1928-30; bookkeeper, cost accountant and clk. 1920-25; app. clk. in Am. Consulate General at Singapore Feb. 14, 1925; v. c. at Singapore Nov. 9, 1925; at Halifax Dec. 3, 1927; at Toronto July 16, 1928; at North Bay, temp., Oct. 17, 1929; at Toronto Nov. 16, 1929; at Callao-Lima Apr. 11, 1930.

McKee, May Ruth.—b. Murdo, S. Dak.; high sch. grad.; S. Dak. State Sch. of Mines one-half yr.; stenog. 1927-28; secretary 1928-29; app. clk. at \$1,440 in the Dept. of State Feb. 4, 1929; at \$1,620 July 1, 1930.—DCR.

McKenna, James Edward .- b. Boston, Mass., Nov. 20, 1887; high sch. grad.; Boston Coll. 1908-10; Georgetown Law Sch. 1910-13; in library 1906-10; clk. in law office 1910; app. clk. at \$900 in the Dept. of State Oct. 8, 1910; at \$1,000 Mar. 29, 1912, effective Apr. 1; at \$1,200 Dec. 1, 1913; detailed to Am. Emb. at Mexico City Dec. 17, 1913-May 4, 1914; at \$1,400 June 22, 1916, effective July 1; chief clk. and disbursing officer, Special Mission to Russia, 1917; reapp. clk. at \$1,400 in the Dept. of State Aug. 3, 1917; U. S. Army 1917-19, capt., overseas service; reapp. clk. at \$1,400 in the Dept. of State June 19, 1919; at \$1,600 May 1, 1920; drafting officer at \$2,500 Apr. 1, 1921; mem. of Bd. of Review May 31, 1922; at \$2,800 July 1, 1924; app. For. Ser. officer of class eight and cons. Apr. 20, 1925; assigned to Antwerp June 17, 1925; to Canton Nov. 9, 1926; class seven Oct. 16, 1929; assigned to the Dept. May 22, 1930; class six July 1, 1931; to London June 30, 1934.

McKenny, Eileen.—b. Richmond, Va.; attended private sch. and business sch.; secretary; clk., Federal Reserve Bd.; app. clk. at \$900, temp., in the Dept. of State Dec. 30, 1915; permanently at \$1,000, under Ex. order June 22, 1916, effective July 1; at \$1,200 July 28, 1917, effective Aug. 1; at \$1,400 Oct. 18, 1921; at \$1,600 Feb. 1, 1924; at \$1,860 July 1, 1924; at \$1,820 Mar. 1, 1927; at \$2,100 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$2,200 July 1, 1928; stenog., London Naval Conf., 1930; at \$2,400 July 1, 1930.—WE.

McKinney, Walter Hastings.—b. Sault Ste. Marie, Mich., Sept. 6, 1889; high sch. grad.; Univ. of Mich. 1908-11; cml. enterprises 1911-23; app., after exam., cons. of class seven Oct. 6, 1923; detailed to Bordeaux Nov. 20, 1923; For. Ser. officer of class eight July 1, 1924; assigned to Vigo July 1, 1925; class seven May 17, 1928; to Yarmouth Dec. 23, 1931; married.

McLain, Camden Lester.—b. Goodview, Va., Apr. 27, 1893; attended high sch. and business sch.; secretary 1915-17; U. S. Army 1917-18; Army Field clk. 1919-21; app. clk. in Am. Consulate General at

67359-34-15

Valparaiso July 1, 1921; v. c. at Valparaiso Mar. 9, 1922; at Concepción May 1, 1924; at Valparaiso Oct. 22, 1924; at Arica, temp., Nov. 7, 1925; at Valparaiso June 24, 1926; at Iquique, temp., Nov. 1, 1926; at Concepción Dec. 7, 1926; at Antofagasta Aug. 30, 1930 (canceled); at Valparaiso Oct. 11, 1930; at Antofagasta Nov. 22, 1930; at Valparaiso Jan. 3, 1931; at Santiago, Chile, Feb. 24, 1931; married.

McLean, Sarah Brown (Mrs.)—b. Milroy, Pa.; attended private and high sch.; teacher 1912-14; U. S. Food Admin. 1917-18; app. clk., temp., at \$960 in the Dept. of State Nov. 23, 1918; at \$1,020 Feb. 1, 1919; at \$840 July 1, 1919; permanently at \$900 Feb. 1, 1921; at \$1,000 Aug. 16, 1921; at \$1,100 Mar. 1, 1924; at \$1,200 May 31, 1924, effective June 1; at \$1,500 July 1, 1924; at \$1,560 Mar. 1, 1927; at \$1,680 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$1,800 July 1, 1930.—DCR.

McMahon, Joseph William.—b. Meriden, Conn., June 24, 1885; attended high sch. and business sch.; Washington Coll. of Law; mem. of bar of D. C.; cml. work 1902-8; clk. 1908-9; app. clk. at \$900 in the Dept. of State July 28, 1909; at \$1,000 Nov. 1, 1910; at \$1,200 Nov. 13, 1911; at \$1,400 June 22, 1916, effective July 1; at \$1,600 Aug. 1, 1918; at \$1,800 Sept., 1922; at \$2,100 July 1, 1924; at \$2,200 Mar. 1, 1927; at \$2,300 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); archivist, Int. Conf. on Safety of Life at Sea, London, 1929; at \$2,500 July 1, 1930; at \$2,600 July 3, 1930 (Brookhart Act); married.—DCR.

McMillan, Hugh Charles.—b. East Jordan, Mich., May 12, 1907; business sch. grad.; George Washington Univ., A.B. 1934; stenog., U.S. Coast Guard. 1927-29; app. clk. at \$1,620 in the Dept. of State Dec. 20, 1929; at \$1,740 July 1, 1930; at \$1,800 July 21, 1931.—FA.

McMillin, Stewart Earl.—b. Arkansas City, Kans., Dec. 17, 1889; attended business sch.; Univ. of Kans., A. B. 1914, LL. B. 1917; Kans. Nat. Guard 1911-13; app., after exam., cons. of class eight Sept. 14, 1917; sasigned to Port Limón Nov. 5, 1917; class six Sept. 5, 1919; assigned to Antofagasta May 17, 1922; For. Ser. officer of class seven July 1, 1924; assigned to La Paz Apr. 22, 1925; to Belgrade Sept. 8, 1926; to Zagreb, temp., Oct. 1, 1927; to Belgrade Nov. 15, 1927; class six May 9, 1930; assigned to Warsaw Dec. 6, 1930; to Piedras Negras Jan. 11, 1933; married.

McNair, Laurance N. (Capt.)-b. Warsaw, N. Y., May 30, 1884; U.S.N.A., grad. 1905; assigned as naval att. at Rome June 7, 1933; married.

McNeir, William.—b. Washington, D. C., Oct. 14, 1864; Emerson Inst.; page, House of Rep., 1877-79; app. clk., temp., in the Dept. of State, May 1, 1881; packer Aug. 5, 1882; clk. at \$1,000 Aug. 1, 1886; at \$1,200 July 1, 1889; at \$1,400 May 2, 1892; resigned June 9, 1892; reapp. clk. at \$1,200 May 11, 1893; at \$1,400 Feb. 23, 1897; at \$1,600 Apr. 1, 1899; at \$1,800 June 25, 1900, effective July 1; chief, Bu. of Rolls and Library, Dec. 4, 1905; mem. of Advisory Committee on Printing and Publication Feb. 23, 1906, and of Committee on Business Methods Jan. 28, 1907; representative on U. S. Bd. on Geographic Names May 24, 1907; chief clk. Nov. 30, 1909; mem. of committee on inquiry ordered by the Pres. into the economy and efficiency of Executive depts. of the Govt. 1910; chief, Bu. of Accounts, and disbursing clk., Apr. 23, 1913, effective May 1; detailed as disbursing officer for Am. del., Am.-Mexican Joint Commn., 1916; chm. of committee in the Dept. on Third Liberty Loan Campaign Mar. 20, 1918; detailed as disbursing officer, Am. Commn. to Negotiate Peace, Paris, 1918-19; at \$3,000 Mar. 1, 1921; at \$3,500 June 17, 1921, effective July 1; disbursing officer, Conf. on Limitation of Armament, Washington, 1921-22; mem., Bd. of Review, May 31, 1922; disbursing officer for Am. del., Conf. on Central Am. Affairs, Washington, 1922-23; disbursing officer, Twenty-third Conf. of the Interparliamentary Union, Washington, 1925; at \$3,700 May 1, 1925; disbursing officer of Am. del., Int. Radiotelegraph Conf., Washington, 1927; chief, Bu. of Accounts, Jan. 1, 1928; at \$3,900 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); disbursing officer, Int. Conf. of Am. States on Conciliation and Arbitration, Washington, 1928-29; at \$4,000 July 3, 1930 (Brookhart Act); married.-BA.

McNiece, Renwick Sloane.—b. Salt Lake City, Utah, June 28, 1886; Westminster Coll., Salt Lake City, 1903-4; Princeton, B. A. 1907; Univ. of Utah Law Coll. 1913-15; teaching fellow, Univ. of Calif., 1919-20; mem. of bar of Utah; instructor in high sch. 1907-17; U. S. Army 1917-19, capt.; app., after exam., cons. of class seven June 4, 1920; assigned to Penang Aug. 2, 1920; class six Aug. 23, 1922; assigned to St. Michael's Mar. 30, 1923; For. Ser. officer of class seven July 1, 1924; assigned to Stokeon-Trent Sept. 9, 1924; class six May 17, 1928; assigned to Karachi June 19, 1928; class five July 1, 1931; to Vigo Dec. 22, 1931; married.

McWilliams, Roy.—b. Chicago, Ill., Apr. 14, 1875; Yale, B. A. 1897; Harvard, LL. B. 1900; law practice; app. cons. agt. at Bayonne Sept. 5, 1917; at Biarritz Apr. 15, 1918; v. c. at Biarritz Apr. 17, 1920; married.

Medalie, Donn Paul.—b. Milwaukee, Wis., May 11, 1906; high sch. grad.; Univ. of Chicago 1927-28; George Washington Univ. 1929-30; supercargo, Army Transport Service, 1926; salesman 1929; sec. to mem. of Cong. 1929-30; app. clk. in Am. Consulate at Stuttgart Aug. 16, 1930; v. c. at Stuttgart June 11, 1931.

Meekins, Lynn W.—b. Baltimore, Md., Nov. 6, 1892; Marston's and Friends' Schs.; Johns Hopkins, A.B. 1913; N.Y. Univ., grad. work one yr.; newspaper work 1911; accounting 1913-14; librarian 1914-16; entered Bu. of For. and Domes. Com. Oct. 2, 1916; asst. cml. att. at Peiping June 16, 1919; trade commr. at Shanghai Feb. 1921; dist. mgr. at Boston June 1922; trade commr. at Ottawa July 1, 1924; cml. att. May 20, 1927; del., Anti-Smuggling Conf., Ottawa, 1929; cml. att. at London July 18, 1933. Meeks, Nelson Place.—b. New York City Aug. 3, 1896; attended high sch.; Mt. Hermon Sch.; Columbia Univ. 1915-18; Officers' Training Sch. 1918-19; Near East Relief, Tiflis, Caucasus, 1919-21; app. clk. in Am. Consulate at Riga Jan. 19, 1922; in Am. Leg. at Riga Jan. 1, 1923; in Am. Emb. at Mexico City June 30, 1924; in Am. Consulate General at Vancouver May 5, 1925; v. c. at Vancouver June 14, 1928: married.

Mehaffy, Delbert D.—b. Mediapolis, Iowa, May 15, 1909; high sch. and business sch. grad.; Benjamin Franklin Univ. 1931, 1932; stenog.-bookkeeper 1929-30; cashier-acct. 1930; clk., Dept. of Labor, 1930-31; app. clk. at \$1,440 in the Dept. of State Apr. 27, 1931; at \$1,620 May 1, 1934; married.—DCR.

Meily, John James.—b. Philadelphia, Pa., Apr. 16, 1887; Stevens Sch.; Stevens Inst. of Tech. two yrs.; Univ. of Pa., B. S. 1909; Carnegie Inst. of Tech. 1918; Univ. of Berne 1920–21; buyer, sec., and dir. of personnel for mfg. firms 1909–19; industrial division, Carnegie Corp. of N. Y., 1918–19; app. after exam., cons. of class seven Sept. 5, 1919; detailed to Berne Oct. 29, 1919; assigned to Port Limón May 17, 1922; For. Ser. officer of class eight July 1, 1924; class seven Dec. 17, 1925; assigned to Stavanger June 9, 1926; class six May 23, 1929; assigned to Leipzig July 1, 1929; to Hamburg Feb. 16, 1931; married.

Meinhardt, Carl David.—b. Brockport, N. Y., July 30, 1888; Syracuse Univ., Ph. B. 1911; principal of high sch. 1911-12; app., after exam., student interpreter in China Mar. 12, 1912; dep. cons. gen. at Hankow, temp., Oct. 3, 1913; v. c. and interpreter at Chefoo Sept. 1, 1915; at Canton June 26, 1917; at Changsha Apr. 12, 1920; For. Ser. officer unclass. July 1, 1924; class eight and cons. Aug. 31, 1925; assigned to Changsha Sept. 4, 1925; to Shanghai Mar. 9, 1927; class seven May 9, 1930; assigned to Tshan May 16, 1930; to Shanghai Apr. 1, 1932; married.

Memminger, Lucien.-b. Tampa, Fla., Aug. 11, 1879; attended high sch.; Univ. of the South three yrs.; served term in State Militia of S. C.; newspaper work, Washington corr.; app., after exam., cons. clk. Mar. 30, 1907; v. and dep. cons. gen. at Boma Apr. 3, 1907; cons. asst. July 1, 1908; v. and dep. cons. at Naples Aug. 13, 1908; at Beirut Apr. 21, 1910; v. and dep. cons. gen. at Smyrna Jan. 21, 1911; at Parls Dec. 13, 1911; cons. at Rouen Sept. 18, 1913; del., Int. Conf. of Chambers of Com., Paris, 1914; at Madras Dec. 22, 1914; cons. of class seven by act approved Feb. 5, 1915; class six Sept. 5, 1919; assigned to Leghorn Sept. 8, 1919; class five Aug. 23, 1922; assigned to Bordeaux Apr. 28, 1923; For. Ser. officer of class six July 1, 1924; class five May 17, 1928; class four July 24, 1930; cons. gen. Jan. 22, 1931; assigned to Belfast Jan. 27, 1931; married.

Merrell, Edwin Clay.—b. Nashville, Ark., Oct. 9, 1881; high sch. grad.; Barron Acad. three yrs.; business courses; cml. traveler 1900-1904; newspaper work and clk. to U. S. marshal 1905-12; newspaper editor and publisher 1913-17; app. v. c. at Halifax Jan. 25, 1918; at Charlottetown July 9, 1919; at Halifax Sept. 6, 1919; at Hamilton, Bermuda, July 1, 1920; married.

Merrell, George Robert, Jr.—b. St. Louis, Mo., July 13, 1898; Univ. Sch. for Boys, St. Louis; Cornell, A. B. 1921; U. S. Army 1917–18, 2d lt.; app., after exam., sec. of emb. or leg. of class four Dec. 15, 1921; assigned to the Dept. Jan. 4, 1922; to The Hague Mar. 1, 1922; sec. to Am. del. on Commn. of Jurists, The Hague, 1922–23; assigned to Port au Prince Jan. 4, 1924; For. Ser. officer of class eight and assigned as 3d sec. at Port au Prince July 1, 1924; class seven Aug. 8, 1924; class six June 2, 1926; assigned as 2d sec. at Paris Nov. 1, 1926; at Tegucigalpa July 24, 1928; class five Dec. 19, 1929; assigned to Panama Aug. 9, 1930; to the Dept. June 18, 1931.—LA.

Merriam, Gordon Phelps .- b. Lexington, Mass., July 29, 1899; Noble and Greenough Sch. grad.; Dartmouth, B. S. 1921; Univ. of Chicago, M. S. 1925; with ambulance corps 1917; Am. Red Cross in Halifax, N. S., 1917-18; U. S. Army 1918, 2d lt.; teacher of Eng. and geography, Robert Coll., Constantinople, 1921-23; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass. May 28, 1926; v. c. of career June 15, 1926; assigned to Beirut Apr. 8, 1927; to Damascus, temp., Sept. 6, 1927; to Beirut Sept. 27, 1927; to Aleppo, temp., Oct. 26, 1927; to Beirut Dec. 31, 1927; as language officer at Paris Aug. 16, 1928; as v. c. at Istanbul Apr. 12, 1930; class eight, cons., and assigned to Istanbul May 9, 1930; as language officer at Paris Oct. 18, 1930; as consul at Cairo July 28. 1931; sec. in the Diplo. Ser. and assigned also as 3d sec. at Cairo, temp., May 4, 1932; resumed charge of consulate Sept. 22, 1932; married.

Merrill, Gregor Charles.—b. Oakland, Calif., Dec. 2, 1906; Thacher Sch. grad.; Univ. Calif., B. S. 1928; Oxford, B. A. 1930; with Geneva Office of Am. League of Nations Asso. 1930; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass., v. c. of career, and sec. in the Diplo. Ser. Dec. 17, 1931; assigned as v. c. at Bucharest Jan. 20, 1932; to the For. Ser. Sch. Nov. 29, 1932; to Yokohama Mar. 30, 1933; married.

Merrill, Keith .- b. Minneapolis, Minn., Apr. 2, 1887; Hill Sch.; Yale, B. A. 1911; Harvard, LL. B. 1914; mem. of bar of Minn.; law student in Duluth and Winnipeg, summers of 1909 and 1911; law practice 1914-16; app. v. c. at London July 5, 1917; app., after exam., cons. of class eight July 17, 1919; remained in London on detail; class seven Sept. 5. 1919; class six June 4, 1920; assigned to Madrid Aug. 25, 1921; class five Nov. 19, 1921; class four Mar. 1, 1923; detailed to Sydney, N. S., June 30. 1924; For. Ser. officer of class five July 1, 1924; assigned to the Dept. Dec. 10, 1924; class four Feb. 24, 1925; tech. adviser to Am. del., Conf. with Mexico to prevent smuggling, and for other purposes, El Paso, 1925, Washington, 1926; chief, For. Ser. Bldgs. Office, June 23, 1926; For. Ser. insp. June 22, 1927; class three Sept. 29, 1927; assigned to the Dept. as chief, For. Ser. Bldgs. Office, Oct. 1, 1927;

special work, London Naval Conf., 1930; class two July 24, 1930; resigned Jan. 15, 1931; app. chief, For. Ser. Bldgs. Office, at \$8,000 in the Dept. of State Jan. 16, 1931; executive asst. in office of asst. sec. of state at \$6,500 June 1, 1932; married.—A-C.

Merriman, Gladys Elizabeth.—b. St. Joseph, Mo.; high sch. grad.; attended business sch.; Columbia Univ. one yr.; app. clk., temp., at \$1,200 in the Dept. of State Aug. 26, 1918; permanently July 24, 1920; at \$1,680 July 1, 1924; at \$1,860 Mar. 16, 1925; at \$1,920 Mar. 1, 1927; at \$2,100 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$2,200 July 1, 1930.—PD.

Mersman, Scudder.—b. St. Louis, Mo., Aug. 3, 1888; Pawling Sch.; Yale, Ph. B. 1911; clk. 1912-13; exporting fruits in Tahiti 1916-17; U. S. Army 1917-19, 2d lt.; with coconuts products corp. in Tahiti since 1919; app. v. c. at Tahiti Feb. 10, 1922; married.

Messersmith, George Strausser .- b. Fleetwood, Pa., Oct. 3, 1883; Keystone State Normal Sch. grad.; Delaware Coll.; principal of sch. 1900-1914; field agt. of Am. Society for Extension of Univ. Teaching; sec. and v. pres. of State Bd. of Examiners of Del. 1911-14; v. pres. of State Bd. of Education of Del. 1912-14; lecturer at summer sch.; author of articles and pamphlets on education and textbook on govt. of Del.; app., after exam., cons. at Fort Erie June 25, 1914; cons. of class nine by act approved Feb. 5, 1915; assigned to Curaçao May 20, 1916; class eight Sept. 14, 1917; detailed to Antwerp Jan. 29, 1919; assigned to Antwerp May 10, 1919; class six Sept. 5, 1919; class five June 4, 1920; class four Nov. 23, 1921; class three Mar. 1, 1923; cons. gen. of class four June 5, 1924; For. Ser. officer of class three July 1, 1924; assigned to Antwerp Apr. 4, 1925; representative, Conf. of Int. Chamber of Com., Brussels, 1925; class two June 30, 1927; representative, Conf. of Int. Chamber of Com., Stockholm, 1927; assigned to Buenos Aires June 7, 1928; also on detail as For. Ser. insp. Mar. 13, 1930; assigned to Berlin May 6, 1930; class one May 9, 1930; app. E.E. and M.P. to Uruguay Mar. 9, 1934 (canceled); E.E. and M.P. to Austria Apr. 7, 1934; married.

Metzger, Jacob Allen .- b. Stark Co., Ohio, Feb. 5, 1880; attended high sch. and business sch.; National Univ., LL. M. 1915; mem. of bar of D. C.; surveying 1898; teacher in public sch. 1899-1901; with bank and mfg. companies 1902-7; copyist, Gen. Land Office, 1907; app. clk. at \$900 in the Dept. of State Sept. 13, 1907; at \$1,000 July 1, 1908; at \$1,200 June 1, 1909; at \$1,400 Oct. 21, 1910; at \$1,600 Mar. 1, 1912; assigned to legal work in the office of the solicitor Sept. 17, 1914; law clk. at \$2,500 June 22, 1916, effective July 1; at \$2,500 Oct. 22, 1917; asst. solicitor Dec. 12, 1917; at \$3,000 Oct. 1, 1918; asst. to the solicitor at \$4,000 Dec. 31, 1919, effective Jan. 1, 1920; drafting officer at \$4,000 July 1, 1920; at \$4,500 July 1, 1922; at \$5,200 July 1, 1924; at \$5,600 May 1, 1925; at \$6,000 Apr. 16, 1927; at \$7,500 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); counsel, Harrah Arbitration, Habana, 1929-30; counsel for U.S.

before Int. Jt. Commn., U. S. and Canada; U. S. agt., U. S.-Sweden Arbitration, 1931-32; asst. to the legal adviser July 1, 1931; married.—LE.

Meyer, Ira Philip.—b. New York City Feb. 15, 1902; attended high sch. and business sch.; cml. work 1916-23; clk., Civil Ser. Commn., 1923; app. clk., temp., at \$900 in the Dept. of State Feb. 7, 1924; permanently, Apr. 4, 1924; at \$1,000 May 16, 1924; at \$1,320 July 1, 1924; at \$1,380 Mar. 1, 1925; at \$1,500 June 1, 1925; at \$1,560 Nov. 1, 1927; at \$1,680 July 1, 1928 (Weich Act); at \$1,740 July 1, 1928; at \$1,800 Jan. 1, 1930; at \$1,920 July 1, 1930; married.—DCR.

Meyer, Mary Louise.—b. Washington, D. C.; attended Georgetown Visitation Convent and business sch.; clk., Dept. of Agric., 1928; app. clk. at \$1,320 in the Dept. of State June 11, 1928; at \$1,440 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$1,620 Feb. 1, 1929; at \$1,800 July 1, 1930.—SS.

Meyer, Paul Walter.—b. Beatrice, Nebr., Aug. 8, 1900; Univ. of Denver, A. B. 1923; app., after exam., student interpreter in China Apr. 3, 1924; For. Ser. officer unclass. July 1, 1924; v. c. of career Sept. 29, 1926; assigned to Chungking Oct. 14, 1926; to Hankow, temp., Apr. 29, 1927; detailed to the Dept. Jan. 11, 1929; class eight, cons., and assigned to Hankow May 23, 1929; to Nanking July 2, 1929; class seven Feb. 27, 1931; assigned as For. Ser. officer at Peiping June 23, 1932; sec. in the Diplo. Ser. July 16, 1932; 2d sec. at Peiping July 21, 1932; married.

Michael, Louis G .--- b. Hastings, Mich., Aug. 3, 1877; Mich. Agric. Coll., B. S. 1903; Columbia Univ. 1903; Univ. of Wis., M. S. 1918; Mich. State Coll., Dr. Ag. 1924; instr. in chem., Mich. Agric. Coll., 1902-3; student asst. in mineralogy, Columbia, 1904; prof. of agric. chem., Iowa State Coll., 1905-9; special expert in corn culture for Russian Govt. 1910-16; survey of Russian grain trade 1917-18; with trading corp., N. Y., 1919; Baltic mfr. of trading corp. in Latvia and Estonia 1920-21; entered Bu. of Agric. Economics Aug. 31, 1921; del., Gen. Assembly of Int. Inst. of Agric., Rome, 1922; made survey of Danube Basin 1922-23, and of Germany 1923; engaged in studying market conditions in Europe 1924-30; app. commr. in charge of Belgrade office of Dept. of Agric. Aug. 1. 1930; agric. att. at Belgrade Dec. 16, 1930; del., 16th Int. Agric. Cong., Budapest, 1934; married.

Middlekauff, Aura I.—b. Hagerstown, Md.; business high sch. grad.; stenog. and bookkeeper 1899– 1914; app. clk., temp., in the Dept. of State Aug. 2, 1915; permanently at \$1,200 under Ex. order June 22, 1916, effective July 1; at \$1,400 Aug. 1, 1918; at \$1,600 Dec. 31, 1919, effective Jan. 1, 1920; at \$1,800 Sept. 1, 1922; at \$2,100 July 1, 1924; at \$2,200 Dec. 1, 1925; at \$2,400 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$2,500 July 1, 1928; at \$2,700 July 1, 1930.—BA.

Middleton, Lillian Helen.—b. Philadelphia, Pa.; attended business sch.; Columbia Univ. one yr.; app. clk., temp., in the Dept. of State Oct. 29, 1914; permanently at \$1,200 under Ex. order June 22, 1916, effective July 1; at \$1,400 May 1, 1920; at \$1,600 Feb. 1, 1924; at \$1,860 July 1, 1924; at \$1,920 Mar. 1, 1925; at \$1,980 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$2,000 Feb. 1, 1930; at \$2,200 July 1, 1930; at \$2,300 July 3, 1930 (Brookhart Act).—BA.

Milbourne, Harvey Lee.—b. Rockville, Md., May 10, 1895; high sch. grad.; Univ. of Richmond 1914-17; U. S. Army 1917-19; app. v. c. at Amoy Aug. 28, 1919; at Swatow Oct. 14, 1920; at Tsinan Nov. 23, 1920; at Tsingtao Mar. 15, 1921; app., after exam., v. c. of career of class three Feb. 26, 1923; assigned to Tsinan Mar. 2, 1923; class two May 10, 1924; For. Ser. officer unclass. July 1, 1924; assigned to Tientsin Aug. 8, 1925; to Amoy May 10, 1927; to Hankow Apr. 6, 1928; class eight, cons., and assigned to Hankow May 17, 1928; class seven May 9, 1930; assigned to Cologne Oct. 14, 1930; to Quebec May 25, 1932; married.

Miles, Laura Marian.—b. Princess Anne, Md.; attended public sch.; Baltimore Female Coll., M. E. L.; Columbia Univ. one and one-half yrs.; teacher in public sch. ten yrs.; clk., War Dept., 1918-21; app. clk. at \$1,000 in the Dept. of State Feb. 1, 1921; at \$1,100 Mar. 1, 1924; at \$1,200 May 31, 1924, effective June 1; at \$1,500 July 1, 1924; at \$1,560 Mar. 1, 1927; at \$1,680 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$1,800 July 1, 1930.—DCR.

Millard, Hugh .- b. Omaha, Nebr., Aug. 12, 1894; Cornell, B. S. 1916; fruit ranching 1916-17; Am. Field Ser. in France Mar.-Aug. 1917; U. S. Naval Reserve 1917-19, It. (jg.); with Am. Commn. to Negotiate Peace, Paris, 1918-19; clk. in Am. Emb. at Paris 1919-20; sec. to Am. Amb. at Paris Mar .- July 1920; app., after exam., sec. of emb. or leg. of class four Aug. 24, 1921; assigned to the Dept. Sept. 8, 1921: detailed to Conf. on Limitation of Armament, Washington, 1921-22; assigned to Rio de Janeiro June 14, 1922; For. Ser. officer of class eight July 1, 1924; assigned as 3d sec. at Berlin July 17, 1924; class seven Aug. 8, 1924; class six Oct. 19, 1926; assigned as 2d sec. at Tokyo Feb. 7, 1927; at Teheran June 13, 1929; class five Dec. 19, 1929; assigned to Montevideo Dec. 20, 1930 (canceled); to Madrid Apr. 23, 1931; sec., Int. Radio Conf., Madrid, 1932; assigned as 2d sec. at London Dec. 5, 1933; married.

Miller, Charles Henry.—b. Washington, D. C., Sept. 19, 1876; attended high sch.; studled law; clk., Dept. of State, 1893–1905; sec. and in charge of section of foreign information, Dept. of Com. and Labor, 1905–9; app. asst. law clk. at \$1,500 in the Dept. of State Dec. 17, 1909; at \$1,740 July 1, 1924; at \$2,100 Dec. 1, 1926; at \$2,300 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$2,400 July 1, 1928; at \$2,600 July 1, 1930; editorial assistant; married.—RP.

Miller, Douglas Phillips.—b. Fayette, Iowa, May 22, 1892; Univ. of Denver, B. A. 1913, M. A. 1914; Rhodes scholar, Oxford, B. A. in jurisprudence, grad. work 1920-21; industrial chemist 1914; principal of high sch. 1915; Y. M. C. A. work in Mesopotamia and Siberia 1917-19; repatriation of German and Russian prisoners, Stettin, 1920; export business in London and New York 1921; expert, Conf. on Limitation of Armament, Washington, 1921; entered Bu. of For. and Domes. Com. Oct. 14, 1921; app. trade commr. at Berlin May 16, 1924; asst. cml. att. Jan. 7, 1925; expert, Int. Economic Conf., Geneva, 1927; married.

Miller, Edith.—b. Dixon, Mo.; attended high sch. and business sch.; Cooper Coll., Sterling, Kans., two yrs.; Catholic Univ. 1929–31; National Univ., A. B. 1933; teacher in public sch. and high sch. eight yrs.; county sch. supt. four yrs.; War Trade Bd. 1918– 19; app. clk. at \$1,000 in the Dept. of State Jan. 17, 1919; at \$1,200 Mar. 1, 1921; at \$1,500 July 1, 1924; at \$1,620 Jan. 1, 1928; at \$1,740 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$1,860 July 1, 1930.—RP.

Miller, Hugh S.—b. Mudgee, N. S. W., Australia, of Am. parents, Feb. 3, 1885; attended sch. of Australia and U. S.; Rochester Normal Univ., B. S. 1902; Hobart Coll. two yrs.; newspaper and editorial work 1905-10; Washington corr. 1910-16; writing and publicity work 1917-20; app. v. c. at Hong Kong Feb. 24, 1921; at Cornwall Sept. 6, 1922; app., after exam., v. c. of career of class three Sept. 30, 1922; assigned to Cornwall Oct. 7, 1922; to Quebec Oct. 30, 1922; to Singapore Dec. 22, 1922; class two May 10, 1924; For. Ser. officer unclass. July 1, 1924; class eight and cons. Aug. 31, 1925; assigned to Milan Nov. 3, 1926; to Malta Feb. 13, 1030; class seven May 9, 1930; to Durban July 31, 1931; married.

Miller, Hunter.—b. New York City Jan. 2, 1875; N. Y. Law Sch., LL. B. 1910, LL. M. 1911; mem. of bar of N. Y.; 9th N. Y. Volunteer Infantry 1898, 1st 1t.; author; app. special asst., Dept. of State, June 1917; attached to Inquiry conducted by Col. House July 1917-Nov. 1918; mem. of committee of three app. by sec. of state on questions of 1nt. law before the Peace Conf. 1917-18; legal adviser, misslon of Col. House, Paris, Nov.-Dec. 1918; legal adviser, Am. Mission to Negotiate Peace, Paris, 1918-19; resigned from the Dept. of State Oct. 1919; app. editor of treaties at \$5,600 in the Dept. of State Oct. 1, 1929; chm. of the Am. del., Conf. for the Codification of Int. Law, The Hague, 1930; historical adviser at \$6,500 May 1, 1931; married.—HA.

Miller, Ralph George.—b. New York City Oct. 6, 1903; The Browning Sch.; Harvard, A. B. 1925; with investment bankers 1925-26; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass. and v. c. of career Oct. 24, 1928; assigned to the For. Ser. Sch. Nov. 5, 1928; asst. sec. of Am. del., Int. Conf. of Am. States on Conciliation and Arbitration, Washington, 1928-29; assigned to Buenos Aires Mar. 29, 1929; sec. in the Diplo. Ser. Nov. 17, 1931; assigned as 3d sec. at Montevideo Dec. 9, 1931; married.

Millington, Yale Oldknow.—b. Stephentown, N. Y., Oct. 10, 1887; Hallfax Acad., Nova Scotia; Colgate Univ. 1905-8; George Washington, A. B. 1909; teacher of Eng. and hist. in high sch. 1909-11; asst. and act. chief of division in Library of Cong. 1911-24; U. S. Army 1918; asst. librarlan, N. C. State Coll., 1924-25; research work for Inst. for Government Research May-July 1925; app. drafting officer and asst. Ilbrarian at \$2,400 in the Dept. of State Feb. 1, 1926; at \$2,500 Nov. 1, 1927; at \$2,700 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$2,800 July 1, 1928; at \$3,200 Apr. 1, 1929; at \$3,400 July 1, 1930; married.—RP.

Mills, Joseph F.—b. McLean, Va., Nov. 25, 1910; messenger, Dept. of Agric., 1930-34; app. messenger in the Dept. of State July 5, 1934.—FP.

Mills, Sheldon Tibbetts.—b. Seattle, Wash., Aug. 13, 1904; Reed Coll., A. B. 1927; Forest Ser. lookout, summers 1924, 1925; asst. in Eng. dept., Reed Coll., 1926–27; seaman, summer 1927; reporter 1928; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass. and v. c. of career Oct. 24, 1928; assigned to the For. Ser. Sch. Nov. 5, 1928; to La Paz Mar. 29, 1929; sec. In the Diplo. Ser. Feb. 27, 1931; assigned as 3d sec. at Panama Mar. 21, 1931; as. v. c. at Bucharest June 20, 1934; married.

Minnigerode, Holdsworth Gordon.—b. Washington, D. C., Aug. 22, 1905; Brown Univ., Ph. B. 1928; newspaper reporter 1929; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass., v. c. of career, and sec. in the Diplo. Ser. Apr. 15, 1933; assigned as v. c. at Montreal Apr. 29, 1930; at Quebec, temp., July 12, 1930; at Montreal Sept. 9, 1930; to the For. Ser. Sch. Sept. 27, 1930; to Jerusalem Feb. 24, 1931; as v. c. and 3d sec. at Tegucigalpa July 17, 1933.

Minor, George Carlton.—b. Rendville, Ohio, May 17, 1891; W. Va. Wesleyan Coll. 1910-11; Carnegie Inst. of Tech., B. S. 1916; telegraph operator 1908-11; apprentice signal engineer 1916-17; jr. engineer 1917; U. S. Army 1917-20, 1st lt.; with Am. Red Cross in Europe 1920-22; app. clk. In Am. Leg. at Tirana Feb. 9, 1923; v. c. at Tirana June 16, 1926; at Stuttgart Dec. 14, 1928; at Cologne Mar. 11, 1932; assigned as v. c. at Paris for duty in the dist. acct. and disbursing officer at Paris Aug. 24, 1932; v. c. and special disbursing officer at Moscow Feb. 10, 1934.

Minor, Harold Bronk.—b. Holton, Kans., Feb. 1, 1902; Drake Univ. and Carnegie Inst. of Tech.; Georgetown Sch. of For. Ser., B. F. S. 1927; salesman 1921–23; app. clk. in Am. Consulate at Tampico Nov. 28, 1927; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass., v. c. of career, and assigned to Tampico Mar. 26, 1929; to Cali May 16, 1930; to Rio de Janeiro June 15, 1931; married.

Minor, Winfield Henley.—b. Danville, Ky., Apr. 2, 1899; high sch. and business sch. grad.; Univ. of Philippines 1921–23; studied under private tutor; U. S. Army 1917–21, overseas service; civilian employee, U. S. Army, 1921–25; app. clk. in Am. Consulate General at Calcutta May 1, 1925; v. c. at Calcutta Aug. 13, 1925; resigned Oct. 31, 1929; app. v. c. at Bombay Mar. 6, 1930; at Mexico City Sept. 24, 1931; at Acapulco, temp., Aug. 24, 1932; at Mexico City Sept. 10, 1932; at Acapulco, temp., Nov. 29, 1932; at Mexico City Dec. 9, 1932; at Acapulco, temp., Feb. 18, 1933; at Mexico City Mar. 7, 1933.

Minter, John Russell.--b. Abbeville, S. C., Nov. 12, 1893; Davidson Coll., A. B 1913, M. A. 1915;

teacher in high sch. 1913-14, in Linwood Coll. 1915-16; journalist 1916-17; U. S. Marine Corps 1917-19, capt., overseas service; app., after exam., v. c. of carcer of class three May 24, 1920; assigned to Port Elizabeth Aug. 2, 1920; to Johannesburg Mar. 8, 1921; class two Nov. 17, 1921; class one May 26, 1922; cons. of class seven Mar. 1, 1923; detailed to Cape Town May 25, 1923; class six Dec. 19, 1923; assigned to Breslau June 11, 1924; For. Ser. officer of class seven July 1, 1924; assigned to Paraf Feb. 16, 1927; class six June 30, 1927; resigned Aug. 4, 1928; app. divisional asst. at \$4,600 in the Dept. of State Aug. 18, 1930.-WE.

Mitchell, Lloyd Clair.—b. Du Bois, Pa., Mar. 6, 1896; high sch. and business sch. grad.; Washington Sch. of Accountancy, B. C. S. 1924; bookkeeper and clk., supervisor and insp. in mining company 1913-19; app. clk. at \$1,000 in the Dept. of State Dec. 18, 1919; at \$1,200 Dec. 31, 1920, effective Jan. 1, 1921; at \$1,400 Oct. 1, 1923; at \$1,680 July 1, 1924; at \$1,860 Dec. 15, 1924; at \$2,000 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$2,100 July 1, 1928; at \$2,300 July 1, 1930; accounting instructor, For Ser. Sch., 1930-33; married.—BA.

Mitchell, Mary Helene.—b. Fairfax Co., Va.; business high sch. grad.; Wash. Coll. of Law 1932-33; stenog. in law firm 1912-22, in real estate and insurance office 1922-23, and in trust company in Hawaii 1923-24; sec. of mem. of Cong. 1924-33; app. private sec. to asst. sec. of state at \$2,600 Nov. 1, 1933.—A-M.

Mitchell, Reginald Parramore.—b. Sanford, Fla., June 21, 1902; Vanderbilt Univ., A. B. 1925; Univ. of Bordeaux; newspaper work 1919–31; app. clk. in Am. Consulate at Bordeaux June 6, 1931; v. c. at Bordeaux Sept. 4, 1931; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass., v. c. of career, and sec. in the Diplo. Ser. Dec. 17, 1931; assigned as v. c. at Bordeaux Jan. 2, 1932; to the For. Ser. Sch. Mar. 17, 1932; to Hankow July 26, 1932.

Moats, John S.—b. Newton, Kans., Jan. 6, 1908; Washington Univ., B. S. 1928; chemist 1928-30; app. clk. at \$1,440 in the Dept. of State Aug. 18, 1930; at \$1,620 Aug. 14, 1931.—DCR.

Moessner, Wallace Eugene.—b. Atlanta, Ga., Dec. 26, 1893; attended high sch. and business sch.; Okla. Agric. and Mech. Coll. 1912–16; corr. course in civil engineering; U. S. Army 1918–19, 2d lt., overseas service; civil engineer 1916–18, 1920; asst. sales mgr. in wholesale company 1921–23; app. clk. in Am. Consulate at Manchester June 26, 1924; v. c. at Manchester Sept. 3, 1924; married.

Moffat, Jay Pierrepont.—b. Rye, N. Y., July 18, 1896; Harvard 1915–17; private sec. to Am. Min. at The Hague and asst. in the leg. 1917–19; app., after exam., sec. of emb. or leg. of class four Sept. 5, 1919; assigned to Warsaw Sept. 27, 1919; to the Dept. Apr. 11, 1921; to Tokyo Aug. 2, 1921; class three Aug. 24, 1921; assigned to Constantinople Sept. 12, 1923; class two Jan. 23, 1924; For. Ser. officer of class four July 1, 1924; assigned to the Dept. Sept. 8, 1925; as 1st sec. at Ottawa, temp., Apr. 29, 1927; to the Dept.

July 15, 1927; to Berne Sept. 29, 1927; Prep. Commn. for the Disarmament Conf., Geneva, tech. asst. 1927, 1929, adviser 1930; tech. asst., Conf. for the Abolition of Import and Export Prohibitions and Restrictions, Geneva, 1928; class three May 23, 1929; sec. to Am. del., Red Cross and Prisoners of War Conf., Geneva, 1929; tech. asst., 4th sess., Special Commn. for the Preparation of a Draft Convention on the Private Manufacture of Arms and Ammunition and Implements of War, Geneva, 1929; assigned to the Dept. May 1, 1931; class two July 1, 1931; chief, Division of Western European Affairs, July 15, 1932; married.—WE.

Moffitt, James P.—b. Albany, N. Y., Mar. 18, 1886; Fordham Univ., LL. B. 1910; sec., teacher, and librarian 1907-10; law practice 1910-17; U. S. Army 1917-19, lt.; app., after exam., cons. of class seven Sept. 5, 1019; detailed to Brussels Oct. 29, 1920; to the Dept. Apr. 11, 1921; assigned to Rangoon July 27, 1921; class six Nov. 23, 1921; detailed to Cape Town Mar. 12, 1924; For. Ser. officer of class seven July 1, 1924; class six Aug. 8, 1024; assigned to Cape Town May 16, 1925; to Johannesburg July 6, 1925; to Cape Town Aug. 24, 1925; to Lourenço Marques Dec. 30, 1925; to the Dept. May 11, 1928; class five May 9, 1930; assigned to Marseille June 30, 1930; to Stuttgart Dec. 18, 1933; married.

Mokma, Gerald Adrian.—b. Holland, Mich., June 8, 1900; Hope Coll. Frep. Sch.; Central Coll., B. Sc. 1922; S. A. T. C. 1918; educational work in Japan 1922-25, prof. of Eng. literature and sociology at Meiji Gakuin, Tokyo, 1924-25; app. clk. in Am. Consulate at Batavia June 18, 1926; v. c. at Batavia Jan. 12, 1927; at Surabaya, temp., July 7, 1927; at Batavia Nov. 23, 1927; at Cologne July 27, 1928; at Leipzig Apr. 13, 1929; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass., v. c. of career, and sec. in the Diplo. Ser. Dec. 19, 1929; at Nuevitas June 11, 1932; at Antwerp Aug. 10, 1933.

Monahan, John William (Gapt.)—b. Amboy, Ill., Sept. 25, 1891; attended high sch.; entered U. S. Army Sept. 7, 1920; assigned as asst. mil. att. for air at London Feb. 14, 1933; married.

Monroe, Herbert B.—b. Boston, Mass., June 5, 1899; attended high sch. and business sch.; studied German in Prague; National Univ. Law Sch.; U. S. Army 1917-19; clk., War Dept., 1919-21; clk. in Am. Consulate at Prague 1921-24; app. clk. at \$1,320 in the Dept. of State Aug. 18, 1924; at \$1,680 Dec. 1, 1924; at \$1,740 Mar. 1, 1927; at \$1,800 Jan. 1, 1928; at \$1,920 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$2,040 July 1, 1930; at \$2,100 June 1, 1931; married.—VD.

Montamat, Harold Edward.—b. Antwerp, Belgium, of Am. parents, Feb. 2, 1905; Stevens Sch. grad.; Dartmouth, A. B. 1929; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass., v. c. of career, and sec. in the Diplo. Ser. Dec. 17, 1931; assigned as v. c. at Habana Jan. 12, 1932; to the For. Ser. Sch. Nov. 29, 1932; to Nanking Mar. 30, 1933. Montgomery, Edmund Brewer.—b. Quincy, III., Sept. 18, 1891; high sch. grad.; Univ. of Wis. 1910–12; U. S. N. A. 1918; clk. 1913–15; engineering 1915–17; U. S. Navy 1917–19, ensign; app. v. c. at Port Limón Feb. 12, 1919; app., after exam., v. c. of career of class three May 24, 1920; assigned to Barranquilla Aug. 2, 1920; class two Nov. 17, 1921; class one May 26, 1922; assigned to Montevideo June 23, 1922; to Rio de Janeiro Sept. 1, 1922; cons. of class seven Mar. 1, 1923; class six Dec. 19, 1923; detailed to London Feb. 15, 1924; For. Ser. officer of class seven July 1, 1924; detailed to Dublin July 12, 1924; to London Aug. 1, 1924; class six Aug. 31, 1925; assigned to Madras Mar. 8, 1926; class five Dec. 19, 1929; assigned to the Dept. Oct. 21, 1930; married.— FA.

Montgomery, John Flournoy.—b. Sedalia, Mo., Sept. 20, 1878; business sch. grad.; Ramsdell Acad. grad.; Ohio State Univ. three yrs.; sales and advertising mgr. 1902-7 and executive 1907-33 of milk companies; app. E. E. and M. P. to Hungary June 13, 1933; married.

Mooers, Horatio Tobey.—b. Vassalboro, Me., May 3, 1894; Bowdoin Coll., B. A. 1918; Dartmouth, summer 1918; Nouvelle École des Hautes Etudes, Brussels, 1919; French Army, ambulance corps, 1917; U. S. Army 1918; app. v. c. at Antwerp Jan. 27, 1919; at Brussels May 10, 1919; at Glasgow Dec. 3, 1919; at Edinburgh Jan. 26, 1920; at Horta May 18, 1920; app., after exam., v. c. of career of class three May 24, 1920, and assigned to Horta; assigned to Lisbon Apr. 3, 1922; class two May 26, 1922; class one Nov. 23, 1923; For. Ser. officer unclass. July 1, 1924; class eight and cons. Aug. 8, 1924; assigned to Turin Jan. 22, 1926; to Quebec Apr. 11, 1928; class seven Oct. 16, 1929; to Cherbourg Nov. 2, 1931; to Toronto July 17, 1933; married.

Mooney, Eire.—b. Washington, D. C.; George Washington, B. A. 1932; stenog.-clk., Dept. of Com., 1927-28; app. clk. at \$1.440 in the Dept. of State July 1, 1928; at \$1,620 June 1, 1929; at \$1,740 July 1, 1930.—VD.

Moore, Marion Kathryne (Mrs.)—b. Bellows Falls, Vt.; attended high sch. and business sch.; stenog. 1919-29; app. clk. at \$1,440 in the Dept. of State June 2, 1930; at \$1,620 Dec. 4, 1930; clk., North and Cen. American Regional Radio Conf., Mexico City, 1933.—TD.

Moore, Robert Walton.—b. Fairfax, Va., Feb. 26, 1859; Univ. of Va.; mem. of Va. Senate 1887-90; mem. of Va. Constitutional Convention 1901-2; lawyer; mem. of bar of Va.; special counsel, railway and steamship companies of the South before Interstate Com. Commn., 1907-18; asst. chief counsel, U. S. Railroad Admin., 1918-19; mem. of Bd. of Regents of Smithsonian Inst. since 1922; mem. of Congress 1919-31; app. asst. sec. of state Sept. 19, 1933; mem., Ed. of For. Ser. Personnel, Bd. of Examiners for the For. Ser., and For. Ser. Sch. Bd. Feb. 13, 1934.— A-M. Moore, Rupert Holyoake.—b. in England, June 22, 1876; Brit. subject; St. John's Coll., Winnipeg; bank clk. 1894-1900; newspaper reporter in Hawaiian 1s. 1900-1904, in Kenora 1905; app. act. cons. agt. at Kenora Dec. 29, 1908; cons. agt. at Kenora Mar. 6, 1909; resigned Sept. 1916; reapp. cons. agt. at Kenora Feb. 5, 1918.

Moore, Sadie Dameron.—b. Baltimore, Md.; attended American sch. in Manila; private tutor; Chateau des Bois, Geneva, two yrs.; sec. to librarian 1917-18; app. clk., temp., at \$1,100 in the Dept. of State Feb. 12, 1918; at \$1,200 July 1, 1918; permanently, at \$1,000Feb. 1, 1919; at \$1,200 Mar. 1, 1919; at \$1,400 Jan. 16, 1922; at \$1,680 July 1, 1924; at \$1,740 Mar. 1, 1925; at \$1,860 Feb. 1, 1926; at \$2,000 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$2,200 July 1, 1930; at \$2,600 June 1, 1931.—CR.

Moorhead, Maxwell Kennedy.—b. Pittsburgh, Pa., July 14, 1877; Shady Side Acad. grad.; Univ. of Chicago, Ph. B. 1904; clk. 1896–1901, 1904–5; app., after exam., cons. at St. Thomas, Ont., June 26, 1905; at Belgrade June 22, 1906; at Acapulco Jan. 13, 1908; at St. John, N. B., May 31, 1909; at Rangoon Apr. 15, 1910; cons. of class six by act approved Feb. 5, 1915; assigned to Swansea Sept. 17, 1915; class five July 6, 1918; assigned to Nantes Mar. 13, 1919; class three June 4, 1920; assigned to Stuttgart Dec. 23, 1921; to Dundee June 11, 1924; For. Ser. officer of class four July 1, 1924; assigned to Johannesburg Dec. 18, 1928; class three May 9, 1930; cons. gen. Mar. 10, 1931; assigned to Johannesburg July 1, 1931; married.

Moose, James Sayle, Jr.—b. Morrillton, Ark., Oct. 3, 1903; Ky. Mil. Inst.; Univ. of Mo., A. B. 1922; Universidad Nacional de México one term; bank clk. 1922; construction work 1922-23; merchant 1923-27; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass. and v. c. of career Jan. 13, 1928; assigned to the For. Ser. Scb. Jan. 20, 1928; to Saloniki June 12, 1928; assigned as language officer to the consulate general at Parls Aug. 12, 1930; also v. c. at Parls May 1, 1931; v. c. at Beirut, temp., June 17, 1932; v. c. and language officer at Parls Sept. 27, 1932; v. c. at Baghdad Apr. 20, 1933; sec. in the Diplo. Ser. May 11, 1933; assigned also as 3d sec. at Baghdad June 2, 1933; married.

More, Bolard.—b. Independence, Kans., Aug. 20, 1907; Montezuma Mountain Sch.; Stony Brook Sch. grad.; Princeton Univ.; Univ. of Grenoble, summer 1929; Allegheny Coll., A. B. 1930; clk. 1926-27; app. clk. in Am. Consulate at Puerto Plata Jan. 19, 1931; v. c. at Puerto Plata Aug. 4, 1931; at Port au Prince Jan. 2, 1932; clk. in Am. Leg. at Santo Domingo Feb. 6, 1932; v. c. at Santo Domingo Mar. 16, 1932; at Port au Prince June 9, 1932.

More, Ruth C.—b. Unionville, Iowa; high sch. grad.; attended business sch.; secretary 1927-28; stenog. 1929-30; app. clk. at \$1,260 in the Dept. of State May 16, 1930; at \$1,440 Feb. 1, 1931; at \$1,620 Dec. 11, 1931.—BA. Moreland, William Dawson, Jr.—b. Portland, Oreg., July 8, 1907; Principia Jr. Coll., grad. 1927; Stanford, A. B. 1929; app., after exam., For Ser. officer unclass., v. c. of career, and sec. in the Diplo. Ser. Apr. 15, 1930; assigned as v. c. at Vancouver Apr. 29, 1930; to the For. Ser. Sch. July 16, 1930; to Guayaquil Nov. 8, 1930; to Liverpool Oct. 5, 1931; to Antwerp Aug. 22, 1932; married.

Morgan, John Heath.—b. Lynn, Mass., Dec. 6, 1901; Harvard, S. B. 1924; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass. Sept. 11, 1925; v. c. of career May 20, 1926; assigned to Budapest May 25, 1926; class eight, cons., and assigned to Budapest July 24, 1930; to Berlin July 31, 1931; to the Dept. Nov. 8, 1933; married.—WE.

Moriarty, Francis Brandon.—b. Washington, D. C., June 12, 1884; attended business sch.; National Univ., LL. B. 1909, LL. M. 1910; mem. of bar of D. C.; elk. 1900-1905; with mfg. firm 1905-6; stenog.-clk., Dept. of Com. and Labor, 1906-10; law practice 1910-17; U. S. Army 1917-19, overseas service; graves registration service in France 1920-21; law practice in Paris 1921-23; app. clk. in Am. Consulate at St. Etienne Mar. 15, 1923; v. c. at St. Etienne Dec. 6, 1923; at Marseille Nov. 29, 1926; at Messina July 2, 1929; at Paris Dec. 2, 1930; at Calais, temp., July 21, 1931; at Paris Sept. 1, 1931; at Tunis Oct. 17, 1931; at Turin Mar. 11, 1932; married.

Moriarty, James Frederick (Capt.)—b. Holyoke, Mass., May 8, 1896; the Citadel, B.S. in C.E. 1917; Coll. of S. C.; entered U. S. Marine Corps May 1917; assigned as language officer at Peiping July 25, 1932; married.

Morin, Richard Wedge.—b. Albert Lea, Minn., Dec. 11, 1902; Shattuck Mil. Sch.; Dartmouth, B. A. 1924; Oxford 1924-25; Harvard, LL. B. 1928; L'École Libre des Sciences Politiques 1928-29; app. clk. in Am. Consulate General at Paris Mar. 1, 1929; app., after exam., For. Scr. officer unclass., v. c. of career, sec. In the Diplo. Ser., and assigned as v. c. at Paris Dec. 19, 1929; to the Dept. Nov. 14, 1932; married.—WE.

Morlock, George Albert .-- b. Winchenden, Mass., May 15, 1893; Clark Coll., A. B. 1916; French sch., Middlebury Coll., summer 1919; stenog-clk. 1916-17; U. S. Army 1917-19; app. clk. at \$1,200 in the Dept. of State Sept. 11, 1919; at \$1,400 Nov. 1, 1919; detailed as confidential clk. to accompany the sec. of state on mission to Rio de Janeiro 1922; clk., Conf. on Limitation of Armament, Washington, 1921-22; clk. to the sec. of state Apr. 14, 1922; drafting officer at \$2,500 May 20, 1924; at \$2,800 July 1, 1924; private sec. to asst. sec. of state at \$2,900 Nov. 1, 1927; at \$3,000 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$3,100 July 3, 1930 (Brookbart Act); sec. to the sec. of state on European trip 1931; clk., conf. of ministers for moratorium on intergovernmental debts, London, 1931; clk., 1st stage, Gen. Disarmament Conf., Geneva, 1932, and Int. Monetary and Economic Conf., London, 1933; married .- SA.

Morrill, Cleo B.—b. Logan Co., Kans., July 26, 1910; high sch. grad.; attended business sch.; shipping clk. 1929-30; app. clk. at \$1,260 in the Dept. of State Apr. 1, 1930; at \$1,440 Jan. 7, 1931.— A-C/C.

Morris, Dave Hennen.—b. New Orleans, La., Apr. 24, 1872; Harvard, A. B. 1896; New York Law Sch., LL. B. 1901; Columbia, A. M. 1909; tutors in France, Germany, and U. S.; mem. of bar of N. Y.; law practice since 1901; app. A. E. and P. to Belgium and E. E. and M. P. to Luxemburg May 18, 1933; married.

Morris, George H.—b. Maryland, Nov. 7, 1878; app., temp., in the Dept. of State May 7, 1918; asst. messenger, permanently, June 9, 1919.—BA.

Morris, Leland Burnette .- b. Fort Clark, Tex., Feb. 7. 1886; Emerson Inst.; Univ. of Pa. part of five yrs.; George Washington Univ. one yr.; app., after exam., student interpreter in Turkey Apr. 1, 1910; dep. cons. at Saloniki June 25, 1912; v. and dep. cons. at Saloniki Oct. 25, 1912; also interpreter Aug. 4, 1913; v. and dep. cons. gen. and interpreter at Smyrna Dec. 8, 1913; v. c. at Smyrna Feb. 6, 1915; detailed to the Dept. Dec. 31, 1917; cons. of class eight Feb. 19, 1918; detailed to Montreal June 3, 1918; to Constantinople Mar. 5, 1919; as cons. in charge at Saloniki June 7, 1919; class six Sept. 5, 1919; assigned to Saloniki June 23, 1920; class five Nov. 23, 1921; class four June 3, 1924; For. Ser. officer of class five July 1, 1924; assigned to Cologne Oct. 23, 1924; to Athens Nov. 27, 1926; class four June 8, 1927; cons. gen. and assigned to Athens Nov. 12, 1929; class three Dec. 26, 1929; sec. in the Diplo, Ser. Feb. 19, 1932; assigned also as 1st sec. at Athens Feb. 20, 1932; relieved of duties as cons. gen. July 15, 1932; assigned as cons. gen. at Athens Aug. 23, 1933; married.

Morris, Shiras, Jr.—b. Hartford, Conn., Apr. 23, 1905; Choate Sch. grad.; Harvard, A. B. 1927; teacher 1927-28; clk. 1928; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass., v. c. of career, and sec. in the Diplo. Ser. Jan. 22, 1931; assigned as v. c. at Guadalajara Feb. 6, 1931; to the For. Ser. Sch. Aug. 8, 1931; to Stuttgart Dec. 10, 1931; to Marseille Dec. 18, 1933; married.

Morrison, Dorothy D. (Mrs.)—b. Washington, D. C.; hlgh sch. grad.; attended business sch.; George Washington Univ. two yrs.; National Sch. of Domes. Arts and Sciences one yr.; clk., Dept. of State, 1918-19; app. clk. at \$1,100 in the Dept. of State Jan. 31, 1920; at \$1,200 Oct. 5, 1920, effective Oct. 1; at \$1,400 Apr. 1, 1921; at \$1,680 July 1, 1924; at \$1,800 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$1,860 July 1, 1928; at \$2,000 Sept. 1, 1928; at \$2,200 July 1, 1930.—FBO.

Morrison, Emily Selina.—b. Millers Place, N. Y.; attended public and private sch.; Gunston Hall; clk., Census Office, 1900-1905; app. clk. at \$900 in the Dept. of State Oct. 11, 1905; at \$1,000 July 1, 1907; at \$1,200 June 1, 1909; at \$1,400 Dec. 3, 1917;

67359-34-16

at \$1,600 Sept. 16, 1922; at \$1,860 July 1, 1924; at \$1,920 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$1,980 July 1, 1928; at \$2,040 July 1, 1930; at \$2,100 July 3, 1930 (Brookhart Act).—BA.

Morton, William Ross.—b. New Ulm, Minn., Dec. 23, 1878; attended high sch. and night law sch.; mining company 1896-1900; chief immigration insp. in Cuba 1900-1902; U. S. Immigration Ser. 1902-18; U. S. Shipping Bd. investigations 1918-22; app. v. c. at Athens Jan. 18, 1922; at Glasgow Mar. 6, 1933; married.

Mosburg, Earl Raymond.—b. Lime Kiln, Md., Sept. 9, 1897; high sch. grad.; National Univ., LL. B. 1926; clk., War Dept., 1918-19; app. clk. at \$900 in the Dept. of State Jan. 4, 1919; at \$1,000 Aug. 1, 1919; at \$1,200 Dec. 31, 1920, effective Jan. 1, 1921; at \$1,400 Oct. 1, 1923; at \$1,680 July 1, 1924; at \$1,400 Mar. 16, 1925; at \$2,100 June 1, 1925; at \$2,200 Mar. 1, 1927; private sec. to the sec. of state at \$3,000 May 1, 1927; at \$3,200 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$3,300 July 1, 1928; at \$3,500 July 1, 1930; at \$3,800 Nov. 1, 1930; married.—S.

Moses, Henry Claremont.—b. Sumter, S. C., Dec. 25, 1890; Clemson Coll. one and one-half yrs.; Brown Univ. one yr.; Emerson Inst.; U. S. Army 1918-19; app. clk. in Am. Consulate at Pernambuco Dec. 1920; v. c. at Pernambuco July 16, 1921; at Rosario Jan. 17, 1922; at Asunción Sept. 10, 1924; at Buenos Aires Oct. 1, 1925; resigned Mar. 1, 1926; app. v. c. at Rosario Oct. 7, 1927; resigned Nov. 20, 1931; app. v. c. at Saltillo Jan 15, 1932; married.

Moss, Marjorie.—b. Washington, D. C.; high sch. grad.; app. clk., temp., at \$1,140 in the Dept. of State July 6, 1918; at \$1,200 Feb. 1, 1919; at \$1,320 Feb. 1, 1920; at \$1,400 Oct. 5, 1920, effective Oct. 1; permanently, at \$1,400 Feb. 1, 1921; at \$1,200 Aug. 16, 1921; at \$1,400 Sept. 1, 1922; at \$1,860 July 1, 1924; at \$1,920 Dec. 1, 1925; at \$2,100 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$2,200 Sept. 1, 1928; at \$2,300 Nov. 1, 1928; at \$2,500 July 1, 1930.—VD.

Moylan, Edward C.—b. Waymart, Pa., May 8, 1880; business sch. grad.; St. Thomas Coll.; Y.M.C.A. Sch. of Accountancy 1919-20; National Univ., LL.B. 1928; teacher in public sch. 1900-1902; accountant 1902-7; post office clk. and Civil Service examiner 1907-19; cost accountant, Alien Property Custodian, 1919-30; app. clk. at \$2,000 in the Dept. of State Dec. 1, 1930; married.—BA.

Muccio, John Joseph.—b. Valle Agricola, Italy, Mar. 19, 1900; naturalized 1921; Brown Univ., Ph. B. 1921; George Washington, A. M. 1923; U. S. Army 1918; app., after exam., cons. asst. Aug. 15, 1921; v. c. of career of class three Nov. 23, 1923; assigned to Hamburg Jan. 2, 1924; For. Ser. officer unclass. July 1, 1924; assigned to Hong Kong Mar. 16, 1926; class eight June 30, 1927; cons. and assigned to Hong Kong July 16, 1927; to Yunnanfu, temp., Feb. 23, 1928; to Hong Kong Mar. 7, 1928; to Foochow Mar. 10, 1930; class seven July 24, 1930; assigned to Shanghai Feb. 7, 1931. Mullen, Ann Elizabeth.—b. Honesdale, Pa.; high sch. grad.; attended business sch.; stenog., War Dept., 1918–20; app. clk. at \$900 in the Dept. of State Nov. 24, 1920; at \$1,000 Sept. 1, 1922; at \$1,100 Feb. 1, 1924; at \$1,200 May 31, 1924, effective June 1; at \$1,440 July 1, 1924; at \$1,500 Mar. 1, 1927; at \$1,560 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$1,620 Aug. 1, 1928; at \$1,800 May 1, 1929; at \$1,920 July 1, 1930; at \$1,980 July 3, 1930 (Brookhart Act); at \$2,000 Sept. 1, 1931; clk., Int. Monetary and Economic Conf., London, 1933.—A-M.

Mullins, Velda D. (Mrs.)—b. Newport, Iowa; high sch. grad.; attended business sch.; app. clk. at \$1,440 in the Dept. of State Sept. 30, 1929; at \$1,620 Apr. 1, 1930; at \$1,740 July 1, 1930.—FE.

Mundy, Louis Edward .- b. Huntingburg, Ind., Feb. 15, 1892; attended high sch. and business sch.; stenog. and clk. 1913-17; app. clk. at \$900 in the Dept. of State June 1, 1917; at \$1,000 Sept. 25, 1917; at \$1,200, temp., Aug. 1, 1918; clk., Am. Commn. to Negotiate Peace, Paris, 1918-19; at \$1,200, permanently, Nov. 1, 1919; at \$1,400 Dec. 31, 1919, effective Jan. 1, 1920; clk., Fifth Int. Conf. of Am. States, Santiago, Chile, 1923; at \$1,600 May 31, 1924, effective June 1; at \$1,860 July 1, 1924; at \$2,100 Jan. 16, 1925; private sec. to asst. sec. of state at \$2,400 June 1, 1925; at \$2,500 Nov. 1, 1927; at \$2,700 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$2,800 July 1, 1928; clk., London Naval Conf., 1930; at \$2,900 July 1, 1930; sec. to the under sec. of state May 1, 1931; married.-U.

Munson, Frederick Prall (1st Lt.)—b. Madison Barracks, N. Y., June 19, 1904; private tutors in Philippines and Japau; St. John's Mil. Acad., Delafield, Wis., grad.; U.S.M.A., grad. 1926; assigned as language officer at Tokyo May 9, 1932.

Murdock, James Oliver .- b. Wichita, Kans., June 23, 1893; attended sch. in Mexico; Univ. of Chicago, Ph. B. 1916; Acad. of Int. Law at The Hague 1923; Harvard, LL. B. 1924; mem. of bar of N. Y.; investment banking 1916-17; U. S. Army 1917-21, capt.; law practice 1924-25; asst. U. S. attorney 1925-27; app. drafting officer and asst. to the solicitor at \$2,400 in the Dept. of State Oct. 1, 1927; at \$2,600 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$2,700 July 1, 1928; at \$3,200 Oct. 1, 1928; sec. to Am. del., Int. Conf. of Am. States on Conciliation and Arbitration, Washington, 1928-29; at \$4,600 Mar. 1, 1929; at \$5,000 July 1, 1930; counsel for U.S. before Int. Jt. Commn., U. S. and Canada; asst. to the legal adviser July 1, 1931; counsel for U. S., U. S .- Sweden Arbitration, 1932; married.-LE.

Murdock, Myra A.—b. Anne Arundel Co., Md.; attended public sch.; app. clk., temp., in the Dept. of State Jan. 10, 1915; permanently at \$900, under Ex. order, June 22, 1916, effective July 1; at \$1,000 Sept. 22, 1917; at \$1,200 Nov. 18, 1918; at \$1,440 July 1, 1924; at \$1,500 Mar. 1, 1927; at \$1,560 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$1,620 July 1, 1930; at \$1,680 July 3, 1930 (Brookhart Act).—PD.

Murphy, James Joseph, Jr.-b. Philadelphia, Pa., Nov. 19, 1887; Univ. of Pa., LL. B. 1911, and grad. work; mem. of bar of Pa.; law practice 1911-16; app., after exam., cons. asst. Aug. 30, 1916; assigned as v. c. at Genoa Oct. 26, 1916; v. c. of career of class three Sept. 27, 1919; assigned to Genoa Oct. 22, 1919; class two May 24, 1920; assigned to Lucerne Sept. 15, 1921; class one Nov. 17, 1921; cons. of class seven June 22, 1922; For. Ser. officer of class eight July 1, 1924; assigned to Santo Domingo Sept. 24, 1925; class seven Dec. 17, 1925; assigned to the Dept. May 23, 1928; in charge of political section, Cons. Cml. Office, May 6, 1929; class six Oct. 16, 1929; resigned Mar. 23, 1931; app. chief, Cons. Cml. Office, at \$5,600 in the Dept. of State Mar. 24, 1931; representative of the Dept. of State, Sixth Gen. Cong. of the Int. Chamber of Com., Washington, 1931; married.-A-C/C.

Murphy, Raymond Edward.—b. Lewiston, Me., Aug. 31, 1808; Bates Coll., A. B. 1920; Georgetown, I.L. B. 1923; mem. of bar of Me. and D. C.; U. S. Army 1918; app. clk. at \$1,000 in the Dept. of State Aug. 10, 1920; at \$1,200 Dec. 1, 1921; at \$1,680 July 1, 1924; at \$1,740 Mar. 1, 1927; asst. economic analyst at \$2,400 Nov. 1, 1927; at \$2,600 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$2,700 July 1, 1928; at \$2,800 July 1, 1930.—EE.

Murphy, Robert Daniel.—b. Milwaukee, Wis., Oct. 28, 1894; Marquette Acad.; Marquette Univ.; George Washington, LL. B., LL. M.; mem. of bar of D. C.; clk. in Post Office Dept. 1916–17; clk. in Am. leg. at Berne 1917–19; asst. to chief, Treas. Dept. 1919–20; app., after exam., v. c. of career of class three Sept. 7, 1920; assigned to Zürich Apr. 2, 1921; detailed to Munich Oct. 7, 1921; assigned to Munich Nov. 15, 1921; class two May 26, 1922; class one Feb. 26, 1923; cons. of class seven Dec. 19, 1923; For. Ser. officer of class eight July 1, 1924; assigned to Seville Aug. 19, 1925; class seven Aug. 31, 1925; assigned to the Dept. Mar. 16, 1926; class six June 30, 1927; class five May 23, 1929; assigned to Paris Mar. 26, 1930; class four Feb. 4, 1931; married.

Murray, Lee.—b. Hereford, W.Va., Aug. 6, 1896; high sch. grad.; attended private and business schs.; private tutors; clk. and telegraph operator 1913-17; clk., Dept. of State, 1917-18, 1918-20; radio electrician, U.S. Naval Reserve Force, 1918; clk in Am. emb. at Tokyo 1920-23; app. clk. in Am. leg. at Peiping Sept. 22, 1924; v.c. at Moscow Feb. 10, 1934; married.

Murray, Wallace (Smith)—b. Bardstown, Ky., Mar. 10, 1887; Wittenberg Coll., A. B. 1909; Harvard, A. M. 1913; Columbia Univ. 1917; Sorbonne 1919; master, Univ. Sch., Cleveland, 1913–20; U. S. Army, 1917–19, 1st lt., overseas service; app., after exam., sec. of emb. or leg. of class four, Mar. 22, 1920; assigned to Budapest July 29, 1920; to Teheran Jan. 7, 1922; class three Mar. 23, 1922; For. Ser. officer of class six July 1, 1924; class five Oct. 17, 1924; assigned to the Dept. Apr. 10, 1925; asst. chief, Divlsion of Near Eastern Affairs, Aug. 23, 1927; class four Aug. 24, 1927; sent on special mission to the Near East Sept.-Oct. 1929; resigned Oct. 31, 1929; app. chief, Division of Near Eastern Affairs, at \$6,500 Nov. 1, 1929; at \$8,000 July 1, 1930; married.-NE.

Murray, William Ballew.—b. Downing, Mo., July 16, 1892; attended high sch.; business sch. grad.; secretary 1910-12; clk., Dept. of Agric., 1912-14, in Office of Public Roads and Rural Engineering, Calif., 1914-17, in Bolivla 1917-18; sec. to mgr. of automobile firm 1918-21; app. clk. in Am. Consulate General at Habana Jan. 22, 1921; v. c. at Habana Oct. 17, 1924; married.

††Muse, Benjamin .- b. Durham, N. C., Apr. 17, 1898; Trinity Coll. (N. C.) two yrs.; George Washington Univ. one yr. ; L'École Libre des Sciences Politiques one yr.; newspaper reporter and corr. in Mexico 1913-15; Brit. Army 1917-19; app. clk. in the Dept. of State Sept. 5, 1919; app., after exam., sec. of emb. or leg. of class four Apr. 7, 1920, and assigned to the Dept.; to Copenhagen June 14, 1920; to Managua Mar. 1, 1922; to Mexico City Sept. 29, 1922; class three Jan. 23, 1924; For. Ser. officer of class six July 1, 1924; assigned as 2d sec. at San Salvador July 18, 1924; at Paris Jan. 10, 1925; class five Oct. 19. 1926; assigned to Habana June 1, 1928 (canceled); to Panama Nov. 27, 1928; to Bogota May 6, 1930; 1st sec. July 18, 1930; class four July 24, 1930; assigned to Montevideo June 18, 1931; to the Dept. Nov. 17, 1933 ; couns. to Am. del., Seventh Int. Conf. of Am. States, Montevideo, 1933; resigned Mar. 15, 1934; married.

Myers, David Jackson Duke.-b. La Fayette, Ga., Apr. 5, 1877; Univ. of Ga., A. B. 1900, grad. work 1900-1901; principal of sch. 1900-1901; teacher in Philippine Is. 1901-3, 1905; civil engineer, Imperial Chinese Railway Admin., 1903-5; surveyor, Bu. of Lands, Philippine Is., 1905-12; app., after exam., cons. at Puerto Cortes Aug. 24, 1912; at Iquique Apr. 24, 1914; cons. of class seven by act approved Feb. 5, 1915; assigned to Punta Arenas Mar. 2, 1915; detailed to Buenos Aires Nov. 3, 1917; assigned to Montevideo July 21, 1919; class five Sept. 5, 1919; class four June 4, 1920; detailed to the Dept. Apr. 6, 1923; to San Luis Potosí Aug. 30, 1923; assigned to Durango Sept. 21, 1923; For. Ser. officer of class five July 1, 1924; assigned to Chihuahua May 24, 1928; to Tegucigalpa Apr. 3, 1929; class four May 9, 1930; assigned to San José, Costa Rica, Feb. 17, 1931; to Tenerife Nov. 28, 1933; married.

Myers, Ethel.—b. Marion, Pa.; Pa. State Normal Sch. grad. 1905; Irving Coll., A. B. 1909; Univ. of Chicago, Ph. B. 1918; teacher in high sch. 1906–7, 1910–17; app. clk., temp., at \$1,200 in the Dept. of State Aug. 1, 1918; permanently, at \$1,000 Feb. 1, 1921; at \$1,200 Aug. 16, 1921; at \$1,400 Mar. 1, 1924; at \$1,860 July 1, 1924; at \$1,920 Mar. 1, 1927; at \$2,100 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$2,200 July 1, 1928; at \$2,300 July 1, 1930.—PD.

Myers, Harry Dustin.—b. Litchfield, Ill., Oct. 1, 1874; attended high sch. and business sch.; with railways in Mexico 1896-1910; sec. and treas. of company 1910-18; recruiting for Govt. explosives plant 1918-19; fruit grower and clk. 1919-21; app. clk. in Am. Consulate General at Panama May 1, 1921; v. c. at Panama Sept. 3, 1921; at Buenaventura, temp., Apr. 1, 1924; at Panama Sept. 17, 1924; at Colon, temp., July 9, 1929; at Buenaventura June 17, 1930; at Cali June 15, 1932; at Panamá Jan. 30, 1933; married.

Myers, Louis Samuel.—b. Washington, D. C., Apr. 2, 1873; laborer, Dept. of Com. and Labor, 1902–12; app. laborer in the Dept. of State Apr. 6, 1912; asst. messenger Mar. 1, 1919; messenger Apr. 1, 1922.—S.

Myers, Maude.—b. Vicars, Va.; hlgh sch. grad.; attended buslness sch.; cashier and bookkeeper 1908– 14; clk. In Govt. depts. 1924–25; bookkeeper and stenog. 1925–26; app. clk. at \$1,140 in the Dept. of State Apr. 5, 1926; at \$1,320 Mar. 1, 1927; at \$1,440 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$1,500 July 1, 1928; at \$1,620 Feb. 1, 1929; at \$1,740 July 1, 1930.—DCR.

Myers, Myrl Scott .- b. Mechanicsburg, Pa., Feb. 17, 1886; business sch. grad.; Dickinson Coll., Ph.B. 1906, M. A. 1907; mem. of har of Shanghai, China; principal of public sch. 1906-7; app., after exam., student interpreter in China Aug. 27, 1907; v. and dep. cons. gen. and interpreter at Canton Nov. 1, 1909; at Tientsin Dec. 1, 1910; at Mukden July 25, 1911; cons. at Swatow Nov. 24, 1913; cons. of class eight by act approved Feb. 5, 1915; class six Mar. 2, 1915. and assigned to Chungking; to Swatow Mar. 20, 1917; class five Sept. 5, 1919; assigned to Yunnanfu Dec. 27, 1921; For. Ser. officer of class six July 1, 1924; class five Aug. 8, 1924; assigned to Mukden Feb. 1, 1927; class four Dec. 19, 1929; cons. gen. and assigned to Mukden Jan. 9, 1930; to the Dept. June 20, 1934; married.-FE.

Myers, Nellie Vass (Mrs.)—b. Danville, Va.; attended public sch., Randolph-Macon Inst., and Gunston Hall; app. clk., temp., at \$840 in the Dept. of State Oct. 13, 1917; at \$990 Mar. 1, 1918; at \$1,080 July 1, 1918; at \$1,140 Feb. 1, 1920; permanently, at \$900 Feb. 1, 1921; at \$1,000 Aug. 16, 1921; at \$1,080 Oct. 16, 1922; at \$1,140 Dec. 30, 1922, effective Jan. 1, 1923; at \$1,200 Oct. 1, 1923; at \$1,680 July 1, 1924; at \$1,860 Jan. 1, 1928; at \$2,000 July 1, 1928; welch Act); at \$2,100 July 1, 1928; at \$2,200 July 1, 1930.—PD.

Myers, Willys A.—b. Van Meter, Iowa, Jan. 20, 1882; high sch. grad.; Highland Park Coll., Des Moines, Iowa; druggist 1907-8; clk. in Mexico City six yrs.; app. clk. in Am. Consulate at Vera Cruz Mar. 21, 1917; v. c. at Vera Cruz Feb. 11, 1919; at Mexicall Nov. 24, 1930; married.

Nabel, Eugene W.—b. Chemnitz, Germany, Oct. 28, 1879; naturalized 1903; attended high sch. In Germany and business sch. in Germany and U. S.; cml. work and newspaper reporter 1899-1907; app. v. and dep. cous. gen. at St. Gall Sept. 9, 1907; v. and dep. cons. July 1, 1908; at Amsterdam Mar. 19, 1914; v. c. at Amsterdam by act approved Feb. 5, 1915; at Rotterdam Nov. 7, 1921.

Nash, James Alan.—b. Dublin, Ireland, Apr. 6, 1883; Am. citizen; private tutors; attended public sch. and bushess sch.; In law office one yr.; sec. to mem. of Cong. four yrs.; farmer one yr.; app. clk., temp., at \$900 in the Dept. of State Dec. 16, 1914; permanently, at \$1,000, under Ex. order, June 22, 1916, effective July 1; at \$1,200 Apr. 7, 1917; at \$1,400 Aug. 1, 1918; at \$1,600 Aug. 5, 1920; at \$1,800 June 1, 1922; at \$2,400 July 1, 1924; at \$2,600 Feb. 1, 1926; at \$2,700 Jan. 1, 1928; at \$2,800 July 1, 1928 (Weich Act); at \$2,900 July 1, 1928; at \$3,000 July 1, 1930; at \$3,100 July 3, 1930 (Brookhart Act).—LE.

Nasmith, Charles Roy .-- b. Mannsville, N. Y., July 18, 1882; Colgate Univ., A. B. 1904, A. M. 1916; Harvard Law Sch. three months; teacher in acad. 1904-6; app. clk. in Am. Consulate at Limoges Feb. 20, 1907; v. c. at Limoges Apr. 22, 1907; v. and dep. cons. gen. at Brussels May 29, 1911; app., after exam., cons. asst. Nov. 27, 1912; cons. agt. at Quibdo Feb. 26, 1914 (canceled); v. c. at Brussels Feb. 6, 1915; detailed to Amsterdam Mar. 24, 1917: assigned to Rotterdam Jan. 23, 1918; cons. of class eight Feb. 19, 1918; assigned to Ghent Dec. 17, 1918; on detail at Brussels Dec. 26, 1918, to May 14, 1919, before proceeding to Ghent; class six Sept. 5, 1919; class five Nov. 23, 1921; assigned to Newcastle-on-Tyne Apr. 10, 1924; For. Ser. officer of class six July 1, 1924; assigned to Porto Alegre Apr. 8, 1927; class five Oct. 16, 1929; to Marseille Oct. 29, 1931; married.

Nathan, Edward Isaac.—b. Philadelphia, Pa., July 10, 1878; Univ. of Pa., A. B. 1902, LL. B. 1905; mem. of bar of Pa.; law practice 1905-7; app., after exam., cons. at Patras Aug. 15, 1907; at Mersine May 4, 1909; v. pres., Int. Relief Committee, Adana, Turkey, 1909; cons. of class eight by act approved Feb. 5, 1915; class seven Mar. 2, 1915; assigned to Vigo Dec. 8, 1917; class six Sept. 5, 1919; class five June 4, 1920; assigned to Palermo Nov. 2, 1921; For. Ser. officer of class six July 1, 1924; class five Dec. 17, 1925; on leave of absence Sept. 21, 1927; assigned to Santiago, Cuba, Mar. 1, 1928; class four July 24, 1930; assigned to Monterrey Dec. 9, 1930; married.

Neal, Jack Davis.—b. Leland, Miss., June 28, 1908; high sch. grad.; Univ. of Tex. 1926-30; app. clk. in Am. Consulate at Barranquilla Aug. 16, 1930; v. c. at Barranquilla Mar. 18, 1931; at Bluefields Dec. 2, 1931; at Mexico City for duty iu the dist. acct. and disbursing office Sept. 15, 1932.

Neiburg, Burdette E.—b. West Point, Nebr., Sept. 24, 1905; Univ. of Nebr., A. B. 1929; George Washington Univ. 1930; newspaper reporter 1925-26; proofreader 1928; app. editorial asst. at \$1,800 in the Dept. of State June 2, 1930; married.—RP.

Nester, Alfred Tyrrell.—b. Geneva, N. Y., July 19, 1898; Lawrenceville Sch.; Hobart Coll., 1918; ambulance driver with Norton-Harjes Ambulance Corps in France 1917; with Am. Red Cross 1918; app. v. c. at Naples Nov. 22, 1919; app., after exam., v. c. of career of class three May 26, 1922; assigned to Naples June 23, 1922; to Havre Mar. 30, 1923; class two Nov. 23, 1923; assigned to Christiania (Oslo) June 18, 1924; For. Ser. officer unclass. July 1, 1924; class eight and cons. Dec. 17, 1925; assigned to Naples Mar. 18, 1926; class seven Oct. 16, 1929; assigned to Cardiff Apr. 30, 1930; class six July 1, 1931; to Tunis Nov. 18, 1931; to Palermo Apr. 19, 1933; married.

Neville, Edwin Lowe .- b. Cleveland, Ohio, Nov. 16, 1884; Univ. of Mich., A. B. 1907, grad. work one semester; app., after exam., student interpreter in Japan Aug. 27, 1907; also v. and dep. cons. at Dalny Aug. 6 to Sept. 30, 1909; app. interpreter to the Consulate General at Seoul Mar. 29, 1910; also v. and dep. cons. gen. Feb. 25, 1911; v. and dep. cons. at Dalny Nov. 10, 1911; v. and dep. cons. gen. and interpreter at Seoul Jan. 17, 1912; cons. at Antung Sept. 18, 1913; at Tansul May 5, 1914; cons. of class seven by act approved Feb. 5, 1915; class six Oct. 27, 1916, and assigned to Nagasaki; class five Sept. 5, 1919; detailed to the Dept. Dec. 16, 1919; class four June 4, 1920; expert asst., Conf. on Limitation of Armament, Washington, 1921-22; class three Nov. 19, 1921; representative on Advisory Bd. to Federal Narcotics Control Bd. 1922; cons. gen. of class four June 5, 1924; For. Scr. officer of class three July 1, 1924; del., Int. Narcotics Conf., Geneva, 1924-25; app. sec. in the Diplo. Ser. Mar. 9, 1925; assigned as Japanese sec. and 1st sec. at Tokyo Mar. 14, 1925; cons. gen. at Tokyo Sept. 18, 1925; class two June 8, 1927; couns. of emb. at Tokyo Apr. 12, 1928; class one Oct. 16, 1929; married.

Newbegin, Robert, 2d.—b. Bangor, Me., Feb. 5, 1905; Rivers Sch. grad.; Unlv. of Grenoble, summer 1925; Yale, B. A. 1927; Harvard Law Sch. 1927–29; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass., v. c. of career, and sec. in the Diplo. Ser. Apr. 15, 1930; assigned as v. c. at Berlin Apr. 29, 1930; to the For. Ser. Sch. Feb. 11, 1931; to Montevideo June 20, 1931; as 3d sec. at Mexico City Apr. 10, 1933; married.

Newcomb, Anna Belle.—b. Loraine, Ohio; high sch. and business sch. grad.; stenog. at Smith Coll. 1924; app. clk. at \$1,200 in the Dept. of State June 16, 1924; at \$1,500 July 1, 1924; at \$1,560 Mar. 1, 1927; at \$1,860 July 1, 1927; at \$2,000 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$2,100 July 1, 1928; stenog., London Naval Conf., 1930; at \$2,300 July 1, 1930.—A-S.

Newcomb, Robert M.—b. Vincennes, Ind., Nov. 24, 1880; high sch. grad.; attended business sch.; private tutors; clk. 1901-7; app. v. and dep. cons. at Victoria, B. C., Canada, Mar. 25, 1907; resigned Sept. 30, 1911; reapp. Mar. 30, 1912; resigned July 18, 1912; reapp. Feb. 2, 1914; v. c. at Victoria by act approved Feb. 5, 1915; at Prince Rupert, temp., June 3, 1926; at Victoria June 23, 1926. Newkirk, Meigs Erastus.—b. Duplin Co., N. C., July 28, 1900; attended high sch.; Emerson Inst. grad.; Univ. of Md. 1924; messenger, Govt. Printing Office, 1917-18; U. S. Army 1918-19; salesman and agt. 1920-23; app. clk. at \$1,320 in the Dept. of State Aug. 10, 1925; at \$1,500 Mar. 1, 1927; at \$1,620 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$1,740 July 1, 1930; at \$1,800 July 27, 1931; married.—FA.

Newton, Joseph Emerson.—b. Dixon, Ill., May 26, 1903; Harvard, A. B. 1926, A. M. 1927; instructor in Univ. of Pittsburgh 1927-28; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass., v. c. of career, and sec. in the Diplo. Ser. Dec. 16, 1930; assigned as v. c. at Montreal, temp., Dec. 29, 1930; to the For. Ser. Sch. Dec. 23, 1931; to Nagoya Apr. 7, 1932; married.

Niccoli, Frank Charles.—b. Trinidad, Colo., Nov. 19, 1892; Denver Univ. one and one-half yrs.; Denver Law Sch. three yrs.; law clk. one yr; U. S. Army 1918-19; app. clk. in Am. Consulate at Milan Oct. 1, 1919; v. e. at Milan Jan. 19, 1929; married.

Nicholas, Ashley Johnson.—b. Sonora, Ky., Feb. 28, 1900; Univ. of Ky. 1918; Columbus Univ., LL. B. 1925; Washington Coll. of Law, LL. M. 1927; American Univ. 1928–29; mem. of bar of D. C.; U. S. Army 1918; clk., War Dept., 1919–27; app. law clk. at \$1,860 in the Dept. of State July 11, 1927; at \$2,000 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$2,600 Feb. 1, 1929; at \$2,800 July 1, 1930; married.—PD.

Nicholls, Wilbur Ernest.—b. Hartford, Conn., Aug. 4, 1894; attended public sch.; clk., asst. foreman, and collector 1909-19; U. S. Army 1919-28; app. clk. at \$1,320 in the Dept. of State Apr. 21, 1928; at \$1,440 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$1,620 Apr. 21, 1930; at \$1,680 July 1, 1930; married.—DCR.

Nicholson, Meredith.—b. Crawfordsville, Ind., Dec. 9, 1866; attended high sch.; private tutors; studied law and languages; mem. of bar of Ind.; law clk. 1884-86; journalist 1886-98; mining 1898-1901; author, essayist, and lecturer 1900-1933; app. E.E. and M.P. to Paraguay Aug. 19, 1933; married.

Nickens, Waldra Tony.—b. Washington, D. C., Jan. 4, 1907; employed in Office of Public Bldgs. and Public Parks 1928-29; app. messenger in the Dept. of State Oct. 4, 1929.—RP.

Nielsen, Niels I.—b. Fresno, Calif., Jan. 17, 1898; Univ. of Calif., B.S. 1921; grad. work 1920–21; agric. statistician and crop and live stock estimator, Fed.-State Crop Reporting Service, Calif., 1922–29; app. agric. commr., Dept. of Agric., Dec. 1, 1929; in charge of Marseille office of For. Agric. Service May 1, 1930; agric. att. at Paris May 27, 1933; del., Third Int. Cong. of Technicians and Chemists in Agric. Industries, Paris, 1934; Am. rep., meeting of experts to consider unification of modes of presenting results of analysis of wine, Rome, 1934; married.

Nielsen, Orsen Norman.—b. Beloit, Wis., Sept. 22, 1892; high sch. grad.; Univ. of Wis. two and onehalf yrs.; Univ. of Berlin 1921-22; newspaper work in U. S. and Canada 1914-16; app. clk. in Am. Consulate General at Moscow Dec. 28, 1916; v. c. at Moscow Mar. 15, 1918; at Stockholm Sept. 14, 1918; app., after exam., v. c. of career of class three Sept. 27, 1919; assigned to Stockholm Dec. 12, 1919; class two May 24, 1920; detailed to office of Am. Commr. at Berlin Mar. 18, 1921; assigned to Berlin Nov. 15, 1921; class one Nov. 17, 1921; cons. of class seven June 22, 1922; class slx June 3, 1924; For. Ser. officer of class seven July 1, 1924; detailed to Dublin July 12, 1924; assigned to Teheran Mar. 9, 1926; class six June 8, 1927; assigned to the Dept. May 29, 1928; class five Dec. 19, 1929; sec. in the Diplo. Ser. June 1, 1932.

Nimmer, David Rowan (Capt.)—b. St. Louis, Mo., Oct. 14, 1894; attended private sch.; entered U.S. Marine Corps Nov. 1912; language officer at Peiping 1931-32; assigned as asst. naval att. at Moscow Feb. 8, 1934; married.

Noe, Ira James.—b. Washington, D. C., Feb. 5, 1897; Emerson Inst. grad.; Univ. of Md. 1921-23; U. S. Army 1914-19, Mexican border and overseas service; clk. in Govt. depts. 1919-20, 1924; automobile ignition work 1924-25; clk. in express company 1925-26; app. clk. at 1,320 in the Dept. of State Feb. 4, 1926; at 1,380 Mar. 1, 1927; at 1,500 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at 1,620 July 1, 1928; at 1,620 Apr. 1, 1930; at 1,680 July 1, 1930; married.—DCR.

Norman, Clyde L.—b. Stigler, Okla., Sept. 6, 1910; high sch. and business sch. grad.; George Washington Univ. 1931-32; Blackstone Legal Training Inst. 1934-; instructor in business sch. 1929; junior typist, Dept. of Labor, 1929-30; app. clk. at \$1,440 in the Dept. of State May 12, 1930; at \$1,560 July 1, 1930; at \$1,620 Mar. 1, 1931.—AP.

Norquist, Gordon.—b. San Francisco, Calif., Nov. 1, 1893; attended business sch. and engineering sch.; U. S. Navy 1917-19; clk. 1920-21; app. clk. at \$1,400 in the San Francisco Passport Agency of the Dept. of State Nov. 16, 1921; at \$1,500 Aug. 1, 1924; asst. passport agt. at San Francisco at \$2,000 Jan. 1, 1928; at \$2,200 July 1, 1928; at \$2,800 Jan. 1, 1929; at \$2,400 Aug. 1, 1929; at \$2,600 May 1, 1930.

Norris, Emanuel, Jr.—b. Spartanburg, S. C., Feb. 15, 1907; laborer, Navy Yard, 1929-31; app. laborer in the Dept. of State July 20, 1931.—CC.

North, Oliver B.—b. New Haven, Conn., July 24, 1885; Yale, B. A.; in business in Canada and Cuba; in sales and foundry work 16 yrs.; app. asst. trade commr. at Ottawa July 16, 1926; asst. cml. att. at Ottawa May 31, 1927; trade commr. at Toronto July 16, 1928; asst. cml. att. at Ottawa Nov. 16, 1928;

Norweb, R. Henry.—b. Nottingham, England, May 31, 1894; Am. citizen; Harvard A. B. 1916; private sec. to Am. Amb, in Paris 1916–17; app., after exam., sec. of emb. or leg. of class four Mar. 16, 1917; assigned to Paris Mar. 17, 1917; class three Aug. 23, 1917; assigned to the Dept. May 26, 1921; class two Mar. 26, 1922; assigned to Tokyo Aug. 11, 1923; For. Ser. officer of class four July 1, 1924; assigned as 1st sec. at The Hague May 1, 1925; class three Aug. 31, 1925; assigned as 1st sec. at Santiago, Chile, July 25, 1929; Int. Radio Conf., The Hague, 1929; to the Dept. Dec. 31, 1929; class two May 9, 1930; couns. of emb. at Santiago, Chile, May 26, 1930; at Mexico City Nov. 3, 1933; couns. to Am. del., Seventh Int. Couf. of Am. States, Montevideo, 1933; married.

Notson, Lena L. (Mrs.)—b. Smithton, Mo.; Univ. of Mo., A. B. 1922, M. A. 1926; Univ. of Chicago, grad. work one yr.; teacher in high sch. 1922-23; library asst. 1925-27; app. library asst. at \$1,440 in the Dept. of State Feb. 1, 1932.—RP.

Oakes, Calvin Hawley.—b. Galveston, Tex., Aug. 7, 1904; St. Lukes Sch. grad.; Yale, B. A. 1926; L'École Libre des Sciences Politiques 1928-29; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass., v. c. of career, and sec. in the Diplo. Ser. June 4, 1930; assigned as v. c. at London June 10, 1930; to the For. Ser. Sch. Aug. 8, 1931; to Genoa Dec. 9, 1931; to Kingston, Jamaica, Aug. 12, 1933.

Ocheltree, John Burdon.—b. Riverside, Calif., Oct. 11, 1903; Univ. of Nev., B. A. 1925; Rhodes scholar, Oxford, B. A. 1929; Princeton, M. A. 1931; clk. 1925-26; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass., v. c. of career, and sec. in the Diplo. Ser. Dec. 16, 1930; assigned as v. c. at Hamburg Jan. 14, 1931; to the For. Ser. Sch. Mar. 18, 1932; to Seville July 26, 1932; married.

O'Donoghue, Sidney Eugene.-b. Emmitsburg, Md., Aug. 20, 1895; Mt. St. Mary's Coll., Fordham Univ., and Georgetown Sch. of For. Ser.; U. S. Army 1917-19; app. clk. at \$900 in the Dept. of State Nov. 19, 1919; v. c. at Vladivostok Feb. 2, 1920; at Singapore Apr. 2, 1920; at Trieste Oct. 5, 1921; at Athens Jan. 30, 1922; app., after exam., v. c. of career of class three May 26, 1922; assigned to Athens June 23, 1922; to Saloniki Nov. 2, 1922; class two Feb. 26, 1923; assigned to Patras Sept. 12, 1923; to Saloniki Sept. 14, 1923; class one Nov. 23, 1923; assigned to Prague Jan. 4, 1924; For. Ser. officer unclass. July 1, 1924; class eight Feb. 24, 1925; cons. Mar. 3, 1925; assigned to Malta Mar. 1, 1926; app. sec. in the Diplo. Ser. Nov. 12, 1929; assigned as 3d sec. at Berlin Dec. 10, 1929; class seven Dec. 26, 1929; as 2d sec. at Guatemala May 22, 1934; married.

Ogg, Mary Pritchard (Mrs.)—b. Staunton, Va.; Virginia Female Inst., A. B.; George Washington Univ. 1928-29; Chicago Univ. Ext. 1929; American Univ. 1920-31; teacher in public sch. five yrs; teacher of Eng. and hist. in high sch. 1919; clk. in Govt. depts. 1919-26; app. editorial asst. at \$1,500 in the Dept. of State Feb. 9, 1926; at \$1,560 Mar. 1, 1927; at \$1,680 Apr. 1, 1927; at \$1,800 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$1,920 July 1, 1930.—RP. O'Keefe, John John.—b. Jerome, Ariz., Aug. 21, 1895; Univ. of Ariz., B. S. 1920; U. S. Army 1917-18, 2d It.; labor foreman 1923-24; clk. 1924-25; customs insp., Treas. Dept., 1926-27; app. clk. in Am. Consulate at Nogales May 2, 1927; v. c. at Nogales Apr. 22, 1931.

Ollis, Luella Irene.—b. Lawndale, Ill.; attended high sch. and business sch.; bookkeeper 1916-23; stenog. 1924-25; app. clk. at \$1,320 in the Dept. of State Jan. 2, 1926; at \$1,500 Mar. 1, 1927; at \$1,620 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$1,680 July 1, 1928; stenog., Conf. for the Codification of Int. Law, The Hague, 1930; at \$1,800 July 1, 1930.—LA.

Olsson, Otto Oliver.—b. Marblehead, Mass., Jan. 12, 1898; high sch. grad.; attended business sch.; elk. 1916-18, 1920-24; elk., Treas. Dept., 1918-20; app. elk. at \$1,320 in the Dept. of State Dec. 6, 1924; at \$1,680 Nov. 1, 1926; at \$1,800 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$1,920 July 1, 1930; marrled.—FA.

O'Neill, Anna A .- b. Washington, D. C.; Notre Dame Acad.; Washington Coll. of Law, LL. B.; mem. of bar of D. C.; stenog., asst. to chemist, private sec. five yrs.; Brit. Pecuniary Claims Commn. 1912-15; app. clk. in the Dept. of State Nov. 1, 1915; at \$1,200, under Ex. order, June 22, 1916, effective July 1; at \$1,400 July 28, 1917, effective Aug. 1; at \$1,600 Aug. 1, 1918; law clk. at \$2,000 Nov. 18, 1918; at \$2,250 July 18, 1919; at \$2,500 June 1, 1920; asst. solicitor at \$3,000 Sept. 16, 1922; at \$3.200 May 1, 1925; at \$3,500 Feb. 1, 1926; mem., Bd. of Review for Efficiency Ratings 1928-33; at \$3,600 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); asst. to the under sec. of state Sept. 1, 1928-Apr. 30, 1931; at \$3,800 Oct. 1, 1928; at \$4,600 Sept. 1, 1929; at \$5,000 July 1, 1930; at \$5,200 July 3, 1930 (Brookhart Act) ; asst. solicitor May 1, 1931; asst. to the legal adviser July 1, 1931; counsel for U. S., U. S.-Sweden Arbitration, 1932; legal adviser to Am. del., Seventh Int. Conf. of Am. States, Montevideo, 1933; mem., Bd. of Appeals and Review, Nov. 6, 1933-.--LE.

ONeill, James F.—b. Slatersville, R. I., Nov. 8, 1884; high sch. grad.; attended business sch.; St. Laurent Univ., Montreal, 1903; North Eastern Coll. of Law 1915; bookkeeper and auditor 1906-7; insp. and dep. collector of customs 1908-20; customs agt. and act. collector of customs 1920-23; asst. customs att. at Paris 1923-24; customs representative at Zürich 1924-25; customs att. at Florence 1925-27; at Paris 1927-29; app. treas. att. at Paris Nov. 8, 1929; married.

Orebaugh, Walter William.—b. Wichlta, Kans., Mar. 19, 1910; Georgetown Univ. 1928–29; Wichita Munleipal Univ., B. A. 1931; grad. work, Clark Univ., 1931–32; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass., v. c. of career, and sec. in the Diplo. Ser. Dec. 17, 1931; assigned as v. c. at Montreal Jan. 12, 1932; to the For. Ser. Sch. Nov. 29, 1932; to Wellington Mar. 27, 1933; married. Orr, George.--b. Philadelphia, Pa., Sept. 29, 1886; high sch. grad.; Temple Coll. 1906-7; clk. 1904-5; surveying and drafting 1905-8; asst. engineer in contracting firm and municipal engineering 1908-17, 1919-20; U. S. Army 1917-19, capt.; app., after exam., cons. of class seven June 4, 1920; detailed to Panama Aug. 2, 1920; class six Mar. 1, 1923; For. Ser. officer of class seven July 1, 1924; class six Aug. 8, 1924; assigned to Paris June 6, 1925; to Stavanger July 2, 1929; class five July 24, 1930; to Santo Domingo Nov. 25, 1930 (canceled); to Caracas June 10, 1932; married.

Ostertag, Augustus.—b. Philadelphia, Pa., Aug. 4, 1890; attended public and business sch.; clk., stenog., and bookkeeper 1906-17; U. S. Army 1917-19; sec. to banker 1919-21; app. clk. in Am. Consulate at Barranquilla Dec. 21, 1921; at Cartagena Mar. 6, 1922; v. c. at Cartagena Aug. 15, 1922; at Guatemala Feb. 12, 1923; at La Paz Aug. 21, 1924; at Habana July 6, 1925; at Matanzas Sept. 26, 1925; at Bremerhaven June 22, 1927; at Bremen Oct. 10, 1931; at Lagos Feb. 25, 1933.

Otterman, Harvey Boyd.—b. Allegheny, Pa., Sept. 17, 1889; attended high sch. and business sch.; Carnegie Inst. of Tech. two yrs.; studied accounting and business admin.; Nat. Univ. Law Sch., LL. B. 1933; mem. of bar of D. C.; clk. 1909–12; app. clk. at \$900 in the Dept. of State Dec. 6, 1912; at \$1.000 Apr. 22, 1914; at \$1,400 June 22, 1916, effective July 1; at \$1,600 Nov. 25, 1918; at \$1,800 Dec. 31, 1920. effective Jan. 1, 1921; at \$2,100 July 1, 1924; asst. to the chief, Division of For. Ser. Admin., Aug. 19, 1924; at \$2,200 Dec. 1, 1925; at \$2,400 June 16, 1926; at \$2,500 Jan. 1, 1928; at \$2,700 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$2,800 July 1, 1928; at \$2,000 July 1, 1930; married.—FA.

Oury-Jackson, Joseph Francis Granville.—b. Durango, Mexico, of Am. parents, Sept. 23, 1900; high sch. grad.; attended business sch. in Mexico; Detroit Jr. Coll., grad. 1922; U. S. Army 1917-20, overseas service; teacher in sch. in Durango, Mexico, 1922-24; app. clk. in Am. Consulate at Durango Aug. 7, 1924; v. c. at Durango Sept. 15, 1928; at Mazatlán, temp., Mar. 23, 1931; at Durango Aug. 15, 1931.

Owen, Augustus Chapman.—b. Creston, S. C., Oct. 2, 1896; high sch. and business sch. grad.; Clemson Coll. 1914-16; U. S. Navy 1918-19; clk. 1922-24; app. clk. in Am. Consulate General at Vancouver June 18, 1924; v. c. at Vancouver Feb. 16, 1931; married.

Owen, Mary Eleanor.—b. La Plata, Md.; high sch. grad.; attended business sch.; George Washington Univ. 1929; clk. 1927-28; typist, Post Office Dept., 1928-29, Census Bu., 1929-30; app. clk. at \$1,440 in the Dept. of State June 18, 1930; at \$1,620 Feb. 25, 1932.—PD.

Owen, Rufus L.-b. Jackson Co., Tenn., Aug. 31, 1896; Dixie Coll.; teacher in public schs. 1915-17,

1929-33; clk., War. Dept., 1917-26; U.S. Army 1918-29; clk., Veterans' Admin., Feb.-May 1934; app. clk. at \$1,440 in the Dept. of State May 7, 1934; married.—DCR.

Owen, Ruth Bryan (Mrs.)—b. Jacksonville, Ill., Oct. 2, 1885; Monticello Sem.; Univ. of Nebr. 1901-3; British Army 1916-18, nurse, overseas service; lecturer 1920-32; prof., Univ. of Miami, 1925-27; mem. 71st and 72d Congresses; author; mem. Am. group, Interparliamentary Union, London, 1930; app. E.E. and M.P. to Denmark Apr. 13, 1933.

Owen, Somerset Anthony.—b. La Plata, Md., Dec. 18, 1896; Western Md. Coll, two yrs.; Georgetown Sch. of For. Ser., B. F. S.; Loyola Univ. Law Sch. one yr.; supervisor in munitions factory 1916-18; U. S. Army 1918; app. clk. at \$900 in the Dept. of State Aug. 19, 1919; at \$1,100 Nov. 1, 1919; at \$1,200 Oct. 1, 1920; passport agt. at New Orleans at \$2,500 June 18, 1921, effective July 1; at \$2,700 Nov. 1, 1926; at \$2,900 July 1, 1927; also despatch agt. at New Orleans July 25, 1927; at \$3,100 Jan. 1, 1928; at \$3,200 May 1, 1928; at \$3,400 July 1, 1928; at \$3,600 May 1, 1930; passport agt. at San Francisco July 1, 1933.

Owens, Louis George.—b. Washington, D. C., Dec. 15, 1900; attended public sch. and business sch.; cml. work 1916-17; app. messenger in the Dept. of State Aug. 1, 1917; clk., temp., at \$720 Nov. 1, 1918; permanently at \$900 Nov. 1, 1919; at \$1,000 Jan. 20, 1923; at \$1,100 May 31, 1924, effective June 1; at \$1,380 July 1, 1924; at \$1,500 May 1, 1925; at \$1,680 Jan. 16, 1926; at \$1,740 Mar. 1, 1927; at \$1,860 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$1,980 July 1, 1930; married.—PD.

Owsley, Alvin Mansfield.—b. Denton, Tex., June 11, 1888; attended private schs. and business sch.; North Tex. State Teachers Coll.; Va. Mil. Inst., grad. 1909; studied law, Univ. of Tex., 1910–13, and in law courts in London, England; mem. of bar of Tex.; mem. of Tex. Legislature 1912–14; county atty., Tex., 1915–17; U. S. Army 1917–19, lt. col., overseas service; asst. atty. gen., Tex., 1919–21; nat. comdr. of Am. Legion 1922–23; law practice; app. E.E. and M.P. to Rumania June 13, 1933; married.

Packer, Earl LeNoir.—b. Ogden, Utah, Nov. 19, 1894; George Washington, A. B. 1921, LL. B. 1929; mem. of bar of D. C.; clk. and newspaper reporter 1912-15; clk., War Dept., 1915-17, in Am. Emb. at Petrograd Jan.-July 1917, with Am. Mil. Mission, Petrograd, July 1917-Jan. 1918; U. S. Army 1917-19, 1st lt., overseas service; asst. mll. att, at Petrograd Jan. 1918-Oct. 1919; app. special asst. at \$2,160 in the Dept. of State Feb. 10, 1920; app., after exam., v. c. of career of class three May 24, 1920; drafting officer at \$2,500 in the Dept. of State June 17, 1921, effective July 1, and designated asst. chief, Division of Russian Affairs; v. c. detailed to the office of the Am. Commr. at Riga Feb. 20, 1922; assigned to Reval Sept. 19, 1922; detailed as v. c. with rank of 3d sec. of leg. to Am. Leg. at Riga Oct. 14, 1922; class two Fcb. 26, 1923; class one Nov. 23, 1923; For. Ser. officer unclass. July 1, 1924; assigned to the Dept. Feb. 6, 1925; class eight Feb. 24, 1925; cons. Mar. 3, 1925; class seven June 8, 1927; asst. chief, Division of Eastern European Affairs, Oct. 13, 1928; resigned May 1, 1929; app. drafting officer at \$5,600 in the Dept. of State and designated asst. chief, Division of Eastern European Affairs, May 1, 1929; at \$6,500 July 1, 1930; married.—EE.

Page, Edward, Jr.—b. Ardmore, Pa., July 31, 1905; Middlesex Sch.; Country Day Sch. (Newton); Harvard, A. B. 1928; Univ. of Grenoble 1928-29; Univ. of Heidelberg 1929; clk., brokerage firm, 1929; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass. and v. c. of career Nov. 12, 1929; assigned to Montreal, temp., Nov. 27, 1929; as For. Ser. officer to the emb. at Tokyo Dec. 13, 1929; sec. in the Diplo. Ser. Jan. 22, 1930; assigned as 3d sec. at Tokyo Jan. 25, 1930; as v. c. at Harbin June 13, 1930; as v. c. and language officer at Paris July 21, 1931; to the For. Ser. Sch. Mar. 22, 1933; to the Dept., temp., Aug. 25, 1933; as v. c. and language officer at Paris Oct. 13, 1933;

Palmer, Ely Eliot .- b. Providence, R. I., Nov. 29, 1887; Worcester Acad.; Brown Univ., B. A. 1908; Sorbonne, Faculté de Droit, 1908-9; George Washington, M. Dip. 1910; app., after exam., cons. asst. Dec. 20, 1910; assigned to the Dept. Jan. 16, 1911; to the emb. at Mexico City May 31, 1911; to the Dept. Dec. 3, 1912; v. and dep. cons. gen. at Paris Jan. 8, 1913; at Brussels Feb. 26, 1914; v. c. at Brussels Feb. 6, 1915; detailed to the Dept. Mar. 15, 1915; cons. of class eight July 24, 1916, and assigned to Madrid; class five Sept. 5, 1919; class four June 4, 1920; assigned to Bucharest Aug. 25, 1921; class three Nov. 23, 1921; cons. gen. of class four June 5, 1924; For. Ser. officer of class three July 1, 1924; assigned to Vancouver Aug. 3, 1929; class two July 24, 1930; assigned to Jerusalem Nov. 7, 1933; married.

Palmer, John Peabody.—b. New York City May 5, 1907; Phillips Andover; Univ. of Wash. 1926; aviation officer, U. S. Navy, two yrs.; transport pilot, Dept. of Commerce, 1930; app. clk. in Am. Consulate at Marseille July 27, 1931; v. c. at Marseille Sept. 4, 1931; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass., v. c. of career, and sec. in the Diplo. Ser. Dec. 17, 1931; assigned as v. c. at Marseille Jan. 2, 1932; to the For. Ser. Sch. Feb. 10, 1933; to Genoa June 13, 1933; married.

Pangburn, Harry Keep.—b. Perry, Iowa, Mar. 27, 1879; attended business sch.; Medical Coll. of Ohio 1898; Univ. of Chicago, M. D. 1901; act. asst. surgeon, Marine Hospital Scr., 1901-2; surgeon for mining companies 1903-8; private practice in Acapulco, Mexico, since 1908; app. v. and dep. cons. at Acapulco Sept. 1, 1908; v. c. at Acapulco by act approved Feb. 5, 1915; at Ciudad Juarez Nov. 24, 1930; married.

Pape, Robin B. (1st Lt.)-b. Waterbury, Conn., Jan. 6, 1903; U.S.M.A., grad. 1924; assigned as language officer at Tokyo May 9, 1932; married. Park, James Loder.—b. Beaver Falls, Pa., June 14, 1895; Gettysburg Coll., B. S. 1916; Harvard Med. Sch. 1916-19; student Med. Res. 1918-19; with the Near East Relief Committee in the Aleppo area 1919-21; app. clk. In the Am. Consulate General at Smyrna Sept. 21, 1921; v. c. at Smyrna June 7, 1922; at Constantinople May 15, 1923; at Aden May 27, 1924; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass. and v. c. of career May 17, 1928; assigned to Aden May 29, 1928; sec. in the Diplo. Ser. May 31, 1928; assigned as v. c. and 3d sec. at Addis Ababa June 15, 1928; married.

Park, Nelson Renfrew.—b. Boston, Mass., Nov. 25, 1890; St. Johnsbury Acad.; Colo. Coll., A. B. 1914; teacher in high sch. 1914-15; teacher and principal in high sch. in Porto Rico 1916-18; Porto Rico Brigade 1918-19; app. v. c. at La Paz May 5, 1919; at Guatemala Aug. 31, 1922; app., after exam., v. c. of career of class three Nov. 16, 1922; assigned to Guatemala Nov. 24, 1922; to Callao-Lima Feb. 12, 1923; class two Nov. 23, 1923; class one May 10, 1924; For. Ser. officer unclass. July 1, 1924; class eight June 2, 1926; cons. June 15, 1926; assigned to Ceiba Feb. 12, 1927; class seven Dec. 19, 1929; assigned to Torreon Sept. 18, 1930; married.

Park, Sam.—b. Bedford, Iowa, July 3, 1857; attended public sch.; pres. of lumber company twenty yrs.; app. v. c. at Biarritz Nov. 15, 1920; married.

Parker, Cortlandt (Lt. Col.)—b. Ft. Apache, Arlz., Dec. 10, 1884; Newark Acad. grad.; U. S. M. A., grad. 1906; assigned as mil. att. at London and Dublin May 4, 1931; married.

Parker, Edlow George.—b. Washington, D. C., Dec. 27, 1912; app. asst. messenger in the Dept. of State Aug. 20, 1930.—PD.

Parker, Edward S.—b. McCormick, S. C., May 14, 1894; attended high sch.; Univ. of Paris 1919; with cotton exporting firm 1915-17, 1919-22; U. S. Army 1917-19, 2d lt., overseas service; with Am. Relief Admin. in Russia 1922-23; app. clk. in Am. Consulate General at Calcutta Sept. 29, 1924; v. c. at Madras Jan. 7, 1925; at Cologne June 30, 1926; married.

Parker, Ernest Sheppard.—b. Landover, Md., Oct. 18, 1906; high sch. grad.; Univ. of Md. 1926-27; George Washington Univ. 1928-31; accountant-cashier 1927-31; app. clk., temp., at \$1,440 in the Dept. of State Mar. 25, 1931; appt. term. June 30, 1931; reapp. clk., temp., at \$1,440 July 9, 1931; perm. Dec. 16, 1931; detailed to the President's Organization on Unemployment Relief, 1931-32.—DCR.

Parker, William Leonard.—b. Babylon, N. Y., Jan. 31, 1903; Amherst, B. A. 1926; Syracuse, LL.B. 1920; instructor in Eng. at Syracuse 1926–30; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass., v. c. of career, and sec. in the Diplo. Ser. Dec. 17, 1931; assigned to the For. Ser. Sch. Dec. 30, 1931; as v. c. at Alexandria Apr. 7, 1932; at Lyon Nov. 11, 1933; married.

Parkins, Albina Landstreet.—b. Shenandoah Valley, Va.; attended private sch. and coll.; private tutors; sec. to commandant of War Coll. 1917; research 1918; app. clk., temp., at \$1,080 in the Dept. of State Sept. 21, 1918; at \$1,140 Mar. 1, 1919; permanently, at \$900 May 1, 1919; at \$1,000 July 1, 1919; at \$1,200 July 1, 1920; at \$1,500 July 1, 1924; at \$1,560 Dec. 1, 1925; at \$1,680 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$1,740 July 1, 1928; at \$1,800 Oct. 1, 1928; at \$2,000 Apr. 1, 1929; at \$2,300 Nov. 1, 1929; at \$2,500 July 1, 1930.-WE.

Parks, James Edward.—b. Enfield, N. C., June 12, 1888; attended high sch. and business sch.; railway mail service 1907-12; transatlantic mail service 1912-14; cml. work 1914-16; U. S. postal agency in France ten months; U. S. Army 1917-19, capt., overseas service; capt., O. R. C.; app. clk. In Am. Emb. at Parls Mar. 26, 1920; at Am. Consulate General at Paris July 1, 1921; v. c. at Paris Oct. 2, 1923; app., after exam., v. c. of career of class three June 13, 1924; assigned to Lille June 23, 1924; For. Ser. officer unclass. July 1, 1924; assigned to Cardiff July 12, 1924; to Luxemburg May 19, 1926; to Martinique Mar. 14, 1929; class eight, cons., and assigned to Martinique July 24, 1930; to Paris Sept. 26, 1930; to London June 8, 1934; married.

Parsloe, Arthur Gerard.—b. Atlanta, Ga., May 25, 1888; studied under private tutors; with railroad companles 1912-14; clk. and asst. paymaster at Porto Alegre 1914-16; teacher of English in Porto Alegre 1916-17; mgr. of plantation near Santos 1917-18; app. clk. in Am. Consulate at Santos Jan. 27, 1918; v. c. at Santos June 27, 1918; resigned May 18, 1922; app. clk. in Am. Consulate at Santos Oct. 7, 1922; v. c. at Santos June 7, 1923; married.

Pasquet, Maurice.—b. Newport, R. I., July 3, 1902; attended high sch. in France and U. S.; L'École Libre des Sciences Politiques 1927-28; clk. and sec. 1922-25; app. clk. in Am. Consulta General at Paris June 29, 1925; v. c. at Havre, temp., June 22, 1927; clk. at Paris Sept. 1, 1927; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass., v. c. of career, and sec. in the Diplo. Ser. Dec. 16, 1930; assigned as v. c. at Paris Jan. 23, 1931; at Glasgow Nov. 29, 1933; married.

Pastorini, Louisa.—b. Binghamton, N. Y.; attended business high sch.; telephone operator 1911– 14; app. asst. telephone operator at \$720 in the Dept. of State Dec. 12, 1914; telephone switchboard operator June 19, 1917, effective July 1; at \$1,140 July 1, 1924; at \$1,260 Dec. 1, 1925; at \$1,320 Mar. 1, 1927; at \$1,380 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$1,440 July 1, 1928; at \$1,560 July 1, 1930; at \$1,620 July 3, 1930 (Brookhart Act).—DCR.

Patterson, Jefferson.—b. Dayton, Ohio, May 14, 1891; Adirondack-Fla. Sch.; Yale, B. A. 1913; Harvard, LL. B. 1916; Harvard Sch. of Buslness Admin. 1916-17; mem. of bar of Ohio; U. S. Army 1917-19, 2d lt., overseas service; law clk. 1920; app., after exam., sec. of emb. or leg. of class four Aug. 24, 1921; assigned to the Dept. Sept. 8, 1921; asst. sec., Conf. on Limitation of Armament, Washington, 1921-22; assigned to Peking Mar. 1, 1922; class three Jan. 23, 1924; For. Ser. officer of class six July 1, 1924; assigned as 2d sec. at Bogotá July 17, 1924; at Constantinople Sept. 2, 1926; class five May 23, 1929; assigned to the Dept. Mar. 22, 1930; 1st sec. Apr. 17, 1930; asst. chief, Division of Protocol and Conferences, June 1, 1933.—PC. Patterson, Richard Sharpe.—b. Wilkes-Barre, Pa., Feb. 24, 1908; George Washington, A. B. 1929, grad. work 1929-31; editor, George Washington Univ., 1930-; app. editorial asst. at \$1,800 in the Dept. of State June 10, 1929; at \$2,000 Apr. 7, 1930; at \$2,200 July 1, 1930.—HA.

Patterson, Robert Rowley.—b. Ann Arbor, Mich., July 31, 1895; Yale 1914-17; Univ. of Mich. summer schs.; U. S. Army 1917-19, 2d lt., overseas service; app., after exam., v. c. of career of class three May 25, 1921; assigned to Liverpool July 21, 1921; class two Feb. 26, 1923; class one Nov. 23, 1923; cons. of class seven June 3, 1924; For. Ser. officer of class eight July 1, 1924; sec. in the Diplo. Ser. Apr. 8, 1926; assigned as 3d sec. at Bucharest Apr. 15, 1926; resigned Apr. 8, 1929; representative for American firm in Balkans 1929-31; app. v. c. at Cobh Apr. 3, 1931; at Cork Dec. 1, 1932; married.

Patton, Kenneth Stuart .-- b. Salem, Va., July 22, 1882; Univ. of Va., A. B. 1904; grad. work at Sorbonne 1904-5; Johns Hopkins Univ. 1905-8; special work in Bibliothèque Nationale, Paris, 1906; app., after exam., cons. asst. June 24, 1908; detailed to the Dept. July 1, 1908; to Marseille Jan. 18, 1909; v. and dep. cons. at Rome Apr. 20, 1909; at Ceiba Feb. 15, 1912; v. and dep. cons. gen. at Lisbon July 27, 1912; cons. at Cognac Nov. 24, 1913; cons. of class eight by act approved Feb. 5, 1915; assigned to La Rochelle July 1, 1915; to Calals Oct. 27, 1916; class seven Nov. 10, 1916; detailed to Paris Feb. 15, 1919; assigned to Belgrade May 27, 1919; class six Sept. 5, 1919; class five June 4, 1920; class four Nov. 19, 1921; For. Ser. officer of class five July 1, 1924; class four Feb. 24, 1925; assigned to Paris, temp., Aug. 2, 1927; to Belgrade Oct. 1, 1927; to Leipzig Dec. 19, 1928; cons. gen. Feb. 17, 1930; assigned to Batavia Mar. 26, 1930; class three May 9, 1930; to Amsterdam June 20, 1934; married.

Paxson, Emma Fell.—b. Madison, Wis.; attended Lycée de Jeunes Filles, Versailles, and Ferry Hall Prep. Sch.; Univ. of Wis. 1927-28; Univ. of Calif. 1932; Bryn Mawr, A.B. 1932; business sch. grad.; app. clk., temp., at \$1,620 in the Dept. of State July 5, 1934.—A-S/T.

Paxson, Frances Belle.—b. Waterford, Va.; business high sch. grad.; typist 1912-19; clk., War Dept., 1919-20; app. clk. at \$1,100 in the Dept. of State Apr. 15, 1920; at \$1,200 Dec. 30, 1922, effective Jan. 1, 1923; at \$1,440 July 1, 1924; at \$1,500 July 16, 1926; at \$1,620 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$1,680 July 1, 1928; at \$1,800 July 1, 1930.—DCR.

Paxton, John Hall.—b. Galesburg, Ill., July 28, 1899; Shanghai Am. Sch. grad.; Phillips Andover grad.; Yale, B. A. 1922; Magdalene Coll., Cambridge Univ., England, and L'École Libre des Sciences Politiques 1923-24; U.S. Army 1918; translator of French scientific books and tutor; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass. Mar. 20, 1925; v. c. of career and assigned to Nanking Sept. 2, 1925; language officer at Pelping July 23, 1929; class eight and cons. Oct. 16, 1929; class seven July 1, 1931; assigned as cons. at Canton Mar. 5, 1932; married. Payne, Charles Edward Beresford.—b. Marquette, Mich., Dec. 14, 1891; high sch. grad.; attended business sch.; La Salle Ext. Univ.; clk. 1909–13; asst. agt. for railway company in Canada 1913–18; with lumber company in Canada 1918–19; app. clk. in Am. Cons. at London, Ont., July 28, 1920; v. e. at London, Ont., Feb. 21, 1921; at Niagara Falls, temp., July 29, 1926; at London, Ont., Nov. 16, 1926; married.

Payne, Stephen.—b. Fairfax, Va., Oct. 7, 1895; National Museum 1914; U. S. Army 1917–19; U. S. Navy Yard 1917, 1919–22; U. S. Vocational Training Sch. 1922–26; app. laborer in the Dept. of State Apr. 13, 1926.—CC.

Peck, William Lawrence.—b. Putnam, Conn., Mar. 30, 1895; Gunnery Sch. grad.; Trinity Coll., A. B. 1916; Sorbonne 1919; teacher 1916-17; U. S. Marine Corps 1917-19; investigator for insur. company 1920; app. clk. in Am. Consulate at Stockholm July 8, 1920; app., after exam., v. c. of career of class three Nov. 16, 1922; assigned to Stockholm Nov. 24, 1922; to Reval (Tallinn) May 19, 1923; For. Ser. officer unclass, July 1, 1924; assigned to Leipzig Mar. 9, 1925; to Cobh May 19, 1928; class eight, cons., and assigned to Cobh July 24, 1930; to Lagos July 14, 1932; married.

Peck, Willys Ruggles .- b. Tientsin, China, of Am. parents, Oct. 24, 1882; Univ. of Calif., A. B. 1906; teacher of Eng., Chihli, China, 1902-4; app., after exam., student interpreter in China Oct. 8, 1906; asst. Chinese sec. at Peking Nov. 9, 1908; Chinese sec. at Peking Sept. 11, 1913; cons. at Tsingtau May 5, 1914; detailed as v. cons. gen. at Hankow Dec. 1, 1914; cons. of class five by act approved Feb. 5, 1915; returned to Tsingtau Feb. 6, 1915; detailed to Shanghai Apr. 4, 1916; as v. c. at Tientsin May 12, 1916; returned to Tsingtau July 24, 1916; detailed to Peking Apr. 27, 1918; returned to Tsingtau June 10, 1918; detailed to Peking July 14, 1919; class four June 11, 1920; Chinese sec. at Peking July 1, 1921; For. Ser. officer of class four July 1, 1924; class three Aug. 8, 1924; Chinese sec. of Am. del., Special Conf. on Chinese Customs Tariff, Peking, 1925-26; assigned to the Dept. June 18, 1926; asst. chief, Division of Far Eastern Affairs, Mar. 27, 1928-Nov. 25, 1930; class two May 17, 1928; class one May 9, 1930; cons. gen. Jan. 22, 1931; assigned as cons. gen. at Nanking and designated also couns. of leg. Feb. 5, 1931; married.

Pelton, Walter Earle.—b. Union Co., III., May 28, 1890; attended business sch. and Ohio Mech. Inst.; National Univ., LL. B. 1922; mem. of bar of D. C.; stenog. for private concerns; U. S. Navy 1918; app. clk. at \$1,200 in the Dept. of State Mar. 17, 1919; at \$1,400 Dec. 31, 1919, effective Jan. 1, 1920; at \$1,600 Nov. 21, 1923; at \$1,860 July 1, 1924; an asst. to the solicitor at \$2,000 July 1, 1924; an asst. to the solicitor at \$2,000 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$2,600 June 1, 1921; asst. to the legal adviser July 1, 1931; sec. for U. S., Gen. Claims Commn., U. S. and Panama, 1931.—LE.

Peltzer, Rudolph.—b. Crefeld, Germany, July 5, 1890; naturalized; attended coll. in Germany; clk. and bookkeeper in U. S. 1906-20; for. corr. in Bucharest 1921-22; bank clk. in Bucharest 1922-23, in New York City 1923-24; app. clk. in Am. Consulate at Bucharest Nov. 18, 1924; v. c. at Bucharest July 17, 1928; married.

Penfield, James Kedzie.—b. New York City Apr. 9, 1908; Principia Jr. Coll. 1925–27; Stanford, A. B. 1929; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass., v. c. of career, and sec. in the Diplo. Ser. Apr. 15, 1930; assigned as v. c. at Ciudad Juarez Apr. 29, 1930; at Progreso June 13, 1930; to the For. Ser. Sch. Sept. 27, 1930; to Canton Feb. 24, 1931; to Mukden Mar. 6, 1933; as language officer at Peiping July 2, 1934.

Pennoyer, Frederick William, Jr. (Lt. Comdr.)--b. East Orange, N. J., Nov. 11, 1802; Stevens Inst. of Tech. 1910-11; U. S. N. A., grad. 1915; Mass. Inst. of Tech., M. S. 1921; assigned as asst. naval att. at Rome Apr. 25, 1931; tech. adviser, 2d stage, Gen. Disarmament Conf., Geneva, 1933; married.

Perkins, Brigg Andrew.—b. Bountiful, Utah, May 25, 1874; Stanford Univ., A. B. 1906; Univ. of Calif., M. A. 1912; mining engineer one yr.; teacher in high sch. nine yrs.; Y. M. C. A. sec. in France one yr.; app. clk. in Am. Consulate at Zürich Dec. 22, 1919; v. c. at Belgrade Apr. 20, 1921; at Zagreb Feb. 4, 1924; at Belgrade, temp., July 26, 1926; at Zagreb Nov. 15, 1926; at Stuttgart June 22, 1927; at Bergen Aug. 6, 1930; married.

Perkins, Charles Brush.—b. Cleveland, Ohio, Mar. 30, 1907; Union Coll., A. B. 1929; Georgetown Sch. of For. Ser. 1929-30; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass., v. c. of career, and sec. in the Diplo. Ser. Dec. 16, 1930; assigned as v. c. at Bucharest, temp., Dec. 31, 1930; to the For. Ser. Sch. Mar. 18, 1932; to Havre Aug. 6, 1932; married.

Perkins, Clarence Warwick, Jr.—b. Baltimore, Md., July 23, 1899; Johns Hopkins, A. B. 1921; S. A. T. C. 1918; newspaper reporter and asst. financial editor 1921-24; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass. and v. c. of career Oct. 16, 1924; assigned to Vienna Nov. 8, 1924; to Lucerne, temp., May 23, 1927; to Vienna Nov. 15, 1927; to Lausanne, temp., Jan. 13, 1928; to Vienna Apr. 18, 1928; to Danzig May 4, 1929; class eight, cons., and assigned to Danzig Oct. 16, 1020; to Warsaw Feb. 2, 1932; married.

Perkins, Ernest Ralph.—b. North Haverhill, N. H., Dec. 27, 1893; Tilton Sch. grad.; Wesleyan Unlv., A. B. 1917; Clark Univ., A. M. 1921, Ph. D. 1930; Harvard, summers 1925, 1926, 1927; teacher of hist., Lawrence Acad., 1917–18; U. S. Army 1918; newspaper work 1919–20; instructor in hist., Denison Univ., 1921–22; assoc. prof. of hist., Norwich Univ., 1922–30; app. research asst. at \$3,200 in the Dept. of State Oct. 1, 1930.—RP.

Perkins, Isham W.—b. Henderson, Tenn., Jan. 30, 1900; high sch. grad.; West Tenn. State Normal Sch. 1920-22; attended business sch.; clk. 1922-25; library asst., Dept. of Agric., 1925-27; app. clk. at \$1,320 in the Dept. of State Nov. 16, 1927; at \$1,440
July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$1,500 July 1, 1928;
at \$1,620 Feb. 1, 1929; at \$1,740 July 1, 1930.—DCR.

Perkins, John Wesley.—b. Rising Sun, Ind., Nov. 17, 1886; Earlham Coll., B. A. 1909; Northwestern Univ., M. A. 1912; teacher of languages 1909–11; prof. of languages, Jamestown Coll., 1912–14, Maryville Coll., 1914–16; clk. and translator, Civil Ser. Commn., 1916–17, Dept. of Agric., 1917–20, War Dept., 1920–32; app. translator at \$2,600 in the Dept. of State Feb. 9, 1932; married.—TR.

Perkins, Mahlon Fay .- b. North Adams, Mass., Nov. 23, 1882; Harvard, A. B. 1904; advertising work 1905-6; tutor 1906; teacher 1906-8; app., after exam., student interpreter in China Jan. 14, 1909; v. and dep. cons. at Chefoo May 25, 1911; also interpreter July 25, 1911; dep. cons. gen. and interpreter at Shanghai May 13, 1912; assessor, Int. Mixed Court at Shanghai, 1913-18; v. and dep. cons. gen. Mar. 17, 1914; designated to exercise judicial authority and jurisdiction in civil and criminal cases at Shanghai Mar. 17, 1914; v. c. at Shanghai Feb. 6, 1915; consular judge, Shanghai, Mar. 11, 1915; cons, of class six Sept. 14, 1917; assigned to Changsha Apr. 15, 1918; class five Sept. 5, 1919; detailed to Shanghai Apr. 8, 1920; class four June 4, 1920; detailed to the Dept. May 10, 1922; class three Aug. 23, 1922; cons. gen. of class four June 5, 1924; For. Ser. officer of class three July 1, 1924; assigned as cons. at Tientsin Sept. 3, 1925; tech. adviser, Special Conf. on Chinese Customs Tariff, and Commn. on Extraterritoriality in China, Peking, 1925; sec. in the Diplo. Ser. Feb. 9, 1928; assigned as couns. of leg. at Peiping Feb. 16, 1928; class two May 17, 1928; class one July 24, 1930; assigned to the Dept. May 15, 1933; asst. historical adviser Mar. 15, 1934; chm., Publications Committee of the Dept., July 1, 1934-; married.-HA.

Perkins, Troy Lawson.—b. Hindman, Ky., Feb. 3, 1902; Univ. of Okla. and Univ. of So. Calif.; Univ. of Ky., A. B. 1925, grad. work 1925–26; Alliance Française, summer 1929; publicity work 1918–19; store mgr. 1924–25; wrote and directed plays 1926–28; app. clk. in Am. Consulate at Ensenada Aug. 13, 1931; v. c. at Ensenada Sept. 5, 1931; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass., v. c. of career, and sec. in the Diplo. Ser. Dec. 17, 1931; assigned as v. c. at Ensenada Jan. 2, 1932; to the For, Ser. Sch. Aug. 19, 1932; to Medan Dec. 22, 1932 (canceled); to the Dept., temp., Dec. 23, 1932; to Tientsin May 31, 1933.

Peter, Alan Gordon.—b. Castries, St. Lucia, B.W.I., Dec. 2, 1897; British subject; Upper Canada Coll., Toronto, Canada, 1906–15; McGill Univ., Montreal, 1915–16; in Canadian naval service 1916–19; cmployed by Peter & Co., St. Lucia, 1919–34; app. acting cons. agt. at St. Lucia Dec. 15, 1933; cons. agt. Mar. 14, 1934; married.

Peterson, Marie S.—b. Key West, Fla.; attended high sch. and business sch.; typist, clk., and stenog. 1926-31; app. clk., temp., at \$1,260 in the Dept. of State Jan. 26, 1931; permanently May 19, 1931; at \$1,440 Mar. 24, 1932.—DCR. Peterson, Ruth E.—b. Weskan, Kans.; high sch. grad.; attended business sch.; stenog. 1928-30; clk. typist, Census Bu., Mar.-May 1930; app. clk. at \$1,260 in the Dept. of State May 16, 1930; at \$1,440 May 19, 1931.—DCR.

Petrain, Alvin Leonard.—b. Moline, Ill., July 2, 1892; attended public sch. and business sch.; clk. and telegraph operator 1907-26; insp. in mfg. plant 1926-29; app. telegrapher at \$1,800 in the Dept. of State Aug. 8, 1929; at \$1,920 July 1, 1930; married.—DCR.

Pettigrew, Moses William (Capt.)—b. Jackson, Wyo., Jan. 1, 1896; Univ. of Utah, B. S. in C. E. 1929; entered U. S. Army Nov. 14, 1917; assigned as language officer at Tokyo Mar. 2, 1931; married.

Phelan, George Roosevelt.—b. Bordeaux, France, of Am. parents, Sept. 13, 1888; St. Michaels Coll. of Brussels, Belgium, 1902-10; clk. in Am. Consulate at Brussels 1911; mgr. of sugar estate in Venezuela 1912-18; app. clk. in Am. Consulate at La Guaira Oct. 22, 1918; at Puerto Cabello May 1, 1919; v. c. at Puerto Cabello June 19, 1919; at La Guaira, temp., Nov. 13, 1920; at Puerto Cabello Dec. 27, 1920; at Barbados, temp., Oct. 15, 1923; at Puerto Cabello Dec. 10, 1923; at Maracaibo July 16, 1932; married.

Phelan, Raymond.—b. Brussels, Belgium, of Am. parents, Oct. 3, 1893; St. Michaels Coll., Brussels, grad. 1911; instructor in French, Mecenas Inst., Trihidad, 1914-16; app. clk. in Am. Consulate at Trinidad Feb. 7, 1916; v. c. at Trinidad Dec. 29, 1916; at La Guaira Aug. 12, 1918; at Trinidad May 2, 1919; at Tenerife Mar. 22, 1921; at Las Palmas May 1, 1924; at Tenerife Sept. 13, 1924; at Dakar Oct. 15, 1924; at Guadeloupe Aug. 28, 1925; resigned Aug. 20, 1927; app. v. c. at Medellín July 16, 1930; at Barranquilla May 20, 1933; married.

Philip, Hoffman .- b. Washington, D. C., July 13, 1872; Lawrenceville Sch.; private tutors; Magdalene Coll., Cambridge Univ., England; Columbian Law Sch. (now George Washington); First Volunteer Cavalry, 1898, Cuban service; app. dep. cons. gen. at Tangier Nov. 6, 1901; v. and dep. cons. gen. at Tangier Nov. 18, 1902; cons. gen. at Tangier Mar. 8, 1905; sec. of leg. and cons. gen. at Tangier Jan. 11, 1906; mem. of Mixed Claims Commn. at Casa Blanca 1908; app. min. resident and cons. gen. to Abyssinia July 20, 1908; sec. of emb. at Rio de Janeiro Dec. 21, 1909; at Constantinople June 24, 1910; chief, Division of Near Eastern Affairs, Feb. 10, 1912; sec. of emb. at Constantinople Aug. 22, 1912; received Red Cross Balkan war medal for services at San Stefano and Constantinople 1912-13; volunteer aid to Am. Amb. at Paris Aug.-Oct. 1914; sec. of emb. or leg. of class one by act approved Feb. 5, 1915; assigned as couns. of emb. at Constantinople July 17, 1916; chargé d'affaires at Constantinople with representation of interests of Allied powers at Sublime Porte Jan .- Nov. 1916; E. E. and M. P. to Colombia Aug. 8, 1917; empowered by the Pres. to exchange treaty ratifications between U.S. and Colombia on Panama question Jan. 11, 1922; E. E. and M. P. to Uruguay Mar. 23, 1922; special amb. at Uruguayan presidential inauguration Mar. 1923; E. E. and M. P. to Persia Mar. 17,

1925; special envoy, coronation of Shah Reza Pahlevl of Persia, 1926; E. E. and M. P. to Norway July 22, 1930; married.

Phillips, Elizabeth H. (Mrs.)-b. Frankford, Del.; high sch. grad.; Md. State Normal Sch. one yr.; Delaware Coll.; teacher in public sch. three and onehalf yrs.; app. clk. at \$1,000 in the Dept. of State Jan. 14, 1920; at \$1,200 Nov. 9, 1921; at \$1,400 Oct. 1, 1923; at \$1,680 July 1, 1924; at \$1,740 Dec. 1, 1925; at \$1,860 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$1,920 July 1, 1928; at \$2,040 July 1, 1930.-PD.

Phillips, Lillian Frances (Mrs.)—b. Richmond, Mo.; business high sch. grad.; clk., Bu. of Census, 1910-13, War Dept. 1917-19, Dept. of State 1919-20; reinstated as clk. at \$900 in the Dept. of State Nov. 12, 1923; at \$1,000 Feb. 12, 1924; at \$1,320 July 1, 1924; at \$1,380 Mar. 1, 1925; at \$1,440 Dec. 1, 1925; at \$1,500 Mar. 1, 1927; at \$1,620 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$1,740 July 1, 1930.—DCR.

Phillips, Robert J.—b. Brooklyn, N. Y., July 15, 1894; Cornell and Brooklyn Polytech. Inst.; engineer 1915-17, 1919-23; U. S. Army 1917-19, lt.; app. asst. trade commr. at Shanghai July 1923; at Tokyo Nov. 1923; trade commr. May 1927; detailed to accompany Australian Industrial Del. to U. S. 1927; asst. exec. officer, Int. Radiotelegraph Conf., Washington, 1927; asst. chief, Industrial Machinery Division, Bu. of For. and Domes. Com., Jan. 1928; eml. agt. Apr. 1928; asst. chief, For. Ser. Bldgs. Office, Dept. of State, July 1928-; asst. sec., For. Ser. Bldgs. Commn., July 1928; liaison officer, Dept. of Com., June 1929; trade commr., unassigned, Oct. 1929; app. asst. chief, For. Ser. Bldgs. Office, Dept. of State, at \$6,500 Aug. 1, 1933; married.—FBO.

Phillips, William.-b. Beverly, Mass., May 30, 1878; Milton Acad. grad.; Harvard, A. B. 1900, A. M. 1922; Harvard Law Sch. 1900-1902; private sec. to Am. Amb. at London 1903-5; app. 2d sec. at Peking Mar. 10, 1905; asst. to 3d asst. sec. of state on far eastern affairs June 1, 1907; chief, Division of Far Eastern Affairs, Mar. 20, 1908; 3d asst. sec. of state Jan. 11, 1909; sec. of emb. at London Sept. 25, 1909; del., Int. Cong. of Chambers of Com. and Cml. and Industrial Assns., London, 1910; resigned from the For. Ser. Nov. 16, 1912; regent of the College and sec. of the Corp. of Harvard 1912-14; app. 3d asst. sec. of state Mar. 13, 1914; chm., Nat. Exposition Commn. to represent the Govt. of the U.S. at the Panama-Pacific Int. Exposition, San Francisco, 1914; del., Second Pan-American Scientific Cong., Washington, 1915-16; app. asst. sec. of state Jan. 24, 1917; E. E. and M. P. to the Netherlands and Luxemburg Mar. 3, 1920; under sec. of state Mar. 31, 1922; A. E. and P. to Belgium and E. E. and M. P. to Luxemburg Feb. 29, 1924; E. E. and M. P. to Canada Feb. 17, 1927; resigned Dec. 14, 1929; mem., President's Committee for Employment, 1931; chm., Mass. Emergency Committee for Unemployment, 1931-32; U. S. Commr., Perm. Commn. of Inquiry, U. S. and Latvia; app. under sec. of state Mar. 6, 1933; married .--- U.

Pierce, Bertha Elizabeth.-b. Peorla, Ill.; Univ. of Chicago, Ph. B. 1906; library training sch.;

asst. and head cataloguer, Los Angeles Public Library, 1893-98; organized So. Pasadena library 1898; special cataloguer, Univ. of Chicago Foreign Language Library, 1899; library research in Europe 1899-1900; New York Public Library 1900-1901; organized N. Y. Democratic Club financial library 1901; librarian, Am. Export Assoc., 1902; indexer, Carnegie Institution, 1906-7; editorial revision and compilation for publishing house 1907-8; mgr. of real estate corp. 1910-13; library research in Europe 1913; librarian, War Trade Bd., 1918-19; app. clk., temp., at \$1,200 in the Dept. of State Apr. 1, 1919; permanently Feb. 16, 1920; at \$1,400 Oct. 1, 1920; at \$1,600 May 31, 1924, effective June 1; at \$1,860 July 1, 1924; at \$1,920 Mar. 1, 1927; at \$2,000 Nov. 1, 1927; at \$2,200 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$2,300 July 1, 1928; at \$2,400 July 1, 1930.-DCR.

Pierce, Edward Randolph.—b. Lexington, Miss., Sept. 25, 1911; high sch. grad.; attended business sch.; Georgetown Univ. 1931-32; George Washington Univ. 1932-33; deckhand, U. S. Merchant Marine 1928; messenger, U. S. Shipping Bd., 1928; copypuller and clk., U. S. Patent Office, 1928-30; app. clk. at \$1,260 in the Dept. of State July 1, 1930; at . \$1,620 Feb. 1, 1931.—FA.

Pierce, Ralph.—b. Lexington, Miss., Jan. 1, 1909; high sch. grad.; National Univ. 1929-; mem. of bar of Va.; rodman and engineering asst. 1927-29; jr. clk., U. S. Patent Office, 1929-30; app. clk. at \$1,440 in the Dept. of State July 16, 1930; at \$1,620 May 9, 1932.—DCR.

Pierrot, A. Ogden.—b. Philadelphia, Pa., Sept. 29, 1900; Georgetown Sch. of For. Ser., B. F. S., grad. work one yr.; entered Bu. of For. and Domes. Com. Apr. 1, 1922; mem. of U. S. Commn. to make economic study of Amazon valley 1923-24; app. asst. trade commr. at Rio de Janeiro Oct. 1, 1924; asst. cml. att. Dec. 30, 1925; asst. to del., Second Pan American Highway Cong., Rio de Janeiro, 1929; married.

Pigott, William Trigg, Jr. (Maj.)—b. Virginia City, Mont., Aug. 6, 1889; Phillips Andover grad.; Yale, B. A. 1911; app. asst. mil. att. at London Sept. 28, 1931; married.

Pilcher, James Byrd.—b. Dothan, Ala., Sept. 28, 1899; Ala. Polytech. Inst., B. S. in Ch. E. 1920, M. S. 1921; U. S. Army 1918; instructor in chemistry and physics in high sch. 1921–23; cml. and sales work 1923–28; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass. and v. c. of career Oct. 24, 1928; assigned to the For. Ser. Sch. Nov. 5, 1928; to Nanking Mar. 29, 1929; to Hankow July 2, 1929; to Harbin Oct. 21, 1933; married.

Pilliod, Rosine G.—b. Maumee, Ohio; high sch. grad.; Bowling Green and Kent State Normal Coll., summers 1914-16; George Washington Univ. 1927-; teacher in public sch. 1913-17; library training course 1917-18; Govt. elk. 1918-29; app. library asst. at \$1,440 in the Dept. of State July 1, 1929; at \$1,620 June 1, 1930; at \$1,680 July 3, 1930 (Brookhart Act); at \$1,800 Oct. 1, 1931.—RP. Pillow, Jerome Gray (Col.)—b. near Columbia, Tenn., Aug. 7, 1875; Webb's Sch.; U.S.M.A., grad. 1901; assigned as mil. att. and mil. att. for air at Rome, and mil. att. at Tirana, Oct. 13, 1933; married.

Pinckney, Roswell N.—b. Albany, N. Y., Dec. 3, 1896; Howard Univ., B. S. 1926; messenger in War Dept. 1917-20, in Veterans' Bu. 1920-23; app. asst. messenger in the Dept. of State Sept. 5, 1923.—DCR.

Pinkerton, Julian Larabie.—b. Versailles, Ky., Jan. 21, 1894; Univ. of Ky., A. B. 1914; cml. and secretarlal work 1915-17; U. S. Army 1917-19, capt.; app. v. c. at Lisbon Jan. 8, 1920; app., after exam., v. c. of career of class three Oct. 26, 1921; assigned to Loanda Dec. 14, 1921; assigned to Durban Nov. 19, 1923; For. Ser. officer unclass. July 1, 1924; assigned to Port Elizabeth May 15, 1925; to Lisbon Dec. 30, 1925; class eight June 30, 1927; cons. and assigned to Lisbon July 16, 1927; to Bergen Apr. 10. 1930; class seven May 9, 1930; assigned to Rio de Janeiro Mar. 25, 1931.

Pinkerton, Lowell Call.—b. Medora, Ill., Oct. 24, 1894; William Jewell Coll., B. A. 1915; principal of high sch. 1915-16; supt. of sch. 1916-17; app., after exam., cons. asst. Sept. 4, 1917; detailed to the Dept. Nov. 8, 1917; cons. of class seven Scpt. 5, 1919; class six June 4, 1920; class five Aug. 23, 1922; detailed to London June 7, 1923; class four June 5, 1924; For. Ser. officer of class five July 1, 1924; class four June 8, 1927; assigned to London Feb. 18, 1928; For. Ser. insp. Dec. 26, 1929; class three May 9, 1930; cons. gen. Apr. 10, 1931; assigned to the Dept. Aug. 29, 1933; director, For. Ser. Officers' Training Sch., and mem., For. Ser. Sch. Bd., Sept. 2, 1933; married.—FSS.

Pisar, Charles J .- b. Sheboygan, Wis., June 8, 1890; attended business sch.; private tutors; studied law; newspaper business four yrs.; private sec. 1909-12; cml. reporting in Buenos Aires 1913-14; app. clk. in Am. Consulate General at Buenos Aires Oct. 1, 1914; v. c. at Buenos Aires Dec. 4, 1915; resigned Mar. 31, 1917; app. v. c. at Cape Town Sept. 14, 1917; app., after exam., v. c. of career of class three Sept. 27, 1919; assigned to Cape Town Dec. 11, 1919; class two May 24, 1920; class one Nov. 17, 1921; cons. of class seven June 22, 1922; class six Aug. 23, 1922; assigned to Rangoon Mar. 12, 1924; class five June 3, 1924; For. Ser. officer of class six July 1, 1924; assigned to Calcutta, temp., Apr. 1, 1926; to Rangoon Aug. 12, 1926; to Saloniki July 13, 1927; class five May 23, 1929; class four Feb. 27, 1931; assigned to Ghent May 10, 1932; to Lyon June 26, 1933; married.

Place, Frank.—b. Fall River, Mass., Feb. 12, 1896; attended public sch. and K. of C. Evening Sch.; in cotton mill 1910–17; U. S. Army 1917–19; clk., Bu. of War Risk Insur., 1919–20; app. clk. at \$900 in the Dept. of State Feb. 2, 1921; at \$1,000 Oct. 1, 1921; at \$1,100 Oct. 1, 1923; at \$1,200 Apr. 1, 1924; at \$1,440 July 1, 1924; at \$1,500 Mar. 1, 1927; at \$1,560 Nov. 1, 1927; at \$1,620 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$1,680 July 1, 1930; at \$1,740 July 3, 1930 (Brookhart Act).—DCR.

Playter, Harold.—b. Girard, Kans., Oct. 9, 1877; Collegiate Sch., Santa Barbara, grad.; Univ. of Calif. 1897-98; In mining business 1899-1907, 1908-14, 1916-19; collector 1907; farming and writing short stories 1914-16; app., after exam., cons. of class seven Sept. 5, 1919; assigned to Saltillo Oct. 1919; to Corinto July 21, 1921; For. Ser. officer of class eight July 1, 1924; class seven Aug. 8, 1924; assigned to Seville Apr. 22, 1926; to Lille Jan. 21, 1928; class six Dec. 26, 1929; to St. Michael Jan. 11, 1933; married.

Plitt, Edwin August.—b. Baltimore, Md., Oct. 2, 1891; Baltimore Polytech. Inst., grad. 1910; architectural student and quantity surveyor 1910-12; eugineer 1912-15; contractor 1915; engineer, U. S. Reclamation Ser., 1916-17; U. S. Army 1917-19, overseas service; office mgr. in France for French-American company 1919-21; app., after exam., v. c. of career of class three Oct. 26, 1921; assigned to Sofia Dec. 14, 1921; to Constantinople Aug. 21, 1922; class two Nov. 23, 1923; class one May 10, 1924; For. Ser. officer unclass. July 1, 1924; class eight Feb. 24, 1925; cons. Mar. 3, 1925; assigned to Athens Apr. 14, 1926; class seven May 23, 1929; class six Feb. 27, 1931; assigned to Paris Nov. 29, 1933; married.

Pollock, Blanche S.—b. Lawrence, Mass.; high sch. and business sch. grad.; George Washington Univ. 1928-; sec. and stenog. 1925-28; stenog., War Dept., 1928-29; app. clk. at \$1,440 in the Dept. of State Feb. 20, 1929; at \$1,620 Dec. 1, 1929; at \$1,740 July 1, 1930; clk., Seventh Int. Conf. of Am. States, Montevideo, 1933.—LA.

Polutnik, Ernest Valentine.—b. Cokedale, Mont., Feb. 14, 1893; high sch. and business sch. grad.; clk. in law office 1912-14; dep. clk. and county recorder 1914-17; U. S. Army 1917-19; accountant and dep. clk. and county recorder 1919-24; app. clk. in Am. Consulate at Glasgow May 19, 1925; v. c. at Glasgow June 13, 1927; at Dublin, temp., Apr. 18, 1930; at Glasgow May 7, 1930; at Newcastle-on-Tyne, temp., June 16, 1930; at Glasgow July 18, 1930; at Budapest Jan. 9, 1931.

Pool, John Cochran.—b. McDonough, Del., July 19, 1905; Chestnut Hill Acad. grad.; Sorbonne and L'École Libre des Sciences Politiques 1925-26; Univ. of Del., A. B. 1927; instructor in French and hist., Coll. of Willlam and Mary, 1927-29; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass., v. c. of career, and sec. in the Diplo. Ser. Apr. 15, 1930; assigned as v. c. at Montreal Apr. 29, 1930; to the For. Ser. Sch. Sept. 27, 1930; to Montevideo Feb. 24, 1931; to Buenos Aires Mar. 21, 1932; to Hong Kong May 26, 1934.

Poole, William Andrew.—b. Savannah, Ga., May 29, 1873; attended high sch.; app. clk., temp., at \$1,400 in the Dept. of State Dec. 21, 1917; at \$1,600 July 1, 1918; permanently Feb. 1, 1921; at \$1,860 July 1, 1924; at \$1,920 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$2,040 July 1, 1930; at \$2,100 July 3, 1930 (Brookhart Act); married.—DCR. Post, Henry James.—b. Beacon, N. Y., Sept. 19, 1887; Williams Coll., B. A. 1909; teacher in St. Johns Univ. in Shanghal 1909-12; representative of Am. firm in Java, Netherland Indles, since 1914; app. v. c. at Bangkok Mar. 17, 1930; married.

Potter, Kennett Farrar.—b. St. Louis, Mo., Mar. 22, 1890; Hill Sch. grad.; Yale, B. A. 1920; U. S. Army 1917-19, 2d lt.; with mfg. company 1920-23; foreign travel 1924-25; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass. and v. c. of career Feb. 5, 1927; assigned to Piedras Negras Feb. 17, 1927; to the For. Ser. Sch. Jan. 4, 1928; to Tokyo June 11, 1928; to Kobe, temp., Aug. 13, 1928; sec. in the Diplo. Ser. May 23, 1929; assigned as 3d sec. at Tokyo June 13, 1929; as v. c. and 3d sec. at Bangkok Nov. 13, 1931; married.

Powell, James C., Jr.—b. Fort Davis, Tex., Mar. 15, 1901; high sch. grad.; El Paso Jr. Coll. 1921; private tutors; postal clk. 1921-24; U. S. Army, 1922-25, 2d lt.; app. clk. in Am. Consulate at Ciudad Juarez July 24, 1924; v. c. at Ciudad Juarez May 12, 1925; at Torreon Apr. 1, 1926; at Ciudad Juarez Sept. 30, 1926; at Torreon May 3, 1928; at Agua Prieta Dec. 4, 1930; married.

Powell, Thomas Morgan.—b. Fort Davis, Tex., May 16, 1891; attended high sch.; N. Mex. Agric. Coll. two yrs.; Tex. Agric. and Mech. Coll. one yr.; stock raising 1912-22; insur. agt. 1922-24; app. clk. in Am. Consulate at Nogales Oct. 18, 1924; v. c. at Nogales Dec. 1, 1927; at Agua Prieta, temp., Oct. 5, 1928; at Nogales Nov. 15, 1928; married.

Prendergast, Walter Thomas.—b. Marlon, Ohio, May 11, 1898; Phillips Exeter; Univ. Sch., Cleveland, Ohio; Harvard, A. B. 1922; app., after exam., sec. of emb. or leg. of class four Sept. 22, 1922, and assigned to the Dept.; to Brussels Nov. 13, 1922; For. Ser. officer of class eight July 1, 1924; class seven Nov. 17, 1924; assigned as 3d sec. at Managua Apr. 15, 1925; at Habana Apr. 15, 1926; assigned to the Dept. July 27, 1928; 2d sec. Oct. 19, 1929; sec., London Naval Conf., 1930; class six May 9, 1930; assigned to London Oct. 1, 1930.

Preston, Austin Roe.—b. Buffalo, N. Y., Aug. 9, 1894; Taft Sch. grad.; Univ. of Edinburgh; Yale, B. A. 1918; U. S. Army 1917–19; insur. agt. 1920–22; app., after exam., v. c. of career of class three Sept. 30, 1922; assigned to Melbourne Nov. 6, 1922; to Auckland Apr. 27, 1923; to Tokyo Dec. 13, 1923; class two May 10, 1924; For. Ser. officer unclass. July 1, 1924; assigned to Nagoya Mar. 19, 1928; class eight, cons., and assigned to Nagoya May 23, 1929; to Brisbane Dec. 23, 1930; class seven Feb. 4, 1931; married.

Price, Leonard Hugo.—b. Washington, D. C., July 17, 1906; George Washington Univ., A. B. 1933, Law Sch. 1931-; fingerprint classifier, Dept. of Justice 1928-30; app. clk. at \$1,440 in the Dept. of State Sept. 16, 1930; archive asst. at \$1,620 July 28, 1931.—RP.

††Prince, John Dyneley.—b. New York City Apr. 17, 1868; Columbia, B. A. 1888; Johns Hopkins, Ph. D. 1892; Univ. of Berlin 1889-90; mem. of expedition to Babylonia 1888-89; New York Univ., prof. of Semitic languages 1892-1902, dean of grad. sch. 1895-1902; Columbia Univ., prof. of Semitic languages 1902-15, of Slavonic languages 1915-21; mem., Assembly of N. J., 1906-9, speaker 1909; mem., Senate of N. J., 1911-13, pres. 1912; act. gov. of N. J. 1912; app. E. E. and M. P. to Denmark Sept 24, 1921; to the Kingdom of the Serbs, Croats and Slovenes (Yugoslavia) Feb. 23, 1926; del., Int. Conf. for the Protection of the Rights of Authors, Belgrade, Zagreb, and Ljubljana, 1928; resigned Aug. 31, 1933; married.

Prince, Kirby L .- b. Warrenton, Va., Oct. 1, 1899; attended high sch. and business sch.; clk., Navy Dept., 1916-17; U. S. Navy one yr.; clk., Govt. depts., 1919-20; app. clk. at \$1,000 in the Dept. of State Apr. 24, 1920; resigned Nov. 17, 1920; reapp. at \$1,000 Dec. 2, 1920; at \$1,080 Sept. 1, 1922; at \$1,140 Dec. 30, 1922, effective Jan. 1, 1923; at \$1,200 Oct. 1, 1923; at \$1,500 July 1, 1924; at \$1,560 Mar. 1, 1927; at \$1,680 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$1,740 July 1, 1928; at \$1,860 July 1, 1930; code clk., Am. section, Tacna-Arica Plebiscitary Commn., 1925-26; code clk. to accompany sec. of state on European trip, 1931; clk., conf. of ministers for moratorium on intergovernmental debts, London, 1931; code clk. to accompany President on sea trip 1933; code clk., Seventh Int. Conf. of Am. States, Montevideo, 1933; married.-DCR.

Prince, Ulysses Simpson Grant, Jr.—b. Leesburg, Va., Nov. 22, 1899; in Govt. depts. 1917-28; app. messenger in the Dept. of State June 4, 1928.—CI.

Proctor, Bronson.—b. Forest City, N. C., Dec. 15, 1896; U. S. Army 1916-19, 1924-26, overseas service; app. laborer in the Dept. of State Sept. 16, 1930.—CC.

Proctor, Robert Alexander.—b. Washington, D. C., May 24, 1881; attended business high sch.; National Law Sch. two yrs.; Georgetown, LL. B. 1915; mem. of bar of D. C.; 1st D. C. Volunteer Infantry 1898; U. S. Volunteer Infantry 1899–1901, Philippine service; clk., Govt. depts., and Nat. Museum, 1904–17; law practice 1917–19; app. clk., temp., at \$1,400 ln the Dept. of State Apr. 21, 1919; at \$1,600 Oct. 5, 1920, effective Oct. 1; permanently at \$1,600 Feb. 1, 1921; at \$1,800 Apr. 1, 1921; passport agt. at Chicago at \$2,750 Feb. 28, 1923; at \$2,800 Aug. 1, 1924; at \$3,000 July 1, 1925; at \$3,200 Nov. 1, 1926; at \$3,300 July 1, 1927; at \$3,400 May 1, 1928; at \$3,600 July 1, 1928; at \$3,700 May 1, 1930; married.

Pryor, Ralph Walton.—b. Mount Ralnier, Md., Mar. 29, 1907; attended public sch.; messenger 1923; app. messenger at \$420 in the Dept. of State Mar. 3, 1924; at \$1,020 July 1, 1924; clk. at \$1,140 July 1, 1925; at \$1,200 Mar. 1, 1927; at \$1,320 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$1,620 Aug. 1, 1928; at \$1,740 July 1, 1930; married.—MA.

Purvis, Don Ricardo Mills.—b. Ponce, Porto Rico, June 10, 1904; St. Johns' Mil. Acad. grad.; attended business sch.; Georgetown Sch. of For. Ser. 1925-30; in Dept. of Com. 1924-26; app. clk. at \$1,320 in the Dept. of State May 19, 1926; at \$1,380 Jan. 1, 1928; at \$1,500 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$1,560 July 1, 1928; at \$1,620 Sept. 1, 1929; at \$1,740 July 1, 1930.—DCR.

Putnam, John Risley .- b. Long Branch, N. J., Aug. 16, 1876; St. John's Sch.; private tutors; studied law; asst., Chinese Imperial Maritime Customs Ser., 1896-1908; mem. of engineering and contracting firm 1909-10; farming 1910-15; county commr. 1913; app., after exam., cons. of class eight Mar. 2, 1915: detailed as v. c. at Barcelona May 13, 1915; assigned to Valencia Oct. 18, 1915; class seven Oct. 24, 1918; class six Sept. 5, 1919; class five June 4, 1920; detailed to Habana June 9, 1921; class four Aug. 23, 1922; detailed to Shanghai Mar. 30, 1923; to Nanking July 25, 1923; to Foochow Sept. 19, 1923; assigned to Changsha Dec. 12, 1923; to Chefoo Jan. 9, 1924; For. Ser. officer of class five July 1, 1924; class four Feb. 24, 1925; assigned to Amoy Apr. 1, 1926; to Shanghai June 27, 1929 (canceled); class three July 24, 1930; to Hong Kong Aug. 27, 1931; to Zürich, temp., June 14, 1932; to Leghorn June 15, 1932; to Genoa Jan. 5, 1934; married.

Pyle, **Mabel Joyce**.—*b*. Stigler, Okla.; high sch. and business sch. grad.; app. clk., temp., at \$1,260 in the Dept. of State Feb. 24, 1931; permanently July 23, 1931; at \$1,440 May 1, 1934.—DCR.

Quarton, Harold Barlow .- b. Algona, Iowa, Feb. 8, 1888; Grinnell Coll., Ph. B. 1908; grad. work, Univ. of Colo.; George Washington, M. Dip. 1912; clk. in law offices; banking 1908; principal of high sch. 1909-11; app., after exam., cons. asst. Mar. 12, 1912; dep. cons. gen. at Berlin May 27, 1912; v. and dep. cons. gen. at Berlin July 27, 1914; v. c. at Berlin Feb. 6, 1915; at Rotterdam Feb. 24, 1917; cons. of class eight Feb. 19, 1918; detailed to Rotterdam Feb. 20, 1928; to Helsingfors June 12, 1918; mem., Inter-Allied Trade Commn. for Finland, 1919; assigned to Malmö May 3, 1919; class six Sept. 5, 1919; detailed to Viborg May 22, 1920; to Riga Mar. 1, 1922; class five Aug. 23, 1922; assigned to Reval (Tallinn) Oct. 14, 1922; For. Ser. officer of class six July 1, 1924; assigned to Coblenz Mar. 23, 1925; to Habana July 6, 1927; class five May 23, 1929; class four Feb. 4, 1931; to Guayaquil Jan. 13, 1933; cons. gen. and assigned to Guayaquil Apr. 5, 1933; to St. John's, N.F., June 15, 1934; married.

Quigley, Stephen Hugh.—b. near Rockville, Md., Sept. 19, 1877; attended private and public sch. and business sch.; Baltimore City Coll., grad. 1897; private tutors; stenog. in circuit court 1900–1901; in engineer dept. of D. C. govt. 1901–2; app. clk. at \$900 in the Dept. of State Oct. 23, 1902; at \$1,000 July 1, 1903; at \$1,400 June 15, 1904; at \$1,600 May 24, 1905, effective July 1; act. chief, bu. of appoIntments, Aug. 27-Dec. 2, 1908; Dept. representative, Committee on Grades and Salaries in Executive Depts., 1908; at \$1,800 Nov. 2, 1908; at \$1,400 June 23, 1909, effective July 1; at \$1,600 Dec. 1, 1913; at \$1,800 Sept. 1, 1922; at \$2,100 July 1, 1924; asst. chief, appt. section, Aug. 19, 1924–June 28, 1934; at \$2,200 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$2,300 July 1, 1928; at \$2,400 July 1, 1930; at \$2,500 July 3, 1930 (Brookhart Act); married.—AP.

Quinlan, Rosemary.—b. Brooklyn, N. Y.; attended high sch.; stenog., Army Transport Ser., 1918-21; Veterans' Bu., N. Y., 1921-26; on special detail to Area Coordinator, N. Y., 1926-28; app. clk. at \$1,680 in U. S. Despatch Agency, N. Y., Apr. 16, 1928; at \$1,800 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act).

Ragland, Joseph Pemberton.—b. Richmond, Va., May 16, 1807; St. John's Coll. grad.; Georgetown, Ph. B. 1919, A. M. 1920, M. F. S. 1923; U. S. Navo¹ Reserve Force 1918-21; asst. investigator, Bu. of Efficiency, 1919-24; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass. and v. c. of career Oct. 16, 1924; assigned to Monterrey Nov. 8, 1924; to the Dept. Oct. 30, 1925; to St. John's Oct. 12, 1926; to Halifax June 15, 1928; class eight, cons., and assigned to Halifax Feb. 4, 1931; married.

Ramey, Faye Genevieve (Mrs.)-b. Ashland, Ky.; business high sch. grad.; clk. 1930-31; app. clk. at \$1,440 in the Dept. of State Oct. 22, 1931.-SS.

Ramsay, Hugh Franklin.—b. Franklin, N. Y., May 10, 1891; attended Newburgh Acad., New Faltz Normal Sch., and business sch.; sec. and cml. work 1911– 15; U. S. Army 1916–19; Am. grain corp., Near East Relief in Russia, 1919; with Am. newspapers in Paris one yr.; Am. Relief Admin. in Russia 1922–23; asst. to pres. of oil corp. in France and Russia 1923–24; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass. and v. c. of career Sept. 1, 1926; assigned to Stuttgart Apr. 20, 1927; to Zürlch May 8, 1930; to Munich Nov. 27, 1931; married.

Ramsey, Henry Oscar.—b. Florence, Colo., Mar. 21, 1893; high sch. grad.; attended business sch.; Belfast Inst. of Tech. 1924-25; S. Dak. state tax commn. 1916-21; U. S. Navy 1918-19; app. v. c. at Viborg Apr. 30, 1921; at Belfast Feb. 17, 1922; at Sheffield June 6, 1929; married.

Rand, Edward Baxter.—b. Shreveport, La., Dec. 27, 1898; McTyeire Sch.; Gulf Coast Mil. Acad.; U. S. N. A. 1915-17; U. S. Coast Guard Acad. 1917-18; U. S. Army Transport Service, 1918-19; supercargo, U. S. Shipping Bd., 1919-20; purser 1920-21; sec. for firm of cotton brokers 1921; app., after exam, student interpreter in Japan Jan. 23, 1924; For. Ser. officer unclass. July 1, 1924; detailed to the Dept. Oct. 5, 1925; v. c. of career and assigned to Cartagena Mar. 11, 1926; to Cali Sept. 27, 1928; to Valparaiso May 23, 1929; to Antofagasta, temp., July 13, 1929; to Valparaiso Nov. 22, 1929; to Arlca June 11, 1930; to Antofagasta Mar. 30, 1931; to Medan Jan. 21, 1932; to Tabiti Sept. 29, 1932.

Randall, Harold Milton.—b. Jefferson Co., Iowa, Jan. 1, 1900; Parsons Coll., A. B. 1924; Northwestern Univ. summer 1925; Georgetown, A. M. 1927, Ph. D. 1929; U. S. Navy 1917–19; prof. of political science, Westminster Coll., 1924–25; prof. of speech and debate, Colo. State Teachers Coll., 1925–26; prof. of speech, Georgetown Sch. of For. Ser., 1926-30; business economist, Dept. of Com., 1928-30; app. asst. cml. att. at Santiago, Chile, Aug. 26, 1930; married.

Randolph, John .- b. Warsaw, N. Y., June 5, 1878; studied languages in Europe 1897-98, 1906; Cornell, A. B. 1903; with mfg. concern 1903-6; app. clk. in Am. Leg. at Madrid Mar. 14, 1907; resigned June 5, 1909; corr. in Spain for Assoc. Press two yrs.; sales mgr. of firm 1910-13; asst. to asst. sec., Second Pan American Scientific Cong., Washington, 1915-16; app. clk. in Am. Consulate General at Moscow Sept. 2, 1916; v. c. at Moscow Mar. 29, 1917; at Odessa Jan. 14, 1919; at Tiflis May 7, 1919; app., after exam., cons. of class seven Apr. 29, 1920; remained at Tiflis on detail; detailed to Constantinople Mar. 5, 1921; class six Nov. 3, 1921; detailed to the Dept. Dec. 22, 1922; to Baghdad Mar. 16, 1923; class five June 3, 1924; For. Ser. officer of class six July 1, 1924; assigned to Hong Kong, temp., Nov. 6, 1925 (canceled); class five May 23, 1929; assigned to Bucharest July 30, 1929; class four Feb. 4, 1931; to Quebec Nov. 2, 1931; married.

Rankin, Karl Lott.—b. Manitowoc, Wis., Sept. 4, 1898; Mercersburg Acad.; Federal Polytech., Zürich, Switzerland; Heidelberg Univ., Germany, 1920-21; Princeton, C. E. 1922; U. S. Naval Reserve Force 1918; 2d It., O. R. C.; field engineering 1919; relief work in Smyrna, Turkey, 1920; construction supt., Near East Relief, Russia, 1922-25; mgr. of a development company in U. S. 1925-27; app. asst. trade commr. at Prague Aug. 1, 1927; cml. att. at Prague June 27, 1929; at Athens and Tirana Feb. 4, 1932; married.

Rasmussen, Bernardine K.—b. Tyler, Minn.; Univ. of Minn., B. S. 1927; stenog., Univ. of Minn., 1926-28; app. clk. at \$1,440 in the Dept. of State Nov. 2, 1928; at \$1,620 July 1, 1929; at \$1,740 July 1, 1930; clk., Seventh Int. Conf. of Am. States, Montevideo, 1933.—HA.

Rast, A. Arlene Jones (Mrs.)—b. Bozeman, Mont.; high sch. grad.; Oreg. State Coll. 1928-29; Pa. State Coll. 1932; teacher in business sch. 1930; stenog. 1931-32; clk., Dept. of Agric., 1932; app. clk., temp., at \$1,260 in the Dept. of State July 13, 1934.—FA.

Ratcliff, Viola Haden.—b. Ardmore, Mo.; attended public sch. and business sch.; stenog., Okla. state insur. commn. 1921, state highway commn. 1921– 22, private companies 1923–24, state bd. of public affairs 1924–25; app. clk. at \$1,320 in the Dept. of State Jan. 4, 1926; at \$1,500 Mar. 1, 1927; at \$1,620 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$1,680 July 1, 1928; at \$1,800 Dec. 1, 1929; at \$1,920 July 1, 1930; stenog., Conf. on the Limitation of the Manufacture of Narcotic Drugs, Geneva, 1931.—A-C.

Ratcliffe, Louis Johnson.—b. Washington, D. C., Sept. 17, 1904; private tutor; attended business sch. and high sch.; page, U. S. House of Representatives, 1917-18; messenger, U. S. Housing Corp., 1918-20; minor asst., Dept. of Labor Library, 1920-27; app. clk. at \$1,320 in the Dept. of State Mar. 16, 1927; at \$1,440 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$1,500 July 1, 1928; at \$1,620 Feb. 1, 1929; at \$1,740 July 1, 1930; married.—DCR. Ravndal, Christian Magelssen.—b. Beirut, Syria, of Am. parents, Jan. 6, 1899; Robert Coll., Constantinople, 1912–14; Luther Coll., A. B. 1920; U. S. Army 1917–19; app. clk. in Am. Consulate in Vienna Nov. 12, 1920; app., after exam., cons. asst. Apr. 29, 1922; v. c. at Vienna Apr. 29, 1922; v. c. of career of class three Feb. 26, 1923; assigned to Vienna Mar. 2, 1923; class two Nov. 23, 1923; class one May 10, 1924; For. Ser. officer unclass. July 1, 1924; assigned to Frankfort-on-the-Main Aug. 7, 1924; class nine and cons. Aug. 8, 1924; class eight Feb. 24, 1925; assigned to Cologne June 26, 1928; to Toronto July 1, 1929; class seven Oct. 16, 1929; assigned to the Dept. Apr. 17, 1931; to Vancouver June 7, 1933; married.

Ray, Guy Walter.—b. Wilsonville, Ala., Oct. 17, 1896; Howard Coll. (Ala.), A. B. 1917; private sec. 1917-18; app. clk. in Am. Emb. at Paris Feb. 9, 1918; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass., v. c. of career, and sec. in the Diplo. Ser. Aug. 16, 1930; assigned as v. c. at Singapore Sept. 3, 1930 (canceled); at London Oct. 10, 1930; detailed to the emb. at London July 20-27, 1931; assigned to the Dept. Sept. 27, 1933; to Guaymas Oct. 25, 1933; married.

Reagan, Daniel J.—b. Terre Haute, Ind., Sept. 26, 1893; Princeton, Catholic Univ., Univ. of Wis.; Columbia, B. A. 1916; supt. of mines and mfg. plant 1912-14; sec.-treas. of int. cml. corp. 1917; asst. mgr. of engineering corp. 1917-19; advertising 1919-23; entered Bu. of For. and Domes. Com. Apr. 1923; app. trade commr. at Paris Aug. 16, 1924; asst. cml. att. at Paris Apr. 27, 1927; del., Int. Road Conf., Paris, 1929, First Int. Cong. of Aerial Safety, Paris, 1930; del., 6th Cong. of the Int. Assn. of Agriculture of Tropical Countries, Paris, 1931, Int. Cong. of Wood and Sylviculture, Paris, 1931, 7th Int. Cong. of Aquiculture and Fisheries, Paris, 1931; observer, Int. Cong. of Geography, Paris, 1931; married.

Reams, Robert Borden.—b. Luthersburg, Pa., Jan. 27, 1904; Allegheny Coll. 1921–23, and George Washington Law Sch.; salesman 1923–24; hotel mgr. 1924–28; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass. and v. c. of career Jan. 29, 1929; assigned to the For. Ser. Sch. Feb. 2, 1929; to Havre Sept. 13, 1929; to Johannesburg Aug. 25, 1931; to Port Elizabeth Oct. 20, 1933; married.

Reber, Samuel.-b. Easthampton, N. Y., July 15, 1903; Groton Sch.; Harvard, A. B. 1925; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass. May 28, 1926; v. c. of career June 15, 1926; assigned to Callao-Lima Feb. 26, 1927; sec. in the Diplo. Ser. Oct. 16, 1929; assigned also as 3d sec. at Lima Oct. 24, 1929; to the Dept., temp., Dec. 12, 1929; class eight and cons. May 9, 1930; assigned as cons. and 3d sec. at Monrovia June 18, 1930; to the Dept. Jan. 8, 1931; representative, 1st sess., Int. Committee on Liberia, London, 1931; assigned as 3d sec. at Brussels July 21, 1932; also at Luxembourg Aug. 3, 1932; sec., 1st stage, Gen. Disarmament Conf., Geneva, 1932; assigned as 3d sec. at Bern Aug. 29, 1933; attended, as substitute, meeting of Advisory Com. on Native Labor, Geneva, 1934.

Redecker, Sydney Brayton.—b. Brooklyn, N. Y., Jan. 22, 1895; business sch. grad.; N. Y. Prep. Sch.

1912-13; studied law; with business firms 1913-17; U. S. Navy 1917-19, on special detail with Ministry of War, Paris, 1918-19; sec. to Am. Min. to Poland 1919-21; app., after exam., v. c. of career of class three May 25, 1921; assigned to Rotterdam June 11, 1921; class two May 26, 1922; class one Feb. 26, 1923; assigned to Medan Aug. 17, 1923; For. Ser. officer unclass. July 1, 1924; class eight and cons. Aug. 31, 1925; assigned to Medan Sept. 4, 1925; to Naples July 12, 1927; class seven May 23, 1929; class six Feb. 4, 1931; assigned to Frankfort-on-the-Maln Feb. 5, 1931; married.

Rediker, Norris.—b. Minneapolis, Minn., Feb. 26, 1908; Univ. of Minn., A. B. 1930; app. clk. in Am. Consulate at Sault Ste. Marie Mar. 5, 1931; v. c. at Corinto Oct. 17, 1931; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass., v. c. of career, and sec. in the Diplo. Ser. Dec. 17, 1931; assigned as v. c. at Corinto Jan. 2, 1932; to the For. Ser. Sch. Aug. 19, 1932; to Bombay Dec. 22, 1932.

Redman, James E.—b. Perryman, Md., Jan. 8, 1887; high sch. grad.; Bliss Electrical Sch. grad. 1908; clk. and insur. agt. 1908-16; clk., Govt. depts., 1916-30; app. clk. at \$1,800 in the Dept. of State Dec. 1, 1930; at \$2,000 Nov. 2, 1931; married.—BA.

Reed, Charles Shadrach, 2d.—b. Sandusky, Ohio, Apr. 3, 1898; Univ. Sch. of Cleveland; Harvard, S. B. 1920; Western Reserve Univ. 1920-21; Harvard Grad. Sch. 1921-22; Western Reserve, LL. B. 1925; mem. of bar of Ohio; law practice 1925; with rubber company in Sumatra 1925-27; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass. and v. c. of career May 17, 1928; assigned to the For. Ser. Sch. May 24, 1923; to Tokyo Oct. 10, 1928; to Taihoku May 28, 1929; to Tokyo Sept. 27, 1929 (canceled); to Yünnanfu Apr. 2, 1932.

Reed, Edward Lyndal .- b. Philadelphia, Pa., May 20, 1895; Lawrenceville Sch.; Williams Coll., B. A. 1916; grad. work, Univ. of Pa., 1919-20; U. S. Marine Corps 1917-19, 2d lt.; mem. firm of importers and exporters 1919; app., after exam., sec. of emb. or leg. of class four Nov. 15, 1920; assigned to Buenos Aires Dec. 28, 1920; class three Sept. 22, 1922; assigned to Panama Sept. 29, 1922; to the Dept. Nov. 7, 1923; mem., U. S.-Panama Commn., 1924-26; For. Ser. officer of class six July 1, 1924; class five Sept. 20, 1924; assigned as 2d sec. at Madrid, temp., June 15, 1926; at Berlin Sept. 1, 1926; class four Oct. 19, 1926; assigned as 1st sec. at Brussels and Luxemburg July 19, 1927; at Habana June 28, 1929; class three May 9, 1930; assigned to the Dept. Nov. 23, 1933; asst. chief, Division of Latin American Affairs, Dec. 18, 1933; chief, Division of Mexican Affairs, Mar. 12, 1934; married.-ME.

Reed, Leslie Edgar.—b. St. Paul, Minn., June 12, 1890; Univ. of Minn., B. A. 1913; app., after exam., cons. asst. Apr. 4, 1914; assigned to London Aug. 19, 1914; v. c. at London May 13, 1915; cons. of class seven Sept. 5, 1919; class six June 4, 1920; class five Nov. 19, 1921; observer, Comité Maritime of Assoc. of Int. Law, London, 1922; assigned to Bremen Aug. 3, 1923; class four June 3, 1924; For. Ser. officer of class five July 1, 1924; assigned to Buenos Aires July 2, 1929; class four and cons. gen. May 9, 1930; assigned to Montevideo May 17, 1930; married.

Reeder, Charles Augustus.—b. Denver, Colo., Mar. 4, 1874; app. asst. messenger in the Dept. of State Feb. 10, 1910; messenger June 22, 1916, effective July 1.—U.

Reeves, Edwy L.—b. Washington, D. C., Dec. 12, 1908; attended high sch. and business sch.; clk., Civil Ser. Commn., 1927-31; app. clk. at \$1,620 in the Dept. of State June 10, 1931; married.—PD.

Reeves, Harman.—b. Dunedin, New Zealand, Sept. 15, 1871; attended high sch.; Otago Univ., Dunedin; stockbroker and financial agt. in Dunedin twenty-five yrs.; app. cons. agt. at Dunedin Apr. 6, 1920; married.

Reid, Thomas B.—b. Cumberland, Md., Dec. 5, 1896; high sch. grad.; U. S. Army 1918-19; clk., U. S. Naval Gun factory, 1919-21; clk. in Am. Consulate at Kingston, Jamaica, 1921-23; clk., Govt. depts., 1924-25; app. clk. at \$1,140 in the Dept. of State May 1, 1925; at \$1,200 Dec. 1, 1925; at \$1,320 Mar. 1, 1926; at \$1,500 May 1, 1926; at \$1,620 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$1,800 Jan. 1, 1929; at \$1,920 July 1, 1930.—PD.

Reineck, Walter S.—b. Gibsonburg, Ohio, Dec. 11, 1887; St. Joseph's Coll., Rensselaer, Ind., A. B. 1912; Univ. of Innsbruck, Austria, 1912-14; banking 1903-8; app. clk. in Am. Emb. at Vienna Sept. 1914; in charge of Am. archives in the Spanish Emb. at Vienna Apr. 6, 1917; in Am. Mission at Vienna Dec. 1919; at Budapest Feb. 17, 1920; resigned Nov. 9, 1920; app., after exam., v. c. of career of class three May 25, 1921; assigned to Budapest July 21, 1921; class two May 26, 1922; class one Feb. 26, 1923; cons. of class seven Dec. 19, 1923; For. Ser. officer of class eight July 1, 1924; assigned to Martinique Nov. 20, 1925; class seven Aug. 24, 1927; assigned to Antwerp Mar. 14, 1929; class six Dec. 31, 1929; assigned to Santo Domingo June 23, 1931; married.

Remillard, Horace.—b. Roxbury, Mass., Aug. 5, 1885; Harvard 1905-9; translated for publication; app., after exam., student interpreter in China June 2, 1909; dep. cons. gen. at Hankow Jan. 10, 1912; also interpreter Oct. 15, 1912; v. and dep. cons. gen. at Hankow July 21, 1913; v. and dep. cons. gen. and interpreter at Tientsin Mar. 17, 1914; v. and dep. cons. and interpreter at Tsingtau Apr. 8, 1914; v. and dep. cons. gen. and interpreter at Hankow July 31, 1914; v. c. at Hankow Feb. 6, 1915; v. c. and interpreter at Foochow July 19, 1916; at Swatow Sept. 6, 1916; cons. of class nine Apr. 16, 1917; assigned to Saigon Apr. 21, 1917; class eight Sept. 14, 1917; detailed to Batavia, temp., July 12, 1919; class six Sept. 5, 1919; returned to Saigon Apr. 1, 1920; assigned to Huelva July 1, 1920; detailed to Rome Mar. 12, 1924; For. Ser. officer of class seven July 1, 1924; assigned to Rome Aug. 15, 1924; to Horta Apr. 17, 1926; to Tangier Sept. 7, 1926; class six May 23, 1929; assigned to Port Said Sept. 30, 1930; married.

Renchard, George Wilmont.—b. Detroit, Mich., June 19, 1907; Lawrenceville Sch. grad.; Princeton, B. S. 1930; app. clk. in Am. Consulate at Izmir Aug. 29, 1930; v. c. at Izmir Oct. 31, 1930; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass., v. c. of career, and sec. in the Diplo. Ser. Feb. 19, 1932; assigned as v. c. and 3d sec. at Baghdad Feb. 20, 1932.

Renois, Katherine V. (Mrs.)—b. Lovettsville, Va.; attended high sch.; clk., Govt. depts., 1919-25; app. clk. at \$1,140 in the Dept. of State Feb. 11, 1927; at \$1,260 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$1,440 Aug. 1, 1928; at \$1,500 July 1, 1930.—DCR.

Reveley, Paul Jefferson.—b. New Haven, Conn., July 27, 1901; Conn. State Coll., B. S. 1923; teacher in high sch. in Porto Rico 1923–24; 2d It., O. R. C., 1923–28; app. clk. in Am. Consulate at Munich July 17, 1924; v. c. at Munich July 28, 1927; at Kovno Dec. 17, 1927; at Leipzig Dec. 20, 1929; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass., v. c. of career, and sec. in the Diplo. Ser. Dec. 17, 1931; assigned as v. c. at Leipzig Jan. 2, 1932; married.

Reynolds, Lincoln Carol.—b. Viola, Calif., Feb. 25, 1906; high sch. grad.; Harvard 1926-27; tutors 1927, 1929; accountant 1927-28; salesman 1928; representative in China for oil company 1928-29; app. clk. in Am. Consulate at Nanking Jan. 8, 1930; v. c. at Nanking Jan. 19, 1931; at Foochow Feb. 20, 1933; at Shanghai Jan. 23, 1934; married.

Rhoades, Otis Wiles.—b. Frederick, Md., Jan. 14, 1896; Frederick Coll., grad. 1912; Georgetown Sch. of For. Ser. 1924-25; messenger, U. S. Patent Office, 1912-13; cashier and bookkeeper 1913-15; clk. 1915-17; U. S. Army 1917-19; clk., Federal Bd. for Vocational Education, 1919-20; tech. asst. for concern in Europe 1920-22; clk. 1922-25; clk. in Am. Consulate at Kobe 1925-27; clk., Dept. of State, 1927; app. clk. in Am. Consulate at Kobe Nov. 29, 1927; v. c. at Kobe Mar. 20, 1928.

Rice, Albert S.—b. Washington, D. C., Nov. 8, 1903; messenger and elevator conductor, Govt. depts., 1922-25, 1929; app. messenger in the Dept. of State Oct. 1, 1920.—AP.

Rice, Charles M., Jr.—b. Avon, Mont., May 3, 1907; high sch. grad.; attended business sch.; clk. 1928-31; app. clk. at \$1,260 in the Dept. of State May 6, 1931; at \$1,440 Dec. 1, 1931; at \$1,620 Mar. 14, 1934.—BA.

Rice, Coke S.—b. Columbia, S. C., Feb. 7, 1893; Wofford Coll., Southwestern and George Washington Univ.; invoice auditor 1915-17; U. S. Army 1917-19, overseas service; private business 1920-21; office mgr. and salesman 1922-26; app. clk. in Am. Consulate at Hamburg Oct. 28, 1927; v. c. at Hamburg Apr. 24, 1929; at Malta Mar. 20, 1931.

Richards, Arthur Lincoln.—b. Emmett, Idaho, June 21, 1907; hlgh sch. grad.; Pasadena Jr. Coll. 1925-27;

George Washington Univ. 1929-30; app. clk. in Am. Consulate at Guadalajara July 10, 1930; resigned Oct. 11, 1930; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass., v. c. of career, and sec. in the Diplo. Ser. Dec. 16, 1930; assigned to the For. Ser. Sch. Dec. 17, 1930; as v. c. at Teheran Feb. 24, 1931; also 3d sec. at Teheran Feb. 26, 1932; v. c. at Jerusalem Jan. 19, 1934.

Richards, James Bartlett.—b. Washington, D. C., Dec. 26, 1897; Harvard, A. B. 1920; banking; entered Bu. of For. and Domes. Com. and app. trade commr. at Ottawa July 1, 1926; at Toronto Nov. 1926; at Winnipeg July 1928; at Bombay Aug. 1929; at Calcutta July 1932; in Bu. of For. and Domes. Com., Washington, July 1933; assigned as asst. cml. att. at Buenos Aires July 12, 1933.

Richards, Raymond Orel.—b. Appleton, Me., May 16, 1901; attended high sch. and business sch.; clk. 1921-22; chief clk., International Joint Commn., 1922-23; app. clk. in Am. Consulate at Santo Domingo June 25, 1923; v. c. at Santo Domingo Nov. 15, 1923; at Caracas Mar. 23, 1926; at La Guaira Apr. 20, 1926; at Port au Prince June 29, 1926; at Nuevitas, temp., Apr. 2, 1927; at Málaga July 7, 1927; at Madrid, temp., Aug. 30, 1927; at Málaga Dec. 10, 1927; at Alicante, temp., Feb. 2, 1928; at Málaga Aug. 7, 1928; at Seville, temp., Apr. 4, 1929; at Madrid Apr. 2, 1930; at Valencia, temp., Aug. 6, 1930; at Madrid Sept. 9, 1930; at Vigo, temp., Oct. 3, 1930; at Madrid Nov. 17, 1930.

Richardson, Antonio Maceo.—b. Washington, D. C., Mar. 25, 1898; chauffeur and messenger, Govt. depts., 1928-31; app. chauffeur in the Dept. of State Oct. 17, 1931.—MA.

Richardson, Clydia Mae.—b. Highmore, S.Dak.; business high sch. grad.; Zanerian Art Coll., grad. 1933; asst. scientific illustrator, Smithsonian Instit., 1933; clk. and typist, Public Works Admin., 1933-34; app. clk. at \$1,800 in the Dept. of State Feb. 1, 1934.—AP.

Richardson, John E.—b. Claridon, Ohio, Nov. 26, 1877; attended high sch.; Oberlin Prep. 1893-94; expert typewriter mechanic 1895-1906; typewriter mechanic, Govt. depts., 1908-20; U. S. Army 1918-19; in business 1920-27; app. typewriter repairman at \$1,500 in the Dept. of State Oct. 27, 1927; at \$1,680 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$1,740 July 1, 1928; ast. chief, supply section, at \$2,000 Oct. 1, 1928; at \$2,200 July 1, 1930; married.—SU.

Richardson, John Samuel, Jr.—b. Boston, Mass., Jan. 9, 1890; Roxbury Latin Sch. grad.; Dartmouth, A. B. 1911; insur. adjuster 1912; railroad claim adjuster 1912-15; studied law 1915-17; U. S. Army 1917-19, lt.; oil scout 1919; stock salesman 1919-20; app. v. c. at Rotterdam Nov. 15, 1920; at Queenstown Jan. 21, 1922; at Cobh Feb. 27, 1924; app., after exam., v. c. of career of class three June 13, 1924; assigned to Cobh June 23, 1924; For. Ser. officer unclass. July 1, 1924; assigned to Tananarive May 19, 1928; class eight, cons., and assigned to Tananarive Oct. 16, 1929; class seven July 1, 1931; to Winnipeg Jan. 11, 1932; married. Richmond, Stoughton James.—b. Washington, D. C., Nov. 10, 1904; high sch. grad.; attended business and tech. high sch.; Georgetown Sch. of For. Ser. 1923-25; Suffolk Law Sch. 1927-29; clk. 1923, in Govt. depts., 1924; app. clk. at \$1,320 in the Dept. of State Aug. 7, 1924; at \$1,380 Dec. 1, 1925; asst. passport agt. in Boston at \$2,000 Dec. 31, 1925; effective Jan. 1, 1926; at \$2,300 May 1, 1927; at \$2,200 Jan. 1, 1928; at \$2,300 May 1, 1928; at \$2,500July 1, 1928; at \$2,600 May 1, 1928; at \$2,500July 1, 1928; at \$2,600 May 1, 1920; married.

Ricks, Thompkins George.—b. Gaithersburg, Md., Apr. 1, 1907; elevator conductor, Office of Public Bldgs. and Public Parks, 1926-27; app. messenger in the Dept. of State Oct. 1, 1927.—DCR.

Riddiford, George Gerald.—b. Cincinnati, Ohio, Jan. 24, 1896; attended high sch. and business sch.; George Washington Law Sch. one-half yr.; stenog., War Dept., 1917-18; U. S. Army 1918-19, overseas service; stenog., U. S. Public Health Ser., 1920-23; app. clk. at \$1,200 in the Dept. of State Nov. 3, 1923; at \$1,440 July 1, 1924; at \$1,500 Nov. 16, 1925; at \$1,620 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$1,680 July 1, 1928; at \$1,800 Oct. 1, 1929; at \$1,920 July 1, 1930; at \$2,000 Jan. 1, 1931.—FA.

Riddle, James Robert.—b. Birmingham, Ala., Dec. 7, 1901; high sch. grad.; Ala. Sch. of Mines, Univ. of Ala., 1922–23; Ala. Nat. Guard 1920–23; chemical asst. 1923; clk.bookkeeper 1923–24; app. clk. in Am. Consulate at Vancouver June 21, 1924; v. c. at Prince Rupert, temp., Dec. 2, 1929; at Vancouver Feb. 19, 1930; at Fernie, temp., Apr. 4, 1930; at Edmonton, temp., May 23, 1930; at Vancouver Aug. 29, 1930; at North Bay Nov. 26, 1930; at Winnipeg May 15, 1933; married.

Riddleberger, James Williams.—b. Washington, D. C., Sept. 21, 1904; Massanutten Mil. Acad.; Randolph-Macon, A. B. 1924; Georgetown Sch. of For. Ser., A. M. 1926; American Univ. Grad. Sch. 1926–27; asst. prof. of int. relations, Georgetown Sch. of For. Ser., 1926–29; special expert in foreign tariffs, Tariff Commn., 1927–29; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass. and v. c. of career Nov. 12, 1929; assigned to the For. Ser. Sch. Nov. 18, 1929; to Geneva Mar. 26, 1930; married.

Riedesel, Helen R.—b. Crookston, Minn.; attended high sch. and business sch.; bookkeeper 1929-30; app. clk., temp., at \$1,260 in the Dept. of State May 26, 1930; permanently Aug. 26, 1930; at \$1,440 May 16, 1931.—PD.

Riggs, Benjamin Reath.—b. Philadelphia, Pa., Aug. 19, 1892; attended sch. in Italy and Switzerland; Columbia Coll., grad. 1914; private sec. to Am. Amb. at Rome and asst. in Am. Emb. 1916-19; app., after exam., sec. of emb. or leg. of class four Dec. 20, 1919; assigned to Rome Dec. 27, 1919; to Madrid Jan. 7, 1922; class three Mar. 23, 1922; assigned to Bucharest Mar. 3, 1924; For. Ser. officer of class six and assigned as 2d sec. at Bucharest July 1, 1924; class five Aug. 31, 1925; assigned to the Dept. July 15, **1926**; **1st sec. and assigned to Ottawa Nov. 16**, **1929**; class four May 9, **1930**; to Bern July 14, **1932**; to Budapest Apr. 21, 1934; married.

Riggs, Lloyd E.—b. Pontiac, Ill., Aug. 13, 1893; Pleasant View Lutheran Coll.; with bd. of trade; newspaper work; Brit. Army, U. S. Army, overseas service; app. clk. in Am. Leg. at Warsaw July 15, 1919; in Am. Consulate at Karachi Feb. 6, 1929; v. c. at Karachi Oct. 2, 1929.

Rightmire, Ruth.—b. Parsons, W. Va.; high sch. and business sch. grad.; clk. 1927-29; app. clk. at \$1,260 in the Dept. of State Oct. 1, 1929; at \$1,440 July 1, 1930; at \$1,620 Sept. 8, 1930.—DCR.

Riker, Monro Marvin (Lt., jg.)-b. Maplewood, N.J., Dec. 11, 1904; N.Y. Mil. Acad. grad.; U.S.N.A., grad. 1927; assigned as language officer at Tokyo July 7, 1933.

Ringwalt, Arthur Rumney.—b. Omaha, Nebr., Feb. 24, 1899; high sch. grad.; Sorbonne 1922-24; with Insur. company 1916-20; European representative of U. S. firm 1922-25; retail salesman 1925-26; tutor 1927; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass. and v. c. of career May 17, 1928; assigned to the For. Ser. Sch. May 21, 1928; to Shanghai Nov. 3, 1928; as language officer at Peiping July 23, 1932.

Rinker, Ella Ruth.—b. Mount Jackson, Va.; attended high sch. and business sch.; Harrisonburg State Normal Sch.; stenog., Bu. of Education; app. clk., temp., at \$900 in the Dept. of State Dec. 11, 1917; at \$1,080 July 1, 1918; at \$1,140 Sept. 1, 1918; at \$1,200 Jan. 1, 1919; at \$1,080 July 1, 1919; permanently at \$1,000 Oct. 16, 1920; at \$1,200 Jan. 9, 1922; at \$1,500 July 1, 1924; at \$1,560 Mar. 1, 1925; at \$1,620 Mar. 1, 1927; clerical asst., Sixth Int. Conf. of Am. States, Habana, 1928; at \$1,740 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$1,860 July 1, 1930.—DCR.

Roach, Charles Preston, Jr.—b. Port Royal, Va., Jan. 26, 1890; attended public sch.; with a traction company 1912-18; salesman 1918; app. clk., temp., at \$960 in the Dept. of State Dec. 18, 1918; at \$1,080 Feb. 1, 1919; at \$1,200 Apr. 1, 1919; at \$1,320 Nov. I, 1919; at \$1,400 Jan. 1, 1920; at \$1,600 Oct. 1, 1920; permanently at \$1,000 Feb. 1, 1921; at \$1,200 Avg. 16, 1921; at \$1,600 Sept. 1, 1921; at \$1,860 July 1, 1924; at \$2,100 Jan. 31, 1925, effective Feb. 1; at \$2,200 Mar. 1, 1927; at \$2,400 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$2,500 July 1, 1928; at \$2,600 July 1, 1930; married.—PD.

Roache, Thomas P.—b. Natural Bridge, Va., Nov. 24, 1884; chief butler, The White House, 1918-29; app. messenger in the Dept. of State Apr. 6, 1929.—S.

Robbins, Warren Delano.—b. Brooklyn, N. Y., Sept. 3, 1885; Groton Sch. grad.; Harvard, A. B. 1908; clk, and private sec. at Am. Leg. at Lisbon 1909; private sec. at Am. Leg. at Buenos Aires 1909-10; app., after exam., 3d sec. of emb. at Paris Mar. 2, 1911; 2d sec. at Mexico City Apr. 24, 1914 (canceled); app. sec. of leg. at Guatemala May 22, 1914; sec. of emb, or leg. of class three by act approved Feb.

5, 1915; assigned to the Dept. Jan. 26, 1916; attached to Council of Min. of France on visit to U.S. 1917; attached to Belgian Commn. to U. S. 1917; assigned to Buenos Aires July 13, 1917; class two Aug. 23, 1917; assigned to Santiago Dec. 2, 1918; class one Dec. 20, 1919; assigned to the Dept. Feb. 26, 1920; act. chief, Division of Near Eastern Affairs, and designated couns. June 14, 1920; detailed to Conf. on Limitation of Armament, Washington, 1921-22; chief, Division of Near Eastern Affairs, Dec. 20, 1921; assigned as couns. of emb. at Beriln Mar. 1, 1922; For. Ser. officer of class one July 1, 1924; mem. Bd. of Review, For. Ser. Personnel, 1925; assigned as couns. of emb. at Rome Apr. 10, 1925; del., Int. Conf. for the Protection of Literary and Artistic Property, Rome, 1928; app. E. E. and M. P. to El Salvador July 17, 1928; sec. of Am. del., Int. Conf. of Am. States on Conciliation and Arbitration, Washington, 1928-29; resigned July 1, 1931; app. chief, Division of Protocol, at \$8,000 Sept. 15, 1931; resigned May 11, 1933; E. E. and M. P. to Canada May 11, 1933; asst. to Am. del., Int. Monetary and Economic Conf., London, 1933; married.

Roberts, Hazel Harriman (Mrs.)—b. Washington, D. C.; attended business high sch.; clk.-stenog. 1921-23; sec. to mem. of Cong. 1923-28; app. clk. at \$1,320 in the Dept. of State June 1, 1928; at \$1,440 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$1,620 June 1, 1929; at \$2,000 July 1, 1930; clk., 1st stage, Gen. Disarmament Conf., Geneva, 1932.—S.

Roberts, Joseph F.—b. in Ill. Feb. 25, 1872; grammar and business sch. grad.; post office clk. since 1906; app. despatch agt. at San Francisco Nov. 12, 1920.

Roberts, Quincy Franklin.—b. Cass Co., Tex., Dec. 6, 1893; high sch. grad.; attended business sch.; U. S. N. A. one yr.; with wholesale firm 1913-14; app., after exam., cons. asst. Mar. 24, 1915; v. c. at Venlce May 27, 1915; at Genoa Nov. 5, 1915; at Saloniki Jan. 7, 1919; v. c. of career of class three Sept. 27, 1919; assigned to Saloniki Oct. 22, 1919; class two May 24, 1920; assigned to Apia July 8, 1920; For. Ser. officer unclass. July 1, 1924; assigned to Suva Sept. 26, 1927; class seven July 24, 1930; to Salgon Nov. 7, 1932; married.

Robertson, Dudley L.—b. Gaithersburg, Md., Oct. 14, 1911; George Washington Univ. 1931-; messenger, Civil Ser. Commn., 1928-29; app. asst. messenger at \$1,080 in the Dept. of State June 11, 1929; messenger at \$1,200 May 15, 1930; at \$1,260 July 1, 1930.—PD.

Robertson, Frederick Joseph.—b. St. George's, Bermuda, Mar. 26, 1885; Brit. subject; attended high sch.; proprietor of drug store in St. George's; app. cons. agt. at St. George's Aug. 17, 1917; married.

Robertson, William Platt.—b. Jaclson, Tenn., Jan. 5, 1896; Morgan Park and Castle Heights Mil. Acad.; Friends Sch.; Princeton, Litt. B. 1917; New York Univ. 1919-20; Georgetown Sch. of For. Ser. 1924; U. S. Army 1917-19, 1st lt.; traffic mgr. and buyer for firm 1919-20; with express company in U. S. and France 1920-24; app. clk. in Am. Consulate at Colón Apr. 21, 1925; v. c. at Colón July 29, 1925; at Panama, temp., Mar. 1, 1926; at Colón May 1, 1926; at Panama, temp., Feb. 27, 1928; at Colón May 19, 1928; at Cartagena June 25, 1928; at Martinique June 28, 1930; married.

Robinson, Donald Hannibal.—b. Brooklyn, N. Y., Mar. 18, 1906; Peddie Sch.; Princeton, B. A. 1930; Univ. of Vienna, summer 1929; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass., v. c. of career, and sec. in the Diplo. Ser. Dec. 16, 1930; assigned as v. c. at Windsor, temp., Dec. 29, 1930; at Toronto Aug. 15, 1931; to the For. Ser. Sch. Mar. 19, 1932; to Calcutta July 26, 1932.

Robinson, Thomas Hastings.—b. South Bethlehem, Pa., Jan. 18, 1893; Lawrenceville Sch. grad.; business course; Princeton, A. B. 1914; Lehigh Univ., B. S. 1916; chemist 1916–17; U. S. Army 1917–18, 1st lt.; with sugar refining company 1919–20; chemist 1920– 21; private tutor 1922; app., after exam., v. c. of career of class three May 26, 1922; assigned to Birmingham Aug. 28, 1922; class two Nov. 23, 1923; For. Ser. officer unclass. July 1, 1924; class eight and cons. Mar. 20, 1925; assigned to Melbourne June 9, 1926; class seven Dec. 31, 1929; assigned to Penang Aug. 16, 1930; to Nogales Mar. 3, 1933; married.

Roddy, Marguerite R.—b. North Platte, Nebr.; high sch. grad.; George Washington Univ. 1925; app. clk. at \$1,320 in the Dept. of State Nov. 1, 1924; at \$1,500 Jan. 16, 1926; at \$1,620 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); stenog., Commn. for study and review of conditions in Haiti, 1930; at \$1,800 May 1, 1930; at \$1,920 July 1, 1930; clk., Int. Radio Conf., Madrid, 1932.—SS.

Rodrick, Bertha Sarah (Mrs.)—b. Gainsboro, Va.; attended normal and business high sch.; private instruction two yrs.; secretary 1899-1901; app. clk., temp., at \$720 in the Dept. of State May 16, 1901; permanently, at \$1,200 July 2, 1906; at \$1,400 Oct. 1, 1913; at \$1,600 June 22, 1916, effective July 1; at \$1,800 July 1, 1921; at \$2,100 July 1, 1924; at \$2,200 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$2,300 July 1, 1928; at \$2,500 July 1, 1930; at \$2,600 July 3, 1930 (Brookhart Act).—PD.

Rogers, Alan Stewart.—b. Santa Barbara, Calif., Apr. 25, 1902; Middlesex Sch. grad.; Harvard, A. B. 1924; Magdalen Coil., Oxford, B. A. 1925; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass. and v. c. of career July 5, 1927; assigned to the For. Ser. Sch. Sept. 29, 1927; to Bombay Feb. 24, 1928; sec. in the Diplo. Ser. and assigned as v. c. and 3d sec. at Bangkok May 23, 1929; as 3d sec. at Paris Apr. 8, 1931.

Rogers, Fred F. (Capt.)—b. Clinton, Ill., Sept. 21, 1884; U.S.N.A., grad. 1906; assigned as naval att. at Tokyo June 14, 1933; married.

Romeyn, Nina Genevieve.—b. Fort Scott, Kans.; attended high sch.; Classical Sch. for Girls, Indianapolis, Ind.; Columbian Univ. (now George Washington) three yrs.; Berlitz Sch. of Languages one yr.; clk., D. A. R.; clk., Spanish Treaty Claims Comma., 002-3; app. clk. at \$900 in the Dept. of State Nov. 5, 1903; at \$1,000 June 6, 1906; at \$1,200 Mar. 4, 007; at \$1,400 Apr. 7, 1917; at \$1,600 Oct. 1, 118; at \$1,800 Dec. 31, 1919, effective Jan. 1, 1920; \$2,100 July 1, 1924; at \$2,200 Mar. 1, 1925; at 2,300 Mar. 1, 1927; at \$2,400 July 1, 1928 (Welch ct); at \$2,600 July 1, 1930; at \$2,700 July 3, 1930 Brookhart Act).—LA.

Rooney, Mirlam Theresa.—b. Charlestown, Mass.; tended business sch.; Girls' Latin Sch. grad.; ass. Normal Art Sch. 1914-15; La Salle Ext. Univ., L. B. 1920; Portia Law Sch. 1920; Harvard 1926-3; Catholic Univ., A. B. 1930, A. M. 1932, grad. ork 1932-; clerical, accounting, and executive posions 1916-24; asst., Boston Public Library, 1924-3; historical research 1924-29; app. library asst. at t,800 in the Dept. of State July 1, 1928; at \$2,000 eb. 1, 1930.—RP.

Rose, Halleck Lovejoy.—b. Lincoln, Nebr., Sept. 13, 07; Hill Sch.; Hun. Sch. grad.; Princeton 1926-27; eorgetown Sch. of For. Ser. 1928-30; Universidad acional de Mexico, summer 1930; bank clk. 1927-28; p., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass., v. c. of reer, and sec. in the Diplo. Ser. Mar. 28, 1932; signed as v. c. at Vera Cruz Apr. 2, 1932; to the or. Ser. Sch. Feb. 8, 1933; to Rotterdam June 13, 33; married.

Ross, Sallie Francesca.—b. McClung, Va.; attended Igh sch. and business sch.; Harrisonburg State eachers Coll. two yrs.; teacher 1917-20; clk., U. S. hipping Bd., one-half yr.; app. clk. at 900 in the ept. of State Jan. 8, 1921; at \$1,000 Jan. 25, 1922; t \$1,100 Oct. 1, 1923; at \$1,200 Apr. 1, 1924; at 1,440 July 1, 1924; at \$1,500 Mar. 1, 1925; at 1,560 Dec. 1, 1925; at \$1,620 July 1, 1928 (Welch ct); at \$1,740 July 1, 1930; at \$1,800 July 3, 1930 Brookhart Act).—CR.

Rowan, Hugh W. (Capt.)-b. Newport, R. I., far. 16, 1894; St. Paul's Sch. grad.; Yale, Ph. B. 915; grad. work, Harvard, 1915-17; entered U. S. rmy Oct. 26, 1917; assigned as asst. mil. att. at ierlin July 19, 1930; married.

Rowe, Alvin Thomson, Jr.—b. Fredericksburg, Va., ept. 27, 1904; Univ. of Va. 1921-22, summers 1923 nd 1925; Davidson Coll., A. B. 1925; Harvard, A. f. 1928; teacher in high sch. 1925-27; app., after xam., For. Ser. officer unclass. and v. c. of career Iar. 26, 1929; assigned to the For. Ser. Sch. July , 1929; to Bluefields Sept. 14, 1929; sec. in the blplo. Ser. June 27, 1931; assigned as 3d sec. at Sogotá July 8, 1931; also v. c. at Bogotá July 16, 931.

Rowley, Eugene Cooper, Jr.—b. Madison, Wis., Jan. 1, 1894; attended business sch.; Ga. Inst. of Tech., rad. in mil. aeronautics 1917; Georgetown Univ., JL. B. 1920, LL. M. 1921; mem. of bar of D. C.; k., Dept. of State, 1915-17; U. S. Army 1917-19, 2d lt.; clk., Dept. of State, 1919-22; naturalization xaminer, Dept. of Labor, 1922-23; reinstated clk. t \$1,400 in the Dept. of State Aug. 15, 1923; at 1,860 July 1, 1924; at \$1,920 Dec. 1, 1925; at 2,000 Mar. 1, 1927; at \$2,400 July 1, 1927; at 3,600 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$2,700 July 1,

1928; at \$2,900 Feb. 1, 1929; at \$3,100 July 1, 1930; married.—PD.

Royt, Frederick L.—b. Milwaukee, Wis., July 10, 1907; Univ. of Wis., B. A. 1929; teacher of Eng. in Puerto Rico 1929-31; app. clk. in Am. Consulate General at Guayaquil June 6, 1931; v. c. at Guayaquil Dec. 13, 1932.

Rupprecht, William Gustave.—b. Grosse Denkte, Germany, July 21, 1906; Am. citizen; attended high sch.; studied under private tutor; clk. 1920-22; farm foreman 1922-25; U.S. Marine Corps 1925-29: Guardia Nacional de Nicaragua, 1928-29, 2d lt.; crane operator 1930-31; app. clk. in Am. consulate at Puerto Cabezas July 7, 1931; at Buenaventura Oct. 5, 1933; v. c. at Buenaventura Feb. 13, 1934; married.

Russ, Edward Bartlett.—b. Louisiana, Mo., Feb. 10, 1868; attended high sch. and business sch.; Columbian Univ. (now George Washington) one yr.; clk. and copyist, Pension Office, 1890–1901; app. clk. at \$1,200 in the Dept. of State July 20, 1901; at \$1,400 Feb. 13, 1904; at \$1,600 Aug. 1, 1918; special asst. at \$2,000 Dec. 31, 1919, effective Jan. 1, 1920; chief, stenographic section, Jan. 16, 1920; at \$2,100 July 1, 1920; drafting officer at \$2,500 June 17, 1921, effective July 1; at \$3,200 July 1, 1924; at \$2,900 Nov. 1, 1927; at \$3,000 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$3,100 July 1, 1930; at \$3,200 July 3, 1930 (Brookhart Act); married.—SS.

Russell, Harry Earle.—b. Kalamazoo, Mich., Sept. 16, 1889; Univ. of Mich., A. B. 1913, LL. B. 1915; mem. of bar of Mich.; law practice 1915-16; app., after exam., cons. asst. Aug. 30, 1916; v. c. at Saloniki Oct. 25, 1916; at Smyrna June 9, 1919; v. c. of career of class three Sept. 27, 1919; assigned to Smyrna Oct. 22, 1919; class two May 24, 1920; assigned to Rome Aug. 29, 1921; class one Nov. 17, 1921; cons. of class seven June 22, 1922; assigned to Casablanca Mar. 12, 1924; For. Ser. officer of class eight July 1, 1924; class five May 23, 1929; assigned to Alexandria Nov. 19, 1929; class four July 1, 1931; cons. gen. Mar. 14, 1934; assigned to Alexandria Mar. 15, 1934; married.

Russell, Ruth Beatrice.—b. San Francisco, Calif.; Univ. of Calif., B.S. 1932, M.A. 1934; reader in foreign trade, clk., and secretary, Univ. of Calif., 1930– 34; app. clk., temp., at \$2,000 in the Dept. of State July 7, 1934.—A-S/T.

Rutter, Ella P.—b. Washington, D. C.; Elmira Coll. 1925–27; George Washington, A. B., 1932; clk., Dept. of Com., 1928–30; app. library asst. at \$1,440 in the Dept. of State July 1, 1930; clk. at \$1,440 Dec. 1, 1933; at \$1,260 June 1, 1934.—DCR.

Sack, Leo R.—b. Tupelo, Miss., July 9, 1889; Univ. of Mo. 1907-9; student founder of Univ. of Mo. Sch. of Journalism; newspaper reporter and copy desk editor 1909-15; Washington corr. for group of Tex. newspapers 1915-17; U.S. Army 1917-19, capt., overseas service; maj., O.R.C.; Washington corr. for Scripps-Howard group of newspapers 1919-33; app. E.E. and M.P. to Costa Rica Aug. 17, 1933; married. Sackett, Harriett E.—b. Webster Clty, Iowa; high sch. grad.; Drake Univ. 1925-26; George Washington Univ. 1929; secretary 1923-29; app. clk. at \$1,440 in the Dept. of State Feb. 4, 1929; at \$1,620 Sept. 1, 1929; at \$1,740 July 1, 1930.—VD.

Sackville, William (Maj.)--b. Snohomish, Wash., Nov. 2, 1891; U.S.M.A., grad. 1917; Mass. Inst. of Tech., M.S. in E.E. 1926; asst. to Am. dcl., Inter-Allied Ry. Commn., Wiesbaden, Germany, 1919-21; assigned as mil. att. at Rio de Janeiro May 5, 1932.

Sadler, Mary A. (Mrs.)--b. Tarentum, Pa.; attended high sch. and business sch.; app. clk., temp., at \$990 in the Dept. of State May 7, 1918; at \$1,080 Jan. 1, 1919; at \$1,140 July 1, 1919; permanentiy Sept. 19, 1919; at \$1,200 Aug. 16, 1921; at \$1,620 Mar. 1, 1924; at \$1,560 Mar. 1, 1925; at \$1,620 Mar. 1, 1927; clk., Int. Radiotelegraph Conf., Washington, 1927; clk., Prep. Comm. for the Disarmament Conf., Geneva, 1928; at \$1,740 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$1,800 July 1, 1928; archivist, Inst. Conf. of Am. States on Conciliation and Arbitration, Washington, 1928-29; at \$2,000 July 1, 1930.---DCR.

Sager, Fay Eleanor.—b. Noble, Ill.; high sch. and husiness sch. grad.; clk., Bu. of Internal Revenue, 1929-31; app. clk. at \$1,440 in the Dept. of State Aug. 10, 1931.—SS.

Salisbury, Laurence Eustis.—b. Chicago, Ill., Mar. 13, 1894; Univ. of Chicago, Ph. B. 1916, grad. work 1919; instructor in English in Japan 1916–17; Brit. Army 1917–19, 2d lt., overseas service; app., after exam., student interpreter in Japan May 20, 1920; v. c. and interpreter at Kobe July 1, 1922; For. Ser. officer unclass. July 1, 1924; assigned to Nagasaki Nov. 8, 1924; class eight Feb. 24, 1925; cons. Mar. 3, 1925; assigned to Kobe Oct. 8, 1925; sec. in the Diplo. Ser. June 24, 1926; assigned as asst. Japanese sec. and 3d sec. at Tokyo June 26, 1926; detailed to the Dept. Apr. 24, 1928; class seven May 23, 1929; 2d sec. Oct. 19, 1929; assigned to Paris Dec. 17, 1930; class six Feb. 4, 1931; to Tokyo Ang. 19, 1931; to the Dept. May 2, 1932; to Peiping May 18, 1933.

Salmon, David Alden .- b. Westport, Conn., Jan. 30, 1879; attended high sch. and business sch.; clk. in War Dept. 1898-1906; app. clk. at \$1,400 in the Dept. of State July 7, 1906; at \$1,800 Mar. 4, 1907; act. chief, Bu. of Indexes and Archives, Mar. 25-Apr. 30, 1916; chief May 1, 1916; drafting officer at \$2,500 Dec. 1, 1917; directed to proceed to Am. Missions in Europe to investigate methods of handling correspondence, etc., July 26, 1919; at \$3,000 Mar. 1, 1921; at \$3,500 June 17, 1921, effective July 1; archivist, Conf. on Llmitation of Armament, Washington, 1921, and Conf. on Central Am. Affairs, Washington, 1922-23; at \$3,800 July 1, 1924; at \$4,200 May 1, 1925; archivist for Am. del., Conf. for Limitation of Naval Armaments, Geneva, 1927, and Int. Radiotelegraph Conf., Washington, 1927; at \$4,800 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); sec., London Naval Conf., 1930; at \$5,000 July 1, 1930; at \$5,600 Dec. 1, 1930; chief, Division of Communications and Records, Jan. 1, 1931, mem., Bd. of Review for Efficiency Ratings, 1931-33; mem., Bd. of Appeals and Review, Nov. 6, 1933-; married.-DCR.

Salter, Fred Kelley.—b. Sparta, Ga., Nov. 22, 1906; Mercer Univ., A. B. 1928; asst. prof. of Latin, Mercer Univ. 1927-28; clk. 1928; reporter 1928-30; app. clk. in Am. Consulate General at Copenhagen Aug. 18, 1930; v. c. at Copenhagen July 31, 1931; at Aden Nov. 10, 1932; at Danzig Mar. 10, 1934.

Sandifer, Durward Valdamir.—b. Tamalco, Ill., July 26, 1900; Eureka Coll., A.B. 1924; Univ. of Nebr., summer 1924; Columbia, M.A. 1928, LL.B. 1931; Geneva Sch. of Int. Relations, snmmer 1929; U.S. Army 1918; U.S. Merchant Marine 1919; teacher in grade sch. 1920; instructor Eureka Coll., 1924–27; special asst. to Counsel for Guatemala, Guatemalan-Honduran Boundary Arb., 1931–32; instructor, Rntgers Univ., 1931–34; app. asst. to legal adviser at \$3,200 in the Dept. of State July 2, 1934; married.—LE.

Sands, Rosa Virginia.—b. Brooklyn, N. Y.; attended private sch. in Switzerland, Italy, Austria. and England, and business sch. in Germany and U. S.; teacher and principal in private sch. 1912-17; asst. sec., Navy League, 1917-18; clk. in War Dept. 1918-19; in Dept. of State 1919-21; reinstated as clk. at \$1,400 in the Dept. of State Nov. 16, 1922; at \$1,680 July 1, 1924; at \$1,740 Mar. 1, 1927; at \$1,800 Nov. 1, 1927; at \$1,860 May 1, 1928; at \$2,000 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$2,100 July 1, 1928; at \$2,200 July 1, 1930; archive asst. June 1, 1932.—HA.

Sangston, Howard Eli.—b. Washington, D. C., Apr. 22, 1879; attended business sch.; app. messenger, temp., at \$480 in the Dept. of State July 24, 1901; at \$600 July 1, 1905; at \$720 Nov. 1, 1905; at \$840 July 1, 1915; at \$960 Dec. 18, 1918; clk. at \$1,320 July 1, 1924; at \$1,380 Mar. 1, 1927; at \$1,500 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$1,560 July 1, 1930; married.—FA.

Sannebeck, Frank Adam.—b. Mexico, Mo., Sept. 6, 1907; high sch. grad.; attended business sch.; Westminster Coll. (Mo.) 1926-27; George Washington Univ. 1928-31; clk., Govt. depts., 1928-30; app. clk. at \$1,620 in the Dept. of State Mar. 2, 1931.—MA.

Sannebeck, Norvelle Harrison.—b. Mexico, Mo., Sept. 18, 1909; Westminster Coll. (Mo.) 1926-28; George Washington Univ., A. B. 1931, Law Sch. 1933-; clk., Govt. depts., 1929-30; app. clk. at \$1,800 in the Dept. of State Dec. 18, 1930.—CC.

Satterthwaite, Joseph Charles.—b. Tecumseh, Mich., Mar. 4, 1900; Univ. of Mich., A. B. 1923, A. M. 1924; U. S. Army 1918–19, overseas service; asst. in dept. of political science, Univ. of Mich., 1923–24; clk. in Am. Consulate at Stuttgart 1924–25; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass. and v. c. of career Sept. 13, 1926, and assigned to the For. Ser. Sch.; to Guadajara Apr. 25, 1927; sec. in the Diplo. Ser. Mar. 11, 1929; class eight and cons. May 9, 1930; sec. to Am. del., North and Ccn. American Regional Itadio Conf., Mexico City, 1933; assigned as 3d sec. at Buenos Aires Jan. 2, 1934.

Satterthwaite, Livingston Lord.—b. Oak Lane, Pa., Mar. 12, 1909; Phillips Exeter grad.; Yale, A.B. 1931; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass., v. c. of career, and sec. in the Diplo. Ser. Jan. 28, 1932; assigned as v. c. at Mexico City Feb. 15, 1932; to the For. Ser. Sch. Aug. 19, 1932; to San José, Costa Rica. Dec. 22, 1932; to Port Limón, temp., May 28, 1934; married.

Saucerman, Sophia Augusta (Mrs.)—b. Gaylord, Minn.; attended Minn. State Normal Sch. 1915-17; Univ. of Chicago, B. S. 1919, M. S. 1923; research work 1923-27; app. asst. geographer at \$2,400 in the Dept. of State Sept. 1, 1927; at \$2,600 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$2,700 July 1, 1928; at \$2,900 July 1, 1930.—HA.

Sauer, Emil .- b. Stonewall, Tex., June 10, 1881; Univ. of Tex., B. Lit. 1903; Harvard, A. M. 1908; teacher 1897-1900; principal of sch. 1903-4; supt. of sch. 1905-7; special agt., Census Bu., 1910; examiner, Tariff Bd., 1910-11; app., after exam., cons. at Baghdad Aug. 19, 1911; at Göteborg Nov. 24, 1913; cons. of class eight by act approved Feb. 5, 1915; class seven Mar. 2, 1915; class slx Oct. 18, 1915, and assigned to Cologne; to Maracaibo Apr. 26, 1917; detailed to Copenhagen July 11, 1919; class five Sept. 5, 1919; detailed to Coblenz Oct. 31, 1919; to Cologne Nov. 24, 1919; class four June 4, 1920; assigned to Cologne Nov. 15, 1921; For. Ser. officer of class five July 1, 1924; assigned to Pernambuco Oct. 23, 1924; to Sherbrooke Feb. 24, 1925; to Toronto Aug. 27, 1925; class four June 30, 1927; class three July 24, 1930; cons. gen. Jan. 7, 1932; assigned to Toronto Jan. 14, 1932; married.

Savage, Carlton.—b. Salem, Oreg., Dec. 28, 1897; Univ. of Oreg., B. S. 1921; George Washington, M. A. 1927; U. S. Army 1918; principal of high sch. 1921-22; sec. to pres., and business mgr., Oreg. State Normal Sch., 1922-26; app. drafting officer and research asst. at \$2,400 in the Dept. of State May 23, 1927; at \$2,600 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$2,700 July 1, 1928; at \$3,200 June 1, 1930; married.—RP.

Sawyer, John Birge.--b. Appleton, Wis., Jan. 17, 1881; Belmont Sch.; Univ. of Calif., B. S. 1902; customs insp. 1903-4; immigration insp. 1904-11; app. v. and dep. cons. gen. at Hong Kong Aug. 23, 1911; v. c. at Hong Kong Feb. 6, 1915; resigned Jan. 14, 1917; immigration insp. 1917-18; app. v. c. at Shanghai Apr. 23, 1918; at Hong Kong Feb. 19, 1921; at Shanghai Apr. 12, 1921; married.

Sayre, Francis Bowes.—b. South Bethlehem, Pa., Apr. 30, 1885; Williams, A.B. 1909; Harvard, LLB. 1912, S.J.D. 1918; dep. asst. dist. atty., N.Y. County, N.Y., 1912–13; asst. to pres. of Williams Coll. and instr. in govt. 1914–17; teaching fellow, Harvard Law Sch., 1917–18; asst. prof. of law, Harvard, 1919– 24, and prof. 1924–33; lecturer, Univ. of So. Calif., summer 1923; adviser in foreign affairs to Slamese Govt. 1923–25; jurisconsult to Ministry of For. Affairs, Siamese Govt., 1925–30; director, Harvard Inst. of Criminal Law, 1929–33; Mass. commr. of correction 1932–33; author; app. asst. sec. of state Nov. 17, 1933.—A–S.

Scanlan, John Joseph.—b. Washington, D. C., July 11, 1892; Georgetown, LL. B. 1916; mem. of bar of D. C.; app. clk., temp., at \$900 in the Dept. of State Jan. 21, 1915; permanently at \$1,000, under Ex. order, June 22, 1916, effective July 1; at \$1,200 Mar. 15, 1917; detailed to the N. Y. Passport Agency Apr. 6, 1917; app. clk. ln Am. Emb. at Paris Jan. 31, 1918; v. c. at Parls May 3, 1918; reapp. clk. at \$1,400 in the Dept. of State Feb. 4, 1919; at \$1,600 Nov. 1, 1919; special asst. at \$2,000 Jan. 31, 1920, effective Feb. 1; drafting officer at \$2.500 Jan. 16, 1922; asst. chief, Division of Passport Control, Nov. 1, 1922; at \$2,800 July 1, 1924; at \$2,900 May 1, 1925; tech. adviser Nov. 4, 1925; at \$3,100 Feb. 1, 1926; asst. chief, Passport Division, Mar. 1, 1927; at \$3,200 Nov. 1, 1927; at \$3,400 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$3,500 July 1, 1928; at \$3,800 Jan. 1, 1929; at \$4,200 July 1, 1930; at \$4,600 Dec. 1, 1930; married.—PD.

Schausten, Rudolph Alfred Seeburg.—b. Oakland, Calif., Mar. 21, 1898; attended high sch.; U. S. Army 1917-19, overseas service; mechanic three and onehalf yrs.; garage mgr. in Martinique 1924-26; app. v. c. at Martinique Sept. 9, 1926; married.

Schnare, Lester L .- b. Mondovi, Wis., May 15, 1884; George Washington, LL. B. 1913, LL. M. 1919; mem. of bar of D. C.; teacher 1902-5; newspaper work 1905-6; clk. 1906-12; law clk., Bu, of Immlgration, 1912-15; app. v. c. at Shanghai Feb. 4, 1916; at Canton May 19, 1917; at Yokohama July 29, 1918; special asst. at \$3,000 in the Dept. of State Oct. 1, 1918; drafting officer at \$2,500 July 1, 1919; app., after exam., cons. of class seven Sept. 5, 1919; detailed to Yokohama Mar. 20, 1920; to Kobe Sept. 7, 1920; returned to Yokohama Apr. 1921; to Kobe July 9, 1921; assigned to Swatow Feb. 2, 1922; to Cartagena Aug. 3, 1923; For. Ser. officer of class eight July 1, 1924; class seven Feb. 24, 1925; assigned to Breslau Feb. 16, 1927; class six July 24, 1930; assigned to Hamburg Jan. 15, 1931; married.

Schneider, Elsie Marie.—b. Washington, D. C.; attended high sch. and business sch.; clk. 1917-18; app. clk., temp., at \$1,080 in the Dept. of State May 12, 1919; permanently at \$1,000 Feb. 1, 1921; at \$1,140 Sept. 1, 1922; at \$1,200 Dec. 5, 1922; at \$1,440 July 1, 1924; at \$1,500 Mar. 1, 1925; at \$1,560 Dec. 1, 1925; at \$1,620 Jan. 1, 1928; at \$1,740 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$1,860 July 1, 1930.—VD.

Schoellkopf, Walter Horton.-b. Buffalo, N. Y., Oct. 18, 1882; Cascadilla Sch. grad.; Pa. Mil. Coll., C. E. 1904; grad. work at Cornell 1904-6, Univ. of Wis. 1906-7; management of estate 1908-17; U. S. Army 1917-19, maj., overseas service; app., after exam., sec. of emb. or leg. of class four Sept. 5, 1919; assigned to Paris Oct. 7, 1919; to Panama May 26, 1921; class three Jan. 18, 1922; assigned to La Paz Mar. 1, 1922; unassigned Mar. 13-Sept. 12, 1922; assigned to the Dept. Sept. 12, 1922; to Buenos Aires July 24, 1923; For. Ser. officer of class six and assigned as 2d sec. at Buenos Aires July 1, 1924; at Bucharest Apr. 20, 1926; at Madrid Apr. 16, 1928; class five July 24, 1930; assigned to the Dept. Feb. 17, 1931; asst. chief, For. Ser. Bldgs. Office, June 15, 1931; assigned as 2d sec. at Vienna May 16, 1932; at Madrid May 11, 1933; married.

Schoenfeld, Ethel L. (Mrs.)-b. Mt. Carroll. Ill.; high sch. and business sch. grad.; app. clk. at \$1,440 in the Dept. of State Nov. 18, 1929; at \$1,620 May 18, 1930.—SS.

Schoenfeld, Hans Frederick Arthur.-b. Providence, R. I., Jan. 31, 1889; Friends' Sch.; George Washington, A. B. 1907, A. M. 1909, Law Sch. 1907-10; Univ. of Caracas, Venezuela, 1910-11; asst. and instructor in hist., George Washington Univ., 1907-10; app. cons. agt. at Caracas Sept. 17, 1910; confidential clk. to the asst. sec. of state Jan. 4, 1912; app., after exam., 3d sec. of emb. at Constantinople Feb. 15, 1912; sec. of leg., Paraguay and Uruguay, Aug. 12, 1913; at Montevideo July 16, 1914; sec. of emb. or leg. of class three by act approved Feb. 5, 1915; assigned to Christiania Apr. 13, 1916; to Bucharest Mar. 11, 1919; to Copenhagen, temp., Nov. 4, 1919; class two Dec. 20, 1919; assigned to Rio de Janeiro July 29, 1920; class one Aug. 24, 1921; assigned to Vienna Oct. 22, 1921; as couns. of emb. at Mexico City Mar. 5, 1924; For. Ser. officer of class one July 1, 1924; mem., Bd. of Review, For. Ser. Personnel, 1927; E. E. and M. P. to Bulgaria July 17, 1928 (canceled); sec. gen., Commn. of Inquiry and Conciliation, Bolivia and Paraguay, Washington, 1929; E. E. and M. P. to Costa Rica Dec. 16, 1929 (canceled); resigned Mar. 1, 1930; with an int. electrical company to July 1, 1931; app. E. E. and M. P. to the Dominican Republic Aug. 1, 1931; married.

Schoenfeld, Rudolf Emil,-b. Washington, D. C., Jan. 25, 1895; George Washington, A. B. 1915; Univ. of Berne, Ph. D. 1920; clk., U. S. Efficiency Commn., 1915; teacher, Nat. Cathedral Sch. for Boys, one yr.; app., after exam., cons. asst. Aug. 30, 1916; v. c. at Zürich Oct. 26, 1916; at Berne Jan. 10, 1917; v. c. of career of class three Sept. 27, 1919; assigned to Berne Oct. 22, 1919; class two May 24, 1920; detailed to assist the Am. Cons. Gen. attached to the office of the Commr. at Berlin July 12, 1921; assigned to Berlin Nov. 15, 1921; class one Feb. 26, 1923; cons. of class seven Dec. 19, 1923; detailed to Stettin Feb. 28, 1924; to Berlin May 22, 1924; For. Ser. officer of class eight July 1, 1924; assigned to Cologne Oct. 15, 1924; to La Paz Dec. 1, 1925; class seven, sec. in the Diplo. Ser., and assigned also as 3d sec. at La Paz Dec. 17, 1925; to the Dept. Mar. 2, 1927; as 3d sec. at Rio de Janeiro Apr. 12, 1927; class six June 30, 1927; 2d sec. at Bogotá Oct. 28, 1929 (canceled); class five May 9, 1930; assigned to Budapest Jan. 9, 1931; to the Dept. Sept. 9, 1932.-WE.

Schoenrich, Edwin.—b. Baltimore, Md., Jan. 10, 1895; attended business sch.; Washington Coll., A. B. 1917; Boston Univ., summer 1920; National Univ. of Mexico, summer 1922; Georgetown Sch. of For. Ser., M. F. S. 1924; U. S. Army 1917-18; teacher in private sch. 1918-19; principal of high sch. in Porto Rico 1919-20; instructor, Boston Univ., Habana branch, Cuba, 1920-21; teacher in high sch. 1921-22; special expert, U. S. Tariff Commn., 1922-24; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass. and v. c. of career Oct. 16, 1924; assigned to Valparaiso Nov. 8, 1924; to La Paz June 9, 1925; sec. in the Diplo. Ser. Feb. 17, 1927; assigned as 3d sec. at La Paz Feb. 23, 1927; as v. c. at Arica Nov. 26, 1927; class eight, cons., and assigned to Arica May 23, 1929; to Sarnia, temp., Oct. 29, 1929; to Mazatlán Jan. 18, 1930; to Santiago, Cuba, Jan. 16, 1931; class seven Feb. 4, 1931; married.

Schooley, George Rozel.—b. Cumberland, Md., Sept. 2, 1901; attended high sch. and business sch.; messenger, War Dept., 1918-19; typist, Federal Bd. for Vocational Education, 1919-20; clk., Dept. of State, 1920-25; cml. employment 1925-28; stenog., Gen. Accounting Office, 1928-20; app. clk. at \$1,620 in the Dept. of State May 27, 1929; at \$1,740 July 1, 1930; at \$1,800 July 3, 1930 (Brookhart Act); at \$2,000 Apr. 1, 1931; married.—PD.

Schott, William Walter .- b. Leavenworth, Kans., Oct. 7, 1894; Western Mil. Acad.; U. S. N. A., grad. 1916; U. S. Navy 1916-20, lt.; sec., U. S. contingent, Allied Naval Armistice Commn., Naval Inter-Allied Commn. of Control, 1919-20; app., after exam., v. c. of career of class three May 26, 1922; assigned to Frankfort-on-the-Main Aug. 28, 1922; to Palermo Nov. 20, 1923; For. Ser. officer unclass. July 1, 1924; assigned to Gibraltar July 17, 1924; to Palermo Oct. 28, 1924; to Naples Jan. 3, 1925; class eight June 30, 1927; cons. and assigned to Naples July 16, 1927; sec. in the Diplo. Ser. Jan. 23, 1928; assigned as 3d sec. at Paris Jan. 26, 1928; at San Salvador Aug. 16, 1929; class seven Dec. 19, 1929; assigned as 2d sec. at Berlin Oct. 18, 1930; class six July 1, 1931; at Mexico City Aug. 22, 1933; married.

Schraud, Myron Henderson.—b. Houston, Tex., Sept. 13, 1897; attended high sch. and business sch.; with railway company 1914–17; U. S. Navy 1917-19; with railway companies 1919–25; clk. 1925–26; relief agt. for railway company 1926; app. clk. in Am. Consulate at Piedras Negras Sept. 15, 1926; v. c. at Piedras Negras Nov. 25, 1927; at Salina Cruz, temp., June 1, 1928; at Tampico Sept. 7, 1928; at Monterrey Dec. 12, 1930; at Puerto Castilla Feb. 13, 1932; at Puerto Cortes Feb. 23, 1933.

Schroeder, Helen ∇ .—b. Minneapolis, Minn.; high sch. and business sch. grad.; cashier 1929-30; app. clk., temp., at \$1,260 in the Dept. of State Jan. 16, 1931; permanently Apr. 1, 1931; at \$1,440 Mar. 1, 1932.—SS.

Schukraft, Gladys Evelyn.—b. Evansville, Ind.; high sch. grad.; George Washington Univ. 1930-31; stenog. 1927-30; app. clk. at \$1,440 in the Dept. of State June 2, 1930; at \$1,620 Dec. 4, 1930.—SS.

Schuler, Frank August, Jr.—b. Muskegon, Mich., Apr. 15, 1908; Univ. of Wis. 1926-27; Univ. of Mich., A. B. 1930; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass., v. c. of career, and sec. in the Diplo. Ser. Dec. 16, 1930; assigned as v. c. at Toronto, temp., Dec. 29, 1930; to the For. Ser. Sch. Aug. 8, 1931; to Kobe Dec. 10, 1931; as language officer at Tokyo Oct. 6, 1932.

Scott, Albert William.—b. Lexington, Ky., Nov. 15, 1895; manual training high sch. grad.; Kansas City Jr. Coll. 1916-17; Univ. of Grenoble 1919; studied accountancy; clk. 1914-15; llbrary work 1916-17; U. S. Marine Corps 1917-19; app. v. c. at Dunfermline Jan. 30, 1920; at Hull Sept. 19, 1921; at Leeds, temp., Aug. 9, 1926; at Hull Sept. 8, 1926; at Basel Apr. 12, 1927; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass. and v. c. of chreer Apr. 27, 1927; assigned to Basel May 9, 1927; to Belfast Oct. 29, 1931; married.

Scott, George.—b. Pomonkey, Md., Dec. 25, 1872; employed by Isthmian Canal Commn. 1904-7; app. laborer in the Dept. of State Aug. 20, 1907; asst. messenger Mar. 2, 1908; messenger Feb. 2, 1921; chief messenger June 30, 1923, effective July 1.—TD.

Scott, James T.—b. Eatonton, Ga., June 5, 1895; attended public sch.; employed by steamship company; asst. to chief of staff, U.S. Army, in France, Holland, and Belgium during the World War; chief, Lithuanian Relief Mission of Am. Relief Admin., 1919; in London office of U.S. Shipping Bd.; special representative of Bd. in Baltic States and Russia 1922; in charge of Bd.'s organization in Germany; app. trade commr. at Hamburg Nov. 10, 1926; in N.Y. dist. office of Dept. of Com. Aug. 6, 1931; cml. att. at Copenhagen July 18, 1933.

Scott, John William.—b. Ottawa, Kaus., Oct. 13, 1903; Univ. of Iowa 1921–23; Columbia, B. A. 1924, grad. work 1924–27; Univ. of Vienna 1928–29; asst. to prof., Univ. of Iowa, 1921–23; instructor, Columbia, 1926–28; app. v. c. at Vienna June 22, 1929.

Scott. Winfield Harrison .- b. Alexandria, Va., Jan. 13, 1892; business high sch. grad.; Berlitz Sch. of Languages two yrs.; Georgetown Univ. three yrs.; newspaper work three yrs.; U. S. Geological Survey one yr.; U. S. Army 1917-19, 1st lt.; app. clk. in Am. Consulate at Alexandria Mar. 21, 1921; v. c. at Alexandria Feb. 27, 1922; app., after exam., v. c. of career of class three Feb. 26, 1923; assigned to Alexandria Mar. 2, 1923; to Bombay Nov. 28, 1923; class two May 10, 1924; For. Ser. officer unclass. July 1, 1924; detailed to the Dept. Sept. 13, 1924; assigned to Puerto Castilla Apr. 22, 1926; to the Dept. Mar. 6, 1929; to London May 1, 1929; class eight, cons., and assigned to London May 23, 1929; to Bucharest Apr. 18, 1930; class seven Feb. 4, 1931; to Rangoon Sept. 3, 1931; married.

Scott, Winthrop Ramsdell.—b. Paris, France, of Am. parents, Dec. 7, 1888; Univ. of Mich., B. Arch. 1911; architect nine months; instructor in Case Sch. of Applied Science five yrs.; mgr. of ornamental brick dept. of company two yrs.; U. S. Army 1917–20, capt.; app., after exam., cons. of class seven June 4, 1920; detailed to Paris Aug. 2, 1920; to Nancy June 28, 1923; assigned to Cape Haitien Sept. 21, 1923; For. Ser. officer of class eight July 1, 1924; class seven Aug. 8, 1924; assigned to the Dept. Nov. 8, 1928; distribution officer, Int. Conf. of Am. States on Conciliation and Arbitration, Washington, 1928–29; class six May 23, 1929; sec. in the Diplo. Ser. Oct. 17, 1932; assigned as 2d sec. at Santiago, Chile, Oct. 28, 1932; married.

67359 - 34 - 17

Scotten, Robert McGregor.-b. Detroit, Mich., Aug. 18, 1891; Detroit Univ. Sch.; Univ. of Mich. one yr.; Yale, B. A. 1914; Harvard Grad. Sch. 1915-16: athletic instructor, Yale-in-China, Changsha, 1914-15: app., after exam., sec. of emb. or leg. of class five May 17, 1916; assigned to Berlin June 6, 1916; class four Aug. 3, 1916; assigned to Madrid Feb. 12, 1917; class three July 13, 1917; assigned to Guatemala Oct. 14, 1919; unassigned from Apr. 8, 1920; assigned to Paris Feb. 28, 1921; to Berlin Jan. 17, 1922; class two Mar. 23, 1922; assigned to Constantinople May 5, 1922; For. Ser. officer of class four July 1, 1924; assigned as 1st sec. at Rio de Janeiro Nov. 15, 1924; at Asunción May 20, 1925; app. cons. Feb. 23, 1926; assigned also as cons. at Asunción Feb. 24, 1926; to the Dept. Feb. 7, 1927; asst. chief, Division of Current Information, June 1, 1927; press liaison officer, Commn. of Inquiry and Conciliation, Bolivia and Paraguay, Washington, 1929; class three May 23, 1929; assigned as 1st sec. at Paris Sept. 27, 1930: class two July 1, 1931; couns. of emb. at Santiago, Chile, Apr. 4, 1934; married.

Scotten, William Everett.—b. Detroit, Mich., Aug. 24, 1904; Calif. Inst. of Tech. 1921-22; Univ. of So. Calif., B. A. 1925; Univ. of Paris 1926-27; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass. and v. c. of career Nov. 12, 1929; assigned to Ciudad Juarez, temp., Nov. 27, 1929; to Saltillo, temp., Apr. 15, 1930; to the For. Ser. Sch. July 8, 1930; to Saigon Nov. 8, 1930; married.

Seddicum, Paul Cameron.—b. Washington, D. C., Apr. 5, 1902; attended manual training high sch.; Emerson Inst.; draftsman, U. S. Army, 1919-22, except eight months cashier, insur. company, 1921; treas. and asst. mgr. of club 1922-24; app. clk. in Am. Consulate General at Dublin Dec. 16, 1924; v. c. at Dublin June 6, 1925; at Bristol Dec. 1, 1925; at Prague May 7, 1926; at Cardiff July 25, 1928; married.

Seibert, Elvin.--b. Elkhart, Ind., July 24, 1901; U. S. M. A. 1920-22 (resigned); Columbia Coll., A. B. 1924; Am. Inst. of Banking 1925-26; Columbia Univ., grad. work, 1927-28; 2d lt., O. R. C.; banking 1924-26; master, Groton Sch., 1927-28; hpp., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass. and v. c. of career Oct. 16, 1929; assigned to the For. Ser. Sch. Oct. 21, 1929; to Kobe Mar. 26, 1930 (canceled); to Puerto Plata June 28, 1930; to Southampton June 14, 1932.

Seltzer, George Edward.—b. Vilna, Russia, Dec. 11, 1888; Am. citizen; Harvard, A. B. 1912; New York Univ. Sch. of Com. and Finance 1912-14; Escuela Superior de Comercio, La Plata, Argentina, 1917-18; office mgr. 1913-16; clk. and accountant in offices in Argentina, Uruguay, and Paraguay 1917-18; app. v. c. at Asunción Oct. 7, 1918; app., after exam., v. c. of carcer of class three Oct. 26, 1921, and assigned to Salina Cruz; to North Bay Feb. 12, 1924; class two May 10, 1924; For. Ser. officer unclass. July 1, 1924; assigned to Manáos Feb. 26, 1926; to the Dept., temp., Jan. 28, 1929; to Rio de Janeiro Feb. 8, 1929; class eight, cons., and assigned to Rio de Janeiro May 23, 1929; to Pará Apr. 30, 1930; class seven Feb. 4, 1931.

Selvog, Anna S.—b. Warroad, Minn.; high sch. and business sch. grad.; Va. Jr. Coll., Virginia, Minn., 1927-28; stenog. and sec. 1929-30; stenog., Veterans' Bu., 1930-31; app. clk. at \$1,440 in the Dept. of State Feb. 5, 1931; at \$1,620 July 21, 1931.—SS.

Serrin, Mary Louise (Mrs.)—b. Washington, D. C.; high sch. and business sch. grad.; stenog. and sec. 1926-27; typist, Govt. depts., 1927-28; app. clk. at \$1,440 in the Dept. of State July 1, 1928; at \$1,620Feb. 1, 1929; at \$1,740 July 1, 1930.—SS.

Severe, Marc L.—b. Wright Co., Iowa, June 14, 1891; attended high sch. and business sch.; Morningside Prep. Sch. and Coll. five yrs.; clk. 1911-13; in Govt. depts. 1914-16; clk., navy yard at Norfolk, 1916-17; app. clk. at \$900 in the Dept. of State June 20, 1917; at \$1,000 Oct. 3, 1917; clk. in Am. Emb. at Paris May 6, 1918; v. c. at Paris Apr. 15, 1919; married.

Sevier, Henry Hulme.—b. Columbia, Tenn., Mar. 16, 1878; private tutors; studied law and economics; mem. 28th and 29th Tex. Legislatures 1902-6; established in 1914 and was editor and publisher of newspaper until Apr. 1917; commr. of Committee on Public Information to Argentina, Chile, Paraguay, and Uruguay 1917-18; travel and writing 1919-23; app. A.E. and P. to Chile Aug. 19, 1933; married.

Shallcross, Gertrude C. (Mrs.)—b. Washington, D. C.; attended high sch. and business sch.; in printing office 1913-18; mimeograph and multigraph operator, War Dept., two yrs.; app. multigraph operator, temp., at \$900 in the Dept. of State July 31, 1920, effective Aug. 1; permanently Dec. 15, 1920; at \$1,000 Apr. 1, 1922; at \$1,100 Dec. 30, 1922, effective Jan. 1, 1923; at \$1,200 Oct. 1, 1923; at \$1,440 July 1, 1924; at \$1,500 Aug. 16, 1924; at \$1,560 Dec. 1, 1925; at \$1,620 Mar. 1, 1927; at \$1,680 Nov. 1, 1927; at \$1,740 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$1,800 July 3, 1930 (Brookhart Act); clk., Int. Radio Conf., Madrid, 1932.—SS.

Shallenberger, Martin Conrad (Lt. Col.)—b. Osceola, Nebr., July 6, 1886; Univ. of Nebr.; bank cashier 1905-8; entered U. S. Army Oet. 5, 1908; mil. att. at Lisbon 1919 and at Belgrade and Athens 1920-24; exec. officer, Am. del., Tacna-Arica Arb., 1926; assigned as mil. att. at Vienna and Budapest Mar. 20, 1933; married.

Shantz, Harold.—b. Rochester, N. Y., Jan. 10, 1894; Univ. of Rochester, B. Sc. 1915; newspaper corr.; asst. sec. in chamber of com. 1915; U. S. Army 1916-18, capt.; export dept. of mfg. company 1919-21; app., after exam., v. c. of career of class three Oct. 26, 1921; assigned to Calcutta Dec. 14, 1921; class two Feb. 26, 1923; class one Nov. 23, 1923; cons. of class seven June 3, 1924; For. Ser. officer of class eight July 1, 1924; assigned to Toronto July 7, 1924; to Niagara Falls, temp., Nov. 2, 1925; to Toronto Nov. 9, 1925; to Hong Kong Dec. 30, 1925; class seven June 30, 1927; class six May 23, 1929; assigned to Singapore May 18, 1931; class five July 1, 1931; assigned as For. Ser. officer to the Am. Leg. at Monrovia July 15, 1932; sec. in the Diplo. Ser. July 19, 1932; assigned as cons. and 2d sec. at Monrovia Aug. 4, 1932; as cons. at Barcelona Nov. 30, 1932; at Oporto, temp., May 6, 1933; as 2d sec. at Prague, temp., July 15, 1933; as cons. at Nairobi Sept. 19, 1933; as For. Ser. officer at Moscow Feb. 9, 1934; as dons. at Moscow Feb. 12, 1934.

Sharp, Frederick Dent (Capt.)—b. Fort Assiniboine, Mont., Aug. 8, 1893; U.S.M.A., grad. 1917; asst. prof. of mil. sci., Harvard, 1929–32; assigned as mil. att. at Buenos Aires, Asunción, and Montevideo May 3, 1932; married.

Shaw, Gardiner Howland .-- b. Boston, Mass., June 15, 1893; Harvard, A. B. 1915, A. M. 1917; app., temp., at \$1,200 in the Dept. of State Oct. 8, 1917; app., after exam., sec. of emb. or leg. of class four May 3, 1918; assigned to the Dept. May 29, 1918; to the Am. Commn. to Negotiate Peace, Paris, 1919; class three Dec. 20, 1919; assigned to the Dept. Dec. 20, 1919; to the Am. Commn. at Constantinople May 26, 1921; class two Sept. 22, 1922; assigned to Am. Mission, Lausanne Conf., 1923; For. Ser. officer of class four and assigned as 1st sec. at Constantinople July 1, 1924; class three Nov. 17, 1924; assigned to the Dept. Jan. 18, 1926; chief, Division of Near Eastern Affairs, Apr. 14, 1926; class two Oct. 19, 1926; mem., For. Ser. Personnel Bd. and Ex. Committee of Bd., Apr. 23, 1927-Sept. 11, 1929; assigned as couns. of emb. at Istanbul Mar. 14, 1930; class one July 24, 1930; at Paris Nov. 10, 1931; at Istanbul Dec. 28, 1931.

Shaw, George Price .-- b. Pittsburg, Kans., Sept. 15, 1892; attended high sch.; business sch. grad.; private tutors; studied law; railway work 1909-10; lumberman 1912; stenog., sec., and purchasing agt. 1914-16; asst. examiner, U. S. Shipping Bd., 1916, 1919; U. S. Naval Reserve Force 1916-17, ensign; app., after exam., v. c. of career of class three May 24, 1920; assigned to Tampico Nov. 29, 1920; class two May 26, 1922; assigned to Puerto Cortes Dec. 22, 1922; class one Feb. 26, 1923; cons. of class seven Dec. 19, 1923; assigned to Puerto Cortes Dec. 22, 1923; For. Ser. officer of class eight July 1, 1924; assigned to Tegucigalpa Oct. 22, 1924; class seven Aug. 31, 1925; elass six May 17, 1928; assigned to San Luis Potosí Apr. 12, 1929; class five July 1, 1931; married.

Shedd, Margaret Ruth.—b. Rochester, N. Y.; high sch. grad.; attended business sch.; stenog. 1918; app. clk., temp., at \$1,140 in the Dept. of State Aug. 1, 1918; at \$1,200 Nov. 1, 1919; permanently Jan. 12, 1921; at \$1,400 Dec. 30, 1922, effective Jan. 1, 1923; at \$1,600 May 31, 1924, effective June 1; at \$1,860 July 1, 1924; at \$1,920 Mar. 1, 1925; representative, Sesquicentennial Exposition, Philadelphia, 1926; at \$2,000 Mar. 1, 1927; admin. asst. July 1, 1927; sec., Bd. of Review for Efficiency Ratings, 1927-33; at \$2,100 Nov. 1, 1927; at \$2,200 July 1, 1928; at \$2,600 July 1, 1928; at \$2,600 May 1, 1929; at \$2,800 July 1, 1930; at \$2,900 July 3, 1930 (Brookhart Act); stenog. and clk. to assist agt. for U. S., U. S.-Egypt Arbitration (Salem Claim), Vienna, 1931; sec., Bd. of Appeals and Review, Nov. 6, 1933-.--CC.

Sherman, John Andrew Tuck.—b. London, England, of Am. parents, Apr. 26, 1890; attended Royal Athenaeum, Antwerp, Belgium, 1902-7; with firm of commn. merchants in Antwerp 1907-14; sec. in London 1914-15; in charge of for. trade dept. (London office) of Am. bank 1916; sec. of Am. chamber of com. in London 1917-18; with London headquarters of A. E. F. 1918-19; in private business 1919-26; app. clk. in Am. Consulate at Berne Apr. 6, 1926; v. c. at Berne Aug. 2, 1926.

Sherr, Joe R. (1st Lt.)-b. Hurley, Wis., Nov. 27, 1898; Univ. of Wis., B. A. 1921; entered U. S. Army Aug. 4, 1921; assigned as language officer at Tokyo Mar. 2, 1931; married.

Shillock, John Christopher, Jr.—b. Portland, Oreg., Nov. 29, 1906; Reed Coll., B. A. 1928; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass. and v. c. of career Oct. 16, 1929; assigned to the For. Ser. Sch. Oct. 21, 1929; to Buenos Aires Mar. 26, 1930; sec. in the Diplo. Ser. and assigned as v. c. at La Paz June 17, 1933.

Shipley, Milford Argyle.—b. Washington, D. C., July 1, 1900; attended high sch.; clk. In War Dept. 1917-18, in Dept. of Interior 1918-20; app. clk. at \$900 in the Dept. of State Aug. 7, 1920; at \$1,000 Feb. 7, 1921; at \$1,100 Dec. 30, 1922, effective Jan. 1, 1923; at \$1,200 Oct. 1, 1923; at \$1,440 July 1, 1924; at \$1,500 Mar. 1, 1925; at \$1,560 Mar. 1, 1927; at \$1,680 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$1,800 Aug. 1, 1928; at \$2,000 July 1, 1930,--DCR.

Shipley, Ruth Bielaski (Mrs.)-b. Montgomery Co., Md.; high sch. grad.; attended business sch.; clk., Patent Office, 1903-9; app. clk., temp., in the Dept. of State Aug. 25, 1914; permanently at \$1,200, under Ex. order, June 22, 1916, effective July 1; at \$1,400 June 16, 1917; at \$1,600 May 1, 1918; at \$1,800 Mar. 1, 1919; special asst. at \$2,000 Dec. 31, 1919, effective Jan. 1, 1920; drafting officer at \$2,500 Mar. 1, 1921; mem., Bd. of Review, May 31, 1922; at \$2,800 July 1, 1924; asst. chief, Office of Coordination and Review, July 6, 1924; at \$3,000 Nov. 1, 1924; at \$3,200 May 1, 1925; at \$3,500 Feb. 1, 1926; mem., Bd. of Review for Efficiency Ratings, July 11, 1927-May 15, 1928; chief, Passport Division, June 1, 1928; at \$3,600 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$4,600 July 1, 1928; del., Conf. for the Codification of Int. Law, The Hague, 1930; at \$4,800 July 1, 1930; at \$5,000 July 3, 1930 (Brookhart Act); at \$5,600 Dec. 1, 1930 .- PD.

Shipman, Fred Waldo.—b. Worcester, Mass., Mar. 9, 1903; Clark Univ., A. B. 1927, A. M. 1933; Clark Univ. 1927-28; Harvard 1930-31; research 1918-20; Library of Cong. 1929-30, summer 1931; instructor, Boston Univ., 1930-31; app. clk, at \$1,800 in the Dept. of State Sept. 8, 1931; married.—RP. Shipp, William Ewen (Maj.)--b. Winston-Salem, N. C., Nov. 9, 1894; Woodberry Forest Sch. grad.; U.S.M.A., grad. 1916; assigned as asst. mil. att. at Rome Jan. 19, 1927; relieved Nov. 13, 1930; assigned as mil. att. at Riga, Kaunas, Tallinn, and Helsingfors Mar. 15, 1932.

Shock, Thomas Macy (Comdr.)—b. Olympia, Wash., May 16, 1892; U.S.N.A., grad. 1913; assigned as naval att. at Peiping Mar. 24, 1934; married.

Shockley, William Penn, Jr.—b. Dover, Del., May 16, 1900; attended high sch.; Peddie Inst.; clk. in bank in Genoa, Italy, five yrs.; app. clk. in Am. Consulate General at Genoa Aug. 1, 1927; at Turin Oct. 17, 1927; v. c. at Turin Apr. 11, 1928; at Rome Apr. 15, 1930 (canceled); at Leghorn July 12, 1930; married.

†Shoemaker, Henry Wharton.—b. New York City, Feb. 24, 1882; private tutors; Columbia three yrs.; rallway and coal mining business 1900-1904; app. sec. of leg. at Lisbon Mar. 17, 1904; 3d sec. at Berlin June 6, 1904; resigned Nov. 1, 1904; banking and newspaper publishing since 1905; pres. and dir. of business corp. since 1910; officer, N. Y. and Pa. Nat. Guard 1907-8, 1913-20, overseas service; lt. col. O. R. C.; mem. Pa. State Forest Commn. 1918-30; mem. Pa. State Geographic Bd. 1923-30; chm. Pa. State Historical Commn. 1923-30; del., Int. Forestry Cong., Rome, 1926; author of books on hist., folklore, and sports; app. E. E. and M. P. to Bulgaria Jan. 22, 1930; resigned Aug. 1, 1933; married.

Sholes, Walter Henry .- b. Brooklyn, N. Y., Feb. 17. 1883; attended high sch.; Emerson Inst.; Columbian Coll. (now George Washington Univ.); Corcoran Scientific Sch.; Mech. Engineering Sch., Berlin, Germany, one yr.; studied law; D. C. Nat. Guard; newspaper corr. and editor 1903-10; app., after exam., cons. at Aden Aug. 19, 1911; at Nantes Sept. 1, 1913; cons. of class seven by act approved Feb. 5, 1915; assigned to St. Michael's Mar. 2, 1915; to Berne Sept. 17, 1915; detailed to the Dept. Feb. 26, 1917; class six Sept. 11. 1917, and assigned to Nuevo Laredo; to Göteborg, Mar. 10, 1919; class five Sept. 5, 1919; observer, Int. Maritime Cong., Göteborg, 1923; For. Ser. officer of class six July 1, 1924; class five June 2, 1926; assigned to Trieste June 9, 1926; to Brussels Apr. 17, 1930; class four May 9, 1930; married.

Shreve, Edgar Allan.—b. Dunn Loring, Va., Sept. 11, 1882; business high sch. grad.; Bliss Electrical Sch., grad. 1902; elk. 1901-2; mgr. of printing company 1902-8; clk. in Dept. of State 1908-9, in Dept. of Interior Mar.-Apr. 1909; app. clk. at \$900 in the Dept. of State Apr. 24, 1909; at \$1,000 Dec. 20, 1909; at \$1,200 Oct. 21, 1910; at \$1,400 June 22, 1916, effective July 1; at \$1,600 Mar. 1, 1919; sec., Bds. of Examiners for the For. Ser., Mar. 13, 1919-June 24, 1921, July 1, 1924-Dec. 31, 1927; detailed to editorial staff, Conf. on Limitation of Armament, Washington, 1921-22; at \$1,800 Mar. 16, 1923; at \$2,100 July 1, 1924; asst. chlef, Office of Executive Committee of For. Ser. Personnel Bd., Aug. 19, 1924; drafting officer at \$2,400 Nov. 1, 1925; at \$3,000 Dec. 1, 1927; at \$3,200 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$3,300 July 1, 1928; asst. admin. officer, Division of For. Ser. Personnel, Dec. 30, 1929; at \$3,500 July 1, 1930; married.—FP.

Shuey, Susan Hall (Mrs.)—b. Quincy, Ill.; high sch. and business sch. grad.; George Washington Univ. 1927-29; clk. and typist, Govt. depts., 1928-30; app. clk. at \$1,440 in the Dept. of State Mar. 17, 1930; at \$1,620 May 1, 1930; at \$1,740 July 1, 1930.—FA.

Siegel, Charles.—b. Macon, Ga., Dec. 28, 1895; attended high sch. and business sch.; LaSalle Ext. Univ. one yr.; clk. 1912; apprentice in dental laboratory 1912–13; messenger boy, Pension Bu., 1913–15; Gen. Land Office 1915–17; app. clk., temp., at \$900 in the Dept. of State June 22, 1917; permanently Oct. 17, 1917; at \$1,000 May 1, 1918; at \$1.200 Aug. 1, 1918; at \$1,400 Dec. 30, 1922, effective Jan. 1, 1923; at \$1,680 July 1, 1924; at \$1,740 Nov. 1, 1927; at \$1,860 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$1,920 July 1, 1928; at \$2,000 Aug. 1, 1928; at \$2,300 Mar. 1, 1930; at \$2,400 July 1, 1930; married.—DCR.

Sigmond, Frithjof Carl.—b. Zumbrota, Minn., Apr. 26, 1883; grad. from high sch. and business sch. in Norway; clk. 1905-10; app. messenger in Am. Consulate at Stavanger Sept. 23, 1910; v. and dep. cons. at Stavanger Aug. 16, 1911; at Bergen Nov. 6, 1914; v. c. at Bergen by act approved Feb. 5, 1915; resigned June 14, 1917; app. v. c. at Stavanger May 8, 1919; at Bergen, temp., Oct. 29, 1926; at Stavanger Dec. 22, 1926; at Bergen, temp., June 2, 1930; at Stavanger June 27, 1930; at Stockholm May 3, 1933; married.

Signor, Wales Wilson.—b. Ann Arbor, Mich., Sept. 9, 1905; Mich. State Normal Coll. 1921-23; Univ. of Mich., A. B. 1925, LL. B. 1928; Univ. of Paris 1929-30; mem. of bar of Mich.; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass., v. c. of career, and sec. in the Diplo. Ser. Dec. 17, 1931; assigned as v. c. at Izmir Jan. 11, 1932; at Naples Aug. 13, 1932; to the For. Ser. Sch. Apr. 22, 1933; to Nassau Aug. 28, 1933; married.

Simmons, Edward Thomas.—b. Philadelphia, Pa., June 22, 1887; app. asst. messenger in the Dept. of State Aug. 4, 1916.—DCR.

Simmons, John Farr .- b. Orange, N. J., Jan. 3, 1892; Pingry Sch. grad.; Princeton, A. B. 1913; teacher in England and Switzerland 1913-15; with mfg. firm 1916; app. clk. in Am. Consulate at Vienna Sept. 15, 1916; v. c. at Vienna Jan. 19, 1917; at Paris July 13, 1917; at Vienna Aug. 13, 1919; app., after exam., v. c. of career of class three May 24, 1920; assigned to Paris Nov. 5, 1921; class two Nov. 17, 1921; class one May 26, 1922; cons. of class seven Mar. 1, 1923; class six Dec. 19, 1923; For. Ser. officer of class seven July 1, 1924; assigned to Riga June 6, 1925; class six Aug. 31, 1925; assigned to the Dept. June 13, 1927; class five Aug. 24, 1927; asst. chief, Visa Office, June 1, 1928; chief Feb. 1, 1929; class four Oct. 16, 1929; sec. in the Diplo. Ser. June 4, 1930; assigned as 1st scc. at Mexico City

June 13, 1930; class three July 1, 1931; assigned as For. Ser. officer to the Am. Consulate at Cologne June 11, 1932; cons. gen. June 28, 1932; assigned as cons. gen. at Cologne July 5, 1932; to the Dept. Nov. 13, 1933; chief, Visa Division, Feb. 12, 1934; married.— VD.

Simmons, Paul Alexander.—b. Philadelphia, Pa., May 11, 1889; app. asst. messenger in the Dept. of State Sept. 22, 1917; messenger Sept. 1, 1921.—FE.

Simpson, Julia Fuller (Mrs.)—b. Wenona, Ill.; buslness high sch. grad.; stenog. and bookkeeper 1905-8; app. clk., temp., at \$720 in the Dept. of State July 7, 1917; at \$990 Mar. 1, 1918; at \$1,200 July 1, 1918; at \$1,320 Nov. 1, 1919; at \$1,400 Oct. 5, 1920, effective Oct. 1; permanently at \$1,200 Dec. 15, 1920; at \$1,400 Aug. 16, 1921; at \$1,860 July 1, 1924; at \$1,920 Mar. 1, 1927; at \$2,100 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$2,300 July 1, 1928, stenog., Inter-American Cong. of Rectors, Deans, and Educators, Habana, 1930; at \$2,300 July 1, 1930.—PD.

Skinner, Robert Peet .- b. Massillon, Ohio, Feb. 24, 1866; attended high sch.; newspaper publisher 1886-97; editorial staff of newspaper 1890-91; app., after exam., cons. at Marseille Dec. 18, 1897; cons. gen. Apr. 9, 1901; commr. and plenipotentiary to establish relations and to negotlate treaty between U.S. and Ethiopic 1903; cons. gen. at Hamburg June 10, 1908; on special detail to adjust claims of creditors of Republic of Liberia in Great Britain, France, Germany, and the Netherlands 1912; cons. gen. at Berlin Nov. 24, 1913; at London June 26, 1914; cons. gen. of class one by act approved Feb. 5, 1915; representative on Nitrate Executive 1918; mem. of del., Int. Conf. to form the Int. Chamber of Com., Atlantic City, 1919; For. Ser. officer of class one July 1, 1924; assigned to Paris Aug. 6, 1924; E. E. and M. P. to Greece July 3, 1926; by Ex. order of Dec. 23, 1930, retained on active duty for a period not in excess of 5 yrs. from Feb. 24, 1931; E. E. and M. P. to Estonia, Latvia, and Lithuania Sept. 23, 1931; A. E. and P. to Turkey June 13, 1933; married.

Slaughter, Charles Aron.—b. Hico, Tex, Mar. 9, 1896; attended high sch. and business sch.; U. S. Navy 1917-19; in Navy Yard, Washington, D. C., 1919-22, 1928-31; salesman 1922-28; app. clk. at \$1,740 in the Dept. of State Mar. 5, 1931; married.— SU.

Slavens, Stanley Goodrich.—b. Cincinnatl, Obio, Oct. 5, 1903; Univ. of Tex., A. B. 1925, M. A. 1926; Unlv. of Paris 1926; 2d lt., O. R. C.; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass. and v. c. of career May 17, 1928; assigned to the For. Ser. Sch. May 21, 1928; to Lagos Oct. 10, 1928 (canceled); to Tegucigalpa Jan. 14, 1929; to Puerto Cortes, temp., Aug. 25, 1930; to Buenos Aires Dec. 18, 1930; to Baghdad Jan. 2, 1934; sec. in the Diplo. Ser. Jan. 15, 1934; assigned also as 3d sec. at Baghdad Jan. 24, 1934.

Slawson, David Henry.—b. Greenville, Mich., July 11, 1886; attended high sch. and business sch.; studied music 1913-15; sec. and cml. work 1908-12; app, clk. in Am. Consulate General at Paris Oct. 1, 1916; v. c. at Paris Jan. 2, 1925; assigned to the dist. acct. and disbursing office at Paris May 24, 1932.

Sloan, Alexander Kilgore .- b. Greensburg, Pa., Nov. 13, 1882; Shady Side Acad. grad.; Princeton, A B. 1907; grad. work, Univ. of Pittsburgh, 1915-16; representative in Mexico of Am. company one yr.; head master of boys' sch. 1908-11; prospecting and dealing in mining properties in Alaska and Canada 1911-17; U. S. Army 1917-20, capt.; app., after exam., v. c. of career of class three Jan. 15, 1921; assigned to Ceiba Mar. 15, 1921; cons. of class seven June 20, 1921; assigned to Ceiba June 23, 1921; detailed to Budapest Sept. 21, 1923; For. Ser. officer of class eight July 1, 1924; class seven Feb. 24, 1925; assigned to Maracaibo May 15, 1925; to Budapest Oct. 29, 1928; to Riga June 28, 1929; class six Oct. 16, 1929; to Baghdad Oct. 19, 1929; sec. in the Diplo. Ser. Feb. 4, 1931; app. to act as chargé d'affaires at Baghdad Mar. 30, 1931; class five July 1, 1931; assigned as cons. at Jerusalem July 16, 1932; at Mexico City July 2, 1934.

Smale, William Apsley.—b. Beloit, Wis., Apr. 17, 1896; attended high sch. and business sch.; De Paul Univ. of Law 1915-16; Univ. of Ill. 1916-17; asst. to mgr. of company 1915-16; U. S. Army 1917-19, 2d lt.; 2d lt., O. R. C.; app. clk. in Am. Consulate at Mexicall Feb. 23, 1919; v. c. at Mexicali Apr. 3, 1919; at No-gales Oct. 4, 1920; at Habana Mar. 2, 1921; at Matanzas Mar. 30, 1923; at Habana July 14, 1923; app., after exam., v. c. of career of class three Oct. 6, 1923; assigned to Habana Oct. 12, 1923; to Nassau Mar. 26, 1924; For. Ser. officer unclass. July 1, 1924; assigned to Montreal June 10, 1927; class eight, cons., and assigned to Montreal May 17, 1928; to Guaymas Dec. 4, 1929; class seven July 24, 1930; assigned to Ensenada Nov. 7, 1930.

Small, Samuel Richard.—b. Lane, N. C., Sept. 11, 1899; app. laborer in the Dept. of State. temp., Mar. 23, 1925; permanently Aug. 25, 1925.—CC.

Smedberg, Julian Kemble.—b. Edgewater, N. J., Oct. 28, 1876; high sch. grad.; clk. 1893-1905, in Buenos Aires 1906-7; studied, sang professionally, and taught music in several countries 1907-16; Y. M. C. A. sec. in France 1917-19; with automobile company in France 1919-20; app. clk. in Am. Consulate at Lyon Mar. 5, 1920; v. c. at Newcastle-on-Tyne May 20, 1930; at Glasgow Feb. 7, 1931; at Dundee Mar. 5, 1931; married.

Smith, Arthur James.—b. New Orleans, La., Mar. 13, 1877; watchman, Navy Dept., 1903–17; app. asst. messenger in the Dept. of State Oct. 8, 1917.—A-C.

Smith, Clarence Thomas.—b. Washington, D. C., Mar. 17, 1903; attended high sch. and business sch.; clk. 1918-24; app. clk. at \$1,320 in the Dept. of State July 16, 1924; at \$1,500 Mar. 1, 1926; at \$1,560 Mar. 1, 1927; at \$1,620 Jan. 1, 1928; at \$1,740 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$1,800 July 1, 1928; at \$1,860 July 1, 1930.—PD. Smith, Cora Matilda.—b. East Topsham, Vt.; high sch. and business sch. grad.; linotype operator on newspaper 1928-29; stenog., Veterans' Bu., 1929-30; app. clk. at \$1,440 in the Dept. of State Apr. 23, 1930; at \$1,620 June 1, 1930; stenog. to assist agt. for U. S.. U. S.-Egypt Arbitration (Salem Claim), Vienna, 1931.—SS.

Smith, Elizabeth Bertha.— 5. Ocala, Fla.; attended Washington Sem. and business sch.; Northwestern Univ. one yr.; secretary 1915-17, in Fuel Admin. 1917-18, in War. Dept. 1918-19; app. clk. at \$1,200 in the Dept. of State Aug. 6, 1919; at \$1,400 Dec. 30, 1922, effective Jan. 1, 1923; at \$1,680 July 1, 1924; at \$1,740 Dec. 1, 1925; at \$1,860 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$1,980 July 1, 1930; at \$2,000 June 1, 1931.—EE.

Smith, Ethelbert Talbot.—b. Goshen, N. Y., July 21. 1892; Trinity Sch.; Trinity Coll., A. B. 1913; Columbia Univ., LL. B. 1916; mem. of bars of N. Y. and Conn.; teacher in high sch. 1913–16; physical dir., Cathedral Choir Sch., 1915–16; law practice 1915–17, 1919–21; U. S. Army 1917–19, capt., overseas service; app., after exam., v. c. of career of class three Oct. 26, 1921; assigned to Tientsin Dec. 14, 1921; class two Feb. 26, 1923; assigned to Berlin Apr. 27, 1923; class one Nov. 23, 1923; cons. of class seven June 3, 1924; For. Ser. officer of class eight July 1, 1924; assigned to Königsberg Aug. 12, 1925; to Berlin Sept. 12, 1925; to Hamburg Mar. 16, 1926; class seven Dec. 19, 1929; assigned to Bergen Feb. 16, 1931; to Milan June 30, 1932; married.

Smith, Frances Ionia (Mrs.)—b. Washington, D. C.; attended high sch., normal sch., and business sch.; teacher in public sch. 1891-97; app. clk., temp., at \$1,080 in the Dept. of State Sept. 5, 1918; at \$1,200 Nov. 1, 1919; permanently at \$1,100 Dec. 31, 1920, effective Jan. 1, 1921; at \$1,200 Aug. 16, 1921; at \$1,400 Oct. 1, 1923; at \$1,680 July 1, 1924; at \$1,740 Nov. 1, 1927; at \$1,860 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$1,920 Jan. 1, 1929; at \$1,980 July 1, 1930.—VD.

Smith, Gaston .- b. New Orleans, La., Feb. 14, 1871; attended high sch. and business sch.; private tutors; cashier 1890-98, 1901-5; U.S. Volunteer Army 1898-99, 2d lt.; clk., New Orleans Subtreasury, 1905-6; Philippine civil service 1906-11; app., after exam., cons. at Aguascalientes Aug. 19, 1911; cons. of class nine by act approved Feb. 5, 1915; class eight Mar. 2, 1915; class seven Sept. 14, 1917, and assigned to Bluefields but did not proceed to post; to Almeria Nov. 5, 1917; to Málaga July 25, 1919; class six Sept. 5, 1919; assigned to Georgetown Apr. 28, 1923; For. Ser. officer of class seven July 1, 1924; assigned to Calais Sept. 24, 1925; to Port Elizabeth, temp., Mar. 26, 1927; to Durban Mar. 28, 1927; class six May 9, 1930; assigned to Tegucigalpa Apr. 22, 1931; to Lille Jan. 11, 1933; married.

Smith, Glenn Alvin.—b. Avondale, Tenn., Sept. 27, 1876; attended business sch.; National Univ., LL. B. 1921, M. P. L., LL. M.; American Univ. 1922; mem. of bar of D. C.; clk. in War Dept. 1900-1909; app. clk. at \$900 in the Dcpt. of State Jan. 30, 1909; at \$1,200 Dec. 1, 1909; at \$1,400 June 22, 1916, effective July 1; at \$1,600 May 1, 1920; at \$1,800 Jan. 16, 1922; at \$2,100 July 1, 1924; at \$2,200 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); legal asst. at \$2,300 July 1, 1928; at \$3,200 Aug. 1, 1928; at \$3,300 July 1, 1930; at \$3,400 July 1, 1930 (Brookhart Act); married.—FA.

Smith, Hawley Armistead.—b. Washington, D. C., Oct. 16, 1892; high sch. grad.; Dartmouth 1913-14; George Washington Univ. 1914; draftsman 1914; advertising agt. 1914-15; playground dir. 1916-17; U. S. Army 1917-18, capt., overseas service; app. v. c. at Bristol Feb. 24, 1919; at Berne Nov. 6, 1922; at Brussels Apr. 5, 1924; at Birmingham Sept. 15, 1926; at Messina Jan. 9, 1931; at Palermo Apr. 27, 1934; at Windsor June 18, 1934; married.

Smith, Horace Harrison.—b. Xenia, Ohio, Oct. 30, 1905; Swarthmore, A. B. 1927; cml. traveler in Europe 1925; conductor of student tours in Europe 1927; bank employee 1928; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass. and v. c. of career Oct. 24, 1928; assigned to the For. Ser. Sch. Nov. 5, 1928; as language officer at Peiping Mar. 26, 1929; as v. c. at Canton June 18, 1931; married.

Smith, Julian D.—b. Ipswich, Mass., Jan. 8, 1900; Harvard, grad. 1922; with cotton merchants in U. S. and Peru 1923; on investigational tour of Chile, Argentiua, and Brazil 1924; entered Bu. of For. and Domes. Com. Aug. 22, 1925; app. asst. trade commr. at Lima Dec. 1925; asst. cml. att. at Lima Apr. 28, 1927; cml. att. at Lima Dec. 20, 1933.

Smith, Merlin Eugene.—b. Moundsville, W. Va., Sept. 6, 1907; high sch. grad.; Ohio State Univ. 1925-27, summers 1927-29; teacher in public sch. 1927-30; app. clk. in Am. Consulate General at Barcelona Aug. 16, 1930; v. c. at Newcastle-on-Tyne June 30, 1931.

Smith, Mildred D.—b. Joplin, Mo.; high sch. grad.; secretary 1926-27; typist, Treas. Dept., 1927-29; app. clk. at \$1,440 in the Dept. of State July 10, 1929; at \$1,500 July 1, 1930; at \$1,620 July 13, 1931.—VD.

Smith, Mildred Maxwell.—b. Washington, D. C.; high sch. grad.; cashier and bookkeeper 1915-19; clk., Govt. depts., 1919-26; app. clk. at \$1,140 in the Dept. of State Mar. 1, 1926; at \$1,320 Oct. 1, 1926; at \$1,380 Jan. 1, 1928; at \$1,500 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$1,560 July 1, 1928; at \$1,680 July 1, 1930.—DCR.

Smith, Orlando Fairfax.—b. Washington, D. C., Mar. 3, 1886; attended public sch. and business sch.; stenog., D. C. govt., 1908-14; app. clk., temp., at \$900 in the Dept. of State Nov. 21, 1914; permanently at \$1,200, under Ex. order, June 22, 1916, effective July 1; clk. In N. Y. Passport Agency Jan.—Dec. 1916; at \$1,400 in the Dept. of State May 1, 1918; clk. In Am. Emb. at Paris Oct. 4, 1918; reapp. clk. at \$1,200 in the Dept. of State Feb. 10, 1919; at \$1,400

Mar. 1, 1919; resigned June 10, 1919; reapp. clk. at \$1,400 Oct. 1, 1919; at \$1,600 Jan. 25, 1922; at \$1,860 July 1, 1924; at \$1,920 Mar. 1, 1927; at \$1,980 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$2,040 July 1, 1930; at \$2,100 July 3, 1930 (Brookhart Act).—FA.

Smith, Sydney Bernard.—b. Belleville, Ill., Jan. 5, 1911; Georgetown, B. S. 1933; Univ. of Paris, L'École Libre des Sciences Politiques, and Alliance Française 1930-31; 2d lt., O. R. C.; clk. 1928-29, in Govt. depts. 1930; app. clk. at \$1,440 in the Dept. of State Aug. 13, 1931.—PD.

Smith, Sydney Yost .-- b. Washington, D. C., Nov. 28, 1857; attended public sch. and Roys Acad.; private tutors; in real estate office one yr.; asst. reporter, House of Representatives, 1879-80; clk., Pension Office, 1880-81; app. clk., temp., at \$900 in the Dept. of State July 1, 1881; at \$1,200 Aug. 5, 1882; at \$1,400, temp., July 24, 1884; at \$1,200 Dec. 19, 1884; at \$1,400 Aug. 16, 1886; at \$1,600 July 1, 1889; at \$1,800 Sept. 5, 1891; chief, Diplo. Bu., Apr. 8, 1897-Nov. 30, 1918; mem. of Bd. of Examiners for the Diplo. Ser.; disbursing officer, Fourth Int. Conf. of Am. States, Buenos Aires, 1910, and Chilean Centennial, Santiago, 1910; drafting expert, Am. Commn. to Negotlate Peace, Paris, 1918-19; drafting officer at \$3,000 July 1, 1919; at \$3,500 Jan. 16, 1922; at \$3,800 July 1, 1924; at \$4,200 May 1, 1925; at \$4,800 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$5,000 July 1, 1930; married .- TD.

Smith, Vivian Marle (Mrs.)—b. Clarence, Mo.; polytech. high sch. and business sch. grad.; Pomona Coll. 1924; George Washington Univ. 1925-27; French Sch. of Language 1928-30; stenog. one yr.; app. clk. at \$1,200 in the Dept. of State May 12, 1924; at \$1,500 July 1, 1924; at \$1,560 Nov. 1, 1927; at \$1,680 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$1,740 July 1, 1930.—WE.

Smith-Hutton, Henri H. (Lt.)-b. Alliance, Nebr., Sept. 8, 1901; U.S.N.A., grad. 1922; assigned as asst. nav. att. at Tokyo Oct. 14, 1932.

Smithman, Beulah Marion.—b. St. Paul, Minn.; high sch. grad.; stenog. 1927-30; app. clk. at \$1,440 in the Dept. of State Feb. 20, 1931; at \$1,620 Sept. 4, 1931.—SS.

Smyth, Robert Lacy.—b. Foochow, China, of Am. parents, Dec. 18, 1894; Univ. of Calif., A. B. 1917, grad. work 1919-20; Am. field service in France 1917; French Army 1917-19, 2d lt.; app., after exam., student interpreter in China Aug. 27, 1920; v. c. and interpreter at Chungking Jan. 2, 1923; at Hankow Jan. 26, 1923; at Chungking May 13, 1924; For. Ser. officer unclass. July 1, 1924; assigned to Tientsin July 1, 1925; to the Dept. May 20, 1926; to Hankow. temp., Sept. 24, 1926; class eight June 30, 1927; cons. and assigned to Hankow July 16, 1927; to Tientsin July 20, 1927; to Swatow, temp., May 28, 1929; class seven Dec. 19, 1929; assigned to Shanghai, temp., Jan. 15, 1930; to Swatow, temp., Apr. 2, 1930; to Shanghai May 14, 1930; class six July 1, 1931; to Nanking Sept. 19, 1932; sec. in the Diplo. Scr. and designated also 2d sec. Apr. 5, 1933.

Snowden, Ernest.—b. Arlington Co., Va., July 18, 1893; U. S. Army 1917-18; app. messenger in the Dept. of State July 28, 1927; resigned Oct. 15, 1931; reapp. Nov. 23, 1931.—DCR.

Snyder, Henry S.—b. Baltimore, Md., Mar. 1, 1909; Emerson Inst. grad.; George WashIngton Univ. 1927-20, Law Sch. 1930-; clk. 1925-28; app. clk., temp., at \$1,260 in the Dept. of State Feb. 11, 1929; permanently Mar. 22, 1929; at \$1,440 Sept. 23, 1929; at \$1,620 July 1, 1930.—DCR.

Snyder, Lucille (Mrs.)—b. New Haven, Mo.; Christian Coll., A. A. 1930; app. clk. at \$1,440 in the Dept. of State July 21, 1930; at \$1,620 Feb. 4, 1931.—NE.

Snyder, Mary Ellen (Mrs.)—b. Newport, Pa.; attended high sch.; corr. courses; clk., Bu. of War Risk Insur., 1918; app. clk., temp., at \$960 in the Dept. of State Aug. 13, 1918; at \$1,020 Dec. 1, 1918; at \$1,030 Mar. 1, 1919; at \$1,140 Nov. 1, 1919; at \$1,200 Oct. 4, 1920, effective Oct. 1; permanently at \$900 Feb 1, 1921; at \$1,000 Aug. 16, 1921; at \$1,100 Mar. 1, 1924; at \$1,200 May 31, 1924, effective June 1; at \$1,440 July 1, 1924; at \$1,500 Mar. 1, 1925; at \$1,560 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$1,680 July 1, 1930; at \$1,740 July 3, 1930 (Brookhart Act).—FA.

Snyder, Viola Tasker (Mrs.)—b. Miners Mills, Pa.; attended high sch. and business sch.; George Washington Univ. one yr.; clk. in law firm 1913–15, in Govt. depts. 1915–19; app. clk. at \$1,200 in the Dept. of State Nov. 15, 1919; at \$1,400 Mar. 1, 1924; at \$1,680 July 1, 1924; at \$1,740 Mar. 1, 1927; at \$1,800 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$1,920 July 1, 1930; at \$1,980 July 3, 1930 (Brookhart Act).— A-C/C.

Sockwell, Lester.—b. Mosheim, Tex., May 26, 1908; Baylor Univ., B. A. 1931; app. clk. in Am. Consulate at Nuevitas Sept. 26, 1930; v. c. at Nuevitas Apr. 14, 1931.

Sokobin, Samuel.—b. Newark, N. J., Apr. 28, 1893; high sch. grad.; Cornell Univ. 1911–13; clk. 1910; cml. work 1913; clk., N. J. state bd. of public utility commrs. 1913–14; app., after exam., student interpreter in China Apr. 4, 1914; v. c. at Tientsin Dec. 18, 1915; interpreter at Shanghai July 20, 1916; also v. c. at Shanghai Aug. 7, 1916; resigned June 1, 1917; app. v. c. and interpreter at Nanking May 1, 1918; at Antung Mar. 8, 1919; v. c. at Chungking Aug. 21, 1919; also interpreter Aug. 25, 1919; v. c. and interpreter at Swatow Aug. 9, 1920; at Kalgan Nov. 15, 1920; cons. of class six Nov. 23, 1921; For. Ser. officer of class seven July 1, 1924; class six Aug. 8, 1924; assigned to Mukden Nov. 3, 1925; to Mukden Nov. 3, 1925; to

Tientsin June 18, 1927; to Foochow July 20, 1927; to Shanghai Mar. 1, 1930; to the Dcpt. Apr. 12, 1930; class five May 9, 1930; assigned to Saltillo Sept. 27, 1930; married.

Sonner, Thomas G.—b. Buffalo, N. Y., Feb. 22, 1910; high sch. grad.; George Washington Univ. 1932-; clk. 1926-30; app. clk. at \$1,440 in the Dept. of State Aug. 25, 1930; at \$1,620 July 1, 1931.— DCR.

Sorrell, Carol.—b. Asheville, N. C.; high sch. and business sch. grad.; stenog. 1926-28; clk., Veterans' Bu., 1928-31; app. clk. at \$1,620 in the Dept. of State Jan. 2, 1931.—PD.

Southard, Addison E .- b. Louisville, Ky., Oct. 18, 1884; Lebanon and Santo Tomas Univ.; asst. to supt. of sugar estate in Mexico 1904-5; newspaper work 1905-6; business and legal clk, 1906-8; officer of Philippine govt. 1908-15, 1916; clk. in Am. Leg. at Peking Apr.-Oct. 1915; app., after exam., cons. of class nine Sept. 1, 1916; assigned to Aden Sept. 13, 1916; class eight Sept. 14, 1917; on detail in Abyssinia Oct .- Nov. 1917; detailed for intelligence work in Persia May 16, 1918; with Am. Commn. to Negotiate Peace, Paris, 1919; on detail in Abyssinia Mar.-Apr. 1919, and Aug.-Sept. 1920; class six Sept. 5, 1919; class five June 4, 1920; detailed to Jerusalem Nov. 11, 1920; class four Nov. 23, 1921; detailed to the Dept. July 24, 1922, in charge of Cons. Cml. Office and liaison officer with the Dept. of Com.; class three Mar. 1, 1923; del., World Motor Transport Cong., Detroit, 1924; cons. gen. of class four June 5, 1924; For. Ser. officer of class three July 1, 1924; assigned to Singapore Apr. 7, 1926; min. resident and cons. gen. to Ethiopia Oct. 12, 1927; class two Jan. 23, 1928; class one July 24, 1930; app. E.E. and M.P. for coronation of Emperor of Ethiopia 1930; married.

Southgate, Richard.-b. Worcester, Mass., May 5, 1893; Milton Acad. grad.; Harvard, A. B. 1915; Harvard Law Sch. 1915-16; clk., War Trade Bd., Am. Emb. in Paris, and Dept. of State 1918-19; app., after exam., sec. of emb. or leg. of class four Sept. 5, 1919; assigned to Rome Oct. 14, 1919; to the Dept. May 26, 1921; class three Aug. 24, 1921; detailed to Conf. on Limitation of Armament, Washington, 1921; assigned to Guatemala Dec. 15, 1921; to Constantinople Nov. 14, 1922; to the Dept. Aug. 6, 1923; class two Jan. 23, 1924; For. Ser. officer of class four July 1, 1924; assigned as 1st sec. at Habana May 25, 1925; resigned July 2, 1926; bank representative 1926-29; admin. sec., Commn. of Inquiry and Concillation, Bolivia and Paraguay, 1929-30; asst. sec., Am. Commn. to Seville Exposition, 1929-30; sec., London Naval Conf., 1930; asst. sec., Overseas and Colonial Exposition, Paris, 1930; app. asst, chief, Division of Int. Conf. and Protocol at \$6,500 July 12, 1930; asst. chief, Division of Int. Conf., Sept. 11, 1931; sec.-gen. to Am. del., Int. Radio Conf., Madrid, 1932; asst. chief, Division of Protocol and Conferences, June 1, 1933; married.-PC,

Spalding, Francis Lecompte.—b. Boston, Mass., Oct. 30, 1906; Rivers Sch. grad.; Harvard 1925-29; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass., v. c. of career, and sec. in the Diplo. Ser. Dec. 17, 1931; assigned to the Dept., temp., Jan. 19, 1932; as v. c. at Panama July 22, 1932; to the For. Ser. Sch. Feb. 6, 1933; to Zürich June 13, 1933; married.

Spamer, Carl Ober .- b. Baltimore, Md., July 21, 1884; business sch. grad.; Univ. of Md., LL. B. 1914; Johns Hopkins, summers 1914, 1915; George Washington, A. B., A. M. 1916; mem. of bar of Md.; with St. Louis Exposition, summer 1904; in printing and publishing business 1905-7; educational work in Govt. sch. of Japan 1907-10; traveled in China, India, Egypt, Palestine, and Europe 1910-11; clk., Dept. of State, Apr.-June 1916; v. c. at Basel Aug. 1916-July 1917; U. S. Food Admin. 1917-19; special expert and examiner, U. S. Shipping Bd. Emergency Fleet Corp., Apr.-Oct. 1919; app., after exam., cons. of class seven Sept. 5, 1919; detailed to Yokohama Oct. 2, 1919; assigned to Medan May 26, 1920; detailed to Rotterdam Aug. 17, 1923; For. Ser. officer of class eight July 1, 1924; detailed to Amsterdam July 11, 1924; class seven Aug. 8, 1924; assigned to Amsterdam June 16, 1926; to Amoy June 27, 1929 (canceled); to Shanghai Aug. 26, 1929; class six Dec. 19, 1929; assigned to Tokyo Jan. 25, 1932; to Nagasaki Oct. 7, 1933; married.

Spangler, Conrad Christian.—b. St. John, N. B., Canada, of Am. parents, May 23, 1904; Hebron Acad.; Bowdoin Coll. 1922-24; Mt. Allison Univ., B. A. 1927; Columbia 1927-28; Kans. State Agric. Coll. 1928-29; jr. executive in touring service 1929-30; app. clk. in Am. Consulate at St. John, N. B., Oct. 25, 1930; v. c. at St. John May 20, 1931.

Sparks, Edward John.—b. Jersey City, N. J., Dec. 28, 1897; high sch. grad.; dept. head in factory 1915–16; clk. 1916–17, in War Dept. 1917–19, in office of mil. att., Am. Emb. at Santiago. Chile, 1919–21; app. after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass. and v. c. of career Apr. 15, 1926; assigned to Valparaiso Sept. 9, 1926; class eight, cons., and assigned to Valparaiso Dec. 19, 1929; as For. Ser. officer to the emb. at Santiago, Chile, Mar. 17, 1930; sec. in the Diplo. Ser. Apr. 15, 1930; assigned as 3d sec. at Santiago, Chile, Apr. 18, 1930; married.

Spaulding, E. Wilder.—b. Boston, Mass., June 18, 1899; Dartmouth, A. B. 1922; Harvard, A. M. 1023, Ph. D. 1930; instructor and asst. prof. of hist., Kalamazoo Coll., 1023–24, 1926–27; asst. prof. of hist., Trinity Coll. (Hartford), 1927–30; app. research asst. at \$3,200 in the Dept. of State Sept. 15, 1930; asst. to the historical adviser Oct. 1, 1931; asst. chief, Division of Research and Publication, Nov. 1, 1933; married.—RP.

Spiker, Clarence Jerome.—b. Washington, D. C., June 14, 1888; high sch. grad.; course in city engineering and surveying 1900-12; George Washington Unlv. 1912-14; clk., draftsman, and field location work, Office of Engineer Commr., Dist. of Columbia, 1906-14; app., after exam., student interpreter in China Apr. 4, 1914; v. c. at Shanghai Aug. 21, 1916; also interpreter Aug. 25, 1916; Am. assessor, Int. Mixed Court, Shanghai, 1917-19; designated to exercise judicial authority and jurisdiction in civil and criminal cases, temp., Sept. 17, 1918; v. c. at Antung Aug. 21, 1919; also interpreter Aug. 25, 1919; v. c. of career of class one May 4, 1920, and assigned to Peking; to Chungking Apr. 16, 1921; cons. of class seven Mar. 1, 1923; assigned to Chungking Mar. 28, 1923; to Swatow Oct. 30, 1923; class six Dec. 19, 1923; For. Ser. officer of class seven July 1, 1924; class six Aug. 31, 1925; assigned to Shanghai Mar. 11, 1926; class five Sept. 29, 1927; Am. commr., Sino-American Claims Commn., 1928-29; assigned to Nanking Aug. 28, 1928; sec. in the Diplo. Ser. Sept. 28, 1928; assigned as 2d sec. at Peiping Oct. 12, 1928; class four July 24, 1930; married.

Sprague, Lillian Anne.—b. Fort Monroe, Va.; high sch. grad.; attended business sch.; secretary 1927-29; app. clk., temp., at \$1,440 in the Dept. of State Jan. 3, 1930; permanently June 17, 1930; at \$1,620 Jan. 8, 1931.—DCR.

Sprague, Richard Louis.—b. in Gibraltar, of Am. parents, May 26, 1871; private tutors; app. v. and dep. cons. at Gibraltar June 20, 1893; cons. July 18, 1901; cons. of class eight by act approved Feb. 5, 1915; class six Sept. 5, 1919; For. Ser. officer of class seven July 1, 1924; class six Dec. 17, 1925; class five July 24, 1930.

Sprigman, Mary.—b. Washington, D. C.; attended high sch.; clk., U. S. Shipping Bd., 1919-20; app. clk. at \$1,000 in the Dept. of State Aug. 18, 1920; at \$1,100 Dec. 30, 1922, effective Jan. 1, 1923; at \$1,200 Nov. 1, 1923; at \$1,440 July 1, 1924; at \$1,500 Mar. 1, 1925; at \$1,560 Dec. 1, 1925; at \$1,620 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$1,680 July 1, 1928; at \$1,800 July 1, 1930; at \$1,860 July 3, 1930 (Brookhart Act).—SS.

Springs, Laertes Pittman.—b. Winston-Salem, N. C., Feb. 3, 1891; Staunton Mil. Acad., Episcopal High Sch., Woodberry Forest Sch.; George Washington Law Sch. 1912-14; U. S. Army 1917-19, 2d lt., overseas scrvice; with shipbuilding corp. 1919; app. clk. in Am. Consulate General at Rotterdam Apr. 21, 1920; v. c. at Cherbourg Dec. 29, 1921; at Glasgow July 18, 1925; at Dundee, temp., Apr. 26, 1930; at Glasgow Apr. 30, 1930; at Amsterdam Feb. 11, 1931; at Plymouth Nov. 24, 1931; married.

Spruks, Henry Charles.—b. Scranton, Pa., July 26, 1895; attended high sch.; Mercersburg Acad.; Syracuse Univ. 1914-17; U. S. Army 1917-19, overseas service; in lumber business 1919-24; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass, and v. c. of carcer Feb. 5, 1927; assigned to Habana Feb. 14, 1927; to the For. Ser. Sch. Jan. 20, 1928; to Warsaw June 29, 1928; resigned Mar. 9, 1929; credit mgr. of lumber company 1929-30; app., under Ex. order, asst. to the chief, Visa Office, at \$2,600 in the Dept. of State May 3, 1930; at \$3,200 Nov. 1, 1931; married.—VD. Squire, Paul Chapin.—b. Arlington, Mass., Aug. 5. 1800; Harvard, A. B. 1911; wholesale and retail provision dealer 1911–19; app., after exam., v. c. of career of class three Sept. 27, 1919; assigned to St. Nazaire Oct. 22, 1919; to Nantes Dec. 29, 1919; cons. of class seven Apr. 13, 1920; assigned to Dunkirk Apr. 17, 1920; to Lille May 17, 1922; class six Aug. 23, 1922; For. Ser. officer of class seven July 1, 1924; class six Feb. 24, 1925; assigned to Windsor Feb. 11, 1928; to Kingston, Jamaica, Mar. 17, 1930; class five July 24, 1930; to Newcastle-on-Tyne Oct. 19, 1932; married.

Staab, Mary Josephine.—b. Brooklyn, N. Y.; attended high sch. and business sch.; bookkeeper 1915– 18; gen. office worker, Navy Dept., 1918–25; app. clk., temp., at \$1,320 in the N. Y. Passport Agency of the Dept. of State Mar. 21, 1927; resigned Aug. 31, 1927; reapp. permanently at \$1,320 Nov. 22, 1927; at \$1,440 May 1, 1928; at \$1,560 July 1, 1928; at \$1,680 May 1, 1930.

Stafford, Maurice L.—b. Windsor, Mo., Apr. 14, 1885; William Jewell Coll. one yr.; Univ. of Calif. one yr.; newspaper work ten yrs.; app., after exam., cons. of class seven Sept. 5, 1919; assigned to Santander Oct. 29, 1919; to Barranquilla Dec. 27, 1921; For. Ser. officer of class eight July 1, 1924; class seven Aug. 8, 1924; assigned to London Apr. 10, 1925; to Madrid Jan. 25, 1927; class six May 23, 1929; assigned as For. Ser. officer to the leg. at Santo Domingo Dec. 23, 1930; sec. in the Diplo. Ser. Jan. 22, 1931; assigned as 2d sec. at Santo Domingo Feb. 24, 1931; cons. and 1st sec. at Kovno Jan. 6, 1932; married.

Stambaugh, George Bingham .- b. Marietta, Pa., Oct. 16, 1880; attended business sch.; George Washington Univ.; Washington Coll. of Law, LL. B. 1921; mem. of bar of D. C.; stenog., typist, and accountant five yrs.; clk., Dept. of Com. and Labor, 1904-5; app. clk. at \$900 in the Dept. of State Dec. 7, 1905; at \$1,000 July 2, 1906; at \$1,200 Mar. 4, 1907; at \$1,400 July 1, 1908; at \$1,800 June 22, 1916, effective July 1; special asst. at \$2,000 Mar. 1, 1921; at \$2,160 May 31, 1924, effective June 1; at \$2,400 July 1, 1924; representative on Advisory Committee on Fiscal Accounting Forms and Procedure 1927-; at \$2,500 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$2,600 July 1, 1928; asst. chief, Bu. of Accounts, at \$2,900 Mar. 15, 1930; at \$3,100 July 1, 1930; at \$3,200 July 3, 1930 (Brookhart Act); married.-BA.

Standish, Myles.—b. New York City, May 21, 1909; high sch. grad.; attended business sch.; New York Univ. 1926-27, 1928-29; Columbia, Feb.-June 1929; asst. mgr. of theater 1926-27; salesman 1927-29; app. clk, in Am. Consulate at Antilla Feb. 13, 1931; v. c. at Antilla Aug. 25, 1931; at Nuevitas, temp., Apr. 16, 1934; at Antilla May 27, 1934.

Stanton, Edwin Forward.—b. Bouckville, N. Y., Feb. 22, 1901; Breeks Mem. Sch., So. India, 1912-16; high sch. grad.; Univ. of So. Calif. 1920; secretarial work 1920-21; app., after exam., student Interpreter in China Apr. 23, 1921; v. c. at Mukden

67359-34-18

Sept. 28, 1923; at Kalgan Mar. 15, 1924; For. Ser. officer unclass. July 1, 1924; assigned to Tientsin Apr. 21, 1927; to Tsinan May 26, 1927; class eight June 30, 1927; cons. and assigned to Tsinan July 16, 1927; to Canton Mar. 8, 1928; to Tsinan Oct. 12, 1928; class seven May 23, 1929; sec. in the Diplo. Ser. May 9, 1930; assigned as 2d sec. at Peiping May 10, 1930; class six Feb. 4, 1931; as cons. at Hankow July 5, 1932; at Nanking, temp., Feb. 1, 1934; at Hankow May 2, 1934.

Stanton, Willard Quincy.—b. Great Falls, Mont., July 30, 1896; attended advertising sch.; Harvard, S. B. 1917; temp. posltlons 1916–19; asst. merchandise mgr. for mercantile firm 1919–23; merchandise and research asst. in firm 1923–25; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass. and v. c. of career Feb. 5, 1927; assigned to the For. Ser. Sch. Feb. 14, 1927; to Durban Feb. 24, 1928; to Cape Town, temp., Oct. 2, 1928; to Lourenço Marques Mar. 30, 1929; to San Salvador Dec. 4, 1931; sec. in the Diplo. Ser. Oct. 31, 1933; assigned as 3d sec. at San Salvador in addition to duties as v. c. Nov. 13, 1933; married.

Staten, Verne Glenn.—b. Downs, Ill., Oct. 15, 1890; Ill. Wesleyan Univ., LL. B. 1913; mem. of bar of Ill.; law practice 1914-17; U. S. Army 1917-19, 2d lt.; app. v. c. at Hong Kong Feb. 24, 1921; at Amoy July 16, 1921; at Swatow Nov. 6, 1922; at Amoy Jan. 5, 1923; at Tientsin Sept. 28, 1923; at Antung Aug. 8, 1925; at Hankow June 25, 1928; married.

Steele, Joseph Douglass.—b. Greenville, Va., Sept 11, 1870; attended public sch.; with railway company 1886-89; telegraph company 1889-1918; clk., Dept. of State, 1918-20; telegrapher 1920-21; app. clk. at \$1,600 in the Dept. of State Mar. 16, 1921; at \$1,860 July 1, 1924; at \$1,920 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$1,080 July 1, 1928; at \$2,100 July 1, 1930; at \$2,160 July 3, 1930 (Brookhart Act); married.— DCR.

Steen, William Moore.—b. San Antonio, Tex., Oct. 17, 1909; messenger, Dept. of Agric., 1928-30; app. messenger in the Dept. of State Feb. 7, 1930.—HA.

Steere, Loyd V.—b. Cadiz, Ohio, July 16, 1898; Pomona Coll., A. B. 1920; Harvard Sch. of Business Admin., M.B.A. 1923; entered Bu. of Agric. Economics 1923; assigned to Berlin office of the Dept. of Agric. July 1, 1926; asst. agric. commr. Oct. 1, 1927; commr. in charge of Berlin office Jan. 1, 1929; expert, Committee of Agric. Experts, Geneva, 1930; agric. att. at Berlin Dec. 16, 1930; married.

Steger, Christian Talbot.—b. Danville, Va., Feb. 3, 1893; Danville Sch. for Boys grad.; Univ. of Va., A. B. 1913, A. M. 1915; Univ. of Marburg, Germany, summer 1914; instructor in German, Univ. of Va., 1913–15; teacher in high sch. 1915–17; Y. M. C. A. sec. 1917–18; U. S. Army 1918; field dir., Am. Red Cross, 1919; app., after exam., v. c. of career of class three Sept. 27, 1919; assigned to Rome Dec. 19, 1919; to Dresden Nov. 15, 1921; class two Nov. 17, 1921; class one May 26, 1922; cons. of class seven Dec. 19, 1923; For. Ser. officer of class eight July 1,

1924; assigned to Corinto Apr. 22, 1926; class seven May 23, 1929; assigned to Malmö July 21, 1930; to Beirut Nov. 20, 1931; married.

Stegmaier, Raymond L.—b. Bladensburg, Md., Dec. 12, 1896; attended public sch.; U. S. Army 1918; typewriter mechanic 1912-31; app. mechanic at \$1,680 in the Dept. of State Apr. 1, 1931; at \$1,860 Oct. 1, 1931; married.—SU.

Steinhardt, Laurence A.—b. New York City Oct. 6, 1892; private tutors; Columbia, A.B. and M.A. 1912, LL.B. 1915; mem. of bar of N. Y.; accountant 1910–12; U. S. Army 1918; assoc. counsel, War Dept., 1918–19; law practice 1920-33; app. E. E. and M. P. to Sweden May 11, 1933; married.

Stephan, Charles Hans.—b. Brooklyn, N. Y., Oct. 14, 1892; high sch. grad.; business course; Columbia Univ. Ext. three yrs.; clk. 1907-9; stenog. and book-keeper 1909-13; U. S. Army, Philippine Is., 1913-16; also clk. in law office 1914-16; app. clk. in Am. Leg. at Peking July 1, 1917; v. c. at Vladivostok Oct. 30, 1917; at Harbin May 18, 1923; at Dairen Dec. 17, 1925; at Seoul Nov. 8, 1926; married.

Stephan, Ola May (Mrs.)—b. Osceola, Ind.; high sch. grad.; clk. 1927-28; statistician 1928-29; app. clk. at \$1,440 in the Dept. of State Oct. 16, 1929; at \$1,560 July 1, 1930; at \$1,620 Nov. 1, 1930.—PD.

Sterling, Frederick Augustine .- b. St. Louis, Mo., Aug. 13, 1876; attended sch. in Switzerland; Harvard, A. B. 1898; Washington Univ. Law Sch. one yr.; mgr. of cattle ranch eight yrs.; mfr. of woolens two yrs.; app., after exam., 3d sec. at Petrograd Mar. 2, 1911; 2d sec. Aug. 22, 1912; detailed to observe the elections for Constituent Assembly of Santo Domingo 1913; 2d sec. at Peking Feb. 11, 1914; sec. of emb. or leg. of class three Feb. 22, 1915, effective Feb. 5; assigned to Peking Mar. 6, 1915; to Petrograd July 14, 1915; to the Dept. as act. chief, Division of Western European Affairs, June 24, 1916; to Paris Jan. 30, 1918; class two Aug. 27, 1918; class one Dec. 20, 1919; jr. couns. of emb. at Parls June 12, 1920; couns. of emb. at Lima Apr. 16, 1921; at London June 18, 1923; For. Ser. officer of class one July 1, 1924; mem. of Bd. of Review, For. Ser. Personnel 1927; E. E. and M. P. to the Irish Free State Feb. 19, 1927; to Bulgaria Sept. 1, 1933; married.

Stevens, Francis Bowden.—b. Norvich, N. Y., Apr. 6, 1905; Union Coll., A. B. 1926; Univ. of Berlin 1926–27; Univ. of Geneva 1927; Univ. of Besançon, summer 1927; instructor of political sci., Union Coll., 1928–30; app. clk. in Am. Consulate General at Prague June 10, 1931; v. c. at Prague Aug. 14, 1931; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass., v. c. of career, and sec. in the Diplo. Ser. Dec. 17, 1931; assigned as v. c. at Prague Jan. 2, 1932; to the For. Ser. Sch. Nov. 29, 1932; to Warsaw Mar. 30, 1933. Stevens, Harry Edward.—b. Galveston, Tex., Dec. 31, 1807; attended business sch.; Univ. of Calif., A. B. 1921, Law Sch. 1922; secretary 1911-12; in U. S. Navy 1913-17; S. A. T. C. 1918-19; law clk., summer 1919; with importing and exporting company, summer 1920; Oakland, Calif., library and Library of Cong. 1921-22; app., after exam., student interpreter in China Sept. 18, 1922; For. Ser. officer unclass. July 1, 1924; v. c. of career and assigned to Canton Nov. 20, 1924; to Shanghai Feb. 10, 1927; class eight, cons., and assigned to Shanghai May 17, 1928; to Yunnanfu June 2, 1930; class seven July 24, 1930; to Tsinan Apr. 1, 1932.

Stevens, Leslie C. (Lt. Comdr.)--b. Kearney, Nebr., Feb. 19, 1895; U.S.N.A., grad. 1918; assigned as asst. naval att. at London June 25, 1934; married.

Stewart, Catherine Byrnes.—b. Gloucester, Mass.; Mount Saint Mary Sem. 1912-24; app. clk. at \$1,320 in the Dept. of State Jan. 18, 1926; at \$1,380 Mar. 1, 1927; at \$1,500 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$1,620 July 1, 1928; stenog., Conf. for the Codification of Int. Law, The Hague, 1930; at \$1,800 July 1, 1930.— SS.

Stewart, Francis Robert .-- b. Evansville, Ind., Aug. 7, 1874; high sch. grad.; secretarial work 1892-98, 1899-1904; U. S. Army 1898-99; mgr. of company 1905-10; clk. in Am. Consulate General at Hamburg Nov. 17, 1910; app. dep. cons. gen. at Hamburg Jan. 24, 1912; also cons. agt. at Cuxhaven Aug. 12, 1913; v. and dep. cons. gen. at Hamburg Aug. 3, 1914; v. c. at Hamburg Feb. 6, 1915; at Vera Cruz Feb. 27, 1917; app., after exam., cons. of class eight Sept. 14, 1917; on detail at Vera Cruz; detailed to the Dept. Feb. 28, 1919; to Berne June 20, 1919; class six Sept. 5, 1919; detailed to Coblenz Oct. 30, 1919; to Hamburg Dec. 13, 1919; to Bremen Sept. 20, 1921; assigned to Bremen Nov. 15, 1921; class five Nov. 23, 1921; assigned to Santiago de Cuba Aug. 3, 1923; For, Ser, officer of class six July 1, 1924; assigned to Niagara Falls Feb. 27, 1928; class five May 9, 1930; assigned to Vienna Apr. 10, 1931; married.

Stewart, James Bolton.—b. Philadelphia, Pa., Nov. 27, 1882; attended high sch.; Temple Univ. and Foster Sch. of Languages, Philadelphia, 1913–14; studied under private tutor; engineering work, U. S. Reclamation Ser., 1906–7, U. S. Geological Survey in U. S. and Hawaii 1908–15; app. v. c. at Pernambuco July 14, 1915; app., after exam., cons. of class eight Sept. 14, 1917; assigned to Chihuahua Jan. 10, 1918; class six Sept. 5, 1919; detailed to Tampico July 18, 1922; class five Aug. 23, 1922; assigned to Tampico Oct. 2, 1923; class four Dec. 19, 1923; For. Ser. officer of class five July 1, 1924; detailed to the Dept. Feb. 21, 1925; For. Ser. insp. July 14, 1925; class four Aug. 31, 1925; cons. at Ceiba, temp., Dec. 21, 1926; For. Ser. insp. Mar. 20, 1927; assigned to Monterrey, temp., June 3, 1927; class three June 8, 1927; For. Scr. insp. Aug. 17, 1927; assigned to the Dept. June 2, 1928; mem. of ex. committee, For. Ser. Personnel Bd., Sept. 11, 1928-Sept. 11, 1929; chief instructor of the For. Scr. Sch. Sept. 11, 1928; For. Ser. insp. July 31, 1929; assigned to the Dept. Sept. 3, 1929; class two July 24, 1930; cons. gen. Apr. 10, 1931; director of For. Ser. Officers' Training Sch. and mem. of the Sch. Bd. July 1, 1931; assigned as cons. gen. at Budapest June 22, 1933; married.

Stewart, Warren Curley.—b. Washington, D. C., July 9, 1808; attended polytech. hlgh sch.; apprentice with steel corp. 1915-17; U. S. Army 1917-19; clk., Govt. depts., 1919-21; app. clk. in Am. Consulate at Dunfermline Oct. 4, 1921; v. c. at Dunfermline Feb. 16, 1922; at Halifax Aug. 30, 1924; at Fredericton June 29, 1925; at Halifax July 25, 1925; at Charlottetown July 30, 1925; at Halifax Aug. 26, 1925; at Moncton, temp., July 9, 1926; at Halifax Aug. 30, 1926; at Matanzas Nov. 26, 1927; at Ceiba Aug. 30, 1930; married.

Stewart, Worthington E .- b. Ravenna, Mich., Dec. 1, 1876; high sch. and business course; mem. of bar of D. C.; clk. and stenog.; app. clk. at \$900 in the Dept. of State Sept. 8, 1906; at \$1,200 Mar. 4, 1907; at \$1,400 Nov. 2, 1908; at \$1,600 Jan. 3, 1910; at \$1,800 Mar. 1, 1919; in charge of Diplo. Bu. Dec. 1918-Sept. 1919, Oct. 1920-June 1921; app. special asst. at \$2,000 Dec. 31, 1919, effective Jan. 1. 1920; drafting officer at \$2,500 June 17, 1921, effective July 1, and designated act. chief, Diplo. Bu.; at \$3,000 Sept. 30, 1922; chief, Diplo. Bu., Oct. 14, 1922; at \$3,800 July 1, 1924; chief. Office of Executive Committee of For. Ser. Personnel Bd., Aug. 19, 1924; at \$4,000 Feb. 1, 1926; mem. of 2d Bd. of Review of the Dept. Apr. 1-July 11, 1927; at \$4,600 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); admin. officer, Division of For. Ser. Personnel, Dec. 30, 1929; at \$4,800 July 1, 1930; married.-FP.

Steyne, Alan Nathaniel.—b. New York City Nov. 19, 1806; Phillips Andover; Yale, B. Ph. 1921; Univ. of Grenoble 1919; U. S. Army 1917–19, 2d lt., overseas servlee; advertising and asst. sales mgr. 1922–27; in metal export business in China 1928–29; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass. and v. c. of career Nov. 12, 1929; assigned to Montreal, temp., Nov. 27, 1929; to the For. Ser. Sch. Feb. 11, 1931; to Hamburg June 20, 1931.

Stiles, Edith Farnum.—b. Lowell, Mass.; high sch. grad.; attended business sch.; Wellesley Coll. two yrs.; Harvard extensiou work 1915-16; Chicago Univ. Ext. 1929; American Univ. 1930-31; proof reader for law encyclopedia one yr.; confidential and editorial clk. in insur. company 1901-16; clk., War Dept., 1917-20; app. clk. at \$1,200 in the Dept. of State Apr. 7, 1920; at \$1,500 July 1, 1924; at \$1,560 Mar. 1, 1925; at \$1,620 Dec. 1, 1925; editorial asst. at \$1,680 Mar. 1, 1927; at \$1,800 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$2,000 Mar. 1, 1930; at \$2,200 July 1, 1930.—RP.

Stinebower, Leroy Dean.—b. Eureka, Mich., Dec. 25, 1904; Kalamazoo Coll., A. B. 1926; Univ. of Chicago, A.M. 1927, grad. work 1931–33; Brookings Inst. 1933–34; instr. in economics 1928–30 and asst. prof. of economics 1930–31, Allegheny Coll.; research asst. in economics, Univ. of Chicago, 1931–33; app. divisional asst. at \$3,200 in the Dept. of State Mar. 6, 1934; married.—EA.

Stocker, Ida May.—b. Cleveland, Ohio; attended high sch.; business sch. grad.; app. clk. at \$1,440 in the Dept. of State Feb. 26, 1931; at \$1,620 June 1, 1934.—TR.

††Stockton, Gilchrist Baker.—b. Jacksonville, Fla., Aug. 20, 1890; Princeton, Litt. B. 1914; Oxford Univ., B. A. (Law) 1917; U. S. Naval Reserve Force 1917– 21, lt. (sg), overseas service; U. S. Naval Reserves, lt. comdr.; chief of mission to Austria, Am. Relief Admin., 1919–21; pres. of company 1922–30; app. E. E. and M. P. to Austria Jan. 22, 1930; resigned Sept. 21, 1933; married.

Stone, John Freeman.—b. Everett, Mass., May 4, 1909; Haverford Sch. grad.; Haverford Coll., A. B. 1930; app. clk. in Am. Consulate General at Berlin June 6, 1931; v. c. at Berlin Sept. 4, 1931; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass., v. c. of career, and sec. in the Diplo. Ser. Dec. 17, 1931; assigned as v. c. at Berlin Jau. 2, 1932; to the For. Ser. Sch. Nov. 29, 1932; to Warsaw Mar. 30, 1933.

Story, Harry Walter.—b. Ciudad Bolivar, Venezuela, of Am. parents, Dec. 19, 1892; Southern Dental Coll., D. D. S. 1915; app. clk. in Am. Consulate at Santiago, Cuba, Feb. 27, 1918; v. c. at Santiago Apr. 27, 1923; at Matanzas Jan. 14, 1925; at Santiago Feb. 13, 1925; married.

Stout, Kenneth Shirley.—b. Portland, Oreg., May 24, 1908; high sch. grad.; U. S. N. A. 1926-29; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass., v. c. of career, and sec. in the Diplo. Ser. Dec. 19, 1929; assigned as v. c. at Tegucigalpa, temp., Jan. 11, 1930; at Nassau June 11, 1930; to the For. Ser. Sch. Sept. 27, 1930; to Tela Mar. 20, 1931; married.

Stover, John Lewis.—b. Scranton, Pa., Aug. 7, 1909; high sch. grad.; Muhlenberg Coll. 1926-28; George Washington Univ. 1928-29; George Washington Law Sch. 1929-; clk. 1926-29, in War Dept., 1929-30; app. clk., temp., at \$1,440 in the Dept. of State Mar. 7, 1930; permanently Apr. 1, 1930; at \$1,620 July 1, 1930; at \$1,620 July 1, 1930; at \$1,800 Nov. 1, 1931.—A-C/C

Straight, Eugene.—b. Albany, N. Y., Dec. 8, 1866; attended public sch.; ranching 1884-1916; caretaker of horses in transit 1916-19; watchman, Treas. Dept., 1920-21; caretaker for invalid 1921-24; app. messenger at \$900 in the N. Y. Passport Agency of the Dept. of State Nov. 5, 1924; at \$1,020 Dec. 31, 1925, effective Jan. 1, 1926; at \$1,120 Jan. 1, 1927; at \$1,180 Jan. 1, 1928; at \$1,440 July 1, 1928; at \$1,500 Feb. 1, 1929; at \$1,560 May 1, 1930.

Straus, Jesse Isidor.—b. New York City June 25, 1872; Harvard, A. B. 1893; bank clk. 1893; connected with dept. stores 1893-1919; pres. of dept. store 1919-; app. A. E. and P. to France Mar. 17, 1933; married.

Streeper, Robert Bissell.—b. Columbus, Ohio, Feb. 18, 1899; high sch. grad.; attended business sch.; Ohio Univ. 1919-23; U. S. Army 1917-19, overseas service; transportation mgr., Near East Relief, Syria, 1922; foreign trade sec. for chamber of com, and mgr. of cooperative office of Bu. of For. and Domes. Com. 1923-24; app., after exam., v. c. of career of class three June 13, 1924; For. Ser. officer unclass. July 1, 1924; assigned to Canton July 31, 1924; to Tientsin Apr. 10, 1926; class eight, cons., and assigned to Tientsin Oct. 16, 1929; to Teheran July 9, 1931; sec. in the Diplo. Ser. Feb. 19, 1932; assigned also as 3d sec. at Teheran Feb. 26, 1932; as cons. at Nairobi Feb. 7, 1934; married.

Strother, Edmund Weyman (Comdr.)-b. Albany, Ga., Oct. 29, 1884; Univ. of the South and Univ. of Ga.; U.S.N.A., grad. 1908; assigned as naval att. at Buenos Aires and Montevideo Aug. 3, 1933; married.

Struttmann, Ernest Leo.—b. Rhineland, Mo., Oct. 29, 1907; high sch. and business sch. grad.; Univ. of Chicago 1929; bookkeeper and typist 1928-29; app. clk. at \$1,620 ln the Dept. of State Aug. 12, 1929; at \$1,740 July 1, 1930; at \$1,800 Feb. 1, 1931; married.—BA.

Sturgeon, Leo Dallas.—b. Pomona, Ill., July 19, 1896; high sch. grad.; Univ. of Nebr. one yr.; Northwestern Univ. Sch. of Com. one yr.; cml. work 1916-20; U. S. Army 1918-19; app., after exam., student interpreter in Japan Aug. 27, 1920; v. c. and interpreter at Yokohama Aug. 15, 1922; at Dairen Oct. 17, 1923; For. Ser. officer unclass. July 1, 1924; class eight Feb. 24, 1925; cons. Mar. 3, 1925; assigned to Dairen Mar. 18, 1925; class seven Sept. 29, 1927; assigned to Tokyo Mar. 3, 1928; class six July 24, 1930; to the Dept. June 20, 1934; married.

Sturgis, Hugh Legare.—b. Murray, Ky., Dec. 19, 1897; attended business sch.; George Washington, A. B. 1921, grad. work 1926–27; clk., Interstate Com. Commn., 1918; S. A. T. C. 1918; clk., Federal Trade Commn. 1918–19, Dept. of State 1920–25; newspaper reporter 1925–26; app. clk. at \$1,320 in the Dept. of State June 1, 1927; at \$1,680 Sept. 1, 1927; at \$1,800 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$1,860 July 1, 1928; at \$2,000 Feb. 1, 1929; at \$2,200 July 1, 1930.—FA.

Styles, Francis Holmes.—b. Lansdowne, Pa., Dec. 15, 1895; Washington and Lee Univ., A. B. 1918; Georgetown Sch. of For. Ser. 1919-20; surveyor's asst., Dept. of Agric., summers of 1913, 1914, 1916; U. S. Army 1918, 2d lt.; clk., Treas. Dept., 1919; app., after exam., cous. asst. May 20, 1920; v. c. of career of class three Nov. 17, 1921; assigned to Bordeaux May 16, 1922; class two Feb. 26, 1923; assigned to Loanda Nov. 20, 1923; class one Nov. 23, 1923; For. Ser. officer unclass. July 1, 1924; class eight and cons. Aug. 8, 1924; assigned to Cape Town Mar. 11, 1926; to Durban Apr. 20, 1926; to the Dept. May 11, 1928; to Cologne June 1, 1928 (canceled); to Antwerp June 27, 1928; class seven Oct. 16, 1929; assigned to Chihuahua Jan. 28, 1930; married.

Summerlin, George Thomas.—b. Rayville, La., Nov. 11, 1872; La. State Univ. and Agric. and Mech. Coll. 1889–92; U. S. M. A., grad. 1896; U. S. Army 1896– 1903, capt.; app. clk. in the Dept. of State, July 1, 1909; app. 2d sec. at Tokyo Apr. 7, 1910; at Peking July 6, 1911; sec. of leg. at Santiago, Chile, Feb. 11, 1914; sec. of emb. at Santiago, Chile, Aug. 7, 1914; sec. of emb. or leg. of class one by act approved Feb. 5, 1915; assigned to Mexico City Feb. 2, 1917; couns. of emb. at Mexico City Jan. 7, 1918; at Rome Mar. 5, 1924; For. Ser. officer of class one July 1, 1924; E. E. and M. P. to Honduras Mar. 12, 1925; to Venezuela Sept. 11, 1929.

Summers, Natalia Goraynoff (Mrs.)—b. Moscow, Russla; private tutors; app. clk., temp., at \$1,800 in the Dept. of State Oct. 15, 1918; permanently, under Ex. order, Dec. 11, 1920; at \$2,040 July 1, 1924; archivist Nov. 10, 1926; at \$2,400 Mar. 1, 1927; at \$2,600 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$2,800 July 1, 1930; chief, archives section.—HA.

Sundell, Charles Conrad.—b. Minneapolis, Minn., Dec. 30, 1906; Univ. of Minn. two yrs.; with rallway company one yr.; app. clk. in Am. Consulate at Chefoo Sept. 25, 1928; v. c. at Chefoo Mar. 9, 1929; at Amoy Sept. 26, 1931; married.

Sunderland, Margaret Coffey (Mrs.)—b. Nash, Va.; hlgh sch. grad.; attended business sch.; Va. Christian Coll, one term; Bu. of War Risk Insur. 1919; app. clk. at \$900 in the Dept. of State Dec. 29, 1919; at \$1,000 Oct. 1, 1921; at \$1,100 May 31, 1924, effective June 1; at \$1,380 July 1, 1924; at \$1,500 Dec. 1, 1927; at \$1,620 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$1,740 July 1, 1930.—TR.

Supplee, Constance Moon.—b. Del Ray, Va.; high sch. and business sch. grad.; typlst, Veterans' Bu., 1924-25; stenog. 1925-26; secretary. Feb.-Sept. 1929. in U. S. Engr. Office 1927-29, 1929-30; app. clk. at \$1.440 in the Dept. of State July 1, 1931; at \$1,620 Dec. 1, 1933.—LA.

Sussdorff, Louis, Jr.—b. Elmhurst, N. Y., Jan. 7, 1888; St. Paul's Sch. grad.; Harvard, A. B. 1910; Harvard Law Sch. 1910-13; asst. In bist. and govt., Harvard, 1911-12; app., after exam., 3d sec. of emb. at Paris May 22, 1914; sec. of emb. or leg. of class five by act approved Feb. 5, 1915; assigned to Rio de Janeiro Mar. 6, 1915; class four May 10, 1916; class three Aug. 3, 1916; assigned to Asunción July 5, 1917; to the Dept. Aug. 24, 1918; to Berne Apr. 4, 1919; to Helsingfors Jan. 15, 1921; class two Aug. 24, 1921; assigned to The Hague Sept. 27, 1921; For. Ser. officer of class four July 1, 1924; class three Sept. 20, 1924; assigned as 1st sec. at Tokyo May 1, 1925; at Riga, Kovno, and Tallinn Dec. 30, 1926; class two May 9, 1930; couns. of leg. at Riga, Kovno, and Tallinn May 26, 1930; at Bucharest Nov. 11, 1930; assigned to the Dept. Oct. 17, 1932; couns. of enb. at Brussels and Luxemburg Sept. 8, 1933; married.

Sutherland, Lucile M.—b. Elkton, S. Dak.; attended business sch.; State Univ. of Iowa, B. A. 1924; Univ. of Wis. 1926-27, summers 1925, 1927; teacher in high sch. 1924-29; app. clk., temp., at \$1,260 in the Dept. of State Feb. 11, 1931; permanently Aug. 10, 1931.—DCR.

Sutton, Margaret W. (Mrs.)-b. Washington, D. C.; attended public sch.; app. clk. at \$1,440 in the Dept. of State Oct. 4, 1930.-SS.

Swanson, Lloyd Allan.—b. Moline, Ill., Dec. 4, 1905; bigh sch. grad.; attended business sch.; Augustana Coll. 1927-28; National Univ. 1931-; stenog. 1925-26; app. clk. at \$1,440 in the Dept. of State June 3, 1930; at \$1,620 July 1, 1930.—DCR.

Swanson, Margaret Louise.—b. Warren, Pa.; high sch. grad.; bookkeeper-stenog. 1922-24; stenog. 1924-27; app. clk. at \$1,320 in the Dept. of State June 1, 1927; at \$1,440 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$1,500 July 1, 1928; at \$1,620 Nov. 1, 1928; at \$1,740 July 1, 1930; clk., 1st stage, Gen. Disarnament Conf., Geneva, 1932; at \$1.800 June 1, 1934.—CC.

Sweet, Florence Graham.—b. Arlington, Tenn.; attended high sch., normal sch., and business sch.; teacher in public sch.; stenog.; clk., War Dept., 1917-20; app. clk. at \$1,200 in the Dept. of State Oct. 7, 1920; at \$1,440 July 1, 1924; at \$1,500 Aug. 16, 1924; at \$1,560 Mar. 1, 1927; at \$1,680 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$1,740 July 1, 1928; at \$1,860 July 1, 1930.—LE.

^{††}Swenson, Laurits Selmer.—b. Nicollet Co., Minn., June 12, 1865; Luther Coll., A. B. 1886, A. M.; grad. work, Johns Hopkins Univ., 1886-87; principal, Luther Acad., 1888-97; mem. bd. of regents of Univ. of Minn. 1895-97; v. pres. of banks; app. E. E. and M. P. to Denmark Oct. 4, 1897; resigned Mar. 1905; app. E. E. and M. P. to Switzerland Dec. 21, 1909; to Norway Apr. 27, 1911; resigned Oct. 8, 1913; app. E. E. and M. P. to Norway Oct. 8, 1921; to the Netherlands Feb. 28, 1931; resigned Mar. 5, 1934.

Swift, Merritt.—b. Washington, D. C., Dec. 20, 1887; St. Luke's Sch. grad.; studied architecture; draftsman with firm of architects 1900–10; asst. sec. to v. gov., Philippine Is., 1911–12; asst. appralser, Bu. of Customs, Philippine Is., 1913–15; clk., Dept. of Com., 1916; app. clk. in Am. Leg. at Brussels Dec. 19, 1916; app., after exam., sec. of emb. or leg. of class four Sept. 5, 1919; assigned to Brussels Sept. 9, 1919; to Bogotá Mar. 25, 1920; to Vienna May 26, 1921; class three Aug. 24, 1921; assigned to Tirana Mar. 27, 1923; to Peking Feb. 27, 1924; For. Ser. officer of class six and assigned as 2d sec. at Peking July 1, 1924; class five Aug. 31, 1925; assigned to The Hague Oct. 24, 1927; to Vienna, temp., Jan. 23, 1930; class four May 9, 1930; to Stockholm Nov. 13, 1933.

Taft, Orray, Jr.—b. Providence, R. I., Feb. 21, 1909; Montezuma Sch. grad.; Univ. of Grenoble 1926; Stanford, A. B. 1931; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass., v. c. of career, and sec. in the Diplo. Ser. Dec. 17, 1931; assigned as v. c. at Guadalajara Jan. 20, 1932; at Mexico City Mar. 6, 1933; to the For. Ser. Sch. Apr. 22, 1933; to Warsaw Aug. 28, 1933; married.

Tait, George.—b. Amherst Co., Va., Aug. 14, 1893; Woodbury Forest Sch.; Univ. of Va. Law Sch. 1913-17; Georgetown Sch. of For. Ser.; L'École Libre des Sciences Politiques two yrs.; Univ. of Grenoble, France; mem. of bar of Va.; law practice 1917-18; U. S. Army 1918-19, 2d lt.; lecturer on consular practice, Georgetown Sch. of For. Ser., 1931-; app., after exam., v. c. of career of class three Oct. 6, 1923; assigned to Rio de Janeiro Nov. 19, 1923; For. Ser. officer unclass. July 1, 1924; assigned to Palermo July 3, 1925; to Algiers. temp., Mar. 5, 1927; to Malta, temp., May 4, 1927; to Rotterdam Oct. 22, 1927; to the Dept. July 12, 1930; class eight and cons. July 24, 1930; assigned as cons. at Paris Sept. 16, 1933; married.

Talbert, E. Dallas.—b. Washington, D. C., Jan. 27, 1909; high sch. grad.; studied accounting; messenger and clk. in auditor's office 1926-27, in General Accounting Office 1927-28; app. clk. at \$1,440 in the Dept. of State Dec. 27, 1928; at \$1,800 May 1, 1920; at \$1,920 July 1, 1930; at \$2,000 Dec. 1, 1930; married.—BA.

Talbott, Sheridan.—b. Bardstown, Ky., Sept. 29, 1889; Marquette High Sch., Coll., and Univ. 1906-11; Georgetown Sch. of For. Ser. 1921-23; cml. work 1911-16; U. S. Army 1916-20, 1st lt.; capt., O. R. C.; sec. to mem. of Cong. 1921-23; app., after exam., v. c. of career of class three Oct. 6, 1923; assigned to Habana Nov. 16, 1923; For. Ser. officer unclass. July 1, 1924; assigned to Nassau Dec. 19, 1924; to Habana Apr. 3, 1925; to Nueva Gerona Apr. 29, 1925; to Kobe Mar. 22, 1928; class eight, cons., and assigned to Kobe May 17, 1928; to Guayaquil May 5, 1930; class seven Feb. 4, 1931; assigned to Bluefields Feb. 5, 1931; to Frague Mar. 21, 1933.

Taliaferro, Charles Heistand.—b. Harrisonburg, Va., July 29, 1905; Washington and Lee Univ. 3 yrs.; app. clk. in Am. Consulate at Mazatlán Aug. 11, 1930; v. c. at Progress Apr. 29, 1931; at Mérida Nov. 6, 1933; married.

Tallant, Mary E. (Mrs.)-b. Alexandria, Va.; business high sch. grad.; clk. and sec. 1926-28; app. clk., temp., at \$1,320 in the Dept. of State Feb. 27, 1928; resigned July 31, 1928; app. permanently at \$1,440 Aug. 17, 1928; at \$1,620 July 1, 1930.-DCR.

Talley, Horace L.—b. Ballston, Va., May 31, 1909; high sch. grad.; messenger and clk., Gen. Accounting Office, 1926-30; app. clk. at \$1,620 in the Dept. of State Sept. 24, 1930; at \$1,800 Nov. 14, 1931; married.—BA.

Tanis, Richard Cornelius.—b. Holland, Mar. 21, 1877; naturalized 1899; attended business sch.; Heffley's Acad.; George Washington Unlv. one yr.; cml. employment 1890–1900; letter carrier 1901–7; app. clk. at \$1,000 in the Dept. of State Mar. 1, 1910; at \$1,200 Oct. 5, 1911; at \$1,400 Sept. 22, 1914; designated asst. chief, Division of Mexican Affairs, July 28, 1915; at \$1,500 June 22, 1916, effective July 1; special asst. at \$2,500 June 16, 1919; drafting officer July 1, 1919; at \$3,000 Jan. 16, 1922; at \$3,800 July 1, 1924; at \$4,200 May 1, 1925; at \$4,400 Feb. 1, 1926; at \$4,600 Nov. 1, 1927; at \$5,000 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$6,500 July 1, 1930; married.—ME.

Tattersall, Philip Kok.—b. Arnhem, Netherlands, Jan. 7, 1893; naturalized 1918; attended high sch. and private tutors in the Netherlands; business sch. grad.; sec. to Brit. and Netherland commr., San Francisco Exposition, 1914–16; mgr. Netherland exhibit, San Diego Exposition, 1916–17; U. S. Army 1917–19, overseas service; real estate business 1921–23; sales mgr. and for. corr. 1924–25; clk, in Am. Consulate at Guayaquil 1925–26; with oil company 1926–29; app. clk. in Am. Consulate at Guayaquil July 1, 1929; v. c. at Guayaquil Feb. 12, 1930; married.

Taylor, Allan Curtis.—b. Elmira, N. Y., Feb. 5, 1906; Harvard, A. B. 1928; Alliance Française 1928-29; teacher in high sch. 1929-30; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass., v. c. of career, and sec. in the Diplo. Ser. Dec. 16, 1930; assigned as v. c. at Ottawa, temp., Dec. 29, 1930; to the For. Ser. Sch. Mar. 17, 1932; to Port Elizabeth July 26, 1932; to Capetown June 20, 1934.

Taylor, Ancel Newel.—b. Ogden, Utah, June 17, 1908; high sch. grad.; George Washington Univ. two yrs.; studying accountancy; clk. 1924-26; clerical and cml. work 1926-27; app. clk. at \$1,140 in the Dept. of State Nov. 28, 1927; at \$1,260 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$1,320 July 1, 1928; at \$1,620 Aug. 1, 1928; at \$1,800 July 1, 1929; at \$1,920 July 1, 1930; married.—FA.

Taylor, Clifford C.—b. Loveland, Colo., May 15, 1895; Colo. Agric. Coll., B. S. 1917; Univ. of Wis., summer 1922; Iowa State Coll., M. S. 1923; Harvard, Ph. D. 1926; county agt., Colo., 1917-18; research asst., Dept. of Agric., 1918-20; farm management specialist, Univ. of Idaho, 1920-21; marketing research, Iowa State Coll., 1921-23; assoc. prof. and head of dept. of agric. economics, Va. Polytech. Inst., 1923-30; entered Bu. of Agric. Economics Nov. 15, 1930; app. agric. att. at Pretoria Dec. 16, 1930; married.

Taylor, Eli.--b. New York City, May 2, 1873; attended high sch. and prep. sch.; clk. 1888-92; law clk. 1892-93; newspaper work 1896-1910; N. Y. State Nat, Guard seven yrs.; app. dep. cons. gen. at Buenos Aires Oct. 4, 1910; v. and dep. cons. gen. at Buenos Aires June 18, 1913; v. c. at Buenos Aires Feb. 6, 1915; at Sydney, Australia, July 14, 1915; at Shanghai Feb. 27, 1919; at Mukden Dec. 15, 1921; at Dairen Sept. 18, 1923; at Mukden Nov. 22, 1923; at Dairen June 16, 1924; at Mukden July 12, 1924; at Acapulco Oct. 23, 1924; at Agnascalientes Mar. 27, 1926; at Zacatecas June 24, 1927 (canceled); at Progreso Oct. 10, 1929; at Cartagena Apr. 2, 1930; at Puerto Cabezas Nov. 21, 1931.

Taylor, Elmer Augustine.—b. Washington, D. C., Jan. 7, 1912; app. messenger in the Dept. of State July 1, 1931.—DCR.

Taylor, Eva Neel.—b. Danbury, Conn.; high sch. and business sch. grad.; George Washington Univ. 1930-31; clk.stenog. 1929-30, in Govt. depts. 1930-31; app. clk. at \$1,440 in the Dept. of State Nov. 23, 1931.—SS.

Taylor, John Wesley.—b. Washington, D. C., Apr. 14, 1910; app. messenger in the Dept. of State July 27, 1931.—DCR.

Taylor, Laurence Wilson.—b. Chicago, Ill., Feb. 8, 1896; Univ. of Calif., B. S. 1919; Univ. of Bordeaux 1919; U. S. Army 1917-19, overseas service; Univ. of Calif., agric. extension service, 1920, 1923-30; ranch mgr. 1920-23; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass., v. c. of career, and sec. in the Diplo. Ser. Dec. 16, 1930; assigned as v. c. at Vancouver Jan. 24, 1931; to the For. Ser. Sch. Feb. 10, 1933; to Copenhagen June 13, 1933; married.

Taylor, LeRoy.—b. Washington, D. C., Apr. 15, 1910; messenger, Dept. of Agric., 1928-30; app. asst. messenger in the Dept. of State July 23, 1930.—RP.

Taylor, Lillian Gorton (Mrs.)—b. Washington, D.C.; high sch. grad.; stenog.-clk. 1927-30; app. clk., temp., at \$1.440 in the Dept. of State Jan. 6, 1930; permanently Aug. 8, 1930; at \$1,620 Feb. 9, 1931.— SS.

Taylor, Robert Martin.—b. Los Angeles, Calif., Aug. 8, 1909; Univ. of Wash., B. A. 1930, M. A. 1931; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass., v. c. of career, and sec. in the Diplo. Ser. Dec. 17, 1931; assigned as v. c. at Mazatlán Jan. 6, 1932; at Mexico City Aug. 22, 1932; to the For. Ser. Sch. Apr. 22, 1933; to Hankow Aug. 28, 1933.

Teall, Girvan.—b. Little Falls, N. Y., Mar. 29, 1898; high sch. and St. John's Mil. Acad. grad.; art course 1917-18; Syracuse Univ., S. A. T. C., 1918; U. S. M. A. 1918; auditor, N. Y. State Income Tax Bu., 1918-21; clk. in Am. Consulate at Toronto 1921-24; app. v. c. at Toronto June 27, 1924; at Vlenna Mar. 25, 1926; clk., Conf. on Trade Restrictions and Prohibitions, Geneva, 1927; resigned Oct. 9, 1928; sales mgr. 1928-29; app. v. c. at Corinto Nov. 2, 1929; at Edmonton Dec. 16, 1932. Teller, Hugh Harlow.—b. Montague, Mich., Dec. 25, 1896; Georgetown Sch. of For. Ser., C. F. S. 1923; student asst., Dept. of Agric., 1915–16; topographic draftsman, U. S. Coast Guard, 1917–23; U. S. Army 1918–19; app. clk. in Am. Consulate at Stutigart June 23, 1924; v. c. at Stuttgart June 23, 1928; married.

Tennant, Robert Allan.—b. Maybole, Scotland. Jan. 14, 1867; Brit. subject; attended Ayr Acad.; steamship agt.; app. cons. agt. at Galway May 4, 1901; married.

Tennille, Clayborne.—b. Mount Meigs, Ala., Aug. 25, 1890; laborer and asst. messenger, Dept. of State, 1916–18; U. S. Army 1918; reapp. asst. messenger, temp., Dec. 4, 1918; permanently Jan. 7, 1919; messenger Apr. 1, 1922; head messenger Sept. 10, 1931.—S.

Terry, Charles Thaddeus.—b. San Remo, Italy, of Am. parents, Mar. 9, 1878; Allen's Sch.; Int. Sch., Milan, Italy; Wilson's Inst. and Cambridge Latin Sch.; Yale, B. A. 1901, M. A. 1910; teacher of English, Philippine Is., 1901-2; stage mgr. and actor 1902-10, 1912-14; sec. to Am. Min. at The Hague 1910-12; mem. of secretariat, Int. Opium Conf., The Hague, 1911-12; literary work 1914-17; British Army 1917-19; bank clk. in Italy 1920-26; app. clk. in Am. Consulate at Venice June 1, 1926; v. c. at Venice Jan. 21, 1929; married.

Tewell, Harold Strong.—b. Drayton, N. Dak., Jan. 7, 1892; high sch. grad.; Univ. of N. Dak. 1910-12; newspaper work 1910; bookkeeper and stenog. 1912; advertising 1913; dep. collector of customs 1913-18; immigration insp. 1918-20; app. v. c. at Winnipeg Feb. 6, 1920; app., after exam., v. c. of career of class three Oct. 26, 1921; assigned to Winnipeg Nov. 14, 1921; to North Bay Feb. 7, 1922; class two Feb. 26, 1923; class one Nov. 23, 1923; assigned to Vancouver Feb. 12, 1924; cons. of class seven June 3, 1924; For. Ser. officer of class eight July 1, 1924; assigned to Vancouver Mar. 5, 1925; class seven June 8, 1927; class six May 23, 1929; class five Feb. 27, 1931; to Habana Jan. 13, 1933; married.

Thain, Ann Marie.—b. Vancouver, B. C., Canada, of Am. parents; high sch. grad.; secretary 1928-31; app. clk. at \$1,440 in the Dept. of State July 25, 1931; at \$1,620 Jan. 22, 1934.—SS.

Thaw, Benjamin, Jr.—b. Pittsburgh, Pa., Dec. 11, 1888; Shady Side Acad., Westminster Sch., St. Paul's Sch.; Yale, Ph. B. 1909; Univ. of Tex, Law Dept., 1914; Univ. of Zürich 1914-15; mining 1907; railroad construction 1915; app., after exam., sec. of emb. or leg. of class four Aug. 7, 1916; assigned to Paris Aug. 10, 1916; class three July 13, 1917; assigned to Warsaw Nov. 15, 1920; class two Aug. 24, 1921; assigned to Brussels Aug. 8, 1922; to. Santiago July 23, 1923; For. Ser. officer of class four July 1, 1924; assigned a 1st sec. at Buenos

Aires July 17, 1924; to the Dept. Oct. 10, 1925; class three Dec. 17, 1925; asst. chief, Division of Latin American Affairs, Sept. 29, 1927; assigned as 1st sec. at Paris Dec. 26, 1929; class two May 9, 1930; assigned as 1st sec. at London Sept. 27, 1930; as couns. of leg. at Oslo Oct. 20, 1932; married.

Theaker, Anna R.—b. Charleston, Ill.; hlgh sch. grad.; attended summer sch.; teacher in public sch.; traveled five yrs.; clk., War Trade Bd., Zone Finance Office; app. clk., temp., at \$1,400 in the Dept. of State May 8, 1920; permanently at \$1,000 July 1, 1920; at \$1,200 Dec. 1, 1921; at \$1,500 July 1, 1924; at \$1,560 Mar. 1, 1927; at \$1,680 Oct. 1, 1927; at \$1,800 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$1,920 July 1, 1930.—DCR.

Thébaud, Leo Hewlett (Lt. Comdr.)—b. Madison, N.J., Feb. 15, 1890; attended sch. in England and Germany; Chestnut Hill Acad. grad.; U.S.N.A., grad. 1913; assigned as asst. naval att. at Paris, Madrid, and Lisbon July 13, 1933; married.

Thiel, Cyril Leo Francis.—b. Chicago, Ill., June 11, 1903; Loyola Prep. Sch. grad.; Holy Cross Coll. two yrs.; Georgetown Univ., A. B. 1924; Georgetown Sch. of For. Ser. two yrs.; London Univ. one yr.; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass. and v. c. of career Oct. 16, 1924; assigned to Calcutta Nov. 8, 1924; to Medan July 15, 1925; to Colombo May 1, 1926; to London Jan. 25, 1927; to Bristol, temp., June 21, 1927; to London Aug. 20, 1927; to Liverpool Jan. 3, 1929; class eight, cons., and assigned to Liverpool Dec. 19, 1929; to Jerusalem Oct. 22, 1931; to Helsingfors Jan. 22, 1934; sec. in the Diplo. Ser. Feb. 6, 1934; also 3d sec. at Helsingfors Feb. 20, 1934.

Thomas, Edgar.—b. Atlanta, Ga., Sept. 18, 1890; office apprentice, Bu. of Standards, 1908-16; app. asst. messenger in the Dept. of State Jan. 18, 1916.—PD.

Thomas, Edward John.—b. Cleveland, Ohlo, Aug. 15, 1911; high sch. grad.; Univ. of Cincinnati 1930-31; George Washington Univ. 1931-; library asst. 1929-30; cooperative student 1930-31; app. archive asst. at \$1,440 in the Dept. of State July 27, 1931.—HA.

Thomas, George Alonzo.—b. Atlanta, Ga., Sept. 8, 1895; U. S. Army 1918-19, overseas service; app. messenger, temp., in the Dept. of State May 10, 1919; asst. messenger, permanently, Nov. 28, 1919.—PD.

Thomas, George Samuel.—b. Cleveland, Ohio, Mar. 14, 1909; Otterbein Coll, 1928-30; George Washington Univ. 1930-32, Law Sch. 1932-; library asst. 1927-28; app. library asst. at \$1,440 in the Dept. of State Oct. 6, 1930; clk. at \$1,440 Nov. 1, 1933.—RP.

Thomason, Oscar.—b. Camden, N. J., July 21, 1865; attended high sch.; Univ. of Pa. 1893; teacher in public sch. 1895-1910; salesman for Am. firm at Nairobi, Brit. East Africa; app. v. c. at Nairobi Jan. 7, 1920; married. Thompson, Berry R. (Mrs.)—b. Marshall, Va.; high sch. and business sch. grad.; teacher in public sch. one yr.; app. clk. at \$1,000 in the Dept. of State Aug. 19, 1920; at \$1,100 Mar. 1, 1924; at \$1,200 May 31, 1924, effective June 1; at \$1,440 July 1, 1924; at \$1,500 Aug. 16, 1924; at \$1,560 Nov. 1, 1927; at \$1,680 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); resigned July 24, 1929; reapp. clk. at \$1,620 in the Dept. of State June 23, 1930.—DCR.

Thompson, Llewellyn E., Jr.—b. Las Animas, Colo., Aug. 24, 1904; Unlv. of Washington 1925–26; Univ. of Colo., B. A. 1928; accountant 1923–24, 1926, 1928; real estate 1928–29; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass. and v. c. of career Jan. 29, 1929; assigned to the For. Ser. Sch. Feb. 2, 1929; to Colombo Aug. 3, 1929; to Geneva Mar. 6, 1933.

Thompson, Milton Patterson.-b. Griffin, Ga., Oct. 8, 1904; Marion Inst., Marion, Ala., A. A. 1926; U. S. M. A. 1924-25; Georgetown Sch. of For. Ser., B. F. S. 1928; instructor in hist. and algebra, Marion Inst., 1925-26; lt., O. R. C.; clk., Special Committee of the Conf. on the Bolivian-Paraguayan Controversy and the Committee on Conciliation of the Int. Conf. of Am. States on Conciliation and Arbitration, Washington, 1928-29; sec. to U. S. commr., Commn. of Inquiry and Conciliation, Bolivia and Paraguay, and asst. sec. of Commn., Washington, 1929; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass. and v. c. of career Mar. 26, 1929; assigned to the For. Ser. Sch. May 1, 1929 (canceled); to the For. Ser. Sch. Sept. 30, 1929; to Mexico City July 1, 1930; to Mazatlán, temp., Jan. 29, 1931; to Mexico City Feb. 24, 1931; to Ottawa Dec. 20, 1932.

Thompson, Paul Dean.-b. Waitsburg, Wash., Apr. 26, 1888; attended business sch.; Univ. of Nebr., A. B. 1909; Univ. of Mich., M. A. 1910; Univ. of So. Calif. 1915-16; law clk. 1911-12; stenog. 1912-13; Philippine Civil Ser. 1913-14; stenog, and law clk. 1914-17; app. clk. at \$900 in the Dept. of State Aug. 3, 1917; v. c. at Valencia Aug. 14, 1917; at Tampico Oct. 5, 1918; at Corunna Aug. 30, 1919; app., after exam., v. c. of career of class three Sept. 27, 1919; assigned to Corunna Oct. 22, 1919; class two May 24, 1920; assigned to Barcelona Oct. 9, 1920; class one Nov. 17, 1921; resigned Jan. 1, 1922; mining 1922-23; clk. and interpreter 1923-24; real estate salesman 1924-25; app. v. c. at Cherbourg Aug. 8, 1925; at Tananarive June 10, 1926; at Paris June 21, 1928; at Lille, temp., June 20, 1929; at Paris Aug. 1, 1929; at Calais, temp., Oct. 30, 1929: at Paris Jan. 20, 1930; at Plymouth May 24, 1930; at St. Michael's Oct. 23, 1931; at Milan Feb. 20, 1933; married.

Thompson, Samuel Reid.—b. Media, Ill., Dec. 11, 1889; Univ. of Nebr. and Cooper Coll.; Univ. of Redlands, B. A. 1912; Calif. State Normal Sch. 1913; teacher in Philippine Is. 1913–15; app. clk. in Am. Consulate at Rosario Sept. 27, 1916; v. c. at Rosario Feb. 21, 1917; app., after exam., v. c. of career of class three Sept. 27, 1919; assigned to Rosario Oct. 22, 1919; class two May 24, 1920; assigned to Valparaiso Sept. 12, 1921; class one Nov. 17, 1921; cons. of class seven June 22, 1922; assigned to Concepción June 26, 1922; class six June 3, 1924; For. Ser. officer of class seven July 1, 1924; assigned to Bristol July 23, 1924; to Rio de Janeiro July 15, 1927; class six May 17, 1928; assigned to Valencia Aug. 18, 1930; class five July 1, 1931; married.

Thompson, Tyler.—b. Elmira, N. Y., Sept. 21, 1907; Kent Sch. grad.; Princeton, A. B. 1930; app. clk. in Am. Consulate at Cherbourg Aug. 6, 1931; v. c. at Cherbourg Sept. 5, 1931; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass., v. c. of career, and sec. in the Diplo. Ser. Dec. 17, 1931; assigned as v. c. at Cherbourg Jan. 2, 1932; to the For. Ser. Sch. Feb. 7, 1933; to Marseille June 13, 1933; married.

Thomson, Alfred Ray .-- b. Linden, Md., Jan. 16. 1889; high sch. grad.; George Washington Univ. 1908-10; Bradford Tech. Coll. 1925-26; asst. observer, U. S. Weather Bu., 1907-11; app., after exam., cons. asst. Mar. 10, 1911; dep. cons. gen. at Berlin Feb. 21, 1912; v. and dep. cons. gen. at Berlin Apr. 22, 1914; v. and dep. cons. at Saloniki July 1, 1914; v. c. at Belgrade Feb. 26, 1915; at Saloniki Mar. 20, 1915; detailed to the Dept. Nov. 13, 1916; cons. of class nine Apr. 19, 1917; detailed to Moscow July 19, 1917; class eight Sept. 14, 1917; to Odessa Feb. 8, 1918; to Irkutsk Mar. 21, 1918; class six Sept. 5, 1919; detailed to the Dept. Feb. 27, 1920; class five June 4, 1920; detailed to Charlottetown June 11, 1920; assigned to Zagreb July 1, 1920; class four Nov. 23, 1921; detailed to Copenhagen Aug. 18, 1922; assigned to Madras Aug. 3, 1923; For. Ser. officer of class five July 1, 1924; assigned to Bradford July 27, 1925; class four Dec. 19, 1929; to Manchester Dec. 23, 1929; married.

Thomson, Irving Lawrence.—b. Wauzeka, Wis., Feb. 12, 1897; Carleton Coll., B. A. 1920; Union Theological Sem. 1920–21, 1922–23; Columbia Univ. 1923; American Univ., grad. work, 1931–; library asst. 1918–28; pastor 1921–24; app. library asst. at \$2,000 in the Dept. of State Aug. 1, 1928; at \$2,600 May 15, 1930; married.—RP.

Thorne, William DuBois.—b. Trenton, N. J., Oct. 30, 1908; Peddie Sch. grad.; Princeton, A. B. 1931; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass., v. c. of career, and sec. in the Diplo. Ser. Dec. 17, 1931; assigned as v. c. at Mexico City Jan. 12, 1932; to the For. Ser. Sch. Nov. 29, 1932; to Medan Mar. 30, 1933.

Thurston, Walter C.—b. near Denver, Colo., Dec. 5, 1895; Staunton Mil. Acad.; private tutors; sec. to pres. of oil company in Mexico; clk. to Dept. representatives in Mexico 1914-15, 1916; in charge of Am. interests in Mexico City three months; app. clk. in Am. Leg. at Guatemala Mar. 26, 1917; special agt. of the Dept. in Guatemala Mar. 26, 1917; special agt. of the Dept. in Guatemala Dec. 22, 1917; app., after exam., sec. of emb. or leg. of class four May 3, 1918; assigned to Guatemala June 1, 1918; class three Mar. 14, 1919; assigned to the Dept. Jan. 5, 1920; unassigned Jan.-June, 1920; assigned to the Dept, June 14, 1920; to Berne July 19, 1920; to San José, Costa Rica, Nov. 16, 1920; to London Mar. 1,

1922; class two Sept. 22, 1922; assigned to Managua Jan. 31, 1923; For. Ser. officer of class four July 1, 1924; class three Feb. 24, 1925; also cons. July 15, 1925; assigned to São Paulo July 15, 1925; as 1st sec. at Lisbon Dec. 13, 1926; to the Dept. Nov. 28, 1927; sec. to Am. del., Sixth Int. Conf. of Am. States, Habana, 1928; sec., Int. Conf. of Am. States on Conciliation and Arbitration, Washington, 1928-29; sec. to Am. del., Pan American Trade-mark Conf., Washington, 1929; asst. chief, Division of Latin American Affairs, Apr. 17, 1929; class two July 24, 1930; chief, Division of Latin American Affairs, Oct. 11, 1930; representative of the Dept., Sixth Gen. Cong. of the Int. Chamber of Com., Washington, 1931; tech. adviser, Fourth Pan American Cml. Conf., Washington, 1931; assigned as couns. of emb. at Rio de Janeiro Oct. 7, 1931; couns. to Am. del., Seventh Int. Conf. of Am. States, Montevideo, 1933.

Tillett, Percy 0.—b. Fort Hunt, Va., Oct. 11, 1896; attended public sch. and business sch.; cml. employment 1913-17; app. clk., temp., at \$900 in the Dept. of State Sept. 4, 1917; at \$1,100 Mar. 1, 1918; at \$1,140 Feb 1, 1919; assigned as clk. in Am. Emb. at Paris Dec. 1, 1919; app. clk. at \$1,000 in the Dept. of State July 19, 1920; at \$1,200 Dec. 31, 1920, effective Jan. 1, 1921; at \$1,500 July 1, 1924; at \$1,560 Mar. 1, 1922; at \$1,620 Mar. 1, 1927; at \$1,740 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act).—DCR.

Tilton, Daniel Henry.—b. Washington, D. C., Apr. 1, 1899; high sch. grad.; in bank 1917-19; elk., Veterans' Bu, 1919-23; app. elk. at \$1,000 in the Dept. of State Jan. 9, 1923; at \$1,100 May 31, 1924, effective June 1; at \$1,500 July 1, 1924; at \$1,560 Nov. 1, 1927; at \$1,680 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$1,800 June 1, 1930; married.—DCR.

Timberlake, Clare Hayes.—b. Jackson, Mich., Oct. 29, 1907; Univ. of Mich., A. B. 1929; Harvard Grad. Sch. 1929–30; bank clk. 1925; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass., v. c. of career, and sec. in the Diplo. Ser. Dec. 16, 1930; assigned as v. c. at Toronto, temp., Dec. 29, 1930; to the For. Ser. Sch. Aug. 8, 1931; to Buenos Aires Dec. 10, 1931.

Timberman, Thomas Sherman (1st Lt.)--b. Jamesburg, N. J., Mar. 21, 1900; U. S. M. A., grad. 1923; assigned as language officer at Peiping Mar. 2, 1931; married.

Tittmann, Harold H., Jr.—b. St. Louis, Mo., Jan. 8, 1893; Taft Sch.; Yale, B. A. 1916; salesman 1916– 17; U. S. Army 1917–20, 1st lt.; app., after exam., sec. of emb. or leg. of class four Nov. 15, 1920; assigned to Paris May 26, 1921; class three Dec. 4, 1922; For. Ser. officer of class six July 1, 1924; assigned as 2d sec. at Rome Apr. 23, 1925; class five Aug. 31, 1925; class four July 24, 1930; alternate del., Third Int. Conf. on Private Aerial Law, Rome, 1933; married.

Tobin, Edward J.—*b.* Cairo, III., June 9, 1891; U. S. Army 1917-20; messenger, Census Bu., 1921; app. asst. messenger in the Dept. of State Jan. 29, 1921.—**T**R.

Toch, Leo.--b. Brooklyn, N. Y., Jan. 2, 1907; Syracuse Univ. 1927-29; New York Univ. 1929-30; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass., v. c. of career, and sec. in the Diplo. Ser. Dec. 16, 1930; assigned as v. c. at Vera Cruz, temp., Dec. 27, 1930; at Progreso, temp., Jan. 24, 1931; at Vera Cruz Mar. 4, 1931; at Habana Aug. 22, 1931; at Montreal July 2, 1932; to the For. Ser. Sch. Apr. 22, 1933; to Lourenço Marques Aug. 28, 1933.

Todd, Marguerite K.—b. Bastrop, La.; high sch. and business sch. grad.; La. State Normal Sch., grad. 1932; stenog. 1924-30; field worker, Emergency Relief Admin., 1932-34; app. clk., temp., at \$1,440 in the Dept. of State July 19, 1934.—FE.

Tolman, George Leighton.—b. New York City Oct. 4, 1894; attended business sch. and studied in Paris, Montreux, and Berlin; Columbia Univ., St. Lawrence Univ.; Univ. of Denver, LL. B. 1920; mem. of bar of Colo.; N. Y. Nat. Guard; app. v. c. at Prague June 27, 1921; at Bergen Apr. 5, 1923; at Helsingfors July 9, 1926; at Sarnia June 17, 1930; at Torronto May 10, 1933; married.

Tonner, John A.—b. Canton, Ohio, Oct. 8, 1867; high sch. grad.; attended business sch.; clk. nine yrs.; app. confidential clk., temp., at \$1,200 in the Dept. of State June 21, 1897; permanently, July 23, 1897; at \$1,600 Apr. 1, 1901; resigned Nov. 1, 1905; reapp. clk. at \$1,600 July 2, 1906; at \$1,800 June 1, 1909; chlef, Bu. of Rolls and Library, Nov. 30, 1909; special asst. at \$2,100 July 1, 1921; at \$2,400 July 1, 1924; research asst. Apr. 21, 1928; at \$2,500 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$2,600 July 1, 1930; at \$2,700 July 3, 1930 (Brookhart Act); married.— TD.

Tormey, Bernard Aye (1st Lt.)-b. Winona, Minn., Sept. 11, 1899; U.S.M.A., grad. 1923; assigned as language officer at Peiping May 9, 1932; married.

Totten, Ralph James .--- b. Nashville, Tenn., Oct. 1, 1877; Montgomery Bell Acad. grad.; attended business sch.; clk. 1896-98; cml. work 1899-1906; tutoring, writing, and illustrating 1907-8; D. C. and Tenn. Nat. Guards; app., after exam., cons. at Puerto Plata June 10, 1908; at Maracaibo Mar. 7, 1910; at Trieste Aug. 23, 1911; at Montevideo Sept. 18, 1913; cons. gen. at large Apr. 27, 1914; cons. gen. of class three Aug. 29, 1922; assigned to Barcelona Sept. 30, 1922; For. Ser. officer of class two July 1, 1924; class one Feb. 24, 1925; detailed to the Dept. May 27, 1925; mem. Ex. Committee of For. Ser. Personnel Bd. Mar. 14-Nov. 17, 1925; mem., Bd. of Review, For. Ser. Personnel, 1925, 1926; For. Ser. insp. Feb. 16, 1926; assigned as cons. gen. at Cape Town Apr. 3, 1926; also min, resident to the Union of South Africa Dec. 19, 1929; E. E. and M. P. to the Union of South Africa June 20, 1930.

Touchette, Joseph Irenee.—b. North Grosvenordale, Conn., May 13, 1896; private tutors; business sch. grad.; attended Hebron Acad.; accountant 1913-16; U. S. Army 1917-19; European representative of sales corp. 1920-21; app. clk. in Am. Consulate at Nancy Nov. 1, 1921; app., after exam., v. c. of career of class three Jan. 5, 1924; assigned to Nancy Jan. 16, 1924; For. Ser. officer unclass. July 1, 1924; assigned to Alexandria Mar. 11, 1925; to Algiers Sept. 3, 1929; married. Tower, Arthur Frederick.—b. Glidden, Iowa, July 27, 1899; Hamilton Coll., A. B. 1921; attended business sch.; U. S. Army 1918-19, 2d It.; insur. insp. 1922-23; app., after exam., cons. asst. Feb. 26, 1923; detailed to the Dept. Apr. 27, 1923; For. Ser. officer unclass. July 1, 1924; assigned to Port au Prince Mar. 25, 1925; to Warsaw Aug. 28, 1925; to Danzig, temp., June 28, 1926; to Warsaw Oct. 5, 1926; to Loanda June 28, 1928; to Léopoldville July 31, 1929; class eight, cons., and assigned to Léopoldville Oct. 16, 1929; unassigned from Aug. 26, 1930; assigned to Cali Nov. 11, 1930; class seven July 1, 1931; to Panama Nov. 9, 1931; to Cali Apr. 25, 1932; to Mexico City Feb. 7, 1933; sec. in the Diplo. Ser. June 27, 1934; married.

Travers, Howard Karl.—b. Central Valley, N. Y., Feb. 19, 1893; high sch. grad.; attended business sch.; studied accountancy; U. S. Sch. of Mil. Aeronautics, Princeton; paymaster and cashier 1914-17; U. S. Army 1917-18, 2d lt.; bookkeeper 1919; app. v. c. at Hull Aug. 13, 1919; at Naples Apr. 17, 1920; app., after exam., v. c. of career of class three May 25, 1921; assigned to Naples June 11, 1921; class two May 26, 1922; class one Feb. 26, 1923; cons. of class seven Dec. 19, 1923; For. Ser. officer of class eight July 1, 1924; class seven Oct. 20, 1926; assigned to Palermo Sept. 21, 1927; class six May 23, 1929; class five Feb. 4, 1931; assigned to Southampton Apr. 7, 1933; married.

*†*Tredwell, Roger Culver.—b. Brooklyn, N. Y., Jan. 12, 1885; St. Paul's Sch.; Yale, B. A. 1907; Univ. of Grenoble, summer 1908; in business 1907-9; app., after exam., cons. asst. Apr. 14, 1909; v. and dep. cons. gen. at Yokohama May 16, 1910; dep. cons. gen. at London Aug. 12, 1911; v. and dep. cons. at Burslem Sept. 8, 1911; dep. cons. gen. at London May 21, 1912; v. and dep. cons. gen. at Dresden May 31, 1912; assigned to duty at the Consulate General at London July 27, 1912; to the Dept. Oct. 14, 1912; cons. at Bristol Sept. 29, 1913; detailed to London Sept. 30, 1913; in charge at Amsterdam Mar.-May 1914; assigned to Leghorn Aug. 4, 1914; detailed to Naples Oct. 1914; cons. of class seven by act approved Feb. 5, 1915; class six Mar. 2. 1915; assigned to Turin Sept. 17, 1915; to Rome July 8, 1916; to the Dept. June 15, 1917; to Petrograd July 17, 1917; detailed to Vologda Feb. 1918; to Moscow Apr. 1918; to Tashkent May 1918; detailed to Am. Commn. to Negotiate Peace, Paris, 1919; class four Sept. 5, 1919; detailed to the Dept. Sept. 13, 1919; class three June 4, 1920; cons. gen. at large Nov. 23, 1921; cons. gen. of class three June 5, 1924; For. Ser. officer of class two July 1, 1924; assigned to Hong Kong June 16, 1925; to Sydney, N. S. W., Dec. 7, 1929; class one May 9, 1930; to Stockholm Nov. 16, 1931; to the Dept. Apr. 26, 1933; retired Jan. 31, 1934, under the provisions of the act of Feb. 23, 1931; marrled.

Trimble, William Cattell.—b. Baltimore, Md., May 2, 1907; Princeton, B. A. 1930; Johns Hopkins, Feb.-Apr. 1931; 2d lt., O. R. C.; app. clk. in Am. Consulate at Seville June 13, 1931; v. c. at Seville Sept. 4, 1931; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass., v. c. of career, and sec. in the Diplo. Ser. Dec. 17, 1931; assigned as v. c. at Seville Jan. 2, 1932; to the For. Ser. Sch. Aug. 1, 1932; to Buenos Aires Dec. 22, 1932; married.

Troutman, Harry Lamar.—b. Macon, Ga., July 22, 1892; high sch. grad.; clk. in cml. agency 1908-18; U. S. Naval Reserve Force 1918-19; app. v. c. at Milan July 9, 1919; app., after exam., v. c. of career of class three Feb. 26, 1923; assigned to Milan Mar. 2, 1923; to Messina July 21, 1923; to Budapest Dec. 13, 1923; class two May 10, 1924; For. Ser. officer unclass. July 1, 1924; class eight and cons. Aug. 31, 1925; assigned to Aleppo May 27, 1926; to Beirut May 29, 1928; to Jerusalem Aug. 28, 1929; to Beirut Oct. 17, 1929; class seven Dec. 19, 1929; assigned to Eucharest Jan. 3, 1931; class six July 1, 1931; to Salonika Mar. 6, 1933.

Trowbridge, Jones Rufus.—b. Blythe, Ga., Oct. 29, 1887; high sch. and business sch. grad.; Univ. of Ga.; with tobacco company 1909–10; with fruit companies in Nicaragua and Costa Rica 1910–17; U.S. Army 1917–19, 2d lt.; sec., Int. Y.M.C.A. in Siberia 1919–20; secretarial work, Rockefeller Foundation in China, and teacher in sch. in Japan 1920–22; clk., Am. High Commn., Constantinople, 1922–23; app. clk. in Am. Agency and Consulate General at Tangier June 11, 1924; in consulate at Leghorn June 6, 1925; v.c. at Leghorn Sept. 28, 1925; clk. in leg. at Teheran Oct. 20, 1927; v.c. at Rotterdam Dec. 5, 1930; at Maracaibo May 20, 1932; clk. in leg. at Bogotá Aug. 19, 1932; v.c. at Cartagena Oct. 4, 1933.

Trueblood, Edward Gatewood.—b. St. Louis, Mo., Aug. 31, 1905; Mercersburg Acad. grad.; Princeton, A. B. 1926; L'École Libre des Sciences Politiques, L'École des Langues Orientales, 1926–27; law clk. summer 1925; construction work in Alaska, summer 1926; in business 1927–28; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass. and v. c. of career May 17, 1928; assigned to the For. Ser. Sch. May 24, 1928; to La Paz Oct. 10, 1928; sec. in the Diplo. Ser. and assigned also as 3d sec. at La Paz Sept. 15, 1930; as 3d sec. at San José, Costa Rica, Apr. 29, 1931; married.

Tuck, Somerville Pinkney .- b. Staten Island, N. Y., May 31, 1891; attended sch. in Switzerland and Germany; Ridgefield Sch.; Dartmouth, A. B. 1913; U. S. Naval Reserve, lt. comdr.; app. dep. cons. at Alexandria Sept. 11, 1913; v. and dep. cons. May 25, 1914; v. c. by act approved Feb. 5, 1915; app., after exam., cons. asst. Aug. 30, 1916; cons. of class seven Sept. 5, 1919; detailed to Samsun Jan. 2, 1919; to Constantinople Jan. 14, 1921; to Paris Aug. 25, 1921; to Alexandria Sept. 20, 1921; class six Nov. 23, 1921; detailed to Cairo Feb. 2, 1922; assigned to Vladivostok Aug. 21, 1922; class five Mar. 1, 1923; detailed to the Dept. May 26, 1923; class four June 5, 1924; For. Ser. officer of class five July 1, 1924; assigned to Geneva Oct. 18, 1924; unofficial observer, Advisory Committee on Traffic in Opium, Geneva, 1925, 1926, 1927, 1928; Preparatory Commn. for the Disarmament Conf., Geneva, tech. asst. 1927, sec. to Am. representation 1927, 1928; sec. of Am. del., Int. Economic Conf., Geneva, 1927; asst. sec., Three-Power Conf. for the Limitation of Naval Armament, Geneva, 1927; class four June 30, 1927; sec., Conf. on Communications and Transit, Geneva, 1927; sec. to Am. del., Conf. for Abolition of Import and Export Prohibitions and Restrictions, Geneva, 1927, 1928; sec. in the Diplo. Ser. May 17, 1928; assigned as 1st sec. at Constantinople May 26, 1928; at Budapest May 17, 1929; class three Dec. 31, 1929; at Berne, temp., Aug. 21, 1931; assigned as 1st sec. at Paris June 21, 1932 (canceled); at Prague July 18, 1932; at Paris Feb. 25, 1933; tech. adviser, 1st stage, Gen. Disarmament Conf., Geneva, 1932;

Tuggle, Dorothy.—b. Christiansburg, Va.; high sch. grad.; Va. Polytech. Inst.; stenog. and sec. 1920-24; clk., Veterans' Bu., 1924; sec., Va. Polytech. Inst., 1924-28; app. clk. at \$1,320 in the Dept. of State June 20, 1928; at \$1,440 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$1,620 Jan. 1, 1929; at \$1,800 Sept. 1, 1929; at \$2,000 Feb. 20, 1930; at \$2,100 July 1, 1930; clk., Int. Radio Conf., Madrid, 1932.—A-C.

Turkel, Harry Raymond.—b. Cleveland, Ohio, July 7, 1906; Stanford, B. A. 1927; Harvard, A. M. 1928; Jesus Coll., Oxford, B. Litt. 1931; George Washington Law Sch., 1929–30, 1931–; U. S. Naval Reserves, ensign, 1930; clk. and sea post officer, U. S. Post Office, 1923–29; attaché to Am. del. and interpreter to Philippine del., Fostal Union Cong., Loudon, 1929; app. research and drafting asst. at \$2,600 in the Dept. of State July 19, 1929; at \$2,800 July 1, 1930; resigned Jan. 28, 1931; clk. in Am. Consulate General at London Jan.—May 1931; translator, Int. Tech. Consulting Committee on Radio Communications, Copenhagen, 1931; reapp. at \$2,800 in the Dept. of State July 7, 1931; tech. asst. (legal) June 10, 1932; married.—TD.

Turner, Effie Katherine.—b. St. Albans, W. Va.; attended high sch., private sch., and business sch.; app. clk., temp., at \$900 in the Dept. of State Aug. 7, 1914; permanently at \$900, under Ex. order, June 22, 1916, effective July 1; at \$1,000 Apr. 13, 1917; at \$1,200 Aug. 1, 1918; at \$1,440 July 1, 1924; at \$1,500 Mar. 1, 1927; at \$1,620 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$1,680 July 1, 1928; at \$1,800 July 1, 1930.—FA.

Turner, Mason.—b. New York City May 28, 1891; St. Paul's Sch. grad.; Williams Coll., A. B. 1915; with mfg. company 1915-17, 1919-23; U. S. Army 1917-19, 2d lt.; app., after exam., v. c. of career of class three Oct. 6, 1923; assigned to Colombo Nov. 19, 1923; For. Ser. officer unclass. July 1, 1924; class eight, cons., and assigned to Colombo Sept. 24, 1927; to Paris May 22, 1928; to Lyon, temp., Mar. 12, 1929; to Paris May 31, 1929; class seven May 9, 1930; to Malta Aug. 18, 1931; married.

Turner, William Taylor.—b. Kobe, Japan, of Am. parents, Sept. 20, 1900; Henderson-Brown Coll. grad.; Emory Univ., B. S. 1921; U. S. Army 1918; teacher in business sch. in Japan 1921–23; app., after exam., student interpreter in Japan Apr. 3, 1924; For. Ser. officer unclass. July 1, 1924; v. c. of career July 23, 1926; assigned to Yokohama Aug. 9, 1926; sec. in the Diplo. Ser. Dec. 16, 1929; assigned as 3d sec. at Tokyo Jan. 3, 1930; class eight and cons. July 24, 1930.

Tyler, Raymond.—b. Washington, D. C., Feb. 22, 1898; U. S. Army 1917-19, overseas service; app. chauffeur in the Dept. of State, Feb. 20, 1931.—MA.

Ulanytzky, Irene S.—b. Ukraine, Europe; high sch. and business sch. grad.; George Washington Univ. 1932-; secretary 1929; app. clk. at \$1,260 in the Dept. of State June 19, 1929; at \$1,440 Jan. 1, 1930; at \$1,620 July 1, 1930; clk., Seventh Int. Conf. of Am. States, Montevideo, 1933; at \$1,800 May 1, 1934.—DCR.

Underwood, Edna Marian.—b. Parkton, Md.; high sch. and business sch. grad.; Peabody Conservatory of Music 1919-24; Univ. of Md. 1923-24; stenog. 1917-30; app. clk. at \$1,440 in the Dept. of State Aug. 1, 1930; at \$1,620 Feb. 4, 1931.—SS.

Unverzagt, Henry Theodore.—b. Washington, D. C., June 14, 1904; high sch. grad.; Univ. of Va. 1923-24; George Washington Univ., summer 1924; app. clk. in Am. Consulate at Ciudad Juarez Feb. 14, 1927; at Nogales Aug. 19, 1929; app. v. c. at Nogales Sept. 11, 1930; at San Luis Potosí Dec. 18, 1931; married.

Upgren, Arthur Reinhold.—b. River Falls, Wis., Jan. 18, 1897; Univ. of Wis., B.A. 1920; Univ. of Minn., post grad. work 1923-25; U.S. Army 1918; credit analyst 1925-27; economist and officer, private firms, 1928-30; lecturer in business, Univ. of Minn., supervisor of banking clinic, and editor, 1930-33; research associate, Comm. of Inquiry on Nat. Policy in Int. Economic Relations, 1933-34; app. economic analyst, temp., at \$3,800 in the Dept. of State July 5, 1934; married.—A.-S/T.

Valenza, Thomas Francis.—b. Coney Island, N. Y., May 24, 1908; Emerson Inst.; clk., Civil Ser. Commn., 1925-28; app. clk. at \$1,320 in the Dept. of State May 7, 1928; at \$1,440 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$1,620 July 1, 1930; at \$1,800 May 1, 1934.—DCR.

Vallance, William Roy .-- b. Fowlerville, N. Y., Dec. 6, 1887; Univ. of Rochester, A. B. 1910; Harvard Law Sch. 1911-12; Columbia, LL.B. 1914; mem. of bars of N. Y. and D. C.; law practice 1910-17; corp. couns. 1917; U. S. Army 1917; app. law clk. at \$2,000 in the Dept. of State, under Ex. order, Jan. 8, 1918; at \$2,250 Aug. 7, 1918; legal drafting asst., temp., at \$2,500 Nov. 18, 1918; asst. solicitor May 24, 1919; at \$3,000 Dec. 31, 1919, effective Jan. 1, 1920; special asst. at \$3,500 June 1, 1920; asst. couns., Preliminary Conf. on Electrical Communications, Washington, 1920; drafting officer Apr. 16, 1921; at \$4,000 Dec. 30, 1922, effective Jan. 1, 1923; tech. expert, Conf. to Prevent Smuggling, Ottawa, 1923, Inter-American Committee on Electrical Communications, Mexico City, 1924; representative of the Dept. on the Interdepartmental Radio Advisory Committee Sept. 1, 1924-Nov. 13, 1930; at \$4,200 Nov. 1, 1924; del., Conf. to Prevent Smuggling of Narcotics, Liquor, and Tobacco, El Paso, 1925; at \$5,200 May 1, 1925; del., Conf. to draft regulations under treaty of June 6, 1924, with Canada to suppress smuggling across Canadian border, Washington, 1925; tech. adviser. Conf. to suppress smuggling of allens, narcotics, liquor, and commodities from Cuba, Habana, 1926; at \$5,600 Feb. 1, 1926; del., Conf. to draft regulations under treaty of Dec. 23, 1925, with Mexico to prevent smuggling, Washington, 1926, Conf. to suppress smuggling, London, 1926, Int. Radio Conf., Washington, 1927; at \$7,000 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); tech. adviser, Int. Telegraph Conf., Brussels, 1928; counsel, I^{m} Alone Arbitration, 1929-; asst. to the legal adviser July 1, 1931; chm., committee to study duplication of Govt. communication facilities, 1931; married.—LE.

Van Benschoten, Arnold Wheeler.—b. Providence, R. I., May 7, 1905; Norwich Univ. 1924—26; Dartmouth, B. S. 1928; Boston Univ., summer 1928; Harvard Grad. Sch. 1928—29; Univ. of Poitiers, summer 1929; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass., v. c. of career, and sec. in the Diplo. Ser. Dec. 16, 1930; assigned as v. c. at Halifax, temp., Dec. 29, 1930; to the For. Ser. Sch. Aug 8, 1931; to Dairen Dec. 10, 1931.

Vance, Marshall Mounts.—b. Middletown, Ohio, July 26, 1889; Ohio Wesleyan Univ. one yr.; Univ. of Pa., B. S. 1912; grad. work at Yale one yr.; N. Amer. Civic League for Immigrants 1913–14; with oil company in Java 1914–16; Detroit Bu. of Govt. Research 1917–18; int. trade developer in India 1918–20; foreign dept. of mfg. company 1920–21; app., after exam., cons. of class seven June 9, 1921; assigned to Colombo July 22, 1921; class six Mar. 1, 1923; detailed to Windsor, Ont., June 30, 1924; For. Ser. officer of class seven July 1, 1924; assigned to Fort William and Port Arthur Dec. 12, 1924; class six Feb. 24, 1925; assigned to the Dept. Mar. 27, 1922; class five July 24, 1930; to Windsor Mar. 28, 1932; married.

Van den Arend, Frederik.—b. The Hague, Netherlands, Oct. 5, 1594; Am. citizen; Kent Sch.; Harvard, A. B. 1917; with exporting and importing firm in U. S. and Madagascar 1919-22; app., after exam., v. c. of career of class three Oct. 6, 1923; assigned to Leipzig Nov. 19, 1923; For. Ser. officer unclass. July 1, 1924; class eight June 30, 1927; cons. and assigned to Leipzig July 16, 1927; to Pernambuco July 1, 1929; class seven July 24, 1930; to Amsterdam Dec. 29, 1932; 'married.

Van Valin, Forrest D.—b. Unionville, Pa., Oct. 15, 1879; attended public sch.; telegrapher, telegraph clk., auditor of telegraph and cable receipts, asst. chief telegrapher, chief telegrapher, War Dept., 1909– 22; app. clk. at \$1,200 in the Dept. of State Mar. 16, 1922; at \$1,400 Oct. 1, 1923; at \$1,680 July 1, 1924; representative, Sesquicentennial Exposition, Philadelphia, 1926; at \$1,860 June 1, 1927; at \$2,000 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$2,100 July 1, 1928; at \$2,300 July 1, 1930; married.—CC.

Van Wickel, Jesse Frederick.—b. Brooklyn, N. Y., June 11, 1890; attended high sch. and business sch.; code expert; traffic mgr., export mgr., purchasing agt., and branch mgr. in Shanghai for trading companies 1906-22; special representative in Cuha, Treas. Dept., 1923; app. trade commr. at Batavia Sept. 1, 1923; cml. att. at The Hagne Sept. 18, 1926; del., Fifth Int. Cong. for Scientific Management, Amsterdam, 1932; married.

Vaughan, Stephen Bernard.—b. Horatio, Pa., July 8, 1809; attended high sch. and business sch.; clk., War Dept., 1916-17; U. S. Army 1917-20; app. clk. in Am. Consulate General at Budapest Apr. 9, 1920; v. c. at Budapest Mar. 14, 1925; at Breslau Jan. 9, 1931; married.

Veatch, Roy.—b. Cottage Grove, Oreg., Jan. 12, 1901; Univ. of Oreg., B.A. 1922; Univ. of Calif., grad. work 1926-27; Brookings Instit., Ph.D. 1929; instr., Amer. Univ. of Beirut, Syria, 1922-25; instr., Princeton, 1930-31; research on the economic position of the Philippine Is. 1931-33; app. divisional asst. at \$3,200 in the Dept. of State Dec. 16, 1933; married.—EA.

Vestal, Ralph Adelma.—b. Frankton, Ind., Apr. 1, 1900; attended high sch. and business sch.; St. Albans Sch.; owner of newspaper stand 1921-24; clk., Alien Property Custodian, 1924-32; app. clk. at \$1,440 in the Dept. of State May 2, 1932.—DCR.

Villard, Henry Serrano.—b. New York City Mar. 30, 1900; Browning Sch.; Harvard, A. B. 1921; Magdalen Coll., Oxford, 1922-23; ambulance driver with Italian Army 1918; teacher, Thacher Sch., 1921-22; magazine and newspaper work 1923-25; real estate broker and publicity work 1926; private tutoring 1927; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass. and v. c. of career May 17, 1928; assigned to the For. Ser. Sch. May 24, 1928; to Teheran Sept. 7, 1929; to the Dept. June 4, 1931.—NE.

Vincelette, Leo Joseph.—b. Holyoke, Mass., Dec. 24, 1901; attended high sch.; St. Anne's Acad. grad.; U. S. Army one yr.; clk., Walter Reed Hospital, 1920-21; app. clk. at \$900 in the Dept. of State May 1, 1922; at \$1,000 Dec. 1, 1922; at \$1,100 May 31, 1924, effective June 1; at \$1,500 July 1, 1924; at \$1,620 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$1,680 July 1, 1928; at \$1,800 Dec. 4, 1931; clk., 1st stage, Gen. Disarmament Conf., Geneva, 1932; married.—DCR.

Vincent, John Carter.—b. Seneca, Kans., Aug. 19, 1900; Clemson Coll. 1919–20; Mercer Univ., A. B. 1923; U. S. Army 1918; real estate business; app. clk. in Am. Consulate at Changsha Apr. 4, 1924; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass., v. c. of career, and assigned to Changsha May 12, 1925; to Hankow. temp., Apr. 29, 1917; to Swatow, temp., May 28, 1927; to the For. Ser. Sch. Oct. 10, 1927; to Hankow Feb. 4, 1928; as language officer at Peiping Oct. 1. 1928; class eight and cons. Dec. 19, 1929; assigned to Tsinan Aug. 7, 1930; to Mukden Jau. 28, 1931; class seven July 1, 1931; to Nanking June 23, 1932; to Dairen Sept. 19, 1932; married.

Vipond, Benjamin Leslie.—b. in Canada, July 24, 1872; naturalized; attended high sch. and business sch.; studied accountancy, architecture, and engineer-

ing; purchasing agt., foreman, and accountant in cml, concerns; clk., Govt. depts., 1905-7, 1915-18; chief accountant, Govt. Printing Office, 1907-15; U. S. Army 1918-19, capt.; auditor, Treas. Dept., 1919-20; chief clk., Nat. Park Scr., Dept. of the Interior, 1920-23; app. drafting officer and asst. to budget officer at \$2,500 in the Dept. of State Nov. 1, 1923; at \$3,000 July 1, 1924; at \$3,200 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act), at \$3,400 July 1, 1930; married.---A-C.

Vogenitz, Hernan Cortez.—b. Newcomerstown, Ohlo, Feb. 22, 1890; attended high sch. and husiness sch.; in charge of shipping dept. of factory 1909-16; app. clk. in Am. Consulate General at Habana Jan. 1. 1917; v. c. at Habana Nov. 11, 1918; at Lisbon Mar. 2, 1921; at Oporto Nov. 25, 1922; at Lisbon Apr. 6, 1923; at Funchal Oct. 2, 1923; at Lisbon Mar. 24, 1924; at Progreso June 9, 1924; at Habana Sept. 29, 1928; at Barbados Apr. 5, 1930; at Moncton Feb. 17, 1931; married.

von Tresckow, Egmont Charles.—b. Mamaroneck, N. Y., June 18, 1872; private tutors; attended German sch. in Austria; Univ. of S. C., LL. B.; Univ. of Va., summer sch.; mem. of bar of S. C.; law practice 1900-16, 1919-21; journalistic work five yrs.; real estate development; S. C. Nat. Guard 1916, maj., Mexican border service; U. S. Army 1917-19, maj., overseas service; It. col., O. R. C.; app., after exam., cons. of class seven June 9, 1921; assigned to Arica July 21, 1921; class six June 3, 1924; For. Ser. officer of class seven July 1, 1924; assigned to Berlin Oct. 23, 1926; class six June 8, 1927; assigned to Rotterdam Feb. 7, 1929; class five July 24, 1930; to Zagreb May 10, 1932; married.

Vyse, William Clarke .- b. Babylon, N. Y., June 16, 1895; Clason Point Mil. Acad.; Randolph-Macon Acad.; U. S. N. A. 1912-14; George Washington Law Sch. 1917; Sch. of Aeronautics, Princeton, 1918; real estate salesman 1914-17; U. S. Army 1917-19, It.; asst. field director, Am. Red Cross, 1919; app. v. c. at Ottawa June 1, 1920; at Winnipeg Oct. 14, 1922; at Paris Dec. 20, 1923; at Algiers Mar. 9, 1925; at Habana Dec. 30, 1925; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass. and v. c. of career Apr. 15, 1926; assigned to Habana Apr. 17, 1926; to Nueva Gerona, temp., Nov. 8, 1926; to Habana Dec. 20, 1926; class eight and cons. Dec. 31, 1929; assigned to Habana Jan. 22, 1930; to Windsor Feb. 12, 1930; to Stuttgart Oct. 1, 1930; to Shanghai Nov. 20, 1931; married.

Waddell, Merlene (Mrs.)—b. Hickory, Miss.; high sch. grad.; attended business sch.; app. clk. at \$1,440 in the Dept. of State Aug. 13, 1928; at \$1,620 Mar. 1, 1929; stenog., Commn. for study and review of conditions in Haiti, 1930; at \$1,800 July 1, 1930.— SS.

Wadsworth, George.—b. Buffalo, N. Y., Apr. 3, 1893; Union Univ., E. E. 1914; instructor, American Univ., Beirut, Syria, 1914–17; app. clk. in Am. Consulate General at Beirut June 1916; v. c. at Nantes Nov. 19, 1917; at Constantinople July 9, 1919; app., after exam., v. c. of career of class three Sept. 27, 1919; assigned to Constantinople Oct. 22, 1919; to Sofia Apr. 24, 1920; class two May 24, 1920; assigned to Alexandria Sept. 25, 1920; to Constantinople Apr. 26, 1921; class one Nov. 17, 1921; cons. of class seven June 22, 1922; detailed to Cairo Aug. 21, 1922; class six Mar. 1, 1923; For. Ser. officer of class seven July 1, 1924; assigned to the Dept. Aug. 1, 1924; class six Feb. 24, 1925; class five Sept. 29, 1927; sec. in the Diplo. Scr. May 17, 1928; assigned as cons. and 1st sec. at Cairo May 24, 1928; class four Oct. 16, 1929; relieved of duties as cons. Oct. 1, 1930; assigned as 1st sec. at Teheran Dec. 31, 1930; class three July 1, 1931; 1st sec. at Bucharest Aug. 26, 1933.

Wadsworth, Julius.—b. New York City May 11, 1902; Fay Sch.; St. Mark's Sch. grad.; Univ. of Dijon, summer 1924; Harvard, A. B. 1926; studied in Tours and Paris 1926; studied Spanish in Mexico 1928; worked with Dr. Wilfred T. Grenfell in Labrador, summer 1923; 1st lt., O. R. C.; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass, and v. c. of career May 17, 1928; assigned to the For. Ser. Sch. May 25, 1928; to Caracas Nov. 3, 1928 (canceled); to La Guaira, temp., Jan. 19, 1929; to Caracas Feb. 1, 1929; as For. Ser. officer to the leg. at Panama June 26, 1930; to the leg. at Bogotá July 9, 1930; sec. in the Diplo. Ser. Aug. 16, 1930; assigned as 3d sec. at Bogotá Aug. 27, 1930; at Oslo June 18, 1931; as v.c. at Shanghai Dec. 22, 1933.

Wailes, Edward Thompson.—b. Brooklyn, N. Y., Feb. 16, 1903; Lawrenceville Sch. grad.; Princeton. B. S. 1925; Am. Bankers Inst. 1926; Columbia Law Sch. 1927; credit investigator for trust company 1925-26; real estate salcsman 1926-27; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass. and v. c. of career Oct. 16, 1929; assigned to the For. Ser. Sch. Oct. 21, 1920; to Shanghai Mar. 26, 1930; to Nanking Oct. 23, 1930; to the Dept. Apr. 1, 1933; married.—FE.

Wailes, Ruth Dorothy K. (Mrs.)—b. Dubuque, Iowa; attended bigh sch. and business sch.; stenog. 1917-18; app. clk., temp., at \$1,020 in the Dept. of State Aug. 10, 1918; at \$1,080 Sept. 1, 1918; at \$1,140 Nov. 1, 1918; at \$1,200 Feb. 1, 1920; permanently at \$1,000 Oct. 16, 1920; at \$1,200 Oct. 18, 1921; at \$1,400 Apr. 1, 1924; at \$1,680 July 1, 1924; at \$1,740 Mar. 1, 1927; at \$1,860 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$1,920 July 1, 1928; at \$2,100 July 1, 1930; clk., 1st stage, Gen. Disarmament Conf., Geneva, 1932.—DCR.

Walcavich, Walter G.—b. Jersey City, N. J., Apr. 10, 1900; high sch. grad.; attended business sch.; copy-puller, examiner's aid. and clk., Patent Office, 1930-31; app. clk. at \$1,440 in the Dept. of State Apr. 8, 1931.—DCR.

Waldron, Elma Vaughan.—b. New York City Nov. 18, 1885; attended public sch.; gen. office asst., bookkeeper, and engraver 1899-1918: sergt., Customs Intelligence Bu. of port of New York, 1918-19; app. clk. at \$1.200 in the N. Y. Passport Agency of the Dept. of State Aug. 26, 1919; at \$1,400 July 1, 1922; at \$1,680 July 1, 1924; at \$1,860 Dec. 31, 1925, effective Jan. 1, 1926; at \$1.960 Jan. 1, 1927; at \$2,100 July 1, 1928; at \$2,200 May 1, 1930; at \$2,300 Feb. 17, 1933.

Walker, Jay.—b. Washington, D. C., Aug. 2, 1895; Mount Royal Coll. two yrs.; Univ. Sch. one yr.; salesman 1916–17; U. S. Army 1917–20, capt.; with Am. Red Cross in Europe; app. clk. in Am. Consulate at Riga Dec. 4, 1920; v. c. at Riga Dec. 29, 1920; resigned Oct. 31, 1921; app. clk. at Kovno Nov. 1, 1921; v. c. at Kovno July 7, 1922; at Danzig May 5, 1924; at Maracaibo Dec. 24, 1925; at Niagara Falls Feb. 19, 1930; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass., v. c. of career, and sec. in the Diplo. Ser. July 26, 1930; at Bombay Oct. 22, 1930; at Tunis Oct. 3, 1931; married.

Walker, Ralph Carlyle.—b. Manassas, Va., Sept. 15, 1892; messenger, Am. Red Cross, 1914-17; asst. messenger, War Dept., 1917-22; app. asst. messenger in the Dept. of State July 17, 1922.—DCR.

Wallace, Victor Allison.—b. Ogden, Utah, Dec. 21, 1899; Utah Agric. Coll. and Northwestern Univ.; George Washington, LL. B. 1927; mem. of bar of D. C. and Utah; clk. to Senate Finance Committee 1925-27; legal examiner, Civil Ser. Commn., 1927-30; app. legal asst. at \$3,800 in the Dept. of State May 16, 1930; married.—TD.

Waller, Fred Elton.—b. Washington Co., Pa., Dec. 19, 1905; high sch. grad.; attended business sch.; Washington and Jefferson Coll.; George Washington Univ.; clk. 1924-26, 1928; app. clk. at \$1,440 in the Dept. of State Oct. 9, 1928; at \$1,620 Oct. 1, 1929; at \$1,740 July 1, 1930; at \$1,800 June 1, 1931; clk., Int. Monetary and Economic Conf., London, 1933; app. v. c. at Moscow Feb. 12, 1934.

Waller, George Platt .- b. Montgomery, Ala., Sept. 7, 1889; Marion Mil. Inst.; Univ. of Va. five yrs.; newspaper and magazine work; principal of high sch. 1912-13; app. v. and dep. cons. at Yarmouth Feb. 18, 1913; at Carlsbad July 7, 1914; v. c. at Carlsbad by act approved Feb. 5, 1915; at Athens July 14, 1915; at Patras May 16, 1916; at Athens Sept. 6, 1916; acting cml. att. at Athens May 15-23, 1917; app., after exam., v. c. of career of class three Sept. 27, 1919; assigned to Athens Oct. 22, 1919; resigned Dec. 4, 1919; reapp. v. c. of career of class three Sept. 15, 1920, and assigned to Kobe; class two Nov. 17, 1921; class one May 26, 1922; assigned to Bizerta June 15, 1922; to Ceiba Sept. 21, 1923; cons. of class seven Dec. 19, 1923; assigned to Ceiba Dec. 22, 1923; For. Ser. officer of class eight July 1, 1924; assigned to Dresden Apr. 22, 1926; class seven Dec. 19, 1929; sec. in the Diplo. Ser. Jan. 22, 1931; assigned as 2d sec. at Brussels and Luxembourg and cons. at Luxembourg Mar. 10, 1931.

Walmsley, Walter Newbold, Jr.—b. Philadelphia, Pa., Apr. 4, 1904; Gilman Country Sch. grad.; Rensselaer Polytech. Inst. 1922-24; steel analyst 1922; reporter 1924; jr. counselor at Chateau Neuvic Sch., France, 1925; app. clk. in Am. Consulate at São Paulo July 23, 1927; v. c. at São Paulo Feb. 29, 1928; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass.. v. c. of career, and assigned to São Paulo Mar. 26, 1920; to Aden Oct. 29, 1931; to Prague Mar. 22, 1933; married.

†Walsh, Harry Leo.—b. Baltimore, Md., May 19, 1886; attended high sch. and business sch.; mem. of bar of Tex.; stenog., Govt. depts., 1905-6, 1910-11, Isthmian Canal Commn. and railroad in Panama 1907-8, 1911-13; newspaper reporter 1908-10, 1913-18; app., after exam., cons. of class eight Feb. 5, 1918; assigned to Manzanilio Aug. 31, 1918; class seven Sept. 5, 1919; detailed to Nuevo Laredo Aug. 6, 1921; class six Nov. 23, 1921; assigned to Nuevo Laredo Oct. 2, 1923; For. Ser. officer of class seven July 1, 1924; class six June 30, 1927; assigned to Hamilton, Ont., June 29, 1928; to Moneton Apr. 4, 1930; resigned Aug. 18, 1933; married.

Walsh, Walter Michael.—b. Duquesne, Pa., Sept. 17, 1893; Univ. of Calif. 1920-21; Univ. of Colo., A. B. 1922; Georgetown Sch. of For. Ser. 1922-23; U. S. Army 1917-19; app. clk. in Am. Consulate at Danzig Dec. 10, 1924; at Hamburg Jan. 9, 1925; v. c. at Hamburg Nov. 24, 1925; resigned Oct. 24, 1927; app. v. c. at Windsor Aug. 9, 1929; at Prince Rupert Jan. 6, 1931; at Vancouver Feb. 20, 1933; married.

Ward, Angus Ivan.—b. Alvinston, Ont., Canada, July 19, 1893; naturalized; high sch. grad.; Valparaiso Univ. 1913-14; lumber engineer and salesman 1909-17; U. S. Army 1917-19, 1st lt.; with Am. Relief Admin. in Finland and Russia 1919-20; shipping and export business 1920-23; timber valuation engineer, Bu. of Internal Revenue, 1923-25; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass. Mar. 20, 1925; v. c. of career and assigned to Mukden Sept. 2, 1925; to Tientsin Oct. 14, 1926; class eight, cons., and assigned to Tientsin Dec. 19, 1929; to Moscow Feb. 10, 1934; sec. in the Diplo. Ser. Mar. 9, 1934; married.

Ward, Frank X .--- b. Philadelphia, Pa., Oct. 4, 1882; Georgetown Law Sch., LL. B. 1913; mem. of bar of D. C.; clk. 1896-1905, Isthmian Canal Commn. 1905-10, Dept. of State 1910-13; law clk. and court representative 1914-17; app. clk., temp., at \$1,200 in the Dept. of State Sept. 1, 1917; permanently at \$1,400 Apr. 16, 1918; at \$1,600 Dec. 31, 1919, effective Jan. 1, 1920; law clk. at \$2.000 July 1, 1920; at \$2,250 Feb. 16, 1921; at \$2,500 Sept. 16, 1922; asst. solicitor Dec. 30, 1922, effective Jan. 1, 1923; at \$3,000 July 1, 1924; asst. to the solicitor at \$3,200 May 1, 1925; at \$3,500 Feb. 1. 1926; at \$3,600 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$3,800 Oct. 1, 1928; tech. adviser, Pan American Trade-Mark Conf., Washington, 1929; at \$5,600 Apr. 1, 1930: asst. to the legal adviser July 1, 1931; married.-LE.

Ward, Robert Spencer,---b. Marysville, Brit. Columbia, of Am. parents, June 27, 1906; George Washington, A. B. 1927; clk. In Dept. of State Jan.-June 1925, 1926-29, in War Dept. 1925-26; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass. and v. c. of career Mar. 26, 1929; assigned to the For. Ser. Sch. July 1, 1929; to Tokyo Sept. 12, 1929 (canceled); to Canton Oct. 2, 1929; as language officer at Peiping Jan. 7, 1931; as v. c. at Tientsin July 26, 1933.

Warner, Betty T. (Mrs.)-b. Townshend, Vt.; Leland and Gray Sem. grad.; teacher in graded sch. 1908-12; clk. 1914-19; sec., publishing company, 1919-23; cml. work 1924-25, 1928-29; act. postmaster 1927-28; Veterans' Bu. 1929; app. clk. at \$1,440 in the Dept. of State Dec. 12, 1929; at \$1,500 July 1, 1930.-PD.

Warner, Carlos Julius.—b. Cleveland, Ohio, June 4, 1899; Harvard, A. B. 1921, LL. B. 1923; Univ. of Paris, Faculté de Droit, 1923–24; mem. of bar of N. Y.; S. A. T. C. 1918; law practice in U. S. and Germany 1924–25; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass. and v. c. of career May 17, 1928; assigned to the For. Ser. Sch. May 25, 1928; to Buenos Aires Nov. 3, 1928; sec. in the Diplo. Ser. June 1, 1931; assigned as 3d sec. at Bogotá June 13, 1931; also v. c. at Bogotá July 16, 1931; v. c. at Colón Jan. 2, 1934; at Panama, temp., May 25, 1934.

Warner, Gerald.—b. Boothwyn, I'a., Aug. 12, 1907; Dartmouth, B. S. 1928; sales corr. and market analyst for company 1928-30; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass., v. c. of career, and sec. in the Diplo. Ser. Dec. 16, 1930; assigned as v. c. at Windsor, temp., Dec. 29, 1930; to the For. Ser. Sch. Aug. 22, 1931; to Tientsin Dec. 10, 1931; to Mukden, temp., Mar. 22, 1934.

Warren, Avra Milvin.—b. Ilchester, Md., Aug. 26, 1803; Johns Hopkins, A. B. 1915; forestry work 1915-16; U. S. Army 1917-19, 2d lt., overseas service; with grain exporting company 1919-20; app., after exam., cons. of class seven June 4, 1920; assigned to Cape Haitien Aug. 2, 1920; class six Nov. 23, 1921; assigned to Karachi Dec. 27, 1921; class five Mar. 1, 1923; assigned to Nairobi Jan. 23, 1924; For. Ser. officer of class six July 1, 1924; class five Aug. 8, 1924; assigned to St. John's, N. F., June 10, 1926; to Buenos Aires May 6, 1930; class four May 9, 1930; cons. gen. and assigned to Buenos Aires Sept. 29, 1932; married.

Warren, Fletcher.--b. Wolfe City, Tex., Mar. 3, 1896; Univ. of Tex., A. B. 1921; U. S. Army 1918-19; supervisor of students in Tex. Sch. for Deaf 1921; app., after exam., v. c. of career of class three Oct. 26, 1921; assigned to Habana Dec. 14, 1921; class two Feb. 26, 1923; class one Nov. 23, 1923; For. Ser. officer unclass. July 1, 1924; class eight and cons. Aug. 8, 1924; detailed to the Dept. May 20, 1925; class seven May 17, 1928; assigned to Barranquilla Mar. 5, 1929; class six July 24, 1930; assigned to Budapest Mar. 13, 1931; married.

Warren, James Rudolph.—b. Washington, D. C., July 30, 1896; D. C. govt. three yrs.; chauffeur, War Dept., 1918-22; app. chauffeur in the Dept. of State Aug. 7, 1922.—S.

Warren, Janie B.-b. Pulaski, Ga.; attended business sch.; Ga. Normal Sch. grad.; teacher in public sch. 1926-28; app. clk., temp., at \$1,260 in the Dept. of State Apr. 29, 1929; permanently July 1, 1929; at \$1,440 Sept. 23, 1929; at \$1,620 Apr. 1, 1930; at \$1,740 July 1, 1930.—PC.

Warren, Robert Junius.—b. Washington, D. C., Dec. 17, 1889; app., temp., in the Dept. of State Oct. 30, 1917; asst. messenger, permanently, Feb. 1, 1921; messenger May 16, 1921; chauffeur July 1, 1921.— MA.

Washbourne, Frederick Lyttleton.—b. Brooklyn, N. Y., July 15, 1877; Brooklyn Polytech. Inst, 1893; Pratt Inst. 1896; chemist 1898-1990; salesman, salesmgr., and factory mgr. 1900-1910; executive and pres. of chemical importing and exporting company 1910-22; sales representative of German chemical works 1922-26; in Bu. of For. and Domes. Com. 1926-28; app. v. c. and clk. at Luxemburg Dec. 27, 1928; at Florence May 12, 1931; married.

Washington, Raoul Francisco.--b. Matanzas, Cuba, of Am. parents, Dec. 3, 1891; Anderson Coll., Savannah, Ga.; Cbandler's Coll., Habana; clk. and lumber salesman; app. clk. in Am. Consulate General at Habana Sept. 1, 1910; dep. cons. gen. at Habana Nov. 20, 1913; v. c. at Habana Feb. 6, 1915; resigned Feb. 1, 1920; lumber business 1920-21; reapp. clk. in Am. Consulate General at Habana June 8, 1921; v. c. at Habana Feb. 28, 1927; married.

Washington, Samuel Walter.—b. Charles Town, W. Va., Sept. 30, 1901; Va. Mil. Inst., A. B. 1921; Rhodes scholar, Oxford, B. A. (law) 1924, M. A. 1927; instructor in economics, Carnegie Inst. of Tech., 1924-26; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass. May 28, 1926; v. c. of career June 15, 1926; assigned to Buenos Aires Feb. 26, 1927; sec. in the Diplo. Ser. Nov. 12, 1929; assigned as 3d sec. at Rio de Janeiro Nov. 20, 1929; class eight and cons. May 9, 1930; assigned as 3d sec. at Tokyo Sept. 18, 1931; at Istanbul Oct. 27, 1933 (canceled); at Bogotá Mar. 31, 1934; married.

Washington, William Wilber.—b. Gordonsville, Va., Mar. 10, 1879; U. S. Army 1900-1926, 1st it.; app. messenger in the Dept. of State Nov. 16, 1928.— A-M.

Wasson, Thomas Campbell.—b. Great Falls, Mont., Feb. 8, 1896; N. J. State Agric. Coll. 1912-13; Cornell Univ. 1913-14; private tutors in Athens and Paris 1914-16; Melbourne Univ. 1925-29; representing mfg. company in France 1914-16, 1919-20; U. S. Army 1917-19, overseas service; plantation management 1920-24; app. clk. in Am. Consulate General at Melbourne Dec. 17, 1924; v. c. at Melbourne July 10, 1925; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass., v. c. of career July 5, 1927; to Adelaide, temp., June 20, 1929; to Puerto Cortes Oct. 10, 1930; to Naples Mar. 6, 1933.

Waterman, Bernice Luella.—b. Athens, Mich.; high sch. and business sch. grad.; Western State Teachers' Coll., Mich., summers 1914, 1915; George Washington, B. A. 1931. Law Sch., summer 1931; teacher in public sch. 1913-17; clk. 1917-18, in Veterans' Bu. 1918-23; stenog., Dept. of Agric., 1923-26; app. clk. at \$1,320 in the Dept. of State Mar. 17, 1926; at \$1,380 Mar. 1, 1927; at \$1,500 Aug. 1, 1927; at \$1,620 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$1,680 July 1, 1928; at \$1,800 Nov. 1, 1929; at \$1,920 July 1, 1930.—PD.

Waterman, Henry Samuel .--- b. Port Townsend, Wash., Mar. 20, 1882; Selborne Acad.; attended sch. in Germany and Switzerland; Mich. Coll. of Mines 1901-2; Univ. of Calif., B. S. 1903; mining engineer 1903-9; building contractor 1910-14; app. clk. in the Am. Consulate at Moscow Dec. 28, 1916; v. c. at Christiansand Feb. 6, 1918; at Guatemala June 5, 1919; app., after exam., v. c. of career of class three Sept. 27, 1919; assigned to Guatemala Oct. 21, 1919; to Corinto Nov. 3, 1919; cons. of class seven Apr. 9, 1920; assigned to Corinto Apr. 17, 1920; to San José July 20, 1921; class six Nov. 19, 1921; For. Ser. officer of class seven July 1, 1924; class six Feb. 24, 1925; assigned to Shanghal Mar. 6, 1926; to Saigon Mar. 12, 1928; class five July 24, 1930; to Breslau Oct. 26, 1932 (canceled); to Sheffield Mar. 6, 1933; married.

Watson, Hugh.—b. Birkenhead, England, Feb. 17, 1882; naturalized; attended high sch. and business sch. in England; messenger, clk., and v. c. in Am. Consulate at Liverpool, 1899-1920; purser 1920-23; app. v. c. at Liverpool May 18, 1923; married.

Watson, Hugh Hammond.—b. Bradford, Vt., Nov. 10, 1885; St. Johnsbury Acad. grad.; Univ. of Vt., A. B. 1906; app. clk. in Am. Consulate at Three Rivers Sept. 10, 1906; v. and dep. cons. at Three Rivers Dec. 28, 1907; v. and dep. cons. at Belfast Aug. 8, 1911; v. c. at Belfast by act approved Feb. 5, 1915; at Liverpool July 14, 1915; app., after exam., cons. of class eight Feb. 19, 1918; remained at Liverpool on detail; class six Sept. 5, 1919; assigned to Lille July 21, 1921; class five Nov. 23, 1921; assigned to Lyon May 17, 1922; class four Dec. 19, 1923; For. Ser. officer of class five July 1, 1924; class four Dec. 17, 1925; class three July 24, 1930; assigned to Sydney, N.S., Jan. 9, 1932; married.

Watson, Lillian Adelaide.—b. Philadelphia, Pa.; business high sch. grad.; stenog. 1917–18; app. clk., temp., at \$1,100 in the Dept. of State June 24, 1918; at \$1,140 July 1, 1918; at \$1,200 Sept. 1, 1918; permanently at \$1,000 Jan. 6, 1919; at \$1,200 Mar. 1, 1919; at \$1,400 July 1, 1921; at \$1,600 Feb. 1, 1924; at \$1,860 July 1, 1924; at \$1,920 Mar. 1, 1927; at \$2,400 June 1, 1927; admin. asst. bu. of the chief special agt., June 17, 1927; at \$2,600 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$2,700 July 1, 1928; stenog., London Naval Conf., 1930; at \$2,800 July 1, 1930.—ME.

Webb, Delmar Evans.—b. Washington, D. C., Feb. 16, 1907; high sch. grad.; Georgetown, B. Sc. 1933; messenger, Commn. of Fine Arts, 1926-27; clk., War Dept., 1927-28; app. clk. at \$1,440 in the Dept. of State Oct. 16, 1928; at \$1,620 July 1, 1930; at \$1,800 Mar. 24, 1932.—DCR.

Webber, Leroy.—b. Buffalo, N. Y., July 7, 1891; attended high sch.; private tutors in Scotland and

Italy; secretary several yrs.; app. clk. in Am. Consulate at Glasgow Feb. 10, 1913; v. and dep. cons. at Glasgow July 19, 1913; v. c. at Nottingham Feb. 20, 1915; at Palermo Jan. 3, 1920; app., after exam., v. c. of career of class three Oct. 1, 1920, and assigned to Palermo; class two Nov. 17, 1921; class one May 26, 1922; cons. of class seven Mar. 1, 1923; detailed to Hong Kong Mar. 5, 1923; For. Ser. officer of class eight July 1, 1924; assigned to Amoy Aug. 18, 1924; class seven Feb. 24, 1925; assigned to Chefoo Apr. 10, 1926; class six July 24, 1930; assigned to Shanghai, temp., Nov. 8, 1930; to Chefoo Aug. 8, 1931.

Webster, George J.—b. Washington, D.C., Nov. 4, 1909; attended business sch.; Emerson Inst. one yr.; George Washington Univ. 1932; clk. in the Dept. of Com. 1925-33 and in the Dept. of Agric. 1933-34; app. clk. at \$1,260 in the Dept. of State Mar. 10, 1934.—FA.

Weddell, Alexander Wilbourne.-b. Richmond, Va., Apr. 6, 1876; Reed's Sch. grad.; George Washington, LL. B. 1908; Univ. of Catania, Italy, 1913-14; Univ. of Lausanne, summer 1924; studied under tutors in Denmark, Zanzibar, Italy, Greece, India, and Mexico; secretary 1895-1904; Va. State Militia, 1st sergt.; clk., Library of Cong., 1904-7; private sec. to Min. to Denmark and clk. in Am. Leg. at Copenhagen 1908-10; app., after exam., cons. at Zanzibar Jan. 11, 1910; at Catania Aug. 22, 1912; cons. gen. at Athens Apr. 24, 1914; cons. gen. of class five Feb. 22, 1915, effective Feb. 5, 1915; assigned to Beirut Dec. 16, 1916, but did not proceed to post; detailed to Diplo. Agency at Cairo Feb. 6, 1917; assigned to Athens Apr. 10, 1917; U. S. del., Inter-Allied Cml. Bureau, Athens, 1917; del. of War Trade Bd. for Greece 1918; provisional U. S. del.; Inter-Allied Mil. Commn. for Greece, 1918; U. S. del., Inter-Allied Financial Commn., Athens, 1918; cml. adviser to Leg. in Athens, with diplo. rank, Aug. 1, 1919; cons. gen. of class four Sept. 5, 1919; assigned to Calcutta July 1, 1920; class three Nov. 19, 1921; assigned to Dept. Sept. 15, 1923; For. Ser. officer of class two July 1, 1924; assigned to Mexico City Aug. 1, 1924; class one Dec. 1, 1925; resigned Oct. 5, 1928; app. A. E. and P. to Argentina June 3, 1933; del., Seventh Int. Conf. of Am. States, Montevideo, 1933; married.

Weeks, John Andrew (Maj.)-b. Lexington, Miss., Feb. 17, 1890; Miss. Agric. and Mech. Coll., B. S. 1910; entered U. S. Army Dec. 1, 1916; assigned as mil. att. to Chile May 1, 1933.

Welch, Audrey M. (Mrs.)-b. LaCrosse, Wis.; attended high sch.; business sch. grad.; app. clk., temp., at \$1,440 in the Dept. of State Mar. 16, 1931; permanently, at \$1,260 Sept. 1, 1931; at \$1,440 Mar. 1, 1932.-SS.

Welch, Rae.—b. near Boyce, La.; high sch. and business sch. grad.; Bethany-Peniel Coll. 1923-25; studied accountancy and cml. law, Y.M.C.A. Sch., one yr.; bookkeeper and sec. 1922-26; clk. 1926-31; app. clk. at \$1,620 in the Dept. of State Apr. 27, 1931.—PD.

Welles, Sumner,-b, New York City Oct. 14, 1892: Groton Sch. grad.; Harvard, A. B. 1914; app., after exam., sec. of emb. or leg. of class five July 28, 1915, and assigned to Tokyo; class four May 10, 1916; class three July 13, 1917; assigned to Buenos Aires Aug. 1, 1917; class two Dec. 20, 1919; assigned to the Dept. of State May 25, 1920; asst. chief, Division of Latin American Affairs, June 3, 1920; acting chief Sept. 1, 1920; chief Aug. 24, 1921; resigned Mar. 15, 1922; commr. with rank of E.E. and M.P. to represent President in Dominican Republic July 1, 1922-July 13, 1925; del., with rank of E.E. and M.P., Conf. on Central American Affairs, Washington, 1922; personal rep. of President to offer mediation of U. S. Govt. to two contending factions in revolution in Honduras 1924; del., Central American Conf., Amapala, Honduras, 1924; mem., Dawes Financial Mission to Dominican Republic, 1929; app. asst. sec. of state Apr. 6, 1933; A. E. and P. to Cuba Apr. 24, 1933; asst. sec. of state Dec. 15, 1933; mem., Bd. of For. Ser. Personnel, Bd. of Examiners for the For. Ser., and For. Ser. Sch. Bd. Dec. 27, 1933-; married .---- W.

Wells, Dorothy Jeannette.—b. Columbia, S. C.; high sch. and business sch. grad.; stenog. to mem. of Cong. Apr.-July 1929; typist-clk. Ang.-Dec. 1929; app. clk., temp., at \$1,440 in the Dept. of State Dec. 20, 1929; permanently July 17, 1930; at \$1,620 July 21, 1931.—EA.

Wells, Edward.—b. Washington, D. C., Jan. 5, 1905; messenger, Dept. of State, 1920-25; reapp. messenger in the Dept. of State May 1, 1928.—SS.

Wells, Gladys.—b. Jefferson, Kans.; high sch. grad.; app. clk., temp., at \$1,260 in the Dept. of State Jan. 20, 1931; permanently June 1, 1931; at \$1,440 May 1, 1934.—DCR.

Wells, Henry Bartlett.—b. Plainfield, N. J., Sept. 4, 1908; Phillips Exeter grad.; Harvard, A. B. 1929; Caroline Univ., Prague, 1929–30; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass., v. c. of career, and sec. in the Diplo. Ser. Dec. 17, 1931; assigned as v. c. at Mexico City Jan. 12, 1932; to the For. Ser. Sch. Feb. 1, 1933; to Montevideo June 13, 1933.

Wells, John Brawden.—b. In N. C. July 19, 1892; bigh sch. and business sch. grad.; clk. 1910-14; app. clk., temp., at \$900 in the Dept. of State Nov. 29, 1915; permanently at \$1,000, under Ex. order, June 22, 1916, effective July 1; at \$1,200 May 11, 1917; at \$1,400 Sept. 8, 1921; at \$1,680 July 1, 1924; at \$1,800 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$1,920 July 1, 1930.—DCR.

Wells, Milton Kenneth.—b. Hilham, Tenn., Mar. 11, 1906; Univ. of Okla. 1924–26; George Washington, A. B. 1930; cashier 1926–27; clk. 1927–31; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass., v. c. of career, and sec. in the Diplo. Ser. Dec. 17, 1931; assigned to the Dept., temp., Jan. 9, 1932; as v. c. at Ensenada Sept. 16, 1932; to the For. Ser. Sch. Apr. 22, 1933; to Valencia Aug. 28, 1933; married.

Wells, Rodney Deane.—b. Pueblo, Colo., Oct. 17, 1896; high sch. grad.; attended business sch.; Colo. Agric. Coll. 1915-16; rodman, chainman, and engineer, Interstate Com. Commn. 1916-19; farm mgr. in Guatemala 1920-29; app. clk. in Am. Consulate General at Guatemala Oct. 10, 1930; v. c. at Guatemala July 10, 1931; married.

Welsh, Richard Declan.--b. Plymouth, Mass., Nov. 26, 1908; Georgetown, B. A. 1929; Georgetown Law Sch. 1929-; clk., Civil Ser. Commn., 1930-31; app. clk. at \$1,620 in the Dept. of State Mar. 18, 1931.---MA.

Wendelin, Eric Carl.—b. Milford, N. H., June 20, 1905; Brown, Ph. B. 1929, grad. work 1930-31; bank clk. 1923-24; research asst., World Peace Foundation, 1929-30; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass., v. c. of career, and sec. in the Diplo. Ser. Dec. 17, 1931; assigned as v. c. at Montreal Jan. 12, 1932; to the For. Ser. Sch. Nov. 29, 1932; to the Dept., temp., Mar. 30, 1933; to Ensenada May 31, 1933; to Habaua June 20, 1934; married.

Wenger, Aloysius .- b. Moerel, Switzerland, Apr. 3, 1868; naturalized 1898; attended sch. in Switzerland, France, and U. S.; Temple Law Sch.; Loyola Univ. (Immaculate Conception Coll.), New Orleans, Ph. D. 1896; teacher in high sch., mil. sch., and coll. 1891-1900; adjudicator, reviewer, and examiner, Bu. of Pensions, 1900-1907; app. clk. at \$1,200 in the Dept. of State Oct. 7, 1907; at \$1,400 Nov. 30, 1908, effective Jan. 1, 1909; translator, N. Atlantic Fisheries Arbitration, 1910; at \$1,600 June 27, 1911; at \$1,800 June 16, 1919; interpreter, Preliminary Int. Conf. on Electrical Communications, 1920; at \$2,100 July 1, 1924; at \$2,200 Mar. 1, 1927; economic analyst at \$2,400 Nov. 1, 1927; at \$2,600 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$2,800 July 1, 1930; married.-A-C/C.

Werfield, Viola.—b. Belle Plaine, Iowa; business sch. grad.; Coe Coll., B.M. 1920; clk. 1930; app. clk. at \$1,440 in the Dept. of State Dec. 17, 1930; at \$1,620 July 21, 1931.—SS.

Werlich, McCeney. -b. Cleveland, Ohio, June 26, 1892; attended sch. in U. S., France, and Germany; Mass, Inst. of Tech. 1911-15; tech. expert and foreign representative of mfg. company 1915-18, 1919-24; U. S. Army 1918-19, 2d lt., overseas service; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass. Sept. 22, 1925; v. c. of career May 20, 1926; asst. sec. gen., Preliminary Conf. on Oil Pollution of Navigable Waters, Washington, 1926; assigned to Riga May 25, 1926; sec. in the Diplo. Ser. Feb. 9, 1928; assigned as 3d sec. at Warsaw Feb. 15, 1928; class eight and cons. Dec. 19, 1929; assigned as 3d sec. at San José, Costa Rica, Mar. 10, 1931; at Monrovia June 3, 1933; also as cons. at Monrovia July 1, 1933; as 3d sec. at Paris Dec. 26, 1933; married.

West, Leland Stanford.—b. Richmond, Va., Sept. 10, 1888; Offlee of Public Bldgs. and Grounds three and one-half yrs.; app. asst. messenger in the Dept. of State Dec. 31, 1920, effective Jan. 1, 1921.—CR. Wharton, Clifton Reginald.—b. Baltimore, Md., May 11, 1899; Boston Univ., LL. B. 1920, LL. M. 1923; mem. of bar of Mass.; U. S. Army 1918; law practice 1920-24; physical instructor 1922-24; examiner, Veterans' Bu., 1924; app. law clk. at \$1,860 in the Dept. of State Aug. 16, 1924; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass. and sec. in the Diplo. Ser. Mar. 20, 1925; assigned as 3d sec. at Monrovia Mar. 21, 1925; v. c. of career Mar. 17, 1927; assigned also as v. c. at Monrovla Mar. 30, 1927; to the Dept. Dec. 5, 1929; class eight and cons. Dec. 19, 1929; assigned as cons. at Las Palmas June 27, 1930; married.

Wheeler, Post .--- b. Owego, N. Y., Aug. 6, 1869; attended Rugby; William Penn Charter Sch. grad.; Princeton, A. B. 1891, Litt. D. 1893; medical course, Univ. of Pa.; grad. work, Sorbonne, 1894-95; instructor in Eng., Princeton; newspaper corr. in Paris and Morocco; editor 1896-1900; mining in Alaska and U. S. two yrs.; author of univ. textbook and volumes of critiques and poems; col. and judge advocate gen. on staff of gov. of Wash.; app., after exam., 2d sec. at Tokyo July 21, 1906; sec. of emb. at Petrograd Dec. 21, 1909; at Rome Feb. 1, 1912; at Tokyo June 3, 1914; sec. of emb. or leg. of class one by act approved Feb. 5, 1915; assigned as couns. of emb. at Tokyo Mar. 26, 1917; en disponibilité 1918-19; couns. of leg. at Stockholm Jan. 18, 1919; couns. of emb. at London Mar. 2, 1921; on leave of absence from Feb. 20, 1924; For. Ser. officer of class one July 1, 1924; assigned as couns. of emb. at Madrid Apr. 2, 1925; on leave of absence from Dec. 11, 1925; assigned as couns. of emb. at Rio de Janeiro June 29, 1929; E. E. and M. P. to Paraguay Dec. 16, 1929; to Albania Aug. 26, 1933; married.

Whitcomb, Viola Letetia.—b. Hatfield, Mass.; business sch. grad.; typist 1925-26; bookkeeper 1928-30; stenog., Veterans' Bu., 1930-31; app. clk. at \$1,440 in the Dept. of State Feb. 25, 1931; at \$1,620 Jan. 22, 1934.—SS.

White, Curtis.—b. Washington, D.C., Aug. 2, 1911; app. messenger in the Dept. of State, temp., July 9, 1934.—A-S/T.

White, Duncan Murchison.—b. Durham, N. C., June 30, 1895; Univ. of Ga. 1915; rodman with rallroad 1913-15; U. S. Army 1917-19, 1st lt.; automobile salesman 1920-24; app. clk. in Am. Consulate at Leipzig June 25, 1924; v. c. at Leipzig May 23, 1925; at Surabaya Mar. 31, 1926; at Batavia, temp., Sept. 1, 1927; at Surabaya Nov. 23, 1927; at Prague July 14, 1928.

††White, Francis.—b. Baltimore, Md., Mar. 4, 1892; Gilman Sch., Pomfret Sch., Haverford Sch.; Yale, Ph. B. 1913; Univ. of Grenoble, Univ. of Paris, L'École Libre des Sciences Politiques, Univ. of Madrid, Real Escuela de Jurisprudencia y Legislación. Madrid, 1913–15; app., after exam., sec. of emb. or leg. of class five July 28, 1915, and assigned to Peking; class four Feb. 3, 1916; class three July 13, 1917; assigned to Teheran Jan. 30, 1918; to Habana Dec. 12, 1919; class two June 28, 1920; assigned to Buenos Aires Nov. 16, 1920; to the Dept. Mar. 1, 1922; designated act. chief, Division of Latin Am. Affairs, June 5, 1922; chief Apr. 14, 1923; class one Jan. 23, 1924; app. mem. of U. S.-Panama Commn. to negotiate an arrangement to take the place of the Taft Agreement Feb. 11, 1924; For. Ser. officer of class three July 1, 1924; class two Feb. 24, 1925; assigned as couns. of emb. at Paris Aug. 4, 1926; at Madrid Oct. 11, 1926; app. asst. sec. of state Feb. 26, 1927; counselor to Am. del., Sixth Int. Conf. of Am. States, Habana, 1928; chm. of Am. del., and of the conf., Pan American Trade-Mark Conf., Washington, 1929; del., Pan American Sess. of Sixth Int. Road Cong., Washington, 1930; mem., Bd. of Examiners for the For. Ser. Apr. 28, 1931; del., Fourth Pan American Cml. Conf., Washington, 1931; chm., Commn. of Neutrals, Bolivia-Paraguay dispute, 1929-33; resigned as asst. sec. of state July 2, 1933; app. E. E. and M. P. to Czechoslovakia June 13, 1933 (took oath July 3, 1933); resigned Nov. 30, 1933; married.

White, John Campbell.-b. London, England, of Am. parents, Mar. 17, 1884; Eton Coll.; Harvard, A. B. 1907; Harvard Law Sch. 1907-8; private sec. to Am. Amb. at Rome and Paris 1906-7; with newspapers 1909-13; app., after exam., 3d sec. at Mexico City Apr. 24, 1914 (canceled); sec. of leg. and cons. gen. at Santo Domingo May 22, 1914; sec. of emb. or leg. of class three by act approved Feb. 5, 1915; assigned to Petrograd Mar. 6, 1915; to Athens May 25, 1916; to Tokyo Dec. 28, 1917; to Bangkok as chargé May 10, 1918; to Warsaw Aug. 18, 1919; class two Dec. 20, 1919; to the Dept. as asst. chief, Division of Near Eastern Affairs, Oct. 16, 1920; to Caracas May 26, 1921; to Prague Feb. 26, 1923; class one May 3, 1924; assigned to Riga June 10, 1924; For. Ser. officer of class three July 1, 1924; class two and assigned as cons. of leg. at Riga Dec. 17, 1925; to the Dept. Dec. 13, 1926; as couns. of emb. at Buenos Aires June 11, 1928; class one July 24, 1930; at Berlin Aug. 29, 1933; married.

White, John Turner.—b. Washington, D. C., Aug. 18, 1902; Emerson Inst. grad.; George Washington Univ. 1922–26, Law Sch. 1926–29; National Univ., LL. B. 1930; mem. of bar of D. C.; clk., U. S. Shipping Bd., 1918–26, War Dept., 1926–31; app. law clk. at \$2,000 in the Dept. of State Oct. 12, 1931.—PD.

White, Louise.—b. Washington, D. C.; high sch. and business sch. grad.; stenog. and sec. 1927-28; app. clk. at \$1,320 in the Dept. of State June 6, 1928; at \$1,440 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$1,620 Jan. 1, 1929; at \$1,740 July 1, 1930; at \$2,000 Nov. 26, 1930.—CC.

White, Thomas Dresser (1st Lt.)—b. Walker, Minn., Aug. 6, 1901; St. John's Mil. Acad. grad.; U.S.M.A., grad. 1920; Georgetown Univ. Sch. of For. Ser. 1925-27; language officer at Peiping 1927-31; assigned as asst. mil. att. and asst. mil. att. for air at Moscow Jan. 29, 1934; married.

Whitehouse, Sheldon.—b. New York City Feb. 5, 1883; Farnborough Sch. and Eton Coll., England; Yale, B. A. 1905; New York Law Sch.; private sec. to Am. Amb. to Great Britain one yr.; app., after exam., sec. of leg. at Caracas Aug. 4, 1909; 2d sec. at Paris Mar. 2, 1911; detailed to Am. Emb. at Con-

stantinople Oct .- Dec. 1911; sec. of leg. at Managua Feb. 11, 1914 (canceled); sec. of leg. to Greece and Montenegro June 24, 1914; sec. of emb. or leg. of class three by act approved Feb. 5, 1915; assigned to Petrograd May 25, 1916; class two Aug. 3, 1916; assigned to Stockholm Jan. 8, 1918; class one Aug. 27, 1918; assigned as couns. of leg. at Stockholm Aug. 30, 1918; assigned to Paris Dec. 30, 1918; to the Dept. Oct. 18, 1919; unassigned Apr. 20-Nov. 2, 1920; assigned to the Dept. Nov. 3, 1920; as couns. of emb. at Paris Apr. 16, 1921; del., Sixth Gen. Conf. on Weights and Measures, Paris, 1921; For. Ser. officer of class one July 1, 1924; assigned as couns, of emb. at Madrid Mar. 15, 1928; E. E. and M. P. to Guatemala Dec. 16, 1929; to Colombia July 15, 1933; married.

Whiteman, Marjorle M.—b. Liberty Center, Ohio; Ohio Wesleyan Univ., B. A. 1920; Yale, LL. B. 1927, J. S. D. 1928; Carnegie fellow in int. law 1927-28; National Univ., M. P. L. 1931; mem. of bar of Ohio; teacher 1920-25; research assoc., Research Committee on Latin Amer., Columbia Univ., 1928-29; app. asst. to the solicitor, temp., at \$3,200 in the Dept. of State Dec. 2, 1929; research asst., Conf. for the Codification of Int. Law, The Hague, 1930; permanently July 1, 1931; asst. to the legal adviser at \$3,800 July 1, 1931.—LE.

Whitley, Franklin Langley (Lt. Col.)—b. St. Louis, Mo., June 26, 1884; U.S.M.A., grad. 1908; Univ. of Calif. 1913-14; George Washington Law Sch. 1919-20; mil. att. at Rio de Janeiro 1921-24; assigned as mil. att. at Belgrade, Athens, and Bucharest Feb. 11, 1933; married.

Whitmore, Anna Bruce.—b. Staunton, Va.; high sch. grad.; State Teachers Coll., Farmville, Va., 1928– 29; stenog., Nat. Advisory Com. for Aeronautics, 1929–30, Veterans' Bu., 1930–31; app. clk. at \$1,440 in the Dept. of State Feb. 24, 1931; at \$1,620 July 21, 1931.—SS.

Whitney, Arch B.—b. Bruce, S. Dak., Nov. 20, 1906; high sch. grad.; attended normal sch.; teacher in rural sch. 1924-29; clk. 1929-30; app. clk. at 3,620 in the Dept. of State Sept. 2, 1930.—BA.

Whitney, Ross L.—b. Pierre, S. Dak., Aug. 26, 1909; high sch. grad.; clk. 1929; app. clk., temp., at \$1,620 in the Dept. of State Dec. 27, 1929; resigned Aug. 31, 1930; clk., Veterans' Bu., Sept.–Nov. 1930; reapp. clk. at \$1,440 in the Dept. of State Nov. 15, 1930; at \$1,620 Nov. 2, 1931; at \$1,800 Dec. 26, 1933; married.—BA.

Whitt, John Sidney.—b. Washington, D. C., Aug. 24, 1899; attended public sch.; National Univ. Law Sch.; U. S. Navy 1916-20; telegraph operator 1922-27; app. clk. at \$1,680 in the Dept. of State Mar. 25, 1927; at \$1,800 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$1,860 July 1, 1928; at \$1,980 July 1, 1930; married.—DCR.

Whittington, William Vallie.—b. Benton, Ill., Dec. 10, 1904; Georgetown, LL. B. 1928; mem. of bar of D. C. and Ill.; clk. 1922-23; sec. in law office 1923; newspaper reporter 1927; law practice 1928-31; app. clk. at \$000 in the Dept. of State Feb. 11, 1924; at \$1,000 May 31, 1924, effective June 1; at \$1,320 July 1, 1924; at \$1,500 Oct. 1, 1926; at \$1,620 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$1,680 July 1, 1928; at \$1,800 July 1, 1930; legal asst. at \$2,000 Oct. 1, 1930.—TD.

Whyte, Neil.—b. Greenock, Scotland, Mar. 7, 1887; Brit. subject; high sch. grad.; Holmscroft Sch. grad.; clk. 1905-11, in nitrate agencies in Chile 1911-30; admin. for company in Salaverry 1930; app. cons. agt. at Salaverry June 16, 1930.

Widmer, Louis Ludwig.—b. Washington, D. C., Sept. 19, 1899; attended high sch.; business sch. grad.; studied in Paris; bookkeeper 1918-19; clk. with War Dept. abroad 1919-22; bookkeeper-accountant 1922-28; app. clk. at \$1,620 in the Dept. of State Jan. 1, 1929; resigned June 30, 1929; auditor clk., Civil Ser. Commu., 1929-30; app. clk. at \$2,000 in the Dept. of State Apr. 1, 1930; at \$2,100 July 1, 1930; married.—BA.

Wilcox, Albena Marie (Mrs.)-b. Pittsfield, Mass.; attended high sch. and business sch.; bookkeeper and stenog. 1914-17; stenog., Govt. depts., 1917-26; app. clk. at \$1,320 in the Dept. of State Sept. 14, 1926; at \$1,500 Sept. 1, 1927; at \$1,620 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$1,680 July 1, 1928; at \$1,800 Oct. 1, 1928; at \$1,920 July 1, 1930; clk., 1st stage, Gen. Disarmament Conf., Geneva, 1932.-WE.

Wiley, John Cooper.-b. Bordeaux, France, of Am. parents, Sept. 26, 1893; private tutors; Union Coll. one yr.; Georgetown Law Sch. one and one-half yrs.; app. clk. in Am. Emb. at Paris July 30, 1915; app., after exam., sec. of emb. or leg. of class five May 17, 1916; assigned to Paris June 13, 1916; class four Aug. 3, 1916; class three July 13, 1917; assigned to The Hague Jan. 30, 1918; to Santiago Dec. 12, 1919; to Buenos Aires Apr. 10, 1920; to Caracas July 24, 1920; to the Dept. Feb. 17, 1921; class two Aug. 24, 1921; assigned to Copenhagen Oct. 20, 1921; to Madrid Sept. 7, 1922; to Lima Sept. 1, 1923; For. Ser. officer of class four and assigned as 1st sec. at Lima July 1, 1924; at Berlin Jan. 7, 1926; at Copenhagen, temp., May 1, 1926; class three June 2, 1926; assigned to Berlin July 22, 1926; couns. of leg. at Managua Sept. 28, 1928 (canceled); 1st sec. at Warsaw Apr. 10, 1930; class two May 9, 1930; couns. of emb. at Warsaw May 26, 1930; at Berlin, temp., Dec. 22, 1931; at Warsaw May 26, 1932; at Madrid June 1, 1932; assigned to the Dept. Feb. 16, 1933; asst. to Am. del., Int. Monetary and Economic Conf., London, 1933; assigned as couns. of emb. at Moscow Feb. 10, 1934; cons. gen. Mar. 9, 1934; married.

Wiley, Samuel Hamilton.—b. London, England, of Am. parents, June 19, 1888; Trinity Park Sch.; attended business sch.; Univ. of N. C., LL. B. 1912; mem. of bar of N. C.; mining in Mexico 1905-6. 1908; law practice 1912-14; app., after exam., cons. at Asunción Apr. 27, 1914; cons. of class nine by act approved Feb. 5, 1915; class eight Mar. 2, 1915; assigned to St. Pierre-Miquelon Oct. 27, 1916; to Oporto Aug. 31, 1918; class seven Nov. 19, 1921; For. Scr. officer of class eight July 1, 1924; class seven Mar. 20, 1925; assigned to Vigo June 22, 1925; to Oporto July 11, 1925; to Cherbourg Nov. 20, 1925; class six Dec. 19, 1929; to Naples July 31, 1931; to Havre June 28, 1933; married.

Wilkerson, William Scott.—b. Marion, Ind., Feb. 7, 1888; attended high sch.; telegraph operator and agt. 1907-17, 1919-20; U. S. Naval Reserve Force 1917-19; clk. and auditor, Gen. Accounting Office 1920-30; app. clk. at \$2,000 in the Dept. of State May 7, 1930; at \$2,100 July 1, 1930; at \$2,200 July 3, 1930 (Brookhart Act); married.—BA.

Wilkinson, James Richard.—b. Greenville, S. C., Aug. 19, 1893; Davidson Coll., B. S. 1915; Univ. of Wis., LL. B. 1919; mem. of bar of Wis.; U. S. Army 1918-19; 2d lt., O. R. C.; law clk. and law practice 1919-20; instructor, extension division, Univ. of Wis., 1919-20; U. S. Internal Revenue Ser. 1920-21; app., after exam., v. c. of career of class three May 25, 1921; assigned to Havre July 21, 1921; to Zürich Jan. 30, 1922; class two May 26, 1922; class one Feb. 26, 1923; cons. of class seven Dec. 19, 1923; For. Ser. officer of class eight July 1, 1924; class seven Oct. 20, 1926; assigned to Helsingfors May 12, 1927; class six Dec. 19, 1929; to Habana Nov. 6, 1930; to the Dept. Oct. 19, 1932; to Leghorn Jan. 6, 1034; married.

Will, Marvin Wilbur.—b. Mount Jackson, Va., Apr. 10, 1889; attended public sch. and business sch.; teacher in public sch. 1907-10; clk. in Govt. depts. 1910-13; app. clk. at \$900 in the Dept. of State Dec. 18, 1913; at \$1,000 Oct. 5, 1914, effective Oct. 7; at \$1,200 June 22, 1916, effective July 1; at \$1,400 Dec. 1, 1917; at \$1,600 Aug. 1, 1918; at \$1,800 Mar. 1, 1921; drafting officer at \$2,500 June 17, 1921, effective July 1; at \$2,800 July 1, 1924; asst. to the chief clk. and admin. asst. Mar. 25, 1927; admin. asst. Oct. 18, 1927; at \$2,900 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$3,000 July 1, 1930; at \$3,100 July 3, 1930 (Brookhart Act); private sec. to asst. sec. of state Oct. 1, 1931-May 1, 1933; married.—FP.

Willey, John Alfred.—b. Napa, Calif., Jan. 9, 1879; high sch. grad.; Pacific Grove Acad. Prep. Sch.; civil engineer 1899–1905; railroad survey and exploration in Nicaragua 1905–8; mine engineer, gen. contractor, and operator 1908–14; chief engineer and supt. of railroad 1914–17; mine mgr., operator, and owner 1917–26; dir. gen. of highways for Nicaragua 1926– 29; app. act. cons. agt. at Matagalpa Apr. 22, 1928; cons. agt. at Matagalpa Sept. 13, 1929; married.

Williams, Arthur Rheaume.—b. Denver, Colo., Nov. 12, 1892; Univ. of Colo. two yrs.; Univ. of Pa., B. S. 1921; cashier 1914-17; U. S. Army 1917-19; app. clk. in Am. Consulate at La Guaira Nov. 22, 1921; v. c. at La Guaira Apr. 24, 1922; at Caracas June 22, 1922; at Moncton June 7, 1927; at Nuevo Laredo Dec. 21, 1929; at Saltillo, temp., Dec. 23, 1931; at Nuevo Laredo Mar. 1, 1932; married. Williams, Bertram E.—b. Purdy, Mo., Dec. 22, 1900; high sch. and business sch. grad.; studied under private tutor; with railway 1919; U. S. Marine Corps 1919-21; asst. postmaster 1922-23; with oil firm 1924-26; clk. 1928; employed by airplane factory 1928; patrol insp., U. S. Immigration Border Patrol, 1928-30; app. clk. at \$1,620 in the Dept. of State June 3, 1930.—MA.

Williams, Dorothy Shull (Mrs.)-b. Helena, Ark.; high sch. grad.; stenog. 1928-31; app. clk., temp., at \$1,260 in the Dept. of State Feb. 24, 1931; permanently, at \$1,440 Mar. 25, 1931.-SS.

Williams, Frank Starr.—b. Fannin, Miss., Oct. 11, 1888; Millsaps Coll., B.S. 1910; teacher in high sch. 1910–11; prof. of chem., Canton Christian Coll., China, 1911–14; prof. of Eng., Soochow Univ., China, 1914–18; mgr. of Am. business firms in China 1918–27; registrar of China Trade Act at Shanghai under Bu. of For. and Domes. Com. 1927–30; cml. att. at Bangkok 1930–31; trade commr. at Singapore 1931–33; cml. att. at Tokyo July 18, 1933; married.

Williams, Herbert Oswald.—b. Columbus, Ohio, June 30, 1873; Ohio Univ., A. B. 1894, A. M. 1900; Bethany Coll., A. M. 1895; grad. work at Univ. of Nebr. and Calif.; teacher in high sch. and coll. 1895–1906; principal of high sch. 1906–20; French Army Y. M. C. A. 1918–19; app., after exam., cons. of class seven June 4, 1920; detailed to the Dept. Sept. 22, 1920; assigned to Brest Dec. 27, 1921; detailed to Havre Oct. 6, 1922; class six Mar. 1, 1923; assigned to Brussels Oct. 11, 1923; For. Ser. officer of class seven July 1, 1924; assigned to Liverpool Aug. 19, 1925; to Panama Jan. 3, 1929; class six May 23, 1929; to Veracruz July 25, 1933; married.

Williams, Jack S.—b. Lynchburg, Va., Jan. 22, 1901; Emerson Inst.; Clemson Agric. and Mech. Coll., B.S. 1923; supt. of building company 1923–25; mgr. of contract dept. of real estate firm 1925–28; owner of building business 1929–30; supervisor of construction, For. Ser. Bldgs. Office, Dept. of State, 1930–33; app. supt. of building, Paris, July 22, 1933; married.

Williams, William G.—b. New London, Conn., Apr. 27, 1871; app., temp., in the Dept. of State Aug. 8, 1918; asst. messenger, permanently, Oct. 14, 1918.— VD.

Williamson, David.—b. Nutley, N. J., Feb. 8, 1896; St. Mark's Sch.; Princeton, A. B. 1919; U. S. Navy 1917-18, ensign; broker's office 1919-21; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass. Mar. 20, 1925; v. c. of career and assigned to Algiers Sept. 2, 1925; sec. in the Diplo. Ser. Feb. 17, 1927; assigned as 3d sec. at Teheran Feb. 23, 1927; also as v. c. Nov. 2, 1927, to Sept. 25, 1928; 3d sec. at Constantinople (Istanbul) Nov. 23, 1929; class eight and cons. Dec. 19, 1929; class seven July 1, 1931; assigned as 2d sec. at Budapest Sept. 17, 1932; at Bern Feb. 7, 1934; detailed to the leg. at Vienua Feb. 14-25, 1934; married.

Williamson, Harold Long.-b. Chicago, Ill., Apr. 4, 1891; Univ. High Sch., Chicago; Yale, Ph. B. 1913; Univ. of Chicago one yr.; Harvard Univ. 1916-17; executive in steel foundry 1913-14; sales office in bond house 1914-16; U. S. Army 1917-18, capt.; capt., O. R. C.; app., temp., an asst. in Am. Leg. at Habana Jan. 22, 1919; app., after exam., sec. of emb. or leg. of class four Mar. 14, 1919; assigned to Habana May 2, 1919; class three June 28, 1920; assigned to the Dept. Sept. 14, 1920; to Warsaw May 26, 1921; to Bogotá July 23, 1923; For. Ser. officer of class seven July 1, 1924; detailed to the Dept. Nov. 8, 1924; class six Feb. 24, 1925; assigned as 2d sec. at Habana Feb. 15, 1926; sec. to Am. dei., Sixth Int. Conf. of Am. States, Habana, 1928; assigned to Paris June 1, 1928; class five Oct. 16, 1929; to Rome, temp., July 6, 1931.

Willier, Lillian E.—b. Rebuck, Pa.; high sch. and business sch. grad.; George Washington Univ. 1929-; secretary 1928; stenog., Veterans' Bu., 1928-30; app. clk. at \$1,440 in the Dept. of State Feb. 1, 1930; at \$1,620 May 1, 1930; at \$1,740 July 1, 1930; clk., Int. Monetary and Economic Conf., London, 1933.— EA.

Willis, Frances Elizabeth.—b. Metropolis, Ill., May 20, 1899; Kemper Hall grad.; Univ. of Redlands 1916-17; Stanford, A. B. 1920, Ph. D. 1923; Univ. of Brussels, Belgium, 1920-21; instructor in hist., Goucher Coll., 1923-24; instructor and asst. prof. of political science, Vassar, 1924-27; summer volunteer worker for Int. Grenfell Assoc. in teaching and public health work in Newfoundland June-Sept. 1926; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass. and v. c. of career Aug. 24, 1927; assigned to the For. Ser. Sch. Sept. 29, 1927; to Valparaiso Feb. 24, 1928; to Santiago, Chile, Feb. 24, 1931; sec. in the Diplo. Ser. Dec. 17, 1931; assigned as 3d sec. at Stockholm Dec. 29, 1931; at Brussels June 29, 1934.

Willson, Gilbert Rhoads.—b. Lee Center, N. Y., Apr. 23, 1881; Valparaiso Univ., B. S. 1906, grad. work one-half yr.; principal of grade sch. five yrs., of higb sch. one yr.; supervisor of sch. in Philippine Is. 1900-13; immigrant insp. 1913-17; app., after exam., cons. of class eight Sept. 14, 1917; detailed to the Dept. Dec. 4, 1917; assigned to Matamoros Aug. 31, 1918; class six Sept. 5, 1919; For. Ser. officer of class seven July 1, 1924; assigned to Yarmouth Aug. 28, 1924; to Lagos Mar. 26, 1929; class six May 9, 1930; to Bremen July 21, 1932; married.

Wilson, Charles Stetson.—b. Bangor, Me., June 10, 1873; Roxbury Latin Sch.; Harvard, A. B. 1897; app. sec. of leg. to Greece, Rumanla, and Serbia Mar. 7, 1901; attended the coronation of King Peter of Serbia at Belgrade Sept. 21, 1904; sec. of leg. to Greece and Montenegro and of the Diplo. Agency in Bulgaria Mar. 10, 1905; at Habana July 18, 1906; at Buenos Alres May 10, 1907; 2d sec. at Rome Aug. 4, 1909; sec. of cmb. at Rome Dec. 15, 1910; at Petrograd Feb. 1, 1912; sec. of emb. or leg. of class one by act approved Feb. 5, 1915; assigned to Madrid Feb. 2, 1916; as couns. of emb. at Madrid Oct. 3, 1916; as chargé d'affaires at Sofia Oct. 23, 1918; E. E. and M. P. to Bulgaria Oct. 8, 1921; to Rumania June 23, 1928; to Yugoslavia Aug. 3, 1933.

Wilson, Edwin Carleton .- b. Palatka, Fla., Feb. 7. 1893; Mohegan Lake Sch.; Detrolt Univ. Sch.; Univ. of Mich. 1911-14: Harvard 1914: ambulance service in France 1915-16; U. S. Army 1917-19, 2d It.; app., after exam., sec. of emb. or leg. of class four Apr. 7, 1920; assigned to Santiago, Chile, June 14, 1920; to Tegucigalpa Aug. 9, 1921; to the Dept. Feb. 8, 1922; class three Sept. 22, 1922; sec. of Am. del., Conf. on Cen. Am. Affairs, Washington, 1922; asst. sec. of Am. del., Fifth Int. Conf. of Am. States, Santiago, Chile, 1923; acting chief clk., Dept. of State, June 1-July 9, 1924; For. Ser. officer of class six July 1, 1924; class five Aug. 8, 1924; class four Aug. 31, 1925; assigned as 1st sec. at Paris Mar. 1, 1926; acting observer, Reparation Commn., 1927; class three May 23, 1929; observer, Int. Conf. on Reparations and Rhineland Evacuation, The Hague, 1929; assigned to the Dept. July 26, 1930; For. Ser. insp. Oct. 2, 1930; class two Feb. 27, 1931; assigned to the Dept. as chief, Division of Latin American Affairs, Oct. 23, 1931.-LA.

Wilson, George Perry.—b. Pittsburgh, Pa., June 8, 1870; Harvard, A. B. 1893; mem. of bar of Pa.; law practice 1898–1918; app. v. c. at Milan July 33, 1918; at Genoa July 7, 1919; at Catania July 23, 1920; at Flume May 7, 1924; at Malta Oct. 24, 1925; at Palermo Dec. 21, 1925; at Messina Dec. 12, 1928; at Marseille July 2, 1929; at Funchal, temp., Aug. 14, 1930; at Marseille Oct. 30, 1930; at Nice and Monaco Nov. 21, 1930; at Lille May 19, 1931.

Wilson, Grace L.—b. St. Joseph, Mo.; high sch. grad.; attended business sch.; Mo. State Teachers' Coll., summers 1922, 1923; St. Joseph Jr. Coll. 1927; George Washington Univ. 1927-28; teacher 1922-24; stenog. 1925-27; app. clk. at \$1,320 in the Dept. of State July 11, 1927; at \$1,440 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$1,620 July 23, 1928; stenog., Int. Conf. for the Suppression of Counterfeiting Currency, Geneva, 1929; at \$1,800 Mar. 1, 1930; at \$1,920 July 1, 1930.—PC.

Wilson, Hugh Robert .-- b. Evanston, Ill., Jan. 29, 1885; Hill Sch.; Yale, B. A. 1906; L'École Libre des Sciences Politiques 1910; mercantile firm 1907-10; private sec. to Am. Min. to Portugal 1911; app., after exam., sec. of leg. at Guatemala Feb. 1, 1912; 2d sec. at Buenos Aires July 16, 1914; sec. of emb. or leg. of class three by act approved Feb. 5, 1915; assigned to Berlin June 2, 1916; to Berne Feb. 3, 1917; to Vlenna Mar. 15, 1917; to Berne Apr. 18, 1917; class two Aug. 27, 1918; assigned to the Dept. Dec. 10, 1919; class one Dec. 20, 1919; assigned to Berlin Jan. 24, 1920; couns. of emb. and assigned to Am. Commn. at Berlin June 14, 1920; to the Am. Emb. at Tokyo Aug. 19, 1921; at Mexico City Sept. 28, 1923; to the Dept. Mar. 1, 1924; chief, Division of Current Information, Mar. 10, 1924; mem. of Executive Committee of For. Ser. Personnel Bd. representing the Dlplo. Ser. June 19, 1924; For. Ser. officer of class one July 1, 1924; chm., Executive Committee of For. Ser. Personnel Bd., Mar. 14, 1925; mem. of Bd. of Examiners for the For. Ser., For. Ser. Sch. Bd., and Bd. of Review,

For, Ser, Personnel; E. E. and M. P. to Switzerland Feb. 26, 1927; sec. gen., Conf. for the Limitation of Naval Armaments, Geneva, 1927; head of Am. representation, Third Gen. Conf. on Communications and Transit, Geneva, 1927; representative, Conf. on Import and Export Prohibitions, Geneva, 1927; Prep. Commn. for the Disarmament Conf., Geneva, head of Am. representation 1927, adviser to Am. representation 1928, 1929, del. 1930; del., Conf. for the Abolition of Import and Export Prohibitions and Restrictions, Geneva, 1928; head of Am. representation, Commn. for the Preparation of a Draft Conv. on the Private Manufacture of Arms and Ammunition and Implements of War, Geneva, 1928, 1929; del., Int. Conf. for the Suppression of Counterfeiting Currency, Geneva, 1929; del., Red Cross and Prisoners of War Conf., Geneva, 1929; adviser, London Naval Conf., 1930; representative in consultative capacity, Discussions on Armaments Truce, 3d (Disarmament) Committee of the Assembly of the League of Nations, Geneva, 1931; alternate del., Gen. Disarmament Conf., Geneva, 1932, 1933; representative, advisory com. of League of Nations to observe developments in Colombian-Peruvian dispute, Geneva, 1933; married.

Wilson, Kathryn J.—b. Hollywood, Calif.; high sch. grad.; stenog. and bookkeeper 1923-24, 1927-28; ckk. 1926-27; app. clk. at \$1,440 in the Dept. of State Jan. 1, 1929; at \$1,620 Feb. 1, 1930; at \$1,740 July 1, 1930; at \$1,800 Dec. 11, 1931.—BA.

Wilson, Orme .- b. New York City Nov. 13, 1885; Browning Sch.; Harvard, A. B. 1907; mem. investment securities firm 1913-19; v. pres. oil company 1913-17; with Council of Nat. Defense four months; statistician, War Dept., six months; U. S. Army 1918-19, 1st lt.; app., after exam., sec. of emb. or leg. of class four Apr. 7, 1920; assigned to Brussels June 14, 1920; to Berne Dec. 15, 1921; class three Sept. 22, 1922; assigned to the Dept. Nov. 2, 1923; For. Ser. officer of class six July 1, 1924; class five Feb. 24, 1925; assigned as 2d sec. at Buenos Aires Aug. 15, 1926; sec., Int. Conf. of Am. States on Conciliation and Arbitration, Washington, 1928-29; class four May 23, 1929; assigned to the Dept. Aug. 15, 1929; asst. chief, Division of Latin American Affairs, Nov. 1, 1930; assigned as 1st sec. at Berlin Aug. 14, 1933; married.

Wilson, Thomas Murray.—b. Memphis, Tenn., July 29, 1881; attended mil. sch. and business sch.; private tutors; cotton business, banking, and farming 1899– 1916; U. S. Army 1917-19; capt., overseas service; app., after exam., cons. of class seven Sept. 5, 1919; detailed to Hankow Oct. 21, 1919; to Tientsin Apr. 8, 1920; to Tsinan July 16, 1921; returned to Tientsin Sept. 2, 1921; detailed to Amoy Nov. 7, 1921; class six Nov. 19, 1921; assigned to Madras Dec. 27, 1921; detailed to Bombay May 25, 1922; class five Mar. 1, 1923; detailed to the Dept. Sept. 21, 1923; class four June 5, 1924; For. Ser. officer of class five July 1, 1924; For. Ser. insp. Feb. 21, 1925; class four June 2, 1926; assigned as cons. at Kingston, Ont., temp., Dec. 14, 1927; For. Ser. insp. Dec. 31, 1927;

sec. in the Diplo. Ser. and cons. gen. Jan. 5, 1928; class three May 23, 1929; class two Feb. 4, 1931; class one July 28, 1933; assigned to the Dept. as chief, Division of For. Ser. Personnel, Sept. 2, 1933; mem., Bd. of Examiners for the For. Ser. and For. Ser. Sch. Bd., Sept. 2, 1933.—FP.

Wilson, Warden McKee .- b. Spokane, Wash., Sept. 12, 1892; Lawrenceville Sch.; Cornell Univ., A. B. 1915; clk. in Am. Emb. at Mexico City 1915; with trust company 1916-17; U. S. Army 1917-19, 1st lt., overseas service; oil development 1919-21; app., after exam., sec. of emb. or leg. of class four Aug. 24, 1921; assigned to the Dept. Sept. 1, 1921; asst. sec., Conf. on the Limitation of Armament, Washington, 1921; assigned to Berlin Dec. 17, 1921; class three Sept. 22, 1922; assigned to Vienna June 20, 1923; For. Ser. officer of class six July 1, 1924; class five Feb. 24, 1925; assigned as 2d sec. at Santo Domingo June 9, 1925; detailed to Port au Prince Oct. 6, 1925, and assumed charge Dec. 28, 1925; assigned to the Dept. Oct. 1, 1926; to Paris July 30, 1928; to Brussels and Luxemburg Aug. 16, 1929; class four May 9, 1930; assigned to Caracas Nov. 11, 1930; to The Hague Dec. 7, 1933; married.

Wilson, William John, Jr.—b. El Oro, Mexico, of Am. parents, Dec. 27, 1906; Am. High Sch., Mexico City, grad.; attended business sch.; app. clk. in Am. Emb. at Mexico City Sept. 1, 1926; in Am. Consulate General at Mexico City Sept. 1, 1927; v. c. at Mexico City Oct. 4, 1929.

Wilton, George, Jr.—b. San Francisco, Calif., Dec. 16, 1905; high sch. grad.; Calif. Sch. of Languages 1927-29; Wash. Coll. of Law 1931-32; stenog., bookkeeper, and clk. 1923-27; clk. in Dept. of Labor, Calif. and Hawaii, 1927-29, in Navy Dept. 1929-30; app. clk. at \$1,620 in the Dept. of State Feb. 6, 1930; at \$1,740 July 1, 1930; at \$1,800 July 1, 1931.—FA.

Windle, George Cecil.—b. Lantz Mills, Va., Sept. 24, 1905; attended high sch. and radio sch.; employed by mfg. company 1921-22; messenger and clk., Gen. Accounting Office, 1922-25; app. clk. at \$1,320 in the Dept. of State Jan. 26, 1927; at \$1,380 Nov. 1, 1927; at \$1,500 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$1,560 July 1, 1928; at \$1,620 Nov. 1, 1928; at \$1,740 July 1, 1930; at \$1,800 Nov. 1, 1930; clk., 1st stage, Gen. Disarmament Conf., Geneva, 1932; married.—DCR.

Winship, North.—b. Macon, Ga., Dec. 31, 1885; George Washington Univ. 1908–9; Mercer Univ., B. L. 1910; mem. of bar of Ga.; bookkeeper 1904–6; sec. and treas. of mfg. plant 1907; app., after exam., cons. at Tahiti Juue 24, 1910; at Owen Sound July 14, 1913; at Petrograd Apr. 24, 1914; cons. of class six by act approved Feb. 5, 1915; class five Apr. 16, 1917; assigned to Milan July 17, 1917; class four Sept. 5, 1919; class three June 4, 1920; assigned to Bombay Dec. 27, 1921; unassigned from July 4, 1922; detailed to Fiume Mar. 30, 1923; assigned to Fiume Apr. 2, 1924; For. Ser. officer of class four July 1, 1924; assigned to Cairo Dec. 2, 1924; class three Dec. 17, 1925; sec. in the Diplo. Ser. Sept. 21, 1926, and assigned as 1st sec. at Cairo Sept. 21–Oct. 6, 1926; assigned also as 1st sec. at Cairo, temp., June 13, 1927; cons. gen. and assigned to Copenhagen July 6, 1928; class two July 24, 1930; couns. of leg. at Copenhagen Apr. 8, 1931; married.

Winslow, Rollin Robbins .- b. Benton Harbor, Mich., Aug. 11, 1893; Univ. of Mich., A. B., LL. B. 1920; mem. of bar of Mich.: Mich. Naval Reserves 1912-14; mfg. work 1912-14; welfare worker with Italian Army 1918-19; app., after exam., v. c. of career of class three Sept. 7, 1920, and assigned to Florence; resigned May 20, 1921; law practice 1921-22; reapp. v. c. of career of class three Apr. 24, 1922; assigned to Vladivostok May 19, 1922; to Batavia Jan. 9, 1923; class two Feb. 26, 1923; assigned to Surabaya Apr. 17, 1923; class one Nov. 23, 1923; For. Ser. officer unclass. July 1, 1924; class eight Feb. 24, 1925; cons. Mar. 3, 1925; assigned to Surabaya Mar. 18. 1925; assigned to the Dept., temp., Dec. 17, 1925; to Winnipeg, temp., July 23, 1926; to the Dept. June 6, 1928; class seven Dec. 19, 1929; assigned to Trieste Oct. 3, 1930; class six July 1, 1931; to Plymouth June 11, 1934; married.

Winters, George Huey.—b. Downs, Kans., Mar. 28, 1902; Kans. State Agric. Coll., B. S. 1923; teacher of hist. and Eng. in high sch. 1924; app. clk. in Am. Consulate General at Mexico City Mar. 10, 1925; v. c. at Mexico City Sept. 14, 1925; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass. and v. c. of career July 5, 1927; assigned to the Dept. July 30, 1931; as v. c. at Habana Oct. 14, 1932; at Guadalajara June 19, 1934; married.

Withey, Howard Francis.—b. Reed City, Mich., Mar. 26, 1884; Orchard Lake Mil. Acad. grad.; Univ. of Mich., LL. B. 1907; mem. of bar of Mich.; Mich. Nat. Guard 1906-8; law practice 1907-18; city and prosecuting atty.; U. S. Army 1918-19; app., after exam., cons. of class seven Sept. 5, 1919; assigned to Tahiti Oct. 21, 1919; detailed to Copenhagen July 12, 1923; For. Ser. officer of class eight July 1, 1924; class seven Feb. 24, 1925; assigned to Limoges Dec. 30, 1925; to London, Ont., June 29, 1927; class six July 24, 1930; to Paris July 28, 1931; to Tunis Apr. 19, 1933; to Naples Nov. 11, 1933; married.

Wlecke, Evelyn Dorathy.—b. Cleveland, Ohio; high sch. grad.; stenog.-clk. 1929-30; app. clk. at \$1,440 in the Dept. of State June 23, 1930; at \$1,620 Feb. 1, 1931.—TD.

Woël, J. William.—b. Jérémie, Haiti, Feb. 22, 1862; naturalized; attended sch. in France and England; cml. employment since 1885; app. cous. agt. at Gonaïves Sept. 8, 1899; married.

Wolcott, Henry Merrill.—b. Colchester, Vt., Nov. 8, 1879; attended high sch. and business sch.; tutors; elk. 1900-1902, in U. S. Naval Station, Porto Rico, 1902-4, to post office insp. 1904-5; stenog. 1905-6; app. v. and dep. cons. and clk. at Santiago de Cuba June 9, 1906; v. and dep. cons. gen. at Mexico City May 14, 1912; clk. in Am. Consulate General at Habana July 21, 1913; app., after exam., cons. of class nine Mar. 2, 1915, and detailed as v. c. to Habana; class seven July 14, 1916, and assigned to Lagos (canceled); detailed to Caimenera, Cuba, Apr. 6, 1917; to Nuevitas June 29, 1917; assigned to Nuevitas Nov. 5, 1917; to Santiago de Cuba Nov. 30, 1917; to Torreon Aug. 31, 1918; detailed to the Dept. July 13, 1919; class six Sept. 5, 1919; assigned to Bilbao Sept. 8, 1919; class five June 4, 1920; For. Ser. officer of class six July 1, 1924; assigned to Caracas June 2, 1926; class five June 8, 1927; assigned to Adelaide Apr. 16, 1930; class four July 24, 1930; married.

Wood, Corey Frank.—b. Belchertown, Mass., Mar. 25, 1866; attended high sch.; business sch. grad.; merchant 1883-90; mgr. of light plant 1890-93; insur. 1893-98; sec. of business firm 1898-1910; foreign buyer since 1910; app. v. c. at Cap Haitien Mar. 25, 1924; cons. agt. at Cap Haitien July 1, 1933; marrled.

Wood, Harold Clifton.—b. Boston, Mass., Feb. 19, 1896; high sch. grad.; attended business sch.; Boston Coll. 1916-17; U. S. Army 1917-19; stenog. 1920; clk. in Mexico 1920-21; app. clk. in Am. Consulate at Guaymas Oct. 24, 1921; v. c. at Guaymas Feb. 17, 1922; at Salina Cruz Oct. 8, 1923; at Durango, temp., Oct. 23, 1925; at Mexico Clty Jan. 28, 1926; at Vera Cruz Nov. 22, 1926; at Puerto Mexico Aug. 17, 1927; at Vera Cruz Sept. 28, 1928; at Piedras Negras Nov. 7, 1929; married.

Wood, John Rhoden.—b. Dupont, Ga., Feb. 7, 1894; attended high sch. and business sch.; teacher in public sch. 1912; mgr. of theater 1913; stenog., accountant, and auditor 1914-16; asst. passenger and ticket agt. 1917; U. S. Army 1917-19, 2d lt.; 1st lt., O. R. C.; app. clk. in Am. Consulate General in Paris Aug. 12, 1919; v. c. at Parls Mar. 27, 1922; married.

Wood, Tuley N. (Mrs.)—b. Paris, Ill.; high sch. grad.; in abstract office 1902-3; app. clk., temp., at \$900 in the Dept. of State Dec. 22, 1917; at \$1,100 Mar. 1, 1918; at \$1,200 July 1, 1918; permanently, at \$900 Feb. 1, 1921; at \$1,200 Aug. 1, 1921; at \$1,400 Oct. 6, 1923; at \$1,680 July 1, 1924; at \$1,740 Mar. 1, 1927; at \$1,800 Nov. 1, 1927; at \$1,920 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$2,000 Mar. 1, 1930; at \$2,200 July 1, 1930.—FA.

Woodford, Archer .- b. Paris, Ky., June 11, 1899: Univ. of Mich. one yr.; Centre Coll., A. B. 1920; Columbia Univ., summer 1920; U. S. Army 1918; asst. prof., Tex. Agric. and Mech. Coll., 1921-23; app. clk. in Am. Consulate at São Paulo May 15, 1923; v. c. at São Paulo Feb. 25, 1924; at Santos, temp., June 26, 1926; at Rio de Janeiro Oct. 23, 1926; at Pernambuco, temp., Mar. 28, 1927; at Rio de Janeiro May 13, 1927; at Bahia, temp., July 15, 1927; at Rio de Janeiro Oct. 17, 1927; clk. at Managua Apr. 1, 1928; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass., v. c. of career, and sec. in the Diplo. Ser. May 17, 1928; assigned as 3d sec. at Managua May 25, 1928; as v. e. at Puerto Cortes Aug. 14, 1928: at Berlin Mar. 26, 1930; at Breslau, temp., Sept. 15, 1930; at Berlin Nov. 3, 1930.

Woods, Damon Clinton.—b. Corsicana, Tex., May 3, 1888; Unlv. of Tex., LL. B. 1910; mem. of bar of Tex.; law practice 1910-18; asst. county atty.; Am. Red Cross 1918-19; app., after exam., cons. of class seven Sept. 5, 1919; detailed to Marseille Oct. 29, 1919; assigned to Cape Haitlen Dec. 27, 1921; detailed to Paris Sept. 21, 1923; class six June 3, 1924; For. Ser. officer of class seven July 1, 1924; assigned to Parls Feb. 28, 1927; to Strashourg, temp., May 11, 1928; class six May 17, 1928; assigned to Paris Sept. 28, 1928; to Toronto Apr. 18, 1931; class five July 1, 1931; married.

Woods, Leslie Earle.—b. Cairo, Ill., July 9, 1809; high sch. grad.; Dussault Sch.; tutors in French and German 1923-27; U. S. Army 1918-19, 1st lt.; clk. in War Dept. 1919-21, in Dept. of State 1921-22; app., after exam., v. c. of career of class three May 26, 1922; assigned to Strasbourg Dec. 23, 1922; class two Nov. 23, 1923; For. Ser. officer unclass. July 1, 1924; assigned to Biarritz Dec. 12, 1924; to Strasbourg Jan. 7, 1925; class eight and cons. Mar. 20, 1925; assigned to Calais Aug. 21, 1925; to Strasbourg Oct. 7, 1925; to Glasgow Mar. 24, 1927; to the Dept. Mar. 30, 1929; class seven May 23, 1929; assigned to Sault Ste. Marie Sept. 24, 1929 (canceled); to Cobh Oct. 16, 1929; class ix July 1, 1931; to Cork Dec. 1, 1932; married.

Woods, Sam É.—b. Starville, Tex., May 15, 1892; Miss. State Teachers Coll., B. S.; summer courses, Univ. of Miss., Univ. of Wis., and Mass. Inst. of Tech.; head of dept. of manual arts, Miss. State Teachers Coll., three yrs.; U. S. Marine Aviation Corps during World War; U. S. Army Educational Corps in France and Germany; educational work in Czechoslovakia 1920, in U. S. 1922–29; banking two yrs.; U. S. observer, 17th Int. Parliamentary Cong. of Com., Prague, 1931; editor; author; app. asst. trade commr. at Prague July 16, 1929; asst. cml. att. Feb. 17, 1933; cml. att. Jan. 18, 1934; married.

Woodward, George Carlton.—b. near Unionville, Pa., Dec. 7, 1874; attended public sch. and business sch.; clk. and bookkeeper to 1897; prospecting, mining, law clk., and stenog. in Alaska 1897–1904; app. clk. in Am. Consulate at Dawson June 10, 1904; v. and dep. cons. and clk. at Dawson Oct. 26, 1904; v. and dep. cons. gen. at Vancouver Sept. 3, 1910; v. c. at Vancouver Feb. 6, 1915; app., after exam., cons. of class nine Mar. 2, 1915; and detailed to Vancouver; assigned to Matamoros Mar. 20, 1917; class eight Sept. 14, 1917; assigned to Campbellton Aug. 31, 1918; class seven Sept. 5, 1919; For. Ser. officer of class eight July 1, 1924; assigned to Prince Rupert June 21, 1927; married.

Woodward, Robert Forbes.—b. Minneapolis, Minn., Oct. 1, 1908; Univ. of Minn., B. A. 1930; clk. 1923– 27, 1931; printer 1927–30; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass., v. c. of career, and sec. in the Diplo. Ser. Dec. 17, 1931; assigned as v. c. at Winnipeg Jan. 12, 1932; to the For. Ser. Sch. Apr. 22, 1933; to Buenos Aires Aug. 28, 1933.

Woodward, Stanley.—.b. Philadelphia, Pa., Mar. 12, 1899; Chestnut Hill Acad.; St. George's Sch.; Yale,

B. A. 1922; L'École Libre des Sciences Politiques 1923-24; U. S. Army 1918; teacher, Yale-in-China, Changsha, 1922-23; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass. Mar. 20, 1925; v. c. of career and assigned to the Dept. Sept. 2, 1925; to Geneva Mar. 3, 1926; detailed to 10th and 12th sess., League of Nations Opium Advisory Committee, Geneva, 1927 and 1929; to the Dept. Mar. 10, 1929; sec. in the Diplo. Ser. June 13, 1929; assigned as 3d sec. at Brussels June 26, 1929; class eight and cons. Dec. 19, 1929; sec. of del., Conf. for the Codification of Int. Law, The Hague, 1930; class seven July 1, 1931; as 2d sec. at Tokyo Aug. 4, 1932 (canceled); at Port-au-Prince Sept. 8, 1933; married.

Worley, Lee.—b. Kellogg, Idaho, Mar. 16, 1907; Univ. of Wash., B. B. A., 1930; 2d lt., O. R. C.; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass., v. c. of career, and sec. in the Diplo. Ser. Dec. 16, 1930; assigned as v. c. at Vancouver, temp., Dec. 29, 1930; to the For. Ser. Sch. Aug. 8, 1931; to Guayaquil Dec. 10, 1931; to Bahia Mar. 18, 1933.

Worman, Charles Edwin.—b. Van Wert, Ohio, Jan. 9, 1901; attended high sch.; Shepherd Coll, State Normal Sch. of W. Va.; U. S. Army 1917-19; clk., Dept. of State, 1919-23, 1926, in Am. Emb. at Tokyo 1923-25; clk., Prep. Comm. for the Conf. on Reduction and Limitation of Armament, Geneva, 1926; app. clk. in Am. Consulate at Bergen Oct. 31, 1926; v. c. at Bergen Feb. 25, 1927; at Oporto July 22, 1930; at St. Michael's, temp., Jan. 7, 1931; at Oporto Aug. 22, 1931; at Tenerife, temp., May 2, 1933; at Oporto July 26, 1933; at St. Michael, temp., May 7, 1934.

Wormuth, Romeyn.—b. Port Leyden, N. Y., Jan. 31, 1876; Cornell Univ., A. B. 1901; mem. of bar of N. Y.; teacher in summer sch. 1895–1902; asst. principal, Troy Acad., 1901–2; law practice 1904–18; app., after exam., cons. of class eight Feb. 5, 1918; assigned to Esbjerg, Denmark, June 7, 1919; detailed to Copenhagen July 7, 1919; class seven Sept. 5, 1919; assigned to Newcastle, New South Wales, July 13, 1921; detailed to Sydney, N. S. W. Sept. 30, 1922; class six Mar. 1, 1923; returned to Newcastle Aug. 20, 1923; For. Ser. officer of class seven July 1, 1924; assigned to St. John, N. B., Oct. 23, 1924; class six Feb. 24, 1925; class five Dec. 31, 1929; assigned to Nuevo Laredo Apr. 6, 1931; married.

Worster, Stephen Carlton.—b. Eliot, Me., Jan. 30, 1900; high sch. and business sch. grad.; stenog., War Dept., 1918-19; stenog-clk. in El Salvador 1919-20; app. clk. in Am. Consulate at Manzanillo Mar. 14, 1921; at Torreon Apr. 26, 1921; v. c. at Torreon June 27, 1921; at Winnipeg Mar. 7, 1922; resigned Oct. 15, 1922; app. clk. in Am. Consulate at Nogales Feb. 16, 1923; v. c. at Nogales Sept. 22, 1923; at Aguascalientes Dec. 7, 1925; at Vera Cruz Jan. 2, 1926; at Kingston Nov. 22, 1926; resigned Feb. 25, 1927; app. v. c. at Rosario Mar. 5, 1927; at Antofagasta July 20, 1927; at Iquique, temp., Aug. 27, 1927; at Antofagasta Mar. 3, 1928; at Iquique, temp., Feb. 6, 1929; at Arica July 2, 1929; at Niagara Falls Aug. 26, 1930; at Cartagena Nov. 21, 1931; at Bogotá Oct. 4, 1933.

Wortham, Clyde Harold.—b. Shawnee, Okla., Jan. 24, 1909; high sch. grad.; George Washington Univ. 1929-30; stenog. 1926-28; clk., War Dept., 1928-31; app. clk. at \$1,440 in the Dept. of State Sept. 24, 1931.—DCR.

Worton, William A. (Capt.)-b. Boston, Mass., Jan. 4, 1897; entered U.S.M.C. Mar. 30, 1921; assigned as language officer at Peiping June 19, 1931; married.

Wright, James H.—b. Chillicothe, Mo., Feb. 21, 1907; high sch. grad.; Univ. of Mo. 1924-27; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass., v. c. of career. and sec. in the Diplo. Ser. Dec. 19, 1929; assigned as v. c. at Vera Cruz, temp., Jan. 7, 1930; to the For. Ser. Sch. Apr. 19, 1930; to Cologne July 9, 1930; married.

Wright, Jennie Viola.—b. Woodland, Mich.; high sch. and business sch. grad.; clk. 1906-12, in War Dept. 1918-20; app. clk. at \$1,100 in the Dept. of State Apr. 16, 1920; at \$1,200 Dec. 30, 1922, effective January 1, 1923; at \$1,440 July 1, 1924; at \$1,500 Mar. 1, 1925; at \$1,680 Jan. 16, 1926; at \$1,800 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$1,860 July 1, 1928; at \$2,000 Dec. 1, 1929; at \$2,200 July 1, 1930.—PD.

Wright, Joshua Butler .- b. Irvington, N. Y., Oct. 18. 1877; Lawrenceville Sch.; Princeton, B. S. 1899; banking 1899-1906; ranching 1907-9; N. Y. Nat. Guard 1901-7; app., after exam., sec. of leg. at Tegucigalpa Aug. 4, 1909; sec. of leg. and cons. gen. to Rumania, Serbia, and Bulgaria Feb. 1, 1912 (canceled); assigned to the Dept. Aug. 24, 1912; sec. of leg. at Habana Sept. 12, 1912 (canceled); sec. of leg. at Brussels Oct. 4, 1912; sec. of Am. del., Opium Conf., The Hague, 1913; sec. of emb. at Rio de Janeiro July 2, 1913; sec. of emb. or leg. of class one by act approved Feb. 5, 1915; assigned to the Dept. July 28, 1915; acting chief, Division of Latin American Affairs, Oct. 8, 1915; couns. of emb. at Petrograd Oct. 2, 1916; to the Dept. May 14, 1918; couns. of emb. at London Sept. 19, 1918; to the Dept. Oct. 4, 1921; expert asst., Conf. on Limitation of Armament, Washington, 1921; commr., Brazilian Centennial Exposition, 1922; 3d asst. sec. of state Jan. 30, 1923; sec. of Am. del., Fifth Int. Conf. of Am. States, Santiago, Chile, 1923; chm., Bd. of Review of the Dept., Jan. 2, 1924; mem., For. Ser. Personnel Bd., June 23, 1924; title changed to "asst. sec. of state" July 1, 1924; app. E. E. and M. P. to Hungary Feb. 26, 1927; to Uruguay Sept. 29, 1930; del., Seventh Int. Conf. of Am. States, Montevideo, 1933; app. E. E. and M. P. to Czechoslovakia Mar. 9, 1934; married.

Wright, Maitland Schoolcraft.—b. Pope Co., Minn., July 17, 1870; attended high sch. and normal sch.; telegraph operator; telegrapher in Navy Dept. during Spanish-Amer. War; office of supt. of State, War, Navy Bldg. 1899-1902; app. clk. at \$900 in the Dept. of State Jan. 10, 1902; at \$1,000 July 1, 1903;

67359-34-19

at \$1,200, temp., Mar. 23, 1904; permanently July 15, 1904; at \$1,400 Mar. 4, 1907; at \$1,600 Oct. 21, 1910; representative of the Dept. on the Gen. Supply Committee 1917-33; at \$1,800 Mar. 1, 1919; at \$2,100 July 1, 1924; chief, supply section, Aug. 1924; at \$2,200 Dec. 1, 1925; at \$2,400 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$2,600 July 1, 1930; married.—SU.

Wuest, Jacob W. S. (Lt. Col.)—b. Cincinnati, Ohio, June 24, 1880; U. S. M. A., grad. 1903; assigned as asst. mil. att. for air at Berlin, Berne, Prague, Vienna, The Hague, Copenhagen, and Stockholm Mar. 20, 1931; assignments at Berlin and Berne changed to mil. att. Apr. 8, 1932, and at Stockholm and Copenhagen Feb. 14, 1933; assignment at Stockholm and Copenhagen Feb. 14, 1933; assignment at The Hague changed to mil. att. and assignment at Bern to asst. mil. att. for air Feb. 26, 1934; married.

Wyatt, Ben Harrison (Lt. Comdr.)—b. Whitley, Ky., Sept. 20, 1893; U.S.N.A., grad. 1917; assigned as asst. naval att. at Paris, London, Berlin, and The Hague May 25, 1933; married.

Wynne, Cyril.-b. Oakland, Calif., Mar. 29, 1890; Harvard, A. B. 1917, M. A. 1925, Ph. D. 1927; mem. of bar of Calif.; U. S. Army 1917-19, 1st lt., overseas service; major, O. R. C.; on detail with Am. Commn. to Negotiate Peace, Paris, 1919; app., after exam., sec. of emb. or leg. of class four Sept. 5, 1919; assigned to Tokyo Dec. 11, 1919; class three Aug. 24, 1921; assigned to the Dept. Jan. 30, 1922; asst. solicitor in the Dept. of State 1922-24; representative of the Dept. on the Interdepartmental Radio Advisory Committee June 1, 1922-Aug. 31, 1924; asst. in dept. of govt., Harvard, 1925-27; asst. to sec. of Am. del., Int. Radiotelegraph Conf., Washington, 1927; lecturer in _int. relations, Harvard, 1927-29; lecturer in int. relations, Mass. Univ. Extension Courses and Harvard-Boston Extension Courses, 1928-29; prof. of constitutional law, Columbus Univ. Law Sch., 1930-, and prof. of int. law 1932-; app. asst. to the solicitor of the Dept. of State at \$3.200 Feb. 18, 1929; drafting officer July 1, 1929; asst. historical adviser July 22, 1929; at \$4,600 Aug. 8, 1929; at \$4,800 July 1, 1930; act. historical adviser Nov. 1, 1930-Apr. 1, 1931, June 1-Sept. 1, 1931; at \$5,600 Apr. 1, 1931; chm. Publications Committee of the Dept. 1931-34; act. historical adviser Nov. 21, 1932–Mar. 5, 1933, and May 7–Nov. 15. 1933; chief, Division of Research and Publication, Nov. 1, 1933; mem., Bd. of Appeals and Review, May 28, 1934-; married.-RP.

Yates, Lloyd Deming.—b. In Alexandria Co., Va., Jan. 30, 1903; Princeton 1923; Amherst, A. B. 1924; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass. Sept. 11, 1925; v. c. of career May 20, 1926; assigned to Buenos Aires May 25, 1926; class eight, cons., and assigned to Buenos Aires Dec. 19, 1929; to Hamburg Sept. 9, 1930; married.

Yeagley, Dibert L.—b. Marion, Kans., Mar. 16, 1909; Southwestern Coll., A.B. 1930; George Washington Univ., grad. work in economics 1930-31; clk., Census Bu., 1930-31; stenog., Bu. of For. and Domes. Com., 1931-32; clk.stenog., Fcd. Reformatory Camp, 1932-34; app. clk. at \$1,620 in the Dept. of State May 1, 1934; married.-FE.

Yearns, Kenneth John.—b. Indianapolis, Ind., Jan. 20, 1907; George Washington, A. B. 1929; newspaper work 1923-30; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass., v. c. of career, and sec. in the Diplo. Ser. Dec. 16, 1930; assigned to the Dept., temp., Dec. 20, 1930; to Naples Oct. 1, 1931; to the For. Ser. Seh. Nov. 29, 1932; to the Dept., temp., Mar. 30, 1933; to Shanghai May 31, 1933; to Nanking Mar. 1, 1934.

Yepis, Alfonso Fernando.—b. Tucson, Ariz., Dec. 13, 1899; attended business sch.; Univ. of Ariz. 1919; with express company 1919-20; clk. and asst. cashier 1921-22; salesman 1923; with railroad in Mexlco 1925-26; app. clk. at Am. Consulate at Guaymas Dec. 3, 1927; at Manzanillo Feb. 14, 1928; resigned Aug. 20, 1928; app. clk. at Guaymas Feb. 26, 1929; v. c. at Guaymas May 17, 1930; married.

Yingling, Raymund Thomas.—b. Westminster, Md., Jan. 14, 1898; Western Md. Coll., A. B. 1918; Georgetown, LL. B. 1921; mem. of bar of D. C.; S. A. T. C. 1918; in War Dept. 1918, 1919–20; app. clk. at \$1,200 in the Dept. of State Sept. 30, 1920; at \$1,400 Sept. 16, 1922; law clk. at \$2,000 Feb. 10, 1923; at \$2,400 July 1, 1924; at \$2,500 May 1, 1925; drafting officer at \$3,000 Oct. 16, 1925; at \$3,200 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); asst. to the solicitor at \$3,800 Feb. 1, 1929; at \$4,200 July 1, 1930; asst. to the legal adviser July 1, 1931; Am. representative. Claims Committee, U. S. and Spain, 1931-; counsel for U.S., Gen. Claims Commn., U.S. and Panama, 1931-—LE.

Yost, Bartley Francis .- b. Switzerland, Sept. 30, 1877; Am. citizen; Washburn Acad. grad.; studied law; teacher in public sch. 1896-98, 1902-6; clk. 1900-1901; clk. in dist. court and publisher 1906-8; app., after exam., cons. asst. June 24, 1908; dep. cons. gen. at Paris Apr. 20, 1909; cons. agt. at Almeria Mar. 3, 1913; detailed to Barcelona May 13, 1916; returned to Almeria Aug. 29, 1916; detailed to Genoa June 7, 1917; v. c. at Genoa Aug. 21, 1917; detailed to the Dept. Jan. 16, 1918; assigned to Santa Rosalia June 15, 1918; cons. of class eight July 6, 1918; assigned to Santa Rosalia July 22, 1918; to Guaymas Nov. 22, 1918; class seven Sept. 5, 1919; class six June 4, 1920; assigned to Torreon Dec. 17, 1923; For. Ser. officer of class seven July 1, 1924; assigned to Sault Ste. Marle Oct. 13, 1926; class six June 8, 1927; assigned to Mazatlán Sept. 30, 1929 (canceled); class five July 24, 1930; assigned to Nogales Jan. 5, 1931; to Cologne May 3, 1932; married.

††Yost, Charles Woodruff.—b. Watertown, N.Y., Nov. 6, 1907; Hotchkiss Sch.; Princeton, A. B. 1928; École des Hautes Études Internationales 1928-29; app., after exam., For. Ser. officer unclass., v. c. of career, and sec. in the Diplo. Ser. Dec. 16, 1930; assigned as v. c. at Alexandria, temp., Dec. 18, 1930; to the For. Ser. Sch. Feb. 20, 1932; to Warsaw July 26, 1932; resigned Aug. 14, 1933. Young, Fred Rex.—b. Defiance, Iowa, Apr. 12, 1886; high sch. grad.; Iowa State Teachers' Coll., summer 1904; studied accountancy; teacher in public sch. 1904-10; asst. postmaster 1910-17; dep. county treas. 1917-18; clk., War Dept., 1918; app. clk. at \$1,000 in the Dept. of State Dec. 17, 1918; at \$1,200 Aug. 1, 1919; at \$1,400 Mar. 1, 1921; at \$1,600 Dec. 30, 1922, effective Jan. 1, 1923; at \$1,860 July 1, 1924; at \$1,920 Dec. 1, 1925; at \$2,100 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$2,200 July 1, 1928; chief of audit section, Bu. of Accounts, at \$2,600 Mar. 15, 1930; at \$2,800 July 1, 1930; at \$2,900 Feb. 1, 1931; married.—BA.

Young, James Barclay .- b. Washington, D. C., Feb. 14, 1884; William Penn Charter Sch. grad.; Univ. of Pa., B. S. 1907; studied law; newspaper reporter; sec. to mem. of Cong.; app., after exam., cons. asst. July 19, 1909; v. and dep. cons. at Milan Sept. 8, 1909; dep. cons. gen. at Berlin Mar. 16, 1911; v. and dep. cons. at Breslau Apr. 28, 1911; dep. cons. gen. at Berlin May 26, 1911; v. and dep. cons. gen. at Genoa Feb. 19, 1912; v. and dep. cons. at Milan July 22, 1913; v. and dep. cons. gen. at Genoa Aug. 29, 1913; v. c. at Genoa Feb. 6, 1915; cons. of class eight Mar. 2, 1915, and assigned to Tunis (canceled); detailed as v. c. at Belgrade Apr. 1915; at Vienna Dec. 1915; assigned to Fiume July 24, 1916; detailed to the Dept. Apr. 7, 1917; class seven Sept. 14, 1917; class six Sept. 5, 1919; assigned to Venice Apr. 16, 1920; class five June 4, 1920; class four Aug. 23, 1922; For. Ser. officer of class five July 1, 1924; class four Feb. 24, 1925; assigned to Southampton Nov. 20, 1929; class three May 9, 1930; as For. Ser. officer at Callao-Lima Mar. 27, 1933; cons. gen. and assigned to Callao-Lima Apr. 29, 1933; married.

Young, Whitney.—b. Chicago, Ill., Jan. 31, 1896; Harvard, A. B. 1918; U. S. Army 1917-18, 2d lt.; with rubber company 1919-21; domes. and foreign banking 1921-23; app., after exam., v. c. of career of class three June 13, 1924; For. Ser. officer unclass. July 1, 1924; assigned to Kobe July 31, 1924; to Nagasaki, temp., Aug. 13, 1928; to Yokohama Aug. 31, 1929; class eight, cons., and assigned to Yokohama Oct. 16, 1929; to Taihoku, temp., Oct. 30, 1930; to Colombo Jan. 23, 1932; sec. in the Diplo. Ser. June 16, 1933; assigned as For. Ser. officer to the leg. at Peiping June 19, 1933; also as cons. at Tientsin July 1, 1933; 3d sec. at Peiping in addition to duties as cons. at Tientsin July S, 1933; relieved of duties as 3d sec. at Peiping Mar. 1, 1934.

Young, William C.—b. in Shelby Co., Ky., Dec. 1, 1879; Washington and Lee Univ., A. B. 1901; taught sch. 1903-4; mgr. of estate and brokerage business 1904-14; with financial corp. 1914-16; travel and study 1916-18; clk. in War Dept. 1918, in Treas. Dept. in France 1918-20; app. clk. in Am. Consulate General at London Sept. 3, 1920; v. c. at London Jan. 27, 1922; at Paris Mar. 9, 1925; at Lille June 16, 1925; at Paris Sept. 24, 1925; at Boulognesur-Mer, temp., Jan. 8, 1929; at Paris Apr. 9, 1929; at Bristol Dec. 29, 1931; at Partas Nov. 25, 1932. Young, Willis Harold.—b. Morristown, Minn., July 2, 1898; attended business sch.; George Washington, LL, B. 1923; mem. of bar of Va.; U. S. Army 1918– 19; clk. and claim examiner, Treas. Dept., 1919–25; chief clk. in Federal penitentiary, Dept. of Justice, 1925–26; app. law clk. at \$1,860 in the Dept. of State June 1, 1926; at \$1,920 Nov. 1, 1927; at \$2,100 July 1, 1928 (Welch Act); at \$2,200 July 1, 1928; at \$2,600 Mar. 1, 1929; at \$2,800 July 1, 1930; married.—PD.

Zaveckas, Stanley D.-b. Brooklyn, N. Y., Nov. 15, 1909; high sch. grad.; St. John's Coll. 1927-29;

U. S. Naval Reserve; app. clk. at \$1,500 in the N. Y. Despatch Agency of the Dept. of State Feb. 1, 1930.

Zawadzki, Casimir Tadeusz Walter.—b. Buffalo, N. Y., Sept. 11, 1899; attended high sch.; Canisius Coll. 1921-23; Polish Army 1917-21; app. clk. in Am. Consulate General at Munich July 3, 1924; v. c. at Munich Sept. 5, 1925; at Berlin Sept. 29, 1928; married.

Zinser, Leon.—App. to act as despatch agt. at New Orleans Sept. 5, 1933.

DIPLOMATIC AND FOREIGN SERVICE OFFICERS WHO HAVE DIED SINCE JULY 1, 1933 1

Baehr, Max Joseph.—b. in Germany Aug. 2, 1858; naturalized 1884; attended public and Latin schs.; bookkeeper and salesman; mgr. and v. pres. of wholesale firm; clk. of dist. court and title abstractor; app., after exam., cons. at Kehl July 21, 1808; at Santos Oct. 26, 1899, but did not serve; at Magdeburg Mar. 13, 1900; at Cienfuegos June 6, 1902; at Bern Apr. 24, 1914; retired as cons. of class six Oct. 1915; died in Long Beach, Calif., May 7, 1934.

Baldwin, Frederick W.—b. Ansonia, Conn., Aug. 1, 1885; attended sch. in Italy, England, and Switzerland; private tutors; Ansonia Normal Sch. ône yr.; Long Island Coll. Hospital 1906-8; Univ. of Rome 1909; bank clk. 1909-13; app. clk. in Am. Consulate at Florence Oct. 1, 1916; v.c. at Florence Oct. 1, 1920; app., after exam., v.c. of career of class three June 13, 1924; assigned to Florence June 23, 1924; For. Ser. officer unclass. July 1, 1924; assigned to Lausanne Sept. 5, 1925; class eight, cons., and assigned to Lausanne May 17, 1928; to Barbados July 28, 1932; to Habana Feb. 16, 1934; died in Washington June 7, 1934.

Byers, Samuel Hawkins Marshall.—b. Pulaski, Pa., July 23, 1838; studied law; 5th Iowa Inf. 1861-65, maj.; app. cons. at Zürich May 25, 1869; cons. gen. at Rome July 5, 1884; resigned 1885; app. cons. at St. Gall, Switzerland, Feb. 27, 1891; cons. gen. at St. Gall Feb. 16, 1892; resigned 1893; author; died in Los Angeles, Calif., May 25, 1933.

Drake, John H.—b. N.Y.; county judge in South Dakota; newspaper publisher; app. cons. at Kehl, Germany, Sept. 29, 1892; resigned 1894; died in Syracuse, N.Y., Feb. 22, 1934.

Early, William Wallace.—b. Aulander, N.C., Dec. 2, 1867; Wake Forest Coll., A.M.; Univ. of Va. one yr.; Univ. of Pa., M.D.; practiced medicine eighteen yrs.; app. cons. agt. at Leicester, England, July 25, 1914; resigned June 30, 1918; app., after exam., cons. of class eight July 18, 1919; class seven Sept. 5, 1919; assigned to Belize Sept. 6, 1919; For. Ser. officer of class eight July 1, 1924; assigned to San Luis Potosf Mar. 19, 1925; to Colón Apr. 12, 1929; retired Dec. **31**, 1932, under the provisions of the act of Feb. 23, 1931; died in Tampa, Fla., Sept. 28, 1933.

Fleming, Alfred John.—b. Palmyra, Mo., Apr. 20, 1851; attended public schs.; Louisville Baptist Sem.; editor and publisher; app., after exam., cml. agt. at Stanbridge Oct. 24, 1905; cons. at Aden June 22, 1906; at Yarmouth Mar. 30, 1907; retired as cons. of class eight June 28, 1915; died in St. Louis, Mo., Apr. 18, 1934.

Jay, Peter Augustus.—b. Newport, R.I., Aug. 23, 1877; attended Eton Coll. five yrs.; Harvard, A.B. 1900; app. 3d sec. of emb. at Paris Oct. 13, 1902; 2d sec. of leg. at Constantinople June 5, 1903; sec. of leg. Sept. 8, 1903; sec. of emb. at Constantinople June 28, 1906; at Tokyo June 21, 1907; agt. and cons. gen. at Cairo Dec. 21, 1909; retired Oct. 1913; app. sec. of emb. at Rome Nov. 29, 1913; sec. of emb. or leg. of class one by act approved Feb. 5, 1915; couns. of emb. at Rome July 17, 1916; E.E. and M.P. to Salvador May 4, 1920; to Rumania Apr. 18, 1921; A.E. and P. to Argentina Mar. 18, 1925; resigned Mar. 19, 1927; died in Washington Oct. 18, 1933.

Jones, William Oscar.—b. Chapmans Quarries, Pa., May 26, 1895; attended business sch., Temple Univ., and Georgetown Sch. of For. Ser.; clk. and secretary 1912-17; U.S. Army 1915-17, 2d It.; public accountant three and one-balf yrs.; app., after exam., v.c. of career of class three Oct. 6, 1923; assigned to Danzig Nov. 19, 1923; to Konigsberg May 5, 1924; For. Ser. officer unclass. July 1, 1924; assigned to Malmö Nov. 3, 1924; to Rome Feb. 17, 1927; class eight, cons., and assigned to Rome May 17, 1928; resigned Nov. 1, 1929; app. divisional asst. at \$3,800 in the Dept. of State Dec. 1, 1930; app. terminated Aug. 31, 1933; died in Washington Dec. 18, 1933.

Marye, George Thomas.—b. Baltimore, Md., Dec. 13, 1849; educated in Italy, Germany, France, Spain, and England; Cambridge, England, LL.B. 1872; mem. of bar of Calif.; law practice three yrs.; banking 1876-92; app. A.E. and P. to Russia July 9, 1914; resigned Mar. 1916; died in Washington Sept. 2, 1933.

¹Biographies of former officers who have resigned or retired are included also, if the Department has received information regarding their death.

McDowell, William Wallace.—b. Trenton, Tenn., Jan. 22, 1867; Union City Coll. grad.; bank clk. 1888–93; financial work 1893–96; mining, real estate, and ranching 1896–1933; app. E.E. and M.P. to the Irish Free State Sept. 13, 1933; died at his post Apr. 9, 1934.

Morgan, Edwin Vernon.-b. Aurora, N.Y., Feb. 22, 1865; Harvard, A.B. 1890, A.M. 1891; Univ. of Berlin 1891-92, 1894-95; instructor in hist. at Harvard 1892-94, at Adelbert Coll. 1895-98; sec. to U.S. commr. to Samoan Is. Apr.-Aug. 1899; app. sec. of leg. at Seonl Jan. 4, 1900; v. and dep. cons. gen. at Seoul Mar. 15, 1900; 2d sec. at Petrograd Mar. 9, 1901; confidential clk. to 3d asst. sec. of state Apr. 7. 1902; cons. at Dalny Jan. 22, 1904; E.E. and M.P. to Korea Mar. 18, 1905; to Cuba Nov. 29, 1905; to Paraguay and Urnguay Dec. 21, 1909; to Portugal May 24, 1911; A.E. and P. to Brazil Jan. 18, 1912; del., Pan American Inst. of Geog. and Hist., Rio de Janeiro, 1932; retired Apr. 23, 1933, under the provisions of the act of Feb. 23, 1931; died in Petropolis, Brazil, Apr. 16, 1934.

Orr, Arthur.—b. Evanston, III., Oct. 4, 1884; Sillig Inst., Switzerland; Lawrenceville Sch.; Princeton, B.S. 1906; École Libre des Sciences Politiques, Paris; app., after exam., 3d sec. of emb. at Berlin June 10, 1908; at London Nov. 18, 1908; sec. of leg. to Greece and Montenegro Mar. 31, 1910; clk., Dept. of State, June 4, 1910; 2d sec. of emb. at Rio de Janeiro Mar. 2, 1911; resigned July 25, 1911; died in St. Louis, Mo., June 5, 1933.

Von Struve, Henry Clay.—b. Shovel Monnt, Tex., July 30, 1874; Univ. of Tex., LL.B. 1894, LL.M. 1896; mem. of bars of Tex. and Mo.; in law office 1894-95, 1896-97; librarian of law sch., Unlv. of Tex., 1895-96; teacher of German and Latin in high sch. 1897-98; principal of public sch. and teacher of German in high sch. 1899-1900; law practice 1901-6; founder and editor of German newspaper 1904; asst. cashier in banks 1907-14; app., after exam.

cons. at Curação Apr. 24, 1914; cons. of class eight by act approved Feb. 5, 1915; assigned to Erfurt July 8, 1916; detailed to the Dept. Nov. 3, 1917; to Habana Sept. 18, 1918; class seven Sept. 5, 1919, and assigned to La Guaira; class slx June 4, 1920; assigned to Antilla Oct. 9, 1920; detailed to Mexicali Feb. 7, 1922; assigned to Mexicali Oct. 2, 1923; For. Ser. officer of class seven July 1, 1924; assigned to Stavanger Oct. 2, 1925; to Göteborg June 9, 1926; class six June 8, 1927; representative, Int. Chamber of Com., Stockholm, 1927; class five and assigned to Caracas July 24, 1930; to North Bay May 16, 1932; to Tenerife May 15, 1933; died at his post Nov. 5, 1933.

Whitleck, Brand.—b. Urbana, Ohio, Mar. 4, 1869; attended public schs.; private tutors; mem. of bars of 111. and Ohio; newspaper reporter 1887-90; reporter and political corr. 1890-93; clk. in office of sec. of state of 111. 1893-97; law practice 1897-1905; mayor 1905-13; author; app. E.E. and M.P. to Belgium Dec. 22, 1913; A.E. and P. to Belgium Sept. 13, 1919; resigned Dec. 1921; died in Cannes, France, May 24, 1934.

Winslow, Alan.-b. River Forest, Ill., Oct. 2, 1895; attended private schs. in U.S. and Germany; Boston Tech.; Yale two yrs.; French Army 1917; U.S. Army, 1918-19, capt., overseas service; app., after exam., sec. of emb. or leg. of class four Sept. 5, 1919; assigned to Prague Oct. 2, 1919; sec. of class three Mar. 23, 1922; assigned to the Dept. Apr. 29, 1922; asst. to the under sec. of state Aug. 15-Dec. 22, 1922; assigned to Bern Sept. 27, 1923; For. Ser. officer of class six July 1, 1924; class five Aug. 8, 1924; class four and assigned as 1st sec. at Bern Aug. 31, 1925; sec. to Am. del., Prep. Commn. for the Disarmament Conf., Geneva, 1926; 1st sec. at Mexico City Nov. 15, 1926; resigned Nov. 1, 1928; divisional asst. in the Dept. of State 1932-33; with Pan American Airways 1933; died in Ottawa, Ont., Canada, Aug. 15, 1933.

15. DIPLOMATIC, CONSULAR, AND FOREIGN SERVICE OFFICERS WHO HAVE RESIGNED, RETIRED, OR DIED IN THE SERVICE SINCE JANUARY 1, 1906¹

Name Testimentation of retirement death ister Name Pestimination of retirement death ister [Adams, Edward LeG								
Adams, Newton C. Sept. 10, 1921 1922 Baugh, Hubert G. $Fobn, 1913$ 1929 Agerton, Baylor L. Sept. 20, 1919 1929 Batter, John K. Mar. $-n, 1914$ 1929 Albert, Taibot J. Coc. 11, 1962 1926 Beaupré, Arthur M. June 28, 1913 1921 Albren, William E. (\circ) Aug. 7, 1223 1926 Belden, Perry June 30, 1924 1929 Alger, William E. (\circ) Mar. 19, 1917 1926 Belden, Perry June 30, 1924 1923 Almers, Colepte, Jr. Feb. 8, 1920 1913 Benson, Alexander. July 1, 1924 1929 Anderson, George E. June 15, 1924 1926 Belden, Forty. 1913 Berson, Alexander. July 1, 1924 1920 Anderson, Norman L. Mar. 2, 1910 1913 Berstein, Robert S. S. (\circ) Nov. 14, 1910 192 Anderson, Norman L. Mar. 2, 1910 1928 Berghaz, Leo A. Apr. 27, 1922 Nov. 14, 1910 192 Anderson, Norman L. Mar. 30, 1920 1922 Binchar, Solomo. (\diamond) Nov. 14, 1910 1912 Andrewsw, William	Name	resignation or			Name	resignation or		Reg. ister
Adams, Newton C. Sept. 10, 1921 1922 Baugh, Hubert G. $Fobn, 1913$ 1929 Agerton, Baylor L. Sept. 20, 1919 1929 Batter, John K. Mar. $-n, 1914$ 1929 Albert, Taibot J. Coc. 11, 1962 1926 Beaupré, Arthur M. June 28, 1913 1921 Albren, William E. (\circ) Aug. 7, 1223 1926 Belden, Perry June 30, 1924 1929 Alger, William E. (\circ) Mar. 19, 1917 1926 Belden, Perry June 30, 1924 1923 Almers, Colepte, Jr. Feb. 8, 1920 1913 Benson, Alexander. July 1, 1924 1929 Anderson, George E. June 15, 1924 1926 Belden, Forty. 1913 Berson, Alexander. July 1, 1924 1920 Anderson, Norman L. Mar. 2, 1910 1913 Berstein, Robert S. S. (\circ) Nov. 14, 1910 192 Anderson, Norman L. Mar. 2, 1910 1928 Berghaz, Leo A. Apr. 27, 1922 Nov. 14, 1910 192 Anderson, Norman L. Mar. 30, 1920 1922 Binchar, Solomo. (\diamond) Nov. 14, 1910 1912 Andrewsw, William	It down Edward LoG	Turker 1 1004	Oct 0 1000	1090	Postlomon Dichord M	Samt 20 1017		1000
Agerton, Baylor L					1			
Albert, Talbot J. Dec. 11, 1916							1	
Albrecht, Charles II (\circ) Aug. 7, 1929 1930 Beeler, Arel D Oct. 3, 1921								
Alder, Austin C		1				,		
Alger, William E						· · ·		
Allman, Norwood F Apr. 7, 1924 1924 Hay 2, 1924 May 2, 1924 May 2, 1932 1933 Amery, Copley, Jr Fet. 8, 1929 1933 Bell, Edward July 1, 1924 May 2, 1932 1933 Anderson, Copley, Jr Fet. 8, 1929 1933 Bell, John W Dec. 14, 1921 1924 Anderson, George E July 1, 1924 May 2, 1924 1929 Benson, Altanader July 1, 1924 1929 Anderson, Norman L Mar. 2, 1920 Dec. 2, 1930 1931 Bergholz, Lee A Apr. 7, 1923 1932 Anderson, Norman L Mar. 2, 1920 Dec. 2, 1930 1931 Berliner, Stolomon (*) Nov. 14, 1910 1913 Andrews, William W Oct. 1, 1931 1922 Berliner, Andrew, Gustave May 2, 1933 Oct. 9, 1916 1917 Armstrong, James Oct. 2, 1921 1922 Binda, John L May 2, 1933 1914 1912 (2, 1920 Armold, Frank D June 20, 1925 1926 Birch, Thomas H Mar -, 1, 1921 1921 Armold, Frank D June 20, 1925 Mar -, 1, 1920 1926								
Ames, Édward WMar.Number Mar.1913Bell, Edward(9)Oct. 23, 1924192Amosden, Charles AJuly1, 19271930Belt, John WDec. 14, 19211922Anderson, George B(9)Mar. 2, 19101913Bergh, Robert S. S(9)Feb. 17, 19231924Anderson, Ceorge BJune 11, 1913Dec. 12, 1930Bergh, Robert S. S(9)Feb. 17, 19231923Anderson, T. Hart, JNov. 19, 19211926Bergh, Robert S. S(9)Nov. 14, 10101933Anderson, T. Hart, JNov. 19, 19211926Bernstein, HermanSept. 24, 16331933Andreson, T. Hart, JOct. 1, 1931Dec. 22, 19501931Bernstein, HermanSept. 24, 16331933Andreson, JamesOct. 2, 19211922Binda, John LMar. 1, 102019421942Armelic, Charles JMar. 1, 19201926Birch, David R		1						
Amsylen, Charles A			1					
Amsden, Charles A			\$					
Anderson, George B				•				
Anderson, George E June 15, 1924								1926
Anderson, Larz.June 11, 1913								1926
Anderson, Norman L		· · ·						1926
Anderson, T. Hart, Jr. Andrews, William W. Oct. 1, 1931Nov. 19, 19211926Bernstein, Herman Beutelspacher, Gustave May 1, 1908Sept. 24, 1933 Oct. 9, 19161937Andrews, William W. Anslinger, Harry J. Armstrong, JamesOct. 1, 19311932Beutelspacher, Gustave May 2, 1903May 1, 1908Oct. 9, 19161913Armstrong, JamesOct. 2, 19211922Binda, John L. May 2, 1923May 28, 19131913Armstrong, John S., Jr. 		· · ·	Dec. 22, 1930		_ ,			1913
Andrews, William W Oct. 1,1931		· · ·		1926			1 '	1934
Anslinger, Harry JOct. 29, 1929			1				1	1913
Armstrong, James.Oct. $2, 1921$ 1922 Binda, John L.May 28, 1913 1913 Armstrong, John S., Jr.Mar. $1, 1920$ 1926 Binda, John L.May 28, 1913 1913 Arnell, Charles J.Aug. $-, 1917$ 1926 Birch, David R.Mar. 1912 Arnold, Olney.(*)Mar. $5, 1916$ 1926 Birch, Thomas H.Mar. $15, 1922$ Feb. 1924 Asbury, Charles E.Aug. $25, 1921$ 1922 Bishop, Crawford M.Nov. $16, 1915$ 1926 Atherson, LucileSept. 19, 1927 1928 Bishop, Crawford M.Nov. 1913 1913 Atterson, LucileSept. 10, 1927 1928 Biack, J. Ernest.May 28, 1933 1933 Attwell, William P.(*)July 28, 19111913Blar, Percy A.Nov. 29, 1929 1933 Austin, Richard W.Nov. 23, 1907Apr. 21, 19191913Blumenthal, WilliamApr. 19, 1929 1933 Authier, Joseph M.Oct. 16, 1009 1913 Blumenthal, WilliamApr. 19, 1929 1924 Bacon, RobertOpt. 19, 1912May 29, 19191926Bonney, Wilbert L.Dec. 29, 1927 1924 Avery, William L.July 9, 1923 1926 Borden, Edward P.May 4, 1933 1933 Bader, Ralph H.July 9, 1923 1926 Borden, Edward P.May 4, 1933 1933 Bader, Ralph H.July 9, 1924 1926 Borden, Edward P.May 4, 1933 1933 Bahdy, Kar J. <td>Anslinger, Harry J</td> <td></td> <td></td> <td>1930</td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td>1926</td>	Anslinger, Harry J			1930				1926
Armstrong, John S., Jr Mar. 1, 1920 1926 Bingham, Rutherfurd July 2, 1920 1924 Arnell, Charles J Aug, 1917 1926 Birch, David R Mar, 1914 1929 Arnold, Frank D June 20, 1925 1926 Birch, Thomas H Mar, 1914 1929 Arnold, Olney				1922				1913
Arnold, Frank D.June 20, 19251926Birch, Thomas H.Mar. 15, 1922Feb. 1, 19291930Arnold, OlneyAug. 25, 19211922Bishop, Crawford M.Nov. 16, 191519261926Bishop, William H.July 1, 19101913Atcherson, LucileSept. 19, 19271922Bishop, William H.July 2, 1910191319131913July 1, 19101913Atwell, William P.(\diamond)July 28, 19111913Black, J. Ernest.May 2, 19331933Austin, Richard W.Nov. 23, 1907Apr. 21, 19191913Blumenthal, William.Apr. 19, 19091913Austin, Richard W.Oct. 16, 190919121913Blumenthal, William.Apr. 19, 19091913Avery, William L.Dec, 19211922Buthardt, Theodore J.(\diamond)Jan. 1, 19111913Avery, William L.Dec, 19211926Bonde, Wallace C.Jan. 1, 19111913Ayre, Louis H.(\diamond)May 29, 19191926Borden, Edward P.May 4, 19331933Bader, Ralph H.July 9, 19231931Bordewich, Henry(\diamond)Mar. 19, 19121933Bailey, Gerhard A.Nov. 1, 19291931Bordewich, Henry(\diamond)Mar. 19, 19121933Bailey, James G.Jan. 1, 1926Oct, 1915May 7, 19341934Bottell, Roger S. G.Apr. 17, 19071913Bailey, James G.Jan. 1, 1926Oct. 14, 19301931Boutell, Roger S. G.Apr. 17, 19071913Baily-Bl	Armstrong, John S., Jr			1926	Bingham, Rutherfurd		1	1926
Arnold, Frank D.June 20, 19251926Birch, Thomas H.Mar. 15, 1922Feb. 1, 19291930Arnold, OlneyAug. 25, 19211922Bishop, Crawford M.Nov. 16, 191519261926Bishop, William H.July 1, 19101913Atcherson, LucileSept. 19, 19271922Bishop, William H.July 2, 1910191319131913July 1, 19101913Atwell, William P.(\diamond)July 28, 19111913Black, J. Ernest.May 2, 19331933Austin, Richard W.Nov. 23, 1907Apr. 21, 19191913Blumenthal, William.Apr. 19, 19091913Austin, Richard W.Oct. 16, 190919121913Blumenthal, William.Apr. 19, 19091913Avery, William L.Dec, 19211922Buthardt, Theodore J.(\diamond)Jan. 1, 19111913Avery, William L.Dec, 19211926Bonde, Wallace C.Jan. 1, 19111913Ayre, Louis H.(\diamond)May 29, 19191926Borden, Edward P.May 4, 19331933Bader, Ralph H.July 9, 19231931Bordewich, Henry(\diamond)Mar. 19, 19121933Bailey, Gerhard A.Nov. 1, 19291931Bordewich, Henry(\diamond)Mar. 19, 19121933Bailey, James G.Jan. 1, 1926Oct, 1915May 7, 19341934Bottell, Roger S. G.Apr. 17, 19071913Bailey, James G.Jan. 1, 1926Oct. 14, 19301931Boutell, Roger S. G.Apr. 17, 19071913Baily-Bl	Arnell, Charles J.	Aug, 1917		1926	Birch, David R	- /		1926
Arnold, Olney (*) Mar. 5, 1916 1926 Bishop, Crawford M Nov. 16, 1915		June 20, 1925		1926	Birch, Thomas H		Feb. 1, 1929	1930
Asbury, Charles E Aug. 25, 1921 1922 Bishop, William H July 1, 1910 1913 Atcherson, Lucile Sept. 19, 1927 1928 Black, J. Ernest May 2, 1933 1933 Atwell, William P	Arnold, Olney	(a)	Mar. 5, 1916	1926		Nov. 16, 1915		1926
Atwell, William P (*) July 28, 1911 1913 Blair, Percy A Nov. 20, 1929	Asbury, Charles E	Aug. 25, 1921		1922	Bishop, William H	July 1,1910		1913
Austin, Richard W Nov. 23, 1907 Apr. 21, 1919 1913 Bliss, Robert Woods July 31, 1933	Atcherson, Lucile	Sept. 19, 1927		1928	Black, J. Ernest	May 2, 1933		1933
Authier, Joseph M Oct. 16, 1909	Atwell, William P	(a)	July 28, 1911	1913	Blair, Percy A	Nov. 29, 1929		1930
Averill, Henry	Austin, Richard W	Nov. 23, 1907	Apr. 21, 1919	1913	Bliss, Robert Woods	July 31, 1933		1933
Avery, William L.Dec, 19211926Bond, Wallace C.Jan. 1, 19111.1 (1911Aymé, Louis H.(*)May 16, 19121913Bonney, Wilbert L.Dec. 29, 19271926Bacon, Robert.Apr. 19, 1912May 29, 19191926Booth, Ralph H.Dec. 29, 19271928Bach, Ralph H.July 9, 19231926Booth, Ralph H.(*)June 20, 19311933Bader, Ralph H.July 9, 19231926Booth, Ralph H.(*)May 4, 19331933Bachr, Max J.Oct, 1915May 7, 19341934Botkin, Theodosius	Authier, Joseph M	Oct. 16, 1909		1913	Blumenthal, William	Apr. 19,1909		1913
Aymé, Louis H(e)May 16, 19121913Bonney, Wilbert LDec. 29, 1927	Averill, Henry	Sept. 10, 1921		1922	Bluthardt, Theodore J	(a)	Jan. 14,1906	1913
Bacon, Robert	Avery, William L.	Dec. —, 1921		1926		Jan. 1,1911		1913
Bader, Ralph H. July 9, 1923 1926 Borden, Edward P. May 4, 1933 1933 Bading, Gerhard A. Nov. 1, 1929 1931 Bordewich, Henry. (a) Mar. 19, 1912 1933 Bading, Gerhard A. Nov. 1, 1929 Oct, 1915 May 7, 1934 1934 Bordewich, Henry. (a) May 27, 1918 1926 Bailey, Everett E. Sept. 6, 1909 1933 Boutell, Henry S. July 31, 1913 Mar. 11, 1926 1913 Bailey, James G. Jan. 1, 1926 Oct. 14, 1930 1931 Boutell, Roger S. G. Apr. 17, 1907 1913 Baker, Edward C. Dec. 19, 1919 Nov. 10, 1926 Bowerman, Paul. June 30, 1933		(a)	May 16, 1912	1913		Dec. 29, 1927		1928
Bading, Gerhard A Nov. 1, 1929		Apr. 19,1912	May 29, 1919	1926		(a)		1932
Baehr, Max J						• ·		1933
Bailey, Everett E								1913
Bailey, James G. Jan. 1, 1926 Oct. 14, 1930 1931 Boutell, Roger S. G. Apr. 17, 1907			May 7,1934			(a)		1926
Bailly-Blanchard, Arthur, Baker, Edward C (*) Dec. 19, 1919 Aug. 24, 1925 1926 Bowernan, Paul July 1, 1906	• /)				· · ·	1913
Baker, Edward C. Dec. 19, 1919 1926 Bowerman, Paul. June 30, 1933 1933 Baker, Henry D. Nov. 10, 1926 1927 Bradford, Robert R. June 30, 1933 1933 Baker, Orlando H. (*) Aug. 6, 1913 1913 Bradley, John R. June 9, 1924 1923 Baldwin, Frederick W. (*) June 7, 1934 1934 Bradley, William H. Mar. 19, 1917 192 Baldwin, George E. Dec. 25, 1906 1913 Bradley, John P. May 1, 1906 June 20, 1912 1912 Bardel, William. (*) July 28, 1925 1926 Bray, John P. (*) Dec. 20, 1917 192 Bardel, William. Mar. 18, 1920 Dec. 31, 1926 1927 Brentano, Theodore. May 6, 1927 192 Barker, W. Roswell. Mar. 1, 1928 1929 Brewer, Andrew J. Aug. 1, 1920 192								1913
Baker, Henry D Nov. 10, 1926 Image: Constraint of the system of th	-							1913
Baker, Orlando H (*) Aug. 6, 1913 1913 Bradley, John R June 9, 1924						,		1933
Baldwin, Frederick W (*) June 7, 1934 1934 Bradley, William H Mar. 19, 1917		,				· · · · ·		
Baldwin, George E Dec. 25, 1906	,							1926
Bancroft, Edgar A (*) July 28, 1925 1926 Bray, John P (*) Dec. 20, 1917 192 Bardel, William Mar. 18, 1920 Dec. 31, 1926 1927 Brentano, Theodore May 6, 1927 192 Barker, W. Roswell Mar. 1, 1928 1929 Brewer, Andrew J Aug. 1, 1920 192			(· · ·					
Bardel, William Mar. 18, 1920 Dec. 31, 1926 1927 Brentano, Theodore May 6, 1927 192 Barker, W. Roswell Mar. 1, 1928 1929 Brewer, Andrew J	, –							1913
Barker, W. Roswell Mar. 1, 1928 1929 Brewer, Andrew J Aug. 1, 1920								1926
Darnes, Frank W								1
Barrett, John Jan. 9, 1907)	
Barrett, John Jan. 9, 1907 1913 Bridgman, George H Dcc. 31, 1906 1914	-							

¹ The date in the last column of the table indicates the *Register* in which a biography last appeared. (*) indicates that an officer died in the Service. Officers still in service who have resigned and been reappointed, either to the Foreign Service or to the Department, are not included.

REGISTER OF THE DEPARTMENT OF STATE

	Name	Date of resignation or retirement	Date of death	Reg- ister	Name	Date of resignation or retirement	Date of death	Reg- ister
•	Bright, Frederick I	Apr. 20, 1912		1913	Child, Richard W	Feb. 11, 1924		1926
	Brissel, Charles F	(a)	Oct. 31, 1916	1926	Chilton, Robert S	Sept. 30, 1913		1913
	Bristow, John A	Apr, 1915		1926	Chilton, Thomas W	Mar. 22, 1926	Dec. 4, 1932	1933
	Brittain, Joseph I	July 1, 1924	Oct. 22, 1930	1931	Christian, Early B	Dec. 29 1930		1931
	Brodie, Edward E	Sept. 21, 1933		1934	Claiborne, Hamilton C	(a)	Aug. 25, 1928	1929
	Broomall, Harman L	Feb. 20, 1924		1926	Clare, Arthur J	(°)	Oct. 22, 1915	1929
	Brown, C. Inness	June 2,1922		1926	Clark, J. Reuben, Jr	Mar. 3, 1933		1933
	Brown, F. Harold	Aug. 7, 1922		1926	Clay, Brutus J	Mar. 1, 1910	June 1,1932	1933
1	Brown, Henry Rhodes	Jan. 15, 1927		1928	Cleveland, Theodore S	June 15, 1934		1934
	Brown, Philip M	July 7, 1910		1913	Cloud, Frederick D	Jan. —, 1910		1926
1	Brown, W. Duval	July 1, 1921		1926	Coates, Haskell E	Mar. 15, 1926		1927
	Bruce, D. K. E	Nov. 1, 1927		1928	Cochran, Leo F	Oct. 24, 1928		1929
	Brumer, Samuel	Sept. 14, 1917		1926	Coffin, Henry P	July 9,1911		1913
	Brunot, Hilary S	Mar. 23, 1908		1913	Coffin, William	(a)	Feb. 13, 1927	1928
	Brunswick, William W	Aug. 31, 1932	, ,	1933	Cole, George C	Dec. 31, 1915		1926
	Bryan, Charles P	Nov. 15, 1912	Mar. 12, 1918	1913	Cole, Winthrop R	Jan. 31, 1913		1913
	Bryce, Lloyd	Sept. 10, 1913	Apr. 2, 1917	1913	Coleman, Chapman	July —, 1915	Jan. 10, 1917	1926
	Buckler, William H	June 16, 1909		1926	Coleman, Frederick W. B.	May 1, 1933		1933
	Buckner, George W	Aug. 5, 1915		1926	Collier, William M	Aug. 6, 1928		
	Bundy, Richard C	June 30, 1924	Mar. 8, 1932	1933	Colman, George T	Mar. 1, 1925		1926
	Burgher, Robert S	Feb. 17, 1929		1930	Combs, Leslie	Feb. 28, 1911		1913
	Burlingham, Lloyd	Oct. 15, 1921		1926	Conant, Harry A	Sept. 30, 1917	Jan. 28, 1925	1926
	Burnell, Albro L	(a)	Mar. 19, 1921	1922	Conner, Jacob E	Apr. —, 1913		
	Burri, Alfred T	Jan. 31, 1934		1934	Cook, Willis C	June 23, 1929		1930
	Buss, Claude A	Jan. 28, 1934		1934	Cooke, Arthur B	June 30, 1934		1
	Butler, Hamilton	Jan. 1, 1913	D 00 1010	1913	Coolidge, John G	Nov. —, 1908		
	Byington, A. Homer	Sept. 1, 1907	Dec. 29, 1910	1913	Cornelius, George O	Sept. 19, 1907		1913
	Cable, Philander L	May 1, 1930		1931	Correll, Irvin C	Mar. 15, 1924		
	Caldwell, John C	Aug. 31, 1909	Dec. 6 1000	1913	Coster, Charles H	May 6, 1927		
	Caldwell, John L	May -, 1921	Dec. 6, 1922	1926	Cottrell, Jesse S	Feb. 21, 1928		. 1929
	Calhoun, William J	May 15, 1913	Sept. 19, 1916	1913	Cournoyer, Gaston A	June 30, 1933		
	Campbell, Charles, Jr	May 31, 1918		1926	Covert, John C	July 31, 1909		1
	Campbell, Harry Canada, William W	June 30, 1933	May 17, 1921	1933 1926	Coxe, Francis T Cram, Paul H	Feb. 29, 1916		1
	Capps, Edward	Apr. 1, 1918		1920	Crane, Charles R.	Aug. 23, 1928 June —, 1921)
	Carey, Henry R	Mar. 4, 1921 Aug. 25, 1921		1922	Crane, Richard	Nov. 1, 1921		1922
	Carpenter, Fred W	Nov, 1913		1926	Crane, Robert T	July 19, 1913		
	Carrigan, Clarence	(a)	Dec. 22, 1929	1930	Creevey, Edward A	Feb, 1914		1926
	Carroll, B. Harvey	(a)	Mar. 31, 1922	1926	Cresson, William P	Aug. 15, 1917	May 12, 1932	1933
	Carroll, Joseph W	Oct. 14, 1926		1927	Crosby, George J	Dec. 31, 1922		. 1926
	Carroll, Philip	(a)	Dec. 15, 1906	1913	Crowder, Enoch H	Sept. 1, 1927	May 7, 1932	1933
	Carroll, Randolph F	Apr. 4, 1929		1930	Crowninshield, Caspar S	(a)	Sept. 26, 1910	1913
	Carter, Henry	Sept. 1, 1930			Crum, William D	(0)	Dec. 7, 1912	1913
	Carter, John R	Sept. 29, 1911		1913	Culbertson, William S	Aug. 19, 1933		. 1934
	Castle, Clarence A	Apr. 18, 1924			Culver, Henry S	July 1, 1924		. 1926
	Castle, William R., Jr	June 30, 1930		1932	Curtice, Raymond S	(a)	Feb. 15, 1922	1926
	Caughy, Charles M	Nov. 27, 1912	Aug. 27, 1913	1913	Curtis, Charles B	Aug. 12, 1933		. 1934
	Cauldwell, Frederic W	Jan. 1, 1914		1926	Curtis, James L	(a)	Oct. 24, 1917	1926
	Cawston, Arthur H	Apr. 15, 1925		1926	Cutting, W. Bayard, Jr	July 13, 1909	Mar. 10, 1910	1913
	Chabot, Frederick C	Dec. 25, 1924		. 1926	Dabney, Thomas E	Dec. 25, 1911		1913
	Chamberlain, George A	Aug. 7, 1919		1926	Damm, Henry C. A	(a)	Aug. 24, 1929	1930
	Chandler, Charles L	Mar. 1, 1915		. 1926	Daniels, Charles N	Nov. 10, 1916	Dec. 17, 1916	1926
	Chapin, Albert C			1926	Daniels, Thomas L	Sept. 21,1929		. 1930
	Chapman, Charles H	May 9,1919		1926	Davidson, James W	Feb. 10, 1906		. 1913
	Chapman, Flavius J., 3d.	June 30, 1933		1933	Davis, Chester W	Sept. 8,1929		. 1930
	Chase, Benjamin F	Aug. 22, 1925	Nov. 25, 1925	1926	Davis, George F	(a)	Feb. 13, 1912	1913
	Cheney, Arthur S	(a)	Dec. 28, 1908	1913	Davis, James P	Mar. 10, 1925		
	Cheney, Elias H		Aug. 26, 1924	1926	Davis, John W			. 1926
	Cheshire, Fleming D		June 13, 1922	1926	Davis, Raymond	(a)	Jan. 24, 1933	1933
	Chester, Frank D	July 1,1908		1913	Davis, Robert B	Aug. 4, 1920		1922

OFFICERS WHO HAVE RESIGNED, RETIRED, OR DIED SINCE 1906 287

	Name	Date of resignation or retirement	Date of death	Reg- ister	Name	Date of resignation or retirement	Date of death	Reg- ister
$ \begin{array}{c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c $	Davis Roy T	Sept 10 1033		1034	Edwards Alanson W	June 30 1006		1012
$ \begin{array}{l c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c$							1	1
$ \begin{array}{c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c $								
					-			
$ \begin{array}{c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c $			-					
	De Castro, Hector			1913	Ellis, George W			1913
$ \begin{array}{c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c $	Deedmeyer, Frank	Sept, 1914		1926		June 30, 1933		1933
								1913
Dennis, Lawrence. June 15, 1927 1928 Ewart, John J. Nov 15, 1924 1926 Ide Olivares, José. Nov. 30, 1932 Mar. 22, 1931 1932 Fernand, F. Kitchel. Nov. 24, 1926 1927 de Saulles, John L. May 28, 1914 Aug. 3, 1917 1926 Fee, William T. (or) Apr. 1, 1919 1926 D'flatteville, Faul G. Aug. 13, 1008 1913 Filed, Carties D. (or) Apr. 1, 1919 1939 Dickinson, Charles M. Oct. 1, 1907 1913 Filed, Pattie H. Mar. 31, 1031 1932 1926 Dickinson, Charles M. Oct. 1, 1907 1913 Filed, Pattie H. June 27, 1929 1930 Dickinson, Corge W. June 6, 1908 1913 Filed, Pattie H. June 27, 1929 1930 Dickerns, Cerrit John. (or) Dice 20, 1930 1914 Filed, Sample M. (or) Apr. 3, 1921 1926 Dickerns, Gerit John. (or) Dec. 31, 1912 1926 Forbus, Sample B. Nov. 18, 1923 1930 Dilitaghan, Frank. Sept, 1910								
$ \begin{array}{c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c $								
$ \begin{array}{c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c $								
$ \begin{array}{c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c $								
Dickinson, Charles M Oct. 1, 1907 1913 Field, Patils H June 27, 1929		-						1
$ \begin{array}{c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c $								
Diehl, Howard F Aug. 2, 1929 1630 Fleming, Alfred J June 28, 1915 Apr. 18, 1934 1934 Diekema, Gerrit John (c) Dec. 20, 1930 1933 Fleming, Rufus	Dickson, Almar F	June 27,1908		1913	Fisher, Fred D	June 30, 1932		1933
Diekerma, Gerrit John (e) Dec. 20, 1930 1931 Fleming, Rufus (e) Apr. 3, 1920 1928 Dietrich, Herman R Dec. 31, 1912 1913 Fletcher, Henry P	Diederich, Henry W	July 1, 1924	Feb. 8, 1926	1927	Fitzpatrick, Ulysses S	Dec. 19, 1919		1922
		Aug. 2, 1929				June 28, 1915	Apr. 18,1934	1934
$ \begin{array}{c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c $	-		Dec. 20, 1930				Apr. 3, 1920	
Dillingham, FrankSept. — 19151926Forbus, Sample B.Nov. 18, 1922								
$ \begin{array}{c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c $								
						- ·		
			1					
	Doughten, J. Preston	May 17,1929		1930	Francis, Charles S	Apr. 1,1910		1913
		July 1, 1924		1926		May 18,1921	Jan. 15, 1927	1928
		Apr. 18, 1922	Sept. 19, 1925				July 15,1929	1930
DuBois, James T June 15, 1913 May 27, 1920 1913 [Freeman, Charles M July 1, 1924 1926 Dudley, Irving B (°) Nov. 27, 1911 1913 Frost, Franklin B (°) Dec. 21, 1929 1930 Dudley, L. Edwin June 30, 1908 Interast, Fairman R Mar, 1915 1926 Duffee, George G Dec. 10, 1923 Interss, Fairman R Mar, 1913 1926 Dulay, L. Edwin							1	
Dudley, Irving B								
Duffee, George G.Dec. 10, 1923								
$ \begin{array}{ c c c c c c c c c c c c c$								
Dumont, Frederick T. F. Mar. 31, 1934								
Dunlap, Hiram J June 30, 1913								
Durkee, Roland A Jan. 18, 1918	Dunlap, Hiram J	June 30, 1913		1913	Gale, Esson McD			1913
Dutrow, Richard C Sept. 10, 1928	Dunning, James E	Mar. 1,1914		1926	Gale, William H	Jan. 26, 1929	Apr. 25, 1932	1933
Dyer, Francis J				1926			Oct. 27, 1911	1913
Eager, George E. Mar. 13, 1917							1	
Earle, George H., 3d Mar. 25, 1934								
Early, William W Dec. 31, 1932 Sept. 28, 1933 1934 Gassett, Percival July 1, 1924 Apr. 13, 1929 1930 Eastin, Fred C., Jr Aug. 15, 1927								
Eastin, Fred C., Jr Aug. 15, 1927								
Eberhardt, Charles C Sept. 24, 1933 1934 Gaulin, Alphonse Aug. 31, 1929 1930 Eddy, Spencer F Sept. 29, 1909 1913 Geissler, Arthur H Mar. 31, 1930 1931 Edelman, Samuel Feb, 1917 1926 Gerard, James W May 14, 1917 1926								
Eddy, Spencer F Sept. 29, 1909 1913 Geissler, Arthur H Mar. 31, 1930 1931 Edelman, Samuel Feb, 1917 1926 Gerard, James W May 14, 1917 1926								
Edelman, Samuel Feb, 1917								
					-			
				1933				

REGISTER OF THE DEPARTMENT OF STATE

1.

1

Gill, J. Francis Feb. 21, 1922 1926 Harris, Charles B. July 9, 1910 Gilman, Joseph T. June 21, 1932 1933 Harris, Heaton W. Sept. 13, 1920 Giroux, Arthur B. July 9, 1925 1933 Harrison, Leland. Oct. 9, 1930 Gidtings, John Sterett. June 30, 1933 1933 Hart, Charles C. Oct. 31, 1933 [Glazebrook, Otis A. Mar. 8, 1929 Apr. 26, 1931 1933 Harter, Eugene C	1922 1913 1927 1913 1926 1931 1926 1933 1930 1929 1926 1926 1926 1926 1934 1913 1928 1927 1928
Gest, Sydney G. Apr. 21, 1933 1933 Harmony, Julio June -, 1906 May 1, 1926 Gilford, George June 30, 1913 1913 Harriman, Oliver B. July 9, 1910 Gilman, Joseph T. June 21, 1932 1933 Harris, Charles B. July 9, 1910 Girtung, John Sterett. June 30, 1933 Harris, Heaton W. Sept. 13, 1920 May 1, 1926 Girtung, John Sterett. June 30, 1933 Hart, Charles C. Oct. 31, 1933 Mart. [Goding, Frederic W	1913 1927 1913 1926 1931 1926 1933 1929 1926 1934 1929 1926 1934 1929 1926 1934 1927 1928 1927 1926
Gifford, George June 30, 1913 Inariman, Oliver B (e) May 1, 1926 Gill, J. Francis Feb. 21, 1922 1926 Harris, Charles B July 9, 1910 Inardian Gilman, Joseph T June 20, 1933 1933 Harris, Heaton W Sept. 13, 1920 Sept. 13, 1920 Giroux, Arthur B July 29, 1925 1926 Harrison, Leland Oct. 9, 1930 Sept. 13, 1933 Gilasey, Frank P. S. Jan. 9, 1929 Apr. 26, 1931 1933 Hart, Charles C June 22, 1933 June 22, 1933 [Godig, Frederic W July 1, 1924 May 4, 1933 1933 Hartwan, Charles S Mar. 5, 1922 Aug. 3, 1929 Godids, James H Oct , 1921 1922 Harvey, Goorge Nov, 1921 Aug. 20, 1928 Godidr, James H Feb. 10, 1922 Jan. 26, 1917 1926 Harvey, Roland B Oct. 15, 1917 Nov. 14, 1917 Gorace, William L (e) Jan. 26, 1917 1926 Havkins, J. Cameron Sept. 5, 1926 July 12, 1927 Grace, William J (e) Kar, 1933 1933 Haxikns, Thornwell June -, 1925 June 24, 1916 Grace, William J	1927 1913 1926 1931 1934 1926 1933 1930 1929 1926 1926 1934 1913 1928 1927 1926
Gill, J. Francis Feb. 21, 1922 1926 Harris, Charles B. July 9, 1910 Gilman, Joseph T. June 21, 1932 1933 Harris, Heaton W. Sept. 13, 1920 Giroux, Arthur B. July 9, 1925 1933 Harrison, Leland. Oct. 9, 1930 Gidtings, John Sterett. June 30, 1933 1933 Hart, Charles C. Oct. 31, 1933 [Glazebrook, Otis A. Mar. 8, 1929 Apr. 26, 1931 1933 Harter, Eugene C	1913 1926 1931 1934 1926 1933 1930 1929 1926 1926 1934 1913 1928 1927 1926
Gilman, Joseph T June 21, 1932	1931 1934 1926 1933 1930 1929 1926 1926 1934 1913 1928 1927 1926
Giroux, Arthur B July 29, 1925	1934 1926 1933 1930 1929 1926 1926 1934 1913 1928 1927 1926
Gittings, John Sterett June 30, 1933	1926 1933 1930 1929 1926 1926 1934 1934 1913 1928 1927 1926
	1933 1930 1929 1926 1926 1934 1913 1928 1927 1926
	1930 1929 1926 1926 1934 1913 1928 1927 1926
Goldschmidt, LouisOct.2, 1913Image: space	1929 1926 1926 1934 1913 1928 1927 1926
Gonzales, William EOct. $-$, 1921 $-$ 1922Harvey, Horace JAug. 29, 1914Goodier, James HFeb. 10, 1922Jan. 26, 19171926Harvey, Roland BOct. 15, 1917Nov. 14, 1917Gore, John A(a)Jan. 26, 19171926Haskell, Lewis WDec. 31, 1933Oct. 15, 1917Dec. 31, 1933Gottschalk, Alfred L. M(a)June 14, 19181926Haven, Don SJuly 17, 1927Dec. 31, 1933Grace, William J(a)Kog. 10, 19111913Haynes, ThornwellJuly 17, 1927Grace, William T(b)Feb. 28, 19221926Haynes, ThornwellJuly 23, 1918Gracey, Samuel L(a)Mar. 18, 19261927Haynes, ThornwellJuly 23, 1918Grant-Smith, UJan. 29, 1930Ct. 7, 19281927Heald, Perley CSept. 18, 1906Graves, Charles HMay 9, 19311932Heath, Charles TApr. 24, 1923Greene, Roger SAug. 8, 19141926Heerin, Charles TMay 25, 1917Greene, Roger SAug. 8, 19141926Heerin, Charles TMay 17, 1915Grevstad, Nicolay AFeb, 19151926Heimrod, GeorgeJune 25, 1914Griffiths, John L(a)May 17, 1914Heirer, Oscar S(a)Mar. 30, 1917Griffiths, John L(b)May 5, 1922Mar. 26, 1933Henry, Harold O(a)June 25, 1921Greene, Roger S <td>1926 1926 1934 1913 1928 1927 1926</td>	1926 1926 1934 1913 1928 1927 1926
Goodier, James H.Feb. 10, 19221926Harvey, Roland B.Oct. 15, 1917Nov. 14, 1917Gore, John A.(*)Jan. 26, 19171926Haskell, Lewis W.Dec. 31, 1933July 12, 1908Gotdschalk, Alfred L. M.(*)June 14, 19181926Haskins, Thomas W.(*)July 12, 1908Gould, Ozro C.Sept. 5, 1917	1926 1934 1913 1928 1927 1926
Gore, John A	1934 1913 1928 1927 1926
Gottschalk, Alfred L. M (*) June 14, 1918 1926 Haskins, Thomas W (*) July 12, 1908 Gould, Ozro C Sept. 25, 1917	1913 1928 1927 1926
Gould, Ozro C	1928 1927 1926
Grace, William J(e)Feb. 11.19331933 Aug. 19,1911Hawkins, J. Cameron Haynes, ThornwellSept. 5, 1926 June $-$, 1925Gracey, Samuel L(e)Aug. 19,19111913 Haynes, ThornwellJune $-$, 1925Grancey, Wilbur TFeb. 28, 1922	1927 1926
Gracey, Samuel L.(*)Aug. 19, 19111913Haynes, ThornwellJune -, 1925Gracey, Wilbur T.Feb. 28, 19221926Hays, Ferry C.July 23, 1918Jule -, 1925Granam, Charles I.Mar. 18, 19261927Haywood, William(*)July 5, 1922Graves, Charles H.Apr, 1914Oct. 7, 19281929Heald, Perley C.Sept. 18, 1906Graves, Charles H.Apr, 1914Oct. 7, 19281929Headd, Perley C.Sept. 18, 1906Graves, Samuel.May 9, 19311932Heath, JohnMay 25, 1917Greene, Roger S.Aug. 8, 19141926Heek, Lewis.Dec. 13, 1920Greene, W. Maxwell.Apr. 30, 1915Aug. 25, 19201926Heenan, Thomas E.(*)Greene, W. Marwell.Feb. 7, 19121913Heimrod, George.June -, 1914Dec. 12, 1921Grestad, Nicolay A.Feb, 19151926Heimrod, George.June -, 1914Dec. 12, 1921Grifith, P. Merrill.Oct. 21, 19171926Heimrod, George.June -, 1914Mar. 30, 1917Grifiths, John L.(*)May 17, 19141926Heingartner, Alexander.(*)Sept. 18, 1922Griscom, Lloyd C.June 14, 19091913Henry, Harold O.(*)Sept. 15, 1922Grosts, ChristianMay 5, 1932Mar. 26, 19331933Henry, William W.Aug. 5, 1909Jlorott, John H.July 1, 19241926Herrod, William P., 2d.Sept. 15, 1922Greather, Richard.Dec. 9, 1912Ap	1926
Gracey, Wilhur T Feb. 28, 1922 1926 Häys, Perry C July 23, 1918	
Graham, Charles I	
Grant-Smith, U Jan. 29, 1930	1918
Graves, Charles H Apr, 1914 Oct. 7, 1928 1929 Heald, Perley C Sept. 18, 1906	1913 1926
Gray, John H Feb. 5, 1927	1920
Green, Samuel	1926
Greene, Roger S	1926
Greene, W. Maxwell Apr. 30, 1915 Aug. 25, 1920 1926 Heenan, Thomas E (*) June 25, 1914 Gregory, John H., Jr Feb. 7, 1912 1913 Heimke, William May 17, 1915 June 25, 1914 Gregory, John H., Jr Feb. 7, 1912 1913 Heimke, William May 17, 1915 June 25, 1914 Gregory, John H., Jr Feb, 1915 1926 Heimke, William	1922
Gregory, John H., Jr Feb. 7, 1912 1913 Heimke, William May 17, 1915	1926
Grevstad, Nicolay A Feb, 1915 1926 Heimrod, George June -, 1914 Dec. 12, 1921 Griffith, P. Merrill Oct. 21, 1917 1926 Heimrod, George June -, 1914 Dec. 12, 1921 Griffiths, John L (*) May 17, 1914 1926 Heingartner, Alexander	1926
Griffith, P. Merrill Oct. 21, 1917 1926 Heingartner, Alexander (*) Mar. 30, 1917 Griffiths, John L (*) May 17, 1914 1926 Heizer, Oscar S Feb. 28, 1933	1926
Griffiths, John L	1926
Grinstead, Durward Sept. 18, 1929 1930 Hendrick, Michael J (*) Sept. 9, 1922 Griscom, Lloyd C June 14, 1909 1913 Henry, Harold O (*) Jan. 1, 1912 Gross, Christian May 5, 1932 Mar. 26, 1933 1933 Henry, William W Aug. 5, 1903 Jan. 1, 1912 Grout, John H July 1, 1924 1926 Herod, William P., 2d Sept. 15, 1922	1933
Griscom, Lloyd C June 14, 1909 1913 Henry, Harold O (o) Jan. 1, 1912 Gross, Christian May 5, 1932 Mar. 26, 1933 1933 Henry, William W Aug. 5, 1909 []Grout, John H	1926
Igrout, John H July 1, 1924 1926 Herod, William P., 2d Sept. 15, 1922 Guenther, Richard Dec. 9, 1912 Apr. 5, 1913 1913 Herod, William P., 2d Sept. 15, 1922 Guggenheim, Harry F Apr. 2, 1933 1933 Herter, Christian A	1913
Guenther, Richard Dec. 9, 1912 Apr. 5, 1913 1913 Herrick, Myron T (*) Mar. 31, 1929 Guggenheim, Harry F Apr. 2, 1933 1933 Herter, Christian A Mar. 22, 1920	1913
Guggenheim, Harry F Apr. 2, 1933 1933 Herter, Christian A Mar. 22, 1920	1926
	1930
Guild, Curtis June 24 1913 Apr. 6 1915 1913 Hessler William H Mar 26 1930	1922
	1931
	1933
	1929
	1913
	1926
	1913
Guyant, Claude E Jan. 30, 1926 1927 Hill, David J Sept. 2, 1911 Mar. 2, 1932 Hadley, Frank W June, 1913 1913 Hill, Frank D	1933
	1913 1926
	1920
Hale, Franklin D July -, 1918	1926
	1933
	1913
	1913
	1930
	1933
	1926
	1913
	1930
Handley, William W (*) Sept. 27, 1919 1926 Holder, Charles A July 27, 1916	1926
Hanna, Philip C Dec. 31, 1919 Feb. 17, 1929 1930 Hollis, W. Stanley (*) June 8, 1930	1931
Hanna, Rea	1926
	1913
Hanson, George M	1927

Name	Date of resignation or retirement	Date of death	Reg- ister	Name	Date of resignation or retirement	Date of death	Reg- ister
Hana Leighten	(a)	Tom 20 1097	1099	Longe William Orang	Nov. 1 1090	Dec. 19 1022	1024
Hope, Leighton Hornibrook, William H		Jan. 20, 1927	1928 1926	Jones, William Oscar Jordan, Royal R	Nov. 1,1929 Sept. 25,1929	Dec. 18, 1933	1934
Horton, George	Oct. 11, 1910		1926	Judah, Noble Brandon	May 31, 1929		1930 1930
Hostetter, Louis	Oct, 1917		1926	Judelsohn, Montefiore	Nov. 9, 1919		
Hotchkiss, E. Scott	Sept, 1913		1913	Kagey, Charles L	Apr. 9, 1925		1926
Hotschick, George M	(a)	July 12, 1911	1913	Kalser, Louis	July 3, 1909		1913
Houghton, Alanson B			1930	Karnes, William.	Feb. 2, 1933		1933
Howard, Henry Clay	Sept. 9, 1913		1913	Kaufman, David E	Aug. 15, 1933		1934
Howard, R. Flournoy	May 23, 1925		1926	Keene, Francis B	July 1, 1924		1926
Howe, Church	Oct. 11, 1912		1913	Kehl, John E	Sept. 30, 1933		1934
Howe, William S	Dec. 24, 1917		1926	Keiser, Robert L	Dec. 31, 1928		1929
Howell, Comer	June 1,1929		1930	Kelley, William F	(a)	Mar. 4, 1916	1926
Howell, J. Morton	July 6, 1927		1928	Kellogg, James C	June —, 1914	Nov. 18, 1916	1926
Howells, Joseph A	July 7, 1912	Aug 10, 1912	1913	Kent, William P	July 1, 1924		1926
Huggins, Harold C	Apr. 23, 1917		1926	Kerens, Richard C	June 26, 1913	Sept. 4,1916	1913
Huhn, Tevis	June 30, 1933		1933	Killmaster, George B	Mar. —, 1915		1926
Hull, Willard B	Dec. 31, 1909		1913	King, H. Gilbert	Aug. 20, 1923		1926
Hunt, George W. P	Oct. —, 1921		1922	King, Hamilton	(a)	Sept. 2,1912	1913
[Hunt, William H	Dec. 31, 1932		1933	King, James C	Sept. 27, 1928		1929
Hunter, William D	Dec. 31, 1920	Dec. 11, 1923	1926	King, Pendleton	(a)	July 31, 1913	1913
Hurd, Alan T	May 12, 1928		1929	Kirjassoff, Max D	(°)	Sept. 1, 1923	1926
Hurst, Carlton Bailey	July 31, 1931		1932	Kirk, Milton B	Jan. 2, 1923	Mar. 28, 1930	1931
Huston, Jay C	(a)	Sept. 14, 1932	1933	Kltchen, William W	(a)	Oct. 16, 1912	1913
Hutchinson, Norman	Sept. 26, 1909	Dec. 21, 1924	1913	Knabenshue, Samuel S	July -, 1914		1926
Iddings, Lewis M.	Mar, 1910	Dec. 26, 1921	1913	Knowles, Horace G	Aug. 23, 1913	3.6 00 1000	1913
Ide, Henry C	Aug. 23, 1913	June 12, 1921	1913	Kodding, Trojan	(a)	May 22, 1933	1933
Ifft, George N.	Jan. 26, 1930		1931	Kornfeld, Joseph S	Sept. 1, 1924		1926
Ingersoll, George P	June 20, 1918		1926	Kreeck, George L Krisel, Alexander	Feb. 5,1930		1931
Ingram, Augustus E	Apr. 6, 1925		1926 1926	Krogh, Gerhard H	Mar. 30. 1918 Jan. 1, 1925		1926
Ingram, Donald McC Ives, John R	Oct. 10, 1920		1926 1929	Laing, James O	Jan. 1, 1925 May 29, 1919	Jan. 24, 1931	1926
Jackson, George H	Sept. 27, 1928 Jan. —, 1914		1929	Lakin, Harry M.	Feb. 11, 1930	Jau. 24, 1901	$1932 \\ 1931$
Jackson, John B	Feb. 17, 1917	Dec. 20, 1920	1926	Lamb, Eugene M.	Dec. 19, 1916		1926
Jackson, William I	(a)	Nov. 2, 1930	1931	Lancaster, Bruce	June 30, 1933		1933
Jacobson, S. Bertrand	Oct. 22, 1927		1928	Lanctot, Raymond	(a)	June 3, 1932	1933
James, Douglas	Sept. 22, 1933		1934	Landon, Francis G	June 1, 1907		1913
Jameson, J. Paul	Mar. 15, 1922		1926	Lang. Paul.	(a)	Oct. 31, 1911	1913
Janes, Henry L	Dec. 12, 1912		1913	Lange, Erwin F	Aug. 19, 1917		1926
Jardine, William M	Sept. 5, 1933		1934	Langhorne, Marshall	Dec. 15, 1919		1926
Jay, Peter Augustus	Mar. 19, 1927	Oct. 18, 1933	1934	Lasseter, Dillard B	Oct. 18, 1923		1926
Jefferson, Benjamin L	Oct, 1921		1926	Latham, Charles L	Jan. 30, 1924		1926
Jeffery, Robert E	June 4.1921		1926	Lathrop, Lorin A	July 1,1924	Jan. 22, 1929	1930
Jenkins, John	June 23, 1907		1913	Laughlin, Irwin B	Apr. 12,1933		193 3
Jenkins, William L.	Oct. 31, 1927		1928	Lawton, Ezra M	Aug. 22,1929	June 26,1931	1932
Jewell, John F	(a)	Oct. 23, 1927	1928	Lay, Tracy	Mar. 31, 1928		1929
Jewett, Milo A	(a)	Feb. 25, 1921	1926	Layton, Thomas B. L	Oct. 31, 1922		1926
Johnson, Felix S. S.	(a)	Dec. 14, 1927	1928	Leach, Richard S	Oct. 19, 1927		
Johnson, Henry A	July 1,1924		1926	Leavell, William H	July 1,1919		1926
Johnson, James W	Sept. 1, 1913	25	1913	Leavitt, Arthur H	Sept. 24, 1917		1926
Johnson, Jesse H	Mar. 7, 1923	Mar. 17, 1928	1929	LeClercq, Frederic D. K	Aug. 8,1929		1930
Johnson, Joseph L.	Oct, 1921		1926	Ledoux, Urbain J	June 5, 1907		1926
Johnson, Robert U	Mar. 4, 1921	Foot 10 1096	1922	Lee, Frederic E	Nov. 2, 1922		1926
Johnson, Stewart	(°)	Sept. 10, 1926	1927	Lee, Joseph W. J	Mar. 1, 1908		1913
Johnston, James	Aug. 10, 1909		1913 1933	Leffingwell, Albert	Sept. 29, 1906	Mor 97 1004	1913
Jones. Alfred W Jones, Arthur M	May 17, 1932 Mar. 31, 1915	Dec. 6, 1917	1935	Leishman, John G. A LeRoy, James A	Oct. 4, 1913 Aug. 11, 1907	Mar. 27, 1924 Feb. —, 1909	1913 1913
Jones, Floyd S	Mar. 10, 1913	1060. 0, 1917	1920	Lespinasse, Alphonse J	Dec. 31, 1907		
Jones, John Edward	(a)	May 20, 1918	1924	Levisee, Scott S	Apr. 6, 1927		1926 1928
Jones, T. Sambola	, 1920	Widy 20, 1510	1926	Lieber, Peter	June 30, 1908		1913
Jones, Thomas C			1913	Lieberknecht, Adam			

67359-34-20

REGISTER OF THE DEPARTMENT OF STATE

Name	Date of resignation or	Date of	Reg-	Name	Date of resignation or	Date of	Reg-
	retirement	death	ister		retirement	death	ister
Liefeld, E. Theophilus	June 30, 1908		1913	McLean, Arthur	(a)	Dec. 29, 1918	1926
Linard, Drew	(a)	May 22, 1927	1928	McMackin, John	(a)	Aug. 13, 1906	1913
Listoe, Soren	Nov. 14, 1920		1926	McMillan, Neal	Aug. 31, 1909	Dec. 11, 1920	1913
Llvingston, C. Ludlow	Feb. 15, 1922		1926	McMillin, Benton	Dec, 1921	Jan. 8, 1933	1933
Livingston, Lemuel W	Dec. 17, 1919	Dec. 18, 1930	1931	McNally, James C	(a)	Aug. 4, 1920	1926
Logan, George L	Sept. 16, 1920		1926	McNeely, Robert N	(a)	Dec. 30, 1915	1926
Long, Boaz W	Feb. 1, 1922		1926	McNerney, Gerald F	(a)	Feb. 7, 1933	1933
Long, James V	May -, 1914		1926	Mellon, Andrew W	Mar. 17, 1933		1933
Loop, Carl R	(a)	July 29, 1923	1926	Merrill, Selah	Sept. 18, 1908	Jan, 1909	1913
Lorillard, George L	Jan. 8, 1917		1926	Merry, William L	July 28, 1911	Dec. 14, 1911	1913
Lowrie, Will L	Mar. 31, 1934		1934	Metcalf, Horace W	Jan. 12, 1912		1913
Lowry, Edward P	(a)	Nov. 11, 1930	1931	Meyer, Cord	Dec. 30, 1924		1926
Lumry, Carl C	Dec. 10, 1921		1922	Meyer, George von L	Mar, 1907	Mar. 9, 1918	1913
Lupton, Stuart K	Dec. 31, 1928		1929	Michael, William H	Dec. 23, 1912	May 17, 1916	1913
Lyon, Ernest	Aug. 22, 1910		1913	Michelson, Albert H	(a)	June 9, 1915	1926
MacClintock, Samuel	Apr. 16, 1910		1913	Miles, Basil	Sept. 1,1908	June 14, 1928	1929
Mackenzie, Harold O	Mar. 30, 1930		1931	Miller, Christian C	July 19, 1920		1926
Mackie, William H. T	Sept. 22, 1930		1931	Miller, Clarence A	Sept. 20, 1914		1926
MacMaster, Frederic D	Dec. 31, 1906		1913	Miller, G. Harlan	Dec. 31, 1928		1929
MacNider, Hanford	Aug. 31, 1932		1933	Miller, Henry B	Nov. 8, 1910	Nov. 28, 1921	1913
MacVeagh, Charles	Dec. 9,1929	Dec. 4, 1931	1933	Miller, J. Martin	Dec. 31, 1907		1913
Magelssen, William C	(a)	Oct. 17, 1919	1926	Miller, Ransford S	(a)	Apr. 26, 1932	1933
Magill, Samuel E	(*)	Jan. 29, 1913	1913	Mills, William W	Mar. 31, 1907	Feb. 10, 1913	1913
Maginnis, S. Abbot	Dec, 1921	T	1922	Millspaugh, Arthur C	Sept. 1,1922		1926
Magoon, Charles E	Oct. 12, 1906	Jan. 14, 1920	1913	Milmore, Oscar L	Aug. 9, 1921		1922
Mahin, Frank W	July 1, 1924	Aug. 18, 1000	1926	Milner, James B	July 1, 1924		1926
Malmros, Oscar	June 23, 1909	Aug. 18, 1909	1926	Mitchell, Charles E	Mar. 22, 1933	Jupo 16 1020	1933
Man, Ernest A Manning, Bernard	Jan. 21, 1911 Jan. 11, 1912	Dec. 15, 1917	1913 1913	Mitchell, Mason Mitchell, W. M. Parker	July 1, 1924 June 30, 1933	June 16, 1930	1931 1933
Manning, Isaac A	July 1, 1912		1913	Moe, Alfred K	Mar. 6, 1914		1935
Manning, Raphael A	June 2, 1925		1926	Moffatt, Thomas P	Mar. 29, 1911		1913
Mansfield, Robert E	Dec. 31, 1916	Sept. 18, 1925	1926	Monaghan, James C	(a)	Nov. 19, 1917	1926
Manton, Benjamin D	June 30, 1906	July 30, 1911	1913	Monges, Richard G	Nov. 10, 1924		1926
Marburg, Theodore	Jan. —, 1914		1926	Monroe, Gustavus L., Jr	Mar. 28, 1912		1913
Marquis, Joseph A	Feb. 12, 1925		1926	Moomaw, John C	June 30, 1924		1926
Marsh, Richard O	Mar. 9, 1911		1913	Mooney, Daniel F	June 13, 1921	Nov. 14, 1930	1931
Martin, Chester W	July 1, 1924		1926	Moore, Alexander P	(a)	Feb. 17, 1930	1931
Martin, John F	Sept. 23, 1929		1930	Moore, Thomas E	Oct. 1, 1928		1929
Martin, Lewis A	Sept. 17, 1909		1913	Moos, Morton F	Feb. 28, 1919		1926
Martin, William	June 30, 1909		1913	Morales, Franklin E	Mar. 4, 1925		1926
Marye, George T	Mar. —, 1916	Sept. 2, 1933	1934	Moran, John E	June 15, 1928		1929
Mason, Dean B	(a)	Jan. 16, 1917	1926	Morawetz, Albert R	June 30, 1912		1913
Mason, Frank H	Jan. —, 1914	June 21, 1916	1926	Morehead, John Motley	Apr. 6, 1933		1933
Masterson, William W	(a)	May 10, 1922	1926	Morey, William	July 16, 1907	Mar. 25, 1908	1913
Maverick, Robert Van W.	Apr. 12, 1917		1926	Morgan, Edwin V	Apr. 23, 1933	Apr. 16,1934	1934
May, Henry C	Nov. 16, 1916		1926	Morgan, Henry H	July 31, 1926	Mar. 19, 1933	1933
Mayo, Paul	Sept. 6,1929		1930	Morgan, Stokeley W	Sept. 30, 1929		1930
Mays, Livingston T	July 16, 1915		1926	Morgenthau, Henry	July -, 1916		1926
McCarthy, Hugh C	Sept. 11, 1923		1926	Moriarty, G. Andrews, Jr	Mar. 7, 1911		1913
McCormick, Robert S	Mar. 2,1907	Apr. 16, 1919	1913	Morris, Ira N	Apr. 15, 1923		1926
McCreery, Fenton R.	July 1, 1911	Amp 20 1014	1913	Morris, Roland S.	Mar. 4, 1921	Oct 5 1021	1926
McCullough, Charles A	(a)	Apr. 30, 1914	1926	Morrow, Dwight W	Sept. 30, 1930	Oct. 5, 1931	1932
McCunn, John N	July 1, 1924		1926	Moseley, P. Harley	Oct. 1, 1924		1926
McCutcheon, John T	Feb. 20, 1920	A mm 0 100 (1926	Moser, Charles K.	Aug. 11, 1922		1926
McDowell, W. W.	(a) (a)	Apr. 9, 1934	1934	Moses, George H	July 12, 1912		1913
McFarland, Silas C McGoodwin, Preston B	(a) Oat 1091	Oct. 24, 1908	1913	Mosher, John S	June 5, 1933	Sept. 22, 1927	1933 1 928
McGoogan, George B	Oct. —, 1921 (a)	Aug. 29, 1911	1926 1913	Mosher, Robert B Mosier, Robert L	July 1, 1924 July 25, 1926	Sept. 22, 1927	1928
McKay, Arnold A	Nov. 9, 1919	Aug. 29, 1911	1913	Mowrer, Frank R.	July 27, 1909		1913
McKiernan, Charles P	(a)	May 28, 1916	1926	Munro, Dana G	Sept. 14, 1932		1933
			1040	and of the official			1000

Name	Date of resignation or retirement	Date of death	Reg- ister	Name	Date of resignation or retirement	Date of death	Reg- ister
Murphy, Dominic I	July 1, 1924	Apr. 13, 1930	1931	Plumacher, Eugene H	Apr. 11, 1910	Sept. 25, 1910	1913
Murphy, George H	(a)	Oct. 16, 1924	1926	Poindexter, Miles	Mar. 21, 1928		1929
Murphy, J. Lee.	Mar. 12, 1929		1930	Pond, J. Lawrence	June 30, 1933	E-b 07 1002	1933
Muse, Benjamin	Mar. 15, 1934	T 0.1010	1934	Pontius, Albert W	(a)	Feb. 25, 1923	1926
Nash, Paul	(a) Oat 20 1012	Jan. 6,1913	1913	Poole, De Witt C	Mar. 1,1930		
Nason, Charles P. H. Nason, William F.	Oct. 29,1913 June 30,1933	**********	1913 1933	Pooley, Robert P Potter, Julian	June 30, 1908		1913 1913
Neely, Roy H				Pottle, Edward R	Jan. 31, 1913		1913
Neill, Richard R.	June 30, 1907 Sept. 19, 1909	Oct. 5, 1912	1913 191 3	Prees, Griffith W	Feb. 28, 1922 June 30, 1907		1920
Newhall, W. Mayo, Jr	May 15, 1929	000. 0, 1912	1930	Price, Ernest B	Aug. 3,1929		1930
Newson, H. Dorsey	Jan. 30, 1930		1931	Price, Milton M.	(a)	Oct. 25, 1906	1913
Nicholson, John B	May -, 1919		1926	Price, William J	Dec, 1921		1926
Nicholson, Vivian L.	Sept. 25, 1919		1926	Prickitt, William A	Feb, 1914		1926
Nicolson, Donald	Feb. 20, 1913		1913	Prince, John Dyneley	Aug. 31, 1933		1934
Northcott, Elliott	Aug. 26, 1913		1913	Putney, Albert H	Feb. 4,1920	Oct. 22, 1928	1929
Northrup, Alfred S	Feb. 28, 1915		1926	Quay, Jerome A	(a)	Sept. 24, 1910	1913
Norton, Edward J	Nov. 15, 1929		1930	Ragsdale, James W	July 12, 1913		1913
Norton, Laurence H	June 30, 1924		1926	Rairden, Bradstreet S	July 1, 1924		1926
Norton, Thomas H	May 15, 1914		1926	Rairden, Frank B	Apr. 1, 1915		1926
O'Brien, Edward C	Feb. 8, 1910	June 21, 1927	1928	Ramer, John E	Mar. 4, 1925	July 2, 1926	1926
O'Brien, Thomas J	Sept. 17, 1913	May 19, 1933	1933	Rand, Elbridge D	Dec. 25, 1929		1930
Offut, Casper Y	Nov. 18, 1919		1926	Rankin, Robert L	Jan. 22, 1929		1930
O'Hara, John W	June 9,1908		1913	Rasmusen, Bertil M	Nov. 20, 1927		1928
O'Hara, V. Winthrope	June 30, 1923		1926	Ratshesky, Abraham C	June 27,1932		1933
O'Rear, John D	(a)	July 14, 1918	1926	Ravndal, Gabriel B	June 26,1930		1931
Orr, Arthur	July 25, 1911	June 5, 1933	1934	Ray, John A	June 4, 1921		1926
Osborne, John Ball	June 30, 1933		1933	Reat, Samuel C	June 30, 1933		1933
Osborne, Lithgow	Aug. 16, 1921		1926	Reed, Eugene C. A	Jan. 2, 1922		1926
O'Shaughnessy, Nelson	Sept. 26, 1916	July 25, 1932	1933	Reid, Whitelaw	(a)	Dec. 15, 1912	1913
O'Toole, William J	May 21, 1924	Aug. 27, 1928	1929	Reiniger, Gustavus G	Oct. 15, 1925	T 00 1000	1926
Ott, Robert M	(a)	May 1,1933	1933	Reinsch, Paul S	Sept. 15, 1919	Jan. 26, 1923	1926
Owens, Thomas R	Mar. 9, 1925		1926	Reynolds, Conger	Oct. 8, 1929		1930
Owsley, Harry B., Jr.	Aug. —, 1909	Dec. 0 1010	1913	Rhode, W. Allen	July 7,1929		1930
Ozmun, Edward H	(a)	Dec. 9, 1910	1913	Richardson, Charles F. P. Rlchardson, Elliott Verne.	June 24, 1909	June 27, 1929	1913 1930
Pabst, Gustave, Jr Paddock, Gordon	May 20, 1929 Sept. 30, 1930	Nov. 2, 1932	1930 1933	Richardson, Harry B.	Oct. 22, 1928 May 31, 1913	June 27, 1929	1930
Paddock, Harry L	Apr. 9,1908		1913	Richardson, John B	Aug. 6, 1907		1913
Page, Charles A	June 16, 1933		1933	Richardson, Norval	June 30, 1924		1926
Page, Thomas N		Nov. 1, 1922	1926	Riddle, John W	May —, 1925		1926
Page, Walter H	Nov. 26, 1918	Dec. 21, 1918	1926	Ridgely, Benjamin H	(a)	Oct. 10, 1908	1913
Palmer, Theodore DeC., Jr_	June 15, 1921		1922	Rives, George B	, 1917		1926
Parmelee, Maurice	Feb. 1, 1923		1926	Robert, Albert W	Dec, 1911	Feb. 20, 1913	1913
Paschal, George R., Jr	Nov. 15, 1929		1930	Robertson, Randolph	July 28, 1921		1926
Payne, Christopher H	June 30, 1917		1926	Robertson, William H	June 25, 1928		1929
Pearson, Alfred	Apr. 30,1930		1931	Robinson, Fred R	(a)	July 22, 1923	1926
Pearson, Frederick F. A	June 15,1930		1931	Rohinson, J. Randolph	(a)	Sept. 2,1930	1931
Pearson, Richmond	June —, 1909	Sept. 12, 1923	1913	Roche, James J	(a)	Apr. 3,1908	1913
Peirce, Herbert H. D	May 30, 1911	Dec. 5, 1916	1926	Rockhill, William W	Nov. —, 1913	Dec 8, 1914	1926
Penfield, Frederic C	Apr. 9, 1917	June 19, 1922	1926	Rockwell, Almon F	Apr. 30, 1924		1926
Pennoyer, Richard E	Jan. 14,1923		1926	Rodgers, J. Donald C	Mar. 30, 1923		1926
Perry, Charles B	Apr. 4,1916	May 14, 1928	1926	Rodgers, James L.	Oct. 31, 1920	Feb. 8,1930	1931
Peters, Thomas W	Sept, 1914	Jan. 2, 1917	1926	Roosevelt, George W	(a)	Apr. 14,1907	1913
Phelps, Livingston	Mar. 29, 1919		1926	Roosevelt, Nicholas	May 9, 1933		1933
Pickerell, George H	July 1,1924		1926	Rosenberg, Louis J	Jan. 15, 1910		1913
Pierce, Maurice C	Mar. 31, 1932		1933	Rowen, John E	June 30, 1911		1913
Pierce, William A	May 15, 1920		1926	Rublee, William A	(a)	Apr. 15, 1910	1913
Pierrepont, Seth L.	June 14, 1913	Ama 02 1002	1913	Ruddock, Albert B	June 30, 1924		1926
Pike, William J.	(a)	Apr. 23,1923	1926	Ruffin, John N	Aug. 19, 1907		1913
Piles, Samuel H	Sept. 17, 1928	July 10 1011	1929	Russell, Charles H., Jr	May 9, 1921 Sept - 1914	Apr 5 1027	1922
Pitcairn, Hugh	1404. 1, 1908	July 19,1911	1913	Russell, Charles W	Sept. —, 1914	Apr 5,1927	1920

REGISTER OF THE DEPARTMENT OF STATE

Name	Date of resignation or retirement	Date of death	Reg- ister	Name	Date of resignation or retirement	Date of death	Reg- lster
[Russell, William W	Dec. 31, 1926		1927	Smith, William W	June 28, 1924	Sept. 16, 1932	1933
Ryan, John L.	June -, 1918		1926	Suodgrass, John H	Jan. 1, 1917		1926
Ryder, Frederick M	July 1, 1924		1926	Snyder, Alban G	Aug. 1,1929		1930
Sackett, Frederic M	Apr. 23, 1933		1933	Snyder, Nicholas R	July 22, 1917		1926
Sackett, Martin R	Feb, 1915		1926	Sorsby, William B	Dec, 1908	Mar. 26, 1912	1913
Sallsbury, Alfred	Oct. —, 1908		1926	Soule, Edgar C	Aug. —, 1924		1926
Sammons, Thomas	Aug. 6, 1925		1926	South, John Glover	July 28, 1933		1933
Sanders, John O	May 15, 1924		1926	Southworth, William B	Jan. 5, 1926		1927
Sands, William F	May —, 1917		1926	Spahr, Herman L	Jan. 31, 1917		1926
Sartoris, Algernon	May 18, 1909	Jan. —, 1928	1929	Spangler, Frank LeR	July 14, 1925		1926
Sartorius, Herman U	June 29, 1921		1922	Spencer, Willing	Aug. 16, 1924		1926
Savage, John M Sawyer, Leroy R	Dec. 9, 1929		1930 1926	Sprigg, Carroll	Oct, 1921	Oct. 19, 1911	1922 1913
Scarritt, Nathan	July 15, 1923 July 5, 1929		1920	Stabler, Jordan H.	Dec. 31, 1909 Jan. 31, 1927		1913
Schmedeman, Albert G	Aug. —, 1921		1926	Stambaugh, John, 2d	Nov. 30, 1925		1926
Schmucker, George B	June 3, 1911		1913	Stanard, Hugh C	June 1, 1920		1922
Scholle, Gustave	July 31, 1918		1926	Stangeland, Charles E	Aug. 1, 1915		1926
Schoyer, Balkam	(a)	Apr. 2, 1910	1913	Stapleton, W. Maynard	Nov. 27, 1928		1929
Schumann, Walter	Aug. 31, 1907	Dec. 1,1929	1930	Starrett, Henry P	(°)	Mar. 18, 1933	1933
Schurman, Jacob G	Jan. 21, 1930		1931	Stearns, Foster	Apr. 6,1924		1926
Schutt, Warren E	Feb. 17, 1912		1913	Stedman, Nathan P	Mar. 8, 1919		1926
Schuyler, Montgomery	Dec. 13, 1925		1926	Steinhart, Frank	June 30, 1907		1913
Scidmore, George H	(a)	Nov. 27, 1922	1926	Stephens, Joseph G	Jan, 1920	Dec. 22, 1920	1926
Seeger, Eugene	May 7, 1906	•••••	1913	Stetson, John B., Jr.	Feb, 1930		1931
Seltzer, Harry G	July 28, 1917	35 05 1000	1926	Stevenson, Ronald D	July 30,1927		1928
Sewell, William L	(°)	Mar. 25, 1906	1913 1913	Stewart, Glenn Stewart, Nathaniel B	Nov. 20, 1920	Apr. 17, 1931	1926 1932
Seyfert, Augustus G Shank, Samuel H	Oct. 31, 1912 Dec. 4, 1919		1913	Stiles, George K	(°) Aug. 16, 1925	Apr. 17,1931	1932
Shanklin, Arnold	Oct. 15, 1915		1926	Stimson, Frederic J	Mar. 26, 1921		1926
Sharp, Hunter	(a)	Dec. 17, 1923	1926	Stockton, Gilchrist B	Sept. 21, 1933		1934
Sharp, William G.	Apr. 14, 1919	Nov. 17, 1922	1926	Stogsdall, Nelle B	Oct. 28, 1931		1932
Shaughnessy, Walter D	Apr. 19, 1910		1913	Stone, Benjamin F	May 20, 1906		1913
Shea, Joseph H	May —, 1921	Dec. 22, 1928	1929	Storer, Bellamy	Mar. —, 1906	Nov. 12, 1922	1913
Sheffield, James R	Sept, 21, 1927		1928	Stovall, Pleasant A	May —, 1920		1926
Shepard, Donald D'A	Feb. 7, 1924		1926	Straight, Willard D	June 9,1909	Dec. 1, 1918	1913
Shepard, James M	Dec, 1914	Aug. 13, 1927	1926	Strassburger, Ralph B		3.6	1926
Sherman, Thomas F	Aug. 11, 1931		1932	Straus, Oscar S	Dec. 11, 1910	May 3, 1926	1913
Sherrill, Charles H Shirley, John H	Mar. 24, 1933 May 13, 1908		1933 1913	Strickland, Peter Strother, Shelby F	July 25, 1906 Nov. 12, 1925		1913 1926
Shoecraft, Eugene C	Jan. —, 1924		1926	Stutesman, James F	July 12, 1920	Dec. 15, 1917	1913
Shoemaker, Henry W	Aug. 1, 1933		1934	Stuyvesant, L. Rutherfurd.	June 29, 1932		1933
Shotts, George W	Oct. 1, 1922		1926	Sullivan, James M	Sept. 1, 1915	Aug, 1920	1926
Sickles, Stanton	Aug, 1908		1913	Sullivan, Lucien N	Mar. 31, 1933		1933
Silliman, John R	(a)	Jan. 17, 1919	1926	Summers, Maddin	(°)	May 4, 1918	1926
Silvers, Edward E	Mar. 19, 1929		1930	Sumner, Roger	Aug. 1,1931		1932
Simpich, Frederick	Mar. 31, 1923		1926	Swaim, Charles L	Feb. 15, 1922		1926
Slater, Fred C	Nov. 9,1929		1930	Swalm, Albert W	(0)	Aug. 24, 1922	1926
Sleeper, Jacob	Mar. 10, 1910	Mar. 11, 1930	1931	Swenson, Laurits S	Mar. 5, 1934		1934
Slocum, Clarence R Smith, A. Donaldson	(a)	Feb. 25, 1912	191 3 1913	Sycks, Dana C	July 25, 1929	Sept. 15, 1931	1930 1932
Smith, Abraham E	Apr. 8,1911 (°)	Jan. 18, 1915	1915	Taggart, G. Russell Tarler, G. Cornell	(ª) Jan. 23, 1922	Sept. 15, 1951	1932
Smith, Calvin F	Apr. 3, 1908	541. 10, 1515	1913	Taylor, Howard C.	June 5, 1933		1933
Smith, Felix W	Mar. 17, 1919	Jan. 11, 1920	1926	Taylor, Morgan O	Aug. 25, 1919		1926
Smith, Harold L	Apr. 15, 1928		1929	Taylor, P. Emerson	(a)	Apr. 8, 1913	1913
Smith, Holmes Conrad	June 1,1933		1933	Taylor, Samuel M	(0)	Dec. 7, 1916	1926
Smith, James A	(a)	Sept. 29, 1920	1926	Taylor, William A., Jr	Aug. 28, 1924		1926
Smith, Leland L	June 30, 1933		1933	Taylor, William H	Feb. 12,1929		1930
Smith, Madison R	July -, 1914		1926	Teichmann, William C	Sept. 10, 1917		1926
Smith, Samuel	Aug. 10, 1908		1913	Tennant, Henry F	Apr. 20, 1917		1926
Smith, Sydney	Dec. 15, 1919		1926	Tenney, Charles D	Feb. 28, 1922	' Mar. 14, 1930	1931

	1	1				1	
Name	Date of resignation or retirement	Date of death	Reg- ister	Name	Date of resignation or retirement	Date of death	Reg- ister
Managa Jahr D		N 1 1090	1000	Watta Ethalbart	Terms 00 1010	T1- 12 1010	1000
Terres, John B.	(a)	Nov. 1,1920	1926	Watts, Ethelbert	June 30, 1919	July 13, 1919	1926
Thackara, Alexander M.			1926	Webster, William H. H	(a)	Apr. 15, 1911	1913
Thomas, Edward B Thomas, Frederick L	June 30, 1933	July 17 1020	1933 1931	Weitzel, George T Weldon, Ellwood A	July 8, 1913		1913
Thomas, Leonard M	(a) Juno E 1007	July 17, 1930	1931	Wells, Francis	Oct. 28, 1909 Jan. 15, 1923		1913 1926
Thompson, David E	June 5, 1907 Dec. 24, 1909		1913	West, George N	Mar. 27, 1919	Mar. 26, 1920	1926
Thompson, Edward H	Sept. 6, 1909		1913	Westacott, Richard	(4)	Jan. 28, 1922	1926
Thompson, Richard N	Aug. 22, 1923			Westcott, Charles D	June 30, 1933	Jail. 20, 1922	1933
Thompson, Robert J	Jan, 1915		1926	White, Charles D	Nov, 1913		1926
Thomson, Thaddeus A	Nov. 16, 1916	Jan. 21, 1927	1928	White, Francis	Nov. 30, 1933		1934
Thorling, Charles H	Dec. 2, 1922		1926	White, Henry	Nov. 3, 1909	July 15, 1927	1928
Thornton, William O	Sept. 30, 1920		1926	White, Jay	(a)	May 23, 1918	1926
Tobin, Richard M	Aug. 29, 1929		1930	Whitfield, James V	Sept. 3, 1927		1928
Tompkins, Ralph H	July 29, 1923		1926	Whitlock, Brand	Dec, 1921	May 24, 1934	1934
Touhay, St. Leger A	(a)	May 15, 1907	1913	Wicker, Cyrus F	Nov, 1916		1926
Tower, Charlemagne	June 8, 1908	Feb. 24, 1923	1913	Wilber, David F	Apr. 18, 1923	Aug. 14, 1928	1929
Townsend, George A	Aug. 23, 1921		1922	Wilcox, Henry T	(a)	June 22, 1925	1926
Townsend, Ralph	Feb. 12, 1933		1933	Wilder, Amos P	Feb, 1914		1926
Townsend, Robert S	June 6, 1921		1922	Willard, Charles N	Oct. 13, 1919		1926
Trammell, H. Eric	(•)	Feb. 9, 1932	. 1933	Willard, Joseph E	June —, 1921	Apr. 4, 1924	1926
Treat, R. A. Wallace	(a)	May 3,1929	1930	Willey, Richard R	June 30, 1933		1933
[Tredwell, Roger C	Jan. 31, 1934		1934	Williams, Charles L. L	Dec. 2, 1919		1926
Trimmer, Edwin W	Jan. —, 1915		1926	Williams, Curtis C., Jr	Oct. 1, 1922		1926
Turner, A. Campbell	June 26, 1911		1913	Williams, Daniel W	June 14, 1907		1913
Turnure, David A	Sept. 5,1929		1930	Williams, Edward T	Sept. 30, 1918		1926
Twells, John S.	June —, 1906	Mar. 15, 1921	1926	Williams, George F	July, 1914	July 11, 1932	1933
Vail, Delmar J	(ª)	Oct. 30, 1906	1913	Williams, John T	Apr. 12, 1906		1913
Van Buren, Harold S	(a)	Feb. 12, 1907	1913	Williams, Robert K	Feb. 23, 1916		1926
van Dyke, Henry		Apr. 10, 1933	1933	Williamson, Adolph A	Jan. 15, 1920		1926
Van Dyne, Frederick	(a)	Apr. 21, 1915	1926	Willrich, Gebhard	July 1, 1924	Dec. 1, 1925	1926
Van Dyne, George W	Oct. 31, 1920		1922	Willson, Digby A	Feb. 9,1931		1932
Van Rensselaer, W. S	July 16, 1918	Aug. 21, 1930	1931	Willys, John N	May 30, 1932		1933
Van Sant, Howard D	(*)	Sept. 1, 1925	1926	Wilson, Henry L	Oct. 13, 1913	Dec. 22, 1932	1933
Vignaud, Henry	Mar. 31, 1909	Sept. 16, 1922	1913	Wilson, Huntington	Mar. 19, 1913	0.4	1913
Viney, John I	June 21, 1910		1913	Wilson, Ripley	(a) Tom OF 1000	Oct. 2, 1917	1926
[Voetter, Thomas W Von Struve, Henry C	June 30, 1933	Nor 5 1022	1933	Winans, Charles S	Jan. 25, 1928	Ang 15 1022	1929
Von Zielinski, Carl M. J.	(°) June 11, 1917	Nov. 5, 1933	1934 1926	Winslow, Alan F Winslow, Alfred A	Nov. 1, 1928 July 1, 1924	Aug. 15, 1933 Aug. 16, 1929	$1934 \\ 1930$
Vopicka, Charles J	Dec. 9, 1920		1926	Winslow, Edward D	Aug. 17, 1917	Aug. 10, 1525	1926
Wadsworth, Craig W	Nov. 16, 1927		1928	Winslow, L. Lanier	Nov. 24, 1927	Oct. 26, 1929	1930
Wainwright, John T	(a)	Nov. 2,1930	1931	Winthrop, Robert M	Jan. 26, 1910		1913
Wakefield, Ernest A	Apr. 30, 1932		1933	Wise, John D	Nov. 15, 1920	May 13, 1933	1933
Walk, Maurice	Sept. 29, 1925		1926	Wood, Charles M	(a)	May 22, 1908	1913
Walker, Edward B	Sept. 22, 1911		1913	Wood, John Q	June 30, 1932		1933
Walker, Mannix	June 19, 1929		1930	Woodard, Granville O	Feb. 21, 1927		1928
Wallace, Hugh C	July 6, 1921	Jan. 1,1931	1931	Woods, Cyrus E	July 1, 1924		1926
Wallace, Thomas R	July 1, 1924	Dec. 8, 1929	1930	Worden, James P	Jan. 1, 1908		1926
Wallace, William K	Mar. 5, 1912		1913	Worman, James H	June 30, 1908		1913
Walsh, Harry L.	Aug. 18, 1933		1934	Wright, Herbert R	Mar. —, 1917		1926
Ward, Frederick H	Nov. 20, 1928		1929	Wright, Luke E	Sept. 1, 1907	Nov. 17, 1922	1913
Wardman, George B	July -, 1906		1913	Wright, William F	May 15, 1907		1913
Warner, Margaret	Nov. 29, 1931		1932	Wynne, Robert J	Aug. 1, 1909	Mar. 11, 1922	1913
Warner, Southard P	(a)	May 9, 1914	1926	Yelverton, E. Harrison	Aug. 25, 1919		1926
Warren, Charles B	Aug. 4, 1924		1926	Yerby, William J	Sept. 30, 1932		1933
Washburn, Albert H	(a)	Apr 2, 1930	1931	Yost, Charles W	Aug. 14, 1933		1934
Washington, Horace Lee_	June 3,1929		1930	Young, Evan E	Feb. 3,1930		1931
Waters, Daniel J	Feb. 10, 1916		1926	Young, George W	Feb. 15, 1922		1926
Waters, Harold G	Sept. 30, 1924		1926	Young, Wallace J	(a)	Dec. 4, 1923	1926
Watson, John J. C.	(a)	Sept. 9, 1932	1933	Zabriskie, Luther K	(a)	Jan. 17, 1921	1926
			1	1			

16. PRESIDENTS OF THE UNITED STATES AND PRINCIPAL OFFICERS OF THE **DEPARTMENT**, 1789–1934

PRESIDENTS OF THE UNITED STATES AND SECRETARIES OF STATE, 1789-1934

President	Secretary of State 1
George Washington, of Virginia April 30, 1789–March 4, 1797	 John Jay, of New York. Took office as Secretary for Foreign Affairs under the Continental Congress, December 21, 1784; held over without further appointment or commission and continued, though not officially, to superintend the Department under the Consti- tution until Jefferson took office as Secretary of State on March 22, 1790. Thomas Jefferson, of Virginia. Commissioned September 26, 1789; entered upon duties March 22, 1790; retired December 31, 1793. Edmund Randolph, of Virginia. Commissioned and entered upon duties January 2, 1794; retired August 20, 1795. Timothy Pickering, of Pennsylvania (Secretary of War). Ad interim August 20-December 9, 1795; commissioned Secretary of State and entered upon duties December 10, 1795.
John Adams, of Massachusetts March 4, 1797–March 4, 1801	 Timothy Pickering continued from preceding administration; retired May 12, 1800. Charles Lee, of Virginia (Attorney General). Ad interim May 13- June 5, 1800. John Marshall, of Virginia. Commissioned May 13, 1800; entered upon duties June 6, 1800; retired February 4, 1801; (Chief Justice of the United States) ad interim February 4-March 3, 1801.
Thomas Jefferson, of Virginia March 4, 1801–March 4, 1809	 John Marshall, of Virginia (Chief Justice). Ad interim March 4, 1801. Levi Lincoln, of Massachusetts (Attorney General). Ad interim March 5-May 1, 1801. James Madison, of Virginia. Commissioned March 5, 1801; entered upon duties May 2, 1801; retired March 3, 1809.
James Madison, of Virginia March 4, 1809–March 4, 1817	 [No Secretary of State or Acting Secretary of State, March 4-5, 1809.] Robert Smith, of Maryland. Commissioned and entered upon duties March 6, 1809; retired April 1, 1811. James Monroe, of Virginia. Commissioned (recess of the Senate) April 2, 1811; entered upon duties April 6, 1811; recommissioned November 26, 1811; retired September 30, 1814; (Secretary of War) ad interim October 1, 1814-February 28, 1815; entered upon duties March 1, 1815; retired March 3, 1817.
James Monroe, of Virginia March 4, 1817–March 4, 1825	 John Graham, of Virginia (Chief Clerk). Ad interim March 4-9, 1817. Richard Rush, of Pennsylvania (Attorney General). Ad interim March 10-September 22, 1817. John Quincy Adams, of Massachusetts. Commissioned March 5, 1817; entered upon duties September 22, 1817; retired March 3, 1825. Interform Sept. 15, 1789. From July 27 to Sept. 15, 1789, this officer was entitled "Secretary for

the Department of Foreign Affairs"; prior thereto, "Secretary to the United States of America for the Department of Foreign

Affairs." The Secretary of State is not appointed for a fixed term and does not necessarily go out of office with the President who appointed him. Although he tenders his resignation at the time of a change in administration, he usually remains formally at the head of the Department until his successor assumes the duties of the office.

.

PRESIDENTS OF THE UNITED STATES AND SECRETARIES OF STATE-Continued

President	Secretary of State
John Quincy Adams, of Massachusetts March 4, 1825–March 4, 1829	Daniel Brent, of Virginia (Chief Clerk). Ad interim March 4–7, 1825. Henry Clay, of Kentucky. Commissioned and entered upon duties March 7, 1825; retired March 3, 1829.
Andrew Jackson, of Tennessee March 4, 1829–March 4, 1837	 James A. Hamilton, of New York. Ad interim March 4-27, 1829. Martin Van Buren, of New York. Commissioned March 6, 1829; entered upon duties March 28, 1829; retired May 23, 1831. Edward Livingston, of Louisiana. Commissioned (recess of the Senate) and entered upon duties May 24, 1831; recommissioned January 12, 1832; retired May 29, 1833. Louis McLane, of Delaware. Commissioned (recess of the Senate) and entered upon duties May 29, 1833; retired June 30, 1834. John Forsyth, of Georgia. Commissioned June 27, 1834; entered upon duties July 1, 1834.
Martin Van Buren, of New York March 4, 1837–March 4, 1841	John Forsyth continued from preceding administration; retired March 3, 1841.
William Henry Harrison, of Ohio March 4–April 4, 1841	 Jacob L. Martin, of North Carolina (Chief Clerk). Ad interim March 4-5, 1841. Daniel Webster, of Massachusetts. Commissioned March 5, 1841; entered upon duties March 6, 1841.
John Tyler, of Virginia April 6, 1841–March 4, 1845	 Daniel Webster continued from preceding administration; retired May 8, 1843. Hugh S. Legaré, of South Carolina (Attorney General). Ad interim May 9-June 20, 1843 (died). William S. Derrick, of Pennsylvania (Chief Clerk). Ad interim June 21-23, 1843. Abel P. Upshur, of Virginia (Secretary of the Navy). Ad interim June 24-July 23, 1843; commissioned (recess of the Senate) and entered upon duties July 24, 1843; recommissioned January 2, 1844; died February 28, 1844. John Nelson, of Maryland (Attorney General). Ad interim February 29-March 31, 1844. John C. Calhoun, of South Carolina. Commissioned March 6, 1844; entered upon duties April 1, 1844.
James K. Polk, of Tennessee March 4, 1845–March 4, 1849	 John C. Calhoun continued from preceding administration; retired March 10, 1845. James Buchanan, of Pennsylvania. Commissioned March 6, 1845; entered upon duties March 10, 1845.
Zachary Taylor, of Louisiana March 5, 1849–July 9, 1850	 James Buchanan continued from preceding administration; retired March 7, 1849. John M. Clayton, of Delaware. Commissioned March 7, 1849; entered upon duties March 8, 1849.
Millard Fillmore, of New York July 10, 1850–March 4, 1853	 John M. Clayton continued from preceding administration; retired July 22, 1850. Daniel Webster, of Massachusetts. Commissioned July 22, 1850; entered upon duties July 23, 1850; died October 24, 1852. Charles M. Conrad, of Louisiana (Secretary of War). Ad interim October 25-November 5, 1852. Edward Everett, of Massachusetts. Commissioned (recess of the Senate) and entered upon duties November 6, 1852; recommis- sioned December 9, 1852; retired March 3, 1853.

296 REGISTER OF THE DEPARTMENT OF STATE

PRESIDENTS OF THE UNITED STATES AND SECRETARIES OF STATE-Continued

President	Secretary of State
Franklin Pierce, of New Hampshire March 4, 1853-March 4, 1857	 William Hunter, Jr., of Rhode Island (Chief Clerk). Ad interim March 4-7, 1853. William L. Marcy, of New York. Commissioned March 7, 1853; entered upon duties March 8, 1853.
James Buchanan, of Pennsylvania March 4, 1857–March 4, 1861	 William L. Marcy continued from preceding administration; retired March 6, 1857. Lewis Cass, of Michigan. Commissioned and entered upon duties March 6, 1857; retired December 14, 1860. William Hunter, Jr., of Rhode Island (Chief Clerk). Ad interim December 15-16, 1860. Jeremiah S. Black, of Pennsylvania. Commissioned and entered upon duties December 17, 1860.
Abraham Lincoln, of Illinois March 4, 1861–April 15, 1865	Jeremiah S. Black continued from preceding administration; retired March 5, 1861. William H. Seward, of New York. Commissioned March 5, 1861; entered upon duties March 6, 1861.
Andrew Johnson, of Tennessee April 15, 1865–March 4, 1869	William H. Seward continued from preceding administration; retired March 4, 1869.
Ulysses S. Grant, of Illinois March 4, 1869–March 4, 1877	 Elihu B. Washburne, of Illinois. Commissioned and entered upon duties March 5, 1869; retired March 16, 1869. Hamilton Fish, of New York. Commissioned March 11, 1869; entered upon duties March 17, 1869; recommissioned March 17, 1873.
Rutherford B. Hayes, of Ohio March 5, 1877–March 4, 1881	 Hamilton Fish continued from preceding administration; retired March 12, 1877. William M. Evarts, of New York. Commissioned and entered upon duties March 12, 1877.
James A. Garfield, of Ohio March 4–September 19, 1881	 William M. Evarts continued from preceding administration; retired March 7, 1881. James G. Blaine, of Maine. Commissioned March 5, 1881; entered upon duties March 7, 1881.
Chester A. Arthur, of New York September 20, 1881–March 4, 1885	James G. Blaine continued from preceding administration; retired December 19, 1881. Frederick T. Frelinghuysen, of New Jersey. Commissioned Decem- ber 12, 1881; entered upon duties December 19, 1881.
Grover Cleveland, of New York March 4, 1885–March 4, 1889	 Frederick T. Frelinghuysen continued from preceding administration; retired March 6, 1885. Thomas F. Bayard, of Delaware. Commissioned March 6, 1885; entered upon duties March 7, 1885.
Benjamin Harrison, of Indiana March 4, 1889–March 4, 1893	 Thomas F. Bayard continued from preceding administration; retired March 6, 1889. James G. Blaine, of Maine. Commissioned March 5, 1889; entered upon duties March 7, 1889; retired June 4, 1892. William F. Wharton, of Massachusetts (Assistant Secretary). Ad interim June 4-29, 1892. John W. Foster, of Indiana. Commissioned and entered upon duties June 29, 1892; retired February 23, 1893. William F. Wharton, of Massachusetts (Assistant Secretary). Ad interim February 24. 1893, to close of administration.

PRESIDENTS OF THE UNITED STATES AND SECRETARIES OF STATE-Continued

President	Secretary of State
Grover Cleveland, of New York March 4, 1893–March 4, 1897	 William F. Wharton continued, ad interim, from preceding administration to March 6, 1893. Walter Q. Gresham, of Illinois. Commissioned March 6, 1893; entered upon duties March 7, 1893; died May 28, 1895. Edwin F. Uhl, of Michigan (Assistant Secretary). Ad interim May 28-June 9, 1895. Richard Olney, of Massachusetts. Commissioned (recess of the Senate) June 8, 1895; entered upon duties June 10, 1895; recommissioned December 3, 1895.
William McKinley, of Ohio March 4, 1897–September 14, 1901	 Richard Olney continued from preceding administration; retired March 5, 1897. John Sherman, of Ohio. Commissioned March 5, 1897; entered upon duties March 6, 1897; retired April 27, 1898. William R. Day, of Ohio. Commissioned April 26, 1898; entered upon duties April 28, 1898; retired September 16, 1898. Alvey A. Adee, of the District of Columbia (Second Assistant Secretary). Ad interim September 17-29, 1898. John Hay, of the District of Columbia. Commissioned (recess of the Senate) September 20, 1898; entered upon duties September 30, 1898; recommissioned December 7, 1898, and March 5, 1901.
Theodore Roosevelt, of New York September 14, 1901–March 4, 1909	 John Hay continued from preceding administration; recommissioned March 6, 1905; died July 1, 1905. Francis B. Loomis, of Ohio. (Assistant Secretary). Ad interim July 1-18, 1905. Elihu Root, of New York. Commissioned (recess of the Senate) July 7, 1905; entered upon duties July 19, 1905; recommissioned December 6, 1905; retired January 27, 1909. Robert Bacon, of New York. Commissioned and entered upon duties January 27, 1909.
William Howard Taft, of Ohio March 4, 1909–March 4, 1913	Robert Bacon continued from preceding administration; retired March 5, 1909. Philander C. Knox, of Pennsylvania. Commissioned March 5, 1909; entered upon duties March 6, 1909.
Woodrow Wilson, of New Jersey March 4, 1913–March 4, 1921	 Philander C. Knox continued from preceding administration; retired March 5, 1913. William Jennings Bryan, of Nebraska. Commissioned and entered upon duties March 5, 1913; retired June 9, 1915. Robert Lansing, of New York (Counselor). Ad interim June 9-23, 1915; commissioned (recess of the Senate) June 23, 1915; entered upon duties June 24, 1915; recommissioned December 13, 1915; retired February 13, 1920. Frank Lyon Polk, of New York (Under Secretary). Ad interim February 14-March 14, 1920. [No Secretary of State or Acting Secretary of State, March 15-21, 1920.] Bainbridge Colby, of New York. Commissioned March 22, 1920; entered upon duties March 23, 1920; retired March 4, 1921.
Warren Gamaliel Harding, of Ohio March 4, 1921-August 2, 1923	Charles Evans Hughes, of New York. Commissioned March 4, 1921; entered upon duties March 5, 1921.
Calvin Coolidge, of Massachusetts August 3, 1923–March 4, 1929	 Charles Evans Hughes continued from preceding administration; retired March 4, 1925. Frank Billings Kellogg, of Minnesota. Commissioned February 16, 1925; entered upon duties March 5, 1925.

PRESIDENTS OF THE UNITED STATES AND SECRETARIES OF STATE-Continued

President	Secretary of State
Herbert Clark Hoover, of California March 4, 1929-March 4, 1933	 Frank Billings Kellogg continued from preceding administration; retired March 28, 1929. Henry Lewis Stimson, of New York. Commissioned March 5, 1929; entered upon duties March 28, 1929; retired March 4, 1933.
Franklin Delano Roosevelt, of New York March 4, 1933—	Cordell Hull, of Tennessee. Commissioned and entered upon duties March 4, 1933.

COUNSELORS FOR THE DEPARTMENT OF STATE, 1909-1919

(Title changed to Under Secretary of State July 1, 1919)

Henry M. Hoyt, of Pennsylvania. Commissioned August 21, 1909; entered upon duties August 27, 1909; died November 20, 1910.

Chandler P. Anderson, of New York. Commissioned and entered upon duties December 16, 1910; retired April 22, 1913.

John Bassett Moore, of New York. Commissioned April 21, 1913; entered upon duties April 23, 1913; retired March 4, 1914.

Robert Lansing, of New York. Commissioned March 27, 1914; entered upon duties April 1, 1914; retired June 23, 1915.

Frank Lyon Polk, of New York. Commissioned August 30, 1915; entered upon duties September 16, 1915; retired June 30, 1919.

UNDER SECRETARIES OF STATE, 1919-1934

Frank Lyon Polk, of New York. Commissioned June 26, 1919; entered upon duties July 1, 1919; retired June 15, 1920.

Norman H. Davis, of New York. Commissioned June 11, 1920; entered upon duties June 15, 1920; retired March 7, 1921.

Henry P. Fletcher, of Pennsylvania. Commissioned March 7, 1921; entered upon duties March 8, 1921; retired March 6, 1922.

William Phillips, of Massachusetts. Commissioned March 31, 1922; entered upon duties April 26, 1922; retired April 11, 1924.

Joseph C. Grew, of New Hampshire. Commissioned March 7, 1924; entered upon duties April 16, 1924; retired June 30, 1927.

Robert E. Olds, of Minnesota. Commissioned May 19, 1927; entered upon duties July 1, 1927; retired June 30, 1928.

J. Reuben Clark, Jr., of Utah. Commissioned August 17, 1928; entered upon duties August 31, 1928; retired June 19, 1929.

Joseph P. Cotton, of New York. Commissioned June 7, 1929; entered upon duties June 20, 1929; died March 10, 1931.

William R. Castle, Jr., of the District of Columbia. Commissioned April 1, 1931; entered upon duties April 2, 1931; retired March 5, 1933.

William Phillips, of Massachusetts. Commissioned and entered upon duties March 6, 1933.

ASSISTANT SECRETARIES OF STATE, 1853-1934 1

(Including Second and Third Assistant Secretaries of State)

Ambrose Dudley Mann, of Ohio. Commissioned March 23, 1853; retired May 8, 1855.

- William Hunter, Jr., of Rhode Island (Chief Clerk). Ad interim May 8, 1855-October 31, 1855.
- John A. Thomas, of New York. Commissioned and entered upon duties November 1, 1855; retired April 3, 1857.
- John Appleton, of Maine. Commissioned and entered upon duties April 4, 1857; retired June 10, 1860.
- William H. Trescot, of South Carolina. Commissioned June 8, 1860; entered upon duties June 11, 1860; retired December 20, 1860.
- William Hunter, of Rhode Island (Chief Clerk). Ad interim March 1-5, 1861.
- Frederick W. Seward, of New York. Commissioned and entered upon duties March 6, 1861; retired March 4, 1869.
- William Hunter, of Rhode Island. Commissioned Second Assistant Secretary of State and entered upon duties July 27, 1866; died July 22, 1886.
- J. C. Bancroft Davis, of New York. Commissioned March 25, 1869; entered upon duties April 1, 1869; retired November 13, 1871.
- Charles Hale, of Massachusetts. Commissioned and entered upon duties February 19, 1872; retired January 24, 1873.
- J. C. Bancroft Davis, of New York. Commissioned January 24, 1873; entered upon duties January 25, 1873; retired June 30, 1874.
- John L. Cadwalader, of New York. Commissioned June 17, 1874; entered upon duties July 1, 1874; retired March 20, 1877.
- John A. Campbell, of Wyoming. Commissioned Third Assistant Secretary of State and entered upon duties February 24, 1875; retired November 30, 1877.
- Frederick W. Seward, of New York. Commissioned March 16, 1877; entered upon duties March 21, 1877; retired October 31, 1879.
- Charles Payson, of New York. Commissioned Third Assistant Secretary of State June 11, 1878; entered upon duties June 22, 1878; retired June 30, 1881.
- John Hay, of Ohio. Commissioned and entered upon duties November 1, 1879; retired May 3, 1881.
- Robert R. Hitt, of Illinois. Commissioned and entered upon duties May 4, 1881; retired December 19, 1881.
- Walker Blaine, of Maine. Commissioned Third Assistant Secretary of State and entered upon duties July 1, 1881; retired June 30, 1882.
- J. C. Bancroft Davis, of New York. Commissioned December 19, 1881; entered upon duties December 20, 1881; retired July 7, 1882.
- John Davis, of the District of Columbia. Commissioned July 7, 1882; entered upon duties July 8, 1882; retired February 23, 1885.
- Alvey A. Adee, of the District of Columbia. Commissioned Third Assistant Secretary of State and entered upon duties July 18, 1882; retired August 5, 1886; commissioned Second Assistant Secretary of State August 3, 1886; entered upon duties as Second Assistant Secretary of State August 6, 1886; commissioned Assistant Secretary of State and entered upon duties under that title July 1, 1924; died July 4, 1924.
- James D. Porter, of Tennessee. Commissioned March 20, 1885; entered upon duties March 21, 1885; retired September 10, 1887.
- John Bassett Moore, of Delaware. Commissioned Third Assistant Secretary of State August 3, 1886; entered upon duties August 6, 1886; retired September 30, 1891.
- George L. Rives, of New York. Commissioned November 19, 1887; entered upon duties November 21, 1887; retired March 5, 1889.

¹ The office of Second Assistant Secretary of State existed from 1866 to 1924 and that of Third Assistant Secretary of State from 1875 to 1924. The titles of both offices were changed to Assistant Secretary of State on July 1, 1924. Under the present organization of the Department there are four Assistant Secretaries of State.

ASSISTANT SECRETARIES OF STATE—Continued

William F. Wharton, of Massachusetts. Commissioned April 2, 1889; entered upon duties April 11, 1889; retired March 20, 1893.

William M. Grinnell, of New York. Commissioned Third Assistant Secretary of State February 11, 1892; entered upon duties February 15, 1892; retired April 16, 1893.

Josiah Quincy, of Massachusetts. Commissioned March 20, 1893; entered upon duties March 21, 1893; retired September 22, 1893.

Edward H. Strobel, of New York. Commissioned Third Assistant Secretary of State April 13, 1893; entered upon duties April 17, 1893; retired April 16, 1894.

- Edwin F. Uhl, of Michigan. Commissioned November 1, 1893; entered upon duties November 11, 1893; retired February 11, 1896.
- William Woodville Rockhill, of Maryland. Commissioned Third Assistant Secretary of State April 14, 1894; entered upon duties April 17, 1894; retired February 13, 1896; commissioned Assistant Secretary of State February 11, 1896; entered upon duties as Assistant Secretary of State February 14, 1896; retired May 10, 1897.
- William Woodward Baldwin, of New York. Commissioned Third Assistant Secretary of State February 24, 1896; entered upon duties February 29, 1896; retired April 1, 1897.
- Thomas Wilbur Cridler, of West Virginia. Commissioned Third Assistant Secretary of State and entered upon duties April 8, 1897; retired November 15, 1901.
- William R. Day, of Ohio. Commissioned May 3, 1897; entered upon duties May 11, 1897; retired April 27, 1898.
- John Bassett Moore, of New York. Commissioned April 27, 1898; entered upon duties April 28, 1898; retired September 16, 1898.
- David J. Hill, of New York. Commissioned and entered upon duties October 25, 1898; retired January 28, 1903.
- Herbert H. D. Peirce, of Massachusetts. Commissioned Third Assistant Secretary of State November 15, 1901; entered upon duties November 16, 1901; retired June 22, 1906.
- Francis B. Loomis, of Ohio. Commissioned January 7, 1903; entered upon duties February 9, 1903; retired October 10, 1905.
- Robert Bacon, of New York. Commissioned September 5, 1905; entered upon duties October 11, 1905; retired January 27, 1909.
- Huntington Wilson, of Illinois. Commissioned Third Assistant Secretary of State June 22, 1906; entered upon duties July 2, 1906; retired December 30, 1908.
- William Phillips, of Massachusetts. Commissioned Third Assistant Secretary of State and entered upon duties January 11, 1909; retired October 13, 1909.
- John Callan O'Laughlin, of the District of Columbia. Commissioned January 27, 1909; entered upon duties January 28, 1909; retired March 5, 1909.
- Huntington Wilson, of Illinois. Commissioned March 5, 1909; entered upon duties March 6, 1909; retired March 19, 1913.
- Chandler Hale, of Maine. Commissioned Third Assistant Secretary of State September 25, 1909; entered upon duties October 14, 1909; retired April 21, 1913.
- John E. Osborne, of Wyoming. Commissioned and entered upon duties April 21, 1913; retired December 14, 1916.
- Dudley Field Malone, of New York. Commissioned Third Assistant Secretary of State April 21, 1913; entered upon duties April 22, 1913; retired November 22, 1913.
- William Phillips, of Massachusetts. Commissioned Third Assistant Secretary of State March 13, 1914; entered upon duties March 17, 1914; retired January 24, 1917; commissioned Assistant Secretary of State January 24, 1917; entered upon duties as Assistant Secretary of State January 25, 1917; retired March 25, 1920.

ASSISTANT SECRETARIES OF STATE—Continued

- Breckinridge Long, of Missouri. Commissioned Third Assistant Secretary of State January 24, 1917; entered upon duties January 29, 1917; retired June 8, 1920.
- Van Santvoord Merle-Smith, of New York. Commissioned Third Assistant Secretary of State June 21, 1920; entered upon dutics June 24, 1920; retired March 4, 1921.
- Fred Morris Dearing, of Missouri. Commissioned March 11, 1921; entered upon duties March 15, 1921; retired February 28, 1922.
- Robert Woods Bliss, of New York. Commissioned Third Assistant Secretary of State March 15, 1921; entered upon duties March 16, 1921; retired May 3, 1923.
- Leland Harrison, of Illinois. Commissioned March 31, 1922; entered upon duties April 4, 1922; retired April 1, 1927.
- J. Butler Wright, of Wyoming. Commissioned Third Assistant Secretary of State January 30, 1923; entered upon dutics June 11, 1923; commissioned Assistant Secretary of State and entered upon duties under that title July 1, 1924; retired April 18, 1927.
- Wilbur J. Carr, of New York. Commissioned and entered upon duties July 1, 1924; recommissioned March 6, 1933.
- John Van A. MacMurray, of New Jersey. Commissioned November 18, 1924; entered upon duties November 19, 1924; retired May 19, 1925.
- Robert E. Olds, of Minnesota. Commissioned October 1, 1925; entered upon duties October 5, 1925; retired June 30, 1927.
- William R. Castle, Jr., of the District of Columbia. Commissioned February 26, 1927; entered upon duties April 2, 1927; ¹ retired April 1, 1931.
- Francis White, of Maryland. Commissioned February 26, 1927; entered upon duties April 27, 1927; retired July 2, 1933.
- Nelson T. Johnson, of Oklahoma. Commissioned and entered upon duties August 15, 1927; retired December 26, 1929.
- James Grafton Rogers, of Colorado. Commissioned February 27, 1931; entered upon duties March 10, 1931; retired March 6, 1933.
- Harvey H. Bundy, of Massachusetts. Commissioned June 10, 1931; entered upon duties July 13, 1931; retired March 4, 1933.
- Raymond Moley, of Ohio. Commissioned March 6, 1933; entered upon duties March 7, 1933; retired September 7, 1933.
- Sumner Welles, of Maryland. Commissioned and entered upon duties April 6, 1933; retired April 28, 1933.
- Harry F. Payer, of Ohio. Commissioned June 13, 1933; entered upon duties June 19, 1933; retired November 26, 1933.
- Jefferson Caffery, of Louisiana. Commissioned July 11, 1933; entered upon duties July 12, 1933; retired November 4, 1933.
- R. Walton Moore, of Virginia. Commissioned and entered upon duties September 19, 1933.
- Francis B. Sayre, of Massachusetts. Commissioned November 17, 1933; entered upon duties November 27, 1933.
- Sumner Welles, of Maryland. Commissioned and entered upon duties December 15, 1933.

SPECIAL ASSISTANTS TO THE SECRETARY OF STATE, 1930-1934

Allen Trafford Klots, of New York. Appointed December 15, 1930; retired January 11, 1933. William Christian Bullitt, of Pennsylvania. Appointed April 20, 1933; retired November 26, 1933. James Clement Dunn, of New York. Appointed February 1, 1934. Thomas Hewes, of Connecticut. Appointed April 2, 1934.

¹ Served as ambassador to Japan Dec. 11, 1929-June 30, 1930.

REGISTER OF THE DEPARTMENT OF STATE

CLAIMS CLERKS, 1849-1855 1

(Duties later performed by the Examiner of Claims)

William Hunter, Jr., of Rhode Island. Appointed March 16, 1849;² retired May 16, 1852. Abel French, of New York. Appointed April 1, 1853; retired June 18, 1855.

EXAMINERS OF CLAIMS, 1866-1891³

(Title changed to Solicitor, March 3,1891)

E. Peshine Smith, of New York. Commissioned July 27, 1866; retired June 30, 1869 (office abolished); recommissioned June 7, 1870 (office reestablished); retired October 25, 1871.

Charles C. Beaman, of New York. Commissioned November 1, 1871; retired January 1, 1872.

Henry O'Connor, of Iowa. Commissioned February 9, 1872; retired April 15, 1885.

Francis Wharton, of Pennsylvania. Commissioned April 15, 1885; retired February 21, 1889.

Walker Blaine, of Maine. Commissioned March 13, 1889; died January 15, 1890.

Frank C. Partridge, of Vermont. Commissioned June 10, 1890; title changed to Solicitor, March 3, 1891.

SOLICITORS, 1891-1931 4

(Superseded by the office of Legal Adviser, July 1, 1931)

Frank C. Partridge, of Vermont. Title acquired March 3, 1891 (see footnote 1); retired January 25, 1893.

Walter D. Dabney, of Virginia. Commissioned March 23, 1893; retired 1895.

Walter E. Faison, of North Carolina. Commissioned November 1, 1895; retired 1897.

William L. Penfield, of Indiana. Commissioned June 7, 1897; retired December 27, 1905.

James Brown Scott, of California. Commissioned January 23, 1906; retired July 1, 1910.

Joshua Reuben Clark, Jr., of Utah. Commissioned June 28, 1910, effective July 1, 1910; retired March 3, 1913.

Joseph W. Folk, of Missouri. Commissioned September 18, 1913; retired March 1, 1914.

Fred K. Nielsen, of Nebraska (Acting). Appointed March 2, 1914; retired March 26, 1914.

Cone Johnson, of Texas. Commissioned March 27, 1914; retired March 15, 1917.

Lester H. Woolsey, of New York. Commissioned June 27, 1917; retired March 31, 1920.

Fred K. Nielsen, of Nebraska. Commissioned June 21, 1920; retired August 18, 1922.

Charles Cheney Hyde, of the District of Columbia. Commissioned February 6, 1923; retired June 30, 1925.

Green H. Hackworth, of Kentucky (Acting). Appointed July 1, 1925; retired August 9, 1925.

Green H. Hackworth, of Kentucky. Commissioned August 10, 1925; retired June 30, 1931 (office abolished 4).

LEGAL ADVISER, 1931-1934 4

Green H. Hackworth, of Kentucky. Commissioned July 1, 1931.

302

¹ An act of Congress approved Aug. 12, 1848 (9 Stat. 284), provided for a clerk "whose duty it shall be to examine claims of the citizens of the United States against foreign governments, and the claims of the latter against the former." These duties were

the cluzers of the United States against foreign governments, and the claims of the latter against the former." These duities were later performed by the Examiner of Claims. ³ Appointed Acting Claims Clerk Oct. 1, 1848. ³ The office of Examiner of Claims was established by an act approved July 25, 1866 (14 Stat. 226). It was abolished on June 30, 1869 (see 15 Stat. 96), but reestablished by an act approved May 27, 1870 (16 Stat. 378). It was placed under the Department of Justice by the act creating that Department approved June 22, 1870 (16 Stat. 162), and by an act approved March 3, 1891 (26 Stat. 945), its title was changed to Solicitor for the Department of State. ⁴ See footnote 3. The office of Solicitor for the Department of State was abolished by an act approved Feb. 23, 1931, effective July 1, 1931 (46 Stat. 1214), and in lieu thereof there was established in the Department of State the office of Legal Adviser

CHIEF CLERKS, 1789-1934

Henry Remsen, Jr., of New York. Retired December 31, 1789. Roger Alden, of Connecticut. Appointed January 1, 1790; retired July 25, 1790. Henry Remsen, Jr., of New York. Appointed September, 1790; retired March 31, 1792. George Taylor, Jr., of New York. Appointed April 1, 1792; retired February 7, 1798. Jacob Wagner, of Pennsylvania. Appointed February 8, 1798; retired March 31, 1807. John Graham, of Virginia. Appointed July 1, 1807; retired July 18, 1817. Daniel Brent, of Virginia. Appointed September 22, 1817; retired August 22, 1833. Asbury Dickins, of North Carolina. Appointed August 23, 1833; retired December 12, 1836. Aaron Ogden Dayton, of New Jersey. Appointed December 13, 1836; retired June 25, 1838. Aaron Vail, of New York. Appointed June 26, 1838; retired July 15, 1840. J. L. Martin, of North Carolina. Appointed July 16, 1840; retired March 5, 1841. Daniel Fletcher Webster, of Massachusetts. Appointed March 6, 1841; retired April 23, 1843. William S. Derrick, of Pennsylvania. Appointed April 27, 1843; retired April 9, 1844. Richard K. Crallé, of Virginia. Appointed April 10, 1844; retired March 10, 1845. William S. Derrick, of Pennsylvania. Appointed March 11, 1845; retired August 27, 1845. Nicholas P. Trist, of Virginia. Appointed August 28, 1845; retired April 14, 1847. William S. Derrick, of Pennsylvania. Appointed April 15, 1847; retired January 25, 1848. John Appleton, of Maine. Appointed January 26, 1848; retired April 25, 1848. William S. Derrick, of Pennsylvania. Appointed April 26, 1848; retired May 15, 1852. William Hunter, Jr., of Rhode Island. Appointed May 17, 1852; retired May 7, 1855. Robert S. Chew, of Virginia. Appointed May 8, 1855; retired October 31, 1855. William Hunter, Jr., of Rhode Island. Appointed November 1, 1855; retired July 26, 1866. Robert S. Chew, of Virginia. Appointed July 27, 1866; retired August 2, 1873. Sevellon A. Brown, of New York. Appointed August 7, 1873; retired January 31, 1888. James Fenner Lee, of Maryland. Appointed February 1, 1888; retired February 10, 1890. Sevellon A. Brown, of New York. Appointed February 11, 1890; retired February, 1893. Robert S. Chilton, Jr., of the District of Columbia. Appointed February 15, 1893; retired April 13, 1893. William W. Rockhill, of Maryland. Appointed April 14, 1893; retired April 14, 1894. Edward I. Renick, of Georgia. Appointed April 17, 1894; retired May 19, 1897. William H. Michael, of Nebraska. Appointed May 20, 1897; retired November 15, 1905. Charles Denby, of Indiana. Appointed November 16, 1905; retired April 15, 1907. Wilbur J. Carr, of Ohio. Appointed May 8, 1907; retired November 29, 1909. William McNeir, of Michigan. Appointed November 30, 1909; retired April 30, 1913. Ben G. Davis, of Nebraska. Appointed April 23, 1913; retired May 31, 1924. Edwin C. Wilson, of Florida (Acting). Appointed June 1, 1924; retired July 9, 1924. E. J. Ayers, of New Jersey. Appointed July 10, 1924; died April 30, 1931. Harry A. McBride, of Michigan (Acting). Appointed May 1, 1931; retired September 7, 1931. Percy F. Allen, of Maryland (Acting). Appointed September 8, 1931; retired December 31, 1931. Clinton E. MacEachran, of Massachusetts. Appointed January 1, 1932.

17. DIPLOMATIC AGENTS OF THE UNITED STATES

DIPLOMATIC AGENTS PRIOR TO 17891

JOHN ADAMS, of Massachusetts

- Joint commissioner to the court of France: elected November 28, 1777, to replace Silas Deane on commission with Benjamin Franklin and Arthur Lee; arrived in Paris April 8, 1778; commission dissolved September 14, 1778, upon election of Benjamin Franklin as sole minister plenipotentiary; left Paris March 8, 1779; arrived in United States August 2, 1779.
- Minister plenipotentiary to negotiate a treaty of peace and commerce with Great Britain: elected September 27, 1779; commissioned September 29, 1779; arrived in Paris February 5, 1780; commission renewed June 15, 1781 (see below).
- Agent to negotiate in the Netherlands for a loan of ten million dollars, in place of Henry Laurens and until he should arrive in Europe: commissioned June 20, 1780; left Paris for the Netherlands July 27, 1780; mission unsuccessful at that time; returned to Paris in July 1781.
- Minister plenipotentiary to negotiate a treaty of amity and commerce with the Netherlands: commissioned December 29, 1780; unsuccessful at that time; granted additional powers August 16, 1781; signed treaty of commerce at The Hague October 8, 1782; returned to Paris October 26, 1782; mission terminated February 24, 1788.
- Joint commissioner, with Benjamin Franklin, John Jay, and Henry Laurens,² to negotiate a treaty of peace with Great Britain: previous commission of September 29, 1779, renewed June 15, 1781; signed preliminary articles November 30, 1782, at Paris; signed definitive treaty September 3, 1783, at Paris.
- Joint minister plenipotentiary, with Benjamin Franklin and Thomas Jefferson, to negotiate treaties of amity and commerce with European countries and the Barbary States: commissioned May 12, 1784; signed treaty with Prussia August 5, 1785, at London; signed treaty with Morocco January 25, 1787, at London; mission terminated February 24, 1788.
- Minister plenipotentiary to Great Britain: elected February 24, 1785; recalled, at his own request, by a resolution of Congress dated October 5, 1787, and effective February 24, 1788; took leave of the King February 20, 1788; no successor until Thomas Pinckney was appointed in 1792.3
- (Adams served simultaneously under his commissions to Great Britain, the Netherlands, other European countries, and the Barbary States.)

THOMAS BARCLAY, of Pennsylvania

Vice consul in France: elected June 26, 1781, to act until the arrival of the consul; 4 commissioned July 10, 1781.

Consul in France: elected October 5, 1781.

- Commissioner "with full power and authority to liquidate and finally to settle the accounts of all the servants of the United States, who have been intrusted with the expenditure of publick money in Europe, and all other accounts of the United States in Europe": elected November 18, 1782.
- Agent of John Adams and Thomas Jefferson,⁵ to negotiate a treaty with Morocco: appointed October 5, 1785, by Adams and October 11, 1785, by Jefferson; accompanied by Colonel Franks, as secretary.6 The text of the treaty was delivered to him by the Moroccan authorities on the "first day of the blessed month of Ramadan" (June 28, 1786) and was signed by John Adams January 25, 1787, at London and by Thomas Jefferson January 1, 1787, at Paris.

WILLIAM CARMICHAEL, of Maryland

- Assistant to Silas Deane, secret agent of Congress at Paris, spring of 1776; went to Berlin in American interests, fall of 1776.
- Secretary to commissioners in France: commissioned November 28, 1777, but did not act in this capacity; returned to the United States in May 1778.
- Secretary to John Jay, minister plenipotentiary to negotiate a treaty of amity, commerce, and alliance with the court of Spain: elected September 28, 1779.
- Chargé d'affaires ad interim in Spain: assumed office in May 1782;⁷ formally received February 20, 1783; presented to the King August 23, 1783; commissioned as chargé d'affaires April 20, 1790.

FRANCIS DANA, of Massachusetts

- Secretary to John Adams, minister plenipotentiary to negotiate treaties of peace and commerce with Great Britain: elected September 28, 1779; reached Paris February 9, 1780.
- Alternate to John Adams in the negotiation of a loan in the Netherlands: commissioned June 20, 1780.
- Minister plenipotentiary to Russia: commissioned December 19, 1780; in St. Petersburg from August 1781, to September 1783, but not received at court.

¹ Unless otherwise noted, these agents were elected, appointed, or commissioned by the Continental Congress. In addition to the secret agents included in this table the following persons, among others, also acted as secret correspondents of the Continental Congress: Jonathan Loring Austin, Edward Bancroft, William Bingham, William Bollan, William Hodge, William Lee, Thomas Morris, and Thomas Story. Commercial agents are not included in this list. ¹ Thomas Jefferson was also appointed but did not go to Paris on this mission. ³ Diplomatic relations with Great britain were temporarily discontinued with the recall of John Adams. On Oct. 13, 1789, President Washington appointed Gouverneur Morris, of New York, as a "private agent" to "converse with his Britannie Majesty's ministers" on the questions then in dispute between the two Governments and to pave the way for the resumption of diplomatic relations. Works of John Adams, vol. 8, pp. 422, 477, 480; Secret Journals of Congress, vol. 4, p. 399; American State Papers, vol. 1, p. 122.

 vol. 1, p. 122.
 William Palfrey was appointed and commissioned consul in France Dec. 9. 1780, but was lost at sea while crossing the Atlantic. Ministers plenipotentiary to negotiate treaties with foreign countries; authorized by Congress, Mar. 11, 1785, to appoint agents to represent them

Probably David S. Franks, of the Revolutionary Army.
 The minister, John Jay, left Madrid for Paris in May 1782.

SILAS DEANE, of Connecticut

- Secret agent in France of Continental Congress: appointed by the Committee of Secret Correspondence March 3, 1776; arrived in France May 4, 1776.
- Joint commissioner, with Benjamin Franklin and (later) Arthur Lee, to the court of France, with full powers to negotiate treaties: elected September 26, 1776; commissioned September 28, 1776; signed treaties of commerce and alliance February 6, 1778, at Paris; recalled by a resolution of Congress which was dated December 8, 1777, but not received until March 4, 1778.

CHARLES WILLIAM FREDERICK DUMAS, of Switzerland and the Netherlands 1

Secret agent of the Continental Congress: appointed by the Committee of Secret Correspondence December 19, 1775.

- Secretary to John Adams, minister plenipotentiary to the Netherlands, 1781-82.
- Acted as chargé d'affaires in the Netherlands after the departure of John Adams on October 26, 1782; exchanged ratifications of treaty of October 8, 1782, with the Netherlands.

BENJAMIN FRANKLIN, of Pennsylvania

- Joint commissioner, with Silas Deane and (later) Arthur Lee, to the court of France, with full powers to negotiate treaties: elected September 26, 1776; commissioned September 28, 1776; signed treaties of commerce and alliance February 6. 1778.
- Commissioner also to court of Spain: elected January 1, 1777; commissioned January 2, 1777; never entered upon mission.
- Minister plenipotentiary to the court of France: elected September 14, 1778. Left Paris for the United States July 12, 1785; succeeded by Thomas Jefferson.
- Joint commissioner, with John Adams, John Jay, and Henry Laurens,³ to negotiate a peace treaty with Great Britain: elected June 14, 1781; commissioned June 15, 1781; signed preliminary articles November 30, 1782, at Paris; signed definitive treaty September 3, 1783, at Paris.
- Minister plenipotentiary to negotiate a treaty of amity and commerce with Sweden: commissioned September 28, 1782; signed treaty April 3, 1783, at Paris.
- Joint minister plenipotentiary, with Thomas Jefferson and John Adams, to negotiate treaties of amity and commerce with European countries and the Barbary States: commissioned May 12, 1784; signed treaty with Prussia July 9, 1785, at Passy.
- (Franklin served simultaneously under his several commissions.)

DAVID HUMPHREYS, of Connecticut

Secretary to joint commission for the negotiation of treaties of amity and commerce with European countries and the Barbary States: elected May 12, 1784.8

RALPH IZARD, of South Carolina

Commissioner to the court of Tuscany: elected May 7, 1777: commissioned July 1, 1777; not received at court; empowered to negotiate with Tuscany for a loan of one million dollars February 4, 1778, but was unsuccessful; mission ended by Congress June 8, 1779.

JOHN JAY, of New York 4

- Minister plenipotentiary to the court of Spain: elected September 27, 1779; commissioned September 29, 1779; reached Spain January 22, 1780; not formally received at court; left Madrid for Paris in May 1782.
- Joint commissioner, with John Adams, Benjamin Franklin, and Henry Laurens, to negotiate a peace treaty with Great Britain: elected June 13, 1781; commissioned June 15, 1781; signed preliminary articles November 30, 1782, at Paris; signed definitive treaty September 3, 1783, at Paris.

THOMAS JEFFERSON, of Virginia 5

- Joint minister plenipotentiary, with Benjamin Franklin and John Adams, to negotiate treaties of amity and commerce with European countries and the Barbary States: elected May 7, 1784: commissioned May 12, 1784; signed treaty with Prussia July 28, 1785, at Paris; signed treaty with Morocco January 1, 1787, at Paris.
- Minister plenipotentiary to France: elected March 10, 1785. Left France for the United States September 26, 1789; succeeded by William Short as chargé d'affaires.
- (Jefferson served simultaneously under these two commissions.)

JOHN LAMB, of Connecticut

Agent of John Adams and Thomas Jefferson 6 to the Dey and Government of Algiers: appointed October 5, 1785, by Adams and October 11, 1785, by Jefferson; accompanied on the mission by Paul R. Randall, as secretary; mission unsuccessful.

HENRY LAURENS, of South Carolina

- Minister plenipotentiary to the Netherlands to negotiate a treaty and a loan: elected and commissioned November 1. 1779; sailed for the Netherlands August 13, 1780; captured by the British September 3, 1780, and taken to the Tower of London, where he was confined until his exchange for Burgoyne early in 1782.
- Joint commissioner with Benjamin Franklin, John Adams, and John Jay² to negotiate a treaty of peace with Great Britain: elected June 14, 1781; commissioned June 15, 1781; reached Paris November 29, 1782; signed preliminary articles of treaty November 30, 1782, at Paris; did not sign the definitive treaty of September 3, 1783.

¹ Although for many years active in the cause of the United States in Europe, Dumas was never formally commissioned by Although to many other many other and the second

go on the mission. Minister plenipotentiary to negotiate treaties with foreign powers; authorized by Congress Mar. 11,1785, to appoint agents to

represent them.

JOHN LAURENS, of South Carolina

Secretary to the legation at Paris: elected September 28, 1779. Special minister to France to assist in negotiating loans: commissioned December 23, 1780.

ARTHUR LEE, of Virginia

Secret agent of Continental Congress in London: appointed by the Committee of Secret Correspondence December 12, 1775.

Joint commissioner to court of France with full powers to negotiate treaties: elected October 22, 1776, to replace Thomas Jefferson, who had declined appointment on the commission; signed, with Silas Deane and Benjamin Franklin, treaties of commerce and alliance February 6, 1778; commission dissolved September 14, 1778, upon appointment of Benjamin Franklin as sole minister plenipotentiary.

Commissioner also to court of Spain: elected May 1, 1777; commissioned June 5, 1777, but never went to Spain on this mission, although he had been there previously in the financial interests of the United States.

WILLIAM LEE, of Virginia 1

Commissioner to courts of Vienna and Berlin: elected May 9, 1777; commissioned July 1, 1777; not received at either court.

OLIVER POLLOCK

Commercial agent at Havana: elected May 30, 1783; commissioned June 2, 1783.

THOMAS RANDAL, of Pennsylvania

Vice consul at Canton: elected January 31, 1786.

SAMUEL SHAW, of Massachusetts

Consul at Canton: elected January 27, 1786.

WILLIAM S. SMITH, of New York

Secretary of Legation at London: elected March 1, 1785; commissioned March 14, 1785; returned to the United States in 1788.

PRINCIPAL DIPLOMATIC AGENTS, 1789-1934

ALBANIA

Envoys Extraordinary and Ministers Plenipotentiary

Ulysses Grant-Smith, Pennsylvania, September 22, 1922. Charles C. Hart, District of Columbia, May 27, 1925. Herman Bernstein, New York, February 17, 1930. Post Wheeler, Washington, August 26, 1933.

ALGIERS

Commissioner Plenipotentiary

David Humphreys, Connecticut, March 21, 1793

ARGENTINA

Minister Plenipotentiary

Caesar A. Rodney, Delaware, January 27, 1823

Chargés d'Affaires

John M. Forbes, Florida, March 9, 1825. Francis Baylies, Massachusetts, January 3, 1832. William Brent, Jr., Virginia, June 14, 1844. William A. Harrls, Virginia, February 19, 1846. John S. Pendleton, Virginia, February 27, 1851. James A. Peden, Florida, May 22, 1854.

Ministers Resident

James A. Peden, Florida, June 29, 1854.
Benjamin C. Yancey, Georgia, June 14, 1858.
John F. Cushman, Mississippi, July 18, 1859.
Robert M. Palmer, Pennsylvania, March 28, 1861.
Robert C. Kirk, Ohio, March 4, 1862.
Alexander Asboth,² Missourl, March 12, 1866.
H. G. Worthington,³ Nevada, June 5, 1868.
Robert C. Kirk,² Ohio, April 16, 1869.
Jullus White, Illinois, December 12, 1872.
Thomas O. Osborn, Illinois, February 10, 1874.

Ministers Resident and Consuls General

Thomas O. Osborn, Illinois, July 7, 1884.

Bayless W. Hanna, Indiana, June 17, 1885.

Envoys Extraordinary and Ministers Plenipotentiary

Bayless W. Hanna, Indiana, July 1, 1887.
John R. G. Pitkin, Louisiana, July 26, 1889.
William I. Buchanan, Iowa, January 26, 1894.
William P. Lord, Oregon, October 16, 1899.
John Barrett, Oregon, July 2, 1903.
Arthur M. Beaupré, Illinois, March 17, 1904.
Spencer F. Eddy, Illinois, April 2, 1908.
Charles H. Sherrill, New York, April 1, 1909.
John W. Garrett, Maryland, December 14, 1911

Ambassadors Extraordinary and Plenipotentiary

Frederic Jesup Stimson, Massachusetts, October 1, 1914. John W. Riddle, Connecticut, November 18, 1921. Peter Augustus Jay, Rhode Island, March 18, 1925. Robert Woods Bliss, New York, February 17, 1927. Alexander W. Weddell, Virginia, June 3, 1933.

AUSTRIA

(See also Austria-Hungary)

Envoys Extraordinary and Ministers Plenipotentiary Henry A. Muhlenberg, Pennsylvania, February 8, 1838. Daniel Jenifer, Maryland, August 27, 1841.

Chargés d'Affaires

William H. Stiles, Georgia, April 19, 1845.
James Watson Webb, New York, November 1, 1849.
Charles J. McCurdy, Connecticut, September 27, 1850.
Thomas M. Foote, New York, September 16, 1852.
Henry R. Jackson, Georgia, May 24, 1853.

Ministers Resident

Henry R. Jackson, Georgia, June 29, 1854. J. Glancy Jones, Pennsylvania, November 1, 1858.

¹ On Sept. 4, 1778, William Lee and M. de Neufville of the Netherlands drafted a treaty between the United States and the Netherlands at Aix-la-Chapelle, but the treaty was never signed by either country. The draft treaty was in the possession of Henry Laurens when he was seized by the British on Sept. 3, 1780, and became one of the causes of war between the Netherlands and Great Britain.

² Accredited also to Uruguay.

Envoys Extraordinary and Ministers Plenipotentiary

J. Glancy Jones, Pennsylvania, December 15, 1858.
 Anson Burlingame, Massachusetts, March 22, 1861.
 J. Lothrop Motley, Massachusetts, August 10, 1861.

Chargé d' Affaires

John Hay, Illinois, August 20, 1867.

Commissioners

Albert Halstead, Ohio, May 15, 1919. Arthur Hugh Frazier, Pennsylvania, September 13, 1920.

Chargé d'Affaires pro tempore

Arthur Hugh Frazier, Pennsylvania, November 25, 1921.

Envoys Extraordinary and Ministers Plenipotentiary

Albert Henry Washburn, Massachusetts, February 10, 1922. Gilchrist Baker Stockton, Florida, January 22, 1930. George H. Earle, 3d, Pennsylvania, July 24, 1933. George S. Messersmith, Delaware, April 7, 1934.

AUSTRIA-HUNGARY

(See also Austria and Hungary)

Envoys Extraordinary and Ministers Plenipotentiary

Henry M. Watts, Pennsylvania, July 25, 1868.
John Jay, New York, April 13, 1869.
Godlove S. Orth, Indiana, March 9, 1875.
Edward F. Beale, District of Columbia, June 1, 1876.
John A. Kasson, Iowa, June 11, 1877.
Willlam Walter Phelps, New Jersey, May 5, 1881.
Alphonso Taft, Ohio, April 26, 1882.
John M. Francis, New York, July 4, 1884.
Alexander R. Lawton, Georgia, April 15, 1887.
Frederick D. Grant, New York, March 23, 1889.
Bartlett Tripp, South Dakota, April 6, 1893.
Charlemagne Tower, Pennsylvania, April 1, 1897.
Addison C. Harris, Indiana, January 12, 1899.
Robert S. McCormick, Illinois, March 7, 1901.

Ambassadors Extraordinary and Plenipotentiary

Robert S. McCormick, Illinois, May 27, 1902. Bellamy Storer, Ohio, September 26, 1902. Charles S. Francis, New York, March 22, 1906. Richard C. Kerens, Missouri, December 21, 1909. Frederic Courtland Penfield, Pennsylvania, July 28, 1913.

BALTIC PROVINCES OF RUSSIA

(See also Estonia, Latvia, and Lithuania)

Commissioners

John A. Gade, New York, October 1, 1919. Evan E. Young, Ohio, March 25, 1920.

BELGIUM

Chargés d'Afjaires

Hugh S. Legaré, South Carolina, April 14, 1832. Virgil Maxey, Maryland, June 16, 1837. Henry W. Hilliard, Alabama, May 12, 1842. Thomas G. Clemson, Pennsylvania, June 17, 1844. Richard H. Bayard, Delaware, December 10, 1850. J. J. Seibels, Alabama, May 24, 1853.

Accredited also to Luxemburg.

Ministers Resident

J. J. Seibels, Alabama, June 29, 1854. Elisha Y. Fair, Alabama, June 14, 1855. Henry S. Sanford, Connecticut, March 20, 1861. Joseph Russell Jones, Illinois, March 15, 1870. Ayres Phillips Merrill, Mississippi, January 7, 1876. William C. Goodloe, Kentucky, March 4, 1878. James O. Putnam, New York, June 4, 1880. Nicholas Fish, New York, April 28, 1882. Lambert Tree, Illinois, July 3, 1885.

Envoys Extraordinary and Ministers Plenipotentiary

Lambert Tree, Illinois, August 10, 1888. John G. Parkhurst, Michigan, October 1, 1888. Edwin H. Terrell, Texas, April 1, 1889. James S. Ewing, Illinois, April 8, 1893. Bellamy Storer, Ohio, May 4, 1897. Lawrence Townsend, Pennsylvania, April 12, 1899. Henry Lane Wilson, WashIngton, March 8, 1905. Charles Page Bryan, Illinois, December 21, 1909. Larz Anderson, District of Columbia, August 12, 1911. Theodore Marburg, Maryland, November 22, 1912. Brand Whitlock, Ohio, December 22, 1913.

Ambassadors Extraordinary and Plenipotentiary

Brand Whitlock, Ohio, September 30, 1919. Henry P. Fletcher, I Pennsylvanla, March 6, 1922. William Phillips, I Massachusetts, February 29, 1924. Hugh S. Gibson, I California, February 17, 1927. Dave Hennen Morris, I New York, May 18, 1933.

BOLIVIA

(See also Peru-Bolivian Confederation)

Chargés d'Affaires

John Appleton, Maine, March 30, 1848. Alexander K. McClung, Mississippi, May 29, 1849. Horace H. Miller, Mississippi, February 10, 1852. John W. Dana, Maine, August 26, 1853.

Ministers Resident

John W. Dana, Maine, June 29, 1854. John Cotton Smith, Connecticut, June 14, 1858. David K. Cartter, Ohio, March 27, 1861. Allen A. Hall, Tennessee, April 21, 1863. John W. Caldwell, Ohio, June 18, 1868. Leopold Markbreit, Ohio, April 16, 1869. John T. Croxton, Kentucky, December 20, 1872. Robert M. Reynolds, Alabama, June 17, 1874.

Ministers Resident and Consuls General

S. Newton Pettis, Pennsylvania, September 4, 1878. Charles Adams, Colorado, April 6, 1880.

Special Envoy Extraordinary and Minister Plenipotentiary William Henry Trescot, South Carolina, November 28, 1881.

Ministers Resident and Consuls General

George Maney, Tennessee, April 17, 1882. Richard Gibbs, New York, June 18, 1883. William D. Bloxham, Florida, April 18, 1885. William A. Seay, Louisiana, May 9, 1885. S. S. Carlisle, Louisiana, August 31, 1887. Thomas H. Anderson, Ohio, September 3, 1889.

Envoys Extraordinary and Ministers Plenipotentiary

Thomas H. Anderson, Ohio, July 30, 1890. Frederick J. Grant, Washington, December 22, 1892. Thomas Moonlight, Kansas, February 2, 1894. George H. Bridgman, New Jersey, October 7, 1897. William B. Sorsby, Mlssissippi, July 11, 1902. James F. Stutesman, Indiana, June 5, 1908. Horace G. Knowles, Delaware, June 24, 1910. John D. O'Rear, Missouri, June 26, 1913. S. Abbot Maginnis, Utah, September 23, 1919. Jesse S. Cottrell, Tennessee, October 19, 1921. David E. Kaufman, Pennsylvania, March 7, 1928. Edward F. Feely, District of Columbia, June 4, 1930. Fay A. Des Portes, South Carolina, August 19, 1933.

BRAZIL

Chargés d'Affaires

Condy Raguet, Pennsylvania, March 9, 1825. William Tudor, Massachusetts, June 26, 1827. Ethan A. Brown, Ohio, May 26, 1830. William Hunter, Rhode Island, June 28, 1834.

Envoys Extraordinary and Ministers Plenipotentiary

William Hunter, Rhode Island, September 13, 1841. George H. Proffit, Indiana, June 7, 1843. Henry A. Wise, Virginia, February 8, 1844. David Tod, Ohio, March 3, 1847. Robert C. Schenck, Ohio, March 12, 1851. William Trousdale, Tennessee, May 24, 1853. Richard K. Meade, Virginia, July 27, 1857. James Watson Webb, New York, May 31, 1861. Henry T. Blow, Missourl, May 1, 1869. James R. Partridge, Maryland, May 23, 1871. Henry W. Hilliard, Georgia, July 31, 1877. Thomas A. Osborn, Kansas, May 19, 1881. Thomas J. Jarvis, North Carolina, April 2, 1885. Robert Adams, Jr., Pennsylvania, March 30, 1889. Edwin H. Conger, Iowa, September 27, 1890. Thomas L. Thompson, California, April 24, 1893. Edwin H. Conger, Iowa, May 27, 1897. Charles Page Bryan, Illinois, January 19, 1898. David E. Thompson, Nebraska, September 26, 1902

Ambassadors Extraordinary and Plenipotentiary

David E. Thompson, Nebraska, January 13, 1905. Lloyd C. Griscom, Pennsylvania, January 29, 1906. Irving B. Dudley, California, December 19, 1906. Edwin V. Morgan, New York, January 18, 1912. Hugh S. Gibson, California, May 11, 1933.

BULGARIA

Agent

Charles M. Dickinson, New York, April 24, 1901.

Diplomatic Agents

John B. Jackson,¹ New Jersey, June 5, 1903. John B. Jackson,³ New Jersey, March 8, 1905. Horace G. Knowles,³ Delaware, July 1, 1907. Spencer F. Eddy,¹ Illinois, January 11, 1909. John R. Carter,³ Maryland, September 25, 1909.

¹ Accredited also to Rumania, Serbia, and Greece. ³ Accredited also to Greece and Montenegro.

Envoys Extraordinary and Ministers Plenipotentiary

John R. Carter,¹ Maryland, June 24, 1910. John B. Jackson, New Jersey, August 12, 1911. Charles J. Vopicka,³ Illinois, September 11, 1913. Charles S. Wilson, Maine, October 8, 1921. Henry Wharton Shoemaker, Pennsylvania, January 22, 1930. Frederick A. Sterling, Texas, September 1, 1933.

CANADA

Envoys Extraordinary and Ministers Plenipotentiary

William Phillips, New Hampshire, February 17, 1927. Hanford MacNider, Iowa, June 20, 1930. Warren Delano Robbins, New York, May 11, 1933.

CENTRAL AMERICA

(See also the individual Central American states) Chargés d'Affaires

William Miller, March 7, 1825. John Williams, Tennessee, December 29, 1825. William B. Rochester, New York, March 3, 1827. William N. Jeffers, June 14, 1831. James Shannon, February 9, 1832. Charles G. De Witt, New York, January 29, 1833.

CENTRAL AMERICAN STATES

(See also the individual Central American states)

Ministers Resident

George Williamson, Louisiana, May 17, 1873. Cornelius A. Logan, Illinois, April 2, 1879. Henry C. Hall, April 17, 1882.

Envoys Extraordinary and Ministers Plenipotentiary

Henry C. Hall, July 13, 1882. Lansing B. Mlzner, California, March 30, 1889. Romualdo Pacheco, California, December 11, 1890.

CHILE

Minister Plenipotentiary

Heman Allen, Vermont, January 27, 1823.

Chargés d'Affaires

Samuel Larned, Rhode Island, February 29, 1828. John Hamm, Ohio, May 26, 1830. Richard Pollard, Virginia, June 28, 1834. John S. Pendleton, Virginia, August 16, 1841. William Crump, Virginia, April 10, 1844. Seth Barton, Louisiana, May 27, 1847.

Envoys Extraordinary and Ministers Plenipotentiary

Balie Peyton, Tennessee, August 9, 1849. David A. Starkweather, Ohio, June 29, 1854. John Bigler, California, April 2, 1857. Thomas H. Nelson, Indiana, June 1, 1861.

³ Accredited also to Rumania and Serbla.

308

Judson Kilpatrick, New Jersey, November 11, 1865. Joseph P. Root, Kansas, September 15, 1870. Cornelius A. Logan, Kansas, March 17, 1873. Thomas A. Osborn, Kansas, May 31, 1877. Judson Kilpatrick, New Jersey, May 19, 1881.

Special Envoy Extraordinary and Minister Plenipotentiary

William Henry Trescot, South Carolina, November 28, 1881.

Envoys Extraordinary and Ministers Plenipotentiary

Cornelius A. Logan, Illinois, March 15, 1882. William R. Roberts, New York, April 2, 1885. Patrick Egan, Nebraska, March 30, 1889. James D. Porter, Tennessee, April 4, 1893. Edward H. Strobel, New York, December 13, 1894. Henry L. Wilson, Washington, June 9, 1897. John Hicks, Wisconsin, July 14, 1905. Thomas C. Dawson, Iowa, April 21, 1909. Henry P. Fletcher, Pennsylvania, December 21, 1909.

Ambassadors Extraordinary and Plenipotentiary

Henry P. Fletcher, Pennsylvania, October 1, 1914. Joseph H. Shea, Indiana, March 6, 1916. William Miller Collier, New York, June 29, 1921. William S. Culbertson, Kansas, June 19, 1928. Hal H. Sevier, Texas, August 19, 1933.

CHINA

Envoy Extraordinary and Minister Plenipotentiary

Caleb Cushing, Massachusetts, May 8, 1843.

Commissioners

Caleb Cushing, Massachusetts, May 8, 1843. Alexander H. Everett, Massachusetts, March 13, 1845. John Wesley Davis, Indiana, January 3, 1848. Thomas A. R. Nelson, Tenneşsee, March 6, 1851. Humphrey Marshall, Kentucky, August 4, 1852. Robert M. McLane, Maryland, October 18, 1853. Peter Parker, Massachusetts, August 16, 1855.

Envoys Extraordinary and Ministers Plenipotentiary

William B. Reed, Pennsylvania, April 18, 1857.
John E. Ward, Georgia, December 15, 1858.
Anson Burlingame, Massachusetts, June 14, 1861.
J. Ross Browne, California, March 11, 1868.
Frederick F. Low, California, September 28, 1869.
Benjamin P. Avery, California, April 10, 1874.
George F. Seward, California, January 7, 1876.
James B. Angell, Michigan, April 9, 1880.
John Russell Young, New York, March 15, 1882.
Charles Page Bryan, Illinois, November 10, 1897.
Edwin H. Conger, Iowa, January 19, 1898.

Commissioner

William Woodville Rockhill, District of Columbia, July 19, 1900.

Envoys Extraordinary and Ministers Plenipotentiary

William Woodville Rockhill, District of Columbia, March 8, 1905.

Charles R. Crane, Illinois, July 23, 1909. William James Calhoun, Illinois, December 21, 1909. Paul S. Reinsch, Wisconsin, August 15, 1913. Charles R. Crane, Massachusetts, March 22, 1920. Jacob Gould Schurman, New York, June 2, 1921. John Van A. MacMurray, New Jersey, April 9, 1925. Nelson T. Johnson, Oklahoma, December 16, 1929.

COLOMBIA

(New Granada, 1831-1862)

Minister Plenipotentiary

Richard C. Anderson, Kentucky, January 27, 1823.

Chargé d'Affaires

Beaufort T. Watts, South Carolina, March 3, 1827.

Envoys Extraordinary and Ministers Plenipotentiary

Willlam H. Harrison, Ohio, May 24, 1828.

Thomas P. Moore, Kentucky, March 13, 1829.

Chargés d'Affaires

Robert B. McAfee, Kentucky, February 9, 1833. James Semple, Illinols, October 14, 1837. William M. Blackford, Virginia, February 10, 1842. Benjamin A. Bidlack, Pennsylvanla, May 14, 1845. Thomas M. Foote, New York, May 29, 1849. Yelverton P. King, Georgia, March 12, 1851. James S. Green, Missouri, May 24, 1853.

Ministers Resident

James S. Green, Mlssouri, June 29, 1854. James B. Bowlin, Missouri, December 13, 1854. George W. Jones, Iowa, March 8, 1859. Allan A. Burton, Kentucky, May 29, 1861. Peter I. Sullivan, Ohio, March 19, 1867. Stephen A. Hurlbut, Illinois, April 22, 1869. Willlam L. Scruggs, Georgia, April 9, 1873. Ernest Dichman, Wisconsin, June 15, 1878. George Maney, Tennessee, May 19, 1881. William L. Scruggs, Georgia, April 17, 1882.

Envoys Extraordinary and Ministers Plenipotentiary

William L. Scruggs, Georgia, July 7, 1884. Charles D. Jacob, Kentucky, October 9, 1885. Dabney H. Maury, Virginia, October 18, 1886. John T. Abbott, New Hampshire, April 1, 1889. Luther F. McKinney, New Hampshire, April 24, 1893. Charles Burdett Hart, West Virginia, May 27, 1897. Arthur M. Beaupré, Illinois, February 12, 1903. William W. Russell, District of Columbia, March 17, 1904. John Barrett, Oregon, June 21, 1905. Thomas C. Dawson, Iowa, January 10, 1907. Elliott Northcott, West Virginia, April 23, 1909. James T. DuBois, Pennsylvania, August 21, 1911. Thaddeus Austin Thomson, Texas, June 10, 1913. Hoffman Philip, New York, August 8, 1917. Samuel H. Piles, Washington, March 22, 1922. Jefferson Caffery, Louisiana, June 27, 1928. Sheldon Whitehouse, New York, July 15, 1933.

CONGO ASSOCIATION, STATES OF THE

Agent

Willard P. Tlsdel, Ohio, August 19, 1884.

COSTA RICA

(See also Central America and Central American States)

Envoy Extraordinary and Minister Plenipotentiary Solon Borland,¹ Arkansas, April 18, 1853

¹ Accredited also to Guatemala, Honduras, Nlcaragua, and El Salvador.

Ministers Resident

Mirabeau B. Lamar,¹ Texas, January 20, 1858. Alexander Dimltry,¹ Louisiana, August 15, 1859. Charles N. Rlotte, Texas, June 8, 1861. Albert G. Lawrence, Rhode Island, October 2, 1866. Jacob B. Blair, West Virginia, July 25, 1868.

Envoys Extraordinary and Ministers Ptenipotentiary

Rlchard Cutts Shannon,¹ New York, August 8, 1891. Lewis Baker,¹ Mlnnesota, April 4, 1893. William L. Merry,¹ California, July 17, 1897. William L. Merry,¹ California, July 1, 1908. Lewis Einstein, New York, July 6, 1911. Edward J. Hale, North Carolina, June 21, 1913. Roy T. Davis, Missouri, February 10, 1922. Charles C. Eberhardt, Kansas, January 9, 1930. Leo R. Sack, Pennsylvania, August 17, 1933.

CUBA

Envoys Extraordinary and Ministers Plenipotentiary

Herbert Goldsmith Squiers, New York, May 20, 1902. Edwin V. Morgan, New York, November 29, 1905. John B. Jackson, New Jersey, December 21, 1909. Arthur M. Beaupré, Illinols, August 12, 1911. William E. Gonzales, South Carolina, June 21, 1913. Boaz W. Long, New Mexico, June 30, 1919.

Ambassadors Extraordinary and Plentpotentiary

Maj. Gen. Enoch H. Crowder, United States Army, February 10, 1923.

Noble Brandon Judah, Illinois, November 22, 1927. Harry F. Guggenheim, New York, October 10, 1929. Sumner Welles, Maryland, April 24, 1933. Jefferson Caffery, Louisiana, February 23, 1934.

CZECHOSLOVAKIA

Envoys Extraordinary and Ministers Plenipotentiary

Richard Crane, Illinois, April 23, 1919. Lewis Einstein, New York, October 8, 1921. Abraham C. Ratshesky, Massachusetts, January 25, 1930. Francis White, Maryland, June 13, 1933. J. Butler Wright, Wyoming, March 9, 1934.

DENMARK

Special Minister

George W. Erving, Massachusetts, January 5, 1811.

Chargés d' Affaires

Henry Wheaton, New York, March 3, 1827. Jonathan F. Woodside, Ohio, March 3, 1835. Isaac Rand Jackson, Pennsylvania, May 20, 1841. William W. Irwin, Pennsylvania, March 3, 1843. Robert P. Flenniken, Pennsylvania, January 11, 1847. Walter Forward, Pennsylvania, November 8, 1849. Miller Grieve, Georgia, August 30, 1852. Henry Bedinger, Virginia, May 24, 1853.

Ministers Resident

Henry Bedinger, Virginia, June 29, 1854. James M. Buchanan, Maryland, May 11, 1858, Bradford R. Wood, New York, March 22, 1861. George H. Yeaman, Kentucky, August 25, 1865. M. J. Cramer, Kentucky, September 9, 1870.

Chargés d'Affaires

Michael J. Cramer, Kentucky, August 15, 1876. Charles Payson, Massachusetts, June 30, 1881. J. P. Wickersham, Pennsylvania, May 1, 1882.

Ministers Resident and Consuls General

J. P. Wickersham, Pennsylvania, July 13, 1882. Wickham Hoffman, New York, February 27, 1883. Rasmus B. Anderson, Wisconsin, April 2, 1885. John A. Enander, Illinois, March 13, 1889. Clark E. Carr, Illinois, May 16, 1889.

Envoys Extraordinary and Ministers Plenipotentiary

Clark E. Carr, Illinois, July 30, 1890. John E. Risley, New York, March 27, 1893. Laurits S. Swenson, Minnesota, October 4, 1897. Thomas J. O'Brien, Michigan, March 8, 1905. Maurice Francls Egan, District of Columbla, June 10, 1907. Norman Hapgood, New York, April 16, 1919. Joseph C. Grew, Massachusetts, April 7, 1920. John Dyneley Prince, New Jersey, September 24, 1921. H. Percival Dodge, Massachusetts, February 23, 1926. Ralph Harman Booth, Michigan, January 22, 1930. Frederick W. B. Coleman, Minnesota, September 23, 1931. Ruth Bryan Owen, Florida, April 13, 1933.

DOMINICAN REPUBLIC

Chargés d'Affaires

John M. Langston,³ District of Columbia, November 12, 1883 John E. W. Thompson,³ New York, May 16, 1885. Frederick Douglass,³ District of Columbia, September 20, 1889. John S. Durham,³ Pennsylvania, July 25, 1892. William F. Powell,³ New Jersey, June 17, 1897.

Ministers Resident and Consuls General

Thomas C. Dawson, Iowa, April 29, 1904. Fenton R. McCreery, Michigan, January 10, 1907. Horace G. Knowles, Delaware, December 21, 1909. William W. Russell, District of Columbia, June 24, 1910.

Envoys Extraordinary and Ministers Plenipotentiary

William W. Russell, District of Columbia, July 6, 1911.
James M. Sullivan, New York, August 12, 1913.
William W. Russell, District of Columbia, August 16, 1915.
Evan E. Young, South Dakota, September 18, 1925.
Charles B. Curtis, New York, December 16, 1929.
H. F. Arthur Schoenfeld, District of Columbia, August 1, 1931.

ECUADOR

Chargés d'Affaires

Vanbrugh Livingston, New York, April 10, 1848. John Trumbull Van Alen, New York, June 5, 1849. Courtland Cushing, Indiana, September 23, 1850. Philo White, Wisconsin, July 18, 1853.

Ministers Resident

Philo White, Wisconsin, June 29, 1854. Charles R. Buckalew, Pennsylvania, June 14, 1858. Frederick Hassaurek, Ohio, March 27, 1861. William T. Coggeshall, Ohio, May 4, 1866. E. Rumsey Wing, Kentucky, November 16, 1869. Thomas Biddle, Pennsylvania, February 2, 1875.

¹ Accredited also to Nicaragua.

² Accredited also to Nicaragua and El Salvador.

³ Accredited also to Halti.

Envoys Extraordinary and Ministers Plenipotentiary

Rowland B. Mahany, New York, February 24, 1892.
Edward H. Strobel, New York, April 14, 1894.
James D. Tillman, Tennessee, January 24, 1895.
Archibald J. Sampson, Arizona, September 18, 1897.
Joseph W. J. Lee, Maryland, September 18, 1905.
Williams C. Fox, New Jersey, January 10, 1907.
Evan E. Young, South Dakota, July 6, 1911.
Montgomery Schuyler, Jr., New York, March 1, 1913.
Charles S. Hartman, Montana, July 28, 1913.
Gerhard A. Bading, Wisconsin, March 9, 1922.
William Dawson, Minnesota, May 9, 1930.

EGYPT

Agents and Consuls General

Elbert E. Farman, New York, March 27, 1876. Simon Wolf, District of Columbia, June 30, 1881. George P. Pomeroy, New Jersey, July 1, 1882. John Cardwell, Texas, October 2, 1885. Eugene Schuyler, New York, June 26, 1889. John A. Anderson, Kansas, February 27, 1891. Edward C. Little, Kansas, November 15, 1892. Frederic C. Penfield, Connecticut, May 13, 1893. Thomas S. Harrison, Pennsylvania, April 22, 1897. John G. Long. Florida. October 30, 1899. John W. Riddle, Minnesota, September 8, 1903. Lewis M. Iddings, New York, March 23, 1905. Peter Augustus Jay, Rhode Island, December 21, 1909. Olney Arnold, Rhode Island, September 2, 1913. Hampson Gary, Texas, October 2, 1917. Carroll Sprigg, Ohio, May 11, 1920. J. Morton Howell, Ohio, October 7, 1921.

Encoys Extraordinary and Ministers Plenipotentiary

J. Morton Howell, Ohlo, June 21, 1922. Franklin Mott Gunther, Virginia, April 5, 1928. William M. Jardine, Kansas, July 21, 1930. Bert Fish, Florida, September 6, 1933.

EL SALVADOR

(See also Central America and Central American States)

Envoy Extraordinary and Minister Plenipotentiary

Solon Borland,¹ Arkansas, April 18, 1853.

Ministers Resident

James R. Partridge, Maryland, April 16, 1863. A. S. Williams, Michigan, August 16, 1866. Alfred T. A. Torbert, Delaware, April 21, 1869. Thomas Biddle, Pennsylvania, July 10, 1871.

Envoys Extraordinary and Ministers Plenipotentiary

Richard Cutts Shannon,³ New York, August 8, 1891.
Lewis Baker,³ Minnesota, April 4, 1893.
Willlam L. Merry,² California, July 17, 1897.
H. Percival Dodge,³ Massachusetts, July 1, 1907.
H. Percival Dodge, Massachusetts, July 1, 1908.
William Heimke, Kansas, August 5, 1909.
Boaz W. Long, New Mexico, July 29, 1914.
Peter Augustus Jay, Rhode Island, May 4, 1920.
Montgomery Schuyler, New York, May 4, 1921.
Jefferson Caffery, Louisiana, January 7, 1926.

¹ Accredited also to Costa Rica, Guatemala, Honduras, and Nicaragua. ² Accredited also to Nicaragua and Costa Rica. Warren D. Robbins, New York, July 17, 1928. Charles B. Curtis, New York, August 1, 1931 Frank P. Corrigan, Obio, March 14, 1934.

ESTONIA

(See also Baltic Provinces of Russia)

Envoys Extraordinary and Ministers Plenipotentiary

Frederick W. B. Coleman,⁴ Minnesota, September 20, 1922. Robert P. Skinner,⁴ Ohio, September 23, 1931. John Van A. MacMurray, ⁴ Maryland, August 28, 1933.

ETHIOPIA (ABYSSINIA)

Commissioner and Plenipotentiary

Robert P. Skinner, Ohio, June 22, 1903.

Ministers Resident and Consuls General

Hoffman Phillp, New York, July 20, 1908. Addison E. Southard, Kentucky, October 12, 1927

FINLAND

Commissioner

Thornwell Haynes, Alabama, May 24, 1919.

Chargé d'Affaires pro tempore

Alexander R. Magruder, Maryland, March 12, 1920.

Enroys Extraordinary and Ministers Plenipotentiary

Charles L. Kagey, Kansas, October 8, 1921. Alfred J. Pearson, Iowa, June 23, 1925. Edward E. Brodie, Oregon, January 31, 1930. Edward Albright, Tennessee, July 21, 1933.

FRANCE

Chargé d'Affaires

William Short, Virginia, April 20, 1790.

Ministers Plenipotentiary

Gouverneur Morris, New York, January 12, 1792. James Monroe, Virginia, May 28, 1794. Charles Cotesworth Pinckney, South Carolina, September

1796. Robert R. Livingston, New York, October 2, 1801.

John Armstrong, New York, June 30, 1804.

Chargé d'Affaires

Jonathan Russell, Rhode Island, November 5, 1810.

Ministers Plenipotentiary

Joel Barlow, Connecticut, February 27, 1811. William H. Crawford, Georgia, April 9, 1813.

Enroys Extraordinary and Ministers Plenipotentiary

Albert Gallatin, Pennsylvania, February 28, 1815. James Brown, Louisiana, December 9, 1823.

William C. Rives, Virginia, April 18, 1829. Chargé d'Affaires

Leavitt Harris, Pennsylvania, March 6, 1833.

Envoys Extraordinary and Ministers Plenipotentiary

Edward Livingston, Louisiana, May 29, 1833. Lewis Cass, Ohio, October 4, 1836.

³ Accredited also to Honduras. ⁴ Accredited also to Latvia and Lithuania. William R. King, Alabama, April 9, 1844.
Richard Rush, Pennsylvania, March 3, 1847
William C. Rives, Virginia, July 20, 1849.
John Y. Mason, Virginia, October 10, 1853.
Charles J. Faulkner, Virginia, January 16, 1860.
William L. Dayton, New Jersey, March 18, 1861.

Chargé d'Affaires

John Bigelow, New York, December 21, 1864.

Envoys Extraordinary and Ministers Plenipotentiary

John Bigelow, New York, March 15, 1865.
John A. Dix, New York, September 24, 1866.
Elihu B. Washburne, Illinois, March 17, 1869.
Edward F. Noyes, Ohio, July 1, 1877.
Levi P. Morton, New York, March 21, 1881.
Robert M. McLane, Maryland, March 23, 1885.
Whitelaw Reid, New York, March 23, 1889.
T. Jefferson Coolldge, Massachusetts, May 12, 1892.
James B. Eustis, Louisiana, March 20, 1893.

Ambassadors Extraordinary and Plenipotentiary

James B. Eustis, Louisiana, April 8, 1893. Horace Porter, New York, March 19, 1897. Robert S. McCormick, Illinois, March 8, 1905. Henry White, Rhode Island, December 19, 1906. Robert Bacon, New York, December 21, 1909 Myron T. Herrick, Ohio, February 15, 1912. William G. Sharp, Ohio, June 19, 1914. Hugh Campbell Wallace, Washington, February 27, 1919. Myron T. Herrick, Ohio, April 16, 1921. Walter E. Edge, New Jersey, November 21, 1929. Jesse Isidor Straus, New York, March 17, 1933.

GERMANY

(See also Prussia)

Envoys Extraordinary and Ministers Plenipotentiary

George Bancroft, New York, May 31, 1871. J. C. Bancroft Davis, New York, June 11, 1874. Bayard Taylor, Pennsylvanla, March 4, 1878. Andrew D. White, New York, April 2, 1879. Aaron A. Sargent, California, March 2, 1882. John A. Kasson, Iowa, July 4, 1884. George H. Pendleton, Ohio, March 23, 1885. William Walter Phelps, New Jersey, June 20, 1889. Theodore Runyon, New Jersey, March 23, 1893.

Ambassadors Extraordinary and Plenipotentiary

Theodore Runyon, New Jersey, September 14, 1893. Edwin F. Uhl, Michigan, February 10, 1896. Andrew D. White, New York, April 5, 1897. Charlemagne Tower, Pennsylvania, September 26, 1902. David Jayne Hill, New York, April 2, 1908. John G. A. Leishman, Pennsylvania, August 12, 1911. James W. Gerard, New York, July 28, 1913.

Commissioner

Ellis Loring Dresel, Massachusetts, November 4, 1919.

Chargé d'Affaires

Ellis Loring Dresel, Massachusetts, November 14, 1921.

Ambassadors Extraordinary and Plenipotentiary

Alanson B. Houghton, New York, February 10, 1922. Jacob Gould Schurman, New York, March 17, 1925. Frederic M. Sackett, Kentucky, January 9, 1930. William E. Dodd, Illinois, June 13, 1933.

GREAT BRITAIN

Minister Plenipotentiary

Thomas Pinckney, South Carolina, January 12, 1792.

Envoy Extraordinary

John Jay, New York, April 19, 1794.

Ministers Plenipotentiary

Rufus King, New York, May 20, 1796. James Monroe, Virginia, April 18, 1803. William Pinkney, Maryland, May 12, 1806.

Chargé d'Affaires

Jonathan Russell, Rhode Island, July 27, 1811.

Envoys Extraordinary and Ministers Plenipotentiary

John Quincy Adams, Massachusetts, February 28, 1815. Richard Rusb, Pennsylvania, October 1817. Rufus King, New York, May 5, 1825. Albert Gallatin, Pennsylvania, May 10, 1826. James Barbour, Virginia, May 23, 1828. Louis McLane, Delaware, April 18, 1829. Martin Van Buren, New York, August 1, 1831.

Chargé d'Affaires

Aaron Vail, New York, July 13, 1832.

Envoys Extraordinary and Ministers Plenipotentiary

Andrew Stevenson, Virginia, March 16, 1836. Edward Everett, Massachusetts, September 13, 1841. Louis McLane, Maryland, June 16, 1845. George Bancroft, New York, September 9, 1846. Abbott Lawrence, Massachusetts, August 30, 1849. Joseph R. Ingersoll, Pennsylvania, August 21, 1852. James Buchanan, Pennsylvania, April 11, 1853. George M. Dallas, Pennsylvania, February 4, 1856. Charles Francis Adams, Massachusetts, March 20, 1861. Reverdy Johnson, Maryland, June 12, 1868. J. Lothrop Motley, Massachusetts, April 13, 1869. Robert C. Schenck, Ohio, December 22, 1870. Edwards Pierrepont, New York, May 22, 1876. John Welsh, Pennsylvania, November 9, 1877. James Russell Lowell, Massachusetts, January 26, 1880. Edward J. Phelps, Vermont, March 23, 1885. Robert T. Lincoln, Illinois, March 30, 1889.

Ambassadors Extraordinary and Plenipotentiary

Thomas F. Bayard, Delaware, March 30, 1893. John Hay, District of Columbia, March 19, 1897. Joseph H. Choate, New York, January 19, 1899. Whitelaw Reid, New York, March 8, 1905. Walter HInes Page, New York, April 21, 1913. John W. Davis, West Virglnia, November 21, 1918. George Harvey, New Jersey, April 16, 1921. Frank B. Kellogg, Minnesota, December 11, 1923. Alanson B. Houghton, New York, February 24, 1925. Charles G. Dawes, Illinois, April 16, 1920. Andrew W. Mellon, Pennsylvania, February 5, 1932. Robert Worth Bingham, Kentucky, March 23, 1933.

GREECE

Ministers Resident

Charles K. Tuckerman, New York, March 11, 1868. John M. Francis, New York, May 15, 1871. J. Meredith Read, Jr., New York, November 7, 1873.

Chargé d'Affaires

John Meredith Read, August 15, 1876.

Ministers Resident and Consuls General

Eugene Schuyler,¹ New York, July 7, 1882.

Walker Fearn,¹ Louisiana, April 18, 1885.

A. Loudon Snowden,¹ Pennsylvania, July 1, 1889.

Extraordinary and Minister Plenipotentiary

A. Loudon Snowden,¹ Pennsylvania, July 1, 1891.

Minister Resident and Consul General

Truxtun Beale,¹ California, July 27, 1892.

Enroys Extraordinary and Ministers Plenipotentiary and Consuls General

Truxtun Beale,1 California, March 3, 1893. Eben Alexander,¹ North Carolina, April 7, 1893. William Woodville Rockhill,1 District of Columbia, July 8, 1897.

Envoys Extraordinary and Ministers Plenipotentiary

William Woodville Rockhill,1 District of Columbia, May 25. 1898.

Arthur S. Hardy, 1 New Hampshire, April 18, 1899. Charles S. Francis,¹ New York, December 20, 1900. John B. Jackson,¹ New Jersey, October 13, 1902. John B. Jackson,³ New Jersey, June 5, 1903. John B. Jackson,³ New Jersey, March 8, 1905. Richmond Pearson,4 North Carolina, July 1, 1907. George H. Moses.⁴ New Hampshire, April 5, 1909. Jacob Gould Schurman,4 New York, August 16, 1912. George Fred Williams, 4 Massachusetts, December 22, 1913. Garrett Droppers,⁴ Massachusetts, August 5, 1914. Edward Capps,⁴ New Jersey, June 18, 1920. Irwin B. Laughlin, Pennsylvania, March 24, 1924. Robert P. Skinner, Ohio, July 3, 1926. Lincoln MacVeagh, Connecticut, June 13, 1933.

GUATEMALA

(See also Central America and Central American States)

Chargés d' Affaires

Elijah Hise, Kentucky, March 31, 1848. Ephraim George Squier, New York, April 2, 1849.

Envoy Extraordinary and Minister Plenipotentiary

Solon Borland,⁵ Arkansas, April 18, 1853.

Ministers Resident

John I. Marling, Tennessee, August 2, 1854. William E, Venable, Tennessee, March 14, 1857. Beverly L. Clarke,⁶ Kentucky, January 7, 1858. Elisha O. Crosby, New York, March 22, 1861. William Kellogg, Illinois, April 21, 1864. Fltz Henry Warren, Iowa, August 12, 1865. Silas A. Hudson, Iowa, April 22, 1869.

Enroys Extraordinary and Ministers Plenipotentiary

Romualdo Pacheco,6 Callfornia, July 1, 1891. Pierce M. B. Young,⁶ Georgia, April 4, 1893. Macgrane Coxe,6 New York, July 27, 1896.

 ¹ Accredited also to Rumania and Serbia.
 ² Accredited also to Rumania and Serbia and as Diplomatic Agent ln Bulgaria. Accredited also to Montenegro and as Diplomatic Agent in Bulgaria.

67359 - 34 - 21

W. Godfrey Hunter,⁶ Kentucky, November 8, 1897. Leslie Combs.⁶ Kentucky, November 12, 1902. Joseph W. J. Lee.⁶ Maryland, January 10, 1907. Joseph W. J. Lee, Maryland, July 1, 1907. William Heimke, Kansas, March 10, 1908. William F. Sands, District of Columbia, August 4, 1909. R. S. Reynolds Hitt, Illinois, September 17, 1910. William Hayne Leavell, Mississippi, October 16, 1913. Benton McMillin, Tennessee, September 23, 1919. Arthur H. Geissler, Oklahoma, May 24, 1922. Sheldon Whitehouse, New York, December 16, 1929. Matthew E. Hanna, Ohio, July 17, 1933.

HAITT

Commissioners and Consuls General

Benjamin F. Whidden, New Hampshire, July 12, 1862, H. E. Peck, Ohio, March 14, 1865.

Ministers Resident and Consuls General

H. E. Peck, Ohio, August 6, 1866. Gideon H. Hollister, Connecticut, February 5, 1868. Ebenezer D. Bassett, Pennsylvania, April 16, 1869. John M. Langston,7 District of Columbia, September 28, 1877. John E. W. Thompson,⁷ New York, May 7, 1885. Frederick Douglass,7 District of Columbia, June 26, 1889. John S. Durham, Pennsylvania, September 3, 1891. Henry M. Smythe, Virginia, September 15, 1893.

Envoys Extraordinary and Ministers Plenipotentiary

William F. Powell,7 New Jersey, June 17, 1897. Henry W. Furniss, Indiana, November 23, 1905. Madison R. Smith, Missouri, August 15, 1913. Arthur Bailly-Blanchard, Louisiana, May 22, 1914. Dana G. Munro, New Jersey, June 28, 1930. Norman Armour, New Jersey, July 25, 1932.

HAWAII

(Annexed to the United States, 1898)

Commissioners

George Brown, Massachusetts, March 3, 1843. Anthony Ten Eyck, Michigan, April 19, 1845. Charles Eames, New York, January 12, 1849. Luther Severance, Maine, June 7, 1850. David L. Gregg, Illinois, July 6, 1853. James W. Borden, Indiana, January 11, 1858. Thomas J. Dryer, Oregon, March 26, 1861.

Ministers Resident

James McBride, Oregon, March 9, 1863. Edward M. McCook, Colorado, March 21, 1866. Henry A. Peirce, Massachusetts, May 10, 1869. James M. Comly, Ohio, July 1, 1877. Rollin M. Daggett, Nevada, July 1, 1882. George W. Merrill, Nevada, April 2, 1885. John L. Stevens, Maine, June 20, 1889.

Envoys Extraordinary and Ministers Plenipotentiary

John L. Stevens, Maine, July 30, 1890. James H. Blount, Georgia, May 9, 1893. Albert S. Willis, Kentucky, September 13, 1893.

- ⁴ Accredited also to Montenegro. ⁸ Accredited also to Costa Rica, Honduras, Nicaragua, and
- El Salvador. ⁶ Accredited also to Honduras.

⁷ Accredited also to the Dominican Republic,

Special Commissioner

James H. Blount, Georgia, March 11, 1893.

Envoy Extraordinary and Minister Plenipotentiary Harold M. Sewall, Maine, April 22, 1897.

HONDURAS

(See also Central America and Central American States)

Envoy Extraordinary and Minister Plenipotentiary

Solon Borland,¹ Arkansas, April 18, 1853.

Ministers Resident

Beverly L. Clarke,² Kentucky, January 14, 1858. James R. Partridge, Maryland, February 10, 1862. Thomas H. Clay, Kentucky, April 16, 1863. Richard H. Rousseau, Kentucky, May 14, 1866. Henry Baxter, Michigan, April 21, 1869.

Envoys Extraordinary and Ministers Plenipolentiary

Romualdo Pacheco,² California, July 1, 1891. Pierce M. B. Young,² Georgia, April 4, 1893. Macgrane Coxe,³ New York, July 27, 1896. W. Godfrey Hunter,² Kentucky, November 8, 1897. Leslie Combs,¹ Kentucky, November 12, 1902. Joseph W. J. Lee,² Maryland, January 10, 1907. H. Percival Dodge,⁸ Massachusetts, July 1, 1907. William B. Sorsby, Mississippi, June 5, 1908. Philip M. Brown, Massachusetts, November 11, 1908. Fenton R. McCreery, Michigan, December 21, 1909. Charles Dunning White, New Jersey, July 6, 1911. John Ewing, Louisiana, September 10, 1913. T. Sambola Jones, Louisiana, June 26, 1918. Franklin E. Morales, New Jersey, October 24, 1921. George T. Summerlin, Louisiana, March 12, 1925. Julius G. Lay, District of Columbia, December 16, 1929.

HUNGARY

(See also Austria-Hungary)

Commissioner

Ulysses Grant-Smith, Pennsylvania, December 4, 1919.

Chargé d'Affaires pro tempore

Ulysses Grant-Smith, Pennsylvania, December 27, 1921.

Envoys Extraordinary and Ministers Plenipotentiary

Theodore Brentano, Illinois, February 10, 1922. J. Butler Wright, Wyoming, February 26, 1927. Nicholas Roosevelt, New York, September 29, 1930. John Flournoy Montgomery, California, June 13, 1933.

IRAQ (MESOPOTAMIA)

Chargé d'Affaires

Alexander K. Sloan, Pennsylvania, March 30, 1931.

Minister Resident and Consul General

Paul Knabenshue, Ohio, August 5, 1932.

IRISH FREE STATE

Envoys Extraordinary and Ministers Plenipotentiary

Frederick A. Sterling, Texas, February 19, 1927. W. W. McDowell, Montana, September 13, 1933.

¹ Accredited also to Costa Rica, Guatemala, Nicaragua, and El Salvador.

ITALY

(See also Two Sicilies and Sardinia) Envoys Extraordinary and Ministers Plenipotentiary

George P. Marsh, Vermont, March 20, 1861. William Waldorf Astor, New York, August 4, 1882. John B. Stallo, Ohio, June 17, 1885. Albert G. Porter, Indiana, March 13, 1889. William Potter, Pennsylvania, November 15, 1892.

Ambassadors Extraordinary and Plenipotentiary

Wayne MacVeagh, Pennsylvania, December 20, 1893. William F. Draper, Massachusetts, April 5, 1897. George von L. Meyer, Massachusetts, December 14, 1900. Henry White, Rhode Island, March 8, 1905. Lloyd C. Griscom, Pennsylvania, December 19, 1906. John G. A. Leishman, Pennsylvania, April 1, 1909. Thomas J. O'Brien, Michigan, August 12, 1911. Thomas Nelson Page, Virginia, June 21, 1913. Robert Underwood Johnson, New York, February 18, 1920. Richard Washburn Child, Massachusetts, May 26, 1921. Henry P. Fletcher, Peunsylvania, February 19, 1924. John W. Garrett, Maryland, September 11, 1929. Breckinridge Long, Missouri, April 24, 1933.

JAPANESE EMPIRE

Ministers Resident

Townsend Harris, New York, January 19, 1859. Robert H. Pruyn, New York, October 12, 1861. Robert B. Van Valkenburgh, New York, January 18, 1866. Charles E. De Long, Nevada, April 21, 1869.

Envoys Extraordinary and Ministers Plenipotentiary

Charles E. De Long, Nevada, July 14, 1870. John A. Bingham, Ohio, May 31, 1373. Richard B. Hubbard, Texas, April 2, 1885. John F. Swlft, California, March 12, 1889. Frank L. Coombs, California, April 20, 1892. Edwin Dun, Ohio, April 4, 1893. Alfred E. Buck, Georgia, April 13, 1897. Lloyd C. Griscom, Pennsylvania, December 16, 1902.

Ambassadors Extraordinary and Plenipotentiary

Luke E. Wright, Tennessee, January 25, 1906. Thomas J. O'Brien, Michigan, June 11, 1907. Charles Page Bryan, Illinois, August 12, 1911. Larz Anderson, District of Columbia, November 14, 1912. George W. Guthrie, Pennsylvania, May 20, 1913. Roland S. Morris, Pennsylvania, August 1, 1917. Charles Beecher Warren, Michigan, June 29, 1921. Cyrus E. Woods, Pennsylvania, March 3, 1923. Edgar A. Bancroft, Illinois, September 23, 1924. Charles MaeVeagh, New Hampshire, September 24, 1925. William R. Castle, Jr., District of Columbia, December 11, 1929. W. Cameron Forbes, Massachusetts, June 17, 1930. Joseph C. Grew, New Hampshire, February 19, 1932.

KOREA

Envoy Extraordinary and Minister Plenipotentiary Lucius H. Foote, California, February 27, 1883.

Ministers Resident and Consuls General

Luclus H. Foote, California, July 7, 1884. William H. Parker, District of Columbia, February 19, 1886 Hugh A. Dinsmore, Arkansas, January 12, 1887.

² Accredited also to Guatemala.
 ³ Accredited also to El Salvador

Augustine Heard, Massachusetts, January 30, 1890. John M. B. Sill, Michigan, January 12, 1894. Herace N. Allen, Ohio, July 17, 1897.

Envoys Extraordinary and Ministers Plenipotentiary

Horace N. Allen, Ohlo, June 17, 1901. Edwin V. Morgan, New York, March 18, 1905.

LATVIA

(See also Baltic Provinces of Russia)

Enroys Extraordinary and Ministers Plenipotentiary

Frederick W. B. Coleman,¹ Minnesota, September 20, 1922. Robert P. Skinner,¹ Ohio, September 23, 1931. John Van A. MacMurray, ¹ Maryland, August 28, 1933.

LIBERIA

Commissioners and Consuls General

John J. Henry, Delaware, March 11, 1863. Abraham Henson, Wisconsin, June 8, 1863.

Ministers Resident and Consuls General

John Seys, Ohio, October 8, 1866. James W. Mason, Arkansas, March 29, 1870. J. Milton Turner, Missouri, March 1, 1871. John H. Smyth, North Carolina, May 23, 1878. Henry Highland Garnet, New York, June 30, 1881. John H. Smyth, North Carolina, April 12, 1882. Moses A. Hopkins, North Carolina, September 11, 1885. Charles H. J. Taylor, Kansas, March 11, 1887. Ezekiel E. Smith, North Carolina, April 24, 1888. Alexander Clark, Iowa, August 16, 1890. William D. McCoy, Indiana, January 11, 1892. William H. Heard, Pennsylvania, February 23, 1895. Owen L. W. Smith, North Carolina, February 11, 1898. John R. A. Crossland, Missouri, January 16, 1902. Ernest Lyon, Maryland, March 16, 1903. William D. Crum, South Carolina, June 13, 1910. Fred R. Moore, New York, March 1, 1913. George W. Buckner, Indiana, September 10, 1913. James L. Curtis, New York, October 25, 1915. Joseph L. Johnson, Ohie, August 27, 1918. Selemen Porter Hood, New Jersey, October 26, 1921. William T. Francis, Minnesota, July 9, 1927. Charles E. Mitchell, West Virginia, September 10, 1930.

Envoy Extraordinary and Minister Plenipotentiary Charles E. Mitchell, West Virginia, January 20, 1931.

LITHUANIA

(See also Baltic Provinces of Russia)

Envoys Extraordinary and Ministers Plenipotentiary Frederick W. B. Coleman,¹ Minnesota, September 20, 1922.

Robert P. Skinner,² Ohio, September 23, 1931. John Van A. MacMurray, ² Maryland, August 28, 1933.

LUXEMBURG

Envoys Extraordinary and Ministers Plenipotentiary

Stanford Newel,³ Minnesota, June 5, 1903. David J. Hill,³ New York, March 15, 1905. Arthur M. Beaupré,³ Illinois, April 2, 1908.

⁴ Accredited also to Belgium.

Lloyd Bryce,³ New York, August 12, 1911. Henry van Dyke,³ New Jersey, June 27, 1913. John W. Garrett,³ Maryland, August 23, 1917. William Phillips,³ Massachusetts, March 3, 1920. Henry P. Fletcher,⁴ Penusylvania, March 5, 1923. William Phillips,⁴ Massachusetts, February 29, 1924. Hugh S. Gibson,⁴ California, February 17, 1927. Dave Hennen Morris,⁴ New York, May 18, 1933.

MEXICO

Envoy Extraordinary and Minister Plenipotentiary

Jeel R. Poinsett, South Carolina, March 8, 1825.

Chargés d' Affaires

Anthony Butler, Mississippi, October 12, 1829. Powhatan Ellis, Mississippi, January 5, 1836.

Envoys Extraordinary and Ministers Plenipotentiary Powhatan Ellis, Mississippi, February 15, 1839. Waddy Thompson, South Carolina, February 10, 1842. Wilson Shannon, Ohio, April 9, 1844. John Slidell, Louisiana, November 10, 1845. Nathan Clifford, Maine, July 28, 1848. Robert P. Letcher, Kentucky, August 9, 1849. Alfred Conkling, New York, August 6, 1852. James Gadsden, South Carolina, May 24, 1853. John Fersyth, Alabama, July 21, 1856. Robert M. McLane, Maryland, March 7, 1859. John B. Weller, California, November 17, 1860. Thomas Corwin, Ohlo, March 22, 1861. Lewis D. Campbell, Ohio, May 4, 1866. Marcus Otterbourg, Wisconsin, July 1, 1867. William S. Rosecrans, Ohio, July 27, 1868. Thomas H. Nelson, Indiana, April 16, 1869. John W. Foster, Indiana, March 17, 1873. Philip H. Morgau, Louisiana, January 26, 1880. Henry R. Jackson, Georgia, March 23, 1885. Thomas C. Manning, Louisiana, August 30, 1886. Edward S. Bragg, Wisconsin, January 16, 1888. Thomas Ryan, Kansas, March 30, 1889. Isaac P. Gray, Indiana, March 20, 1893. Matt W. Ransom, North Carolina, February 23, 1895. Matt W. Ransom, North Carolina, August 24, 1895. Pewell Clayton, Arkansas, March 22, 1897.

Ambassadors Extraordinary and Plenipotentiary

Powell Clayton, Arkansas, December 8, 1898. Edwin H. Conger, Iowa, March 8, 1905. David E. Thompson, Nebraska, January 24, 1906. Henry Lane Wilson, Washington, December 21, 1909. Henry P. Fletcher, Pennsylvania, February 25, 1916. Charles Beecher Warren, Michigan, February 29, 1924. James Rockwell Sheffield, New York, September 9, 1924. Dwight W. Morrow, New Jersey, September 21, 1927. J. Reuben Clark, Jr., Utah, October 3, 1930. Josephus Daniels, North Carolina, March 17, 1933.

MONTENEGRO

(See also Yugoslavia)

Envoys Extraordinary and Ministers Plenipotentiary

John B. Jackson,⁵ New Jersey, March 8, 1905. Richmond Pearson,⁶ North Carolina, July 1, 1907. George H. Moses,⁶ New Hampshire, April 5, 1909.

⁶ Accredited also to Greece and as Diplomatic Agent in Bulgaria. ⁶ Accredited also to Greece.

¹ Accredited also to Estonia and Lithuania. ² Accredited also to Estonia and Latvia.

^a Accredited also to the Netherlands.

Jacob Gould Schurman,¹ New York, August 16, 1912. George Fred Williams,¹ Massachusetts, December 22, 1913. Garrett Droppers,¹ Massachusetts, August 5, 1914. Edward Capps,¹ New Jersey, June 18, 1920.

MOROCCO

Envoys Extraordinary and Ministers Plenipotentiary

Samuel R. Gummeré, New Jersey, March 8, 1905.
H. Percival Dodge, Massachusetts, May 12, 1909.
Fred W. Carpenter, California, June 2, 1910.

Agents and Consuls General

Maxwell Blake, Missouri, July 20, 1917. Joseph M. Denning, Ohio, February 10, 1922.

Diplomatic Agent and Consul General

Maxwell Blake, Missouri, May 14, 1925.

NETHERLANDS

(Batavian Republic, 1795-1806)

Ministers Resident

William Short, Virginia, January 16, 1792. John Quincy Adams, Massachusetts, May 30, 1794. William Vans Murray, Maryland, March 2, 1797.

Envoy Extraordinary and Minister Plenipotentiary

William Eustis, Massachusetts, December 19, 1814.

Chargés d'Affaires

Alexander H. Everett, Massachusetts, June 27, 1818. Christopher Hughes, Jr., Maryland, March 9, 1825.

Envoy Extraordinary and Minister Plenipotentiary

William Pitt Preble, Maine, June 1, 1829.

Chargés d' Affaires

Auguste Davezac, Louisiana, October 15, 1831. Hermanus Bleecker, New York, May 15, 1839. Christopher Hughes, Maryland, May 12, 1842. Auguste Davezac, Louisiana, April 19, 1845. George Folsom, New York, May 4, 1850. August Belmont, New York, May 24, 1853.

Ministers Resident

August Belmont, New York, June 29, 1854. Henry C. Murphy, New York, June 1, 1857. James S. Pike, Maine, March 28, 1861. Hugh Ewing, Kausas, September 24, 1866. Charles T. Gorham, Michigan, July 12, 1870. Francis B. Stockbridge, Michigan, July 12, 1875. James Birney, Michigan, January 10, 1876. William L. Dayton, New Jersey, April 26, 1882. Isaac Bell, Jr., Rhode Island, April 2, 1885. Robert B. Roosevelt, New York, May 16, 1888.

² Accredited also to Luxemburg.

Envoys Extraordinary and Ministers Plenipotentiary

Robert B. Roosevelt, New York, August 10, 1888. Samuel R. Thayer, Minnesota, March 19, 1889. William E. Quinby, Michigan, May 24, 1893. Stanford Newel, Minnesota, May 11, 1807. Stanford Newel,² Minnesota, June 5, 1903. David J. Hill,² New York, March 15, 1905. Arthur M. Beaupré,² Illinois, April 2, 1905. Lloyd Bryce,² New York, August 12, 1911. Henry van Dyke,² New Jersey, June 27, 1913. John W. Garrett,³ Maryland, August 23, 1917. William Phillips,² Massachusetts, March 3, 1920. Richard M. Tobin, California, March 5, 1923. Gerrit John Diekema, Michigan, September 11, 1929. Laurits S. Swenson, Minnesota, February 28, 1931.

NICARAGUA

(See also Central America and Central American States)

Chargé d' Affaires

John B. Kerr, Maryland, March 12, 1851.

Envoy Extraordinary and Minister Plenipotentiary

Solon Borland,³ Arkansas, April 18, 1853.

Ministers Resident

John H. Wheeler, North Carolina, August 2, 1854. Mirabeau B. Lamar,⁴ Teras, January 20, 1858. Alexander Dimitry,⁴ Louisiana, August 15, 1859. Andrew B. Dickinson, New York, March 28, 1861. Thomas H. Clay, Kentucky, October 21, 1862.

Minister Resident and Extraordinary

Andrew B. Dickinson, New York, April 18, 1863.

Minister Resident

C. N. Riotte, Texas, April 21, 1869.

Envoys Extraordinary and Ministers Plenipotentiary

Rlchard Cutts Shannon,⁵ New York, August 8, 1891. Lewis Baker,⁵ Minnesota, April 4, 1893. William L. Merry,⁵ California, July 17, 1897. William L. Merry,⁴ California, December 12, 1907. John Gardner Coolidge, Massachusetts, June 5, 1908. Elliott Northcott, West Virginia, January 9, 1911. George T. Weitzel, Missouri, December 21, 1913. John E. Ramer, Colorado, June 21, 1913. John E. Ramer, Colorado, October 8, 1921. Charles C. Eberhardt, Kansas, March 12, 1925. Matthew E. Hanne, Ohio, December 16, 1929. Arthur Bliss Lane, New York, July 31, 1933.

NORWAY

(See also Sweden and Norway)

Envoys Extraordinary and Ministers Plenipotentia

Herbert H. D. Peirce, Massachusetts, June 22, 1906. Laurits S. Swenson, Minnesota, April 27, 1911. Albert G. Schmedeman, Wisconsin, July 21, 1913. Laurits S. Swenson, Minnesota, October 8, 1921. Hoffman Philip, New York, July 22, 1930.

¹ Accredited also to Greece.

³ Accredited also to Costa Rica, Guatemala, Honduras, and El Salvador.

⁴ Accredited also to Costa Rica.

⁵ Accredited also to Costa Rica and El Salvador;

PANAMA

Envoys Extraordinary and Ministers Plenipotentiary

William I. Buchanan, New York, December 17, 1903.
John Barrett, Oregon, March 17, 1904.
Charles E. Magoon, Nebraska, July 3, 1905.
Herbert G. Squiers, New York, October 20, 1906.
R. S. Reynolds Hitt, Illinois, December 21, 1909.
Thomas C. Dawson, Iowa, June 24, 1910.
H. Percival Dodge, Massachusetts, July 6, 1911.
William Jennings Price, Kentucky, August 20, 1913
John Glover South, Kentucky, October 8, 1921.
Roy T. Davis, Missouri, December 16, 1929.
Antonio C. Gonzalez, New York, August 28, 1933.

PAPAL STATES

(Known also as the Pontifical States, States of the Church, Holy See, and Rome)

Chargés d'Affaires

Jacob L. Martin, North Carolina, April 7, 1848. Lewls Cass, Jr., Michigan, January 5, 1849.

Ministers Resident

Lewls Cass, Jr., Michigan, June 29, 1854. John P. Stockton, New Jersey, June 15, 1858. Alexander W. Randall, Wisconsin, August 6, 1861. Richard Milford Blatchford, New York, August 9, 1862. Rufus Klnz, Wisconsin, October 7, 1863.

PARAGUAY

Commissioners

James B. Bowlin, Missouri, September 9, 1858. Cave Johnson, Tennessee, June 8, 1860. Charles A. Washburn, California, June 8, 1861.

Ministers Resident

Charles A. Washburn, California, January 19, 1863. Martin T. McMahon, New York, June 27, 1868. John L. Stevens,¹ Maine, April 28, 1870. John C. Caldwell,¹ Maine, January 8, 1874.

Chargés d'Affaires

John C. Caldwell,¹ Maine, August 15, 1876. William Williams,¹ Indiana, April 12, 1882. John E. Bacon,¹ South Carolina, April 28, 1885.

Ministers Resident

John E. Bacon,¹ South Carolina, August 10, 1888. George Maney,¹ Tennessee, June 20, 1889.

Envoys Extraordinary and Ministers Plenipotentiary

George Maney,¹ Tennessee, Scptember 23, 1890. Granville Stuart,¹ Montana, March 1, 1894. William R. Finch,¹ Wisconsin, October 2, 1897. Edward C. O'Brien,¹ New York, March 8, 1905. Edwin V. Morgan,¹ New York, December 21, 1909. Nicolay A. Grevstad,¹ Illinois, June 30, 1911. Daniel F. Mooney, Ohio, January 30, 1914. William J. O'Toole, West Virginia, January 18, 1922. George L. Kreeck, Kansas, March 18, 1925. Post Wheeler, Washington, December 16, 1929. Meredith Nicholson, Indiana, August 19, 1933.

PERSIA

Chargé d'Affaires and Consul General

S. G. W. Benjamin, New York, January 29, 1883.

Ministers Resident and Consuls General

S. G. W. Benjamin, New York, February 27, 1883.
Frederick H. Winston, Illinois, October 28, 1885.
E. Spencer Pratt, Alabama, August 3, 1886.
Truxtun Beale, California, February 27, 1891.
Watson R. Sperry, Delaware, July 27, 1892.
Alexander McDonald, Virginia, September 8, 1893.
Arthur S. Hardy, New Hampshire, July 12, 1897.
Herbert W. Bowen, New York, May 3, 1899.

Envoys Extraordinary and Ministers Plenipotentiary

Herbert W. Bowen, New York, May 1, 1901.
Lloyd C. Grlscom, Pennsylvania, June 17, 1901.
Richmond Pearson, North Carolina, December 17, 1902.
John B. Jackson, New Jersey, July 1, 1907.
Charles W. Russell, District of Columbia, December 21, 1909.
John L. Caldwell, Kansas, June 6, 1914.
Joseph Saul Kornfeld, Ohio, November 9, 1921.
Hoffman Philip, New York, March 17, 1925.
Charles C. Hart, District of Columbia, November 12, 1929.
William H. Hornibrook, Utah, December 12, 1933.

PERU

(See also Peru-Bolivian Confederation)

Chargés d'Affaires

James Cooley, Pennsylvanla, May 2, 1826. Samuel Larned, Rhode Island, December 29, 1828. Emanuel J. West, Illinois, October 22, 1829. Samuel Larned, Rhode Island, May 15, 1830. James B. Thornton, New Hampshire, June 15, 1836. John A. Bryan, Ohio, August 15, 1844. Albert G. Jewett, Maine, March 13, 1845. John Randolph Clay, Pennsylvania, March 3, 1847.

Envoys Extraordinary and Ministers Plenipotentiary

John Randolph Clay, Pennsylvania, March 16, 1853. Christopher Robinson, Rhode Island, June 8, 1861. Alvin P. Hovey, Indiana, August 12, 1865. Thomas Settle, North Carolina, February 18, 1871. Francis Thomas, Maryland, March 25, 1872. Richard Gibbs, New York, April 9, 1875. Isaac P. Christlancy, Michigan, February 11, 1879. Stephen A. Hurlbut, Illinois, May 19, 1881.

Special Envoy Extraordinary and Minister Plenipotentiary

William Henry Trescot, South Carolina, November 28, 1881.

Envoys Extraordinary and Ministers Plenipotentiary

James R. Partridge, Maryland, April 12, 1882. Seth Ledyard Phelps, District of Columbia, June 18, 1883. Charles W. Buck, Kentucky, April 2, 1885. John Hicks, Wisconsin, March 30, 1889. James A. McKenzie, Kentucky, April 4, 1893. Irving B. Dudley, California, June 28, 1897. Leslle Combs, Kentucky, December 19, 1906. Henry Clay Howard, Kentucky, January 18, 1911. Benton McMillin, Tennessee, July 2, 1913.

Accredited also to Uruguay.

Ambassadors Extraordinary and Plenipotentiary

William E. Gonzales, South Carolina, September 10, 1919. Miles Poindexter, Washington, February 19, 1923. Alexander P. Moore, Pennsylvania, March 29, 1928. Fred Morris Dearing, Missouri, January 31, 1930.

PERU-BOLIVIAN CONFEDERATION

Charge d' Affaires

James C. Pickett,¹ Kentucky, June 9, 1838.

POLAND

Envoys Extraordinary and Ministers Plenipotentiary

Hugh S. Gibson, California, April 16, 1919. Alfred J. Pearson, Iowa, April 2, 1924. John B. Stetson, Jr., Pennsylvania, July 3, 1925.

Ambassadors Extraordinary and Plenipotentiary

John N. Willys, Ohio, March 8, 1930. F. Lammot Belin, Pennsylvania, November 2, 1932. John Cudahy, Wisconsin, June 13, 1933.

PORTUGAL

Minister Resident

David Humphreys, Connecticut, February 21, 1791.

Ministers Plenipotentiary

John Quincy Adams, Massachusetts, May 30, 1796. William Smith, South Carolina, July 10, 1797. Thomas Sumter, Jr., South Carolina, March 7, 1809. John Graham, Virginla, January 6, 1819.

Envoy Extraordinary and Minister Plenipotentiary

Henry Dearborn, Sr., New Hampshire, May 7, 1822.

Chargés d'Affaires

Thomas L. L. Brent, Virginia, March 9, 1825. Edward Kavanagh, Maine, March 3, 1835. Washington Barrow, Tennessee, August 16, 1841. Abraham Rencher, North Carolina, September 22, 1843. George W. Hopkins, Virginia, March 3, 1847. James Brown Clay, Kentucky, August 1, 1849. Charles B. Haddock, New Hampshire, December 10, 1850. John L. O'Sullivan, New York, February 16, 1854.

Ministers Resident

John L. O'Sullivan, New York, June 29, 1854. George W. Morgan, Ohio, May 11, 1858. James E. Harvey, Pennsylvania, March 28, 1861. Samuel Shellabarger, Ohio, April 21, 1869. Charles H. Lewis, Virginia, March 15, 1870. Benjamin Moran, Pennsylvania, December 15, 1874.

Chargés d'Affaires

Benjamin Moran, August 15, 1876. John M. Francis, New York, April 28, 1882.

Ministers Resident and Consuls General

John M. Francis, New York, July 7, 1882. Lewis Richmond, Rhode Island, July 4, 1884. Edward Parke Custis Lewis, New Jersey, April 2, 1885. George B. Loring, Massachusetts, March 30, 1889.

¹ Accredited to the Peru-Bolivian Confederation but actually servedin Peru.

George S. Batcheller, New York, October 1, 1890. Gilbert A. Pierce, Minnesota, January 6, 1893.

Envoys Extraordinary and Ministers Plenipotentiar

George William Caruth, Arkansas, April 25, 1893. Lawrence Townsend, Pennsylvania, June 9, 1897. John N. Irwin, Iowa, April 12, 1899. Francis B. Loomis, Ohio, June 17, 1901. Charles Page Bryan, Illinois, January 7, 1903. Henry T. Gage, California, December 21, 1909. Edwin V. Morgan, New York, May 24, 1911. Cyrus E. Woods, Pennsylvania, January 25, 1912. Thomas H. Birch, New Jersey, September 10, 1913. Fred Morris Dearing, Missouri, February 10, 1922. John Glover South, Kentucky, December 16, 1929. Robert Granville Caldwell, Texas, June 13, 1933.

PRUSSIA

(See also Germany)

Minister Plenipotentiary

John Quincy Adams, Massachusetts, June 1, 1797.

Chargé d' Affaires

Henry Wheaten, New York, March 3, 1835.

Envoys Extraordinary and Ministers Plenipotentiary

Henry Wheaton, New York, March 7, 1837. Andrew J. Donelson,² Tennessee, March 18, 1846. Edward A. Hannegan, Indiana, March 22, 1849. Daniel D. Barnard, New York, September 3, 1850. Peter D. Vroom, New Jersey, May 24, 1853. Joseph A. Wright, Indiana, June 1, 1857. Norman B. Judd, Illinois, March 8, 1861. Joseph A. Wright, Indiana, June 30, 1865. George Bancroft, New York, May 14, 1867.

RUMANIA

Diplomatic Agent and Consul General

Eugene Schuyler, New York, June 11, 1880.

Chargé d' Affaires and Consul General

Eugene Schuyler, New York, December 21, 1880.

Ministers Resident and Consuls General

Eugene Schuyler,⁸ New York, July 7, 1882. Walker Fearn,³ Louisiana, April 18, 1885. A. Loudon Snowden,³ Pennsylvania, July 1, 1889.

Envoy Extraordinary and Minister Plenipotentiary

A. Loudon Snowden,³ Pennsylvania, July 1, 1891.

Minister Resident and Consul General

Truxtun Beale,3 California, July 27, 1892.

Envoys Extraordinary and Ministers Plenipotentiary and Consuls Gencral

Truxtun Beale,3 California, March 3, 1893.

Eben Alexander,³ North Carolina, April 7, 1893.

William Woodville Rockhill,3 District of Columbia, July 8, 1897.

³ Accredited also to the Federal Government of Germany, 1848.

^a Accredited also to Greece and Serbia

Envoys Extraordinary and Ministers Plenipotentiary

William Woodville Rockhill,¹ District of Columbia, May 25, 1898.

Arthur S. Hardy,¹ New Hampshire, April 18, 1899. Charles S. Francls,¹ New York, December 20, 1900. John B. Jackson,¹ New Jersey, October 13, 1902. John B. Jackson,² New Jersey, June 5, 1903. John W. Riddle,³ Minnesota, March 8, 1905. Horace G. Knowles,⁸ Delaware, January 16, 1907. Horace G. Knowles,⁴ Delaware, July 1, 1907. Spencer F. Eddy,⁴ Illinois, January 11, 1909. John R. Carter,⁴ Maryland, September 25, 1909. John R. Carter,⁵ Maryland, June 24, 1910. John B. Jackson,⁵ New Jersey, August 12, 1911.

Charles J. Vopicka,⁵ Illinois, September 11, 1913.

Peter Augustus Jay, Rhode Island, April 18, 1921.

William S. Culbertson, Kansas, April 28, 1925.

Charles S. Wilson, Maine, June 23, 1928.

Alvin Mansfield Owsley, Texas, June 13, 1933.

RUSSIA

(See also Union of Soviet Socialist Republics)

Minister Plenipotentiary

John Quincy Adams, Massachusetts, June 27, 1809.

Envoys Extraordinary and Ministers Plenipotentiary

William Pinkney, Maryland, March 7, 1816. George Washington Campbell, Tennessee, April 16, 1818. Henry Middleton, South Carolina, April 6, 1820. John Randolph, Virginia, May 26, 1830. James Buchanan, Pennsylvania, January 4, 1832. William Wilkins, Pennsylvania, June 30, 1834.

Charge d' Affaircs

John Randolph Clay, Pennsylvania, June 29, 1836.

Envoys Extraordinary and Ministers Plenipotentiary

George M. Dallas, Pennsylvania, March 7, 1837. Churchill C. Cambreleng, New York, May 20, 1840. Charles S. Todd, Kentucky, August 27, 1841. Ralph I. Ingersoll, Connecticut, August 8, 1846. Arthur P. Bagby, Alabama, June 15, 1848. Neil S. Brown, Tennessee, May 2, 1850. Thomas H. Seymour, Connecticut, May 24, 1853. Francis W. Pickens, South Carolina, January 11, 1858. John Appleton, Maine, June 8, 1860. Cassius M. Clay, Kentucky, March 28, 1861. Simon Cameron, Pennsylvania, January 17, 1862. Cassius M. Clay, Kentucky, March 11, 1863. Andrew G. Curtin, Pennsylvania, April 16, 1869. James L. Orr, South Carolina, December 12, 1872. Marshall Jewell, Connecticut, May 29, 1873. George H. Boker, Pennsylvania, January 13, 1875. Edwin W. Stoughton, New York, October 30, 1877. John W. Foster, Indiana, January 26, 1880. William H. Hunt, Louisiana, April 12, 1882. Alphonso Taft, Ohio, July 4, 1884. George V. N. Lothrop, Michigan, May 7, 1885. Lambert Tree, Illinois, September 25, 1888. Allen Thorndike Rice, New York, March 30, 1889. Charles Emory Smith, Pennsylvania, February 14, 1890.

¹Accredited also to Greece and Serbia.

² Accredited also to Greece and Serbia and as Diplomatic Accentin Bulgaria. ³ Accredited also to Serbia. Andrew D. White, New York, July 22, 1892. Clifton R. Breckinridge, Arkansas, July 20, 1894. Ethan A. Hitchcock, Missouri, August 16, 1897.

Ambassadors Extraordinary and Plenipotentiary

Ethan A. Hitchcock, Missouri, February 11, 1898. Charlemagne Tower, Pennsylvania, January 12, 1899. Robert S. McCormick, Illinois, September 26, 1902. George von L. Meyer, Massachusetts, March S, 1905. John W. Riddle, Minnesota, December 19, 1906. William Woodville Rockhill, District of Columbia, May 17, 1909. Curtis Guild, Massachusetts, April 24, 1911. George T. Marye, California, July 9, 1914.

David R. Francis, Missouri, March 6, 1916.

SALVADOR

(See El Salvador)

SARDINIA

(See also Two Sicilies and Italy)

Chargés d'Affaires

H. Gold Rogers, Pennsylvania, June 30, 1840. Ambrose Baber, Georgia, August 16, 1841. Robert Wickliffe, Jr., Kentucky, September 22, 1843. Nathaniel Niles, Vermont, January 4, 1848. Willlam B. Kinney, New Jersey, April 22, 1850. John M. Daniel, Virginia, July 23, 1853.

Minister Resident

John M. Daniel, Virginia, June 29, 1854.

SERBIA

(See also Yugoslavia)

Ministers Resident and Consuls General

Eugene Schuyler,⁶ New York, July 7, 1882. Walker Fearn,⁶ Louisiana, April 18, 1885. A. Loudon Snowden,⁶ Pennsylvania, July 1, 1889.

Envoy Extraordinary and Minister Plenipotentiary

A. Loudon Snowden,⁶ Pennsylvania, July 1, 1891.

Minister Resident and Consul General

Truxtun Beale,6 California, July 27, 1892.

Envoys Extraordinary and Ministers Plenipotentiary and Consuls General

Truxtun Beale,⁶ California, March 3, 1893.

Eben Alexander,⁶ North Carolina, April 7, 1893.

William Woodville Rockhill,⁶ District of Columbia, July 8, 1897.

Enroys Extraordinary and Ministers Plenipotentiary

William Woodville Rockhill,⁶ District of Columbia, May 25, 1898.

Arthur S. Hardy,⁶ New Hampshire, April 18, 1899.

Charles S. Francis,⁶ New York, December 20, 1900.

John B. Jackson,⁶ New Jersey, October 13, 1902.

⁴ Accredited also to Serbia and as Diplomatic Agent in Bulgaria.

- ⁵ Accredited also to Serbia and Bulgaria.
- ⁶ Accredited also to Greece and Rumanla.

Envoys Extraordinary and Ministers Plenipotentiary

Romulus M. Saunders, North Carolina, February 25, 1846.

Washington Irving, New York, February 10, 1842.

Daniel M. Barringer, North Carolina, June 18, 1849.

John B. Jackson,¹ New Jersey, June 5, 1903., John W. Riddle,² Minnesota, March 8, 1905. Horace G. Knowles,³ Delaware, January 16, 1907., Horace G. Knowles,³ Delaware, July 1, 1907. Spencer F. Eddy,³ Illinois, January 11, 1909. John R. Carter,³ Maryland, September 25, 1909. John R. Carter,⁴ Maryland, June 24, 1910. John B. Jackson,⁴ New Jersey, August 12, 1911. Charles J. Vopleka,⁴ Illinois, September 11, 1913.

SIAM

Ministers Resident and Consuls General

John A. Halderman, Missouri, July 13, 1882. Jacob T. Child, Missouri, March 9, 1886. Sempronius H. Boyd, Missouri, October 1, 1890. John Barrett, Oregon, February 14, 1894. Hamilton King, Michigan, January 14, 1898.

Envoys Extraordinary and Ministers Plenipctentiary

Hamilton King, Mlehigan, April 27, 1903.
Fred W. Carpenter, California, September 12, 1912.
William H. Hornibrook, Oregon, February 12, 1915.
George Pratt Ingersoll, Connecticut, August 8, 1917.
George W. P. Hunt, Arizona, May 18, 1920.
Edward E. Brodie, Oregon, October 8, 1921.
William W. Russell, District of Columbia, September 28, 1925.
Harold Orville Mackenzie, New Jersey, March 3, 1927.
David E. Kaufman, Pennsylvania, June 12, 1930.
James Marion Baker, South Carolina, August 30, 1933.

SPAIN

Chargé d' Affaires

William Carmichael, Maryland, April 20, 1790.

Minister Resident

William Short, Virginia, May 28, 1794.

Envoy Extraordinary

Thomas Pinckney, South Carolina, November 24, 1794.

Ministers Plenipotentiary

Davld Humpbreys, Connecticut, May 20, 1796. Charles Pinckney, South Carolina, June 6, 1801. James Bowdoin, Massachusetts, November 22, 1804. George W. Erving, Massachusetts, August 10, 1814. John Forsyth, Georgia, February 16, 1819. Hugh Nelson, Virginia, January 15, 1823.

Envoys Extraordinary and Ministers Plenipotentiary

Alexander Hill Everett, Massachusetts, March 9, 1825. Cornelius P. Van Ness, Vermont, June 1, 1829. William T. Barry, Kentucky, April 10, 1835. John H. Eaton, Tennessee, March 16, 1836.

Chargé d' Affaircs

Aaron Vail, New York, May 20, 1840.

¹ Accredited also to Greece and Rumania and as Diplomatic Agent in Bulgaria. ³ Accredited also to Rumania.

Pierre Soulé, Louislana, April 7, 1853. Augustus C. Dodge, Iowa, February 9, 1855. William Preston, Kentucky, December 15, 1858. Carl Schurz, Wisconsin, March 28, 1861. Gustavus Koerner, Illinois, June 14, 1862. John P. Hale, New Hampshire, March 10, 1865. Daniel E. Sickles, New York, May 15, 1869. Caleb Cushing, Virginia, January 6, 1874. James Russell Lowell, Massachusetts, June 11, 1877. Lucius Fairchild, Wisconsin, January 26, 1880. Hannibal Hamlin, Maine, June 30, 1881. John W. Foster, Indiana, February 27, 1883. Jabez L. M. Curry, Virginia, October 7, 1885. Perry Belmont, New York, November 17, 1888. Thomas W. Palmer, Michigan, March 12, 1889. E. Burd Grubb, New Jersey, September 27, 1890.

Special Envoy Extraordinary and Minister Plenipotentiary

John W. Foster, Indiana, March 6, 1891.

Envoys Extraordinary and Ministers Plenipotentiary

A. Loudon Snowden, Pennsylvania, July 22, 1892.
Hannis Taylor, Alabama, April 8, 1893.
Stewart L. Woodford, New York, June 19, 1897.
Bellamy Storer, Ohio, April 12, 1899.
Arthur S. Hardy, New Hampshire, September 26, 1902.
William Miller Collier, New York, March 8, 1905.
Henry Clay Ide, Vermont, April 1, 1909.
Joseph E. Willard, Virginia, July 28, 1913.

Ambassadors Extraordinary and Plenipotentiary Joseph E. Willard, Virglnia, September 10, 1913. Cyrus E. Woods, Pennsylvania, June 24, 1921. Alexander P. Moore, Pennsylvania, March 3, 1923. Ogden H. Hammond, New Jersey, December 21, 1925. Irwin B. Laughlin, Pennsylvania, October 16, 1929. Claude G. Bowers, New York, April 6, 1933.

SWEDEN

(See also Sweden and Norway)

Envoys Extraordinary and Ministers Plenipotentiary

Charles H. Graves, Minnesota, March 8, 1905. Ira Nelson Morris, Illinois, Juty 13, 1914. Robert Woods Bliss, New York, January 30, 1923. Leland Harrison, Illinois, February 26, 1927. John Motley Morehead, New York, January 22, 1930. Laurence A. Steinhardt, New York, May 11, 1933.

SWEDEN AND NORWAY

(Separate Misslons after 1906)

Minister Plenipotentiary

Jonathan Russell, Rhode Island, January 18, 1814.

Chargés d'Affaires

Christopher Hughes, Jr., Maryland, January 21, 1819. John James Appleton, Massachusetts, May 2, 1826. Christopher Hughes, Maryland, March 3, 1830. George W. Lay, New York, May 12, 1842. Henry W. Ellsworth, Indiana, April 19, 1845. Francis Schroeder, Rhode Island, November 7, 1849.

³ Accredited also to Rumania and as Diplomatic Agent in Bulgaria. ⁴ Accredited also to Rumania and Bulgaria.

Ministers Resident

Francis Schroeder, Rhode Island, June 29, 1854.
Benjamin F. Angel, New York, July 17, 1857.
Jacob S. Haldeman, Pennsylvania, March 16, 1861.
James H. Campbell, Pennsylvania, May 18, 1864.
John McGinnis, Jr., Illinois, November 16, 1866.
Joseph J. Bartiett, New York, March 19, 1867.
C. C. Andrews, Minnesota, June 3, 1860.
John L Stevens, Maine, August 28, 1877.
William W. Thomas, Jr., Maine, June 6, 1883.
Rufus Magee, Indiana, April 2, 1885.

Envoys Extraordinary and Ministers Plenipotentiary

Rufus Magee, Indiana, August 10, 1888. William W. Thomas, Jr., Maine, March 19, 1889. Thomas B. Ferguson, Maryland, February 14, 1894. William W. Thomas, Jr., Maine, December 18, 1897. Charles H. Graves, Minnesota, March 8, 1905.

SWITZERLAND

Ministers Resident

Theodore S. Fay, Massachusetts, March 16, 1853. George G. Fogg, New Hampshire, March 28, 1861 George Harrington, Georgia, July 7, 1865. Horace Rublee, Wisconsin, April 20, 1869.

Chargés d'Affaires

Horace Rublee, Wisconsin, August 15, 1876. George Schneider, Illinois, May 1, 1877. Nicholas Fish, New York, June 20, 1877. Michael J. Cramer, Kentucky, May 11, 1881.

Ministers Resident and Consuls General

Michael J. Cramer, Kentucky, July 13, 1882. Boyd Winchester, Kentucky, May 7, 1885. John D. Washburn, Massachusetts, March 12, 1889.

Envoys Extraordinary and Ministers Plenipotentiary

John D. Washburn, Massachusetts, July 30, 1890.
Person C. Cheney, New Hampshire, December 13, 1892.
James O. Broadhead, Missouri, April 7, 1893.
John L. Peak, Missouri, November 18, 1895.
John G. A. Leishman, Pennsylvania, June 9, 1897.
Arthur S. Hardy, New Hampshire, December 20, 1900.
David J. Hill, New York, January 7, 1903.
Brutus J. Clay, Kentucky, March 8, 1905.
Laurits S. Swenson, Minnesota, December 21, 1909.
Henry S. Boutell, Illinois, April 24, 1911.
Pleasant A. Stovall, Georgia, June 21, 1913.
Hampson Gary, Texas, April 7, 1920.
Joseph C. Grew, Massachusetts, September 24, 1921.
Hugh S. Gibson, California, March 18, 1924.
Hugh R. Wilson, Illinois, February 26, 1927.

TEXAS

(Annexed to the United States, 1845)

Charges d'Affaires

Alcée La Branche, Louisiana, March 7, 1837. George H. Flood, Ohio, March 16, 1840. Joseph Eve, Kentucky, April 15, 1841. William S. Murphy, Ohio, April 10, 1843. Tilghman A. Howard, Indiana, June 11, 1844. Andrew J. Donelson, Tennessee, September 16, 1844.

67359 - 34 - 22

TURKEY

Chargé d'Affaires

David Porter, Maryland, April 15, 1831.

Ministers Resident

Davld Porter, Maryland, March 3, 1839. Dabney S. Carr, Maryland, October 6, 1843. George P. Marsh, Vermont, May 29, 1849. Carroll Spence, Maryland, August 23, 1853. James Williams, Tennessee, January 14, 1858. Edward Joy Morris, Pennsylvania, June 8, 1861 Wayne MacVeagh, Pennsylvania, June 4, 1870. George H. Boker, Pennsylvania, November 3, 1871. Horace Maynard, Tennessee, March 9, 1875. James Longstreet, Georgia, June 14, 1880. Lewis Wallace, Indiana, May 19, 1881.

Envoys Extraordinary and Ministers Plenipotentiary

Lewis Wallace, Indiana, July 13, 1882.

Samuel S. Cox, New York, March 25, 1885.

Oscar S. Straus, New York, March 24, 1887.

Solomon Hirsch, Oregon, May 16, 1889.

David P. Thompson, Oregon, November 15, 1892.

Alexander W. Terrell, Texas, April 15, 1893.

James B. Angell, Michigan, April 15, 1897.

Oscar S. Straus, New York, June 3, 1898.

John G. A. Leishman, Pennsylvania, December 20, 1900.

Ambassadors Extraordinary and Plenipotentiary

John G. A. Leishman, Pennsylvania, June 18, 1906.

Oscar S. Straus, New York, May 17, 1909.

William Woodville Rockhill, District of Columbia, April 24, 1911.

Henry Morgenthau, New York, September 4, 1913. Abram I. Elkus, New York, July 21, 1916.

Commissioners

Lewis Heck, Pennsylvania, November 30, 1918. Gabriel B. Ravndal, South Dakota, May 3, 1919.

High Commissioner

Rear Admiral Mark L. Bristol, United States Navy, August 12, 1919.

Ambassadors Extraordinary and Plenipotentiary

Joseph C. Grew, New Hampshire, May 19, 1927. Charles Hitchcock Sherrill, New York, March 17, 1932. Robert P. Skinner, Ohio, June 13, 1933.

TWO SICILIES

(See also Sardinia and Italy)

Minister Plenipotentiary William Pinkney, Maryland, Aprll 23, 1816.

Chargés d'Affaires

John Nelson, Maryland, October 24, 1831. Enos T. Throop, New York, February 6, 1838. William Boulware, Virginia, September 13, 1841. William H. Polk, Tennessee, March 13, 1845. John Rowan, Kentucky, January 3, 1848. Thomas W. Chhnn, Louisiana, June 5, 1849. Edward Joy Morris, Pennsylvania, January 10, 1850 Robert Dale Owen, Indiana, May 24, 1853.

Ministers Resident

Robert Dale Owen, Indiana, June 29, 1854. Joseph R. Chandler, Pennsylvania, June 15, 1858.

UNION OF SOUTH AFRICA

Minister Resident and Consul General Ralph J. Totten, Tennessee, December 19, 1929.

Envoy Extraordinary and Minister Plenipotentiary Ralph J. Totten, Tennessee, June 20, 1930.

UNION OF SOVIET SOCIALIST REPUBLICS

Ambassador Extraordinary and Plenipotentiary

William C. Bullitt, Pennsylvania, November 21, 1933.

URUGUAY

Ministers Resident

Alexander Asboth,¹ Missouri, April 5, 1867. H. G. Worthington,¹ Nevada, July 25, 1868. Robert C. Kirk,¹ Obio, May, 5, 1869. John L. Stevens,² Maine, March 25, 1870. John C. Caldwell,² Maine, January 8, 1874.

Chargés d'Affaires

John C. Caldwell,³ Maine, August 15, 1876. William Williams,² Indiana, April 12, 1882. John E. Bacon,³ South Carolina, April 28, 1885.

Ministers Resident

John E. Bacon,² South Carolina, August 10, 1888. George Maney,² Tennessee, June 20, 1889.

Envoys Extraordinary and Ministers Plenipotentiary

Georgo Maney,³ Tennessee, Scptember 23, 1890. Granville Stuart,³ Montana, March 1, 1894. William R. Finch,³ Wisconsin, October 2, 1807. Edward C. O'Brien,³ New York, March 8, 1905. Edwin V. Morgan,³ New York, December 21, 1909. Nicolay A. Grevstad,³ Illinois, June 30, 1911. John L. de Saulles, Pennsylvania, March 27, 1914. Robert Emmett Jeffery, Arkansas, February 3, 1915. Hoffman Philip, New York, March 23, 1922. Ulysses Grant-Smith, Pennsylvania, March 18, 1925 Leland Harrison, Illinois, October 16, 1929. B utler Wright, Wyoming, $\xi_{11}(unk) cr29, 1930.$

¹ Accredited also to Argentina.

VENEZUELA

(See also Colombia)

Chargés d'Affaires

John G. A. Willamson, Pennsylvania, March 3, 1835. Allen A. Hall, Tennessee, March 15, 1841. Vespasian Ellis, Missouri, September 30, 1844. Benjamin G. Shields, Alabama, March 14, 1845. Isaac Nevett Steele, Maryland, December 6, 1849. Charles Eames, District of Columbia, February 9, 1854.

Ministers Resident

Charles Eames, District of Columbia, June 29, 1854. Edward A. Turpin, New York, June 15, 1858. Henry T. Blow, Missouri, June 8, 1861. Erastus D. Culver, New York, July 12, 1862. James Wilson, Indiana, May 31, 1866. Thomas N. Stillwell, Indiana, August 30, 1867. James R. Partridge, Maryland, April 21, 1869. William A. Pile, Misseuri, May 23, 1871. Thomas Russell, Massachusetts, April 20, 1874. Jehu Baker, Illinois, March 4, 1878. George W. Carter, Louisiana, June 30, 1881.

Ministers Resident and Consuls General

Jehu Baker, Illinois, July 7, 1884. Charles L. Scott, Alabama. April 28, 1885.

Envoys Extraordinary and Ministers Plenipotentiary

Charles L. Scott, Alabama, August 10, 1888.
William L. Scruggs, Georgia, March 30, 1889.
Frank C. Partridge, Vermont, January 25, 1893.
Seneca Haselton, Vermont, May 11, 1894.
Allen Thomas, Florida, June 13, 1895.
Francis B. Loomis, Ohio, July 8, 1897.
Herbert W. Bowen, New York, June 17, 1901.
William W. Russell, District of Columbia. June 21, 1905.
R. S. Reynolds Hitt, Illinois, June 24, 1910.
John W. Garrett, Maryland, December 15, 1910.
Elliott Northcott, West Virginia, December 21, 1911.
Preston B. McGoodwin, Oklahoma, September 18, 1913.
Willis C. Cook, South Dakota, October 8, 1921.
George T. Summerlin, Louisiana, September 11, 1929.

YUGOSLAVIA

(Kingdom of the Serbs, Croats and Slovenes, 1919-1929) Envoys Extraordinary and Ministers Plenipotentiary

H. Percival Dodge, Massachusetts, July 17, 1919. John Dyneley Prince, New Jersey, February 23, 1926. Charles S. Wilson, Maine, August 3, 1933.

³ Accredited also to Paraguay.

18. REGULATIONS CONCERNING PRECEDENCE OF DIPLOMATIC AGENTS

The rules on this subject which have been prescribed by the Department are the same as those contained in the seven rules of the Congress of Vienna, found in the protocol of the session of March 9, 1815, and in the supplementary or eighth rule of the Congress of Aix-la-Chapelle of November 21, 1818. They are as follows:

ARTICLE 1. Diplomatic agents are divided into three classes: That of ambassadors, legates, or nuncios; that of envoys, ministers, or other persons accredited to sovereigns; that of charges d'affaires accredited to ministers for foreign affairs.

ART. 2. Ambassadors, legates, or nuncios only have the representative character.

ART. 3. Diplomatic agents on an extraordinary mission have not, on that account, any superiority of rank.

ART. 4. Diplomatic agents shall take precedence in their respective classes according to the date of the official notification of their arrival. The present regulation shall not eause any innovation with regard to the representative of the Pope.

ART. 5. A uniform mode shall be determined in each State for the reception of diplomatic agents of each class.

ART. 6. Relations of consanguinity or of family alliance between courts confer no precedence

on their diplomatic agents. The same rule also applies to political alliances. ART. 7. In acts or treaties between several powers which grant alternate precedence, the order which is to be observed in the signatures shall be decided by lot between the ministers.

ART. 8. . . . It is agreed that ministers resident accredited to them shall form, with respect to their precedence, an intermediate class between ministers of the second class and charges d'affaires.

19. ORGANIZATION OF THE FOREIGN SERVICE

GENERAL INFORMATION

CONDUCT OF FOREIGN RELATIONS

The President is charged under the Constitution with the responsibility of conducting the foreign relations of the United States. The Secretary of State is his adviser in such matters and acts as the agent through whom he issues his instructions to the Foreign Service, which forms the field force through which the necessary contacts with foreign governments are established and maintained.

REPRESENTATION IN FOREIGN COUNTRIES

The United States maintains embassies and legations at the capitals of some 57 foreign countries, and consulates general and consulates in some 265 of the leading cities of the world. Each embassy or legation is headed by an ambassador or minister appointed by the President by promotion from the ranks of the Foreign Service or by selection from outside the Service. Each such chief of mission is assisted by a staff of diplomatic secretaries, clerks, and subordinate employces. Consular offices are headed by consuls general, consuls, or vice consuls, who have staffs of subordinate officers and employees.

FOREIGN SERVICE OFFICERS

Foreign Service officers, the body of permanent officers of the Foreign Service embracing all counselors of embassy or legation, diplomatic secretaries, consuls general, consuls, and vice consuls of career, are appointed after examination. These officers deal with every problem that enters into the relations of the United States with foreign countries, whether it be political, commercial, administrative, or social. They protect the interests of the Government as well as the interests and persons of Americans traveling in foreign countries. Some conception of the range of the duties of Foreign Service officers may be obtained from the following outline.

The efficient Foreign Service officer-

- Creates good will and common understanding, and, with restrained and critical leadership born of mature experience and profound knowledge of men and affairs, uses these as instruments for enhancing international confidence and cooperation among governments and people.
 - Adapts himself, his conduct, and his mode of living, appropriately to climate and surroundings in the country to which he is assigned.
 - Learns to speak the language of the country in a manner that reveals a background of intelligence and cultivation.
 - Comprehends his own country, and with unremitting endeavor comes to understand deeply the foreign country where he is stationed.
 - Furthers accurate knowledge and friendly understanding of the United States, in foreign countries; and, also, of the foreign countries, in the United States.

Promotes and protects the interests of the United States and of its citizens.

- Makes effective representations to the authorities of foreign governments concerning the protection of American citizens, their rights, and their property, in accordance with international law.
- Advises and assists Americans traveling abroad for business or other purposes with wise counsel and accurate information.

Negotiates, with tact, sound judgment, and intimate knowledge of conditions at home and abroad, protocols, conventions, and treaties, especially regarding international intercourse, tariffs, shipping, commerce, preservation of peace, etc., in strict conformity to Government instructions.

Cooperates and counsels with superior officers and colleagues in Government service, on all matters relating to his official duties.

Establishes and effectively utilizes personal contacts in farsighted ways for the benefit of his Government and of American citizens.

- Analyzes and reports on political and economic conditions and trends of significance to the United States.
 - Analyzes and reports on market conditions, statistics of trade, of finance, of production, of labor, etc., in foreign countries, so far as they are significant to the United States and to its people.
 - Analyzes and reports on crops and other agricultural, forest, fishing, and mining resources, so far as they may affect similar American interests.
 - Analyzes and reports on shipping practices, shipping legislation, freights, charters, pools, etc., so far as they vitally affect any American interests.
 - Reports on all legislation of interest to the United States.

Reports on tariffs, both laws and practices.

Reports on vital statistics of Americans abroad.

- Replies to individual trade and other inquiries from American eitizens in ways to promote good will and help both present and future trade relations.
- Exercises skill in following prescribed form and routine procedure when possible; and displays discriminating judgment, as may be necessary in more complicated situations requiring investigations, careful accumulation of information, or professional understanding of laws, customs, conditions, etc.
 - Issues passports to American citizens, registers citizens, and advises on questions relating to citizenship generally.
 - Issues bills of health, makes sanitary reports, and supervises disinfection of merchandise.
 - Certifies invoices of all goods shipped to the United States and reports on undervaluations for protection of revenues.
 - Visas alien passports and issues immigration visas under immigration laws.
 - Enters and clears American ships and airships, administers relief of seamen, signs on and discharges seamen, settles disputes between masters and seamen, and takes charge of shipwrecked vessels.
 - Assists in prevention of importation of prohibited articles.
 - Administers regulations relating to plant and animal quarantine.
 - Takes custody of and with sagacity administers and settles estates of American citizens and sailors who have died abroad.

Handles extradition cases.

- Witnesses marriages, where at least one of the participants is an American citizen, in accordance with American and local laws.
- Performs notarial services in accordance with Federal, State, and local laws.
- Administers an office in a businesslike and efficient manner.
 - Gives helpful information to colleagues and fundamental instruction and guidance to subordinates in assigning problems, investigations, duties, etc.
 - Apportions responsibility and work among personnel, reports on personnel, and maintains morale.

- Maintains records of business and files of correspondence received and sent.
- Estimates needs of office and plans budget expenditures for present and future activities.
- Receives, cares for, and accounts for public property in accordance with Government regulations.
- Collects and properly accounts for fees for services rendered under law.
- Disburses funds received from the Treasury of the United States for salaries, wages, and contingent expenses; makes up required returns and accounts; and remits surplus funds to Treasury.

During an officer's career in the Service he is expected to serve where he is needed or where he is deemed best qualified to serve, whether that be in a consular office, a diplomatic mission, or the Department of State in Washington. Officers are utilized interchangeably in consulates, diplomatic missions, and the Department.

Examinations

Persons seeking designation for the examination for the career service may obtain from the Department of State upon request forms of application for appointment. Applications and all correspondence relating thereto should be addressed to the Secretary of State, who will in due course notify by letter such applicants as may be designated for examination. The letter of designation furnishes all information necessary as to the date and places of the examinations.

Applicants should read carefully the information given under the heading "Applications" on page 328.

The written examinations are held by the Civil Service Commission in Washington, Atlanta, Boston, Chicago, Cincinnati, Denver, New Orleans, New York, Philadelphia, St. Louis, St. Paul, San Francisco, and Seattle.

Candidates who succeed in obtaining sufficiently high marks in the written tests to indicate probable qualifications for the work of the Foreign Service are informed of the date on which they may appear before the Board of Examiners for the Foreign Service in Washington for an oral examination, the object of which is to ascertain the extent to which candidates are qualified for the proper performance of the duties of the Foreign Service from the point of view of their character, address, judgment, general education and culture, contemporary information, practical experience, and apparent business capacity. Their physical fitness is determined by Government surgeons in Washington or elsewhere acting in an advisory capacity to the Board of Examiners. Those candidates who receive a passing mark on the whole examination are certified to the Secretary of State as eligible for appointment, and as vacancies occur in the Foreign Service their names are drawn from the eligible list in the order of their examination marks.

Candidates successful in an examination are not assured of appointment, that being a matter which depends necessarily upon the number of eligibles obtained as the result of an examination and the vacancies occurring during the life of the eligible list, which is 2 years. Candidates are not examined with reference to their possible appointment to a particular post or part of the world, the assignment of officers being made as their qualifications indicate and the needs of the Service require.

Many colleges and universities furnish courses covering the subjects given in the Foreign Service examination. The Government does not recommend any particular educational institution to persons wishing to prepare themselves for the Foreign Service examination, nor does it prescribe any course for them to follow. Persons wishing to make special preparation should correspond, with respect to courses of study, direct with such educational institution as they may wish to attend.

Applicants for examination are referred to the pertinent sections of the act of February 23, 1931, beginning with section 7, on page 329, and to the regulations of the Board of Examiners for the Foreign Service on pages 337 and 338.

No one will be certified as eligible for appointment as a Foreign Service officer who is under 21 or over 35 years of age, except as provided in section 8 of the regulations mentioned above.

ORGANIZATION OF THE FOREIGN SERVICE

FOREIGN SERVICE OFFICERS' TRAINING SCHOOL

After appointment by and with the advice and consent of the Senate, officers are given probationary assignments to the field for preliminary training under the direction of experienced officers. There they perform, under supervision, some of the usual duties of a career officer. After experience of this character they are assigned to the Department of State for a course of instruction in the Foreign Service Officers' Training School. Only persons who have been successful in the examination and have been duly appointed Foreign Service officers are admitted to this school. After several months in the School, officers are assigned to the field for duty in consular offices as vice consuls.

SALARIES

The entrance salary of Foreign Service officers is \$2,500 a year, the classes and the salaries in each class being as follows:

Class 1	\$9,000 to	\$10,000
Class 2	8,000 to	8, 900
Class 3	7,000 to	7, 900
Class 4	6,000 to	6, 900
Class 5	5,000 to	5,900
Class 6	4, 500 to	4,900
Class 7	4,000 to	4,400
Class 8	3, 500 to	3, 900
Unclassified		3, 400

In addition to the salaries to which members of the Foreign Service may aspire, their necessary expenses of transportation and subsistence, when traveling upon public business, are paid, and each officer receives, when in the field, an allowance for rent, heat, and light of living quarters.

EDUCATIONAL REQUIREMENTS

It is not required that a candidate for examination have a college education. However, of the Foreign Service officers now in the Service, about 70 percent are college graduates; a little over 22 percent attended college but did not graduate; and only about 7 percent have had no college training. As experience with the Foreign Service increases, the conviction grows that the broader the education of an officer upon his entry into the Service, the better his opportunity of success.

Advancement on Merit

The admission, the advancement, and the assignment of officers depend upon their own ability and merit so far as the agencies designated by the President and the Department of State are able to determine those qualities. Thus, a young man may enter the Foreign Service and advance in the course of time through the Service classes to the position of counselor of embassy or consul general. The opportunity for advancement for the officer of outstanding ability and worth does not cease with the attainment of class 1. The law requires that the Secretary of State shall recommend to the President the names of those Foreign Service officers who have demonstrated special capacity for promotion to the grade of minister.

LANGUAGE OFFICERS

Language officers are Foreign Service officers appointed from the unclassified grade and assigned to certain countries for the purpose of studying and perfecting themselves in prescribed foreign languages.

RETIREMENT

There is a retirement fund in the Foreign Service created by the deduction of 5 percent of the annual salary of each officer and the depositing of it, along with a contribution on the part of the Government, in the Treasury of the United States. An officer who reaches the age of 65 years is

compulsorily retired and receives thereafter an annuity based upon his length of service and average annual basic salary for the 10 years next preceding the date of retirement. An officer who has served 30 years receives 60 percent; an officer who has served 27 to 30 years receives 54 percent; an officer who has served only 15 to 18 years receives 30 percent of his average annual basic salary for the 10 years next preceding his retirement. On the other hand, an officer may voluntarily retire at the end of 30 years' service and receive an annuity based upon the length of his service and his average annual salary for the 10 years preceding his retirement. This makes it possible for an officer who enters the Service at the early age of 25 years to retire voluntarily when he shall have reached the age of 55.

Employees in the Foreign Service who are American citizens are subject to the Civil Service Retirement Act in the same manner as civil-service employees in the United States.

Applications

Persons seeking designation for examination or appointment to a clerkship may obtain from the Department of State, upon request, forms of application. Applications and all correspondence should be addressed to the Secretary of State, Washington, D. C.

Applications must be filled out completely in the handwriting of the applicant and accompanied by five endorsements in the form of letters from competent and responsible persons, attesting the moral character, integrity, good deportment, and ability of the applicant, his business experience, and his qualifications as set forth in the application. It is desirable that at least three of these letters be obtained from teachers or employers of the applicant. The originals of all endorsements listed in the application must be filed therewith; copies are not acceptable. Endorsements remain a part of the Government records and may not be withdrawn while a person remains an applicant or while he is an officer or employee of the Department of State.

Applicants in their correspondence with the Department should always sign their names as given in their applications, without enlargement or contraction, one given name at least being used.

An applicant should be particularly careful to give his legal residence correctly.

An application is considered as pending for a period of 2 years. After such period has elapsed another application with one or two commendatory letters covering the applicant's activities since the date of his expired application will be necessary to obtain further consideration.

The Department does not furnish information regarding vacancies or possible vacancies in the Foreign Service.

CLERKS

No formal examination is required for appointment to a clerkship; the Department, however, reserves the right to examine an applicant in any particular it may deem advisable. Persons sent abroad as clerks in the Foreign Service receive initial compensation from \$1,560 to \$2,000 a year. Compensation begins upon the date of departure for the post to which they are assigned. Transportation expenses are paid by the Government, under certain regulations. Appointees are expected to remain in the Service for at least 2 years, and their transportation expenses in returning to the United States in case of resignation are not payable unless they have served for that period. They are, furthermore, expected to accept such assignments or transfers as the Department may deem desirable in the best interests of the Service. No appointments can be considered for special countries, although a statement as to preference of assignment may be submitted. The duties of clerks consist of such work as may be assigned to them by the officers in charge. It is desirable that clerks should be stenographers and possess a knowledge of the language of the country in which they are to be employed.

Appointments are restricted to those who are unmarried and without dependents.

The employment of citizens or subjects of foreign powers as clerks in diplomatic offices is prohibited by law.

Women are equally eligible with men for clerkships in the Foreign Service. However, the climatic and social conditions at many posts render it impossible for women to serve at them with satisfaction to themselves and advantage to the Government.

No one who is under 21 or over 35 years of age or who is not in excellent physical condition will be considered for these positions. The Department may require the applicant to undergo a physical examination.

Applicants for elerkships should read carefully the information on page 328 under the heading "Applications", and also sections 1 to 6, inclusive, of the act of February 23, 1931, *infra*.

NONCAREER VICE CONSULS

It is the practice of the Department to commission clerks as noncareer vice consuls only when a need exists at the office to which they are assigned, and not until they have served for a sufficient period to judge of their abilities and conduct and whether they merit such recognition. Clerks commissioned as noncareer vice consuls are not eligible for promotion to the grade of Foreign Service officer without undergoing the prescribed examinations. A commission as noncareer vice consul does not carry with it an increase in compensation.

ATTACHÉS

Military, naval, and commercial attachés are officers of the War Department, Navy Department, and Department of Commerce, respectively. Information concerning appointments to these positions may be obtained from the departments concerned.

LAWS AND REGULATIONS

ACT OF FEBRUARY 23, 1931 1

[Public-No. 715-71st Congress H. R. 9110]

An Act For the grading and classification of clerks in the Foreign Service of the United States of America, and providing compensation therefor.

Be it enacted by the Senate and House of Representatives of the United States of America in Congress assembled, That the clerks in the Foreign Service of the United States of America shall be graded and classified as follows, and shall receive, within the limitation of such appropriations as the Congress may make, the basic compensations specified:

CLERKS: CLASSIFICATION-SALARIES

Senior clerks. Class 1, \$4,000; class 2, \$3,750; class 3, \$3,500; class 4, \$3,250; class 5, \$3,000. Junior clerks. Class 1, \$2,750; class 2, \$2,500; class 3, all clerks whose compensation as fixed by the Secretary of State is less than \$2,500 per annum.

SEC. 2. Appointments to the grade of senior clerks and advancement from class to class in that grade shall hereafter be by promotion for efficient service, and no one shall be promoted to the grade of senior clerk who is not an American citizen and has not served as a clerk in a diplomatic mission or a consulate, or both, or as a clerk in the Department of State for at least five years.

Additional Compensation of Clerks at Certain Posts

SEC. 3. That the Secretary of State is hereby authorized, at posts where in his judgment it is required by the public interests for the purpose of meeting the unusual or excessive costs of living ascertained by him to exist, to grant compensation to clerks assigned there in addition to the basic rates herein specified, within such appropriations as Congress may make for such purpose: *Provided, however*, That all such additional compensation with the reasons therefor shall be reported to Congress with the annual Budget.

CITIZENSHIP OF CLERKS IN EMBASSIES AND LEGATIONS

SEC. 4. No clerk who is not an American citizen shall hereafter be appointed to serve in a diplomatic mission.

SEC. 5. The President is hereby authorized to prescribe regulations for the administration of the foregoing provisions.

SEC. 6. Section 5 of the Act of April 5, 1906, entitled "An Act to provide for the reorganization of the Consular Service" (United States Code, page 646, section 57), is hereby repealed.

REORGANIZATION AND IMPROVEMENT OF THE FOREIGN SERVICE

SEC. 7. That the Act (Public Numbered 135, Sixty-eighth Congress) approved May 24, 1924, entitled "An Act for the reorganization and improvement of the Foreign Service of the United States, and for other purposes," be, and the same is hereby, amended to read as follows:

¹ The subtitles do not appear in the act but have been inserted for the reader's guidance.

"SEC. 8. That hereafter the Diplomatic and Consular Service of the United States shall be known as the Foreign Service of the United States.

Officers: Designation-Promotion-Assignment

"SEC. 9. That the official designation 'Foreign Service officers,' as employed throughout this Act, shall be deemed to denote permanent officers in the Foreign Service below the grade of minister, all of whom are subject to promotion on merit and who may be appointed to either diplomatic or consular positions or assigned to serve in the Department of State subject to section 21 of this Act, at the discretion of the President.

OFFICERS: CLASSIFICATION-SALARIES

"SEC. 10. That the officers in the Foreign Service shall hereafter be graded and classified as follows with the salaries of each class herein affixed thereto, except as increases in salaries are authorized in section 33 of this Act, but not exceeding in number for each class a proportion of the total number of officers in the service represented in the following percentage limitations: "Ambassadors and ministers as now or hereafter provided: Foreign Service officers as follows:

"Ambassadors and ministers as now or hereafter provided: Foreign Service officers as follows: Class 1, 6 per centum, \$9,000 to \$10,000; class 2, 7 per centum, \$8,000 to \$8,900; class 3, 8 per centum, \$7,000 to \$7,900; class 4, 9 per centum, \$6,000 to \$6,900; class 5, 10 per centum, \$5,000 to \$5,900; class 6, 14 per centum, \$4,500 to \$4,900; class 7, \$4,000 to \$4,400; class 8, \$3,500 to \$3,900; unclassified, \$2,500 to \$3,400: *Provided*, That as many Foreign Service officers above class 6 as may be required for the purpose of inspection may be detailed by the Secretary of State for that purpose.

Appointments as Secretaries or Consuls

"SEC. 11. That Foreign Service officers may be commissioned as diplomatic or consular officers or both: *Provided*, That all such appointments shall be made by and with the advice and consent of the Senate: *And provided further*, That all official acts of such officers while serving under diplomatic or consular commissions in the Foreign Service shall be performed under their respective commissions as secretaries or as consular officers.

EXAMINATION—PROBATION—TRANSFER FROM DEPARTMENT—CITIZENSHIP—REINSTATEMENT— APPOINTMENT TO CLASS, NOT POST—TRANSFER—PRESENT COMMISSIONS VALID

"SEC. 12. That hereafter appointments to the position of Foreign Service officer shall be made after examination and officers so appointed shall serve a suitable period of probation in an unclassified grade or, under such rules and regulations as the President may prescribe, after five years of continuous service in an executive or quasiexecutive position in the Department of State, by transfer therefrom, *Provided*. That no candidate shall be eligible for examination for Foreign Service officer who is not an American citizen and who shall not have been such at least fifteen years: *Provided further*, That reinstatement of Foreign Service officers separated from the classified service by reason of appointment to some other position in the Government service may be made by Executive order of the President under such rules and regulations as he may prescribe. Except that the number of such officers reinstated shall not affect the number of the percentage of the class provided in section 10.

"All appointments of Foreign Service officers shall be by commission to a class and not by a commission to a particular post, and such officers shall be assigned to posts and may be transferred from one post to another by order of the President as the interests of the service may require: *Provided*, That the classification of secretaries in the Diplomatic Service and of consular officers is hereby abolished without, however, in any wise impairing the validity of the present commissions of secretaries.

Reports to President as to Efficiency-Promotion and Appointment for Efficiency

"SEC. 13. That section 5 of the Act of February 5, 1915 (Public, Numbered 242), is hereby repealed.

"SEC. 14. That the Secretary of State is directed to report from time to time to the President, along with his recommendations, the names of those Foreign Service officers who by reason of efficient service have demonstrated special capacity for promotion to the grade of minister and the names of those Foreign Service officers and clerks and officers and employees in the Department of State who by reason of efficient service, an accurate record of which shall be kept in the Department of State, have demonstrated special efficiency, and also the names of persons found upon taking the prescribed examination to have fitness for appointment to the service, and any Foreign Service officer who may hereafter be promoted to a higher class within the elassification prescribed in section 10 of this Act shall have the status and receive the compensation attaching to such higher class.

CONSULAR ASSISTANTS ABOLISHED

"That the grade of consular assistant is hereby abolished.

ALL OFFICERS TO BE BONDED

"SEC. 15. That sections 1697 and 1698 of the Revised Statutes are hereby repealed. "SEC. 16. Every secretary, consul general, consul, vice consul of career, or Foreign Service officer, before he receives his commission or enters upon the duties of his office, shall give to the United States a bond, in such form as the President shall prescribe, with such survives, who shall be permanent residents of the United States, as the Secretary of State shall approve, in a penal sum not less than the annual compensation allowed to such officer, conditioned for the true and faithful accounting for, paying over, and delivering up of all fees, moneys, goods, effects, books, records, papers, and other property which shall come to his hands or to the hands of any other person to his use as such officer under any law now or hereafter enacted, and for the true and faithful performance of all other duties now or hereafter lawfully imposed upon him as such officer: *Provided*, That the operation of no existing bond shall in any wise be impaired by the provisions of this Act: *Provided further*, That such bond shall cover by its stipulations all official acts of such officer, whether commissioned as diplomatic or consular officer or Foreign Service officer. The bonds herein mentioned shall be deposited with the Secretary of the Treasury.

FOREIGN SERVICE INSPECTORS

"SEC. 17. That the provisions of section 4 of the Act of April 5, 1906, relative to the powers, duties, and prelogatives of consuls general at large are hereby made applicable to the Foreign Service officers detailed for the purpose of inspection, who shall, under the direction of the Secretary of State, inspect in a substantially uniform manner the work of diplomatic and consular offices.

OFFICIAL FEES

"SEC. 18. That the provisions of sections 8 and 10 of the Act of April 5, 1906, relative to official fees and the method of accounting therefor shall apply to diplomatic officers below the grade of minister and to consular officers.

REPRESENTATION AND POST ALLOWANCES

"SEC. 19. That under such regulations as the President may prescribe, and within the limitations of such appropriations as may be made therefor, which appropriations are hereby authorized, ambassadors, ministers, diplomatic, consular, and Foreign Service officers may be granted allowances for representation; and also post allowances wherever the cost of living may be proportionately so high that in the opinion of the Secretary of State such allowances are necessary to enable such diplomatic, consular, and Foreign Service officers to carry on their work efficiently: *Provided*, That all such allowances shall be accounted for to the Secretary of State in such manner and under such rules and regulations as the President may prescribe and the authorization and approval of such expenditures by the Secretary of State, as complying with such rules and regulations, shall be binding upon all officers of the Government: *Provided further*, That the Secretary of State shall report all such expenditures annually to the Congress with the Budget estimates of the Department of State.

PRIVATE SECRETARIES TO AMBASSADORS

"SEC. 20. Appropriations are authorized for the salary of a private secretary to each ambassador to be appointed by the ambassador and hold office at his pleasure.

Assignment to Department of State—Detail to Conferences, etc.

"SEC. 21. That any Foreign Service officer may be assigned for duty in the Department of State without loss of class or salary, such assignment to be for a period of not more than three years, unless the public interests demand further service, when such assignment may be extended for a period not to exceed one year. Notwithstanding the provisions of section 1742 of the Revised Statutes of the United States, any ambassador or minister or any Foreign Service officer of whatever class detailed for duty in connection with trade conferences or international gatherings, congresses, or conferences, or for other special duty not at his post or in the Department of State, except temporarily for purposes of consultation, shall be paid his salary and expenses for travel and subsistence at the rates prescribed by law.

LEAVE OF ABSENCE

"SEC. 22. That the Secretary of State is authorized, whenever he deems it to be in the public interest, to order to the United States on his statutory leave of absence any Foreign Service officer or vice consul of eareer who has performed three years or more of continuous service abroad: Provided, That the expenses of transportation and subsistence of such officers and their immediate families, in traveling from their posts to their homes in the United States and return, shall be paid under the same rules and regulations applicable in the case of officers going to and returning from their posts under orders of the Secretary of State when not on leave: And provided further, That while in the United States the services of such officers shall be available for trade conference work or for such duties in the Department of State as the Secretary of State may prescribe, but the time of such work or duties shall not be counted as leave.

"The Secretary of State is authorized, in his discretion and subject to such regulations as may be issued by the President to grant to any officer or employee of the Foreign Service not to exceed sixty days annual leave of absence with pay. If such officer or employee returns to the United States, the leave of absence granted under the provisions of this section shall be exclusive of the time actually and necessarily occupied in going to and from the United States, and such time as may be necessarily occupied in awaiting sailing. Any portion of sixty days annual leave not granted or availed of in any one year may be cumulative, not to exceed exclusive of time in transit and awaiting sailing, one hundred and twenty days in three years or one hundred and eighty days in four years: *Provided further*, That employees, not American citizens, may be granted not to exceed thirty days leave of absence with pay in any one year.

"The Secretary of State is also authorized to grant to any officer or employee of the Foreign Service on account of personal illness or on account of exposure to a contagious disease which would render presence at a post of duty hazardous to the health of fellow employees, sick leave of absence with pay at the rate of fifteen days a year, the unused portion of such sick leave to be cumulative not to exceed one hundred and twenty days: *Provided*, That during the first year of operation of this act not to exceed thirty days of additional sick leave of absence with pay may be granted.

"No Foreign Service officer shall be absent from his post with pay for more than forty-eight hours without permission, except as provided herein.

"Section 1742 of the Revised Statutes is hereby repealed."

COUNSELORS OF EMBASSY OR LEGATION

"SEC. 23. That the part of the Act of July 1, 1916 (Public, Numbered 131), which authorizes the President to designate and assign any secretary of class 1 as counselor of embassy or legation, is hereby amended to read as follows:

" *Provided*, That the President may, whenever he considers it advisable so to do, designate and assign any Foreign Service officer as counselor of embassy or legation.'

Foreign Service Officer as Commissioner, Chargé, Minister Resident, Diplomatic Agent—Salary as Chargé or Consul in Charge

"SEC. 24. That within the discretion of the President, any Foreign Service officer may be assigned to act as commissioner, chargé d'affaires, minister resident, or diplomatic agent for such period as the public interests may require without loss of grade, class, or salary: *Provided, however*, That no such officer shall receive more than one salary.

"SEC. 25. That for such times as any Foreign Service officer shall be lawfully authorized to act as chargé d'affaires *ad interim* or to assume charge of a consulate general or consulate during the absence of the principal officer at the post to which he shall have been assigned, he shall, if his salary is less than one-half that of such principal officer, receive in addition to his salary as Foreign Service officer, compensation equal to the difference between such salary and one-half of the salary provided by law for the ambassador, minister, or principal consular officer, as the case may be.

RETIREMENT SYSTEM

"SEC. 26. The President is authorized to prescribe rules and regulations for the establishment of a Foreign Service retirement and disability system to be administered under the direction of the Secretary of State and in accordance with the following principles, to wit:

REPORT OF FUNDS-APPROPRIATIONS

"(a) The Secretary of State shall submit annually a comparative report showing all receipts and disbursements on account of refunds, allowances, and annuities, together with the total number of persons receiving annuities and the amounts paid them, and shall submit annually estimates of appropriations necessary to continue this section in full force and such appropriations are hereby authorized: *Provided*, That in no event shall the aggregate total appropriations exceed the aggregate total of the contributions of the Foreign Service officers theretofore made, and accumulated interest thereon.

RETIREMENT AND DISABILITY FUND

"(b) There is hereby created a special fund to be known as the Foreign Service retirement and disability fund.

FIVE PERCENT DEDUCTION-BASIC SALARIES

"(c) Five per centum of the basic salary of all Foreign Service officers eligible to retirement shall be contributed to the Foreign Service retirement and disability fund, and the Secretary of the Treasury is directed on the date on which this Act takes effect to cause such deductions to be made and the sums transferred on the books of the Treasury Department to the credit of the Foreign Service retirement and disability fund for the payment of annuities, refunds, and allowances: *Provided*, That all basic salaries in excess of \$10,000 per annum shall be treated as \$10,000.

AGE OF RETIREMENT

"(d) When any Foreign Service officer has reached the age of sixty-five years and rendered at least fifteen years of service he shall be retired: *Provided*, That if any such officer shall have served thirty years he may be retired at his own request before reaching the age of sixty-five years: *Provided further*, That the President may in his discretion retain any such officer on active duty for such period prior to his reaching seventy years of age, as he may deem for the interests of the United States.

ANNUITY CLASSES

"(c) Annuities shall be paid to retired Foreign Service officers under the following classification, based upon length of service and at the following percentages of the average annual basic salary for the ten years next preceding the date of retirement: Class A, thirty years or more, 60 per centum; Class B, from twenty-seven to thirty years, 54 per centum; Class C, from twenty-four to twentyseven years, 48 per centum; Class D, from twenty-one to twenty-four years, 42 per centum; Class E, from eighteen to twenty-one years, 36 per centum; Class F, from fifteen to eighteen years, 30 per centum: *Provided, however*, That in computing the average annual basic salary for the ten years next preceding the date of retirement, so much of an officer's service as was rendered prior to July 1, 1924, in accordance with the classification and salaries established by laws then in effect, as it is possible to credit to him by applying to all such periods of service rendered prior to July 1, 1924, the rules for erresponding classes in the reclassification provisions in section 7 of the Act of May 24, 1924, shall be considered as having been performed in accordance with the classifications and salaries established for Foreign Service officers in section 3 of the Act of May 24, 1924: *And provided further*, That no increases in annuities under this Act shall operate retroactively and nothing in this Act shall be interpreted as reducing the rate of the annuity received by any retired officer on the effective date of this Act.

REFUNDS FOR EARLY RETIREMENT

"(f) Those officers who retire before having contributed for each year of service shall have withheld from their annuities to the credit of the Foreign Service retirement and disability fund such proportion of 5 per centu n as the number of years in which they did not contribute bears to the total length of service: *Provided*, That no deductions shall be made from the annuities of officers who have contributed thirty years, and no officer shall be required to contribute more than thirty years in any circumstances.

INVESTMENT OF RETIREMENT AND DISABILITY FUND

"(g) The Secretary of the Treasury is directed to invest from time to time in interest-bearing securities of the United States such portions of the Foreign Service retirement and disability fund as in his judgment may not be immediately required for the payment of annuities, refunds, and allowances, and the income derived from such investments shall constitute a part of said fund.

FUNDS NOT ASSIGNABLE OR SUBJECT TO LEGAL PROCESS

"(h) None of the moneys mentioned in this section shall be assignable either in law or equity, or be subject to execution, levy, or attachment, garnishment, or other legal process.

DEATH OF ANNUITANT

"(i) In case an annuitant dies without having received in annuities an amount equal to the total amount of his contributions from salary with interest thereon at 4 per centum per annum compounded annually up to the time of his death, the excess of said accumulated contributions over the said annuity payments shall be paid to his or her legal representatives; and in case a Foreign Service officer shall die without having reached the retirement age the total amount of his contribution with accrued interest shall be paid to his legal representatives.

RETIREMENT FOR DISABILITY-PHYSICAL EXAMINATION-RECOVERY

"(j) That any Foreign Service officer who, before reaching the age of retirement becomes totally disabled for useful and efficient service by reason of disease or injury not due to vicious habits, intemperance, or willful misconduct on his part, shall, upon his own application or upon order of the

President, be retired on an annuity under paragraph (e) of this section: *Provided, however*, That in each case such disability shall be determined by the report of a duly qualified physician or surgeon designated by the Secretary of State to conduct the examination: *Provided further*, That unless the disability be permanent, a like examination shall be made annually in order to determine the degree of disability, and the payment of annuity shall cease from the date of the medical examination showing recovery.

"Fees for examinations under this provision, together with reasonable traveling and other expenses incurred in order to submit to examination, shall be paid out of the Foreign Service retirement and disability fund.

"When the annuity is discontinued under this provision before the annuitant has received a sum equal to the total amount of his contributions, with accrued interest, the difference shall be paid to him or to his legal representatives.

UNHEALTHFUL POSTS

"(k) The President is authorized from time to time to establish, by Executive order, a list of places which by reason of climatic or other extreme conditions are to be classed as unhealthful posts, and each year of duty subsequent to January 1, 1900, at such posts inclusive of regular leaves of absence, of officers already retired or hereafter retired, shall be counted as one year and a half, and so on in like proportion in reekoning the length of service for the purpose of retirement, fractional months being considered as full months in computing such service: *Provided*, however, That the President may at any time cancel the designation of any places as unhealthful without affecting any credit which has accrued for service at such posts prior to the date of the cancellation.

SEPARATION FROM THE SERVICE

"(l) Whenever a Foreign Service officer becomes separated from the service except for disability before reaching the age of retirement, or under section 33 of this Act, the total amount of contribution from his salary with interest thereon at 4 per centum per annum compounded annually up to the date of such separation, shall be returned to him.

EXPENSES

"(m) The Secretary of State is authorized to expend from surplus money to the credit of the Foreign Service retirement and disability fund an amount not exceeding \$5,000 per annum for the expenses necessary in carrying out the provisions of this section, including actuarial advice.

AMBASSADORS, MINISTERS, OFFICERS OF THE DEPARTMENT

"(n) Any diplomatic secretary or consular officer who has been or any Foreign Service officer who may hereafter be promoted from the classified service to the grade of ambassador or minister, or appointed to a position in the Department of State, shall be entitled to all the benefits of this section in the same manner and under the same conditions as Foreign Service officers: *Provided*, That any officer now included under the Act of May 24, 1924, and the amendment thereto of July 3, 1926, shall be entitled to the benefits of this section.

PERIOD OF SERVICE FOR ANNUITIES

"(o) For the purposes of this Act the period of service shall be computed from the date of original oath of office as diplomatic secretary, consul general, consul, vice consul, deputy consul, consular assistant, consular agent, commercial agent, interpreter, or student interpreter, and shall include periods of service at different times as either a diplomatic or consular officer, or while on assignment to the Department of State, or on special duty or service in another department or establishment of the Government, but all periods of separation from the service and so much of any period of leave of absence without pay as may exceed six months shall be excluded: *Provided*, That service in the Department of State or as clerk in a mission or consulate prior to appointment as a Foreign Service officer may be included in the period of service, in which case the officer shall pay into the Foreign Service retirement and disability fund a special contribution equal to 5 per centum of his annual salary for each year of such employment, with interest thereon to date of payment compounded annually at 4 per centum, provided that such special contribution shall be subject to the limitations established by subdivision (f) of this section.

RECALL TO SERVICE

"SEC. 27. In the event of public emergency any retired Foreign Service officer may be recalled temporarily to active service by the President, and while so serving he shall be entitled in lieu of his retirement allowance to the full pay of the class in which he is temporarily serving.

PRIOR PROVISIONS OF LAW

"SEC. 28. That all provisions of law heretofore enacted relating to diplomatic secretaries and to consular officers, which are not inconsistent with the provisions of this Act, are hereby made applicable to Foreign Service officers when they are designated for service as diplomatic or consular officers, and that all Acts or parts of Acts inconsistent with this Act are hereby repealed.

CERTAIN APPROPRIATIONS MADE AVAILABLE

"SEC. 29. That the appropriations contained in Title I of the Act entitled 'An Act making appropriations for the Departments of State and Justice and for the Judiciary and for the Departments of Commerce and Labor for the fiscal year ending June 30, 1932, and for other purposes,' for such compensation and expenses as are affected by the provisions of this Act are made available and may be applied toward the payment of the compensation and expenses herein provided.

LEGAL ADVISER IN THE DEPARTMENT OF STATE

"SEC. 30. That there is hereby established in the Department of State the office of legal adviser (in lieu of the Solicitor of the Department of State, which office is hereby abolished). The legal adviser shall be appointed by the President by and with the advice and consent of the Senate and shall receive the same salary as Assistant Secretaries of State.

BOARD OF FOREIGN SERVICE PERSONNEL

"SEC. 31. There shall be in the Department of State a Board of Foreign Service Personnel for the Foreign Service, whose duty it shall be to recommend promotions in the Foreign Service and to furnish the Secretary of State with lists of Foreign Service officers who have demonstrated special capacity for promotion to the grade of minister. The board shall be composed of not more than three Assistant Secretaries of State, one of whom shall be the Assistant Secretary of State having supervision over the Division of Foreign Service Personnel, who shall be chairman. The Chief of the Division of Foreign Service Personnel and one other member of the division may attend the meetings of the board and one of them shall act as secretary, but they shall not be entitled to vote in its proceedings. No Foreign Service officer below class I shall be assigned for duty in the Division of Foreign Service Personnel. Foreign Service Personnel for promotion to the grade of minister or ambassador during the period of such assignment or for three years thereafter, nor shall such officers be given any authority except of a purely advisory character, over promotions, demotions, transfers, or separations from the service of Foreign Service officers.

DUTIES OF THE DIVISION OF FOREIGN SERVICE PERSONNEL

"SEC. 32. The Division of Foreign Service Personnel shall assemble, record, and be the custodian of all available information in regard to the character, ability, conduct, quality of work, industry, experience, dependability and general availability of Foreign Service officers, including reports of inspecting officers and efficiency reports of supervising officers. All such information shall be appraised at least once in two years and the result of such appraisal expressed in terms of excellent, very good, satisfactory, or unsatisfactory, accompanied by a concise statement of the considerations upon which they are based, shall be entered upon records to be known as the efficiency records of the officers, and shall constitute their efficiency ratings for the period. No charges against an officer that would adversely affect his efficiency rating or his value to the service, if true, shall be taken into consideration in determining his efficiency rating except after the officer shall have had opportunity to reply thereto. The Assistant Secretary of State supervising the Division of Foreign Service Personnel shall be responsible for the keeping of accurate and impartial efficiency records of Foreign Service officers and shall take all measures necessary to ensure their accuracy and impartiality. Not later than November 1 at least every two years, the Division of Foreign Service Personnel shall, under the supervision of the Assistant Secretary of State, prepare a list in which all Foreign Service officers shall be graded in accordance with their relative efficiency and value to the service. In this list officers shall be graded as excellent, very good, satisfactory, or unsatisfactory with such further subclassification as may be found necessary. All officers rated satisfactory or above shall be eligible for promotion in the order of merit to the minimum salary of the next higher class. This list shall not become effective in so far as it affects promotion until it has been considered by the Board of Foreign Service Personnel hereinbefore provided for and approved by the Secretary of State: *Provided*, That this list shall not be changed before the next succeeding list of ratings is approved except in case of extraordinary or conspicuously meritorious service or serious misconduct and any change for such reasons shall be made only after consideration by the Board of Foreign Service Personnel and approval by the Secretary of State, and the reasons for such change when made shall be inscribed upon the efficiency records of the officers affected. From this list of all Foreign Service officers recommendations for promotion shall be made in the order

of their ascertained merit within classes. Recommendations shall also be made, in order of merit, as shown by ratings in the examinations for appointment to the unclassified grade, with commissions also as diplomatic secretaries and vice consuls, of those who have successfully passed the examinations. All such recommendations shall be submitted to the Secretary of State for his consideration and if he shall approve, for transmission to the President.

"The correspondence and records of the Division of Foreign Service Personnel shall be confidential except to the President, the Secretary of State, the members of the Board of Foreign Service Personnel, the Assistant Secretary of State supervising the division, and such of its employees as may be assigned to work on such correspondence and records.

Increase in Salary for Satisfactory or Meritorious Service—Retirement on Account of Unsatisfactory Service—Separation for Malfeasance in Office

"SEC. 33. That notwithstanding the provisions of section 10 of this Act all Foreign Service officers having a rating of satisfactory or better who shall have been in classes 5, 6, 7, or 8 for a continuous period of nine months or more, shall, on the first day of each fiscal year receive an increase of salary of \$100, except that no officer shall receive a salary above the maximum of his class and all such officers in classes 1, 2, 3, or 4 shall in the same circumstances receive an increase of \$200: Provided, That the Secretary of State is authorized to fix the salaries of Foreign Service officers in the unclassified grade within the salary range specified in section 10 of this Act; and, within the limits of appropriation therefor, to grant to Foreign Service officers in any class additional promotion in salary within the salary range established for the classes in which they are serving, based upon especially meritorious service. Increases in salary under the terms of this section shall be paid to Foreign Service officers only as the right to such increases accrues after the effective date of this Act. The President is hereby authorized to establish by Executive order, regulations providing for the separation of Foreign Service officers from the Foreign Service, in accordance with the conditions hereinafter prescribed. Foreign Service officers so separated from the Foreign Service shall be retired from the service, after a hearing by the Secretary of State, upon an annuity equal to 25 per centum of his salary at the time of retirement, in the case of officers over forty-five years of age or in the case of officers under forty-five years of age with a bonus of one year's salary at the time of his retirement, either annuity or one year's salary to be payable out of the Foreign Service officers' retirement and disability fund and except as herein provided, subject to the same provisions and limitations as other annuities payable out of such funds; but no return of contributions shall be made under paragraphs (i) or (l) of section 26 of this Act in the case of any Foreign Service officer retired under the provisions of this section. Whenever it is determined that the efficiency rating of an officer is unsatisfactory, thereby meaning below the standard required for the service, and such determination has been confirmed by the Secretary of State, the officer shall be notified thereof, and if, after a reasonable period to be determined by the circumstances in each particular case, the rating of such officer continues to be found unsatisfactory and such finding is confirmed by the Secretary of State after a hearing accorded the officer, such officer shall be separated from the service with the annuity or bonus provided in this section, but no officer so separated from the service shall receive the said annuity or bonus unless at the time of separation he shall have served at least fifteen years. He shall, however, if he has not served at least fifteen years have returned to him the full sum of his contribution to the annuity fund, with interest thereon at 4 per centum compounded annually. The benefits of this section, except at the option of the Secretary of State the return of an officer's contribution to the annuity fund, shall not be given to Foreign Service officers separated from the Foreign Service on account of malfeasance in office.

SALARY NOT TO BE REDUCED UPON PROMOTION TO A HIGHER CLASS

"SEC. 34. That nothing in this Act shall be construed to reduce the salary of any Foreign Service officer upon promotion to a higher class.

DISTRICT ACCOUNTING AND DISBURSING OFFICES

"SEC. 35. That the President is hereby authorized, whenever the necessity for such offices with a view to effecting economies in accounting procedure is apparent, to prescribe certain fiscal districts or areas and to establish within each such district as a part of the Department of State service, a district accounting and disbursing office to exercise control over the accounts and returns of all diplomatic missions and consular offices within the district in such manner as the President may direct. To each such office may be assigned the administrative accounting responsibility for receipts and expenditures of the diplomatic missions and consular offices within the district. Each district office shall be in charge of an accountable officer, to whom all fees, and other official monies, received by any diplomatic, consular, or Foreign Service officer may be accounted for, under such rules and regulations as may be prescribed by the Secretary of State, all such fees and monies, or the residue thereof after the payment of salaries, allowances, and current expenses of the diplomatic missions and consular offices within the district, to be paid by the district accounting and disbursing officer

into the Treasury of the United States. Such district accounting and disbursing officers accountable for public monies may entrust monies to other bonded officers for the purpose of having them make disbursements as his agent, and the officer to whom the monies are entrusted, as well as the officer who entrusts the monies to him, shall be held pecuniarily responsible therefor to the United States. All diplomatic, consular or Foreign Service officers on duty within the area covered by such district offices may be required to render accounts of their disbursements to the officer in charge of such district office to be included in his accounts. Said district accounting and disbursing officers and their agents shall be bonded respectively to the United States for the faithful performance of their

auties in such penal amounts as the President may require. "Provided further, That the Secretary of State is authorized to appoint such district accounting and disbursing officers and their assistants in the same manner as clerks in diplomatic missions and consular offices are appointed.

"Section 3622 of the Revised Statutes of the United States (U.S.C., title 31, sec. 496), and any other existing statutes, in so far as they conflict with this section are hereby amended.

FEES APPLICABLE TO SALARIES AND EXPENSES

"SEC. 36. That all fees and other official monies received by diplomatic missions or consular offices or by the district accounting and disbursing offices provided in section 35 above, may be transmitted through the Department of State for deposit in the United States Treasury, or may be used in payment of salaries, allowances, and current expenses of said missions and offices, under such rules and regulations as the President may from time to time prescribe; the residue, if any, to be transmitted through the Department of State for deposit in the United States Treasury. Section 3617 of the Revised Statutes of the United States (U.S.C., title 31, sec. 484) is hereby amended.

DATE ACT TAKES EFFECT

"SEC. 37. That this Act shall take effect on July 1, 1931."

Approved, February 23, 1931.

REGULATIONS GOVERNING EXAMINATIONS FOR THE FOREIGN SERVICE PRO-MULGATED BY THE BOARD OF EXAMINERS JULY 1, 1931

The Board of Examiners for the Foreign Service, in the discharge of the duty entrusted to it by the order of the President dated June 8, 1931, of formulating rules for and determining the scope and method of examinations of applicants for admission to the Foreign Service, prescribes the following regulations:

1. Examinations for unclassified grade only.—Examinations will be for the grade of Foreign Service officer, unclassified, with the understanding that successful candidates will be assigned to the diplomatic or consular branch of the Foreign Service according to the needs of the Service and the special qualifications of the eandidates.

2. Time of examinations.—Examinations will be held as the needs of the Service require and as the Board of Examiners may deem necessary, upon dates to be publicly announced through the press.¹ All persons designated for examination will be notified in writing in actuality to the regular tion. Examinations for particular candidates on dates other than those on which the regular tion. examinations occur will not be held except as provided in section 3. 3. Place of examination.—All examinations will be held in Washington or at other places

specified in the letter of designation. Candidates for examination who are elerks and employees in the Foreign Service and private secretaries to chiefs of mission may be permitted to take the written examination at their posts of duty upon a regular examination date specified by the Board and the oral examination upon the occasion of their presence in Washington after the date of taking the written examination. This oral examination, for subordinates in the Service and private secre-taries to chiefs of mission only, will be held on the second Tuesday of February, April, June, August, October, and December of each year.²

4. Closing of designations.—No designations will be made within the 40 days immediately preceding the date set for the holding of the written portion of an examination.

5. Scope of examination. — The examinations shall be both written and oral, except that American clerks and employees in the Foreign Service who have rendered satisfactory service in such capacities for the 5 years immediately preceding application for appointment as Foreign Service officers shall be exempted from the written examinations prescribed for other candidates. The written examination will include the subjects prescribed by the President, to wit: elements of international, maritime, and commercial law; arithmetic as used in commercial statistics, tariff calculations, exchange and simple accounting; modern languages (French, Spanish, or German is required, and a candidate may offer, in the oral test, in addition to one of these any languages with which he may be familiar); elementary economics, including the natural, industrial, and commercial resources of

¹ As amended Apr. 11, 1933. ² As amended Nov. 17, 1932.

the United States; political and commercial geography; American history, government, and institutions since 1776; and history of Europe, Latin America, and the Far East since 1776. Candidates will also be examined in political economy, and they will be rated in English, composition, grammar, punctuation, spelling, and penmanship as shown by their replies to questions in the written examination.

The oral examination will be designed to ascertain the physical, mental, and temperamental qualifications of candidates for the proper performance of the duties of the Foreign Service; their character, ability, address, judgment, fitness, general education, culture, contemporary information, experience, and business ability. In this part of the examination the applications previously filed, together with all other available information concerning the candidates, will be utilized in ascertaining the pertinent facts.

6. Method of examination.—The written examination will be conducted for the Board by the Civil Service Commission and will usually occupy 3 days. The oral examination will be conducted by the Board after the candidates shall have completed the written examination. Candidates attaining an average below 70 in the written examinations will not be admitted to the oral examination.¹ The physical fitness of the candidates will be determined by Government surgeons in Washington or elsewhere acting in an advisory capacity to the Board of Examiners, in accord-ance with the standards prescribed by the Board. Candidates who attain a passing mark in the combined written and oral examinations, but who are rejected as a result of their physical examination, may take a subsequent physical examination to determine whether the defects found in the first examination still exist. This subsequent physical examination shall be taken within 4 months from the date of the original examination.

7. Ratings.—The written and oral examinations shall each be rated on a scale of 100, and no person receiving an average of less than 80 on the combined ratings of the two examinations shall be eligible for certification. American clerks and employees in the Foreign Service who have rendered satisfactory service for 5 years immediately preceding application for appointment as Foreign Service officers and are therefore exempted from the written examinations prescribed for other candidates must receive a rating of 80 on the oral examination in order to be certified as eligible for appointment.¹

8. Certification.-The names of candidates who shall have attained upon the whole examination the required rating of 80 will be certified by the Board to the Secretary of State, in the order of their standing in the examination, as eligible for appointment. No one will be certified as eligible for appointment who is under 21 or over 35 years of age (except American clerks and employees in the Foreign Service under 45 years of age on the date of certification who were, or are hereafter, appointed before reaching the age of 35, and American clerks and employees in the Foreign Service on July 1, 1931, who are certified for appointment before reaching the age of 45 years);² who has not been an American citizen for at least 15 years before date of certification; who is not of good character and habits; who is not physically, mentally, and temperamentally qualified for the proper performance of the duties of the Foreign Service; and who has not been specially designated by the President to take the prescribed examinations to determine eligibility for appointment.

9. Results of examinations.—The results of the examinations will be made known to eandidates as soon as the report of the Board shall have been submitted to the Secretary of State, and they will be informed of the rating in each subject and the average in the written examination, the total rating in the oral examination, which includes the physical examination, and the rating on the whole examination. No information in regard to the details of the oral examination will be made public.

10. Duration of eligibility.—The names of eligible candidates who have not been appointed or whose names have not been withdrawn by the candidates will remain upon the eligible list for 2 years from the date of certification, when they will be dropped therefrom, and the candidates will not again be eligible for appointment except upon a new application, designation, and examination. Eligible candidates who have been appointed and who do not accept appointment will not again be eligible for appointment except as hereinbefore provided. 11. Failure to report.—Candidates who fail to report for the examination for which they have

been duly designated may not be admitted to a subsequent examination unless specifically designated to take such subsequent examination.

12. Political affiliations not considered.—The political and religious affiliations of candidates will not be considered either in examinations or certifications.

13. Expenses of candidates.—The traveling and other personal expenses of candidates in connection with the taking of examinations are not borne by the Government.

14. Previous regulations revoked.—The regulations governing examinations for the Foreign Service promulgated by the Board of Examiners December 15, 1924, and amendments thereto, are hereby revoked.

 ¹ As amended Apr. 14, 1933.
 ² The age specified is regarded as having been attained on the day preceding the 21st or 35th anniversary of the person's birthday. (22 Cyc. 512; Opinion of the Solicitor for the Interior Department, Aug. 24, 1920.)

INDEX OF PERSONS

Page

Page

	L # 1	Ra
Abbey, Glenn A	62, 108, 1	17
Abbot, Lucy E		34
Abbott, George M	53, 108, 1	17
Abbott, John T		09
Abbott, Wainwright	62, 101, 1	17
Abrams, Belle J	_ 11, 29, 1	17
Abrams, Belle J Achilles, Theodore C	51, 111, 1	17
Ackerman, Marie J	. 19, 28, 1	17
Ackerman, Ralph H	36, 1	17
Ackerson, Garret G., Jr.	42, 109, 1	17
Acly, Robert A	50, 110, 1	17
Adams, Charles	3	07
Adams, Charles F		12
Adams, Edward LeG	115, 2	85
Adams, John	294, 3	04
Adams, John Adams, John Quincy	29	14,
295, 312,	316, 318, 3	19
Adams, Newton C	2	85
Adams, Philip	38, 103, 1	17
Adams, Robert, Jr	3	08
Adams, Walter A Adams, William W	40, 100, 1	18
Adams, William W	46, 110, 1	18
Adee, Alvey A	297, 2	99
Adlof, Richard E., Jr.	. 14, 28, 1	18
Affeld, William C., Jr.		
Agerton, Baylor L.		85
Agostini, Caesar Franklin		18
Aguirre, Stephen E Ahrens, Gladys C	_ 11, 29, 1	18
Ailshie, William K	58, 110, 12	18
Albert, Talbot J	2	35
Albrecht, Charles H		35
Albright, Edward		11
Alden, Austin C		
Alden, Roger	30)3
Aldridge, Clayson W	50, 106, 13	18
Alexander, Eben	313, 318, 31	19
Alexander, F. Virginia 1		
Alexander, Knox		
Alexander, Robert C		
Alger, William E		
Allee, Lois D	5, 31, 11	19
Allen, Charles E	60, 101, 11	19
Allen, Charles W		
Allen, Edgar P	4, 26, 11	19
Allen, George V 40	64, 110, 11	19
Allen, Heman		
Allen, Horace N		
Allen, Percy F 4	26, 119. 30	
Allen, Ruth J		
Allen, Stuart		
Alling, Paul H		
Allison, John M.	53, 112, 19	20
Allman, Norwood F		
Altaffer, Leland C	48, 15	
,	44	- 1

P	age
Altaffer, Maurice W 60, 105,	120
Alwin, Evelyn V. L 11, 29,	
Ames, Edward W	285
Amory, Copley, Jr	285
Amsden, Charles A	285
Anderson, Chandler P	298
Anderson, Daniel V 58, 112,	
Anderson, Edward, Jr 38, 110,	
Anderson, Francis M 4, 25,	
Anderson, George B	285
Anderson, George E	285
Anderson, John A	311
Anderson, Larz	
Anderson, Norman L	285
Anderson, Rasmus B	310
Anderson, Richard C	309
Anderson, T. Hart, Jr	285
Anderson, Thomas H 307,	308
Anderson, Walter H 19, 27,	120
Anderson, Walter S 47,	120
Andrews, C. C.	321
Andrews, George D., Jr 52, 108,	
Andrews, William W	285
Angel, Benjamin F	321
Angel, Herbert E 14, 28,	
Angell, James B 309,	
Anslinger, Harry J	285
Anthony, Nicholas	
Appleton, John	319
	320
Armour, Norman 50, 96, 120,	313
Armstrong, George Alexander	46,
106.	
Armstrong, James	285
	311
Armstrong, John S., Jr	285
Armstrong, Lawrence S 45, 106,	
Arnell, Charles J	285
Arnold, Frank D	285
Arnold, Julean	
Arnold, Olney 285,	
	296
Asbjörnson, Mildred J 5, 31,	
Asboth, Alexander	
Asbury, Charles E	285
	314
	285
Atcheson, George, Jr 40, 105,	121
Atherton, Morgan 43,	121
Atherton, Ray 47, 98,	
Atterberry, Russell 19, 28,	
and the second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second	285
Atwood, Franklin B 38, 107,	
Austin, Jonathan Loring	04n
	285
	1

1	Page
Authier, Joseph M	
Averill, Henry	
Avery, Benjamin P	309
Avery, William L	285
Axton, Matilda F	
Ayers, E. J	
Aymé, Louis H	
Ayres, Wilbur C 2	1, 23, 28, 122
Babcock, Elisha J	34
Baber, Ambrose	
Bachelder, Leonard A	
Bacon, J. Kenly	
Bacon, John E	
Bacon, Robert	
Bader, Ralph H	
Bading, Gerhard A	
Baehr, Max J.	
Bagby, Arthur P	
Bagby, Nettie N	
Bailey, Everett E	
Bailey, James G	285
Bailey, John W., Jr.	35, 106, 122
Bailey, Waldo E	55, 110, 122
Baillie, Hannah W	
Bailly-Blanchard, Arthur	285, 313
Bain, Wendell H	19, 28, 122
Baker, Edward C	
Baker, Emma L	
Baker, Henry D	
Baker, James Marion	
Baker, Jehu	
Baker, Joseph R	
Baker, Lewis	
Baker, Milton	
Baker, Orlando H.	
Baker, Roy W Balch, Henry H	47, 107, 120
Baldwin, Frederick W.	092 985
Baldwin, George E	
Baldwin, LaVerne	
Baldwin, William Woodward.	300
Bales, William L	39, 123
Ball, Alice M	
Ballantine, Joseph W	39, 100, 123
Banash, Sydney H	
Bancroft, Edgar A	
Bancroft, Edward	304 <i>n</i>
Bancroft, George	312, 318
Bankhead, Henry M	37, 123
Barbour, James	312
Barbour, Walworth	50, 112, 123
Barclay, Thomas	304
Bardel, William	285
Barger, Ralph H	. 21, 28, 123
0.0.0	

Page
Barker, Clifford O 11, 28, 123
Barker, W. Roswell
Barlow, Bernadine F 5, 29, 123
Barlow, Joel
Barnard, Daniel D 318
Barnes, Charles M 18, 24, 123
Barnes, Frank W
Barnes, Maynard B 9, 63, 101, 124
Barnett, G. J 16, 29, 124
Barnhart, Eva S 12, 33, 124
Barny, Frederick S 43, 124
Barrett, John
Barringer, Daniel M
Barringer, George H 116
Barron, Bryton
Barrow, Washington
Barry, Grace W 14, 25, 124
Barry, John 34
Barry, John R
Barry, William T
Bartleman, Richard M
Bartlett, Joseph J
Barton, John L 12, 33, 124 Barton, Seth 308
Bassol Corpolio P 7.97.194
Bassel, Cornelia B
Bassett, Ebenezer D
Batcheller, George S
Baugus, John E
Baxley, Louise I
Baxter, Henry 314
Baxter, John K
Bay, Charles A 51, 103, 125
Bayard, Richard H
Bayard, Thomas F
Baylies, Francis 306
Beach, Arthur E 13, 23, 25, 125
Beach, Frances M 5, 30, 125
Beach, William H 36, 106, 125
Beale, Edward F 307
Beale, Truxtun
Beam, Jacob D 60, 112, 125
Beaman, Charles C
Beaulae, Willard L 8, 63, 103, 125
Beaumont, Adam
Beaupré, Arthur M 285, 306,
309, 310, 315, 316
Bechtold, Leonice K 16, 28, 125
Beck, Goldie R 21, 30, 125
Beck, Henry A. W 50, 108, 125
Beck, William H 37, 100, 125
Becker, Clayton S 19, 27, 126
Beckert, Agnes H 21, 28, 126
Beckley, Robbin
Bedinger, Henry
Beeler, Azel D
Beitz, William E 46, 106, 126
Belden, Perry285
Belin, F. Lammot
Belisle, Eugene L 115, 285
Bell, Edward 285
Bell, Isaac, Jr
Bell, John O 10, 31, 126
Belmont, August

Pa	ge
Belmont, Perry	320
Belovsky, Sidney A. 51, 109, 1	
	285
Benedict, James S 114, 2	
Benet, Edward S 41, 1	
	317
Bennett, Margaret V 18, 26, 1 Benninghoff, H. Merrell 53, 108, 1	.26
	.26 285
Benson, Alexander	
Berger, David C 40, 104, 1	
Berger, Marie L 20, 31, 1	
	285
	285
Bergin, Thomas D	127
Berliner, Harry P 12, 33, 1	127
	285
Bernstein, Herman 127, 285, 3	
Berrey, Nannie W 20, 30, 1	
Berry, Burton Y 57, 109, 1	127
Bertot, Raoul A	127
Besore, Mildred E	127
Betts, Paul C	
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	285
Bevan, Thomas H	
Beylard, Charles B 45,	
Biar, Herbert C	
Bickers, William A	
	285
Biddle, Thomas 310,	
Biddle, William S 44,	128
	309
Bigelow, Donald F 60, 103,	128
Bigelow, John	312
	308
	285
Bing, Arden E	128
Bingham, Hiram, Jr 47, 109,	
	314
Bingham, Robert W 47, 128,	312 285
<i>o</i> ,	285) $4n$
	285
Birch, Mary N	
Birch, Thomas H	
Birkeland, Carl	128
	316
	285
Bishop, Erna V 11, 30,	
	285
Black, J. Ernest	285
	296
Blackard, Wade 43,	
Blackburn, Katherine C25, Blackford, William M	
Blackford, William M	309
Blaine, James G	296
Blaine, Walker 299,	
	310
	285 198
Blake, Gilson G., Jr 60, 104, Blake M Williams 18 29	
Blake, M. Williams 18, 29, Blake, Maxwell 55, 96, 98, 128,	
Blake, Ralph J 40, 110,	129
Bland, Julia M 13, 25,	129
,	

Pa	ge
Blandford, Alice M	34
Blaskey, Beth. 20, 31.	129
Blatchford, Edward W 57,	129
Blatchford, Richard Milford	
Bleecker, Hermanus	316
Blessing, Madge M 16, 27, Bliss, Robert Woods. 114, 285, 301, 306,	129
Blocker, V. Harwood, Jr	320
Blocker, William P	129
Blohm, Lee R	120
Blount, James H 313,	314
Blow, Henry T 308,	322
Bloxham, William D	307
Blue, George V 13, 25,	129
Blumenthal, William	285
Bluthardt, Theodore J	285
Boal, Pierre de L	
Boatner, Haydon L	
Bobst, Wayne C 20, 30,	
Bock, S. Benjamin	
Bocock, Annabelle H	34
Bode, Howard D 44, 46, 47, 51, 55, 60,	42,
Boelter, Elsie	100
Boernstein, Ralph A 7, 10, 63, 105,	130
Boggs, S. W	130
Bohan, Merwin L	130
Bohlen, Charles E 61, 109,	130
Bohne, Frederick A	
Bohr, Frank 38, 105,	
Boker, George H 319,	
Bolds, Harry H 12, 33,	
Bollan, William 3	04 <i>n</i>
Bonbright, James C. H 37, 109,	131
Bond, Wallace C	285
Bones, Helen Woodrow	131
Bonnet, Ellis A	
Bonnette, Agnes P 21, 31, Bonney, Wilbert L	
Booker, Burnett	
Booth, Ralph H	
Bopp, Jennie Cook	34
Boragino, Angelo	116
Borden, Edward P	285
Borden, James W	313
Bordewich, Henry	285
Borjes, Clara L	131
Borland, Solon 309, 311, 313, 314,	316
Bornemann, Paul C	116
Botkin, Theodosius	285
Bouchal, John L	131
Boudreau, Helen	
Boulware, William	
Boutell, Henry S 285,	
Boutell, Roger S. G.	285
Bowcock, James M 46,	
Bowdoin, James	320
Bowen, Arthur L 36,	131
Bowen, Herbert W 317,	322
Bowens, G. Jarvis	285
Bower, Roy E. B 60, 107,	
Bowerman, Paul	285
Bowers, Blanche	131

Page

Doge

Pa	ige
Bowers, Claude G 59, 131, 3	
Bowlin, James B 309,	
Bownian, Howard A 55, 105,	132
Bowman, Thomas D 54, 99,	
Bowman, Winne H 2, 29,	132
Boyce, Richard F 53, 102,	132
Boyd, Sempronius H	320
Boyle, Lewis V 54, 104,	132
Boyle, Walter F 49, 101,	132
Braddock, Daniel M 59, 109,	132
Bradford, Leonard G 51,	
Bradford, Robert R 114,	285
	285
	285
Bradshaw, Charlotte 2, 28,	
Brady, Austin C 45, 102.	132
Brady, Francis M 50, 51, 1	132
Bragg, Edward S 285,	
Bragonier, Reginald, Jr 39, 112,	
Brammeier, Alsace L 5, 31,	
Brand, Norton F 37, 108,	
Brandt, George L 21, 63, 101, 1	
Brandt, John 41,	
Bratter, Herbert M 52,	
Brauner, John J 14, 26, 2	
• •	285
	319
Breen, Mary Agnes 2, 27, 2	
Brennan, Charles J 39,	133
Brennan, Earl 38,	
Brent, Daniel 295,	303
Brent, Joseph L 57, 108, 2	133
Brent, Thomas L. L.	318
	306
Brentano, Theodore	314
Bresnahan, Nellie	34
Brett, Homer 56, 101,	
Breuer, Carl 50, 112,	
	285
	285
Bridge, H. P 49,	
Bridgman, George H 285,	
Briggs, Ellls O 41, 106,	
Briggs, Lawrence P 36, 104,	
	286
	286
Brist, George L	
	321
	286
Brittain, Joseph I 115,	
	321
Brodie, Edward E 134, 286, 311, 3	
Bronson, Vernita 5, 28,	134
Bronson, Vernita	134 134
Bronson, Vernita	134 134 134
Bronson, Vernita	134 134 134 286
Bronson, Vernita	134 134 134 286 134
Bronson, Vernita	134 134 134 286 134 286
Bronson, Vernita	134 134 286 134 286 308
Bronson, Vernita 5, 28, Brooks, Clarence C 40, Brooks, Russell M 56, 105, Broomall, Harman L 5 Brown, Alice M 13, 25, Brown, C. Inness 5 Brown, Fthan A 5 Brown, F. Harold 5	134 134 134 286 134 286 308 286
Bronson, Vernita 5, 28, Brooks, Clarence C 40, Brooks, Russell M 56, 105, Brownall, Harman L 56, 105, Brown, Alice M 13, 25, Brown, C. Inness 56, 105, Brown, F. Harold 56, 105, Brown, F. Harold 56, 105, 105, 105, 105, 105, 105, 105, 105	134 134 134 286 134 286 308 286 313
Bronson, Vernita	134 134 134 286 134 286 308 286 313 286
Bronson, Vernita	134 134 286 134 286 308 286 313 286 311
Bronson, Vernita	134 134 286 134 286 308 286 313 286 311

Brown, Philip M 286,	
Diown, i mip Massessessesses 200,	314
Brown, Robert W 4, 32,	135
Brown, Robert Y 43, 109,	135
Brown, Sevellon A	303
Brown, W. Duval	286
Brown, W. Duval Brown, William H 38,	135
	309
Browne, Sidney H 56, 108,	
Broy, Charles C	
Bruce, D. K. E	286
Bruins, John H 46, 105,	
Brumer, Samuel	286
Bruner, Glen W 53,	135
Brunot, Hilary S Brunswick, William W 114,	286
Brunswick, William W 114,	268
Bryan, Charles P	286,
307, 308, 309, 314,	318
Bryan, Henry L.	34
Bryan, John A	317
Bryan, Rose S 16, 30,	135
Bryan, William Jennings	297
Bryce, Lloyd	316
Buchanan, James 295, 296, 312,	319
Buchanan, James M.	310
Buchanan, William I	
	314
Buck, Charles W	317
	310
	286
Buckley, Delia T	
Bucklin, George A 49, 100,	
Bucknell, Howard, Jr 15, 63, 102,	135
Buckner, George W 286,	315
Buell, Robert L	135
Buell, Robert L	135 136
Buell, Robert L	135 136
Buell, Robert L. 48, 107, Buffum, David H. 52, 111, Buhrman, Parker W. 46, 101,	135 136 136
Buell, Robert L. 48, 107, Buffum, David H 52, 111, Buhrman, Parker W 46, 101, Bullitt, William C 61, 136, 301,	135 136 136 322
Bnell, Robert L. 48, 107, Buffum, David H. 52, 111, Buhrman, Parker W. 46, 101, Bullitt, William C. 61, 136, 301, Buuldy, Harvey H. 61, 136, 301,	135 136 136
Bnell, Robert L. 48, 107, Bunfum, David H. 52, 111, Buhrman, Parker W. 46, 101, Bullitt, William C. 61, 136, 301, Bundy, Harvey H. Bundy, Richard C.	135 136 136 322 301 286
Bnell, Robert L. 48, 107, Buffum, David H. 52, 111, Buhrman, Parker W. 60, 101, Bullitt, William C. 61, 136, 301, Bundy, Harvey H. Bundy, Richard C. Burbank, Virginia. 14, 27,	135 136 136 322 301 286 136
Bnell, Robert L. 48, 107, Buffum, David H. 52, 111, Buhrman, Parker W. 66, 101, Bullitt, William C. 61, 136, 301, Bundy, Harvey H. 100, Bundy, Richard C. 100, Burbank, Virginia. 14, 27, Burdett, William C. 57, 101,	135 136 136 322 301 286 136 136
Bnell, Robert L. 48, 107, Buffum, David H. 52, 111, Buhrman, Parker W. 46, 101, Bullitt, William C. 61, 136, 301, Bundy, Harvey H. Bundy, Richard C. Burdbank, Virginia. 14, 27, Burdett, William C. 57, 101, Burg, Joseph P. 2, 29,	135 136 136 322 301 286 136 136 136
Bnell, Robert L. 48, 107, Buffum, David H. 52, 111, Buhrman, Parker W. 46, 101, Bullitt, William C. 61, 136, 301, Bundy, Harvey H. Bundy, Richard C. Burbank, Virginia. 14, 27, Burback, Virginia. 57, 101, Burg, Joseph P. 2, 29, Burgher, Robert S. 2, 29,	135 136 136 322 301 286 136 136 136 286
Bnell, Robert L. 48, 107, Buffum, David H. 52, 111, Buhrman, Parker W. 46, 101, Bullitt, William C. 61, 136, 301, Bundy, Harvey H. Bundy, Richard C. Burbank, Virginia. 14, 27, Burbank, Virginia. 57, 101, Burg, Joseph P. 2, 29, Burgher, Robert S. 39, 108,	135 136 322 301 286 136 136 136 286 136
Bnell, Robert L. 48, 107, Bunfum, David H. 52, 111, Buhrman, Parker W. 46, 101, Bullitt, William C. 61, 136, 301, Bundy, Harvey H. 100, 136, 301, Bundy, Richard C. 14, 27, Burbank, Virginia. 14, 27, Burdett, William C. 57, 101, Burgher, Robert S. 100, 100, 100, 100, 100, 100, 100, 100,	135 136 322 301 286 136 136 136 286 136 136
Bnell, Robert L. 48, 107, Buffum, David H	135 136 322 301 286 136 136 136 136 136 136 136 136
Bnell, Robert L. 48, 107, Buffum, David H. 52, 111, Buhrman, Parker W. 46, 101, Bullitt, William C. 61, 136, 301, Bundy, Harvey H. Bundy, Richard C. Burbank, Virginia. 14, 27, Burdett, William C. 57, 101, Burg, Joseph P. 2, 29, Burgher, Robert S. 9, 108, Burke, Gordon L. 39, 108, Burke, Malcolm C. 46, Burke, Thomas Edmund. 44, Burlingame, Anson 307,	135 136 136 322 301 286 136 136 136 136 136 136 309
Bnell, Robert L. 48, 107, Buffum, David H. 52, 111, Buhrman, Parker W. 46, 101, Bullitt, William C. 61, 136, 301, Bundy, Harvey H. 101, Bundy, Richard C. 14, 27, Burbank, Virginia. 14, 27, Burg, Joseph P. 2, 29, Burgher, Robert S. 39, 108, Burke, Gordon L. 39, 108, Burke, Malcolm C. 44, Burke, Thomas Edmund. 44, Burlingham, Lloyd 307,	135 136 322 301 286 136 136 136 136 136 136 136 309 286
Bnell, Robert L. 48, 107, Buffum, David H. 52, 111, Buhrman, Parker W. 46, 101, Bullitt, William C. 61, 136, 301, Bundy, Harvey H. Bundy, Richard C. Burbank, Virginia. 14, 27, Burgbark, Virginia. 14, 27, 29, Burgher, Robert S. 2, 29, Burke, Gordon L. 39, 108, Burke, Malcolm C. 46, Burke, Thomas Edmund. 44, Burlingame, Anson. 307, Burinell, Albro L. 104,	135 136 322 301 286 136 136 136 136 136 136 136 136 286 286 286
Bnell, Robert L. 48, 107, Buffum, David H	135 136 136 322 301 286 136 136 136 136 136 136 136 286 136 286 286 34
Bnell, Robert L. 48, 107, Buffum, David H	135 136 136 322 301 286 136 136 136 136 136 136 136 286 136 286 286 34 136
Benell, Robert L. 48, 107, Buffum, David H. 52, 111, Buhrman, Parker W. 52, 111, Buhrman, Parker W. 46, 101, Bundy, Harvey H. 101, Bundy, Harvey H. 101, Bundy, Richard C. 118, 20, Burbank, Virginia. 14, 27, Burg, Joseph P. 2, 29, Burgher, Robert S. 101, Burke, Gordon L. 39, 108, Burke, Malcolm C. 46, Burke, Malcolm C. 46, Burlingme, Anson 307, Burlingham, Lloyd 104, 25, Burnell, Albro L. 13, 25, Burnham, F. Irvine. 13, 25, Burnham, F. Irvine. 13, 25,	135 136 136 322 301 286 136 136 136 136 136 136 136 286 286 286 34 136 137
Benell, Robert L. 48, 107, Buffum, David H	135 136 322 301 286 136 136 136 136 136 136 136 309 286 286 34 136 137 286
Benell, Robert L. 48, 107, Buffum, David H	135 136 322 301 286 136 136 136 136 136 136 136 136 286 286 34 136 137 286 137
Benell, Robert L. 48, 107, Buffum, David H	135 136 322 301 286 136 136 136 136 136 136 136 136 286 286 34 136 137 286 137
Bnell, Robert L. 48, 107, Buffum, David H. 52, 111, Buhrman, Parker W. 46, 101, Bullitt, William C. 61, 136, 301, Bundy, Harvey H. Bundy, Richard C. Bundy, Richard C. 61, 136, 301, Burbank, Virginia. 14, 27, Burbank, Virginia. 14, 27, 101, Burgy, Joseph P. 2, 29, Burgher, Robert S. 9108, Burke, Gordon L. 39, 108, Burke, Malcolm C. 46, Burlingame, Anson 307, Burlingham, Lloyd 90, Burnett, Rufus R. 90, Burnett, Rufus R. 90, Burnk, F. Irvine. 13, 25, Burn, V. Winthrop. 44, Burnis, Anna Y. 5, 30, Burrows, Arthur W. 39, Burrows, Herbert S. 9, 63, 104,	135 136 322 301 286 136 136 286 136 136 286 136 136 286 286 34 137 137 137
Bnell, Robert L. 48, 107, Buffum, David H. 52, 111, Buhrman, Parker W. 46, 101, Bullitt, William C. 61, 136, 301, Bundy, Harvey H. Bundy, Richard C. Bundy, Richard C. 61, 136, 301, Burbank, Virginia. 14, 27, Burbank, Virginia. 14, 27, 101, Burgy, Joseph P. 2, 29, Burgher, Robert S. 9108, Burke, Gordon L. 39, 108, Burke, Malcolm C. 46, Burlingame, Anson 307, Burlingham, Lloyd 90, Burnett, Rufus R. 90, Burnett, Rufus R. 90, Burnk, F. Irvine. 13, 25, Burn, V. Winthrop. 44, Burnis, Anna Y. 5, 30, Burrows, Arthur W. 39, Burrows, Herbert S. 9, 63, 104,	135 136 322 301 286 136 136 286 136 136 286 136 136 286 286 34 137 137 137
Benell, Robert L. 48, 107, Buffum, David H. 52, 111, Buhrman, Parker W. 46, 101, Bundy, Harvey H. Bundy, Richard C. Bundy, Richard C. Bundy, Richard C. Burbank, Virginia. 14, 27, Burdett, William C. 57, 101, Burger, Robert S. 29, Burke, Gordon L. 39, 108, Burke, Malcolm C. 46, Burlingame, Anson 307, Burnlam, Lloyd Burnett, Rufus R. Burnt, Jbro L. Burnett, Rufus R. Burnk, Mirker S. 325, Burnk, Mirker S. 307, Burnlingham, Lloyd 44, Burnon, F. Irvine 13, 25, Burn, W. Winthrop 44, Burningh, Anna V. 5, 30, Burrows, Arthur W. 39, Burrows, Arthur W. 39, Burrows, Herbert S. 9, 63, 104, Burroley, Herbert S. 9, 63, 104,	135 136 322 301 286 136 136 136 286 136 136 136 286 286 34 136 137 286 137 137 137
Buell, Robert L. 48, 107, Buffum, David H	135 136 322 301 286 136 136 136 136 136 136 136 286 286 286 34 137 137 137 137 309
Buell, Robert L. 48, 107, Buffum, David H	135 136 322 301 286 136 136 136 136 136 136 136 286 286 34 137 286 137 137 137 137 309 286
Bnell, Robert L. 48, 107, Buffum, David H	135 136 322 301 236 136 136 136 136 136 136 286 34 136 137 286 34 137 137 137 137 137 286 137
Bnell, Robert L. 48, 107, Buffum, David H. 52, 111, Buhrman, Parker W. 46, 101, Bundy, Harvey H. 61, 136, 301, Bundy, Harvey H. Bundy, Richard C. Bundy, Richard C. 7, 101, Burbank, Virginia. 14, 27, Burbank, Virginia. 14, 27, Burger, Robert S. 9, 108, Burke, Gordon L. 39, 108, Burke, Malcolm C. 46, Burlingme, Anson 307, Burlingham, Lloyd 9 Burnet, Rufus R. 9 Burnk, W. Winthrop. 44, Burri, Alfred T. 114, 137, Burrows, Arthur W. 39, Bursley, Herbert S. 9, 63, 104, Bursley, Herbert S. 9, 63, 104, Burt, Joseph F. 21, 63, 105, Burton, Allan A. 137, Busser, Ralph C. 46, 101, Butler, Anthony. 137,	135 136 322 301 286 136 136 136 136 286 136 136 286 286 34 137 286 137 137 137 309 286 137 315
Buell, Robert L. 48, 107, Buffum, David H	135 136 322 3301 286 136 136 136 136 136 136 136 136 286 34 136 137 137 137 137 137 137 137 137 137 137
Benell, Robert L. 48, 107, Buffum, David H	135 136 322 301 286 136 136 136 136 136 136 136 136 136 13
Bnell, Robert L. 48, 107, Buffum, David H	135 136 322 301 286 136 136 136 136 136 136 136 136 136 13
Benell, Robert L. 48, 107, Buffum, David H	135 136 322 301 286 136 136 136 136 136 136 136 136 136 13

P	age
Butterworth, William W., Jr. 47, 109,	138
Byars, Winfield S 19, 27,	138
Byers, Samuel H. M.	283
Byington, A. Homer	286
Byington, Homer M	138
Byington, Homer M., Jr 52, 111,	138
Cable, Philander L	286
Cabot, John M	
Cadwalader, John L 30, 107,	299
Caffee, Albert V	
Caffery, Edward	138
Caffery, Jefferson	41,
96, 138, 301, 309, 310,	311
Cahn, Rudolf E 36,	139
Calder, A. Bland 39,	139
Calder, F. Willard 48,	139
Caldwell, John C	322
Caldwell, John K	139
Caldwell, John L	317
Caldwell, John W	307
Calhoun, John C	295
Calhoun, William J 286,	
Callahan, James E 47,	139
Callanan, Leo J 48, 107,	139
Calnan, John L 62.	140
Calvert, John S 38, 104,	
	319
Cameron, Alfred D 61, 106,	
Cameron, Charles R	
	319
	286 319
Campbell, Harry 114,	
	321
	299
	315
Canada, William W	286
Cannon, Cavendish W 37, 108,	140
Caplan, Sophie21, 27,	
Capps, Edward	
Cardwell, John	
Carey, Elsie M 11, 30, Carey, Henry R	140 286
Carey, Reginald S 36, 112,	
Carleton, Algar E	
	307
Carlson, Harold	140
Carlson, Harry E 43, 102,	140
Carlson, Herbert W 55,	
Carlson, Ruth E 20, 31,	
Carlson, Spencer A	141
Carmichael, William	320
Carpenter, Fred W 286, 316, Carr, Clark E	320 310
	321
Carr, Robert M	
Carr, Wilbur J	2,
6, 7, 23, 24, 26, 141, 301,	
Carrigan, Clarence	286
Carrigan, John W 59, 113,	141
Carroll, Alma A	141
Carroll, B. Harvey	286 286
Carroll, Joseph W	200

Page Carroll, Philip_____ 286Carroll, Randolph F..... 286Carroll, William N. 47, 141 Carter, Clarence E..... 14, 33, 141 Carter, George W...... 322 286 Carter, Henry Carter, James G..... 45, 102, 141 Carter, John R _____ 286, 308, 319, 320 Carter, Lillie R..... 14. 33, 141 Carter, Maceo..... 6, 32, 141 Carter, Marion E..... 18, 28, 142 Carter, Robert H 20, 32, 142 Carter, Wallace W 4, 32, 142 Cartter, David K 307 Cass, Lewis_____ 296, 311 Cass, Lewis, Jr_____ 317 Castle, Clarence A 286 Castle, William R., Jr... 286, 298, 301, 314 Castleman, Reginald S..... 36, 104, 142 Caughy, Charles M 285 Cauldwell, Frederic W..... 28641 Causo, Federico Causo y Gonzalez, Federico Ernesto. 142 Cavanaugh, Robert J..... 38, 142 Cavenaugh, William F 48, 110, 142 Cawston, Arthur H..... 286 Chabot, Frederick C..... 286 Chalfant, Gladys...... 9, 29, 142 Chamberlain, Culver B..... 39, 106, 142 Chamberlain, George A..... 286 Chamberlin, George E..... 37, 99, 142 Chandler, Charles L 286 Chandler, Joseph R..... 322 Channon, Kenneth F 20, 30, 142 Chapin, Albert C..... 286 Chapin, Selden..... 42, 106, 142 Chapin, Vinton..... 2, 26, 142 Chapman, Flavius J., 3d-----286 Chapman, J. Holbrook 53, 107, 143 Chapman, William E..... 59, 102, 143 Charles, Philipp L..... 20, 30, 143 Chase, Augustus S..... 40, 107, 143 Chase, Benjamin F..... 115, 286 Chase, Emily T..... 18, 27, 143 Chase, Warren M..... 56, 109, 143 Cheever, Elsie B..... 2, 27, 143 Cheney, Arthur S..... 286 Cheney, Person C 321 Cheney, Elias II 286 Cherp, Philip F 61, 143 Cheshire, Fleming D 286 286 Chester, Frank D..... 303 Chew, Robert S Child, Jacob T 320 Childs, J. Rives..... 57, 104, 143 Childs, Prescott...... 46, 107, 143 Chilton, Robert S..... 286, 303 Chilton, Thomas W _____ 286 Chinn, Thomas W..... 321

Chiperfield, Claude B..... 52, 110, 144

P	age	Page
Chipman, Norris B 9, 63, 109	, 144	Colebrook, Mulford Albert 49, 112, 146
Choate, Joseph H	312	Coleman, Chapman 286
Christenson, Ethel G		Coleman, Frederick W. B. 286, 310, 311, 315
Christian, Early B Christiancy, Isaac P	286	Colladay, Montgomery H 60, 110, 147
Christiani, Courtland	317 144	Collier, William M
Christie, Emerson 22, 26		Collins, Herbert B 4, 24, 147
Christy, Donald F 46		Collins, Lucy E
Claffey, John F 47		Collins, Virginia W 18, 29, 147
Claiborne, Hamilton C	286	Collis, Edwin J 38, 147
Claiborne, Henri deB		Colman, George T 286
Clairmont, Grace C	34	Combs, Leslie 286, 313, 314, 317
Clare, Arthur J	286 1.1.1	Comly, James M
Clark, Alexander	315	Conant, Harry A
Clark, Lewis 39, 107,		Condayan, Vahram H 43, 45, 147
Clark, J. Reuben, Jr 286, 298, 302,	315	Conger, Edwin H 308, 309, 315
Clark, John Henry	116	Conkling, Alfred
Clark, Reed Paige 62, 101,		Connelly, Bernard C 49, 112, 147
Clark, Rose 20, 30,		Conner, Jacob E
Clark, Thomas B 40 Clarke, Beverly L		Conover, Margaret F 5, 27, 147 Conrad, Charles M
Clarke, J. Brent		Conrad, Kathryn H 19, 28, 147
Clarke, M. Augusta 14, 27,		Constant, Samuel V
Clarke, Marie S 20, 31,	145	Converse, Charles A 47, 110, 147
Clarke, Robert J 36,		Conz, Laura
Clarkson, Anna L		Cook, Helen W
Clattenburg, Albert E., Jr 50, 109,		Cook, Willis C
Clay, Brutus J 286,		Cook, Arthur B
Clay, Cassius M Clay, Henry	319 295	Cooke, Charles Lee
Clay, James Brown	318	Cooke, William E
Clay, John Randolph 317,		Cookingham, Harris N 38, 103, 148
Clay, Thomas H 314,	316	Cooley, James
Clayton, Florence M 20, 28,		Coolidge, Calvin
Clayton, John M	295	Coolidge, John G. 286, 316
Clayton, Powell Clemson, Thomas G	315 307	Coolidge, T. Jefferson
Cleveland, Grover		Cooper, Charles A
Cleveland, Theodore S 145,		Cooper, Mildred C
Clifford, Nathan	315	Cootes, Merritt N 48, 112, 148
Cloud, Frederick D	286	Copley, William E 57, 148
Clubb, Edmund O 39, 108,		Corcoran, William W 49, 105, 148
Clum, Harold D 58, 100,		Cornelius, George O
Coates, Haskell E	286	Cornell, Kenneth H 53, 148 Cornette, Estelle B 14, 28, 148
Cobb, George C		Correll, Irvin C
Cobbe, Jerome F		Corrigan, Frank P 43, 149, 311
Cobbs, Mary L 20, 31,		Corrigan, John
Cochran, Leo F	286	Corrigan, Katherine P 5, 30, 149
Cochran, H. Merle 44, 99,		Corwin, Thomas
Cochran, William P., Jr 54, 109,		Costello, Walter T 54, 149
Cocke, Jack E 45, Codoner, Manuel J 59,		Coster, Charles H
Coe, Robert D		Cotton, Joseph P
Coffin, Henry P	286	Coudray, Robert C 40, 149
Coffin, William	286	Coughlin, John T
Coggeshall, William T	310	Coulter, Eliot B 21, 24, 149
Cograve, Eleanor F 20, 31,		Cournoyer, Gaston A
Colby, Bainbridge	297	Cousins, Albert II., Jr 62, 111, 149
Cole, Clarke P		Covel, Alice M. 11, 27, 149
Cole, Felix	$\frac{146}{286}$	Covert, John C
Cole, George C Cole, Samuel	34	Cowan, Robert T 45, 149
Cole, Winthrop R	285	Cox, Hulda Virginia

Page

	Page
Cox, Raymond E.	
Cox, Samuel S	321
Coxe, Francis T	286
Coxe, Macgrane	
Coyle, John J	
Crain, Earl T	
Craley, Vivian R	11, 28, 150
Crallé, Richard K	
Cram, Paul H Cramer, M. J	
Cramp, William M	
Crane, Charles R.	
Crane, John A	
Crane, Maud M.	
Crane, Richard	
Crane, Robert T	
Crane, William C	
Crawford, William II	
Creevey, Edward A	
Crenshaw, David	19, 27, 150
Cresson, William P Cridler, Thomas Wilbur	
Crim, Elsie May	
Crist, William E	
Crocker, Edward S., 2d	
Crockett, James C	
Crone, Edith L.	
Crook, Linton	49, 150
Crosby, Elisha O	
Crosby, George J	
Crosby, Sheldon L	
Cross, Cecil M. P.	
Crossland, John R. A.	
Crowder, Enoch H Crowninshield, Caspar S	
Croxton, John T	307
Cruger, Alexander P	
Crum, William D	
Crump, William	308
Crusch, Mary	
Cudahy, John	. 58, 151, 318
Culbertson, Paul T	8, 24, 151
Culbertson, William S 151,	
Culver, Erastus D	114 996
Culver, Henry S. Cummans, William W.	10 98 151
Cumming, Hugh S., Jr	1, 26, 151
Cunningham, Edwin S	40, 98, 151
Curry, Jabez L. M	
Curtice, Raymond S	
Curtin, Andrew G	
Curtis, Charles B 151,	
Curtis, James L.	
Cushing, Caleb	
Cushing, Courtland	310
Cushman, John F	45 152
Cutting, W. Bayard, Jr.	
Cyphers, Dudley E	
Dabney, Thomas E	286
Dabney, Walter D	302
Daggett, Rollin M.	
Dalferes, Sabin J	46, 152
Dallas, George M	312, 319

Damm, Henry C. A	286
	304
	307
Daniel, Helen L	
	319
	286
Daniels, Josephus	
Daniels, Paul C 56, 108,	159
Daniels, Faul C	100
Daniels, Thomas L	286
Darley, Mary L	
Davenport, Rosemary S 22, 30,	
	316
Davidson, James W	286
Davies, John, Jr	152
Davis, Ben G	303
Davis, Chester W	286
Davis, De Lyle 19, 27,	152
Davis, Elsie C 11, 30,	
Davis, George F	286
Davis, J. C. Bancroft 299,	
Davis, James P	286
Davis, Jane M	
Davis, John	299
Davis, John K	
Davis, John W 286,	
Davis, John Wesley	
Davis, Kathryn M 20, 31,	153
Davis, Leslie A	153
Davis, Mariana 10, 27,	
Davis, Monnett B 60, 100,	
Davis, Nathaniel P 63, 101,	
Davis, Norman H	298
	286
Davis, Raymond	
Davis, Robert B	286
Davis, Roy T 153, 287, 310,	317
Davis, Thomas D	
Dawes, Charles G 287,	312
Dawes, Gladys M 14, 25,	153
Dawson, Allan 40, 106,	153
Dawson, Claude I 59, 98,	
Dawson, Leonard G 46, 162,	
Dawson, M. Esther	154
Dawson, Thomas C 287, 309, 310,	317
Dawson, Warrington	154
Dawson, William	211
Day, Erastus S	
Day, Henry B 58, 110,	104
Day, Samuel H 61,	
Day, William R	
Dayton, Aaron Ogden	303
Dayton, William L 312,	316
Deal, Charles	287
Deane, Harold M	287
Deane, Silas	305
Deans, Amelia B 14, 25,	154
Dearborn, Henry, Sr	318
Dearing, Fred Morris. 57, 96, 154, 301.	
DeBerry, Myra J	
De Billier, Frederic Ogden 114, De Cestre, Hester	
De Castro, Hector	287
DeCell, Edith 10, 28	
DeCourcy, William E 44, 105	
Deedmeyer, Frank	287
Deichman, Carl F 58,99	
Deike, Mildred V 7, 27	100
	, 100
	, 100

	ige
Deimel, Henry L., Jr	155
de Lambert, Richard M 57, 105,	155
Delaney, Thomas J 9, 31,	155
deLashmutt, Rebekah L 2, 26,	155
De Long, Charles E Demers, Pierre P	314
Demers, Pierre P	287
Demille, Paul H 55,	155
Demorest, Alfredo L 49,	155
Denby, Charles	309
Denby, James Orr 51, 102,	155
Denison, Frank C 115,	287
Denning, Joseph M Dennis, Lawrence	316
Dennis, Lawrence	287
Dennison, E. Haldemann	287
Denniston, Frederick W., Jr 20, 30,	
de Olivares, José	287
Derrick, William S	303
de Coulles John J	100
de Saulles, John L	
Des Portas Eav A 26 156	287
Des Portes, Fay A	156
de Verteuil, Marc 49,	156
De Witt. Charles G	308
Dexter. Lewis	287
D'Hauteville, Paul G	287
De Witt, Charles G Dexter, Lewis D'Hauteville, Paul G Dichman, Ernest	309
Dick, Hasell H 39, 101,	156
Dickerson, Charles E., Jr 43,	156
Dickey, John S 3, 25,	156
Dickey, Robert, Jr 45,	156
Dickins, Asbury Dickinson, Andrew B	316
Dickinson, Charles M 387,	308
Dickinson, George W	287
Dickinson, Horace J 41, 108,	156
Diekover, Erle R 52, 100,	156
Dickson, Almar F Dickson, Lillie V	287
Dickson, Lillie V	156
Dickson, Samuel S	157
Diederich, Henry W 115,	287
Diehl, Howard F	287
Diekema, Gerrit John	310
Dietrich, Herman R	157
Dill Horry P	201
Dill, Harry P Dillingham, Frank	201
Dillingham, Sherburne	157
Dimitry, Alexander	316
Dinsmore, Hugh A	
Dismon, Frances N	157
Diven, Frederick M	157
Dix, Adele E 15, 27	157
Dix, John A	312
Dix, John A Doane, Elizabeth S 20, 29	, 157
Doane, Vernon H 20, 30	,157
Dockweiler, Henry I	287
Dodd, William E 46, 157	
Dodge, Augustus C	320
Dodge, H. Percival	114,
287, 310, 311, 314, 316, 317	
Dodson, Frederick A 12, 32	
Doherty, Charles W	116
Doherty, Nona L. 14, 25	
Dolbeare, Frederic R	287

]	Pa	g	а
---	----	---	---

	Page
Dominian, Leon	61, 99, 157
Donald, George K	52 00 158
Denaldaan Chasten	287
Donaldson, Chester	
Donaldson, Harry M	
Donegan, Alfred W	_ 60, 100, 158
Donelson, Andrew J	318, 321
Donnelly, Walter J	
Donovan, Andrew E., 2d	
Donovan, Howard	
Doolittle, Hooker A	_ 55, 102, 158
Dooman, Eugene H	8, 63, 100, 158
Doran, Helen F	18, 26, 158
Dormady, Francis P	21 26 150
Dorman, Archibald B	
Dorr, Julian C	_ 63, 107, 159
Dorsey, W. Roderick	114, 159, 287
Dorsey, William H	16.32.159
Dorsz, Edmund J	53 110 150
Dursz, Edinand J	_ 00,110,100
Doty, William F	114, 287
Doud, Harold	52, 159
Doughten, J. Preston	287
Douglass, Frederick	
Douglass, William B., Jr	59 159
Douglass, William Di, VIIII	20 100 150
Dow, Edward A	. 38, 100, 139
Dowling, Walter C	
Downer, Alice S	5, 30, 159
Dowrick, Lillie B	5, 28, 159
Doyle, Albert M	
Drake, John H	
Draper, William F	314
Dreher, Julius D	
Dresel, Ellis L.	287, 312
Drew, Charles W., Jr	
	287
Drew, Gerald A	287 _ 41, 108, 160
Drew, Gerald A Drew, Norris E	287 41, 108, 160 13, 28, 160
Drew, Gerald A Drew, Norris E Dreyer, Helen Z	287 41, 108, 160 13, 28, 160 13, 30, 160
Drew, Gerald A Drew, Norris E Dreyer, Helen Z Dreyfus, Louis G., Jr	287 41, 108, 160 13, 28, 160 13, 30, 160 57, 98, 160
Drew, Gerald A Drew, Norris E Dreyer, Helen Z Dreyfus, Louis G., Jr Driscoll, Edward E	287 41, 108, 160 13, 28, 160 13, 30, 160 57, 98, 160 19, 27, 160
Drew, Gerald A Drew, Norris E Dreyer, Helen Z Dreyfus, Louis G., Jr	287 41, 108, 160 13, 28, 160 13, 30, 160 57, 98, 160 19, 27, 160
Drew, Gerald A Drew, Norris E Dreyer, Helen Z Dreyfus, Louis G., Jr Driscoll, Edward E Drissel, Roger S Droppers, Garrett.	287 41, 108, 160 13, 28, 160 13, 30, 160 57, 98, 160 19, 27, 160 19, 26, 160 287, 313, 316
Drew, Gerald A Drew, Norris E Dreyer, Helen Z Dreyfus, Louis G., Jr Driscoll, Edward E Drissel, Roger S Droppers, Garrett.	287 41, 108, 160 13, 28, 160 13, 30, 160 57, 98, 160 19, 27, 160 19, 26, 160 287, 313, 316
Drew, Gerald A Drew, Norris E Dreyer, Helen Z Dreyfus, Louis G., Jr Driscoll, Edward E Drissel, Roger S Droppers, Garrett Drumright, Everett F	287 41, 108, 160 13, 28, 160 13, 30, 160 57, 98, 160 19, 27, 160 287, 313, 316 39, 111, 160
Drew, Gerald A Drew, Norris E Dreyrer, Helen Z Dreyfus, Louis G., Jr Driscoll, Edward E Drissel, Roger S Droppers, Garrett. Drumright, Everett F Drury, Louis M.	287 41, 108, 160 13, 28, 160 13, 30, 160 13, 30, 160 19, 27, 160 287, 313, 316 39, 111, 160 20, 31, 160
Drew, Gerald A Drew, Norris E Dreyrer, Helen Z Dreyfus, Louis G., Jr Driscoll, Edward E Drissel, Roger S Droppers, Garrett Drumright, Everett F Drury, Louis M Dryer, Mildred V	287 41, 108, 160 13, 28, 160 13, 30, 160 57, 98, 160 19, 27, 160 287, 313, 316 287, 313, 316 39, 111, 160 2, 20, 31, 160 5, 29, 160
Drew, Gerald A Drew, Norris E Dreyrer, Helen Z Dreyfus, Louis G., Jr Driscoll, Edward E Droppers, Garrett Droppers, Garrett F Drury, Louis M Dryer, Mildred V Dryer, Thomas J	287 41, 108, 160 13, 28, 160 13, 30, 160 57, 98, 160 19, 27, 160 287, 313, 316 287, 313, 316 30, 111, 160 20, 31, 160 5, 29, 160 313
Drew, Gerald A Drew, Norris E Dreyer, Helen Z Dreyfus, Louis G., Jr Driscoll, Edward E Drissel, Roger S Droppers, Garrett Drumright, Everett F Drumright, Everett F Dryry, Mildred V Dryer, Mildred V Drysdale, Walter S.	287 - 41, 108, 160 - 13, 28, 160 - 13, 30, 160 - 57, 98, 160 - 19, 27, 160 - 19, 27, 160 - 287, 313, 316 - 30, 111, 160 - 20, 31, 160 - 313 - 313 - 39, 59, 160
Drew, Gerald A Drew, Norris E Dreyter, Helen Z Driscoll, Edward E Drissel, Roger S Droppers, Garrett. Drumright, Everett F Drury, Louis M Dryer, Mildred V Dryer, Thomas J Drysdale. Walter S du Bois, Coert	287 - 41, 108, 160 - 13, 28, 160 - 13, 30, 160 - 57, 98, 160 - 19, 27, 160 - 287, 313, 316 - 39, 111, 160 - 20, 31, 160 - 5, 29, 160 - 39, 55, 160 - 39, 55, 160 - 39, 55, 160 - 39, 55, 160 - 52, 99, 161
Drew, Gerald A Drew, Norris E Dreyer, Helen Z Dreyfus, Louis G., Jr Driscoll, Edward E Drissel, Roger S Droppers, Garrett Drumright, Everett F Drury, Louis M Dryer, Mildred V Dryer, Thomas J Drysdale. Walter S du Bois, Coert DuBois, James T	287 - 41, 108, 160 - 13, 28, 160 - 13, 30, 160 - 57, 98, 160 - 19, 27, 160 - 19, 26, 160 287, 313, 316 - 39, 111, 160 - 20, 31, 160 - 5, 29, 160 - 313 - 39, 59, 160 - 52, 99, 161 - 287, 380
Drew, Gerald A Drew, Norris E Dreyer, Helen Z Dreyfus, Louis G., Jr Driscoll, Edward E Drissel, Roger S Droppers, Garrett Drumright, Everett F Drury, Louis M Dryer, Mildred V Dryer, Thomas J Drysdale. Walter S du Bois, Coert DuBois, James T	287 - 41, 108, 160 - 13, 28, 160 - 13, 30, 160 - 57, 98, 160 - 19, 27, 160 - 19, 26, 160 287, 313, 316 - 39, 111, 160 - 20, 31, 160 - 5, 29, 160 - 313 - 39, 59, 160 - 52, 99, 161 - 287, 380
Drew, Gerald A Drew, Norris E Dreyer, Helen Z Dreyfus, Louis G., Jr Driscoll, Edward E Driscoll, Edward E Droppers, Garrett Druprist, Everett F Drury, Louis M Dryer, Mildred V Dryer, Thomas J Drysdale. Walter S du Bois, Coert DuHois, James T Dudley, Irving B	287 - 41, 108, 160 - 13, 28, 160 - 13, 30, 160 - 57, 98, 160 - 19, 27, 160 - 19, 27, 160 - 287, 313, 316 - 39, 111, 160 - 20, 31, 160 - 20, 31, 160 - 39, 59, 160 - 52, 99, 161 - 287, 309 287, 308, 317
Drew, Gerald A Drew, Norris E Dreyrer, Helen Z Dreyfus, Louis G., Jr Driscoll, Edward E Droppers, Garrett Drumright, Everett F Drury, Louis M Dryer, Mildred V Drysdale. Walter S. du Bois, Coert Dudley, James T Dudley, Jrving B Dudley, L. Edwin	287 - 41, 108, 160 - 13, 28, 160 - 13, 30, 160 - 57, 98, 160 - 19, 27, 160 - 19, 26, 160 287, 313, 316 - 39, 111, 160 - 20, 31, 160 - 52, 29, 160 - 52, 99, 161 - 287, 309 287, 308, 317
Drew, Gerald A Drew, Norris E Dreyer, Helen Z Dreyfus, Louis G., Jr Driscoll, Edward E. Drissel, Roger S Droppers, Garrett Drumright, Everett F. Drury, Louis M. Dryer, Mildred V. Dryer, Thomas J. Drysdale. Walter S. du Bois, Coert DuBois, James T. Dudley, Irving B. Dudley, L. Edwin Duff, Russell G.	287 - 41, 108, 160 - 13, 28, 160 - 13, 30, 160 - 57, 98, 160 - 57, 98, 160 - 19, 27, 160 287, 313, 316 - 20, 31, 160 - 20, 31, 160 - 39, 111, 160 - 39, 159, 160 313 - 39, 59, 160 - 52, 99, 161 - 257, 309 287, 308, 317 287 287
Drew, Gerald A Drey, Norris E Dreyrer, Helen Z Drisyoll, Edward E Drissel, Roger S Droppers, Garrett Drumright, Everett F Drury, Louis M Dryer, Mildred V Dryer, Mildred V Drysdale. Walter S du Bois, Coert DuBois, James T Dudley, Irving B Dudley, L. Edwin Duff, Russell G Duffe, George G	287 - 41, 108, 160 - 13, 28, 160 - 13, 30, 160 - 57, 98, 160 - 19, 27, 160 287, 313, 316 287, 313, 316 - 39, 111, 160 - 20, 31, 160 - 5, 29, 160 - 52, 99, 161 - 287, 309 287, 308, 317 - 287 - 52, 161 - 287
Drew, Gerald A Drew, Norris E Dreyer, Helen Z Dreyfus, Louis G., Jr Driscoll, Edward E Drose, Garrett Dromright, Everett F Drury, Louis M Dryer, Mildred V Dryer, Thomas J Drysdale. Walter S du Bois, Coert Dudley, James T Dudley, Irving B Dudley, L. Edwin Duff, Russell G Duffee, George G Duffey, Margaret S	287 - 41, 108, 160 - 13, 28, 160 - 13, 30, 160 - 57, 98, 160 - 19, 27, 160 - 19, 26, 160 287, 313, 316 - 20, 31, 160 - 20, 31, 160 - 39, 151, 160 - 52, 99, 161 - 257, 309 287, 308, 317 - 287 - 287
Drew, Gerald A Drew, Norris E Dreyrer, Helen Z Drisyoll, Edward E Drissoll, Edward E Droppers, Garrett Drumright, Everett F Dryer, Mildred V Dryer, Mildred V Drysdale. Walter S Dudley, Irving B Dudley, Jrving B Dudley, Jr. Edwin Duff, Russell G Duffee, George G Duffley, Margaret S Duffy, Mary A	287 - 41, 108, 160 - 13, 28, 160 - 13, 30, 160 - 57, 98, 160 - 19, 27, 160 - 19, 27, 160 - 287, 313, 316 - 30, 111, 160 - 20, 31, 160 - 20, 31, 160 - 52, 99, 161 - 395, 50, 160 - 52, 99, 161 - 287, 308, 317 - 287, 308, 317 - 287 - 52, 161 - 287, 161 - 4, 27, 161
Drew, Gerald A Drew, Norris E Dreyrer, Helen Z Drisyoll, Edward E Drissoll, Edward E Droppers, Garrett Drumright, Everett F Dryer, Mildred V Dryer, Mildred V Drysdale. Walter S Dudley, Irving B Dudley, Jrving B Dudley, Jr. Edwin Duff, Russell G Duffee, George G Duffley, Margaret S Duffy, Mary A	287 - 41, 108, 160 - 13, 28, 160 - 13, 30, 160 - 57, 98, 160 - 19, 27, 160 - 19, 27, 160 - 287, 313, 316 - 30, 111, 160 - 20, 31, 160 - 20, 31, 160 - 52, 99, 161 - 395, 50, 160 - 52, 99, 161 - 287, 308, 317 - 287, 308, 317 - 287 - 52, 161 - 287, 161 - 4, 27, 161
Drew, Gerald A Drew, Norris E Dreyer, Helen Z Dreyfus, Louis G., Jr Driscoll, Edward E. Drissel, Roger S Droppers, Garrett Drumright, Everett F Drury, Louis M Dryer, Mildred V Dryer, Mildred V Drysdale. Walter S. du Bois, Coert DuBois, James T Dudley, Irving B Dudley, I. Edwin Duffe, George G Duffey, Margaret S Duffy, Mary A Dugan, Henry P	287 - 41, 108, 160 - 13, 28, 160 - 13, 30, 160 - 57, 98, 160 - 57, 98, 160 - 92, 160 - 29, 7, 160 - 29, 7, 160 - 29, 31, 316 - 20, 31, 160 - 20, 31, 160 - 313 - 39, 59, 160 - 52, 99, 161 - 257, 309 287, 308, 317 - 287 - 287 - 287 - 18, 28, 161 - 4, 27, 161 - 7, 19, 27, 161
Drew, Gerald A Drey, Norris E Dreyfus, Louis G., Jr Driscoll, Edward E Drissel, Roger S Droppers, Garrett Drumright, Everett F Drury, Louis M Dryer, Mildred V Dryer, Mildred V Dryer, Thomas J Drysdale. Walter S Dudley, Latter S Dudley, Irving B Dudley, Irving B Dudley, L. Edwin Duff, Russell G Duffley, Margaret S Duffley, Margaret S Duffly, Mary A Dugan, Laurence	287 - 41, 108, 160 - 13, 28, 160 - 13, 28, 160 - 13, 30, 160 - 57, 98, 160 - 19, 27, 160 287, 313, 316 - 20, 31, 160 - 20, 31, 160 - 5, 29, 160 - 52, 99, 160 - 52, 99, 161 - 287, 309 287, 308, 317
Drew, Gerald A Drey, Norris E Dreyrer, Helen Z Driscoll, Edward E Drissel, Roger S Droppers, Garrett Drumright, Everett F Drury, Louis M Dryer, Mildred V Dryer, Mildred V Dryer, Thomas J Drysdale. Walter S du Bois, Coert Dudley, Irving B Dudley, Irving B Dudley, L. Edwin Duff, Russell G Duffe, George G Duffley, Margaret S Duffly, Mary A Dugan, Laurence Dugan, Laurence Duhaime, Victor L	287 - 41, 108, 160 - 13, 28, 160 - 13, 28, 160 - 13, 30, 160 - 57, 98, 160 - 19, 27, 160 287, 313, 316 - 20, 31, 160 - 20, 31, 160 - 5, 29, 160 - 52, 99, 160 - 52, 99, 161 - 287, 309 287, 308, 317 - 287 - 52, 161 - 287 - 18, 28, 161 - 4, 27, 161 7, 19, 27, 161 - 287
Drew, Gerald A Drew, Norris E Dreyer, Helen Z Dreyfus, Louis G., Jr Driscoll, Edward E Drissel, Roger S Droppers, Garrett Drumright, Everett F Drury, Louis M Dryer, Mildred V Dryer, Mildred V Dryer, Thomas J Drysdale. Walter S du Bois, Coert Dudley, Ivring B Dudley, Irving B Dudley, Irving B Dudley, L. Edwin Duff, Russell G Duffle, George G Duffley, Margaret S Duffly, Marg A Duggan, Laurence Dugan, Laurence Duhaime, Victor L	287 - 41, 108, 160 - 13, 28, 160 - 13, 30, 160 - 57, 98, 160 - 19, 27, 160 - 19, 26, 160 287, 313, 316 - 39, 111, 160 - 20, 31, 160 - 30, 111, 160 - 30, 131, 160 - 52, 99, 161 - 287, 309, 317 - 287 - 38, 317 - 287 - 52, 161 - 4, 27, 161 - 4, 27, 161 - 4, 27, 161 - 4, 27, 161 - 287 - 7 - 287 - 7 - - - - - - -
Drew, Gerald A Drew, Norris E Dreyer, Helen Z Dreyfus, Louis G., Jr Driscoll, Edward E Driscoll, Edward E Droppers, Garrett Drumright, Everett F Drury, Louis M Dryer, Mildred V Dryer, Mildred V Drysdale. Walter S Dudley, Iving B Dudley, Irving B Dudley, Jrving B Dudley, L. Edwin Dudley, L. Edwin Duff, Russell G Duffee, George G Duffley, Margaret S Duffy, Mary A Dugan, Henry P Dugan, Laurence Duhaime, Victor L Dulles, Allen W	287 - 41, 108, 160 - 13, 28, 160 - 13, 30, 160 - 57, 98, 160 - 57, 98, 160 - 92, 160 287, 313, 316 - 20, 31, 160 - 20, 31, 160 - 20, 31, 160 - 39, 59, 160 - 52, 99, 161 - 287, 308, 317
Drew, Gerald A Drew, Norris E Dreyer, Helen Z Dreyfus, Louis G., Jr Driscoll, Edward E Drissel, Roger S Droppers, Garrett Drumright, Everett F Drury, Louis M Dryer, Mildred V Dryer, Mildred V Dryer, Thomas J Drysdale. Walter S du Bois, Coert Dudley, Ivring B Dudley, Irving B Dudley, Irving B Dudley, L. Edwin Duff, Russell G Duffle, George G Duffley, Margaret S Duffly, Marg A Duggan, Laurence Dugan, Laurence Duhaime, Victor L	287 - 41, 108, 160 - 13, 28, 160 - 13, 30, 160 - 57, 98, 160 - 57, 98, 160 - 92, 160 287, 313, 316 - 20, 31, 160 - 20, 31, 160 - 20, 31, 160 - 39, 59, 160 - 52, 99, 161 - 287, 308, 317
Drew, Gerald A Drew, Norris E Dreyre, Helen Z Driscoll, Edward E Drissel, Roger S Droppers, Garrett. Drumright, Everett F Drury, Louis M Dryer, Mildred V Dryer, Midred V Dryer, Thomas J Drysdale. Walter S du Bois, Coert Dudley, I. Edwin. Dudley, I. Edwin. Dudley, I. Edwin. Duff, Russell G Duffley, Margaret S Duffley, Margaret S Duffley, Margaret S Dugan, Henry P Dugan, Laurence. Duhaime, Victor L Dules, Allen W	287 - 41, 108, 160 - 13, 28, 160 - 13, 30, 160 - 57, 98, 160 - 57, 98, 160 - 92, 160 - 29, 7, 160 - 29, 7, 160 - 20, 31, 316 - 20, 31, 160 - 20, 31, 160 - 20, 31, 160 - 39, 59, 160 - 52, 99, 161 - 257, 309 287, 308, 317 - 287 - 287 - 18, 28, 161 - 4, 27, 161 - 4, 27, 161 - 287 -
Drew, Gerald A Drey, Norris E Dreyrer, Helen Z Driscoll, Edward E Drissel, Roger S Droppers, Garrett Drumright, Everett F Drury, Louis M Dryer, Mildred V Dryer, Mildred V Dryer, Thomas J Drysdale. Walter S du Bois, Coert Dudley, Irving B Dudley, Irving B Dudley, L. Edwin Duff, Russell G Duffe, George G Duffley, Margaret S Duffley, Margaret S Duffly, Mary A Dugan, Laurence Dugan, Laurence Dulas, Charles William Fred Dumont, Frederick T. F Dun, Edwin	287 - 41, 108, 160 - 13, 28, 160 - 13, 28, 160 - 13, 30, 160 - 57, 98, 160 - 19, 27, 160 287, 313, 316 - 20, 31, 160 - 20, 31, 160 - 39, 151, 160 - 5, 29, 160 - 52, 99, 161 - 287, 309 287, 308, 317 - 287 - 18, 28, 161 - 4, 27, 161 - 8, 24, 161 - 987 - 287 - 114, 161, 287 - 314
Drew, Gerald A Drew, Norris E Dreyer, Helen Z Dreyfus, Louis G., Jr Driscoll, Edward E Dropopers, Garrett. Drumright, Everett F Drury, Louis M Dryer, Mildred V Dryer, Mildred V Dryer, Thomas J. Drysdale. Walter S du Bois, Coert Dudley, Irving B Dudley, Irving B Dudley, Irving B Dudley, L. Edwin Duff, Russell G Duffe, George G Duffley, Margaret S Duffley, Margaret S Duffly, Mary A Dugan, Henry P Dugan, Laurence Duhame, Victor L Duhame, Victor L Dumas, Charles William Fred Dumont, Frederick T. F Dun, Edwin Duncan, Norman	287 - 41, 108, 160 - 13, 28, 160 - 13, 28, 160 - 19, 27, 160 - 19, 27, 160 287, 313, 316 - 20, 31, 160 - 20, 31, 160 - 20, 31, 160 - 39, 111, 160 - 20, 31, 160 - 5, 29, 161 - 287, 309 287, 308, 317 - 52, 99, 161 - 287, 309 287, 308, 317 - 52, 161 - 4, 27, 161 - 4, 27, 161 - 4, 27, 161 - 287 -
Drew, Gerald A Drew, Norris E Dreyer, Helen Z Dreyfus, Louis G., Jr Driscoll, Edward E. Drissel, Roger S Droppers, Garrett. Drumright, Everett F Drury, Louis M Dryer, Mildred V Dryer, Mildred V Drysdale. Walter S. du Bois, Coert Dudley, L. Edwin. Dudley, Irving B Dudley, I. Edwin. Duffe, George G Duffe, Margaret S Duffy, Marg A Duffy, Marg A Duffy, Marg A Dugan, Laurence. Duhaime, Victor L. Duhaime, Victor L. Dunas, Charles William Fred Dumont, Frederick T. F Dun, Edwin Dunan, Donald C	287 - 41, 108, 160 - 13, 28, 160 - 13, 30, 160 - 57, 98, 160 - 19, 27, 160 - 287, 313, 316 - 39, 111, 160 - 20, 31, 160 - 20, 31, 160 - 52, 99, 161 - 39, 59, 160 - 52, 99, 161 - 287, 308, 317 - 287, 161 - 4, 27, 161 - 4, 27, 161 - 4, 27, 161 - 8, 24, 161 - 287 114, 161, 287 - 314 - 57, 161 - 5
Drew, Gerald A Drew, Norris E Dreyer, Helen Z Dreyfus, Louis G., Jr Driscoll, Edward E. Driscoll, Edward E. Droppers, Garrett. Drumright, Everett F. Drury, Louis M. Dryer, Mildred V. Dryer, Mildred V. Dryer, Thomas J. Drysdale. Walter S. du Bois, Coert. Duflois, James T. Dudley, Ivring B. Dudley, Ivring B. Dudley, L. Edwin. Dufl, Russell G. Duflee, George G. Dufley, Margaret S. Dufly, Marg A. Dufley, Margaret S. Dufly, Mary A. Dugan, Henry P. Dugan, Leurence. Duhaime, Victor L. Dulles, Allen W. Dumas, Charles William Fred Dunne, Frederick T. F. Dun, Edwin. Duncan, Norman. Duncan, Norman. Dunker, Will F.	
Drew, Gerald A Dreyer, Helen Z Dreyfus, Louis G., Jr Driscoll, Edward E Drissel, Roger S Droppers, Garrett Drumright, Everett F Drury, Louis M Dryer, Mildred V Dryer, Mildred V Dryer, Thomas J Drysdale. Walter S du Bois, Coert Dudley, Irving B Dudley, Irving B Dudley, L. Edwin Duff, Russell G Duffe, George G Duffe, George G Duffey, Margaret S Duffy, Mary A Dugan, Laurence Dugan, Laurence Dulas, Charles William Fred Dumas, Charles William Fred Duman, Donald C Dunker, Will F	287 - 41, 108, 160 - 13, 28, 160 - 13, 28, 160 - 13, 30, 160 - 57, 98, 160 - 27, 98, 160 - 29, 7, 161 - 29, 7, 161 - 29, 161 - 3, 29, 161 - 4, 12, 161 - 48, 112, 161 - 29, 161 - 48, 112, 161 - 48, 112, 161 - 48, 112, 161 - 48, 112, 161 - 29, 161 - 48, 112, 161 - 48, 112, 161 - 29, 161 - 48, 112, 161 - 48, 112, 161 - 287
Drew, Gerald A Drew, Norris E Dreyer, Helen Z Dreyfus, Louis G., Jr Driscoll, Edward E. Driscoll, Edward E. Droppers, Garrett. Drumright, Everett F. Drury, Louis M. Dryer, Mildred V. Dryer, Mildred V. Dryer, Thomas J. Drysdale. Walter S. du Bois, Coert. Duflois, James T. Dudley, Ivring B. Dudley, Ivring B. Dudley, L. Edwin. Dufl, Russell G. Duflee, George G. Dufley, Margaret S. Dufly, Marg A. Dufley, Margaret S. Dufly, Mary A. Dugan, Henry P. Dugan, Leurence. Duhaime, Victor L. Dulles, Allen W. Dumas, Charles William Fred Dunne, Frederick T. F. Dun, Edwin. Duncan, Norman. Duncan, Norman. Dunker, Will F.	287 - 41, 108, 160 - 13, 28, 160 - 13, 28, 160 - 13, 30, 160 - 57, 98, 160 - 27, 98, 160 - 29, 7, 161 - 29, 7, 161 - 29, 161 - 3, 29, 161 - 4, 12, 161 - 48, 112, 161 - 29, 161 - 48, 112, 161 - 48, 112, 161 - 48, 112, 161 - 48, 112, 161 - 29, 161 - 48, 112, 161 - 48, 112, 161 - 29, 161 - 48, 112, 161 - 48, 112, 161 - 287

$-\mathbf{P}$		

Page	Page
Dunn, James Clement 1, 18, 24, 162, 301	English, Alphonzo G 4, 32, 165
Dunning, James E	English, Benedict M 4, 24, 165
Durbrow, Elbridge	English, Robert 51, 109, 165
Durfee, Loyd Van H 41, 162	Erhardt, John G 46, 101, 165
Durham, John S 310, 313	Erving, George W 310, 320
Durkee, Roland A 237	Eustis, James B 312
Durning, Daniel J 19, 28, 162	Eustis, William
Dutko, Paul M	Evans, Ernest E
Dutrow, Richard C	Evans, Percy H 20, 32, 165
Duvall, Frank E	Evans, William D
Dwyer, Henry T 37, 162	Evarts, William M
Dwyre, Dudley G	Eve, Joseph
Dye, Alexander V 35, 57, 162 Dye, Charles D 20, 29, 163	Everett, Alexander H 309, 316, 320 Everett, Curtis T
Dye, John W	Everett, Edward
Dyer, Francis J	Ewart, John J
	Ewing, Hugh
Eager, George E 287	Ewing, James S
Eames, Charles	Ewing, John
Earle, George H., 3d 163, 287, 307	-0,
Earle, Matthew C 12, 33, 163	Fabatz, Anton B 5, 31, 166
Early, William W 115, 283, 287	Faherty, Regina E 18, 30, 166
Earnest, Edwin B 48, 163	Fair, Elisha Y
Eastin, Fred C., Jr 287	Fairbanks, Frederick C 45, 166
Eaton, Earl Wilbert	Fairchild, Lucius 320
Eaton, John H	Faison, Walter E
Eaton, Paul W	Farman, Elbert E
Eberhardt, Charles C ₋ 114, 163, 287, 310, 316	Farnsworth, Frederick E 60, 112, 166 Farrand, E. Kitchel
Eberlein, Marcia	Farrand, E. Kitchel
Eddy, Spencer F 287, 306, 308, 319, 320	Farrell, Thomas F 10, 27, 166
Edelman, Samuel	Farrell, William S 43, 110, 166
Edgar, Donald D 41, 110, 163	Faulkner, Charles J
Edge, Walter E	Fauntroy, Edward
Edmonds, Walter B 6, 32, 164	Faust, John B
Edson, Andrew W 40, 110, 164	Fay, Theodore S
Edwards, Alanson W	Faymonville, Philip R
Edwards, Clement S 114, 164, 287	Fearn, Walker
Edwards, Isaac	Fee, William T 287
Edwards, J. Stanford 42, 164	Feely, Edward F 166, 287, 308
Edwards, Thomas D	Feis, Herbert 10, 24, 166
Eells, Stillman W 47, 104, 164	Fennel, Charles H., Jr
Egan, Maurice F 287, 310	Fennell, Charles B
Egan, Patrick 309	Fennell, Joseph A 18, 25, 166
Einstein, Lewis	Fenstermacher, Harvey E 19, 26, 167
Elbrick, C. Burke 50, 111, 164	Ferguson, Ollis B
Eldridge, Francis R., Jr	Ferguson, Thomas B
Elford, Albert H 45, 164 Elkus, Abram I 287, 321	Ferrin, Augustin W 59, 103, 167
Elliett, John C 11, 28, 164	Ferris, Cornelius 114, 287
Ellis, George W	Ferris, Walton C 9, 63, 107, 167
Ellis, Leon H 287	Field, Noel H
Ellis, Overton G., Jr 51, 113, 164	Field, Pattie H 287
Ellis, Powhatan315	Fillmore, Millard
Ellis, Vespasian	Finch, William R 317, 322
Ellis, Virginia M 16, 28, 164	Finley, Harold D 45, 104, 167
Ellsworth, Henry W	Finley, James G 287
Ellsworth, Luther T 287	Fish, Bert 43, 167, 311
Elting, Howard, Jr 60, 112, 164	Fish, Hamilton
Embry, John A 60, 164, 287	Fish, Nicholas 307, 321
Emmet, Grenville T 55, 164, 316	Fisher, Carl A
Enander, John A	Fisher, Dorscy G 41, 109, 167
Endicott, Francis M	Fisher, Dwight W
Engdahl, F. Russell 48, 111, 165	Fisher, Fred D
Engert, Cornelius Van H 43, 99, 165	Fisher, T. Monroe 52, 168

Fredrickson, Oscar W..... 54, 171 Freeman, Charles M..... 114, 287 Freeman, Clara J..... 8, 30, 171 Frelinghuysen, Frederick T..... 296

Page

	I age
Fisk, Hurley S FitzGerald, Loretto E	15, 28, 168
FitzGerald Loretto E	20, 20, 168
Fitzpatrick, Ulysses S	287
Flack, Joseph	46, 101, 168
Flack, Thomas R	35, 168
Flaherty, Francis E	16, 27, 168
Fleming, Alfred	
Fleming, George L	
Floming, George Deserve	287
Fleming, Rufus Fleming, Thomas J	
Fleming, Thomas J	
Flenniken, Robert P	
Flatabor C Paul	91 62 105 168
Fletcher, Henry P	287.
Fletcher, Henry P	207 200 214 215
Elataban Camual I	27 102 100
Fletcher, Samuel J	37, 103, 168
Flexer, Fayette J	8, 63, 107, 168
Flood, Douglas	35, 112, 169
Flood, George H	
Flood Peter II A	41 64 104 169
Flood, Peter II. A Flournoy, Richard W., Ju	- 4 04 100
Flournoy, Kichard W., JI	4, 24, 109
Flournoy, William E., Jr	50, 111, 169
Fogg, George G	321
Foley, Edward A	47, 169
Folk, Joseph W	
Follmer, Cyrus B	
Folsom, George	
Foote, Lucius H	314
Foote, Thomas M	306, 309
Foote, Walter A	15, 63, 104, 169
Foote, Walter A Forbes, James D	20.30.169
Forbes, James D	306
Forbes, John M.	
Forbes, W. Cameron	287, 314
Forbes, w. Cameron Forbus, Sample B Ford, Richard Ford, Samuel S	287
Ford, Richard	59, 104, 169
Ford, Samuel S	19.28.169
Forman Charles	
Forman, Charles Fornes, Frederic C., Jr Forsyth, John	201
Fornes, Frederic C., Jr	36, 110, 170
Forsyth, John	295, 315, 320
Forsyth, T. Muldrup	57, 112, 170
Forward, Walter	
Foss, Harold R.	
Foster, Carol H	30, 100, 170
Foster, John G Foster, John W	115, 287
Foster, John W	296, 315, 319, 320
Foster, Paul H	114, 287
Fowle, Charles W	
Fowler, John	
Fowler, William A	
Fox, Hugh C	46, 110, 170
Fox, Ray	46, 105, 170
Fox, Williams C	287.311
France, Leys A	35 170
Francis, Charles S	257, 307, 313, 319
Francis, David R	287, 319
Francis, John M	307, 312, 318
Francis, William T	
Frank, Edna M	8, 29, 170
Frank, Edna M	7 16 26 170
Frank, Dattence C	1, 10, 20, 170
Franklin, Benjamin	305
Franklin, Harry Lee Franklin, Lynn W	287
Franklin, Lynn W	59, 104, 170
Franks, Colonel	
Fraser, Herbert F	3 33 170
Fraser, Herbert F	47 64 08 171
Frazer, tobelt	
Frazier, Arthur H	287,307

French, Abel 302 Friedrich, Auriel C..... 5, 29, 171 Frisby, Florence E..... 21, 27, 171 Frost, Arthur C...... 60, 99, 171 Frost, Franklin B..... 287 Fuerst, Mary A..... 19, 28, 171 Funk, flo C..... 52, 103, 172 Funkhouser, Charles F..... 4, 28, 172 Fuqua, John II...... 44, 172 Fuqua, Stephen O..... 58, 59, 172 Furniss, Henry W..... 287, 313 Gade, Gerhard...... 50, 104, 172 Gaffney, T. St. John 287 Gaines, Harry B..... 6, 32, 172 Gaines, Owen W..... 59, 172 Galbraith, Willard...... 36, 110, 172 Gale, William H..... 115, 287 Gallman, Waldemar J 42, 104, 172 Gallop, Vera N..... 5, 28, 173 Gamon, John A..... 45, 99, 173 Ganuett, Taylor W..... 42, 111, 173 Gantenbein, James W 42, 109, 173 Gardner, Inez J..... 14, 27, 173 Garfield, James A..... 296 Garland, Myron S..... 7, 27, 173 Garner, James F. R..... 20, 30, 173 Garner, L. Virginia...... 4, 28, 173 Garnet, Henry Highland 315 Garrels, Arthur..... 53, 98, 173 Garrett, Alonzo B..... 114, 287 Garrett, John W. 287, 306, 314, 315, 316, 322 Garrety, William P..... 114, 287 Garvin, John T..... 39, 173 Gassett, Percival..... 115, 287 Gates, Louis E..... 13, 27, 173 Gates, Margaret I..... 19, 28, 173 Gaudin, Daniel, Jr..... 60, 111, 174 Gault, Rose B..... 20, 31, 174 Gauss, Clarence E..... 39, 98, 174 Geerken, Forrest K..... 49, 174 Geissler, Arthur H..... 287, 313 Geist, Raymond H..... 46, 104, 174

(

(

1	Page
George, William C 5	3, 174
George, William P 60, 10	3. 174
Gerard, James W 28	7.312
Gerber, William	8.174
Gerberich, Albert H	287
Gericke, Martha L 14, 2	5 174
Gerrity, Charles M 3	8 174
Gerry Harvey S	288
Gerry, Harvey S Gest, Sydney G	200
Cibba Japtha M	200 E 174
Gibbs, Jeptha M	0,174
Gibbs, Richard	1, 011 0 177
Gibson, Elizabeth B 2, 2	8, 175
Gibson, Frances C Gibson, Hugh S 96, 175, 307, 308, 315, 315	34
Gloson, Hugh S	30,
96, 175, 307, 308, 315, 31 Gibson, Lloyd L 11, 3	8, 321
Gibson, Lloyd L 11,3	1, 175
Gibson, Raleigh A 50, 10	3, 175
Gibson, Vassar D 15, 3	2, 175
Gidden, Culver 4	9, 175
Gidney, Charles C., Jr 5	4, 175
Giffen, Morrison B 13, 2	4, 175
Gifford, George	288
Gilbert, Manson 3	6, 175
Gilbert, Prentiss B 60, 10	0, 175
Gilchrist, Andrew 4	2, 176
Gill, J. Francis	288
Gillespie, Julian E	0, 176
Gillette, Glenn M	9, 176
Gilman, Joseph T	288
Gilmor, Albert 42, 5	8, 176
Gimperling, Thomas N 4	1, 176
Giroux, Arthur B	288
Giroux, Arthur B Gittings, John Sterett	288
Gjessing, Erland 4	2, 176
Glassey, Frank P. S.	288
Glazebrook, Otis A 11	
Glennan, Marjorie D 19, 2	8,176
Glover, Robert G 5-	
Goding, Frederic W.,	5. 288
Goetz, Robert C. F	0,176
Goforth, Herndon W 54, 108	5, 176
Goldsberry, Paul E 19, 2	8, 176
Goldschmidt, Louis	288
Goldstein, Hyman 17, 5-	4,176
Gonzales, William E). 318
Gonzalez, Antonio C 57, 176	3, 317
Goodier, Harvey T	5,176
Goodier, James H	288
Goodloe, William C	307
Goodwin, Myra L 21, 29	. 177
Goold, Herbert S), 177
Gordon, George A	3, 177
Jore. John A	288
Gore, John A Gorham, Charles T Goss, Mary W	316
Joss. Mary W	34
Fotlieb, Bernard 52, 104	. 177
Gottschalk, Alfred L. M.	288
Gould, Ozro C	288
Jourley, Louis H	
Gowen, Franklin C 47, 106	177
Frace, William J	288-
Fracey, Samuel L	288
Fracey, Wilbur T	288
Grady, Henry F 3, 33	
Fraham, Charles I	288

67359-34--23

	Page
Graham, John	294, 303, 318
Grant, Frederick D	
Grant, Frederick J	
Grant, Hugh G.	8, 24, 177
Grant, Ulysses 8	
Grant-Smith, U 28	8, 306, 314, 322
Graves, Charles H Graves, Florence P	288, 320, 321
Graves, Florence P	19, 28, 177
Graves, George M	56, 109, 178
Grav. Archibald E	45, 109, 178
Gray, Cecil Wayne	35, 108, 178
Gray, Edith M	8, 28, 178
Gray, Isaac P	
Gray, John H	
Gray, Paul J	47, 110, 178
Green, James S	
Green, Joseph C	8, 24, 178
Green, Kirk M	1, 31, 178
Green, Leonard N	45, 105, 178
Green, Samuel	288
Greene, Elbridge Gerry	37, 100, 178
Greene, Roger S	
Greene, W. Maxwell	288
Greene, Winthrop S	40, 41, 106, 178
Greenfield, Robert T Greenup, Julian C	3, 32, 178
Greenup, Julian C	59, 178
Grefe, Grace Alexander	14, 33, 179
Gregg, David L	
Gregory, John H., Jr	288
Gresham, Lon S	46, 179
Gresham, Walter Q	297
Grevstad, Nicolay A	- 288, 314, 322
Grew, Joseph C	52,
06 170 29	
	8, 310, 314, 321
Grieve, Miller	8, 310, 314, 321 310
Grieve, Miller Griffin, Ruth Patee	8, 310, 314, 321
Grieve, Miller Griffin, Ruth Patee Griffin, Thomas	8, 310, 314, 321
Grieve, Miller Griffin, Ruth Patee Griffin, Thomas Griffith, P. Merrill	8, 310, 314, 321
Grieve, Miller Griffin, Ruth Patee Griffin, Thomas Griffith, P. Merrill Griffiths, John L	8, 310, 314, 321
Grieve, Miller Griffin, Ruth Patee Griffin, Thomas Griffith, P. Merrill Griffiths, John L Grinnell, William M	8, 310, 314, 321
Grieve, Miller Griffin, Ruth Patee Griffin, Thomas Griffith, P. Merrill Griffiths, Jobn L Grinnell, William M	8, 310, 314, 321
Grieve, Miller Griffin, Ruth Patee Griffin, Thomas Griffith, P. Merrill Griffiths, Jobn L Grinnell, William M Grinstead, Durward Griscom, Lloyd C	8, 310, 314, 321
Grieve, Miller Griffin, Ruth Patee Griffin, Thomas Griffith, P. Merrill Griffiths, John L Grinnell, William M Grinstead, Durward Griscom, Lloyd C 28 Groeninger, Joseph G	8, 310, 314, 321
Grieve, Miller Griffin, Ruth Patee Griffin, Thomas Griffith, P. Merrill Griffiths, John L Grinnell, William M Grinstead, Durward Griscom, Lloyd C 28 Groes, Christian	8, 310, 314, 321
Grieve, Miller Griffin, Ruth Patee Griffin, Thomas Griffith, P. Merrill Griffiths, John L Grinnell, William M Grinstead, Durward Griscom, Lloyd C 28 Groeninger, Joseph G Gross, Christian Groub, Edward M.	8, 310, 314, 321
Grieve, Miller Griffin, Ruth Patee Griffin, Thomas Griffith, P. Merrill Griffiths, John L Grinnell, William M Grinstead, Durward Griscom, Lloyd C Gross, Christian Groth, Edward M Grotjohan, Albert W. J	8, 310, 314, 321
Grieve, Miller Griffin, Ruth Patee Griffin, Thomas Griffith, P. Merrill Griffiths, John L Grinntell, William M Grinstead, Durward Griscom, Lloyd C 28 Groeninger, Joseph G Gross, Christian Groth, Edward M Grotjohan, Albert W. J Grout, John H	8, 310, 314, 321
Grieve, Miller Griffin, Ruth Patee Griffin, Thomas Griffith, P. Merrill Griffiths, John L Grinntell, William M Grinstead, Durward Grisscom, Lloyd C Stroeninger, Joseph G Gross, Christian Groth, Edward M Groth, Edward M Grotu, John H Gruub, E., Burd	8, 310, 314, 321
Grieve, Miller Griffin, Ruth Patee Griffin, Thomas Griffith, P. Merrill Griffiths, John L Grinntell, William M Grinstead, Durward Grinstead, Durward Gross, Christian Groth, Edward M Groti, Albert W. J Groti, John H Grubb, E. Burd Grummon, Stuart E	8, 310, 314, 321
Grieve, Miller Griffin, Ruth Patee Griffin, Thomas Griffith, P. Merrill Griffiths, John L Grinnell, William M Grinstead, Durward Griscom, Lloyd C S Groeninger, Joseph G Gross, Christian Groth, Edward M Groth, Edward M Groth, Edward M Grout, John H Grubb, E. Burd Grummon, Stuart E Gnard, Madge Lee	$\begin{array}{cccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$
Grieve, Miller Griffin, Ruth Patee Griffin, Thomas Griffith, P. Merrill Griffiths, Jobn L Grinnell, William M Grinstead, Durward Gross, Churyard Gross, Christian Groth, Edward M Groth, Albert W. J Groth, Jobn H Grubb, E. Burd Grummon, Stuart E Guard, Madge Lee Guenther, Richard.	8, 310, 314, 321
Grieve, Miller Griffin, Ruth Patee Griffin, Thomas Griffith, P. Merrill Griffiths, John L Grinnell, William M Grinstead, Durward Gross, Christian M Gross, Christian Groth, Edward M Groth, Edward M Groth, John H Grout, John H Grubn, F. Burd Grummon, Stuart E. Gnard, Madge Lee Guenther, Richard	$\begin{array}{cccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$
Grieve, Miller Griffin, Ruth Patee Griffin, Thomas Griffith, P. Merrill Griffiths, John L Grinntell, William M Grinstead, Durward Gross, Christian Groth, Edward M Groth, Edward M Groth, Edward M Groth, Edward M Groth, Edward M Groth, E. Burd Grubb, E. Burd Grummon, Stuart E Guard, Madge Lee Guenther, Richard Guffer, Bernard	$\begin{array}{cccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$
Grieve, Miller Griffin, Ruth Patee Griffin, Thomas Griffith, P. Merrill Griffiths, John L Griffiths, John L Grinnell, William M Grinstead, Durward Griscom, Lloyd C Stroeninger, Joseph G Gross, Christian Groth, Edward M Groth, Edward M Groth, Edward M Groth, Edward M Groth, Edward M Grout, John H Grubb, E. Burd Grummon, Stuart E Guard, Madge Lee Guenther, Richard Guffer, Bernard	8, 310, 314, 321
Grieve, Miller Griffin, Ruth Patee Griffin, Thomas Griffith, P. Merrill Griffiths, John L Griffiths, John L Griffiths, John L Griffiths, John L Grinstead, Durward Griscom, Lloyd C Strong, Joseph G Gross, Christian Groth, Edward M Groth, Edward M Groth, Edward M Groth, Edward M Groth, John H Grubb, E. Burd Grummon, Stuart E Guard, Madge Lee Guenther, Richard Guffer, Bernard Guidg, Curtis Guidl, Curtis	$\begin{array}{cccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$
Grieve, Miller Griffin, Ruth Patee Griffin, Ruth Patee Griffith, P. Merrill Griffiths, Jobn L Grinnell, William M Grinstead, Durward Gross, Christian Gross, Christian Groth, Edward M Groth, Albert W. J Groth, Jobn H Grubb, E. Burd Grummon, Stuart E Guard, Madge Lee Guard, Madge Lee Guenther, Richard Guffer, Bernard	$\begin{array}{rrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrr$
Grieve, Miller Griffin, Ruth Patee Griffin, Ruth Patee Griffih, P. Merrill Griffiths, John L Grinntell, William M Grinstead, Durward Gross, Christian Grootn, Lloyd C Groth, Edward M. Groth, Edward M. Groth, Edward M. Groth, E. Burd Grout, John H Grutb, E. Burd Gruth, E. Burd Gruther, Richard Guard, Madge Lee Guenther, Richard Guffer, Bernard	8, 310, 314, 321
Grieve, Miller Griffin, Ruth Patee Griffin, Thomas Griffith, P. Merrill Griffiths, John L Grinntell, William M Grinstead, Durward Grinstead, Durward Gross, Christian Groth, Edward M Groth, Edward M Groth, Edward M Groti, John H Groti, John H Grubb, E. Burd Grummon, Stuart E Guard, Madge Lee. Guenther, Richard Guffer, Bernard	$\begin{array}{cccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$
Grieve, Miller Griffin, Ruth Patee Griffin, Thomas Griffith, P. Merrill Griffiths, John L Griffiths, John L Grinstead, Durward Grinstead, Durward Gross, Christian Groth, Edward M Groth, Edward M Groth, Edward M Groth, Albert W. J Grott, John H Grubb, E. Burd Grummon, Stuart E Guard, Madge Lee Guenther, Richard Guffer, Bernard	$\begin{array}{cccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$
Grieve, Miller	$\begin{array}{cccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$
Grieve, Miller	$\begin{array}{cccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$
Grieve, Miller	$\begin{array}{cccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$

Pa	ge
Hackett, C. Jeanne	180
Hackworth, Green H 3, 24, 180, 3	302
	318
Haden, R. Allen 49, 112, 1	
	288
Haeberle, Arminius T 46, 99, 1	180
Haering, George J	
Hagen, Edward G	
Hagerman, Worthington E 45, 1	
Haig, Robert V	181
Hainer, Henry S	
	321
	320
	288
	300
	299
Hale, Edward J 288, 3	310
	288
	320
Hall, Allen A	
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	288
Hall, Carlos C	
Hall, Claude H., Jr 43, 109, 1	- 1
	308
Hall, Margaret	
Hall, Monroe B 40, 109, Halla, Blanche Rule 22, 26,	
Hal tead, Albert	
	288 288
	295
	288
	181
	320
Hamlin, John N 52, 105,	
	308
	288
	288
Hammond, Ogden H 288,	320
Hamrick, Frances M 11, 30,	181
	288
Hanlon, Edna H 1, 28, 1	182
	306
Hanna, Margaret M 22, 26, 1	182
Hanna, Matthew E 50, 96, 182, 313, 3	
	288
	288
	288
Hannan, Catherine E 20, 29,	182 318
Hannegan, Edward A	
Hansen, Alvin H	189
Hanson, George C 61, 101,	182
	288
Hanson, Hanna M 14, 25,	1
Hapgood, Norman	
Harding, Robert William 38, Harding, Warren Gamaliel	297
Hardisty, Olive F 20, 29,	182
Hardy, Arthur S 313, 317, 319, 320,	321
Hardy, James W	

	age
Hare, Raymond A	
Harlow, Blanche S	
	188 288
Harnden, Robert	
Harper, Oscar C 55,	183
Harriman, Oliver B	288
Harrington, George	321
Harrington, Julian F 37, 107,	183
Harris, Addison C	307
Harris, Arthur R 41, 43, 50, 56, 57,	
Harris, Charles B	238
Harris, Ernest L	
Harris, Leavitt	238
Harris, Townsend	311 314
Harris, Will 1, 26,	183
Harris, William A	306
Harrison, Benjamin	296
Harrison, Landreth M 9, 63, 108,	
Harrison, Leland 288, 301, 320,	322
Harrison, Randolph, Jr 51, 109,	183
Harrison, Thomas S	
Harrison, William H 295,	
Hart, Charles Burdett	
Hart, Charles C 183, 288, 306,	
Harter, Eugene C	
Harter, Janet M	
	288
Hartman, Charles S	1911
Harvey, Constance R	184
Harvey, George 288,	
	288
	318
Harvey, Roland B	288
Harvey, Ruth 21, 28,	184
Haselton, Seneca	322
Haskell, Lewis W	288
Haskins, Fred G 22, 28,	184
Haskins, Thomas W	
Hassaurek, Frederick Hathaway, Charles M., Jr 46, 98,	310
Hathaway, Charles M1, Jr 46, 98, Haven, Don S	
Haven, Joseph E	
Haven, Richard B. 52, 105,	184
Havenner, Albert B., 11, 27.	184
Havens, Harry A 7, 15, 23, 26,	184
Hawkins, Frank R 20, 32,	185
Hawkins, Harry C 18, 24,	
Hawkins, J. Cameron	288
Hawkins, Richard H	34
Hawks, Stanley. 54, 104,	185
Hawley, Harry F	185
Hawthorne, Carl O 40,	180
Hay, John 297, 299, 307, Hayes, Rutherford B	312 296
Haynes, Thornwell	
Hays, Perry C	288
Haywood, David C	185
Haywood, William	288
Hazeltine, Ross	288

Heald, Perley C. 288 Heard, Augustine. 315 Heard, William H. 315 Heard, William W. 46, 104, 185 Heath, Charles T. 288 Heath, Donald R. 8, 63, 103, 185 Heath, John 288 Heath, John 288 Hecht, Elizabeth 21, 28, 185 Heekt, Lewis 288, 321 Heckert, George T. 10, 26, 185 Heennan, Thomas E. 288 Heiler, Bernard F. 46, 102, 185 Heingartner, Alexander 288 Heingartner, Robert W. 46, 102, 185 Heingartner, Robert W. 46, 104, 186 Heizer, Oscar S. 114, 288 Hennry, Susanna 2, 29, 186 Henderson, Herbert H. 5, 31, 186 Henderson, Loy W. 61, 104, 186 Henry, Frank Anderson 39, 101, 186 Henry, Harold O. 288 Henry, Harold O. 288 Henry, William W. 288 Henry, William H. 5, 32, 187 Herter, Christian A. 288 Herser, William H. 5, 32, 187	F	age
Heard, Augustine	Heald, Perley C	288
Heard, William W		315
Hearin, Charles T 288 Heath, Donald R 8, 63, 103, 185 Heath, John 288 Heath, Elizabeth 21, 28, 185 Heckt, Elizabeth 21, 28, 185 Heckt, George T 10, 26, 185 Heenan, Thomas E 288 Heiner, Bernard F 46, 185 Heinrek, William 288, 311, 313 Heimrek, William 288, 311, 313 Heimrek, Robert W 46, 102, 185 Heintaleman, P. Stewart 38, 99, 186 Heisler, Charles H 49, 104, 186 Henderson, James E 43, 112, 186 Henderson, James E 43, 112, 186 Henderson, Loy W 61, 104, 186 Hentrick, Michael J 288 Henry, Frank Anderson 39, 101, 186 Henry, Herbert C 15, 26, 186 Henry, Harold O 288 Henry, Myron T 288, 312 Hered, William P., 2d 288 Herer, Christian A 288 Hessler, Willi	Heard, William H	
Hearin, Charles T 288 Heath, Donald R 8, 63, 103, 185 Heath, John 288 Heath, Elizabeth 21, 28, 185 Heckt, Elizabeth 21, 28, 185 Heckt, George T 10, 26, 185 Heenan, Thomas E 288 Heiner, Bernard F 46, 185 Heinrek, William 288, 311, 313 Heimrek, William 288, 311, 313 Heimrek, Robert W 46, 102, 185 Heintaleman, P. Stewart 38, 99, 186 Heisler, Charles H 49, 104, 186 Henderson, James E 43, 112, 186 Henderson, James E 43, 112, 186 Henderson, Loy W 61, 104, 186 Hentrick, Michael J 288 Henry, Frank Anderson 39, 101, 186 Henry, Herbert C 15, 26, 186 Henry, Harold O 288 Henry, Myron T 288, 312 Hered, William P., 2d 288 Herer, Christian A 288 Hessler, Willi	Heard, William W 46, 104	, 185
Heath, John 288 Hecht, Elizabeth 21, 28, 185 Hecker, George T 10, 26, 185 Henn, Thomas E 288 Heiler, Bernard F 46, 185 Heimke, William 288, 311, 313 Heimke, William 288, 311, 313 Heimke, William 288 Heingartner, Alexander 288 Heingartner, Robert W 46, 102, 185 Heingartner, Robert W 46, 102, 185 Heingertner, Alexander 288 Heingartner, Susanna 2.29, 186 Heitzer, Oscar S 114, 288 Henderson, Herbert H 5, 31, 186 Henderson, Loy W 61, 104, 186 Henderson, Loy W 61, 104, 186 Henry, Frank Anderson 39, 101, 186 Henry, Frank Anderson 39, 101, 186 Henry, William W 288 Henson, Abraham 315 Herrick, Myron T 288, 312 Herter, Christian A 288 Hessler, William H 288 Hessler, William H 288 Hessler, William H 288 Hessler, William H 288<	Hearin, Charles T	
Hecht, Elizabeth 21, 28, 185 Heckert, George T 10, 26, 185 Heenan, Thomas E 288 Heiler, Bernard F 46, 185 Heimke, William 288, 311, 313 Heimrod, George 288 Heingartner, Alexander 288 Heingartner, Robert W 46, 102, 185 Heingartner, Robert W 46, 102, 185 Heinzleman, P. Stewart 38, 99, 186 Heizler, Oscar S 114, 288 Henderson, Herbert H 5, 31, 186 Henderson, Loy W 61, 104, 186 Hendrick, Michael J 288 Henry, Frank Anderson 39, 101, 186 Henry, Harold O 288 Henry, John J 315 Henry, William W 288 Henson, Abraham 315 Herrick, Myron T 288, 312 Herter, Christian A 288 Hessler, William H 5, 32, 187 Hewes, Clarence B 288 Hessler, William H 5, 32, 187 Hewes, Clarence B 288 Hessler, William H 5, 32, 187 Hewes, Clarence B 288	Heath, Donald R 8, 63, 103	, 185
Hecht, Elizabeth 21, 28, 185 Heckert, George T 10, 26, 185 Heenan, Thomas E 288 Heiler, Bernard F 46, 185 Heimke, William 288, 311, 313 Heimrod, George 288 Heingartner, Alexander 288 Heingartner, Robert W 46, 102, 185 Heingartner, Robert W 46, 102, 185 Heinzleman, P. Stewart 38, 99, 186 Heizler, Oscar S 114, 288 Henderson, Herbert H 5, 31, 186 Henderson, Loy W 61, 104, 186 Hendrick, Michael J 288 Henry, Frank Anderson 39, 101, 186 Henry, Harold O 288 Henry, John J 315 Henry, William W 288 Henson, Abraham 315 Herrick, Myron T 288, 312 Herter, Christian A 288 Hessler, William H 5, 32, 187 Hewes, Clarence B 288 Hessler, William H 5, 32, 187 Hewes, Clarence B 288 Hessler, William H 5, 32, 187 Hewes, Clarence B 288	Heath, John	288
Heck, Lewis 288, 321 Heckert, George T 10, 26, 185 Heenan, Thomas E 288 Heiler, Bernard F 46, 185 Heimke, William 288, 311, 313 Heimrod, George 288 Heingartner, Alexander 288 Heingartner, Robert W 46, 102, 185 Heinzleman, P. Stewart 38, 99, 186 Heisler, Charles H 49, 104, 186 Henderson, Jerbert H 5, 31, 186 Henderson, James E 43, 112, 186 Henderson, Herbert H 5, 31, 186 Henderson, James E 43, 112, 186 Henderson, James E 43, 112, 186 Hengsher, Herbert C 15, 26, 186 Henry, Harold O 288 Henry, William M 288 Henry, William P., 2d 288 Herrick, Myron T 288, 312 Herrick, Myron T 288, 317, 301 Hibbard, Frederick P 5, 32, 187 <t< td=""><td></td><td>, 185</td></t<>		, 185
Heckert, George T	Heck, Lewis 288	. 321
Heenan, Thomas E. 288 Heiler, Bernard F. 46, 185 Heinke, William 288, 311, 313 Heingartner, Alexander 288 Heingartner, Robert W. 46, 102, 185 Heingartner, Robert W. 46, 102, 185 Heingartner, Robert W. 46, 102, 185 Heinzer, Charles H. 49, 104, 186 Heizer, Oscar S. 114, 288 Hennry, Susanna 2, 29, 186 Henderson, Herbert H. 5, 31, 186 Henderson, Loy W. 61, 104, 186 Hendrick, Michael J. 288 Henry, Frank Anderson 39, 101, 186 Henry, Harold O. 288 Henry, Harold O. 288 Henry, William W. 288 Herrick, Myron T. 288, 312 Herter, Christian A. 288 Herrick, Myron T. 288, 312 Herter, Christian A. 288 Hester, William H. 53, 2187 Hewes, Thomas 1, 24, 187, 301 Hibbard, Frederick P. 8, 63, 101, 187 Hibbard, Frederick P. 8, 63, 101, 187 Hibbard, Frederick P. 19, 66, 107, 187 <	Heckert, George T 10, 26	, 185
Heimke, William 288, 311, 313 Heimrod, George 288 Heingartner, Alexander 288 Heingartner, Robert W 46, 102, 185 Heinzleman, P. Stewart 38, 99, 186 Heisler, Charles H 49, 104, 186 Heinzer, Oscar S 114, 288 Henvry, Susanna 2, 29, 186 Henderson, Herbert H 5, 31, 186 Henderson, James E 43, 112, 186 Henderson, Loy W 61, 104, 186 Hendrick, Michael J 288 Henry, Frank Anderson 39, 101, 186 Henry, Frank Anderson 39, 101, 186 Henry, Harold O 288 Henry, John J 315 Herrok, Myron T 288 Herrick, Myron T 288 Heerter, Christian A 288 Hessler, William H 288 Hessler, William H 288 Hessler, William H 288 Hessler, Monta 1, 24, 187, 301 Hibbad, Frederick P 1, 26, 187 Hibbard, Frederick P 1, 12, 61, 87 Hickerson, John 8, 33, 24, 187 Hickeks, Knowlton V	Heenan, Thomas E	288
Heimke, William 288, 311, 313 Heimrod, George 288 Heingartner, Alexander 288 Heingartner, Robert W 46, 102, 185 Heinzleman, P. Stewart 38, 99, 186 Heisler, Charles H 49, 104, 186 Heinzer, Oscar S 114, 288 Henvry, Susanna 2, 29, 186 Henderson, Herbert H 5, 31, 186 Henderson, James E 43, 112, 186 Henderson, Loy W 61, 104, 186 Hendrick, Michael J 288 Henry, Frank Anderson 39, 101, 186 Henry, Frank Anderson 39, 101, 186 Henry, Harold O 288 Henry, John J 315 Herrok, Myron T 288 Herrick, Myron T 288 Heerter, Christian A 288 Hessler, William H 288 Hessler, William H 288 Hessler, William H 288 Hessler, Monta 1, 24, 187, 301 Hibbad, Frederick P 1, 26, 187 Hibbard, Frederick P 1, 12, 61, 87 Hickerson, John 8, 33, 24, 187 Hickeks, Knowlton V	Heiler, Bernard F 46	, 185
Heimrod, George 288 Heingartner, Alexander 288 Heingartner, Robert W. 46, 102, 185 Heinsler, Charles H. 49, 104, 186 Heizer, Oscar S. 114, 288 Hennry, Susanna 2, 29, 186 Henderson, Herbert H. 5, 31, 186 Henderson, James E. 43, 112, 186 Henderson, Loy W. 61, 104, 186 Hendrick, Michael J. 288 Hengstler, Herbert G. 15, 26, 186 Henry, Frank Anderson 39, 101, 186 Henry, Frank Anderson 39, 101, 186 Henry, Harold O. 288 Henson, Abraham 315 Herod, William P., 2d 288 Herster, Christian A 288 Hessler, William H. 5, 32, 187 Hewes, Clarence B 288 Hewes, Clarence B 288 Hewes, Clarence B 288 Hibbard, Frederick P 11, 26, 187 Hibbard, Frederick P 11, 26, 187 Hibbard, Frederick P 21, 31, 187 Hibbard, Frederick P 283, 309, 317 Hickers, John 823, 304, 317		
Heingartner, Alexander. 288 Heingartner, Robert W		
Heingartner, Robert W. 46, 102, 185 Heintzleman, P. Stewart. 38, 99, 186 Heizer, Charles H. 49, 104, 186 Heiner, Oscar S. .114, 288 Henury, Susanna 2, 29, 186 Henderson, Herbert H. 5, 31, 186 Henderson, Loy W. 61, 104, 186 Henderson, Loy W. 61, 104, 186 Hendrick, Michael J. 288 Hengstler, Herbert C. 15, 26, 186 Henry, Frank Anderson. 39, 101, 186 Henry, Harold O. 288 Henry, Harold O. 288 Henry, William W. 288 Herrick, Myron T. 288, 312 Herter, Christian A. 288 Hessler, William H. 53, 2187 Hewes, Clarence B. 288 Hewes, Thomas 1, 24, 187, 301 Hibbard, Frederick P. 11, 26, 187 Hickks, John. 8, 23, 24, 187 Hickks, John. 288, 309, 317 Hicks, James C. 21, 31, 187 Hicks, John. 288 Higgins, Lawrence. 56, 102, 187 Higks, John 288 Higgins,	Heingartner, Alexander	288
Heintzleman, P. Stewart	Heingartner, Robert W 46, 102	, 185
Heisler, Charles H. 49, 104, 186 Heizer, Oscar S. 114, 288 Hentry, Susanna 2, 29, 186 Henderson, Herbert H. 5, 31, 186 Henderson, James E. 43, 112, 186 Henderson, Loy W. 61, 104, 186 Hendrick, Michael J. 288 Hensstler, Herbert C. 15, 26, 186 Henry, Frank Anderson 39, 101, 186 Henry, Frank Anderson 39, 101, 186 Henry, Harold O. 288 Henry, John J. 315 Henry, William W. 288 Hertick, Myron T. 288, 312 Herter, Christian A. 288 Hester, William H. 5, 32, 187 Hewes, Clarence B. 288 Hester, William H. 5, 32, 187 Hibbard, Frederick P. 8, 63, 101, 157 Hibbard, Frederick P. 11, 26, 187 Hickek, John 288, 309, 317 Hickok, Thomas A. 57, 110, 187 Hickek, John 288, 309, 317 Hickok, Thomas A. 57, 110, 187 Hickok, John 288, 309, 317 Hickok, Thomas A. 57, 110, 187		
Heizer, Oscar S 114, 288 Henury, Susanna 2, 29, 186 Henderson, Herbert H 5, 31, 186 Henderson, Loy W 61, 104, 186 Hendrick, Michael J 288 Henstler, Herbert C 15, 26, 186 Henry, Frank Anderson 39, 101, 186 Henry, Harold O 288 Henry, Harold O 288 Henry, William W 288 Herrick, Myron T 288, 312 Herter, Christian A 288 Hester, William H 5, 32, 187 Hibbard, Frederick P 8, 63, 101, 187 Hibbard, Frederick P 8, 63, 101, 187 Hibbs, Walter P 11, 26, 187 Hickerson, John 8, 23, 24, 187 Hickerson, John 8, 33, 93, 317 Hicks, John 288 Higgins, Lawrence 56, 100, 187 Higgins, Lawrence 56, 101, 187 Higgins, Lawrence 56, 103, 1		
Henury, Susanna. 2, 29, 186 Henderson, Herbert H 5, 31, 186 Henderson, Loy W 61, 104, 186 Hendrick, Michael J 288 Hengstler, Herbert C 15, 26, 186 Henry, Frank Anderson 39, 101, 186 Henry, Harold O 258 Henry, Harold O 258 Henry, Harold O 258 Henry, William W 288 Herod, William P., 2d 288 Herter, Christian A 288 Hester, William H 288 Hester, William H 288 Hester, William H 53, 21, 187 Hibbard, Frederick P 8, 63, 101, 187 Hibbard, Frederick P 12, 64, 187, 301 Hibbard, Krederick P 11, 26, 187 Hickerson, John 8, 23, 24, 187 Hicks, James C 21, 31, 187 Hicks, John 288 Higgins, Lawrence 56, 100, 187 Higgins, Lawrence 56, 100, 187 Higgins, Lawrence 56, 103, 187 Higgins, Lawrence 56, 108, 187 Higgins, Lawrence 56, 108, 187 Higgins, Lawrenc		
Henderson, Herbert H. 5, 31, 186 Henderson, James E. 43, 112, 186 Henderson, Loy W. 61, 104, 186 Hendrick, Michael J. 288 Hengstler, Herbert C. 15, 26, 186 Henry, Frank Anderson 39, 101, 186 Henry, Frank Anderson 39, 101, 186 Henry, Harold O. 288 Henry, Harold O. 288 Henry, William W. 288 Herson, Abraham 315 Herter, Christian A. 288 Hessler, William H. 288 Hewes, Clarence B. 288 Heber, Factorn 288 Hibbard, Frederick P. 11, 26, 187 Hickerson, John 8, 23, 24, 187 Hickok, Thomas A. 57, 110, 187 Hicks, James C. 21, 31, 187 Hickok, Thomas A. 57, 110, 187 Hicks, John 288 Higgins, Lawrence 56, 108, 187 Higgins, Lawrence 56, 108,		
Henderson, James E. 43, 112, 186 Henderson, Loy W 61, 104, 186 Hendrick, Michael J 288 Henryt, Herbert C 15, 26, 186 Henry, Frank Anderson 39, 101, 186 Henry, Frank Anderson 39, 101, 186 Henry, Frank Anderson 39, 101, 186 Henry, William W 288 Henry, William P., 2d 288 Herrick, Myron T 288 Herter, Christian A 288 Hessler, William H 288 Hewes, Clarence B 288 Hibbard, Frederick P 1, 24, 187, 301 Hibbard, Frederick P 11, 26, 187 Hickerson, John 8, 32, 24, 187 Hicks, John 288, 309, 317 Hicks, Sohn 288, 309, 317 Hicks, Knowlton V 60, 107, 187 Higgins, Lawrence 56, 108, 187 Higgins, Lawrence 56, 108, 187 Higgins, Lawrence <td>Henderson, Herbert H 5.31</td> <td></td>	Henderson, Herbert H 5.31	
Henderson, Loy W. $61, 104, 186$ Hendrick, Michael J. 288 Henzstler, Herbert C. $15, 26, 186$ Henry, Frank Anderson $39, 101, 186$ Henry, Frank Anderson $39, 101, 186$ Henry, Harold O. 288 Henry, Harold O. 288 Henry, William W. 288 Hernoy, William W. 288 Herrick, Myron T. 288, 312 Herter, Christian A. 288 Hester, William H. $5, 32, 187$ Hewes, Clarence B. 288 Hester, William H. $5, 32, 187$ Hibbard, Frederick P. $8, 63, 101, 187$ Hibbard, Frederick P. $8, 63, 101, 187$ Hickerson, John $8, 23, 24, 187$ Hicks, James C. $21, 31, 187$ Hicks, John $288, 309, 317$ Hicks, John $288, 309, 317$ Hicks, John 288 Higgins, Edward 288 Higgins, Lawrence $56, 112, 187$ Higgs, L. Randolph $56, 112, 187$ Hill, Prank D 288 Higgins, Lawrence $56, 112, 187$ <t< td=""><td></td><td></td></t<>		
Hendrick, Michael J		
Hengstler, Herbert C. 15, 26, 186 Henrotin, Frederick F. 55, 186 Henry, Frank Anderson. 39, 101, 186 Henry, Harold O. 258 Henry, William W. 288 Henry, William W. 288 Herrok, Myron T. 288 Herrick, Myron T. 288 Herter, Christian A. 288 Hester, William H. 288 Hester, William H. 288 Hester, William H. 288 Hester, William H. 5, 32, 187 Hewes, Clarence B. 288 Hewes, Thomas 1, 24, 187, 301 Hibbard, Frederick P. 11, 26, 187 Hibbs, Walter P. 11, 26, 187 Hickerson, John 8, 23, 24, 187 Hicks, James C. 21, 31, 187 Hicks, John 288, 309, 317 Hicks, John 288 Higgins, Lawrence 56, 108, 187 Higgs, Lawrence 56, 108, 187 Higgs, L. Randolph 56, 112, 187 Hill, David J. 288, 300, 312, 315, 316, 321 Hill, Frank D 288 Hill, Hayward G. 35, 1		
Henrotin, Frederick F	Hengstler Herbert C 15.26	186
Henry, Frank Anderson 39, 101, 186 Henry, Harold O 288 Henry, John J 315 Herry, William W 288 Henson, Abraham 315 Herod, William P., 2d 288 Herrick, Myron T 288, 312 Herter, Christian A 288 Hessler, William H 288 Hessler, William H 288 Hessler, William H 288 Hewes, Clarence B 288 Hewes, Thomas 1, 24, 187, 301 Hibbard, Frederick P 8, 63, 101, 187 Hickerson, John 8, 23, 24, 187 Hicks, James C 21, 31, 187 Hicks, John 288, 309, 317 Hicks, Knowlton V 60, 107, 187 Higgins, John C 288 Higgins, John C 288 Higgins, Lawrence 56, 108, 187 Higgins, Lawrence 56, 108, 187 Hill, Mayward G 35, 111, 187 Hill, James 4, 32, 185 Hill, Hayward G 35, 111, 187 Hill, Jaheb W 288 Hill, Hayward G 35, 111, 187 <td< td=""><td>Henrotin Frederick F 55</td><td>186</td></td<>	Henrotin Frederick F 55	186
Henry, Harold O	Henry Frank Anderson 39 101	186
Henry, John J. 315 Henry, William W. 288 Henson, Abraham. 315 Herod, William P., 2d. 288 Herrick, Myron T. 288, 312 Herter, Christian A. 288 Hester, William H. 5, 32, 187 Hewes, Clarence B. 288 Hewes, Clarence B. 288 Hewes, Thomas. 1, 24, 187, 301 Hibbard, Frederick P. 8, 63, 101, 187 Hibbs, Walter P. 11, 26, 187 Hickerson, John 8, 23, 24, 187 Hicks, James C. 21, 31, 187 Hicks, John 288, 309, 317 Hicks, John 288, 309, 317 Higgins, Edward 288 Higgins, Lawrence 56, 108, 187 Higgs, L. Randolph 56, 112, 187 Hill, David J. 288, 300, 312, 315, 316, 321 Hill, Hayward G. 35, 111, 187 Hill, James 4, 24, 188 Hill, Hayward G. 35, 111, 187 Hill, Jahph W. S. 4, 24, 188 Hillenkoetter, Roscoe H. 44, 188 Hilliard, Henry W. 307, 308 Hills, Ralph W.	Honey Horold O	
Henson, Abraham. 315 Herod, William P., 2d. 288 Herter, Christian A. 288 Hessler, William H. 288 Hessler, William H. 5, 32, 187 Hewes, Clarence B. 288 Hewes, Chornes. 1, 24, 187, 301 Hibbard, Frederick P. 8, 63, 101, 187 Hibben, Paxton. 288 Hibbs, Walter P. 11, 26, 187 Hickok, Thomas A. 57, 110, 187 Hickok, Thomas A. 57, 110, 187 Hickok, Thomas A. 57, 110, 187 Hickok, Sohn. 288, 309, 317 Hicks, James C. 21, 31, 187 Hickok, Sohn. 288, 309, 317 Hicks, James C. 21, 31, 187 Higgins, Edward 288 Higgins, Lawrence. 56, 108, 187 Higgins, Lawrence. 56, 108, 187 Hill, Pavid J. 288, 300, 312, 315, 316, 321 Hill, Hayward G. 35, 111, 187 Hill, James. 4, 32, 187 Hill, Jahph W. 2, 29, 187 Hill, Jahph W. 288 Hillenkoetter, Roscoe H. 44, 188 Hillen	Henry, Iarolu O	
Henson, Abraham. 315 Herod, William P., 2d. 288 Herter, Christian A. 288 Hessler, William H. 288 Hessler, William H. 5, 32, 187 Hewes, Clarence B. 288 Hewes, Chornes. 1, 24, 187, 301 Hibbard, Frederick P. 8, 63, 101, 187 Hibben, Paxton. 288 Hibbs, Walter P. 11, 26, 187 Hickok, Thomas A. 57, 110, 187 Hickok, Thomas A. 57, 110, 187 Hickok, Thomas A. 57, 110, 187 Hickok, Sohn. 288, 309, 317 Hicks, James C. 21, 31, 187 Hickok, Sohn. 288, 309, 317 Hicks, James C. 21, 31, 187 Higgins, Edward 288 Higgins, Lawrence. 56, 108, 187 Higgins, Lawrence. 56, 108, 187 Hill, Pavid J. 288, 300, 312, 315, 316, 321 Hill, Hayward G. 35, 111, 187 Hill, James. 4, 32, 187 Hill, Jahph W. 2, 29, 187 Hill, Jahph W. 288 Hillenkoetter, Roscoe H. 44, 188 Hillen	Henry, John J	
Herod, William P., 2d		
Herrick, Myron T 288, 312 Herter, Christian A 288 Hessler, William H 288 Hester, William H 5, 32, 187 Hewes, Clarence B 288 Hewes, Clarence B 288 Hewes, Thomas 1, 24, 187, 301 Hibbard, Frederick P 8, 63, 101, 157 Hibbs, Walter P 11, 26, 187 Hickerson, John 8, 23, 24, 187 Hicks, James C 21, 31, 187 Hicks, James C 21, 31, 187 Hicks, John 288, 309, 317 Hicks, John 288, 309, 317 Hicks, John 288, 309, 317 Higgins, Edward 288 Higgins, Lawrence 56, 112, 187 Higgs, L. Randolph 56, 112, 187 Hill, David J 288, 300, 312, 315, 316, 321 Hill, Hayward G 35, 111, 187 Hill, James 4, 24, 188 Hill, Jahph W. S 4, 24, 188 Hillenkoetter, Roscoe H 44, 188 Hillindrd, Henry W 307, 308 Hills, Ralph W 288 Hills, Ralph W 285		
Herter, Christian A	Herrick Muron T	210
Hessler, William H. 288 Hester, William H. 5, 32, 187 Hewes, Clarence B. 288 Hewes, Thomas. 1, 24, 187, 301 Hibbard, Frederick P. 8, 63, 101, 187 Hibbard, Frederick P. 11, 26, 187 Hikbos, Walter P. 11, 26, 187 Hickok, Thomas A. 57, 110, 187 Hickok, Thomas A. 57, 110, 187 Hicks, John. 288, 309, 317 Hicks, Knowlton V. 60, 107, 187 Higgins, Edward 288 Higgins, Lawrence. 56, 108, 187 Higgins, Lawrence. 56, 108, 187 Hill, Parak D. 288 Hill, Hayward G. 35, 111, 187 Hill, James. 4, 32, 185 Hill, Mayward G. 35, 111, 187 Hill, John L. 2, 29, 187 Hill, Ralph W. S. 4, 24, 188 Hillard, Henry W. 307, 308 Hills, Ralph W. 288 Hillik, Ralph W. 288 Hills, Ralph W. 288 Hillik, Ralph W. 288		
Hester, William H		
Hewes, Clarence B. 288 Hewes, Thomas. 1, 24, 187, 301 Hibbard, Frederick P. 8, 63, 101, 187 Hibbs, Walter P. 11, 26, 187 Hickerson, John 8, 23, 24, 187 Hickerson, John 8, 23, 24, 187 Hickex, Thomas A. 57, 110, 187 Hicks, James C. 21, 31, 187 Hicks, John 288, 309, 317 Hicks, John 288, 309, 317 Hicks, John 288, 309, 317 Higgins, Edward 288 Higgins, Lawrence 56, 108, 187 Hill, David J. 288, 300, 312, 315, 316, 321 Hill, Frank D. 288 Hill, Hayward G. 35, 111, 187 Hill, James 4, 24, 188 Hillenkoetter, Roscoe H. 44, 188 Hillard, Henry W. 307, 308 Hills, Ralph W. 288 Hillard, Henry W. 208 Hills, Ralph W. 288 Hillerkey, Robert O'D. 288		
Hewes, Thomas		
Hibben, Paxton	Howes, Clarence D	200
Hibben, Paxton	Hibbord Frederick P 8 62 101	107
Hibbs, Walter P	Hibbard, Frederick F	
Hickerson, John 8, 23, 24, 187 Hickok, Thomas A 57, 110, 187 Hicks, James C 21, 31, 187 Hicks, John 288, 309, 317 Hicks, Knowlton V 60, 107, 187 Higgins, Edward 288 Higgins, Lawrence 56, 108, 187 Higgs, L. Randolph 56, 112, 187 Hill, David J 288, 300, 312, 315, 316, 321 Hill, Hayward G 35, 111, 187 Hill, James 4, 32, 187 Hill, Ralph W. S 4, 24, 188 Hillard, Henry W 307, 308 Hills, Ralph W. 288 Hillik, Ralph W. 288 Hillik, Ralph W. 288 Hillerd, Henry W 307, 308 Hillk, Ralph W. 288 Hillerd, Henry W 207, 308 Hillk, Ralph W. 288 Hillerd, Henry W 207, 308 Hillkey, Robert O'D 288	Hibbe Welter D	288
Hickok, Thomas A	HIDDS, Walter P 11, 26,	187
Hicks, James C. 21, 31, 187 Hicks, John 288, 309, 317 Hicks, Knowlton V. 60, 107, 187 Higgins, Edward 288 Higgins, John C. 288 Higgins, Lawrence 56, 108, 187 Higgins, Lawrence 56, 108, 187 Hilg, David J. 288, 300, 312, 315, 316, 321 Hill, David J. 288, 300, 312, 315, 316, 321 Hill, Hayward G. 35, 111, 187 Hill, James. 4, 32, 187 Hill, John L. 2, 29, 187 Hill, Ralph W. S. 4, 24, 188 Hillenkoetter, Roscoe H. 44, 188 Hillis, Ralph W. 288 Hills, Ralph W. 288 Hills, Ralph W. 288 Hillk, , Robert O'D 288		
Hicks, John		
Hicks, Knowlton V		
Higgins, Edward 288 Higgins, John C 288 Higgins, Lawrence 56, 108, 187 Higgs, L. Randolph 56, 112, 187 Hill, David J 288, 300, 312, 315, 316, 321 Hill, Frank D 288 Hill, Hayward G 35, 111, 187 Hill, James 4, 32, 187 Hill, Ralph W. S 4, 24, 188 Hillenkoetter, Roscoe H 44, 188 Hillird, Henry W 307, 308 Hills, Ralph W. 288 Hillenkoetter, Robert O'D 288	Hicks, John 288, 309,	317
Higgins, John C. 288 Higgins, Lawrence. 56, 108, 187 Higgs, L. Randolph. 56, 112, 187 Hill, David J. 288, 300, 312, 315, 316, 321 Hill, Frank D. 288 Hill, Hayward G. 35, 111, 187 Hill, James. 4, 32, 187 Hill, John L. 2, 29, 187 Hill, Ralph W. S. 4, 24, 188 Hillenkoetter, Roscoe H. 44, 188 Hilliard, Henry W. 307, 308 Hilmenel, Lyle C. 41, 188 Himnel, Lyle C. 21, 188	Hicks, Knowiton V 60, 107,	187
Higgins, Lawrence		
Higgs, L. Randolph		
Hill, David J		
Hill, Frank D. 288 Hill, Hayward G. 35, 111, 187 Hill, James. 4, 32, 187 Hill, John L. 2, 29, 187 Hill, Ralph W. S. 4, 24, 188 Hillenkoetter, Roscoe H. 44, 188 Hillard, Henry W. 307, 308 Hills, Ralph W. 288 Hills, Ralph W. 288 Hillnekoetter, Roscoe H. 41, 188 Hills, Ralph W. 288 Hills, Ralph W. 288 Hillekoettey, Robert O'D. 288		
Hill, Hayward G		
Hill, James		
Hill, John L. 2, 29, 187 Hill, Ralph W. S. 4, 24, 188 Hillenkoetter, Roscoe H. 44, 188 Hilliard, Henry W. 307, 308 Hills, Ralph W. 288 Himmel, Lyle C. 41, 188 Hinckley, Robert O'D. 288		
Hillenkoetter, Roscoe H	Hill, James	187
Hillenkoetter, Roscoe H	Hill, John L. 2, 29,	187
Hilliard, Henry W		
Hills, Ralph W	Hillenkoetter, Roscoe H 44,	188
Hills, Ralph W	Hilliard, Henry W	308
Hinckley, Robert O'D. 288	Hills, Ralph W	288
	Himmel, Lyle C 41,	188
288		
	fildckley, f nomas	288

Hiner, Zern 1	
ALLIOI, MILLING	7, 37, 188
Hinke, Frederick W 40	, 107, 188
Hinkle, Eugene M 35	
Hinkle, Terry S 37	, 108, 188
Hirsch, Solomon	
Hirst, Ralph K 2	
Hise, Elijah	
Hitch, Calvin M 6	
Hitehcock, Ethan A	319
Hitchcock, Henry B Hitt, R. S. Reynolds 288, 313, Hitt, Robert R	288
Hitt, R. S. Reynolds 288, 313,	317, 322
Hitt, Robert R	299
Hobbs, James A	0.31.188
Hobbs, Wanda N	5. 30, 188
Hodgdon A Dana 61	10.1 188
Hodge, William.	304 <i>n</i>
Hoefele, Philip M	288
Hofer, Myron A	
Hoffman, Wickham	310
Hoffmann, Erich W. A	35, 189
Hoffmann, Walter W 49,	112, 189
Hogan, Leo P	288
Hogg, Theodore B	288
Hohenthal, Theodore J 62,	112, 189
Hoke, Joseph T	- 288
Holaday, Ross E	
Holder, Charles A	
Holland, Amy C	
Holland, Philip	8 00 180
Holler, John E 41,	
Hollis, W. Stanley	
Hollister, Gideon H	. 313
Hollister, Joseph S.	288
Holloway, William R.	
Holmes, James O	34
Holmes, Julius C	107, 189
Holsinger, Otto R 22	2, 32, 189
Honaker, Samuel W 47,	100, 189
Honey, Robertson 37,	103, 189
Hood, Hugh S.	116
Hood, Hugh S Hood, Solomon P	
Hood, Solomon P	288, 315
Hood, Solomon P48 Hoover, Charles L48	288, 315 8, 99, 189
Hood, Solomon P	288, 315 8, 99, 189 298
Hood, Solomon P Hoover, Charles L 48 Hoover, Herbert Clark Hope, Leighton	288, 315 8, 99, 189 298 289
Hood, Solomon P Hoover, Charles L	288, 315 3, 99, 189 298 289 318
Hood, Solomon P	288, 315 3, 99, 189 298 289 318 315
Hood, Solomon P	288, 315 3, 99, 189 298 289 318 315 0, 31, 190
Hood, Solomon P	288, 315 3, 99, 189 298 289 318 315 0, 31, 190
Hood, Solomon P	288, 315 3, 99, 189 298 289 318 315 0, 31, 190 102, 190 2, 33, 190
Hood, Solomon P	288, 315 3, 99, 189 298 289 318 315 0, 31, 190 102, 190 2, 33, 190 5, 29, 190
Hood, Solomon P	288, 315 3, 99, 189 - 298 - 289 - 318 - 315), 31, 190 102, 190 2, 33, 190 5, 29, 190 105, 190
Hood, Solomon P	288, 315 3, 99, 189 298 289 318 315), 31, 190 102, 190 2, 33, 190 105, 190 105, 190 2, 1100
Hood, Solomon P	288, 315 3, 99, 189
Hood, Solomon P	288, 315 3, 99, 189
Hood, Solomon P	288, 315 3, 99, 189
Hood, Solomon P	288, 315 3, 99, 189 - 298 - 289 - 318 - 315 0, 31, 190 102, 190 1, 33, 190 105, 190 105, 190 5, 24, 190 - 57, 317, 320 114, 289
Hood, Solomon P	288, 315 5, 99, 189 - 288 - 289 - 318 - 315 , 31, 190 (, 33, 190 (, 24, 190 - 57, 317, 320 114, 289 101, 190
Hood, Solomon P	288, 315 \$,99, 189 298 289 318 315),31, 190 102, 190 3,3, 190 105, 190 105, 190 105, 190 27, 317, 320 114, 289 101, 190 289
Hood, Solomon P	288, 315 8, 99, 189 298 289 315), 31, 190 102, 190 0, 23, 190 105, 190 5, 24, 190 57, 317, 320 114, 289 101, 190 289 289
Hood, Solomon P	288, 315 \$,99, 189 289 289 318 315),31, 190 102, 190 i,23, 190 105, 190 i,24, 190 57, 57, 190 289 101, 190 289 289 289 289
Hood, Solomon P	288, 315 \$,99, 189 288 318 315),31, 190 102, 190 \$,33, 190 105, 190 \$,29, 190 105, 190 \$,24, 190 57, 317, 320 114, 289 101, 190 289 289 31, 191
Hood, Solomon P	288, 315 \$,99, 189 288 318 315),31, 190 102, 190 \$,33, 190 105, 190 \$,29, 190 105, 190 \$,24, 190 57, 317, 320 114, 289 101, 190 289 289 289 31, 191 \$,30, 191
Hood, Solomon P	288, 315 \$,99, 189 288 318 315),31, 190 102, 190 \$,33, 190 105, 190 \$,29, 190 105, 190 \$,24, 190 57, 317, 320 114, 289 101, 190 289 289 289 31, 191 \$,30, 191

P	ago
Houghton, Alanson B. 289, Hovey, Alvin P. 21, 30, Hovgren, Luella I. O. 21, 30,	312
Hovey, Alvin P	317
Hovgren, Luella I. O. 21, 30,	191
Howard, Itemy Cray	191
Howard, R. Flournoy	289
Howard, Tilghinan A	321
Howe, Church	289
Howe, William S	289
Howell, Comer	289
Howell, J. Morton	311
Howell, Williamson S., Jr 44, 99,	191
Howells, Joseph A	289
How Edna F	191
Hoyt, Edna K. Hoyt, Elton Maynard	101
Hoyt, Henry M	191
Hoyt, Henry M. Hoyt, Ira F	29c
Hubbard Phil H 19,000	101
Hubbard, Richard B	21.1
Hubner, John, 2d 40, 111,	101
Huddle, J. Klahr 58 00	101
Huddleston, John F 46 105	191
Huddle, J. Klahr 58, 99, Huddleston, John F 46, 105, Hudson, Joel C 56, 105,	192
Hudson, Silas A	313
Hudson, Silas A Huestis, Richard S	192
Huggins, Harold C	289
Huggins, Harold C Hughes, Charles Evans	297
Hughes, Christopher	320
Hughes, James J 12 33	192
Hughes, Morris N	192
Hughes, Morris N 52, 108, Hughes, Thomas L 35,	192
Huhn, Tevis	289
Hukill, George R	192
Hull, Cordell 1, 24, 26, 192,	298
Hull, Moody	192
Hull, Willard B	289
Hulley, Benjamin M	192
Hultberg, Hulda 12, 33,	192
Humphreys, David 305, 306, 318,	320
Hunt, Bert L 4, 24, Hunt, George W. P 289, Hunt, Leigh W 36, 54,	192
Hunt, George W. P 289,	320
Hunt, Leigh W	193
Hunt, Ralph H 49,	193
Hunt, William H. 114,	289
Hunt, William H	319
Hunter, W. Godfrey	314
Hunter, W. Godfrey	308
Hunter, William, Jr. 296, 299, 302, 3	303
Hunter, william D	289
Hurd, Alan T.	289
numbut, stephen A	317
Hurley, John P	193
Hurst, Carlton	105
Hurst Carlton Bailoy 114	280
Hurst, Carlton Bailey	102
Huston, Jay C	280
Hutchinson Charles A 53 110	102
Hutchinson, Norman	289
Hutchinson, Norman	193
Hyde, Charles Cheney	
	302

Pa	ige.
Iddings, Lewis M 289,	311
Ide, Henry C 289,	
Ifft, George N 114,	
Ingersoll, George P 289,	320
	312
	319
Ingle, J. Forrest 48,	194
Ingram, Augustus E	289
Ingram, Donald McC	289
Irving, Washington	320
Irwin, John N	318
Irwin, William W	310
Ives, Ernest L 45, 100,	
Ives, John R	289
Izard, Ralph	305
Jackson, Alfred L 18, 32,	194
	295
Jackson, George H.	289
Jackson, Henry R 306,	315
	310
Jackson, James E 9, 32,	194
Jackson, Jesse B 37, 101,	
Jackson, John B	289,
308, 310, 313, 315, 317, 319,	320
Jackson, William I	289
Jacob, Charles D	309
Jacobs, Eva Harris 4,25,	194
Jacobs, Joseph E 63, 100,	194
Jacobson, S. Bertrand	289
Jaeckel, Theodore 38, 99,	194
James, Douglas 194,	
James, Virginia H 5, 31,	
James, William G 11, 29,	
Jameson, J. Panl	
Jandrey, Fred W 48, 112,	
	289
Janson, Esther C 19, 28,	195
Janz, Robert	195
Jardine, William M 195, 289,	311
Jarrell, Henry T	195
Jarvis, Robert Y 39, 103,	195 308
Jarvis, Thomas J Jawney, Ignatius 22, 27,	
Jay, John	312
Jay, Peter Augustus	283
289, 306, 311,	
Jeffers, William N	308
Jefferson, Benjamin L 289,	
Jefferson, Thomas 294,	
Jeffery, Robert E 289,	
Jelatis, John P	116
	306
Jenkins, Douglas 46,98,	195
Jenkins, Douglas, Jr 40, 112,	195
Jenkins, John	289
Jenkins, William L	289
Jensen, Julius C 56,	
Jernigan, Henry S 39	, 195
Jessop, Walter E 20, 30	
Jester, Perry N 49, 108	
Jewell, John F	289
Jewell, Marshall	319
Jewett, Albert G	317
Jewett, Milo A	289

Page
Johnson, Albion W 42, 196
Johnson, Andrew
Johnson, Cave
Johnson, Charles L 20, 32, 196
Johnson, Charles M 13, 32, 196
Johnson, Cone
Johnson, Elda B 9, 30, 196
Johnson, Ellis A
Johnson, Eugene H
Johnson, Felix S. S
Johnson, Frederick C 37, 196
Johnson, Hallett
Johnson, Henry A 114, 289
Johnson, Herschel V 47, 100, 196
Johnson, James W 289
Johnson, Jesse H 289
Johnson, John D 37, 101, 196
Johnson, Joseph L 289, 315
Johnson, Leslie W. 41, 196
Johnson, Nelson T 39, 96, 197, 301, 309
Johnson, Reverdy
Johnson, Robert U 289, 314
Johnson, Sara A. M 11, 30, 197
Johnson, Stewart 289
Johnson, William E 5, 32, 197
Johnston, Inez
Johnston, James
Jones, Alfred W 289
Jones, Arthur M
Jones, Floyd S
Jones, Frances B
Jones, Gerald G
Jones, Harold Frederic
Jones, J. Glancy
Jones, John Edward 289
Jones, Joseph Russell
Jones, T. Sambola
Jones, Thomas C
Jones, Victor E
Jones, William Oscar
Jordan, Curtis C 59, 102, 197
Jordan, Francis C
Jordan, Royal R
Jordan, Russell B 37, 197
Josselyn, Paul R 40, 100, 197
Jova, Eugene E
Joyce, Robert P 57, 109, 198
Judah, Noble Brandon 289, 310
Judd, Norman B
Judelsohn, Montefiore
Jukes, Arthur D 57, 198
Kagey, Charles L. 289, 311
Kaiser, Louis
Karnes, William
Kasson, John A
Kaufman, David E 198, 289, 308, 320
Kavanagh, Edward
Kazanjian, Reginald S 48, 111, 198
Kearney, Mary P 11, 30, 198
Kearney, Walter 17, 198

Page	
Keating, Joseph T 18, 25, 198	
Keatley, G. Harold 2, 26, 198	
Keblinger, Wilbur	
Keeley, James Hugh, Jr 37, 103, 198 Keena, Leo J 44, 98, 198	
Keene, Francis B 114, 289	
Kegg, Cressy L	
Kehl, John E 114, 199, 289	
Keiser, Robert L	
Keith, Gerald 48, 108, 199	
Kelchner, Warren)
Kelley, Robert F 9, 24, 199	
Kelley, William F	
Kellogg, Frank B. 297, 298, 312	
Kellogg, James C	
Kellogg, William 313 Kelly, George F 49, 199	
Kelly, Helen G	5
Kelly, Ruth E	
Kelly, William J	,
Kelsey, Easton T 43, 111, 199	,
Kemp, Edwin Carl 37, 101, 200)
Kemp, Percy G 48, 200)
Kemper, Graham H 51, 100, 200	
Kendall, Frederick A 34	ł
Kendrick, Stephen E. C. 38, 112, 200)
Kenestrick, Millard L	,
Kennedy, John R 14, 27, 200	,
Kennedy, Maud	
Kenny, William T	
Kent, William P 114, 289	
Kent, Zolita M 8, 29, 200)
•Keogh, John B 49, 200)
Keppler, Chester H. J 42	,
46, 55, 56, 59, 200 Kerens, Richard C)
Kerr, John B	
Key, David McK 15, 63, 106, 202	
Killarney, Francis M 21, 27, 201	
Killmaster, George B	
Kilpatrick, Judson)
Kimrey, Chester 50, 202	I
King, Edwin J 51, 202	
King, H. Gilbert	
King, Hamilton	
King, James C	
King, Pendleton 289 King, Rufus 312, 31	
King, William R	
King, Yelverton P 309	
Kinney, William B 319	9
Kirby, Burton R	1
Kirjassoff, Max D 289	
Kirk, Alexander C 51, 98, 20	
Kirk, Milton B	
Kirk, Robert C	2
Kirsch, Mildred 5, 30, 20 Kissick Harold G 20, 31, 20	
Kissick, Harold G	
Klath, T. O	
Kliefoth, Alfred W	1
Klots, Allen Trafford	
Kluczny, D. Muriel 5, 31, 20	1

Page
Knabenshue, Paul 51, 96, 100, 201, 314
Knabenshue, Samuel S
Knight, George S 4, 25, 202
Knowles, Horace G 289, 308, 310, 319, 320
Knox, Philander C
Kock, Aarne R. A 61, 202
Kodding, Trojan
Koerner, Gustavus
Koerner, Rosalind H 16, 30, 202
Kohler, Foy D
Kornfeld, Joseph S
Kramer, Lillian
Krausse, Henry G. 54, 202
Kreeck, George L
Kreis, Foster H 49, 202
Krentz, Kenneth C 53, 108, 202
Krisel, Alexander
Krogh, Gerhard H 289
Kuniholm, Bertel E 61, 109, 202
Kushelevsky, Charlotte L 9, 29, 202
Kuykendall, C. Porter 45, 104, 202
La Branche, Alcée
Lackey, Mary G 22, 27, 202
Lahm, Frank P
Laing, James O
Lamar, Mirabeau B 310, 316
Lamb, Eugene M
Lamb, John 305
LaMont, George D 53, 108, 203
Lamore, Burton H 22, 26, 203
Lancaster, Bruce
Lancaster, Nathaniel, Jr 48, 111, 203
Lanctot, Raymond
Landon, Francis G
Lane, Arthur Bliss 56, 96, 203, 316
Lane, Clayton
Lane, Francis A 46, 203
Lane, George Bliss
Lane, Rull's H., 31
Langdon, William R 53, 102, 203
Lange, Erwin F
Langhorne, Marshall
Langston, John M 310, 313
Lansing, Robert
Larned, Frank H 116
Larned, Samuel
Laser, Ethel J
Lassen, Gussie A
Lasseter, Dillard B
Latchford, Stephen
Latham, Charles L
Latimer, Frederick P., Jr 44, 109, 204
Lato, Stephen E 17, 204
Laughlin, Irwin B
Laurens, Henry
Laurens, John
Lawrence, Abbott
Lawrence, Albert G 310
Lawrence, Ethel L 4, 25, 204
Lawson, Stanley R 38, 204

Tanatan Alamandan D	
Lawton, Alexander R	307
Lawton, Edward P 50, 107,	204
Lawton, Ezra M 115,	
Lawton, James S 49, 56	
Lay, George W.	320
Lay, Julius G 50, 96, 204,	314
Lay, Tracy	289
Layton, Thomas B. L.	289
Leach, Irene B 14, 27,	, 204
Leach, Richard S.	289
Leahy, Robert D 16, 30,	
Lically, AODert D	, 204
Leap, Melvin L 18, 30,	204
Leavell, William H 289,	313
Leavitt, Arthur H	289
Leavitt, Kent 54, 112,	
Lebel, Arthur L	204
LeBreton, David McDougal. 44, 58, 59,	
LeClercq, Frederic D. K	289
Ledoux, Urbain J	289
Lce, Arthur	306
Lee, Augustus 5, 32,	
Lee, Charles	294
Lee, Frank C 42, 99,	205
Lee, Frederic E	289
Lee, James Fenner	303
Lee, Joseph W. J 289, 311, 313,	314
Lee, Julius	
Lee, Samuel T 36, 98,	
Lee, William	306
Leffingwell, Albert	289
Legaré, Hugh S 295,	
Leishman, John G. A 289, 312, 314,	321
Lenzer, Victor M 17, 44,	205
Leonard, Henry H.	
Leonard, Walter A 46, 100,	
Leroux, J. Enrique 42,	205
	2 39
Lespinasse, Alphonse J	239
Lester, James A 44,	205
Letcher, Marion	
Letcher, Robert P	205
	315
Leverich, Henry P 46, 112,	$\frac{315}{205}$
Leverich, Henry P 46, 112,	$\frac{315}{205}$
Leverich, Henry P 46, 112, Levis, Davis B 44,	315 205 206
Leverich, Henry P	315 205 206 289
Leverich, Henry P 46, 112, Levis, Davis B 44, Levisee, Scott S Lewis, Charles H	315 205 206 289 318
Leverich, Henry P 46, 112, Levis, Davis B 44, Levisee, Scott S Lewis, Charles H	315 205 206 289 318
Levcrich, Henry P	315 205 206 289 318 206
Levcich, Henry P	315 205 206 289 318 206 206
Levcich, Henry P	 315 205 206 318 206 206 318
Levcich, Henry P	 315 205 206 318 206 206 318
Levcich, Henry P	 315 205 206 289 318 206 318 206 318 206
Levcrich, Henry P	 315 205 206 289 318 206 206 318 206 206 206
Levcrich, Henry P	 315 205 206 289 318 206 318 206 206 206 206 206 206
Levcrich, Henry P	 315 205 206 289 318 206 206 206 206 206 206 206 206
Levcich, Henry P	 315 205 206 289 318 206 206 206 206 206 206 206 269
Levcich, Henry P	 315 205 206 289 318 206 206 206 206 206 206 206 269
Leverich, Henry P	 315 205 206 289 318 206 206 206 206 206 206 206 206 206 289 289
Leverich, Henry P	 315 205 206 289 318 206 206 206 206 206 206 206 289 289 206
Leverich, Henry P	 315 205 206 289 318 206 206 206 206 206 206 206 289 289 206
Levcrich, Henry P	 315 205 206 289 318 206 206 206 206 206 269 289 206 290
Levcrich, Henry P	 315 205 206 289 318 206 206 206 206 206 206 289 206 290 206 290 206
Levcrich, Henry P	315 205 206 289 318 206 206 206 206 289 289 206 290 206 290 206 50 5
Levcrich, Henry P	 315 205 206 289 318 206 206 206 206 206 206 289 206 290 206 290 206
Levcrich, Henry P	315 205 206 289 318 206 206 206 206 289 289 206 290 206 290 206 50 5
Levcrich, Henry P	315 205 289 318 206 206 206 206 206 206 289 289 206 290 206 290 206 505 290 290
Levcrich, Henry P	 315 205 206 289 318 206 206 206 206 206 209 206 290 206 290 290 290 296 206 205 206
Levcrich, Henry P	315 205 289 318 206 206 206 206 206 206 289 289 206 290 206 290 206 505 290 290
Levcrich, Henry P	 315 205 206 289 318 206 206 206 206 206 209 206 290 206 290 290 290 296 206 205 206
Levcrich, Henry P	315 205 206 289 318 206 206 206 206 206 206 209 206 209 206 200 200 200 200 200 200 200 200 200
Levcrich, Henry P	315 205 206 289 318 206 206 206 206 206 206 209 206 209 206 200 200 200 200 200 200 200 200 200

P	age
Lindsay, Edna M	206
Lineaweaver, F. Ridgway 56, 111,	206
Linnell, Irving N 61, 99,	297
Linthicum, Walter J 35, 112,	207
Lippincott, Aubrey E 61, 112,	207
Listoe, Soren	290
Littell, John S	207
Little, Edward C	311
Livengood, Charles A 51, Livesey, Frederick 10, 24,	207
Livesey, Frederick 10, 24,	207
Livingston, Brockholst 48, 112,	207
Livingston, C. Ludlow	
Livingston, Edward 295,	311
Livingston, Edward	290
Livingston, Robert R Livingston, Vanbrugh	311
Livingston, Vanbrugh	310
Loar, Mary J 11, 31,	207
Lockett, Thomas H 54,	207
Lockhart, Frank P 40, 99, Loftus, Victor H 17, 54,	208
Loftus, Victor H. 17, 54,	208
Logan, Cornelius A	
Logan, George L	290
Logsdon, Ella A	208
Long, Boaz W	311
Long, Breckinridge 51, 208, 301,	314
Long, James V. Long, John G.	290
Long, John G	311
Long, Mary A 14, 25,	
Longstreet, James	321
Longyear, Robert D 48, 102, Loomis, Francis B 297, 300, 318,	208
Loomis, Francis B 297, 300, 318,	322
Loop, Carl R	290
Lord, John H 18, 63, 107,	208
Lord, William P. Loren, Odin G 35, 108,	000
Loren, Odin G 53, 108, Lorillard, George L	208 290
	318
Lothrop, George V. N.	319
Low, Frederick F	309
Lowell, James Russell	
	320
Lowrie Will L 114, 208.	320
Lowrie, Will L 114, 208, Lowry Edward P	320
Lowrie, Will L	320 290 290 208
Lowrie, Will L	320 290 290 208
Lowrie, Will L	320 290 290 208 209
Lowrie, Will L	320 290 290 208 209
Lowrie, Will L	320 290 208 209 290 290
Lowrie, Will L	320 290 208 209 290 290 209 290
Lowrie, Will L	320 290 208 209 290 290 209 290
Lowrie, Will L	320 290 208 209 290 209 209 209 209
Lowrie, Will L	320 290 208 209 209 209 209 209 209 209
Lowrie, Will L	 320 290 290 209
Lowrie, Will L	 320 290 290 209
Lowrie, Will L	320 290 208 209 209 209 209 209 209 209 209 209 209
Lowrie, Will L	320 290 208 209 209 209 209 209 209 209 209 209 315 209
Lowrie, Will L	320 290 208 209 209 209 209 209 209 209 209 209 315 209
Lowrie, Will L	 320 290 290 209 /ul>
Lowrie, Will L	 320 290 290 209 /ul>
Lowrie, Will L	 320 290 290 209 /ul>
Lowrie, Will L	320 290 208 209 290 209 209 209 209 209 209 209 209
Lowrie, Will L	320 290 208 209 209 209 209 209 209 209 209 209 209
Lowrie, Will L	320 290 208 209 209 209 209 209 209 209 209 209 209
Lowrie, Will L	320 290 209 209 209 209 209 209 209 209 2
Lowrie, Will L	320 290 208 209 290 209 209 209 209 209 209 209 209

		age
MacLean, Henry C.	44,	210
MacMaster, Frederic D.		290
MacMillan, Evelyn		
MacMurray, John Van A		43,
53, 96, 210, 301, MacNider, Hanford		
MacVeagh, Charles		
MacVeagh, John H		
MacVeagh, Lincoln	50, 211,	313
MacVcagh, Wayne	314,	321
MacVitty, Karl deG	57, 102,	211
Macy, Clarence E		
Madden, William V		
Madison, Harry L.		
Madison, James		294
Madonne, John H Maffitt, Edward P		
Magee, M. Alice		
Magee, Rufus		321
Magelssen, William C		290
Magill, Samuel E		290
Maginnis, S. Abbot	290,	308
Magnuson, Erik W		
Magoon, Charles E	290,	317
Magruder, Alexander R 58,	98, 211,	311
Magruder, Warren V., Jr.		
Mahany, Rowland B		
Mahin, Frank W	114	200
Makinson, George A		
Maktos, John		
Maleady, Joseph E	55,	212
Maleady, Thomas J	55, 111,	212
Malige, Marcel E		
Mallon, Patrick		
Malmros, Oscar		290
Malone, Dudley Field		300
Man, Ernest A		290
Maney, George		
Mann, Ambrose Dudley		299
Manning, Bernard		290
Manning, Isaac A		290
Manning, Raphael A		290
Manning, Thomas C		315
Manning, William R		
Mansfield, Robert E		290
Manton, Benjamin D		290
Marburg, Theodore Marcy, William L		307 296
Markbreit, Leopold		307
Marling, John L		313
Marquis, Joseph A		290
Marriner, J. Theodore		212
Marsh, Frances M		213
Marsh, George P	314,	321
Marsh, O. Gaylord		213
Marsh, Richard O		290
Marshall, Humphrey		309
Marshall, John	10.00	294
Marshall, William F Marshburn, Herbert E		
Martin, Chester W		
Martin, J. L.		

	P	age
Martin, James 11	5, 31,	213
Martin, John F		290
Martin, John S., Jr.		34
Martin, Lewis A		290
Martin, Truman M		
Martin, William		290
Marvin, John H Marye, George T	41, 	213
Mason, Dean B.	200, 200,	290
Mason, Frank H		290
Mason, James W		315
Mason, John Y		312
Mason, Ruth C		213
Massie, Orlando H		
Masterson, William W		290
Matheny, George W		
Mathews, Rhoda A		
Matré, Joseph B	4, 24,	214
Matthews, Ben C	62,	214
Matthews, H. Freeman Maurrasse, M. Florentin S		
Maury, Dabney H		
Maury, Dabley H		309 290
Maxey, Virgil		307
May, H. Spencer		
May, Henry C		290
Mayer, Ernest de W		214
Mayer, Ferdinand L		1
Mayer, Leslie Gordon		
Maynard, Horace		
Maynard, Lester	_ 42, 99,	214
Mayo, Paul		290
Mays, Livingston T		290
Mazzeo, Louis B		
McAfee, Robert B		309
McAndrews, John H. E.		
McArdle, John McBeth, Warren		
McBride, Harry A		
McBride, James		
McCafferty, William J	43, 103,	215
McCallum, Daniel J		
McCammon, John E		
McCarthy, Hugh C		290
McClintock, Robert Mills	53, 112,	
McCloud, Robert C		
McClung, Alexander K		307
McClure, Wallace	- 18, 24,	215
McConaughy, Walter P	- 53, 111, 48, 104	215
McConnico, Andrew J McCook, Edward M		313
McCormick, Robert S 290,		
McCoy, William D.		315
McCreery, Fenton R	290, 310,	
McCullough, Charles A		290
McCunn, John N		
McCurdy, Charles J		306
McCurdy, Margarete C		
McCutchcon, John T		290
McDermott, Michael J		
McDonald, Alexander		317
McDonald, Eula		
McDonough, Dayle C		
McDougal, D. A	4, 24,	210

3	Р	age
3	McDowell, W. W. 284, 290,	314
)	McEnelly, Thomas	216
1)	McFadden, Frank E	
J 3	McFarland, Silas C	290
))	McGilchrist, John 49,	210
3	McGinnis, Edgar L., Jr	
)	McGinnis, John Jr.	
)	McGlasson, Clifford W 45,	
)	McGonigal, Donal F 50, 110,	
5	McGoodwin, Preston B	322
2	McGoogan, George B	290
3	McGregor, Robert G., Jr 36, 54, 109,	217
3	McGurk, Joseph F 8, 63, 101,	217
)	McIlhenny, Samuel A., Jr 38,	
3	McInturff, Marjorine 16, 31,	
3	McKaig, Catherine D 11, 31,	
ł	McKay, Arnold A	
ł	McKee, Edwin	
t L	McKenna, James E 47, 104,	
-	McKenny, Eileen	
)	McKenzie, James A	317
) 7	McKiernan, Charles P.	290
1	McKinley, William	297
י)	McKinney, Luther F	309
į	McKinney, Walter II 38, 105,	217
: 1	McLain, Camden L	217
1	McLane, Louis	
I	McLane, Robert M 309, 312,	
1	McLean, Arthur	290
)	McLean, Sarah B 20, 29,	
)	McMackin, John	290
1	McMahon, Joseph W 19, 27, McMahon, Mostin T.	218
)	McMahon, Martin T	
ł	McMillan, Neal	290
5	McMillin, Benton	
5	McMillin, Stewart E 55, 104.	
3	McNair, Laurance N 51,	
3	McNally, James C	
5	McNeely, Robert N	290
j	McNeir, William 21, 26, 218,	
	McNerney, Gerald F	
<u> </u>	McNiece, Renwick S 59, 103,	
	McWilliams, Roy 45,	
,	Meade, Richard K	
;	Medalie, Donn Paul	
	Meeks, Nelson P	
;	Mehaffy, Delbert D	
;	Meily, John J 46, 103,	
	Meinhardt, Carl D 40, 105,	219
5	Mellon, Andrew W 290,	
-	Memminger, Lucien 47, 101,	
)	Merle-Smith, Van Santvoord	301
)	Merrell, Edwin Clay 49.	219
	Merrell, George R., Jr 8, 63, 102,	
5	Merriam, Gordon P 43, 107,	
	Merrill, Ayres Phillips	307
,	Merrill, George W.	313
	Merrill, Gregor C 53, 112, Merrill Keith 2, 26	
1	Merrill, Keith	219 290
5	Merriman, Gladys E 11, 27,	

	Page
Merry, William L	290, 310, 311, 316
Mersman, Scudder	45, 220
Messersmith, George S	
Metcalf, Horace W	
Metzger, Jacob A	
Meyer, Cord	
Meyer, George von L	
Meyer, Ira P Meyer, Mary L	
Meyer, Paul W	
Michael, Louis G	
Michael, William H	
Michelson, Albert H	
Middlekauff, Aura I	21, 27, 220
Middleton, Henry	
Middleton, Lillian H	
Milbourne, Harvey Lee	
Miles, Basil	
Miles, Laura M	
Millard, Hugh	47, 102, 221
Miller, Charles H	14, 27, 221
Miller, Christian C	
Miller, Clarence A Miller, Douglas P	
Miller, Edith	
Miller, G. Harlan	
Miller, Henry B	
Miller, Horace H.	
Miller, Hugh S	61, 105, 221
Miller, Hunter	12, 24, 221
Miller, J. Martin	
Miller, Ralph	
Miller, Ransford S	
Miller, William	
Millington, Yale O	
Mills, Joseph F Mills, Sheldon T	7, 222
Mills, William W	
Millspaugh, Arthur C	
Milmore, Oscar L	
Milner, James B.	
Minnigerode, H. Gordon	50, 111, 222
Minor, George C	61, 222
Minor, Harold B	36, 109, 222
Minor, Winfield H	
Minter, John R.	
Mitchell, Charles E	
Mitchell, Lloyd C Mitchell, Mary Helene	
Mitchell, Mason	
Mitchell, Reginald P	
Mitchell, W. M. Parker	
Mizner, Lansing B	
Moats, John S.	20, 30, 222
Moe, Alfred K	
Moessner, Wallace E	48, 222
Moffat, Jay Pierrepont	7, 8, 63, 99, 222
Moffatt, Thomas P	
Moffitt, James P.	
Mokma, Gerald A	
Moley, Raymond	
Monaghan, James C Monahan, Jobn W	
Monges, Richard G.	
Monroe, Gnstavus L., Jr	
	~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

	01 07 000
Monroe, Herbert B	21, 27, 223
Monroe, James	. 294, 311, 312
Montamat, Harold E	40, 112, 223
Montgomery, Edmund B.	7,
Montgomery, John F	16, 63, 102, 223
Montgomery, John F	51, 223, 314
Moore Horatio	28 105 992
Million and a second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second se	
Moomaw, John C	
Mooney, Daniel F	290, 317
Mooney, Eire	
Moonlight, Thomas	
Moore, Alexander P	
Moore, Charles A	
Moore, Fred R.	315
Moore, John Bassett	298, 299, 300
Moore Marion K	18 30. 223
Moore, R. Walton 2, 6, 7,	24, 26, 223, 301
Moore, Rupert H	38, 224
Moore, Sadie D	99 97 994
Moore, Sadie D	
Moore, Thomas E	
Moore, Thomas P	
Moorhead, Maxwell K	61, 100, 224
Moos, Morton F	
Moose, James S., Jr	
Morales, Franklin E.	
Moran, Benjamin	
Moran, John E	
Morawetz, Albert R	
More, Bolard	50, 224
More, Ruth C	91 20 994
More, Ruth C	21, 30, 224
Morehead, John Motley	290, 320
Moreland, William D., Jr	
Morey, William	
Morgan, Edwin V	
	115,
284, 290, 308, 310, 31	5, 317, 318, 322
284, 290, 308, 310, 31 Morgan, George W	5, 317, 318, 322 318
284, 290, 308, 310, 31 Morgan, George W Morgan, Henry H	5, 317, 318, 322 318 115, 290
284, 290, 308, 310, 31 Morgan, George W Morgan, Henry H Morgan, John H	5, 317, 318, 322 318 115, 290 8, 63, 107, 224
284, 290, 308, 310, 31 Morgan, George W Morgan, Henry H Morgan, John H Morgan, Philip H	5, 317, 318, 322 318 115, 290 8, 63, 107, 224 315
284, 290, 308, 310, 31 Morgan, George W Morgan, Henry H Morgan, John H Morgan, Philip H	5, 317, 318, 322 318 115, 290 8, 63, 107, 224 315
284, 290, 308, 310, 31 Morgan, George W Morgan, Henry H Morgan, John H Morgan, Philip H Morgan, Stokeley W	5, 317, 318, 322 
284, 290, 308, 310, 31 Morgan, George W Morgan, Henry H Morgan, John H Morgan, Philip H Morgan, Stokeley W Morgenthau, Henry	5, 317, 318, 322 
284, 290, 308, 310, 31 Morgan, George W Morgan, Henry H Morgan, John H Morgan, Philip H Morgan, Stokeley W Morgenthau, Henry Moriarty, Francis B.	5, 317, 318, 322 
284, 290, 308, 310, 31 Morgan, George W Morgan, Henry H Morgan, John H Morgan, Philip H Morgan, Stokeley W Morgenthau, Henry Moriarty, Francis B Moriarty, G. Andrews, Jr.	5, 317, 318, 322 
284, 290, 308, 310, 31 Morgan, George W	5, 317, 318, 322 
284, 290, 308, 310, 31 Morgan, George W	5, 317, 318, 322 
284, 290, 308, 310, 31 Morgan, George W Morgan, Henry H Morgan, John H Morgan, Philip H Morgan, Stokeley W Morgenthau, Henry Moriarty, Francis B Moriarty, G. Andrews, Jr Moriarty, James F Morin, Richard W	$\begin{array}{cccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$
284, 290, 308, 310, 31 Morgan, George W Morgan, John H Morgan, Philip H Morgan, Stokeley W Morianty, Francis B Moriarty, G. Andrews, Jr Moriarty, James F Morin, Richard W Morlock, George A	$\begin{array}{cccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$
284, 290, 308, 310, 31 Morgan, George W	$\begin{array}{cccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$
284, 290, 308, 310, 31 Morgan, George W	$\begin{array}{cccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$
284, 290, 308, 310, 31 Morgan, George W	$\begin{array}{cccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$
284, 290, 308, 310, 31 Morgan, George W	$\begin{array}{cccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$
284, 290, 308, 310, 31 Morgan, George W Morgan, Henry H Morgan, John H Morgan, Stokeley W Morgenthau, Henry Moriarty, Francis B Moriarty, G. Andrews, Jr Moriarty, James F Morin, Richard W Morlock, George A Morrill, Cleo B Morril, Dave Hennen 36, 5 Morris, Edward Joy	$\begin{array}{cccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$
284, 290, 308, 310, 31 Morgan, George W Morgan, Henry H Morgan, John H Morgan, Philip H Morgan, Stokeley W Morganthau, Henry Moriarty, Francis B Moriarty, G. Andrews, Jr Moriarty, G. Andrews, Jr Moriarty, James F Morin, Richard W Morlock, George A Morris, Dave Hennen 36, 5 Morris, George H Morris, George H	$\begin{array}{cccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$
284, 290, 308, 310, 31 Morgan, George W	5, 317, 318, 322 318 115, 290 8, 63, 107, 224 315 290, 321 290, 321 290, 321 290, 321 290, 321 290, 321 290, 321 290, 32, 224 8, 63, 110, 224 1, 26, 224 4, 225, 307, 315 21, 32, 225 304n, 311 290, 320
284, 290, 308, 310, 31 Morgan, George W	$\begin{array}{cccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$
284, 290, 308, 310, 31 Morgan, George W Morgan, Henry H Morgan, John H Morgan, Stokeley W Morgan, Stokeley W Morgan, Stokeley W Morgan, Stokeley W Morgan, Stokeley W Morgan, Stokeley W Morgan, Stokeley W Moriarty, G. Andrews, Jr Moriarty, G. Andrews, Jr Morin, Richard W Morlock, George A Morril, Cleo B Morris, Dave Hennen 36, 5 Morris, Edward Joy Morris, George II Morris, Gouverneur Morris, Ira N Morris, Leland B Morris, Roland S	$\begin{array}{cccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$
284, 290, 308, 310, 31 Morgan, George W	$\begin{array}{cccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$
284, 290, 308, 310, 31 Morgan, George W Morgan, Henry H Morgan, John H Morgan, Philip H Morgan, Stokeley W Morgenthau, Henry. Moriarty, Francis B Moriarty, G. Andrews, Jr Moriarty, James F Morin, Richard W Morrist, George A Morris, Dave Hennen 36, 5 Morris, George H Morris, George H Morris, George H Morris, George H Morris, George H Morris, Ira N Morris, Reland B Morris, Shiras, Jr Morris, Shiras, Jr Morris, Thomas	$\begin{array}{cccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$
284, 290, 308, 310, 31 Morgan, George W Morgan, Henry H Morgan, John H Morgan, Philip H Morgan, Stokeley W Morgenthau, Henry. Moriarty, Francis B Moriarty, G. Andrews, Jr Moriarty, James F Morin, Richard W Morrist, George A Morris, Dave Hennen 36, 5 Morris, George H Morris, George H Morris, George H Morris, George H Morris, George H Morris, Ira N Morris, Reland B Morris, Shiras, Jr Morris, Shiras, Jr Morris, Thomas	$\begin{array}{cccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$
284, 290, 308, 310, 31 Morgan, George W	$\begin{array}{cccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$
284, 290, 308, 310, 31 Morgan, George W	$\begin{array}{cccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$
284, 290, 308, 310, 31 Morgan, George W Morgan, Henry H Morgan, John H Morgan, Stokeley W Morgan, Stokeley W Morgenthau, Henry Moriarty, Francis B Moriarty, G. Andrews, Jr Moriarty, James F Morin, Richard W Morink, George A Morrill, Cleo B Morris, Dave Hennen 36, 5 Morris, George II Morris, Gauverneur Morris, Ira N Morris, Ira N Morris, Leland B Morris, Shiras, Jr Morris, Shiras, Jr Morris, Thomas Morrison, Dorothy D Morrison, Thomas	$\begin{array}{cccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$
284, 290, 308, 310, 31 Morgan, George W Morgan, Henry H Morgan, John H Morgan, Philip H Morgan, Stokeley W Morgenthau, Henry. Moriarty, Francis B Moriarty, G. Andrews, Jr Moriarty, James F Morin, Richard W Morink, George A Morris, Dave Hennen 36, 5 Morris, George II Morris, Gouverneur Morris, Roland B Morris, Shiras, Jr Morris, Shiras, Jr Morris, Thomas Morrison, Dorothy D Morrison, Thomas Morrison, Thomas Morrison, Thomas	$\begin{array}{cccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$
284, 290, 308, 310, 31 Morgan, George W Morgan, Henry H Morgan, John H Morgan, Philip H Morgan, Stokeley W Morgenthau, Henry. Moriarty, Francis B Moriarty, G. Andrews, Jr Moriarty, James F Morin, Richard W Morink, George A Morris, Dave Hennen 36, 5 Morris, George II Morris, Gouverneur Morris, Roland B Morris, Shiras, Jr Morris, Shiras, Jr Morris, Thomas Morrison, Dorothy D Morrison, Thomas Morrison, Thomas Morrison, Thomas	$\begin{array}{cccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$
284, 290, 308, 310, 31 Morgan, George W	$\begin{array}{cccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$
284, 290, 308, 310, 31 Morgan, George W Morgan, Henry H Morgan, John H Morgan, Philip H Morgan, Stokeley W Morgenthau, Henry. Moriarty, Francis B Moriarty, G. Andrews, Jr Moriarty, James F Morin, Richard W Morink, George A Morris, Dave Hennen 36, 5 Morris, George II Morris, Gouverneur Morris, Roland B Morris, Shiras, Jr Morris, Shiras, Jr Morris, Thomas Morrison, Dorothy D Morrison, Thomas Morrison, Thomas Morrison, Thomas	$\begin{array}{cccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$
284, 290, 308, 310, 31 Morgan, George W	$\begin{array}{cccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$
284, 290, 308, 310, 31 Morgan, George W Morgan, Henry H Morgan, John H Morgan, Stokeley W Morgenthau, Henry Moriarty, Francis B Moriarty, G. Andrews, Jr Moriarty, James F Morin, Richard W. Morlock, George A Morris, Dave Hennen. 36, 5 Morris, Dave Hennen. 36, 5 Morris, George II. Morris, George II. Morris, George II. Morris, Icaland B Morris, Icaland B Morris, Shiras, Jr Morris, Shiras, Jr Morris, Shiras, Jr Morris, Thomas Morrison, Dorothy D Morrison, Emily S Morrison, Thomas Morrison, Thomas Morrow, Dwight W Morton, Levi P Mosburg, Earl R	$\begin{array}{cccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$

	Р	age
	Moser, Charles K	290
	Moses, George II 290, 313	, 315
	Moses, II. Claremont 55	, 225
	Mosher, John S Mosher, Robert B	290
	Mosher, Robert B 115	, 290
	Mosier, Robert L	290
	Moss, Marjorie 21, 27	
	Motley, J. Lothrop	
	Mowrer, Frank R	290
	Moyer, Lawson A.	6
	Moylan, Edward C	, 225
	Muccio, John J 40, 105,	, 225
	Muhlenberg, Henry A	306
	Mullen, Ann E	226
	Mullins, Velda D 8, 29,	226
	Mundy, Louis E	226
	Munro, Dana G	313
	Munson, Frederick P	. 226
	Murdock, James Oliver	. 226
	Murdock, Myra A	, 226
	Murphy, Dominic I	
	Murphy, George H	291
	Murphy, Henry C Murphy, J. Lee	310
	Murphy, J. Lee	291
	Murphy, James J., Jr	226 34
	Murphy, Raymond E	
	Murphy, Robert D 44, 101,	
	Murphy, William S	321
	Murray, Lee	226
	Murray, Wallace	220
	Murray, William B	220
	Murray, William Vans	316
	Muse, Benjamin	291
	Myers, David J. D	227
	Myers, Ethel	
	Myers, Harry D 57,	227
	Myers, Louis S 1, 31,	227
	Myers, Maude	227
	Myers, Myrl S 8, 63, 101,	
	Myers, Nellie Vass 10, 27,	227
	Myers, Willys A 55,	227
	Nabel, Eugene 56,	227
	Nash, James Alan 3, 26,	228
		291
	Nasmith, Charles Roy 45, 102,	
	Nason, Charles P. H.	291
		291
	Nathan, Edward I 55, 101,	
	Neal, Jack D 54,	
		291
	Neiburg, Burdette E 14, 29,	228
		291
Ĵ	Nelson, Hugh	320
1	Nelson, John	321
1	Nelson, Thomas A. R	309
	Nelson, Thomas II	315
1 10 10	Nester, Alfred T	228
į	Neufville, M. de	06n
1	Neville, Edwin L	228
1	Newbegin, Robert, 2d	228
	Newcomb, Anna Belle	
1	Newcomb, Robert M	
1	vewcome, winnam A	34

Pa	age
Newel, Stanford	316
Newhall, W. Mayo, Jr	291
Newkirk, Meigs E 16, 29,	229
Newson, H. Dorsey	291
Newton, Joseph E 53, 111,	
Newton, T. John	34
Niccoli, Frank C	
Nicholas, Ashley J 10, 25,	229
Nicholls, Wilbur E 20, 29, Nicholson, John B	291
Nicholson, Meredith	
Nicholson, Vivian L	291
Nickens, Waldra T 15, 32,	229
	291
	302
Nielsen, Niels I 44,	
Nielsen, Orsen N 58, 102,	
	319
Nimmer, David R	
Noe, Ira James	
Norquist, Gordon	
Norris, Emanuel, Jr	
North, Oliver B	
Northcott, Elliott 291, 309, 316,	
Northrup, Alfred S	291
Norton, Edward J	291
Norton, Laurence H	291
Norton, Thomas H	291
Norweb, R. Henry 54, 99,	
Notson, Lena L	
Noyes, Edward F	312
Oakes, Calvin H 49, 111,	
O'Brien, Edward C	322
O'Brien, Edward C	322 314
O'Brien, Edward C	322 314 230
O'Brien, Edward C	322 314 230 302
O'Brien, Edward C	322 314 230 302 230
O'Brien, Edward C	322 314 230 302 230 291
O'Brien, Edward C	322 314 230 302 230 291
O'Brien, Edward C	322 314 230 302 230 291 230
O'Brien, Edward C	<ul> <li>322</li> <li>314</li> <li>230</li> <li>302</li> <li>230</li> <li>291</li> <li>230</li> <li>291</li> </ul>
O'Brien, Edward C	322 314 230 302 230 291 230 291 291 34
O'Brien, Edward C	322 314 230 302 230 291 230 291 291 34 230 300
O'Brien, Edward C	322 314 230 302 230 291 230 291 291 34 230 300 301
O'Brien, Edward C	322 314 230 302 230 291 230 291 291 34 230 300 301 230
O'Brien, Edward C	322 314 230 302 230 291 230 291 291 34 230 300 301 230 297
O'Brien, Edward C	322 314 230 230 291 230 291 291 34 230 300 301 230 297 230
O'Brien, Edward C	<ul> <li>322</li> <li>314</li> <li>230</li> <li>302</li> <li>230</li> <li>291</li> <li>230</li> <li>291</li> <li>230</li> <li>201</li> <li>230</li> <li>301</li> <li>230</li> <li>297</li> <li>230</li> <li>230</li> <li>230</li> <li>230</li> </ul>
O'Brien, Edward C	<ul> <li>322</li> <li>314</li> <li>230</li> <li>302</li> <li>230</li> <li>291</li> <li>230</li> <li>291</li> <li>34</li> <li>230</li> <li>300</li> <li>301</li> <li>230</li> <li>297</li> <li>230</li> </ul>
O'Brien, Edward C	<ul> <li>322</li> <li>314</li> <li>230</li> <li>302</li> <li>230</li> <li>291</li> <li>230</li> <li>291</li> <li>34</li> <li>230</li> <li>300</li> <li>301</li> <li>230</li> <li>297</li> <li>230</li> </ul>
O'Brien, Edward C	<ul> <li>322</li> <li>314</li> <li>230</li> <li>302</li> <li>230</li> <li>291</li> <li>291</li> <li>291</li> <li>34</li> <li>230</li> <li>300</li> <li>301</li> <li>230</li> <li>297</li> <li>230</li> </ul>
O'Brien, Edward C	<ul> <li>322</li> <li>314</li> <li>230</li> <li>302</li> <li>230</li> <li>291</li> <li>291</li> <li>291</li> <li>34</li> <li>230</li> <li>300</li> <li>301</li> <li>230</li> <li>297</li> <li>230</li> <li>231</li> </ul>
O'Brien, Edward C	<ul> <li>322</li> <li>314</li> <li>230</li> <li>302</li> <li>230</li> <li>291</li> <li>291</li> <li>291</li> <li>291</li> <li>34</li> <li>230</li> <li>301</li> <li>230</li> <li>297</li> <li>230</li> <li>230</li> <li>230</li> <li>230</li> <li>230</li> <li>230</li> <li>230</li> <li>230</li> <li>231</li> <li>319</li> </ul>
O'Brien, Edward C	<ul> <li>322</li> <li>314</li> <li>230</li> <li>302</li> <li>230</li> <li>291</li> <li>291</li> <li>291</li> <li>230</li> <li>300</li> <li>301</li> <li>230</li> <li>231</li> <li>319</li> <li>307</li> </ul>
O'Brien, Edward C	<ul> <li>322</li> <li>314</li> <li>230</li> <li>302</li> <li>230</li> <li>291</li> <li>291</li> <li>291</li> <li>230</li> <li>300</li> <li>301</li> <li>230</li> <li>231</li> <li>319</li> <li>307</li> <li>309</li> </ul>
O'Brien, Edward C	<ul> <li>322</li> <li>314</li> <li>230</li> <li>302</li> <li>291</li> <li>291</li> <li>291</li> <li>291</li> <li>291</li> <li>230</li> <li>200</li> <li>200</li> <li>230</li> <li>231</li> <li>319</li> <li>307</li> <li>309</li> <li>306</li> </ul>
O'Brien, Edward C	<ul> <li>322</li> <li>314</li> <li>230</li> <li>302</li> <li>230</li> <li>291</li> <li>291</li> <li>291</li> <li>291</li> <li>230</li> <li>200</li> <li>200</li> <li>230</li> <li>231</li> <li>319</li> <li>307</li> <li>309</li> <li>306</li> <li>291</li> </ul>
O'Brien, Edward C	<ul> <li>322</li> <li>314</li> <li>230</li> <li>302</li> <li>230</li> <li>291</li> <li>291</li> <li>291</li> <li>291</li> <li>34</li> <li>230</li> <li>201</li> <li>230</li> <li>201</li> <li>230</li> <li>230</li> <li>230</li> <li>230</li> <li>230</li> <li>230</li> <li>230</li> <li>230</li> <li>231</li> <li>319</li> <li>307</li> <li>309</li> <li>306</li> <li>291</li> <li>300</li> <li>291</li> <li>300</li> <li>291</li> <li>307</li> <li>309</li> <li>306</li> <li>291</li> <li>300</li> <li>291</li> <li>300</li> <li>301</li> </ul>
O'Brien, Edward C	322           314           230           302           230           291           230           291           34           230           201           230           291           34           230           230           230           230           230           230           230           230           230           230           230           230           230           230           230           230           230           230           230           230           230           230           231           307           308           230           301           302           303           304           291           300           291
O'Brien, Edward C	322           314           230           2201           230           291           230           291           34           230           300           301           230           300           301           230           230           230           230           230           230           230           230           230           230           230           230           230           230           230           230           230           230           230           230           230           230           231           319           307           308           291           291           291           291           291           291

		age
O'Sullivan, John L		318
O'Toole, William J	291,	
Ott, Robert M		291
Otterbourg, Marcus Otterman, Harvey B		315
Oury-Jackson, Granville		
Owen, Augustus C		
Owen, Mary E		
Owen, Robert Dale	321,	322
Owen, Rufus L	20, 31,	231
Owen, Ruth Bryan		
Owen, Somerset A		
Owens, Louis G Owens, Thomas R		
Owsley, Alvin M		
Owsley, Harry B., Jr		291
Ozmun, Edward H		291
Pabst, Gustave, Jr		291
Pacheco, Romualdo 30		
Packer, Earl L Paddock, Gordon		
Paddock, Harry L		291
Page, Charles A		291
Page, Edward, Jr		
Page, Thomas N		
Page, Walter H		
Palfrey, William		
Palmer, Ely E		
Palmer, John P	52, 112,	232
Palmer, Theodore DeC., Jr		291
Palmer, Thomas W		320
Pangburn, Harry K		
Pape, Robin B	52,	232
Park, James L.	43, 108,	232
Park, Nelson R		
Park, Sam		
Parker, Cortlandt		
Parker, Edlow G Parker, Edward S	14, 54,	202
Parker, Ernest S	20. 31.	232
Parker, Peter		309
Parker, W. Leonard	45, 112,	232
Parker, William H		314
Parkhurst, John G		307
Parkins, Albina L		
Parks, James E Parmelee, Maurice		
Parsloe, Arthur G		
Partridge, Frank C		
Partridge, James R., 308, 311, 3	14, 317,	322
Paschal, George R., Jr		291
Pasquet, Maurice	48, 111	, 233
Pastorini, Louisa		
Patterson, Jefferson 18,	63, 102	, 233
Patterson, Richard S		
Patterson, Robert R Patton, Kenneth S		
Patton, Kenneth S		
Paxson, Frances B		
Paxton, J. Hall		
Payer, Harry F		301
Payne, Charles E. B.		
Payne, Christopher H		291

	Payne, Stephen	age
	Payson, Charles 299,	
Į	Peabody, Frank H	34
		321
	Pearson, Alfred 291, 311.	318
		291
	Pearson, Richmond 291, 313, 315,	
		313
	Peck, William L. 49, 107,	
	Peck, Willys R	234
	Peden, James A Peirce, Henry A	313
	Peirce, Herbert H. D	
	Pelton, Walter E 4, 25,	
	Peltzer, Rudolph	
	Pendleton, George H	
	Pendleton, John S 306,	308
	Penfield, Frederic C 291, 307,	
	Penfield, James K	
	Penfield, William L	
	Pennoyer, Frederick W., Jr 51, Pennoyer, Richard E	
ĺ	Perkins, Brigg A	
	Perkins, C. Warwick, Jr 58, 106,	
	Perkins, Charles B 45, 111,	
	Perkins, Ernest R 13, 25,	
	Perkins, Isham W 20, 25,	
	Perkins, John W 22, 27,	
	Perkins, Lindsay S	
	Perkins, Mahlon F 12, 63, 98, Perkins, Troy L 40, 112,	
	Perry, Charles B	
	Peter, Alan G 49,	235
	Peters, Thomas W	291
	Pcterson, Marie S 20, 31,	235
	Peterson, Ruth E 20, 31,	235
	Petrain, Alvin L 19, 28,	235
	Pettigrew, Moses W	235 307
	Pettis, S. Newton	308
	Phelan, George R	
	Phelan, Raymond	
)	Phelps, Edward J	312
2	Phelps, Livingston	291
:		317
,	Phelps, William Walter	
2	Philip, Hoffman 96, 235, 309, 311, 316, 317.	
•	90, 233, 309, 311, 310, 317 Phillips, Elizabeth H 11, 28	
3	Phillips, Lillian F 20, 29	. 236
2	Phillips, Robert J 22, 24	, 236
2	Phillips, William 2	, 24,
L	26, 96, 236, 298, 300, 307, 308, 315	, 316
3	Pickens, Francis W	319
3	Pickerell, George H 114	, 291
3	Pickering, Timothy	294
3	Pickett, James C Pierce, Bertha E 19, 25	318 236
3	Pierce, Bertha L 19, 25	, 230 34
3	Pierce, Edward R 15, 30	
3	Pierce, Franklin	296
3	Pierce, Gilbert A	318
l	Pierce, Maurice C	291
ł	Pierce, Ralph 20, 30	, 236
l	Pierce, William A	291

Pa	ige
Pierrepont, Edwards	312
Pierrepont, Seth L	291
Pierrot, A. Ogden 36,	
Pigott, William T., Jr 47,	
Pike, James S.	316
Pike, William J	291
Pilcher, James B 40, 109,	
	322
Piles, Samuel H	209
Pillow, Jerome G	
	320
	311
Pinckney, Roswell N. 20, 32,	
Pinckney, Thomas 312,	
Pinkerton, Julian L	237
Pinkerton, Lowell C 7, 63, 100,	237
Pinkney, William	321
Pisar, Charles J 45, 101,	
	291
	306
Place, Frank 20, 29,	
Playter, Harold	
Plitt, Edwin A	
Poindexter, Miles	291
	315
Polk, Frank Lyon	
	295
	321
	308
Pollock, Blanche S 8, 29,	237
	306
Polutnik, Ernest V 51,	237
	311
	291
	291
Pool, John C 48, 111,	
Poole, De Witt C Poole, William A 19, 28,	291
	291 291
	314
	321
	312
Porter, James D	
Post, Henry J 59,	238
	291
Potter, Kennett F 59, 108,	238
	314
Pottle, Edward R.	291
Powell, James C., Jr	238
Powell, Thomas M	238
	317
	316
Prees, Griffith W Prendergast, Walter T 47, 104,	291
Preston, Austin R 49, 105,	238
	200 320
	291
Price, Leonard H 13, 25,	
	291
Price, William J	
Prickitt, William A	291
Prince, John Dyneley 238, 291, 310,	322

Page
Prince, Kirby L 19, 28, 238
Prince, Ulysses, Jr 15, 32, 238
Proctor, Bronson
Proctor, Robert A 12, 33, 238
Proffit, George H
Pruyn, Robert H 314
Pryor, Ralph W 5, 29, 238
Purvis, Ricardo M 20, 29, 238
Putnam, James O
Putnam, John R 52, 100, 239
Putney, Albert H
Pyle, Mabel J 20, 31, 239
Quarton, Harold B 49, 101, 239
Quay, Jerome A
Quigley, Stephen H 4, 27, 239
Quinby, William E 316
Quincy, Josiah
Quinlan, Joseph B
Quinlan, Rosemary
Ragland, Joseph P 37, 107, 239
Ragsdale, James W
Raguet, Condy
Rairden, Bradstreet S 114, 291
Rairden, Frank B
Ramer, John E 291, 316
Ramey, Faye G 5, 31, 239
Ramsay, Hugh F 46, 108, 239
Ramsey, Henry 0 48, 239
Rand, Edward B 45, 108, 239
Rand, Elbridge D 291
Randal, Thomas
Randall, Alexander W
Randall, Harold M 38, 239
Randolph, Edmund
Randolph, John
Randolph, John
Rankin, Karl L 35, 50, 240
Rankin, Robert L
Ransoni, Matt W
Rasmusen, Bertil M 114, 291
Rasmussen, Bernardine K 13, 29, 240
Rast, A. Arlene Jones 16, 31, 240
Ratcliff, Viola H 2, 28, 240
Ratcliffe, L. Johnson 20, 29, 240
Ratshesky, Abraham C 291, 310
Ravndal, Christian M 38, 105, 240
Ravndal, Gabriel Bie 114, 291, 321
Ray, Guy W 54, 111, 240
Ray, John A 291
Read, J. Meredith, Jr 312, 313
Reagan, Daniel J 44, 240
Reams, R. Borden 61, 109, 240
Reat, Samuel C 114, 291
Reber, Samuel
Redecker, Sydney B 46, 104, 240
Rediker, Norris
Redman, James E 21, 28, 241
Reed, Charles S., 2d 40, 109, 241
Reed, Edward L 9, 63, 100, 241
Reed, Eugene C. A
Reed, Leslie E 61, 101, 241
Reed, William B 309
Reeder, Charles A 2, 32, 241

Pa	age
Reeves, Edwy L 11, 30,	241
Reeves, Harman 49,	241
Reid, Thomas B 11, 28,	
Reid, Whitelaw 291,	
Reineck, Walter S. 42, 103,	
Reiniger, Gustavus G	291
Reinsch, Paul S	309
Remillard, Horace	
Remsen, Henry, Jr.	
Renchard, George W 51, 113,	242
Rencher, Abraham Renick, Edward I Renois, Katherine V	303
Renois Katherine V 20.30	242
Reveley, Paul J 46, 112,	242
Reynolds, Conger	291
Reynolds, Lincoln C 40,	242
Reynolds, Robert M.	307
Rhoades, Otis W 53,	242
Rhode, W. Allen	291
Rhode, W. Allen	242
	319
Rice, Charles M., Jr 21, 30,	242
Rice, Coke S 48,	
Richards, Arthur L 57, 111,	
Richards, J. Bartlett	242
Richards, Raymond O	242
Richardson, Antonio M 5, 32, Richardson, Charles F. P	242
Richardson, Clydia Mae 4, 29,	291
Richardson, Elliott V 115,	291
Richardson, Harry B	291
Richardson, Harry B Richardson, John B	291
Richardson, John E 6, 27,	242
Richardson, John S., Jr. 38, 106,	242
Richardson, Norval Richmond, Lewis	291
Richmond, Lewis	318
Richmond, Stoughton J 12, 33,	243
Ricks, Thompkins G 20, 32,	243
Riddiford, George G 16, 28,	
Riddle, James R	243
Riddle, John W 291, 306, 311, 319,	320
Riddleberger, James W 60, 110, Bidgely, Benjamin H	
Ridgely, Benjamin H Riedesel, Helen R 11, 31,	291
Riggs, Benjamin Reath 51, 101,	243
Riggs, Lloyd E48,	243
Rightmire, Ruth	243
Riker, Monro M 53,	243
Ringwalt, Arthur R 39, 109,	243
Rinker, Ella Ruth 19, 28,	243
Riotte, C. N	316
Risley, John E Rives. George B Rives, George L	310
Rives, George B	291
Rives, George L	299
Rives, William C	312
Roach, Charles P., Jr 11, 27, Roache, Thomas P 1, 32, Robbins, Warren D 37, 96, 243, 308,	243
Robbins Warren D 37 06 242 202	243
Robert, Albert W	291
Roberts, Hazel H 1, 28,	
Roberts, Joseph F	244
Roberts, Quincy F 45, 105,	244
Roberts, William R	309
Robertson, Dudley L 11, 32,	244

Page
Robertson, Frederick Joseph 49, 244
Rohertson, Randolph
Robertson, William H 114, 291
Robertson, William P 45, 244
Robinson, Christopher
Robinson, Donald H 48, 111, 244
Robinson, Fred R
Robinson, J. Randolph
Rohinson, Thomas H 55, 105, 244
Roche, James J
Rochester, William B
Rockhill, William W
<b>300</b> , <b>303</b> , <b>309</b> , <b>313</b> , <b>318</b> , <b>319</b> , <b>321</b>
Rockwell, Almon F
Roddy, Marguerite R 5, 28, 244
Rodgers, J. Donald C
Rodgers, James L.291Rodney, Caesar A.306
Rodrick, Bertha S
Rogers, Alan S
Rogers, Fred F 52, 244
Rogers, H. Gold
Rogers, James Grafton
Romeyn, Nina G
Rooney, Miriam T
Roosa, I. P
Roosevelt, Franklin Delano
Roosevelt, Gcorge W
Roosevelt, Nicholas
Roosevelt, Robert B
Roosevelt, Theodore
Root, Elihu
Root, Joseph P
Rose, Halleck L
Rosecrans, William S
Rosenberg, Louis J
Ross, Sallie F 22, 29, 245
Rousseau, Richard II
Rowan, Hugh W 46, 245
Rowan, John 321
Rowe, Alvin T., Jr., 40, 41, 109, 245
Rowen, John E
Rowley, Eugene C., Jr. 10, 20, 34, 245
Royt, Frederick L
*
Ruddock, Albert B291Ruffin, John N291
Runyon, Theodore
Rupprecht, William G 41, 245
Rush, Richard. 294, 312
Russ, Edward B 5, 26, 245
Russell, Charles II., Jr
Russell, Charles W291, 317
Russell, Charles W
Russell, Jonathan
Russell, Ruth
Russell, Thomas
Russell, William W 114,
292, 309, 310, 320, 322
The state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the s
Rutter, Ella P 20, 31, 245
Ryan, John L. 292

Sack, Leo R       41, 245, 310         Sackett, Frederic M       292, 312         Sackett, Marrith R       292         Sackett, Marrith R       292         Sackett, Marrith R       292         Sackett, Marrith R       292         Sackett, Mary A       19, 28, 246         Salisbury, Alfred       292         Salisbury, Laurence E       39, 104, 246         Salmon, David A       19, 23, 26, 246         Salter, Fred K       42, 246         Sammons, Thomas       114, 292         Sampson, Archibald J       311         Sanders, John O       292         Sandifer, Durward V       4, 25, 246         Sands, Rosa V       307         Sanford, Henry S       307         Sanford, Horace M       116         Sangston, Howard E       16, 31, 246         Sannebeck, Norvelle H       4, 29, 246         Sargent, Aaron A       312         Sartorius, Herman U       292         Sartorius, Herman U       292         Sarterthwaite, Livingston       41, 113, 246         Saucerma, Sophia A       13, 25, 247         Sauge, Carlton       32, 25, 247         Savage, Carlton       32, 25, 247		Page
Sackett, Harrictt E.       21, 29, 246         Sackville, William.       36, 246         Sadler, Mary A.       19, 28, 246         Sager, Fay.       5, 31, 246         Salbsbury, Alfred.       292         Salisbury, Laurence E.       39, 104, 246         Salmon, David A.       19, 23, 26, 246         Sammons, Thomas.       114, 292         Sampson, Archibald J.       311         Sanders, John O.       292         Sandifer, Durward V.       4, 25, 246         Sands, Rosa V.       13, 25, 246         Sands, Rosa V.       13, 25, 246         Sandord, Henry S.       307         Sanford, Henry S.       307         Sanford, Henry S.       307         Sanford, Henry S.       30, 246         Sanspeek, Norvelle H.       4, 29, 246         Sarboris, Algernon       292         Sartoris, Algernon       292         Sarterhwaite, Joseph C.       35, 107, 246         Satterthwaite, Joseph C.       35, 107, 246         Satterthwaite, Joseph C.       35, 247         Sauer, Emil.       38, 100, 247         Saunders, Romulus M.       300         Savage, Carlton       13, 25, 247         Savage, John M. <td>Sack, Leo R.</td> <td>41, 245, 310</td>	Sack, Leo R.	41, 245, 310
Sackett, Martin R.       292         Sackville, William.       36, 246         Sadler, Mary A.       19, 28, 246         Salter, Fay.       5, 31, 246         Salisbury, Laurence E.       39, 104, 246         Salmon, David A.       19, 23, 26, 246         Samnons, Thomas       114, 292         Sampson, Archibald J.       311         Sanders, John O.       292         Sandifer, Durward V.       4, 25, 246         Sands, Rosa V.       13, 25, 246         Sands, Rosa V.       307         Sanford, Henry S.       307         Sanford, Horace M.       116         Sangert, Aaron A.       312         Sartoris, Algernon.       292         Sartoris, Algernon.       292         Sarterthwaite, Joseph C.       35, 107, 246         Satterthwaite, Joseph C.       36, 100, 247         Savage, Carlton.       13, 25, 247         Savage, Carlton.       13, 25, 247 <td>Sackett, Frederic M</td> <td> 292, 312</td>	Sackett, Frederic M	292, 312
Sackville, William. $36, 246$ Sadler, Mary A. $19, 28, 246$ Sager, Fay $5, 31, 246$ Salisbury, Alfred $292$ Salisbury, Laurence E. $39, 104, 246$ Salturon, David A. $19, 23, 26, 246$ Salter, Fred K. $42, 246$ Salter, Fred K. $42, 246$ Sammons, Thomas. $114, 292$ Samoson, Archibald J. $311$ Sanders, John O. $292$ Sandifer, Durward V. $4, 25, 246$ Sands, Rosa V. $13, 25, 246$ Sands, William F. $292, 313$ Sanford, Henry S. $307$ Sanford, Horace M. $116, 13, 246$ Sangent, Aron A. $3112$ Sartorius, Herman U. $292$ Satterthwaite, Joseph C. $35, 107, 246$		
Sadler, Mary A		
Sager, Fay		
Salisbury, Alfred.       292         Salisbury, Laurence E.       39, 104, 246         Salmon, David A.       19, 23, 26, 246         Salmon, Trend K.       42, 246         Sammons, Thomas       114, 292         Sampson, Archibald J.       311         Sanders, John O.       292         Sandifer, Durward V.       4, 25, 246         Sands, Rosa V.       13, 25, 246         Sands, William F.       292, 313         Sanford, Henry S.       307         Sanford, Horace M.       116         Sangston, Howard E.       16, 31, 246         Sannebeck, Norvelle H.       4, 29, 246         Sargent, Aaron A.       312         Sartorius, Herman U.       292         Satterthwaite, Joseph C.       35, 107, 246         Satterthwaite, Joseph C.       36, 00, 247         Sawage, Carlton.       13, 25, 247         Savage, Carlton.		
Salisbury, Laurence E.       39, 104, 246         Salmon, David A.       19, 23, 26, 246         Salter, Fred K.       42, 246         Sammons, Thomas.       114, 292         Sampson, Archibald J.       311         Sanders, John O.       292         Sandifer, Durward V.       4, 25, 246         Sands, Rosa V.       13, 25, 246         Sands, Rosa V.       13, 25, 246         Sands, William F.       292, 313         Sanford, Henry S.       307         Sanford, Henry S.       307         Sanford, Horace M.       16, 31, 246         Sangston, Howard E.       16, 31, 246         Sargent, Aaron A.       312         Sartorius, Herman U.       292         Satterthwaite, Joseph C.       35, 107, 246         Saucerman, Sophia A.       13, 25, 247         Sauage, Carlton.       13, 25, 247         Savage, Carlton.       13, 25, 247         Savage, Carlton.       13, 25, 247         Savage, John M.       114, 292         Savyer, John B.       40, 247         Sawyer, John B.       3, 24, 62, 427, 301         Savage, John M.       10, 25, 247         Schausten, Rudolph A.       45, 247         Schaus		
Salmon, David A		
Salter, Fred K		
Sammons, Thomas       114, 292         Sampson, Archibald J       311         Sanders, John O       292         Sandifer, Durward V       4, 25, 246         Sands, Rosa V       13, 25, 246         Sands, William F       292, 313         Sanford, Henry S       307         Sanford, Henry S       307         Sanford, Henry S       307         Sanford, Horace M       116         Sanston, Howard E       16, 31, 246         Sannebeck, Frank A       5, 30, 246         Sargent, Aaron A       312         Sartoris, Algernon       292         Satterthwaite, Joseph C       35, 107, 246         Satterthwaite, Livingston       41, 113, 246         Saucerman, Sophia A       13, 25, 247         Savage, Carlton       3, 24, 26, 247, 301         Sawyer, John B       40,		
Sampson, Archibald J.       311         Sanders, John O.       292         Sandifer, Durward V.       4, 25, 246         Sands, Rosa V.       33, 25, 246         Sands, Rosa V.       307         Sanford, Henry S.       307         Sanford, Henry S.       307         Sanford, Henry S.       307         Sanford, Henry S.       307         Sanford, Horace M.       116         Sangston, Howard E.       16, 31, 246         Sangent, Aaron A.       312         Sartorius, Herman U.       202         Satterthwaite, Joseph C.       35, 107, 246         Satterthwaite, Joseph C.       35, 107, 246         Saucerman, Sophia A.       13, 25, 247         Savage, Carlton.       13, 25, 247         Savage, Carlton.       13, 25, 247         Savage, Carlton.       13, 25, 247         Savage, John M.       2102         Savyer, Icroy R.       292         Sayers, Thomas       34         Sawyer, John B.       40, 247         Sawyer, John B.       32, 24, 64, 247, 301         Schausten, Rudolph A.       45, 247         Schausten, Rudolph A.       45, 247         Schanet, Ceorge B.       292     <		
Sanders, John O.       292         Sandifer, Durward V.       4, 25, 246         Sands, Rosa V.       13, 25, 246         Sands, William F.       292, 313         Sanford, Henry S.       307         Sanford, Henry S.       307         Sanford, Horace M.       116         Sangston, Howard E.       16, 31, 246         Sannebeck, Frank A.       5, 30, 246         Sargent, Aaron A.       312         Sartoris, Algernon.       292         Satterthwaite, Joseph C.       35, 107, 246         Saucerman, Sophia A.       13, 25, 247         Saucer, Emil.       38, 100, 247         Sauders, Romulus M.       320         Savage, Carlton.       13, 25, 247         Savage, John M.       114, 292         Savoy, Edward A.       34         Sawyer, John B.       40, 247         Sawger, Thomas       34         Sayre, Francis B.       3, 24, 26, 2		
Sandifer, Durward V       4, 25, 246         Sands, Rosa V       13, 25, 246         Sands, William F       292, 313         Sanford, Henry S       307         Sanford, Henry S       307         Sanford, Horace M       116         Sangston, Howard E       16, 31, 246         Sannebeck, Frank A       5, 30, 246         Sargent, Aaron A       312         Sartoris, Algernon       292         Satterthwaite, Joseph C       35, 107, 246         Saucerman, Sophia A       13, 25, 247         Saucerman, Sophia A       13, 25, 247         Saucerman, Sophia A       320, 247         Savage, Carlton       32, 52, 47         Savage, Carlton       13, 25, 247         Savage, Carlton       32, 52, 47         Savage, Carlton       34         Sawyer, John B       40, 247         Sawyer, John B       40, 247         Sawyer, John B       34         Sayre, Francis B       3, 24, 26, 247, 301         Scanlan, John J       10, 25, 247         Schausten, Rudolph A       45, 247         Schenck, Robert C       308, 312         Schmucker, George B       292         Schane, Lester L       46, 104, 247		
Sands, Rosa V	Sandifer, Durward V	4, 25, 246
Sands, William F		
$ \begin{array}{llllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllll$		
Sangston, Howard E.       16, 31, 246         Sannebeck, Frank A.       5, 30, 246         Sannebeck, Norvelle H.       4, 29, 246         Sargent, Aaron A.       312         Sartoris, Algernon       292         Satterthwaite, Joseph C.       35, 107, 246         Satterthwaite, Joseph C.       35, 107, 246         Satterthwaite, Livingston       41, 113, 246         Saucerman, Sophia A.       13, 25, 247         Sauer, Emil.       38, 100, 247         Sanders, Romulus M.       320         Savage, Carlton       13, 25, 247         Savage, Carlton       13, 25, 247         Savye, Edward A.       34         Sawyer, John B.       40, 247         Sayre, Thomas       34         Sayre, Thomas       34         Sayre, Thomas       34         Sayre, Francis B.       3, 24, 26, 247, 301         Scanlan, John J.       10, 25, 247         Schausten, Rudolph A.       45, 247         Schausten, Rudolph A.       45, 247         Schenck, Robert C.       308, 312         Schmucker, George B.       292         Schausten, Rudolph A.       45, 247         Scheneide, Heler L.       50, 102, 247         Schoen		
Sangston, Howard E.       16, 31, 246         Sannebeck, Frank A.       5, 30, 246         Sannebeck, Norvelle H.       4, 29, 246         Sargent, Aaron A.       312         Sartoris, Algernon       292         Satterthwaite, Joseph C.       35, 107, 246         Satterthwaite, Joseph C.       35, 107, 246         Satterthwaite, Livingston       41, 113, 246         Saucerman, Sophia A.       13, 25, 247         Sauer, Emil.       38, 100, 247         Sanders, Romulus M.       320         Savage, Carlton       13, 25, 247         Savage, Carlton       13, 25, 247         Savye, Edward A.       34         Sawyer, John B.       40, 247         Sayre, Thomas       34         Sayre, Thomas       34         Sayre, Thomas       34         Sayre, Francis B.       3, 24, 26, 247, 301         Scanlan, John J.       10, 25, 247         Schausten, Rudolph A.       45, 247         Schausten, Rudolph A.       45, 247         Schenck, Robert C.       308, 312         Schmucker, George B.       292         Schausten, Rudolph A.       45, 247         Scheneide, Heler L.       50, 102, 247         Schoen	Sanford, Horace M	116
$\begin{split} & \text{Sannebeck, Norvelle H} & 4, 29, 246 \\ & \text{Sargent, Aaron A} & 312 \\ & \text{Sartoris, Algernon} & 292 \\ & \text{Sartorius, Herman U} & 292 \\ & \text{Satterthwaite, Joseph C} & 35, 107, 246 \\ & \text{Satterthwaite, Livingston} & 41, 113, 246 \\ & \text{Saucerman, Sophia A} & 13, 25, 247 \\ & \text{Saunders, Romulus M} & 320 \\ & \text{Savage, Carlton} & 13, 25, 247 \\ & \text{Sauage, Carlton} & 13, 25, 247 \\ & \text{Savage, John M} & 114, 292 \\ & \text{Savoy, Edward A} & 34 \\ & \text{Sawyer, John B} & 40, 247 \\ & \text{Sawyer, Leroy R} & 292 \\ & \text{Sayres, Thomas} & 3, 24, 26, 247, 301 \\ & \text{Scanalt, John J} & 10, 25, 247 \\ & \text{Scaratit, Nathan} & 292 \\ & \text{Schausten, Rudolph A} & 45, 247 \\ & \text{Schenck, Robert C} & 308, 312 \\ & \text{Schmucker, George B} & 292 \\ & \text{Schmare, Lester L} & 46, 104, 247 \\ & \text{Schenick, George B} & 292 \\ & \text{Schanze, Lester L} & 46, 104, 247 \\ & \text{Scheneider, Elsie M} & 21, 28, 247 \\ & \text{Scheneider, Elsie M} & 21, 28, 247 \\ & \text{Schenefeld, Ethel L} & 5, 30, 247 \\ & \text{Schoenfeld, Rudolf E} & 8, 63, 102, 248 \\ & \text{Schooler, Gorge R} & 292 \\ & \text{Schooley, George R} & 022 \\ & \text{Schoolet, Rudolf E} & 8, 63, 102, 248 \\ & \text{Schooler, Helen V} & 54, 104, 248 \\ & \text{Schooler, Helen V} & 54, 104, 248 \\ & \text{Schooder, Francis} & 320, 321 \\ & \text{Schroeder, Francis} & 320, 321 \\ & \text{Schroeder, Francis} & 320, 321 \\ & \text{Schroeder, Frank A., Jr} & 52, 111, 248 \\ & \text{Schumann, Walter} & 292 \\ & \text{Schutt, William W_{1}, 426, 248 \\ & \text{Schurman, Jacob G} & 292, 309, 312, 313, 316 \\ & \text{Schurt, Carl} & 320 \\ & \text{Schutt, Warren E} & 292 \\ & \text{Schutt, Warren E & 292 \\ & \text{Schutt, Warren E & 292 \\ & \text{Schurt M, Varen E} & 292 \\ & \text{Schutt, Warren E & 292 \\ & \text{Schutt, Warren E & 292 \\ & \text{Schutt, Warren E & 292 \\ & \text{Schutt, Warren E & 292 \\ & \text{Schutt M, Warch M} & 292 \\ & Schutt, Warren E & 292 \\ & \text{Schutt M, Waren H & 296 \\ & 292 \\ & \text{Schurt M, V$		
Sargent, Aaron A.       312         Sartoris, Algernon       292         Sartorius, Herman U.       292         Sattorius, Herman U.       292         Satterthwaite, Joseph C.       35, 107, 246         Saucerman, Sophia A.       13, 25, 247         Sauzer, Emil.       38, 100, 247         Saunders, Romulus M.       300         Savage, Carlton       13, 25, 247         Savage, Carlton       13, 25, 247         Savage, Carlton       13, 25, 247         Savage, John M.       114, 292         Savoy, Edward A.       34         Sawyer, John B.       40, 247         Sawyer, John B.       32, 42, 62, 447, 301         Scennan, John J.       10, 25, 247         Schenck, Robert C.       308, 312         Schausen, Rudolph A.       45, 247         Schenck, Robert C.       308, 312         Schmucker, George B.       292         Schausen, Rudolph A.       41, 247         Scheneiker, Elsie M.       21, 28, 247         Schoelkopf, Walter H.       59, 102, 247         Schoelkopf, Walter H.       59, 102, 247         Schoenfeld, Rudolf E.       8, 63, 102, 248         Schoelekog George R.       10, 28, 248	Sannebeck, Frank A	5, 30, 246
Sartoris, Algernon       292         Sartorius, Herman U       292         Satterthwaite, Joseph C       35, 107, 246         Saucerman, Sophia A       13, 25, 247         Saucerman, Sophia A       13, 25, 247         Sauvage, Carlton       13, 25, 247         Savage, Carlton       14, 292         Savoy, Edward A       34         Sawyer, John B       40, 247         Sawyer, John B       40, 247         Sawyer, John B       34         Sayre, Francis B       3, 24, 26, 247, 301         Scanlan, John J       10, 25, 247         Sernitit, Nathan       292         Schausten, Rudolph A       45, 247         Schenck, Robert C       308, 312         Schmae, Lester L       46, 104, 247         Schenck, Robert C       308, 312         Schmae, Lester L       46, 104, 247         Schonefeld, Filel L       5, 30, 247         Schoenfeld, Kudolf E       8, 63, 102, 248         Schooenfeld, Rudolf E       8, 63, 102, 248         Schooley, George R       10, 28, 248         School	Sannebeck, Norvelle H	4, 29, 246
$\begin{tabular}{lllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllll$		
Satterthwaite, Joseph C		
Satterthwaite, Livingston41, 113, 246         Saucerman, Sophia A		
Saucerman, Sophia A.       13, 25, 247         Saure, Emil.       38, 100, 247         Saunders, Romulus M.       320         Savage, Carlton       13, 25, 247         Savage, Carlton       114, 292         Savoy, Edward A.       34         Sawyer, John B.       40, 247         Sawyer, John B.       40, 247         Sawyer, John B.       40, 247         Sawyer, John B.       202         Sayres, Thomas       34         Sayre, Francis B.       3, 24, 26, 247, 301         Scanlan, John J.       10, 25, 247         Scarritt, Nathan       292         Schausten, Rudolph A.       45, 247         Schenck, Robert C.       308, 312         Schmedeman, Albert G.       292, 316         Schmucker, George B.       292         Schausten, Rudolph A.       41, 247         Schenelk, Robert C.       308, 312         Schmeder, Elsie M.       21, 28, 247         Schenelker, Elsie M.       21, 28, 247         Schenelker, George B.       292         Schonelkopf, Walter H.       59, 102, 247         Schoenfeld, Rudolf E.       8, 63, 102, 248         Schooley, George R.       10, 28, 248         Schooley, George		
$\begin{tabular}{lllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllll$		
Saunders, Romulus M		
$\begin{tabular}{lllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllll$	Sauer, Emil	38, 100, 247
$\begin{tabular}{lllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllll$		
$\begin{array}{rrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrr$		
$ \begin{array}{llllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllll$		
$\begin{array}{llllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllll$		
$\begin{array}{rrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrr$		
$\begin{tabular}{lllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllll$	Schausten, Rudolph A	45, 247
$\begin{tabular}{lllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllll$	Schenck, Robert C	308, 312
$\begin{tabular}{lllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllll$	Schmedeman, Albert G	292, 316
Schneider, Elsie M	Schmucker, George B	292
$\begin{tabular}{lllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllll$		
$\begin{tabular}{lllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllll$		
$\begin{tabular}{lllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllll$		
Schoenfeld, H. F. Arthur. 42, 96, 248, 310         Schoenfeld, Rudolf E	Schoellkopf, Walter H	59, 102, 247
Schoenfeld, Rudolf E	Schoenfeld, Ethel L.	5, 30, 247
Schoenrich, Edwin       41, 105, 248         Schoole, Gustave.       292         Schooley, George R.       10, 28, 248         Schott, William W.       54, 104, 248         Schory, Balkam       292         Schraud, Myron H.       50, 248         Schroeder, Francis.       320, 321         Schroeder, Helen V.       5, 31, 248         Schutz, ff, Gladys E.       5, 30, 248         Schuler, Frank A., Jr       52, 111, 248         Schumann, Walter       202         Schurman, Jacob G.       292, 309, 312, 313, 316         Schurtz, Carl       320         Schutt, Warren E.       292	Schoenfeld, H. F. Arthur 42,	96, 248, 310
Scholle, Gustave.       292         Schooley, George R.       10, 28, 248         Schott, William W.       54, 104, 248         Schoyer, Balkam.       292         Schraud, Myron H.       50, 248         Schroeder, Francis.       320, 321         Schroeder, Helen V.       5, 31, 248         Schrudt, Gladys E.       5, 30, 248         Schuler, Frank A., Jr.       52, 111, 248         Schuler, Frank A., Jr.       292         Schumann, Walter.       292         Schurman, Jacob G.       292, 309, 312, 313, 316         Schurz, Carl.       320         Schutt, Warren E.       292		
Schooley, George R.       10, 28, 248         Schott, William W.       54, 104, 248         Schoyer, Balkam.       292         Schradt, Myron H.       50, 248         Schroeder, Francis.       320, 321         Schroeder, Helen V.       5, 31, 248         Schukraft, Gladys E.       5, 30, 248         Schuler, Frank A., Jr.       52, 111, 248         Schuler, Frank A., Jr.       52, 111, 248         Schumann, Walter.       202         Schurman, Jacob G.       292, 309, 312, 313, 316         Schurz, Carl.       320         Schutt, Warren E.       292		
$ \begin{array}{llllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllll$	Schooley George P	10 28 249
Schoyer, Balkam	Schott William W	54 104 248
Schraud, Myron H.         50, 248           Schroeder, Francis.         320, 321           Schroeder, Helen V.         5, 31, 248           Schukraft, Gladys E.         5, 30, 238           Schukraft, Gladys E.         5, 30, 248           Schukraft, Gladys E.         5, 30, 248           Schukraft, Gladys E.         5, 30, 248           Schukraft, Gladys E.         202           Schurann, Walter.         292           Schurman, Jacob G.         292, 309, 312, 313, 316           Schurz, Carl.         320           Schutt, Warren E.         292	Schover Balkam	292
Schroeder, Francis		
Schroeder, Helen V.         5, 31, 248           Schukraft, Gladys E.         5, 30, 248           Schuler, Frank A., Jr.         52, 111, 248           Schumann, Walter         292           Schurman, Jacob G.         292, 309, 312, 313, 316           Schurr, Carl         320           Schutt, Warren E.         292		
Schukraft, Gladys E		
Schuler, Frank A., Jr		
Sehumann, Walter		
Sehurman, Jacob G         292, 309, 312, 313, 316           Sehurz, Carl	Schumann, Walter	
Schurz, Carl	Schurman, Jacob G 292, 309,	312, 313, 316
		320
Schuyler, Eugene 311, 313, 318, 319		
	Schuyler, Eugene 311,	313, 318, 319

$\mathbf{P}$	a	g	e	

1		ige
ł	Schuyler, Montgomery	
1		292
	Scott, Albert W 47, 108, Scott, Charles L	248
	Scott, George 18, 32,	
	Scott, James Brown	
	Scott, James T 42,	
1	Scott, John William	
	Scott, Walter	34
	Scott, Winfield H 48, 106,	249
	Scott, Winthrop R 38, 103,	
	Scotten, Robert M 38, 99,	
	Scotten, William E 45, 110,	
	Scruggs, William L	
	Scay, William A Seddicum, Paul C	
	Seeger, Eugene	292
		307
	Seibert, Elvin 48, 110,	249
	Scltzer, George E 36, 106,	249
	Seltzer, Harry G	292
	Selvog, Anna S 5, 30,	
		309
	Serrin, Mary Louise	250 317
	lecter, a montheorement and the second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second secon	313
	Severe, Marc L 44,	
	Sevier, Hal H	309
	Sewall, Harold M	314
	Seward, Frederick W	299
	Seward, George F	309
	Seward, William H	296
	Sewell, William L	292
ł	Seyfert, Augustus G Seymour, Thomas H	292 319
	Seys, John	315
	Shallcross, Gertrude C 5, 28,	
	Shallenberger, Martin C 35, 51,	250
	Shand, Miles	34
	Shank, Samuel H	292
	Shanklin, Arnold	292
ł	Shannon, James	308
	Shannon, Richard Cutts 310, 311, Shannon, Wilson	315
1	Shantz, Harold	
1	Sharp, Frederick D 35, 57, 61,	250
-	Sharp, Hunter	292
1	Sharp, William G 292,	312
1	Sharps, Lloyd	34
		292
	Shaw, G. Howland	250
	Shaw, George P	250 306
	Shaw, Samuel. Shea, Joseph H	
	Shea, Joseph H	
	Sheffield, James R	
1	Shellabarger, Samuel	318
	Shepard, Donald D'A	292
	Shepard, James M	292
	Sherman, Harry Tuck	116
1	Sherman, J. A. Tuck 60,	
	Sherman, John	297 292
	Shernian, Thomas F	
	onen, ooo naaraa ooy	201

P	age
Sherrill, Charles H	321
Shields, Benjamin G.	322
Shillock, John C., Jr	
Shipley, Milford A	951
Chiphen Duth D	051
Shipley, Ruth B	051
Shipman, Fred W	, 251
Shipp, William E 43, 44, 53,	
Shirley, John II	292
Shock, Thomas M 39,	251
Shockley, William P.	116
Shockley, William P., Jr 52,	251
	292
Shoemaker, Henry W 251, 292,	308
Sholes, Walter H 36, 101,	
Short, William	
Shotts, George W.	
Shreve, Edgar A	
Shuey, Susan H 16, 29,	
Shultze, George H	34
Sickles, Daniel E	320
Sickles, Stanton	292
Siegel, Charles 19, 27,	252
Sigmond, Frithjof C 60,	252
Signor, Wales W 49, 112,	252
Sill, John M. B.	315
Silliman, John R	292
	292
Silvers, Edward E	
Simmons, Edward T 20, 32,	202
Simmons, John Farr 7, 21, 63, 100,	
Simmons, Paul A	
Simpleh, Frederick	292
Simpson, Julia F 10, 27,	
Skinner, James S	34
Skinner, Robert P	60,
96, 252, 311, 313, 315,	321
Skinner, Sidney A	34
Slater, Fred C 114,	
Slaughter, Charles A	
Slavens, Stanley G 51, 109,	
Slawson, David Henry 44,	252
	292
	315
Sloan, Alexander K 54, 103, 253,	
Slocum, Clarence R	
Smale, William A 54, 105,	253
Small, Samuel	253
Smedberg, Julian K	253
Smith, A. Donaldson	292
Smith, Abraham E	292
Smith, Arthur J 2, 32,	
	292
Smith, Carothers H	34
	319
Smith, Charles Emory	
Smith, Cora M	
	302
Smith, E. Talbot	253
Smith, Elizabeth B	
	315
	292
Smith, Frances I 21, 28,	253
Smith, Gaston 45, 104,	
Smith, Glenn A	
Smith, H. Armistead	

	1.5	ige
Smith, Harold L.	-	292
Smith, Holmes Conrad		292
Smith, Horace H 39,	108,	254
Smith, James A	-	292
Smith, John Cotton		307
Smith, Julian D.	57,	254
Smith, Leland L.	_	292
Smith, Madison R.		313
Smith, Merlin E.	48,	254
Smith, Mildred D 21,	30,	254
Smith, Mildred M 20,	30,	254
Smith, Orlando F 16,	28,	
Smith, Owen L. W.	- 3	315
Smith, Robert		294
Smith, Samuel	- '	292
Smith, Sydney	-	292
Smith, Sydney B 11.	31,	254
Smith, Sydney Y 18,	26,	254
Smith, Vivian M 9	, 29,	254
Smith, William		318
Smith, William S		306
Smith, William W		292
Smith-Hutton, Henri If		254
Smithman, Beulah M 5,	30,	254
Smyth, John H	_	315
Smyth, Robert Lacy 39, 40,		254
Smythe, Henry M	_ :	313
Snodgrass, John H.	_ :	292
Snowden, A. Loudon 313, 318, 3		320
Snowden, Ernest		
Snyder, Alban G		292
Snyder, Henry		
Snyder, Lucille		
Snyder, Mary E 15.		
Snyder, Nicholas R		292
Snyder, Viola T	29.	255
Sockwell, Lester		
Sokobin, Samuel		
Sonner, Thomas G 20,		
Sorrell, Carol	30.	255
Sorshy, William B . 292.3	308. :	
Soule, Edgar C	,000,0	292
Soulé, Pierre		320
South, John Glover	- 317. 3	
Southard, Addison E 43, 96, 98, 9		
Southgate, Richard 18.		
Southworth, William B		292
Spahr, Herman L		292
Spalding, Francis L		
Spamer, Carl O		
Spangler, Conrad C	38 5	256
Spangler, Frank LeR		292
Sparks, Edward J 38, 1		
Spaulding, E. Wilder 13,		
Spence, Carroll		30 321
Spencer, Willing		292
Sperry, Watson R		817
Spiker, Clarence J	01 9	
Sprague, Lillian A	30.5	256
Sprague, Richard L 48, 1		
Sprigg, Carroll		
Sprigman, Mary	29,2	
Springer, Joseph A Springs, L. Pittman	48 0	16
pringo, in intimali	10, 2	100

	Р	age
Spruks, H. Charles	21, 26,	256
Squier, Ephraim George		313
Squiers, Herbert G	292, 310,	317
Squire, Paul C		
Staab, Mary J		
Stahler, Jordan H Stafford, Maurice L		292
Stallo, John B.		
Stambaugh, George B		
Stambaugh, John, 2d		292
Stanard, Hugh C		292
Standish, Myles		257
Stangeland, Charles E		292
Stanton, Edwin F	. 39, 104,	257
Stanton, W. Quincy		
Stapleton, W. Maynard		292
Starkweather, David A		308
Starrett, Henry P		292
Staten, Verne G		
Stearns, Foster		292
Stedman, Nathan P		292 322
Steele, Joseph D		
Steen, William M		
Steere, Loyd V.		
Steger, Christian T		
Stegmaier, Raymond L.		
Steinhardt, Laurence A		
Steinhart, Frank		
Stephan, Charles H		
Stephan, Ola May	11, 30,	258
Stephens, Joseph G.		292
Sterling, Frederick A 37, 96,		
Stetson, John B., Jr		
Stevens, Francis B.		
Stevens, Harry E	. 40, 105,	258
Stevens, John L	317, 321,	322
Stevens, Leslie C		
Stevenson, Andrew Stevenson, Ronald D		312
Stewart, Catherine B	5.20	258
Stewart, Francis R	35, 102.	258
Stewart, Glenn		292
Stewart, James B	. 51, 99,	258
Stewart, Nathaniel B		292
Stewart, Warren C	50,	259
Stewart, Worthington E	7, 26,	259
Steyne, Alan N	46, 110,	259
Stiles, Edith F	14, 27,	
Stiles, George K		292
Stiles, William H		306
Stillwell, Thomas N		
Stimson, Frederic J Stimson, Henry Lewis	292,	306 298
Stimson, Henry Lewis Stinebower, Leroy D	10.25	
Stockbridge, Francis B		259 316
Stocker, Ida May		
Stockton, Gilchrist Baker		
Stockton, John P		317
Stogsdall, Nelle B		292
Stone, Benjamin F		292
Stone, John F	58, 113,	
Storer, Bellamy	292, 307,	320

Pa	age
Story, Harry W 41,	259
Story, Thomas	
Stoughton, Edwin W	319
Stouell Bloggert A	
Stovall, Pleasant A	321
Straight, Eugene	259
Straight, Willard D	292
Strassburger, Ralph B	292
Straus, Jesse I 44, 260,	312
Straus, Oscar S 292,	
Streeper, Robert B 49, 106,	
Strickland, Peter	292
Strobel, Edward H 300, 309, Strother, Edmund W 35, 61,	
Strother, Shelby F	
Struttmann, Ernest L	
Stuart, Granville 317,	
Sturgeon, Leo D 63, 104,	260
Sturgis, Hugh L	260
Stutesman, James F 292,	308
Stuyvesant, L. Rutherfurd	292
Styles, Francis H 54, 64, 105,	
Sullivan, James M	
Sullivan, Lucien N 114,	
Sullivan, Peter I	309
Summers, Maddin	322 292
Summers, Natalia	
	292
Sumter, Thomas, Jr	318
Sundell, Charles C	260
Sunderland, Margaret C 22, 29,	260
Supplee, Constance M 8, 30,	260
Sussdorff, Louis, Jr	260
Sutherland, Lucile M 20, 31,	261
Sutton, Margaret W 5, 31,	
Swaim, Charles L.	292
Swalm, Albert W Swann, James S	$\frac{292}{34}$
Swanson, Lloyd A 20, 30,	
Swanson, Margaret L 4, 29,	
Sweet, Florence G 4, 29,	
Swenson, Laurits S	261
292, 310, 316,	321
Swift, John F	314
Swift, Merritt	261
Sycks, Dana C	292
Taft, Alphonso	310
Taft, Orray, Jr	261
	297
	292
Tait, George 44, 107,	261
Talbert, E. Dallas 21, 28,	261
Talbott, Sheridan 42, 106,	261
Taliaferro, Charles H 55,	261
Tallant, Mary E	261
Talley, Horace L. 21, 29, Tanis Richard C. 9.94	261
Tanis, Richard C	
Tarler, G. Cornell Tattersall, Philip K	292   262
Taylor, Allan C	262
Taylor, Ancel N 15, 28,	
(T) 1	312

P	uge
Taylor, Charles H. J	315
Taylor, Clifford C 61,	
Taylor, Eli	262
Taylor, Elmer A	
Taylor, Eva Neel 5, 31,	
Taylor, George, Jr	303
Taylor, Hannis Taylor, Howard C	$320 \\ 292$
Taylor, John W	262
Taylor, Leroy	
Taylor, Lillian G 5, 30,	
Taylor, Morgan O	292
Taylor, P. Emerson	292
Taylor, Robert M 39, 113,	262
Taylor, Samuel M.	292
Taylor, William A., Jr Taylor, William H	292
	292
Taylor, Zachary	295
Teall, Girvan	
Teichmann, William C	292
	263
Ten Eyck, Anthony	313
Tennant, Henry F	292
Tennant, Robert A 51, Tenney, Charles D	203
Tennille, Clayborne	
Terrell, Alexander W	321
Terrell, Edwin H	307
Terres, John B	293
Terry, Charles T	
Tewell, Harold S 41, 103,	263
Thackara, Alexander M 114,	293
Thain, Ann Marie 5, 30,	263
Thaw, Benjamin, Jr 56, 99,	263
Thayer, Samuel R	316
Theaker, Anna R 19, 28,	
Thebaud, Leo H 44, 58, 59,	
Thiel, Cyril L. F	
Thomas, Allen	322
Thomas, Edgar	
Thomas, Edward B Thomas, Edward J 13, 25,	293
	317
Thomas, Frederick L	293
Thomas, George A	
Thomas, George S 15, 31,	
	299
Thomas, Leonard M	293
	321
Thomason, Oscar	263
Thompson, Berry R 20, 30,	
Thompson, David E 293, 308,	
	321
Thompson, Edward H	293
Thompson, John E. W., 310,	313
Thompson, Llewellyn E., Jr. 60, 109,	264
Thompson, Milton P 37, 110,	264
Thompson, Paul Dean	$264 \\ 293$
	293 293
Thompson, Samuel R 59, 103,	
	308
Thompson, Tyler	264
	315

		age
5	Thomson, Alfred R. 48, 101,	
	Thomson, Irving L. 14, 25,	
2	Thomson, Thaddeus A	
2	Thorling, Charles H	293
\$	Thorne, William DuB 56, 113,	
, )		317 293
2	Thornton, William O	
2	Throop, Enos T	321
2	Tillett, Percy O	204
2		311
2	Tilton, Daniel Henry 19, 29,	
2	Timberlake, Clare H 35, 111,	
2	Timberman, Thomas S	265
2	Tisdel, Willard P	309
2	Tittman, Harold H., Jr 51, 101,	265
2	Tobin, Edward J 22, 32,	265
2	Tobin, Richard M 293,	
5	Toch, Leo	
2	Tod, David	
2	Todd, Charles S	319
3	Todd, Marguerite K 8, 31,	265
3	Tolman, George L 38,	
2	Tompkins, Ralph H	293
3	Tonner, John A 18, 27,	<b>2</b> 65
2	Tonner, Laura R	34
3	Torbert, Alfred T. A	
,	Tormey, Bernard A 39,	265
į	Totten, Ralph J 61, 96, 265,	322
į	Touchette, Joseph I 45, 108,	
	Touhay, St. Leger A	
	Tower, Arthur F	200
	Tower, Charlemagne 293, 307, 312,	
	Townsend, George A	
	Townsend, Ralph	293
	Townsend, Robert S.	293
	Trammell, H. Eric	293
	Travers, Howard K 48, 103,	266
	Treat, R. A. Wallace	
	Tredwell, Roger C 114, 266,	293
	Tree, Lambert	319
1	Trescot, William H 299, 307, 309,	317
	Trimble, William C 35, 113,	266
		293
		307
	Trist, Nicholas P	303
	Trousdale, William	308
	Troutman, Harry L. 50, 104,	
	Trowbridge, Jones R 41,	
	Trueblood, Edward G 41, 109,	
	Tuck, S. Pinkney	200
	Tudor, William	308
		267
1	Tuggle, Dorothy 2, 27,	
	Tuggle, Dorothy	267
	Tuggle, Dorothy	267 293
	Tuggle, Dorothy	267 293
	Tuggle, Dorothy	267 293 267 315
	Tuggle, Dorothy	267 293 267 315 267
	Tuggle, Dorothy	267 293 267 315 267
	Tuggle, Dorothy	267 293 267 315 267 267
	Tuggle, Dorothy	267 293 267 315 267 267 293

#### Page

Tyler, John	95
Tyler, Raymond 5, 32, 2	67
Uhl, Edwin F 297, 300, 3	12
Ulanytzky, Irene S 20, 29, 2	67
Unckles, Roderick W 1	16
Underwood, Edna M 5, 30, 2	67
Underwood, Wilbur W	34
Unverzagt, Henry T 55, 2	67
Upgren, Arthur R 3, 33, 2	67
Upshur, Abel P 2	95

* ',		
Vail, Aaron	303, 312,	320
Vail, Delmar J		293
Valenza, Thomas F	20, 29,	267
Vallance, William R		
Van Alen, John Trumbull		310
Van Benschoten, Arnold		
Van Buren, Harold S		293
Van Buren, Martin		
		116
Van Buskirk, William		
Vance, Marshall M		
Van den Arend, Frederik		
van Dyke, Henry		
Van Dyne, Frederick		293
Van Dyne, George W		293
Van Ness, Cornelius P		320
Van Rensselaer, W. S		293
Van Sant, Howard D		293
Van Valin, Forrest D		268
Van Valkenburgh, Robert B.		314
Van Wickel, Jesse F		268
Vaughan, Stephen B	46,	268
Veatch, Roy		
Venable, William E		313
Vestal, Ralph A		268
Vignaud, Henry		293
Villard, Henry S		
Vincelette, Leo J		
Vincent, John Carter		
Vincent, John L.		
Vipond, B. Leslie		
Voetter, Thomas W		
Vogenitz, Herman C		
Von Struve, Henry C	284,	293
Von Tresckow, Egmont C	- 62, 102,	269
Von Zielinski, Carl M. J		293
Vopicka, Charles J 293	, 308, 319,	320
Vroom, Peter D		318
Vyse, William Clarke	- 40, 107,	269
117 - J.J11 . M 1	r 00	000
Waddell, Merlene		
Wadsworth, Craig W		
Wadsworth, George		
Wadsworth, Julius		
Wagrer, Jacob		
Wailes, Edward T		
Wailes, Ruth K		
Wainwright, John T		
Wakefield, Ernest A		
Walcavich, Walter G	20, 31,	269
Waldron, Elma V	12, 33,	269
Walk, Maurice		293
Walker, Edward B		293
Walker, Jay		270
Walker, Mannix		

Walker, Ralph C 20, 32, 27	0
Wallace, Hugh C 293, 31	2
Wallace, Lewis	1
Wallace, Thomas R. 115, 29	3
Wallace, Victor A 18, 25, 27	0
Wallace, William K 29	2
Waller, Fred E 61, 27	0
HI-H D 00 54 105 05	0
Waller, George P 36, 54, 105, 27	0
Walmsley, Walter N., Jr 42, 109, 27	'n
Wallistoy, Walter 14, 5111111 12, 100, 21	~
Walsh, Harry L 270, 29	3
Walsh, Walter M 38, 27	
Ward, Angus I 61, 106, 27	0
Mr. J. W	0
Ward, Frank X 4, 24, 27	0
Ward, Frederick H 29	
Ward, John E	9
	0
Ward, Robert S 40, 109, 27	0
Wardman, George B 29	3
Warner, Betty T 11, 30, 27	1
Warner, Carlos J 57, 109, 27	1
warner, Carlos J	T.
Warner, Gerald 40, 111, 27	1
Warner, Margaret	3
Warner, Southard P 29	2
Warren, Avra M	1
Warren, Charles B 293, 314, 31	9
Warren, Fitz Henry 31	
Warren, Fletcher 51, 104, 27	1
Warren, James R 1, 31, 27	1
Warren, Janie B 18, 29, 27	1
Warren, Robert 5, 31, 27	1
Washbourne, Frederick L 52, 27	
Washburn, Albert H 293, 30	7
Washburn, Charles A 31	6
	1
Washburn, John D 32	
Washburn, John D 32	
Washburn, John D	2
Washburn, John D	$\frac{2}{4}$
Washburn, John D	$\frac{2}{4}$
Washburn, John D	2 4 3
Washburn, John D	2 4 3
Washburn, John D.       32         Washburne, Elihu B.       296, 31         Washington, George.       29         Washington, Horace Lee.       115, 22         Washington, Raoul F.       41, 27	2 4 3
Washburn, John D	2 4 3 1
Washburn, John D	2 4 3 1
Washburn, John D	2 4 3 1 1
Washburn, John D	2 4 3 1 1 1
Washburn, John D	2 4 3 1 1 1
Washburn, John D	
Washburn, John D	
Washburn, John D.       32         Washburne, Elihu B.       296, 31         Washington, George.       29         Washington, Horace Lee.       115, 29         Washington, Raoul F.       41, 27         Washington, S. Walter.       40, 107, 27         Washington, William W.       2, 32, 27         Wasson, Thomas C.       52, 108, 27         Waterman, Bernice L.       11, 28, 27         Waterman, Henry S.       48, 102, 27	
Washburn, John D.       32         Washburne, Elihu B.       296, 31         Washington, George.       29         Washington, Horace Lee.       115, 29         Washington, Raoul F.       41, 27         Washington, S. Walter.       40, 107, 27         Washington, William W.       2, 32, 27         Wasson, Thomas C.       52, 108, 27         Waterman, Bernice L.       11, 28, 27         Waters, Daniel J.       29	2 $4$ $3$ $1$ $1$ $1$ $1$ $2$ $3$
Washburn, John D.       32         Washburne, Elihu B.       296, 31         Washington, George.       29         Washington, Horace Lee.       115, 29         Washington, Raoul F.       41, 27         Washington, S. Walter.       40, 107, 27         Washington, William W.       2, 32, 27         Wasson, Thomas C.       52, 108, 27         Waterman, Bernice L.       11, 28, 27         Waters, Daniel J.       29	2 $4$ $3$ $1$ $1$ $1$ $1$ $2$ $3$
Washburn, John D.       32         Washburne, Elihu B.       296, 31         Washington, George.       29         Washington, Horace Lee       115, 29         Washington, Raoul F.       41, 27         Washington, S. Walter.       40, 107, 27         Washington, William W.       2, 32, 27         Wasson, Thomas C.       52, 108, 27         Waterman, Henry S.       48, 102, 27         Waters, Harold G.       29	$2 \\ 4 \\ 3 \\ 1 \\ 1 \\ 1 \\ 1 \\ 1 \\ 1 \\ 2 \\ 3 \\ 3 \\ 3 \\ 3 \\ 3 \\ 3 \\ 3 \\ 3 \\ 3$
Washburn, John D.       32         Washburne, Elihu B.       296, 31         Washington, George.       29         Washington, Horace Lee.       115, 29         Washington, Raoul F.       41, 27         Washington, S. Walter.       40, 107, 27         Washington, William W.       2, 32, 27         Wasson, Thomas C.       52, 108, 27         Waterman, Bernice L.       11, 28, 27         Waters, Daniel J.       29	$2 \\ 4 \\ 3 \\ 1 \\ 1 \\ 1 \\ 1 \\ 1 \\ 1 \\ 2 \\ 3 \\ 3 \\ 3 \\ 3 \\ 3 \\ 3 \\ 3 \\ 3 \\ 3$
Washburn, John D.       32         Washburne, Elihu B.       296, 31         Washington, George.       29         Washington, Horace Lee       115, 22         Washington, Raoul F.       41, 27         Washington, S. Walter       40, 107, 27         Washington, William W.       2, 32, 27         Wasson, Thomas C.       5, 108, 27         Waterman, Bernice L.       11, 28, 27         Waters, Daniel J.       29         Waters, Harold G.       29         Watson, Hugh.       48, 27	24311112332
Washburn, John D.       32         Washburne, Elihu B.       296, 31         Washington, George.       29         Washington, Horace Lee.       115, 22         Washington, Raoul F.       41, 27         Washington, S. Waiter.       40, 107, 27         Washington, S. Waiter.       40, 107, 27         Washington, S. Waiter.       108, 27         Wasson, Thomas C.       52, 108, 27         Waterman, Bernice L.       11, 28, 27         Waters, Daniel J.       29         Waters, Harold G.       29         Watson, Hugh H.       38, 100, 27	243111123322
Washburn, John D.       32         Washburne, Elihu B.       296, 31         Washington, George.       29         Washington, Horace Lee.       115, 22         Washington, Raoul F.       41, 27         Washington, S. Waiter.       40, 107, 27         Washington, S. Waiter.       40, 107, 27         Washington, S. Waiter.       108, 27         Wasson, Thomas C.       52, 108, 27         Waterman, Bernice L.       11, 28, 27         Waters, Daniel J.       29         Waters, Harold G.       29         Watson, Hugh H.       38, 100, 27	243111123322
Washburn, John D.       32         Washburne, Elihu B.       296, 31         Washington, George.       29         Washington, Horace Lee.       115, 22         Washington, Raoul F.       41, 27         Washington, S. Waiter.       40, 107, 27         Washington, S. Waiter.       40, 107, 27         Washington, William W.       2, 32, 27         Wasson, Thomas C.       52, 108, 27         Waterman, Bernice L.       11, 28, 27         Waterman, Henry S.       48, 102, 27         Waters, Daniel J.       29         Waters, Harold G.       29         Watson, Hugh       48, 27         Watson, John J. C.       29	
Washburn, John D.       32         Washburne, Elihu B.       296, 31         Washington, George.       29         Washington, Horace Lee       115, 29         Washington, Raoul F.       41, 27         Washington, S. Walter.       40, 107, 27         Washington, William W.       2, 32, 27         Wasson, Thomas C.       52, 108, 27         Waterman, Bernice L.       11, 28, 27         Waters, Daniel J.       29         Waters, Harold G.       29         Watson, Hugh H.       38, 100, 27         Watson, John J. C.       26         Watson, John J. C.       26         Watson, J. Adelaide.       9, 26, 27	24311112332232
Washburn, John D.       32         Washburne, Elihu B.       296, 31         Washington, George.       29         Washington, Horace Lee       115, 29         Washington, Raoul F.       41, 27         Washington, S. Walter.       40, 107, 27         Washington, William W.       2, 32, 27         Wasson, Thomas C.       52, 108, 27         Waterman, Bernice L.       11, 28, 27         Waters, Daniel J.       29         Waters, Harold G.       29         Watson, Hugh H.       38, 100, 27         Watson, John J. C.       26         Watson, John J. C.       26         Watson, J. Adelaide.       9, 26, 27	24311112332232
Washburn, John D.       32         Washburne, Elihu B.       296, 31         Washington, George       29         Washington, Horace Lee       115, 22         Washington, Raoul F.       41, 27         Washington, S. Waiter       40, 107, 27         Washington, William W.       2, 32, 27         Wasson, Thomas C.       52, 108, 27         Waterman, Bernice L.       11, 28, 27         Waters, Daniel J.       29         Waters, Daniel J.       29         Waters, Harold G.       29         Watson, Hugh H.       38, 100, 27         Watson, Juch J. C.       29         Watson, Jugh H.       38, 100, 27         Watson, Jugh H.       38, 20, 27         Watson, Jugh H.       9, 26, 27         Watson, Jugh H.       9, 26, 27         Watson, Jaeulort T.       30	2431111123322329
Washburn, John D.       32         Washburne, Elihu B.       296, 31         Washington, George.       29         Washington, Horace Lee       115, 29         Washington, Raoul F.       41, 27         Washington, S. Walter.       40, 107, 27         Washington, William W.       2, 32, 27         Wasson, Thomas C.       52, 108, 27         Waterman, Bernice L.       11, 28, 27         Waters, Daniel J.       29         Waters, Harold G.       29         Watson, Hugh H.       38, 100, 27         Watson, John J. C.       26         Watson, John J. C.       26         Watson, J. Adelaide.       9, 26, 27	2431111123322329
Washburn, John D.       32         Washburne, Elihu B.       296, 31         Washington, George.       29         Washington, Horace Lee       115, 22         Washington, Raoul F.       41, 27         Washington, S. Walter.       40, 107, 27         Washington, S. Walter.       40, 107, 27         Washington, S. Walter.       40, 23, 22, 27         Wasson, Thomas C.       52, 108, 27         Waterman, Bernice L.       11, 28, 27         Waters, Daniel J.       29         Waters, Daniel J.       29         Waters, Harold G.       29         Watson, Hugh H.       38, 100, 27         Watson, John J. C.       29         Watson, John J. C.       29         Watson, L. Adelaide.       9, 26, 27         Wats, Beaufort T.       30         Watts, Ethelbert.       29	24311111233223293
Washburn, John D.       32         Washburne, Elihu B.       296, 31         Washington, George.       29         Washington, Horace Lee.       115, 22         Washington, Raoul F.       41, 27         Washington, S. Waiter.       40, 107, 27         Wasson, Thomas C.       52, 108, 27         Waterman, Bernice L.       11, 28, 27         Waters, Daniel J.       29         Waters, Harold G.       29         Watson, Hugh H.       38, 100, 27         Watson, Hugh H.       38, 100, 27         Watson, L. Adelaide.       9, 26, 27         Wats, Beaufort T.       30         Watts, Ethelbert.       29         Watts, Henry M.       30	24311112332232937
Washburn, John D.       32         Washburne, Elihu B.       296, 31         Washington, George.       29         Washington, Horace Lee.       115, 22         Washington, Raoul F.       41, 27         Washington, S. Waiter.       40, 107, 27         Wasson, Thomas C.       52, 108, 27         Waterman, Bernice L.       11, 28, 27         Waters, Daniel J.       29         Waters, Harold G.       29         Watson, Hugh H.       38, 100, 27         Watson, Hugh H.       38, 100, 27         Watson, L. Adelaide.       9, 26, 27         Wats, Beaufort T.       30         Watts, Ethelbert.       29         Watts, Henry M.       30	24311112332232937
Washburn, John D.       32         Washburne, Elihu B.       296, 31         Washington, George.       29         Washington, Horace Lee.       115, 29         Washington, Raoul F.       41, 27         Washington, S. Walter.       40, 107, 27         Washington, S. Walter.       40, 107, 27         Washington, William W.       2, 32, 27         Wasson, Thomas C.       52, 108, 27         Waterman, Bernice L.       11, 28, 27         Waters, Daniel J.       29         Waters, Daniel J.       29         Waters, Harold G.       29         Watson, Hugh       38, 100, 27         Watson, John J. C.       29         Watson, John J. C.       29         Watson, L. Adelaide.       9, 26, 27         Watts, Beaufort T.       30         Watts, Henry M.       36         Webb, Delmar E.       19, 29, 27	243111123322329372
Washburn, John D.       32         Washburne, Elihu B.       296, 31         Washington, George.       29         Washington, Horace Lee       115, 22         Washington, Raoul F.       41, 27         Washington, S. Walter       40, 107, 27         Washington, William W.       2, 32, 27         Wasson, Thomas C.       5, 108, 27         Waterman, Bernice L.       11, 28, 27         Waters, Daniel J.       29         Waters, Daniel J.       29         Waters, Harold G.       29         Watson, Hugh H.       38, 100, 27         Watson, John J. C.       29         Watson, Hugh H.       38, 100, 27         Watson, Euclort T.       30         Watts, Beaufort T.       30         Watts, Henry M.       30         Webb, Delmar E.       19, 29, 27         Webb, Delmar E.       306, 30	24311111233223293728
Washburn, John D.       32         Washburne, Elihu B.       296, 31         Washington, George.       29         Washington, Horace Lee       115, 22         Washington, Raoul F.       41, 27         Washington, S. Walter       40, 107, 27         Washington, William W.       2, 32, 27         Wasson, Thomas C.       5, 108, 27         Waterman, Bernice L.       11, 28, 27         Waters, Daniel J.       29         Waters, Daniel J.       29         Waters, Harold G.       29         Watson, Hugh H.       38, 100, 27         Watson, John J. C.       29         Watson, Hugh H.       38, 100, 27         Watson, Euclort T.       30         Watts, Beaufort T.       30         Watts, Henry M.       30         Webb, Delmar E.       19, 29, 27         Webb, Delmar E.       306, 30	24311111233223293728
Washburn, John D.       32         Washburne, Elihu B.       296, 31         Washington, George.       29         Washington, Horace Lee       115, 29         Washington, Raoul F.       41, 27         Washington, S. Walter       40, 107, 27         Washington, S. Walter       40, 107, 27         Washington, S. Walter       115, 29, 27         Wasson, Thomas C.       52, 108, 27         Waterman, Bernice L.       11, 28, 27         Waters, Daniel J.       29         Waters, Harold G.       29         Watson, Hugh H.       38, 100, 27         Watson, John J. C.       29         Watson, John J. C.       29         Watson, John J. C.       29         Watson, L. Adelaide.       9, 26, 27         Wats, Beaufort T.       30         Wats, Ethelbert.       29         Watts, Ethelbert.       29         Watts, Henry M.       30         Webb, Delmar E.       19, 29, 27         Webb, James Watson.       306, 30         Webb, James Watson.       306, 30	24311112332232937282
Washburn, John D.       32         Washburne, Elihu B.       296, 31         Washington, George.       29         Washington, Horace Lee       115, 29         Washington, Raoul F.       41, 27         Washington, S. Walter       40, 107, 27         Washington, S. Walter       40, 107, 27         Washington, S. Walter       115, 29, 27         Wasson, Thomas C.       52, 108, 27         Waterman, Bernice L.       11, 28, 27         Waters, Daniel J.       29         Waters, Harold G.       29         Watson, Hugh H.       38, 100, 27         Watson, John J. C.       29         Watson, John J. C.       29         Watson, John J. C.       29         Watson, L. Adelaide.       9, 26, 27         Wats, Beaufort T.       30         Wats, Ethelbert.       29         Watts, Ethelbert.       29         Watts, Henry M.       30         Webb, Delmar E.       19, 29, 27         Webb, James Watson.       306, 30         Webb, James Watson.       306, 30	24311112332232937282
Washburn, John D.       32         Washburne, Elihu B.       296, 31         Washington, George.       29         Washington, Horace Lee       115, 22         Washington, Raoul F.       41, 27         Washington, S. Walter.       40, 107, 27         Wasson, Thomas C.       52, 108, 27         Waterman, Bernice L.       11, 28, 27         Waters, Daniel J.       29         Waters, Harold G.       29         Watson, Hugh H.       38, 100, 27         Watson, John J. C.       29         Watson, John J. C.       29         Watson, John J. C.       29         Wats, Beaufort T.       30         Wats, Ethelbert.       26         Watts, Henry M.       30         Webb, Delmar E.       19, 29, 27         Webb, James Watson.       306, 30         Webber, Leroy.       39, 104, 27         Webber, Leroy.       39, 104, 27         Webber, Leroy.       39, 104, 27         Webber, Daniel.       29	2431111123322329372825
Washburn, John D.       32         Washburne, Elihu B.       296, 31         Washington, George.       29         Washington, Horace Lee.       115, 22         Washington, Raoul F.       41, 27         Washington, S. Waiter.       40, 107, 27         Washington, S. Waiter.       40, 107, 27         Washington, S. Waiter.       40, 107, 27         Washington, William W.       2, 32, 27         Wasson, Thomas C.       52, 108, 27         Waterman, Bernice L.       11, 28, 27         Waterman, Henry S.       48, 102, 27         Waters, Daniel J.       29         Waters, Harold G.       29         Watson, Hugh       48, 27         Watson, John J. C.       29         Watson, John J. C.       29         Watson, John J. C.       29         Watson, L. Adelaide.       9, 26, 27         Wats, Ethelbert.       26         Watts, Henry M.       30         Webb, Delmar E.       19, 29, 27         Webb, James Watson.       306, 30         Webber, Leroy       39, 104, 27         Webber, Daniel       26         Webber, Daniel       26	24311111233223293728253
Washburn, John D.       32         Washburne, Elihu B.       296, 31         Washington, George.       29         Washington, Horace Lee.       115, 22         Washington, Raoul F.       41, 27         Washington, S. Waiter.       40, 107, 27         Washington, S. Waiter.       40, 107, 27         Washington, S. Waiter.       40, 107, 27         Washington, William W.       2, 32, 27         Wasson, Thomas C.       52, 108, 27         Waterman, Bernice L.       11, 28, 27         Waterman, Henry S.       48, 102, 27         Waters, Daniel J.       29         Waters, Harold G.       29         Watson, Hugh       48, 27         Watson, John J. C.       29         Watson, John J. C.       29         Watson, John J. C.       29         Watson, L. Adelaide.       9, 26, 27         Wats, Ethelbert.       26         Watts, Henry M.       30         Webb, Delmar E.       19, 29, 27         Webb, James Watson.       306, 30         Webber, Leroy       39, 104, 27         Webber, Daniel       26         Webber, Daniel       26	24311111233223293728253
Washburn, John D.       32         Washburne, Elihu B.       296, 31         Washington, George.       29         Washington, Horace Lee.       115, 22         Washington, Raoul F.       41, 27         Washington, S. Walter.       40, 107, 27         Washington, William W.       2, 32, 27         Wasson, Thomas C.       52, 108, 27         Waterman, Bernice L.       11, 28, 27         Waters, Daniel J.       29         Waters, Daniel J.       29         Watson, Hugh H.       38, 100, 27         Watson, Hugh H.       38, 100, 27         Watson, John J. C.       29         Watson, John J. C.       29         Watson, John J. C.       29         Watson, Hugh H.       38, 100, 27         Watson, Hugh H.       38, 100, 27         Watson, Hugh H.       306, 30         Wats, Beaufort T.       30         Watts, Beaufort T.       30         Watts, Henry M.       306, 30         Webb, Delmar E.       19, 29, 27         Webb, Delmar E.       19, 29, 27         Webb, James Watson.       306, 30         Webb, Leroy.       39, 104, 27         Webbter, Leroy.       30, 104, 27	243111112332232937282532
Washburn, John D.       32         Washburne, Elihu B.       296, 31         Washington, George.       29         Washington, Horace Lee.       115, 22         Washington, Raoul F.       41, 27         Washington, S. Walter.       40, 107, 27         Washington, William W.       2, 32, 27         Wasson, Thomas C.       52, 108, 27         Waterman, Bernice L.       11, 28, 27         Waters, Daniel J.       29         Waters, Daniel J.       29         Watson, Hugh H.       38, 100, 27         Watson, Hugh H.       38, 100, 27         Watson, John J. C.       29         Watson, John J. C.       29         Watson, John J. C.       29         Watson, Hugh H.       38, 100, 27         Watson, Hugh H.       38, 100, 27         Watson, Hugh H.       306, 30         Wats, Beaufort T.       30         Watts, Beaufort T.       30         Watts, Henry M.       306, 30         Webb, Delmar E.       19, 29, 27         Webb, Delmar E.       19, 29, 27         Webb, James Watson.       306, 30         Webb, Leroy.       39, 104, 27         Webbter, Leroy.       30, 104, 27	243111112332232937282532
Washburn, John D.       32         Washburne, Elihu B.       296, 31         Washington, George.       29         Washington, Horace Lee       115, 22         Washington, Raoul F.       41, 27         Washington, S. Walter.       40, 107, 27         Washington, William W.       2, 32, 27         Wasson, Thomas C.       52, 108, 27         Waterman, Bernice L.       11, 28, 27         Waters, Daniel J.       29         Waters, Daniel J.       29         Waters, Harold G.       29         Watson, Hugh H.       38, 100, 27         Watson, John J. C.       29         Watson, John J. C.       29         Watson, John J. C.       29         Watson, Hugh H.       38, 100, 27         Watson, Hugh H.       38, 100, 27         Watson, Hugh H.       30, 63, 20         Watson, John J. C.       29         Watson, John J. C.       29         Wats, Beaufort T.       30         300, 30       306, 30         Webb, Delmar E.       19, 29, 27         Webb, Delmar E.       19, 29, 27         Webb, Delmar E.       306, 30         Webb, T. Leroy.       39, 104, 27         Webb	243111123322329372825323
Washburn, John D.       32         Washburne, Elihu B.       296, 31         Washington, George.       29         Washington, Horace Lee       115, 29         Washington, Raoul F.       41, 27         Washington, S. Walter       40, 107, 27         Washington, S. Walter       40, 107, 27         Washington, S. Walter       115, 29, 27         Wasson, Thomas C.       52, 108, 27         Waterman, Bernice L.       11, 28, 27         Waters, Daniel J.       29         Waters, Daniel J.       29         Watson, Hugh       48, 102, 27         Watson, Hugh       48, 102, 27         Watson, Hugh H.       38, 100, 27         Watson, John J. C.       26         Watson, John J. C.       26         Watson, L. Adelaide       9, 26, 27         Watts, Beaufort T.       30         Watts, Ethelbert       32         Webb, Delmar E.       19, 29, 27         Webb, James Watson       36, 36         Webb, James Watson       36, 36         Webber, Leroy       38, 104, 27         Webster, Daniel       26         Webster, Daniel Fletcher       36         Webster, Daniel Fletcher       36	2431111233223293728253236
Washburn, John D.       32         Washburne, Elihu B.       296, 31         Washington, George.       29         Washington, Horace Lee       115, 29         Washington, Raoul F.       41, 27         Washington, S. Walter       40, 107, 27         Washington, S. Walter       40, 107, 27         Washington, S. Walter       115, 29, 27         Wasson, Thomas C.       52, 108, 27         Waterman, Bernice L.       11, 28, 27         Waters, Daniel J.       29         Waters, Daniel J.       29         Watson, Hugh       48, 102, 27         Watson, Hugh       48, 102, 27         Watson, Hugh H.       38, 100, 27         Watson, John J. C.       26         Watson, John J. C.       26         Watson, L. Adelaide       9, 26, 27         Watts, Beaufort T.       30         Watts, Ethelbert       32         Webb, Delmar E.       19, 29, 27         Webb, James Watson       36, 36         Webb, James Watson       36, 36         Webber, Leroy       38, 104, 27         Webster, Daniel       26         Webster, Daniel Fletcher       36         Webster, Daniel Fletcher       36	2431111233223293728253236
Washburn, John D.       32         Washburne, Elihu B.       296, 31         Washington, George.       29         Washington, Horace Lee.       115, 22         Washington, Raoul F.       41, 27         Washington, S. Walter.       40, 107, 27         Wasson, Thomas C.       52, 108, 27         Waterman, Bernice L.       11, 28, 27         Waters, Daniel J.       29         Waters, Harold G.       29         Watson, Hugh H.       38, 100, 27         Watson, John J. C.       29         Watson, John J. C.       29         Watson, John J. C.       29         Wats, Beaufort T.       30         Wats, Ethelbert.       26         Watts, Henry M.       30         Webb, Delmar E.       19, 29, 27         Webb, James Watson.       306, 30         Webb, James Watson.       306, 30         Webber, Leroy.       38, 104, 27         Webster, Daniel       29         Webster, Daniel Fletcher       30         Webster, Daniel Fletcher       30 </td <td>$\begin{array}{c} 2 \\ 4 \\ 3 \\ 1 \\ 1 \\ 1 \\ 1 \\ 1 \\ 1 \\ 1 \\ 2 \\ 3 \\ 3 \\ 2 \\ 2 \\ 3 \\ 2 \\ 2 \\ 3 \\ 2 \\ 9 \\ 3 \\ 7 \\ 2 \\ 8 \\ 2 \\ 5 \\ 3 \\ 2 \\ 3 \\ 2 \\ 3 \\ 2 \\ 3 \\ 2 \\ 3 \\ 2 \\ 3 \\ 2 \\ 3 \\ 2 \\ 3 \\ 2 \\ 3 \\ 2 \\ 3 \\ 2 \\ 3 \\ 2 \\ 3 \\ 2 \\ 3 \\ 2 \\ 3 \\ 3$</td>	$\begin{array}{c} 2 \\ 4 \\ 3 \\ 1 \\ 1 \\ 1 \\ 1 \\ 1 \\ 1 \\ 1 \\ 2 \\ 3 \\ 3 \\ 2 \\ 2 \\ 3 \\ 2 \\ 2 \\ 3 \\ 2 \\ 9 \\ 3 \\ 7 \\ 2 \\ 8 \\ 2 \\ 5 \\ 3 \\ 2 \\ 3 \\ 2 \\ 3 \\ 2 \\ 3 \\ 2 \\ 3 \\ 2 \\ 3 \\ 2 \\ 3 \\ 2 \\ 3 \\ 2 \\ 3 \\ 2 \\ 3 \\ 2 \\ 3 \\ 2 \\ 3 \\ 2 \\ 3 \\ 2 \\ 3 \\ 3$
Washburn, John D.       32         Washburne, Elihu B.       296, 31         Washington, George.       29         Washington, Horace Lee       115, 29         Washington, Raoul F.       41, 27         Washington, S. Walter       40, 107, 27         Washington, S. Walter       40, 107, 27         Washington, S. Walter       115, 29, 27         Wasson, Thomas C.       52, 108, 27         Waterman, Bernice L.       11, 28, 27         Waters, Daniel J.       29         Waters, Daniel J.       29         Watson, Hugh       48, 102, 27         Watson, Hugh       48, 102, 27         Watson, Hugh H.       38, 100, 27         Watson, John J. C.       26         Watson, John J. C.       26         Watson, L. Adelaide       9, 26, 27         Watts, Beaufort T.       30         Watts, Ethelbert       32         Webb, Delmar E.       19, 29, 27         Webb, James Watson       36, 36         Webb, James Watson       36, 36         Webber, Leroy       38, 104, 27         Webster, Daniel       26         Webster, Daniel Fletcher       36         Webster, Daniel Fletcher       36	$\begin{array}{c} 2 \\ 4 \\ 3 \\ 1 \\ 1 \\ 1 \\ 1 \\ 1 \\ 1 \\ 1 \\ 2 \\ 3 \\ 3 \\ 2 \\ 2 \\ 3 \\ 2 \\ 2 \\ 3 \\ 2 \\ 9 \\ 3 \\ 7 \\ 2 \\ 8 \\ 2 \\ 5 \\ 3 \\ 2 \\ 3 \\ 2 \\ 3 \\ 2 \\ 3 \\ 2 \\ 3 \\ 2 \\ 3 \\ 2 \\ 3 \\ 2 \\ 3 \\ 2 \\ 3 \\ 2 \\ 3 \\ 2 \\ 3 \\ 2 \\ 3 \\ 2 \\ 3 \\ 2 \\ 3 \\ 3$
Washburn, John D.       32         Washburne, Elihu B.       296, 31         Washington, George.       29         Washington, Horace Lee.       115, 22         Washington, Raoul F.       41, 27         Washington, S. Waiter.       40, 107, 27         Wasson, Thomas C.       52, 108, 27         Waterman, Bernice L.       11, 28, 27         Waters, Daniel J.       29         Waters, Harold G.       29         Watson, Hugh H.       38, 100, 27         Watson, John J. C.       26         Watson, John J. C.       26         Wats, Beaufort T.       30         Wabt, Ethelbert.       26         Watts, Henry M.       30         Webb, Delmar E.       19, 29, 27         Webb, James Watson.       306, 30         Webbter, Leroy.       38, 104, 27         Webbter, Leroy.       39, 104, 27         Webster, Daniel Fletcher       30         Webster, Daniel Fletcher       30         Webster, George J.       16, 31, 27         Webster, George J.       16	$\begin{array}{c} 2\\ 4\\ 3\\ 1\\ 1\\ 1\\ 1\\ 1\\ 1\\ 1\\ 1\\ 2\\ 3\\ 3\\ 2\\ 2\\ 3\\ 3\\ 2\\ 2\\ 3\\ 2\\ 3\\ 2\\ 3\\ 3\\ 2\\ 2\\ 3\\ 3\\ 2\\ 2\\ 3\\ 3\\ 2\\ 3\\ 3\\ 2\\ 3\\ 3\\ 2\\ 3\\ 3\\ 2\\ 3\\ 3\\ 2\\ 3\\ 3\\ 2\\ 3\\ 3\\ 2\\ 3\\ 3\\ 2\\ 3\\ 3\\ 2\\ 3\\ 3\\ 2\\ 3\\ 3\\ 2\\ 3\\ 3\\ 2\\ 3\\ 3\\ 2\\ 3\\ 3\\ 2\\ 3\\ 3\\ 2\\ 3\\ 3\\ 2\\ 3\\ 3\\ 2\\ 3\\ 3\\ 2\\ 3\\ 3\\ 2\\ 3\\ 3\\ 2\\ 3\\ 3\\ 2\\ 3\\ 3\\ 2\\ 3\\ 3\\ 2\\ 3\\ 3\\ 2\\ 3\\ 3\\ 2\\ 3\\ 3\\ 2\\ 3\\ 3\\ 2\\ 3\\ 3\\ 2\\ 3\\ 3\\ 2\\ 3\\ 3\\ 2\\ 3\\ 3\\ 2\\ 3\\ 3\\ 2\\ 3\\ 3\\ 2\\ 3\\ 3\\ 2\\ 3\\ 3\\ 2\\ 3\\ 3\\ 3\\ 2\\ 3\\ 3\\ 3\\ 3\\ 2\\ 3\\ 3\\ 3\\ 3\\ 3\\ 3\\ 3\\ 3\\ 3\\ 3\\ 3\\ 3\\ 3\\$
Washburn, John D.       32         Washburne, Elihu B.       296, 31         Washington, George.       29         Washington, Horace Lee.       115, 29         Washington, Raoul F.       41, 27         Washington, S. Waiter.       40, 107, 27         Washington, William W.       2, 32, 27         Wasbington, William W.       2, 32, 27         Watson, Thomas C.       52, 108, 27         Waterman, Bernice L.       11, 28, 27         Waters, Daniel J.       29         Watson, Hugh H.       38, 100, 27         Watson, Hugh H.       38, 100, 27         Watson, John J. C.       29         Wats, Beaufort T.       30         Webb, Delmar E.       19, 29, 27         Webb, James Watson.       306, 30         Webber, Leroy.       38, 104, 27         Webster, Daniel       20         Webster, Daniel       20         Webster, Daniel       306, 30         Webter, George J.       16, 31, 27         Webster, Daniel       27         <	$\begin{array}{c} 2 \\ 4 \\ 3 \\ 1 \\ 1 \\ 1 \\ 1 \\ 1 \\ 1 \\ 1 \\ 1 \\ 2 \\ 3 \\ 3 \\ 2 \\ 2 \\ 3 \\ 2 \\ 2 \\ 3 \\ 2 \\ 2$
Washburn, John D.       32         Washburne, Elihu B.       296, 31         Washington, George.       29         Washington, Horace Lee.       115, 29         Washington, Raoul F.       41, 27         Washington, S. Waiter.       40, 107, 27         Washington, William W.       2, 32, 27         Wasbington, William W.       2, 32, 27         Watson, Thomas C.       52, 108, 27         Waterman, Bernice L.       11, 28, 27         Waters, Daniel J.       29         Watson, Hugh H.       38, 100, 27         Watson, Hugh H.       38, 100, 27         Watson, John J. C.       29         Wats, Beaufort T.       30         Webb, Delmar E.       19, 29, 27         Webb, James Watson.       306, 30         Webber, Leroy.       38, 104, 27         Webster, Daniel       20         Webster, Daniel       20         Webster, Daniel       306, 30         Webter, George J.       16, 31, 27         Webster, Daniel       27         <	$\begin{array}{c} 2 \\ 4 \\ 3 \\ 1 \\ 1 \\ 1 \\ 1 \\ 1 \\ 1 \\ 1 \\ 1 \\ 2 \\ 3 \\ 3 \\ 2 \\ 2 \\ 3 \\ 2 \\ 2 \\ 3 \\ 2 \\ 2$
Washburn, John D.       32         Washburne, Elihu B.       296, 31         Washington, George.       29         Washington, Horace Lee.       115, 22         Washington, Raoul F.       41, 27         Washington, Naoul F.       41, 27         Washington, S. Walter.       40, 107, 27         Washington, William W.       2, 32, 27         Waterman, Bernice L.       11, 28, 27         Waterman, Bernice L.       11, 28, 27         Waters, Daniel J.       29         Waters, Daniel J.       29         Waters, Harold G.       29         Watson, Hugh H.       38, 100, 27         Watson, John J. C.       29         Watson, John J. C.       29         Watson, John J. C.       29         Wats, Beaufort T.       30         Watts, Beaufort T.       30         Watts, Beaufort T.       30         Webb, Jelmar E.       19, 29, 27         Webb, James Watson       306, 33         Webber, Leroy       39, 104, 27         Webbter, Daniel       29         Webbter, Daniel       29         Webbter, Daniel       20         Webster, Wiliam H. H.       29         Weddell, Alexand	$\begin{array}{c} 2\\ 4\\ 3\\ 1\\ 1\\ 1\\ 1\\ 1\\ 1\\ 1\\ 1\\ 2\\ 3\\ 3\\ 2\\ 2\\ 3\\ 2\\ 2\\ 3\\ 2\\ 9\\ 3\\ 7\\ 2\\ 8\\ 2\\ 5\\ 3\\ 2\\ 3\\ 6\\ 2\\ 6\\ 2\\ 6\\ 2\\ 2\\ 2\\ 3\\ 2\\ 2\\ 3\\ 2\\ 2\\ 3\\ 2\\ 2\\ 3\\ 2\\ 2\\ 3\\ 2\\ 2\\ 3\\ 2\\ 2\\ 3\\ 2\\ 2\\ 3\\ 2\\ 2\\ 3\\ 2\\ 2\\ 3\\ 2\\ 2\\ 3\\ 2\\ 2\\ 3\\ 2\\ 2\\ 3\\ 2\\ 2\\ 3\\ 2\\ 2\\ 3\\ 2\\ 2\\ 3\\ 2\\ 2\\ 3\\ 2\\ 2\\ 3\\ 2\\ 2\\ 3\\ 2\\ 2\\ 3\\ 2\\ 2\\ 3\\ 2\\ 2\\ 3\\ 2\\ 2\\ 3\\ 2\\ 3\\ 2\\ 2\\ 3\\ 2\\ 3\\ 2\\ 3\\ 2\\ 3\\ 2\\ 3\\ 2\\ 3\\ 2\\ 3\\ 2\\ 3\\ 2\\ 3\\ 2\\ 3\\ 2\\ 3\\ 2\\ 3\\ 2\\ 3\\ 2\\ 3\\ 2\\ 3\\ 2\\ 3\\ 2\\ 3\\ 3\\ 2\\ 3\\ 3\\ 2\\ 3\\ 3\\ 2\\ 3\\ 3\\ 2\\ 3\\ 3\\ 2\\ 3\\ 3\\ 2\\ 3\\ 3\\ 2\\ 3\\ 3\\ 2\\ 3\\ 3\\ 2\\ 3\\ 3\\ 2\\ 3\\ 3\\ 2\\ 3\\ 3\\ 2\\ 3\\ 3\\ 2\\ 3\\ 3\\ 2\\ 3\\ 3\\ 2\\ 3\\ 3\\ 2\\ 3\\ 3\\ 2\\ 3\\ 3\\ 2\\ 3\\ 3\\ 2\\ 3\\ 3\\ 3\\ 2\\ 3\\ 3\\ 3\\ 2\\ 3\\ 3\\ 3\\ 3\\ 3\\ 2\\ 3\\ 3\\ 3\\ 3\\ 3\\ 3\\ 3\\ 3\\ 3\\ 3\\ 3\\ 3\\ 3\\$
Washburn, John D.       32         Washburne, Elihu B.       296, 31         Washington, George.       29         Washington, Horace Lee       115, 22         Washington, Raoul F.       41, 27         Washington, S. Walter.       40, 107, 27         Washington, William W.       2, 32, 27         Wasson, Thomas C.       52, 108, 27         Waterman, Bernice L.       11, 28, 27         Waters, Daniel J.       29         Waters, Daniel J.       29         Waters, Harold G.       29         Watson, Hugh H.       38, 100, 27         Watson, John J. C.       29         Watson, John J. C.       29         Watson, John J. C.       29         Watson, Hugh H.       38, 100, 27         Watson, Beufort T.       30         Wats, Beaufort T.       30         Webb, Delmar E.       19, 29, 27         Webb, Delmar E.       19, 29, 27         Webb, Delmar E.       306, 33         Webb, Ceroy.       39, 104, 27         Webb, Delmar E.       19, 29, 27	$\begin{array}{c} 2 \\ 4 \\ 3 \\ 1 \\ 1 \\ 1 \\ 1 \\ 1 \\ 1 \\ 1 \\ 1 \\ 2 \\ 3 \\ 3 \\ 2 \\ 2 \\ 3 \\ 2 \\ 2 \\ 3 \\ 2 \\ 2$
Washburn, John D.       32         Washburne, Elihu B.       296, 31         Washington, George.       29         Washington, Horace Lee.       115, 22         Washington, Raoul F.       41, 27         Washington, S. Walter.       40, 107, 27         Washington, William W.       2, 32, 27         Wasson, Thomas C.       52, 108, 27         Waterman, Bernice L.       11, 28, 27         Waterman, Bernice L.       12, 82, 77         Waters, Daniel J.       29         Waters, Daniel J.       29         Waters, Harold G.       29         Watson, Hugh H.       38, 100, 27         Watson, John J. C.       29         Watson, John J. C.       29         Watson, L. Adelaide.       9, 26, 27         Wats, Beaufort T.       30         Watts, Ethelbert.       29         Watts, Henry M.       30         Webb, James Watson.       306, 30         Webbter, Leroy.       38, 104, 27         Webster, Daniel       29         Webster, Daniel Fletcher       30         Webster, George J.       16, 31, 27         Webster, Olianiel Fletcher       30         Webster, George J.       36, 42, 23 <td>$\begin{array}{c} 2\\ 4\\ 3\\ 1\\ 1\\ 1\\ 1\\ 1\\ 1\\ 2\\ 3\\ 3\\ 2\\ 2\\ 3\\ 2\\ 9\\ 3\\ 7\\ 2\\ 8\\ 2\\ 5\\ 3\\ 2\\ 3\\ 2\\ 3\\ 6\\ 2\\ 6\\ 2\\ 6\\ 2\\ 2\\ 3\\ 4\\ 4\\ 3\\ 1\\ 1\\ 1\\ 1\\ 1\\ 1\\ 1\\ 2\\ 3\\ 3\\ 2\\ 2\\ 3\\ 2\\ 2\\ 3\\ 2\\ 2\\ 3\\ 2\\ 3\\ 2\\ 3\\ 2\\ 3\\ 2\\ 3\\ 2\\ 3\\ 2\\ 3\\ 2\\ 3\\ 2\\ 3\\ 2\\ 3\\ 2\\ 3\\ 2\\ 3\\ 2\\ 3\\ 2\\ 3\\ 2\\ 3\\ 2\\ 3\\ 2\\ 3\\ 2\\ 3\\ 2\\ 3\\ 2\\ 3\\ 2\\ 3\\ 2\\ 3\\ 2\\ 3\\ 2\\ 3\\ 2\\ 3\\ 2\\ 3\\ 3\\ 2\\ 3\\ 3\\ 2\\ 3\\ 3\\ 2\\ 3\\ 3\\ 2\\ 3\\ 3\\ 2\\ 3\\ 3\\ 2\\ 3\\ 3\\ 2\\ 3\\ 3\\ 2\\ 3\\ 3\\ 2\\ 3\\ 3\\ 2\\ 3\\ 3\\ 2\\ 3\\ 3\\ 3\\ 3\\ 3\\ 3\\ 3\\ 3\\ 3\\ 3\\ 3\\ 3\\ 3\\$</td>	$\begin{array}{c} 2\\ 4\\ 3\\ 1\\ 1\\ 1\\ 1\\ 1\\ 1\\ 2\\ 3\\ 3\\ 2\\ 2\\ 3\\ 2\\ 9\\ 3\\ 7\\ 2\\ 8\\ 2\\ 5\\ 3\\ 2\\ 3\\ 2\\ 3\\ 6\\ 2\\ 6\\ 2\\ 6\\ 2\\ 2\\ 3\\ 4\\ 4\\ 3\\ 1\\ 1\\ 1\\ 1\\ 1\\ 1\\ 1\\ 2\\ 3\\ 3\\ 2\\ 2\\ 3\\ 2\\ 2\\ 3\\ 2\\ 2\\ 3\\ 2\\ 3\\ 2\\ 3\\ 2\\ 3\\ 2\\ 3\\ 2\\ 3\\ 2\\ 3\\ 2\\ 3\\ 2\\ 3\\ 2\\ 3\\ 2\\ 3\\ 2\\ 3\\ 2\\ 3\\ 2\\ 3\\ 2\\ 3\\ 2\\ 3\\ 2\\ 3\\ 2\\ 3\\ 2\\ 3\\ 2\\ 3\\ 2\\ 3\\ 2\\ 3\\ 2\\ 3\\ 2\\ 3\\ 2\\ 3\\ 2\\ 3\\ 3\\ 2\\ 3\\ 3\\ 2\\ 3\\ 3\\ 2\\ 3\\ 3\\ 2\\ 3\\ 3\\ 2\\ 3\\ 3\\ 2\\ 3\\ 3\\ 2\\ 3\\ 3\\ 2\\ 3\\ 3\\ 2\\ 3\\ 3\\ 2\\ 3\\ 3\\ 2\\ 3\\ 3\\ 3\\ 3\\ 3\\ 3\\ 3\\ 3\\ 3\\ 3\\ 3\\ 3\\ 3\\$
Washburn, John D.       32         Washburne, Elihu B.       296, 31         Washington, George.       29         Washington, Horace Lee.       115, 22         Washington, Raoul F.       41, 27         Washington, Naoul F.       41, 27         Washington, S. Walter.       40, 107, 27         Washington, William W.       2, 32, 27         Waterman, Bernice L.       11, 28, 27         Waterman, Bernice L.       11, 28, 27         Waters, Daniel J.       29         Waters, Daniel J.       29         Waters, Harold G.       29         Watson, Hugh H.       38, 100, 27         Watson, John J. C.       29         Watson, John J. C.       29         Watson, John J. C.       29         Wats, Beaufort T.       30         Watts, Beaufort T.       30         Watts, Beaufort T.       30         Webb, Jelmar E.       19, 29, 27         Webb, James Watson       306, 33         Webber, Leroy       39, 104, 27         Webbter, Daniel       29         Webbter, Daniel       29         Webbter, Daniel       20         Webster, Wiliam H. H.       29         Weddell, Alexand	2 $4$ $3$ $1$ $1$ $1$ $1$ $1$ $1$ $2$ $3$ $3$ $2$ $2$ $3$ $2$ $9$ $9$ $3$ $7$ $2$ $8$ $2$ $5$ $3$ $2$ $3$ $6$ $2$ $6$ $2$ $2$ $2$ $4$

Page 3, Welles, Sumner 6, 7, 24, 26, 96, 273, 301, 310 Wells, Dorothy J _____ 10, 30, 273 Wells, Edward..... 5, 32, 273 Wells, Francis______293 Wells, Gladys...... 20, 31, 273 Wells, John B..... 19, 28, 273 Wells, Milton K..... 59, 113, 273 Wells, Rodney D..... 50, 273 Welsh, John 312 Welsh, Richard D..... 5, 30, 273 Wendelin, Eric C., 41, 113, 273 Werlich, McCeney...... 44, 106, 273 West, George N 293 West, Leland S..... 22, 32, 273 Westacott, Richard 293 Westcott, Charles D_____ 203 Wharton, Clifton R..... 59, 107, 274 Wharton, William F..... 296, 297, 300 Wheaton, Henry...... 310, 318 Wheeler, Willard H..... 34 Whidden, Benjamin F..... 313 Whitcemb, Viola L..... 5, 30, 274 White, Andrew D..... 312, 319 White, Charles D..... 293, 314 White, Francis..... 274, 293, 301, 310 White, Henry..... 293, 312, 314 White, Jay_____ 293 White, John Campbell..... 46, 98, 274 White, John T..... 11, 25, 274 White, Julius______ 306 White, Philo...... 310 White, Thomas D...... 61, 274 Whitehouse, Sheldon__ 40, 96, 274, 309, 313 Whiteman, Marjorie M..... 4, 25, 275 Whitley, F. Langley..... 50, 58, 62, 275 Whitlock, Brand..... 284, 293, 307 Whitmore, Anna Bruce..... 5, 30, 275 Whitney, Ross L..... 21, 29, 275 Whitt, John S..... 19, 28, 275 Whittington, William V..... 18, 25, 275 Wicker, Cyrus F..... 293 Wickersham, J. P. 310 Wickliffe, Robert, Jr..... 319 Widmer, Louis L..... 21, 27, 275 Wilber, David F..... 293 Wilcox, Henry T..... 293 Wilder, Amos P..... 293 Wiley, John C..... 61, 99, 275 

	Page	1
Wilkerson, W. Scott		
Wilkins, William		
Wilkinson, James R		ł
Will, Marvin W		
Willard, Charles N		ł
Willard, Joseph E		
Willey, John A.	56, 276	ĺ
Willey, Richard R.		
Williams, A. S.		
Williams, Arthur R		
Williams, Bertram E		
Williams, Charles L. L.		
Williams, Curtis C., Jr	293	
Williams, Daniel W	293	
Williams, Dorothy S	5, 31, 276	
Williams, Edward T.	293	
Williams, Frank S		
Williams, George F 29	93, 313, 316	
Williams, Herbert O	55, 103, 276	1
Williams, Jack S.	45, 276	
Williams, James	321	
Williams, John	308	
Williams, John T		
Williams, Reginald H	116	
Williams, Robert K	293	
Williams, William	_ 317, 322	
Williams, William G.	21, 32, 276	
Williamson, Adolph A	293	
Williamson, David	60, 106, 276	
Williamson, George	308	
Williamson, Harold L 4	4, 102, 276	
Williamson, John G. A.	322	
Willier, Lillian E		
Willis, Albert S.	313	
Willis, Frances E 3	6, 108, 277	
Willrich, Gebhard	. 115, 293	
Willson, Digby A	293	
Willson, Gilbert R 4	6, 104, 277	
Willys, John N		
Wilson, Charles S 62, 96, 277, 30	8, 319, 322	
Wilson, Edwin C	9, 277, 303	
Wilson, George P	45, 277	
Wilson, Grace L.		
Wilson, Henry L 293, 30		1
Wilson, Hugh R 60, 9	6, 277, 321	1
Wilson, Huntington		1
Wilson, James		7
Wilson, John, Jr	54	1
Wilson, Kathryn J	21, 29, 278	1
Wilson, Orme 4	6, 100, 278	1

	Page
Wilson, Ripley	
Wilson, Thomas M	
Wilson, Warden McK	
Wilson, William John, Jr	
Wilson, Woodrow	297
Wilton, George, Jr	
Winans, Charles S	
Winchester, Boyd	
Windle, George C	10 20 278
Wing, E. Rumsey	
Winship, North	
Winslow, Alan F	
Winslow, Alfred A	
Winslow, Edward D	
Winslow, L. Lanier	
Winslow, Rollin R	
Winston, Frederick H	
Winters, George H	
Winthrop, Robert M	
Wise, Henry A	
Wise, John D	
Withey, Howard F	52, 104, 279
Wlecke, Evelyn D	18, 30, 279
Woël, J. William	50, 279
Wolcott, Henry M	49, 101, 279
Wolf, Simon	
Wood, Bradford R	
Wood, Charles M	
Wood, Corey F	
Wood, Harold C	55 970
Wood, John Q	
Wood, John R.	
Wood, Tuley N	
Woodard, Granville O	
Woodford, Archer	
Woodford, Stewart L	
Woods, Cyrus E 293	3, 314, 318, 320
Woods, Damon C	
Woods, Leslie E	
Woods, Sam E	
Woodside, Jonathan F	310
Woodward, G. Carlton	. 38, 106, 280
Woodward, Robert F	
Woodward, Stanley	
Woolsey, Lester H	
Worden, James P	
Worley, Harry F	
Worley, Lee	
Worman, Charles E	52 990
worman, charles E	

	age
Worman, James H	293
Wormuth, Romeyn 55, 102,	280
Worster, Stephen C 41,	280
Wortham, Clyde H 20, 31,	281
Worthington, H. G 306,	322
Worton, William A	281
Wright, Herbert R	293
Wright, J. Butler	42,
96, 281, 301, 310, 314,	322
Wright, James H 46, 110,	
Wright, Jennie V. 10, 27,	
Wright, Joseph A.	318
Wright, Luke E 293,	314
Wright, Maitland S 6, 27,	281
Wright, William F	293
Wuest, Jacob W. S	35,
42, 46, 55, 56, 59, 60,	281
Wullweber, Christian	310
Wyatt, Ben H 44, 46, 47, 55,	281
Wyles, Charl C. L. B.	116
Wynne, Cyril 13, 23, 24,	281
	293
Yancey, Benjamin C	306
Yates, Lloyd D 46, 107,	281
Yeagley, Dibert L 8, 30,	281
Yeaman, George H	310
Yearns, Kenneth J 40, 111,	282
Yelverton, E. Harrison	293
Yepis, Alfonso F 54,	282
Yerby, William J 115,	
Yingling, Raymund T 4, 25,	282
Yost, Bartley F 46, 102,	282
Yost, Charles W 282,	293
Young, Evan E 293, 307, 310,	311
Young, Fred R	282
Young, George W	293
Young, James B 57, 100, 5	282
Young, John Russell	309
Young, Pierce M. B	314
Young, Wallace J	293
Young, Whitney 40, 106, 5	282
Young, William C 50, 5	282
Young, Willis H 11, 25, 5	
Zabriskie, Luther K	293
Zaveckas, Stanley	283
Zawadski, Casimir T 46, 2	283
Zinser, Leon 17, 2	

# INDEX OF PLACES

[The names of provinces, states, and other administrative divisions are omitted from this index, but those in countries in which the consular districts are delimited may be found in the last part of section 5 alphabetically under name of country.]

A byssinia. See Ethiopia.       43         Addis Ababa, Ethiopia.       43         Adelaide, South Australia       49, 69         Aden, Arabia       48, 69         Aegean, Italian Islands of. See       Italian Islands of the Aegean.         Affica       74         Africa.       74         Africa.       74         Africa.       74         Africa.       74         Africa.       74         See also Azores, Canary Islands, Egypt, Ethiopia, Liberia, Ma- deira, Morocco, and Union of South Africa; under France: Al- giers and Tunis; under Por- tugal: Lourenço Marques.         Agua Prieta, Sonora, Mexico	Page
Addis Ababa, Ethiopia	
Adelaide, South Australia       49, 69         Aden, Arabia       48, 69         Aegean, Italian Islands of. See       Italian Islands of the Aegean.         Afghanistan       74         Africa       74         Africa.       74         See also Azores, Canary Islands, Egypt, Ethiopia, Liberia, Ma- deira, Morocco, and Union of South Africa; under France: Al- giers and Tunis; under Great Britain, etc.: Lagos, Nigeria, and Nairobi, Kenya; under Por- tugal: Lourenço Marques.         Agua Prieta, Sonora, Mexico	
Aden, Arabia       48, 69         Aegean, Italian Islands of. See       Italian Islands of the Aegean.         Afghanistan       74         Africa       74         Africa       74         Africa       74         Africa       74         Africa       74         See also Azores, Canary Islands, Egypt, Ethiopia, Liberia, Ma- deira, Morocco, and Union of South Africa; under France: Al- giers and Tunis; under Great Britain, etc.: Lagos, Nigeria, and Nairobi, Kenya; under Por- tugal: Lourenço Marques.         Agua Prieta, Sonora, Mexico       54, 70         Albania       35, 75, 306         Alexandria, Egypt       43, 66, 90         Algeria (see Algiers)       45, 67, 306         Algeria (see Algiers)       45, 67, 306         Algiers, Algeria       56, 71, 90         Andora       95         Antsterdam, Netherlands       56, 71, 90         Antofagasta, Chile       39         Antofagasta, Chile       39         Arabia       75         See also Aden       48, 69         Arguina       36, 65, 90         Antwerpen. See Antwerp.       75         Arabia       75         See also Aden       48, 69         Austraiia       35, 75, 306 <td></td>	
Aegean, Italian Islands of. See Italian Islands of the Aegean.       74         Afghanistan       74         Africa       74         See also Azores, Canary Islands, Egypt, Ethiopia, Liberia, Ma- deira, Morocco, and Union of South Africa; under France: Al- giers and Tunis; under Great Britain, etc.: Lagos, Nigeria, and Nairobi, Kenya; under Por- tugal: Lourenço Marques.         Agua Prieta, Sonora, Mexico       54, 70         Albania       35, 75, 306         Alexandria, Egypt       43, 66, 90         Algiers, Algeria       45, 67, 306         Algeria, See Algiers)       45, 67, 306         Algeria, See Algiers, Mexico       75         Amoy, Fukien, China       39, 65         Amsterdam, Netherlands       56, 71, 90         Andorra       75         See also Aden       48, 69         Arabia       75         See also Aden       48, 69         Argentina       57, 306         Autwerpen. See Antwerp.       57         Athenai. See Athens.       57         Athenai. See Athens.       57         Australia       49, 69, 75         Australia       49, 69, 75         Australia       49, 69, 75         Australia       49, 69, 75         Australia       49, 69, 75	
Italian Islands of the Aegean.       Afpianistan       74         Africa       74         Africa       74         See also Azores, Canary Islands,       Egypt, Ethiopia, Liberia, Madeira, Morocco, and Union of         South Africa; under France: Algiers and Tunis; under Great       Britain, etc.: Lagos, Nigeria, and Nairobi, Kenya; under Portugal: Lourenço Marques.         Agua Prieta, Sonora, Mexico       54, 70         Albania       35, 75, 306         Alexandria, Egypt       43, 66, 90         Algeria (see Algiers)       45, 67, 306         Alicante, Spain       59, 72         Amoy, Fukien, China       39, 65         Amsterdam, Netherlands       56, 71, 90         Andora       75         Annapolis Royal, Nova Scotia,       20         Canada       95         Antilla, Cuba       41         Antofagasta, Chile       39         Antwerp. See Antwerp.       75         Argentina       35, 75, 306         Asunción, Paraguay       57         Athenai. See Athens.       57         Athenai. See Athens.       57         Antuergy       307         Azores       75         See also St. Michael under Portugal       58, 72 <t< td=""><td></td></t<>	
Afghanistan       74         Africa       74         See also Azores, Canary Islands, Egypt, Ethiopia, Liberia, Ma- deira, Morocco, and Union of South Africa; under France: Al- giers and Tunis; under Great Britain, etc.: Lagos, Nigeria, and Nairobi, Kenya; under Por- tugal: Lourenço Marques.         Agua Prieta, Sonora, Mexico       54, 70         Albania       35, 75, 306         Alexandria, Egypt       43, 66, 90         Algeria (see Algiers)       45, 67         Alicante, Spain       59, 72         Amoy, Fukien, China       39, 65, 71, 90         Andorra       75         Annapolis Royal, Nova Scotia,       75         Canada       95         Antilla, Cuba       41         Antofagasta, Chile       39         Antwerp, Belgium       36, 65, 90         Antwerp, Belgium       36, 65, 90         Antwerp, See Antwerp.       75         Arabia       75         See also Aden       48, 69         Argentina       35, 75, 306         Australia       49, 69, 75         Australia       58, 72	
Africa	
See also Azores, Canary Islands,         Egypt, Ethiopia, Liberia, Ma- deira, Morocco, and Union of South Africa; under France: Al- giers and Tunis; under Great Britain, etc.: Lagos, Nigeria, and Nairobi, Kenya; under Por- tugal: Lourenço Marques.         Agua Prieta, Sonora, Mexico	
Egypt, Ethiopia, Liberia, Ma- deira, Morocco, and Union of South Africa; under France: Al- giers and Tunis; under Great Britain, etc.: Lagos, Nigeria, and Nairobi, Kenya; under Por- tugal: Lourenço Marques. Agua Prieta, Sonora, Mexico	
deira, Morocco, and Union of South Africa; under France: Al- giers and Tunis; under Great Britain, etc.: Lagos, Nigeria, and Nairobi, Kenya; under Por- tugal: Lourenço Marques.         Agua Prieta, Sonora, Mexico	
South Africa; under France: Algiers and Tunis; under Great Britain, etc.: Lagos, Nigeria, and Nairobi, Kenya; under Por- tugal: Lourenço Marques.         Agua Prieta, Sonora, Mexico	
giers and Tunis; under Great Britain, etc.: Lagos, Nigeria, and Nairobi, Kenya; under Por- tugal: Lourenço Marques.           Agua Prieta, Sonora, Mexico	
Britain, etc.: Lagos, Nigeria, and Nairobi, Kenya; under Por- tugal: Lourenço Marques.Agua Prieta, Sonora, Mexico	
tugal: Lourenço Marques.         Agua Prieta, Sonora, Mexico	
tugal: Lourenço Marques.         Agua Prieta, Sonora, Mexico	and Nairobi, Kenya; under Por-
Albania       35, 75, 306         Alexandria, Egypt       43, 66, 90         Algeria (see Algiers)       45, 67, 306         Algiers, Algeria       45, 67, 306         Allicante, Spain       59, 72         Amoy, Fukien, China       39, 65         Amsterdam, Netherlands       56, 71, 90         Andorra       75         Annapolis       Royal, Nova Scotia,         Canada       95         Antofagasta, Chile       39         Antofagasta, Chile       39         Antwerp, Belgium       36, 65, 90         Antwerpen. See Antwerp.       48, 69         Argentina       57         Athenai. See Athens.       57         Athenai. See Athens.       50, 69, 90         Australia       49, 69, 75         Australia       49, 69, 75         Australia       49, 69, 75         Australia       58, 72         Baghdad, Iraq       51, 69         Baharmas, British West Indies (see         Nassau)       49         Bahia, Brazil       36, 65         Baltic Provinces of Russia       307         Baltie, Provinces of Russia       307         Bangkok, Siam       59 <td></td>	
Albania       35, 75, 306         Alexandria, Egypt       43, 66, 90         Algeria (see Algiers)       45, 67, 306         Algiers, Algeria       45, 67, 306         Allicante, Spain       59, 72         Amoy, Fukien, China       39, 65         Amsterdam, Netherlands       56, 71, 90         Andorra       75         Annapolis       Royal, Nova Scotia,         Canada       95         Antofagasta, Chile       39         Antofagasta, Chile       39         Antwerp, Belgium       36, 65, 90         Antwerpen. See Antwerp.       48, 69         Argentina       57         Athenai. See Athens.       57         Athenai. See Athens.       50, 69, 90         Australia       49, 69, 75         Australia       49, 69, 75         Australia       49, 69, 75         Australia       58, 72         Baghdad, Iraq       51, 69         Baharmas, British West Indies (see         Nassau)       49         Bahia, Brazil       36, 65         Baltic Provinces of Russia       307         Baltie, Provinces of Russia       307         Bangkok, Siam       59 <td>Agua Prieta, Sonora, Mexico 54,70</td>	Agua Prieta, Sonora, Mexico 54,70
Algeria (see Algiers)       45, 67         Algiers, Algeria       45, 67, 306         Alicante, Spain       59, 72         Amoy, Fukien, China       39, 65         Amsterdam, Netherlands       56, 71, 90         Andorra       75         Annapolis Royal, Nova Scotia,       75         Canada       95         Antilla, Cuba       41         Antofagasta, Chile       39         Antwerp, Belgium       36, 65, 90         Antwerpen       See Antwerp.         Arabia       75         See also Aden       48, 69         Argentina       35, 75, 306         Assunción, Paraguay       57         Athenai. See Athens.       40, 69         Australia       49, 69, 75         Australia       49, 69, 75         Australia       49, 69, 75         Australia       58, 72         Baghdad, Iraq       51, 69         Baharmas, British West Indies (see         Nassau)       49         Bahia, Brazil       36, 65         Baile Atha Cliath. See Dublin.       36, 65         Baile Atha Cliath. See Dublin.       367	
Algeria (see Algiers)       45, 67         Algiers, Algeria       45, 67, 306         Alicante, Spain       59, 72         Amoy, Fukien, China       39, 65         Amsterdam, Netherlands       56, 71, 90         Andorra       75         Annapolis Royal, Nova Scotia,       75         Canada       95         Antilla, Cuba       41         Antofagasta, Chile       39         Antwerp, Belgium       36, 65, 90         Antwerpen       See Antwerp.         Arabia       75         See also Aden       48, 69         Argentina       35, 75, 306         Assunción, Paraguay       57         Athenai. See Athens.       40, 69         Australia       49, 69, 75         Australia       49, 69, 75         Australia       49, 69, 75         Australia       58, 72         Baghdad, Iraq       51, 69         Baharmas, British West Indies (see         Nassau)       49         Bahia, Brazil       36, 65         Baile Atha Cliath. See Dublin.       36, 65         Baile Atha Cliath. See Dublin.       367	
Alicante, Spain	
Alicante, Spain	
Amoy, Fukien, China	
Andorra.       75         Annapolis Royal, Nova Scotia,       95         Canada.       95         Antilla, Cuba.       41         Antofagasta, Chile.       39         Antwerp, Belgium.       36, 65, 90         Antwerpen.       See Antwerp.         Arabia.       75         See also Aden       48, 69         Argentina.       35, 75, 306         Asunción, Paraguay.       57         Athens, Greece       50, 69, 90         Auckland, New Zealand       49, 69         Austria.       35, 75, 306         Austriai.       49, 69, 75         Austria.       35, 75, 306         Austriai.       49, 69, 75         Austria.       35, 75, 306         Austriai.       49, 69, 75         Austria.       57, 50, 63, 90         Austriai.       49, 69, 75         Austria.       57, 53, 306         Austriai.       49, 69, 75         See also St. Michael under Portugal.       58, 72         Baghdad, Iraq       51, 69         Bahamas, British West Indies (see       Nassau)         Massau)       49         Bahia, Brazil       36, 65         Bailie A	Amoy, Fukien, China 39,65
Andorra.       75         Annapolis Royal, Nova Scotia,       95         Canada.       95         Antilla, Cuba.       41         Antofagasta, Chile.       39         Antwerp, Belgium.       36, 65, 90         Antwerpen.       See Antwerp.         Arabia.       75         See also Aden       48, 69         Argentina.       35, 75, 306         Asunción, Paraguay.       57         Athens, Greece       50, 69, 90         Auckland, New Zealand       49, 69         Austria.       35, 75, 306         Austriai.       49, 69, 75         Austria.       35, 75, 306         Austriai.       49, 69, 75         Austria.       35, 75, 306         Austriai.       49, 69, 75         Austria.       57, 50, 63, 90         Austriai.       49, 69, 75         Austria.       57, 53, 306         Austriai.       49, 69, 75         See also St. Michael under Portugal.       58, 72         Baghdad, Iraq       51, 69         Bahamas, British West Indies (see       Nassau)         Massau)       49         Bahia, Brazil       36, 65         Bailie A	Amsterdam, Netherlands 56, 71, 90
Canada       95         Antilla, Cuba       41         Antofagasta, Chile       39         Antwerp, Belgium       36, 65, 90         Antwerpen       See Antwerp.         Arabia       75         See also Aden       48, 69         Argentina       35, 75, 306         Asunción, Paraguay       57         Athenai.       See Athens.         Athens, Greece       50, 69, 90         Australia       49, 69         Australia       49, 69, 75         Australia       49, 69, 75         Australia       49, 69, 75         Australia       57, 53, 306         Australia       49, 69, 75         Australia       49, 69, 75         Australia       57, 53, 306         Australia       58, 72, 306         Australia       58, 72         Baghdad, Iraq       51, 69         Bahamas, British West Indies (see         Nassau)       49         Bahia, Brazil       36, 65         Baile Atha Cliath. See Dublin.       307         Baltic Provinces of Russia       307         Bangkok, Siam       59 <td>Andorra 75</td>	Andorra 75
Canada       95         Antilla, Cuba       41         Antofagasta, Chile       39         Antwerp, Belgium       36, 65, 90         Antwerpen       See Antwerp.         Arabia       75         See also Aden       48, 69         Argentina       35, 75, 306         Asunción, Paraguay       57         Athenai.       See Athens.         Athens, Greece       50, 69, 90         Australia       49, 69         Australia       49, 69, 75         Australia       49, 69, 75         Australia       49, 69, 75         Australia       57, 53, 306         Australia       49, 69, 75         Australia       49, 69, 75         Australia       57, 53, 306         Australia       58, 72, 306         Australia       58, 72         Baghdad, Iraq       51, 69         Bahamas, British West Indies (see         Nassau)       49         Bahia, Brazil       36, 65         Baile Atha Cliath. See Dublin.       307         Baltic Provinces of Russia       307         Bangkok, Siam       59 <td>Annapolis Royal, Nova Scotia,</td>	Annapolis Royal, Nova Scotia,
Antofagasta, Chile	Canada
Antwerp, Belgium	Antilla, Cuba
Antwerpen.       See Antwerp.         Arabia.       75         See also Aden.       48, 69         Argentina.       35, 75, 306         Asunción, Paraguay.       57         Athenai.       See Athens.         Athens, Greece.       50, 69, 90         Auskland, New Zealand.       49, 69         Australia.       49, 69, 75         Australia.       49, 69, 75         Austria.       35, 75, 306         Austria.       35, 75, 306         Austria.       36, 75, 306         Austria.       58, 72         Baghdad, Iraq.       51, 69         Baharmas, British West Indies (see       Nassau).         Pahia, Brazil.       36, 65         Baltie Provinces of Russia.       307         Bandrak, Siam.       59	Antofagasta, Chile
Arabia.       75         See also Aden       48, 69         Argentina.       35, 75, 306         Asunción, Paraguay.       57         Athenai.       See Athens.         Athenai.       See Athens.         Athenai.       See Athens.         Australia.       49, 69, 75         Australia.       49, 69, 75         Australia.       49, 69, 75         Australia.       49, 69, 75         Australia.       35, 75, 306         Austria.       35, 75, 306         Austria.       35, 75, 306         Austria.       35, 75, 306         Austria.       35, 75, 306         Australia.       55, 75, 306         See also St. Michael under Portugal.       75         See also St. Michael under Portugal.       58, 72         Bahamas, British West Indies (see       Nassau).         Bahamas, British West Indies (see       Nassau).         Bahia, Brazil.       36, 65         Baltie Provinces of Russia.       307         Bangkok, Siam.       59	
See also Aden       48, 69         Argentina       35, 75, 306         Asunción, Paraguay       57         Athenai.       56, 75, 306         Astunción, Paraguay       57         Athenai.       56, 75, 306         Athens, Greece       50, 69, 90         Auskriand, New Zealand       49, 69         Austriai       49, 69, 75         Austriai       307         Asores       75         See also St. Michael under Portugal       58, 72         Baghdad, Iraq       51, 69         Bahamas, British West Indies (see       Nassau)         Massau)       49         Bahia, Brazil       36, 65         Baile Atha Cliath. See Dublin.       307         Bangkok, Siam       59	Antwerpen. See Antwerp.
Argentina       35, 75, 306         Asunción, Paraguay.       57         Athenai.       See Athens.         Athens, Greece       50, 69, 90         Auskland, New Zealand       49, 69         Australia       49, 69, 75         Austria       35, 75, 306         Australia       49, 69, 75         Austria       35, 75, 306         Austria-Hungary       307         Azores       75         See also St. Michael under Portugal.       58, 72         Baghdad, Iraq       51, 69         Baharnas, British West Indies (see       Nassau)         49       Bahia, Brazil       36, 65         Baile Atha Cliath. See Dublin.       84, 65         Baltic Provinces of Russia       307         Bangkok, Siam       59	
Asunción, Paraguay	
Athenai.       See Athens.         Athenai.       So, 69, 90         Auckland, New Zealand.       49, 69, 75         Australia.       49, 69, 75         Australia.       35, 75, 306         Australia.       35, 75, 306         Australia.       307         Azores.       75         See also St. Michael under Por- tugal.       58, 72         Baghdad, Iraq.       51, 69         Bahamas, British West Indies (see Nassau).       49         Bahia, Brazil.       36, 65         Baltie Provinces of Russia.       307         Bangkok, Siam.       59	
Athens, Greece       50, 69, 90         Auckland, New Zealand       49, 69         Austria       49, 69, 75         Austria-Hungary       307         Azores       75         See also St. Michael under Portugal       58, 72         Baghdad, Iraq       51, 69         Bahamas, British West Indies (see       Nassau)         Nassau)       49         Bahia, Brazil       36, 65         Balite Atha Cliath. See Dublin.       307         Bangkok, Siam       59	
Auckland, New Zealand       49, 69         Australia       49, 69, 75         Austria       35, 75, 306         Austria-Hungary       307         Azores       75         See also St. Michael under Portugal       58, 72         Baghdad, Iraq       51, 69         Bahamas, British West Indies (see       49         Nassau)       49         Bahia, Brazil       36, 65         Baile Atha Cliath. See Dublin.       807         Baltic Provinces of Russia       307         Bangkok, Siam       59	
Australia       49, 69, 75         Austria       35, 75, 306         Austria-Hungary       307         Azores       75         See also St. Michael under Portugal       58, 72         Baghdad, Iraq       51, 69         Bahamas, British West Indies (see       149         Nassau)       49         Bahia, Brazil       36, 65         Baile Atha Cliath. See Dublin.       164         Baltic Provinces of Russia       307         Songkok, Siam       59	
Austria.       35, 75, 306         Austria-Hungary       307         Azores       75         See also St. Michael under Portugal       58, 72         Baghdad, Iraq       51, 69         Bahamas, British West Indies (see       9         Nassau)       49         Bahia, Brazil       36, 65         Baltie Atha Cliath. See Dublin.       84/t6         Baltie, Provinces of Russia       307         Bangkok, Siam       59	
Austria-Hungary       307         Azores       75         See also St. Michael under Portugal       58, 72         Baghdad, Iraq       51, 69         Bahamas, British West Indies (see       49         Bahia, Brazil       36, 65         Baile Atha Cliath. See Dublin.       8altic Provinces of Russia       307         Bangkok, Siam       59	
Azores       75         See also St. Michael under Portugal       58, 72         Baghdad, Iraq       51, 69         Bahamas, British West Indies (see       49         Bahia, Brazil       36, 65         Baile Atha Cliath. See Dublin.       8altic Provinces of Russia       307         Bangkok, Siam       59	
See also St. Michael under Por- tugal	
tugal	
Baghdad, Iraq	
Bahamas, British West Indies (see         Nassau)       49         Bahia, Brazil       36, 65         Baile Atha Cliath. See Dublin.       810         Baltic Provinces of Russia       307         Bangkok, Siam       59	tugai
Bahamas, British West Indies (see         Nassau)       49         Bahia, Brazil       36, 65         Baile Atha Cliath. See Dublin.       810         Baltic Provinces of Russia       307         Bangkok, Siam       59	Baghdad, Iraq 51,69
Nassau)     49       Bahia, Brazil     36, 65       Baile Atha Cliath. See Dublin.     81       Baltic Provinces of Russia     307       Bangkok, Siam     59	Bahamas, British West Indies (see
Bahia, Brazil	
Baile Atha Cliath. See Dublin.         Baltic Provinces of Russia       307         Bangkok, Siam       59	Bahia, Brazil
Baltic Provinces of Russia	Baile Atha Cliath. See Dublin.
	Bangkok, Siam

Barcelona, Spain59, 72, 90Barranquilla, Colombia41, 66Basel, Switzerland60, 72Batavia, Java, Netherland India56, $(T, 90)$ Beirut, Syria60, 73, 90Belgrade, Syria60, 73, 90Belgrade, Yugoslavia62, 73Belgrade, Yugoslavia62, 73Belgrade, Yugoslavia62, 73Belgrade, Yugoslavia60, 72Bergen, Norway56, 72Berlin, Germany46, 67, 90Bern, Switzerland60, 72Biarritz, France (see Bordeaux)45, 66Bilbao, Spain59, 72Birmingham, England47, 67Bocas del Toro, Panama95Bogotá, Colombia40, 66Borita46, 67, 90Borneo, BritishSee BritishMalaya86Borneo, Netherland. See Netherland47, 67Brazil36, 65, 75, 308Bremen, Germany46, 67Brisbane, Queensland, Australia49, 69British Malaya76British Honduras (see Belize)49British Malaya76British Malaya76British Malaya58Buchaest, Rumania58Buchaest, Rumania58Buchaest, Rumania58Buchaest, Rumania58Buchaest, Rumania58Buchaest, Rumania58Buchaest, Rumania58Buchaest, Rumania55Buchaest, Rumania55Buchaest, Rumania55Budapest, Hungary<	Page
Barranquilla, Colombia41, 66Basel, Switzerland60, 72Batavia, Java, Netherland India56, $(T, 90)$ Beirut, Syria60, 73, 90Belizut, Syria60, 73, 90Belgrade, Northern Ireland47, 67Belgium36, 65, 75, 307Belgrade, Pugoslavia62, 73Belize, British Honduras49Beograd.See Belgrade.Bergen, Norway56, 72Berlin, Germany46, 67, 90Bernuda (see Hamilton)49Bern, Switzerland60, 72Biarritz, France (see Bordeaux)45, 66Bilbao, Spain59, 72Birmingham, England47, 67Bocas del Toro, Panama95Bogotá, Colombia40, 66Bolivia46, 67, 307Bombay, IndiaSee BritishMalaya.86Borneo, British.See BritishMalaya.86, 65, 75, 308Bremen, Germany46, 67Brisbane, Queensland, Australia49, 69British Malaya76British Malaya76British Malaya76British Malaya76British Malaya58Bucharest, Rumania58Bucharest, Rumania58Bucharest, Rumania58Bucharest, Rumania58Bucharest, Rumania58Bucharest, Rumania55Bucharest, Rumania55Bucharest, Rumania55Bucharest, Rumania55Budapest, Hungary51<	Barcelona, Spain 59, 72, 90
Basel, Switzerland       60, 72         Batavia, Java, Netherland India       56,         71, 90       Pelizut, Syria       60, 73, 90         Belfast, Northern Ireland       47, 67         Belgrade, Yugoslavia       62, 73         Belgrade, See Belgrade.       49         Beograd.       56, 72         Berlin, Germany       46, 67, 90         Bernuda (see Hamilton)       49         Beograd.       60, 72         Barningham, See Belgrade.       60, 72         Bernuda (see Hamilton)       49         Bern, Switzerland       60, 72         Birmingham, England       60, 72         Birmingham, England       60, 72         Birmingham, England       47, 67         Bootda, Colombia       40, 66         Bolivia       36, 75, 307         Bombay, India       56, 75, 308         Borneo, Netherland. See Netherland India.       86         Borneo, Netherland. See Netherland India.       95         Brisbane, Germany       46, 67         Brisbane, Queensland, Australia       49, 69         Brisbane, Queensland, Australia       49, 69         British Malaya       76         British Malaya       76	
Batavia, Java, Netherland India. $56$ ,71, 90Beirut, Syria. $60$ , 73, 90Belfast, Northern Ireland. $47$ , 67Belgrade, Yugoslavia. $62$ , 73Belgrade, Yugoslavia. $62$ , 73Belgrade, Yugoslavia. $62$ , 73Belgrade, See Belgrade.Beograd.Beergen, Norway. $56$ , 72Berlin, Germany. $46$ , 67, 90Bernuda (see Hamilton). $49$ Benn, Switzerland. $60$ , 72Biaritz, France (see Bordeaux) $45$ , 66Bibao, Spain. $59$ , 72Birmingham, England. $47$ , 67Bocas del Toro, Panama. $95$ Bogotá, Colombia. $40$ , 66Bolivia. $67$ , 53, 307Borneo, British.See BritishMalaya.Borneo, British.Borneo, Netherland. $56$ , 67, 53, 308Bremen, Germany. $46$ , 67Brighton, Trinidad, British WestIndies (see Trinidad).Indies (see Trinidad). $49$ , 95Brisbane, Queensland, Australia. $49$ , 69British Honduras (see Belize). $49$ British Malaya. $76$ British Medya. $58$ Bucharest, Rumania. $58$ Bucharest, Rumania. $58$ Bucharest, Rumania. $58$ Bucharest, Rumania. $55$ <td></td>	
71, 90         Beirut, Syria       60, 73, 90         Belfast, Northern Ireland       47, 67         Belgium       36, 65, 75, 307         Belgrade, Yugoslavia       62, 73         Belgrade, See Belgrade.       Beergen, Norway         Berlin, Germany       46, 67, 90         Bernuda (see Hamilton)       49         Benn, Switzerland       60, 72         Bilaroi, Spain       59, 72         Birmingham, England       47, 67         Bocas del Toro, Panama       95         Bogdá, Colombia       40, 66         Boilvia       36, 65, 75, 307         Borneo, British.       See British         Malaya.       See Netherland.         Borneo, Netherland.       See Netherland floia.         Bradford, England       47, 67         Bristol, England       47, 67         Bristol, England       47, 67         Brighton, Trinidad, British West       Indies (see Trinidad)         British Honduras (see Belize)       49         British Malaya       76         Bri	
Beirut, Syria	
Belfast, Northern Ireland47, 67Belgium36, 65, 75, 307Belgrade, Yugoslavia62, 73Belize, British Honduras49Beograd.See Belgrade.Bergen, Norway56, 72Berlin, Germany46, 67, 90Bernuda (see Hamilton)49Bern, Switzerland60, 72Biarritz, France (see Bordeaux)45, 66Bilbao, Spain59, 72Birmingham, England47, 67Bocas del Toro, Panama95Bogotá, Colombia40, 66Bolivia36, 75, 307Bombay, India58, 66Borneo, Netherland.See BritishMalaya.Borneo, Netherland.Breslau, Germany46, 67Brisbane, Queensland, Australia49, 69British Honduras (see Belize)49British Malaya76British Malaya76British Malaya76British Malaya76British Malaya76British Malaya58Bucharest, Rumania58Bucharest, Rumania58Bucharest, Rumania55Bucharest, Rumania55Bucharest, Rumania35Bulgaria37, 76, 303Calais, France43, 66Calcutta, India48, 68, 90	
Belgium       36, 65, 75, 307         Belgrade, Yugoslavia       62, 73         Belize, British Honduras       49         Beograd.       See Belgrade.         Bergen, Norway       56, 72         Berlin, Germany       46, 67, 90         Bernuda (see Hamilton)       49         Bern, Switzerland       60, 72         Biarritz, France (see Bordeaux)       45, 66         Bibao, Spain       59, 72         Birmingham, England       47, 67         Bocas del Toro, Panama       95         Bogotá, Colombia       40, 66         Borneo, Stitish.       See British         Malaya.       80         Borneo, Netherland.       See Netherland India.         Bradford, England       47, 67         Brighton, Trinidad, British West       Indies (see Trinidad)       49, 65         Bristol, England       47, 67         British Honduras (see Belize)       49       95         Bristol, England       47, 67         British Honduras (see Bahamas, Barbados, Jamaica, and Trinidad)       49, 69, 83         Brussels, Belgium       56, 65         Bruxelles. See Brussels.       58         Bucharest, Rumania       58         Bucharest, Rumania	
Belgrade, Yugoslavia       62, 73         Belize, British Honduras       49         Beograd. See Belgrade.       56, 72         Berlin, Germany       46, 67, 90         Bernuda (see Hamilton)       49         Benn, Switzerland       60, 72         Biaritz, France (see Bordeaux)       45, 66         Borba, Spain       59, 72         Birmingham, England       47, 67         Bocas del Toro, Panama       95         Bogotá, Colombia       40, 66         Borneo, British. See British       86         Borneo, Netherland. See Netherland India.       87, 63         Brennen, Germany       46, 67         Breighton, Trinidad, British West       1ndies (see Trinidad)         British Lengland       47, 67         Brisbane, Queensland, Australia       49, 69         British Honduras (see Belize)       49         British Malaya       76         British Malaya       76         British Malaya       58         Bucharest, Rumania       49, 69, 83         Brussels, Belgium       36, 65         Brunelles. See Brussels.       88         Bucharest, Rumania       55         Bucharest, Rumania       55         Buch	
Belize, British Honduras       49         Beograd. See Belgrade.       56, 72         Bergen, Norway       56, 72         Berlin, Germany       46, 67, 90         Bernuda (see Hamilton)       49         Bern, Switzerland       60, 72         Biarritz, France (see Bordeaux)       45, 66         Bilbao, Spain       59, 72         Birmingham, England       47, 67         Bocas del Toro, Panama       95         Bogotá, Colombia       40, 66         Boiroa       40, 66         Borneo, Neitsih.       See British         Malaya.       Borneo, Netherland. See Netherland India.         Bredeaux, France       46, 67         Bradford, England       47, 67         Brazdl       66, 55, 75, 308         Bremen, Germany       46, 67         Brighton, Trinidad, British West       Indies (see Trinidad)       49, 95         British Honduras (see Belize)       49         British Malaya       76	
Bergen, Norway56, 72Berlin, Germany46, 67, 90Bernuda (see Hamilton)49Bern, Switzerland60, 72Biarritz, France (see Bordeaux)45, 66Bilbao, Spain59, 72Birmingham, England47, 67Bocas del Toro, Panama95Bodxá, Colombia40, 66Bolivía36, 75, 307Bombay, India48, 68Bordeaux, France45, 66Borneo, BritishSee BritishMalayaSordeaux, FranceBorneo, Netherland.See Netherland India.Bradford, England47, 67Brazil36, 65, 75, 308Bremen, Germany46, 67Brisbane, Queensland, Australia49, 69Brisbane, Queensland, Australia49, 69British Honduras (see Belize)49British Malaya76British Malaya76Brussels, Belgium58, 65, 58Burabados, Jamaica, and Trinidad)49, 69, 83Brussels, Belgium58Bucareşti, See Bucharest.51Bucareşti, See Bucharest.51Buenaventura, Colombia41, 66Buenaventura, Colombia41, 66Buenaventura, Colombia37, 76, 303Caibarien, Cuba (see Cienfuegos)41, 95Caira, Egypt43, 66Calcutta, India48, 68, 90	
Berlin, Germany	
Bermuda (see Hamilton)       49         Bern, Switzerland       60, 72         Biarritz, France (see Bordeaux)       45, 66         Bilbao, Spain       59, 72         Birmingham, England       47, 67         Bocas del Toro, Panama       95         Bogotá, Colombia       40, 66         Bolivia       36, 675, 307         Borneo, British       See British         Malaya.       86         Borneo, Netherland.       See Netherland India.         Bradford, England       47, 67         Brazall       36, 65, 75, 308         Bremen, Germany       46, 67         Brighton, Trinidad, British West       Indies (see Trinidad)         Indies (see Trinidad)       49, 69         British Honduras (see Belize)       49         British Malaya       76         British Malaya       76         British West Indies (see Bahamas, Barbados, Jamaica, and Trinidad)       49, 69, 83         Brussels, Belgium       36, 65         Bruxeles. See Brussels.       51         Bucharest, Rumania       58         Bucharest, Rumania       55         Bucharest, Rumania       55         Bucharest, Rumania       55         Buchares	Bergen, Norway
Bern, Switzerland       60, 72         Biarritz, France (see Bordeaux)       45, 66         Bilbao, Spain       59, 72         Birmingham, England       47, 67         Bocas del Toro, Panama       95         Bogotá, Colombia       40, 66         Bolivia       36, 75, 307         Bombay, India       48, 68         Borneo, British       See British         Malaya.       80         Borneo, Netherland.       See Netherland         Iand India.       Bradford, England       47, 67         Brazil       36, 65, 75, 308         Bremen, Germany       46, 67         Brisbane, Queensland, Australia       49, 69         British Honduras (see Belize)       49         British Malaya       76         British Malaya.       76         British Malaya       76         British Malaya       76         British Malaya       76         British Malaya       58         Bucharest, Rumania       58         Bucharest, Rumania       58         Bucharest, Rumania       58         Bucharest, Rumania       55         Bucharest, Rumania       55         Bucharest, Rumania	Berlin, Germany 46, 67, 90
Biarritz, France (see Bordeaux)       45, 66         Bilbao, Spain       59, 72         Birmingham, England       47, 67         Bocas del Toro, Panana       95         Bogotá, Colombia       40, 66         Bolivia       36, 75, 307         Bombay, India       48, 68         Bordeaux, France       45, 66         Borneo, British. See British       Malaya.         Borneo, Netherland. See Netherland India.       87, 67         Bradford, England       47, 67         Brazil       36, 65, 75, 308         Bremen, Germany       46, 67         Breslau, Germany       46, 67         Brisbane, Queensland, Australia       49, 69         British Honduras (see Belize)       49         British Honduras (see Bahamas, Barbados, Jamaica, and Trinidad)       49, 60, 83         Brussels, Belgium       36, 65         Bruxelles. See Brussels.       58         Bucareşti, See Bucharest.       58         Bucareşti, See Bucharest.       51         Buenaventura, Colombia       41, 66         Buenaventura, Colombia       37, 76, 303         Calabarien, Cuba (see Cienfuegos)       41, 95         Calais, France       43, 66         Calais, France	Bermuda (see Hamilton)
Bilbao, Spain	
Birmingham, England	
Bocas del Toro, Panama	
Bogotá, Colombia40,66Bolivía36,75,307Bombay, India48,68Bordeaux, France45,66Borneo, British.Sce BritishMalaya.Borneo, Netherland.Bordeaux, France46,67Bradford, England47,67Brazil36,65,75,308Bremen, Germany46,67Breslau, Germany46,67Brishon, Trinidad, British WestIndies (see Trinidad)British Honduras (see Belize)49British Malaya76British Malaya76British Malaya36,65Brussels, Belgium36,65Brussels, Belgium58Bucareşti, See Bucharest.51Bucareşti, See Bucharest.35Bulaparia37,76,303Calais, France43,66Calais, France43,66Calais, France45,66Calcutta, India48,68,90	
Bolivia       36, 75, 307         Bombay, India       48, 68         Bordeaux, France       45, 66         Borneo, British       See British         Malaya.       Borneo, Netherland. See Netherland India.         Bradford, England       47, 67         Brazil       36, 65, 75, 308         Bremen, Germany       46, 67         Brijbton, Trinidad, British West       Indies (see Trinidad)         Indies (see Trinidad)       49, 69         British Honduras (see Belize)       49         British Malaya       76         British West Indies (see Bahamas, Barbados, Jamaica, and Trinidad)       49, 69, 83         Brussels, Belgium       36, 65         Bucharest, Rumania       58         Bucureşti. See Bucharest.       51         Buenaventura, Colombia       41, 66         Buenos Aires, Argentina       35         Bulgaria       37, 76, 303         Caibarien, Cuba (see Cienfuegos)       41, 95         Caibarien, Cuba (see Cienfuegos)       41, 66         Buenos Aires, Argentina       35         Bulgaria       37, 76, 308         Caibarien, Cuba (see Cienfuegos)       43, 66         Calais, France       45, 66         Calais, France	
Bombay, India	
Bordeaux, France	
Borneo, British.       See British         Malaya.       Borneo, Netherland.         Borneo, Netherland.       See Netherland.         Iand India.       Bradford, England	
Malaya.         Borneo, Netherland. See Netherland India.         Bradford, England	
Borneo, Netherland. See Netherland India.         Bradford, England	
land India.         Bradford, England.       47, 67         Brazil.       36, 65, 75, 308         Bremen, Germany.       46, 67         Breslau, Germany.       46, 67         Brighton, Trinidad, British West       Indies (see Trinidad).       49, 69         Brisbane, Queensland, Australia.       49, 69         Britsbane, Queensland, Australia.       49, 69         British Honduras (see Belize).       49         British Melaya.       76         British West Indies (see Bahamas, Barbados, Jamaica, and Trini-dad).       49, 69, 83         Brussels, Belgium.       36, 65         Brusnelles.       58         Bucharest, Rumania.       58         Bucharest, Rumania.       58         Bucharest, Rumania.       55         Buenaventura, Colombia.       41, 66         Buenos Aires, Argentina.       35         Bulgaria.       37, 76, 303         Calbarien, Cuba (see Cienfuegos).       43, 66         Calais, France.       43, 66         Calais, France.       45, 66         Calcutta, India.       48, 68, 90	
Bradford, England	
Brazil	Bradford England 47.67
Bremen, Germany	
Breslau, Germany	
Brighton, Trinidad, British West Indies (see Trinidad)	
Indies (see Trinidad)       49, 95         Brisbane, Queensland, Australia       49, 69         Bristol, England       47, 67         British Honduras (see Belize)       49         British Malaya       76         British Mataya       76         British Malaya       76         British Moduras (see Belize)       49         British Malaya       76         British Malaya       76         British West Indies (see Bahamas, Barbados, Jamaica, and Trini- dad)       49, 69, 83         Brussels, Belgium       36, 65         Bruxelles.       See Brussels.         Bucharest, Rumania       58         Bucharest, Rumania       58         Bucharest, Rumania       51         Buenaventura, Colombia       41, 66         Buenos Aires, Argentina       35         Bulgaria       37, 76, 303         Calabarien, Cuba (see Cienfuegos)       41, 95         Calaio, France       43, 66         Calais, France       43, 66         Calcutta, India       48, 68, 90	Brighton, Tripidad, British West
Brisbane, Queensland, Australia	
Bristol, England	
British Honduras (see Belize)       49         British Malaya       76         British West Indies (see Bahamas, Barbados, Jamaica, and Trini- dad)       76         Brussels, Jamaica, and Trini- dad)       49, 69, 83         Brussels, Belgium       36, 65         Brunselles. See Brussels.       8         Bucharest, Rumania       58         Bucharest, Rumania       51         Bueneşti. See Bucharest.       51         Buenaventura, Colombia       41, 66         Buenos Aires, Argentina       35         Bulgaria       37, 76, 303         Caibarien, Cuba (see Cienfuegos)       43, 66         Calais, France       43, 66         Calcutta, India       48, 68, 90	
British West Indies (see Bahamas, Barbados, Jamaica, and Trini- dad)       49, 69, 83         Brussels, Belgium       36, 65         Bruxelles. See Brussels.       58         Bucharest, Rumania       58         Bucharest, Rumania       58         Bucharest, Rumania       51         Bucharest, Hungary       51         Buenaventura, Colombia       41, 66         Bulgaria       37, 76, 303         Caibarien, Cuba (see Cienfuegos)       41, 95         Cairo, Egypt       43, 66         Calais, France       45, 66         Calcutta, India       48, 68, 90	
Barbados, Jamaica, and Trini- dad)       49, 69, 83         Brussels, Belgium       36, 65         Bruxelles. See Brussels.       36, 65         Bucharest, Rumania       58         Bucharest, Rumania       58         București. See Bucharest.       51         Budapest, Hungary       51         Buenos Aires, Argentina       35         Bulgaria       37, 76, 308         Caibarien, Cuba (see Cienfuegos)       41, 95         Cairo, Egypt       43, 66         Calais, France       45, 66         Calcutta, India       48, 68, 90	British Malaya
dad)       49, 69, 83         Brussels, Belgium       36, 65         Bruxelles.       See Brussels.         Bucharest, Rumania       58         Bucureşti.       See Bucharest.         Budapest, Hungary       51         Buenaventura, Colombia       41, 66         Buenos Aires, Argentina       35         Bulgaria       37, 76, 308         Caibarien, Cuba (see Cienfuegos)       43, 66         Calais, France       43, 66         Calcutta, India       48, 68, 90	British West Indies (see Bahamas,
Brussels, Belgium       36, 65         Bruxelles.       See Brussels.         Bucharest, Rumania       58         Bucharest, Rumania       58         Bucharest, Rumania       51         Budapest, Hungary       51         Buenaventura, Colombia       41, 66         Buegaria       35         Bulgaria       37, 76, 303         Calibarien, Cuba (see Cienfuegos)       41, 95         Calais, France       43, 66         Calcutta, India       48, 68, 90	Barbados, Jamaica, and Trini-
Bruxelles.         See Brussels.           Bucharest, Rumania	dad) 49, 69, 83
Bucharest, Rumania	
București.         See Bucharest.           Budapest, Hungary	
Budapest, Hungary	
Buenaventura, Colombia       41, 66         Buenos Aires, Argentina       35         Bulgaria       37, 76, 303         Caibarien, Cuba (see Cienfuegos)       41, 95         Cairo, Egypt       43, 66         Calais, France       45, 66         Calcutta, India       48, 68, 90	
Buenos Aires, Argentina         35           Bulgaria         37,76,303           Caibarien, Cuba (see Cienfuegos)         41,95           Cairo, Egypt         43,66           Calais, France         45,66           Calcutta, India         48,68,90	
Bulgaria         37, 76, 303           Caibarien, Cuba (see Cienfuegos)         41, 95           Cairo, Egypt         43, 66           Calais, France         45, 66           Calcutta, India         48, 68, 90	
Caibarien, Cuba (see Cienfuegos) 41, 95 Cairo, Egypt	
Cairo, Egypt	Duigaria
Cairo, Egypt	Caibarien, Cuba (see Cienfuegos) 41,95
Calcutta, India	Cairo, Egypt 43, 66
	Calais, France 45,66
	Calcutta, India 48, 68, 90

	Page
Calgary, Alberta, Canada	37
Callao-Lima, Peru	57
Canada	37, 308
Cananea, Sonora, Mexico (see	
Nogales)	55, 95
Canary Islands	76
See also Las Palmas and Tenerife_	59,72
Canton, Kwangtung, China	39,65
Cap Haitien, Haiti	50
Capetown, Cape Province, Union	
of South Africa	
Caracas, Venezuela	62,73
Cardiff, Wales	47,67
Cartagena, Colombia	41,66
Casablanca, Morocco Ceará, Brazil	55,71
Ceiba, Honduras	95
Central America	50, 69 308
Central American States	308
Ceylon	76
See also Colombo	48
Chañaral, Chile	95
Chefoo, Shantung, China	39,65
Cherbourg, France	45,66
Chihuahua, Chibuahua, Mexico	54,70
Chile 3	8,308
China	6, 309
	53, 70
See also under Japanese Posses-	
sions	84
Christchurch, New Zealand (see	00.0*
Wellington)	69, 95
Cienfuegos, Cuba	41
Ciudad Juárez, Chihuahua, Mex-	41
	54, 70
	46, 67
Colombia	
Colombo, Ceylon	48
Colón, Panama	57
Congo Association, States of the	309
Constantinople. Turkey. See Is-	
stanbul.	
Copenhagen, Denmark	42
	39, 95
Cork, Irish Free State	
Costa Rica	7, 309
Valparaiso)	20.05
Cuba	
Curaçao, Netherland West Indies	1, 310 56
Cyprus	77
Czechoslovakia 42,77	
0.50	

# 360

Dairen, Manchuria. 53,65
Dairen, Manchuria.         53,65           Danzig, Free City of.         42,77           Denmark.         42,77,310
Denmark 42 77 310
Dieppe, France (see Havre) 45, 66, 95
Djibouti, French Somali Coast 45,95
See also Addis Ababa
Dodecanese Islands. See Italian Is-
lands of the Aegean.
Dominican Republic
Dresden, Germany
Dublin, Irish Free State 51, 69, 90
Dundee, Scotland 47, 67
Dunedin, New Zealand (see Wel-
lington) 49.69.95
Durango, Mexico 54, 70
Durban, Natal, Union of South
Durango, Mexico
Dutch East Indies. See Netherland
India.
Dutch Guiana. See Netherland
Guiana.
Dutch West Indies. See Nether-
land West Indies.
iand west indies.
Fast Indias See Natharland India
East Indies. See Netherland India. Ecuador42,310
Eduador 42, 510
Edinburgh, Scotland 48, 67
Edmonton, Alberta, Canada
Egypt
ELSalvador 45. (1. 511
England (see Birmingham, Brad- ford, Bristol, Hull, Liverpool,
ford, Bristol, Hull, Liverpool,
London, Manchester, Newcas-
London, Manchester, Newcas- tle-on-Tyne, Plymouth, Shef-
London, Manchester, Newcas- tle-on-Tyne, Plymouth, Shef- field, and Southampton) 47, 48, 67, 68
London, Manchester, Newcas- the-on-Tyne, Plymouth, Shef- field, and Southampton) 47, 48, 67, 68 See also Great Britain
London, Manchester, Newcas- tle-on-Tyne, Plymouth, Shef- field, and Southampton) 47, 48, 67, 68 See also Great Britain
London, Manchester, Newcas- tle-on-Tyne, Plymouth, Shef- field, and Southampton) 47, 48, 67, 68 See also Great Britain
London, Manchester, Newcas- tile-on-Tyne, Plymouth, Shef- field, and Southampton) 47, 48, 67, 68 See also Great Britain
London, Manchester, Newcas- tle-on-Tyne, Plymouth, Shef- field, and Southampton) 47, 48, 67, 68 See also Great Britain
London, Manchester, Newcas- tle-on-Tyne, Plymouth, Shef- field, and Southampton) 47, 48, 67, 68 See also Great Britain
London, Manchester, Newcas- the-on-Tyne, Plymouth, Shef- field, and Southampton) 47, 48, 67, 68 See also Great Britain
London, Manchester, Newcas- tile-on-Tyne, Plymouth, Shef- field, and Southampton) 47, 48, 67, 68 See also Great Britain
London, Manchester, Newcas- tile-on-Tyne, Plymouth, Shef- field, and Southampton) 47, 48, 67, 68 See also Great Britain
London, Manchester, Newcas- tile-on-Tyne, Plymouth, Shef- field, and Southampton) 47, 48, 67, 68 See also Great Britain
London, Manchester, Newcas- the-on-Tyne, Plymouth, Shef- field, and Southampton) 47, 48, 67, 68 See also Great Britain
London, Manchester, Newcas- the-on-Tyne, Plymouth, Shef- field, and Southampton) 47, 48, 67, 68 See also Great Britain
London, Manchester, Newcas- the-on-Tyne, Plymouth, Shef- field, and Southampton) 47, 48, 67, 68 See also Great Britain
London, Manchester, Newcas- tle-on-Tyne, Plymouth, Shef- field, and Southampton) 47, 48, 67, 68 See also Great Britain
London, Manchester, Newcas- the-on-Tyne, Plymouth, Shef- field, and Southampton) 47, 48, 67, 68 See also Great Britain
London, Manchester, Newcas- the-on-Tyne, Plymouth, Shef- field, and Southampton) 47, 48, 67, 68 See also Great Britain
London, Manchester, Newcas- the-on-Tyne, Plymouth, Shef- field, and Southampton) 47, 48, 67, 68 See also Great Britain
London, Manchester, Newcas- the-on-Tyne, Plymouth, Shef- field, and Southampton) 47, 48, 67, 68 See also Great Britain
London, Manchester, Newcas- tle-on-Tyne, Plymouth, Shef- field, and Southampton) 47, 48, 67, 68 See also Great Britain
London, Manchester, Newcas- the-on-Tyne, Plymouth, Shef- field, and Southampton) 47, 48, 67, 68 See also Great Britain
London, Manchester, Newcas- the-on-Tyne, Plymouth, Shef- field, and Southampton) 47, 48, 67, 68 See also Great Britain
London, Manchester, Newcas- the-on-Tyne, Plymouth, Shef- field, and Southampton) 47, 48, 67, 68 See also Great Britain
London, Manchester, Newcas- the-on-Tyne, Plymouth, Shef- field, and Southampton) 47, 48, 67, 68 See also Great Britain
London, Manchester, Newcas- tle-on-Tyne, Plymouth, Shef- field, and Southampton) 47, 48, 67, 68 See also Great Britain
London, Manchester, Newcas- the-on-Tyne, Plymouth, Shef- field, and Southampton) 47, 48, 67, 68 See also Great Britain
London, Manchester, Newcas- the-on-Tyne, Plymouth, Shef- field, and Southampton) 47, 48, 67, 68 See also Great Britain
London, Manchester, Newcas- tle-on-Tyne, Plymouth, Shef- field, and Southampton) 47, 48, 67, 68 See also Great Britain
London, Manchester, Newcas- tle-on-Tyne, Plymouth, Shef- field, and Southampton) 47, 48, 67, 68 See also Great Britain
London, Manchester, Newcas- tle-on-Tyne, Plymouth, Shef- field, and Southampton) 47, 48, 67, 68 See also Great Britain

Genova. See Genoa.

	70
-	Page
Germany	
Gibraltar	
Glasgow, Scotland	48,68
Gonaïves, Haiti (see Port-au-	
Prince)	
Göteborg, Sweden	
Great Britain	
Greece	81,312
Grenada, British West Indies (see	
Trinidad)	49,95
Guadalajara, Jalisco, Mexico	
Guatemala	
Guatemala, Guatemala	
Guayaquil, Ecuador	
Guaymas, Sonora, Mexico	
Guiana, Netherland (see Para-	
maribo)	49,00
Habana, Cuba	41 90
Hague (The), Netherlands	
Haiti 50,	
Halifax, Nova Scotia, Canada	
Hamburg, Germany	
Hamilton, Bermuda	
Hamilton, Ontario, Canada	
Hankow, Hupeh, China	
Harbin, Kirin, Manchuria, China.	
Havre, France	45,66
Hawaii	313
Helsingfors, Finland	44
Helsinki. See Helsingfors.	
Honduras 50, 69,	01 214
Honduras, British (see Belize)	
Hong Kong Hull, England	
Hungary 56,	02,011
India 48	. 68, 82
Indies. See Netherland India and	
West Indies.	
Indochina, French. See French	
Indochina.	
Iraq 51, 69,	82, 314
Ireland, Northern	
See also Belfast	
Irish Free State 51, 69,	
Istanbul, Turkey	
Italian Islands of the Aegean	
Italy 51, 69,	
Izmir, Turkey	
Jamaica, British West Indies	83
See also Kingston	49,69
Japanese Empire 52, 70,	
Java, Netherland India (see Batavia	
and Surabaya) 56	
Jérémie, Haiti	95
Jersey, Channel Islands, England	95
Jerusalem, Palestine	57
Johannesburg, Transvaal, Union of	
South Africa	61,73
Jugoslavia. See Yugoslavia.	
Kalamata, Greece	95
Karachi, India	
Kaunas, Lithuania	53

#### Page Kenora, Ontario, Canada (see Win-Kenya, East Africa (see Nairobi) .... 49,68 Kingston, Jamaica...... 49, 69 Köbenhavn. See Copenhagen. Köln. See Cologne. Kongo. See Congo Association, States of the. Korea (see also Chosen) 314 La Guaira, Venezuela (see Caracas)_ 62,73 La Oroya, Peru (see Callao-Lima) ... 57,95 La Paz, Bolivia..... 36 La Romana, Dominican Republic (see Santo Domingo) ..... 42,95 Lagos, Nigeria, West Africa..... 49,68 Las Palmas, Canary Islands (see Latvia...... 53, 84, 315 Leipzig, Germany...... 46, 67 Lima, Peru 57 Lisboa. See Lisbon. Lithuania..... 53, 84, 315 Liverpool, England...... 48,68 Livorno. See Leghorn. London, England...... 47, 68, 90 London, Ontario, Canada..... Los Mochis, Sinaloa, Mexico (see Mazatlán) ..... 55, 95 Lourenço Marques, Mozambique, Luxemburg, Grand Duchy of ..... 54, 70, 84, 315 Luxemburg, Luxemburg...... 54, 70 Lyon, France...... 45,66 Madeira 84 See also Funchal under Portugal. 58,72 Madras, India...... 48, 69 Malay States. See British Malaya. 48 Malta Managua, Nicaragua...... 56, 72 Manchester, England...... 48, 68 Manchuria, See Dairen, Harbin, and Mukden. Manila, P.I..... -58 Manzanillo, Cuba (see Santiago, Cuba) ...... 41,95 Marseille, France...... 45, 66 Martinique, French West Indies... 45 Matagalpa, Nicaragua (see Mana-Matamoros, Tamaulipas, Mexico... 54,70 Matanzas, Cuba..... 41 Mazatlán, Sinaloa, Mexico...... 55, 70 Medan, Sumatra, Netherland India_ 56, 72

റ	n	-
~	n	
e J	.,	
~	~	-

Pag	e
Melbourne, Victoria, Australia 49,6	59
Mérida, Yucatán, Mexico 55, 7	0
Mesopotamia. See Iraq.	
Mexicali, Baja California, Mexico 55, 7	0
Mexico 54, 70, 84, 31	.5
México, D.F., Mexico	90
Milan, Italy52,6	59
Milano. See Milan.	
Mollendo, Peru (see Callao-Lima)_ 57,9	95 35
Monaco	50
	37
Monrovia, Liberia	53
Montenegro (see also Yugoslavia) 31	5
Monterrey, Nuevo León, Mexico., 55,7	11
Montevideo, Uruguay 6	
Montreal, Quebec, Canada	90
Morocco	6
Moscow, Union of Soviet Socialist	
	51
Mozambique, Africa (see Lourenço	
Marques)	2
Mukden, Liaoning, Manchuria, China	
China	00
Munich, Germany	
Mullion, Germany 40, 0	16
Nagasaki, Japan	0
Nagoya, Japan	
Nagoya, Japan	38
Nanking, Kiangsu, China 40, 6	
See also Peiping	
Nantes, France 45, 6	66
Naples, Italy	0
Napoli. See Naples.	
Nassau, New Providence, Ba-	
	19
Netherland Gulana (see Para-	
maribo)	
Netherland India	86
See also Batavia, Medan, and Surabaya	
Netherland West Indias (see	4
Netberland West Indics (see Curaçao)	6
Netherlands	6
New Granada. See Colombia.	
New Providence, Bahamas (see	
	9
New Zealand	36
Newcastle-on-Tyne, England 48,6	8
Newfoundland 4	9
	38
Nicaragua	
Nice, France	66
Nigeria, West Africa (see Lagos) 49, 6	38
Nogales, Sonora, Mexico	1
Northern Irelaud. See Ireland,	
Northern.	6
Norway	10
Nuevo Laredo, Tamaulipas, Mexico. 55, 7	11
and the out, callaunpas, Mexico. 55, 7	T
Oceania. See Australia, Nether-	
land India, New Zealand, and	

Oceania. See Australia, Netherland India, New Zealand, and Society Islands.

67359 - 34 - 24

Oporto, Portugal	Page
Oslo, Norway.56, 72, 90Ottawa, Ontario, Canada37Pacific Islands.Sce Australia, Netherland India, New Zealand, and Society Islands.37Palermo, Italy.52, 70Palestine57, 81Panamá, Panama57, 317Panamá, Panama57, 317Panamá, Panama57, 90Apal States317Pará, Brazil36, 65Paraguay.57, 87, 317Paramaribo, Netherland Guiana56, 95Sce also Trinidad, British West49Paris, France44, 66, 90Patras, Greece50, 69Pau, France (sce Bordeaux)45, 66, 95Peiping, China39Peking.See alsoPernambuco, Brazil36, 65Persia57, 87, 317Peru57, 317Peru58, 73, 318Port Arthur, Ontario, Canada (seeFort William and Port Arthur)37Port-au-Prince, Haiti50Port de Paix, Haiti (see Port-au- Prince)50, 95Port Elizabeth, Cape Province, Union of South Africa61, 73Port Limón, Costa Rica41, 66Port Said, Egypt43, 66Porto Alegre, Rio Grande do Sul, Brazil36, 65Portu	
Ottawa, Ontario, Canada.37Pacific Islands.See Australia, Netherland India, New Zealand, and Society Islands.Palermo, Italy52, 70Palermo, Italy52, 70Palermo, Italy57, 87Panama57, 317Panamá, Panama57, 90Papal States317Pará, Brazil36, 65Sce also Trinidad, British West1Indies49Paris, France44, 66, 90Patras, Greece50, 69Pau, France (sce Bordeaux)45, 66, 95Peiping, China39PekingSee Peiping.Penang, Straits Settlements49, 69Pernambuco, Brazil36, 65Persia57, 817, 317Peru57, 317Peru57, 317Peru57, 317Peru57, 317Peru57, 317Peru57, 317Peru57, 317Peru58, 87, 318Pidras Negras, Coahuila, Mexico.55, 71Plymouth, England48, 68Poland58, 87, 318Port Arthur, Ontario, Canada (seeFort William and Port Arthur)37Port-au-Prince, Haiti (see Port-au-Prince)50, 95Port Elizabeth, Cape Province,Union of South Africa61, 73Port O Alegre, Rio Grande do Sul,Brazil36, 65Portugal58, 72, 87, 318Prague, Czechoslovakia42Praha.56, 72Pueto Cabezas, Nicaragua56, 72<	
PacificIslands.SeeAustralia, Netherland India, New Zealand, and Society Islands.Palermo, Italy.52, 70Palestine57, 87Panama57, 317Panamá, Pauama57, 317Panará, Brazil36, 65Paraguay.57, 87, 317Paramaribo, Netherland Guiana56, 95Sce alsoTrinidad, British WestIndies.49Paris, France.44, 66, 90Patras, Greece50, 69Pau, France (sce Bordeaux)45, 66, 95Peking.Sce Peiping.Penang, Straits Settlements.49, 69Pernambuco, Brazil36, 65Persia57, 87, 317Peru57, 87, 317Peru57, 87, 317Peru57, 87, 317Peru57, 87, 317Peru57, 817Peru57, 87, 317Peru57, 87, 317Peru58, 87, 318Pidras Negras, Coahuila, Mexico55, 71Plymouth, England48, 68Poland58, 87, 318Port Arthur, Ontario, Canada (seeFort William and Port Arthur)37Port-au-Prince, Haiti (see Port-au50, 95Port Elizabeth, Cape Province, Union of South Africa61, 73Port Limón, Cos	
Netherland India, New Zealand, and Society Islands.Palermo, Italy52, 70Palestine57, 87Panama, Panama57, 30Papal States317Parama, Brazil36, 65Paragay57, 87, 317Paramaribo, Netherland Guiana56, 95Sce also Trinldad, British West1Indies49Paris, France44, 66, 90Patras, Greece50, 69Pau, France (sce Bordeaux)45, 66, 95Peiping, China39PekingSee Peiping.Penang, Straits Settlements49, 69Pernambuco, Brazil36, 65Persia57, 87, 317Peru57, 317Peru57, 317Peru57, 317Peru57, 317Peru-Bolivian Confederation318Philippine Islands58Piedras Negras, Coahuila, Mexico55, 71Plymouth, England48, 68Port Arthur, Ontario, Canada (seeFort William and Port Arthur)37Port-au-Prince, Haiti (see Port-au-Prince)50, 95Port Elizabeth, Cape Province,10inon Costa RicaUnion of South Africa61, 73Port Jang, Czechoslovakia42Prada58, 72, 87, 318Prague, Czechoslovakia42PrabaSee Prague.Pretoria, Transvaal, Union of SouthAfrica61Prince Rupert, British Columbia,Canada38Prueto Cabezas, Nicaragua56, 72	
and Society Islands.Palermo, Italy.52, 70Palestine.57, 87Panamá, Panama.57, 90Papal States.317Panará, Brazil36, 65Paraguay.57, 87, 317Paramaribo, Netherland Guiana.56, 95Sce also Trinidad, British WestIndies.Indies.49Paris, France.44, 66, 90Patras, Greece.50, 69Pau, France (sce Bordeaux).45, 66, 95Peking.Sce relping.Penang, Straits Settlements.49, 69Pernambuco, Brazil.36, 65Persia.57, 87, 317Peru.57, 317Peru.58, 57, 318Pidras Negras, Coahuila, Mexico.55, 71Plymouth, England.48, 68Poland.58, 87, 318Port Arthur, Ontario, Canada (seeFort William and Port Arthur).37Port-au-Prince, Haiti (see Port-au50, 95Port Elizabeth, Cape Province,10 ano of South Africa.Union of South Africa.61, 73Port Limón, Costa Rica.64	
Palermo, Italy52, 70Palerine57, 87Panama57, 87Panama57, 87Panama57, 90Papal States317Pará, Brazil36, 65Paraguay57, 87, 317Paramaribo, Netherland Guiana56, 95Sce also Trinidad, British WestIndiesIndies49Paris, France44, 66, 90Patras, Greece50, 69Peu, France (sce Bordeaux)45, 66, 95Peiping, China39PekingSee Peiping.Penang, Straits Settlements49, 69Pernambuco, Brazl36, 65Persia57, 87, 317Peru57, 87, 317Peru58, 72, 87, 318Port Arthur, Ontario, Canada (seeFort William and Port Arthur)37Port-au-Prince, Haiti50Port Arthur, Osata Rica61, 73Port Elizabeth, Cape Province,1010 of South AfricaUnion of South Africa61, 73Port Jide, Egypt43, 66Porto. Alegre, Rio Grande do Sul,BrazilBrazil58, 72, 87, 318 <td></td>	
Palestine57, 87Panama57, 317Panamá, Panama57, 307Paramá, Panama57, 301Papal States317Pará, Brazil36, 65Paraguay57, 87, 317Paramaribo, Netherland Guiana56, 95Sce also Trinidad, British West10Indies49Paris, France44, 66, 90Paras, Greece50, 69Peur, France (sce Bordeaux)45, 66, 95Peiping, China39PekingSce Peiping.Penang, Straits Settlements49, 69Pernambuco, Brazil36, 65Persia57, 87, 317Peru57, 317Peru57, 317Peru57, 87, 317Peru57, 87, 317Peru57, 87, 317Peru57, 87, 317Peru57, 87, 317Peru57, 87, 317Peru57, 317Peru57, 87, 318Philippine Islands58Piedras Negras, Coahuila, Mexico55, 71Plymouth, England48, 68Poland58, 87, 318Port Arthur, Ontario, Canada (seeFort William and Port Arthur)37Port-au-Prince, Haiti50Port Bilzabeth, Cape Province,Union of South Africa61, 73Port Limón, Costa Rica41, 66Port Said, Egypt43, 66Porto Alegre, Rio Grande do Sul,Brazil36, 65Portugal58, 72, 87, 318Prapeu, Czechoslovakia42 </td <td></td>	
Panamá, Panama57, 90Papal States317Pará, Brazil36, 65Paraguay57, 87, 317Paramaribo, Netherland Guiana56, 95Sce also Trinidad, British WestIndiesIndies49Paris, France44, 66, 90Patras, Greece50, 69Pau, France (sce Bordeaux)45, 66, 95Pelping, China39PekingSce Peiping.Penang, Straits Settlements49, 69Pernambuco, Brazil36, 65Persia57, 87, 317Peru57, 317Peru58, 73, 317Pinymouth, England48, 68Poland58, 87, 318Port-au-Prince, Haiti50Port Arthur, Ontario, Canada (seeFort William and Port Arthur)37Port-au-Prince, Haiti (see Port-au-Prince)50, 95Port Elizabeth, Cape Province,Union of South Africa61, 73Port Limón, Costa Rica61, 73Port Limón, Costa Rica42Prada, See Prague.Pretor	
Papal States317Pará, Brazil36,65Paraguay57,87,317Paramaribo, Netherland Guiana56,95Sce also Trinidad, British WestIndiesIndies49Paris, France44,66,90Patras, Greece50,69Pau, France (sce Bordeaux)45,66,95Peiping, China39PekingSee Peiping.Penang, Straits Settlements49,69Pernambuco, Brazil36,65Persia57,87,317Peru57,317Peru57,317Peru57,317Peru57,317Peru57,317Peru57,317Peru57,317Peru57,317Peru57,317Peru57,317Peru57,317Peru57,317Peru57,317Peru57,317Peru57,317Peru57,317Peru57,317Peru57,317Peru57,317Peru57,317PortSegas, Coahuila, MexicoPort Arthur, Ontario, Canada (seeFort William and Port Arthur)37Port-au-Prince, Haiti50Port Arthur, Costa Rica61,73Port Limón, Costa Rica61,65Port Limón, Costa Rica41,66Port O Alegre, Rio Grande do Sul,BrazilBrazil36,65Portugal58,72,87,318Prague, Czechoslovakia42Praha. See Prague.	
Pará, Brazil36,65Paraguay57,87,87,87,87,87Paramaribo, Netherland Guiana56,95Sce also Trinidad, British West1Indies49Paris, France44,66,90Patras, Greece50,69Pau, France (sce Bordeaux)45,66,95Peiping, China39PekingSce Peiping.Penang, Straits Settlements49,69Pernambuco, Brazil36,65Peria57,87,317Peru57,317Peru57,317Peru57,317Peru57,317Peru58Piedras Negras, Coahuila, Mexico55,71Plymouth, England48,68Poland58,87,318Port Arthur, Ontario, Canada (seeFort William and Port Arthur)37Port-au-Prince, Haiti50Port de Paix, Haiti (see Port-auPrince)50,95Port Elizabeth, Cape Province,13,66Porto Alegre, Rio Grande do Sul,Brazil36,65Portugal58,72,87,318Prapae, Czechoslovakia42Praha. See Prague.42Praha. See Prague.42Praha. See Prague.36,65Porto Cortes, Honduras50,69Puntarenas, Costa Rica95Quebec, Quebec, Canada38Pruesto Cortes, Honduras50,69Puntarenas, Costa Rica95Quebec, Quebec, Canada38Prince Rapert, British Columbia,56,72Quebec, Quebec, Canada	
Paraguay $57, 87, 317$ Paramaribo, Netherland Guiana $56, 95$ Sce also Trinidad, British WestIndiesIndies $49$ Paris, France $44, 66, 90$ Paris, Greece $50, 69$ Pau, France (sce Bordeaux) $45, 66, 95$ Peiping, China $39$ PekingSce Peiping.Penang, Straits Settlements $49, 69$ Pernambuco, Brazil $36, 65$ Persia $57, 87, 317$ Peru $57, 317$ Peru-Bolivian Confederation $318$ Philippine Islands $58$ Pidras Negras, Coahuila, Mexico $55, 71$ Plymouth, England $48, 68$ Port Arthur, Ontario, Canada (seeFort William and Port Arthur) $37$ Port-au-Prince, Haiti $50, 95$ Port Elizabeth, Cape Province,Union of South AfricaUnion of South Africa $61, 73$ Porto. See Oporto. $707$ Porto Alegre, Rio Grande do Sul,Brazil $36, 65$ Portugal $58, 72, 87, 318$ Prague, Czechoslovakia $42$ Praha. See Prague.Pretoria, Transvaal, Union of SouthAfrica $318$ Pueto Cabezas, Nicaragua $56, 72$ Pueto Cabezas, Nicaragua $56, 72$ Pueto Cabezas, Nicaragua $56, 72$ Pueto Cortes, Honduras $50, 66$ Puntarenas, Costa Rica $95$ Quebec, Quebe	
See also Trinidad, British West Indies.49Paris, France.44, 66, 90Patras, Greece.50, 69Pau, France (see Bordeaux)45, 66, 95Peiping, China.39Peking.See Peiping.Penang, Straits Settlements.49, 69Pernambuco, Brazil.36, 65Persia.57, 87, 317Peru-Bolivian Confederation.318Pielippine Islands.58Piedras Negras, Coahuila, Mexico.55, 71Plymouth, England48, 68Poland.58, 87, 318Port Arthur, Ontario, Canada (seeFort William and Port Arthur).37Port-au-Prince, Haiti.50Port Alting, Costa Rica.41, 66Porto.50, 95Port Elizabeth, Cape Province, Union of South Africa.43, 66Porto.See Oporto.Porto Alegre, Rio Grande do Sul, Brazil.36, 65Portaue, Transvaal, Union of South Africa.61Prince Rupert, British Columbia, Canada.38Puesto Cabezas, Nicaragua.56, 72Quebec, Quebec, Canada.38Quito, Ecuador.42Rangoon, India48, 69Recife.See PranubuoRegina, Saskatchewan, Canada.38Riga, Latvia.53Rido, Grande, Brazil.50Poutace Riga, Saskatchewan, Canada.38Riga, Latvia.53Rido, Ese Pernambuco.53Regina, Saskatchewan, Canada.38Riga, Latvia.53Rigo, Ladv	
Indies.49Paris, France $50, 69$ Patras, Greece $50, 69$ Peau, France (sce Bordeaux) $45, 66, 95$ Peiping, China $39$ Peking.Straits SettlementsPenang, Straits Settlements $49, 69$ Pernambuco, Brazil $36, 65$ Persia $57, 87, 317$ Peru $57, 87, 317$ Peru $57, 87, 317$ Peru $57, 87, 317$ Peru $57, 87, 317$ Peru $57, 87, 317$ Peru $57, 87, 317$ Peru $58, 7318$ Philippine Islands $58$ Sideras Negras, Coahuila, Mexico $55, 71$ Plymouth, England $48, 68$ Poland $58, 87, 318$ Port Arthur, Ontario, Canada (sceFort William and Port Arthur) $37$ Port-au-Prince, Haiti $50$ Port de Paix, Haiti (sce Port-au-Prince) $50, 95$ Port Elizabeth, Cape Province,Union of South Africa $61, 73$ Porto Alegre, Rio Grande do Sul,Brazil $36, 65$ Portugal $58, 72, 87, 318$ Prapae, Czechoslovakia $42$ Praha. Sce Prague. $71$ Prince Rupert, British Columbia,Canada $38$ Pruesto Cortes, Honduras $50, 69$ Puntarenas, Costa Rica $95$ Quebec, Quebec, Canada $38$ Puetto Cabezas, Nicaragua $56, 72$ Puetto Cortes, Honduras $50, 69$ Puntarenas, Costa Rica $95$ Quebec, Quebec, Canada </td <td></td>	
Paris, France.44, 66, 90Paras, Greece.50, 69Pau, France (see Bordeaux)45, 66, 95Peiping, China.39Peking.See Peiping.Penang, Straits Settlements.49, 69Pernambuco, Brazil.36, 65Persia.57, 87, 317Peru.57, 317Peru-Bolivian Confederation.318Philippine Islands.58Piedras Negras, Coahuila, Mexico.55, 71Plymouth, England.48, 68Poland.58, 87, 318Port Arthur, Ontario, Canada (seeFort William and Port Arthur).37Port au-Prince, Haiti.50Port Elizabeth, Cape Province,Union of South Africa.61, 73Port Lizabeth, Cape Province,Union of South Africa.61, 73Porto. Sec Oporto.Porto Alegre, Rio Grande do Sul,Brazil.36, 65Portugal.58, 72, 87, 318Prague, Czechoslovakia.42Praha.38Pruscia.318Prague, Czechoslovakia.42Praha.56, 72Pueto Cabezas, Nicaragua.56, 72Pueto Cabezas, Nicaragua.56, 72Pueto Cabezas, Nicaragua.56, 72Pueto Cabezas, Nicaragua.56, 72Pueto Cortes, Honduras.50, 69Puntarenas, Costa Rica.95Quebec, Quebec, Canada.38Quito, Ecuador.42Rangoon, India.48, 69Recife.Sce Pernambuco.Regina, Saskatchewan,	
Patras, Greece50, 69Pau, France (se Bordeaux)45, 66, 95Peiping, China39Peking. See Peiping.Penamp. Straits Settlements49, 69Pernambuco, Brazil36, 65Persia57, 87, 317Peru57, 317Peru57, 317Peru57, 317Peru57, 317Peru57, 317Peru57, 317Peru57, 317Peru57, 317Peru57, 317Peru50, 58Pidfas Negras, Coabuila, Mexico55, 71Plymouth, England48, 68Poland58, 87, 318Port Arthur, Ontario, Canada (seeFort William and Port Arthur)37Port-au-Prince, Haiti50Port Elizabeth, Cape Province,Union of South Africa61, 73Port Said, Egypt43, 66Porto. See Oporto.Porto Alegre, Rio Grande do Sul,Brazil36, 65Portugal58, 72, 87, 318Prague, Czechoslovakia42Praha. See Prague.Pretoria, Transvaal, Union of SouthAfrica61Prince Rupert, British Columbia,Canada38Prueto Cabezas, Nicaragua56, 72Pueto Cortes, Honduras50, 69Puntarenas, Costa Rica95Quebec, Quebec, Canada38Quito, Ecuador42Rangoon, India53Rica, Latvia53Rio de Janeiro, Brazil56Porto56 </td <td></td>	
Pau, France (see Bordeaux)	
Peking.See Peiping.Penang, Straits Settlements	
Penang, Straits Settlements	
Pernambuco, Brazil.36, 65Persia.57, 87, 317Peru.57, 317Peru.57, 317Peru-Bolivian Confederation.318Philippine Islands.58Piedras Negras, Coahulla, Mexico.55, 71Plymouth, England48, 68Poland.58, 87, 318Port Arthur, Ontario, Canada (seeFort William and Port Arthur).37Port-au-Prince, Haiti.50Port de Paix, Haiti (see Port-au-Prince).50, 95Port Elizabeth, Cape Province,Union of South Africa.61, 73Port Limón, Costa Rica.41, 66Porto.See Oporto.Porto Alegre, Rio Grande do Sul,Brazil.36, 65Portugal.58, 72, 87, 318Prague, Czechoslovakia.42Praha.See Prague.Pretoria, Transvaal, Union of SouthAfrica.318Puerto Cabezas, Nicaragua.56, 72Puerto Cortes, Honduras.50, 69Puntarenas, Costa Rica.95Quebec, Quebec, Canada.38Quito, Ecuador.42Rangoon, India.48, 69Recife.See Prnambuco.Regina, Saskatchewan, Canada.38Riga, Latvia.53Rio G Janeiro, Brazil.56, 79Rio G Grande, Brazil (see Porto	
Persia $57, 87, 317$ Peru $57, 317$ Peru-Bolivian Confederation $318$ Philippine Islands $58$ Siedras Negras, Coahuila, Mexico $55, 71$ Pymouth, England $48, 68$ Poland $48, 68$ Poland $48, 68$ Port Arthur, Ontario, Canada (seeFort William and Port Arthur) $37$ Port-au-Prince, Haiti $50$ Port de Paix, Haiti (see Port-auPrince) $50, 95$ Port Elizabeth, Cape Province,Union of South Africa $61, 73$ Port Zaid, Egypt $43, 66$ Porto. $87, 28, 72, 87, 318$ Porto Alegre, Rio Grande do Sul,Brazil $36, 65$ Portugal $58, 72, 87, 318$ Prateo, Czechoslovakia $42$ Praha. See Prague.Prince Rupert, British Columbia,Canada $38$ Prustia $318$ Puetto Cabezas, Nicaragua $56, 72$ Pueto Cortes, Honduras $50, 69$ Puntarenas, Costa Rica $95$ Quebec, Quebec, Canada $38$ Quito, Ecuador $42$ Rangoon, India $48, 69$ Recife. See Pernambuco. $88$ Regina, Saskatchewan, Canada $38$ Riga, Latvia $53$ Rio de Janeiro, Brazil $50, 65, 90$ Rio Grande, Brazil (see Porto	
Peru $57, 317$ Peru-Bolivian Confederation $318$ Philippine Islands $58$ Piedras Negras, Coahuila, Mexico. $55, 71$ Plymouth, England $48, 68$ Poland $58, 87, 318$ Port Arthur, Ontario, Canada (seeFort William and Port Arthur) $37$ Port-au-Prince, Halti $50, 95$ Port Elizabeth, Cape Province,Union of South Africa $61, 73$ Port Elizabeth, Cape Province,Union of South Africa $41, 66$ Port Said, Egypt $43, 66$ Porto.See Oporto.Porto Alegre, Rio Grande do Sul,Brazil $58, 72, 87, 318$ Prague, Czechoslovakia $42$ Praha. See Prague.Pretoria, Transvaal, Union of SouthAfrica $51, 72$ Puerto Cabezas, Nicaragua $56, 72$ Puerto Cortes, Honduras $50, 69$ Puntarenas, Costa Rica $95$ Quebec, Quebec, Canada $38$ Quito, Ecuador $42$ Rangoon, India $48, 69$ Recife. See Pernambueo. $81$ Regina, Saskatchewan, Canada $38$ Riga, Latvia $53$ Rio de Janeiro, Brazil $53$ Rio G arande, Brazil $56, 65, 90$ Rio Grande, Brazil $50, 65, 90$ Rio Grande, Brazil $56, 65, 90$ Rio Grande, Brazil $50, 65, 90$ Rio Grande, Brazil $50, 65, 90$	
Peru-Bolivian Confederation	
Piedras Negras, Coahuila, Mexico	Peru-Bolivian Confederation
Plymouth, England       48, 68         Poland       58, 87, 318         Port Arthur, Ontario, Canada (see       Fort William and Port Arthur)       37         Port-au-Prince, Haiti       50         Port de Paix, Haiti (see Port-au- Prince)       50, 95         Port Elizabeth, Cape Province,       Union of South Africa       61, 73         Port Said, Egypt       43, 66         Porto.       See Oporto.         Porto Alegre, Rio Grande do Sul,       Brazil         Brazil       36, 65         Portugal       58, 72, 87, 318         Prague, Czechoslovakia       42         Praha.       See Prague.         Prince Rupert, British Columbia,       Canada         Canada       38         Pruesto Cabezas, Nicaragua       50, 69         Puntarenas, Costa Rica       95         Quebec, Quebec, Canada       38         Quito, Ecuador       42         Rangoon, India       48, 69         Recife.       See Pranubuco,         Regina, Saskatchewan, Canada       38         Riga, Latvia       53         Rio G Janeiro, Brazil       53         Rio G Janeiro, Brazil       54, 65, 90         Rio G Grande, Brazil (see Porto </td <td></td>	
Poland	
Port Arthur, Ontario, Canada (see         Fort William and Port Arthur)	
Port-au-Prince, Haiti       50         Port de Paix, Haiti (see Port-au-Prince)       50,95         Port Elizabeth, Cape Province,       50         Union of South Africa       61,73         Port Limón, Costa Rica       41,66         Port Said, Egypt       43,66         Porto. See Oporto.       80         Porto Alegre, Rio Grande do Sul,       87,2,87,318         Prague, Czechoslovakia       42         Praha. See Prague.       81         Pretoria, Transvaal, Union of South       Africa         Africa       61         Prince Rupert, British Columbia,       38         Canada       38         Prueto Cabezas, Nicaragua       50,69         Puntarenas, Costa Rica       95         Quebec, Quebec, Canada       38         Quito, Ecuador       42         Rangoon, India       48,69         Recife. See Pernambueo,       38         Riga, Latvia       53         Rio G Janeiro, Brazil       53         Sio G Janeiro, Brazil       56         Prasta       53         Ria, Latvia       53         Rio G Janeiro, Brazil       56,65,90	Port Arthur, Ontario, Canada (see
Port de Paix, Haiti (see Port-au- Prince)       50,95         Port Elizabeth, Cape Province,       50,95         Port Elizabeth, Cape Province,       61,73         Port Limón, Costa Rica       41,66         Port Said, Egypt       43,66         Porto. See Oporto.       70         Porto Alegre, Rio Grande do Sul,       86,65         Portugal       36,65         Portugal       58,72,87,318         Prague, Czechoslovakia       42         Praha. See Prague.       71         Pretoria, Transvaal, Union of South       Africa         Africa       61         Prince Rupert, British Columbia,       63,72         Canada       38         Pruesto Cabezas, Nicaragua       56,72         Puerto Cortes, Honduras       50,69         Puntarenas, Costa Rica       95         Quebec, Quebec, Canada       38         Quito, Ecuador       42         Rangoon, India       48,69         Recife. See Pernambueo,       38         Riga, Latvia       53         Rio G Janeiro, Brazil       53         Rio G Janeiro, Brazil       56,65,90         Rio Grande, Brazil (see Porto       50	Fort William and Port Arthur) 37
Prince)	Port-au-Prince, Haiti 50
Port Elizabeth, Cape Province, Union of South Africa       61, 73         Port Limón, Costa Rica       41, 66         Port Said, Egypt       43, 66         Porto. See Oporto.       Porto Alegre, Rio Grande do Sul, Brazil.       36, 65         Portugal       58, 72, 87, 318         Prague, Czechoslovakia       42         Praha. See Prague.       61         Prince Rupert, British Columbia, Canada       38         Puerto Cabezas, Nicaragua       56, 72         Puerto Cabezas, Nicaragua       50, 69         Puntarenas, Costa Rica       95         Quebec, Quebec, Canada       38         Quito, Ecuador       42         Rangoon, India       48, 69         Recife. See Pernambuco.       88         Regina, Saskatchewan, Canada       38         Ria, Latvia       53         Rio de Janeiro, Brazil       53         Rio Grande, Brazil       36, 65, 90	Prince) 50.95
Union of South Africa       61, 73         Port Limón, Costa Rica       41, 66         Port Said, Egypt       43, 66         Porto.       See Oporto.         Porto Alegre, Rio Grande do Sul,       Brazil         Brazil       36, 65         Portugal       58, 72, 87, 318         Prague, Czechoslovakia       42         Pratoria, Transvaal, Union of South       Africa         Africa       61         Pritoria, Transvaal, Union of South       Africa         Africa       61         Pritoria, Transvaal, Union of South       Africa         Africa       61         Pritore Rupert, British Columbia,       Canada         Canada       38         Pruesto Cabezas, Nicaragua       56, 72         Pueto Cotes, Honduras       50, 69         Puntarenas, Costa Rica       95         Quebec, Quebec, Canada       38         Quito, Ecuador       42         Rangoon, India       48, 69         Recife. See Pernambueo.       38         Riga, Latvia       53         Rio Gande, Brazil       36, 65, 90         Rio Grande, Brazil       36, 65, 90	
Port Said, Egypt	Union of South Africa
Porto.       See Oporto.         Porto Alegre, Rio Grande do Sul,       Brazil	
Porto Alegre, Rio Grande do Sul,         Brazil	
Brazil	
Portugal       58, 72, 87, 318         Prague, Czechoslovakia       42         Praha.       See Prague.         Pretoria, Transvaal, Union of South       61         Africa       61         Prince Rupert, British Columbia,       61         Canada       38         Prussia       318         Puerto Cabezas, Nicaragua       50, 69         Puntarenas, Costa Rica       95         Quebec, Quebec, Canada       38         Quito, Ecuador       42         Rangoon, India       48, 69         Recife.       See Pernambueo,         Regina, Saskatchewan, Canada       38         Riga, Latvia       53         Rio de Janeiro, Brazil       36, 65, 90         Rio Grande, Brazil (see Porto       See Porto	
Praha. See Prague.         Pretoria, Transvaal, Union of South         Africa	Portugal
Pretoria, Transvaal, Union of South       Africa	
Africa	Pretoria Transvaal Union of South
Canada	
Prussia       318         Puerto Cabezas, Nicaragua       56, 72         Puerto Cortes, Honduras       50, 69         Puntarenas, Costa Rica       95         Quebec, Quebec, Canada       38         Quito, Ecuador       42         Rangoon, India       48, 69         Recife.       See Pernambuco.         Reiga, Saskatchewan, Canada       35         Riga, Latvia       53         Rio de Janeiro, Brazil       36, 65, 90         Rio Grande, Brazil (see Porto	Prince Rupert, British Columbia,
Puerto Cabezas, Nicaragua	
Puerto Cortes, Honduras       50, 69         Puntarenas, Costa Rica       95         Quebec, Quebec, Canada       38         Quito, Ecuador       42         Rangoon, India       48, 69         Recife.       Sce Pernambueo.         Regina, Saskatchewan, Canada       38         Riga, Latvia       53         Rio de Janeiro, Brazil       36, 65, 90         Rio Grande, Brazil (sce Porto	
Puntarenas, Costa Rica	
Quebec, Quebec, Canada       38         Quito, Ecuador       42         Rangoon, India       48, 69         Recific.       Sce Pernambuco.         Regina, Saskatchewan, Canada       38         Riga, Latvia       53         Rio de Janeiro, Brazil       36, 65, 90         Rio Grande, Brazil (see Porto	
Quito, Ecuador	Quebes Quebes Canada
Rangoon, India       48, 69         Recife.       See Pernambuco.         Regina, Saskatchewan, Canada       38         Riga, Latvia       53         Rio de Janeiro, Brazil       36, 65, 90         Rio Grande, Brazil (see Porto	Quebec, Quebec, Canada
Recife.       See Pernambuco.         Regina, Saskatchewan, Canada	
Regina, Saskatchewan, Canada	
Riga, Latvia	
Rio de Janeiro, Brazil	
Rio Grande, Brazil (see Porto	Rio de Janeiro, Brazil
Alegre)	Rio Grande, Brazil (see Porto
	Alegre)

	Page
Roma. See Rome. Rome, Italy	
Rome, Italy	51, 70
Roseau, Dominica, British West Indics	95
Rotterdam, Netherlands	95
Rumania 58,3	
Russia (see also Union of Soviet	54,010
Socialist Republics)	319
Sagua la Grande, Cuba (see Cien-	
fuegos)	41,95
Saigon, French Indochina	45, 65
St. George's, Bermuda (see Hamil-	40.05
ton). St. John, New Brunswick, Canada	49, 95 38
St. John's, Newfoundland	49
St. Leonard, New Brunswick, Can-	10
ada	95
St. Lucia, British West Indies (see Barbados)	
Barbados)	49, 95
St. Michael, Azores (see Portugal)	58,72
St. Paul Island	87
St. Stephen, New Brunswick, Can-	
ada	38
Salaverry, Peru (see Callao-Lima)_ Salonika, Greece	57, 95 50, 69
Saltillo Coahuila Merico	55, 71
Salvador. See El Salvador.	00,71
Sanchez, Dominican Republic (see	
Santo Domingo)	42,95
San José, Costa Rica	41,66
San José, Guatemala	95
San Luis Potosí, Mexico	55,71
San Marino	87
San Pedro de Macoris, Dominican	0.5
Republic	95 43
Santiago, Chile	38, 90
Santiago, Cuba	41
Santo Domingo, Dominican Re-	
public	42
Santos, Brazil	36, 65
São Miguel. See St. Michael.	
São Paulo, Brazil	
Sardinia	319
Sault Ste. Marie, Ontario, Canada.	38
Scotland (see Dundee, Edinburgh, and Glasgow) 47, 48	67 69
See also Great Britain	, 07, 08 79
Seoul, Chosen	53,70
Serbia	319
Serbs, Croats and Slovenes, King-	
dom of the. See Yugoslavia.	
Seville, Spain	59,72
's Gravenhage. See The Hague.	
Shanghai, Kiangsu, China	40,65
Sheffield, England	
Siam59, Singapore Straits Settlements 40	
Singapore, Straits Settlements. 49, Smyrna Turkey See Izmir	, 09, 90
Smyrna, Turkey. See Izmir. Society Islands, Oceania (see Tahiti)	
Tahiti)	45
Soerabaja. See Surabaya.	
Sofia, Bulgaria.	37
Sofiva. See Sofia.	

# 362

# INDEX OF PLACES

Pa	ge
South Africa, Union of 61, 73, 89, 3	322
Southampton, England 48,	68
Soviet Socialist Republics, Union	
of 61, 89, 5	322
Spain 59, 72, 87, 5	
Stockholm, Sweden	
Straits Settlements (see Penang and	
Singapore) 49,	69
See also British Malaya	
Strasbourg, France 45,	
Stuttgart, Germany 47,	
Sumatra, Netherland India (see	07
	70
Medan) 56,	
Surabaya, Java, Netherland India. 56,	
Swatow, Kwangtung, China 40,	
Sweden	
Sweden and Norway	
Switzerland	321
Sydney, New South Wales, Aus-	
tralia 49, 69,	, 90
Sydney, Nova Scotia, Canada	38
Syria	88
Tahiti, Society Islands, Oceania	45
Taihoku, Taiwan	70
Taiwan (see Taihoku)	
	95
	43
Tampico, Tamaulipas, Mexico 55,	
Tanger. See Tangier.	
Tangier, Morocco	00
Tarragona, Spain (see Barcelona).	
	95
42,	90 1

Page	Page
Tegucigalpa, Honduras 50, 69	Vancouver, British Columbia, Can-
Teheran, Persia	ada 38, 90
Tela, Honduras (see Ceiba) 50, 69	Venezia. See Venice.
Tenerife, Canary Islands (see	Venezuela 62, 73, 89, 322
Spain) 59,72	Venice, Italy 52, 70
Texas 321	Veracruz, Mexico 55, 71
The Hague, Netherlands	Victoria, Brazil (see Rio de Janeiro) _ 36
Thessalonikē. See Salonika.	Victoria, British Columbia, Can-
Tientsin, Hopeh, China 40,66	ada
Tirana, Albania	Vienna, Austria
Tiranë. See Tirana.	Vigo, Spain
Tocopilla, Chile	
Tokyo, Japan	Wales (see Cardiff) 47,67
Torino. See Turin.	See also Great Britain
Toronto, Ontario, Canada 38,90	Warsaw, Poland
Torreón, Coahuila, Mexico 55, 71	Warszawa. See Warsaw.
Trieste, Italy	Wellington, New Zealand 49, 69, 90
Trinidad, British West Indies 49	West Indies. See Cuba and Haiti;
Tsinan, Shantung, China 40,66	under France: Martinique; under
Tsingtao, Kiaochow, China 40,66	Great Britain, etc.: Barbados,
Tunis, Tunisia 45, 67	Kingston, Nassau, and Trinidad;
Tunisia (see Tunis) 45,67	under Netherlands: Curaçao.
Turin, Italy	Wien. See Vienna.
Turkey 60, 73, 88, 321	Windsor, Ontario, Canada
Two Sicilies	Winnipeg, Manitoba, Canada 38,90
Union of South Africa 61, 73, 89, 322	Yarmouth, Nova Scotia, Canada 38
Union of Soviet Socialist Republics. 61,	Yokohama, Japan
89, 322	Yugoslavia
Uruguay 61, 89, 322	Yünnanfu, Yunnan, China 40,66
Valencia, Spain	Zagreb, Yugoslavia
Valparaiso, Chile	Zürich, Switzerland 60, 72, 90

ge	Page
69	Vancouver, British Columbia, Can-
57	ada 38, 90
69	Venezia. See Venice.
	Venezuela 62, 73, 89, 322
72	Venice, Italy 52, 70
21	Veracruz, Mexico
55	Victoria, Brazil (see Rio de Janeiro)_ 36
1	Victoria, British Columbia, Can-
66	ada
35	Vienna, Austria
	Vigo, Spain
95	
90	Wales (see Cardiff) 47,67
	See also Great Britain
90	Warsaw, Poland
71	Warszawa. See Warsaw.
70	Wellington, New Zealand 49, 69, 90
49	West Indies. See Cuba and Haiti;
66	under France: Martinique; under
66	Great Britain, etc.: Barbados,
67	Kingston, Nassau, and Trinidad;
67	under Netherlands: Curaçao.
70	Wien. See Vienna.
21	Windsor, Ontario, Canada
21	Winnipeg, Manitoba, Canada 38,90
22	Yarmouth, Nova Scotia, Canada38
31,	Yokohama, Japan
22	Yugoslavia
22	Yünnanfu, Yunnan, China 40,66
72	Zagreb, Yugoslavia

# PUBLICATIONS OF THE DEPARTMENT OF STATE

The publications of the Department of State are for sale by the Superintendent of Documents, Government Printing Office, Washington, D.C., and requests should be addressed directly to him except in the case of free publications, which may be obtained from the Department. The Superintendent of Documents will accept deposits against which the cost of publications ordered may be charged and will notify the depositor when the deposit is exhausted. The cost to depositors of a complete set of the publications of the Department for a year will probably be somewhat in excess of \$10. However, orders may be placed with the Superintendent of Documents for a single series as well as for single publications.

### PERIODICALS

- **Diplomatic List.** [Monthly list of foreign diplomatic representatives in Washington.] Subscription. 50¢ a year; single copy, 5¢.
- Foreign Consular Offices in the United States. [Semiannual list of offices and representatives.] Single copy, 10¢.
- Foreign Relations. [One or more volumes for each calendar year.]
  - Papers Relating to the Foreign Relations of the United States: 1918, Russia (in three volumes). Volume I. Publication No. 222. 1xx+754 pp. \$1.75 (cloth). Volume II. Publication No. 330. 1xxx+887 pp. \$1.50 (cloth). Volume III. Publication No. 390. xlii+330 pp. \$1 (cloth). Papers Relating to the Foreign Relations of the United States: 1918, Supplement 1—The
  - World War (in two volumes).
    Volume I. Publication No. 465. lxxxviii+914 pp. \$1.50 (cloth).
    Volume II. Publication No. 466. lxxvi+921 pp. \$1.50 (cloth).
    Papers Relating to the Foreign Relations of the United States: 1918, Supplement 2—The
  - Publication No. 476. lxxix + 862 pp. \$1.50 (eloth). World War.
- Foreign Service List. [Quarterly list of United States diplomatic and consular representatives abroad.] Subscription, 50¢ a year; single copy, 15¢.
- **Press Releases.** [Weekly printings of mimeographed releases issued to the press.] Subscription. \$2 a year; single copy, 5¢. Indexed semiannually.
- Publications of the Department of State. [A list published quarterly, cumulative from October 1, 1929.] Free.
- Register of the Department of State. [Annual.] Issue of July 1, 1934. Publication No. 622. viii + 362 pp.
- Treaty Information. [Monthly.] Subscription, \$1 a year; single copy, 10¢. [A supplement to Bulletin No. 39, December 31, 1932, consists of a list of treaties and other international acts of the United States which were in force on that date. Publication No. 436. viii + 172 pp. 15¢.]

# **OTHER PUBLICATIONS**

Publications of the Department which appear at irregular intervals are grouped in well-defined series, where possible. These series, the titles of which indicate their content, include the following: Arbitration Series, Conference Series, Eastern European Series, Executive Agreement Series,¹ Latin American Series, Map Series, Near Eastern Series, Passport Series, Treaty Series, and Western European Series. Recent numbers in these series include the following:

#### Arbitration Series:

- No. 4(6). Salem Claim: Claim of the United States of America on Behalf of George J. Salem v. the Royal Government of Egypt under Protocol of January 20, 1931. Award of the Arbitral Tribunal; Dissenting Opinion of Hon. Fred K. Nielsen. Publication No. 483. iii+129 pp. 15¢.
- No. 5(6). Arbitration between the United States and Sweden under Special Agreement of December 17, 1930: The Kronprins Gustaf Adolf and the Pacific. Arbitral Decision and Record of Proceedings. (Photographic reprint.) Publication No. 402. 123 pp. 15¢.

¹ Exclusive of postal conventions, which are published by the Post Office Department.

Conference Series:

- No. 15. International Radiotelegraph Conference, Madrid, 1932: Report to the Secretary of State by the Chairman of the American Delegation, with Appended Documents. Publication No. 540. iii+364 pp. 30¢.
  No. 18. Some of the Results of the Montevideo Conference: Address by the Honorable Cordell
- No. 18. Some of the Results of the Montevideo Conference: Address by the Honorable Cordell Hull, Secretary of State, before the National Press Club, Washington, February 10, 1934. Publication No. 560. 11 pp. 5¢.

#### Eastern European Series:

- No. 2. Recognition of the Union of Soviet Socialist Republics: Radio Address by the Honorable R. Walton Moore, Assistant Secretary of State, November 22, 1933. Publication No. 557. 12 pp. 5¢.
  No. 3. The Establishment of Normal Relations between the United States and the Union of
- No. 3. The Establishment of Normal Relations between the United States and the Union of Soviet Socialist Republics: Address by the Honorable William C. Bullitt, American Ambassador to the Union of Soviet Socialist Republics, before the Chamber of Commerce of Philadelphia, January 19, 1934. Publication No. 553. 8 pp. 5¢.

#### Latin American Series:

No. 7. Relations between the United States and Cuba: Address by the Honorable Sumner Welles, Assistant Secretary of State, before the Young Democratic Clubs of America, District of Columbia Division, Washington, March 29, 1934. Publication No. 577. 16 pp. 5¢.

# **Passport Series:**

No. 2. Notice to Bearers of Passports. (Revised to March 7, 1934.) Publication No. 568. iv+51 pp. Free.

## Treaties and Other International Acts of the United States of America:

Volume 3. Documents 41-79: 1819-35. Publication No. 453. xxiv+833 pp.+map. \$5 (cloth).

In addition to the foregoing, miscellaneous publications such as the following are issued from time to time:

- Consular Mailing List of the Foreign Service of the United States, January 1, 1934. Publication No. 555. 10 pp. Free.
- Principles of American Policy—in Relation to the Far East: Address by Stanley K. Hornbeck, Department of State, before the Ninth Conference on the Cause and Cure of War, Washington, January 18, 1934. Publication No. 567. 25 pp. 5¢.
- Tariff Bargaining: Radio Address by the Honorable Francis B. Sayre, Assistant Secretary of State, March 26, 1934. Publication No. 574. 9 pp. 5¢.
   The Path to Recovery: Address by the Honorable Cordell Hull, Secretary of State, to the
- The Path to Recovery: Address by the Honorable Cordell Hull, Secretary of State, to the Members of the Associated Press, New York City, April 23, 1934. Publication No. 583. 14 pp. 5¢.
- The American Foreign Service: General Information for Applicants and Sample Entrance Examination Questions. (Revised to May 15, 1934.) Publication No. 591. iv+73 pp. Free.

The Department of State also publishes the slip laws, session laws, and Statutes at Large, as well as proclamations and Executive orders. The Statutes at Large, session laws, and slip laws may be purchased from the Superintendent of Documents, Government Printing Office, Washington, D.C. Proclamations and Executive orders may be secured from the Superintendent of Documents by special arrangement.

Laws, proclamations, and Executive orders are issued in separate series and are numbered within each series in the order in which they are signed. Treaties are numbered in the order in which they are proclaimed. All other publications of the Department, since October 1, 1929, are numbered serially as a group, in the order in which they are sent to the press, each with a publication number on the verso of its title page. This group is also subdivided into series according to general subject.

The Superintendent of Documents has for free distribution the following price lists which may be of interest: Foreign Relations of the United States; American History and Biography; Insular Possessions; Laws; and Maps. A list of publications of the Bureau of Foreign and Domestic Commerce may be obtained from the Department of Commerce.

35 v v v	JULY	Sun M Tu W Th F Sat	$ \begin{array}{c ccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	AUGUST	$ \begin{array}{c ccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	SEPTEMBER	1         2         3         4         5         6         7           8         9         10         11         12         13         14           15         16         17         18         19         20         21           22         23         24         25         26         27         28           29         30         24         25         26         27         28	OCTOBER	$ \begin{bmatrix} 6 & 1 & 1 & 2 & 1 & 3 & 4 & 15 \\ 15 & 14 & 15 & 16 & 17 & 18 & 19 \\ 20 & 21 & 22 & 23 & 24 & 25 & 26 \\ 27 & 28 & 29 & 30 & 31 & 24 & 25 & 26 \end{bmatrix} $	NOVEMBER	$ \begin{array}{c ccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	. DECEMBER	1         2         3         4         5         6         7           8         9         10         11         12         13         14         5         6         7           15         16         17         18         19         20         21           25         26         27         28         27         28           29         31         21         27         28
▼ ▼ ▼ <b>19</b> :	JANUARY	Sun M Tu W Th F Sat	$ \begin{bmatrix} 6 & 1 & 1 & 2 & 1 & 4 & 1 \\ 6 & 1 & 1 & 8 & 9 & 10 & 11 & 12 \\ 13 & 11 & 22 & 23 & 24 & 25 & 26 \\ 27 & 28 & 29 & 30 & 31 & 25 & 26 \\ \end{bmatrix} $	FEBRUARY	3         4         5         16         7         18         9         9         9         9         9         1         1         2         1         1         2         1         1         1         1         1         1         1         1         1         1         1         1         1         1         1         1         1         1         1         1         1         1         1         1         1         1         1         1         1         1         1         1         1         1         1         1         1         1         1         1         1         1         1         1         1         1         1         1         1         1         1         1         1         1         1         1         1         1         1         1         1         1         1         1         1         1         1         1         1         1         1         1         1         1         1         1         1         1         1         1         1         1         1         1         1         1         1         1         1         1	MARCH	3         1         5         6         7         1         2         9         9         9         9         9         1         1         1         1         1         1         1         1         1         1         1         1         1         1         1         1         1         1         1         1         1         1         1         1         1         1         1         1         1         1         1         1         1         1         1         1         1         1         1         1         1         1         1         1         1         1         1         1         1         1         1         1         1         1         1         1         1         1         1         1         1         1         1         1         1         1         1         1         1         1         1         1         1         1         1         1         1         1         1         1         1         1         1         1         1         1         1         1         1         1         1         1         1         1         1	APRIL	$ \begin{array}{c ccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	MAY	$ \begin{array}{c ccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	JUNE	2         13         4         15         16         7         18           16         17         18         19         20         21         22         22           23         24         25         26         27         28         20         21

	1												
		Sat	28		258-1+		22258-1		13 20 27	·	24		18 222 292
		-	13 20 27		31.24	L CL	28144	~	12 19 26	r	33 30 30 30 30	R	214 228
		Th	122	ST	303692	BE	27 220	BER	111 118 118	BE	158 158 222 222	BE	13 27 27
	1	W	258114	GU	23238-1	EM	20070	OE	170 31 31	EM	214 28 28	Ш	217a
	15	Tu	31 324	AU	14 21 28	Ld.	1114	U1	303692	No.	13 20 27 27	U U	118114
4		W	16 ⁹ 30		270	SE	10 17 24	0	13 222	NC	26 125	D	324103
m		Sun			122		30m2100		14 28 28		25814		000000 07-00
0		Sat	13 20 27		10 17 24		17 17 31		14 21 28		100 26 26		2 9 16 23 30
		12a	26925	RUARY	230.02	MARCH	23 30 30	APRIL	13 27 27	MAY	1181	JUNE	222 29 29
	RY	Th	111 225		15 22		1 8 15 22 29 29		102		10 31 31 31		14 14 28 28
	NA	M	324 314 31		·7 14 21 28		7 14 21 28		111 118 255 255		303692		13 13 27 27
Δ.	AN	Ta	16 16 30 30	EBF	13 20 27		6 13 20 27		24		1 15 22 29		26 125
	17	W	202500-	Ē	26 26 26		12 19 26		303192		7 14 21 28		11 18 25
		Sun	28147		111 4 255		4 11 18 25		20228-		13 27 27		10 17 24

. 4









